
 
 

Shelton City Council 
Meeting Agenda 

August 3, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. 
Civic Center 

 
 
A.  Call to Order 

• Pledge of Allegiance 
• Roll Call 
• Late Changes to the Agenda 

 
B.  Council Reports 
 
C.  Consent Agenda (Action) 

1.  Vouchers numbered 105416 through 105469 in the total amount of $76,517.49 
2.  Vouchers numbered 105470 through 105525 in the total amount of $323,206.93 
3.  Shelton Veterans Village Status Update – July 8, 2021 
4.  Minutes: 

• Business Meeting of April 6, 2021 
• Business Meeting of April 20, 2021 
• Study Session of April 27, 2021 

 
D.  Presentations 
     1.  Mason County Historical Society Museum 2nd Quarter LTAC Report – Presented by Liz 
          Arbaugh 
     2.  Water System Comprehensive Plan Update – Presented by City Engineer Ken Gill, Senior  
          Project Manager Lara Kammereck of Carollo Engineers and Engineer Natalie Reilly of Carollo  
          Engineers 
 
E.  General Public Comment (3-minute time limit) 

The City Council invites members of the public to provide comment on any topic at this time. Please sign in on the public 
comment sheet and keep an instruction card.  If you would like to comment on a Business or Action item, please list the 
agenda item number on the list. City Councilmembers and City Staff will not enter into a dialogue during public comment. 
If the Council feels an issue requires follow up, Staff will be directed to respond at an appropriate time. 

 
F.  Business Agenda (Study/No Action/Public Comment Taken) 
     1.  Public Hearing Ordinance No. 1963-1220 PUD 3 Franchise Agreement – Presented by City 
          Manager Jeff Niten 
 
G.  Action Agenda (Action/Public Comment Taken) 
     1.  Ordinance No. 1972-0621 Sewer Averaging for Summer Consumption – Presented by Finance 
          Director Aaron BeMiller 
     2.  Resolution No. 1203-0621 EM&R Roller Surplus – Presented by Public Works Director Jay Harris 
 
H.  Administration Reports 
      1. City Manager Report 
 
 
 
 



  
  

I.  New Items for Discussion 
 
J.  Announcement of Next Meeting – August 17, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. 
 
K.  Adjourn 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Special Note for Virtual Public Participation 
 

The meeting can be viewed at: masonwebtv.com 
The public can provide comments virtually by: 

Email:  jeff.niten@sheltonwa.gov (before 5:00 p.m. the day of the meeting) 
Telephone:  (360) 968-9004 

 
Your comments will be relayed directly to the Council. 

mailto:jeff.niten@sheltonwa.gov


 

Updated 07/27/2021 
 

 
2021 Looking Ahead 
    (Items and dates are subject to change) 

 
 

 
Tues. 8/10 
6:00 p.m. 

Study Session Study Agenda 
•  

Packet Items Due:  
Fri. 8/6 @ noon 

Tues. 8/17 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 
• June Financial Status Report 

Presentations 
•  

Business Agenda 
• Public Hearing Ordinance No. 1973-0621 

Updating SMC 8.08 
• MOU with Waste Connections – Updating 

Administrative Provisions 
• Resolution No. 1205-0721 Surplus Police 

Vehicles 
Action Agenda 

• Ordinance No. 1963-1220 Franchise 
Agreement – PUD #3 

• Civic Center Rotating Art Gallery 
recommendations 

Administration Report 
•  

Packet Items Due: 
8/6 – 5:00 p.m. 

Tues. 8/24 
6:00 p.m. 

Study Session Study Agenda 
• Western Gateway Project Update 
• Civic Center Parking Lot Project Update 

Packet Items Due: 
Fri. 8/20 @ noon 

Tues. 9/7 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentations 
•  

Business Agenda 
• Surplus Property                                                              
• Resolution No. 1186-1220 Surplus Computer 

Equipment    
• Public Hearing Ordinance No. 1968-0321 

Water Comp Plan Adoption 
Action Agenda 

• Ordinance No. 1973-0621 Updating SMC 8.08 
• MOU with Waste Connections – Updating 

Administrative Provisions 
• Resolution No. 1204-0621 Storm Drainage 

Charges-Commercial Discount 
• Resolution No. 1205-0721 Surplus Police 

Vehicles 
Administration Report 

Packet Items Due: 
8/27 – 5:00 p.m. 



 

Updated 07/27/2021 
 

•  
Tues. 9/14 
6:00 p.m. 

Study Session Study Agenda Packet Items Due:  
Fri. 9/10 @ noon 

Tues. 9/21 
5:45 p.m. 

SMPD Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Meeting Minutes 

Business Agenda 
•  

Action Agenda 
•  

Administration Report 
•  

Packet Items Due:  
9/10 – 5:00 p.m. 

Tues. 9/21 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 
• July Financial Status Report 

Presentations 
•  

Business Agenda 
•  

Action Agenda 
• Surplus Property 
• Resolution No. 1186-1220 Surplus Computer 

Equipment     
• Ordinance No. 1968-0321 Water Comp Plan 

Adoption 
Administration Report 

•  

Packet Items Due: 
9/10 – 5:00 p.m. 

Tues. 9/28 
6:00 p.m. 

Study Session Study Agenda Packet Items Due:  
Fri. 9/24 @ noon 

Tues. 10/5 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentations 
•  

Business Agenda 
• LTAC Grant Recommendations 

Action Agenda 
•  

Administration Report 
•  

Packet Items Due:  
9/24 – 5:00 p.m. 

Tues. 10/12 
6:00 p.m. 

Study Session Study Agenda Packet Items Due:  
Fri. 10/8 @ noon 

Tues. 10/19 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 
• August Financial Status Report 

Presentations 
•  

Business Agenda 
•  

Action Agenda 
• LTAC Grant Recommendations 

Administration Report 
•  

Packet Items Due: 
10/8 – 5:00 p.m. 



 

Updated 07/27/2021 
 

Tues. 10/26 
6:00 p.m. 

Study Session Study Agenda Packet Items Due:  
Fri. 10/22 @ noon 

Tues. 11/2 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentations 
•  

Business Agenda 
•  

Action Agenda 
•  

Administration Report 
•  

Packet Items Due: 
10/22 – 5:00 p.m. 

Tues. 11/9 
6:00 p.m. 

Study Session Study Agenda Packet Items Due:  
Fri. 11/5 @ noon 

Tues. 11/16 
6:00 p.m. 

 Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 
• September Financial Status Report 

Presentations 
•  

Business Agenda 
•  

Action Agenda 
•  

Administration Report 
•  

Packet Items Due:  
11/5 – 5:00 p.m. 

Other – TBD 

• UGA/Annexation Policy (Water/Sewer Extensions) 
• Outside City Water/Sewer Extensions 
• More Standing Committees by the Council  
• December 7, 2021 – C Street Update 



VOUCHER APPROVAL 

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify under penalty of perjury that the materials have been furnished, the 

services rendered or the labor performed as described herein vouchers number 105416 through 

number 105469 in the total amount of $76.517.49 that the claims are just, due and unpaid 

obligations against the City of Shelton, and that I am authorized to authenticate and certify said claims. 

Signed this f (p ""i!l of Juilt' , 2021 • 

We, the undersigned members of the City Council of Shelton, Washington, do hereby certify that the 

vouchers contained herein are approved for payment. 

Signed this ____ of _________ _, 2021. 

Mayor Kevin Dorcy 

Deputy Mayor Deidre Peterson 

Councilmember James Boad 

Councilmember Megan Fiess 

Councilmember Kathy McDowell 

Councilmember Eric Onisko 

Councilmember Joe Schmit 





Shelton Veterans Village 
 

7/8/2021 Status Updates 
Next Meetings: 9:00 AM, Tuesday July 20 (Jaycie hosting) then 9AM, Thursday August 12 

Entity Notes Action 
   
Olympic Engineering • Civil plan comments submitted to City of 

Shelton.   
• Awaiting City of Shelton 

permit approval. 
MSGS Architecture • Updating ESES binder (landscaping). 

 
• Working with indieDwell 

on L&I permit resubmittal 
Quixote Communities • Monitoring City of Shelton dirt pile. Will 

stockpile fit in City-provided space?  
• Pursuing materials donations. Pursuing 

Mason Consv. Dist. fee for service, 
grants & materials donations.  

• Water/sewer/fire taps before 7/19 chip 
seal not feasible. 

• Meeting with Evan at 
Mason Conv. Dist.  

• Providing Forma with 
funds available for 
immediate site work. 

• Consider wheeled 
dumpster trash enclosure 
vs. multiple trash cans  

Forma Construction  • Working with indieDwell on onsite scope 
of work.  

• Reliable Elec updating sheets for larger 
electric service  

• Including dumpster enclosure (roof & 
gate) allowance. Other trash solution 
btw Mason Refuse & City of Shelton? 

• To develop initial clear,  
grade & utilities scope of 
work to fit Quixote’s 
available funds 

indieDwell • Est. 90-120 days between contract & 
production start. Address donations in 
production contract. 

• Provided draft onsite work requirements 
 

• Updating L&I permit set. 
• Provide draft price est. 

ASAP using assumed scope 
of work. 

Mason County 
Conservation District 

• Evan Bauder is primary contact. 
• Scope of work to include grants, donate 

materials/labor, topsoil, amendments, & 
hydro seed (include utility excavations). 

 

 

Community 
Frameworks 

 • Confirming City of Shelton 
OK to cut 13th Street after 
July chip seal.  

• ID funds available for 
immediate site work. 

 

Via Email To: Jaycie Osterberg; Garner Miller; Dan Campbell; Michelle Hallen; Kelsey 
Johnston; Alberto Del Toro; Chris Merritt 
 



 
 

CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON - CITY COUNCIL 
City Council Meeting Minutes 

April 6, 2021 – 6:00 p.m. 
Virtual Platform 

 

COUNCILMEMBERS AND PERSONNEL 
Councilmembers Personnel 
Mayor Kevin Dorcy City Manager Jeff Niten 
Deputy Mayor Deidre Peterson City Clerk Donna Nault 
James Boad Community Development Director Mark Ziegler 
Megan Fiess   Finance Director Aaron BeMiller 
Kathy McDowell Public Works Director Jay Harris 
Eric Onisko Senior Planner Jason Dose 
Joe Schmit Public Works Technician Jared Welander 
  City Engineer Ken Gill 
  Police Chief Carole Beason 
  
CALL TO ORDER 
Call to Order – 6:00 p.m. 
Pledge of Allegiance – Mayor Dorcy 
Roll Call:  City Clerk Nault – All present  
LATE CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
Proclamation – City of Shelton National Public Safety Telecommunicators Week 
 
Mayor Dorcy – The public is able to make comments during the Public Comment period, as well 
as any items listed on the business or the action agendas.  When making a public comment you 
will need to state your full name and whether you reside within City limits, within Mason County 
or reside elsewhere.  There are three options for the public to participate in the meeting: (1) join  
the Zoom meeting by clicking the link on the city’s website, (2) email jeff.niten@sheltonwa.gov,  
and (3) by calling 360-432-5105. 
 
CITY COUNCIL REPORTS 
City Councilmembers attended or participated in the following: 
 LEOFF Board meeting 
 Congresswoman Marilyn Strickland’s visit to Shelton 
 Governor Inslee’s Declaration National Public Health Week 
 Squaxin Island Tribal Council - Joint City Council meeting 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
1. Voucher numbered 104430 in the amount of $7,592.90. 
2. Vouchers numbered 104431 through 104479 in the total amount of $134,745.68. 
3. Vouchers numbered 104480 through 104549 in the total amount of $299,199.96. 
4. Minutes from Business Meeting of January 19, 2021. 
 
A motion was made by Deputy Mayor Peterson and seconded by Councilmember Onisko.  
Passed. 

mailto:jeff.niten@sheltonwa.gov


 

City Council – Meeting Minutes 
April 6, 2021 - Virtual Platform Page 2 of 4 

 
PROCLAMATION  
1. National Public Safety Telecommunicators Proclamation declaring the week of April 11 – April 

17, 2021 in the City of Shelton. 
 
Mayor Dorcy read the proclamation, discussion followed. 
 
GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT 
No public comments. 
 
BUSINESS AGENDA 
1. Park Property Acquisitions – Presented by Community Development Director Mark Ziegler  
 
 The City has been working with Capitol Land Trust and Manke Timber Company to obtain 

52.22 acres of property comprised of three parcels located inside and outside of the southwest 
area of Shelton city limits.  Acquisition of the property would meet several priorities in the 
Parks, Recreation, Open Space and Trails Plan.  Discussion followed.  No public comments.   

 
      A motion was made by Deputy Mayor Peterson and seconded by Councilmember Onisko to 

move this item to the April 20, 2021 action agenda.  Passed. 
 
2. Shannon Park Property Acquisitions – Presented by Community Development Director Mark 

Ziegler 
   
 The property is a proposed fee simple acquisition of 7.28 acres of undeveloped land adjacent 
 to Kneeland Park to the west.  The acquisition has been identified in planning documents from 

the 1989 Park Plan to the current 2020 Parks, Recreation, Open Space and Trails Plan.   
Discussion followed.  No public comments.   

 
      A motion was made by Councilmember Onisko and seconded by Councilmember McDowell 

to move this item to the April 20, 2021 action agenda.  Passed. 
  
3. Traffic Box Wrap Recommendations – Presented by Community Development Director Mark 

Ziegler 
 
 The Shelton Arts Commission is seeking to install traffic box art wraps around the community. 

The project is sponsored by the Martha Reed Foundation.  The traffic box art wraps will be 
located at Wallace Kneeland & Bell Lane, 7th & Alder, and Wallace Kneeland & Spring Road.  
Discussion followed.  No public comments.   

 
      A motion was made by Councilmember Fiess and seconded by Councilmember Schmit to 

move this item to the April 20, 2021 action agenda.  Passed. 
 
4. Resolution No. 1190-0221 Sweeper Equipment Purchase – Presented by Public Works 

Technician Jared Welander 
  
 A regular street sweeping program is required by the new State NPDES storm water permit 

and is vital for maintaining safety, storm water quality, and aesthetics throughout the City. The 
vacuum style street sweeper being proposed is the R4 Air Regenerative.  Discussion followed.  
No public comments.   

 
      A motion was made by Deputy Mayor Peterson and seconded by Councilmember Schmit to 

move this item to the April 20, 2021 action agenda.  Passed. 



 

City Council – Meeting Minutes 
April 6, 2021 - Virtual Platform Page 3 of 4 

 
5. Resolution No. 1193-0421 Streamflow Restoration Planning – Presented by City Engineer 

Ken Gill 
 
 Legislature passed the streamflow restoration law (RCW 90.94) that helps restore streamflow 

to levels necessary to support sustainable salmon populations while providing water for 
homes in rural Washington.  The law directs local planning groups to develop watershed plans 
that offset impacts from new domestic permit-exempt wells and achieve a net ecological 
benefit within the watershed.  Discussion followed. No public comments.  

 
      A motion was made by Deputy Mayor Peterson and seconded by Councilmember Fiess to 

move this item to the April 20, 2021 action agenda.  Passed. 
 

ACTION AGENDA 
 
1. Municipal Code Steering Committee Appointments – Presented by Community Development 

Director Mark Ziegler 
 
 The City sought letters of interest from the community specifically targeting developers, 

building advocacy, design professionals and the business community to serve on a steering 
committee that will assist staff in the review and writing of development-specific code updates. 

             Eight individuals wrote letters of interest:  Mike Olsen, local builder, Len Williams, AIA Williams 
              Architecture, Keith Fuller, realtor, John Allen, local builder, Will Johnson, local builder, Nathan    
              Stout, local plumber, Marty Crow, Habitat for Humanity, and Hillary Browning, Department of  

      Natural Resources.  Discussion followed.  No public comments. 
 
 A motion was made by Councilmember Kathy McDowell to appoint Len Williams, Keith Fuller, 

John Allen, Nathan Stout, and Marty Crow to the City’s Municipal Code Steering Committee.  
The motion was seconded by Councilmember Schmit.  Passed.   

 
2. Resolution No. 1189-0221 Well 1 Rehab Design Contract Amendment No. 2 – Presented by 

Public Works Director Jay Harris 
  
 Amendment No. 2 is to add $102,500 to the Gray & Osborne, Inc. contract amount to complete 

the design, bid package and extend the contract term to December 31, 2021.  Discussion 
followed. No public comments. City Clerk Nault provided a reading of Resolution No. 1189-
0221.   

 
      A motion was made by Councilmember Onisko and seconded by Councilmember Fiess.  

Passed. 
 
3. Veterans Village National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) Certification – Presented by 

Senior Planner Dose 
 
 The City was informed by Quixote Communities that attempts were being made to secure 

federal project-based vouchers to provide aid to low-income residents.  To benefit from the 
federal funding, there is a requirement the project be evaluated pursuant to NEPA. The 
environmental assessment resulted in a finding of no significant impact with no required 
mitigation.  City staff is requesting authorization for signature of the environmental 
assessment by Mayor Dorcy.  No public comments.   

 
      A motion was made by Deputy Mayor Peterson and seconded by Councilmember Schmit.  

Passed. 



 

City Council – Meeting Minutes 
April 6, 2021 - Virtual Platform Page 4 of 4 

 
4. Resolution No. 1191-0221 Shelton High School Special Use Permit Acceptance – Presented 

by Senior Planner Dose 
 
 The School District is requesting a special use permit to allow for construction of 15,000 

square feet of classroom space and two 1,750 square foot portable classroom.  No public 
comments. City Clerk Nault provided a reading of Resolution No. 1191-0221.  

 
      A motion was made by Councilmember Onisko and seconded by Councilmember Fiess.  

Passed. 
  
5. Resolution No. 1192-0321 Master Fee Schedule Update – Presented by Finance Director 

Aaron BeMiller 
 
 City Council approved Resolution 1184-1120 on January 19, 2021.  Since that time, the city 

and Central Mason Fire and EMS (CMFE) entered into an Interlocal Agreement beginning 
January 2021.  For 2021, the city will pay CMFE a flat monthly charge for their CMFE services.  
The Resolution will retroactively implement fire fees to begin January 1, 2021.  No public 
comments. City Clerk Nault provided a reading of Resolution No. 1192-0321.  

 
      A motion was made by Councilmember Schmit and seconded by Deputy Mayor Peterson.  

Passed. 
 
ADMINISTRATION REPORT 
City Manager Report – Presented by City Manager Jeff Niten 
 Congresswoman Marilyn Strickland’s visit to Shelton 
 Squaxin Tribal Council – Joint City Council Meeting 
 Stormwater – informational pamphlet to be distributed to property owners.  Public hearing 

May 4, 2021 
 Spotlight Shelton – virtual event April 15, 2021 
 City Council work session – April 27, 2021 
 Looking Ahead: 

o April 20, 2021 – City’s smartphone application demonstration. 
 
NEW ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION 
None 
 
ANNOUNCEMENT OF NEXT MEETING 
April 20, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. 
 
MEETING ADJOURN 
Mayor Dorcy adjourned the meeting at 7:43 p.m. 
 
 
_________________________________  _________________________________ 
Mayor Kevin Dorcy  City Clerk Donna Nault 



 
 

CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON - CITY COUNCIL 
City Council Meeting Minutes 

April 20, 2021 – 6:00 p.m. 
Virtual Platform 

 

COUNCILMEMBERS AND PERSONNEL 
Councilmembers Personnel 
Mayor Kevin Dorcy City Manager Jeff Niten 
Deputy Mayor Deidre Peterson City Clerk Donna Nault 
James Boad Community Development Director Mark Ziegler 
Megan Fiess   Administrative Services Director Michelle Sutherland 
Kathy McDowell HR Analyst LeAndra Sharp 
Eric Onisko Communications Specialist Mary Ricker 
Joe Schmit Public Works Technician Jared Welander 
  City Engineer Ken Gill 
  Fire Chief Mike Patti 
  Accounting Manager Teri Schnitzer 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Call to Order – 6:00 p.m. 
Pledge of Allegiance – Deputy Mayor Peterson 
Roll Call:  City Clerk Nault – All present 
 
LATE CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
Action Agenda – Add Streamflow Restoration Planning 
 
Mayor Dorcy – The public is able to make comments during the Public Comment period, as well 
as any items listed on the business or the action agendas.  When making a public comment you 
will need to state your full name and whether you reside within City limits, within Mason County 
or reside elsewhere.  There are three options for the public to participate in the meeting: (1) join  
the Zoom meeting by clicking the link on the city’s website, (2) email jeff.niten@sheltonwa.gov,  
and (3) by calling 360-432-5105. 
 
CITY COUNCIL REPORTS 
No reports. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
1. Vouchers numbered 104556 through 104589 in the total amount of $29,204.91. 
2. Voucher numbered 104613 in the amount of $9,019.90. 
3. Vouchers numbered 104614 through 104658 in the total amount of $56,280.53. 
4. Shelton-Mason County Chamber of Commerce 1st Quarter LTAC Report – Written by 
 President/CEO Heidi McCutcheon. 
5. Minutes from Business Meeting of February 2, 2021. 
 
A motion was made by Deputy Mayor Peterson and seconded by Councilmember Onisko.  Passed. 
 
 

mailto:jeff.niten@sheltonwa.gov


 
 

City Council – Meeting Minutes 
April 20, 2021 - Virtual Platform Page 2 of 3 

PRESENTATIONS  
1. MyCivic App Demonstration – Presented by Administrative Services Director Michelle 

Sutherland, HR Analyst LeAndra Sharp & Communications Specialist Mary Ricker 
 
 The presentation provided an overview of MyCivic App, which has a customizable platform 

designed to promote civic engagement. 
 
GENERAL PUBLIC COMMENT 
No public comments. 
 
BUSINESS AGENDA 
1. Shelton Skate Park Interlocal Agreement (ILA) – Presented by Community Development Director 

Mark Ziegler 
 
 The Shelton Skate Park is located on Shelton School District property.  The skate park was 

previously operated by Mason County until a request was made to the City to take over operations 
in 2014.  A Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) was entered into with Mason County to 
manage, maintain and explore future replacement of the skate park.  City Attorney Haggard has 
recommended entering into an ILA rather than renewing the existing MOU.  The ILA has been 
approved by the Mason County Commissioners and is under review with the Shelton School 
District.  Discussion followed.  No public comments.  

 
      A motion was made by Councilmember Fiess and seconded by Councilmember Onisko to move 

this item to the May 4, 2021 action agenda.  Passed. 
 
ACTION AGENDA 
1. Park Property Acquisitions – Presented by Community Development Director Mark Ziegler  
 
 The City has been working with Capitol Land Trust and Manke Timber Company to obtain 52.22 

acres of property comprised of three parcels located inside and outside of the southwest area of 
Shelton city limits.  Acquisition of the property would meet several priorities in the Parks, 
Recreation, Open Space and Trails Plan.  Discussion followed.  No public comments.   

 
      A motion was made by Councilmember Onisko and seconded by Councilmember McDowell.  

Passed. 
 
2. Shannon Park Property Acquisitions – Presented by Community Development Director Mark 

Ziegler 
 
 The property is a proposed fee simple acquisition of 7.28 acres of undeveloped land adjacent 
 to Kneeland Park.  The acquisition has been identified in planning documents from the 1989 Park 

Plan to the current 2020 Parks, Recreation, Open Space and Trails Plan.  Discussion followed.  
No public comments.   

 
      A motion was made by Deputy Mayor Peterson and seconded by Councilmember Onisko.  

Passed. 
 
3. Traffic Box Wrap Recommendations – Presented by Community Development Director Mark 

Ziegler 
 
 The Shelton Arts Commission is seeking to install traffic box art wraps around the community. 

The project is sponsored by the Martha Reed Foundation.  The traffic box art wraps will be located 
at Wallace Kneeland & Bell Lane, 7th & Alder, and Wallace Kneeland & Spring Road.  No public 
comments.   

 



 
 

City Council – Meeting Minutes 
April 20, 2021 - Virtual Platform Page 3 of 3 

      A motion was made by Deputy Mayor Peterson ad seconded by Councilmember McDowell.      
      Passed.    
    
4. Resolution No. 1190-0221 Sweeper Equipment Purchase – Presented by Public Works 

Technician Jared Welander 
  
 A regular street sweeping program is required by the new state NPDES storm water permit and 

is vital for maintaining safety, storm water quality, and aesthetics throughout the City. The vacuum 
style street sweeper being proposed is the Global R4 Air Regenerative.  Discussion followed.  No 
public comments.  City Clerk Nault provided the reading of Resolution 1190-0221.     

 
      A motion was made by Deputy Mayor Peterson and seconded by Councilmember Onisko.  

Passed. 
 
5. Resolution No. 1193-0421 Streamflow Restoration Planning – Presented by City Engineer Ken 

Gill 
 
 Legislature passed the streamflow restoration law (RCW 90.94) that helps restore streamflow to 

levels necessary to support sustainable salmon populations while providing water for homes in 
rural Washington.  The law directs local planning groups to develop watershed plans that offset 
impacts from new domestic permit-exempt wells and achieve a net ecological benefit within the 
watershed.  Discussion followed. No public comments.  City Clerk Nault provided the reading of 
Resolution No. 1193-0421.  

 
      A motion was made by Councilmember Onisko and seconded by Deputy Mayor Peterson.    

Passed. 
 
ADMINISTRATION REPORT 
City Manager Report – Presented by City Manager Jeff Niten 
 City Building Official Sean Carlstrom obtained the Master Code Professional Certification 
 April 27, 2021 – Stormwater work session 
 Blanket right-of-way permit for commercial areas in the city to spruce-up their properties 
 Looking Ahead: 

o May 4, 2021 – Financial Information presentation 
o May 18, 2021 – Year-end financials for 2020 and first quarter 2021 
o Streamlining B&O Taxes 

 
NEW ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION 
None 
 
ANNOUNCEMENT OF NEXT MEETING 
May 4, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. 
 
MEETING ADJOURN 
Mayor Dorcy adjourned the meeting at 6:46 p.m. 
 
 
 
_________________________________  _________________________________ 
Mayor Kevin Dorcy  City Clerk Donna Nault 



 
 

CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON - CITY COUNCIL 
Study Session – April 27, 2021 

VIRTUAL PLATFORM  
Shelton Civic Center - 6:00 p.m. 

 

City Council - Study Session Minutes 
April 27, 2021 Page 1 of 1 
 

COUNCILMEMBERS AND PERSONNEL  
Councilmembers: Personnel:  
Mayor Kevin Dorcy City Manager Jeff Niten 
Deputy Mayor Deidre Peterson City Clerk Donna Nault 
James Boad Public Works Director Jay Harris 
Megan Fiess Public Works Administrative Manager Brooke Kilts  
Kathy McDowell 
Eric Onisko    
Joe Schmit 
 
Guests:   
FCS Group – John Ghilarducci and Tage Aaker 
  
CALL TO ORDER 
Call to Order – 6:00 p.m. 
Roll Call – City Clerk Nault – All present (Councilmember Boad joined at 6:15 p.m.) 
 
STUDY SESSION 
1.  Stormwater Rates – Presented by Public Works Director Jay Harris & FCS Group 
 
The presentation provided an overview of existing stormwater rates, how utility rates are 
established in order to cover the cost of providing services, and an introduction of a new rate 
structure.  Discussion followed. 
 
NEW ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION 
No new items 
 
ANNOUNCEMENT OF NEXT MEETING 
None 
 
ADJOURN 
Mayor Dorcy adjourned the meeting at 7:53 p.m. 
 
 
 
_________________________________  _________________________________ 
Mayor Kevin Dorcy     City Clerk Donna Nault 



 

 
 
2nd Quarter 2021 Visitor Information Report 
July 21, 2021 
 

Month Total Attendance > 50 Miles Out of State Out of Country  

      

April  132 43 21 2  

May 100 24 10   

June 147 46 29 1  

      

Total 379 113 60 3  

      
 

 The museum began its new schedule on June 1, 2021.  The hours of operation pre-
pandemic were 11-5, Tuesday through Friday and 11-4 Saturdays.  Our new hours are 
10-4, Tuesday through Friday, and remain the same on Saturdays.  The earlier start 
time has proven to capture more summer visitors and be more convenient for our 
members. 
 

 The museum has seen the return of visitors from around the US, as people begin to 
travel again, although visits are about half of the same quarter in 2019.  States 
represented include Arizona, California, Colorado, Florida, Maine, Minnesota, 
Montana, New York, Oregon, Pennsylvania, Texas, Utah, and Wisconsin. We also 
had a visitor from British Columbia and two from Korea. 
 

 The museum has produced a new rack card (see attached) featuring the art of 
Waldo Chase, and highlighting the unique history of Mason County.  A coordinating 
advertisement ran in the Visitors Guide printed by the Shelton Mason County 
Journal.  
 

 In recognition of Forest Festival, the museum has a temporary exhibit featuring 
artifacts from the filming of “Ring of Fire,” the 1961 movie filmed in part in Mason 
County and featuring many local residents as extras.   

 
 Planning continues for the exhibit “Orre Nobles: Art and Whimsy on Hood 

Canal.”  The exhibit will begin with a members-only reception on August 20th, and 
open to the public on August 21, 2021, with a tentative end date of October 18, 
2021.  
 

 The Mason County Historical Society Museum website had over 2600 visits during the 
2nd quarter of 2021, a 10% increase from the previous quarter. The museum’s 
Facebook page continues to be popular, with a post about the tunnel at Irene S. Reed 
High School receiving over 5,300 views and having over 500 reactions. 
 

The Mason County Historical Society thanks the City of Shelton for its support. 



Explore the History  

of  the  

South Salish Sea 

426 West Railroad Avenue 

Shelton, Washington   98584 

(360)426-1020 



T ribal members and settlers, timber barons 

and loggers, artists, business people and farmers; 

early life in the wild Pacific Northwest.  The 

Mason County Historical Museum is housed in 

the former Shelton City Hall and Library 

building. It contains our extensive collection of 

archives, photographs, art, and artifacts from 

the early people and industries of timber, 

railroads, aquaculture, and agriculture.  The 

1914 Georgian Revival style building was 

designed by Frederick Heath and is on the 

National Register of Historic Places 

Pick up a copy of our Historic Walking Tour! 

Hours:  

Tuesday-Friday 10:00 AM - 4:00 PM 

Saturday 11:00 - 4:00 PM  

 

 P.O. Box 1366 

427 West Railroad Avenue 

Shelton, Washington   98585 

360.426.1020 

Masoncountyhistoricalsociety.org 

Front : “Clallum” - by Waldo Chase —1929 



Water System 
Comprehensive Plan 
Update 
DRAFT I July 2021





WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CONTENTS | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | i 

Contents 
Executive Summary 

ES.1 Introduction ES-1 

ES.2 Water Requirements ES-1 

ES.3 Description of Water System ES-6 

ES.4 Water Use Efficiency ES-13 

ES.5 System Analysis ES-13 

ES.6 Water Quality ES-16 

ES.7 Source Water Protection ES-16 

ES.8 Operations and Maintenance ES-17 

ES.9 Capital Improvement Program ES-18 

ES.10 Financial Plan ES-21 

Chapter 1 - Introduction 

1.1 Purpose 1-1 

1.2 Objectives 1-1 

1.3 Location 1-2 

1.4 Ownership and Management 1-2 

1.5 Environmental Assessment 1-3 

1.6 Approval Process 1-3 

1.7 DOH Water System Plan Checklist 1-3 

Chapter 2 - Water Requirements 

2.1 Introduction 2-1 

2.2 Land Use 2-2 

2.3 Demographic Analysis 2-2 

2.4 Historical Production and Consumption 2-5 

2.4.1 Historical Water Production 2-5 

2.4.2 Historical Water Accounts 2-7 

2.4.3 Historical Water Consumption 2-9 

2.4.4 Historical Seasonal Water Consumption 2-9 

2.4.5 Distribution System Leakage 2-9 

2.4.6 Equivalent Residential Units 2-14 



CITY OF SHELTON | CONTENTS | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

ii | JULY 2021  

2.5 Projected Water Demand 2-15 

2.5.1 Demand Projection Parameters 2-15 

2.5.2 Account Projections 2-17 

2.5.3 ERU Projections 2-18 

2.5.4 Projected ADD and MDD 2-18 

2.5.5 Projected Demand by Pressure Zone 2-19 

Chapter 3 - Description of the Water System 

3.1 Introduction 3-1 

3.2 Existing Water System 3-1 

3.2.1 Location 3-1 

3.2.2 System Background 3-3 

3.2.3 Land Use and Zoning 3-3 

3.3 Neighboring/Adjacent Purveyors 3-7 

3.3.1 Port of Shelton 3-9 

3.3.2 Washington Corrections Center 3-9 

3.3.3 Washington State Patrol Academy 3-9 

3.3.4 Neighboring Group A and Group B Water Systems 3-9 

3.4 Inventory of Existing Facilities 3-10 

3.5 Water System Updates Since the 2010 Water Plan 3-10 

3.5.1 Distribution System Overview 3-10 

3.5.2 Source Supply 3-15 

3.5.3 Storage 3-19 

3.5.4 Booster Pump Stations 3-20 

3.6 Policies and Criteria 3-21 

3.6.1 Water Service and Service Extensions 3-21 

3.6.2 System Analysis Criteria 3-27 

3.6.3 City of Shelton Comprehensive Plan Policies 3-30 

3.6.4 Financial Policies 3-34 

Chapter 4 - Water Conservation Plan 

4.1 Introduction 4-1 

4.2 Conservation Program Development and Implementation 4-1 

4.3 Data Collection 4-1 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CONTENTS | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | iii 

4.4 Demand Forecasting 4-1 

4.5 WUE Measures 4-1 

4.5.1 WUE Goal 1: Reduce Total Consumption 4-2 

4.5.2 WUE Goal 2: Maintain Low Distribution System Leakage 4-3 

4.5.3 WUE Goal 3: Reduce Residential Water Consumption 4-4 

4.6 Enhanced Conservation Measures 4-4 

4.7 Distribution System Leakage 4-4 

4.7.1 Water Loss Control Action Plan 4-4 

4.8 WUE Program Implementation 4-5 

4.8.1 Public Notice 4-5 

4.8.2 WUE Reports 4-5 

4.9 Use of Reclaimed Water 4-5 

Chapter 5 - System Analysis 

5.1 Introduction 5-1 

5.2 System Analysis Planning Scenarios 5-1 

5.3 Distribution System and Planned Improvements 5-1 

5.4 Supply Analysis 5-3 

5.4.1 Criteria and Methodology 5-3 

5.4.2 Existing Sources of Supply 5-3 

5.4.3 System-Wide Analysis 5-3 

5.4.4 System-Wide Supply Recommendations 5-4 

5.4.5 Supply Analysis by Pressure Zone 5-5 

5.4.6 Supply Recommendations Summary 5-8 

5.5 Storage Analysis 5-8 

5.5.1 Storage Components 5-8 

5.5.2 Criteria and Methodology 5-9 

5.5.3 Storage Requirements 5-9 

5.5.4 Storage Analysis 5-11 

5.5.5 Storage Recommendations 5-12 

5.6 Hydraulic Model Update and Calibration 5-13 

5.6.1 Hydraulic Model Calibration Overview and Methodology 5-13 

5.6.2 Model Recommendations 5-19 



CITY OF SHELTON | CONTENTS | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

iv | JULY 2021  

5.7 Distribution System Analysis 5-19 

5.7.1 Key Hydraulic Model Scenarios 5-19 

5.7.2 Model Assumptions for Improvement Projects 5-19 

5.7.3 Evaluation Criteria 5-20 

5.7.4 Analysis 5-20 

5.7.5 Recommended Improvements 5-27 

5.8 Limiting Capacity Analysis 5-31 

5.8.1 Data sources 5-31 

5.8.2 Source Limiting Capacity 5-31 

5.8.3 Treatment Limiting Capacity 5-32 

5.8.4 Storage Limiting Capacity 5-32 

5.8.5 Distribution / Transmission Limiting Capacity 5-32 

5.9 Summary of System Analysis Recommendations 5-34 

5.9.1 Recommended Supply Projects 5-34 

5.9.2 Recommended Storage Projects 5-34 

5.9.3 Recommended Pressure Zone Improvement Projects 5-34 

5.9.4 Recommended Pump Station Improvements 5-35 

5.9.5 Recommended Fire Flow Deficiency Improvements 5-36 

5.9.6 Shelton Hills Improvements 5-36 

5.10 Areas of Shelton Urban Growth Area Not Currently Served by City 5-36 

Chapter 6 - Water Quality 

6.1 Water Quality Plan and Treatment 6-1 

6.1.1 Treatment 6-1 

6.1.2 Water Quality Monitoring 6-2 

6.2 State and Federal Regulatory Requirements 6-2 

6.2.1 Revised Total Coliform Rule 6-5 

6.2.2 Stage 1 and 2 Disinfectants/Disinfection Byproducts Rules 6-6 

6.2.3 Groundwater Rule 6-6 

6.2.4 Arsenic Rule 6-6 

6.2.5 Radionuclides Rule 6-6 

6.2.6 Inorganic Chemical Analysis 6-6 

6.2.7 Organic Chemical Analysis 6-7 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CONTENTS | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | v 

6.2.8 Lead and Copper Rule 6-7 

6.2.9 Unregulated Contaminant Monitoring Rule 6-8 

6.2.10 Consumer Confidence Report Rule 6-8 

6.2.11 Public Notification Rule 6-8 

6.2.12 Future Regulations 6-9 

6.3 Recommended Improvements 6-9 

Chapter 7 - Source Water Protection 

7.1 Introduction 7-1 

7.2 Wellhead Protection Program 7-1 

7.3 Susceptibility Assessment 7-2 

7.4 Wellhead Protection Area 7-2 

7.5 Inventory of Potential Contamination Threats 7-6 

7.6 Documentation of Notification Letters 7-6 

7.7 Management Strategies and Implementation Tasks 7-6 

7.8 Wellhead Protection Implementation Tasks 7-7 

7.9 Contingency Plan 7-8 

7.10 Spill/Incident Response Planning 7-8 

Chapter 8 - Operations and Maintenance 

8.1 Introduction 8-1 

8.2 Water System Management and Personnel 8-1 

8.2.1 Public Works Director, City Engineer, and Superintendent of Public Works 8-3 

8.2.2 Operations Staff 8-3 

8.2.3 Cross-Connection Control Specialist 8-3 

8.2.4 City Manager 8-4 

8.2.5 Mayor and City Council 8-4 

8.3 Operator Training 8-4 

8.4 Operating Procedures and Preventative Maintenance 8-4 

8.4.1 Routine System Operation 8-4 

8.4.2 Preventive Maintenance Program 8-5 

8.4.3 Equipment, Supplies, and Chemical Listing 8-6 

8.4.4 Vendor Contacts 8-7 

8.5 Water Quality Sampling Procedures and Program 8-7 



CITY OF SHELTON | CONTENTS | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

vi | JULY 2021  

8.6 Emergency Response Program 8-7 

8.6.1 Water System Personnel, Emergency Call-up List, and Notification Procedures 8-8 

8.6.2 Vulnerability Analysis 8-8 

8.6.3 Contingency Operational Plan 8-9 

8.7 Safety Procedures 8-9 

8.8 Cross-Connection Control Program 8-10 

8.9 Customer Complaint Response Program 8-10 

8.10 Record-Keeping and Reporting 8-10 

8.11 Operations and Maintenance Deficiencies 8-11 

8.12 Operations and Maintenance Recommendations 8-11 

Chapter 9 - Capital Improvement Program 

9.1 Introduction 9-1 

9.1.1 Capital Project Categories 9-1 

9.1.2 Capital Project Types 9-1 

9.2 Cost Estimating Assumptions 9-2 

9.2.1 Cost Estimate Level 9-2 

9.2.2 Pipeline Unit Costs 9-2 

9.2.3 Supply Costs 9-2 

9.2.4 Storage Costs 9-3 

9.2.5 Pump Station Costs 9-3 

9.2.6 Miscellaneous Costs 9-3 

9.2.7 Cost Factors and Contingency 9-4 

9.3 Cost Summary 9-4 

9.4 Project Descriptions 9-8 

9.5 CIP Cost Summary 9-8 

Chapter 10 - Financial Plan 

10.1 Introduction 10-1 

10.2 Historical Financial Performance 10-1 

10.2.1 Current Water Rates, Fees, and Charges 10-1 

10.2.2 Historical Financial Operations 10-3 

10.2.3 Outstanding Debt 10-3 

10.3 Financial Policies 10-5 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CONTENTS | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | vii 

10.4 Financial Forecast 10-5 

10.4.1 Projected Capital Improvement Projects 10-5 

10.4.2 Projected Operating Revenues and Expenditures 10-6 

10.4.3 Financial Forecast – Water Rate Increases, No New Debt 10-7 

10.5 Available Funding Assistance and Financing Resources 10-11 

10.5.1 Grants and Low Cost Loans 10-11 

10.6 Financial Analysis Summary 10-11 

10.7 Recommendations 10-12 

Appendices 
Appendix 1A  Notice of Determination of Non-Significance (DNS) 

Appendix 1B  State Environmental Policy Act (SEPA) 

Appendix 1C  Agency Comment Letters and Responses 

Appendix 1D  Local Government Consistency Determination Form 

Appendix 1E  Ordinances and Approvals 

Appendix 1F  Water System Plan Submittal Form 

Appendix 2A  Demographic and Demand Forecast Tables 

Appendix 3A  Interlocal Agreements 

Appendix 3B  Water Facilities Form 

Appendix 3C  Water Rights Documentation 

Appendix 3D  City of Shelton Design and Construction Standards 

Appendix 3E  Comprehensive Plans 

Appendix 4A  WUE Performance Report 

Appendix 4B  WUE Public Education 

Appendix 5A  Hydraulic Model Calibration 

Appendix 5B  Water Rights Self-Assessment 

Appendix 6A  Drinking Water Quality Monitoring Program 

Appendix 6B  Consumer Confidence Report 

Appendix 6C  Coliform Monitoring Plan and Detection Advisory 

Appendix 7A  Wellhead Protection Plan 

Appendix 8A  Emergency Response Plan 

Appendix 8B  O&M Information for SCADA and Chlorination Systems 

Appendix 8C  Material Safety Data Sheets 



CITY OF SHELTON | CONTENTS | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

viii | JULY 2021  

Appendix 8D  Cross-Connection Control Plan 

Appendix 9A  Capital Improvement Program Project Sheets 

Appendix 10A  Financial Policies 

Tables 
Table ES.1 Historical Water Use ES-2 

Table ES.2 ERU Projections for Low, Medium, High Demand Scenarios ES-3 

Table ES.3 Projected ADD and MDD for Low, Medium, High Demand Scenarios ES-3 

Table ES.4 CIP Summary by Project Type ES-19 

Table ES.5 CIP Summary by Project Category ES-19 

Table 1.1 DOH Water System Plan Checklist 1-3 

Table 2.1 Demographic Growth Rates 2-2 

Table 2.2 Historical Water Use 2-6 

Table 2.3 Historical Number of Connections 2-8 

Table 2.4 Consumption by Customer Class (gpd) 2-10 

Table 2.5 Water Consumption per Account by Class (gpd) 2-11 

Table 2.6 Historical Distribution System Leakage 2-14 

Table 2.7 Historical ERUs 2-15 

Table 2.8 Demand Projection Parameters 2-16 

Table 2.9 Annexation 2041 Water Demands 2-17 

Table 2.10 Account Projections by Customer Type 2-17 

Table 2.11 ERU Projections for Low, Medium, High Demand Scenarios 2-18 

Table 2.12 Projected ADDs for Low, Medium, High Demand Scenarios 2-19 

Table 2.13 Projected MDDs for Low, Medium, High Demand Scenarios 2-19 

Table 2.14 Growth in ADD by Pressure Zone 2-19 

Table 3.1 Pressure Zone Summary 3-10 

Table 3.2 Water Mains by Diameter 3-15 

Table 3.3 City of Shelton Water Right Summary 3-16 

Table 3.4 Source Pumping Capacity 3-17 

Table 3.5 Disinfection Metering Pumps 3-18 

Table 3.6 City of Shelton Pumping Ability to Serve 3-19 

Table 3.7 Storage Reservoir Summary 3-20 

Table 3.8 Booster Pump Station Summary 3-21 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CONTENTS | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | ix 

Table 3.9 Water Service and Service Extensions 3-22 

Table 3.10 System Analysis Criteria 3-28 

Table 4.1 Total Demand Projection with WUE Goal 1 4-2 

Table 5.1 Projected Demands for Medium Demand Scenario 5-1 

Table 5.2 Existing Supplies with 2041 Demands 5-4 

Table 5.3 Future Supplies with 2040 Demands 5-4 

Table 5.4 Storage Criteria 5-9 

Table 5.5 Existing, Dead, and Operational Storage 5-10 

Table 5.6 Required Equalizing Storage by Pressure Zone 5-10 

Table 5.7 Required Nested Standby Storage/FSS by Pressure Zone 5-11 

Table 5.8 System-Wide Storage Analysis 5-11 

Table 5.9 System-Wide Storage Analysis with Improvements 5-12 

Table 5.10 Future Storage by Pressure Zone with 2041 Demands 5-13 

Table 5.11 Calibration Summary Results 5-17 

Table 5.12 2040 Limiting Capacity 5-33 

Table 5.13 Recommended Improvements for Fire Flow Deficiencies 5-37 

Table 6.1 Drinking Water Regulations Water System Plan Update 6-3 

Table 6.2 Exceedances in Past 10 Years 6-5 

Table 6.3 Outlines other Proposed Future Regulatory Requirements that the City is 
Monitoring 6-9 

Table 8.1 Vendor Contacts 8-7 

Table 8.2 Emergency Call-up List 8-8 

Table 8.3 Record-Keeping and Reporting 8-10 

Table 8.4 America’s Water Infrastructure Act Requirements 8-13 

Table 9.1 Pipeline Unit Cost 9-2 

Table 9.2 Supply Unit Costs 9-3 

Table 9.3 Reservoir Unit Costs 9-3 

Table 9.4 Pump Station Costs 9-3 

Table 9.5 Miscellaneous Costs 9-3 

Table 9.6 Contingency Costs 9-4 

Table 9.7 Capital Improvement Program Summary 9-5 

Table 9.8 CIP Summary by Project Type 9-8 

Table 9.9 CIP Summary by Project Category 9-8 



CITY OF SHELTON | CONTENTS | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

x | JULY 2021  

Table 10.1 2020 Water Base Rate Monthly Meter Charge 10-1 

Table 10.2 2020 Consumption Charges 10-2 

Table 10.3 Current General Facility Charges 10-2 

Table 10.4 Historical Operating Revenue 10-4 

Table 10.5 Historical Operating Expenses 10-4 

Table 10.6 Projected CIP Projects Expenditures 10-8 

Table 10.7 Projected Operating Revenue 10-8 

Table 10.8 Projected Operating Expenditures 10-9 

Table 10.9 Summary Projected Cash Flow (2020-2030) 10-9 

Figures 
Figure ES.1 Future Service Area with Existing Land Use by Parcel ES-4 

Figure ES.2 Future Service Area with Future Land Use ES-5 

Figure ES.3 Historical and Projected Average and Maximum Day Demands ES-6 

Figure ES.4 Shelton Area Map ES-8 

Figure ES.5 Shelton Existing Water System ES-9 

Figure ES.6 Hydraulic Profile ES-11 

Figure ES.7 Fire Flow Requirements ES-15 

Figure ES.8 Capital Improvement Project Projects ES-20 

Figure 2.1 Future Service Area with Existing Land Use by Parcel 2-3 

Figure 2.2 Future Service Area with Future Land Use 2-4 

Figure 2.3 Historical Water Production 2-6 

Figure 2.4 Historical Water Consumption by Customer Class 2-12 

Figure 2.5 Percent of Accounts by Customer Class 2-12 

Figure 2.6 2016 Historical Water Consumed per Account 2-13 

Figure 2.7 Seasonal Consumption by Customer Class 2-13 

Figure 2.8 Historical and Projected Average and Maximum Day Demands 2-20 

Figure 2.9 Existing Estimated Demand by Pressure Zone (2020) 2-21 

Figure 2.10 Estimated Future Demand by Pressure Zone (2041) 2-21 

Figure 3.1 Shelton Area Map 3-2 

Figure 3.2 Shelton Urban Growth Area Existing Land Use by Parcel 3-4 

Figure 3.3 Shelton Urban Growth Area Future Land Use 3-6 

Figure 3.4 Neighboring Water Systems 3-8 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CONTENTS | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | xi 

Figure 3.5 Shelton Existing Water System 3-11 

Figure 3.6 Hydraulic Profile 3-13 

Figure 5.1 Shelton Hills Development by 2041 Planning Year 5-2 

Figure 5.2 Supply by Pressure Zone Analysis (Left: All Sources in Service; Right: All 
Sources in Service with Recommended Improvement) 5-6 

Figure 5.3 Supply by Pressure Zone Analysis (Left: Largest Source Out-of-Service; 
Right: Largest Source Out-of-Service with Recommended 
Improvements) 5-7 

Figure 5.4 Storage Components 5-8 

Figure 5.5 Hydrant Flow Test Locations 5-16 

Figure 5.6 Static Calibration Results 5-18 

Figure 5.7 Maximum Pressures during 2021 ADD Conditions 5-22 

Figure 5.8 Minimum Pressures during 2041 PHD Conditions 5-23 

Figure 5.9 Maximum Velocity during 2041 MDD Conditions 5-24 

Figure 5.10 Fire Flow Requirements 5-25 

Figure 5.11 Residual Pressure during 2041 MDD + FF Conditions 5-26 

Figure 5.12 Areas above Highest Recommended Customer Elevation 5-30 

Figure 5.13 Angleside Reservoir PS Control Improvements Diagram 5-31 

Figure 5.14 Recommended Improvement Projects 5-38 

Figure 5.15 Assumptions for Service in Unserved Areas 5-39 

Figure 7.1 Recessional Aquifer Capture Zones 7-3 

Figure 7.2 Sea Level Aquifer Capture Zones 7-4 

Figure 7.3 Deep Aquifer Capture Zones 7-5 

Figure 8.1 Public Works Organizational Chart 8-2 

Figure 9.1 Capital Improvement Program Projects 9-7 

Figure 10.1 Financial Forecast 10-10 

 

 





WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | ABBREVIATIONS | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | xiii 

Abbreviations  
2010 Plan City of Shelton 2010 Water System Plan 

AACE American Associate of Cost Estimators 

AC asbestos cement 

ac-ft acre-feet 

Academy Washington State Patrol Academy 

ADD average day demand 

AFY acre-feet per year 

AMI advanced metering infrastructure 

App Appendix 

AWIA America’s Water Infrastructure Act 

AWWA American Water Works Association 

BPA backflow prevention assembly 

BPS booster pump station 

BWA Boil Water Advisory 

DARCI Dayton-Airport Road Commercial Industrial Center 

Carollo Carollo Engineers, Inc. 

CCC Cross Connection Control  

CCCS Cross Connection Control Specialist 

CCL contaminant candidate list 

CCR Consumer Confidence Report 

CF cubic feet 

CFE Capital Facilities Element 

CFR Code of Federal Regulations 

cfs cubic feet per second 

CFU Capital Facilities and Utilities goal / policy 

CIP Capital Improvement Program 

City City of Shelton 

Council Shelton City Council 

CWSP Coordinated Water System Plan 

CWSSA critical water supply service area 

D Distribution system project 

D/DBPR Disinfectants/Disinfection Byproducts Rules 

DARCI Dayton-Airport Road Commercial Industrial Center 

DBCP dibromochloropropane 

DNS Determination of Non-Significance 

DOC Washington State Department of Corrections 

DOH Washington State Department of Health 

DSL distribution system leakage 



CITY OF SHELTON | ABBREVIATIONS | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

xiv | JULY 2021  

DWSRF Drinking Water State Revolving Fund 

Ecology Washington State Department of Ecology 

EDB ethylene dibromide 

EDR Environmental Data Resources, Inc.  

El. Elevation 

EM&R Equipment Maintenance, and Repair 

ENR Engineering News Report  

EPS extended period simulation 

ERP City’s Emergency Response Plan 

ERU Equivalent Residential Unit 

ESWTR Enhance Surface Water Treatment Rules 

FF fire flow 

fps feet per second 

FSS fire suppression storage 

ft feet 

ft/s feet per second 

G General project 

gal gallon 

GFC general facility charge 

GH Goldsborough Heights 

GIS geographic information system 

gpd gallons per day 

gpd/ERU gallons per day per Equivalent Residential Unit 

gpm gallons per minute 

GMA Growth Management Act 

HAA5 Haloacetic Acids 

HGL hydraulic grade line 

hp horsepower 

hr hour 

IACC Infrastructure Assistance Coordinating Council 

ID identification 

in Inch(es) 

IOC Inorganic Chemical 

John’s Prairie Port of Shelton’s John’s Prairie Industrial Park 

LCR Lead and Copper Rule 

LF linear feet 

LGC Local Government Consistency 

LID local improvement district 

LOS level of service 

LUST leaking underground storage tank 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | ABBREVIATIONS | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | xv 

MCL maximum contaminant level 

MDD maximum day demand 

MG million gallons 

mg/L milligrams per liter 

mgd million gallons per day 

min minute 

mgy million gallons per year 

MSDS material safety data sheet 

MTCA Model Toxics Control Act 

N/A not applicable 

NPDES National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 

O&M operations and maintenance 

ODW Office of Drinking Water 

OFM State of Washington Office of Financial Management 

PCBs polychlorinated biphenyls 

PFAS per-and polyfluoroalkyl substances 

PHD peak hour demand 

Plan City of Shelton Water System Comprehensive Plan 

PNR Public Notification Rule 

Port Port of Shelton 

PRV pressure-reducing valve 

PS pump station 

psi pounds per square inch 

PWB Washington State Public Works Board 

PWTF Public Works Trust Fund 

PZ pressure zone 

Qa annual right 

Qi instantaneous right 

R&R repair and replacement 

RCRA Resource Conservation and Recovery Act 

RCW Revised Code of Washington 

RSA retail service area  

RTCR Revised Total Coliform Rule 

S Supply project 

Sanderson Field Port of Shelton’s Sanderson Field Industrial Park 

SARA Superfund Amendments and Re-authorization Act 

SCADA supervisory control and data acquisition 

SDC standard development charge 

SDWA Safe Drinking Water Act 

SEPA Washington State Environmental Policy Act 



CITY OF SHELTON | ABBREVIATIONS | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

xvi | JULY 2021  

SMA Satellite Management Agencies 

SMC City of Shelton Municipal Code 

SOC synthetic organic chemical 

SOP Standard operating procedure 

SPI Sierra Pacific Industries Sawmill 

SS standby storage 

ST Storage project 

State Washington State 

THM Total Trihalomethane 

Tier 1 immediate notice 

Tier 2 notice as soon as possible 

Tier 3 Annual Notice 

UCMR unregulated contaminants monitoring rule 

UCMR1 unregulated contaminants monitoring rule 1 

UCMR2 unregulated contaminants monitoring rule 2 

UCMR3 unregulated contaminants monitoring rule 3 

UCMR4 unregulated contaminants monitoring rule 4 

UCMR5 unregulated contaminants monitoring rule 5 

UGA Urban Growth Area 

UPC United Plumbing Code 

USEPA United States Environment Protection Agency 

VFD variable frequency drive 

VOC volatile organic chemical 

WAC Washington Administrative Code 

WCC Washington Corrections Center 

WFI Water Facility Inventory 

WHP wellhead protection 

WHPA wellhead protection area 

WHPP wellhead protection plans 

WLCAP water loss control action plan 

WRIA Water Resource Inventory Area 

WRP water reclamation plant 

WSDM Water System Design Manual 

WSP Washington State Patrol 

WUE Water Use Efficiency 

 

 

 

 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | EXECUTIVE SUMMARY | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | ES-1 

ES 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

ES.1   Introduction 

The City of Shelton (City) prepared this Water System Plan (Plan) update to document the 
current status of the water system and evaluate the future needs of the water utility. The Plan is 
an update to the City’s 2010 Plan. The purpose of this plan is to document changes to the City’s 
water system, identify required system modifications, and to appropriately outline capital 
improvement projects to meet system growth and address aging infrastructure.  

The City’s water system is officially designated in the Washington State Department of 
Health (DOH) records as the City of Shelton, with a public water system number of 78170N. It is a 
municipal, Class A water system.  

Maintaining a current Plan is required to meet the regulations of DOH and the requirements of 
the Washington State Growth Management Act. In accordance with Washington Administrative 
Code (WAC) 246-290-100, this Plan: 

• Defines the City’s water service area. 
• Describes the existing water system. 
• Establishes minimum performance criteria for the system. 
• Projects future demands within the service area. 
• Identifies system deficiencies. 
• Presents a capital improvements plan. 
• Offers a financing and implementation plan. 

This Plan is a 20-year plan, starting in the year 2021. The Plan was developed between 2017 
and 2019 and updated in 2021, and the last year of data was provided in 2020. 

ES.2   Water Requirements 

The City’s water system serves the City of Shelton, the Port of Shelton, and a portion of the 
City’s Urban Growth Area (UGA). Figure ES.1 shows the existing land use by parcel within the 
City’s Future Service Area. For planning purposes, the Future Service Area considers supplying 
the Future Service Area (as shown in Figures ES.1 and ES.2), which includes the two proposed 
annexation areas: Shelton Hills and Goldsborough Heights. Future land use, shown in 
Figure ES.2, portrays projected land use in the year 2039. 

The water requirements were developed with historical data through the year 2020. The future 
water demand scenarios for the City (low, medium, and high) were projected by considering 
historical production and consumption trends (2009-2020), demographic trends and projections, 
and predictions of future impacts on demand due to factors such as water use efficiency (WUE) 
and the addition of future large water consumers. The medium scenario is used for the system 
analysis, which determines future pumping, storage, and distribution system requirements. The 



CITY OF SHELTON | EXECUTIVE SUMMARY | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

ES-2 | JULY 2021  

low and high projection scenarios provide a sense of the extent of uncertainty in the demand 
forecasts. 

From 2009 to 2020 the City’s average day demands (ADD) were approximately 1.04 million 
gallons per day (mgd). Historical maximum day demands (MDD) were approximately 2.2 mgd. 
Table ES.1 summarizes the City’s historical water use, including annual water use, ADD, and 
MDD. 

A demographic analysis was performed for the City’s Future Service Area. The Future Service 
Area was considered to be the City’s existing water system and future service areas in the UGA. 
The most recent demographic forecasts for the UGA were published in the draft City 
Comprehensive Plan (2017), which included household, employee, and population forecast data. 
The population is predicted to grow by 2.8 percent on average annually between 2017 and 2036. 
Employment is predicted to grow by 5.8 percent on average annually between 2017 and 2036. 
The 2036 forecasts were used as a reference to escalate the population to 2041. These growth 
rates were used to predict the number of future water connections in the system, which are 
estimated to reach 6,461 by 2041. 

All these factors contributed to the development of the demand projections shown in Table ES.2, 
Table ES.3, and Figure ES.3. Table ES.2 summarizes the equivalent residential unit (ERU) 
projections. The ERU planning value of 158 gallons per day (gpd) was used for the demand 
projections. Table ES.3 summarizes the projected average and maximum day demands. 
Figure ES.3 shows the historical and projected average and maximum day demands. The planning 
projection scenario predicts that the City’s ADD will increase to approximately 2.15 mgd by 2041, 
and that the City’s MDD will increase to approximately 4.60 mgd by 2041, using a peaking factor 
of 2.17. 

Table ES.1 Historical Water Use 

Year 
Annual Water Use  

(gallons) 

Average  
Day Demand 

(mgd) 

Maximum 
Day Demand 

(mgd) 

Date of 
Maximum Day 

Demand 

Max Day/Avg. 
Day Peaking 

Factor 

2009 392,292,510 1.07 2.61 7/27-7/31 2.43 

2010 362,915,402 0.99 2.18 7/26-7/31 2.19 

2011 373,165,418 1.02 2.08 9/6-9/12 2.03 

2012 370,597,020 1.01 2.15 8/13-8/20 2.12 

2013 364,370,398 1.00 2.15 7/29-7/31 2.16 

2014 378,539,096 1.04 2.10 8/4-8/11 2.03 

2015 404,388,789 1.11 2.19 6/30-7/6 1.98 

2016 379,659,201 1.04 2.10 8/15-8/22 2.02 

2017 406,622,372 1.11 2.36 7/31-8/7 2.12 

2018 394,028,763 1.08 2.07 8/13-8/20 1.92 

2019 365,779,458 1.00 2.03 6/17-6/24 2.03 

2020 349,535,793 0.96 2.33 7/31-8/3 2.44 

Average 378,491,185 1.04 2.20  2.12 

75th 
Percentile 

392,726,573 1.08 2.23  2.17 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | EXECUTIVE SUMMARY | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | ES-3 

Table ES.2 ERU Projections for Low, Medium, High Demand Scenarios 

Year 2021 2027 2031 2041 

Low Demand (gpd) 6,425 8,115 9,349 12,242 

Medium Demand (gpd) 6,425 8,115 9,349 12,242 

High Demand (gpd) 6,409 8,146 9,411 12,382 
Note: 
(1) The difference between the low demand scenario and medium demand scenario is the MDD/ADD peaking factor so the 

ERU projections are the same for both scenarios. 

 

Table ES.3 Projected ADD and MDD for Low, Medium, High Demand Scenarios 

Year 
ADD MDD 

2021 2031 2041 2021 2031 2041 

Low Demand (mgd) 1.13 1.64 2.15 2.29 3.36 4.42 

Medium Demand (mgd) 1.13 1.64 2.15 2.39 3.50 4.60 

High Demand (mgd) 1.13 1.65 2.17 2.49 3.68 4.86 
Note: 
(1) The difference between the low demand scenario and medium demand scenario is the MDD/ADD peaking factor so the 

ADD projections are the same for both scenarios. 

 

 
  



1S
T

RAILROAD

ISLAND LAKE

DEARBORN

ARCADIA

HARVARD

7T
H

16
TH

H
U

LB
E

R
T

K

SANDERSON

SHELTON MATLOCK
FAIRMOUNT

WALKER PARK

BR
O

C
KD

A
LE

BATSTONE CUT OFF

C

E

NORTHCLIFF

11
TH

9T
H

FR
O

N
T

BE
A

R

F

7T
H

J

A
B

H

G
D

THOMAS

KINEO

13
TH

PU
G

E
T

FRANKLIN

ALDER

PINE

BO
U

N
D

AR
Y

DICKINSON

LAKE

M
ADISO

N
SUMMIT

PA
C

IF
IC

W
ASHING

TO
N

SENTRY
GRANT

EUCLID

AL
D

ER

ALDERMANOR

LITTLE BEAR

HA
W

TH
ORN

HIGHLAND

DAYTON AIRPORT

TURNER

SANJOAQUIN

ALPINE

EV
A

N
MILL CREEK

CL
O

Q
UA

LL
UM

EX
P

O
R

T

M
IL

LW
R

IG
H

T

SHELTON

SPRINGS

PEACOCK HILL

ST
AT

E 
R

O
UT

E 
3

HICKAM

WALLACE KNEELAND

SHADOW
VALLEY

PARK

SHELTON VALLEY

U
S 

H
IG

H
W

AY
 1

01

JOH N S PR AIRIE

FAIRGROUNDS

C
AP

IT
A

L 
H

IL
L

DE
EG

AN

GD G OOSE L AK E MA IN
LI

NE

Te
xtOLY

MPIC
 H

W
Y

£¤101

I s l a n d
L a k e

O a k l a n d  B a y

H a m m e r s l e y  I n l e t

Last Revised: March 29, 2021 pw://IO-PW-INT.Carollo.local:Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Shelton/10669A00/Data/GIS/Fig2.1_WaterSystemLU.mxd

O
0 0.50.25

Miles

Disclaimer: Features shown in this 
figure are for planning purposes and
represent approximate locations. 
Engineering and/or survey accuracy
is not implied.

Data Sources: City of Shelton. 
Washington State Dept. of
Natural Resources

 Figure ES.1  Future Service Area with Existing Land Use by Parcel

WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | EXECUTIVE SUMMARY | CITY OF SHELTON

Legend
Existing Land Use

Agriculture

Forest

Commercial

Industrial

Single-Family Residential

Multi-Family Residential

Mobile Home Park

Park

Public

Undeveloped

Unknown

Streets

Shelton Urban Growth Area

Future Service Area

Parcels

Water Bodies



1S
T

RAILROAD

ISLAND LAKE

DEARBORN

ARCADIA

HARVARD

7T
H

16
TH

H
U

LB
E

R
T

K

SANDERSON

SHELTON MATLOCK
FAIRMOUNT

WALKER PARK

BR
O

C
KD

A
LE

BATSTONE CUT OFF

C

E

NORTHCLIFF

11
TH

9T
H

FR
O

N
T

BE
A

R

F

7T
H

J

A
B

H

G
D

THOMAS

KINEO

13
TH

PU
G

E
T

FRANKLIN

ALDER

PINE

BO
U

N
D

AR
Y

DICKINSON

LAKE
M

ADISO
N

SUMMIT

PA
C

IF
IC

W
ASHING

TO
N

SENTRY
GRANT

EUCLID

AL
D

ER

ALDERMANOR

LITTLE BEAR

HA
W

TH
ORN

HIGHLAND

DAYTON AIRPORT

TURNER

SANJOAQUIN

ALPINE

EV
A

N
MILL CREEK

CL
O

Q
UA

LL
UM

EX
P

O
R

T

M
IL

LW
R

IG
H

T

SHELTON

SPRINGS

PEACOCK HILL

ST
AT

E 
R

O
UT

E 
3

HICKAM

WALLACE KNEELAND

SHADOW
VALLEY

PARK

SHELTON VALLEY

U
S 

H
IG

H
W

AY
 1

01

JOH N S PRAIRIE

FAIRGROUNDS

C
AP

IT
A

L 
H

IL
L

DE
EG

AN

GD G OOSE LA KE M A IN
LIN

E

Te
xtOLY

MPIC
 H

W
Y

£¤101

I s l a n d
L a k e

O a k l a n d  B a y

H a m m e r s l e y  I n l e t

Last Revised: March 29, 2021 pw://IO-PW-INT.Carollo.local:Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Shelton/10669A00/Data/GIS/Fig2.2_WaterSystemFutureLU.mxd

O
0 0.50.25

Miles

Disclaimer: Features shown in this 
figure are for planning purposes and
represent approximate locations. 
Engineering and/or survey accuracy
is not implied.

Data Sources: City of Shelton. 
Washington State Dept. of
Natural Resources

 Figure ES.2  Future Service Area with Future Land Use

WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | EXECUTIVE SUMMARY | CITY OF SHELTON

Legend
Streets

Shelton Urban Growth Area

Future  Service Area

Parcels

Water Bodies

Future Land Use
Industrial

Commercial

Neighborhood Residential

Medical / Educational

Public Institutional

Public Lands

Rural

Mixed Use

Downtown

Goldsborough Heights

Shelton Hills



CITY OF SHELTON | EXECUTIVE SUMMARY | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

ES-6 | JULY 2021  

 

Figure ES.3 Historical and Projected Average and Maximum Day Demands 

ES.3   Description of Water System 

The City is located in Mason County, Washington, bordered to the east by Oakland Bay, a 
portion of the southeast section of Puget Sound. As of 2020, the water system had 
approximately 3,700 service connections. Figure ES.4 shows the City’s boundary and UGA, as 
well as the surrounding region. 

The City’s water distribution system consists of nearly 66 miles of water main, three wells, 
five reservoirs, four booster pump stations (BPS), and pressure-reducing valves (PRVs). The City 
is currently divided into five distinct pressure zones: Angleside, Capitol Hill, High School, 
Mt. View, and Upper Mt. View. Historically, Shelton Springs served as the main source of supply 
for the City; however, it is no longer in use. Figure ES.5 displays the approximately locations of 
these key water system facilities. A hydraulic profile of the existing system is shown in 
Figure ES.6. 

The City’s policies and design criteria for water system planning are provided in this Plan and can 
be categorized into the following sections: 

• Water service and service extensions, including Duty to Serve. 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | EXECUTIVE SUMMARY | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | ES-7 

• System Criteria including facility requirements, reliability recommendations, and fire 
protection. 

• Agency coordination. 
• Financial policies. 

The Plan summarizes the existing and proposed policies for the water service area and extension 
of water service to additional properties. The City is committed to serving customers within its 
retail service area (RSA) in accordance with established policies. 

System criteria establish an optimum performance level and a standard of quality and quantity 
for the water system. These criteria dictate how the water system facilities should work together 
as a whole to provide reliable and redundant water service. The City sets performance criteria for 
water system pressure and velocities. It also sets criteria for source of supply and pumping, 
storage, and fire flows. 

Shelton’s Comprehensive Plan and Mason County’s Shelton UGA Plan address future land use, 
development, and population trends within the Shelton UGA. This Plan includes policies from 
the City’s Comprehensive Plan and Mason County’s UGA Plan as they relate to the water system. 
The goals and policies for future annexations and the provision of services in the UGA provide 
direction regarding utility extension and the circumstances in which it will occur are included in 
this Plan as well. 

The City currently has many financial policies related to the water system, which include user 
fees, water system development charges, fees pertaining to extensions, and policies regarding 
operating fund balances available for the utility system. 

 
  



1S
T

RAILROAD

ISLAND LAKE

DEARBORN

ARCADIA

HARVARD

7T
H

16
TH

H
U

LB
E

R
T

K

SANDERSON

SHELTON MATLOCK
FAIRMOUNT

WALKER PARK

BR
O

C
KD

A
LE

BATSTONE CUT OFF

C

E

NORTHCLIFF

11
TH

9T
H

FR
O

N
T

BE
A

R

F

7T
H

J

A
B

H

G
D

THOMAS

KINEO

13
TH

PU
G

E
T

FRANKLIN

ALDER

PINE

BO
U

N
D

AR
Y

DICKINSON

LAKE

M
ADISO

N

SUMMIT

PA
C

IF
IC

W
ASHIN

G
TO

N

SENTRY
GRANT

EUCLID

AL
D

ER

ALDERMANOR

LITTLE BEAR

HA
W

TH
ORN

HIGHLAND

DAYTON AIRPORT

TURNER

SANJOAQUIN

ALPINE

EV
A

N

MILL CREEK

CL
O

Q
UA

LL
UM

EX
P

O
R

T

M
IL

LW
R

IG
H

T

SHELTON

SPRINGS

PEACOCK HILL

ST
AT

E 
R

O
UT

E 
3

HICKAM

WALLACE KNEELAND

SHADOW
VALLEY

PARK

SHELTON VALLEY

U
S 

H
IG

H
W

AY
 1

01

JOH N S P RAIRIE

FAIRGROUNDS

C
AP

IT
A

L 
H

IL
L

DE
EG

AN

GD GOOSE L AK E M A IN
LIN

E

Te
xtOLY

MPIC
 H

W
Y

£¤101

I s l a n d
L a k e

O a k l a n d  B a y

H a m m e r s l e y  I n l e t

Last Revised: January 07, 2020 pw://IO-PW-INT.Carollo.local:Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Shelton/10669A00/Data/GIS/Fig3.1_SheltonAreaMap.mxd

O
0 0.50.25

Miles

Disclaimer: Features shown in this 
figure are for planning purposes and 
represent approximate locations. 
Engineering and/or survey accuracy
is not implied.

Data Sources: City of Shelton. 
Washington State Dept. of
Natural Resources

 Figure ES.4  Shelton Area Map

WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | EXECUTIVE SUMMARY | CITY OF SHELTON

Legend
Streets
City of Shelton Boundary
Shelton Urban Growth Area
Parcels
Water Bodies



UT

UT

UT

UT

UT

"=)

"=)
"=)

"=)!ã

!ã!ã

"b )

"b )

"b )

"b ) "b )

"b )

"b )

"b )"b )

"b )
"b )

"b )

"b )

"b )
"b )

Well 3

Well 1

Well 4
Mt. View Reservoir
(0.61 MG)

Angleside Reservoir
(0.50 MG)

High School
Reservoir (0.51 MG)

Capitol Hill
Reservoir (0.22 MG)

Upper Mt. View Elevated
Reservoir(0.41 MG)

1S
T

RAILROAD

ISLAND LAKE

DEARBORN

ARCADIA

HARVARD

7T
H

16
TH

H
U

LB
E

R
T

K

SANDERSON

SHELTON MATLOCK
FAIRMOUNT

WALKER PARK

BR
O

C
KD

A
LE

BATSTONE CUT OFF

C

E

NORTHCLIFF

11
TH

9T
H

FR
O

N
T

BE
A

R

F

7T
H

J

A
B

H

G
D

THOMAS

KINEO

13
TH

PU
G

E
T

FRANKLIN

ALDER

PINE

BO
U

N
D

AR
Y

DICKINSON

LAKE
M

ADISO
N

SUMMIT

PA
C

IF
IC

W
ASHING

TO
N

SENTRY
GRANT

EUCLID

AL
D

ER

ALDERMANOR

LITTLE BEAR

HA
W

TH
ORN

HIGHLAND

DAYTON AIRPORT

TURNER

SANJOAQUIN

ALPINE

EV
A

N
MILL CREEK

CL
O

Q
UA

LL
UM

EX
P

O
R

T

M
IL

LW
R

IG
H

T

SHELTON

SPRINGS

PEACOCK HILL

ST
AT

E 
R

O
UT

E 
3

HICKAM

WALLACE KNEELAND

SHADOW
VALLEY

PARK

SHELTON VALLEY

U
S 

H
IG

H
W

AY
 1

01

JOH N S PR AIRIE

FAIRGROUNDS

C
AP

IT
A

L 
H

IL
L

DE
EG

AN

GD G OOSE LAK E MA IN
LIN

E

Te
xtOLY

MPIC
 H

W
Y

£¤101

I s l a n d
L a k e

O a k l a n d  B a y

Angleside Reservoir BPS

Angleside BPS

Mt View PS

Capital Hill
BPS

Last Revised: March 29, 2021 pw://IO-PW-INT.Carollo.local:Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Shelton/10669A00/Data/GIS/Fig3.5_SheltonExistingWaterSystem.mxd

O
0 0.50.25

Miles

Disclaimer: Features shown in this 
figure are for planning purposes and
represent approximate locations. 
Engineering and/or survey accuracy
is not implied.

Data Sources: City of Shelton. 
Washington State Dept. of
Natural Resources

 Figure ES.5  Shelton Existing Water System

WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | EXECUTIVE SUMMARY | CITY OF SHELTON

Legend
UT Reservoir

"=) Pump Station

"=) Inactive Pump Station

!ã Well

"b ) Valve

Pipeline

Streets

Shelton Urban Growth Area

Future Service Area

Parcels

Water Bodies

Pressure Zone
Angleside Zone

Capitol Hill Zone

High School Zone

Mountain View Zone

Upper Mountain View Zone





U7 U7 U7U7 w...I 
U7 U7 U7U7 

U7 U7 U7 

w 
fl) ::::> U7U7U7 U7 

500' 

400' 

300' 

200' 

100' 

O' 

UPPER MOUNTAIN 
VIEW RESERVOIR 

O.E.440' 

0.41 MG 

LEGEND 

WELL 3 
1,000 GPM 

396' 
MOUNTAIN VIEW 

RESERVOIR 

'V 

0.61 MG 

346' 

V 

306' 

CAPITOL HILL 
RESERVOIR 

O.E. 334' 346' 

V 

ANGLESIDE 
RESERVOIR 

'V 

0.50 MG 

O�GL---------r-1--,l �---r-----

--���+--------�7 �\Q) 

V 

201' 

PRY 

WELL 4 
1,200 GPM 

WELL 1 
1,500 GPM 

� RESERVOIR 

158' 

'v 

MOUNTAIN 
VIEW BPS 

PRY 

STANDPIPE 

HIGH SCHOOL 
RESERVOIR 

O.E.177' 

'V 

0.51 MG 

LIVE VOLUME INSIDE STANDPIPE 

156' 

V 

94' 

ALY 

PRY 

ANGLESIDE 
BPS 

2,400 gpm 

ANGLES I DE 
RESERVOIR BPS 

2,350 gpm 
(INACTIVE) 

58' 

500' 

400' 

300' 

200' 

100' 

O' 

UPPER MOUNTAIN VIEW PZ 
L:::J 

MOUNTAIN VIEW PZ 

- HIGH SCHOOL PZ 

CAPITOL HILL PZ 

D ANGLESIDE PZ 

HGL 
'v 

HIGHrL 

�
LOW 

PRESSURE ZONE 
HIGH: HIGHEST 

ELEVATION 
SERVED IN ZONE 

LOW: LOWEST 
ELEVATION 
SERVED IN ZONE 

HGL: HYDRAULIC 
GRADE LINE FOR 
ZONE 

� PRESSURE REDUCING VALVE 

---(§J-

sxx 
XXX GPM 

BOOSTER PUMPING 
STATION 

WELL 
Figure ES.6 

HYDRAULIC PROFILE 

CITY OF SHEL TON 

COMPREHENSIVE WATER SYSTEM PLAN 

--�l"J, ... ® 

7 





WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | EXECUTIVE SUMMARY | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | ES-13 

ES.4   Water Use Efficiency 

The City recognizes the importance of WUE efforts and is in compliance with annual submissions 
of its WUE report to the DOH. As part of its water use efficient efforts, the City collects source 
meter data and service meter fata for all sources and all service connections. The Plan presents 
projections of future demands for the City’s water system, which include a low demand scenario 
where future WUE measures are considered. The City completes an annual WUE performance 
report form, included in Appendix 4A. The City has adopted three WUE goals: reduce total 
consumption; maintain a distribution system leakage (DSL) below 8 percent; and reduce 
residential water consumption. 

The City calculates a rolling 3-year average DSL, which has been between 7.3 percent 
and 13.6 percent in the past five years. WUE Rule requirements establish a ten percent or less DSL 
standard on a 3-year rolling average. Per requirements, the City has developed a water loss 
control action plan (WLCAP) with the following two main activities: conduct a water audit using 
the America Water Works Associations (AWWA) water audit methodology and complete a Leak 
Detection Survey. 

ES.5   System Analysis 

The City’s water distribution system was evaluated for its supply and pumping capacity and 
reliability, the capacity of its storage facilities, and for adequate pressures and fire flow capacity 
using the City’s updated hydraulic model under 2031 and 2041 conditions using the medium 
demand project scenario. 

This Plan discusses recommendations to eliminate each of the deficiencies identified as part of 
the system analysis for this Plan. These recommendations form the basis of the City’s Capital 
Improvement Program (CIP). 

The City’s water rights are included in Appendix 3B and were evaluated using DOH’s Water 
Rights Self-Assessment form. Based on this assessment, the City has sufficient water rights to 
meet the 2041 planning year demands. 

The capacity and redundancy of the City’s supplies were evaluated to determine if the system 
meets the City’s goal defined in the system analysis criteria. The total capacity of the wells is 
sufficient to provide system-wide projected 2041 MDD and ADD. However, to meet the City’ 
supply goal of supplying MDD demands with the largest source out-of-service, a new well in the 
Angleside Pressure Zone (PZ) and a new Upper Mt. View BPS are recommended to provide 
redundancy. 

The City’s storage requirements are a function of the City’s booster pump operation, water 
demands, supply capacity, and fire flow requirements. The Plan summarizes the available 
storage of the water system and describes the required storage components. The system 
analysis identifies storage deficiencies and presents recommendations to address these 
deficiencies. The storage deficiencies are driven by the large volume of dead storage due to 
customers at high elevations, and the large emergency storage requirements.   

The City’s distribution was found to be storage deficient under all planning years. 
Recommendation made to address the storage deficiencies include the following: 

• Upper Mt. View Elevated Reservoir in Shelton Hills (Developer-funded). 



CITY OF SHELTON | EXECUTIVE SUMMARY | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

ES-14 | JULY 2021  

• New Mt. View Reservoir near Well 1. 
• New Angleside Reservoir. 
• Capitol Hill Reservoir taken offline. 

The hydraulic model was used to evaluate the distribution system under future demand 
conditions. As part of this Plan, the City’s hydraulic model was updated and calibrated. The 
distribution system was then evaluated for the following criteria: 

• High ADD Pressure: identify pressures greater than 80 pounds per square inch (psi) 
during ADD to recommend potential needs for individual PRVs to customers. 

• Low peak hour demand (PHD) Pressures: minimum allowed pressure is 30 psi during 
PHD. 

• High Velocity under PHD Conditions: identify pipes with maximum velocity greater than 
8 feet per second (ft/s) (Likely pipe to upsize if future deficiencies identified in the area). 

• Available fire flow: residual pressure at hydrants during MDD plus fire flow must remain 
above 20 psi. Figure ES.7 shows fire flow requirements. 

The distribution system analysis identified areas of high pressures under 2021 ADD conditions, 
low pressures during 2041 PHD conditions, high velocities during 2041 PHD, and fire flow 
deficiencies during 2041 MDD + fire flow conditions using the City’s hydraulic model. Figures 
showing the distribution system analysis results can be found in Chapter 5. 

As a result of the distribution system analysis, pressure zone, pump station, and pipe 
improvement projects are recommended to address deficiencies. To address fire flow 
deficiencies, hydrant improvements and various pipe upsizing and looping projects are 
recommended. To address low pressures in the system, boosted zones within the Mt. View PZ 
and Angleside PZ are recommended. Pump station improvements at the Angleside Reservoir 
Pump Station (PS) and the Capitol Hill PS are also recommended to address deficiencies 
identified in the system analysis, as outlined in the Plan. 

The limiting capacity of the City’s physical water system was determined for the 2041 planning 
year with the assumption that all recommended improvement projects will be online. The 
limiting capacity analysis uses the methodology described in DOH Water System Design 
Manual (2009) Worksheet 6-1 and Table 6-1. With the recommended improvements, the City 
has sufficient physical capacity to meet the 2041, with the MDD source capacity being the most 
limiting. 

 



UT

UT

UT

UT

UT

"=)

"=)
"=)

"=)
UT"=)

!ã

!ã!ã

"b )

"b )

"b )

"b ) "b )

"b )

"b )

"b )"b )

"b )
"b )

"b )

"b )

"b )
"b )

Well 3

Well 1

Well 4
Mt. View Reservoir
(0.61 MG)

Angleside Reservoir
(0.50 MG)

High School
Reservoir (0.51 MG)

Capitol Hill
Reservoir (0.22 MG)

Upper Mt. View Elevated
Reservoir(0.41 MG)

1S
T

RAILROAD

ISLAND LAKE

DEARBORN

ARCADIA

HARVARD

7T
H

16
TH

H
U

LB
E

R
T

K

SANDERSON

SHELTON MATLOCK
FAIRMOUNT

WALKER PARK

BR
O

C
KD

A
LE

BATSTONE CUT OFF

C

E

NORTHCLIFF

11
TH

9T
H

FR
O

N
T

BE
A

R

F

7T
H

J

A
B

H

G
D

THOMAS

KINEO

13
TH

PU
G

E
T

FRANKLIN

ALDER

PINE

BO
U

N
D

AR
Y

DICKINSON

LAKE
M

ADISO
N

SUMMIT

PA
C

IF
IC

W
ASHING

TO
N

SENTRY
GRANT

EUCLID

AL
D

ER

ALDERMANOR

LITTLE BEAR

HA
W

TH
ORN

HIGHLAND

DAYTON AIRPORT

TURNER

SANJOAQUIN

ALPINE

EV
A

N
MILL CREEK

CL
O

Q
UA

LL
UM

EX
P

O
R

T

M
IL

LW
R

IG
H

T

SHELTON

SPRINGS

PEACOCK HILL

ST
AT

E 
R

O
UT

E 
3

HICKAM

WALLACE KNEELAND

SHADOW
VALLEY

PARK

SHELTON VALLEY

U
S 

H
IG

H
W

AY
 1

01

JOH N S PR AIRIE

FAIRGROUNDS

C
AP

IT
A

L 
H

IL
L

DE
EG

AN

GD G OOSE LAK E MA IN
LIN

E

Te
xtOLY

MPIC
 H

W
Y

£¤101

I s l a n d
L a k e

O a k l a n d  B a y

Angleside Reservoir BPS

New Upper
Mt. View BPS

Angleside BPS

Mt View PS

Capital Hill
BPS

New Mt. View
Reservoir (1.0 MG)

Last Revised: March 30, 2021 pw://IO-PW-INT.Carollo.local:Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Shelton/10669A00/Data/GIS/Fig5.5_HydrantFlowTestLocations.mxd

O
0 0.50.25

Miles

Disclaimer: Features shown in this 
figure are for planning purposes and
represent approximate locations. 
Engineering and/or survey accuracy
is not implied.

Data Sources: City of Shelton. 
Washington State Dept. of
Natural Resources

 Figure ES.7  Fire Flow Requirements

WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | EXECUTIVE SUMMARY | CITY OF SHELTON

Legend
Fire Flow Requirement (gpm)

750

1000

1500

2000

Future Pipeline

"=) Future Pump Station

UT Future Reservoir

"b ) Valve

!ã Well

"=) Pump Station

"=) Inactive Pump Station

UT Reservoir

Pipeline

Streets

Shelton Urban Growth Area

Future Service Area

Parcels

Water Bodies

Pressure Zone
Angleside Zone

Capitol Hill Zone

High School Zone

Mountain View Zone

Upper Mountain View Zone



CITY OF SHELTON | EXECUTIVE SUMMARY | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

ES-16 | JULY 2021  

ES.6   Water Quality 

The City is defined as a Group A – Community Water System, and its primary concern is to 
monitor, protect, and enhance the quality of its drinking water sources. 

As a Group A Community Public Water System, the City must comply with the drinking water 
standards of the federal Safe Drinking Water Act (SDWA) and DOH standards under the 
WAC 246-290. At this time, the City’s water quality is in compliance with all state and federal 
water quality and reporting requirements. 

The City maintains water quality within its system through the following approaches:  

• Routine system flushing of its distribution system to maintain satisfactory water quality. 
• A main replacement program to replace pipes with structural deficiencies. 
• Installation of pH meters at all sources to better manage pH and thus reduce corrosion 

within the distribution system.  
• Cross-connection prevention. 

The City is recommended to take the following additional actions as part of its water quality 
planning programs:  

• Track proposed new water quality rules and regulations being considered by the United 
States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) and DOH to plan for any effects that 
these new rules may have on the City’s water system.  

• Continue to implement its corrosion control treatment improvements as necessary to 
reduce levels of corrosion within the distribution system and private plumbing. 

The Plan presents the water quality standards determined by the DOH and the USEPA through 
the SDWA. The SDWA is the primary federal law that establishes standards for drinking water 
quality in public water systems. The DOH has adopted the federal drinking water regulations 
under WAC 246-290 and accepted the primary responsibility (or “primacy”) of enforcing water 
quality monitoring and reporting. All existing and anticipated drinking water regulations that 
apply to the City are summarized in the Plan. The Plan also summarizes water quality 
exceedances in the past 10 years for the City’s distribution and source water quality monitoring 
program. 

ES.7   Source Water Protection 

The City’s wellhead protection plan was updated as part of this Plan. The Plan summarizes key 
information from the wellhead protection plan. The full wellhead protection plan can be found in 
Appendix 7A.  

Washington State regulations (WAC 246-290 135) require all Group A water systems to:  

• Maintain a Sanitary Control Area Fact Sheet immediately surrounding all drinking water 
sources to protect them from contamination. 

• Develop and implement a Source Water Protection Program, which for the City is a 
wellhead protection program. 

The overall goal of the state wellhead protection (WHP) program is to prevent the contamination 
of groundwater used by Group A public water systems. This is to be accomplished by providing 
management zones around public wells, identifying existing groundwater contamination 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | EXECUTIVE SUMMARY | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | ES-17 

sources, and managing potential sources of groundwater contamination prior to entry into the 
drinking water system. The City’s wellhead protection plan includes the following elements: 

• Completed susceptibility assessments. 
• Delineated wellhead protection areas (WHPA) for each well and spring.  
• Inventory of potential contamination sources in the WHPA that could threaten the 

water-bearing zone (aquifer) used by the wells or spring.  
• Documentation of notification letters sent to the required entities, including 

Central Mason Fire and EMS, the Mason County Sheriff, and the City’s Police 
Department. 

• Management strategies and implementation tasks developed to protect the integrity of 
the City’s water sources. 

• Wellhead Protection implementation tasks to accomplish the protection of the wellhead 
protection area. 

• Contingency plan for providing alternate drinking water sources if contamination does 
occur. 

• Spill/Incident response planning, including spill response organization incident 
management responses, and recommended spill response improvements. 

ES.8   Operations and Maintenance 

The Plan provides an overview of the City’s Water System organization, staffing, and operations 
and maintenance (O&M) program. The Plan documents existing practices and identifies changes 
that may improve system O&M. 

The Plan summarizes the following responsibilities and tasks: 

• Water System Management and Personnel. 
• Operator Training. 
• Water Quality Sampling Procedures and Program. 
• Emergency Response Program, including: water system personnel, emergency call-up 

list, and notification procedures; vulnerability Assessment; and contingency Operational 
Plan.  

• Safety Procedures. 
• Cross-Connection Control Program. 
• Customer Complaint Response Program. 
• Record-Keeping and Reporting. 

The Plan also reviews the water system’s operating procedures and preventative maintenance 
including: 

• Routine System Operation: Startup and Shutdown procedures, meter reading, and 
system performance evaluation. 

• Preventative maintenance program: well pumps, generator, source meters, water 
treatment system, reservoirs, water meters, distribution system, and well houses. 

• Equipment, supplies, and chemical listing. 
• Vendor contacts. 



CITY OF SHELTON | EXECUTIVE SUMMARY | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

ES-18 | JULY 2021  

ES.9   Capital Improvement Program 

Chapter 9 of the Plan combines the various projects that were recommended throughout the 
Plan for the City’s water system and presents a comprehensive CIP. The purpose of the CIP is to 
provide the City with a guideline for the planning and budgeting of its water system. The CIP 
consists of schedule and cost estimates for each project. Project phasing is described as either 
short-term (2021-2030) or long-term (2031-2041). Detailed descriptions of each project, which 
include the cost estimates and implementation timing, are also included in Appendix 9A.  

Capital projects were categorized by the nature of the infrastructure involved, including: 

• Supply (S): New well projects. 
• Storage (ST): New reservoir projects. 
• Pressure Zone (PZ): Improvement projects that consist of changes to the operations of 

pressure zones.  
• Pump Station (PS): New pump station projects and improvement projects related to 

existing pump stations. 
• Distribution System (D): Projects that contain new pipe and pipe upsizing projects.  
• General (G): Annual projects that occur system-wide and include repair and 

replacement (R&R) projects and fire flow response projects. 

Projects were allocated into three types to support development of rates and standard 
development charges: growth, repair and replacement, and level of service. 

The CIP cost estimates presented in this chapter are Class 5 estimates, as established by the 
American Associate of Cost Estimators (AACE). Class 5 estimates are budget level estimates. 
Actual costs may vary from these estimates by -30 percent to +50 percent. These costs were 
determined using both Carollo Engineers, Inc. (Carollo) understanding of project locations and 
current conditions and the City’s costs for similar and recently constructed capital projects. The 
cost estimates have been prepared for the general master planning purposes. Capital costs, or 
“total project costs”, are presented in the CIP. 

The CIP projects were summarized by project type and category in Tables ES.4 and ES.5, 
respectively. The total Water CIP cost over the next 20 years is approximately $30.4 million, 
which equates to approximately $1,521,000 annually in current dollars. Of the total cost, 
$6.7 million is budgeted for the short-term phase and approximately $20.8 million is budgeted 
for the long-term phase. 

When considering CIP costs by project type, approximately 63 percent of the CIP costs are Level 
of Service projects. R&R projects make up approximately 19 percent of the CIP costs, and growth 
projects make up about 18 percent of the CIP costs. 

When considering CIP costs by project category, as shown in Table ES.5, approximately 19 percent 
of the CIP costs occur from general projects. Storage projects make up approximately 26 percent 
of the CIP, and pump station projects make up approximately 24 percent of the CIP. Figure ES.8 
shows all the recommended distribution system and pressure zone projects and provides the 
locations of the recommended supply and storage projects with identified locations. 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | EXECUTIVE SUMMARY | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | ES-19 

Table ES.4 CIP Summary by Project Type 

Project Type 
Total CIP Cost 

Estimate 

CIP Phasing 

Short-term 
(2021 – 2030) 

Long-term 
(2031 – 2041) 

Growth $ 5,515,500 $ 1,555,500 $  3,960,000  

Repair & Replacement $ 5,859,000 $ 3,599,000 $  2,260,000  

Level of Service $ 19,043,500 $ 4,513,500 $  14,530,000  

Total Cost $ 30,418,000 $ 9,668,000 $ 20,750,000 

Annual Cost $ 1,521,000 $ 967,000 $ 2,075,000 

 

Table ES.5 CIP Summary by Project Category 

Project Category Total CIP Percentage 

General $ 5,904,000 19.4% 

Supply $ 4,884,000  16.1% 

Pressure Zone $ 2,972,000  9.8% 

Storage $ 7,980,000  26.2% 

Pump Station $ 7,361,000  24.2% 

Distribution Pipeline $ 1,317,000  4.3% 

Total $ 30,418,000  100% 

 
  



UT

UT

UT

UT

UT

UT

"=)

"=)
"=)

"=)

UT

UT"=)

UT

UT

"=)

"=)

"=)

!ã

!ã!ã

"b )
"b )

"b ) "b )

"b )

"b )"b )

"b )
"b )

"b )

"b )

"b )
"b )

Well 3

Well 1

Well 4
Mt. View Reservoir
(0.61 MG)

Angleside Reservoir
(0.50 MG)

High School
Reservoir (0.51 MG)

Capitol Hill
Reservoir (0.22 MG)

Upper Mt. View Elevated
Reservoir(0.41 MG)

1S
T

RAILROAD

ISLAND LAKE

DEARBORN

ARCADIA

HARVARD

7T
H

16
TH

H
U

LB
E

R
T

K

SANDERSON

SHELTON MATLOCK
FAIRMOUNT

WALKER PARK

BR
O

C
KD

A
LE

BATSTONE CUT OFF

C

E

NORTHCLIFF

11
TH

9T
H

FR
O

N
T

BE
A

R

F

7T
H

J

A
B

H

G
D

THOMAS

KINEO

13
TH

PU
G

E
T

FRANKLIN

ALDER

PINE

BO
U

N
D

AR
Y

DICKINSON

LAKE
M

ADISO
N

SUMMIT

PA
C

IF
IC

W
ASHING

TO
N

SENTRY
GRANT

EUCLID

AL
D

ER

ALDERMANOR

LITTLE BEAR

HA
W

TH
ORN

HIGHLAND

DAYTON AIRPORT

TURNER

SANJOAQUIN

ALPINE

EV
A

N
MILL CREEK

CL
O

Q
UA

LL
UM

EX
P

O
R

T

M
IL

LW
R

IG
H

T

SHELTON

SPRINGS

PEACOCK HILL

ST
AT

E 
R

O
UT

E 
3

HICKAM

WALLACE KNEELAND

SHADOW
VALLEY

PARK

SHELTON VALLEY

U
S 

H
IG

H
W

AY
 1

01

JOH N S PR AIRIE

FAIRGROUNDS

C
AP

IT
A

L 
H

IL
L

DE
EG

AN

GD G OOSE LAK E MA IN
LIN

E

Te
xtOLY

MPIC
 H

W
Y

£¤101

I s l a n d
L a k e

O a k l a n d  B a y

Angleside Reservoir BPS

New Upper
Mt. View BPS

PS-02

PS-01

PS-03, ST-01

PZ-02

PZ-02

PZ-01

S-03, S-04

S-03

S-
02

ST-04

New Upper
Mt. View
Reservoir
(0.41 MG)

Angleside BPS

Mt View PS

Capital Hill
BPS

New Mt. View
Reservoir (1.0 MG)

D-
05

D-
03

D-
04

D-01 D-02

Last Revised: April 02, 2021 pw://IO-PW-INT.Carollo.local:Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Shelton/10669A00/Data/GIS/Fig9.1_CIP_Projects.mxd

O
0 0.50.25

Miles

Disclaimer: Features shown in this 
figure are for planning purposes and
represent approximate locations. 
Engineering and/or survey accuracy
is not implied.

Data Sources: City of Shelton. 
Washington State Dept. of
Natural Resources

 Figure ES.8  Capital Improvement Program Projects

WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | EXECUTIVE SUMMARY | CITY OF SHELTON

Legend

Pressure Zone

"b ) Valve

Recommended Pressure Zone
Projects

Recommended Distribution System
Improvements

!ã Recommended Supply Projects

"=)
Recommended Pump Station
Projects

UT Recommended Storage Projects

"=) Future Pump Station

UT Future Reservoir

UT Shelton Hills Reservoir

Shelton Hills Pipeline

"=) Inactive Pump Station

UT Decommissioned Reservoir

"=) Pump Station

UT Reservoir

Pipeline

Streets

Shelton Urban Growth Area

Future Service Area

Parcels

Water Bodies

Angleside Zone

Capitol Hill Zone

High School Zone

Mountain View Zone

Upper Mountain View Zone



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | EXECUTIVE SUMMARY | CITY OF SHELTON 

  JULY ͮͬͮͭ | ES‐ͮͭ 

ES.10   Financial Plan 

The Financial Plan summarizes the financial status of the City’s water utility and provides a 
cursory evaluation of the ability of the City to finance necessary capital improvement projects 
identified in the CIP. Financial status of the water utility, funding required to finance the 
scheduled improvements, potential funding sources, and the impact of water system 
improvements on water rates are presented.  

The City has adequate revenue from water rates, general facility charges (GFC), and funds 
included in the ͮͬͮͭ‐ͮͬͮͯ biennial capital budget for the State of Washington to rehabilitate 
Well ͭ to meet the expected operating costs of the water system through ͮͬͮ͵. However, GFCs 
should be reassessed to ensure the maximum amount of revenue can be obtained. A rate study 
is also recommended to address affordability by customer class. No new debt is issued in the 
financial forecast, but existing debt is being paid.  

Capital projects are projected to range from ͈ͭͳͬ,ͬͬͬ to ͈ͮ.Ͱ million annually through ͮͬͯͬ. 
Water rates are projected to increase to ͭͬ percent through ͮͬͮͮ and then increase at ͯ percent 
through ͮͬͮ͵. With this rate increase, the City is able to meet their revenue goal to complete the 
CIP projects identified in the financial analysis. 





WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 1 | CITY OF SHELTON 

  JULY 2021 | 1-1 

Chapter 1 

INTRODUCTION 

1.1   Purpose 

The City of Shelton (City) prepared this Water System Plan (Plan) update to document the 
current status of the water system and evaluate the future needs of the water utility. The Plan is 
an update to the City’s 2010 Plan. The purpose of this plan is to document changes to the City’s 
water system, identify required system modifications, and to appropriately outline capital 
improvement projects to meet system growth and address aging infrastructure.  

Maintaining a current Plan is required to meet the regulations of the Washington State 
Department of Health (DOH) and the requirements of the Washington State Growth 
Management Act. This Plan complies with the requirements of DOH as set forth in the 
Washington Administrative Code (WAC) 246-290-100, Water System Plan. 

This Plan is a 20-year plan, starting in the year 2021. The Plan was developed between 2017 
and 2019 and updated in 2021, and the last year of data was provided in 2020. 

1.2   Objectives 

This Plan has been prepared to serve as a guide for planning and designing future water system 
facilities and to assist the City in using its water resources in the most efficient manner possible. 
Identified in this Plan are system improvements intended to meet the expanding and changing 
needs of the City. Specific objectives of this Plan are addressed by individual chapters presented 
herein and include the following: 

• Develop a document that can be updated periodically as additional information on the 
water system is obtained. 

• Water Requirements (Chapter 2): Perform a demographic and demand analysis to 
predict current and future demands within the City’s Service Area.   

• Description of Existing System (Chapter 3): Document the existing water system and 
planning considerations that influence the Plan. These include the study area, policies 
and criteria-related documents, and the existing infrastructure (e.g., supply, storage, 
booster pump stations, interties, and distribution). 

• Water Use Efficiency (Chapter 4): Summarize the City’s Water Use Efficiency (WUE) 
program, and project future conservation water demand. 

• System Analysis (Chapter 5): Assess the capability of the existing water system to meet 
existing and projected future demands and identify water system deficiencies. Calibrate 
and update the City’s hydraulic model of the water system. Identify potential 
improvements, including supply, storage, booster pump stations, and distribution. 

• Water Quality (Chapter 6): Summarize the water quality regulations and reporting 
requirements the City must meet. Evaluate the water quality against the regulations, 
summarizer any water quality violations, and recommend improvements if necessary to 
meet anticipated or future water quality regulations. 



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 1 | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

1-2 | JULY 2021   

• Source Water Protection (Chapter 7): Complete required source water assessment 
planning as required for Group A public water systems. Update the City’s Wellhead 
Protection program. 

• Operations and Maintenance (Chapter 8): Review, update, and evaluate the City’s 
Operations and Maintenance (O&M) Program. Identify recommendations for new or 
updated maintenance programs as needed.  

• Capital Improvement Program (Chapter 9): Summarize the recommended 
improvements for the sources of supply, storage, distribution and transmission, and 
pressure zones in accordance with the City’s Policy and Criteria. Develop a program of 
capital improvements, including priorities for design and construction.  

• Financial Program (Chapter 10): Develop a plan for financial backing of required system 
improvements. 

• Prepare an environmental checklist for city council action on the proposed water system 
plan. The checklist is to be reviewed by the various City departments for a threshold 
determination. 

• Prepare the Plan to comply with the requirements of the DOH. 

1.3   Location 

The City is located in Mason County, Washington, bordered to the east by Oakland Bay, a 
portion of the southeast section of Puget Sound. Nearby cities include Carmill Station to the 
southeast and Oakland and Bayshore to the northeast. 

1.4   Ownership and Management 

The City’s water system is officially designated in the DOH records as City of Shelton, system 
identification number DOH ID 78170N. It is a municipal, Class A water system. The City’s water 
system serves the City and portions of its Urban Growth Area (UGA) as defined by its water 
service area. The water services boundaries are further discussed in Chapter 3.  

A City Council consisting of seven elected officials is responsible for policymaking. Every 
two years, councilmembers appoint one member of the council to serve as mayor. The council 
appoints a professional city a manger who is responsible for administration, including the daily 
operations of city government, personnel functions, and preparing the city budget. The elected 
councilmembers and City Manager are as follow: 

• Mayor: Kevin Dorcy. 
• Deputy Mayor: Deidre Peterson. 
• Councilmembers: James Boad, Kathy McDowell, Eric Onisko, Joe Schmit, and 

Megan Fiess. 
• City Manager: Jeff Niten. 

The Public Works Director, the City Engineer, the Street, Water, and Equipment Maintenance, 
and Repair (EM&R) Superintendent, and the water field supervisor manage the day-to-day 
operations of the water system. The Public Works Director, the Finance Director, the City 
Manager, the Mayor, and the City Council work together to set water system policies and 
manage the water system’s finances. The following staff are currently involved in the 
management of the water system: 

• Public Works Director: Jay Harris. 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 1 | CITY OF SHELTON 

  JULY 2021 | 1-3 

• City Engineer: Ken Gill. 
• Street, Water, EM&R Superintendent: Mike Albaugh. 
• Water Field Supervisor: Matt Deemer. 

1.5   Environmental Assessment 

A State Environmental Policy Act (SEPA) Checklist has been prepared for this Plan. The City 
anticipates this Plan does not have probable significant adverse impacts on the environment in 
accordance with the Determination of Non-Significance (DNS) under WAC 197-11-340(2). The 
SEPA Checklist and DNS are included in Appendices 1A and 1B. 

1.6   Approval Process 

This Plan is required to meet state, county, and local requirements. It complies with the 
requirements of the DOH as set forth in WAC 246-290-100. The City will submit this Plan to the 
DOH, Mason County, and adjacent utilities as part of the Agency Review process. See 
Appendix 1C for the Comment Letters.  

As required by WAC 246-290-108, a local government consistency review checklist has been 
prepared and is included in Appendix 1D. The Adopting Resolution will be included in 
Appendix 1E, upon Plan approval by the city council. The Water System Plan Submittal Form is 
included in Appendix 1F. 

1.7   DOH Water System Plan Checklist 

To assist review of the Plan, Table 1.1 summarizes the DOH Water System Plan checklist with 
references to the required information. 

Table 1.1 DOH Water System Plan Checklist 

Required Content Description Plan Location 
 Description of Water System   

() Updated WFI, signed and dated App 3B 
() Ownership and management Section 1.4 
() System history and background Section 3.2.2 

() Inventory of existing facilities, including sources, distribution, storage, pump 
stations, and treatment Section 3.4 

() Description of and discussion about related plans: CWSP, groundwater 
management plan, WRIA and City/County land use plans & zoning. 

Chapter 3, 
Chapter 7 

() Service Area Maps: clearly identifying existing, retail and future service areas. Section 3.2 
() Policies: Service area, SMA, conditions of service, annexation Section 3.6 
() Duty to serve requirement: procedures, conditions, appeals Table 3.9 
() Consistency from local planning agency (LGC checklist) App 1D 

 Planning Data  

() Demand analysis based on water use: Chapter 2 

 • Include analysis of population, service connections & ERUs  

 
• Source and service meter data (preferably three or more, typically 

6 years). Provide monthly and annual production and consumption 
totals. 

 

 
• Provide usage by customer class. Analyze industrial and commercial 

demands separate from the residential demand and multifamily 
structures separate from the single family residences. 

 

 • Define ERU  



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 1 | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

1-4 | JULY 2021   

Required Content Description Plan Location 

 • Provide data and assumptions (including DSL) for calculation MDD, 
PHD, and ADD 

 

 • Demand analysis per pressure zone and the whole system  

 • Consider water supplied to other systems  

 • If >1000, include seasonal variations in consumption by customer class  

() Provide 6 & 20 year projections: Section 2.5 

 • Provide 6 & 20 year projections for demand forecasts with and 
without expected efficiency savings (conservation) 

 

() Interties – discussion of all existing and proposed interties and copies of 
agreements 

Section 3.4 

() Provide 6 & 20 year projections for land use and zoning  Section 2.3 

() 
Distribution System Leakage percentage and volume 

Section 2.4.5, 
Table 2.8 

 System Analysis  

() Provide assumptions and basis of analysis: Section 3.7 

 • System design standards Table 3.9 

 • Policies on operations and expected level of service (such as standby 
storage, pumping restrictions and emergency back-up power) 

Table 3.7, 3.9 

 • Fire flow requirements and if nesting is allowed. May need a 
confirmation from local fire authority. 

Table 3.8, 3.9 

() System inventory and description Section 3.2 
() Capacity analysis (legal and physical capacity): Chapter 5 

 • Limiting factor analysis (WSDM worksheet 6-1)  

 • Include the results of the limiting factor analysis in a table   

 • Show source, pumping, treatment, storage, and distribution 
capacities 

 

 • Analysis per pressure zone and the whole system  

 
• Water rights analysis – include water right self-assessment forms for 

existing, 6 & 20-year projections, including copies of water right 
certificate(s) 

 

() Hydraulic analysis of distribution system: Chapter 5 

 • Describe the model used  

 • Evaluate the system based on PHD and MDD + Fire flow  

 • Evaluate the current conditions, and 6- and 20-year planning periods  

 • Check minimum pressures and maximum velocities  

 
• Include assumptions of model, pressure zone boundary conditions, 

and a summary of model in/out information. Storage assumptions 
should be based on minimum reservoir levels. 

 

 • Include verification and calibration methods and results  

 • Summary of system deficiencies  

() Analysis of possible improvement projects 
Chapter 5, 
Chapter 9 

 Water Use Efficiency Program  

() WUE Program per WAC 246-290-810: Chapter 4 

 • Describe the current WUE program  

 • Describe WUE goal & document public adoption process  

 • Describe measures that will be implemented to achieve the goal & 
include schedule & costs in the budget 

 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 1 | CITY OF SHELTON 

  JULY 2021 | 1-5 

Required Content Description Plan Location 

 • Describe process used to evaluate the WUE measures you did not 
implement 

 

 • Describe yearly consumer education  

 • Estimated projected water savings from selected measures  

 • Describe process that will be used to determine effectiveness of the 
program 

 

       >= 1000 Connections  

 • Estimate water saved from efficiency measures over the past 6 years  

 • Quantitative evaluation of measures to determine if they are 
cost-effective, include marginal costs of water production 

 

 • Evaluate measures for cost-effectiveness if shared with other systems  

 • Quantitative of qualitative evaluation of measures to determine if 
they are cost-effective from the societal perspective 

 

() Source & Service Meters  - or schedule w/ activities to minimize leakage Section 4.5.2 

() Ten percent of all service meters should be replaced annual to maintain 
10-year life span. 

Section 4.5.2 

() Water Loss Action Plan WAC 246-290-820 Section 4.7 

() Water supply characteristics, description & discussion on effect of water use 
Section 3.5.2, 

Chapter 4 
() Source of supply analysis and evaluation of supply alternatives Chapter 5 
() >= 1000 connections explore reclaimed water opportunities Section 4.9 

 Source Water Protection  

() Wellhead protection program App 7A 
() 2 year update (contaminant inventory, letters, and map) App 7A 
() Analysis and discussion of Water Quality Ch. 6 

 Operation and Maintenance Program  

() Water system management and personnel Section 8.2 

 Operator certification Section 8.2.2 

() Routine operating procedures and preventative maintenance: 
Section 8.4, 

App 8B 

 • Standard Operating Procedures (SOP Manual-Surface Water 
Treatment Plant) 

 

() Water quality sampling procedures & program Chapter 6 

() Coliform monitoring plan, including maps (and triggered source monitoring 
plan) 

Section 6.2, 
App 6C 

() Emergency response plan: 

Section 3.5.2 
Section 8.6,  

App 8A,  
App 6C 

 • Water system contacts  

 • Vendor contacts (Equipment replacement, water haulers, etc.)  

 • Example notices (water outages, BWA, coliform MCL, emergency 
conservation) 

 

 • Emergency government officials contact info (ODW, County Health 
Dept., State and County Emergency Operations Centers) 

 

 • List of emergency sources and interties  

 • Emergency response planning activates to ensure preparedness  



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 1 | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

1-6 | JULY 2021   

Required Content Description Plan Location 

() Water shortage plan and service reliability 

Section 8.6.3, 
Section 7.9, 

App 8A,  
App 7A 

() Cross-connection control program App 8C 

() Recordkeeping, reporting, and customer complaint program 
Sections 8.9, 

8.10 
() Summary of O&M deficiencies 8.11 

 Distribution Facilities Design and Construction Standards  

() Standard construction specification for distribution mains App 3D 

 Improvement Program  

() Capital improvement schedule for 6 and 20 years Ch. 9 

 • Include inventory and assessment of existing system components  

 Financial Program  

() Summary of past Income and Expenses (at least 2 years) Section 10.2 
() >= 1000 connections – Balanced six-year budget Section 10.4 

() A plan for collecting the revenue necessary to maintain cash flow stability 
and to fund the capital improvement program and emergency improvements 

Ch. 10 

() Financial evaluation that has considered: Ch. 10 

 • The affordability of water rates  

 • The feasibility of adopting and implementing a rate structure that 
encourages water demand efficiency. 

 

() Show revenue and cash flow stability to fund capital and emergency 
improvements 

Section 10.4 

() Affordable rate structure that covers the full cost of producing, treating, 
storing, and distributing water to customers now and into the future 

Ch. 10 

 Miscellaneous Documents  

 Meeting of the consumers (may be combined with WUE public meeting) App 1E 

 Date, agenda, meeting minutes App 1E 

 County/Adjacent Utility Correspondence App 1C 

 >= 1000 connections – SEPA Determination App 1A/1B 

() Agreements: franchise, wheeling, financial aid, inter-local and other 
agreements (if any exist) 

App 3A 

 Satellite Management Program n/a 
Note:  
Abbreviations: ADD - average day demand; App - appendix; BWA - boil water advisory; CWSP - coordinated water system plan; 

DSL - distribution system leakage; ERU - equivalent residential unit; LGC - local government consistency; 
MCL - maximum contaminant level; MDD - maximum day demand; ODW - Office of Drinking Water; PHD - peak hour 
demand; SMA - satellite management agencies; SOP - standard operating procedure; WFI - water facility inventory; 
WRIA - water resource inventory area; WSDM - water system design manual. 

 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 2 | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | 2-1 

Chapter 2 

WATER REQUIREMENTS 

2.1   Introduction 

This chapter presents a demographic analysis of historical water production and consumption 
trends, as well as water demand forecasts for the ten and twenty year planning periods for the 
City of Shelton’s (City’s) water system. This is a 20-year Plan, starting in 2021 and extending 
through 2041. The Plan was developed between 2017 and 2019 and updated in 2021. Projecting 
realistic future water demands is necessary for evaluating the capability of the water system to 
meet future water service requirements, planning for infrastructure projects, and securing 
adequate water supply. Future water demands are used as input conditions for the analyses of 
the water system that are used to develop the Capital Improvement Program (CIP). 

Accurate demand projections require a detailed demographic analysis to predict where and how 
much growth will occur. This chapter first describes existing and future land use within the City. 
Demographic trends include: the City, its Urban Growth Area (UGA), and proposed annexation 
areas (Shelton Hills and Goldsborough Heights [GH]). Growth rates were developed from the 
City’s draft 2017 Comprehensive Plan. The City is expecting significant growth due to growth in 
the UGA and proposed annexation areas that will significantly increase water demands. 

The next requirement for developing accurate demand projections is a thorough review of the 
City’s unique historical water consumption trends. The unique consumption trends of the City’s 
various customer classes are evaluated from historical customer billing data. The historical 
average water use for single-family residential customers establishes the City’s current 
Equivalent Residential Unit (ERU) water use. Multiunit residential and non-residential customer 
consumption is expressed in terms of ERUs, based on the comparison of these customers’ water 
use to the ERU value. Historical production data is used to determine the maximum day 
demand (MDD) to average day demand (ADD) peaking factor. A comparison of production data 
versus consumption data determines distribution system leakage (DSL) as defined by the 
Washington State Department of Health (DOH). 

The water use parameters found in the historical production and consumption data, along with 
the growth rates developed in the demographic analysis, are used to predict a range of future 
water demand. Low, medium, and high demand projection scenarios were developed as 
described in the following sections. The system is evaluated for capacity deficiencies in the water 
system analysis based on the medium demand projections presented herein. 

Note, summary statistics in this Chapter include the average and 75th percentile. The average 
represents the typical value over the period of record and, by its nature, is commonly exceeded. 
The 75th percentile represents the value below which 75 percent of years may be found. For 
Master Planning, where the goal is to identify needed system improvements, using the 
75th percentile values provides a more conservative estimate than using average values for 
sizing infrastructure capacity needs. 



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 2 | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

2-2 | JULY 2021  

The following sections describe the available data sources, methodologies used, recommended 
planning values, and resulting demand projections in further detail. 

2.2   Land Use 

The City’s water system serves the City of Shelton, the Port of Shelton, and a portion of the 
City’s UGA. Figure 2.1 shows the existing land use by parcel within the City’s Future Service Area. 

For planning purposes, the Future Service Area considers supplying the Future Service Area (as 
shown in Figures 2.1 and 2.2), which includes the two proposed annexation areas: Shelton Hills 
and GH. 

Future land use, shown in Figure 2.2, portrays projected land use in the year 2036. These land use 
maps are used to distribute existing and future water demands throughout each of the 
City’s pressures zones in the water system hydraulic model, for the purpose of evaluating the 
water distribution system. Note, land use categories were combined to be consistent customer 
classes, presented in subsequent sections. Future land use designations for the Future Service 
Area are shown in Figure 2.2 and are consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan. 

2.3   Demographic Analysis 

A demographic analysis was performed for the City’s Future Service Area. The last year of data 
provided for the demographic analysis was 2017. The Future Service Area was considered to be 
the City’s existing water system and future service areas in the UGA. The most recent 
demographic forecasts for the UGA were published in the draft City Comprehensive Plan (2017), 
which included household, employee, and population forecast data are shown in Table 2.1. The 
2036 forecasts were used as a reference to escalate the population to 2041. 

Table 2.1 Demographic Growth Rates 

 2016 2021 2027 2031 2036 2041 

Population 13,816 16,218 19,101  21,503 23,425 25,347 

Households 5,379 6,313 7,434  8,181 9,115 9,862 

Jobs 6,489 9,607 13,349  15,467 18,961 21,445 

 



1S
T

RAILROAD

ISLAND LAKE

DEARBORN

ARCADIA

HARVARD

7T
H

16
TH

H
U

LB
E

R
T

K

SANDERSON

SHELTON MATLOCK
FAIRMOUNT

WALKER PARK

BR
O

C
KD

A
LE

BATSTONE CUT OFF

C

E

NORTHCLIFF

11
TH

9T
H

FR
O

N
T

BE
A

R

F

7T
H

J

A
B

H

G
D

THOMAS

KINEO

13
TH

PU
G

E
T

FRANKLIN

ALDER

PINE

BO
U

N
D

AR
Y

DICKINSON

LAKE

M
ADISO

N
SUMMIT

PA
C

IF
IC

W
ASHING

TO
N

SENTRY
GRANT

EUCLID

AL
D

ER

ALDERMANOR

LITTLE BEAR

HA
W

TH
ORN

HIGHLAND

DAYTON AIRPORT

TURNER

SANJOAQUIN

ALPINE

EV
A

N
MILL CREEK

CL
O

Q
UA

LL
UM

EX
P

O
R

T

M
IL

LW
R

IG
H

T

SHELTON

SPRINGS

PEACOCK HILL

ST
AT

E 
R

O
UT

E 
3

HICKAM

WALLACE KNEELAND

SHADOW
VALLEY

PARK

SHELTON VALLEY

U
S 

H
IG

H
W

AY
 1

01

JOH N S PR AIRIE

FAIRGROUNDS

C
AP

IT
A

L 
H

IL
L

DE
EG

AN

GD G OOSE L AK E MA IN
LI

NE

Te
xtOLY

MPIC
 H

W
Y

£¤101

I s l a n d
L a k e

O a k l a n d  B a y

H a m m e r s l e y  I n l e t

Last Revised: March 29, 2021 pw://IO-PW-INT.Carollo.local:Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Shelton/10669A00/Data/GIS/Fig2.1_WaterSystemLU.mxd

O
0 0.50.25

Miles

Disclaimer: Features shown in this 
figure are for planning purposes and
represent approximate locations. 
Engineering and/or survey accuracy
is not implied.

Data Sources: City of Shelton. 
Washington State Dept. of
Natural Resources

 Figure 2.1  Future Service Area with Existing Land Use by Parcel

WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 2 | CITY OF SHELTON

Legend
Existing Land Use

Agriculture

Forest

Commercial

Industrial

Single-Family Residential

Multi-Family Residential

Mobile Home Park

Park

Public

Undeveloped

Unknown

Streets

Shelton Urban Growth Area

Future Service Area

Parcels

Water Bodies



1S
T

RAILROAD

ISLAND LAKE

DEARBORN

ARCADIA

HARVARD

7T
H

16
TH

H
U

LB
E

R
T

K

SANDERSON

SHELTON MATLOCK
FAIRMOUNT

WALKER PARK

BR
O

C
KD

A
LE

BATSTONE CUT OFF

C

E

NORTHCLIFF

11
TH

9T
H

FR
O

N
T

BE
A

R

F

7T
H

J

A
B

H

G
D

THOMAS

KINEO

13
TH

PU
G

E
T

FRANKLIN

ALDER

PINE

BO
U

N
D

AR
Y

DICKINSON

LAKE
M

ADISO
N

SUMMIT

PA
C

IF
IC

W
ASHING

TO
N

SENTRY
GRANT

EUCLID

AL
D

ER

ALDERMANOR

LITTLE BEAR

HA
W

TH
ORN

HIGHLAND

DAYTON AIRPORT

TURNER

SANJOAQUIN

ALPINE

EV
A

N
MILL CREEK

CL
O

Q
UA

LL
UM

EX
P

O
R

T

M
IL

LW
R

IG
H

T

SHELTON

SPRINGS

PEACOCK HILL

ST
AT

E 
R

O
UT

E 
3

HICKAM

WALLACE KNEELAND

SHADOW
VALLEY

PARK

SHELTON VALLEY

U
S 

H
IG

H
W

AY
 1

01

JOH N S PRAIRIE

FAIRGROUNDS

C
AP

IT
A

L 
H

IL
L

DE
EG

AN

GD G OOSE LA KE M A IN
LIN

E

Te
xtOLY

MPIC
 H

W
Y

£¤101

I s l a n d
L a k e

O a k l a n d  B a y

H a m m e r s l e y  I n l e t

Last Revised: March 29, 2021 pw://IO-PW-INT.Carollo.local:Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Shelton/10669A00/Data/GIS/Fig2.2_WaterSystemFutureLU.mxd

O
0 0.50.25

Miles

Disclaimer: Features shown in this 
figure are for planning purposes and
represent approximate locations. 
Engineering and/or survey accuracy
is not implied.

Data Sources: City of Shelton. 
Washington State Dept. of
Natural Resources

 Figure 2.2  Future Service Area with Future Land Use

WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 2 | CITY OF SHELTON

Legend
Streets

Shelton Urban Growth Area

Future  Service Area

Parcels

Water Bodies

Future Land Use
Industrial

Commercial

Neighborhood Residential

Medical / Educational

Public Institutional

Public Lands

Rural

Mixed Use

Downtown

Goldsborough Heights

Shelton Hills



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 2 | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | 2-5 

2.4   Historical Production and Consumption 

Historical production, number of accounts, and consumption data were obtained from City 
records for the years 2009 through 2020. These historical demand data were evaluated to 
characterize the unique water use of the City’s customers. Several key demand parameters were 
generated from this data: water use per customer class, water use per connection for each 
customer class, water use per ERU, MDD to ADD peaking factors, and DSL. These parameters 
are used as the basis for future demand projections and are described in detail below. 

2.4.1   Historical Water Production 

The City’s water system is supplied by three different wells – Well #1, Well #3, and Well #4. 
Water production varies annually in response to system demand, which is correlated to weather, 
development, economic conditions, and conservation activities. Total and individual well 
production has remained relatively steady in recent years, as shown in Figure 2.3. The vast 
majority of the water produced, 92 percent between 2009 and 2020, comes from Wells #3 
and #4. Well #1 has historically provided peaking supply during summer, which represents a 
relatively small percentage of the annual water produced. 

In 2016, the City completed upgrades to Well #3, which limited its annual production and 
Well #1 operated in its place. Since then, the City has continued to use Well #1 as a year-round 
production well, rather than for summer peaking; therefore, it is anticipated that well use will be 
more equal in the future. 

2.4.1.1   Average Day Demand 

The ADD represents the average daily demand for the year, which is typically used for 
operational evaluations. It is calculated by dividing the total water produced by the number of 
days per year. These values, for the years 2009 through 2020, are presented in Table 2.2. The 
relatively steady water use in recent years results in little difference between summary statistics 
(i.e., the average value is very close to the 75th percentile value). 

2.4.1.2   Maximum Day Demand 

Identifying MDD is critical for establishing system supply capacity, pump station discharge rates, 
reservoir capacity, and pump sizes. Historical MDD values are equivalent to the highest 
production in one day in a given year, and are usually during the summer when irrigation is 
occurring. The City collects water production on a weekly basis, but does not collect daily data.  

In the City’s 2010 Water System Plan, the ratio of MDD to average daily demand was 1.26 for the 
week in which the MDD occurred. This factor was used to estimate the MDD based on the 
maximum production week as presented in Table 2.2. The week of occurrence for the maximum 
week production for 2009 through 2020 is also presented in Table 2.2. MDD has been relatively 
consistent from 2009 to 2020, generally between 2.08 and 2.19 million gallons per day (mgd), 
with a maximum MDD of 2.61 mgd in 2009. 

In order to develop future MDD projections, the historical MDD to ADD peaking factor was 
calculated, as shown in Table 2.2. The MDD to ADD peaking factor fluctuated between 1.98 
and 2.19, except in 2009 when it reached 2.43. The 2009 peaking factor was consistent with 
historical values from 2002 through 2009, as detailed in the previous water system plan, and was 
therefore maintained as a representation of past peaking factors. 



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 2 | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

2-6 | JULY 2021  

 

Figure 2.3 Historical Water Production 

Table 2.2 Historical Water Use 

Year 
Annual 

Water Use 
(gallons) 

Average Day 
Demand 

(mgd) 

Maximum 
Day Demand 

(mgd) 

Date of 
Maximum 

Day Demand 

Max Day/Avg. Day 
Peaking Factor 

2009 392,292,510 1.07 2.61 7/27-7/31 2.43 

2010 362,915,402 0.99 2.18 7/26-7/31 2.19 

2011 373,165,418 1.02 2.08 9/6-9/12 2.03 

2012 370,597,020 1.01 2.15 8/13-8/20 2.12 

2013 364,370,398 1.00 2.15 7/29-7/31 2.16 

2014 378,539,096 1.04 2.10 8/4-8/11 2.03 

2015 404,388,789 1.11 2.19 6/30-7/6 1.98 

2016 379,659,201 1.04 2.10 8/15-8/22 2.02 

2017 406,622,372 1.11 2.36 7/31-8/7 2.12 

2018 394,028,763 1.08 2.07 8/13-8/20 1.92 

2019 365,779,458 1.00 2.03 6/17-6/24 2.03 

2020 349,535,793 0.96 2.33 7/31-8/3 2.44 

Average 378,491,185 1.04 2.20  2.12 

75th 
Percentile 

392,726,573 1.08 2.23  2.17 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 2 | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | 2-7 

2.4.2   Historical Water Accounts 

For analysis of water consumption, the City divides its customers into nine categories as follows: 

1. Residential. 
2. Duplex. 
3. Fire Line. 
4. Governmental. 
5. Hotel/Motel. 
6. Industrial. 
7. Irrigation. 
8. Multiunit. 
9. Commercial. 

The number of accounts in each customer category for the years 2009 through 2020 is 
summarized in Table 2.3. The City’s number of accounts fluctuated during the twelve-year period 
of record with the height in 2017 with 3,828. Accounts have grown relatively equal between 
residential and non-residential. However, the non-residential accounts likely represent more 
water use, as discussed in the next section. 

 



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 2 | WATER REQUIREMENTS 

2-8 | JULY 2021 | DRAFT 

Table 2.3 Historical Number of Connections 

Year Residential Duplex Fire Line Governmental Hotel/Motel Industrial Irrigation Multiunit Commercial Other Total 

2009 2,933 124 54 55 3 2 98 94 355 0 3,718 

2010 2,945 125 55 58 3 2 99 94 357 0 3,738 

2011 2,947 125 61 58 3 2 99 98 365 0 3,758 

2012 2,951 124 62 62 3 2 101 98 360 0 3,763 

2013 2,945 127 64 71 3 2 103 99 365 0 3,779 

2014 2,948 127 67 72 3 2 103 100 366 0 3,788 

2015 2,945 129 68 83 3 2 105 103 357 0 3,795 

2016 2,947 128 69 80 3 2 95 105 365 0 3,794 

2017 2,964 130 68 82 3 2 109 105 365 0 3,828 

2018 2,762 133 69 72 3 2 109 140 402 0 3,692 

2019 2,966 137 75 72 3 0 72 105 333 0 3,763 

2020 2,924 134 75 72 3 0 61 103 332 0 3,704 
Note: 
(1) Historical number of connections based on information provided by City Staff. 

 

 



WATER REQUIREMENTS | CH 2 | CITY OF SHELTON 

DRAFT | JULY 2021| 2-9 

2.4.3   Historical Water Consumption 

Historical annual water consumption data by customer class for the years 2009 through 2020 
was obtained from the City’s billing records and is presented in Table 2.4 in gallons per day (gpd). 
During this period, overall water consumption has remained fairly constant with peak 
consumption in 2009. Historical water consumption by customer class is shown graphically in 
Figure 2.4. As shown in Figure 2.5, residential accounts make up 78 percent of all customer 
accounts while only making up 49 percent of total water consumption. 

Water use per account has remained relatively steady over the period, as presented in Table 2.5 
in gpd and shown in Figure 2.6. Year-to-year fluctuations in water consumption have largely 
been caused by variations in irrigation and commercial use. 

2.4.4   Historical Seasonal Water Consumption 

Seasonal water consumption by customer class was evaluated based on available billing records 
from 2016, which is shown in Figure 2.7. Water consumption peaks in the months of June, July, 
August, and September due to increased residential use and summer irrigation. Besides 
residential and irrigation accounts, the governmental customer category also shows a noticeable 
summer demand increase. The multiunit residential and industrial customer categories 
experience the least seasonal demand peaking. 

2.4.5   Distribution System Leakage 

DSL is equal to total production minus total authorized consumption. Total production equals 
metered source water production. Total authorized water consumption is the volume of water 
authorized for use by the water system. This includes both authorized metered consumption as 
well as authorized, tracked, and estimated consumption. Metered consumption is tracked 
through customer service meters. 

All water that is not authorized consumption is considered DSL. DSL includes both apparent and 
real losses. Apparent losses include water theft, meter inaccuracies, and data collection errors. 
Real losses are physical losses from the distribution system including reservoir overflows, water 
main breaks, and water main leaks. 

Table 2.6 shows total water production, total authorized consumption, and distribution system 
leakage for the period of 2009 through 2020. DSL has increased significantly in the last 
three years, with a maximum of 17.2 percent in 2017. Water loss is considered excessive if it 
exceeds 10 percent on a three year rolling average, which the City exceeded in 2015 
through 2019. In 2020 the three year rolling average met the 10 percent threshold and equated 
to 7.3 percent. To meet state requirements when the rolling average exceeds 10 percent, the City 
has developed a Water Loss Control Plan that aims to reduce demand below the 10 percent 
threshold, which is provided in Chapter 4 of this Plan. 

Note, values in Table 2.6 are based on the City’s historical water loss reporting. Consumption 
data reported to DOH differs slightly from values provided in Section 2.4.3. The City switched 
financial systems in 2015 and was unable to retrieve archival billing data exactly as previously 
reported to DOH. Data used for this plan represent the City’s best efforts to recapture that data, 
and, in general, the difference between DOH reported consumption and the recreated data was 
within one percent. 



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 2 | WATER REQUIREMENTS 

2-10 | JULY 2021 | DRAFT 

Table 2.4 Consumption by Customer Class (gpd) 

Year Days Residential Duplex 
Fire 
Line 

Governmental Hotel/Motel Industrial Irrigation Multiunit Commercial Other Total 

2009 365 522,874 25,057 -- 62,843 5,694 5,102 120,766 94,387 190,129 -- 1,026,852 

2010 365 455,627 23,468 -- 44,311 5,699 4,642 84,798 87,286 197,569 -- 903,400 

2011 365 487,677 26,951 -- 60,689 6,958 5,201 94,878 86,765 190,728 -- 959,848 

2012 366 462,650 24,195 -- 61,243 6,491 3,839 106,661 86,167 188,084 -- 939,330 

2013 365 422,421 22,927 -- 60,872 5,719 4,145 83,396 81,486 221,728 -- 902,693 

2014 365 425,599 23,620 -- 57,376 5,957 4,770 93,195 82,442 196,034 -- 888,994 

2015 365 438,624 24,318 -- 61,354 6,201 6,668 118,381 86,058 210,002 -- 951,605 

2016 366 427,677 24,006 -- 66,696 7,392 5,649 113,316 77,863 192,271 -- 914,870 

2017 365 427,575 25,502 - 61,147 7,953 1,019 105,594 80,100 212,875 - 921,765 

2018 365 442,214 25,583 - 67,008 7,413 - 125,913 80,806 209,001 - 957,938 

2019 365 431,785 24,600 - 66,926 7,164 - 109,368 81,738 216,661 - 938,242 

2020 366 449,446 24,389 - 55,872 5,676 - 109,214 85,530 184,871 - 914,997 

Average 451,578  24,662  -    60,798  6,555  3,442  105,919  84,606  201,728  -    939,287  

75th Percentile 460,493 25,296 - 64,185 7,227 5,162 115,362 86,903 211,791 - 957,973 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 2 | CITY OF SHELTON 

  JULY 2021 | 2-11 

Table 2.5 Water Consumption per Account by Class (gpd) 

Year Residential Duplex Fire Line Governmental Hotel/Motel Industrial Irrigation Multiunit Commercial Other Total 

2009 178 202 0 1,143 1,898 2,551 1,232 1,004 536 -- 324 

2010 155 188 0 764 1,900 2,321 857 929 553 -- 284 

2011 165 216 0 1,046 2,319 2,601 958 885 523 -- 301 

2012 157 195 0 988 2,164 1,920 1,056 879 522 -- 293 

2013 143 181 0 857 1,906 2,072 810 823 607 -- 281 

2014 144 186 0 797 1,986 2,385 905 824 536 -- 276 

2015 145 188 0 834 2,464 2,824 1,193 742 527 -- 295 

2016 155 190 0 743 2,088 2,501 1,073 812 543 -- 284 

2017 144 196 0 746 2,651 509 969 763 583 -- 241 

2018 160 192 0 931 2,471 0 1,155 577 520 -- 259 

2019 146 180 0 930 2,388 -- 1,519 778 651 -- 249 

2020 154 182 0 776 1,892 -- 1,790 830 557 -- 247 

Average 154 192 0 883 2,185 2,065 1,136 826 561  250 

75th Percentile 158 196 0 947 2,409 2,606 1,211 887 585 NA 254 



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 2 | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

2-12 | JULY 2021  

 

Figure 2.4 Historical Water Consumption by Customer Class 

 

Figure 2.5 Percent of Accounts by Customer Class 

Residential
78%

Duplex
3%

Fire Line
2%

Governmental
1.86%

Hotel/Motel
0.08%

Industrial
0.04%

Irrigation
2%

Multiunit
2.76%

Commerical
9.58%

Average Percent of Accounts by Customer Class (2009 - 2020)



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 2 | CITY OF SHELTON 

  JULY 2021 | 2-13 

 

Figure 2.6 2016 Historical Water Consumed per Account 

 

Figure 2.7 Seasonal Consumption by Customer Class 



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 2 | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

2-14 | JULY 2021  

Table 2.6 Historical Distribution System Leakage 

Year 
Water 

Production 
(mgd) 

Authorized  
Consumption 

(mgd) 

DSL  
(mgd) 

DSL  
(percent of Water 

Production) 

3-year Rolling 
Average 
(percent) 

2009 1.07 1.04 0.039 3.6 7.5 

2010 0.99 0.93 0.067 6.7 5.4 

2011 1.02 0.95 0.075 7.4 5.9 

2012 1.01 0.95 0.069 6.8 7.0 

2013 1.00 0.91 0.088 8.8 7.7 

2014 1.04 0.89 0.142 13.7 9.8 

2015 1.11 0.96 0.154 13.8 12.1 

2016 1.04 0.93 0.111 10.6 12.7 

2017 1.11 0.92 0.192 17.2 13.9 

2018 1.08 0.96 0.121 11.2 13.0 

2019 1.00 0.94 0.063 6.3 11.6 

2020 0.96 0.92 0.042 4.4 7.3 

Average 1.04 0.94 0.097 9.2 NA 

2.4.6   Equivalent Residential Units 

The Washington Administrative Code (WAC) 246-290-010 defines the concept of ERU in order to 
express customer water use as an equivalent number of single family residential customers. 
An ERU is the amount of water consumed by a typical full time single family residence. 

Water use per ERU is calculated by dividing the total volume of water utilized in the residential 
customer class by the total number of active residential accounts. The volume of water used by 
other customer classes is divided by the residential water use to determine the number of 
ERUs per account for other customer classes. 

The average daily consumption per account for each customer class for years 2009 through 2020 
is shown in Table 2.5, presented above. The residential consumption has been relatively steady 
over the time period after dropping from its high of 178 gpd in 2009. For developing demand 
projections, the City selected to define its ERU value as the 75th percentile of the historical data, 
which is 158 gallons per day per ERU (gpd/ERU). The 75th percentile is considered appropriate 
for sizing infrastructure improvements. 

Historical ERUs per account for each consumption class was calculated based on the selected 
ERU value. These varied from 1.3 ERUs per account for duplex customers to 15.9 ERUs per 
industrial account, as shown in Table 2.7. 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 2 | CITY OF SHELTON 

  JULY 2021 | 2-15 

Table 2.7 Historical ERUs 

Account Type ERUs 

Residential 1.0 

Duplex 1.3 

Fire Line 0 

Governmental 6.3 

Hotel/Motel 15.7 

Industrial 15.9 

Irrigation 7.7 

Multiunit 5.7 

Commercial 4.0 
Note: 
(1) ERUs shown are 75th percentile of historical data from 2009 through 2020. 

2.5   Projected Water Demand 

Projecting future water demand is one of the key elements of the water system planning 
process. Identification of system improvements such as supply, pumping, storage, and piping 
requirements are all related to demand projections. This section summarizes the ADD and MDD 
projections that were developed for the City’s water system based on historical water demand 
trends and future growth assumptions. The demand projections are presented as a range in 
demands that may be experienced in the future. Low, medium, and high water demand 
projection scenarios were developed by adjusting various demand projection parameters. The 
medium demand projection scenario is used to identify improvements described in Chapter 4. 
The low and high projection scenarios provide a sense of the extent of uncertainty in the demand 
forecasts. 

2.5.1   Demand Projection Parameters 

Future water use was projected using parameters developed from historical data and 
assumptions for future growth. Several parameters were used to project future ADD and MDD. 
The parameters, which are listed in Table 2.8, include the ERU value, future customer water use 
assumptions, MDD to ADD peaking factor, and DSL percentage. In addition, the growth rates 
presented in Table 2.1 are used to predict future residential and non-residential accounts. For 
each demand projection parameter, low, medium, and high values were established 
corresponding to the respective demand scenario. 

The values selected for each parameter in developing the range of demand projections are 
summarized in Table 2.8 and discussed below. 



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 2 | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

2-16 | JULY 2021  

Table 2.8 Demand Projection Parameters 

Parameter 
Low  

Scenario 
Medium  
Scenario 

High  
Scenario 

ERU Value (gpd/ERU) 158 158 158 

Future Customer Water Use  
(percent of existing water use) 

95 95 100 

MDD/ADD Peaking Factor 2.08 2.17 2.27 

Percent DSL 10.0 10.0 10.0 

2.5.1.1   ERU Value 

For all three demand projection scenarios, an ERU value of 158 gpd was selected by the City to 
be conservative, which corresponds to the 75th percentile of historical data as previously 
described. 

When performing the limiting capacity analysis, the ERU value referenced above is known as the 
ADD ERU value. The MDD ERU value, which is also used in the limiting capacity analysis, is the 
ADD ERU value multiplied by the MDD/ADD peaking factor for the medium scenario. The MDD 
ERU value is 345 gpd. 

2.5.1.2   Future Customer Water Use 

When projecting future ERUs for each customer type, except Industrial, were assumed to use 
five percent less water than existing customers. This reduction represents passive water savings 
gained in new developments from low-flow fixtures, water efficient appliances, smaller lot sizes, 
and other factors. It is not intended to represent savings from the City’s active Water Use 
Efficiency program. 

2.5.1.3   MDD to ADD Peaking Factor 

The MDD to ADD peaking factor of 2.08, used for the low demand scenario, is the 50th percentile 
of the historical peaking factors presented in Table 2.2. The City selected a peaking factor of 2.17 
for the medium demand projection, equal to the 75th percentile of historical peaking factors. For 
the high demand projection, a peaking factor 2.27 was selected, equal to the 90th percentile of 
historical peaking factors, and is greater than all recent years except 2009. 

2.5.1.4   Distribution System Leakage 

For all demand projection scenarios, the City selected a DSL value of 10 percent, the DOH 
maximum acceptable DSL level value. As previously mentioned, the City has developed a water 
loss control plan to achieve or exceed this water loss reduction goal. 

2.5.1.5   Large Users Demand 

The City provides water service to Sierra Pacific Industries Sawmill (SPI). The projected ERUs, 
ADD, and MDD for SPI in the planning year 2041 are as follows: 

• ERUs: 322. 
• ADD: 50,813 gpd. 
• MDD: 50,813 gpd. 

The SPI demand projections were kept the same across all three projected demand scenarios. 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 2 | CITY OF SHELTON 

  JULY 2021 | 2-17 

In previous Plans, the Port of Shelton’s John’s Prairie Industrial Park was considered a large user. 
John’s Prairie is still an existing user but is no longer considered a large user (no growth is 
estimated for the planning period). The City also provides water service to the Washington State 
Patrol Academy.  

2.5.1.6   Annexation Demands 

The City plans to serve two proposed annexation expansions to the UGA: Shelton Hills and GH. 
Projected 2041 demands and equivalent ERUs for the two UGA expansion areas are presented in 
Table 2.9. 

Shelton Hills demands are based on plans for a large industrial area and moderate commercial 
area in Shelton Hills, represented as “annex industrial” and “annex commercial” customer classes 
in the demand projection. GH is anticipated to be mainly single family residential development, 
with a small commercial component, represented as “annex residential” and “annex 
commercial” customer classes in the demand projection. Like the large user future demands, 
annexation demands remained the same across all three demand projection scenarios. Service 
to Shelton Hills was projected to begin in 2024 and scale up to the projected ERUs by the end 
of 2041. Service to GH was projected to begin in 2034, with ERUs scaling up to the projected 
value by the end of 2044. 

Table 2.9 Annexation 2041 Water Demands 

Description ERUs ADD (gpd) MDD (gpd) 

Shelton Hills 1,439 263,206 597,476 

Goldsborough Heights 286 15,350 34,845 

2.5.2   Account Projections 

Using the demographic growth rates documented in Table 2.10, the number of existing accounts 
in each customer class were grown to project future number of water accounts. Residential, 
Duplex, and Multiunit accounts were grown by household growth rates. Governmental, 
Hotel/Motel, Industrial, Irrigation, and Commercial accounts were grown by employee growth 
rates. 

Annual growth rates presented in Table 2.3 were used to project future accounts for all three 
demand projection scenarios. The projected number of future accounts was then used to 
develop ERU and demand projections as described below. The account projections by customer 
type are presented in Table 2.10. 

Table 2.10 Account Projections by Customer Type 

 2021 2027 2031 2041 

Residential 3,013 3,549 3,906 4,799 

Duplex 138 163 179 220 

Fire Line 80 111 132 184 

Governmental 74 87 96 118 

Hotel/Motel 3 4 4 5 

Industrial 0 0 0 0 



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 2 | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

2-18 | JULY 2021  

 2021 2027 2031 2041 

Irrigation 65 91 108 150 

Multiunit 106 125 138 169 

Commercial 355 493 586 816 

Large User(1) n/a n/a n/a n/a 

TOTAL 3,835 4,623 5,148 6,461 
Note: 
(1) Large Users are projected independently of other Customer Types. 

2.5.3   ERU Projections 

The ERU projections provide the basis for the ADD and MDD projections. The projected number 
of ERUs for the City was calculated by multiplying the projected number of accounts by the 
number of ERUs per account presented in Table 2.11. For the low and medium demand 
projection scenarios, future ERUs were projected to be 95 percent of existing ERUs for all 
account types, except the large users and annexation areas, as presented in Table 2.11. 
Projected ERUs for the large users and annexation areas were added as described previously. 

For all three demand projection scenarios, the total ERUs are projected to almost double by the 
end of the planning period. The City’s total number of ERUs is projected to grow from 
approximately 6,425 in 2021 to 12,010 by 2041 in the medium scenario, as shown in Table 2.11. 
By 2041, demands from Large Users and annexations are projected to make up nearly 10 percent 
of the City’s total number of ERUs. 

Table 2.11 ERU Projections for Low, Medium, High Demand Scenarios 

Year 2021 2027 2031 2041 

Low Demand (gpd) 6,425 8,115 9,349 12,242 

Medium Demand (gpd) 6,425 8,115 9,349 12,242 

High Demand (gpd) 6,409 8,146 9,411 12,382 
Note: 
(1) The difference between the low demand scenario and medium demand scenario is the MDD/ADD peaking factor so the 

ERU projections are the same for both scenarios. 

2.5.4   Projected ADD and MDD 

Average day demand projections for each customer class were calculated by converting 
consumption in ERUs to gallons per day using the ERU values presented in Table 2.11. Water 
losses (10 percent DSL for all scenarios) were added to establish total ADD projections. 

MDD projections were established by multiplying ADD projections by the selected ADD to MDD 
peaking factor for each demand projection scenario, as presented in Table 2.10. ADD and MDD 
projections for the low, medium, and high demand projection scenarios are presented in 
Table 2.12 and Table 2.13, respectively. The ADD in 2016 was approximately 1.0 mgd, and 
the 2041 ADD is projected to be approximately 2.11 mgd for the low and medium scenarios. The 
projected 2041 MDD ranges between 4.33 mgd and 4.77 mgd, with a medium projection 
of 4.52 mgd. Future demand projections for the entire planning period are presented in Figure 2.8. 

The City demand is anticipated to increase by almost 200 percent over the 20 year period, which 
is substantial. The City is the largest municipality in Mason County, supports large regional 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 2 | CITY OF SHELTON 

  JULY 2021 | 2-19 

customers, and has extensive buildable land to support this growth. However, additional water 
system infrastructure will be required to serve the growing system, as discussed in subsequent 
chapters. 

Table 2.12 Projected ADDs for Low, Medium, High Demand Scenarios 

Year 2021 2027 2031 2041 

Low Demand (mgd) 1.13 1.42 1.64 2.15 

Medium Demand (mgd) 1.13 1.42 1.64 2.15 

High Demand (mgd) 1.13 1.43 1.65 2.17 
Note: 
(1) The difference between the low demand scenario and medium demand scenario is the MDD/ADD peaking factor so the 

ADD projections are the same for both scenarios. 

Table 2.13 Projected MDDs for Low, Medium, High Demand Scenarios 

Year 2021 2027 2031 2041 

Low Demand (mgd) 2.29 2.91 3.36 4.42 

Medium Demand (mgd) 2.39 3.03 3.50 4.60 

High Demand (mgd) 2.49 3.18 3.68 4.86 

2.5.5   Projected Demand by Pressure Zone 

A breakdown of existing demands by pressure zone is shown in Figure 2.9. Ninety-eight percent 
of existing demands are in three of the five pressure zones. To predict future demands by 
pressure zone, future land use was used to attribute a percentage of the total growth of each 
customer class to each pressure zone. Future demand by pressure zone for 2041 is shown in 
Figure 2.10. This breakdown of future demands was used when performing a capacity evaluation 
of the system. 

With the expansion of the UGA, and growth within the UGA, the Upper Mountain View pressure 
zone is projected to grow significantly. The growth in average day demand by pressure zone is 
shown in Table 2.14. Growth within the Upper Mountain View zone accounts for 40 percent of 
the total increase in ADD between 2021 and 2041. 

Table 2.14 Growth in ADD by Pressure Zone 

Pressure Zone Existing (mgd) Future (mgd) 
Incremental Growth  

(2020 - 2041)  
(mgd) 

Angleside 0.28 0.42 0.13 

Mountain View 0.48 0.84 0.35 

Capital Hill 0.03 0.05 0.02 

High School 0.30 0.39 0.09 

Upper Mountain View 0.00 0.46 0.46 

 



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 2 | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

2-20 | JULY 2021  

 

Figure 2.8 Historical and Projected Average and Maximum Day Demands 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 2 | CITY OF SHELTON 

  JULY 2021 | 2-21 

 

Figure 2.9 Existing Estimated Demand by Pressure Zone (2020) 

 

Figure 2.10 Estimated Future Demand by Pressure Zone (2041) 





WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 3 | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | 3-1 

Chapter 3 

DESCRIPTION OF THE WATER SYSTEM 

3.1   Introduction 

The City of Shelton’s (City) water system currently serves a population of approximately 13,800 
people. As of 2020, it had approximately 3,700 service connections. Of these, 2,920 were 
single-family residential connections, while the remaining 780 connections were multi-family 
and non-residential (commercial, industrial, etc.) services.  

The existing service area is primarily within city limits, but some areas outside of them are also 
served.  

3.2   Existing Water System 

3.2.1   Location 

The City is located in Mason County, Washington, and bordered to the east by Oakland Bay, 
which is a portion of the southeast section of Puget Sound. Total topography ranges from sea 
level to 350 feet (ft) with the water service area sloping toward Puget Sound.  

The primary freshwater stream is Goldsborough Creek, flowing into Oakland Bay from 
downtown. In addition, several other smaller creeks flow from Shelton Springs into Oakland Bay.  

Figure 3.1 shows the City’s boundary and urban growth area (UGA), as well as its surrounding 
region. 
  



1S
T

RAILROAD

ISLAND LAKE

DEARBORN

ARCADIA

HARVARD

7T
H

16
TH

H
U

LB
E

R
T

K

SANDERSON

SHELTON MATLOCK
FAIRMOUNT

WALKER PARK

BR
O

C
KD

A
LE

BATSTONE CUT OFF

C

E

NORTHCLIFF

11
TH

9T
H

FR
O

N
T

BE
A

R

F

7T
H

J

A
B

H

G
D

THOMAS

KINEO

13
TH

PU
G

E
T

FRANKLIN

ALDER

PINE

BO
U

N
D

AR
Y

DICKINSON

LAKE

M
ADISO

N

SUMMIT

PA
C

IF
IC

W
ASHIN

G
TO

N

SENTRY
GRANT

EUCLID

AL
D

ER

ALDERMANOR

LITTLE BEAR

HA
W

TH
ORN

HIGHLAND

DAYTON AIRPORT

TURNER

SANJOAQUIN

ALPINE

EV
A

N

MILL CREEK

CL
O

Q
UA

LL
UM

EX
P

O
R

T

M
IL

LW
R

IG
H

T

SHELTON

SPRINGS

PEACOCK HILL

ST
AT

E 
R

O
UT

E 
3

HICKAM

WALLACE KNEELAND

SHADOW
VALLEY

PARK

SHELTON VALLEY

U
S 

H
IG

H
W

AY
 1

01

JOH N S P RAIRIE

FAIRGROUNDS

C
AP

IT
A

L 
H

IL
L

DE
EG

AN

GD GOOSE L AK E M A IN
LIN

E

Te
xtOLY

MPIC
 H

W
Y

£¤101

I s l a n d
L a k e

O a k l a n d  B a y

H a m m e r s l e y  I n l e t

Last Revised: January 07, 2020 pw://IO-PW-INT.Carollo.local:Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Shelton/10669A00/Data/GIS/Fig3.1_SheltonAreaMap.mxd

O
0 0.50.25

Miles

Disclaimer: Features shown in this 
figure are for planning purposes and 
represent approximate locations. 
Engineering and/or survey accuracy
is not implied.

Data Sources: City of Shelton. 
Washington State Dept. of
Natural Resources

 Figure 3.1  Shelton Area Map

WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 3 | CITY OF SHELTON

Legend
Streets
City of Shelton Boundary
Shelton Urban Growth Area
Parcels
Water Bodies



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 3 | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | 3-3 

3.2.2   System Background 

The City’s water distribution system consists of nearly 66 miles of water main, three wells, five 
reservoirs, four BPSs, and pressure-reducing valves (PRVs). The City is currently divided into five 
distinct pressure zones: Angleside, Capitol Hill, High School, Mountain View, and Upper 
Mountain View. Historically, Shelton Springs served as the main source of supply for the City; 
however, it is no longer in use. 

3.2.2.1   Water System History 

The City was incorporated in 1890. Over the past 130 years, it has evolved into both a residential 
community and industrial hub for Mason County with several government and retail centers. The 
current (2018) population is approximately 10,140 or 16 percent of the total population of 
Mason County1.  

The City currently operates three wells that supply water to its water system customers. 
Historically, the City supplied its customers with water from Shelton Springs, which was 
developed in the late 1930s and early 1940s. Shelton Springs was supplemented with water 
from three wells. However, due to a directive issued by the Washington State Department of 
Health (DOH) to disinfect Shelton Springs, this source was inactivated on April 21, 2000. 
According to weekly water quality monitoring data collected for a period of one year, the DOH 
had determined that Shelton Springs was hydraulically connected to surface water. Results from 
microscopic particulate analyses showed that, although the source was not under the direct 
influence of surface water, it was subject to seasonal variation and low to moderate biological 
activity. 

In 2000, the City, along with the Department of Corrections (DOC), the Washington State 
Patrol (WSP), the Port of Shelton (Port), and Mason County began cooperatively planning a 
regional water and wastewater system. In 2006, these planning efforts led to the negotiation of 
utility service agreements between the City, DOC, and WSP, under which the City agreed to 
a) provide water to the WSP Academy (Academy) (located at the western edge of the City’s UGA 
and b) reserve capacity in the water system to serve the DOC in the future. Appendix 3A presents 
copies of these agreements, which will be executed once the configuration of the regional water 
system is finalized (as documented in this Plan) and costs of service are determined.  

In consideration of the City’s commitments, the DOC, the WSP, Port, and Mason County agreed 
to contribute to the cost of new water system facilities in an amount proportional to the benefit 
those public agencies would receive.  

3.2.3   Land Use and Zoning 

Land use designations and regulation provide important information needed to project future 
water demands. 

3.2.3.1   Existing Land Use  

Figure 3.2 shows the existing land use for parcels within the City’s UGA. For the purpose of this 
Plan, the parcels were consolidated into the land use categories shown in Figure 3.2. 

 

 
1 State of Washington Office of Financial Management (OFM) Web site: 
https://ofm.wa.gov/sites/default/files/public/dataresearch/pop/april1/ofm_april1_population_final.pdf  

https://ofm.wa.gov/sites/default/files/public/dataresearch/pop/april1/ofm_april1_population_final.pdf


1S
T

RAILROAD

ISLAND LAKE

DEARBORN

ARCADIA

HARVARD

7T
H

16
TH

HU
LB

ER
T

K

SANDERSON

SHELTON MATLOCK
FAIRMOUNT

WALKER PARK

BR
OC

KD
AL

E

BATSTONE CUT OFF

C

E

NORTHCLIFF

11
TH

9T
H

FR
ON

T

BE
AR

F

7T
H

J

AB

H
G

D

THOMAS

KINEO

13
TH

PU
GE

T

FRANKLIN

ALDER

PINE

BO
UN

DA
RY

DICKINSON

LAKE
MADISON

SUMMIT

PA
CI

FIC

WASHINGTON

SENTRY GRANT
EUCLID

AL
DE

R

ALDERMANOR

LITTLE BEAR

HA
WTH

ORN

HIGHLAND

DAYTON AIRPORT

TURNER

SANJOAQUIN

ALPINE

EV
AN

MILL CREEK

CL
OQ

UA
LL

UM

EX
PO

RT

MI
LL

W
RI

GH
T

SHELTON
SPRINGS

PEACOCK HILL

ST
AT

E R
OU

TE
 3

HICKAM

WALLACE KNEELAND

SHADOW
VALLEY

PARK

SHELTON VALLEY

US
 H

IG
HW

AY
 10

1

JOH N S PRAIRIE

FAIRGROUNDS

CA
PI

TA
L H

ILL

DE
EG

AN

GD G OOSE L AK E MA INLIN
E

Tex
t

OLYMPIC HWY

£¤101

I s l a n d
L a k e

O a k l a n d  B a y

H a m m e r s l e y  I n l e t

Last Revised: June 17, 2019 pw://IO-PW-INT.Carollo.local:Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Shelton/10669A00/Data/GIS/Fig2.1_WaterSystemLU.mxd

O
0 0.50.25

Miles

Disclaimer: Features shown in this 
figure are for planning purposes and 
represent approximate locations. 
Engineering and/or survey accuracy
is not implied.

Data Sources: City of Shelton. 
Washington State Dept. of
Natural Resources

 Figure 3.2  Shelton Urban Growth Area Existing Land Use by Parcel

Legend
Existing Land Use

Agriculture

Forest

Commercial

Industrial

Single-Family Residential

Multi-Family Residential

Mobile Home Park

Park

Public

Undeveloped

Unknown

Streets

Shelton Urban Growth Area

Parcels

Water Bodies

WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 3 | CITY OF SHELTON



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 3 | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | 3-5 

3.2.3.2   Future Zoning 

The future land use designations represent the maximum build-out foreseeable by the 
year 2040. Figure 3.3 shows the future land use designations within the City’s UGA. 
  



1S
T

RAILROAD

ISLAND LAKE

DEARBORN

ARCADIA

HARVARD

7T
H

16
TH

HU
LB

ER
T

K

SANDERSON

SHELTON MATLOCK
FAIRMOUNT

WALKER PARK

BR
OC

KD
AL

E

BATSTONE CUT OFF

C

E

NORTHCLIFF
11

TH

9T
H

FR
ON

T

BE
AR

F

7T
H

J

AB

H
G

D

THOMAS

KINEO

13
TH

PU
GE

T

FRANKLIN

ALDER

PINE

BO
UN

DA
RY

DICKINSON

LAKE
MADISON

SUMMIT

PA
CI

FIC

WASHINGTON

SENTRY GRANT
EUCLID

AL
DE

R

ALDERMANOR

LITTLE BEAR

HA
WTH

ORN

HIGHLAND

DAYTON AIRPORT

TURNER

SANJOAQUIN

ALPINE

EV
AN

MILL CREEK

CL
OQ

UA
LL

UM

EX
PO

RT

MI
LL

W
RI

GH
T

SHELTON
SPRINGS

PEACOCK HILL

ST
AT

E R
OU

TE
 3

HICKAM

WALLACE KNEELAND

SHADOW
VALLEY

PARK

SHELTON VALLEY

US
 H

IG
HW

AY
 10

1

JOH N S PRAIRIE

FAIRGROUNDS

CA
PI

TA
L H

ILL

DE
EG

AN

GD G OOSE LA KE M A INLINE

Tex
t

OLYMPIC HWY

£¤101

I s l a n d
L a k e

O a k l a n d  B a y

H a m m e r s l e y  I n l e t

Last Revised: June 17, 2019 pw://IO-PW-INT.Carollo.local:Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Shelton/10669A00/Data/GIS/Fig2.2_WaterSystemFutureLU.mxd

O
0 0.50.25

Miles

Disclaimer: Features shown in this 
figure are for planning purposes and 
represent approximate locations. 
Engineering and/or survey accuracy
is not implied.

Data Sources: City of Shelton. 
Washington State Dept. of
Natural Resources

 Figure 3.3  Shelton Urban Growth Area Future Land Use

Legend

Future Land Use

Industrial

Commercial

Neighborhood Residential

Medical / Educational

Public Institutional

Public Lands

Rural

Mixed Use

Downtown

Streets

Shelton Urban Growth Area

Parcels

Water Bodies

WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 3 | CITY OF SHELTON



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 3 | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | 3-7 

3.3   Neighboring/Adjacent Purveyors 

The water purveyors adjacent to the City’s systems include the Port, Washington Corrections 
Center (WCC), the Academy, and multiple small Group A water supply systems. Figure 3.4 shows 
the locations of these water systems. The City will provide wholesale supply to these purveyors 
with an Interlocal agreements. Additionally, the City’s policy is to accept Group A systems 
seeking to merge with the City that meet its requirements. 
  



1S
T

RAILROAD

ISLAND LAKE

DEARBORN

ARCADIA

HARVARD

7T
H

16
TH

HU
LB

ER
T

K

SANDERSON

SHELTON MATLOCK
FAIRMOUNT

WALKER PARK

BR
OC

KD
AL

E

BATSTONE CUT OFF

C

E

NORTHCLIFF
11

TH

9T
H

FR
ON

T

BE
AR

F

7T
H

J

AB

H
G

D

THOMAS

KINEO

13
TH

PU
GE

T

FRANKLIN

ALDER

PINE

BO
UN

DA
RY

DICKINSON

LAKE

MADISON
SUMMIT

PA
CI

FIC

WASHINGTON

SENTRY GRANT
EUCLID

AL
DE

R

ALDERMANOR

LITTLE BEAR

HA
WTH

ORN

HIGHLAND

DAYTON AIRPORT

TURNER

SANJOAQUIN

ALPINE

EV
AN

MILL CREEK

CL
OQ

UA
LL

UM

EX
PO

RT

MI
LL

W
RI

GH
T

SHELTON
SPRINGS

PEACOCK HILL

ST
AT

E R
OU

TE
 3

HICKAM

WALLACE KNEELAND

SHADOW
VALLEY

PARK

SHELTON VALLEY

US
 H

IG
HW

AY
 10

1

JOH N S P RAIRIE

FAIRGROUNDS

CA
PI

TA
L H

ILL

DE
EG

AN

GD GOOSE LAK E MA INLIN
E

Tex
t

OLYMPIC HWY

£¤101

I s l a n d
L a k e

O a k l a n d  B a y

H a m m e r s l e y  I n l e t

S&P
Properties

Rhododendron
Place

Hia Park

Southside
Elementary
School

Discovery
Homes

#1

Shelton Valley
Child Development

Hilburn
Scott

Cherry Park

Island
Lake Manor

Pinewood 
Place 1

Oak Park

Rae Lake

Shorecrest
Estates

Water Co

Springwood

Mason County
Public Works

Shelton Presbyterian

Prairie

New
Pine

Acres

Port of Shelton
Sanderson Field

Port of
Shelton -

John's Prarie

Washington
State Patrol
Academy

Last Revised: June 17, 2019 pw://IO-PW-INT.Carollo.local:Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Shelton/10669A00/Data/GIS/Fig3.4_SheltonNeighboringWater.mxd

O
0 0.50.25

Miles

Disclaimer: Features shown in this 
figure are for planning purposes and 
represent approximate locations. 
Engineering and/or survey accuracy
is not implied.

Data Sources: City of Shelton. 
Washington State Dept. of
Natural Resources

 Figure 3.4  Neighboring Water Systems

Legend

Neighboring Water Systems

Port of Shelton - John's Prarie

Port of Shelton Sanderson Field

Washington State Patrol Academy

Small Water Systems

Streets

City of Shelton Boundary

Shleton Urban Growth Area

Parcels

Water Bodies

WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 3 | CITY OF SHELTON



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 3 | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | 3-9 

3.3.1   Port of Shelton 

The Port owns and operates two water systems within the City’s UGA: the Sanderson Field 
Industrial Park (Sanderson Field) and John’s Prairie Industrial Park (John’s Prairie).  

3.3.1.1   Sanderson Field Industrial Park 

Sanderson Field has 37 service connections serving a non-residential population of 
approximately 1,580 (reference: DOH Sentry Water System Database) and is supplied by 
two wells. Water from these wells is pumped to two storage facilities, which have a combined 
capacity of 675,000 gallons (gals). The Port has indicated that Sanderson Field has sufficient 
supply and is not planning on purchasing potable water from the City in the next 20 years.  

3.3.1.2   John’s Prairie Industrial Park 

John’s Prairie has approximately 17 service connections (reference: DOH Sentry Water System 
Database) and is supplied by two wells with a total capacity of 325 gallons per minute (gpm). The 
wells are controlled by the water elevation in a 600,000-gal standpipe reservoir constructed 
in 1976. Current fire flow needs for John’s Prairie are met by this reservoir. The Industrial park 
obtains water from two untreated wells and wholesale supply from the City. In previous Plans, 
the Port of Shelton’s John’s Prairie Industrial Park was considered a large user. John’s Prairie is 
still an existing user, but is no longer considered a large user (no growth is estimated for the 
planning period). 

3.3.2   Washington Corrections Center 

The WCC water system serves a population of approximately 1,800 inmates and 430 staff. The 
WCC is supplied by five wells, and all water pumped from these wells is conveyed to a treatment 
building, where soda ash is added for corrosion control and sodium hypochlorite is added for 
disinfection. Sodium hypochlorite is generated on site. Treated water is stored in two elevated-
steel reservoirs: a 300,000-gal reservoir constructed between 1962 and 1963 and a 500,000-gal 
reservoir constructed in 2003.  

In the past, the City and WCC has discussed the City providing wholesale supplies. However, with 
recent water conservation efforts, the WCC no longer anticipates needing wholesale supplies in 
the next 20 years.  

3.3.3   Washington State Patrol Academy 

The Academy receives wholesale supply from the City through the 440 pressure zone (PZ). The 
WSP water system has 18 non-residential service connections and serves a non-residential 
population of approximately 144 people, on average. Average day demand (ADD) at the 
Academy is approximately 20,000 gallons per day (gpd), while the water demand for maximum 
monthly usage is approximately 37,000 gpd. Additionally, the Academy uses reclaimed water 
from the City in its training activities. 

It has limited water rights, which are issued for fire protection and emergency domestic supply. 
The Academy relies on the Port’s water system in the event that a well shuts down or has low 
pressure and for fire flow. 

3.3.4   Neighboring Group A and Group B Water Systems 

The DOH’s water rights database, Sentry Internet, lists a total of 18 active Group A systems 
within or adjacent to the City’s UGA, whose locations are identified in Figure 3.4. 



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 3 | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

3-10 | JULY 2021  

3.4   Inventory of Existing Facilities 

The City serves its customers through well supplies, storage, and its distribution system. General 
water system facility data is summarized on the DOH’s Water Facilities Inventory (WFI) form. 
Appendix 3B provides copies of the 2018 WFIs. 

3.5   Water System Updates Since the 2010 Water Plan 

Since the 2010 Plan the City has created the Upper Mountain View PZ to provide service to 
portions of the City and its UGA. To establish the pressure zone, the City upgraded Well 3 to 
supply the pressure zone, installed a UMPZ distribution main to Academy, and constructed a 
410,000-gal standpipe reservoir to serve the Upper Mountain View PZ. Piping and valves were 
installed to isolate the Upper Mountain View and Mountain View PZs. 

3.5.1   Distribution System Overview 

The City’s water distribution system is divided into five distinct pressure zones at four different 
hydraulic grade lines (HGLs): 

• Angleside. 
• Capitol Hill. 
• High School. 
• Mountain View. 
• Upper Mountain View. 

Since the City’s 2010 Water System Plan (2010 Plan), the part of the Mountain View PZ was 
divided into a new pressure zone, the Upper Mountain View PZ. 

Two PRVs, one near the High School reservoir (constructed in 2008) and one located downtown 
near Loop Field (constructed in 2005), allow the Angleside and Mountain View PZs to serve the 
High School PZ. The Angleside and Mountain View PZs are very close to the same HGL. The 
pressure zones can function as a single pressure zone if a manual isolation valve that separates 
the two pressure zones. Table 3.1 summarizes the pressure HGL and service elevations. 

Table 3.1 Pressure Zone Summary  

Pressure Zone HGL (ft) 
Maximum Service 

Elevation (ft) 
Minimum Service 

Elevation (ft)  

High School 177 110 20 

Capitol Hill 334 260 94 

Angleside 374 300 58 

Mountain View 373 277 158 

Upper Mountain View 440 350 201 

Figure 3.5 shows the City’s existing water system, including the new pressure zone and all water 
system facilities. The hydraulic profile shown in Figure 3.6 presents details of how the various 
components of the City’s system work together to provide water service to its customers. 
  



UT

UT

UT

UT

UT

"=)

"=)
"=)

"=)!ã

!ã!ã

"b )

"b )

"b )

"b ) "b )

"b )

"b )

"b )"b )

"b )
"b )

"b )

"b )

"b )
"b )

Well 3

Well 1

Well 4
Mt. View Reservoir
(0.61 MG)

Angleside Reservoir
(0.50 MG)

High School
Reservoir (0.51 MG)

Capitol Hill
Reservoir (0.22 MG)

Upper Mt. View Elevated
Reservoir(0.41 MG)

1S
T

RAILROAD

ISLAND LAKE

DEARBORN

ARCADIA

HARVARD

7T
H

16
TH

H
U

LB
E

R
T

K

SANDERSON

SHELTON MATLOCK
FAIRMOUNT

WALKER PARK

BR
O

C
KD

A
LE

BATSTONE CUT OFF

C

E

NORTHCLIFF

11
TH

9T
H

FR
O

N
T

BE
A

R

F

7T
H

J

A
B

H

G
D

THOMAS

KINEO

13
TH

PU
G

E
T

FRANKLIN

ALDER

PINE

BO
U

N
D

AR
Y

DICKINSON

LAKE
M

ADISO
N

SUMMIT

PA
C

IF
IC

W
ASHING

TO
N

SENTRY
GRANT

EUCLID

AL
D

ER

ALDERMANOR

LITTLE BEAR

HA
W

TH
ORN

HIGHLAND

DAYTON AIRPORT

TURNER

SANJOAQUIN

ALPINE

EV
A

N
MILL CREEK

CL
O

Q
UA

LL
UM

EX
P

O
R

T

M
IL

LW
R

IG
H

T

SHELTON

SPRINGS

PEACOCK HILL

ST
AT

E 
R

O
UT

E 
3

HICKAM

WALLACE KNEELAND

SHADOW
VALLEY

PARK

SHELTON VALLEY

U
S 

H
IG

H
W

AY
 1

01

JOH N S PR AIRIE

FAIRGROUNDS

C
AP

IT
A

L 
H

IL
L

DE
EG

AN

GD G OOSE LAK E MA IN
LIN

E

Te
xtOLY

MPIC
 H

W
Y

£¤101

I s l a n d
L a k e

O a k l a n d  B a y

Angleside Reservoir BPS

Angleside BPS

Mt View PS

Capital Hill
BPS

Last Revised: March 29, 2021 pw://IO-PW-INT.Carollo.local:Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Shelton/10669A00/Data/GIS/Fig3.5_SheltonExistingWaterSystem.mxd

O
0 0.50.25

Miles

Disclaimer: Features shown in this 
figure are for planning purposes and
represent approximate locations. 
Engineering and/or survey accuracy
is not implied.

Data Sources: City of Shelton. 
Washington State Dept. of
Natural Resources

 Figure 3.5  Shelton Existing Water System

WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 3 | CITY OF SHELTON

Legend
UT Reservoir

"=) Pump Station

"=) Inactive Pump Station

!ã Well

"b ) Valve

Pipeline

Streets

Shelton Urban Growth Area

Future Service Area

Parcels

Water Bodies

Pressure Zone
Angleside Zone

Capitol Hill Zone

High School Zone

Mountain View Zone

Upper Mountain View Zone









WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 3 | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | 3-15 

3.5.1.1   Water Mains 

The City’s water distribution system consists of approximately 66 miles of water main, 
including 6 miles that have been installed since the 2010 Plan. Approximately 4 miles of the new 
pipeline connects the Mountain View PZ and the new Upper Mountain View PZ reservoir. 

The City’s transmission and distribution system consists of pipes ranging in diameter from 2 
to 24 inches (in). The various pipe materials include ductile iron, asbestos-cement, polyvinyl 
chloride, cast iron, steel, and high density polyethylene. Table 3.2 provides a summary of the 
length water main by diameter. 

Table 3.2 Water Mains by Diameter 

Pipe Diameter (in) Length (ft) 

< 6 9,509 

6 140,483 

8 91,759 

10 5,074 

12 78,432 

14 2,396 

16 18,718 

20 2,139 

24 2,497 

TOTAL 351,007 

3.5.2   Source Supply 

The City’s primary supply source comes from wells (specifically Wells 1, 3, and 4). Well 4 supplies 
the Mountain View PZ. Well 3 supplies the Upper Mountain View PZ. Well 1 rehabilitated design 
is ongoing and once complete is anticipated to directly supply both the Mountain View and High 
School PZ. Shelton Springs, the source of Shelton Creek, is designated as an emergency source. 

3.5.2.1   Water Rights 

The water rights information for this section was obtained from files maintained at Washington 
State Department of Ecology (Ecology), as reported in the City’s 2010 Water System Plan. 
Table 3.3 summarizes the City’s water rights, and Chapter 5 provides the current and future 
Water Rights Self-Assessment Forms. Appendix 3C presents copies of available water rights 
documentation. 

An instantaneous right (Qi) represents the maximum pumping capacity of a well or maximum 
diversion rate for a spring or surface water source. An annual right (Qa) represents the total 
quantity of water that may be withdrawn or diverted during an entire year. The priority date 
helps rank those water rights that are junior or senior according to the dates on which the 
application was submitted to Ecology. The right with the earliest date has the highest priority for 
withdrawal. 



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 3 | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

3-16 | JULY 2021  

The City has water rights issued by Ecology for a total instantaneous right of 7,450 gpm. The 
instantaneous water right issued to Shelton Springs is 5 cubic-feet-per-second (cfs) or 
2,250 gpm. This instantaneous quantity corresponds to an annual water right of 3,620 acre-feet 
per year (AFY) from Shelton Springs.  

Water right certificate G2-25241 issued for Well 3 is supplemental to rights for Shelton Springs 
and Wells 1 and 2. A condition of this certificate is that “the total quantity of water allocated to 
the City under all water rights shall not exceed 4,034 acre-feet per year.” Therefore, the current 
total annual water right is 4,034 AFY.  

The purpose or “type of use” specified for the City’s water rights is “municipal supply.” In the 
most recent water right certificate, the “place of use” is described as the “area served by the City 
of Shelton.”  

The annual water right equates to an ADD of 3.6 million gallons per day (mgd). The Superseding 
Certificate G2-25241 for Well 3 reduced the instantaneous quantity for that source from 
2,000 gpm to 1,000 gpm. The total instantaneous quantity of 7,450 gpm is equivalent to a 
maximum day demand (MDD) of 10.73 mgd. 

Table 3.3 City of Shelton Water Right Summary 

Name ID Number 
Instantaneous Qi 

(gpm) 
Annual Qa 

(ac-ft) 
Priority Date 

Shelton Springs 233 5 cfs or 2,250 gpm 3,620[P](1, 5) 6/25/1926 

Well 1 1008-A 3,000 1,190[P](2, 5) 3/11/1948 

Well 4 2072-A 1,200 1,433[S](3, 5) 7/20/1953 

Well 3 
G2-25241 Superseding 

certificate 
1,000 1,500[S](4, 5)

 5/21/1979 

Total  7,450 4,034  
Notes:  
(1) Qa for Shelton Springs is based on year-round production at the instantaneous water right rate of flow. 
(2) The Report of Findings for this source states, “The well is to be used to replace other wells of the city and is to be used a 

maximum of 3 months full time per summer season at 3,000 gpm, if obtainable which amounts to 1,190 acre-feet per year.” 
(3) The Report of Examination for this source states, “The total withdrawal authorized under this permit shall not 

exceed 1,344 acre-feet per year, less any amount available under existing rights.” 
(4) Superseding Certificate G2-25241 has the provision that “[t]he annual quantity of water allocated to the City of Shelton 

under all existing rights shall not exceed 4,034 acre-feet per year.” 
(5) Previously associated with Well 2. 

[P] = Primary water right. 
[S] = Supplemental water right, not additive. 

Abbreviation: ac-ft – acre feet; ID – identification.  

3.5.2.2   Supply Infrastructure 

City supplies are from three wells and a spring Table 3.4 summarizes the depth, pumping 
capacity, and status of the sources. Additional information on each well are presented below. 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 3 | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | 3-17 

Table 3.4 Source Pumping Capacity 

Source Depth (ft) 
Pumping Capacity 

(gpm) 
Status 

Shelton Springs Spring -- 
Inactive; Emergency 

Use Only 

Well #1 745 1,500 Active 

Well #3 278 1,000 Active 

Well #4 298 1,200 Active  

3.5.2.3   Well 1 

Well 1 is cased with 20-, 16-, and 12-in-diameter steel to a depth of 745 ft. It is located to the 
south of Shelton Springs Road in the SE 1/4, SW 1/4, Section 7, Township 20 N, Range 3 W. 
The 2010 Plan reported that this well was perforated from a depth of 515 ft to 725 ft, and water 
system staff indicated that it’s plugged to a shallower depth whose first open interval is 265 ft. 
The well driller’s log indicates that a sanitary seal was placed in the annular space surrounding 
the casing to a depth of 200 ft, but the type of grout material is not specified.  

The well is equipped with a 100-horsepower (hp), Byron Jackson submersible pump and a flow 
meter. The reported maximum pumping capacity of the well is 1,475– 1,500 gpm.  

The well discharges to a gravity line flows from the well to either the High School PZ reservoir or 
a Clearwell at the Mountain View booster pump station (BPS). The Well 1 connection to the 
Mountain View BPS is used during an emergency. 

This well is an active permanent source that is available upon a demand signal released from the 
supervisory control and data acquisition (SCADA) system according to High School PZ reservoir 
levels. Typically, this source is utilized to meet MDD by blending with the other well sources to 
meet customer expectations for taste and odor. Iron and hydrogen sulfide have been detected in 
this source at moderately low levels.  

3.5.2.4   Well 2 

Well 2 is a 12-in-diameter, 285-foot-deep well located to the north of Shelton Springs Road in 
the NE 1/4, SW 1/4, Section 7, Township 20 N, Range 3 W. It was originally drilled to a depth of 
708 ft then sealed to a shallower depth due to water quality concerns with the deeper aquifer.  

The well’s casing is perforated from a depth of 205 ft to 278 ft with 1/4- by 2-in slots. It is 
equipped with a 60-hp, Worthington, water-lubricated, vertical-line shaft turbine pump and a 
flow meter. The pumping capacity is 855 gpm.  

This well has experienced problems in the past and has occasionally had elevated levels of iron. 
Thus, Well 2 is physically disconnected from the water system and protected in a secure 
enclosure; it was replaced by Well 4 in 2005. Still, the City intends to maintain this well as an 
emergency source or monitoring well in the future. 

3.5.2.5   Well 3 

Well 3 is drilled to a depth of 278 ft, with a 16-in-diameter casing. It is located to the north of 
Shelton Springs Road just 117 ft northwest of the old Well 2. A stainless steel screen is located 
between a depth of 212 ft and 273 ft. A bentonite surface seal was placed in the 4-in annular 
space to a depth of 68 ft where it was seated into a clay layer.  



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 3 | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

3-18 | JULY 2021  

The well is equipped with a 75-hp Dempster Industry pump with an Exodyne motor, flow meter, 
and water level recorder. The reported pumping capacity for the well is 1,200 gpm but the 
authorized instantaneous flow (Qi) for this well per the associated water right is only 1,000 gpm. 
This well is an active permanent source that is available upon a demand signal from SCADA 
according to Upper Mountain View PZ reservoir levels. 

3.5.2.6   Well 4 

Well 4 was drilled in 2005 to a depth of 298 ft and located in the NE 1/4, SW 1/4, Section 7, 
Township 20 N, Range 3 W. The well has a 16-in-diameter casing with a bentonite surface seal to 
a depth of 20 ft. A stainless steel slotted screen is installed from a depth of 197 ft to 274 ft.  

The well is equipped with a submersible pump that is reported to produce 1,200 gpm. Pumping is 
activated upon a demand signal from SCADA according to Mountain View PZ reservoir levels. 
The DOH finalized the approval of this source in September 2007. 

3.5.2.7   Shelton Springs 

Shelton Springs was constructed in 1927 and is currently designated as an emergency source. As 
mentioned earlier, it is the source of Shelton Creek.  

In 2007, the City submitted a water rights transfer application for Shelton Springs to transfer 
these rights to two new deep wells at locations that had not yet been determined.  

3.5.2.8   Treatment Facilities 

In October 2003, the DOH Office of Drinking Water required permanent and continuous 
disinfection of the water system due to the continued and intermittent coliform presence in the 
system. Today, the City disinfects all active source water with sodium hypochlorite chlorination 
at each source. The dedicated transmission main from Well 1 to a Mountain View PZ BPS 
clearwell has no service connections to it and provides chlorine contact time for the full distance 
between the wells and the clearwell. Chlorine contact time for Wells 3 and 4 is achieved in the 
transmission main, which conveys water to customers before the water reaches the service 
connections.  

At set rates noted in Table 3.5, metering pumps inject sodium hypochlorite solution into the 
individual wellhead plumbing before the water meters. The target for the disinfection system is 
to maintain a minimum of 0.2 milligrams per liter (mg/L) chlorine residual at the end of the 
system.  

Table 3.5 Disinfection Metering Pumps 

Well 
Well pump rate(1) 

(gpm) 
Metering pump 

(stroke/min) 
Metering pump 

rate (gal/hr) 
Chlorine dose 

(mg/L) 

1 1,500 335 1.90 3.2(2) 

4 1,200 85 0.24 0.4 

3 1,000 85 0.31 0.6 
Notes: 
(1) If any well is modified to pump at a different rate than noted, the metering pump for that well must be readjusted to 

maintain the desired chlorine dose. 
(2) The reason for the high chlorine dose for Well 1 is that there appears to be a high chlorine demand in the gravity pipeline 

between Well 1 and the High School Reservoir 
(3) Information is from the O&M Manual for Well Nos. 1, 4, and 3 Hypochlorination System at City of Shelton Water System, 

November 2007. 
Abbreviations: min – minute; hr – hour; gal/hr – gallons per hour.  



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 3 | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | 3-19 

3.5.2.9   Ability to Serve  

The ability to serve was determined for each of the City’s sources. The ability to serve is the 
maximum capacity of a source considering water rights, pumping capacity, treatment capacity, 
and aquifer or regulatory limitation. The City’s existing ability to serve is tabulated in Table 3.6. 
The table consist of the following components: 

• Pumping Capacity: The pump or physical capacities at each source. 
• Instantaneous Water Right (Qi): The sum of instantaneous water rights on contractual 

maximum at each source.  
• Treatment Capacity: The available treatment capacity for each applicable source. 
• Other Limitations: Designation of source as an emergency source. 

Table 3.6 City of Shelton Pumping Ability to Serve 

Supply 
Source 

Pumping 
Capacity 

(gpm) 

Qi  
(gpm) 

Treatment 
Capacity 

(gpm) 

Ability to 
pump 
(gpm) 

Other 
Limitations 

Limiting 
Component 

Shelton 
Springs 

-- 2,250 -- -- 
Emergency 

Source 
Emergency 

Source 

Well 1 1,500 3,000 1,500 1,500 -- 
Pumping and 

Treatment 

Well 4 1,200 1,200 1,200 1,200 --  

Well 3 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 --  

Total 3,700 7,450 3,700 3,700 --  

3.5.3   Storage 

The City has one storage tank for each of the following pressure zones within the service area: 
Mountain View, Angleside, High School, Capitol Hill, and Upper Mountain View. These tanks 
have a total storage capacity of 2.25 million gallons (MG). Each reservoir supplies a distinct 
pressure zone with an HGL established by the reservoir overflow elevation. Table 3.7 summarizes 
the storage reservoir information. 

3.5.3.1   Mountain View Reservoir 

The Mountain View tank is a 611,000-gal steel standpipe with a height of 65 ft, diameter of 40 ft, 
base elevation of 308 ft, and an overflow elevation of 373 ft. Built in 1972, this tank serves the 
Mountain View PZ. The tank can receive water from the Mountain View BPS, the Angleside BPS, 
or directly from Well 4. Relevant BPSs are also discussed in Section 3.5.4.2. 

3.5.3.2   Angleside Reservoir 

The Angleside tank has a normal volume of 448,000 gals and was built in 1967. It is a steel 
standpipe tank. The tank is 66-ft high and 34 ft in diameter and has a base elevation of 308 ft and 
an overflow elevation of 374 ft. This storage tank can receive supplies from the Angleside Pump 
Station (PS). The City has constructed the Angleside Reservoir BPS to pump the dead storage 
from the Reservoir, which can be operated manually by the City. 

3.5.3.3   High School Reservoir 

Built in the early 1950s, the High School storage tank is a steel reservoir with a normal volume 
of 507,000 gals. The tank is 24-ft high and 60 ft in diameter and has a base elevation of 153 ft and 



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 3 | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

3-20 | JULY 2021  

an overflow elevation of 177 ft. The tank receives water from Well 1, through a 20-in steel gravity 
line that flows into the top of the tank or is supplied from the Mountain View PZ through an 
altitude valve.  

3.5.3.4   Capitol Hill Reservoir 

The Capitol Hill tank is a 218,000-gal steel standpipe tank with a base elevation of 264 feet and 
an overflow elevation of 334 ft. Built in 1954, the tank is 23 ft in diameter and 70-ft tall. Water is 
supplied from the High School PZ to this reservoir via the Capitol Hill BPS. 

3.5.3.5   Upper Mountain View Reservoir 

The Upper Mountain View reservoir is an elevated, 410,000-gal storage tank, which has a base 
elevation of 400 feet and an overflow elevation of 440 ft and is 40-ft tall and has a diameter 
of 42 ft. This tank receives water from Well 3 and serves the Upper Mountain View PZ.  

Table 3.7 Storage Reservoir Summary 

Name Type 
Volume 

(gal) 

Base 
Elevation 

(ft) 

Overflow 
Elevation (ft) 

Diameter 
(ft)  

Height 
(ft) 

Mountain View Standpipe 611,000 308 373 40  65 

Upper Mountain 
View 

Elevated 410,000 400(1) 440 42 40 

Angleside Standpipe 448,000 300 374 34  74 

Capitol Hill Standpipe 218,000 264 334 23  70 

High School Standpipe 507,000 153 177 60 24 
Note: 
(1) The ground elevation under the Upper Mountain View Reservoir is 303 ft.  

3.5.4   Booster Pump Stations 

The City has three BPSs that serve the Mountain View, Angleside, and Capitol Hill PZs and one 
pump station at the Angleside Reservoir. Table 3.8 summarizes the BPS information. 

3.5.4.1   Mountain View Booster Pump Station 

The Mountain View BPS is located adjacent to Shelton Springs and is fed through a bypass line 
from the City’s wells that discharge into a 10,000-gallon clearwell. Built in 1972, this facility is 
equipped with two pumps, each with 50-hp motors. The actual observed pumping capacity 
is 770 gpm for Pump 1 and 625 gpm for Pump 2, according to a direct reading of the magnetic 
flow meter.  

Pump 1 was replaced in 1999 with a 50-hp Paco pump and motor. 

3.5.4.2   Angleside Booster Pump Station 

The Angleside BPS was constructed in 1998 to replace an older booster station. It is equipped 
with two 1,000-gpm nominal capacity Paco pumps, each with 100-hp motors. With one pump 
running, the observed output is approximately 1,200 gpm, according to a direct reading of the 
magnetic flow meter.  

The building and pipe layout is sized to accommodate one additional 1,000 gpm pump with 
a 100-hp motor. 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 3 | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | 3-21 

3.5.4.3   Angleside Reservoir Booster Pump Station 

The Angleside Reservoir BPS was constructed in 2016. It is equipped with two 500-gpm nominal 
capacity pumps and one 1,350-gpm nominal capacity pump. The Angleside Reservoir BPS is 
currently only able to be operated manually. 

3.5.4.4   Capitol Hill Booster Pump Station 

The Capitol Hill BPS, located at Magnolia St. and E Fir St., is equipped with a 40-hp primary 
pump with an observed capacity of 430 gpm and a backup pump rated at 140 gpm with a 15-hp 
motor. The combined capacity of the two pumps is approximately 500 gpm.  

Table 3.8 Booster Pump Station Summary 

Name Pump HP 
Capacity 

(gpm) 
Total Capacity 

(gpm) 
Ground 

Elevation (ft) 

Mountain View 
1 
2 

50 
50 

770 
625 

1,395 215 

Angleside 
1 
2 

100 
100 

1,000 
1,000 

2,000 30 

Angleside 
Reservoir BPS 

1 
2 
3 

45 
115 
45 

500 
1,350 
500 

2,350 300 

Capitol Hill 
1 
2 

40 
15 

430 
140 

500 140 

3.6   Policies and Criteria 

The City is responsible for managing and operating its water system in accordance with all 
known local, state, and federal regulation. To best manage the system and comply with 
regulations, the City has adopted water system policies and criteria that guide the development 
and financing of the infrastructure required to provide water service and help the City document 
its commitments to current water system customers as well as those considering service.  

The following sections outline the City’s policies and design criteria for water system planning. 
Tables 3.9 and 3.10 list existing policies; proposed policies are also listed at the bottom of each 
table if applicable.  

The policies and criteria are organized into the following categories: 

• Water service and service extensions, including Duty to Serve. 
• System Criteria including facility requirements, reliability recommendations reliability, 

and fire protection. 
• Agency coordination. 
• Financial policies. 

Appendix 3D provides the City’s Design and Construction Standards. 

3.6.1   Water Service and Service Extensions 

Table 3.9 summarizes the existing and proposed policies for the water service area and extension 
of water service to additional properties. The City is committed to serving customers within its 
retail service area (RSA) in accordance with established policies.



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 3 | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

3-22 | JULY 2021  

Table 3.9 Water Service and Service Extensions 

Subject Policy / Goal Source 

Duty to Serve 

Municipal water supplies have a duty to provide service to all new connections within their 
retail service area when the circumstances meet the following four threshold factors: 
1. The municipal water supplier has sufficient capacity to serve water in a safe and reliable 

manner. 
2. The service request is consistent with adopted local plans and development regulations. 
3. The municipal water supplier has sufficient water rights to provide service. 
4. The municipal water supplier can provide service in a timely and reasonable manner. 

DOH 331-366 

Fire Flow Requirements for 
Existing Construction 

The minimum fire flow available to existing facilities shall be the fire flow requirements at the 
time of construction. Existing structures are not required to upgrade the water system 
infrastructure to meet current fire flow and development standards unless redevelopment of 
the structure of property triggers such upgrades. Similarly, the Utility is not obligated to 
upgrade available fire flow to meet current code requirements. However, when analyzing the 
need for water system improvements, improved fire flow should be considered when 
weighting the project’s merits.  

Proposed New Policy 

Water main extensions 

A.  A main extension shall be required whenever the property to be served fails to abut a 
water main, or the existing main is inadequate to provide the necessary water pressure or 
flow characteristics.  

B.  All main extensions shall extend to and across the full width of the property served with 
water, unless otherwise approved by the City. Corner lots shall extend to the middle of the 
intersection. 

SMC 15.24.010 

Design and performance 
All design and construction plans and specifications shall be in accordance with American 
Public Works Association standards and development standards adopted by the City. 

SMC 15.24.030 and 
City Design and 

Construction Standards 

Oversizing main extensions 
The City may require that any water main be oversized if the City determines that oversizing 
will be in the best interest of the City’s water system, and the larger size is reflected in the 
City’s water comprehensive plan. 

SMC 15.24.090 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 3 | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | 3-23 

Subject Policy / Goal Source 

Water outside city limits 

Any person owning property outside the city limits and desiring to have their property 
connected to the City’s water and sewer systems shall make application at the office of the 
City Clerk.  
Every applicant for water and sewer service outside the city limits, except for municipal 
corporations or quasi-municipal corporations, such as water, sewer or fire districts making 
application under Section 17.10.010, must sign a utility extension agreement with the City, 
which conditions the provision of the service. Terms to be included in the extension agreement 
are identified in Section 17.10.020 (Appendix 1G). It is the City’s policy that the property owner 
is not necessarily required to construct and connect to both water and sewer concurrently, but 
that the owner agree to connect, once the systems are available. 

SMC 17.10.010 
 

SMC 17.10.020 

Extensions for public health, 
safety, or environmental 
reasons. 

Owners of property located outside the City UGA boundary may make application for 
expansion or extension of sewer and water service to their property outside the City UGA 
boundary.  
The City Council shall review the application and may, in its sole discretion, allow the extension 
or expansion of sewer and water service if the council finds:  
1. That the requested service is necessary to protect basic public health and safety and the 

environment;  
2. That the requested service is financially supportable at rural densities and does not permit 

urban development;  
3. That the City’s NPDES permit will not be affected by the extension or expansion; and  
4. That the extension or expansion is consistent with the goals of the City’s sewer 

comprehensive plan, its water comprehensive plan, and all other applicable law, including, 
but not limited to, the Public Water System Coordination Act (RCW 70.116), and 
SEPA (RCW 42.31C). 

The City Council’s approval of any extension or expansion under the criteria above may be 
conditioned. Such conditions may include, but shall not be limited to, the following: 
1. Restrictions may be placed on the hours that the City will accept sewage flow from the 

applicant. 
2. Restrictions may be placed on the amount of sewage flow or water provided to the 

applicant. 
3. The applicant shall have the responsibility to maintain and operate its own facilities. 

(Ord. 1921-0518 (part); Ord. 1690-0107 § 1 (part), 2007) 

SMC 17.10.040 



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 3 | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

3-24 | JULY 2021  

Subject Policy / Goal Source 

City contribution to 
developer-initiated public 
projects. 

Projects proposed by private developers that provide benefit to the existing water system may 
be evaluated by the council at a developer’s request to determine whether it is in the best 
interest of the public for the City to contribute funds or resources to the project. The council 
will base their decision on guidelines outlined and established in a written policy. 

SMC 15.24.120 

Latecomer agreements 
A person who constructs a main extension in excess of minimum standards may enter contract 
with City for reimbursement the portion of construction costs that benefit adjoining 
landowners. 

City Development 
Standards Section 1.16. 

Local improvement districts 
outside corporate boundaries 

For the purpose of water system planning, City practice has been that Local Improvement 
Districts may only be created within City boundaries or an area annexed into the City, which is 
a condition for water service. In the future the City will consider the formation of LIDs on a 
case-by-case basis. 

 

Direct connection and 
satellite/remote systems 

It is the City’s policy that all new development within the retail service area will be served by 
direct connection to the City’s water system. The City does not intend to become a 
DOH-approved satellite management agency. If the City is called upon to be a satellite 
management agency, the council would be required to adopt a Satellite System Management 
Program prior to taking control of the system. 

 

Cross connection control 
Installation of a cross-connection is prohibited. Standards are WAC 246-290-490 as amended. 
Furnishing water service is contingent upon the customer providing cross-connection control 
approved by the City for protecting the city water supply from backflow. 

SMC 15.08.080 

Wholesaling water 

The City will evaluate the feasibility of wholesaling water to other utilities on a case-by-case 
basis. Implementation of the regional plan will result in the City wholesaling water to the 
Academy. In the future, once the system is extended to the WCC, the City will also wholesale 
water to the Department of Corrections. Wholesaling of water to the Port’s water system at 
John’s Prairie is also anticipated once the City system is extended along John’s Prairie Road. As 
a condition of service, wholesale water customers will be required to monitor and report DSL. 

 

Wheeling water 
The City does not have a policy for wheeling water to another system. The City will evaluate 
any future plan to wheel water on a case by case basis. No interconnections to systems that 
would potentially wheel water are anticipated in this Plan. 

 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 3 | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | 3-25 

Subject Policy / Goal Source 

Service to customers outside 
city limits 

It is the City’s policy that all water and water-related services furnished to a user outside the 
city limits shall be charged at the rate of 150 percent of the schedule for rates and charges for 
city residents. 

SMC 15.28.080 

Group A and Group B Water 
Systems (Proposal) 

The City may assume the operation of a public Group A and Group B water system at their 
request, if the following conditions are met and subject to approval by the City Council: 
• The water system is within the City’s service area boundaries. 
• The properties served by the water system are annexed or become annexed by the City 

boundary. 
• The water system facilities meet the City’s engineering Standards and Conditions or a plan 

is in place to assure that the system will be brought up to the City’s standards without 
adversely impacting the balance of the City’s customers financially or with regard to LOS. 

• The City may require the private water system to successfully transfer ownership of its 
water supply and associate water rights (if significant) to the City through the appropriate 
process with Ecology to permit municipal use, prior to commitment for water from the 
City. 

 



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 3 | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

3-26 | JULY 2021  

Subject Policy / Goal Source 

Satellite System 
Management Program 
(proposal) 

The City may be called upon to provide some level of response to adjacent areas beyond 
District boundaries that require a public water supply. The City will evaluate requests or 
application on a case-by-case basis. The City will review requests for satellite management of 
separate and self-contained water systems based on the following considerations: 
• Economic Feasibility. Economic feasibility is gauged by the distance between the project 

site and the City’s system, engineering variables that might affect cost, the size of the 
project to be served by the water system, possible participation by other interested parties, 
and other factors the City considers relevant. Whenever connection to the City’s system is 
economically feasible, the City will not provide satellite management services. Instead, 
these properties would be required to extend the City’s permanent water system to obtain 
water service. 

• Existing Systems. The condition of the existing system and its compatibility within the 
City’s system must be determined by the City. The ability of property served by the system 
to fund necessary upgrades, either privately or through municipal funding mechanisms will 
also be evaluated. Supply adequate in quantity and quality must be available, and water 
rights must ultimately be transferred to the City. 

• New System. The applicant must possess water rights adequate to supply the project and 
be willing to transfer those rights to the City. This would generally only apply to those 
systems that collectively have an average daily use of more than 5,000 gals. In typical 
scenarios, public water system with fewer than seven connections are not required to have 
water rights. The system must be constructed according to City standards and 
specifications.  

Except when otherwise approved, the City will own all systems which it agrees to manage, and 
rates and charges will be established by the Board according to law. Satellite systems will be 
subject to all rules and regulations of the District, and will be connected to the District’s system 
when public service is available to the property or properties.  

 

Note:  
Abbreviations: DSL – distribution system leakage; LID – local improvement district; LOS – level of service; NPDES – National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System; Plan – City of Shelton Water 

System Plan; RCW – Revised Code of Washington; SEPA – Washington State Environmental Policy Act; SMC – City of Shelton Municipal Code; WAC – Washington Administrative Code.  

 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 3 | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | 3-27 

3.6.2   System Analysis Criteria 

Table 3.10 outlines current system criteria, including facility requirements, reliability 
recommendations, and fire protection. These criteria are used to perform the system analysis as 
presented in Chapter 5. 

 

 

 



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 3 | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

3-28 | JULY 2021   

Table 3.10 System Analysis Criteria 

Subject Policy Source 

Source   

Storage 

The sum of:  
Operational Storage: Volume sufficient to prevent pump recycling,  
Equalizing Storage: ES = (PHD – QS) * 150 minutes  
Standby Storage(1,2): SB = 2 days * (ADD – (QS – QL) * 1440 minutes/day)  
Fire Suppression Storage(1): FSS = FF * T  
where:  
PHD = Peak hour demand, gpm  
ADD = Average day demand, gpd  
QS = Capacity of all sources, excluding emergency sources, gpm  
QL = Capacity of largest source, gpm  
FF = Required fire flow, gpm  
T = Fire flow duration, min 
The smaller volume between fire suppression storage volume and standby 
storage volume may be “nested” within the larger volume, subject to local 
ordinances. 
DOH recommends that SB volume be no less than 200 gallons/ERU.  

DOH Water System Design Manual, Ch. 9 

Minimum System 
Pressure 

The system should be designed to maintain the following minimum pressures: 
30 psi in the distribution system under peak hour demand.  
20 psi under fire flow conditions during MDD. 

DOH Water System Design Manual, Ch. 8 

Fire flow Standard 
The minimum FF shall be determined by the local fire authority or WAC 246-293 
for systems within a CWSSA. 

Reference memo from Dave Salzer, Asst. Fire 
Chief, Mason Co. FD 5, May 28, 2009. 
Appendix 3A and Section 3.3.2.  
In general, requirement is 750 gpm for 
120 minutes for residential areas and 1,500 gpm 
for 120 minutes for commercial areas. 

Minimum Pipe 
Size 

The diameter of a transmission line shall be determined by hydraulic analysis. The 
minimum size distribution system line shall not be less than 6-inches in diameter. 
The City has adopted a minimum water distribution main diameter of 8-inches. 

DOH Water System Design Manual, Ch. 8 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 3 | CITY OF SHELTON 

  JULY 2021 | 3-29 

Subject Policy Source 

Reliability 
Recommendations 

Sources capable of supplying MDD within an 18-hour period. 
Sources meet ADD with largest source out of service. 
Backup power equipment for pump stations unless there are two independent 
public power sources. 
Provision of multiple storage tanks. 
Standby storage equivalent to ADD X 2, with a minimum of 200 gpd/ERU. 
Low and high level storage alarms 
Looping of distribution mains when feasible. 
Pipeline velocities not > 8 fps at PHD. 
Flushing velocities of 2.5 fps for all pipelines. 

Same as DOH Water Design Manual, Chapter 5, 
with exception of: 
Flushing velocity goal of 2.5 fps, but a lower 
velocity may be realized in existing 
neighborhoods. 
Distribution mains shall be looped when longer 
than 1,200 ft. Transmission mains 12-in and 
larger that are designed to extend service to the 
limits of the service area are not required to be 
looped unless feasible. 

Valve and hydrant 
spacing 

Sufficient valving should be placed to keep a minimum of customer out of service 
when water is turned off for maintenance or repair. Fire hydrants on laterals 
should be provided with their own auxiliary gate valve. 

Valve standard are outlined in the City’s Design 
and Construction Standards. Minimum hydrant 
spacing is 300 ft in residential areas. 

Note:  
Abbreviations: CWSSA - critical water supply service area; ERU - Equivalent Residential Unit; FF – fire flow; fps – feet per second; gpd/ERU – gallons per day per Equivalent Residential Unit; 

PHD – peak hour demand; psi – pounds per square inch.  

 



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 3 | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

3-30 | JULY 2021  

3.6.3   City of Shelton Comprehensive Plan Policies 

The City’s Comprehensive Plan and Mason County’s Shelton UGA Plan address future land use, 
development, and population trends within the City’s UGA. Appendix 3E presents chapters from 
these two plans that establish policies related to the City’s water system.  

3.6.3.1   Public Utility Policies 

The City has established public utility policies as a portion of Chapter VI of the 2017 Shelton 
Comprehensive Plan. This general policy section recognizes the need to coordinate planning and 
provide for service demands created by new growth. In addition, they express a commitment to 
appropriate rate structures, environmental compatibility, and reduction of solid wastes. These 
general policies are as follows:  

• Capital Facilities and Utilities (CFU) 1. Ensure that utilities, public facilities, and services 
are provided, operated, and maintained in an effective and efficient manner: 
- CFU1a. Utilities, public facilities, and services should be designed and constructed to 

handle the anticipated growth of the service area, and to minimize future 
maintenance and repair costs.  

- CFU1b. Sewer and water lines and related facilities needed to serve new 
development should be the responsibility of the developer or provided through a 
local improvement district.  

- CFU1c. The City should update and conduct capital facilities planning through the 
annual review process of the Capital Facilities Element (CFE), mandated by the 
Growth Management Act (GMA).  

- CFU1d. The City should apply for all available state and federal grants and other 
funds to assist development and improvement of sewer, water, and other public 
facilities and services.  

- CFU1e. Siting for new utilities and facilities shall be compatible with other plan 
elements and consider impacts on future City development and land use patterns.  

- CFU1f. The City should, in conjunction with private utility providers and special 
purpose districts, designate areas for the location of utility facilities when it is known 
that facilities are needed and planned. 

• CFU2. Maintain and enhance current level of service (LOS) standards and capacities, as 
growth occurs, to enhance quality of life in the City: 
- CFU2a. The City will maintain a Concurrency Management System to monitor the 

effects of population growth and contain requirements for maintaining the adopted 
transportation LOS standards.  

- CFU2b. Ensure that new development occurs only when adequate utilities and 
public facilities necessary to support the development are available.  

• CFU3. Prioritize capital facilities in such a way that existing deficiencies are eliminated 
before other improvements are considered.  
- CFU3a. The City should actively seek public input and analyze needs when 

establishing capital facility priorities.  
- CFU3b. Available revenue sources should be allocated to finance facility 

improvements that eliminate the most important deficiencies first.  



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 3 | CITY OF SHELTON 

  JULY 2021 | 3-31 

• CFU4. The City should maintain a financing strategy to cover the costs of needed 
facilities and improvements contained in the CFE:  
- CFU4a. The City's CFE shall identify all funding sources to pay for the needed 

projects, as required by the GMA.  
- CFU4b. If probable funding falls short the City shall incorporate one or all of the 

following:  
 a. Reassess the Land Use Element to reduce the impacts associated with 

densities and land use designations;  
 b. Lower the adopted LOS standards to reflect service levels that can be 

maintained given the known financial resources;  
 c. Increase the amount of available revenue through rate increases;  
 d. Impose impact fees; or  
 e. Decrease the amount of project costs.  

• CFU5. A concurrency management system should support adopted service standards for 
parks and open space. 
- CFU5a. Development in the City and UGA are required to satisfy at least one of the 

following requirements in a manner proportional to the impact and/or size of the 
development as part of expected growth:  
 a. Provide an open space easement or dedication as a development 

requirement if within designated open space areas. Development incentives 
may be offered for remainder of property. These could include, current use 
taxation programs, or transfer of development rights programs; or  

 b. Contribute to open space acquisition fund; or  
 c. Donate property open space designation to the City; or  
 d. Create an irrevocable living will or trust providing that the open space area 

will be donated or an easement created in the future. Such agreements must be 
guaranteed by an encumbrance to property title. (For purposes of this policy, 
"development" is defined as any construction of a new residential unit, or a 
commercial or industrial building.)  

• CFU6. Implement the Capital Facilities Plan in a manner that coordinates and is 
consistent with the plans and policies of other elements of the Comprehensive Plan, 
Countywide Planning Policies, and the GMA: 
- CFU6a. All capital facilities and improvements should be consistent with the 

adopted Land Use Map and the goals and policies of other elements of this 
Comprehensive Plan.  

- CFU6b. The City should maintain a Memorandum of Understanding with 
Mason County to coordinate planning for and development of the UGA, and to 
ensure that development and facilities follow the vision set out in the 
Comprehensive Plan.  

• CFU7. Promote consistency between the long-range capital facilities and utilities 
planning and the Comprehensive Plan: 
- CFU7a. The City shall adopt the following utilities plans as they now exist, and as 

subsequently amended, as part of this comprehensive plan: The City of Shelton 
Water System Plan, the City of Shelton Sewer Comprehensive Plan, Shelton 
Regional Sewer Plan Wastewater Facility Plan and Water Comprehensive Plan 
Amendment and Project Report for the Shelton Area Regional Water System, 



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 3 | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

3-32 | JULY 2021  

Addendum to Shelton Regional Sewer Plan Wastewater Facility Plan and to Shelton 
Water Comprehensive Plan and Project Report for the Shelton Area Regional Water 
Systems.  

- CFU7b. All utility master plans should be updated to support the objectives of the 
Comprehensive Plan.  

- CFU7c. The City should provide periodic updates of population, employment, and 
development forecasts to all utility managers to promote joint planning efforts. 

• CFU8. Provide and maintain public utility facilities and services to all persons living 
within utility service areas in a cost-effective manner: 
- CFU8a. Promote conservation and demand management programs to reduce the 

need for rate increases and new facilities created by future growth.  
- CFU8b. Public utility maintenance and rehabilitation programs should be 

implemented to reduce maintenance costs and minimize rate increases. 
- CFU8c. Public facilities and services should be designed and constructed to handle 

the anticipated growth of the service area, and to minimize future maintenance and 
repair costs.  

• CFU9. Ensure environmentally sensitive, safe, and reliable capital facility and utility 
services that are reasonably compatible with surrounding land uses: 
- CFU9a. The City should ensure that capital facilities and utilities are reasonably 

compatible with surrounding land uses and reasonably minimize their impacts on 
the natural environment, consistent with the serving utility's public service 
obligations.  

• CFU10. Provide an adequate and effective recycling program to serve the needs of City's 
residents: 
- CFU10a. The City should encourage multi-family and commercial developments to 

provide onsite recycling containers through land development regulations. 
• CFU11. Process permits and approvals for utility facilities in a fair and timely manner and 

in accord with the development regulations: 
- CFU11a. The City should promote, when reasonably feasible, co-location of new 

public and private service distribution facilities in shared trenches and coordination 
of construction timing to minimize construction-related disruptions to the public 
and reduce the cost to the public of service delivery.  

- CFU11b. Private utility providers and special purpose districts shall prepare such 
plans and strategies as may be necessary to provide necessary services concurrent 
with demand. 

3.6.3.2   Shelton UGA Plan Service Area Policies 

The City has established UGA policies as a portion of Chapter X of the 2017 Shelton 
Comprehensive Plan. This general policy section established the goals and policies of the UGA. 
As appropriate, the UGA Plan goals and policies shall be applied together with other 
Comprehensive Plan goals and policies. The general policies that relate to the water system are 
as follows: 

Urban Growth Area Services Provision  

The following goals and policies for future annexations and the provision of services in the UGA 
provide direction regarding utility extension and the circumstances in which it will occur. This will 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 3 | CITY OF SHELTON 

  JULY 2021 | 3-33 

help to facilitate a seamless transition of services in the UGA if and when properties become 
annexed to the City.  

UGA Goal 4: Provide effective, efficient, and quality capital facilities and public services at the 
level necessary to meet community needs and support allowed growth.  

Policy UGA4a. The County and City should coordinate with service and utility providers to ensure 
UGA services support planned growth, meet desired customer service needs, and result in a 
comparable community system in the greater Shelton area.  

Policy UGA4b. The City and County should coordinate with local Fire Districts, to ensure 
adequate fire and emergency response in the UGA.  

Policy UGA4c. The City’s LOS standards for sewer and water service should be applied to the 
UGA once services are extended into the UGA. Sewer and water improvements and services 
should be consistent with the Regional Water and Sewer Plans identified in the City’s 
Comprehensive Plan Utilities Element as amended over time. City of Shelton Comprehensive 
Plan – Urban Growth Area Element – November 2017 X-11  

Policy UGA4d. In consultation with the Mason County Sheriff’s Department, the City should 
ensure adequate police services are provided within the UGA.  

Policy UGA4e. To avoid City assumption of nonconforming infrastructure, a coordinated Capital 
Improvement Program and maintenance plan should be prepared between the City and County. 
Such a program should be developed prior to annexation required to meet levels of service are 
implemented concurrent with new development. When considering annexation proposals that 
have significant existing nonconforming infrastructure, the City should consider service delivery 
and revenue enhancement options.  

Policy UGA4f. The City will consider extension of water and sewer services outside City limits 
based on criteria including, but not limited to the following:  

• The lands to be served must be, either: 
- Inside the City’s UGA, or  
 Intended to service essential public facilities, or  
 In rural areas only in limited circumstances when shown necessary to protect 

basic public health and safety and the environment and when such services are 
financially supportable at rural densities and do not permit urban development, 
consistent with State law.  

- Extension of services to Regional Plan Partners is to be accomplished in accordance 
with Regional Water and Sewer Plans and agreements.  

- Land owners requesting water and/or sewer service outside the City limits are to 
sign a utility extension agreement that addresses the following:  
 Costs of design, engineering, construction, and inspection of extension as paid 

by the owner; 
 Easements and permits to be secured and obtained by the owner; 
 Dedication of capital facilities to the City; 
 Connection charges paid by the owner; 
 Agreement by the owner not to protest annexation; 
 Connection to both sewer and water services; 
 Waiver of right to protest local improvement district; 



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 3 | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

3-34 | JULY 2021  

 Development of property to conform to City code when developing or 
redeveloping the property subject to the agreement; and 

 Remedies that may be required due to noncompliance with the terms of the 
agreement. 

3.6.4   Financial Policies 

The City currently has many financial policies related to the water system, which include user 
fees, water system development charges, feeds pertaining to extensions, and policies regarding 
operating fund balances available for the utility system. Chapter 10 discusses the City’s financial 
policies in more detail.  

 

 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 4 | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | 4-1 

Chapter 4 

WATER CONSERVATION PLAN 

4.1   Introduction 
This chapter presents the City of Shelton’s (City’s) Conservation and Water Use Efficiency (WUE) 
Program for the planning period. The City recognizes the important of water use efficiency 
efforts and is in compliance with annual submissions of its WUE report to the Washington State 
Department of Health (DOH). 

4.2   Conservation Program Development and Implementation  

In 2003, the Washington State Legislature passed Engrossed Second Substitute House Bill 1338, 
more widely known as the Municipal Water Law, to address the increasing demand on the state’s 
water resources. The law established that all municipal water suppliers must use water more 
efficiently in exchange for water right certainty and flexibility to help meet future demand. 
In 2007, DOH required that all Class A municipal water systems develop a WUE program to plan 
for conservation. This program consists of the following five key parts: 

• Collect Data. 
• Forecast Demand. 
• Evaluate WUE measures. 
• Calculate distribution system leakage (DSL). 
• Implement a WUE program to meet goals. 

4.3   Data Collection 

A detailed analysis of water production and distribution characteristics is presented in Chapter 2 
of this Water System Plan (Plan). The City meets the data collection requirement by collecting 
source meter data and service meter data for all sources and all service connections. 

4.4   Demand Forecasting 

Chapter 2 of this Plan presents projections of future demands for the City’s water system. The 
demand forecasts include a low demand scenario where future WUE measures are considered. 

4.5   WUE Measures 

A detailed analysis of water production and distribution characteristics and projections of future 
demands is presented in Chapter 2 of this Plan. Based on the findings of this analysis and per the 
requirements of DOH’s Water Use Efficiency Guidebook, the City has adopted three WUE goals, 
as described below. The Annual WUE Performance Report Form prepared by the City for the 
year 2019 is included in Appendix 4A. 



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 4 | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

4-2 | JULY 2021  

The number of required goals and measures in a WUE program depends on the water system 
size and type. For the City, the following goal and measure requirements and definitions apply: 

• Goals: Benchmarks to measure WUE. At least one supply-side goal (production) and one 
demand-side goal (consumption) need to be established. 

• Measures: Specific activities and programs to achieve the goal. Based on the number of 
connections, the City is required to implement six measures. 

4.5.1   WUE Goal 1: Reduce Total Consumption 

4.5.1.1   Existing Goal: Reduce Total Consumption by 1 Percent Annually from 2014 to 2020 

The first goal that the City identified was to reduce total consumption annually by 1 percent per 
year from 2014 to 2020. The City has not achieved this goal, where total consumption has 
increased since 2014. The year 2014 was the lowest water use in the City’s modern history 
(from 1997 to 2017) and subsequent years are typical for annual water use since 2010. So while 
the goal was not achieved, there is not a clear trend in increasing total consumption. 

4.5.1.2   Future Goal: Reduce Total Consumption per Customer by 1 Percent Annually 
through 2029 

The City has revised Goal 1 to reduce total consumption per customer by 1 percent annually for 
the next 10 years (2029). Table 4.1 summarizes the projected demand if this WUE goal is met. 
The City anticipates substantial growth in the next 10 years that will result in the total 
consumption will increase; however, that increase would be less than without the WUE activities. 

Table 4.1 Total Demand Projection with WUE Goal 1 

2021 Projected Demand 
(ac-ft) 

2031 Projected Demand 
(ac-ft) 

2031 Projected Demand 
if per Customer Total Consumption is 

Decreased by 1% Annually (ac-ft) 

1,265 1,836 1,500 
Note:  
Abbreviation: ac-ft – acre-feet.  

In order to achieve a decrease in demand compared to what has been projected, the City will 
implement the following measures: 

• Reclaimed water: In late 2009, the City completed construction of a satellite water 
reclamation plant (WRP) that provides Class A reclaimed water. This reclaimed water 
will be available to the Regional Partners and will offset the demand on the City water 
system after the connection of the Regional Partners. 

• Efficient fixtures in new development: Through the building permit process, the City 
requires compliance with the latest version of United Plumbing Code (UPC). The UPC 
requires installation of low-flow plumbing fixtures in new and remodel construction 
projects. 

• Water bills showing consumption history: The City’s billing software allows 
consumption history information to be included on water bills. 

• Water conservation kits: The City provides both indoor and outdoor conservation kits 
to its customers at the Shelton Civic Center. Indoor and outdoor kits are available for 
customers. 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 4 | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | 4-3 

• Public education: The City provides information and news articles on its website, which 
describe both methods to conserve water and the importance of doing so. Information 
provided on the Web site is provided in Appendix 4B. 

• Rate structure for single-family residential homes that encourages conservation: 
Single-family residential water rates are currently billed using an inclined block rate 
structure which encourages conservation. Single-family residential users pay an 
increased rate for all water consumed in excess of 600 cubic feet per month. 

• Rate structure for multifamily and duplex residential units that encourages 
conservation: Customers in mobile homes, duplexes, and multifamily homes are also 
billed with a rate structure designed to encourage conservation by charging for 
consumption, as well as a separate higher consumption rate for irrigation meters. 

4.5.2   WUE Goal 2: Maintain Low Distribution System Leakage 

4.5.2.1   Existing Goal: Maintain Distribution System Leakage Amount Equal to or Lesser 
Than 8 Percent for 2014-2020 

The second goal that the City adopted, a supply-side conservation goal, is to reduce DSL 
to 8 percent or less within 6 years. In 2019, 3-year rolling average DSL was calculated to 
be 11.2 percent. 

4.5.2.2   Future Goal: Maintain Distribution System Leakage to Less than or Equal to 8 Percent on 
a 3-year rolling average through 2029 

The City is committed to reducing DSL to less than or equal to 10 percent on a 3-year rolling 
average through 2029. The City’s DSL has increased in recent years. The City has developed a 
water loss control plan to bring DSL to less than 10 percent. It has implemented several 
measures to address this increase, including the completion of distribution system repair 
projects and compliance with the following required measures: 

• Production meters: All active city wells are metered. 
• Consumption meters: The City’s Municipal Code (SMC) 15.12.040 requires that all 

individual service connections be metered. The SMC also includes a provision for the City 
to maintain all water service meters. The City has a program to repair or replace all 
meters once they become unserviceable. The City will consider DOH recommendation 
that 10 percent of all service meters should be replaced annual to maintain 10-year life 
span. 

In addition to the measures which have already been implemented, the City plans to complete 
the following supply-side measures to continue to meet its DSL goal for the next 6-year planning 
period. 

• Annual leak detection surveys: The City began performing annual leak detection 
surveys in 2011. The City completed the most recent leak detection survey in 
October 2020. Following the survey, the City will systematically address all detected 
leaks on City mains and alerts customers to detected leaks on private laterals. 

• Complete capital projects to identify and repair leaking transmission mains: Capital 
improvement projects, including an implementation schedule, are described in detail in 
Chapter 6 of this Water System Plan.  

• Customer leak repair education and incentives: The City website also gives guidance 
on identifying common household leaks. Additionally, the City provides incentives for 



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 4 | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

4-4 | JULY 2021  

customers who discover and repair leaks in a timely manner to any plumbing on their 
premises. According to SMC 15.20.40, after the repair is complete, the customer may 
request a credit for up to 4 months of excess consumption. 

4.5.3   WUE Goal 3: Reduce Residential Water Consumption 

4.5.3.1   Existing Goal: Reduce Residential Water Consumption by 3 Percent from 2014 to 2020 

In total, residential water users account for approximately 60 percent of total water consumption 
(including single-family, multifamily, and duplex units) with single-family residential users 
account for 50 percent of consumption. The third WUE goal that the City adopted aims to reduce 
total annual consumption by residential connections by 3 percent from 2014 to 2020. The City 
did not achieve its goal through 2017. Similar to total consumption, 2014 was one of the lowest 
water residential water use years in the City’s modern history (from 1997 to 2017) and 
subsequent years are typical for annual water use since 2010. So while the goal was not 
achieved, there is not a clear trend in increasing residential water consumption. 

4.5.3.2   Future Goal: None 

WUE Goal No. 3 Residential Water Use Goal is anticipated to be addressed if the City achieves 
WUE Goal No. 1 Reduce Total Water Consumption in the future. Therefore, the goal will not be 
continued. 

4.6   Enhanced Conservation Measures 

The description of the City’s water conservation program in Section 4.6 shows that efforts the 
City has already made to reduce DSL and educate users about conservation have had a 
substantial positive impact on water use. In addition, the City has identified a number of WUE 
measures that will be implemented to achieve aggressive WUE goals. 

4.7   Distribution System Leakage 

As outlined in Chapter 2, the City’s rolling 3-year average DSL has been between 7.3 percent 
and 13.9 percent in the past five years. WUE Rule requirements establish a ten percent or less 
DSL standard on a 3-year rolling average. As described in Section 4.3.2, the City’s WUE Goal 2 
addresses the DSL standard exceedance. Per requirements, the City has developed a water loss 
control action plan (WLCAP). The goal of the WLCAP will be to: 

• Assess data accuracy. 
• Assess data collection methods and errors. 

4.7.1   Water Loss Control Action Plan 

This section summarizes the City’s WLCAP. The City’s WLCAP includes two main activities: 

• The City will conduct a water audit using the America Water Works Association (AWWA) 
water audit methodology. AWWA published their M36 Manual in 2010 that adopted this 
methodology to evaluate water loss and provides free tools for Utilities. The water audit 
is intended to better understand data accuracy and collection methods and errors. 

• The City began performing annual leak detection surveys in 2011. The City completed 
the most recent leak detection survey in October 2020. City staff will repair identified 
leaks. Customer leak repair education will be conducted for leaks identified on private 
services. 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 4 | CITY OF SHELTON 

JULY 2021 | 4-5

WLCAP activities are anticipated to be completed by 2022. The City does not anticipate large 
costs associated with the WLCAP activities. The City intends to fund the activities through its 
current operations budget. If the Water Audit or Leak Detection Survey results indicate a large 
capital project is needed, then the City will seek out loans and grants as a means to pay for the 
infrastructure improvements. 

4.8   WUE Program Implementation 

4.8.1   Public Notice 

A public forum to describe the proposed goals and solicit public comment on the City’s WUE 
goals was held on March 17, 2014. At this meeting, the three WUE goals outlined in Section 4.3 
were re-established. No goals were changed since the previous public forum in 2008. 

The customer goals must be re-established every six years through the public process. The City 
plans to hold a public forum in 2020 to establish the future WUE goals described in Section 4.3. 
This WUE goal setting forum will include a WUE public notice that will be published and state 
that the water use efficiency goals will be discussed. Following the meeting, a copy of the 
minutes showing the WUE goal setting was addressed at the public forum will be provided. 

4.8.2   WUE Reports 

By July 1 every year, WUE reports must be submitted to customers and to DOH, and also made 
available to the public. The City is in compliance with this requirement and has submitted WUE 
Reports annually. The City submitted its 2019 WUE Report, which can be found in Appendix 4A, 
in June 2020. 

4.9   Use of Reclaimed Water 

The City began operation of its WRP in 2009. Class A reclaimed water from the WRP will initially 
be used to offset potable water usage at the Washington State Patrol Academy. Additional 
customers will be connected to the reclaimed water distribution system as potential demands 
are identified. For example, the County’s Public Works maintenance shop near the intersection 
of Highways 101 and 102 is one potential customer that has been identified. 





WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 5 | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | 5-1 

Chapter 5 

SYSTEM ANALYSIS 

5.1   Introduction 

The City of Shelton’s (City’s) water distribution system was evaluated for its supply and pumping 
capacity and reliability, the capacity of its storage facilities, and for adequate pressures and fire 
flow capacity using the City’s updated hydraulic model under 2031 and 2041 conditions using the 
medium demand project scenario, developed in Chapter 2. 

This chapter discusses recommendations to deficiencies identified as part of the system analysis 
for this Water System Plan Update (Plan). These recommendations form the basis of the City’s 
Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) outlined in Chapter 9. 

5.2   System Analysis Planning Scenarios 

Consistent with the demand projections in Chapter 2, the system analysis evaluates the City’s 
water system for the 10-year and 20-year planning horizon. The medium demand scenario, 
which is predicted to most closely match the City’s future demands, was used when performing 
the system analysis. Table 5.1 summarizes the projected average day demands (ADD), and 
maximum day demands (MDD) for the medium demand scenario. 

Table 5.1 Projected Demands for Medium Demand Scenario 

 2021 2031 2041 

ADD (mgd) 1.32 1.86 2.39 

MDD (mgd) 2.81 3.98 5.13 
Note:  
Abbreviation: mgd – million gallons per day.  

5.3   Distribution System and Planned Improvements 

The City provided geographic information system (GIS) data on September 20, 2017. This data 
represents the City’s current water system, including all facilities, service area boundaries, land 
use, and zoning.  

The Shelton Hills master-planned development requires a new elevated reservoir in the 
Upper Mt. View Pressure Zone (PZ) and transmission mains to provide fire flow to be online by 
the 20-year planning horizon. Figure 5.1 shows the Upper Mt. View transmission mains assumed 
for the Shelton Hills development. The elevated reservoir and transmission mains are assumed 
to be online by 2041 for the system analysis. No water distribution specific projects were 
identified for inclusion in this Plan except the Shelton Hills master-planned development. 



UT

UT

UT

"=)
"=)

"=)
!ã

!ã!ã

"b )

"b )

"b ) "b )

"b )

"b )"b )

"b )

"b )

"b )
"b )

"b )

"b )

New Upper Mt. View
Reservoir (0.41 MG)

Well 1
Mt. View PS

Well 3,4

High School
Reservoir (0.51 MG)

Angelside BPS

Capital Hill
BPS

ENTERPR
IS

E

1S
T

RAILROAD 5T
H

2N
D

NO
EL

HULBERT

JONES

W
ILBU

R
S

CHRISTMAS
TREE

TURNER

6T
H

16
TH

B LI
TZ

EN

PROFESSIONAL

DONDER

K

TERRACE

TH
Y

M
E

OAK

CHERRY

8T
H

RO
DI

US

HOLLY

14
TH

BASIL

SHERW
O

O
D

TO
B

IN

BATSTONE CUT OFF

C

E

VA
N

 B
U

R
E

N

N
O

R
TH

C
LIF

F

BR
O

C
KD

AL
E

MUNCASTER

L

11
TH

9T
H

10
TH

O
T

TE
R E

LK

4T
H

12
TH

FR
O

N
T

7T
H

REINDEER

F

J

SIDNEY

A

I

3R
D

TA
RRAGON

ELIZABETH

B

H
G

D

BAYVIEW

U
S

H
IG

H
W

AY
101

HENRY

BIRCH

THOMAS

PARSLEY

13
TH

KNEELAND

HIAW
ATHA

GROVE

FRANKLIN CEDAR
PINE

ALDER

POPLA R

REED
COTA

M
AGNOLIA

ROY

JAMES

LAUREL

BUENA
VISTA

FIR

WALNUT

D
A

N
C

E
R

B
LE

V
IN

S

HAZEL

MOORES

M
ADISO

N

JACKSO
N

M
O

NRO
E

OLYM
PIC

ADAM
S

PA
C

IF
IC

W
ASHING

TO
N

KING

JEFFERSO
N

CALLANAN

PA
TT

E
R

S
O

N

KRISTI

JO
H

N
S

CONNECTION

W
AT

E
R

C
R

E
S

S

SPRINGWOOD

CO
MET

A
D

O
N

A
I

KATI MOUNTAIN
VIEW

C
O

O
K

S
O

N

PE
RSH

IN
G

BARNHARD

VANCE

KA RI

PRAIR
IE

B
E

AV
E

R

ROSEMARY

13TH

LO
O

P

LA
C

R
O

S
S

E

MAPLE
TALL

TIMBER LN

S
Y

LV
A

N
H

E
IG

H
T

S

BOSTROM

JO
HNS P

RAIR
IE

GD 4310

A
N

G
LESIDE

B
U

R
N

S

NORTHVIEW

HAW
THORN

ISLAND LAKE

SAGE

R
A

M
P

TERRACE
VIEW

HIGHLAND

MOORE

SAN
JOAQUIN

ALPINE

B
O

A
R

D
W

A
LK

GD 4306

ROCK

EAGLE

RIDGE

SHELTON SPRINGS
PEACOCK HILL

WALLACE KNEELAND

S
P

R
IN

G
F

IE
L D

La
nt

er
n

W
O

O
D

LA
N

D

PARK

G
D

 4300

AIR
 VIEW

GD 4000
GD 4020

FAIRGROUNDS

GD GOOSE LAKE MAINLINE

Last Revised: June 11, 2021 pw://IO-PW-INT.Carollo.local:Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Shelton/10669A00/Data/GIS/Fig5.1_SheltonHillsDevelopment.mxd

O

0 2,0001,000
Feet

Disclaimer: Features shown in this 
figure are for planning purposes and 
represent approximate locations. 
Engineering and/or survey accuracy 
is not implied.

Data Sources: City of Shelton. 
Washington State Dept. of 
Natural Resources

 Figure 5.1  Shelton Hills Development by 2041 Planning Year

WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 5 | CITY OF SHELTON

Legend

"b ) Valve

!ã Well

"=) Pump Station

UT Reservoir

Pipeline

UT Shelton Hills Reservoir

"b ) Shelton Hills PRV

Shelton Hills Pipeline

Streets

Future Retail Water Service Area

Parcels

Water Bodies

Pressure Zone
Angleside Zone

Capitol Hill Zone

High School Zone

Mountain View Zone

Upper Mountain View Zone

Note:
Proposed service to Shelton Hill Development
from Upper Mountain View Pressure Zone by
2041 Planning Year.



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 5 | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | 5-3 

5.4   Supply Analysis 

The capacity and redundancy of the City’s supplies were evaluated to determine if the system 
meets the City’s goal defined in Chapter 3. 

5.4.1   Criteria and Methodology 

The supply analysis was performed in two steps: 

• First, a system-wide analysis was used to confirm if the City could meet its goal. As 
outlined in Chapter 3, the City’s goal is that the combined source capacity of the water 
system can provide maximum day demands for the entire system with the largest 
source out-of-service. 

• Secondly, the supply analysis was performed within each pressure zone to evaluate if 
each pressure zone has sufficient supply individually. 

5.4.2   Existing Sources of Supply 

The City’s current water supply is provided by three groundwater wells: Well 1, Well 3, and 
Well 4, as summarized in Chapter 2.  

The City has designated Shelton Springs, the source of Shelton Creek, as an emergency water 
source.  

5.4.3   System-Wide Analysis 

The City’s water rights were summarized in Chapter 3, and Appendix 3B presents copies of 
available water rights documentation. Based on this information, the City has sufficient water 
rights to meet the 2041 planning year demands. Additional details can be found in the Water 
Rights Self-Assessment presented in Appendix 5B.  

Additionally, water treatment (chlorination) capacities, or other operational issues are not a 
limitation to supplying the 2041 planning year demands. 

Both total and redundant capacities of the existing supply sources were compared to the 
projected MDD for the 2041 planning year. Note, the total capacity corresponds to the sum of all 
active, non-emergency supplies, while the redundant capacity corresponds to the total capacity 
with the largest source out-of-service.  

Table 5.2 presents the results of the system-wide supply analysis for the 2041 planning year for 
existing supplies. 



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 5 | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

5-4 | JULY 2021  

Table 5.2 Existing Supplies with 2041 Demands 

Source Total Capacity(1) (gpm) Redundant Capacity(2,3) (gpm) 

Well 1 1,500 0 

Well 3 1,000 1,000 

Well 4 1,200 1,200 

Source Total 3,700 2,200 

Total 2041 MDD 3,192 3,192 

Surplus/(Deficit) 508 (992) 
Notes: 
(1) Total capacity is the total pumping capacity of the wells. 
(2) Redundant capacity is the capacity of the wells with the largest well out-of-service. 
(3) Well 1 is the largest well so it was assumed to be out-of-service for the redundant capacity analysis. 
Abbreviation: gpm – gallons per minute. 

As shown in Table 5.2, the system has sufficient total capacity to provide the projected 
2041 MDD but cannot meet the City’s goal of providing 2041 MDD with the largest supply 
out-of-service.  

Note, the excess capacity with all supplies online is limited for future growth past 20 years. 

DOH recommends that with the largest source out-of-service, the remaining sources can provide 
a minimum of ADD for the water system. The redundant capacity of the sources (2,200 gpm 
or 3.17 mgd) can meet the 2041 ADD of 2.15 mgd, as outlined in Table 5.1.  

5.4.4   System-Wide Supply Recommendations 

To meet future redundant supply needs, it is recommended that the City develop a new well with 
a capacity of 1,000 gpm. This new well would entail transfer of a portion of the water right for 
Shelton Springs. The water right for Shelton Springs includes 2,250 gpm primary instantaneous 
flow rate and 3,620 ac-ft annual volume allowed.  

Table 5.3 presents the results of the system-wide supply analysis for the 2041 planning year with 
the new recommended well. 

Table 5.3 Future Supplies with 2040 Demands 

Source Total Capacity(1) (gpm) Redundant Capacity(2,3) (gpm) 

Well 1 1,500 0 

Well 3 1,000 1,000 

Well 4 1,200 1,200 

New Well 1,000 1,000 

TOTAL 4,700 3,200 

Total 2040 MDD 3,192 3,192 

Surplus/(Deficit) 1,508 8 
Notes: 
(1) Total capacity is the total pumping capacity of the wells. 
(2) Redundant capacity is the capacity of the wells with the largest well out-of-service. 
(3) Well 1 is the largest well so it was assumed to be out-of-service for the redundant capacity analysis. 

As shown in Table 5.3, when a new well with a capacity of 1,000 gpm is added to the distribution 
system, the City would have sufficient redundant supplies to meet its supply goal. 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 5 | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | 5-5 

5.4.5   Supply Analysis by Pressure Zone 

It is critical to also evaluate supply capacities in each pressure zone. This analysis ensures that 
each pressure zone has sufficient total and redundant capacities to serve each pressure zone 
future demands while meeting the City’ supply goal. For this analysis, supply to a pressure zone 
includes both wells/springs and booster pump stations. 

5.4.5.1   All Sources in Service 

Figure 5.2 is a simplified schematic showing the available supplies in each of the City’s 
five pressure zone with all sources online. The left-hand schematic shows the analysis results if 
all sources are online, and there are no supply improvements. As shown in the left-hand 
schematic, there is no redundancy to serve the Upper Mt. View PZ. The rest of the pressure 
zones have sufficient supplies if all sources are online. 

Based on the lack of redundancy in the Upper Mt. View PZ, an Upper Mt. View Booster Pump 
Station (BPS) is recommended to provide the Upper Mt. View PZ with sufficient redundant 
supply for projected 2041 demands. 

The right-hand schematic in Figure 5.2 shows the supply by pressure zone with recommended 
Upper Mt. View BPS. Figure 5.2 (right) illustrates that with the recommended 
Upper Mt. View BPS, each pressure zone has sufficient supplies to meet the 2041 MDD demands 
with all sources online. 

5.4.5.2   Largest Source Out-of-Service 

Figure 5.3 is a simplified schematic showing the available supplies in each of the City’s 
five pressure zone with the largest source system wide (Well 1) out-of-service. The left-hand 
schematic shows the analysis results with no supply improvements. As shown in the left-hand 
schematic, with the largest source out-of-service, there is insufficient supply capacity to serve 
most pressure zones.  

Based on the deficiencies with the largest source out-of-service, a New Well is recommended. 
The New Well is recommended to have a capacity of 1,000 gpm to meet the City’s supply goal. If 
the well is located in the Angleside PZ, the Angleside, High School, Mt. View and Capitol Hill PZs 
would have sufficient redundant supplies. 

The right-hand schematic in Figure 5.3 shows the supply by pressure zone with recommended 
Upper Mt. View BPS and New Well in the Angleside PZ. Figure 5.3 (right) illustrates that with the 
recommended improvements, each pressure zone has sufficient supplies to meet the 2041 MDD 
demands with the largest source out-of-service. 

 

 



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 5 | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

5-6 | JULY 2021  

 

Figure 5.2 Supply by Pressure Zone Analysis (Left: All Sources in Service; Right: All Sources in Service with Recommended Improvement) 

 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 5 | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | 5-7 

 

Figure 5.3 Supply by Pressure Zone Analysis (Left: Largest Source Out-of-Service; Right: Largest Source Out-of-Service with Recommended 
Improvements) 



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 5 | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

5-8 | JULY 2021  

5.4.6   Supply Recommendations Summary 

The total capacity of the wells is sufficient to provide system-wide projected 2041 MDD and 
ADD. However, to meet the City’ supply goal of supplying MDD demands with the largest source 
out-of-service, a new well is recommended to provide redundancy. It is recommended that the 
City plan to have this new well online by 2035, when projected demands are anticipated to 
reach 85 percent of the total 2041 MDD. 

From the results of the supply analysis by pressure zone, it is recommended to locate the new 
well in the Angleside PZ. This well would provide redundant capacity to the Angleside, 
Capitol Hill, High School, and Mt. View PZs when the largest source is out-of-service. Note, the 
new well would entail transfer of a portion of the water right for Shelton Springs. 

A new Upper Mt. View BPS is recommended to provide a redundant source of supply to the 
Upper Mt. View PZ if Well 3 is offline.  

5.5   Storage Analysis 

The City’s storage requirements are a function of the City’s booster pump operation, water 
demands, supply capacity, and fire flow requirements. The following sections summarize the 
available storage of the water system, describe the required storage components, and present 
recommendations to address identified storage deficits. 

5.5.1   Storage Components 

Water storage volumes are comprised of five components: 

• Operational storage. 
• Equalizing storage. 
• Standby storage (SS). 
• Fire suppression storage (FSS). 
• Dead storage. 

The City policy is to “nest” storage, which means combining standby and fire suppression 
storage as a single storage band. Figure 5.4 schematically shows these components.  

 

Figure 5.4 Storage Components  



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 5 | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | 5-9 

5.5.2   Criteria and Methodology 

The storage analysis is based on the City’s storage criteria and Washington State Department of 
Health (DOH) storage calculations, which are outlined in Table 5.4. The storage analysis was first 
performed system-wide to determine if the City has sufficient system-wide storage to meet City 
criteria using DOH storage calculations. The recommended improvements were then reviewed 
to confirm that each pressure zone had sufficient storage to meet the City’s storage criteria and 
goals. 

The storage analysis was performed for the 2021, 2031, and 2041 planning years.  

Table 5.4 Storage Criteria 

Storage Component Equation 
Req. Pressure to Highest 

Customer (psi) 

Operational Storage 3 feet of reservoir depth 30 

Equalizing Storage (Qph-Qs)*150 30 

Standby Storage(3)  
(nested) 

(2 days)*[(ADD)(N)-tm(Qs-QL)] 
OR no less than 200 gallons/ERU 

20 

Fire Suppression Storage(3) 
(nested) 

Largest Required Fire Flow in 
Pressure Zone x Duration 

20 

Dead Storage 
Storage below 20 psi to highest 

customer in pressure zone 
n/a 

Notes: 
(1) Nested storage: largest of the standby or fire suppression storage dictates the required storage at 20 psi. 
Abbreviations: Qph – peak hour demand, in gpm; Qs – capacity of all sources, in gpm; ERU – equivalent residential unit; 
N – number of ERUs; tm – time the remaining sources are pumped on the day when the largest source is not available, in 
minutes; QL – the largest capacity source available to the water system, in gpm; psi – pounds per square inch. 

5.5.3   Storage Requirements  

The City has five storage reservoirs with a total capacity of 2.25 million gallons (MG), as shown in 
Table 5.5. The available storage in each pressure zone area is controlled by the elevation of the 
highest customer in the system and the hydraulic grade level (HGL) required to serve that 
customer (with a pressure of at least 20 psi in the case of a fire or other emergency, or 30 psi 
under normal conditions). 

For the storage analysis, it was assumed that the Future Shelton Hills Development 
Reservoir (0.41 MG) is online for the 2041 planning year. 

5.5.3.1   Dead Storage  

Dead storage is the volume of water at the bottom of the storage reservoir that cannot be used 
because it’s physically too low to be withdrawn from the tank or, if withdrawn from the tank, 
would result in water pressures in the distribution system that are below the acceptable criteria 
of 20 psi during a fire or emergency situation. Table 5.5 summarizes the maximum customer 
elevation within each pressure zone the reservoir serves and the dead storage volume in each 
reservoir. 

5.5.3.2   Operational Storage 

Operational storage is the band of storage within each reservoir that is utilized during periods of 
average demand. It is typically estimated based on the volume of water each reservoir drops 



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 5 | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

5-10 | JULY 2021  

prior to calling on the supply sources and is measured as the volume of water stored between the 
pump call-off and pump call-on levels. Operational storage was set at three feet based on input 
from City’s operation staff. The operational storage volumes by reservoir are summarized in 
Table 5.5. 

Table 5.5 Existing, Dead, and Operational Storage 

Reservoir 
Nominal 
Volume 

(MG) 

Base 
Elev. 
(ft) 

Overflow 
Elev. (ft) 

Max. 
Elevation 
within PZ 

(ft) 

Dead 
Storage 

(MG) 

Operational 
Storage 

(MG) 

Mt. View Reservoir 0.61 308 373 277 0.36 0.03 

Upper Mt. View 
Elevated Reservoir 

0.41 400 440 350 0.01 0.03 

Angleside Reservoir 0.50 300 374 300 0.31 0.02 

Capitol Hill Reservoir 0.22 264 334 260 0.13 0.01 

High School Reservoir 0.51 153 177 110 0.07 0.06 

New Shelton Hills 
Development 
Reservoir(1) 

0.41 400 440 350 0.01 0.03 

Notes: 
(1) Reservoir considered online for 2040 storage analysis. 
Abbreviation: ft – feet.  

5.5.3.3   Equalizing Storage 

Equalizing storage is the volume needed to satisfy peak hour demand (PHD). It must be available 
at 30 psi to all service connections. The City’s equalizing storage criteria is determined using the 
peak hour demand and capacity of all sources as outlined in Table 5.4. Table 5.6 summarizes the 
required equalizing storage by pressure zone. 

Table 5.6 Required Equalizing Storage by Pressure Zone 

Pressure Zone 2021 2031 2041 

Angleside 0.11 0.13 0.15 

Capitol Hill 0.01 0.01 0.02 

High School 0.11 0.13 0.14 

Mt. View 0.00(1) 0.00(1) 0.00(1) 

Upper Mt. View 0.00(1) 0.00(1) 0.02 

System-wide 0.23 0.27 0.34 
Note: 
(1) Peak hour demand in pressure zone is smaller than capacity of all sources in pressure zone so equalizing storage is zero. 

5.5.3.4   Nested SS and FSS 

Standby storage volumes are required to supply reasonable system demands during a water 
system emergency, such as a disruption of the water supply caused by equipment failure, power 
outage, valve failure, or other water system interruptions. The City policy for calculating standby 
storage is outlined in Table 5.4. Table 5.7 summarizes the required standby storage by pressure 
zone.  



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 5 | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | 5-11 

Fire suppression storage is based on the largest fire flow requirement in each pressure zone, as 
defined by the maximum flow rate and duration. The water system must have fire suppression 
storage that can meet fire flow requirements while maintaining 20 psi throughout the 
distribution system. The required maximum fire flow and duration, and corresponding volume 
for each pressure zone are as follows: 

• Angleside PZ: 1,500 gpm for 2 hours. 
• Capitol Hill PZ: 750 gpm for 2 hours. 
• High School PZ: 2,000 gpm for 3 hours. 
• Mt. View PZ: 1,500 gpm for 2 hours. 
• Upper Mt. View PZ: 2,000 gpm for 3 hours. 

Since City policy is to nest SS and FSS, the larger of the two requirements will determine the 
required nested SS/FSS storage volume required. Results are summarized in Table 5.7. 

Table 5.7 Required Nested Standby Storage/FSS by Pressure Zone 

Pressure Zone 
FSS 

(MG) 
SS(1) (MG) Nested SS/FSS (MG) 

2021 2031 2041 2021 2031 2041 
Angleside PZ 0.18 0.33 0.40 0.47 0.33(2) 0.40(2) 0.47(2) 
Capitol Hill PZ 0.09 0.03 0.04 0.06 0.09(3) 0.09(3) 0.09(3) 
High School PZ 0.36 0.35 0.39 0.44 0.36(3) 0.39(2) 0.44(2) 
Mt. View PZ 0.18 0.57 0.76 0.95 0.57(2) 0.76(2) 0.95(2) 
Upper Mt. View PZ 0.36 0.01 0.27 0.52 0.36(3) 0.36(3) 0.52(2) 
System-wide  -- -- -- 1.71 2.00 2.47 

Notes: 
(1) For all pressure zones, standby storage is governed by the 200 gallons/ERU requirement. 
(2) Nested storage is controlled by standby storage requirement. 
(3) Nested storage is controlled by FSS requirement. 

5.5.4   Storage Analysis 

The City’s storage was analyzed system-wide to evaluate if the system meets the storage 
components required by DOH. Table 5.8 presents the results of the system-wide storage 
evaluation through the 2041 planning year. Table 5.8 compares the system-wide available 
storage and the total required storage to determine if there is a storage deficiency in the system. 

Table 5.8 System-Wide Storage Analysis 

Parameter (MG) 2021 2031 2041(1) 
Total Storage 2.25 2.25 2.66 
Dead Storage 0.88 0.88 0.89 
Available Storage (at 20 psi) 1.37 1.37 1.77 
Required Storage    
Operational Storage 0.15 0.15 0.18 
Equalizing Storage 0.23 0.27 0.34 
Standby/FSS 1.71 2.00 2.47 
Total Required Storage 2.09 2.42 2.99 
Excess or (Deficit)(2) (0.72) (1.05) (1.22) 

Notes: 
(1) Includes Future Shelton Hills Development Reservoir (0.41 MG nominal capacity).  
(2) Nested total storage minus available storage (at 20 psi). 



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 5 | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

5-12 | JULY 2021  

As shown in Table 5.8, the City’s distribution system is storage deficient under all planning years, 
starting in 2021.  

5.5.5   Storage Recommendations 

The following storage improvement projects are recommended to address storage deficiencies: 

• Upper Mt. View Elevated Reservoir in Shelton Hills (0.41 MG) (Developer-funded): This 
project is already included in Tables 5.10 and 5.11.  

• New Mt. View Reservoir near Well 1 (1.0 MG): To address storage deficiencies in the 
Mt. View PZ, a new 1.0 MG ground reservoir is recommended to be built at the Well 1 
site.  

• New Angleside Reservoir (1.0 MG): To address storage deficiencies in the Angleside PZ, 
a new reservoir with a booster pump station in the Angleside PZ is recommended. The 
reservoir and booster pump station should be co-located with the new well in the 
Angleside PZ, if possible, to aid in operations. The reservoir will have surplus storage, 
which can be shared with lower pressure zones with storage deficiencies, such as the 
High School / Capitol Hill PZ. 

• Capitol Hill Reservoir taken offline in year 2040: To address distribution system 
deficiencies in the Capitol Hill PZ, it is recommended that the Capitol Hill Reservoir be 
taken out of service to allow customers to be served from a higher grade in the future. A 
new transmission main is also recommended as part of this project. 

Table 5.9 shows the system-wide storage analysis with the recommended improvements. 

Table 5.9 System-Wide Storage Analysis with Improvements 

Parameter (MG) 2031(1) 2041(2) 

Total Storage 4.25 4.44 

Dead Storage 0.96 0.84 

Available Storage (at 20 psi) 3.29 3.60 

Required Storage   

Operational Storage(3) 0.40 0.42 

Equalizing Storage 0.27 0.32 

Standby/FSS 2.00 2.38 

Total Required Storage 2.67 3.12 

Excess or (Deficit)(4) 0.62 0.48 
Notes: 
(1) Includes Future Mt. View Reservoir and Future Angleside Reservoir. 
(2) Includes Future Shelton Hills Development Reservoir; Capitol Hill Reservoir is taken offline in year 2040 only.  
(3) Includes 0.12 MG operational storage in Future Mt. View Reservoir and 0.13 MG operational storage in Future Angleside 

Reservoir.  
(4) Nested total storage minus available storage (at 20 psi). 

As shown in Table 5.9, the total system storage requirements are met with the future storage 
improvements. 

The storage recommendations were evaluated against each pressure zone’s requirements to 
confirm that each zone met the City’s criteria in the future. Table 5.10 summarizes the future 
storage evaluation by pressure zone for the 2040 demand scenario. The results in this table 
include all planned, future storage projects and recommended improvements. 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 5 | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | 5-13 

Table 5.10 Future Storage by Pressure Zone with 2041 Demands 

Storage Component 
(MG) 

Angleside PZ + 
New Reservoir 

High School/ 
Capitol Hill PZ 

Mt. View PZ + 
New Reservoir 

Upper Mt. View 
PZ(1) 

Existing Storage  0.50 0.51 0.61 0.82 

New Storage 1.0 - 1.0 - 

Dead Storage 0.35 0.07 0.40 0.02 

Available Storage(1) 1.15 0.44 1.21 0.80 

Required Storage(1) 0.77 0.64 1.10 0.60 

Storage 
Surplus/(Deficit)(2) 

0.38 (0.20) 0.11 0.20 

Notes: 
(1) Includes Future Shelton Hills Development Reservoir. 
(2) At 20 psi. 

As shown in Table 5.10, the Angleside PZ will have a surplus storage of 0.38 MG. This surplus can 
be shared with the High School/Capitol Hill PZs though a pressure reducing valve (PRV) (to the 
High School PZ) and the Capitol Hill Pump Station (PS). This strategy will allow the 
High School/Capitol Hill PZ to have sufficient storage available, instead of constructing an 
additional new reservoir. 

5.6   Hydraulic Model Update and Calibration 

The City’s hydraulic model is the primary tool for evaluating the City’s distribution system. The 
model evaluates how the City’s water infrastructure handles future demands and verifies that 
recommended improvements will eliminate system deficiencies. 

As part of this Plan, the City’s Innovyze H20 Map hydraulic model was converted to the GIS-
based Innovyze InfoWater hydraulic model. The hydraulic model was then updated and 
calibrated. Pipes in the hydraulic model were updated based on comments from the City. A 
marked-up version of the City’s water map was provided on November 6, 2018 and is included in 
Appendix 5A.  

5.6.1   Hydraulic Model Calibration Overview and Methodology 

Calibration is the process of comparing model simulation results to actual field data and making 
corrections and adjustments to the model to achieve a loose agreement between model 
predictions and field measured data. This section describes the hydraulic model calibration 
process and results. 

5.6.1.1   Model Calibration Overview 

The purpose of the water system hydraulic model is to estimate, or predict, how the water 
system will respond under a given set of conditions. One way to test the accuracy of the 
hydraulic model is to create a set of known conditions in the water system and then compare the 
results observed in the field against the results of the hydraulic model simulation using the same 
conditions. Data obtained from the field tests can be used to determine appropriate roughness 
coefficients for each pipeline, as roughness coefficient can vary with age, pipe material, and 
construction quality.  



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 5 | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

5-14 | JULY 2021  

5.6.1.2   Hydrant Flow Test Calibration Overview 

During ADD conditions, roughness coefficients have a relatively small effect on operation of the 
distribution system due to low velocities. As flows increase in the system on higher demand days 
or during fire flows, velocities within pipelines increase leading to higher system head losses. 

The hydrant flow tests stress the distribution system by creating a differential between the HGL 
at the point of hydrant flow and the system HGL at neighboring hydrants. This HGL differential 
increases the effect of the roughness coefficients on system losses. The model is calibrated by 
simulating the hydrant flow test and adjusting settings and parameters to match the field 
measured pressures under similar demand and system boundary conditions. For the monitoring 
hydrants, the results are considered acceptable if model pressures are within 10 feet of 
pressure (4.3 psi) or have a 10 percent difference to both the static and residual field data. Model 
pressures within 5 ft of pressure or 5 percent of the field measurements are considered very 
good. 

The Hazen-Williams roughness coefficient, or C-factor, is a function of pipeline material, 
diameter, and age. Hydrant test calibration refines the initial estimation of the value of 
roughness coefficients that best represent current conditions within the City’s distribution 
system. The roughness coefficients should be adjusted only within the accepted roughness 
coefficient range of 80 < C < 130. 

A single static pressure scenario was created in the model. For each hydrant flow test, a residual 
pressure scenario was also created in the hydraulic model. Each residual pressure scenario 
comprises of a different demands dataset in order to produce the model conditions similar to the 
field conditions during each hydrant flow test.  

5.6.1.3   Hydrant Flow Test Data  

The City conducted a hydrant flow test program throughout the entire system on June 20, 2017 
in order to gather recent and detailed information for calibration of the updated hydraulic 
model. The City conducted six flow tests in all five of the system’s pressure zones. Typically, 
when conducting hydrant flow tests, there should be a minimum 10 psi pressure drop (static 
pressure minus residual pressure) to assist in calibration. Values less than this are within the 
range of error seen in a planning-level model. However, a 10 psi pressure drop is difficult to 
achieve for the City due to the redundant nature of the City’s distribution system.  

Figure 5.5 shows the locations of all hydrant flow tests performed in the distribution system. 
Appendix 5A documents the complete hydrant flow test program and test report and system 
operating data. 

5.6.1.4   Hydrant Flow Test Calibration Results 

Calibration to hydrant flow tests is conducted individually in order to specifically represent the 
conditions of the system at the time of the test. Therefore, numerous simulation are performed 
during the calibration phase. Adjustments are made to the model between runs to minimize the 
difference between the model and the field-measured results. Supervisory control and data 
acquisition (SCADA) data on reservoir levels, pump stations, and inlet flows are available in 
Appendix 5A. 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 5 | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | 5-15 

The results of the calibration as summarized in Table 5.11 and Figure 5.6. Figure 5.6 summarizes 
all calibration point results on a 1 to 1 plot. Discussion from the hydrant test calibration results 
are as follows: 

• Hydrant Test 1: The residual pressure differences for hydrant MV277 are most likely due 
to hydrant losses. Recorded pressures increased during flow test for hydrant WV279 so 
the results should be ignored. 

• Hydrant Test 4: Field data matches better if two pumps are running at the 
Capitol Hill PS. SCADA data indicates only one pump was running during this test. 

• Hydrant Test 6: The pressures at hydrant AS021 appear to be a misread as the pressure 
are impossible for this area. The pressure losses for hydrant AS019 are most likely due to 
hydrant losses. 

As shown in Figure 5.6, the model was calibrated within the +/-10 psi threshold for static 
calibration results, with the exception of the results for hydrant AS021.  

 



UT

UT

UT

UT

UT

"=)

"=)
"=)

"=)!ã

!ã!ã

"b )

"b )

"b )

"b ) "b )

"b )

"b )

"b )"b )

"b )
"b )

"b )

"b )

"b )
"b )

Well 3

Well 1

Well 4
Mt. View Reservoir
(0.61 MG)

Angleside Reservoir
(0.50 MG)

High School
Reservoir (0.51 MG)

Capitol Hill
Reservoir (0.22 MG)

Upper Mt. View Elevated
Reservoir(0.41 MG)

1S
T

RAILROAD

ISLAND LAKE

DEARBORN

ARCADIA

HARVARD

7T
H

16
TH

H
U

LB
E

R
T

K

SANDERSON

SHELTON MATLOCK
FAIRMOUNT

WALKER PARK

BR
O

C
KD

A
LE

BATSTONE CUT OFF

C

E

NORTHCLIFF

11
TH

9T
H

FR
O

N
T

BE
A

R

F

7T
H

J

A
B

H

G
D

THOMAS

KINEO

13
TH

PU
G

E
T

FRANKLIN

ALDER

PINE

BO
U

N
D

AR
Y

DICKINSON

LAKE
M

ADISO
N

SUMMIT

PA
C

IF
IC

W
ASHING

TO
N

SENTRY
GRANT

EUCLID

AL
D

ER

ALDERMANOR

LITTLE BEAR

HA
W

TH
ORN

HIGHLAND

DAYTON AIRPORT

TURNER

SANJOAQUIN

ALPINE

EV
A

N
MILL CREEK

CL
O

Q
UA

LL
UM

EX
P

O
R

T

M
IL

LW
R

IG
H

T

SHELTON

SPRINGS

PEACOCK HILL

ST
AT

E 
R

O
UT

E 
3

HICKAM

WALLACE KNEELAND

SHADOW
VALLEY

PARK

SHELTON VALLEY

U
S 

H
IG

H
W

AY
 1

01

JOH N S PR AIRIE

FAIRGROUNDS

C
AP

IT
A

L 
H

IL
L

DE
EG

AN

GD G OOSE LAK E MA IN
LIN

E

Te
xtOLY

MPIC
 H

W
Y

£¤101

I s l a n d
L a k e

O a k l a n d  B a y

Angleside Reservoir BPS

Angleside BPS

Mt View PS

Capital Hill
BPS

Last Revised: March 29, 2021 pw://IO-PW-INT.Carollo.local:Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Shelton/10669A00/Data/GIS/Fig5.5_HydrantFlowTestLocations.mxd

O
0 0.50.25

Miles

Disclaimer: Features shown in this 
figure are for planning purposes and 
represent approximate locations. 
Engineering and/or survey accuracy 
is not implied.

Data Sources: City of Shelton. 
Washington State Dept. of 
Natural Resources

 Figure 5.5  Hydrant Flow Test Locations

WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 5 | CITY OF SHELTON

Legend
Fire Hydrant Tests

"b ) Valve

!ã Well

"=) Pump Station

"=) Inactive Pump Station

UT Reservoir

Pipeline

Streets

Shelton Urban Growth Area

Future Service Area

Parcels

Water Bodies

Pressure Zone
Angleside Zone

Capitol Hill Zone

High School Zone

Mountain View Zone

Upper Mountain View Zone

Hydrant Test #1

Hydrant Test #3

Hydrant Test #2

Hydrant Test #4

Hydrant Tests #6 & #7

Hydrant Tests #6 & #7

Test Angleside BPS
(Record Pressure Downstream

when Running)



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 5 | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | 5-17 

Table 5.11 Calibration Summary Results 

Test No. 
Hydrant 
Number 

Model 
Junction 

ID 
El. (ft) 

Flow 
(gpm) 

Field Results Model Results Comparison 
Static 

Pressure 
(psi) 

Residual 
Pressure 

(psi) 

Static 
Pressure 

(psi) 

Residual 
Pressure 

(psi) 

Static 
Pressure 
Diff (psi) 

Residual 
Pressure 
Diff (psi) 

Static 
Pressure 
Error (%) 

Residual 
Pressure 
Error (%) 

1 

MV278 1659 183.15 1,060 66 50 66 61 0 -11 0% -21% 

MV277 J72 165.71 0 65 60 68 63 -3 -3 -5% -5% 

MV279 J74 147.15 0 62 69 64 59 -2 10 -3% 14% 

2 

MV247 J76 129.86 1,060 64 52 68 60 -4 -8 -6% -16% 

MV246 J78 117.8 0 63 58 68 60 -5 -2 -8% -4% 

MV249 J80 154.89 0 65 58 68 60 -3 -2 -4% -4% 

3 

MV057 1859 362.9 1,130 58 50 61 55 -3 -5 -6% -10% 

MV056 J84 349.89 0 58 52 61 55 -3 -3 -5% -7% 

MV058 J82 357.79 0 59 52 62 56 -3 -4 -4% -7% 

4 

CH012 24 137.37 1,060 73 45 75 37 -2 8 -3% 18% 

CH010 J86 146.91 0 72 65 75 47 -3 18 -4% 27% 

CH013 22 138.03 0 79 52 78 40 1 12 1% 24% 

5 

DT102 J88 160.19 1,060 60 42 60 46 0 -4 0% -8% 

DT100 694 146.24 0 68 60 68 58 0 2 0% 3% 

DT105 J90 130.62 0 58 42 59 45 -1 -3 -2% -6% 

6 

AS020 J92 179.66 920 39 30 38 35 1 -5 3% -17% 

AS019 472 170.83 0 32 32 27 26 5 6 15% 20% 

AS021 864 159.59 0 61 60 32 30 29 30 47% 50% 
Note:  
Abbreviations: ID – identification; El – elevation. 

 



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 5 | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

5-18 | JULY 2021  

 

Figure 5.6 Static Calibration Results 

R² = 0.9864

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

0 20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160

M
od

el
 O

ut
pu

t P
re

ss
ur

es
 (p

si
)

Field Measured Pressures (psi)

Static Calibration Results

+4.3 psi Threshold

-4.3 psi Threshold

Linear (Static Calibration Results)



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 5 | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | 5-19 

5.6.2   Model Recommendations 

The calibrated hydraulic model provides an excellent tool for evaluating the distribution system. 
The model should be updated periodically to maintain reasonable prediction of water system 
conditions. An update would include incorporating main replacements and improvements, 
adding new service areas, incorporating operational changes to the reservoirs and pumps, 
adjusting PRV settings, and adjusting demands to match demand projections and land use. As 
part of this periodic update, hydrant flow tests should be conducted to verify the accuracy of the 
model and aid in monitoring system changes. Additionally, fire flow tests should be conducted to 
validate model results for new developments in areas with low pressures or high head loss. 

5.7   Distribution System Analysis 

The hydraulic model was used to evaluate the distribution system under future demand 
conditions. The distribution system was evaluated against four performance criteria. Areas not 
meeting the criteria are considered deficient and system improvements are identified to achieve 
the required level or service. 

5.7.1   Key Hydraulic Model Scenarios 

The hydraulic model scenarios that were used to identify distribution system deficiencies 
include: 

• 2021 ADD: used to determine maximum pressures at junctions with demands. 
• 2041 MDD: used to determine minimum pressures at junctions with demands and 

maximum velocities in pipes. 
• 2041 MDD + Fire Flow: used to determine fire flow deficiencies at junctions with fire flow 

requirements. 

The demand allocation in the hydraulic model was based on projected demands summarized in 
Section 2.5. Diurnal demand patterns used in the hydraulic model can be found in Appendix 5A. 

5.7.2   Model Assumptions for Improvement Projects 

The following improvement projects and developments were assumed to be online by the 
2041 planning year and were included in the hydraulic model 2041 scenarios (Figures 5.8 through 
Figure 5.12 show these improvement projects as future infrastructure in orange): 

• Mt. View Ground Storage Tank. 
• Upper Mt. View BPS. 
• The entire Shelton Hills Development, including the Reservoir and PRVs.  

It should be noted that the recommended new well and new Angleside Reservoir were not 
included in the hydraulic model because the potential locations are not currently known. Also, 
since the Angleside Reservoir PS is only able to operate manually, it is assumed to be offline for 
all model scenarios. 



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 5 | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

5-20 | JULY 2021  

5.7.3   Evaluation Criteria 

Chapter 2 discussed system policies and criteria in detail. Key parameters evaluated with the 
hydraulic model include the following: 

• High ADD Pressure: identify pressures greater than 80 psi during ADD to recommend 
potential needs for individual PRVs to customers. 

• Low PHD Pressures: minimum allowed pressure is 30 psi during PHD. 
• High Velocity under PHD Conditions: identify pipes with maximum velocity greater than 

8 feet per second (ft/s) (Likely pipe to upsize if future deficiencies identified in the area). 
• Available fire flow: residual pressure at hydrants during MDD plus fire flow must remain 

above 20 psi. 

5.7.4   Analysis 

This section will summarize the deficiencies identified during the distribution system analysis. 

5.7.4.1   Maximum pressures during ADD 

The model was run in extended period simulation (EPS) during ADD conditions to evaluate the 
maximum pressures in the system for the near-term and long-term planning years. This 
approach allows the sources, pumps, and reservoirs to operate as their SCADA and controls are 
set. 

Using the criteria presented in Section 5.7.3, the hydraulic model provides maximum pressures 
under ADD conditions. Figure 5.7 shows the nodes with maximum pressures outside of the 
planning criteria for 2021, which represents the worst-case scenario for high pressures. Figure 5.7 
is shown to aid the City in operations and future development. No recommended improvements 
are made based on high system pressures. 

5.7.4.2   Minimum Pressures during PHD 

The model was run in EPS during MDD conditions to evaluate the minimum pressures in the 
system for the near-term and long-term planning years.  

Using the criteria presented in Section 5.7.3, the hydraulic model provides minimum pressures 
under MDD conditions. Figure 5.8 shows the nodes with minimum pressures lower than 30 psi 
during PHD in 2041, which represents the worst-case scenario for low pressures (i.e. the most 
headloss in the distribution system). The figure also shows minimum pressures between 30 psi 
and 40 psi for reference. 

5.7.4.3   Maximum Velocity during MDD 

The City’s goal is to maintain velocities under 8 ft/s in distribution pipes during PHD. Figure 5.9 
shows that no pipes exceed the velocity criteria in 2041, which represents the worst-case 
scenario for velocities. The figure shows velocities between 4 ft/s and 8 ft/s for reference. There 
are no recommended improvements based on velocity deficiencies. 

5.7.4.4   Residual Pressures during MDD + FF 

Fire flow (FF) demand is the quantity of water required in general by each customer type for 
firefighting as defined by City staff in coordination with the Fire Marshall. During development 
review, the Fire Marshall provides a specific fire flow that may differ from the general amount. If 
greater than planned, then the developer must work with the City to provide sufficient fire flow. 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 5 | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | 5-21 

Firefighting often places the largest demands on a water system because a high volume of water 
must be supplied over a short time period. The required fire flow and duration of the fire flow in 
the hydraulic model assigned according to land use designation. During any fire event, the 
minimum pressure must be greater than 20 psi throughout the distribution system per the 
Washington Administrative Code (WAC). Figure 5.10 shows the figure flow requirements at 
junctions throughout the system according to land use. Only junctions near hydrants were 
assigned a fire flow.  

Fire flows are typically the largest flows a system experiences and often a major factor in pipe 
sizing and network configurations. The model was used to perform a general system-wide fire 
analysis for all system nodes with service connections for 20 psi in both 2031 and 2041. 
Figure 5.11 shows nodes that do not meet the 20 psi requirement under fire flow conditions in 
the 2041 planning year, which represents the worst-case scenario for fire flow conditions. 

The City can use the updated and calibrated hydraulic model to evaluate residual pressures at 
future developments to determine if improvements are needed before development begins. The 
City can also use Figure 5.11 to evaluate the location of a future development to determine if the 
location is within an area with low residual pressures. If the proposed development is in an area 
with low residual pressures, distribution system improvements may be necessary before 
development occurs. 



UT

UT

UT

UT

UT

"=)

"=)
"=)

"=)!ã

!ã!ã

"b )

"b )

"b )

"b ) "b )

"b )

"b )

"b )"b )

"b )
"b )

"b )

"b )

"b )
"b )

Well 3

Well 1

Well 4
Mt. View Reservoir
(0.61 MG)

Angleside Reservoir
(0.50 MG)

High School
Reservoir (0.51 MG)

Capitol Hill
Reservoir (0.22 MG)

Upper Mt. View Elevated
Reservoir(0.41 MG)

1S
T

RAILROAD

ISLAND LAKE

DEARBORN

ARCADIA

HARVARD

7T
H

16
TH

H
U

LB
E

R
T

K

SANDERSON

SHELTON MATLOCK
FAIRMOUNT

WALKER PARK

BR
O

C
KD

A
LE

BATSTONE CUT OFF

C

E

NORTHCLIFF

11
TH

9T
H

FR
O

N
T

BE
A

R

F

7T
H

J

A
B

H

G
D

THOMAS

KINEO

13
TH

PU
G

E
T

FRANKLIN

ALDER

PINE

BO
U

N
D

AR
Y

DICKINSON

LAKE
M

ADISO
N

SUMMIT

PA
C

IF
IC

W
ASHING

TO
N

SENTRY
GRANT

EUCLID

AL
D

ER

ALDERMANOR

LITTLE BEAR

HA
W

TH
ORN

HIGHLAND

DAYTON AIRPORT

TURNER

SANJOAQUIN

ALPINE

EV
A

N
MILL CREEK

CL
O

Q
UA

LL
UM

EX
P

O
R

T

M
IL

LW
R

IG
H

T

SHELTON

SPRINGS

PEACOCK HILL

ST
AT

E 
R

O
UT

E 
3

HICKAM

WALLACE KNEELAND

SHADOW
VALLEY

PARK

SHELTON VALLEY

U
S 

H
IG

H
W

AY
 1

01

JOH N S PR AIRIE

FAIRGROUNDS

C
AP

IT
A

L 
H

IL
L

DE
EG

AN

GD G OOSE LAK E MA IN
LIN

E

Te
xtOLY

MPIC
 H

W
Y

£¤101

I s l a n d
L a k e

O a k l a n d  B a y

Angleside Reservoir BPS

Angleside BPS

Mt View PS

Capital Hill
BPS

Last Revised: March 29, 2021 pw://IO-PW-INT.Carollo.local:Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Shelton/10669A00/Data/GIS/Fig5.5_HydrantFlowTestLocations.mxd

O
0 0.50.25

Miles

Disclaimer: Features shown in this 
figure are for planning purposes and 
represent approximate locations. 
Engineering and/or survey accuracy 
is not implied.

Data Sources: City of Shelton. 
Washington State Dept. of 
Natural Resources

 Figure 5.7  Maximum Pressure during 2021 ADD Conditions

WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 5 | CITY OF SHELTON

Legend
Maximum Pressure

80 - 110 psi

110 - 130 psi

> 130 psi

"b ) Valve

!ã Well

"=) Pump Station

"=) Inactive Pump Station

UT Reservoir

Pipeline

Streets

Shelton Urban Growth Area

Future Service Area

Parcels

Water Bodies

Pressure Zone
Angleside Zone

Capitol Hill Zone

High School Zone

Mountain View Zone

Upper Mountain View Zone



UT

UT

UT

UT

UT

"=)

"=)
"=)

"=)
UT"=)

!ã

!ã!ã

"b )

"b )

"b )

"b ) "b )

"b )

"b )

"b )"b )

"b )
"b )

"b )

"b )

"b )
"b )

Well 3

Well 1

Well 4
Mt. View Reservoir
(0.61 MG)

Angleside Reservoir
(0.50 MG)

High School
Reservoir (0.51 MG)

Capitol Hill
Reservoir (0.22 MG)

Upper Mt. View Elevated
Reservoir(0.41 MG)

1S
T

RAILROAD

ISLAND LAKE

DEARBORN

ARCADIA

HARVARD

7T
H

16
TH

H
U

LB
E

R
T

K

SANDERSON

SHELTON MATLOCK
FAIRMOUNT

WALKER PARK

BR
O

C
KD

A
LE

BATSTONE CUT OFF

C

E

NORTHCLIFF

11
TH

9T
H

FR
O

N
T

BE
A

R

F

7T
H

J

A
B

H

G
D

THOMAS

KINEO

13
TH

PU
G

E
T

FRANKLIN

ALDER

PINE

BO
U

N
D

AR
Y

DICKINSON

LAKE
M

ADISO
N

SUMMIT

PA
C

IF
IC

W
ASHING

TO
N

SENTRY
GRANT

EUCLID

AL
D

ER

ALDERMANOR

LITTLE BEAR

HA
W

TH
ORN

HIGHLAND

DAYTON AIRPORT

TURNER

SANJOAQUIN

ALPINE

EV
A

N
MILL CREEK

CL
O

Q
UA

LL
UM

EX
P

O
R

T

M
IL

LW
R

IG
H

T

SHELTON

SPRINGS

PEACOCK HILL

ST
AT

E 
R

O
UT

E 
3

HICKAM

WALLACE KNEELAND

SHADOW
VALLEY

PARK

SHELTON VALLEY

U
S 

H
IG

H
W

AY
 1

01

JOH N S PR AIRIE

FAIRGROUNDS

C
AP

IT
A

L 
H

IL
L

DE
EG

AN

GD G OOSE LAK E MA IN
LIN

E

Te
xtOLY

MPIC
 H

W
Y

£¤101

I s l a n d
L a k e

O a k l a n d  B a y

Angleside Reservoir BPS

New Upper
Mt. View BPS

Angleside BPS

Mt View PS

Capital Hill
BPS

New Mt. View
Reservoir (1.0 MG)

Last Revised: March 29, 2021 pw://IO-PW-INT.Carollo.local:Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Shelton/10669A00/Data/GIS/Fig5.5_HydrantFlowTestLocations.mxd

O
0 0.50.25

Miles

Disclaimer: Features shown in this 
figure are for planning purposes and
represent approximate locations. 
Engineering and/or survey accuracy
is not implied.

Data Sources: City of Shelton. 
Washington State Dept. of
Natural Resources

 Figure 5.8  Minimum Pressure during 2041 PHD Conditions

WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 5 | CITY OF SHELTON

Legend
Minimum Pressure

< 30 psi

30 - psi

Future Pipeline

"=) Future Pump Station

UT Future Reservoir

"b ) Valve

!ã Well

"=) Pump Station

"=) Inactive Pump Station

UT Reservoir

Pipeline

Streets

Shelton Urban Growth Area

Future Service Area

Parcels

Water Bodies

Pressure Zone
Angleside Zone

Capitol Hill Zone

High School Zone

Mountain View Zone

Upper Mountain View Zone



UT

UT

UT

UT

UT

"=)

"=)
"=)

"=)
UT"=)

!ã

!ã!ã

"b )

"b )

"b )

"b ) "b )

"b )

"b )

"b )"b )

"b )
"b )

"b )

"b )

"b )
"b )

Well 3

Well 1

Well 4
Mt. View Reservoir
(0.61 MG)

Angleside Reservoir
(0.50 MG)

High School
Reservoir (0.51 MG)

Capitol Hill
Reservoir (0.22 MG)

Upper Mt. View Elevated
Reservoir(0.41 MG)

1S
T

RAILROAD

ISLAND LAKE

DEARBORN

ARCADIA

HARVARD

7T
H

16
TH

H
U

LB
E

R
T

K

SANDERSON

SHELTON MATLOCK
FAIRMOUNT

WALKER PARK

BR
O

C
KD

A
LE

BATSTONE CUT OFF

C

E

NORTHCLIFF

11
TH

9T
H

FR
O

N
T

BE
A

R

F

7T
H

J

A
B

H

G
D

THOMAS

KINEO

13
TH

PU
G

E
T

FRANKLIN

ALDER

PINE

BO
U

N
D

AR
Y

DICKINSON

LAKE
M

ADISO
N

SUMMIT

PA
C

IF
IC

W
ASHING

TO
N

SENTRY
GRANT

EUCLID

AL
D

ER

ALDERMANOR

LITTLE BEAR

HA
W

TH
ORN

HIGHLAND

DAYTON AIRPORT

TURNER

SANJOAQUIN

ALPINE

EV
A

N
MILL CREEK

CL
O

Q
UA

LL
UM

EX
P

O
R

T

M
IL

LW
R

IG
H

T

SHELTON

SPRINGS

PEACOCK HILL

ST
AT

E 
R

O
UT

E 
3

HICKAM

WALLACE KNEELAND

SHADOW
VALLEY

PARK

SHELTON VALLEY

U
S 

H
IG

H
W

AY
 1

01

JOH N S PR AIRIE

FAIRGROUNDS

C
AP

IT
A

L 
H

IL
L

DE
EG

AN

GD G OOSE LAK E MA IN
LIN

E

Te
xtOLY

MPIC
 H

W
Y

£¤101

I s l a n d
L a k e

O a k l a n d  B a y

Angleside Reservoir BPS

New Upper
Mt. View BPS

Angleside BPS

Mt View PS

Capital Hill
BPS

New Mt. View
Reservoir (1.0 MG)

Last Revised: March 29, 2021 pw://IO-PW-INT.Carollo.local:Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Shelton/10669A00/Data/GIS/Fig5.5_HydrantFlowTestLocations.mxd

O
0 0.50.25

Miles

Disclaimer: Features shown in this 
figure are for planning purposes and 
represent approximate locations. 
Engineering and/or survey accuracy 
is not implied.

Data Sources: City of Shelton. 
Washington State Dept. of 
Natural Resources

 Figure 5.9  Maximum Velocity during 2041 MDD Conditions

WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 5 | CITY OF SHELTON

Legend
Maximum Velocity

4 - 8 ft/s
> 8 ft/s

"=) Future Pump Station

UT Future Reservoir

Future Pipeline

"b ) Valve

!ã Well

"=) Pump Station

"=) Inactive Pump Station

UT Reservoir

Pipeline

Streets

Shelton Urban Growth Area

Future Service Area

Parcels

Water Bodies

Pressure Zone
Angleside Zone

Capitol Hill Zone

High School Zone

Mountain View Zone

Upper Mountain View Zone



UT

UT

UT

UT

UT

"=)

"=)
"=)

"=)
UT"=)

!ã

!ã!ã

"b )

"b )

"b )

"b ) "b )

"b )

"b )

"b )"b )

"b )
"b )

"b )

"b )

"b )
"b )

Well 3

Well 1

Well 4
Mt. View Reservoir
(0.61 MG)

Angleside Reservoir
(0.50 MG)

High School
Reservoir (0.51 MG)

Capitol Hill
Reservoir (0.22 MG)

Upper Mt. View Elevated
Reservoir(0.41 MG)

1S
T

RAILROAD

ISLAND LAKE

DEARBORN

ARCADIA

HARVARD

7T
H

16
TH

H
U

LB
E

R
T

K

SANDERSON

SHELTON MATLOCK
FAIRMOUNT

WALKER PARK

BR
O

C
KD

A
LE

BATSTONE CUT OFF

C

E

NORTHCLIFF

11
TH

9T
H

FR
O

N
T

BE
A

R

F

7T
H

J

A
B

H

G
D

THOMAS

KINEO

13
TH

PU
G

E
T

FRANKLIN

ALDER

PINE

BO
U

N
D

AR
Y

DICKINSON

LAKE
M

ADISO
N

SUMMIT

PA
C

IF
IC

W
ASHING

TO
N

SENTRY
GRANT

EUCLID

AL
D

ER

ALDERMANOR

LITTLE BEAR

HA
W

TH
ORN

HIGHLAND

DAYTON AIRPORT

TURNER

SANJOAQUIN

ALPINE

EV
A

N
MILL CREEK

CL
O

Q
UA

LL
UM

EX
P

O
R

T

M
IL

LW
R

IG
H

T

SHELTON

SPRINGS

PEACOCK HILL

ST
AT

E 
R

O
UT

E 
3

HICKAM

WALLACE KNEELAND

SHADOW
VALLEY

PARK

SHELTON VALLEY

U
S 

H
IG

H
W

AY
 1

01

JOH N S PR AIRIE

FAIRGROUNDS

C
AP

IT
A

L 
H

IL
L

DE
EG

AN

GD G OOSE LAK E MA IN
LIN

E

Te
xtOLY

MPIC
 H

W
Y

£¤101

I s l a n d
L a k e

O a k l a n d  B a y

Angleside Reservoir BPS

New Upper
Mt. View BPS

Angleside BPS

Mt View PS

Capital Hill
BPS

New Mt. View
Reservoir (1.0 MG)

Last Revised: March 30, 2021 pw://IO-PW-INT.Carollo.local:Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Shelton/10669A00/Data/GIS/Fig5.5_HydrantFlowTestLocations.mxd

O
0 0.50.25

Miles

Disclaimer: Features shown in this 
figure are for planning purposes and 
represent approximate locations. 
Engineering and/or survey accuracy 
is not implied.

Data Sources: City of Shelton. 
Washington State Dept. of 
Natural Resources

 Figure 5.10  Fire Flow Requirements

WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 5 | CITY OF SHELTON

Legend
Fire Flow Requirement (gpm)

750

1000

1500

2000

Future Pipeline

"=) Future Pump Station

UT Future Reservoir

"b ) Valve

!ã Well

"=) Pump Station

"=) Inactive Pump Station

UT Reservoir

Pipeline

Streets

Shelton Urban Growth Area

Future Service Area

Parcels

Water Bodies

Pressure Zone
Angleside Zone

Capitol Hill Zone

High School Zone

Mountain View Zone

Upper Mountain View Zone



UT

UT

UT

UT

UT

"=)

"=)
"=)

"=)
UT"=)

!ã

!ã!ã

"b )

"b )

"b )

"b ) "b )

"b )

"b )

"b )"b )

"b )
"b )

"b )

"b )

"b )
"b )

Well 3

Well 1

Well 4
Mt. View Reservoir
(0.61 MG)

Angleside Reservoir
(0.50 MG)

High School
Reservoir (0.51 MG)

Capitol Hill
Reservoir (0.22 MG)

Upper Mt. View Elevated
Reservoir(0.41 MG)

1S
T

RAILROAD

ISLAND LAKE

DEARBORN

ARCADIA

HARVARD

7T
H

16
TH

H
U

LB
E

R
T

K

SANDERSON

SHELTON MATLOCK
FAIRMOUNT

WALKER PARK

BR
O

C
KD

A
LE

BATSTONE CUT OFF

C

E

NORTHCLIFF

11
TH

9T
H

FR
O

N
T

BE
A

R

F

7T
H

J

A
B

H

G
D

THOMAS

KINEO

13
TH

PU
G

E
T

FRANKLIN

ALDER

PINE

BO
U

N
D

AR
Y

DICKINSON

LAKE
M

ADISO
N

SUMMIT

PA
C

IF
IC

W
ASHING

TO
N

SENTRY
GRANT

EUCLID

AL
D

ER

ALDERMANOR

LITTLE BEAR

HA
W

TH
ORN

HIGHLAND

DAYTON AIRPORT

TURNER

SANJOAQUIN

ALPINE

EV
A

N
MILL CREEK

CL
O

Q
UA

LL
UM

EX
P

O
R

T

M
IL

LW
R

IG
H

T

SHELTON

SPRINGS

PEACOCK HILL

ST
AT

E 
R

O
UT

E 
3

HICKAM

WALLACE KNEELAND

SHADOW
VALLEY

PARK

SHELTON VALLEY

U
S 

H
IG

H
W

AY
 1

01

JOH N S PR AIRIE

FAIRGROUNDS

C
AP

IT
A

L 
H

IL
L

DE
EG

AN

GD G OOSE LAK E MA IN
LIN

E

Te
xtOLY

MPIC
 H

W
Y

£¤101

I s l a n d
L a k e

O a k l a n d  B a y

Angleside Reservoir BPS

New Upper
Mt. View BPS

Angleside BPS

Mt View PS

Capital Hill
BPS

New Mt. View
Reservoir (1.0 MG)

Last Revised: March 30, 2021 pw://IO-PW-INT.Carollo.local:Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Shelton/10669A00/Data/GIS/Fig5.5_HydrantFlowTestLocations.mxd

O
0 0.50.25

Miles

Disclaimer: Features shown in this 
figure are for planning purposes and 
represent approximate locations. 
Engineering and/or survey accuracy 
is not implied.

Data Sources: City of Shelton. 
Washington State Dept. of 
Natural Resources

 Figure 5.11 Residual Pressure during 2041 MDD + FF Conditions

WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 5 | CITY OF SHELTON

Legend
Residual Pressure < 20 psi

Future Pipeline

"=) Future Pump Station

UT Future Reservoir

"b ) Valve

!ã Well

"=) Pump Station

"=) Inactive Pump Station

UT Reservoir

Pipeline

Streets

Shelton Urban Growth Area

Future Service Area

Parcels

Water Bodies

Pressure Zone
Angleside Zone

Capitol Hill Zone

High School Zone

Mountain View Zone

Upper Mountain View Zone



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 5 | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | 5-27 

5.7.5   Recommended Improvements 

This section summarizes the recommended improvements based on deficiencies identified 
during the distribution system analysis. 

5.7.5.1   Recommended Improvements for Low Pressure Deficiencies  

There are customers in the Capitol Hill, Mt. View, and Angleside PZs that have low pressures 
during PHDs, as seen in Figure 5.8. The low pressures are largely due to high elevations, with 
limited effects from distribution system head losses. Therefore, to increase pressures, 
improvement projects in these three pressure zones are recommended.  

Figure 5.12 shows the areas that have high customer elevation. It is recommended that the City 
does not add new customers to the water system in the areas shown in Figure 5.12, without 
addressing the low pressures.  

The two recommended pressure zone projects to address low pressures in the Mt. View and 
Angleside PZs during peak hour demands include the following: 

• Mt. View PZ Pressure Improvements: This project is to rezone a section within the 
Mt. View PZ to the Upper Mt. View PZ to provide peak hour demand pressures greater 
than 30 psi to all customers. The transmission of the Upper Mt. View PZ supply will 
require 3000 linear feet (LF) of 12-inch pipe from well 3/4 site, south on N Shelton 
Springs Rd to N 13th St, and east on W Alpine Way to Alpine Dr. 

• Angleside PZ Pressure Improvements: This project is to add small jockey pumps to 
two areas of the pressure zone with high elevations to provide domestic flows at 
pressure greater than 30 psi during peak hour demands. Fire flows deficiencies for these 
two areas will be addressed in Section 5.7.5.2. The two areas identified are: Vista View, 
and S 16th St/Eaglewood Way. 

To address low pressures in the Capitol Hill PZ, it is recommended that the Capitol Hill PZ be 
converted to a closed pressure zone. To convert the existing open pressure zone to a closed 
pressure zone, the Capitol Hill Reservoir would be decommissioned by 2041 and a new 
Capitol Hill BPS would supply customers at a higher hydraulic grade. This project requires 
increasing the BPS capacity to meet the peak hour demands and fire flows of approximately 
1,750 gpm. This project will also address storage deficiencies in the Capitol Hill PZ identified in 
Section 5.5.4. The High School PZ will feed this new closed pressure zone and will provide FSS 
via the surplus storage in Angleside PZ as outlined in Section 5.5.5.  

5.7.5.2   Recommended Improvements for Fire Flow Deficiencies 

As seen in Figure 5.11, the fire flow deficiencies in the 2041 planning year mostly correspond to 
areas with low PHD pressures or areas on dead end pipes. First, it is recommended that the City 
work with the Fire Department to identify ways to provide fire flow in the interim until any 
recommended improvements are constructed. This may require the City to paint, move, and 
hood/remove fire hydrants as agreed with the Fire Department.  

It should be noted that a field investigation by the City identified some hydrants that were not 
commonly tested due to lack of stormwater control, therefore, stormwater improvements may 
also assist with long-term maintenance of hydrants.  



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 5 | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

5-28 | JULY 2021  

The following projects are recommended to address the figure flow deficiencies identified in 
Figure 5.11: 

• W Railroad Ave Pipe Upsize: Upsize approximately 1,700 ft of 8-inch pipe to 12-inch pipe 
on W Railroad Ave in the High School PZ. This project is recommended to address fire 
flow deficiencies that are due to 1,500 gpm fire flow demands on long, dead end pipe. 

• E Pine St Pipe Upsize: Upsize approximately 3,200 ft of 6-inch pipe to 12-inch pipe on 
E Pine St in the High School PZ. This project is recommended to address fire flow 
deficiencies that are due to 1,500 gpm fire flow demand on long, small diameter, dead 
end pipe. 

• Alleghany St Pipe Upsize: Upsize approximately 230 ft of 6-inch pipe to 8-inch pipe on 
Alleghany St in the High School PZ. This project is recommended to address fire flow 
deficiencies that are due to 1,500 gpm fire flow demand on small diameter, dead end 
pipe. 

• Capitol Hill Hydrant Lateral Relocation: Move hydrant lateral to address fire flow 
deficiency at pressure zone boundary between the High School and Capitol Hill PZ. The 
deficiency is due to 750 gpm fire flow demand at hydrant with high elevation in the 
High School PZ.  

• S 16th St Pipe Project: Upsize/Install approximately 800 ft of 8-inch pipe on S 16th St 
from May Ave north to end of street in the Angleside PZ. This project is recommended 
to address 750 gpm fire flow demand at hydrants with high elevations in the 
Angleside PZ. 

To address the fire flow deficiencies in the Angleside PZ, an Angleside Reservoir PS Control 
Study and Improvements project is recommended. Higher pressures are needed during fire flow 
to mitigate deficiencies in high elevation areas of the Angleside PZ. Currently, the Angleside 
Reservoir PS is run manually. The recommended project is to construct control improvements to 
allow automated use of the City’s Angleside Reservoir PS. The Reservoir PS may not 
automatically start for low flow hydrant if available flow is below control trigger. These hydrants 
will need to be addressed separately with the Fire Department. 

This project will require new control valves, variable frequency drives (VFDs), and site piping at 
the Angleside Reservoir PS site, and the Angleside BPS as needed. Figure 5.13 shows a 
schematic of the recommended infrastructure. There are two recommended, automated control 
modes: high reservoir outflow (fire flow) and low reservoir level (emergency supply). The 
simplified high reservoir outflow controls are as follows: 

• Normal Conditions: During normal conditions, the recirculation valve is passively closed, 
the inflow control valve is off, the Reservoir PS is off, and the isolation valve is open.  

• Switching from Normal Conditions to Fire Flow Conditions: High flow is detected at flow 
meter, the Reservoir PS turns on (operates on downstream pressure), and the isolation 
valve closes. 

• During Fire Flow Conditions: If high pressure at Angleside BPS is detected, the 
recirculation valve opens.  

• Switching from Fire Flow Conditions to Fill Conditions: If the Reservoir PS produces less 
flow (PS operates on downstream pressure), normal flow is detected, the Reservoir PS 
turns off, and the Angleside BPS meets demand. 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 5 | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | 5-29 

• Reservoir Fill Conditions: The inlet valve opens to fill the Reservoir, the Angleside BPS 
meets demand and fills the Reservoir. 

• Reservoir Fill to Normal Conditions: The inlet valve closes, and the isolation valve opens 
when an acceptable level is reached in the Reservoir. 

During low reservoir levels without high flows (emergency conditions), the simplified PS controls 
are as follows: a low level is detected in the Reservoirs, the inlet valve closes and the Reservoir PS 
turns on. The Reservoir PS shut down process is the same as with the fire flow controls. 

 



UT

UT

UT

UT

UT

"=)"=)

"=)

UT"=)

!ã

!ã!ã

"b )

"b )

"b )

"b ) "b )

"b )

"b )

"b )"b )

"b )
"b )

"b )

"b )

"b )
"b )

Well 3

Well 1

Well 4
Mt. View Reservoir
(0.61 MG)

Angleside Reservoir
(0.50 MG)

High School
Reservoir (0.51 MG)

Capitol Hill
Reservoir (0.22 MG)

Upper Mt. View Elevated
Reservoir(0.41 MG)

1S
T

RAILROAD

ISLAND LAKE

DEARBORN

ARCADIA

HARVARD

7T
H

16
TH

H
U

LB
E

R
T

K

SANDERSON

SHELTON MATLOCK
FAIRMOUNT

WALKER PARK

BR
O

C
KD

A
LE

BATSTONE CUT OFF

C

E

NORTHCLIFF

11
TH

9T
H

FR
O

N
T

BE
A

R

F

7T
H

J

A
B

H

G
D

THOMAS

KINEO

13
TH

PU
G

E
T

FRANKLIN

ALDER

PINE

BO
U

N
D

AR
Y

DICKINSON

LAKE

M
ADISO

N

SUMMIT

PA
C

IF
IC

W
ASHING

TO
N

SENTRY
GRANT

EUCLID

AL
D

ER

ALDERMANOR

LITTLE BEAR

HA
W

TH
ORN

HIGHLAND

DAYTON AIRPORT

TURNER

SANJOAQUIN

ALPINE

EV
A

N

MILL CREEK

CL
O

Q
UA

LL
UM

EX
P

O
R

T

M
IL

LW
R

IG
H

T

SHELTON

SPRINGS

PEACOCK HILL

ST
AT

E 
R

O
UT

E 
3

HICKAM

WALLACE KNEELAND

SHADOW
VALLEY

PARK

SHELTON VALLEY

U
S 

H
IG

H
W

AY
 1

01

JOH N S P RAIRIE

FAIRGROUNDS

C
AP

IT
A

L 
H

IL
L

DE
EG

AN

GD GOOSE L AK E M A IN
LIN

E

Te
xtOLY

MPIC
 H

W
Y

£¤101

New Mt. View 
Reservoir (1.0 MG)

New Upper 
Mt. View BPS

Angleside BPS

Mt View PS

Capital Hill
BPS

Last Revised: April 05, 2021 pw://IO-PW-INT.Carollo.local:Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Shelton/10669A00/Data/GIS/Fig5.13_HighestRecCustomerELEV.mxd

O

0 0.50.25
Miles

Disclaimer: Features shown in this 
figure are for planning purposes and 
represent approximate locations. 
Engineering and/or survey accuracy 
is not implied.

Data Sources: City of Shelton. 
Washington State Dept. of 
Natural Resources

 Figure 5.12  Areas above Highest Recommended Customer Elevation

WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 5 | CITY OF SHELTON

Legend

Pressure Zone

Area Above Highest Recommended
Customer Elevation

Future Pipeline

"=) Future Pump Station

UT Future Reservoir

"b ) Valve

!ã Well

"=) Pump Station

UT Reservoir

Pipeline

Streets

Shelton Urban Growth Area

Parcels

Water Bodies

Angleside Zone

Capitol Hill Zone

High School Zone

Mountain View Zone

Upper Mountain View Pressure Zone

Future Service Area



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 5 | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | 5-31 

 

Figure 5.13 Angleside Reservoir PS Control Improvements Diagram 

5.8   Limiting Capacity Analysis 

The limiting capacity of the City’s physical water system was determined for the 2041 planning 
year with the assumption that all recommended improvement projects will be online. The 
limiting capacity analysis uses the methodology described in DOH Water System Design 
Manual (2009) Worksheet 6-1 and Table 6-1. The physical capacity of the water system 
components is summarized in Table 5.12. The table includes each limiting component, the 
number of ERUs that can served in 2041 by the component, and the equation or rationale for in 
calculating the ERU. As shown in Table 5.12, the City has sufficient physical capacity to meet 
the 2041, with the MDD source capacity being the most limiting. 

5.8.1   Data sources 

The limiting capacity considers ERUs for both MDD and ADD, which were calculated based on 
the demand projections in Chapter 2 - Water Requirements. The ADD ERU Value is 158 gallons 
per day per Equivalent Residential Unit (gpd/ERU) and the MDD ERU value is 343 gpd/ERU. 
Supply and Storage capacity is based on the information provided in this Chapter. 

5.8.2   Source Limiting Capacity 

The City’s physical source capacity criteria were used to evaluate its limiting capacity in 2041. 
The physical capacity of the ADD supply sources was calculated by dividing the pumping source 
capacity by the ADD ERU value. Similarly, the physical capacity of the MDD supply sources were 
calculated by dividing the firm source capacity by the MDD ERU value. These values represent 
the amount of ERUs that can be served by the City’s supplies. The MDD supply sources had the 
lowest limiting capacity value making it the most limiting physical component. However, neither 
supply components were found to be limiting with all recommended improvement projects 
online. 



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 5 | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

5-32 | JULY 2021  

5.8.3   Treatment Limiting Capacity 

The treatment capacity of the water system is not considered limiting because the City has 
designed the treatment capacity with sufficient capacity to serve its sources. The City treats 
groundwater for disinfection, corrosion control, and aesthetics.   

5.8.4   Storage Limiting Capacity 

The physical capacity of the City’s storage was calculated for both equalizing storage and 
standby storage. The capacity of equalizing storage was based on the City’s calculation of 
equalizing storage, which uses DOH Equation 6-6. Similarly, the limiting capacity of the 
City’s standby storage was based on the DOH recommendation of 200 gallons per ERU. 
Neither storage components were found to be limiting. 

5.8.5   Distribution / Transmission Limiting Capacity 

The distribution water system component is not considered to be limiting because the City has 
planned projects to address all identified deficiencies and design standards confirm all new 
development meets City standards. Similarly, the transmission water system component is not 
considered to be limiting because it is assumed to be addressed as part of source and pumping 
capacity. 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 5 | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | 5-33 

Table 5.12 2040 Limiting Capacity 

Water System 
Component 

Value (ERUs) Equation / Notes 

Sources (ADD) 46,030 

N = 𝑅𝑅𝑅𝑅𝑅𝑅𝑅𝑅𝑅𝑅𝑅𝑅𝑅𝑅𝑅𝑅 𝑆𝑆𝑆𝑆𝑆𝑆𝑆𝑆𝑆𝑆𝑅𝑅 𝐶𝐶𝑅𝑅𝐶𝐶𝑅𝑅𝑆𝑆𝑅𝑅𝐶𝐶𝐶𝐶
𝐴𝐴𝐴𝐴𝐴𝐴 𝐸𝐸𝑅𝑅𝐸𝐸 𝑣𝑣𝑅𝑅𝑅𝑅𝑆𝑆𝑅𝑅

 

where 
Reliable source capacity = capacity of sources with backup 
power or generators 

Sources (MDD) 14,910 

N = 𝐹𝐹𝑅𝑅𝑆𝑆𝐹𝐹 𝑆𝑆𝑆𝑆𝑆𝑆𝑆𝑆𝑆𝑆𝑅𝑅 𝐶𝐶𝑅𝑅𝐶𝐶𝑅𝑅𝑆𝑆𝑅𝑅𝐶𝐶𝐶𝐶
𝑀𝑀𝐴𝐴𝐴𝐴 𝐸𝐸𝑅𝑅𝐸𝐸 𝑣𝑣𝑅𝑅𝑅𝑅𝑆𝑆𝑅𝑅

 

where 
Firm source capacity = source capacity with largest source 
(Well 1) offline 

Treatment Not Limiting 
The City has designed treatment capacity with sufficiency 
capacity to serve its sources. 

Equalizing 
Storage (ES) 

18,813 

N = 1
𝐶𝐶

[�1440
𝑀𝑀𝐴𝐴𝐴𝐴

� � 𝐸𝐸𝑆𝑆
150

+ 𝑄𝑄𝑠𝑠 − 18� − 𝐹𝐹] 

where 
MDD = MDD, gpd/ERUs 
C = Coefficient associated with ranges of ERUs 
F - Factor associated with ranges of ERUs 
Qs = Total source pumping capacity, gpm 

Standby 
Storage (SB) 

15,306 

N = 𝑆𝑆𝑆𝑆𝑡𝑡
(𝑆𝑆𝑆𝑆𝑖𝑖)(𝐶𝐶𝑑𝑑)

 

where  
SBt = total volume of water in standby storage component (gal) 
SBi = Design level of standby storage to meet reliability 
considerations per ERU (gpd/ERU) 
td = time that storage is to be used (days) 

Distribution Not Limiting 
Not considered capacity limited because the City has planned 
projects to address all identified deficiencies and design 
standards confirm all new development meets City standards. 

Transmission  Not Limiting 
Assumed to be addressed as part of source and pumping 
capacity. 

Limiting Water 
System 
Physical 
Capacity in 
2040 (ERUs) 

14,910 Sources (MDD) 

Projected ERUs 
for 2041 
planning year 

12,242  



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 5 | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

5-34 | JULY 2021  

5.9   Summary of System Analysis Recommendations 

This section summarizes the recommended improvements to the City’s water system identified 
during the system analysis. The projects are categorized by infrastructure and use the following 
abbreviates for project identification: 

• Supply (S). 
• Storage (ST). 
• Pressure Zone (PZ). 
• Pump Station (PS). 
• General (G). 
• Distribution Pipeline (D). 

Figure 5.14 shows the locations of the recommended improvement projects. 

5.9.1   Recommended Supply Projects 

S-01: New Well in Angleside PZ 

Existing sources are sufficient to provide projected 2041 MDD but cannot meet City’s goal of 
providing 2041 MDD with the largest supply out-of-service. With a capacity of 1,000 gpm, the 
future New Well would be sufficient to meet the City’s goal of providing 2041 MDD with largest 
supply out-of-service. If possible, it is recommended that this project be co-located with an 
at-hydraulic-grade reservoir (ST-02) in the Angleside PZ. This project will entail transferring the 
water right from Shelton Springs to the New Well.  

5.9.2   Recommended Storage Projects 

ST-01: New Mt. View Ground Storage Reservoir 

A new reservoir with a usable storage capacity of 1.0 MG is recommended to provide additional 
storage in the Mt. View PZ to help storage deficiencies. Improvements are required to meet 
DOH storage criteria. 

ST-02: New Angleside Reservoir 

A new reservoir with a usable storage capacity of 1.0 MG is recommended to help storage 
deficiencies in the system. The Angleside reservoir can either be ground or standpipe-style 
reservoir. Both options will require a booster pump station. To aid in operations, it is 
recommended than an at-hydraulic-grade reservoir (standpipe or elevated) and the New Well be 
co-located, if possible. See project S-01. Distribution system improvements may be required 
depending on the location of the reservoir. 

ST-03: New Angleside Reservoir 

A 0.41 MG Upper Mt. View Pressure Zone elevated tank is needed to provide adequate water 
service to Shelton Hills Development. This project is required to provide sufficient service 
pressures during fire flows in the proposed development (Phase 2 and beyond). This project is 
developer-funded. 

5.9.3   Recommended Pressure Zone Improvement Projects 

PZ-01: Mt. View PZ Boosted Zone 

There are customers within the Mt. View PZ that, due to high elevations, have low pressures 
during peak hour demands. This project is to rezone a section within the Mt. View PZ to the 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 5 | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | 5-35 

Upper Mt. View PZ to provide peak hour demand pressures greater than 30 psi to all customers. 
The transmission of the Upper Mt. View PZ supply will require 3,000 LF of 12-inch pipe from the 
Well 3/Well 4 site, south on N Shelton Springs Rd to N 13th St, and east on W Alpine Way to 
Alpine Dr. 

PZ-02: Angleside PZ Boosted Zone 

There are customers within the Angleside PZ that, due to high elevations, have low pressures 
during peak hour demands. This project is to add small jockey pumps to two areas of the 
pressure zone with high elevations to provide domestic flows at pressure greater than 30 psi 
during peak hour demands. This project will require improvements in the interim to address fire 
flow deficiencies at high elevations in the Angleside PZ in projects PS-01, G-01, and D-05. 

5.9.4   Recommended Pump Station Improvements 

PS-01: Angleside Reservoir PS Control Study and Improvements 

Higher pressures during fire flow are needed to resolve deficiencies in high elevation areas of the 
Angleside PZ. Currently the Angleside Reservoir PS is manually controlled. This project is to 
construct control improvements to allow automated use of the City’s Angleside Reservoir PS. 
The Reservoir PS may not automatically start for low flow hydrants if available flow is below 
control trigger. These hydrants will need to be addressed separately with the Fire Department.  

This project will require new control valves, VFDs, and site piping at the Angleside BPS and 
Reservoir PS sites. There are two recommended, automated control modes: high reservoir 
outflow (fire flow) and low reservoir level (emergency supply). 

PS-02: Capitol Hill Pressure Improvements 

The existing Capitol Hill BPS and Reservoir are not able to provide 30 psi to all customers during 
PHD scenarios. To increase the peak hour demand pressures and pump station redundancy, it is 
recommended the Capitol Hill PZ be converted to a closed pressure zone. This project 
recommends decommissioning the Capitol Hill Reservoir and constructing a new Capitol Hill BPS 
to supply customers at a higher hydraulic grade. This will require increasing the BPS capacity to 
meet the peak hour demand and fire flows of approximately 1,750 gpm of flow (firm capacity). 
Approximately 1,000 ft of distribution mains may need to be upsized to support the greater 
pumping rates. 

PS-03: Upper Mt. View Booster Pump Station 

A new Upper Mt. View BPS will provide supply/pumping redundancy to the Upper Mt. View PS if 
Well 3 is offline. It is recommended that the BPS is located at the site of project ST-01. This BPS 
will be sized to supply 1,500 gpm to the Mt. View and Upper Mt. View PZs. The Upper Mt. View 
Reservoir will remain online to provide storage for the pressure zone. Previous analysis of the 
Dayton-Airport Road Commercial Industrial Center (DARCI) indicated that additional 
infrastructure would be needed to support development. This analysis was performed as part of 
the System Analysis for Urban Growth Area Expansion that included a Technical Memorandum a 
draft of which was completed in September 2016. This BPS cannot provide fire flow to future 
DARCI industrial users but could provide domestic water demands.  



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 5 | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

5-36 | JULY 2021  

5.9.5   Recommended Fire Flow Deficiency Improvements 

G-01: Hydrant Improvements 

Field investigation identified some hydrants that may need repair and/or are severely limited by 
low system pressure. The recommended project is to work with the Fire Department to identify 
ways to provide fire flows in these areas, keeping in mind that reservoir levels will be lower in a 
fire flow condition than normal conditions. Repair, move, and hood/remove fire hydrants as 
agreed with Fire Department. 

D-01 through D-05 

Table 5.13 summarizes the recommended distribution system improvements to address fire flow 
deficiencies, including the project ID, name, and purpose. 

5.9.6   Shelton Hills Improvements 

The Shelton Hills development is an 800-acre master-planned community in the City west of 
Highway 101 between “C” St and Wallace Kneeland Blvd. Improvements are developer-funded 
projects. The development is expected to occur in the long-term planning horizon and will 
include commercial development with service from the Mt. View PZ, and commercial, business 
park, and residential development with service from the Upper Mt. View PZ. The development 
will require a new elevated reservoir in the Upper Mt. View PZ, and a transmission main to 
provide fire flow to the area. Improvements are planned to be online by 2041. 

The Shelton Hills Improvements are developer-funded projects. 

ST-02: Shelton Hills Elevated Reservoir 

A 0.41 MG Upper Mt. View PZ elevated reservoir is needed as part of the Shelton Hills 
Development.  

5.10   Areas of Shelton Urban Growth Area Not Currently Served by City 

As part of the system analysis, future pipelines were assumed for service in currently unserved 
areas of the City’s Urban Growth Area (UGA) for evaluation of system capacity, as shown in 
Figure 5.15.  The future demands and locations/size of actual infrastructure should be confirmed 
and evaluated before approval of service. It should be noted that project PZ-01 will be required 
to serve the Upper Mt. View PZ area east of Johns Prairie Rd. Based on the assumed pipeline 
configuration, current demand projections, and recommended improvement projects outlined in 
Section 5.10, the City will have sufficient supply, storage, and pumping capacity to serve the area 
within the City’s UGA in accordance with the future improvement assumptions and system 
criteria. No additional pressure or velocity deficiencies were identified to serve the areas 
currently unserved by the City as shown in Figure 5.15.  



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 5 | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | 5-37 

Table 5.13 Recommended Improvements for Fire Flow Deficiencies 

ID Project Name PZ 
Pipe 

Length (ft) 
Existing 
Dia. (in) 

Proposed 
Dia. (in) 

Location Purpose 

D-01 
W Railroad Ave  
Pipe Upsize 

High 
School 

1,700 8 12 W Railroad Ave 
Upsize pipe to address fire flow deficiencies. 
Deficiency is due to 1,500 gpm fire flow 
demands on long, 8-in dead end pipe. 

D-02(1) 
E Pine St  
Pipe Upsize 

High 
School 

3,200 6 12 E Pine St 

Upsize pipe to address fire flow deficiency. 
Deficiency is due to 1,500 gpm fire flow 
demand on long, small diameter (6-in) dead 
end pipe. 

D-03(1) 
Alleghany St  
Pipe Upsize 

High 
School 

230 6 8 Alleghany St 

Upsize pipe to address fire flow deficiency. 
Deficiency is due to 1,500 gpm fire flow 
demand on small diameter (6-in) dead end 
pipe. 

D-04 
Capitol Hill  
Hydrant Lateral 
Relocation 

Capitol 
Hill 

300 n/a 6 Capitol Hill BPS 

Move hydrant lateral to address fire flow 
deficiency at pressure zone boundary. 
Deficiency is due to 750 gpm fire flow 
demand at hydrant with high elevation in 
High School PZ. 

D-05 
S 16th St  
Pipe Project 

Angle-
side 

800 n/a,4,6 8 
S 16th St from 
May Ave north 

to end of street. 

Upsize/loop pipe to address fire flow 
deficiency. Deficiency is due to 750 gpm fire 
flow demand at hydrant with high elevation 
in Angleside PZ. 

Notes: 
(1) Project will be developer funded. 



UT

UT

UT

UT

UT

UT

"=)

"=)
"=)

"=)
UT"=)UT

"=)

"=)

"=)

!ã

!ã!ã

"b )
"b )

"b ) "b )

"b )

"b )"b )

"b )
"b )

"b )

"b )

"b )
"b )

Well 3

Well 1

Well 4
Mt. View Reservoir
(0.61 MG)

Angleside Reservoir
(0.50 MG)

High School
Reservoir (0.51 MG)

Capitol Hill
Reservoir (0.22 MG)

Upper Mt. View Elevated
Reservoir(0.41 MG)

1S
T

RAILROAD

ISLAND LAKE

DEARBORN

ARCADIA

HARVARD

7T
H

16
TH

H
U

LB
E

R
T

K

SANDERSON

SHELTON MATLOCK
FAIRMOUNT

WALKER PARK

BR
O

C
KD

A
LE

BATSTONE CUT OFF

C

E

NORTHCLIFF

11
TH

9T
H

FR
O

N
T

BE
A

R

F

7T
H

J

A
B

H

G
D

THOMAS

KINEO

13
TH

PU
G

E
T

FRANKLIN

ALDER

PINE

BO
U

N
D

AR
Y

DICKINSON

LAKE
M

ADISO
N

SUMMIT

PA
C

IF
IC

W
ASHING

TO
N

SENTRY
GRANT

EUCLID

AL
D

ER

ALDERMANOR

LITTLE BEAR

HA
W

TH
ORN

HIGHLAND

DAYTON AIRPORT

TURNER

SANJOAQUIN

ALPINE

EV
A

N
MILL CREEK

CL
O

Q
UA

LL
UM

EX
P

O
R

T

M
IL

LW
R

IG
H

T

SHELTON

SPRINGS

PEACOCK HILL

ST
AT

E 
R

O
UT

E 
3

HICKAM

WALLACE KNEELAND

SHADOW
VALLEY

PARK

SHELTON VALLEY

U
S 

H
IG

H
W

AY
 1

01

JOH N S PR AIRIE

FAIRGROUNDS

C
AP

IT
A

L 
H

IL
L

DE
EG

AN

GD G OOSE LAK E MA IN
LIN

E

Te
xtOLY

MPIC
 H

W
Y

£¤101

I s l a n d
L a k e

O a k l a n d  B a y

Angleside Reservoir BPS

New Upper
Mt. View BPS

PS-02

PS-01

PS-03, ST-01

PZ-02

PZ-02

PZ-01

Angleside BPS

Mt View PS

Capital Hill
BPS

New Mt. View
Reservoir (1.0 MG)

D-
05

D-
03

D-
04

D-01 D-02

Last Revised: April 02, 2021 pw://IO-PW-INT.Carollo.local:Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Shelton/10669A00/Data/GIS/Fig5.5_HydrantFlowTestLocations.mxd

O
0 0.50.25

Miles

Disclaimer: Features shown in this 
figure are for planning purposes and 
represent approximate locations. 
Engineering and/or survey accuracy 
is not implied.

Data Sources: City of Shelton. 
Washington State Dept. of 
Natural Resources

 Figure 5.14 Recommended Improvement Projects

WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 5 | CITY OF SHELTON

Legend

Pressure Zone

"b ) Valve

!ã Well

Recommended Pressure Zone
Projects

Recommended Distribution System
Improvements

"=)
Recommended Pump Station
Projects

UT Recommended Storage Projects

"=) Future Pump Station

UT Future Reservoir

"=) Inactive Pump Station

UT Inactive Reservoir

"=) Pump Station

UT Reservoir

Pipeline

Streets

Shelton Urban Growth Area

Future Service Area

Parcels

Water Bodies

Angleside Zone

Capitol Hill Zone

High School Zone

Mountain View Zone

Upper Mountain View Zone



UT

UT

UT

UT

UT

"=)

"=)
"=)

"=)
UT

UT

"=)

!ã

!ã!ã

"b )

"b )

"b )

"b ) "b )

"b )

"b )

"b )"b )

"b )
"b )

"b )

"b )

"b )
"b )

Well 3

Well 1

Well 4
Mt. View Reservoir
(0.61 MG)

Angleside Reservoir
(0.50 MG)

High School
Reservoir (0.51 MG)

Capitol Hill
Reservoir (0.22 MG)

Upper Mt. View Elevated
Reservoir(0.41 MG)

1S
T

RAILROAD

ISLAND LAKE

DEARBORN

ARCADIA

HARVARD

7T
H

16
TH

H
U

LB
E

R
T

K

SANDERSON

SHELTON MATLOCK
FAIRMOUNT

WALKER PARK

BR
O

C
KD

A
LE

BATSTONE CUT OFF

C

E

NORTHCLIFF

11
TH

9T
H

FR
O

N
T

BE
A

R

F

7T
H

J

A
B

H

G
D

THOMAS

KINEO

13
TH

PU
G

E
T

FRANKLIN

ALDER

PINE

BO
U

N
D

AR
Y

DICKINSON

LAKE
M

ADISO
N

SUMMIT

PA
C

IF
IC

W
ASHING

TO
N

SENTRY
GRANT

EUCLID

AL
D

ER

ALDERMANOR

LITTLE BEAR

HA
W

TH
ORN

HIGHLAND

DAYTON AIRPORT

TURNER

SANJOAQUIN

ALPINE

EV
A

N
MILL CREEK

CL
O

Q
UA

LL
UM

EX
P

O
R

T

M
IL

LW
R

IG
H

T

SHELTON

SPRINGS

PEACOCK HILL

ST
AT

E 
R

O
UT

E 
3

HICKAM

WALLACE KNEELAND

SHADOW
VALLEY

PARK

SHELTON VALLEY

U
S 

H
IG

H
W

AY
 1

01

JOH N S PR AIRIE

FAIRGROUNDS

C
AP

IT
A

L 
H

IL
L

DE
EG

AN

GD G OOSE LAK E MA IN
LIN

E

Te
xtOLY

MPIC
 H

W
Y

£¤101

I s l a n d
L a k e

O a k l a n d  B a y

Angleside Reservoir BPS

New Upper
Mt. View BPS

New Upper
Mt. View
Reservoir
(0.41 MG)

Angleside BPS

Mt View PS

Capital Hill
BPS

New Mt. View
Reservoir (1.0 MG)

8''

8''

8''

12
''

12'
'

8''

8''
12

''

12''

12'
'

12
''

12''

8''

8''

8''

8''

Last Revised: March 30, 2021 pw://IO-PW-INT.Carollo.local:Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Shelton/10669A00/Data/GIS/Fig5.5_HydrantFlowTestLocations.mxd

O
0 0.50.25

Miles

Disclaimer: Features shown in this 
figure are for planning purposes and 
represent approximate locations. 
Engineering and/or survey accuracy 
is not implied.

Data Sources: City of Shelton. 
Washington State Dept. of 
Natural Resources

 Figure 5.15  Assumptions for Service in Unserved Areas

WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 5 | CITY OF SHELTON

Legend
Assumed Pipeline for Service in
Unserved Areas

Pressure Zone

Shelton Hills Pipeline

Future Pipeline to Serve UGA

"b ) Valve

!ã Well

"=) Future Pump Station

UT Shelton Hills Reservoir

UT Future Reservoir

"=) Pump Station

"=) Inactive Pump Station

UT Reservoir

Pipeline

Future Pipeline

Streets

Shelton Urban Growth Area

Future Service Area

Parcels

Water Bodies

Angleside Zone

Capitol Hill Zone

High School Zone

Mountain View Zone

Upper Mountain View Zone





WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE |CH 6 |CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | 6-1 

Chapter 6 

WATER QUALITY 

The City of Shelton (City) is defined as a Group A – Community Water System, and its primary 
concern is to monitor, protect, and enhance the quality of its drinking water sources. 

The City’s water is supplied by groundwater aquifers, which are tested regularly for the presence 
of contaminants at frequencies prescribed by the Washington State Department of 
Health’s (DOH’s) regulations. The City is also in compliance with all DOH reporting requirements, 
including the publication and distribution of an annual water quality report that keeps consumers 
informed about the quality of their water supply and water delivery systems.  

This chapter further describes the City’s water quality requirements for its sources and 
distribution system.  

6.1   Water Quality Plan and Treatment  

As a Group A Community Public Water System, the City must comply with the drinking water 
standards of the federal Safe Drinking Water Act (SDWA) and DOH standards under the 
Washington Administrative Code (WAC) 246-290. At this time, the City’s water quality is in 
compliance with all state and federal water quality and reporting requirements. 

The City maintains water quality within its system through the following approaches:  

1. Routine system flushing of its distribution system to maintain satisfactory water quality. 
2. A main replacement program to replace pipes with structural deficiencies. 
3. Installation of pH meters at all sources to better manage pH and thus reduce corrosion 

within the distribution system.  
4. Cross-connection prevention. 

The City is recommended to take the following additional actions as part of its water quality 
planning programs:  

• Track proposed new water quality rules and regulations being considered by the United 
States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) and DOH to plan for any effects that 
these new rules may have on the City’s water system.  

• Continue to implement its corrosion control treatment improvements as necessary to 
reduce levels of corrosion within the distribution system and private plumbing. 

6.1.1   Treatment  

The City currently has four water sources: Well 1, Well 3, Well 4, and Shelton Springs (emergency 
use only). The water produced by the three wells is disinfected at the sources using sodium 
hypochlorite, and the disinfection systems are adequately sized to disinfect each well at its 
current production capacity.  

The Operations Staff collects daily water samples to check the chlorine residual levels.  



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 6 | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

6-2 | JULY 2021  

6.1.2   Water Quality Monitoring  

The City‘s comprehensive and proactive Drinking Water Quality Monitoring Program monitors 
operations, regulations to meet the requirements of the federal SDWA, and management of the 
City’s aquifers. Operational monitoring is used to verify that the City’s water facilities are 
functioning effectively to deliver high-quality drinking water to its customers and measures 
chlorine and pumping rates at each production well. Regulatory monitoring includes analytical 
testing for microbial pathogens, organic and inorganic chemicals, disinfection byproducts, and 
radionuclides. Sampling is performed at all locations and at frequencies required by state and 
federal regulations. Finally, aquifer monitoring is used to identify contamination and to track 
water levels in the aquifers. 

Operations Staff carries our water quality sampling on a daily basis. In addition to checking that 
water treatment and maintenance are performed effectively, the water quality specialist 
manages the water quality data and records both for routine and special monitoring programs. 

The Drinking Water Quality Monitoring Program included in Appendix 6A presents a detailed 
description of the water quality sampling methods, the sampling locations, sampling frequency, 
and record keeping procedures.  

6.2    State and Federal Regulatory Requirements 

This section presents the water quality standards demanded by the DOH and the USEPA 
through the SDWA. The SDWA, which was enacted in 1974 (and amended in 1986 and 1996), is 
the primary federal law that establishes standards for drinking water quality in public water 
systems. The DOH has adopted the federal drinking water regulations under WAC 246-290 and 
accepted the primary responsibility (or “primacy”) of enforcing water quality monitoring and 
reporting. All existing and anticipated drinking water regulations that apply to the City are 
summarized in the following subsections and also shown in Table 6.1. Table 6.2 summarizes 
water quality exceedances in the past 10 years for the City’s distribution and source water quality 
monitoring program. 

Shelton Springs’ water is considered groundwater under the influence of surface water and, if 
used as a permanent source, is required to meet surface water regulations, as well as the 
Information Collection Rule, Interim Enhanced Surface Water Treatment Rule (ESWTR), Long Term 1 
Enhanced Surface Water Treatment Rule, Long Term 2 Enhanced Surface Water Treatment Rule, and 
Filter Backwash Recycling Rule. These regulations are not summarized in this chapter since they do 
not currently apply to Shelton Springs, which is only used as an emergency use source. 

 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE |CH 6 |CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | 6-3 

Table 6.1 Drinking Water Regulations Water System Plan Update 

Rule CFR 
WAC 

246-290 
Affected Contaminants Publication Date of Final Rule 

Source Water Quality 

National Primary and Secondary 
Drinking Water Standards 

  
Part 4, 300, 310, and 

320 

Bacteriological, IOC, VOC, SOC, 
Asbestos, Radionuclides, 

Trihalomethanes, Lead/Copper, 
Phase II/V 

Phases I through V 
promulgated 1987 through 

1992 

Radionuclide Rule 
40 CFR 141.15 

141.25 
141.26 

Part 4, 300(8) 310(6), 
and 320(7) 

Radionuclides 
Promulgated December 2003 

Compliance by December 2006 

Arsenic Rule 
40 CFR 141.23 

141.24 
141.16 

Part 4, 300(4) and 
310(3) 

Arsenic 
Promulgated February 2002 

Compliance by January 23, 2006 

Unregulated Contaminants 
Monitoring Rule 

N/A 
Various contaminants 
considered for future 

regulations 

UCMR 1 promulgated 1999 

UCMR 2 promulgated 2007 

UCMR3 promulgated 
May 2, 2012 

UCMR4 promulgated 
December 2016, Compliance 

Period 2018 to 2020 

Groundwater Rule  
Part 4, 300(3) and 

320(2) 
Fecal indicators in groundwater 

Promulgated January 8, 2007 
Compliance by November 2010 

Inorganic Chemicals 
40 CFR 141.23 

143.4 
Part 4, 300(4) and 

310(3) 
Various Inorganic chemical 

contaminants. 
Various 

Organic Chemicals 
40 CFR 141.24 

141.61 
Part 4, 300(7), 310(7), 

and 320(6) 
Organic contaminants including 

VOCs and SOCs. 
Various 



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 6 | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

6-4 | JULY 2021  

Rule CFR 
WAC 

246-290 
Affected Contaminants Publication Date of Final Rule 

Distribution System Water Quality 

Revised Total Coliform Rule  
Part 4, 300, 310(2), 

320 
Total coliform bacteria 

Promulgated February 13, 2013 
Compliance by April 2016 

Lead and Copper Rule 

40 CFR 
141.85 
141.86 
141.87 
141.88 

Part 4, 300(2,5), 
310(3), and 320(4) 

Lead and Copper 
Promulgated January 12, 2000 

Revised December 4, 2013 

Stage 1 Disinfectants/ Disinfection 
Byproducts Rule 

40 CFR, Parts 9, 
141, 142 

63 FR 69390 

Part 4, 300, 310, and 
320 

Trihalomethanes, 
haloacetic acids, chlorite, 

bromate, and 
disinfectant residuals 

Promulgated February 16, 1999 

Stage 2 Disinfectants/ Disinfection 
Byproducts Rule 

40 CFR, Parts 9, 
141, 142 

71 FR 388 

Part 4, 300, 310, and 
320 

Trihalomethanes and 
haloacetic acids 

Promulgated January 4, 2006 
Effective March 6, 2006 

Compliance by October 2012 

System-Wide Requirements 

Consumer Confidence Report Rule 
40 CFR 141 

Part O 
Part 7, Subpart B Reporting only Published December 2012 

Public Notification Rule 
40 CFR 141 

Part Q 
Part 4, 320 Reporting only Promulgated May 2000 

Operator Certification Rule  WAC 246-292 N/A Effective January 4, 2014 
Note:  
Abbreviations: CFR – Code of Federal Regulations; IOC – inorganic chemical; N/A – not applicable; SOC – synthetic organic chemical; UCMR 1 – 4 – unregulated contaminant monitoring rules 1 

through 4; VOC – volatile organic chemical. 

 

 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE |CH 6 |CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | 6-5 

Table 6.2 Exceedances in Past 10 Years 

Parameter 
Monitoring 

Location 
Exceedances in past 10 years 

 (2009 – 2019) 

Routine Coliform Distribution 
Total coliform detected in 2016 and 2018 

(follow-up samples did not detect coliform) 

Lead and copper Distribution None 

Asbestos Distribution None 

Total Trihalomethane 
(THM) 

Distribution None 

Haloacetic acids  
(HAA5) 

Distribution None 

Inorganic Chemicals 
(IOCs) 

Source None 

Nitrate Source None 

Complete inorganic 
(IOC) 

Source None 

Iron Source None 

Volatile organics  
(VOCs) 

Source None 

Herbicides Source None 

Pesticides Source None 

Soil Fumigants Source None 

Gross Alpha Source None 

Radium 228 Source None 

6.2.1   Revised Total Coliform Rule  

The Revised Total Coliform Rule (RTCR), which replaced the 1989 Total Coliform Rule, requires 
an agency’s monitoring program to demonstrate that a water system is minimizing the risk of 
bacterial growth. Drinking water samples must be collected for bacteriological analysis from 
representative points in the distribution system at regular time intervals. The number of water 
samples is dependent upon the population being served by the system.  

The City conducts its coliform testing according to its coliform monitoring plan. The number of 
samples required to represent a distribution system depends on the number of service 
connections the system supports. In 2018, the City submitted 10 samples her month for 
microbiological/bacteriological contaminant analysis. These samples were taken from ten 
routine locations throughout the distribution system; two in each pressure zone. The triggered 
source monitoring requirement of the Groundwater Rules require that each source which was in 
active service at the time of the detection also be sampled within 24 hours of an unsatisfactory 
coliform sample.  

Included in Appendix 6C, the City’s Coliform Monitoring Plan identifies coliform monitoring 
locations and sampling procedures. Included in Appendix 6C is the draft communication for the 
City’s Boil Water Notice and Coliform Detection Advisory. The City detected coliform in a sample 
in 2016 and 2018; however, follow-up samples did not detect coliform.  



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 6 | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

6-6 | JULY 2021  

6.2.2   Stage 1 and 2 Disinfectants/Disinfection Byproducts Rules 

Because the City uses chlorine for disinfection, it must meet the USEPA requirements of the 
Stage 1 and Stage 2 Disinfectants/Disinfection Byproducts Rules (D/DBPR). In general, the City’s 
high-quality source water and applied treatment result in low concentrations of disinfection 
byproducts, which are produced from reactions between chlorine and natural organic matter.  

Given low levels of the two most common disinfection byproducts in a water system, THM and 
HAA5, the City has been approved to reduce its monitoring and is now required to sample for 
THM and HAA5 once per year.  

D/DBPR compliance monitoring is detailed in the City’s Stage 2 Disinfectants and Disinfection 
Byproducts Monitoring Plan, which is included as part of its Drinking Water Quality Monitoring 
Program (Appendix 6A). 

6.2.3   Groundwater Rule 

The Groundwater Rule builds on the Total Coliform Rule by addressing the health risks of 
microbial pathogens (bacterial and viral) in community public water systems that use 
groundwater sources.  

The City has 4-log virus treatment (99.99-percent inactivation) at each supply source and 
conducts routine compliance monitoring. The City also conducts periodic sanitary surveys to 
address system deficiencies at risk of microbial contamination. 

6.2.4   Arsenic Rule 

The arsenic rule was adopted by the DOH as a revision to the arsenic maximum contaminant 
level (MCL) under WAC 249-290-310.  

The City samples for arsenic during its inorganic chemical analysis. During the last monitoring 
period, all samples were non-detect for arsenic. 

6.2.5   Radionuclides Rule 

The City monitors radiological contaminants (radionuclides) at each source after treatment once 
every six years. During the last monitoring period (September 2016), all samples were non-
detect for Gross Alpha particles and Radium 228. 

6.2.6   Inorganic Chemical Analysis 

Inorganic contaminants are metals, salts, and other non-carbon compounds that are naturally-
occurring in the environment or present as a result of human activities such as urban stormwater 
runoff or industrial wastewater discharges. An inorganic chemical analysis detects and evaluates 
physical properties of inorganic chemicals that affect water quality, such as hardness, turbidity, 
color, conductivity, and total dissolved solids.  

The City is required by the DOH to take samples for inorganic chemical analysis at each source 
after treatment. The complete inorganic chemical and physical analysis evaluates primary and 
secondary chemical and physical drinking water contaminants specified in WAC 246-290. Given 
its historically low levels of these contaminants, the City has been approved by the DOH to 
reduce its monitoring to once every nine years with the exception of nitrate, which is monitored 
annually. The City also has a permanent waiver for asbestos monitoring from the DOH. During 
the last monitoring period, no samples exceeded the MCLs for inorganic chemicals.  



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE |CH 6 |CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | 6-7 

6.2.7   Organic Chemical Analysis 

VOCs are carbon-containing substances that easily become vapors or gases under typical room 
temperatures. Some are hydrocarbons associated with petroleum fuels and solvents.  

VOCs are divided into regulated and unregulated VOCs. Currently, 21 regulated VOCs have been 
determined to pose a significant risk to human health. This group does not include organic 
pesticides, herbicides, or insecticides, which are regulated separately as SOCs. Currently, there 
are 33 regulated SOCs. 

The City is required by the DOH to take samples for organic chemical analyses at each source 
after treatment. Given historically low levels of these substances, the City has been approved by 
the DOH to reduce its monitoring for VOCs to once every six years for Wells 3 and 4. For Well 1, 
the City is required to monitor for VOCs with sampling once every three years. The City has also 
been approved to reduce its monitoring for herbicides to once every nine years at all wells.  

In addition, the City has been granted waivers for pesticides and soil fumigants. State-wide 
waivers have been issued for insecticides, dioxin, diquat, endothall, glyphosate, polychlorinated 
biphenyls (PCBs), ethylene dibromide (EDB), and dibromochloropropane (DBCP).  

Recent chemical analyses of the City's supply sources show no contamination from VOCs or 
SOCs. The City must test for trihalomethanes at all wells once a year since they are chlorinated. 
During the last monitoring period, low levels of trihalomethanes were detected in the samples, 
but they were significantly below the MCL for total trihalomethanes. 

6.2.8   Lead and Copper Rule 

Action levels were established for lead and copper under the 1991 Lead and Copper Rule (LCR), 
whose goal is to protect public health by minimizing lead and copper levels at consumers’ taps, 
primarily by reducing water corrosively within the distribution system. The 2007 Short-Term 
Revisions to the LCR enhanced monitoring, treatment, lead service line replacement, public 
education, and customer awareness.  

The City’s source water contains no significant amounts of lead and copper. However, potential 
health risks are posed by leaching of lead and copper from components in the distribution 
system, as well as from household plumbing. The City reduces the risk of leaching by 
continuously treating its source water to raise the pH of the water. 

LCR sampling was most recently conducted in 2018, during which 30 samples were tested for 
lead and copper from residential water faucets. All of the samples tested had levels far below the 
action levels for both lead and copper. Appendix 6A includes a detailed description of the 
2018 LCR sampling as part of the Drinking Water Quality Monitoring Program. 

Long-term revisions to the LCR are expected in the next few years to improve the existing rule 
using recommendations from the National Drinking Water Advisory Committee and lessons 
learned from the water crisis in Flint, Michigan. This and other future regulations are detailed 
further in Section 6.2.12, Future Regulations. 



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 6 | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

6-8 | JULY 2021  

6.2.9   Unregulated Contaminant Monitoring Rule 

The SDWA establishes periodic monitoring requirements for contaminants that are suspected to 
be in drinking water but not yet subject to drinking water regulations. The City has conducted its 
fourth cycle of monitoring for unregulated contaminants (UCMR4), whose report was published 
in December 2016. Because the City uses groundwater supply sources, its UCMR4 monitoring 
consists of 20 unregulated chemical contaminants: two metals, eight pesticides plus one 
pesticide manufacturing byproduct, three brominated haloacetic acid disinfection byproducts 
groups, three alcohols, and three semivolatile organic chemicals.  

6.2.10   Consumer Confidence Report Rule 

Finalized on September 19, 1998, the Consumer Confidence Report (CCR) Rule demands that, 
every July, community water systems provide annual reports to their customers with information 
about the quality of their drinking water supply. The City complies with the CCR through its 
Annual Water Quality and Efficiency Report. This report lets customers know whether or not 
their water meets state and federal drinking water standards and also includes information on 
the water source, the regulated and unregulated contaminants that have been detected during 
the year, and their concentrations.  

The report also provides information on disinfection byproducts or microbial contaminants and 
the potential health effects of the contaminants at concentrations greater than the MCL. In the 
case that contaminants are detected, the likely source of the contaminants is identified, and a 
summary of any violations in monitoring, reporting, or record-keeping is included.  

Finally, to help customers with special health needs make informed decisions about their 
drinking water, the report also provides references and telephone numbers that will direct them 
to resources about health effects data and available information about the water system in 
general.  

Appendix 6B presents the City’s most recent CCR (2019 Report for the Year 2018). 

6.2.11   Public Notification Rule 

The Public Notification Rule (PNR) requires that public water systems notify their customers 
when they violate USEPA or State regulations, including monitoring requirements, or otherwise 
provide drinking water that may pose a risk to consumers’ health. The original PNR requirements 
were established in the SDWA; the revised PNR was promulgated in 2000 as required by the 
1996 SDWA amendments. 

The PNR establishes three notification levels: 

• Immediate Notice (Tier 1): In a situation that has the potential for human health to be 
immediately affected, notification is required within 24 hours. 

• Notice as Soon as Possible (Tier 2): In a situation where an MCL is exceeded or water has 
not been treated properly but there is no threat to human health, notification is required 
as soon as possible and within 30 days. 

• Annual Notice (Tier 3): In a situation where a standard is violated that does not directly 
affect human health, notice must be provided within one year, likely within the system’s 
CCR. 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE |CH 6 |CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | 6-9 

Included in Appendix 8A, the City’s Emergency Response Plan (ERP) describes these notification 
requirements in further detail. The ERP includes protocols for notifying the DOH and the public 
when a positive detection of VOCs/SOCs, IOCs, physical characteristics, or bacteriological 
presence is determined. The ERP maintains current phone numbers and contact information to 
all relevant utilities, contractors, government agencies, and local cable and radio stations. 

6.2.12   Future Regulations 

The City monitors potential developments surrounding new rules and changes to existing ones. 
In particular, the City is examining long-term revisions to the LCR, which are expected to occur in 
the next few years to improve the existing rule using recommendations from the National 
Drinking Water Advisory Committee and lessons learned from the water crisis in Flint, Michigan. 
Potential elements under consideration include lead service line replacement programs, 
improved optimal corrosion control treatment requirements, health-based benchmarks for lead, 
point of use filters, improved sampling procedures, increased transparency and information 
sharing, and public education.  

Table 6.3 Outlines other Proposed Future Regulatory Requirements that the City is Monitoring 

Regulation Effective / Compliance Date 
Regulation Summary and City 

Status 

Unregulated Contaminant 
Monitoring Regulations 

Unregulated Contaminants UCMR 5 - unknown 

Contaminant Candidate List Unregulated Contaminants CCL5 - unknown 

Perchlorate 
In February 2011, USEPA 

decided to regulate 
perchlorate 

The City is monitoring the 
development of this rule. 

Per-and polyfluoroalkyl 
substances (PFAS) 

DOH began rulemaking for 
PFAS in drinking water in 

late 2017. 

The City is monitoring the 
development of this rule. 

Lead and Copper Rule 
Revisions 

USEPA is considering 
additional revisions to 

the LCR. 

The City is monitoring the 
development of these rule 

revisions. 

Strontium 
USEPA is considering issuing 
a regulatory standard based 

on UCMR3 results. 

The City is monitoring the 
development of this national 

primary drinking water regulation 
for strontium. 

Chromium Rule Revision 
USEPA is considering 

additional revisions to the 
Chromium Rule. 

The City is monitoring the 
development of these rule 

revisions. 
Note: 
(1) Effective and compliance dates were obtained from the Federal Register and USEPA’s Drinking Water Hotline and 

represent the best information available as of the date of this report. 
Abbreviations: CCL – contaminant candidate list; PFAS - per-and polyfluoroalkyl substances. 

6.3   Recommended Improvements 

Due to sanitary concerns with the City’s existing gravity main between Well 1 and the High 
School Tank, the City has planned a project to replace the existing pipe, eliminate connections 
that are no longer used, and pressurize the system.  





WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 7 | CITY OF SHELTON 

  JULY 2021 | 7-1 

Chapter 7 

SOURCE WATER PROTECTION 

7.1   Introduction 

The City of Shelton’s (City’s) wellhead protection plan was updated as part of the Plan. The 1986 
amendments to the Federal Safe Drinking Water Act (SDWA) mandated that each state develop 
a wellhead protection program to protect ground waters that serve as drinking water sources for 
public water supplies. In 1994, the Washington State Department of Health (DOH) adopted 
Washington Administrative Code (WAC) 246-290, which directed Group A public water systems 
using wells or springs to implement wellhead protection (WHP) measures.  

Washington State regulations (WAC 246-290 135) require all Group A water systems to:  

• Maintain a Sanitary Control Area Fact Sheet immediately surrounding all drinking water 
sources to protect them from contamination. 

• Develop and implement a Source Water Protection Program, which can be either: 
- Wellhead protection program (for groundwater sources). 
- Watershed Control Program (for surface water and groundwater under the influence 

of surface water sources). 

The City has developed a wellhead protection program for its groundwater sources. 

7.2   Wellhead Protection Program 

The overall goal of the state WHP program is to prevent the contamination of groundwater used 
by Group A public water systems. This is to be accomplished by providing management zones 
around public wells, identifying existing groundwater contamination sources, and managing 
potential sources of groundwater contamination prior to entry into the drinking water system. 
Under WAC, local public water systems have the primary responsibility for developing and 
implementing local wellhead protection plans (WHPP). However, due to the limited jurisdictional 
and regulatory authority afforded most purveyors, coordination with other local, state, and 
federal agencies is essential to the successful implementation of a WHPP.  

The DOH has developed regulations that require Group A water systems using groundwater 
sources to develop and implement a WHPP. The objective is to prevent releases of contaminants 
to groundwater in areas that contribute water to the public supply systems. The basic elements 
of a WHPP include: 

• A completed susceptibility assessment. 
• A delineated wellhead protection area (WHPA) for each well, well field, or spring.  
• An inventory of potential contamination sources in the WHPA that could threaten the 

water-bearing zone (aquifer) used by the well, spring, or well field, which must be 
updated every two years.  

• Documentation showing the water systems sent delineation and inventory findings to 
required entities 



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 7 | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

7-2 | JULY 2021  

• Contingency plan for providing alternate drinking water sources if contamination does 
occur. 

• Coordination with local emergency responders for appropriate spill or incident response 
measures. 

The City’s original WHPP was developed in 1999. The 2019 update to the City’s Wellhead 
Protection Plan was completed by Robinson Noble, Inc. and is included in Appendix 7A.  

7.3   Susceptibility Assessment 

An analysis of the susceptibility of drinking water sources to contamination was completed as 
part of the WHPP. Determining the susceptibility of the water source to inventoried threats 
relates the nature and severity of the treat to the likelihood of source waters serving the system 
being contaminated.  

The Ground Water Contamination Susceptibility Assessment Survey Forms (DOH 331-274-F) 
were completed in November 2019 for all of the City’s water sources. The susceptibility 
assessments are included in the Appendices of the Wellhead Protection Plan in Appendix 7A. 

7.4   Wellhead Protection Area 

A WHPA is a representation of where the water produced by a given well comes from. It is based 
upon delineated capture zones, which describe the area of an aquifer (and all overlying material) 
that can contribute water to the will in a given period of time. Capture zones are typically defined 
as time-of-travel periods of six months, one, five, and ten years.   

The City relies on three main wells (Wells 1, 3, and 4) for their groundwater needs and have an 
emergency backup source at Shelton Springs if needed. There are three aquifers in which the 
groundwater is pumped out of: the Recessional Aquifer, the Sea Level Aquifer, and the 
Deep Aquifer. Shelton Springs is in the Recessional Aquifer, but this source is currently inactive 
due to water quality concerns. As it is a backup sources, it is included in the update to the WHPP. 
Wells 1, 3, and 4 are all screened in the Sea Level Aquifer, which is the main aquifer for the City. 
Well 1 also appears to be completed in the Deep Aquifer and pumps from both aquifers when the 
well is on.  

The capture zones for all water sources were modeled, and the results indicate a generally 
southwesterly trending groundwater flow within all three aquifers. The close proximity of 
Wells 1, 3, and 4 and their common completion on the Seal Level Aquifer results in capture zones 
that coalesce into a single larger WHPA. Well 1 has its own, separate WHPA for the Deep Aquifer. 
Shelton Springs also has its own WHPA for the Recessional Aquifer.  

Figures 7.1 through 7.3 show the capture zones for the Recessional Aquifer, Sea Level Aquifer, 
and the Deep Aquifer, respectively. Detailed results and WHPA delineation can be found in 
Chapters 2 and 3 of the WHPP in Appendix 7A.  



Legend

Capture Zones

1 Year

5 Year

10 Year

6 Month

Figure 12

Recessional Aquifer Capture Zones

Note: Basemap 
taken from USGS 
Shelton 
Quadrangle

2000’0’

Scale 1” = 2000’

Mason County

T 20 N/R 03 E

City of Shelton: Wellhead Protection

PM: MFP

November 2019

1840-003B



Legend

Capture Zone

6 Month

1 Year

5 Year

10 Year

Figure 13

Sea Level Aquifer Capture Zones

Note: Basemap 
taken from USGS 
Shelton 
Quadrangle

2000’0’

Scale 1” = 2000’

Mason County

T 20 N/R 03 E

City of Shelton: Wellhead Protection

PM: MFP

November 2019

1840-003B



Legend

Capture Zone

6 Month

1 Year

5 Year

10 Year

Figure 14

Deep Aquifer Capture Zones

Note: Basemap 
taken from USGS 
Shelton 
Quadrangle

2000’0’

Scale 1” = 2000’

Mason County

T 20 N/R 03 E

City of Shelton: Wellhead Protection

PM: MFP

November 2019

1840-003B



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 7 | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

7-6 | JULY 2021  

7.5   Inventory of Potential Contamination Threats 

The inventory of potential contamination sources within the WHPA was performed according to 
the DOH guidance document: Inventory of Potential Contaminant Sources in Washington’s 
Wellhead Protection Areas (1993). Environmental Data Resources, Inc. (EDR) reviewed 26 federal 
and state environmental databases for any known or potential contaminant sites within a circle 
with a 1.85-mile radius that encompasses all of the delineated WHPAs. This resulted in a list 
of 235 potentially hazardous sites that were reviewed as part of the update to the WHPP. The 
locations, types of listing, and nature of these sites were evaluated, resulting in a subset of 112 
listings considered to pose a risk to groundwater. These were mapped, then evaluated further.  

An evaluation of various land-use categories within the City was also performed. The results 
were ranked as to their respective risks and included in the list of potential hazards. Robinson 
Noble completed the field survey of the capture zones and added three additional sites to the 
potential hazards list. 

After completing this process, 76 sites or categories of land use were identified as known or 
potential hazards to the City’s wells. These were priorities and ranked such that the wellhead 
protection implementation process can address each site of land use in a systematic manner. 
Each site was ranked according to four factors. The factors are proximity of potential hazard to 
the WHPA, type of contamination, severity of contamination, and straight-line distance from the 
wells to the potential hazards. Detailed information and results of the inventory of potential 
contamination sources within the WHPA can be found in Chapter 4 of the WHPP in Appendix 7A. 

7.6   Documentation of Notification Letters 

DOH requires documentation showing that the water system sent delineation and inventory 
findings to required entities. The WHPP includes a copy of a notification letter sent to 
Central Mason Fire and EMS, the Mason County Sheriff, and the City’s Police Department, which 
can be found in the Appendices of the WHPP in Appendix 7A. A map of the WHPA was enclosed 
with the letter.  

7.7   Management Strategies and Implementation Tasks 

The completion of wellhead protection planning provides no safeguards unless effective 
management strategies are implemented to prevent potential contamination of groundwater 
sources. The City does not own or control all of the land within its WHPAs. Maximum 
effectiveness can be achieved in implementing the WHPP through a cooperation effect between 
the City, neighboring purveyors, and the state and local agencies which regulate potentially 
harmful activities within the WHPA. A key component to its management of the area will be the 
notification of the existence and extent of the management area to the proper agencies in 
Mason County, neighboring communities, and local residents.  

The WHPP outlines proposed strategies developed to protect the integrity of the City’s water 
sources, including the following:  

• WHP Management Strategies: proposed strategies developed to protect the integrity of 
the City’s water sources, including: 
- Long-Term Management and Cooperation. 
- Establish a WHP Committee. 
- Land Management Activities. 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 7 | CITY OF SHELTON 

  JULY 2021 | 7-7 

• WHP Land Use Strategies: proposed strategies to develop a cooperative relationship 
with state and local agencies that administer land use programs for areas within the 
WHPA but outside the City limits. 

• WHP Regulatory Strategies: proposed strategies for the City, in coordination with state 
and local agencies having statutory authority in the area, to monitor regulated activities 
within the WHPA. 

• Planning Strategies: strategies recommended for future protection for the WHPA that 
are achieved through present-day planning and coordination. 

• Data Management Strategies: strategies recommended to develop a data collection 
network and analysis plan capacity of providing the City with advance warning of 
contamination to the City’s water supply. 

• Education Strategies: recommended strategies for the education of the public and 
industrial/commercial occupants of the WHPA concerning groundwater protection. 

Detailed information about these strategies can be found in Chapter 5 of the WHPP in 
Appendix 7A. 

7.8   Wellhead Protection Implementation Tasks 

In order to accomplish the protection of the WHPA, the WHPP outlines a list of 26 
implementation tasks that are recommended for the City to adopt: 

• Task 1: Expand the City’s Emergency Management Committee to include WHP 
Planning. 

• Task 2: Establish formal communication with first responders. 
• Task 3: The City should also supply notification of the existence of the WHPA to the 

Health and Planning/Land-Use departments of Mason County. 
• Task 4: Consider seeking designation of the WHPA as a special protection area. 
• Task 5: It is recommended that the City seek to create awareness of the WHPA by 

posting metal “WATER SUPPLY PROTECTION AREA” signs at the borders of the 
WHPA. 

• Task 6: Communicate the location of the WHPA, explain basin WHP concepts, and 
address specific WHP concerns to industrial/commercial site owners and local gravel 
mine owners. 

• Task 7: Increase public awareness of homeowners who are connected to the City’s water 
system through notification letters to customers within the WHPA. 

• Task 8: Encourage the enforcement of the requirement that engineering as-builts of 
new septic systems be recorded with property deeds. 

• Task 9: Review routine leak detection procedures for sewer lines. 
• Task 10: Document the location and use of petroleum pipelines and develop appropriate 

emergency procedures. 
• Task 11: Participate in a regional groundwater data development and management 

program. 
• Task 12: Support Mason County in seeking delegation of well drilling inspection 

authority. 
• Task 13: Assure that the hydrogeologic impact of surface development and 

management program is adequately evaluated during the State Environmental Policy 
Act (SEPA) process. 



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 7 | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

7-8 | JULY 2021  

• Task 14: Document the type and amount of herbicide and pesticide application. 
• Task 15: Annually review the Model Toxics Control Act (MTCA), Resource Conservation 

and Recovery Act (RCRA) notifiers, and leaking underground storage tank (LUST) sites 
files within the WHPA. 

• Task 16: Review the annual Superfund Amendments and Re-authorization Act (SARA) 
Title III reports. 

• Task 17: Promote and coordinate the public education programs regarding household 
hazardous materials use, storage, and disposal with each county local hazardous waste 
management program. 

• Task 18: The City should develop data on the number and size of exempt underground 
storage tanks within the 1-year WHPA. 

• Task 19: Seek to have Ecology prioritize the investigation of contaminated and 
potentially contaminated sites within the WHPA. 

• Task 20: Encourage development and use of best management practices. 
• Task 21: Request County, State, and private landowners to utilize vegetation practices 

to protect water quality. 
• Task 22: Encourage thorough analysis of groundwater impacts for siting, operations, 

and reclamation of mines. 
• Task 23: The City should inventory decommissioned, abandoned, or unused wells in the 

six-month, 1- and 5-year time-of-travel zones. 
• Task 24: The City could seek to have appropriate agencies require sewer hook-up for all 

industrial-commercial facilities within the WHPA if sewer services is reasonably 
available. 

• Task 25: Investigate the need to re-routing transport of hazardous materials through 
the WHPA. 

• Task 26: Work with responsible parties to assess adequacy of stormwater systems. 

Detailed descriptions of the 26 recommended tasks can be found in Chapter 6 of the WHPP in 
Appendix 7A. 

7.9   Contingency Plan 

Contingency planning is needed to ensure that water users will have an adequate supply of 
potable water in the event of source contamination, natural disasters, or other emergencies. In 
recognition of this, the state WHP program requires alternative supply planning and emergency 
spill responses planning in all WHP plans. The City’s Alternative Resource Contingency Plan is 
outlined in Chapter 8 of the WHPP in Appendix 7A. 

7.10   Spill/Incident Response Planning 

The WHPP outlines and evaluates the spill response procedures and capabilities for the City’s 
WHPA. To conduct this evaluation, major spill response organization were identified. Local 
response organizations were contacted to determine their response capabilities, back-up 
assistance, and general understanding of wellhead protection issues. 

Spill events vary in size and can involve the release of highly toxic or completely inert materials. 
Events can occur under conditions were the spill is easily contained or where clean up time is 
plentiful, or they can occur where surface waters, waterways, or groundwater are under 
immediate threat. This range of possibilities has prompted a spill responses (and emergency 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 7 | CITY OF SHELTON 

  JULY 2021 | 7-9 

response) system which is nationwide in scope and can involve federal agencies, yet is designed 
to handle the more common, small-scale (yet potentially dangerous) spills. This assessment 
takes into account this range of possible spills and responses. 

The ability of the City to affect the protocols and procedures of the national and state responses 
system is limited. However, the majority of spills are small and require local responses, as a 
minimum. Therefore, for the purposes of the WHPP development, focus was given to local 
response capabilities and to the needs associated with these locate response systems.  

More detailed information about the City’s Spill Response Plan, including spill response 
organizations, incident management response, and recommended spill response improvements 
can be found in Chapter 7 of the WHPP in Appendix 7A. 

 





WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 8 |CITY OF SHELTON 

  JULY 2021 | 8-1 

Chapter 8 

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE 

8.1   Introduction 

This chapter provides an overview of the City of Shelton (City) Water System organization, 
staffing, and operation and maintenance program. This chapter documents existing practices 
and identifies changes that may improve system operation and maintenance. 

8.2   Water System Management and Personnel 

The City currently has four full-time water system personnel who operate the water system on a 
day-to-day basis. The Public Works Department (Public Works) Director, the Street, Water, 
Equipment Maintenance, and Repair (EM&R) Superintendent, and the City Engineer divide their 
time between water system operations and other duties of Public Works. Meanwhile, staff 
members at City Hall input water use information for billing purposes, prepare monthly water 
bills, collect payments from customers, and perform other water system administrative duties. 
The Public Works organization chart can be seen in Figure 8.1. 

 



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 8 | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

8-2 | JULY 2021  

 

Figure 8.1 Public Works Organizational Chart 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 8 |CITY OF SHELTON 

  JULY 2021 | 8-3 

8.2.1   Public Works Director, City Engineer, and Superintendent of Public Works 

The Public Works Director, City Engineer, and Street, Water, EM&R Superintendent work 
together to develop the annual operating budget, provide staff oversight, plan reviews of new 
projects, and respond to customer complaints. The positions are filled as follows: 

• Public Works Director: Jay Harris. 
• City Engineer: Ken Gill. 
• Street, Water, EM&R Superintendent: Mike Albaugh. 

8.2.2   Operations Staff 

Operations staff conduct the day-to-day work necessary to maintain, operate, test, analyze, and 
repair the system to sustain proper operation and system longevity. The staff performs monthly 
meter readings to use when preparing the monthly water bills, issues water meters for new 
customers, checks that sufficient supplies and tools are available, orders chemical supplies, 
monitors equipment, and repairs the system.  

The Water Field Supervisor (Matt Deemer) coordinates work items and schedules necessary 
repair and maintenance tasks.  

The City’s water system is classified as Group 2 (defined in WAC 246-292-040: population served 
is 1,501 – 15,000). The City is legally required to designate a certified operator who will take 
charge of the daily operational activities of the public water system, treatment facility, and 
distribution system. The following staff members have certificates related to the water system 
operations: 

• Matt Deemer (Operator number: 013013). 
• Rodgar Garrick (Operator number: 014833). 

In addition to the water system staff, the following members are general Public Works 
operators: 

• Dale Brewer. 
• Robert Chavis. 
• Matt Dickson. 
• Mat Duncan. 
• John Evans. 
• Donnie Henson. 
• Brady Jones. 
• Danny Phipps. 
• Todd Rhodes. 
• Brent Smotherman. 
• Kallin Somero. 
• Tallan Sytsma. 

8.2.3   Cross-Connection Control Specialist 

The Cross-Connection Control Specialist (CCCS) implements the Cross-Connection Control (CCC) 
Plan, meaning they are responsible for testing, monitoring, repairing, and recording necessary 
information pertaining to CCC, as well as preparing the annual Cross-Connection Report in 



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 8 | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

8-4 | JULY 2021  

compliance with the Washington State Department of Health (DOH). The City’s CCCS is Rodgar 
Garrik. The CCCS also works with the City’s building inspector to review plans and make sure that 
approved CCC devices are installed during construction. 

8.2.4   City Manager 

The City Manager administers City business and oversees and supervises all City departments, 
including Public Works and the Water Department. The City Manager also keeps the 
City Council (Council) informed about the status of City programs, as well as current issues, 
opportunities, and problems that may affect the operations of the water system. 

8.2.5   Mayor and City Council 

The Mayor and Council sets policy and water system rate schedules, approves ordinances, and 
serves as a sounding board for public response, feedback, and guidance. The Mayor and Council 
also approve water system budgets and organizes city-wide priorities.  

8.3   Operator Training  

The City supports professional training and development and provides funding and time away 
from work to attend training. 

8.4   Operating Procedures and Preventative Maintenance 

This section of the chapter summarizes routine system operations, the preventative 
maintenance program, and equipment, supplies, and chemical listings. 

8.4.1   Routine System Operation 

The following information describes general operating guidelines for components of the City’s 
water system.  

As new facilities are constructed and put into service, more detailed operations and 
maintenance (O&M) directions are prepared and used to supplement the directions provided 
below. 

8.4.1.1   Startup and Shutdown Procedures 

Well Pumps 

Prior to starting well pumps, all line valves should be opened. Tools, rags, and other objects that 
may foul the pumps should be removed prior to energizing the motor.  

If work is to be done on the pump, the electric power disconnection switch should be locked out 
and tagged out in accordance with the City’s lockout procedures and Labor and Industries’ code 
requirements. 

Standby Generator 

Startup and shutdown procedures for the standby generator should be executed in accordance 
with its manufacturer’s recommendations. During maintenance activities on the connected 
equipment, the generator should be locked out and prevented from starting. 

8.4.1.2   Meter Reading 

The City reads the meters on a monthly basis. Water Department personnel follow a regular 
route to manually read the meters. 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 8 |CITY OF SHELTON 

  JULY 2021 | 8-5 

Flow meter readings are read at the wells on Mondays and the last day of the month (excluding 
weekends and holidays), manually recorded in a system log book, and logged into the Water 
Department’s computer. 

8.4.1.3   System Performance Evaluation 

Public Works has developed a set of performance standards to evaluate the City’s water system 
performance. The implemented maintenance system tracks and report the following statistics 
and criteria on the standards.  

8.4.2   Preventive Maintenance Program 

A preventive maintenance program is important to maximizing the life span of the water system 
facilities and equipment and reducing the need for reactive operation of the system. Preventive 
maintenance tasks for the City’s water system include the following. 

8.4.2.1   Well pumps  

• Inspect and test to ensure proper operation. 
• Lubricate as recommended by the manufacturer. 
• Test pump controls to ensure proper operation.  
• Observe conditions and check statuses on a weekly basis.  
• Monitor pumping status continuously through the supervisory control and data 

acquisition (SCADA) system. 
• Read static well levels every Monday. 

8.4.2.2   Generator 

• Inspect and operate under a load on a weekly basis. 
• Maintain in accordance with the manufacturer’s recommendation. 

8.4.2.3   Source meters  

• Test and calibrate on an annual basis.  

8.4.2.4   Water treatment system  

• Inspect chlorinators and injection pumps daily to ensure proper operation. 
• Follow the manufacturer’s recommended maintenance requirements. 
• Inspect injection line (above ground) for cracks or leaks. 
• Account for safety equipment and inspect for proper operation.  

8.4.2.5   Reservoirs  

• Check for vandalism or unauthorized intrusions every Monday morning.  
• Inspect annually for damage to the foundation.  
• Inspect and operate roof entry for proper operation.  
• Inspect overflow to ensure that the overflow pipe is not blocked or restricted.  
• Inspect water level indicator and well pump control system. 
• Inspect interior coating at least every 10 years and re-coat as necessary.  
• Inspect the structural integrity of elevated towers.  
• Inspect the exterior of reservoirs and clean or paint as necessary.  



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 8 | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

8-6 | JULY 2021  

8.4.2.6   Water meters  

• Inspect monthly during readings for leaks, condensation, or improper operation, and 
replace as necessary.  

• Test 3/4-inch (in) and 1-in meters every 10 years and replace if necessary: if less 
expensive, replacing the meters is recommended over testing and repairing them.  

• Test and calibrate 2-in or larger meters every 5 to 10 years.  

8.4.2.7   Distribution System 

Flush distribution lines 

Dead-end water lines are susceptible to water quality problems and should be flushed on a 
quarterly basis or more frequently to remove stagnant water and debris that may have been 
deposited. Flushing of all dead-end mains should also be accomplished twice a year or more 
often if water quality complaints are filed.  

The City currently flushes dead-end mains at certain locations once a month and other locations 
depending on customer complaints. The City is in the process of developing a systematic 
approach to water-main flushing. 

The following activities are preventative tasks for the distribution system: 

• Conduct leak detection annually and repair water lines where leaks are detected.  
• Flush lines on a planned basis to remove collected debris.  
• Conduct hydrant flow testing during line flushing operations, then collect and forward 

the data to the City Engineer for recording: this information can be used to calibrate the 
water system model.  

• Hydrants: 
- Inspect annually for leaks or damage. 
- Paint as necessary to protect them from the elements. 

• Valves:  
- Inspect valve boxes for excess debris and remove as necessary to ensure easy valve 

operation.  
- Exercise annually to ensure proper operation and replace defective valves as soon as 

possible.  
- Check to see if valves are completely open: a partially-closed valve can significantly 

reduce peak day operation and fire flow supply.  

8.4.2.8   Well Houses 

• Keep neat and clean. 
• Paint as necessary. 
• Inspect venting and equipment manually. 

8.4.3   Equipment, Supplies, and Chemical Listing 

The City maintains an inventory of parts and supplies, including appurtenances needed to make 
emergency repairs. The materials on hand are necessary to repair leaks in every size and type of 
pipe in the system.  



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 8 |CITY OF SHELTON 

  JULY 2021 | 8-7 

The inventory is updated every month as purchase invoices and crew reports are received. The 
quantity and type of materials in storage are checked periodically against the electronic record 
to ensure accuracy.  

Individual equipment manuals and operations documents are kept near the equipment, as well 
as material safety data sheets (MSDS) for the chemicals stored in the water system facilities. 
Appendix 8B includes the O&M Information for SCADA and chlorination systems as well as the 
Material Safety Data Sheets. 

8.4.4   Vendor Contacts 

Table 8.1 outlines vendor contacts for services and equipment. 

Table 8.1 Vendor Contacts 

Vendor Type Company Phone Number 

Electrician Wave Length Electric 360-704-8636 

Electric Utility P.U.D. #3 360-426-8255 Ext. 3233 

Pipe/Fitting Suppliers H.D. Fowler Company 360-377-4507 

Pipe/Fitting Suppliers Ferguson Waterworks 360-688-8482 

Soil Excavator Contractor Manke Excavating 360-426-0834 

Equipment Rental United Rentals 360-786-8408 

Natural Gas Cascade Natural Gas 1-800-244-4351 
Note: 
(1) Contacts as listed in the Emergency Response Plan. 

8.5   Water Quality Sampling Procedures and Program 

The City is required to test its well sources and distribution system for water quality and to 
sample its overall system’s water quality at representative locations within its distribution 
system. These sampling tests help the City determine if the public health protection provided to 
customers is adequate. Sampling requirements are primarily established by federal rule, adopted 
by the state, and enforced by DOH. Required water quality tests and testing schedules are 
provided in the Drinking Water Quality Monitoring Program included in Chapter 6.  

8.6   Emergency Response Program 

A water system emergency includes any event that may degrade the quality or quantity of 
potable water supplies made available to customers. Minor emergencies consist of broken pipes, 
sticking valves, broken hydrants, or short-term power outages. Major emergencies affect the 
entire or large portions of the water system, lower the quality and quantity of the water, and 
may put the health and safety of the community at risk.  

An important component of any emergency response program is an efficient set of notification 
procedures that inform system customers, the local health department, and the DOH of water 
quality emergencies. For instance, emergencies such as floods, earthquakes, and other disasters 
can affect water quality as a result of damage to water system facilities, thereby warranting a 
boil water order in advance of supply. Appendix 6C includes a suggested boil water notification.  



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 8 | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

8-8 | JULY 2021  

Depending on the emergency type and severity, water system personnel are typically the first to 
respond to a water system emergency. When an emergency is declared, the Public Works 
Director is the emergency contact for Public Works.  

The City has completed an Emergency Response Plan (see Appendix 8A), which identifies 
procedures for dealing with a water-system-related emergency and provides contact numbers 
for personnel.  

8.6.1   Water System Personnel, Emergency Call-up List, and Notification Procedures 

In the event of a water system emergency, the extent of public notification required is 
determined by the Public Works Director. Depending on the extent of the emergency, several 
options are available, which include the following:  

• Door-to-door notifications (using door hangers if no one is home). 
• Local radio announcements (e.g., KMAS). 
• Press releases to the Shelton-Mason County Journal and Olympian newspapers.  
• Notices on City’s website.  

Table 8.2 shows an emergency call-up list.  

Table 8.2 Emergency Call-up List 

Title Contact Phone number 

Fire/Police  911 

Public Works Director Jay Harris (360) 490-8567 

Street, Water, EM&R 
Superintendent 

Mike Albaugh (360) 432-5186 

Water Field Supervisor Matt Deemer (360) 432-5187 

Water Quality Specialist Rodgar Garrick (360) 810-0842 

City Shop Water Department (360) 432-5187 

Washington State 
Department of Health 

SW Regional Office 

(360) 407-6300 
(360) 236-3030 (Emergency) 
(877) 481-4901 (Emergency 
After hours) 

Washington State  
Department of Ecology 

 
(360) 407-6300 (Emergency 
After Hours) 

8.6.2   Vulnerability Analysis 

The Emergency Response Plan includes a vulnerability analysis worksheet for each major facility 
or component in the City’s water system. These worksheets examine the facilities’ vulnerability 
to failure or damage and the resulting consequences. As new facilities are constructed, these 
analyses must be updated.  

The City prepared a Security Vulnerability Self-Assessment as required by the Public Health and 
Security and Bioterrorism Preparedness and Response Act of 2002. This assessment is 
considered confidential information and is kept on file at City Hall. 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 8 |CITY OF SHELTON 

  JULY 2021 | 8-9 

8.6.3   Contingency Operational Plan 

The City has identified emergency water sources in the event of a well failure (see Chapter 6). 
Because all three wells are hydraulically independent, the mechanical failure of any one well 
won’t necessarily cause an emergency. However, since Wells 3 and 4 are located nearby and 
draw at least some of their water from the same aquifer, contamination of that aquifer could 
likely affect both wells. Well 1 is also in part in the same aquifer as Wells 3 and 4 and could be 
susceptible to the same contamination. However, given the physical distance between the wells 
likely provides the City warning and time to address contamination before reaching all three 
wells.  

Until an actual contamination event occurs, it’s impossible to anticipate where the 
contamination will come from or what it will look like. Therefore, in the event of contamination 
to the most major sources of water, one or several of the following actions must take place:  

• Isolate the contaminated source from the system and utilize the remaining water 
sources and storage to supply customers.  

• Impose outdoor watering restrictions and usage curtailment as required.  
• Supplement the storage tanks with water hauled from a nearby public water system or 

provide bottled water to customers.  
• Accelerate the new well in the City’s south side in the Angleside Pressure Zone (as 

mentioned in Chapter 2) if one or more of the existing wells experience long-term loss 
of use. 

8.7   Safety Procedures 

Worker safety is the responsibility of all water system employees. The best way to prevent 
injuries is to sufficiently train workers to identify dangerous situations and stop operations until 
safer methods can be used. Areas of concern for water system employees include the following:  

• Sodium hypochlorite hazards. 
• Trench excavation. 
• Electrical hazards. 
• Asbestos cement (AC) pipe handling. 
• Pressure line dangers. 
• Confined space entry. 
• Chemical dangers. 
• Traffic control procedures. 
• Animal control methods and procedures.  

In 2001, the City prepared an Accident Prevention Manual, which provides proper procedures to 
minimize the risk of an accident in the workplace, as well as instructions and protocol that should 
be followed in the event of an accident. A copy of this manual is maintained at the Water 
Department shops.  

The City follows Washington State’s safety regulations set forth in the Washington 
Administrative Code (WAC) 296.155. The City also has first aid kits located in the Public Works 
building and each Water Department vehicle.  

All Water Department staff members have current certifications for first aid and CPR. 



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 8 | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

8-10 | JULY 2021  

8.8   Cross-Connection Control Program 

The City has implemented a CCC program whose manual can be found in Appendix 8D. Said 
manual provides the following information:  

• An ordinance that establishes legal authority to implement the CCC program. 
• Priorities for conducting the system inventory. 
• Consequences for failing to comply with the ordinance. 
• Qualified testers of the backflow prevention assemblies (BPAs) and CCCSs. 
• Guidelines for assessing the degree of hazard associated with identified 

cross-connections. 
• Guidelines for appropriate application of BPAs. 
• Standards for installation and testing of approved BPAs. 
• Detailed procedures for conducting hazard surveys of new and existing connections. 
• Requirements that state that only approved BPAs shall be installed when required. 
• Procedures to check that all installed BPAs are tested as required. 
• Methods to provide an adequate system of records. 
• General information for water system customers that describes the methods and 

purpose of the City’s CCC program. 

8.9   Customer Complaint Response Program 

The City maintains a list of complaints and identifies any actions taken to respond to complaints 
where public health was at risk. When the Water Department receives a complaint, a complaint 
form is filled out and filed at City Hall. 

8.10   Record-Keeping and Reporting 

The following procedures are for keeping and compiling records and reports. Table 8.3 outlines 
the records that are maintained by Water Department staff and the recommended time period 
to keep the records. 

Table 8.3 Record-Keeping and Reporting 

Record Recommended Time Period 

Water quality test results 6 years 

Annual and monthly consumption records 6 years 

Annual and monthly billed volume records 6 years 

Complaint log 6 years 

Maintenance records 6 years 

Injury records As required by insurance and the state of Washington 

Line replacement and upgrades 6 years 

Valve exercising records 6 years 

Hydrant testing and records 6 years 

Pressure testing results 6 years 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 8 |CITY OF SHELTON 

  JULY 2021 | 8-11 

8.11   Operations and Maintenance Deficiencies  

Based on the analysis of the City’s O&M Programs, the City does not have any O&M deficiencies 
that require improvements. 

8.12   Operations and Maintenance Recommendations 

The America’s Water Infrastructure Act (AWIA) of 2018 will require the City to develop a risk 
assessment and potentially update its emergency response plan by 2021 to meet AWIA 
requirements. It is recommended the City plan to complete a capital project to assist in meeting 
the AWIA requirements that are summarized in Table 8.4. 

It is recommended that the City has an annual budget to complete necessary repair and 
replacement projects as needed. This budget would include yearly pavement preservation and 
rehabilitation projects and GIS, asset management, and work order system. 

Additional projects the City has planned related to operations and maintenance include the 
following: 

• Water Meter Advanced Metering Infrastructure (AMI) Upgrade. 
• Maintenance Facility Expansion. 
• Onsite Chlorine Generation. 
• New Generator for Wells 3 & 4. 
• High School Tank Re-Coating. 

 





WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 8 |CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | 8-13 

Table 8.4 America’s Water Infrastructure Act Requirements 

Requirement Description Certification Deadline(1) 

Risk Assessment 

Each community water system serving a population of greater than 3,300 persons shall access the risks to, and resilience of, its system. Such an assessment 
shall include: 

1. The risk to the system from malevolent acts and natural hazards; 
2. The resilience of the pipes and constructed conveyances, physical barriers, source water, water collection and intake, pretreatment, treatment, 

storage and distribution facilities, electronic, computer, or other automated systems (including the security of such systems) which are utilized by 
the system; 

3. The monitoring practices of the system; 
4. The financial infrastructure of the system; 
5. The use, storage, or handling of various chemicals by the system; and 
6. The operation and maintenance of the system. 

June 30, 2021 

Emergency Response Plan 

No later than six months after certifying completion of its risk and resilience assessment, each system must prepare or revise, where necessary, an 
emergency response plan that incorporates the findings of the assessment. The plan shall include: 

1. Strategies and resources to improve the resilience of the system, including the physical security and cybersecurity of the system; 
2. Plans and procedures that can be implemented, and identification of equipment that can be utilized, in the event of a malevolent act or natural 

hazard that threatens the ability of the community water system to deliver safe drinking water; 
3. Actions, procedures and equipment which can obviate or significantly lessen the impact of a malevolent act or natural hazard on the public health 

and the safety and supply of drinking water provided to communities and individuals, including the development of alternative source water 
options, relocation of water intakes and construction of flood protection barriers; and 

4. Strategies that can be used to aid in the detection of malevolent acts or natural hazards that threaten the security or resilience of the system. 
Community water systems shall to the extent possible coordinate with local emergency planning committees established under the Emergency Planning 
and Community Right-To-Know Act of 1986 when preparing or revising an assessment or emergency response plan under the AWIA. Further, systems must 
maintain a copy of the assessment and emergency response plan for five years after certifying the plan to the USEPA.  

December 30, 2021 

Note: 
(1) Certification deadlines for community drinking water systems serving population of 3,301 - 49,999. 
Abbreviation: USEPA - United States Environment Protection Agency. 

 

 





WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 9 | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | 9-1 

Chapter 9 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

9.1   Introduction  

This chapter summarizes the Capital Improvement Program (CIP) for the City of Shelton’s (City’s) 
Water System Comprehensive Plan Update. The purpose of this chapter is to describe the CIP 
projects and programs and to provide the City with a guideline for the planning and budget of its 
water system. The CIP consists of the cost estimates and schedules for the recommended 
projects.  

The following sections present the cost estimating assumptions, recommended projects, 
individual project costs, and a summary of the CIP.  

9.1.1   Capital Project Categories 

Capital Projects were categorized by the type of infrastructure involved, including: 

• Supply (S): New well projects and improvement projects related to existing sources of 
supply. 

• Storage (ST): New reservoir projects and improvement projects related to existing 
storage reservoirs. 

• Pressure Zone (PZ): Improvement projects that consist of changes to the operations of 
pressure zones.  

• Pump Station (PS): New pump station projects and improvement projects related to 
existing pump stations. 

• Distribution System (D): Projects that contain new pipe and pipe upsizing projects.  
• General (G): General water system projects and annual projects that occur system-wide 

and include repair and replacement (R&R) projects and fire flow response projects. 

9.1.2   Capital Project Types  

Projects were allocated into three types to support development of rates and standard 
development charges (SDC):  

1. Growth – Projects that provide additional system capacity to meet future demand 
growth. These projects are typically funded by connection fees and the developer 
community. 

2. R&R – Non-growth-related projects that involve replacing or maintaining existing 
infrastructure without increasing capacity or level-of-service. These projects are 
typically funded by rates. 

3. Level of Service – Projects that increase level-of-service (i.e., redundant pumping, 
backup power, fire flow, system reliability, etc.) of existing infrastructure. In some cases 
the City’s current fire flow standards are higher than those in place when the existing 
pipes were installed. Projects that upsize pipes to be able to convey current fire flow 



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 9 | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

9-2 | JULY 2021   

volume requirements are considered system improvements. These projects are typically 
funded by rates. 

Projects may include elements of multiple capital project types. Each project was defined as one 
or more of the three project types by assigning a percentage of the total project cost to each 
project type. The allocations between multiple types were made based on professional 
judgment. 

9.2    Cost Estimating Assumptions 

9.2.1   Cost Estimate Level 

The CIP cost estimates presented in this chapter are Class 5 estimates, as established by the 
American Associate of Cost Estimators (AACE). Class 5 estimates are budget level estimates. 
Actual costs may vary from these estimates by -30 percent to +50 percent. These costs were 
determined using both Carollo Engineers, Inc. (Carollo’s) understanding of project locations and 
current conditions and the City’s costs for similar and recently constructed capital projects. The 
cost estimates have been prepared for the general master planning purposes. Capital costs, or 
“total project costs”, are presented in the CIP. 

All costs are in 2019 dollars. The Engineering News Report (ENR) Construction Cost Index for 
a 20-city average for November 2019 is 11381. Estimates are subject to change as the project 
design matures. Cost of labor, materials, and equipment may vary in the future. 

9.2.2   Pipeline Unit Costs 

Pipeline unit cost assumptions are shown in Table 9.1. These costs were developed from recent 
construction costs of various water pipelines. To be conservative, these unit costs assume 
open-trench construction in improved areas. If trenchless construction is possible for some 
projects, the cost estimates may need to be modified. Costs include pavement cutting, 
excavation, hauling, shoring, pipe materials and installation, backfill material and installation, 
and pavement replacement. The unit costs are for “typical” field conditions with construction in 
stable soil at a depth ranging between 3 to 5 feet. Contingencies are not included in these 
assumptions. 

Table 9.1 Pipeline Unit Cost 

Pipe Diameter (inches) Construction Cost ($/LF) 

8 $180 

10 $200 

12 $220 

16 $240 

18 $260 

24 $310 
Note:  
Abbreviation: LF – linear feet.  

9.2.3   Supply Costs 

Table 9.2 outlines the supply unit cost assumptions. New supply project costs were developed 
based on typical costs from past projects and by the City. Contingencies are not included in these 
assumptions. 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 9 | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | 9-3 

Table 9.2 Supply Unit Costs 

Supply Cost (unit) Notes 

New Groundwater Well  $1,500 (per gpm) 

Based on engineer estimate and previous 
projects. Includes a production well, site work, a 

structure, and all mechanical and electrical 
equipment. 

Note  
Abbreviations: gpm - gallons per minute. 

9.2.4   Storage Costs 

New storage project costs were developed based on typical costs from past projects. Conceptual 
costs for reservoirs vary by type: ground, standpipe, and elevated. Costs are estimates based on 
reservoir volume in gallons (gal), as presented in Table 9.3. Unit construction costs include site 
work, a structure, mechanical and electrical equipment, and piping to connect to the distribution 
system. Storage costs are sensitive to site-specific geotechnical and seismic considerations; 
therefore, it is recommended that a reservoir siting study that addresses these issues be 
conducted at the initiation of a new storage project. Contingencies are not included in these 
assumptions. 

Table 9.3 Reservoir Unit Costs 

Reservoir Type Cost per gallon ($/gal) 

Ground $1.5 

Elevated $4 
Note: 
(1) Reservoir unit costs are for construction only. 

9.2.5   Pump Station Costs 

Pump Station costs were developed based on typical costs from past projects. Cost estimates 
are based on pump horsepower (hp), as presented in Table 9.4. Contingencies are not included in 
these assumptions. 

Table 9.4 Pump Station Costs 

Pump Size (hp) Cost per HP ($/hp) 

< 200 hp $14,800 

>= 200 hp $10,700 

9.2.6   Miscellaneous Costs 

Other costs for the CIP include a generator and a pressure reducing valve (PRV) station. Table 9.5 
outlines the conceptual cost, which are estimated based on past projects. Contingencies are not 
included in these assumptions. 

Table 9.5 Miscellaneous Costs 

Type Unit Cost 

Generator $200,000 (per 100 hp) 

PRV Station $200,000 (each) 



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 9 | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

9-4 | JULY 2021   

9.2.7   Cost Factors and Contingency  

To estimate a total project cost, cost factors and contingencies were added to the construction 
costs. Table 9.6 summarizes the contingency costs used for the cost estimate. The total project 
costs include an additional 30 percent for construction contingency, 30 percent for engineering, 
legal, and design costs, and 10 percent for administrative costs.  

Table 9.6 Contingency Costs 

Contingency Percent of Subtotal Cost 

Construction Contingency 30% 

Engineering/Legal/Design Costs 30% 

City Admin Costs 10% 

9.3   Cost Summary 

CIP projects were identified based on the analyses presented in previous chapters. The CIP 
projects summarized in Table 9.7 are in 2019 dollars and have not been escalated. The table 
presents the costs for the short-, and long-term planning horizons. Additionally, the table 
separates project costs between the capital project types (i.e., Growth, R&R, and Improvement). 
The table provides a subtotal, total project cost, and average annual cost for all CIP projects. 
Figure 9.1 shows the CIP project locations. 

 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 9 | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | 9-5 

Table 9.7 Capital Improvement Program Summary 

 
Notes:  
(1) CIP Project Subtotal is project cost before contingency costs are added. 
(2) CIP Project cost provided by City. 
(3) Projects are developer-driven so costs are no included in the City’s CIP Program. 





UT

UT

UT

UT

UT

UT

"=)

"=)
"=)

"=)

UT

UT"=)

UT

UT

"=)

"=)

"=)

!ã

!ã!ã

"b )
"b )

"b ) "b )

"b )

"b )"b )

"b )
"b )

"b )

"b )

"b )
"b )

Well 3

Well 1

Well 4
Mt. View Reservoir
(0.61 MG)

Angleside Reservoir
(0.50 MG)

High School
Reservoir (0.51 MG)

Capitol Hill
Reservoir (0.22 MG)

Upper Mt. View Elevated
Reservoir(0.41 MG)

1S
T

RAILROAD

ISLAND LAKE

DEARBORN

ARCADIA

HARVARD

7T
H

16
TH

H
U

LB
E

R
T

K

SANDERSON

SHELTON MATLOCK
FAIRMOUNT

WALKER PARK

BR
O

C
KD

A
LE

BATSTONE CUT OFF

C

E

NORTHCLIFF

11
TH

9T
H

FR
O

N
T

BE
A

R

F

7T
H

J

A
B

H

G
D

THOMAS

KINEO

13
TH

PU
G

E
T

FRANKLIN

ALDER

PINE

BO
U

N
D

AR
Y

DICKINSON

LAKE
M

ADISO
N

SUMMIT

PA
C

IF
IC

W
ASHING

TO
N

SENTRY
GRANT

EUCLID

AL
D

ER

ALDERMANOR

LITTLE BEAR

HA
W

TH
ORN

HIGHLAND

DAYTON AIRPORT

TURNER

SANJOAQUIN

ALPINE

EV
A

N
MILL CREEK

CL
O

Q
UA

LL
UM

EX
P

O
R

T

M
IL

LW
R

IG
H

T

SHELTON

SPRINGS

PEACOCK HILL

ST
AT

E 
R

O
UT

E 
3

HICKAM

WALLACE KNEELAND

SHADOW
VALLEY

PARK

SHELTON VALLEY

U
S 

H
IG

H
W

AY
 1

01

JOH N S PR AIRIE

FAIRGROUNDS

C
AP

IT
A

L 
H

IL
L

DE
EG

AN

GD G OOSE LAK E MA IN
LIN

E

Te
xtOLY

MPIC
 H

W
Y

£¤101

I s l a n d
L a k e

O a k l a n d  B a y

Angleside Reservoir BPS

New Upper
Mt. View BPS

PS-02

PS-01

PS-03, ST-01

PZ-02

PZ-02

PZ-01

S-03, S-04

S-03

S-
02

ST-04

New Upper
Mt. View
Reservoir
(0.41 MG)

Angleside BPS

Mt View PS

Capital Hill
BPS

New Mt. View
Reservoir (1.0 MG)

D-
05

D-
03

D-
04

D-01 D-02

Last Revised: April 02, 2021 pw://IO-PW-INT.Carollo.local:Carollo/Documents/Client/WA/Shelton/10669A00/Data/GIS/Fig9.1_CIP_Projects.mxd

O
0 0.50.25

Miles

Disclaimer: Features shown in this 
figure are for planning purposes and
represent approximate locations. 
Engineering and/or survey accuracy
is not implied.

Data Sources: City of Shelton. 
Washington State Dept. of
Natural Resources

 Figure 9.1  Capital Improvement Program Projects

WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 9 | CITY OF SHELTON

Legend

Pressure Zone

"b ) Valve

Recommended Pressure Zone
Projects

Recommended Distribution System
Improvements

!ã Recommended Supply Projects

"=)
Recommended Pump Station
Projects

UT Recommended Storage Projects

"=) Future Pump Station

UT Future Reservoir

UT Shelton Hills Reservoir

Shelton Hills Pipeline

"=) Inactive Pump Station

UT Decommissioned Reservoir

"=) Pump Station

UT Reservoir

Pipeline

Streets

Shelton Urban Growth Area

Future Service Area

Parcels

Water Bodies

Angleside Zone

Capitol Hill Zone

High School Zone

Mountain View Zone

Upper Mountain View Zone



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 9 | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

9-8 | JULY 2021   

9.4   Project Descriptions 

Project descriptions for each of the recommended CIP projects, including a location map (if 
applicable) and project cost summary can be found in Appendix 9A. 

9.5   CIP Cost Summary 

The CIP projects were summarized by project type and category in Tables 9.8 and 9.9, 
respectively. The total Water CIP cost over the next 20 years is approximately $30.4 million, 
which equates to approximately $1,521,000 annually in current dollars. Of the total cost, 
$6.7 million is budgeted for the short-term phase and approximately $20.8 million is budgeted 
for the long-term phase. 

When considering CIP costs by project type, approximately 63 percent of the CIP costs are Level 
of Service projects. R&R projects make up approximately 19 percent of the CIP costs, and growth 
projects make up about 18 percent of the CIP costs. 

When considering CIP costs by project category, as shown in Table 9.9, approximately 19 percent 
of the CIP costs occur from general projects. Storage projects make up approximately 26 percent 
of the CIP, and pump station projects make up approximately 24 percent of the CIP.  

Table 9.8 CIP Summary by Project Type 

Project Type 
Total CIP Cost 

Estimate 

CIP Phasing 

Short-term 
(2021 – 2030) 

Long-term 
(2031 – 2041) 

Growth $ 5,515,500 $ 1,555,500 $  3,960,000  

Repair & Replacement $ 5,859,000 $ 3,599,000 $  2,260,000  

Level of Service $ 19,043,500 $ 4,513,500 $  14,530,000  

Total Cost $ 30,418,000 $ 9,668,000 $  20,750,000 

Annual Cost $ 1,521,000 $ 967,000 $ 2,075,000 

Table 9.9 CIP Summary by Project Category 

Project Category Total CIP Percentage 

General $ 5,904,000 19.4% 

Supply $ 4,884,000  16.1% 

Pressure Zone $ 2,972,000  9.8% 

Storage $ 7,980,000  26.2% 

Pump Station $ 7,361,000  24.2% 

Distribution Pipeline $ 1,317,000  4.3% 

Total $ 30,418,000  100% 

 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 10 | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | 10-1 

Chapter 10 

FINANCIAL PLAN 

10.1   Introduction  

This chapter summarizes the financial status of the City of Shelton’s (City) water utility and 
provides a cursory evaluation of the City’s ability to finance necessary capital improvements 
identified in the Capital Improvement Program (CIP) as outlined in Chapter 9. Financial status of 
the City’s water utility, funding required to finance the scheduled improvements, and the impact 
of water system improvements on water rates are presented.  

10.2    Historical Financial Performance 

This section summarizes the current water rates, fees, and charges, the historical financial 
operations, and outstanding debts. 

10.2.1   Current Water Rates, Fees, and Charges 

The City has the following rate categories for their water system customers: 

• Single-Family Residential. 
• Multi-Family. 
• Commercial. 
• Irrigation. 
• Wholesale. 

10.2.1.1   Monthly Meter Charge 

The monthly charge for customers is based on meter size and on customer type, as shown in 
Table 10.1.  

Table 10.1 2020 Water Base Rate Monthly Meter Charge 

Meter Size 
(inches) 

Single Family Multifamily Commercial Irrigation 
Private Fire 

Line 
3/4 $14.11  $12.44 $12.02 $37.28 $9.02 
1 $18.33 $15.53 $14.84 $57.03 10.79 
1.5 $27.23 $21.64 $20.24 $104.39 $13.90 
2 $40.76 $31.82 $29.60 $164.26 $19.93 
3 $100.38 $82.48 $78.05 $347.63 $55.25 
4 $139.61 $111.64 $104.68 $525.90 $72.23 
6 $242.45 $186.54 $172.64 $1,014.79 $114.39 

Note:  
(1) Source: Shelton Municipal Code, Title 15, Chapter 15.28: Water Service – Rates and Charges (December 2019). 

10.2.1.2   Consumption Charge 

In addition to the monthly charge, customers also pay a usage-based consumption charge per 
cubic feet (CF) water consumed. Table 10.2 shows the City’s consumption charges for each 



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 10 | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

10-2 | JULY 2021  

customer type. Single-family residential customers have a three-block tier system based on their 
volume of water consumed. Multi-family, commercial, irrigation, and wholesale customers are 
charged a uniform rate per CF of usage.   

Table 10.2 2020 Consumption Charges 

Customer Type Volume of Water 
Consumption Charge  

(per CF) 

Single-Family Residential  

0 to 600 CF $0.0295  

601 to 1,500 CF $0.0354 

1,500 or greater CF $0.0439 

Multi-Family  $0.0343  

Commercial  $0.0338 

Irrigation  $0.0439  

Wholesale  $0.0305 
Note:  
(1) Source: Shelton Municipal Code, Title 15, Chapter 15.28: Water Service – Rates and Charges (December 2019). 

10.2.1.3   Senior Citizen and Disability Discounts 

Eligible low-income senior citizens and disabled persons living in single-family residences receive 
a discount of seventeen percent of the basic meter charge per month.  

10.2.1.4   General Facility Charge 

General facility charges (GFC) are one-time charges paid by new developments to reimburse 
existing utility customers for costs previously paid to construct current system capacity 
improvements or to help finance planned future growth-related capacity improvements. The 
charges help ensure that all customers connecting to the system bear an equitable share of costs 
that have been or will be invested to provide capacity needed to serve them and any further 
growth-related expansion. GFC revenues are deposited in the Utility’s capital fund and are used 
to help support current and future capital expenditures. The current GFC rates are shown in 
Table 10.3. 

Table 10.3 Current General Facility Charges 

Water Meter Size Fee 

3/4” $1,260 

1” $3,150 

1.5” $6,300 

2” $10,080 

3” $18,900 

4” $31,500 

6” $63,000 

8” $100,800 
Note:  
(1) Source: City of Shelton Master Fee Schedule (effective date: January 1, 2021). 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 10 | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | 10-3 

10.2.2   Historical Financial Operations 

The City’s operating revenues for the years 2016 to 2019 are summarized in Table 10.4. 
Table 10.4 also includes the City’s 2020 budget operating revenues. The largest revenue 
generating item is water sales. Other revenue the City receives is through GFCs, investment 
interest, and miscellaneous revenue, which includes penalties, service charges, leases, and 
rentals. 

Table 10.5 shows a summary of the City’s operating expenses from 2016 to 2019. Table 10.5 also 
shows the City’s 2020 budget operating expenses. Operating expenses include salaries and 
wages, personnel benefits, Interfund payments, and other miscellaneous expenses. Operating 
expenses also include debt service payments, which are shown in Table 10.5. 

10.2.3   Outstanding Debt 

The City holds the following outstanding bonds: 

• Water Revenue & Re-Funding Bonds: The principal and interest payment for this bond 
are approximately $245,000 per year. This bond is a revenue bond with an interest rate 
of 3.0 percent and is payable to US Bank. The bond was initiated on July 10, 2013 and 
has a maturity date of December 1, 2032. The beginning balance in 2020 for the bond 
was approximately $2,385,000. 

• Upper Mountain View Pressure Zone Loan: The principal and interest payment for this 
loan are approximately $130,000 per year. This loan is a Washington State Public Works 
Board (PWB) Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) Loan with an interest rate 
of 1.0 percent and is payable to the Washington State Department of Health (DOH). 
This loan was initiated on October 1, 2014 and has a maturity date of October 1, 2037. 
The beginning balance in 2020 for the loan was approximately $1,993,662.  

 



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 10 | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

10-4 | JULY 2021  

Table 10.4 Historical Operating Revenue 

Operating Revenue 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 Budget 

Water Sales $1,778,129  $1,816,921 $1,929,464 $2,110,192 $2,347,090  

Other Revenue $1,251,450 $137,549 $390,444 $409,068 $127,000 

Total $3,029,579  $1,954,469 $2,319,907  $2,519,260  $2,474,090  
Notes:  
(1) Source: City’s Financial Statements from 2015-2019 Budget Report. 
(2) Other revenue includes investment interest, connection charges, and miscellaneous revenue. 
 

 

Table 10.5 Historical Operating Expenses 

Operating Expenses 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 Budget 

Operating Expenses $2,996,121 $1,430,224 $1,574,906 $1,790,854 $2,009,610 

Debt Service Payments $233,940  $245,138  $420,916  $373,991  $373,990 

Total $3,230,060  $1,675,362 $1,995,823 $2,164,844 $2,383,000 
Notes:  
(1) Source: City’s Financial Statements from 2015-2019 Budget Report. 
(2) Operating expenses include salaries and wages, personnel benefits, Interfund payments, and other expenses. Does not include depreciation. 

 

 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 10 | CITY OF SHELTON 

  JULY 2021 | 10-5 

10.3   Financial Policies 

Title 15 of the City’s Municipal Code, which can be found in Appendix 10A, establishes fees for 
service, and general rules and regulations for the service and extension of service from the water 
system of the City. Additional water fees and fines can be found in the City’s Master Fee 
Schedule, also included in Appendix 10A. 

The City’s Proposed 2021 Budget, which can be found in Appendix 10A, outlines the City’s 
strategic plan to providing valuable government services in a cost-effective and efficient manner. 
The City’s Proposed 2021 Budget includes budgetary information about the Water Fund. 

Additionally, the City has draft Fund Balance Reserves and Debt Management policies that are 
also included in Appendix 10A. 

10.4   Financial Forecast 

The financial forecast, or revenue requirement analysis, is a comprehensive test of a utility’s 
fiscal health, scrutinizing the adequacy of current revenues, and setting the basis for rate 
planning. It reviews the utility’s revenues, expenses, debts, and reserve policies, assesses the 
viability of each metric going forward. Where cash flows and balances are insufficient, the 
revenue requirement analysis determines the needed additional cash flows to meet all funding 
goals. For this analysis, two revenue sufficiency tests have been developed to reflect the financial 
goals and constraints of the City: cash needs must be met, and debt coverage requirements must 
be realized. The two tests are as follows: 

• The cash flow sufficiency test looks for a net positive cash flow at the end of each fiscal 
year. This test looks at whether revenues exceed expenses; when they do not, this test 
recommends additional revenue. 

• The second test is the debt service coverage test. Utility bond issuances regularly 
include a stipulation that the agency maintain sufficient cash flows to cover the planned 
debt service, plus an additional percent of that debt service, typically between 
20 percent and 50 percent. For example, a 1.0 coverage factor would imply that no 
additional cushion is required. A 1.25 coverage factor means revenue must be sufficient 
to pay operations and maintenance (O&M) expenses, annual revenue bond debt 
services, plus an additional 25 percent of annual revenue bond debt service payments. 
Targeting a higher coverage factor can help the City achieve a better credit rating and 
provide lower interest rates for future debt issues. If cash flow falls below this ratio, this 
test recommends additional revenue. 

The revenue requirement analysis looks at both of these tests for any needed revenue increases. 
As there are many assumptions in the analysis, the projected results can vary from the actual 
data depending on factors like actual customer use, demand projection, and growth. Therefore, 
this high-level projection should be compared with actual values and adjusted accordingly.  

10.4.1   Projected Capital Improvement Projects 

The water CIP projects were allocated into three project types to support development of rates 
and standard development charges: 

• Growth: Projects that provide additional system capacity to meet future demand 
growth. These projects are typically funded by connection fees and the developer 
community. 



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 10 | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

10-6 | JULY 2021  

• Repair & Replacement (R&R): Non-growth-related projects that involve replacing or 
maintaining existing infrastructure without increasing capacity or level-of-service. These 
projects are typically funded by rates. 

• Level of Service: Projects that increase level-of-service (i.e., redundant pumping, 
backup power, fire flow, system reliability, etc.) of existing infrastructure. These projects 
are typically funded by rates. 

The CIP projects were then allocated to planning years within the 2021-2030 period based on 
available funding and projected timeline as outlined by the City. The projects were assumed to 
take no more than three years to complete. The projects that the City plans to complete in the 
next ten years are: 

• G-01: Hydrant Improvements (2021-2024). 
• G-02: Repair & Replacement (Annual). 
• G-04: Fixed Base Radio Read (2021). 
• G-05: Construction Laydown Yard (2021, 2023). 
• G-06: America’s Water Infrastructure Act (AWIA) Risk and Resiliency Assessment (2021). 
• G-07: AWIA Required Water Emergency Response Plan (2021). 
• G-08: Rate Study (2021). 
• S-02: Well 1 Rehabilitation and Pipeline Pressurization (2021-2022). 
• S-03: Onsite Chlorine Generation (2024). 
• S-04: New Generator for Well 3 & 4 (2022). 
• ST-01: New Mt. View Ground Storage Tank (2028-2029). 
• PS-01: Angleside Reservoir PS Control Improvements Phase 1 (2022). 
• D-01: W Railroad Ave Pipe Upsize (2022). 

Table 10.6 summarizes the cost of the CIP projects listed above by project type. 

10.4.2   Projected Operating Revenues and Expenditures 

Using the City’s forecast factors and assumptions, operating revenues and expenditures were 
projected to 2030, as summarized in Tables 10.7 and 10.8, respectively. 

The proposed 2021-2023 biennial capital budget for Washington State includes $2.05 million for 
the rehabilitation of Well 1, including the conversion of the water transmission main. This is 
included in the City’s revenue for 2021 as shown in Table 10.7 as a $2.05 million grant.  

10.4.2.1   Assumptions 

The City provided or agreed upon the following assumptions when projecting out the water 
fund’s financial projections: 

• General Inflation: For revenues and expenditures, a 3.0 percent annual inflation rate 
was agreed upon by City staff. 

• Water Growth Rate: From the Plan’s demand assumptions, it was calculated that 
a 2.4 percent increase in annual consumption would be applied to the projected water 
sales. Conservation is not factored into this percentage. 

• Benefits/Salary/Cost of Living Adjustment: The City assumes that salary increases will 
be approximately 2.5 percent annually, and benefits will have a 4.0 percent annual 
increase. 

• Interest: The City assumes interest will be 0.5 percent annually. 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 10 | CITY OF SHELTON 

  JULY 2021 | 10-7 

• GFC Fee Escalation: The City assumes that GFC fee escalation will equal the general 
inflation rate of 3.0 percent. Due to a discrepancy between the GFCs in the City budget 
and the fee schedule, the GFCs from 2016 to 2019 were averaged to determine an 
assumed GFC for 2019 of approximately $55,970. This average GFC was used to project 
future GFCs through the 2029 planning year. 

• New Debt: For planning purposes, it is assumed that no new debt will be issued to fund 
capital improvement projects.  

10.4.2.2   Rate Increases 

The projected water sales revenues shown in Table 10.7 include an “across the board” rate 
revenue increase, which assumes the revenue collected from the metered water sales the 
previous year will increase by a certain percentage, and were not calculated for each customer 
category. The City adopted a ten percent rate increase through 2022, and a three percent 
increase through 2023. A three percent increase is assumed from 2024 through 2030. 

10.4.2.3   Reserves 

As stated in the City’s Draft Fund Balance Reserves Policy, which can be found in Appendix 10A, 
the Water Operating Fund will strive to maintain a fund balance equal to 20 percent of the 
current year budgeted expenses. 

10.4.2.4   Cash Flow 

Table 10.9 shows the 10-year projected operating cash flow for the water utility, which subtracts 
the total operation and maintenance and expenses and any issued debt from the total operating 
revenues, as shown in the previous tables. The result is that the City’s net revenue fluctuates 
between negative and positive over the 10-year planning period. 

Based on the current water utility status, the assumptions provided by the City, and increasing 
the water rate revenue as indicated, the City will have not an adequate amount of funds to cover 
the projected operating expenditures and capital projects for the 2022-2025 planning years but 
has adequate amounts of funds to cover the projected operating expenditures and capital 
projects for the 2026-2030 planning years.  

10.4.3   Financial Forecast – Water Rate Increases, No New Debt 

Figure 10.1 shows the City’s financial performance through 2030. The forecast assumes the 
implementation of rate increases of 10 percent in 2021 and 2022 and 3 percent increase from 
2023 to 2030. The financial forecast also assumes that no new debt will be issued. The water rate 
increase is based on the City’s Municipal Code forecasted rate increase prices. In Figure 10.1, the 
stacked bar lines represent the City’s operational expenses, CIP, and existing debt service. The 
City’s revenue, which includes the proposed rate increases and the $2.05 million grant for the 
rehabilitation of Well 1 from Washington State in 2021, is shown as the solid blue line. The 
presented revenues include water sales, other operating revenues, and the grant. Revenues 
increase in 2021 due to the grant, drop in 2022 after the grant is implemented, and then are 
projected to increase due to the rate increases through 2030.  

The City’s ending fund balance is shown as the solid orange line. The dashed red line represents 
the City’s minimum ending fund balance equal to 20 percent of annual budgeted operating 
expenditures and debt service payments. The financial projections indicate that the minimum 
fund balance requirement will be met every year.  



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 10 | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

10-8 | JULY 2021  

Table 10.6 Projected CIP Projects Expenditures 

CIP Project 
Category 

2020  
Budget 

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 

Growth 
Projects(1) $0 $0  $0  $0  $0  $0  $0  $0  $518,500  $518,500  $518,500 

Repair & 
Replacement 
Projects(2) 

$0 $1,126,000  $745,000  $276,000  $276,000  $170,000  $326,000  $170,000  $170,000  $170,000  $170,000 

Level of 
Service 
Projects(2) 

$0 $824,000  $1,584,000  $350,000  $200,000  $0  $0  $0  $518,500  $518,500  $518,500 

Total CIP $0 $1,950,000  $2,329,000  $626,000  $476,000  $170,000  $326,000  $170,000  $1,207,000  $1,207,000  $1,207,000  
Notes:  
(1) Projects are assumed to be funded by connection fees. 
(2) Projects are assumed to be funded by rates. 

 

Table 10.7 Projected Operating Revenue 

Operating 
Revenue 

2020  
Budget 

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 

Water Sales(2) $2,347,090  $2,376,920  $2,677,370  $2,823,870  $2,978,390  $3,141,370  $3,313,250  $3,494,560  $3,685,780  $3,887,480  $4,100,190  

GFC $0(3)  $55,969   $57,648   $59,377   $61,159   $62,993   $64,883   $66,830   $68,835   $70,900   $73,027  

Other 
Revenue 

$127,000  $299,170  $298,670  $307,410  $317,710  $330,270  $342,940  $357,330  $367,490  $378,630  $299,170  

Debt Proceeds $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Grant(4) $0 $2,050,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

Total $2,474,090  $4,771,859  $3,034,188  $3,181,917  $3,346,959  $3,522,073  $3,708,403  $3,904,330  $4,111,945  $4,325,870  $4,551,847  
Notes:  
(1) Source: City’s Financial Statements from 2015-2019 Budget Report and projections based on financial assumptions. 
(2) Water sales include proposed rate increases. 
(3) GFCs were not included in the 2020 budget received from the City.  
(4) Washington State’s proposed 2021-2023 biennial capital budget includes $2.05 million for the rehabilitation of Well 1, including the conversion of the water transmission main. 

 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 10 | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | 10-9 

Table 10.8 Projected Operating Expenditures 

Operating 
Expenses 

2020 
Budget 

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 

Operating 
Expenses 

$2,009,610  $2,069,900  $2,132,000  $2,196,100  $2,262,100  $2,330,300  $2,400,500  $2,472,900  $2,547,500  $2,624,400  $2,703,600 

CIP $0 $1,950,000  $2,329,000  $626,000  $476,000  $170,000  $326,000  $170,000  $1,207,000  $1,207,000  $1,207,000 

Debt Service 
Payments 

$373,390  $372,926  $372,318  $371,367  $368,859  $370,945  $367,619  $364,086  $365,347  $366,196  $366,196 

Total $2,383,000  $4,392,826  $4,833,318  $3,193,467  $3,106,959  $2,871,245  $3,094,119  $3,006,986  $4,119,847  $4,197,596  $4,276,796  
Notes:  
(1) Source: City’s Financial Statements from 2015-2019 Budget Report and projections based on financial assumptions. 
(2) Water sales include proposed rate increases. 
(3) Expenses are rounded. 

 

Table 10.9 Summary Projected Cash Flow (2020-2030) 

 
2020 

Budget 
2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 

(+) Total 
Operating 
Revenues 

$2,474,090  $4,771,859  $3,034,188  $3,181,917  $3,346,959  $3,522,073  $3,708,403  $3,904,330  $4,111,945  $4,325,870  $4,551,847  

(-) Total 
Operating 
Expenditures 

$2,383,000  $4,392,826  $4,833,318  $3,193,467  $3,106,959  $2,871,245  $3,094,119  $3,006,986  $4,119,847  $4,197,596  $4,276,796  

Total Use 
of Funds 

$91,090  $379,033  ($1,799,130) ($11,549) $240,000  $650,829  $614,284  $897,343  ($7,903) $128,273  $275,050  

Ending 
Fund 
Balance 

$2,494,439  $2,873,472  $1,074,342  $1,062,793  $1,302,792  $1,953,621  $2,567,905  $3,465,249  $3,457,346  $3,585,619  $3,860,669  



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 10 | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

10-10 | JULY 2021  

 

Figure 10.1 Financial Forecast 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | CH 10 | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021 | 10-11 

10.5   Available Funding Assistance and Financing Resources 

The ten-year planning period shows that the City will have adequate funding for the anticipated 
short-term projects shown in the capital improvement plan with the assumed rate increases and 
the budget from Washington State to rehabilitate Well 1. It is important for the City to understand 
what funding assistance and financing resources are available to help fund the CIP. The following 
is a summary of some of the City’s resources, which may be pursued to fund the CIP. 

10.5.1   Grants and Low Cost Loans 

The Infrastructure Assistance Coordinating Council (IACC) is a non-profit organization that helps 
improve the delivery of infrastructure assistance, both financial and technical, to local 
governments and tribes in Washington State. The IACC has put together a list of funding 
opportunities that are currently available for drinking water and wastewater projects, broken 
down by the following:  

• Type of program: (planning, pre-construction only, construction and 
design/construction, and emergency). 

• Eligible Projects: the type of project (water, wastewater, stormwater, etc.). 
• Eligible Applicants: the type of municipality or district, meeting certain requirements. 
• Funding Available: whether the source is a grant or a loan, providing the maximum 

amount, and financial information if necessary.  
• How to apply: providing the date to submit, website resources, and contact 

information. 

The types of funding sources vary, but the main assistance programs are: 

• Public Works Trust Fund (PWTF): loans for eligible projects including repair, 
replacement, and construction of infrastructure for domestic water projects that 
improve public health and safety, respond to environmental issues, promote economic 
development, or upgrade system performance.  

• DWSRF: This funding was established by the 1996 amendments to the Safe Drinking 
Water Act (SDWA) and is a partnership between the U.S. Environmental Protection 
Agency (USEPA) and the states. According to the DOH website, the DWSRF makes 
funds available to drinking water systems to pay for infrastructure improvements. The 
loan program is funded through federal and state money and subject to state laws and 
additional federal regulations. Loan repayments can range from 6 to 20 years.  

10.6   Financial Analysis Summary 

The City has adequate revenue from water rates, budget from Washington State to rehabilitate 
Well 1, and GFCs to meet the expected operating costs of the water system through 2029. 
However, GFCs should be reassessed to ensure the maximum amount of revenue can be 
obtained. A rate study is also recommended to address affordability by customer class. No new 
debt is issued in the financial forecast, but existing debt is being paid.  

Capital projects are projected to range from $170,000 to $2.4 million annually through 2030. 
Water rates are projected to increase to 10 percent through 2022 and then increase at 3 percent 
through 2029. With this rate increase, the City is able to meet their revenue goal to complete the 
CIP projects identified in the financial analysis. 



CITY OF SHELTON | CH 10 | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

10-12 | JULY 2021  

10.7   Recommendations 

Based on the results of the financial analysis, the following studies are recommended to confirm 
the proposed rate increases: 

• Rate Study. The financial analysis is intended to show the viability of funding the CIP. A 
rate study is needed to address affordability by customer class. 

• General Facility Charges Study. The general facility charges should be reviewed and 
reassessed to determine the maximum amount of review that can be obtained through 
general facility charges. 

 

 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | APPENDICES | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021  

Appendix 1A  
NOTICE OF DETERMINATION OF 
NON-SIGNIFICANCE (DNS) 
 

 

~~ To be included at a later date. ~~ 

 





WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | APPENDICES | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021  

Appendix 1B  
STATE ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY ACT (SEPA) 
 

 

~~ To be included at a later date. ~~ 

 





WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | APPENDICES | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021  

Appendix 1C  
AGENCY COMMENT LETTERS AND RESPONSES 
 

 

~~ To be included at a later date. ~~ 

 





WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | APPENDICES | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021  

Appendix 1D  
LOCAL GOVERNMENT CONSISTENCY 
DETERMINATION FORM 
 

 

~~ To be included at a later date. ~~ 

 





WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | APPENDICES | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021  

Appendix 1E  
ORDINANCES AND APPROVALS 
 

 

~~ To be included at a later date. ~~ 

 





WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | APPENDICES | CITY OF SHELTON 

JULY 2021  

Appendix 1F  
WATER SYSTEM PLAN SUBMITTAL FORM 





WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | APPENDICES | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021  

Appendix 3A  
INTERLOCAL AGREEMENTS 
 





WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | APPENDICES | CITY OF SHELTON 

JULY

Utility Service Agreements between
Regional Partners

























WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | APPENDICES | CITY OF SHELTON 

JULY

Port of Shelton Interim Compliance Agreement











 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | APPENDICES | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021  

Appendix 3B  
WATER FACILITIES FORM 
 





RETURN TO:  Central Services - WFI, PO Box 47822, Olympia, WA, 98504-7822

ONE FORM PER SYSTEM

WATER FACILITIES INVENTORY (WFI) 
FORM

Quarter: 

Updated: 

Printed: 

1

11/16/2020

4/1/2021

WFI Printed For: 

Submission Reason: 

On-Demand

Pop/Connect 
Update

  1.  SYSTEM ID NO.  2.  SYSTEM NAME  3.  COUNTY 4.  GROUP 5.  TYPE

78170 N  SHELTON CITY OF  MASON A Comm

  6. PRIMARY CONTACT NAME & MAILING ADDRESS   7. OWNER NAME & MAILING ADDRESS

MATT C. DEEMER [MANAGER]
525 WEST COTA ST
SHELTON, WA 98584

SHELTON, CITY OF
KENNETH W. GILL 
525 WEST COTA ST
SHELTON, WA 98584

UTILITY MANAGER

 STREET ADDRESS IF DIFFERENT FROM ABOVE  STREET ADDRESS IF DIFFERENT FROM ABOVE

 ATTN  ATTN

 ADDRESS  ADDRESS

 CITY                   STATE                ZIP  CITY                   STATE                ZIP 

 9. 24 HOUR PRIMARY CONTACT INFORMATION 10. OWNER CONTACT INFORMATION

Primary Contact Daytime Phone: (360) 432-5187 Owner Daytime Phone: (360) 432-5144

Primary Contact Mobile/Cell Phone: (360 ) 490-0610 Owner Mobile/Cell Phone: (360) 490-0453

Primary Contact Evening Phone: (xxx)-xxx-xxxx Owner Evening Phone: (xxx)-xxx-xxxx

Fax:  E-mail:  xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx Fax:   E-mail:  xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

11. SATELLITE MANAGEMENT AGENCY - SMA (check only one)
Not applicable (Skip to #12)

Owned and Managed SMA NAME: SMA Number: 
Managed Only

Owned Only

12. WATER SYSTEM CHARACTERISTICS (mark all that apply)
Agricultural Hospital/Clinic Residential

Commercial / Business Industrial School

Day Care Licensed Residential Facility Temporary Farm Worker

Food Service/Food Permit Lodging Other (church, fire station, etc.):

1,000 or more person event for 2 or more days per year Recreational / RV Park _______________________________________
_______

13. WATER SYSTEM OWNERSHIP (mark only one) 14.  STORAGE CAPACITY (gallons)

Association County Investor Special District

City / Town Federal Private State 1,818,000

15 16
SOURCE NAME

17
INTERTIE

18
SOURCE CATEGORY

19
USE

20 21
TREATMENT

22
DEPTH

23 24
SOURCE LOCATION

S
o

u
rce N

u
m

b
er

LIST UTILITY'S NAME FOR SOURCE
AND WELL TAG ID NUMBER.

Example:  WELL #1 XYZ456

IF SOURCE IS PURCHASED OR 
INTERTIED,

LIST SELLER'S NAME
Example:  SEATTLE

INTERTIE 
SYSTEM 

ID 
NUMBER

 W
E

L
L

 W
E

L
L

 F
IE

L
D

 W
E

L
L

 IN
 A

 W
E

L
L

 F
IE

L
D

 S
P

R
IN

G

 S
P

R
IN

G
 F

IE
L

D

 S
P

R
IN

G
 IN

 S
P

R
IN

G
F

IE
L

D

 S
E

A
 W

A
T

E
R

 S
U

R
F

A
C

E
 W

A
T

E
R

 R
A

N
N

E
Y

 / IN
F

. G
A

L
L

E
R

Y

 O
T

H
E

R

 P
E

R
M

A
N

E
N

T

 S
E

A
S

O
N

A
L

 E
M

E
R

G
E

N
C

Y

 S
O

U
R

C
E

 M
E

T
E

R
E

D

 N
O

N
E

 C
H

L
O

R
IN

A
T

IO
N

 F
IL

T
R

A
T

IO
N

 F
L

U
O

R
ID

A
T

IO
N

 IR
R

A
D

IA
T

IO
N

 (U
V

)

 O
T

H
E

R

 D
E

P
T

H
 T

O
 F

IR
S

T
 O

P
E

N
 T

E
R

V
A

L
 IN

 F
E

E
T

 C
A

P
A

C
IT

Y
 (G

A
L

L
O

N
S

 P
E

R
 M

IN
U

T
E

)

 1/4, 1/4 S
E

C
T

IO
N

 S
E

C
T

IO
N

 N
U

M
B

E
R

 T
O

W
N

S
H

IP

 R
A

N
G

E

S01  SPRINGS X X N X 2500 NE NW 18 20N 03W

S02  WELL #1 AHB646 X X Y X 285 1500 SE SW 07 20N 03W

S03  InAct 08/01/2005 WELL #2 AHB642 X X N X 265 1000 NE SW 07 20N 03W

S04  WELL #3 AHB645 X X Y X 298 1000 NW SW 07 20N 03W

S05  WELL #4 AEC942 X X Y X 197 1000 NW SW 07 20N 03W

Page: 1DOH 331-011 (Rev. 06/03) DOH Copy



WATER FACILITIES INVENTORY (WFI) FORM - Continued
 1.  SYSTEM ID NO.  2.  SYSTEM NAME  3.  COUNTY 4.  GROUP 5.  TYPE

78170 N  SHELTON CITY OF  MASON A Comm

ACTIVE 
SERVICE 

CONNECTIONS

DOH USE ONLY!
CALCULATED 

ACTIVE  
CONNECTIONS

DOH USE ONLY!
APPROVED 

CONNECTIONS

 25.  SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENCES (How many of the following do you have?) 3983 Unspecified

 A.  Full Time Single Family Residences (Occupied 180 days or more per year) 3034

 B.  Part Time Single Family Residences (Occupied less than 180 days per year) 0

26.  MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL BUILDINGS (How many of the following do you have?)

 A.  Apartment Buildings, condos, duplexes, barracks, dorms 240

 B.  Full Time Residential Units in the Apartments, Condos, Duplexes, Dorms that are occupied more than 180 days/year 949

 C.  Part Time Residential Units in the Apartments, Condos, Duplexes, Dorms that are occupied less than 180 days/year 0

 27.  NON-RESIDENTIAL CONNECTIONS (How many of the following do you have?)

A. Recreational Services and/or Transient Accommodations (Campsites, RV sites, hotel/motel/overnight units) 3 3

B.  Institutional, Commercial/Business, School, Day Care, Industrial Services, etc. 402 402

28.  TOTAL SERVICE CONNECTIONS 4388

29.  FULL-TIME RESIDENTIAL POPULATION

A.  How many residents are served by this system 180 or more days per year? 9975

 30.  PART-TIME RESIDENTIAL POPULATION JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

 A.  How many part-time residents are present each month?

 B.  How many days per month are they present?

 31.  TEMPORARY & TRANSIENT USERS JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

 A.  How many total visitors, attendees, travelers, campers, patients 
or customers have access to the water system each month? 27376 27376 30376 30376 30376 30376 30376 30376 30376 27376 27376 27376

 B.  How many days per month is water accessible to the public? 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30

 32.  REGULAR NON-RESIDENTIAL USERS JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

 A.  If you have schools, daycares, or businesses connected to your 
water system, how many students daycare children and/or 
employees are present each month?

10425 10425 10425 10425 10425 10425 6475 6475 10425 10425 10425 10425

B.  How many days per month are they present? 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30

33.  ROUTINE COLIFORM SCHEDULE  JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

                     20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20

 34.  NITRATE SCHEDULE QUARTERLY ANNUALLY ONCE EVERY 3 YEARS

 (One Sample per source by time period)

 35.  Reason for Submitting WFI:

OtherNew System  Inactivate   Update - No Change    Update - Change   Re-Activate  

36.  I certify that the information stated on this WFI form is correct to the best of my knowledge.

SIGNATURE:    DATE:

PRINT NAME:    TITLE:

Name Change

Page: 2DOH 331-011 (Rev. 06/03) DOH Copy



WS ID WS Name

SHELTON CITY OF78170

Total WFI Printed: 1

DOH Copy

To:

To:

To:

To
:

To
:

WFI Printed For:

Source Use:

Source Type:

Water System Expanding 
Services:

Full-Time Population From:

On-Demand

 ALL

ALL

ALL

ALL

ALL

Approved Connection Count 
From:

ALLALL

Active Connection Count From:

SMA Name:

SMA Number:

Owner Number:

Water System Update Date 
From:

Water Status Date From:

Water System Status:

Water System Is New:

Permit Renewal Quarter:

Type:

Group:

Region:

County:

Water System Name:

Print Copies For:

Print Data on Distribution Page:

Water System Id(s):

ALLALL

ALL

ALL

ALL

ALLALL

ALL

ALL

ALL

ALL

ALL

ALL

-- Any --

ALL

ALL

78170N

4/1/2021Report Create Date:

Water Facilities Inventory (WFI)

ALL ALL

Page: 1DOH 331-011 (Rev. 06/03) DOH Copy





WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | APPENDICES | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021  

Appendix 3C  
WATER RIGHTS DOCUMENTATION 
 

























































WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | APPENDICES | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021  

Appendix 3D  
CITY OF SHELTON DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION 
STANDARDS 
 





 

 

 

CITY OF SHELTON 

 

DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION 

STANDARDS 

2019 
 

 

City of Shelton 

525 W. Cota Street 

Shelton, WA 98584 

(360) 426-4491 

 
 
 
 
Effective Date: January 15, 2019 
 



 

 

CITY OF SHELTON 

DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS 

2019 

 

Mayor 

Bob Rogers 

Deputy Mayor 

Deidre Peterson 

Council Members 

Gary Cronce 
Kathy McDowell 

Kevin Dorcy 
Eric Onisko 
Joe Schmit 

 

Administration 

 Jeff Niten   City Manager 

Mark Zeigler Community & Economic Development Director 

Craig Gregory  Director of Public Works  

 



2019 City of Shelton Design and Construction Standards 
Update and Supplement 

 
January 2019 

 
 This page indicates revisions to the 2018 version of the City of Shelton 
Design and Constructions Standards. Revisions are listed by chapter and section 

number. It is recommended that for future reference, this instruction page be kept in a 
convenient place in the Design Standard Book. 

 

CHAPTER  1 SECTION 

  

MISCELLANEOUS DETAIL # 

 M-01 

 M-02 

 M-04 

 M-05 

 M-06 

 M-07 

  

TESC DETAIL # 

 E-02 

 E-03 

 E-04 

 E-05 

 E-06 

 E-07 

 E-08 

  

CHAPTER  2 SECTION 

2.060  

2.200  

2.230  

2.280  

2.300  

2.330  

  

TRANSPORTATION DETAIL # 

 T-02 

 T-03 

  T-03A 

 T-04 

 T-06 

  T-08 

 T-12 



 T-13 

 T-14 

 T-15 

 T-16 

 T-17 

 T-20 

 T-21 

 T-22 

 T-23 

 T-24 

 T-25 

 T-26 

 T-27 

  

CHAPTER 3 SECTION 

3.070  

  

STORM DRAINAGE DETAIL # 

 SD-01 

 SD-02 

   SD-03 

 SD-04 

 SD-04A 

 SD-09 

 SD-11 

 SD-12 

 SD-13 

 SD-14 

 SD-15 

 SD-16 

 SD-17 

 SD-18 

 SD-21 

 SD-22 

  

CHAPTER 4 SECTION 

4.040 D 

4.150  

  

WATER DETAILS 

 W-01 

   W-02 

 W-02A 

 W-03 

 W-04 

 W-04A 



 W-05 

 W-06 

 W-09 

 W-10 

 W-12 

 W-13 

 W-14 

 W-16 

 W-17 

 W-18 

 W-18A 

 W-19 

 W-19A 

 W-20 

 W-20A 

 W-21 

 W-21A 

 W-22 

 W-25 

 W-26 

  

             CHAPTER  5 SECTION 

                   5.010  

                   5.020  

                   5.130  

                   5.140  

  

SEWER DETAIL # 

 SS-01 

 SS-02 

 SS-03 

 SS-04 

 SS-04A 

 SS-10 

 SS-14 

  

CHAPTER 6 SECTION 

  

RECLAIMED WATER DETAIL 

 RW-02 

 RW-04 

 RW-05 

 RW-06 

 RW-08 

 RW-09 

 RW-10 



  

TRAFFIC CONTROL DETAIL 

 TC-01 

 TC-02 

 TC-03 

 TC-04 

 TC-05 

 TC-06 

 TC-07 

 TC-08 

 TC-09 

 TC-10 

 TC-11 

 TC-12 

 



FORWARD 

 
 

Build a Stronger Community – TOGETHER! 

 
Welcome to a community dedicated to a quality environment. Shelton's 

Administration, City Council and staff will work with you to create first class 

additions to our City. We look forward to meeting with you to work out the 

details of your project. This document will show you our process and our 

standards. We hope that all your questions can be answered here. If not, please 

call and we will be glad to help. 

 
This document is intended to assist, advise, guide and direct all who propose to 

modify facilities or develop within the City. The processing of all documents 

shall be in accordance with these Design and Construction Standards and the 

regulations and standards of other agencies as referred to herein. 

 
These Standards shall apply in the City, in applicable utility service areas, and 

in portions of Mason County that are within the City of Shelton’s Urban Growth 

Management Area boundary. 

 
We attempt to achieve maximum uniformity of planning, engineering, and 

construction practices within the City and outside the City as outlined above. 

These are minimum standards and are intended to assist, but not to substitute 

for competent work by engineering and design professionals. Special conditions 

or environmental constraints may require a more stringent design than would 

normally be required under these Development Standards. It is not the intent of 

the City to unreasonably limit any innovative effort that could result in a 

superior project design. A proposed design that is different from these 

Development Standards will be evaluated on the basis that the proposed design 

will produce a comparable or superior result, and is, in every way, adequate for 

the user, the City, and the public. 

 
This document may contain minor errors, discrepancies or omissions.  The 

editor would appreciate it if users of this document notify the City of any 

required corrections. 

 

 

 

 
 

January 2019 i 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

January 2019 ii 

CITY OF SHELTON 
DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS 

 

Table of Contents 
 
Section Subject Page 
 
0.000 Forward ...................................................................................  i 
 
1.000 CHAPTER 1 – GENERAL STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
 
1.010 Purpose ...................................................................................  1-1 
1.020 Shortened Designation  ...........................................................  1-1 
1.030 Applicability  ...........................................................................  1-1 
1.040 Definitions and Terms  ............................................................  1-3 
1.050 Changes to Standards .............................................................  1-8 
1.060 Severability  ............................................................................  1-8 
1.070 Design Standards  ...................................................................  1-8 
1.080 Plan Review  ............................................................................  1-10 
1.090 Construction Control  ..............................................................  1-11 
1.100 Inspection  ..............................................................................  1-11 
1.110 Fees ........................................................................................  1-12 
1.120 Permits  ...................................................................................  1-12 
1.130 Financial Guarantees for Public Projects  ................................  1-14 
1.140 Utility Alignments ...................................................................  1-15 
1.150 Easements ..............................................................................  1-15 
1.160 Latecomers Agreement  ...........................................................  1-16 
1.170 Traffic Control  ........................................................................  1-17 
1.180 Call Before You Dig  ................................................................  1-17 
1.190 Utility Extension  ....................................................................  1-17 
1.200 Annexation Requirement  ........................................................  1-18 
1.210 Standards in Shelton Urban Growth Area  ..............................  1-18 
1.220 General Notes (For all Projects)  ..............................................  1-20 
 
List of Drawings  .......................................................................................  1-25 
 
 
2.000 CHAPTER 2 - TRANSPORTATION 
 
2.010 Transportation System Alterations, Extensions and  
 Connections  ...........................................................................  2-1 
2.020 Functional Classification .........................................................  2-1 
2.030 Roadway Classification Definitions  .........................................  2-1 
2.040 Streets and Alleys  ...................................................................  2-2 
2.050 Minimum Street Design Standards .........................................  2-4 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

January 2019 iii 

2.060 Traffic Impact Analysis  ...........................................................  2-6 
2.070 Signing  ...................................................................................  2-18 
2.080 Right-of-Way………………………………………………………………  2-18 
2.090 Private Streets  ........................................................................  2-19 
2.100 Street and Alley Frontage Improvements  ................................  2-20 
2.100 Critical Pedestrian Route Map .................................................  2-20a 
2.110 Cul-de-sac ..............................................................................  2-21 
2.120 Temporary Dead Ends  ............................................................  2-21 
2.130 Half Street  ..............................................................................  2-21 
2.140 Medians  .................................................................................  2-22 
2.150 Intersections  ..........................................................................  2-22 
2.160 Driveways  ..............................................................................  2-23 
2.170 Sight Obstruction  ..................................................................  2-25 
2.180 Surfacing Requirements  .........................................................  2-26 
2.190 Street Pavement Patching  ......................................................  2-28 
2.200 Trench and Pavement Cut, Backfill and Restoration  ..............  2-29 
2.210 Staking  ..................................................................................  2-31 
2.220 Testing  ...................................................................................  2-32 
2.230 Sidewalks, Curbs and Gutters, Driveways  .............................  2-32 
2.240 Bikeways .................................................................................  2-37 
2.250 Street Illumination Design Standards .....................................  2-37 
2.260 Street Illumination Construction (General Notes) ....................  2-38 
2.270 Traffic Signals .........................................................................  2-38 
2.280 Survey Monuments, Bus Stops, Benches, Mailboxes, Guard Rails,  
 Retaining Walls, Street Trees and Parking Lots .......................  2-40 
2.290 Retaining Walls .......................................................................  2-43 
2.300 Street Trees .............................................................................  2-43 
2.310 Parking Lots ............................................................................  2-45 
2.320 Roadside Safety Clear Zone .....................................................  2-45 
2.330        Flashing Beacons  ...................................................................   2-51 
2.340 General Notes:  Street Construction ........................................  2-53 
 
List of Drawings  ......................................................................................  2-55 
 
3.000 CHAPTER 3 – STORM DRAINAGE 
 
3.010 Public Storm Drainage System Alterations, Extensions 
 and Connections .....................................................................  3-1 
3.020 Design Standards....................................................................  3-1 
3.030 Storm Water System Rainfall Design Criteria ..........................  3-4 
3.040 Staking  ..................................................................................  3-6 
3.050 Trench Excavation  .................................................................  3-6 
3.060 Backfilling  ..............................................................................  3-6 
3.070 Street Patching and Restoration  .............................................  3-7 
3.080 Maintenance  ..........................................................................  3-7 
3.090 Storm Drainage Construction General Notes  .........................  3-7 
 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

January 2019 iv 

List of Drawings  .......................................................................................  3-9 
 
 
 
4.000 CHAPTER 4 - WATER  
 
4.010 Water System Alternations, Extensions and Connections .......  4-1 
4.020 Water Main Design Standards  ................................................  4-2 
4.030 Hydrant Design Standards  .....................................................  4-3 
4.040 Valve Design Standards ..........................................................  4-5 
4.050 Water Service Connections  .....................................................  4-5 
4.060 Water Main/Sanitary Sewer Crossings  ...................................  4-7 
4.070 Manholes ................................................................................  4-7 
4.080 Sterilization and Flushing  ......................................................  4-7 
4.090 Hydrostatic Tests ....................................................................  4-8 
4.100 Air and Vacuum Release Valves  .............................................  4-8 
4.110 Blow off Assembly  ..................................................................  4-8 
4.120 Staking  ...................................................................................  4-9 
4.130 Trench Excavation and Pipe Laying  ........................................  4-9 
4.140 Casing  ....................................................................................  4-11 
4.150 Irrigation  ................................................................................  4-11 
4.160 Cross Connection Control  ......................................................  4-11 
4.170 Thrust Blocking  ......................................................................  4-12 
4.180 Backfilling  ..............................................................................  4-12 
4.190 Street Patching and Restoration ..............................................  4-13 
4.200 Watershed and Wellhead Protection Area  ...............................  4-13 
4.210 Water Main Construction Standards (General Notes)  .............  4-14 
 
List of Drawings ........................................................................................  4-15 
 
5.000 CHAPTER 5 – SANITARY SEWERS 
 
5.010 Sewer System Alterations, Extensions and Connections .........  5-1 
5.020 Sewer Design Standards..........................................................  5-2 
5.030 Connection to Existing System ................................................  5-4 
5.040 Sewer Service and Laterals  .....................................................  5-5 
5.050 Pressure Sewer (Force Main) Design Standards  ......................  5-7 
5.060 Sanitary Sewer/Water Main Crossings  ...................................  5-9 
5.070 Manholes ................................................................................   5-9 
5.080 Slope  ......................................................................................  5-11 
5.090 High Velocity Protection  .........................................................  5-12 
5.100 Drops  .....................................................................................  5-13 
5.110 Lamp holes  .............................................................................  5-13 
5.120 Staking  ...................................................................................  5-13 
5.130 Trench Excavation and Pipe Laying  ........................................  5-14 
5.140 Testing  ...................................................................................  5-16 
5.150 Sewer Lift Station Design Standards .......................................  5-18 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

January 2019 v 

5.160 Packaged Lift Stations  ............................................................  5-21 
5.170 Private Grinder Pump Systems  ..............................................  5-23 
5.180 Interim Sewage Facilities-Urban Growth Area .........................  5-31 
5.190 Design Standards for Interim Community On-Site Sewer  
 Systems  .................................................................................  5-31 
5.200 Sanitary Sewer Main Construction (General Notes)  ................  5-33 
 
List of Drawings  ......................................................................................  5-41 
  
6.000 CHAPTER 6 – RECLAIMED WATER 
 
6.010 Introduction ............................................................................  6-1 
6.020 Connecting New Users  ...........................................................  6-1 
6.030 Irrigating with Reclaimed Water  .............................................  6-2 
6.040 Design Standards ...................................................................  6-2 
6.050 Service Interruption  ...............................................................  6-2 
6.060 Main Line ................................................................................  6-3 
6.070 Reclaimed Water Meter Location .............................................  6-5 
6.080 Service Connection  ................................................................  6-5 
6.090 Hydrants .................................................................................  6-6 
6.100 Valves  ....................................................................................  6-6 
6.110 Air and Vacuum Release Valve  ...............................................  6-7 
6.120 Blow-off Assembly  ..................................................................  6-7 
6.130 Backflow Assembly  ................................................................  6-8 
6.140 Irrigation  ................................................................................  6-8 
6.150 Staking  ..................................................................................  6-9 
6.160 Trench Excavation and Pipe Laying  ........................................  6-10 
6.170 Thrust Blocking  .....................................................................  6-10 
6.180 Backfilling  ..............................................................................  6-10 
6.190 Street Patching and Restoration  .............................................  6-11 
6.200 Hydrostatic Tests  ...................................................................  6-12 
 
List of Drawings  ......................................................................................  6-13 
 
  
 



GENERAL STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
 

  
 

January 2019 1 - 1 
 

C H A P T E R 1 

 
1.000 GENERAL STANDARDS AND 

SPECIFICATIONS 
 
 1.010  Purpose 
 

These City of Shelton Design and Construction Standards are 
intended to assist, advise, guide and direct all who propose to 

conduct new development or redevelopment within the City of 
Shelton, or propose actions that would impact public roads, public 
rights of way, or existing utility infrastructure. Processing of 
documents, design details, draft and final engineering documents, 
surveys, testing and construction shall be in accordance with 
these Standards, and the regulations and standards of other 
agencies referred to herein. 

 
 1.020 Shortened Designation 
 

These City of Shelton Design and Construction Standards shall be 
cited routinely in this text as the Standards. 

 
 1.030 Applicability  
 

These Standards are applicable to all new construction, 
reconstruction and upgrading of facilities in the right-of-way and 
on-site for transportation and transportation-related facilities, 
storm drainage facilities, and sewer and water improvements.  
 
The following specifications shall be applicable when pertinent, 
when specifically cited in the Standards or when required by a 
higher funding authority. In case of disputes regarding which 
Standards apply, the Director of Public Works will have the final 
decision. 

 

A. The current edition of the Washington State Department of 
Transportation/American Public Works Association 
(WSDOT/APWA) Standard Specifications for Road, Bridge and 
Municipal Construction and the APWA Amendment to Division. 
 

B. Conditions and standards as set forth in the current edition of 
the City of Shelton Comprehensive Water System Plan. 

 



GENERAL STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
 

  
 

January 2019 1 - 2 
 

C. Conditions and standards as set forth in the current edition of 
the City of Shelton Comprehensive Sewer Plan Update and the 
City of Shelton 1997 I/I Facility Plan Update. 

 
D. Conditions and standards as set forth in the current edition of 

the City of Shelton Comprehensive Plan. 
 

E. Adopted rules, regulations and ordinances of the Shelton 
Municipal Code. 

 
F. Criteria set forth in the Local Agency Guidelines as amended 

and approved by Washington State Department of 
Transportation. 

 
G. City and County Design Standards for the Construction of 

Urban and Rural Arterial and Collector Roads Promulgated by 
the City Engineers Association of Washington, May 24, 1989, 
or most current edition. 

 
H. Conditions and standards as set forth in the Washington State 

Department of Transportation (WSDOT) Design Manual as 
amended and approved by WSDOT. 

 
I. U.S. Department of Transportation's Manual on Uniform 

Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD) as amended and approved by 
WSDOT. 

 
J. Washington State Department of Transportation (WSDOT) 

Construction Manual as amended and approved by WSDOT. 
 

K. Washington State Department of Ecology (DOE) Stormwater 
Management Manual for the Puget Sound Basin and the 
Shelton Municipal Code, Title 13. 

 
L. Rules and regulations of the State Board of Health regarding 

public water supplies as published by the State Department of 
Health. 

 
M. Conditions and standards as set forth in the State of 

Washington Department of Ecology Criteria for Sewage Works 
Design, most current edition. 

 
N. Conditions and standards as set forth by the State of 

Washington, Department of Labor and Industries. 
 



GENERAL STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
 

  
 

January 2019 1 - 3 
 

O. Criteria as set forth in the latest American Association of State 
Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO) policy on 
geometric design of highways and streets. 

 
P. Design criteria of federal agencies including Department of 

Housing and Urban Development and the Federal Housing 
Administration. 

 
Q. Conditions and standards as set forth in the American Water 

Works Association (AWWA) design manuals. 
 

R. Criteria as set forth in Highway Capacity Manual (Special 
Report 209) 

 
S. American Water Works Association (AWWA) Cross Connection 

Control Manual dated December 1995, or most current edition. 
 

T. State of Washington Department of Health Water System 
Design Manual (current edition). 

 
U. Federal “Americans with Disabilities” Act (ADA). 
 
V. Other specifications not listed above as may apply when 

required by the City. 
 
 1.040 Definitions and Terms 

 
"Average Daily Traffic or (ADT)” -- The average number of vehicles 
passing a specified point during a 24-hour period. Annual average 
daily traffic (AADT) denotes daily traffic that is averaged over one 
calendar year.  
 
"Bicycle Facilities" -- That portion of the public right-of-way used 
exclusively for bicyclists or shared with other transportation 
modes. 
 
"BOD" -- (denoting Biochemical Oxygen Demand) shall be the 
quantity of oxygen utilized in the biochemical oxidation of organic 
matter under standard laboratory procedure in 5 days at 20 
degrees Celsius expressed in parts per million (mg/l) by weight. 
 
"Building Drain" -- Shall be that portion of the waste drainage 
line(s) inside the walls of the building that connect to the building 
sewer. (SMC 14.04.030) 
 
"Building Official" -- Is the City of Shelton Building Official or 
his/her designated appointee. 



GENERAL STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
 

  
 

January 2019 1 - 4 
 

 
"Building Sewer" -- Shall be that portion of the sewer line from the 
building foundation and extending two feet outside the foundation 
wall of the structure. (SMC 14.04.040). Maintenance of building 
sewer shall be the responsibility of the property owners. 
 
"CED" -- Refers to the City of Shelton Community and Economic 
Development. 
 
"Civil Engineer" -- A professional engineer registered in the State 
of Washington. 

 
"Controlled Density Fill (CDF)" -- A lean sand and concrete 
mixture with a maximum of 188 lbs. of cement per cubic yard 
(depending on application) and resulting in a material with a 
compressive strength of 50 to 200 pounds per square inch 
(depending on cement ratio) as outlined in Section 2-09.3(1)E of 
the Washington State Department of Transportation Standard 
Specifications. 
 
"City" -- Refers to the City of Shelton. (SMC 14.04.050) 
 
"City Engineer" -- The individual appointed by the City of Shelton 
as its City Engineer or his or her duly authorized representative. 
 
"Developer" -- Any person, firm, partnership, association, joint 
venture, or corporation or any other entity responsible for a given 
project. 
 
"Development" -- Any man-made change to improved or 
unimproved real property including but not limited to construction 
of buildings or other structures, additions, reconstruction, 
placement of manufactured home/mobile home, mining, dredging, 
logging, clearing, filling, grading, paving, excavation, drilling 
operations, storage of equipment or materials, any activity that 
results in the removal of vegetation or alteration of natural site 
characteristics or the division of property pursuant to the 
subdivision regulations. 
 
"Director of Public Works" -- The individual appointed by the City 
of Shelton as its Public Works Director or his or her duly 
authorized representative. 
 
“Driveway” -- An access from a public right of way or private street 
easement/tract to one (1) or two (2) parcels maximum, with a 
length of no more than 50 feet as measured from the edge of the 



GENERAL STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
 

  
 

January 2019 1 - 5 
 

right of way or private street easement/tract to the point where 
shared access ends for two (2) parcels. 
 
"Dwelling Unit" -- one or more rooms including kitchen designed 
as a unit for occupancy by one family for the purpose of cooking, 
living and sleeping. 
 
"Easement" -- The right to use a defined area of property on a plat 
or short plat for specific purpose(s) set forth in the easement 
document. 
 

"Engineer" -- Any Washington State licensed professional engineer 
who represents the developer. 
 
"ERU" -- The unit used to calculate sewer consumption. One 
Equivalent Residential Unit (ERU) for other than residential equals 
two hundred twenty-five gallons of wastewater per day. (Shelton 
Municipal Code Chapter 14.04, Section 14.04.130 Definitions and 
Chapter 14.28, Sewer Service-Rates and charges). 
 
“Cues’ GraniteNet” -- Data collection software used in CCTV 
pipeline inspections.  
 
"Half Street" -- A portion of an arterial roadway section modified to 
conform to when limited right-of-way is presently available, or 
when constructing a portion of the road section when less capacity 
is necessary for adequate levels of service. 

 
"Inspector" -- The authorized representative of the City Engineer or 
Public Works Director who is assigned to the project site or any 
part thereof during construction. 

 
"Interceptor" -- A sewer that receives flow from a number of main 
trunk sewers, force mains, etc. 

 
"Lateral" -- That section of the sewer line extending from the City’s 
main to the right-of-way or easement line. Maintenance of the 
lateral is the responsibility of the property owner. (SMC 14.12.150) 

 
"Level of Service (LOS)" -- An indicator of the extent or degree of 
service provided by, or proposed to be provided by, a facility based 
on and related to the operational characteristics of the facility. 
LOS means an established minimum capacity of capital facilities 
that must be provided per unit of demand or other appropriate 
measures of need. 
 



GENERAL STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
 

  
 

January 2019 1 - 6 
 

“Multi-Dwelling Unit (MDU)” -- A classification of housing where 
multiple separate housing units for residential inhabitants are 
contained within one building or several buildings within one 
complex. This classification includes duplexes, apartment 
buildings, condominiums, mobile home parks, trailer courts, and 
other like structures. 
 
"NPDES" -- The 'National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System' 
permit program administered by the Washington State 
Department of Ecology. 
 

"Plans" -- The plans, profiles, cross sections, elevations, details 
and supplementary specifications signed by a licensed 
professional Engineer and approved by the City, which show the 
location, character, dimensions and details of the work to be 
performed. 
 
"Pretreatment" -- The reduction of the amount of pollutants, the 
elimination of pollutants, or the alteration of the nature of 
pollutants in wastewater prior to discharge to the City's system. 
 
"Pretreatment Program" -- An approved plan that provides for 
pretreatment, monitoring, sampling, and conditioning of 
wastewater prior to discharge to the City system. 
 
"Private Pump Station" -- A private pump station is a facility 
connected to a private sewer main, lateral or side sewer which 
conveys sewage or effluent by pumping to a City lateral, trunk, or 
interceptor sewer line. The design and construction of the private 
pump station must receive approval of the City prior to use. The 
private property owner will own, operate and maintain this pump 
station. 
 
"Private Sewer" -- Pertains to a sewer not owned or maintained by 
the City. 
 
"Private Street" -- Privately owned and maintained vehicular 
access, not including driveways, serving at least two (2) but no 
more than four (4) lots, extending across a private lot or tract with 
an access easement that originates from a public right-of-way. The 
number of lots served by the private street shall include the parcel 
the private street crosses unless the parcel’s sole purpose is to 
provide access.  
 
"Project" -- General term encompassing all phases of the work to 
be performed and is synonymous to the term "improvement" or 
"work". 



GENERAL STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
 

  
 

January 2019 1 - 7 
 

 
"Property" -- A lot, parcel, or tract of land together with the 
building and structures located thereon. 
 
"Public Sewer" -- That portion of the system located within public 
rights-of-way or easements and which are operated and 
maintained by the City, including interceptors, trunks, mains and 
force mains along with all publicly controlled and maintained 
manholes, pump stations and other appurtenances. 
 
"Public Street" -- Publicly owned and maintained street. 

 
"Redevelopment" -- The conversion, structural alteration, 
relocation, significant  alteration or improvement, or enlargement 
of any structure; and/or the addition or improvement of site 
features; for the purpose of changing the type of, or increasing the 
intensity of use of a site. 
 
"Right-of-Way" -- A general term denoting public land, property, or 
interest therein acquired for or devoted to a public street, public 
access or public use. 
 
"Road" -- An open general public way for the passage of persons 
and vehicles. Used interchangeably with street. 
 
"Sanitary Sewage" -- Wastewater derived from domestic, 
commercial and industrial pretreated waste to which storm, 
surface and ground water are not intentionally admitted.  
 
"Sewer Main or Trunk" -- A sewer that receives flow from 
individual services and from one or more mains.  
 
“SCADA” -- (supervisory control and data acquisition) is a category 
of software application program for process control, the gathering 
of data in real time from remote locations in order to control 
equipment and conditions. 
 
"Side Sewer" -- That portion of the system located on private 
property connecting the building sewer to the lateral. Maintenance 
of side sewers is the responsibility of the property owner.  
 
"SMC" -- Shelton Municipal Code. 
 
"State" -- Wherever the Standard Specifications uses the term 
"State" to define "owner", the term "State" shall be construed to 
mean the City of Shelton. 
 



GENERAL STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
 

  
 

January 2019 1 - 8 
 

"Street" -- A public thoroughfare used for the passage of persons 
and vehicles from one place to another, including the sidewalks 
lining one or both sides. Used interchangeably with roads. 
 
"Street Frontage of Lot" -- The distance between the two points 
where the lot lines intersect the boundary of public street right-of-
way. 
 
"Subgrade" -- The top surface of the roadbed on which sub-base, 
base, surfacing, pavement or layers of similar materials are 
placed. 

 
“Unpaved Street” - An existing street segment within the City that 
is actively maintained by City crews and which has a gravel or 
compacted dirt driving surface. 
 
"Utility" -- A company providing public service including but not 
limited to, gas, electric power, street, street lighting, telephone and 
other communication lines, water, sewer, solid waste, storm 
drainage, or cable television whether or not such utility is privately 
owned or owned by a governmental entity. 
 
"Urban Density" -- Development of land at a minimum of four 
dwelling units per acre. Development for commercial or industrial 
uses that require urban services such as municipal water or sewer 
is considered to be urban in nature. 

 
 1.050 Changes to Standards 
 

Changes and revisions to the City of Shelton Design and 
Construction Standards shall be considered on an annual basis, 
and revised as a new version each year with the title indicating the 
year which the revised standards shall be in effect. The Public 
Works Director shall provide a report to the City Council 
summarizing the revisions being considered as part of the annual 
update prior to implementing the proposed revisions.  

 
 1.060  Severability 
 

If any part of these City of Shelton Development Standards shall be 
found invalid, all other parts shall remain in effect. 

 
 1.070 Design Standards 
 

Detailed plans for new development or redevelopment within the 
City of Shelton, or proposed actions that would cause 
modifications to existing public roads, public rights of way, or 



GENERAL STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
 

  
 

January 2019 1 - 9 
 

existing utility infrastructure, must be prepared by the Engineer 
and submitted to the City for plan review and approval prior to the 
commencement of any construction. The Engineer shall be a 
Professional Engineer, registered as such in the State of 
Washington.  

    
Officially designated historical facilities and districts shall be 
highlighted.  

 
All plans must be signed and stamped by the Engineer prior to        
submittal for plan review. Final plans shall be approved by the 

City prior to the start of construction. Any alteration(s) to the 
approved Final Plans shall be submitted by the Engineer and 
approved by the Public Works Director prior to construction. 

 
   Plan Preparation Standards: The plans prepared by the 

Engineer shall show all relevant surface features and all 
subsurface utilities, and shall show both plan and profile 
views. Separate plan sheets shall highlight the location of 
individual utilities (water, sewer, storm drainage, etc.) while 
also showing the other utilities. The plans shall show 
easements where utilities are on private property, and all 
utility facilities within those easements must be shown. The 
plans shall show invert elevations of water, sewer and storm 
drain mains at the outlet and all inlets of each manhole, slope 
of the main(s), and surface elevations of all surface structures. 
In the profile view, the finish ground elevation over the pipe(s) 
shall be shown. Notes shall be provided on the plans that refer 
to specific City standards for such things as catch basins, 
manholes, lampholes, crosswalks, water meter boxes, side 
sewers, etc. Horizontal and vertical clearances shall be shown 
between proposed and existing utilities. All cross connection 
control devices shall be detailed on the plans. If the Engineer is 
aware of any known or potential conflicts, these shall be 
highlighted. 

 
   Eight (8) sets of plans are required. All drawings shall be on 

24" x 36" sheet size or as otherwise approved by the City. The 
minimum allowable scale shall be 1 inch = 40 feet. On small 
projects, the scale will be enlarged to adequately utilize the full 
plan sheet. Final plans for construction and As-Built plans 
shall be good quality reproducible ink on Mylar. The original 
reproducible copy of the drawings will be returned to the 
applicant’s Engineer after approval by the City.   

 
   Within 30 days following the completion of construction, the 

original signed plan on Mylar shall be modified as needed to be 



GENERAL STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
 

  
 

January 2019 1 - 10 
 

“As-Built”, and certified by the Engineer. “As-Built” plans shall 
be submitted to the City showing the true condition or 
configuration of what has been built. “As-Built” plans shall be 
on 24-inch x 36-inch sheet size and accompanied by the 
redlined drawing plans digital file in AutoCAD release 2011 or 
above, with plot files, fonts, shape files, and x-ref, as well as 
properly executed easement deeds as applicable. “As-Built” 
plans shall become the property of the City. 

    
   Plans and profile drawings, showing all existing and proposed 

facilities are required for all proposed transportation-related 

improvements, street illumination, traffic signalization, storm 
drainage, and sewer and water improvements. Specifications 
shall be required and submitted with the plans if General 
Notes do not adequately cover the project requirements. If the 
project is to be done in phases, each phase shall be clearly 
defined and the entire project shall be designed by an Engineer 
and approved by the City before any portions of the proposed 
improvement can be constructed. Sizing and layout shall take 
into account the entire project.  

   
   On occasion, the scope of the project (i.e., relocation of a 

hydrant or installing a new driveway to an existing single-
family home) may not require engineered plans and can 
instead be handled via a Right-of-Way Access Permit. This 
option will be decided by the City. 

   

 1.080  Plan Review 
 

All plans are to be submitted to the City together with any 
necessary easements or dedications. A preliminary check of 
the plans and other documents will be made by the City to 
ensure that the plans meet minimum requirements. If the 
plans appear to meet minimum requirements as to 
completeness, they will then be routed to the appropriate City 
staff for substantive/content review and the plan review 
process begins. 
 
Submittals of plans may include construction drawings, 
specifications, design calculations, drainage calculations, 
Maintenance and Operations Manuals, and accompanying 
deeds, easements and/or other documents pertaining to the 
project. Additional information may be required from the 
applicant to ensure that the City’s infrastructure needs are 
met and that the project is consistent with City of Shelton 
Comprehensive Plans, and future City needs.   
 



GENERAL STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
 

  
 

January 2019 1 - 11 
 

Initial turnaround time for the review of plans is normally two 
weeks, but may be longer for larger projects. (Note: This is also 
the review time for any subsequent submittals.) The Engineer 
is then contacted by City staff, is notified of required revisions, 
or is requested to submit the original drawings for final 
approval. Additional review time will be required if revisions 
are necessary.   

 
Some proposed projects may require other governing agency 
approval(s), which might require additional time. 
 

If revisions to the plans require three (3) or more submittals, 
additional fees will be levied by the City. The fee for third 
submittal review is established by Resolution of the City 
Council. Third submittal shall mean the third and any 
subsequent submittal. Once all the corrections have been 
made, the original reproducible plans shall be submitted for 
City signature. The originals will be returned and the City shall 
receive five (5) copies for official records. All prints used for 
construction shall bear the City approval. 

 
Approved plans will be returned to the Engineer after all plan 
review fees have been paid. 

 
 1.090 Construction Control 
 
  Work performed for or impacting the construction of streets and 

utilities, or private development that falls under these Standards, 
whether by or for a private developer, by City forces, or by a City 
contractor, shall be done to the satisfaction of the City and in 
accordance with approved plans. It is emphasized that no work 
shall be started until such plans are approved. Any revisions to 
such plans shall be submitted by the Engineer and approved by 
the City before being implemented. Failure to receive the City's 
approval can result in removal or modification of construction not 
in conformance with approved plans, at the developer’s expense. 
All improvements shall be staked by a licensed professional civil 
engineer or surveyor and appropriate right-of-way/easement 
locations shall be determined. 

 
  The Engineer shall include the General Construction Notes in 

Section 1.220 on any plans dealing with construction of 
alternations, extensions or connections to public facilities, unless 
otherwise directed by the City. 

 
 1.100 Inspection 
 



GENERAL STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
 

  
 

January 2019 1 - 12 
 

  All work performed within the public rights-of-way, easements, 
private development that falls under these Standards, or as 
otherwise described in these Standards, whether by or for a 
private developer, by City forces, or by a City contractor, shall be 
done to the satisfaction of the City and in accordance with the 
approved plans and these Standards. Any revision(s) to the Final 
Plans must be submitted by the Engineer and approved by the 
City before being implemented. 

 
  It is the responsibility of the developer, the developer’s contractor 

or their agents to notify the City in advance of the commencement 

of any construction work. The contractor shall contact the City to 
schedule a preconstruction meeting and/or field review prior to 
the commencement of work (two business days’ notice is required). 
Inspections are to be scheduled through the Public Works 
Department. 

 
  It is the responsibility of the developer, the contractor or their 

agents to have an approved set of plans and any necessary 
permits on the job site whenever work is being performed. The 
City shall have authority to enforce construction authorized by the 
approved plans and these Standards as well as other referenced or 
pertinent specifications. The City will assign personnel as 
necessary to inspect the work being performed.  

 
  All specific inspections, test measurements or actions required of 

all work and materials are set forth herein. All tests shall be 
performed at the developer’s or contractor's expense and 
witnessed by the City Inspector. Failure to comply with the 
provisions of these Standards may result in stop work orders, 
removal of work accomplished, at the developer’s expense, or other 
penalties as established by Ordinance. 

 
  Failure to contact the City for required inspection may result in 

claims against bonds or other penalties as established by 
Ordinance. 

 

  A project is considered final when the City issues a letter of Final 
Acceptance.   

 
 1.110 Fees 
 
  Fees and applicable charges shall be as established by the City 

Council by the passage of a Resolution adopting a fee charge 
schedule except where specifically set forth in the Shelton 
Municipal Code (SMC). 

 



GENERAL STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
 

  
 

January 2019 1 - 13 
 

  All plan review fees are due prior to the release of approved plans. 
In addition, there may be various miscellaneous connection, 
inspection, system development charges and/or impact fees 
imposed as applicable. The City will not release the approved 
plans and/or issue a letter of Final Acceptance until all fees and 
charges have been paid to the City. 

 
 1.120 Permits 
 
  Some of the work covered under these Standards may require 

multiple permit reviews and approvals from the responsible 

authority. Any questions about permits, approvals and 
agreements should be directed to the City as soon as possible. 

 
  The following general categories describe some of the permits, 

approvals and agreements that may be needed along with the 
issuing permit/code authority identified in parentheses. 

 
  A. Environmental Review 
 

   For most projects, an environmental checklist must be 
completed by the project representative and submitted along 
with plans, specifications, and other information when 
approval or permits are being requested for a project. The 
City will conduct the environmental review and make the 
SEPA threshold determination. 

 
  B. Construction Permits 
 
   1. Business License: All entities doing business in the City 

must obtain a City of Shelton Business License 
(Community Development). 

 
   2. Right-of-Way Permit. Because of the need to preserve 

public safety for vehicular and pedestrian traffic, a Right-
of-Way permit (Public Works) is required for any work 
within the public right-of-way. Such work may include 
utilities, lane closures, parking strips, driveways, curbs, 
sidewalks, haul routes and/or permission to temporarily 
close a street or a portion thereof for construction 
activities. 

 
    A traffic control plan shall be submitted for approval. In 

the case of contracted work by the City, the signing of the 
contract shall constitute the Right of Way Permit. The 
contractor shall notify all appropriate agencies of 
approved closures and/or detours (Fire, Dispatch, Mason 



GENERAL STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
 

  
 

January 2019 1 - 14 
 

Transit Authority, School Districts, media (Journal, 
ifiberone radio). 

 
    A separate Right-of-Way Permit shall be obtained for 

each separate project before any person, firm, or 
corporation shall commence or permit any person, firm, 
or corporation to commence any work within a public 
right-of-way. 

 
    Work includes:, grading, paving, leveling, altering, 

constructing, repairing, removing, excavating or 

placement of any pavement, sidewalk, crosswalk, curb, 
gutter, driveway, gutter, drain, sewer facility, water 
facility, conduit, tank, vault, utility pole, mailbox, street 
banner or any other structure, utility or improvement 
located over, under or upon any public right-of-way or 
easement in the City of Shelton, or place any other 
material or item tending to obstruct, damage, disturb, 
occupy, or interfere with the free use thereof or any 
improvement situated therein, or cause a dangerous 
condition. 

 
   3. Building Permit: The project may require a Building 

Permit (Community Development). A Building Permit is 
required for most construction work including alteration, 
repairs and demolition. Construction of structures 
greater than 4,000 square feet requires the submittal of 
an environmental checklist. 

 
   4. Excavation and Grading Permit: The project may require 

a Clearing and Grading Permit (Public Works) if the 
amount of earthen material being moved exceeds 50 
cubic yards. 

 
   5. State Highway (WSDOT): Some City streets are also State 

highways. The contractor shall obtain approval for work 
upon or temporary closure of State highways from 
WSDOT as required. 

 
   6. County Right of Way Permit: Application to and approval 

of a Right of Way Permit from Mason County may be 
required for work on City of Shelton facilities in 
unincorporated Mason County. 

 
   7. Other:  There are several other permits or approvals that 

may be required and which may be referred to in these 
Standards including but not limited to Site Plan Review 



GENERAL STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
 

  
 

January 2019 1 - 15 
 

approval, plat and short plat approvals, Certificate of 
Occupancy issuance, zoning and other land use 
approvals, planned unit development approval, and 
shoreline substantial development approval. 

    
 1.130 Financial Guarantees for Public Projects 
 

Financial guarantees in the form of bonds or other allowable securities 
may be required by the City on all projects affecting public facilities to 
guarantee the performance of or maintenance of required 
improvements, including improvements constructed within 

unincorporated areas of Mason County. The type and amount of 
security shall be per code, or, if not specified, be at the discretion of 
the City. Types of securities include, but are not limited to, a bond 
with a surety licensed to do bonding business in the State of 
Washington, a cash deposit, an assigned savings account, a set-aside 
letter, or a letter of credit. 

 
  A.  Performance Guarantee. No construction permit (See Section 

1.120.b above) shall be issued until a performance bond or 
other allowable security as outlined above, has been posted 
with the City in an amount equal to one hundred fifty 
percent (150%) of the cost of the public works improvements. 
A building permit and/or certificate of occupancy shall not 
be issued until all public improvements are completed and 
final acceptance granted, unless otherwise allowed by the 
City. 

 
  B. Maintenance Guarantee. Prior to the final acceptance of 

public improvements, a maintenance guarantee for materials 
and workmanship shall be posted with the City for a period 
of 24 months after final acceptance of construction and in 
the amount equal to 20 percent of the estimated cost of the 
public improvements. Release of the maintenance guarantee 
will occur 18 months from the date of final acceptance of 
construction if all maintenance has been performed as 
required and accepted by the City. 

  
1.140 Utility Alignments 

 
  Locations of new or relocated utilities shall conform to City 

Standards as nearly as practical, be compatible with the existing 
installations and shall comply with all provisions as set forth in 
SMC Chapter 12.20 Excavations and Encroachments. Existing 
utilities shall be shown on the plans using the best information 
available. This verification will require exploration/excavation 
(potholing) if utilities are in conflict with the proposed design. The 



GENERAL STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
 

  
 

January 2019 1 - 16 
 

contractor/developer shall be responsible for utility locates in 
conjunction with the project. 

 
  Utilities converted from overhead to underground on existing 

roadways will be considered as if they are new utilities. 
  
 1.150 Easements 
 
  Utilities shall be placed in the public right-of-way unless terrain or 

other topographic obstacles dictate otherwise, or as otherwise 
approved by the City. Where the City approves public utilities 

and/or their conveyance systems across private lands, an 
easement must be granted to the City. It is the developer’s 
responsibility to provide the required documentation to the City to 
process, record, and file all easements. If the property is platted, 
the easement may be conveyed when the short plat or final plat is 
filed. All easements not shown on a plat must be prepared by a 
licensed land surveyor.  

 
  Easement widths shall be fifteen (15) feet minimum for a single 

utility and twenty (20) feet minimum for dual utilities, unless a 
wider width is determined to be necessary by the City. 

 
  Construction easements shall be thirty (30) feet minimum in total 

width, including the permanent easement. When trench depths 
dictate or where pipe diameter or vault widths exceed four (4) feet, 
a wider easement may be required by the City. 

   
  Easements are required to be submitted in draft, unsigned for 

review and approval. Signed copies are required prior to plan 
approval. Any change in design that places a public facility, i.e., 
water main, sewer main, sidewalk, etc., outside of an easement 
may necessitate the stopping of construction until plans and 
easements can be resubmitted and approved. Easements will be 
filed by the City upon satisfactory completion of work.  

 
 1.160 Latecomers Agreement 
 
  Any person who constructs water or sewer main extension 

(including pump stations) that will benefit properties abutting the 
extension may enter into a contract with the City that is 
commonly termed a "Latecomers Agreement." As determined by 
the City at its sole discretion, the Latecomers Agreement may 
allow the developer to be reimbursed for that portion of the 
construction cost which benefits adjoining properties. To be 
considered by the City, the format for a Latecomers Agreement 
must be submitted for review and approval prior to plan approval. 



GENERAL STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
 

  
 

January 2019 1 - 17 
 

Latecomers Agreements submitted after plan approval will not be 
accepted.  

   
  The developer is responsible for initiating, executing and 

submitting the Latecomers Agreement to the City. The Latecomers 
Agreement shall include a list of those properties which will 
benefit from the extension, a map outlining and designating these 
properties, legal descriptions as required by the City, and backup 
data supporting the costs submitted. The City shall be responsible 
for filing and recording a covenant on all affected parcels and 
property and notifying current and future owners of the 

Latecomers Agreement reimbursement encumbrance. 
 
  The developer will be responsible for all fees, charges, and expense 

involved for the City to perform this procedure. The City will 
collect the latecomer's fee from persons wanting to connect to the 
extension and subsequently see that the developer receives the 
payment. Expiration of this agreement shall be fifteen (15) years 
from the date of execution.  

 
 1.170 Traffic Control 
 
  As specified in Section 1.120 above, the contractor must obtain a 

Right of Way Permit before commencing any work in the public 
right-of-way. The contractor shall also be responsible for interim 
traffic control during construction on or along traveled roadways. 
Traffic control shall follow the guidelines of the WSDOT/APWA 
Standard Specifications. All barricades, signs, and flagging shall 
conform to the requirements of the MUTCD. 

 
  City utilities constructed within Mason County right-of-way shall 

follow all traffic control requirements as set forth by Mason 
County Department of Public Works and the MUTCD. 

 
  Signs must be legible and visible and shall be removed at the end 

of each workday if not applicable after construction hours. 
 
  When road closures and detours cannot be avoided, the contractor 

shall notify the City. The City may require a detour plan to be 
prepared, submitted and approved prior to closing any portion of a 
City right-of-way . 

 
 1.180 Call Before You Dig 
 
  All developers/contractors are responsible for timely notification of 

all utilities in advance of any construction in right-of-way or utility 



GENERAL STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
 

  
 

January 2019 1 - 18 
 

easements. The utilities one-call Underground Location Center 
phone number is 1-800-424-5555 (or 811). 

  
  The City is not responsible for locating private lines or other 

utilities in the right-of-way. The contractor shall be responsible for 
field verifying by pot-holing or other means as needed, all potential 
public or private utility conflicts. 

 
 1.190 Utility Extension 
 
  Anyone who wishes to extend any City utility should contact the 

City to see if there are any extension/connection fees or any 
special extension requirements. 

 
  For service to adjacent property and/or future development, as 

determined by the City, utility mains shall be extended across the 
face of or to and through the extremes of the property being 
developed. Extensions shall be to the middle of intersections and 
through to the end of any pavement. Utility extensions shall be 
sized per the appropriate utilities' Comprehensive Plan or to 
provide for further extensions, as directed by the City.  

  
 1.200 Annexation Requirement 
 
  Every applicant for water and sewer service outside the city limits, 

except for municipal corporations or quasi-municipal 
corporations, must sign an agreement with the City not to protest 
annexation. The owner shall provide the City with an irrevocable 
power of attorney to allow a City representative to sign a petition 
for annexation on behalf of the property owner or the property 
owner shall agree to sign a petition for annexation of his/her 
property when requested to do so by the City. The agreement shall 
be recorded against the property in the Mason County Auditor’s 
office and shall constitute a covenant running with the land. All 
provisions of the agreement shall be binding on the owner and all 
other persons subsequently acquiring any right, title or interest in 
or to said property. 

 
  Owners of property located outside the City Urban Growth Area 

boundary may make application for sewer and water service to 
their property. The City Council shall review the application and 
may, in its sole discretion, allow the extension or expansion of 
sewer and water service if the Council finds: 

 
1. That the requested service is necessary to protect basic 

public health and safety and the environment; 



GENERAL STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
 

  
 

January 2019 1 - 19 
 

2. That the requested service is financially supportable at 
rural densities and does not permit urban development; 

3. That the City’s NPDES permit will not be affected by the 
extension or expansion; and 

4. That the extension or expansion is consistent with the 
goals of the City’s Sewer Comprehensive Plan, its Water 
Comprehensive Plan, and all other applicable law. 

 
 1.210 Standards in Shelton Urban Growth Area 
 

City utilities may be extended to properties within the Shelton 

Urban Growth Area only after the property is legally committed to 
eventual annexation per Section 1.200. Utility extensions may be 
permitted after the following policies are satisfied. These policies 
have been adopted by both the City of Shelton and Mason County.  
 
A. City utilities may be extended to properties within the Urban 

Growth Area (UGA) either upon annexation or through the 
creation of a Utility Extension Agreement with the owners of 
properties not annexed. (County Policy U-151 B1) 

 
B. No utility extension will be permitted to any non-annexed 

property within the UGA unless a Utility Extension Agreement 
is signed between the owner of the subject property and the 
City of Shelton. The agreement shall provide for the following: 
(County Policy U-151 B2): 

 
1. Utility Extension Agreements will be an instrument 

recorded against the title of the property and the 
responsibilities therein shall transfer to successors in 
ownership of all or part of the property. (County Policy U-
151 B2a) 

 
2. Extension and hook-up must not result in lowering of 

service delivery below adopted City LOS standards as 
determined by the City. Hook-ups outside of the City 
shall not be permitted until such standards are adopted, 
as determined by the City. (County Policy U-151 B2b) 

 
3. Water hook-up will not be allowed until a contribution to 

a source development fund is made by the property 
owner/developer, as determined by the City. (County 
Policy U-151 B2d) 

 
4. Extensions will not be permitted unless agreement is 

made to pay a system development charge as identified 
by the City in a rate study. (County Policy U-151 B2e) 



GENERAL STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
 

  
 

January 2019 1 - 20 
 

 
5. All costs for a utility system extension, the steps 

necessary to maintain level of service (LOS), sewer system 
I&I fund contributions, water source development fund 
contributions and system development charges shall be 
borne by the property owner served. (County Policy U-
151 B2f) 

 
6. All served property must have a commitment to annex 

when contiguous and requested by the City placed on the 
property title. (County Policy U-151 B2g) 

 
7. All utility users shall be subject to rates and surcharges 

as established by the City of Shelton. (County Policy U-
151 B2h) 

 
8. In the event that a Utility Extension Agreement is 

approved by the City in an area that is served by an 
existing State Department of Health approved water 
system; that system may continue to be operated by the 
present owners or their satellite management agency. 
Fire flow, service line size, and main size will remain until 
State DOH requires an upgrade in order to obtain a green 
operating permit. (County Policy U-151 B2i) 

 
  C. In addition to all conditions listed above, the following must be 

provided in Utility Extension Agreements to extend City 
services to new development not vested by virtue of a complete 
development application prior to the adoption of (these 
standards). (County Policy U-151 B3) 

 
   1. City owned utilities will only be extended to land uses 

consistent with the City's Comprehensive Plan Future 
Land Use Map as determined by the City. (County Policy 
U-151 B3a) 

 
   2. City owned utilities will only be extended to development 

meeting City development standards. (County Policy U-
151 B3b) 

 
   3. When extended to residential development, City owned 

utilities will only be extended to development that meets 
the definition of urban densities as per Joint Planning 
Agreement and is consistent with the policies for 
subdivision of land therein. (County Policy U-151-B3c) 

 



GENERAL STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
 

  
 

January 2019 1 - 21 
 

   4. Storm water systems (in the UGA) shall be designed and 
constructed in compliance with the requirements of the 
Washington State Department of Ecology Stormwater 
Manual for the Puget Sound Basin and all adopted storm 
water master plans or storm water ordinances and basin 
plans. Those properties designated by these plans as 
draining to City of Shelton owned and maintained 
facilities shall be included in the City Storm Water Utility 
Program. (County Policy U-151 B3d) 

 
 1.220  General Notes (For all Projects) 

   
1. All workmanship and materials shall be in accordance with the 

most current City of Shelton Standards and the most current 
edition of the State of Washington Standard Specifications for 
Road, Bridge and Municipal Construction (WSDOT/APWA).  

 
 2. All safety standards and requirements shall be complied with as 

set forth by OSHA, WISHA, and the Washington State Department 
of Labor and Industries. 

 
 3. All work in the City requires a City of Shelton Business License. 
 
 4. Prior to working within the City right-of-way or on City property, 

the contractor must obtain a City of Shelton Right-of-Way Permit. 
All contractors shall be licensed and bonded in the State of 
Washington. Proponent shall comply with all other permits and 
other requirements of the governing authority or agency. It is the 
contractor’s responsibility to verify the location of the right-of-way. 

 
 4. A pre-construction meeting with the City of Shelton is required. The 

meeting shall be scheduled a minimum of two (2) days before the 
start of construction. Contact the City Engineering Department at 
(360) 426-9731 to schedule. 

 
 5. It is the contractor’s responsibility to notify the City of his/her 

schedule. Inspection by City personnel shall be during City work 
hours. City inspection hours are 8:00 AM to 5:00 PM Monday 
through Friday, except holidays. The proponent must give the City 
a minimum of 24-hour notice for inspections. No trenching on 
public right-of-way after 4:00 PM unless otherwise approved by the 
City. Other work such as backfilling, cleanup, etc., or as approved 
by the City is acceptable if 24 hours’ prior notice is provided to the 
City.  

 
 6. Temporary erosion/water pollution measures shall be required in 

accordance with section 1-07.15 of the WSDOT/APWA Standard 



GENERAL STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
 

  
 

January 2019 1 - 22 
 

Specifications the Washington State Department of Ecology Storm 
Water Management Manual for the Puget Sound Basin, and the 
Shelton Municipal Code.  

 
  At no time will silts and debris be allowed to drain into an existing 

or newly installed storm water facility or onto adjacent roads or 
properties. The contractor shall not release storm water to the 
sanitary sewer system. All erosion control and water pollution 
prevention measures shall be regularly inspected and maintained 
by the contractor. 

 

7. It is the Contractor's responsibility to notify all emergency services 
(Fire, Police, etc.) if streets or other accesses are obstructed. Within 
the City of Shelton, Dispatch at (360) 426-4441 will notify Police 
and Ambulance. The Contractor shall be responsible for notifying 
the Shelton Fire Department. 

 
 The following are telephone numbers the contractor may need. These are 

provided for convenience only and are subject to change without notice. 
 
   City Shop    (360) 432-5189 
   City Engineering   (360) 426-9731 
   City Treatment Plant (360) 426-6521 
   City Hall    (360) 426-4491 
   Fire Department   (360) 426-5533 
   Mason Transit Authority (360) 427-5033 
   Shelton School District (360) 427-8610 
 
8. The Contractor shall notify and work with all affected property owners. 

The Contractor shall provide the City with emergency telephone numbers 
at the preconstruction meeting and shall provide a foreman on site 
during all working hours. 

 
9. The Contractor shall be responsible for all traffic control in accordance 

with the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD) and 
Department of Labor and Industries. Prior to disruption of any traffic, 
traffic control plans shall be prepared and submitted to the City for 
approval. No work shall commence until all approved traffic control is in 
place. 

 
10. The Contractor shall be fully responsible for the location and protection 

of all existing utilities. The contractor shall verify all utility locations prior 
to construction by calling the Underground Locate line at 1-800-424-
5555 or 811 a minimum of two (2) business days prior to any 
excavations. 

 



GENERAL STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
 

  
 

January 2019 1 - 23 
 

11. Water, sewer or storm service lines broken on private property shall be 
repaired immediately by the contractor in accordance with the Uniform 
Plumbing Code (UPC) or other appropriate standards and may require a 
permit, contact the City Building Official 

 
 City service lines broken in the City right-of-way shall be reported to the 

City and repaired immediately by the contractor. If not repaired within 
24 hours, the City will repair and the contractor will be billed for the 
repair work on a time and materials basis for marked utility lines. 
Reports should be directed to (360) 432-5189 during regular business 
hours, or (360) 426-4441 during non-business hours. 

 
12. All utilities shall be staked for grades and alignment by a licensed 

Engineering or Surveying firm capable of performing such work.  
 
13. Signed, approved blueprints shall be on site at all times while work is 

being performed. 
 
14. The Contractor shall restore work area to same or better condition unless 

otherwise approved or specified. 
 
15. All disturbed areas, other than pavement and rocked surfaces, shall be 

seeded and mulched, or similarly stabilized to the satisfaction of the City 
and in accordance with the Standards. For sites where grass has been 
planted, the performance and/or maintenance guarantees will not be 
released until the grass has been thoroughly established, unless 
otherwise approved by the City. 

 
16. If existing native material is determined by the City to be suitable for 

backfill, the Contractor may use the native material. 
 
17. All asphalt restoration shall be as specified in the Standard Detail T-18 

or to the depth of the existing pavement, whichever is greater. Existing 
asphalt edges shall be saw cut to a smooth straight edge prior to final 
patching, unless otherwise approved by the City. 

 
18. All concrete restoration shall be saw cut to a smooth, straight edge prior 

to final patching, unless otherwise approved by the City. 3000 psi 
concrete shall be used, and shall be poured to the same depth and 
alignment as the existing pavement. The City will require doweling per 
Standard Detail T-18. 

 
19. All permanent patching shall be accomplished within seven (7) calendar 

days unless otherwise approved by the City. Any temporary patch that 
requires more than seven (7) calendar days shall be hot mix asphalt 
concrete. 

 



GENERAL STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
 

  
 

January 2019 1 - 24 
 

 Temporary patching shall be 2-inch depth Class B asphalt concrete 
pavement, 2-inch medium curing (MC-250) liquid asphalt (cold mix), 2-
inch asphalt treated base (ATB) or steel plates. 

 
 The Contractor shall maintain the patch. If not properly maintained, the 

City will perform any necessary repair and bill the Contractor. 
  



GENERAL STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS 
 

  
 

January 2019 1 - 25 
 

L I S T  O F  D R A W I N G S  

C H A P T E R  1  M I S C E L L A N E O U S  
 

MISCELLANEOUS 
Title Drawing 
Garbage Enclosure Detail  ......................................................................  M-01 
Rock Wall (4’ or Less)  ............................................................................  M-02 
Root Control Barrier Plan Views  ............................................................  M-03 
Root Control Barrier Section Views  ........................................................  M-04 
Mailbox Cluster Wood Structure  ............................................................  M-05 

Mailbox Setbacks  ..................................................................................  M-06 
Bollard Detail  ........................................................................................  M-07 
Sign Post Installation for Outside Paved Area  ........................................  M-08 
Sign Post Installation for Inside Paved Area ............................................  M-09 
Single Mailbox for Outside Paved Area ....................................................  M-10 
Single Mailbox for Inside Paved Area ......................................................  M-10A 
 

 
 

TEMPORARY EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL 
Title Drawing 
CB/Inlet Sedimentation Trap Outside Paved Area ..................................   E-01 
CB/Inlet Sediment Trap Inside Paved Area .............................................   E-01A 
Catch Basin Silt Fence Detail  ................................................................   E-02 
Rock Check Dam Details  .......................................................................   E-03 
Sediment Trap Outlet Detail  ..................................................................   E-04 
Silt Fence Details  ..................................................................................   E-05 
Sod Filter Typical Layout  .......................................................................   E-06 
Stabilized Construction Entrance  ..........................................................   E-07 
Small Parcel Erosion Control ..................................................................   E-08 
 

























N
O

T
E

S

×

M
A

I
L
 
B

O
X

 
N

O
T

E
S

:

S
I
N

G
L

E
 
M

A
I
L

B
O

X

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N

S
I
D

E
 
P

A
V

E
D

 
A

R
E

A
S

M
-
1
0

M

A

I

L

×
 

W
O

O
D

 
P

O
S

T
 
A

S
S

E
M

B
L

Y
 
D

E
T

A
I
L

W
O

O
D

 
P

O
S

T
 
F

A
S

T
E

N
E

R
S

×
 

 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIZE / TYPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/8" DIAM. x 4 3/4" BOLT

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/8" DIAM. x 3/4" BOLT

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/16" DIAM. x 1" SCREW

AutoCAD SHX Text
QUANTITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASHERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCKNUTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A SOCKET AND WEDGE ANCHORING SYSTEM THAT MEETS THE  NCHRP 350 CRASH TEST CRITERIA MAY BE SUBSTITUTED IN LIEU  OF THE ANTI-TWIST PLATE DESIGNS SHOWN.  ANTI-TWIST PLATES ARE  NOT REQUIRED FOR WOOD POST INSTALLATIONS. THE PLATFORM DESIGN SHOWN ON THIS PLAN FEATURES SLOTS THAT  ACCOMMODATE SEVERAL TYPES OF MAILBOX SUPPORTS; ONLY THOSE  SLOTS NECESSARY FOR ASSEMBLING THE TYPE BEING INSTALLED ARE  REQUIRED.  AN ADJUSTABLE PLATFORM MAY BE USED IN LIEU OF  THIS DESIGN, BUT IT MUST FIT THE BRACKET DESIGN SHOWN ON THIS  PLAN. BRACKETS ARE REQUIRED FOR ALL SINGLE-POST INSTALLATIONS.   FIELD DRILLING MAY BE NECESSARY. CENTER THE MAILBOX ON THE PLATFORM TO ENSURE SPACE FOR THE  MAILBOX DOOR TO OPEN AND TO ALLOW SPACE FOR INSTALLING THE  FASTENERS (SEE ALIGNMENT DETAIL, SHEET M-10A).  SPACING  OF MAILBOX MOUNTING HOLES VARIES AMONG MANUFACTURERS.   ATTACHMENT OF THE MAILBOX TO THE PLATFORM MAY REQUIRE DRILL- ING ADDITIONAL HOLES THROUGH THE MAILBOX TO FIT THE PLATFORM. ATTACH A NEWSPAPER BOX TO A STEEL POST WITH TWO 1 7/8"  MUFFLER CLAMPS SPACED 4" APART.  FIELD DRILL 7/16" HOLES IN  THE NEWSPAPER BOX TO FIT.  USE 2 1/2" × 1/4" LAG BOLTS TO   1/4" LAG BOLTS TO  ATTACH NEWSPAPER BOXES TO WOOD POSTS.  NEWSPAPER BOXES  MUST NOT EXTEND BEYOND THE FRONT OF THE MAILBOX WHEN THE  MAILBOX DOOR IS CLOSED. A TYPE 2 SUPPORT (CITY DRAWING M-10) IS REQUIRED WHEN  2 OR MORE MAILBOXES ARE TO BE INSTALLED ON ONE SUPPORT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATION OF PEDESTAL PARCEL LOCKER WILL BE APPROVED BY PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR AND THE POSTAL SERVICE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIS DRAWING DEPICTS A MINIMUM STRUCTURAL AND DIMENSIONAL STANDARD FOR NEIGHBORHOOD DELIVERY & COLLECTION BOX UNIT AND PADS. FOR SPECIFIFC POSTAL REQUIREMENTS, CONTACT THE POSTMASTER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAILBOXES MUST BE POSTMASTER APPROVED WITH A UNIFORM BOX STYLE AND METHOD OF ADDRESS IDENTIFICATION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATIONS OF MAILBOXES ARE SUBJECT TO APPROVAL BY THE CITY ENGINEER FOR PROTECTION OF VIEWS AND ACCESS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.

AutoCAD SHX Text
U.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
7/16" HOLE (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/8" × 4 3/4" HEX HEAD 4 3/4" HEX HEAD BOLT, 2 WASHERS & LOCKNUT, LENGTH TO FIT (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRACKET (TYP.) ~ SEE DETAIL, SHEET 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLATFORM ~ SEE DETAIL AND NOTE 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
4x4 WOOD POST ~ SEE WSDOT STD. SPEC. 9-28.14(1)

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAILBOX ~ SIZE 1, 1A, OR 2 (SIZE 1A SHOWN) (SEE TABLE, SHEET M-10A, FOR DIMENSIONS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/16" × 1" PHILLIPS HEAD 1" PHILLIPS HEAD SCREW, 2 WASHERS, AND LOCKNUT WITH NYLON INSERT (TYP.) ~ 4 SETS MIN. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDITIONAL WASHERS ~ AS REQUIRED TO FILL GAP (TYP.) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRACKET (TYP.) (SEE DETAIL, SHEET 2)

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/8"x 3/4" HEX BOLT 3/4" HEX BOLT 2 WASHERS AND LOCKNUT (TYP.)



S
I
N

G
L

E
 
M

A
I
L

B
O

X

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I
N

S
I
D

E
 
P

A
V

E
D

 
A

R
E

A
S

M
-
1

0
A

B
R

A
C

K
E

T
 
D

E
T

A
I
L

*

A
T

 
E

D
G

E
 
O

F

S
H

O
U

L
D

E
R

B
E

H
I
N

D
 
S

I
D

E
W

A
L

K
B

E
H

I
N

D
 
C

U
R

B

M
A

I
L
B

O
X

 
&

 
P

L
A

T
F

O
R

M
 
D

I
M

E
N

S
I
O

N
S

×
 

×
 

W

×
 

L

P
L
A

T
F

O
R

M
 
D

E
T

A
I
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
7 1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
7/16" DIAM. HOLE (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
7/16" DIAM. HOLE (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
90°

AutoCAD SHX Text
6 1/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6 1/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
90° BEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISOMETRIC 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRONT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP 

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIABLE 6" TO 12" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF SHOULDER OR TURNOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIABLE 0" TO 12" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FACE OF CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB TYPE VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNLESS OTHERWISE SHOWN IN THE PLANS

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIABLE 0" TO 12" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACK OF SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
3' - 5" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3' - 9" MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3' - 5" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3' - 9" MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3' - 5" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3' - 9" MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIZE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAILBOX DIMENSIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLATFORM DIMENSIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
19"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6 1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8 1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
17"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1A

AutoCAD SHX Text
21"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10 1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
19"

AutoCAD SHX Text
7 1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
11 1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
13 1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
21"

AutoCAD SHX Text
11"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
7 1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
7/16" × 1 1/4" 1 1/4" SLOT (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SYMMETRICAL ABOUT CENTERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 1/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/16" × 1 1/4" 1 1/4" SLOT (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4" × 5/8" 5/8" SLOT (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8" R. (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/16" (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 1/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 7/16"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 1/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8" (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SYMMETRICAL ABOUT CENTERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SYMMETRICAL ABOUT CENTERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
END





SECTION VIEW

PLAN VIEW

C

I

O

N

N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

C

I

O

N

N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

CB/INLET

OUTSIDE PAVED AREA

E-01

SEDIMENTATION TRAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAXIMUM DEPTH 2.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MINIMUM DEPTH 1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
COURSE (1-1/4" MINUS) FILTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND CRUSHED ROCK BASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSERT TILE WITH WIRE SCREEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEAVE OUT BLOCK; TEMPORARILY

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UNOTE%%U:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEAN OUT SUMP AND REPLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILTER MATERIAL WHEN SEDIMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
IS WITHIN 6" OF THE RIM.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITH FILTER FABRIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRAME & GRATE COVERED

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAX. SLOPE 1:1

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOTTOM OF SEDIMENT TRAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1:1 MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1:1 MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS



C

I

O

N

N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

C

I

O

N

N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

CB/INLET

INSIDE PAVED AREA

E-01A

SEDIMENTATION TRAP

OVERFLOW BYPASS

5" MAX.

TRIM

GRATE FRAME

FILTERED

WATER

SEDIMENT AND DEBRIS

DRAINAGE GRATE

BELOW INLET GRATE DEVICE

OVERFLOW BYPASS (TYP.)

DRAINAGE GRATE

~ RECTANGULAR GRATE SHOWN

RETRIEVAL SYSTEM (TYP.)

BELOW INLET GRATE DEVICE

NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE RETRIEVAL SYSTEM MUST ALLOW REMOVAL OF THE BIGD WITHOUT SPILLING THE COLLECTED MATERIAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE BIGD SHALL HAVE A BUILT-IN HIGH-FLOW RELIEF SYSTEM (OVERFLOW BYPASS).

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIZE THE BELOW INLET GRATE DEVICE (BIGD) FOR THE STORM WATER STRUCTURE IT WILL SERVICE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERFORM MAINTENANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH WSDOT STANDARD SPECIFICATION 8-01.3(15).

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.



ISOMETRIC

PLAN VIEW

SECTION A-A

NOTE:

A

A

"Building A Stronger Community

TOGETHER"

C

I

O

N

N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

C

I

O

N

N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

CATCH BASIN

SILT FENCE

PROTECTION

E-02

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITH GRATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERIMETER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEDIMENT SUMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
FABRIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"x2"x4' (MIN.) WOODEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAKES, DRIVEN INTO

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUND 18" (MIN.) IN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEPTH.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" DEEP x 12" WIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2:1 SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
(4 SIDES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITH GRATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
BURIED

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
FABRIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEDIMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILTER FABRIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCK FILTER OVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4" OR LESS WASHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILTER FABRIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.  DO NOT PLACE FABRIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNDER GRATE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.  APPLIES W/ SUBGRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WORK.  ONCE CRUSHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCK PLACEMENT PROCEDES

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR FINAL PAVING, WRAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRATE W/ FABRIC.  REMOVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEFORE COMPLETING CB

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJUSTMENT & MAKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATERTIGHT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERIMETER

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS



ROCK CHECK DAM CROSS SECTION

SWALE CROSS SECTION @ ROCK CHECK DAM

ROCK CHECK DAM

DETAILS

E-03

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOWLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCK CHECK

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAM

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEY ROCK INTO

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWALE 0.25' (MIN.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.5' MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
1:1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1:1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.0' MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.5'-1.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWALE SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECK DAM SPACING

AutoCAD SHX Text
0% - 5%

AutoCAD SHX Text
5% - 10%

AutoCAD SHX Text
> 10%

AutoCAD SHX Text
150'

AutoCAD SHX Text
100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE:  ROCK SHALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
BE 4" MINUS QUARRY ROCK.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUMP BEHIND ROCK CHECK

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAM SHALL BE INSPECTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAILY, AND CLEANED WHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLLECTED DEBRIS EXCEEDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2 OF ITS DEPTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEY ROCK INTO

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWALE 0.25' (MIN.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS



A

A

S
E

C
T

I
O

N
 
A

-
A

I
S

O
M

E
T

R
I
C

 
V

I
E

W

S
E

D
I
M

E
N

T
 
T

R
A

P

O
U

T
L
E

T
 
D

E
T

A
I
L

E
-
0
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
1' DEPTH 2"-4" ROCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
2' SETTLING DEPTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.5' SEDIMENT STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1' DEPTH 3/4" - 1 1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASHED GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
OUTFLOW CHANNEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
IF CONSTRUCTED 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY EXCAVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
FABRIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1' OVERFLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEPTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3:1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3:1

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAY BE CONSTRUCTED 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY EXCAVATION OR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY BUILDING A BERM

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERFLOW SPILLWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' MIN. WIDTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.5' SEDIMENT STORAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2' SETTLING DEPTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
(1' OF 2"-4" ROCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
& 1' DEPTH OF 3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
-1 1/2" WASHED GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
1' OVERFLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEPTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
1' DEPTH OF 3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
-1 1/2" WASHED GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
1' DEPTH OF 2"-4" ROCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS



SILT FENCE

DETAIL

E-05

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"x4" WOOD POSTS, STANDARD OR

AutoCAD SHX Text
BETTER, OR EQUAL ALTERNATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEEL FENCE POSTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BURY BOTTOM OF FILTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATERIAL IN 8"x12" TRENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"x2"x14 GA. WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FABRIC OR EQUIV. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILTER FABRIC MATERIAL 36" WIDE ROLLS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
USE STAPLES OR WIRE RINGS TO ATTACH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FABRIC TO WIRE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"x4" WOOD POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALT: STEEL FENCE POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLTER FABRIC MATERIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"x2"x14 GA. WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FABRIC OR EQUIV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROVIDE .75"-1.5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASHED GRAVEL BACKFILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
IN TRENCH AND ON BOTH 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDES OF FILTER FABRIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
ON THE SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS



I
S

O
M

E
T

R
I
C

 
V

I
E

W

P
L
A

N
 
V

I
E

W

S
O

D
 
F

I
L
T

E
R

(
T

Y
P

I
C

A
L
 
L
A

Y
O

U
T

)

E
-
0
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF SWALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF SWALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF SWALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOTTOM 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOD FILTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE OF CATCH BASIN OR INLET.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(MINIMUM 10' ON THE UPSTREAM

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS DIRECTED BY THE ENGINEER-

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF SWALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF SWALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE TO CATCH BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE TO CATCH BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOTTOM OF SWALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOD FILTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS



S
T

A
B

I
L
I
Z

E
D

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
I
O

N

 
E

N
T

R
A

N
C

E

E
-
0
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
INGRESS/EGRESS AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROVIDE FULL WIDTH OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=25' MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS REQUIRED (100' MIN.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" MIN. DEPTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" TO 8" QUARRY SPALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS



NOTES:

A NORTH ARROW.

ALL ABUTTING STREET(S) (IF APPLICABLE).

THE ADDRESS AND/ OR PARCEL NUMBER.

2.

3.

4.

THE FOLLOWING ITEMS MUST BE

SHOWN ON SUBMITTAL:

ALL INFORMATION SHOWN ABOVE 1.

RELEVANT TO THE SUBJECT PROPERTY.

SMALL PARCEL

EROSION CONTROL

EXAMPLES

E-08

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUFFER ZONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCK PROTECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR OUTFALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILTER FABRIC FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR DRAINAGE AREA LESS THAN 1 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW DIRECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
BAFFLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEDIMENT POND

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
(FOR PARCEL LESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
RISER

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERCEPTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIKE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
OR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIVIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERCEPTOR DIKE OR SWALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILTER FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREAM

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV._____

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV._____

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV._____

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV._____

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV._____

AutoCAD SHX Text
NATURAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THAN 10 ACRES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEDIMENT TRAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
(FOR PARCEL LESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
THAN 3 ACRES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
OUTFALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHOW APPROX. SURFACE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTOURS OF PARCEL AND

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXTEND INTO CONTIGUOUS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREAS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERCEPTOR DIKE OR SWALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE C.O. SHELTON STD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCK CHECK DAM (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETAIL E-03 FOR SPACING

AutoCAD SHX Text
& SIZE REQUIREMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINE (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEDIMENT TRAP DRAINAGE AREA (FOR PARCEL LESS THAN 3 ACRES)



TRANSPORTATION 
 

  

January 2019 2 - 1 

C H A P T E R 2 

 
2.000 TRANSPORTATION 
 
 2.010  Transportation System Alterations, Extensions and 

Connections 
 

   To allow the City to provide timely assistance and advice, 
anyone who wishes to alter, extend or connect to the City’s 
transportation system should contact the City as soon as 
possible.  Any alteration of, extension of, or connection to the 
City’s transportation system must conform to the 
Comprehensive Plan, SEPA determinations, Final Plat approval, 
Site Plan approval, Subdivision approval, Final Planned Unit 
Development approval, Binding Site Plan approval, the WSDOT 
Standard Specifications for Road, Bridge and Municipal 
Construction, the WSDOT Design Manual, the WSDOT 
Construction Manual, Title 17 of the Shelton Municipal Code, 
and these Standards. 

 
  The design of streets and roads shall depend upon type and 

usage. The width and grade of pavement shall provide for 
safety and uniformity as required by the standards. 
 

 2.020 Functional Classification 
 

City streets are divided into principal arterials, minor arterials, 
major collectors, minor collectors, and local access streets in 
response to regional transportation needs and the functional 
use each serves.  See the Comprehensive Plan Transportation 
Element for a listing of arterials.  Function is the controlling 
element for classification and shall govern right-of-way, road 
width, and road geometrics. Streets will be classified or 
reclassified by the City as deemed necessary.  See Table 2.050 
Minimum Design Standards. 

 
 2.030 Roadway Classification Definitions 
 

A. Principal Arterial: Serves regional major activity areas.  
Carries all inter-urban and significant intra-urban auto 
and transit trips. Carries the highest traffic and longest 
trips.  Offers most mobility, least land access.  Fully or 
partially controlled access. 

 
B. Minor Arterial: Interconnects and augments principal 

arterials. Distributes travel to areas smaller than those 



TRANSPORTATION 
 

  

January 2019 2 - 2 

associated with major arterials.  Places more emphasis on 
land access than principal arterials. 

 
C. Major Collector: Provides both land access and traffic 

circulation within residential areas.  Provides intra-
community continuity but doesn’t penetrate identifiable 
neighborhoods.  Carries local bus routes. 

 
D. Minor Collector: Collects traffic from local system and 

channels it to arterials.  Provides both land access and 
traffic circulation within residential neighborhoods, 

commercial areas and industrial areas. 
 

E. Local:  Provides direct access to abutting land and access 
to higher classified streets.  Offers least mobility.  Usually 
contains no bus routes.  Through traffic deliberately 
discouraged. 

 
 2.040 Streets and Alleys 
 

   The design of streets and roads shall depend upon type and 
usage. Street design shall provide for the maximum weight 
loading conditions as determined by the City. The width and 
grade of the pavement shall provide for safety and uniformity 
as required by the Standards. 

 
   The layout of streets shall provide for preserving and extending 

the connectivity of the pedestrian, bicycle and grid street 
system. The layout shall also ensure that new development 
that is bordered or surrounded by areas of undeveloped land 
provides for future street extensions, connections, rights-of-
way etc. so that undeveloped areas do not become isolated 
from the transportation network. Existing streets and alleys 
and their proper projection shall be considered. Streets that 
primarily serve to provide access to abutting property shall be 
designed to discourage regular use by cut-through traffic while 
maintaining the connectivity of the transportation system.  See 
the table of Minimum Street Design Standards. 
 
A. Alignment:  The alignment of alleys, arterials and collectors 

shall conform as nearly as possible to the Comprehensive 
Plan.  

 
B. Grade: Street grades should conform closely to the natural 

contour of the land. In some cases a different grade may be 
required by the City depending upon the street 
classification.  The minimum allowable profile grade shall 



TRANSPORTATION 
 

  

January 2019 2 - 3 

be 0.5 percent.  The maximum allowable profile grade shall 
be as specified on Table 2.050, Minimum Street Design 
Standards. 

 
C. Width: Street pavement and right-of-way width depend 

upon the street classification. The table of Minimum Street 
Design Standards shows the minimum widths allowed.  
Street widths shall be measured from face-of-curb to face-
of-curb on streets with cement concrete curb and gutter or 
the edge-of-pavement where no curb and gutter exists. 

 

 



TRANSPORTATION 
 

  

January 2019                                                                       2 - 4 

2.050 Minimum Street Design Standards 

TABLE 2.050  
MINIMUM STREET DESIGN STANDARDS (2) 

DESIGN 
STANDARDS (1) 

PRINCIPAL 
ARTERIAL 

MINOR 
ARTERIAL 

MAJOR 
COLLECTOR 

MINOR 
COLLECTOR 

(2) 

LOCAL 
RESIDENTIAL 

(2) 
LOCAL 

COMMERCIAL 
PRIVATE 
STREET ALLEY 

DESIGN 

LIMITATIONS 

Access 

should be 
limited.  No 
on-street 
parking 
allowed. 

Access 

should be 
limited.  
NO on-
street 
parking 
allowed. 

Access 

should be 
limited.  On-
street 
parking 
allowed. 

Access 

should be 
limited.  On-
street 
parking 
allowed. 

On-street 

parking 
allowed 

On-street 

parking allowed. 

 No 

parking 
allowed.  
Loading 
and 
unloading 
allowed. 

MINIMUM 

STRUCTURAL 
DESIGN 

 

See Development Section 2.190 

MINIMUM 

RIGHT-OF-
WAY 

92’-96’ 

See 

Standard 
Drawing 
#T-25, T-
26.   

See Note 1. 

69’-73’   

See 

Standard 
Drawing 
#T-25, T-
26.   

See Note 

1. 

61’-84’.  

 See 

Standard 
Drawing #  
T-22, T-23, 
T-24.  See 
Note 1. 

61’-84’.  

 See 

Standard 
Drawing #  
T-22, T-23, 
T-24.  See 
Note 1. 

60’-76’.  See 

Standard 
Drawing #    
T-20, T-21.   

See Note 1. 

61’-65’ 

75’-84’ 

See Standard 
Drawing # 

T-22, T-23,  

T-24. 

See Note 1 

 20’ 

See Note 

1 

MINIMUM 
PAVEMENT 
WIDTH 

48-64 feet, 
with four 
travel 

lanes, 
median, 
turning 

pockets 
and 5’ bike 
lanes on 
both sides.  

48-60 feet, 
with 4 
travel 

lanes, one 
2-1ay 
turning 

lane and 5’ 
bike lanes 
on both 
sides. 

44-48 feet 
with 4 travel 
lanes and 5’ 

bike lanes on 
both sides. 

24 feet, with 
5’ bike lanes 
on both 

sides. 

24 feet 
without on-
street parking; 

40 feet with 
on-street 
parking. 

40 feet, includes 
on-street 
parking. 

Fire 
Departme
nt 

standards 

20’ 

PARKING LANE None 

allowed 

None 

allowed 

Allowed; 8 

foot 
minimum 

Allowed; 8 

foot 
minimum 

Allowed; 8 foot 

minimum 

Allow; 8 foot 

minimum 

  



TRANSPORTATION 
 

  

January 2019                                                                       2 - 5 

DESIGN 
STANDARDS (1) 

PRINCIPAL 
ARTERIAL 

MINOR 
ARTERIAL 

MAJOR 
COLLECTOR 

MINOR 
COLLECTOR 

(2) 

LOCAL 
RESIDENTIAL 

(2) 
LOCAL 

COMMERCIAL 
PRIVATE 
STREET ALLEY 

MINIMUM/ 

MAXIMUM 
GRADE 

0.5%-8.0% 0.5%-8.0% 0.5%-8.0% 0.5%-8.0% 0.5%-10.0% 0.5%-10.0% 0.5%-

10.0% 

0.5%-

10.0% 

CURB Cement 

concrete 
curb and 
gutter 

Cement 

concrete 
curb and 
gutter 

Cement 

concrete 
curb and 
gutter 

Cement 

concrete 
curb and 
gutter 

Cement 

concrete curb 
and gutter 

Cement concrete 

curb and gutter 

 N/A 

SIDEWALKS Both sides, 

minimum 
8’ width, 
10’ with 
zero lot 
setback 

Both sides, 

minimum 
8’ width 

Both sides, 

minimum 8’ 
width 

Both sides, 

minimum 6’ 
width 

Both sides, 

minimum 6’ in 
residential 
zone, 8’ in 
commercial 
zone 

Both sides, 

minimum 8’ in 
commercial 
zone, 10; with 
zero lot line 

 N/A 

CUL-DE-SAC 

RADIUS 
(PAVEMENT 
WIDTH) 

N/A N/A N/A N/A Fire Dept 

Standards, 
minimum 55’ 
radius 

Fire Dept 

Standards, 
minimum 55’ 
radius 

Fire Dept 

standards 

N/A 

INTERSECTION 

CURB RADIUS 

35 feet, 55 

feet on 
Freight 
Mobility 
routes 

35 feet, 55 

feet on 
Freight 
Mobility 
routes 

35 feet, 55 

feet on 
Freight 
Mobility 
routes 

35 feet, 55 

feet on 
Freight 
Mobility 
routes 

Not less than 

30 feet at edge 
of travel lane, 
25 feet 
minimum 

Not less than 30 

feet at edge of 
travel lane, 25 
feet minimum  

 N/A 

DESIGN 

SPEED (MPH) 

With super 

elevation 
per 
AASHTO,  

Without 

super 

elevation 
600’, 
maximum 
super 
elevation = 
6% 

With super 

elevation 
per 
AASHTO,  

Without 

super 

elevation 
600’, 
maximum 
super 
elevation = 
6% 

150’ 150’ 100’ 100’  N/A 

(1) Additional right of way may be required to accommodate street tree corridor and bus turnout. 
(2)  An exception to these standards for in-fill development within the Neighborhood Residential (NR) Zoning District provided in 2.100.A.



TRANSPORTATION 
 

  

 

January 2019  2 - 6 

 2.060 Traffic Impact Analysis 
 

A Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) is a specialized study of the 
impacts a certain type and size of development will have on the 
surrounding transportation system. The traffic impact analysis 
is an integral part of the environmental review process and is 
specifically concerned with the generation, distribution, and 
assignment of traffic to and from the proposed development. 
 
The purpose of a TIA is to determine what impact development 
traffic will have on the existing and proposed street network 

and what impact the existing and projected traffic on the street 
system will have on the “new development”.  (Refer to definition 
of “development” in Chapter One). 
 
This section has been prepared to establish the requirements 
for a Traffic Impact Analysis. The Community and Economic 
Development Director is responsible under SEPA and City 
Ordinances for determining the need for a Traffic Impact 
Analysis. The Public Works Director will approve the scope of 
work, review the Traffic Impact Analysis and make 
recommendations to the SPRC and/or the ERC. 
 
All reports shall be submitted in a professional format that can 
be interpreted by all departments. Exhibits shall include a 
border with a title block identifying the project and a 
description with legible text clearly identifying all items. 
Exhibits shall be constructed with approved graphical 
software. 
 
To adequately assess traffic impacts on the transportation 
system, the Community and Economic Development Director 
or designee may require a Traffic Generation Worksheet be 
prepared to determine if a Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) or 
traffic mitigation is required. 
 
A full or partial TIA may be required if any of the following 
conditions are met: 
 
 1. The development will generate more than 10 PM 

peak hour trips. 
 
 2. The development will generate more than 100 peak 

hour trips at a time other than PM peak. 
 



TRANSPORTATION 
 

  

 

January 2019  2 - 7 

 3. The Public Works Department is unable to determine 
the traffic generation characteristics of the 
development. 

 
 4. The developer feels further traffic analysis may 

clarify questions about the identified traffic 
mitigation assessment for the project. 

 
 5. The development access to the roadway network may 

create an impact as determined by the Public Works 
Department. 

 
 6. The development impacts an area identified by the 

Public Works Department that does not meet the 
concurrency requirements of the Growth 
Management Act. 

 
 7. The development may potentially affect the 

implementation of the street system outlined in the 
Transportation Element of the Comprehensive Plan 
or any other documented transportation project. 

 
 8. If modifications are required to the original TIA that 

is more than two years old, or where the increase in 
traffic volume as measured by ADT, peak hour, or 
peak hour of critical movement is more than 10 
percent. 

 
 9. The development may have an impact to the roadway 

or transportation system as determined by the Public 
Works Department. 

 
 10. The City has required that an Environmental 

Assessment or Environmental Impact Statement be 
prepared. 

 
If the Public Works Director requires a TIA, the general 
guidelines for content and structure shall follow the following 
format. 
 
A. Qualifications for preparing TIA Documents 
 
The Traffic Scoping and/or the TIA shall be prepared and 
stamped by an engineer licensed to practice in the State of 
Washington with special training and experience in traffic 
engineering and who preferably is a member of the Institute of 
Transportation Engineers (ITE). The developer shall provide the 



TRANSPORTATION 
 

  

 

January 2019  2 - 8 

Public Works Department the credentials of the individual(s) 
selected to perform the report(s). 
 
B. Scoping Report 
 
If a Traffic Impact Analysis is required, the engineer shall 
submit 5 copies of a Scoping Report to the City. The Scoping 
Report will be used by the City to develop the scope of work for 
the TIA. The Scoping Report shall include all items in the 
following checklist: 

 
  Traffic Scoping Information Worksheet (see following pages) 

  Project Size in Square Feet and Acres   General Location 

  Proposed Use   Phasing Plan 

  Number of Lots or Units   Trip Generation 

  Daily Trips   PM Peak Hour  

  Year of Occupancy (Horizon year of project)   Land Use Code 

  Ambient Growth (to be determined by Public Works Director) 

  Approved Development Projects in the Vicinity 

  Intersections Impacted by 20 or more PM Peak Hour Trips 

 A reduced copy of the “Site Plan” showing the type of 

development, street system, right-of-way limits, proposed access 

points, and other features of significance in the development. The 

“Site Plan” shall also include pertinent “off-site” information such 
as dimensioning to all existing intersections and driveways with 

the existing channelization, land use descriptions, street right-of-

way limits with respect to the existing roadway and other features 

of significance. Exhibit “B” illustrates an example site plan for 

reference purposes. 

 A graphical distribution map showing site generated PM peak 
hour traffic. Generally, traffic shall be distributed to one PM peak 

trip within the Transportation Plan Area. This map shall clearly 

identify all traffic movements and the percentage of site traffic. 

Include a copy of an approved link-node map or identify the 

Traffic Analysis Zone (TAZ) of the generic distribution used. 
Exhibits “E” and “F” illustrate examples of distribution maps. 

Exhibit “G” illustrates an example of the link-node map. 

 Name, address and phone number of project developer and traffic 

consultant. 

 If streets or intersections affected are in the neighboring 

jurisdiction of Mason County, or the Washington State 
Department of Transportation, identify issues that may impact 

those jurisdictions. 



TRANSPORTATION 
 

  

 

January 2019  2 - 9 

Traffic Scoping Information Worksheet 
(Include Site Plan) 

Project Information 
 

Project Title: _________________________________________________________________ 
Project Description: __________________________________________________________ 
Parcel Number(s): ____________________________________________________________ 
Trip Generation: _____________________________________________________________ 

Quantity Units 
Land Use Code and 

Description 

Daily 

Generation 
Rate 

AM 

Generation 
Rate 

PM 

Generation 
Rate 

Proposed 

Pass-by 
Rate 

       

       

       

Total PM Peak Hour Trips: __________________________________________________________  

New PM Peak Hour Trips:  __________________________________________________________  

Total AM Peak Hour Trips: __________________________________________________________  

Total Daily Trips: ___________________________________________________________________  

Year of Occupancy (Horizon Year of Project): _________________________________________  

Phasing Plan: _______________________________________________________________________  

 

Identify all intersections that are affected by more than 20 new PM Peak Hour 
Trips: Use additional sheets if necessary. 

1.  6. 

2.  7. 

3.  8. 

4.  9. 

5.  10. 

 

Include:  Name, address, phone number and fax number of project developer 
and traffic consultant. Include site plan showing all existing roadways and 
driveways. 

 



TRANSPORTATION 
 

  

 

January 2019  2 - 10 

C. Traffic Impact Analysis 
 
The level of detail and scope of work of a TIA may vary with the 
size, complexity, and location of the development. A TIA shall 
be a thorough review of the immediate and long-range effects of 
the development on the transportation system 
 
1. Prospectus 
 
 a. Provide a "Vicinity Map" of the project area showing 

the transportation system to be impacted by the 

development.  
 
 b. Provide a reduced copy of the Site Plan showing the 

type of development, street system, right-of-way 
limits, proposed access points, and other features of 
significance in the development. The Site Plan shall 
also include pertinent off-site information such as 
dimensioning to all existing intersections and 
driveways with the existing channelization, land use 
descriptions, and street right-of-way limits with 
respect to the existing roadway and other features of 
significance.  

 
 c. Discuss specific development characteristics such as 

type of development proposed (single-family, multi-
family, retail, industrial), internal street network, 
proposed access locations, parking requirements, 
zoning, and other pertinent factors attributable to 
the development. 

 
 d. Discuss project completion, phasing plan and 

occupancy schedule for the development. Identify 
horizon years for traffic analysis purposes. 

 
   2. Existing Conditions 
 
    a. Discuss street characteristics including functional 

classification, number of traveled lanes, lane width, 
shoulder treatment, posted speed limit, bicycle path 
corridors, transit routes, transit accessibility and 
traffic control at study intersections. An Exhibit may 
be used to illustrate existing transportation facilities. 

 
    b. Identify approved nearby land development (planned 

or under construction) and associated traffic. 
 



TRANSPORTATION 
 

  

 

January 2019  2 - 11 

    c. Identify safety and access issues including 
discussions on crash potential, sight distance 
restrictions, traffic control and pedestrian conflicts. 

 
    d. Obtain all available traffic data from the City of 

Shelton and surrounding jurisdictions if applicable. 
If data is unavailable, the individual or firm 
preparing the TIA shall collect the necessary data to 
support the discussions and analysis in the TIA. 

 
    e. Conduct manual peak hour turning movement 

counts at study intersections if traffic volume data is 
more than 2 years old unless otherwise directed by 
the Public Works Department. A copy of the 
summarized data shall be attached to the TIA when 
submitted. 

 
    f. An Exhibit shall be prepared showing existing 

average daily traffic (ADT) and peak hour traffic 
volumes on the adjacent streets and intersections in 
the study area. This Exhibit shall represent the 
"base-line" traffic volumes for analysis purposes. 
Complete turning movement volumes shall be 
illustrated. 

 
   3. Development Traffic 
 

This element of the TIA shall be conducted to identify the 
limits of the study area. The study area shall include all 
site access drives, pertinent intersections and streets 
impacted by development traffic. The limits of the study 
area shall be representative of the specific conditions 
outlined in the Scoping process. The threshold 
requirement of development traffic is ten vehicles in the 
peak hour on the adjacent streets and intersections. Each 
intersection and street impacted as described shall be 
included in the Plan Area for mitigation or analysis 
purposes. 

 
   4. Trip Generation 
 

The methodology and procedures used in preparing the 
trip generation of the development are as follows: 
 
Site-generated traffic from the development shall be 
estimated using the latest edition of the ITE Trip 
Generation Manual. Average trip rates shall be used for 



TRANSPORTATION 
 

  

 

January 2019  2 - 12 

all land-use categories where applicable. Trip rate 
equations will only be allowed for those land-uses without 
average rates. Table formats for trip generation shall not 
be interpolated. Generally, the consultant shall use 
individual rates for mixed-use developments. 
 
Variations from the trip rates will be considered in the 
scoping process. The consultant shall submit a letter 
explaining the reason for the variation and all supporting 
documentation. Trip generation studies shall follow 
standard ITE guidelines and shall be statistically valid for 

approval by the Public Works Director. 
 
Site traffic shall be estimated for daily, AM peak hour and 
PM peak hour periods as directed by the City. A "pass-by" 
traffic volume discount for applicable commercial 
development shall be calculated based on the Trip 
Generation Handbook, most current edition, published by 
the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE). If a 
comparable use is not identified in the ITE Trip Generation 
Handbook, an independent study of a minimum three 
comparable uses shall be used. The comparable sites must 
be approved by the City. Land uses not identified in the 
ITE Trip Generation Handbook will typically have a "pass-
by" rate between 0% and 25% maximum and shall be 
consistent with similar land uses approved by the City. If a 
minimum three comparable uses cannot be identified, the 
developer may use rates previously approved by the City 
for similar uses if available. "Pass-by" discounts will not be 
permitted for residential or office developments. 
 
For multi-use and/or phased projects, a trip generation 
table shall be prepared showing proposed land-use, trip 
rates, and vehicle trips for daily and peak hour periods 
and appropriate traffic volume discounts if applicable. 

 
   5. Trip Distribution 

 
Projects that generate more than 250 PM peak hour trips 
may be required to generate a project specific distribution. 
 
The Public Works Director shall approve the trip 
distribution for a development during the formal scoping 
process. 
 
A graphical distribution map shall be submitted showing 
site generated PM peak hour traffic. Generally, traffic shall 



TRANSPORTATION 
 

  

 

January 2019  2 - 13 

be distributed to one PM peak trip within the 
Transportation Plan Area if a generic distribution is not 
used (20 trips if a generic distribution is used). This map 
shall clearly identify all traffic movements and the 
percentage of site traffic. Include a copy of the link-node 
map or identify the Traffic Analysis Zone (TAZ) if the 
generic distribution is used.  

 
   6. Future Traffic Conditions 
 

Future traffic volumes shall be estimated by including an 

annual growth rate to the existing (base-line) traffic 
volumes and shall include all traffic generated by 
anticipated nearby land development (projects with an 
approved traffic scope) when forecasting future traffic 
volumes. The future traffic volumes shall be representative 
of the year the project development is scheduled to be 
completed (horizon year).  The Public Works Director will 
determine an appropriate growth rate. 
 
The site-generated traffic shall be assigned to the street 
network in the study area based on the approved trip 
distribution. The site traffic shall be combined with the 
forecasted traffic volumes to show the total traffic 
conditions estimated at development completion. An 
exhibit will be required showing daily and peak period 
turning movement volumes for each traffic study 
intersection.  
 

   7. Traffic Operations 
 

The Level of Service (LOS) and capacity analysis shall be 
conducted for each pertinent intersection in the study area 
as determined by the Public Works Department. The 
methodology and procedures for conducting the capacity 
analysis shall follow the guidelines specified in the current 
version of the Highway Capacity Manual - Special Report 
209. The individual or firm preparing the TIA shall 
calculate the intersection LOS for each of the following 
conditions: 
 
a. Existing PM peak hour traffic volumes (Exhibit 

required). 
 
b. Future PM peak hour traffic volumes not including 

site traffic (Exhibit required). 
 



TRANSPORTATION 
 

  

 

January 2019  2 - 14 

c. Future PM peak hour traffic volumes including site 
traffic (Exhibit required). 

 
d. Level of Service results for each traffic volume 

scenario (Table required). 
 

The Level of Service table shall include LOS results for the 
key peak periods if applicable. The table shall show LOS 
conditions with corresponding vehicle delays for signalized 
intersections and un-signalized intersections. The LOS 
conditions and average vehicle delay shall be provided for 

each approach and the intersection as a whole. 
 
If the development will be completed in phases, the TIA 
shall conduct a LOS analysis for each separate 
development phase. The incremental increases in site 
traffic from each phase shall be included in the LOS 
analysis for each succeeding year of development 
completion. An Exhibit will be required for each horizon 
year of phased development. 
 
The capacity analysis shall be conducted using computer 
software compatible with the Public Works Department's 
software package. The individual or firm preparing the TIA 
shall use SIGNAL 2000 or an approved equivalent for 
capacity analysis of signalized intersections. SIDRA5 or 
latest version shall be used for analysis of modern 
roundabouts. Other computer software packages used for 
capacity analysis applications will not be accepted unless 
approved beforehand by the City. 
 
If the development impacts a traffic signal coordination 
system, the Public Works Department may require the TIA 
to include operational analysis of the system. Timing plans 
and proposed modifications to the coordination system 
may be required. The latest version of Passer II, Transyt-
7F, or Synchro shall be used depending on the signal 
system. The Public Works Director will determine the 
appropriate software on a case-by-case basis. 
 
The capacity analyses for each intersection shall be 
analyzed using the existing timing and phasing for both 
existing and future volumes. If the intersection runs free 
during the analysis period, phasing shall remain the same 
and existing minimums shall not be violated. All traffic 
signal system operational data will be made available by 



TRANSPORTATION 
 

  

 

January 2019  2 - 15 

the Public Works Department and adjacent jurisdictions if 
applicable. 
 
Generally, default values identified in the Highway 
Capacity Manual-Special Report 209 shall be used in the 
analysis. The following values shall be used: 
 

 Peak Hour Factor (PHF) shall be calculated for each 
intersection. At no time shall the PHF be higher than 
0.90, regardless of the calculated value. 

 

 Right Turn On Red (RTOR) shall not be used unless 
the approach has an exclusive right turn lane. If the 
approach has a right turn lane the maximum value 
shall be 100 vehicles per hour, unless otherwise 
approved by the Public Works Director. 

 
Include turning movement volumes in the report. The 
latest City counts shall be used if available. If not, an 
independent count must be submitted in graphical format 
similar to the City’s format. 
 
A disk of the analysis model and a hard copy explanation 
of the scenarios by filename or line number are required. 
The computer worksheets that identify the input and 
output data shall be included in a technical appendix 
along with an electronic version (i.e., compact disk, flash 
drive or email) of the program data of each capacity 
analysis. 
 
For unsignalized intersections, the Highway Capacity 
Manual methodology shall be used in the analysis. If the 
intersection or a particular movement fails, a signal 
warrant analysis shall be completed for the intersection. 

 
  8. Access Management 

 

Requests for site access shall be addressed in the Traffic 
Impact Analysis. Recommendations shall include site 
access and transportation improvements needed to 
maintain traffic flow to, from, within and past the site at 
an acceptable and safe level of service. 
 



TRANSPORTATION 
 

  

 

January 2019  2 - 16 

Areas to address include: 
 

 Separate conflict areas. Reduce the number of access 
points or increase their spacing so conflict areas or 
maneuver areas do not overlap. 

 Limit the type of conflict areas by preventing certain 
maneuvers. 

 Remove turning vehicles or queues from through 
lanes. 

 Safety of a proposed access (sight distance both 
horizontally and vertically), including pedestrian 

features. 

 Reduce the speed differential in through lanes 
between through vehicles and turning vehicles. 

 Consider the impact of access points on adjacent or 
nearby properties on both sides of the roadway. 

 
Improvements include such things as:  relocation, 
restriction, or elimination of access point(s); roadway 
widening; turning lanes; traffic signals; modern 
roundabouts; and pedestrian facilities. 

 
  9. Traffic Calming 
 

Internal traffic calming shall be incorporated into all 
developments to control cut-through traffic and reduce 
speed within the development. The Traffic Impact Analysis 
shall identify and propose specific traffic calming 
measures and locations to be incorporated in the 
development. Traffic calming shall be aesthetically 
pleasing. Public transportation shall also be evaluated. 
The traffic-calming plan shall include an overall drawing of 
the development and identify specific locations and 
features to be included in the development. The 
proponent’s Traffic Engineer shall work with the Public 
Works Department to develop a traffic-calming plan for the 

development. 
 
  10. Alternate Modes of Transportation 
 

Identify deficiencies in other modes of travel and strategies 
to encourage these alternate modes. New developments are 
encouraged to implement Transportation Demand 
Management practices. An Exhibit should be prepared to 
identify existing transit routes and stops, bicycle lanes and 
sidewalks within the vicinity of the development. The 



TRANSPORTATION 
 

  

 

January 2019  2 - 17 

Traffic Impact Analysis shall identify deficiencies in the 
system to be mitigated. 

 
  11. Mitigation 
 

The Traffic Impact Analysis shall include a proposed 
mitigation plan. The mitigation may be either the 
construction or financial commitment of the necessary 
transportation system improvements, or contributions to 
the City for the development's proportionate share of the 
improvements. 

 
The Level of Service standards shall be used as the 
threshold for determining appropriate mitigating measures 
in the study area. The adopted level of service standards 
for the intersection of Wallace Kneeland Boulevard and 
Olympic Highway North is LOS E. All other areas have an 
adopted LOS of D. 

 
The following guidelines shall be used to determine 
appropriate mitigating measures of traffic impacts 
generated by the development. 

 
a. To maintain the adopted Level of Service standard, 

the development shall provide a financial guarantee 
or construct improvements to maintain the level of 
service at or above the adopted standard. This 
improvement must be consistent with the 
Transportation Element of the City of Shelton 
Comprehensive Plan goals and policies. 

 
b. Transportation facilities affecting neighboring 

jurisdictions shall mitigate the impacts based on a 
per trip methodology approved by the jurisdiction. 

 
c. On transportation facilities where the existing Level 

of Service condition is less than the adopted LOS 
standard and where no improvements are planned to 
improve capacity and traffic operations, the 
development shall mitigate the intersection to an 
acceptable Level of Service condition or wait until the 
improvements are implemented by the City or other 
developments. 

 
If the analysis identifies a LOS deficiency for an un-
signalized intersection that is not scheduled for an 
improvement, alternate roadway connections or non-



TRANSPORTATION 
 

  

 

January 2019  2 - 18 

controlled intersection improvements approved by 
the Public Works Director shall be appropriate 
mitigating measures. A controlled intersection (traffic 
signal, modern roundabout) to alleviate a LOS 
deficiency is not required. If sufficient alternate 
routes exist as determined by the Public Works 
Director mitigation will not be required. 

 
If there are no alternatives to installation of a 
controlled intersection, and two or more traffic signal 
warrants, as outlined in the MUTCD (Manual on 
Uniform Traffic Control Devices) are satisfied within 
the horizon year of the development, a traffic signal 
or modern roundabout will be required as a 
mitigating measure for the development. 

 
 2.070 Signing 
 

   The developer is responsible for providing and installing all 
necessary traffic control signs (including poles and hardware).  
Traffic control signing shall comply with the provisions as 
established by the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices 
(MUTCD). 

 
 2.080  Right-of-Way 
 
   Right-of-way is determined by the functional classification of a 

street. See Table 2.050, Section 2.020, and Section 2.030. 
 

 2.090 Private Streets 
 
   A. Private streets may be approved under the following 

conditions: 
 
    1. Permanently established by tract or easement 

providing legal access to serve more than one but no 
more than 4 dwelling units or businesses on 

separate parcels, or unlimited dwellings units or 
businesses situated on one parcel and sufficient to 
accommodate required improvements, to include 
provisions for future use by adjacent property 
owners when applicable, and, 

 
    2. Accessible at all times and with sufficient load 

bearing capacity for emergency and public service 
vehicle use, and,



TRANSPORTATION 
 

  

 

January 2019  2 - 19 

    3. Will not result in land-locking parcels nor obstruct 
public street circulation nor be inconsistent with the 
surrounding grid system and, 

 
    4. Covenants have been approved, recorded, and 

verified with the City that provide for maintenance of 
the private streets and associated parking areas by 
the owner or homeowners association or other legal 
entity.  

 
    5. Owners may be required to sign an indemnification 

for any damages. 
 
   B. Private Streets will not be approved by the City in an area 

or location that is identified by the City as a known or 
potential extension of existing public rights-of-way. 

 
   C. Acceptance as Public Streets.  Acceptance of private 

streets as public streets will be considered only if the 
street(s) meet all applicable public street and utility 
standards. 

 
 2.100 Street and Alley Frontage Improvements 
 

A. All new construction projects, substantial remodels on 
existing lots, and all short platting of land within 
Neighborhood Residential (NR) Zoning District shall 
complete improvements (as shown in drawing (T-27) or pay 
a Frontage Improvement Charge (FIC) in conformance with 
these standards and SMC 12.36 in lieu of the more formal 
improvements identified in Table 2.050. 
 
All projects on the critical pedestrian route (see page 2-
20a) shall pay the Frontage Improvement Charge (FIC). 
   

B. When constructing right-of-way improvement not 
associated with new development projects, such as the 
construction of improved driving surfaces, new or 
upgraded sidewalks/paths, or the installation of new 
stormwater system improvements, it is not necessary that 
the road system be improved to include all elements that 
constitute full frontage improvements as required by these 
Standards. In this instance, constructed improvements 
shall meet the minimum standard for the element being 
constructed and ADA standards for accessibility. 

 



TRANSPORTATION 
 

  

 

January 2019  2 - 20 

C. Unless payment of a FIC is an option, street frontage 
improvements, in conformance with these standards, will 
be required along all street frontages adjacent to a 
development. Corner lots are also responsible for 
improving adjacent street intersections. 
 

D. Minimum improvements, of any development, will require 
the developer to clear and grade 15’ of right-of-way 
measured from the centerline of the right-of-way 
irrespective of the location of the existing traveled way. 

 

E. Alley frontage improvements will be required along all 
adjacent development and shall meet the following 
requirements: 

 
1. Alleys within the residential zones of the city shall be 

constructed of compacted crushed aggregate for the full 
width of the alleys. 

2. Alleys within the Mixed-Use and Non-Residential zones 
of the city shall be constructed per section 2.180 of 
these Standards for the Full width of the alleyway. 

 
All plats and re-plats shall install all street and alley 
frontage improvements at the time designated in the 
municipal code. Such improvements shall include: curb 
and gutter; sidewalk; storm drainage; street lighting 
system; traffic signal modification, relocation, or 
installation; utility relocation; landscaping and irrigation; 
and street improvements per Table 2.050; and any other 
applicable sections of these Standards. Plans shall be 
prepared and signed by a licensed civil engineer register in 
the State of Washington. 

 
 2.110  Cul-de-sac 

 
   In general, the City discourages the use of cul-de-sacs per 

Section 2.040 of these Standards.  Streets designed to have 
one end permanently closed shall be no longer than 400-feet. 
At the closed end, there shall be a widened "bulb" having a 
minimum paved traveled radius as shown in the Minimum 
Street Design Table. 

 
 2.120  Temporary Dead Ends 
 

   Where a street is temporarily dead ended, turn-around 
provisions must be provided where the road extends more than 
150 feet. The turnaround may be a hammerhead with a 





TRANSPORTATION 
 

  

 

January 2019  2 - 21 

minimum distance on both sides at the centerline intersection 
of 60 feet to facilitate emergency vehicle turn-around.  

 
 2.130  Half Street   
 

   A half street is an otherwise acceptable arterial roadway 
section modified to conform to limited right-of-way on the 
boundary of the property subject to development, or when 
constructing a portion of the road section when less capacity is 
necessary for adequate levels of service. A half street may be 
permitted by the Public Works Director when: 

 
A. Design of a full street, including phasing of construction, is 

prepared by a licensed professional civil engineer and 
submitted for review and approval by the City; and, 

 
B. A traffic impact analysis is prepared by a licensed 

professional traffic engineer and submitted for review and 
approval by the City that fulfills City guidelines for a traffic 
impact analysis and which demonstrates that the half-
street will be safe and of adequate capacity for the use 
being proposed; and, 

 
   C. When required, there is written assurance of obtaining the 

prescribed additional right-of-way from the adjoining 
property suitable for completion of a full-section roadway; 
and, 

 
   D. Such alignment is consistent with or will establish a 

circulation pattern. 
     
 2.140 Medians 
 

   Medians shall be in addition to, not part of, the specified 
roadway width. Medians shall be designed so as not to limit 
the turning radius or the sight distance at intersections. 
Landscaping and irrigation, hardscape, or a combination shall 
be installed in all medians. 

 
 2.150  Intersections 

 
A. Traffic control will be as specified in the Manual on Uniform 

Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD) or as modified by the City 
as a result of appropriate traffic engineering studies. 

 



TRANSPORTATION 
 

  

 

January 2019  2 - 22 

B. Street intersections shall be laid out so as to intersect as 
nearly as possible at right angles. For safe design, the 
following types of intersection features shall be avoided:  

 
    1. Intersections with more than four intersecting 

streets; 
 
    2. "Y" type intersections where streets meet at acute 

angles; 
 
    3. Intersections adjacent to bridges and other sight 

obstructions. 
 
   C. Spacing between adjacent intersections, whether crossing 

or "T", shall be a minimum of 300 feet measured centerline 
to centerline, unless otherwise approved by the City. When 
the roadway is classified as a Principal Arterial, the 
minimum offset for the centerline involved shall be 350 feet. 

 
   D. On sloping approaches at an intersection, landings shall be 

provided with a grade not to exceed one foot difference in 
elevation for a distance of 30-feet approaching any arterial 
or 20-feet approaching a collector or local access street, 
measured from nearest right-of-way line (extended) of the 
intersecting street. The Public Works Director may direct 
the use of a greater distance when required for public 
safety. 

 
 2.160 Driveways 

 
A. All driveway approaches crossing sidewalks shall be 

constructed of Portland Concrete Cement and shall be 
subject to the same testing and inspection requirements 
as curb, gutter and sidewalk construction. See Standard 
Detail T-04. 

 
B.  Joint-use driveways serving two adjacent parcels may be 

built on their common boundary upon formal written 
agreement by both property owners and approval of the 
City. The agreement shall be a recorded easement for both 
parcels specifying maintenance and joint usage in 
perpetuity. 

 
C. All abandoned driveways shall be removed and the curbing 

and sidewalk or shoulder and ditch section shall be 
properly restored.  
 



TRANSPORTATION 
 

  

 

January 2019  2 - 23 

D. Grade breaks, including the tie to the roadway, shall be 
constructed as smooth vertical curves.  The maximum 
change in driveway grade shall be 8 percent within any 10 
feet of distance on a crest and 12 percent within any 10 
feet of distance in a sag vertical curve. 

 
E. No driveway may access an arterial street within 75 feet 

(measured along the arterial) of any other such arterial 
street access on either side of the street; provided that 
such access maybe located directly opposite another 
access, if approved by the City, or when lot dimension 

limitations will not permit this requirement to be met.  No 
driveway access shall be allowed to an arterial street within 
150 feet of the nearest right-of-way line of an intersecting 
street, unless otherwise approved by the City. 

 
F. Within the limitations set forth above, access to arterial 

streets shall be limited to one driveway for each tract of 
property separately owned.  Properties contiguous to each 
other and owned by the same person are considered to be 
one tract where practical.  Shared access with adjacent 
properties will be encouraged. 

 
G. Driveways giving direct access onto arterial streets may be 

denied if alternate access is available.  No commercial 
driveway shall be approved where backing onto the 
sidewalk or street right-of-way will occur.  No residential 
driveway shall be allowed to back out onto a sidewalk or 
street right of way unless otherwise approved by the 
Public Works Director, provided the developer can show 
that adequate sight distance exists and all safety issues 
are addressed. 

 
H. The maximum driveway width for two-way access drives 

onto an arterial or collector shall be 24 feet for residential 
uses, 30 feet for commercial uses, and 35 feet for 
industrial uses.  Maximum driveway widths for one way 
access drives onto an arterial or collector shall be 20 feet 
for residential, 20 feet for commercial, and 25 feet for 
industrial uses.  A wider driveway width may be approved 
by the City where a substantial percentage of oversized 
vehicle traffic exists, where divisional islands are 
proposed, or where multiple exit or entrance lanes are 
needed. 

 



TRANSPORTATION 
 

  

 

January 2019  2 - 24 

I. Driveways shall be designed and constructed to not 
restrict surface water flow, and to provide positive 
drainage at the point of connection to the street. 

 
J. The maximum driveway width onto a local access street 

shall be 24 feet for residential uses and 25 feet for 
commercial uses, unless otherwise approved by the Public 
Works Director.  The maximum one way driveway width 
shall be 14 feet for residential and 22 feet for commercial 
driveways.  Parking lot circulation and signing needs shall 
be met on site.  The public right-of-way shall not be 

utilized as part of a one-way parking lot flow. 
 

K. Road approaches and/or ingress and egress tapers may be 
required in industrial and commercially zoned areas as 
directed by the City.  Tapers shall be designed per the 
current edition of the AASHTO Manual. 

 
L. Maintenance of sidewalks and driveways is the 

responsibility of the property owner per Section 12.08.030 
of the Shelton Municipal Code. 

    
  
2.170  Sight Obstruction 

 
   The following sight clearance requirements take into account 

the proportional relationship between speed and stopping 
distance.  The sight distance area is a clear-view triangle 
formed on all intersections by extending two lines of specified 
length (A) and (B) from the center of the intersecting streets 
along the centerlines of both streets and connecting those 
endpoints to form the hypotenuse of the triangle.  The area 
within the sight distance triangle shall be subject to 
restrictions to maintain a clear view of the intersection 
approaches. See Detail T-12.  

    
A.  Sight Distance Triangle for Stop or Yield-Controlled 

Intersections:   
 

 Sight Distance (Feet) 
Speed Limit Major Street (A) Minor Street (B) 

20 mph 200 * 
25 mph 250 * 
30 mph 300 * 
35 mph 350 * 
40 mph 400 * 

 



TRANSPORTATION 
 

  

 

January 2019  2 - 25 

B. Sight Distance Triangle for Uncontrolled Intersections: 
 

 Sight Distance (Feet) 
Speed Limit Major Street (A) Minor Street (B) 

20 mph 90 90 
25 mph 110 110 
30 mph 130 130 
35 mph 155 155 
40 mph 180 180 

 
 

    The vertical clearance area within the sight distance 
triangle shall be free from obstructions to a motor vehicle 
operator's view between a height of 3-feet and 10-feet above 
the existing surface of the street.  Sight distance is 
measured from a point on the minor road 15 feet from the 
edge (extended) of the major road edge of traveled way, and 
from a height of 3.50 feet on the minor road to a height of 
4.25 feet on the major road. 

   
    Where different sight obstruction requirements are set forth 

in the Shelton Municipal Code than are set forth in these 
Standards, the most stringent requirement shall apply 

 
 2.180 Surfacing Requirements 
 

A. The following are the surfacing requirements for each 
application listed.  These designs are based on Washington 
stabilometer subgrade R-value of 5, and assumes that no 
analysis of the properties of the on-site “native” material 
has been conducted. The “ballast” material may be 
eliminated from the standard pavement sections where 
testing shows that the native material conforms to the 
material properties for ballast (or an approved equivalent) 
as indicated in the WSDOT standard specifications. 

 
Alternate structures will be accepted if soil tests based on a 
25-year life using standard AASHTO (WSDOT) engineering 
analysis is provided to justify the alternative section. Soil 
tests and a completed analysis for each road classification 
shall accompany plans submitted if structures other than 
those shown below are used. 

  
B. Soil tests shall be performed by an Engineer specializing in 

soils analysis.  One soil sample per each 500 LF of 
centerline with 3 minimum per project representative of 



TRANSPORTATION 
 

  

 

January 2019  2 - 26 

the roadway subgrade shall be taken to determine a 
statistical representation of the existing soil conditions.  

 
C. The soils report, signed and stamped by a soils engineer 

licensed by the State of Washington, shall be based on 
actual soils tests and submitted with the plans. All depths 
indicated are a minimum compacted depth. 

 
Principal and Minor Arterial Streets 

 
Surfacing:  0.50’ HMA Class 1/2” PG 64-22 Asphalt 

Top Course: 0.17’ Crushed Surfacing Top Course 
Base: 2.08’ Ballast 
 
Alternate  
Surfacing:  0.50’ HMA Class 1/2” PG 64-22 Asphalt  
Top Course: 0.61’ Asphalt Treated Base (ATB) 
Base: 0.17’ Crushed Surfacing Top Course 
 

Major Collector Streets 
 

Surfacing: 0.33’ HMA Class 1/2” PG 64-22 Asphalt  
Top Course: 0.17’ Crushed Surfacing Top Course 
Base: 2.09’ Ballast 
 
Alternate: 
Surfacing: 0.33’ HMA Class 1/2” PG 64-22 Asphalt  
Top Course: 0.62’ Asphalt Treated Base (ATB) 
Base: 0.17’ Crushed Surfacing Top Course 

 
Minor Collector Streets 

 
Surfacing: 0.33’ HMA Class 1/2” PG 64-22 Asphalt  
Top Course: 0.17’ Crushed Surfacing Top Course 
Base: 1.36’ Ballast 
 
Alternate: 
Surfacing: 0.33’ HMA Class 1/2” PG 64-22 Asphalt  
Top Course: 0.39’ Asphalt Treated Base (ATB) 
Base: 0.17’ Crushed Surfacing Top Course 

 
 

Local Streets/Private Streets 
 

Surfacing: 0.25’ HMA Class 1/2” PG 64-22 Asphalt  
Top Course: 0.17’ Crushed Surfacing Top Course 
Base: 0.69’ Ballast 



TRANSPORTATION 
 

  

 

January 2019  2 - 27 

 
Alternate: 
Surfacing: 0.25’ HMA Class 1/2” PG 64-22 Asphalt  
Top Course: 0.20’ Asphalt Treated Base (ATB) 
Base: 0.17’ Crushed Surfacing Top Course 

 
Alleys 

 
Surfacing:  0.33’ HMA Class 1/2” PG 64-22 Asphalt  
Top Course: 0.17’ Crushed Surfacing Top Course 
Base: 2.09’ Ballast 

  
Alternate: 
Surfacing: 0.33’ HMA Class 1/2” PG 64-22 Asphalt  
Top Course: 0.62’ Asphalt Treated Base (ATB) 
Base: 0.17’ Crushed Surfacing Top Course 

 
Sidewalks 

 
Surfacing: 4” 3000 psi Concrete 
Base: 2” Crushed Surfacing Top Course/well-graded sand 
Asphalt sidewalks are not permitted. 

 
Driveways 

 
Surfacing: 6” 3000 psi Concrete, plus rebar as per Detail T-04 
Base: 1” Crushed Surfacing Top Course/well-graded sand 

 
Class 1 Bikeway or Pedestrian Path 

 
Surfacing: 4” 3000 psi Concrete 
Base: 2” Crushed Surfacing Top Course 
 
Alternate: 
Surfacing: 3” HMA Class 1/2” PG 64-22 Asphalt  
Top Course: 2” Crushed Surfacing Top Course 
Base: 4” Ballast 

 
 2.190 Street Pavement Patching 
 

A. Temporary restoration of trenches shall be accomplished 
by using 2” HMA Asphalt Concrete Pavement when 
available, 2” medium-curing (MC-250) Liquid Asphalt (cold 
mix), 2” Asphalt Treated Base (ATB) or steel plates. 

 
 B. ATB used for temporary restoration may be placed directly 

into the trench, bladed, and rolled and compacted. After 



TRANSPORTATION 
 

  

 

January 2019  2 - 28 

rolling, the trench must be filled flush with asphalt 
concrete pavement to provide a smooth riding surface. 

 
  C. All temporary patches shall be maintained in good 

condition by the contractor until such time as the 
permanent pavement patch is in place. The permanent 
patch shall be accomplished within 7 calendar days 
unless otherwise approved by the City. Any temporary 
patch that requires more than 7 calendar days shall be 
hot mix asphalt concrete pavement. 

 

D. If the contractor does not maintain a temporary pavement 
patch for whatever reason, the City will patch it and bill 
the contractor for actual costs plus overhead. 

 
 2.200 Trench and Pavement Cut, Backfill and Restoration 
   

A. All work done in roadways is subject to the requirements 
of the City Right of Way permits, which may include 
performance and/or maintenance bonding. 

 
B. Trenches shall be excavated to the line and depth 

designated by the City.  Except for unusual circumstances 
where approved by the City, the trench sides shall be 
excavated vertically and the trench width shall be 
excavated only to such widths as are necessary for 
adequate working space.  Federal, state and local 
regulations for safety must be adhered to.  Surface water 
shall be diverted so as not to enter the trench.  Where 
water is encountered in the trench, it shall be removed 
during pipe laying operations, and shall be so maintained 
until the ends of the pipe are sealed and provisions are 
made to prevent floating of the pipe.  Except in the case of 
unusual circumstances, trench water or other deleterious 
materials shall not be allowed to enter the pipe at any 
time.  The contractor shall maintain sufficient pumping 
equipment on the job to ensure that these provisions are 
carried out. 

 
   1. All initial trench and pavement cuts shall be made by 

milling HMA, a spade bladed jackhammer or with saw 
cuts. All final cuts shall be made by saw cuts placed at 
a minimum of 1-foot outside the trench width. 

 
   2. Bank Run Gravel for Trench Backfill meeting WSDOT 

Standard Specification 9-03.19 shall be used for the 
backfilling of trenches in the pavement area of streets, 



TRANSPORTATION 
 

  

 

January 2019  2 - 29 

unless otherwise approved by the City.  When public 
safety concerns exist, the City may require more 
stringent backfilling standards. The trench shall be 
compacted to 95% per WSDOT Standard Specification 
2-03.3(14)C method C. Daily compaction reports from 
an independent, certified testing agency licensed in the 
state of Washington. 

 
   3.All trenching in a gravel shoulder section outside of the 

pavement or in a Gravel Surfaced Roadway shall be 
backfilled with Bank Run Gravel for Trench Backfill 

meeting WSDOT Standard Specification 9-03.19. The 
trench shall be compacted to 95% per WSDOT 
Standard Specification 2-03.3(14)C method C. Daily 
compaction reports from an independent, certified 
testing agency licensed in the state of Washington. 

 
 If the existing native material is determined by the City to 

be suitable for backfill in trenches in either a paved or 
gravel roadway, the contractor may use the native 
material with City approval prior to placement up to the 
bottom of the surfacing requirements. The trench shall be 
compacted to 95% per WSDOT Standard Specification 2-
03.3(14)C method C. Daily compaction reports from an 
independent, certified testing agency licensed in the state 
of Washington. 

 
C.  All asphalt restoration shall be as specified in these 

Standards, or to the depth of the existing pavement, 
whichever is greater.  Existing asphalt edges shall be 
sawcut to a smooth straight edge prior to final patching, 
unless otherwise approved by the City. 

 
D. All concrete restoration shall be sawcut to a smooth, 

straight edge prior to final patching, unless otherwise 
approved by the City.  3000 psi concrete shall be used, 
and shall be poured to the same depth and alignment as 
the existing pavement.  Dowling may be required by the 
City. 

 
E. If an existing concrete is overlaid with asphalt, the asphalt 

shall be replaced as described below: 
 
    1. Tack coat shall be emulsified asphalt grade CSS-1 as 

specified in Section 9-02.1(6) of the WSDOT/APWA 
Standard Specifications. Tack coat shall be applied as 



TRANSPORTATION 
 

  

 

January 2019  2 - 30 

specified in Section 5-04.3(5)A; joint sealing shall 
comply with Section 5-04.3(5)C. 

 
    2. HMA shall be placed on the prepared surface by an 

approved paving machine and shall be in accordance 
with the applicable requirements of Section 5-04 of 
the WSDOT/APWA Standard Specifications, except 
that longitudinal joints between successive layers of 
asphalt concrete shall be displaced laterally a 
minimum of 12-inches unless otherwise approved by 
the City. Fine and course aggregate shall be in 

accordance with Section 9-03.9 of the WSDOT/APWA 
Standard Specifications. Asphalt concrete shall be 
placed in equal 2-inch lifts unless otherwise 
approved by the City. In no case shall an asphalt lift 
exceed 3-inches. Tack coat is required between each 
lift. 

 
F. All street surfaces, walks or driveways within the street 

trenching areas affected by the pavement cut shall be 
feathered and shimmed to an extent that provides a 
smooth riding connection and expeditious drainage flow 
for the newly paved surface. Shimming and feathering 
shall be accomplished by raking out the oversized 
aggregates from the mix as appropriate.  Surface 
smoothness shall be in accordance with Section 5-04.3(13) 
of the WSDOT Standard Specifications. All joints shall be 
sealed using paving asphalt CSS-1. 

 
G. The final patch shall be completed within 7 calendar days 

unless otherwise approved by the City, but in no case later 
than 30 days after first opening the trench.  The contractor 
shall re-establish pavement markings in all locations 
where the existing pavement markings were disturbed by 
the contractor’s operations.  

 
   H. When trenching within the road right of way(s), the right-

of-way shall be restored to its original or better condition. 
All disturbed areas shall be seeded and mulched or 
similarly stabilized according to Best Management 
Practices outlined in the Department of Ecology 
Stormwater Management Manual for Western Washington 
within 14 days of disturbance. For sites where grass has 
been planted, the contractor’s performance or 
maintenance bond will not be released until the grass has 
been thoroughly established, unless otherwise approved 
by the City. 



TRANSPORTATION 
 

  

 

January 2019  2 - 31 

 
 2.210  Staking 
 

   All surveying and staking shall be performed by a Professional 
Land Surveyor, licensed within the State of Washington. A pre-
construction meeting shall be held with the City prior to 
commencing staking.  All construction staking shall be 
inspected by the City prior to construction. The minimum 
staking of streets shall be as follows or as otherwise directed by 
the City: 

 

   A. Stake centerline every 50-feet in tangent sections and 25-
feet in curved sections plus grade breaks, PCs PTs, high 
point and low points, with cut and/or fill to subgrade. 

 
   B. Stake top of ballast with red tops and top of crushed 

surfacing with blue tops, at centerline and at edge of 
pavement at the above-described intervals, and at grade 
breaks. 

 
   C. Stake top back of curb at the above described intervals with 

cut or fill to finished grade. 
 

   Any deviations from these minimum staking requirements 
shall be approved by the City. 

 
 2.220 Testing 
 

   Testing shall be required at the developer’s or contractor’s 
expense and shall be ordered by the developer or contractor. 
Testing shall be done on all materials and construction as 
specified in the WSDOT/APWA Standard Specifications for 
Road, Bridge and Municipal Construction with the frequency as 
specified herein, unless otherwise approved by the City.  

 
   In addition, the City shall be notified a minimum of 24-hours 

before work commences on each phase of street construction 
(i.e. staking, grading, subgrade, ballast, base, top course, and 
surfacing.) 

 



TRANSPORTATION 
 

  

 

January 2019  2 - 32 

 2.230   Sidewalks, Curbs and Gutters, Driveways 
 

   These Standards as specified herein shall be met in the design 
and construction of sidewalks, curbs and gutters. Because 
these are minimum standards, the minimum requirements 
may be modified by the City when circumstances require 
increased or decreased widths, thicknesses or strengths.  

 
 A.  Sidewalks 

 
    Sidewalks shall be required on both sides of all new 

streets.  
 

1. Sidewalks shall be constructed of 3000 psi Portland 
Cement Concrete at a minimum of 4-inches thick. 
When the sidewalk, curb and gutter are contiguous, 
the width of the sidewalk shall be measured from 
back of curb and gutter to back of sidewalk (per 
Standard Detail T-02).  

 
2. The project proponent is responsible for the design 

and construction or sidewalks on both sides of 
streets interior to a development, and on the 
development side of streets abutting the exterior of 
said development, including cul-de-sacs. 

 
3. The width of sidewalks shall be shown in the 

approved design drawings.  Those bicycle and 
pedestrian pathways designated in any adopted City 
of Shelton comprehensive bicycle and pedestrian 
plan shall, in addition, meet the minimum 
requirement established.  The City shall require that 
the design of all sidewalks provide for a gradual 
rather than an abrupt transition between sidewalks 
of different widths or alignments.  Plans for 
construction of sidewalks, curbs and gutters are to 
be submitted as part of the street plan when 
applicable.   

 
4. Maintenance of sidewalks is the responsibility of the 

abutting property owner, per Section 12.08.030 of 
the Shelton Municipal Code. 

 
5. Handicap Ramps 

    All sidewalks must be constructed to provide for 
handicap ramps in accordance with the standards of 
state and federal law.  Handicap ramps shall be 



TRANSPORTATION 
 

  

 

January 2019  2 - 33 

constructed of 3000 psi Portland Cement Concrete.  
Form and subgrade inspections by the City are 
required before each handicap ramp is poured.  See 
Standard Details T-07 through T-11. 

 
6.    Utility Locations 

   All above-grade utilities shall be located outside of 
the edge of the sidewalk whenever possible.  When it 
is necessary to place utilities within the limits of the 
sidewalk, such utilities shall be in compliance with 
all clear zone requirements and placed so as not to 

hinder pedestrian traffic. 
 

 B. Curb and Gutter 
 

1. Curbs and gutters shall be required on both sides of 
all new streets.  Cement concrete curb and gutter 
shall be used for all street edges, unless otherwise 
approved by the City.  All curbs and gutters shall be 
constructed of 3000 psi Portland Concrete Cement.  
See Detail T-03.   Extruded curb and gutter per 
WSDOT/APWA Standard Specifications may be 
approved by the City following submission and 
approval of the design mix.  

 
   2. Materials shall meet the requirements of Section 8-14 

of the WSDOT Standard Specifications. 
 
   3. The use of calcium chloride as an admixture is 

prohibited. 
 
 C. Staking for Sidewalks, Curbs and Gutters 

 
   The minimum staking of sidewalk, curb and gutter shall 

be as follows, or as otherwise directed by the City: 
 

1. Stake curb every 50-feet in tangent sections and 25-
feet in curved sections plus grade breaks, PC's, PT's, 
high point and low points, with cut or fill to finished 
grade. 
 

2. Staking shall be performed by a professional land 
surveyor, licensed within the State of Washington. 

 
3. A pre-construction meeting shall be held with the 

City prior to commencing staking.   
 



TRANSPORTATION 
 

  

 

January 2019  2 - 34 

4. All construction staking shall be inspected by the 
City prior to construction. 

 
 D.  Construction 

 
1. The City shall be notified before each phase of 

sidewalk, curb and gutter construction begins.  Form 
and subgrade inspections by the City are required 
before sidewalks, curbs and/or gutters are poured.  
Monolithic pour of curb, gutter and sidewalk will not 
be allowed.  See Standard Details T-02, T-03 and T-

06. 
 

2. The curb and gutter section shall be placed prior to 
the placement of the sidewalk section unless 
otherwise approved by the City.  Subgrade shall be 
approved by the City prior to concrete being placed.  
Expansion joints shall be placed to match those 
placed in curbs if new sidewalk is poured adjacent to 
a curb and gutter.  In all other cases, the spacing on 
expansion joints shall be no greater than 15 feet 
center to center.  Dummy joints shall be ¼ inch by 1 
inch on 5-foot centers.  Through joints shall be ½ 
inch, and shall extend to the bottom of the concrete.  
See Detail T-06. 

 
3. A minimum distance of 2 feet is required from the 

face of curb to any obstruction on or within the 
sidewalk unless otherwise noted. 

 
4. It is expected there will be sufficient native material 

excavated from various portions of the improvement 
to fill low areas in the sidewalk subgrade and 
planting strip area when needed.  When there is 
insufficient suitable native material on the project 
site, the contractor shall furnish, place and compact 
Gravel Borrow.  All sidewalks shall be constructed 
over a minimum 2 inches of crushed surfacing top 
course or well-graded sand meeting the requirements 
of Section 9-03.9(3) of the WSDOT Standard 
Specifications and compacted to 95% of maximum 
density. 

 
5. Steel forms may be used upon approval of the City.  

Forms shall be staked to a true line and grade.  A 
subgrade template shall then be set upon the forms 
and the fine grading completed so that the subgrade 



TRANSPORTATION 
 

  

 

January 2019  2 - 35 

will be a minimum of 3 5/8 inches below the top of 
the forms.  Slip base break away assembly shall be 
provided for all street name sign and traffic sign 
posts, unless otherwise approved by the City.  See 
Standard Detail M-09. 

 
6. Around utility poles, blockouts shall be constructed 

around the pole of ¾ inch expansion joint material 
and 18” greater in diameter than the pole. 

 
7. The concrete shall be spread uniformly between the 

forms and thoroughly compacted.  Through joints 
and dummy joints shall be located and constructed 
in accordance with these Standards.  See Detail T-06.  
In construction of through joints, the expansion joint 
material shall be adequately supported until the 
concrete is placed on both sides of the joint. 

 
8. Whenever castings are located in the sidewalk area, 

joints shall be installed at the casting location to 
control cracking of the sidewalk.  If spacing of joints 
or scoring is such that installation of joint material 
would be unsuitable, the contractor shall install 
rebar to strengthen the sidewalk section. 

 
9. Expansion joints and dummy joints shall be 

positioned in true alignment at right angles to the 
line of the sidewalk and be normal to and flush with 
the surface. 

 
10. After the concrete has been thoroughly compacted 

and leveled, it shall be finished with a float.  The 
surface shall be broom finished in a transverse 
direction except that at driveway and alley crossings 
it shall be brushed longitudinally.  After broom 
finish, the edges of the sidewalk and all joint shall be 
lightly edged again with an edging tool to provide a 
finished appearance. 

 
11. Curing materials and procedures shall be as specified 

in Section 5-05.3(13) of the WSDOT Standard 
Specifications, except that white pigment curing 
compounds shall not be used on sidewalks. 

 
12. The contractor shall have readily available sufficient 

protective covering, such as waterproof paper or 
plastic membrane, to cover the pour of an entire day 



TRANSPORTATION 
 

  

 

January 2019  2 - 36 

in event of rain or other unsuitable weather.  In 
periods of low humidity, drying winds, or high 
temperatures, a fog spray shall be applied to concrete 
in order to prevent the formation of shrinkage cracks.  
The spray shall be continued until conditions permit 
the application of a liquid curing membrane or other 
curing media. 

 
13. Specifications for hot and cold weather curing and 

protection of concrete sidewalks shall be consistent 
with 6-02.3 of the WSDOT Standard Specifications. 

 
14. The sidewalk shall be protected against damage or 

defacement of any kind until it has been accepted by 
the City.  Sidewalk which is not acceptable to the 
City shall be removed and replaced by the contractor 
at the contractor’s expense. 

 
E.  Driveways 
 

Driveways shall be constructed consistent with the 
specifications outlined in this section and with Standard 
Detail T-04. 

 
  F. Testing for Sidewalks, Curbs and Gutters 

 
Testing shall be required at the developer’s or contractor’s 
expense on all materials and construction as specified in 
the Testing and Sampling Frequency Guide.  See standard 
construction specifications. 

 
 2.240  Bikeways 
 

   Normally bikeways are shared with other transportation 
modes, although they may be provided exclusively for bicycle 
use. Bikeway or Urban Trail construction is required in 
conjunction with any new development or redevelopment, 
when the need for such a bikeway is indicated in an adopted 
City of Shelton Bikeway Plan. The design of bicycle paths shall 
depend upon their type and usage.  Bikeway surfacing shall be 
as outlined in Section 2.190.   

 
 2.250  Street Illumination Design Standards 

 
A. All development in the public right-of-way shall provide 

street lights in accordance with Section 840 of the WSDOT 
Design Manual, Illuminating Engineer Society (IES) and 



TRANSPORTATION 
 

  

 

January 2019  2 - 37 

American National Standards Institute (ANSI) approved 
design recommendations for roadway lighting, National 
Electrical Safety Code (NESC) requirements as specified by 
WAC 296-45-045; National Electric Code (NEC) 
requirements for roadway lighting, the Mason County 
Public Utility District #3 Standards Book, and these 
Standards.  

 
B. A street lighting plan submitted by the applicant and 

approved by the City and Mason County PUD #3 shall be 
required for all street light installations. All public street 

light designs shall be prepared by a professional engineer 
licensed by the State of Washington and capable of 
performing such work. The street lighting plan shall be 
submitted on a separate sheet.  The type of installation 
shall be as set forth in the PUD #3 Standards Book and as 
directed by PUD #3.  

 
C. Areas that should be considered for roadway lighting 

include: 
 

1. Areas where significant concentrations of pedestrians 
are crossing roads or any marked crosswalks such 
as near a school; 

 
2. Curves or other abrupt change in the roadway 

direction; 
 

3. Streets with frequent or hidden driveways and 
crossroads; 

 
4. Locations with mid-street obstacles such as 

fountains, raised channelization or traffic circles; 
 

5. Locations with measurably higher night to day 
accident ratios, merging lanes, intersections or any 
unusual roadway geometry. 

 
D. The City should use a warrant system to assist its decision 

making on when and where new street lighting 
expenditures may be appropriate within available 
budgeted funds. 

 
 2.260 Street Illumination Construction (General Notes) 
 

A. The General Notes as follow shall be included on any plans 
dealing with streetlight design and construction, in 



TRANSPORTATION 
 

  

 

January 2019  2 - 38 

addition to all applicable requirements of Mason County 
Public Utility District #3 and the City. 

 
1. All workmanship, materials and testing shall be in 

accordance with the standards of Mason County PUD 
#3 and these Standards. 

 
2. All safety standards and requirements shall be 

complied with as set forth by the State of 
Washington, Department of Labor & Industries. 

 

3. A preconstruction meeting shall be held with the City 
of Shelton and Mason County PUD #3 prior to the 
start of construction. 

 
4. All approvals and permits required by the City of 

Shelton and Mason County PUD #3 shall be obtained 
by the contractor prior to the start of construction. 

 
5. The property owner is responsible for the payment of 

electrical charges prior to City acceptance of 
construction. 

   
 2.270 Traffic Signals 

 
A. Traffic Signal Design Standards 

 
 Signal systems shall be designed in accordance with the 

specifications as set forth in the WSDOT Design Manual 
and the WSDOT/APWA Standard Specifications unless 
otherwise authorized by the City.  All public traffic signal 
systems shall be prepared by an engineering firm capable 
of performing such work. The Engineer shall be licensed by 
the State of Washington. Traffic signals shall be installed 
per the requirements set forth herein. This work shall 
consist of furnishing and installing a complete and 
functional traffic control system of controllers, signals, 

pedestrian features, emergency preemption devices and 
appurtenances that meet traffic warrants.    

     
B. Induction Loops  

 
Induction loops shall be constructed per WSDOT/APWA 
Standard Specifications 8-20.3(14)C. Loops shall be 
performed in the crushed surfacing top course (CSTC) 
before paving, or shall be cut in existing asphalt or leveling 
course to sub-base before the intersection is overlaid. 



TRANSPORTATION 
 

  

 

January 2019  2 - 39 

 
C. Staking  
 

All surveying and staking shall be performed by an 
engineering or surveying firm capable of performing such 
work.  The engineer or surveyor directing such work shall 
be licensed as a professional engineer or professional land 
surveyor by the State of Washington.  A pre-construction 
meeting shall be held with the City prior to commencing 
staking.  All construction staking shall be inspected by the 
City prior to construction. The minimum staking for traffic 

signals shall be as follows: 
 

1. Location, with cut or fill to center of all pole bases. 
2. Location of junction box. 
3. Location of all corners of controller base. 
4. Location of service disconnect. 

 
D. Testing 

 
All signals shall be subject to any necessary electrical 
inspections by the State Department of Labor and 
Industries, Mason County PUD #3, and the City, as well as 
requirements as set forth in the WSDOT Design Manual 
and the WSDOT/APWA Standard Specifications. A signal 
system shall not be approved or accepted by the City until 
the signal has performed correctly to the City's satisfaction 
for a 30 day "check-out" period as outlined below. All parts 
and workmanship shall be warranted for one year from the 
date of acceptance. 

 
   Controller and cabinet testing by WSDOT District 3 

laboratory shall be required by the City.  All specifications 
and material samples shall be submitted to the City for 
review and approval prior to installation. 

 



TRANSPORTATION 
 

  

 

January 2019  2 - 40 

E. Traffic Signal Check-Out Procedures 
 

The contractor shall call for an intersection check-out after 
completing the controller cabinet installation, along with 
all other signal equipment complete with wiring 
connections.  New signals shall operate without any type 
of failure for a period of 30 days.  The contractor shall 
have a person available to respond to system failures 
within 24 hours during the 30-day “check-out” period.  
Failure of any control equipment or hardware within the 
“check-out” period shall restart the 30-day “check-out”  

    
  2.280 Survey Monuments, Bus Stops, Benches, Mailboxes, Guard 

Rails, Retaining Walls, Street Trees and Parking Lots 
  

A. Design Standards 
 
  Miscellaneous roadside features included herein shall be 

designed and constructed to encourage the uniform 
development and use of roadside features whenever 
possible. 

 
   The design and placement of roadside features shall 

adhere to Section 700, Roadside Safety, of the WSDOT 
Design Manual, the specific requirements as listed for each 
feature, and the applicable standards as set forth in 
Chapter  One. 

  
B.  Survey Monuments 
 

1. All existing survey control monuments and property 
corners that will be disturbed or destroyed during 
construction shall be referenced prior to construction 
and replaced after construction by a Professional Land 
Surveyor licensed by the State of Washington. All 
applicable RCW’s and WAC’s will be complied with, 
including but not limited to, WAC 332-120, WAC 332-
130, and RCW 58.09. The monuments shall be replaced 
with the proper type as outlined below at the expense of 
the responsible builder or developer.  
 

2. A pre-cast monument with cast iron monument case 
and cover installed per City of Shelton standards is 
required for all monumentation.  See Detail T-15. 
 

3. Appropriate monumentation shall be placed at all street 
intersections; at the PC and PTs of all horizontal curves 



TRANSPORTATION 
 

  

 

January 2019  2 - 41 

or at the PI if it lies in the traveled roadway; and at all 
dedicated land claim (DLC) corners, section corners, 
quarter corners and sixteenth corners that fall within 
the subdivision.  The monument case shall be installed 
after the final course of surfacing has been placed. 

 
C. Public Transit 
 

Different population densities dictate the number 
and placement of transit bus stops: 
 

1. The spacing, locations and design or specific 
bus stops shall be coordinated with the Mason 
County Transportation Authority.  See Detail 
T-17. 
 

2. Signage shall be placed in accordance with the 
MUTCD. 

 
D. School Buses 

 
1. The spacing, locations and design of specific 

bus stops shall be coordinated with the Mason 
County Transportation Authority.  See Detail T-
17. 
 

2. Signage shall be placed in accordance with the 
MUTCD. 

 
3. Location of school bus stops shall be designed 

with safety as a paramount concern.  Major 
arterials with high traffic counts should be 
avoided where possible, and only used when 
bus pullouts are available and significant 
protection provided for children.  School bus 
stops shall also be designed where possible to 
compliment residential development, and 
provide convenient location and access for 
neighborhood children. 

   
E. Benches 

     
     Bench material and placement locations shall be 

approved by the City. 
 

F. Mailboxes 
 



TRANSPORTATION 
 

  

 

January 2019  2 - 42 

   During construction, existing mailboxes shall be 
accessible for the delivery of mail, or, if necessary, 
moved to a temporary location. Temporary 
relocation shall be coordinated with the U.S. Postal 
Service by the contractor. The mailboxes shall be 
reinstalled at the original location at the completion 
of construction or, if construction has made it 
impossible, to a location approved by the U.S. Postal 
Service and the City.  New mailboxes shall be 
located as approved by the US Postal Service and 
the City of Shelton.  Structures set in concrete shall 

adhere to the requirements of Details M-05, M-06, 
M-10 and M-10A. 

 
G. Guardrails 

 
For purposes of design and location, all guardrails along 
roadways shall conform to the criteria as outlined in the 
WSDOT Design Manual as may be amended or revised.  

 
H. Staking 

 
All surveying and staking shall be performed by an 
engineering or surveying firm capable of performing such 
work.  The engineer or surveyor shall be licensed as a 
Professional Engineer or Professional Land Surveyor by 
the State of Washington.  A pre-construction meeting shall 
be held with the City prior to commencing staking.  All 
staking shall be inspected by the City prior to 
construction. 

 
I. Testing 

 
Testing shall be required at the developer’s or contractor’s 
expense on all materials as specified in the WSDOT/APWA 
Standard Specifications and with a frequency as specified 
in the WSDOT Construction Manual. 

 
 2.290 Retaining Walls 
 

A. Retaining walls proposed for development of private 
property shall be placed only on private property, and shall 
not be placed in the public right-of-way unless otherwise 
approved by the City. Design and construction shall 
conform to the Uniform Building Code, and the contractor 
shall obtain a building permit if required from the City. 

 



TRANSPORTATION 
 

  

 

January 2019  2 - 43 

B. If the City approves a retaining wall or walls to support the 
public right of way, such retaining wall(s) may occur in the 
right of way and shall be designed by an engineer licensed 
by the State of Washington and capable of performing 
such work.  Retaining walls in the public right of way shall 
be designed to accommodate traffic loads as defined by the 
City.  Plans for such retaining walls shall be submitted to 
the City for review and approval as to location, structural 
design, loading, and other relevant criteria as determined 
by the City. 

 

 2.300 Street Trees 
 

A. Street trees shall be required within and along all 
designated tree corridors as defined in SMC 20.60.120. All 
street trees shall be installed with City approved root 
barriers. Designated tree corridors include: 

 

 Railroad Avenue between Front Street and 7th Street, 

 Cota Street between 1st Street and 6th street, 

 5th Street between Cota Street and Alder Street, 

 Alder Street between 1st Street and 7th Street, 

 Olympic Highway North between 13th Street and 
Wallace Kneeland Boulevard, 

 Olympic Highway South between Fairmount Street and 
the City Limits. 

    
Trees planted adjacent to streets on private property shall 
also comply with these specifications. 

 
B. Unless otherwise approved by the City, street trees shall be 

installed in the numbers equal to one per forty feet of the 
sidewalk length to be constructed, excluding the sidewalk 
within a sight distance area as defined by Section 2.180 of 
these Standards.  Street trees shall be planted at the edge 
of any such sight distance area(s) at intersections and 

driveways, but sight obstructions shall not be allowed 
within a sight distance area. 

 
C. The design for street tree type(s), size, and locations(s) and 

planting procedures shall be prepared by a landscape 
architect licensed by the State of Washington and capable 
of performing such work.  The plans for the installation of 
street trees, or any other proposed landscaping in the 
public right-of-way shall be submitted for review and 
approval by the City. 

 



TRANSPORTATION 
 

  

 

January 2019  2 - 44 

D.  Street trees shall be of a type that will minimize the 
likelihood of future root upheaval or other damage to the 
sidewalk. In the selection of trees, consideration should be 
given to overall aesthetic impacts at maturity. The design 
of tree spacing should consider the tree canopy at 
maturity, which should be intended to connect and form a 
continuous tree canopy over the street, while not 
encroaching into pedestrian headroom or obstruct tall 
curbside vehicles such as buses. The type selected should 
be of a variety to reach a minimum of 20-feet in height at 
maturity, unless such height at maturity would generate 

conflicts with overhead electrical power lines.  A 5-foot 
minimum clear zone shall be maintained between 
buildings and tree pits to allow adequate clearance for 
pedestrian.  Design of street tree locations, tree pits and 
grates shall comply with all relevant Americans with 
Disabilities Act (ADA) requirements. 

 
E.  Trees shall be a minimum of 1-1/2 inches in trunk 

diameter at the time of installation.  Each tree shall be 
installed in a tree well or pit with a minimum surface area 
of 3 feet x 3 feet.  A 3’x3’ cast iron grate with frame shall 
be installed at the top of the tree well or pit to match the 
surface of the adjacent sidewalk, as specified in the 
WSDOT/APWA Standard Specifications for Road, Bridge 
and Municipal Construction.  The aesthetic design of the 
tree grate(s) shall be approved by the City. 

 
F. Root control barriers should be installed for each tree per 

Standard Detail M-03 and M-04. 
  
G. The owner shall be responsible for tree maintenance for 

one-year after Final Approval of construction and shall 
replace any damaged, diseased or dead trees within that 
year. The City will assume maintenance responsibility after 
that first year that better serves as street landscaping or 
beautification. 
 

 2.310 Parking Lots 
 

A. All proposed parking lot construction requires a Site Plan 
Review, whether independent or in conjunction with a 
project that shall be determined through the Site Plan 
Review process. 

 
B. Stormwater retention shall be provided and shall follow the 

criteria as set forth in Chapter 3 of these Standards, as 



TRANSPORTATION 
 

  

 

January 2019  2 - 45 

required by the Site Plan Review process.  Plans and 
specifications shall be required to be submitted for review 
and approval by the City with respect to storm drainage 
discharge and on-site retention or detention, matching 
street and/or sidewalk grades, access locations, parking 
layout, and to check for future street improvement 
conformity and City zoning regulations. 

 
C. If required through the Site Plan Review process and/or 

Chapter 20.40 of the Zoning Code, parking lot surfacing 
materials shall satisfy the requirement for a permanent all-

weather surface. Asphalt concrete pavement and cement 
concrete pavement satisfy this requirement and are 
approved materials.  All other proposed parking lot surface 
materials require specific approval by the City.   

 
 2.320 Roadside Safety Clear Zone 
 
   The clear zone is a primary consideration when analyzing 

roadside hazards.  The intent is to provide as much clear, 
traversable area for a vehicle to recover as practical.  The 
Design Clear Zone values shown in Exhibit 1600-1 of the 
WSDOT Design Manual are used to evaluate the adequacy of 
the existing clear zone and to provide a minimum target value 
for highway design.  These values are not to be used as 
justification to compromise or take away from the existing clear 
zone. 

 
A. Design Clear Zone inventory is required for all projects 

indicating evaluate upgrade (EU) or Full Design Level (F) 
for the clear zone columns on the design matrices.  (See 
Chapter 1100 of the WSDOT Design Manual.)  The Design 
Clear Zone Inventory Form (Exhibit 700-2) is to be used to 
inventory the roadside for potential hazards, identify the 
hazards and propose corrective actions.  Eliminating the 
hazard is the preferred action.  A roadside hazard shall be 
analyzed to determine if further mitigation is necessary 
even when it is beyond the values in Exhibit 1600-1.  
When locating a highway appurtenance (such as a sign 
bridge, bridge pier or sign post) in an otherwise 
unrecoverable area, the values in Exhibit 1600-2 are to be 
used as guidance in determining the need for mitigation.   
 

B. The Design Clear Zone is a function of the posted speed, 
side slope, and traffic volume.  There are no distances in 
the table for 1:3 fill slopes.  Although fill slopes between 
1:4 and 1:3 are considered traversable if free of fixed 



TRANSPORTATION 
 

  

 

January 2019  2 - 46 

objects, these slopes are defined as non-recoverable 
slopes.  A vehicle may be able to begin recovery on the 
shoulder, but will be unable to further this recovery until 
reaching a flatter area (1:4 or flatter) at the toe of the 
slope.  Under these conditions, the Design Clear Zone 
distance is called a recovery area.  The method used to 
calculate the recovery area and an example are shown in 
Exhibit 1600-3. 

 
C. For ditch sections, the following criteria determine the 

Design Clear Zone: 

 
1. For ditch sections with foreslopes 4H:1V or flatter 

(See Exhibit 1600-4, Case 1, as an example), the 
Design Clear one distance is the greater of the 
following: 

 

 The Design Clear Zone distance for a 10H:1V 
cut section based on speed and ADT. 

 A horizontal distance of 5 feet beyond the 
beginning of the backslope.  When a backslope 
steeper than 3H:1V continues for a horizontal 
distance of 5 feet beyond the beginning of the 
backslope, it is not necessary to use the 
10H:1V cut slope criteria. 

 
2. For ditch sections with foreslopes steeper than 4H:1V 

and backslopes steeper than 3H:1V, the Design Clear 
Zone distance is 10 feet horizontal beyond the 
beginning of the backslope (See Exhibit 1600-4, Case 
2, for an example.) 

 
3. For ditch sections with foreslopes steeper than 4H:1V 

or flatter, the Design Clear Zone distance is the 
distance established using the recovery area formula 
(See Exhibit 1600-3); also see Exhibit 1600-4, Case 
3, as an example.) 

 



TRANSPORTATION 
 

  

 

January 2019  2 - 47 

 
 



TRANSPORTATION 
 

  

 

January 2019  2 - 48 

 



TRANSPORTATION 
 

  

 

January 2019  2 - 49 

 
 



TRANSPORTATION 
 

  

 

January 2019  2 - 50 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TRANSPORTATION 
 

  

 

January 2019  2 - 51 

 2.330 Flashing Beacon 
 
                       The City may require the installation of Warning Beacons or 

Rapid Flashing Beacons for intersection control, advanced 
warning, or to increase pedestrian safety at crosswalk locations. 
Installation of warning beacons and rapid flashing beacons shall 
meet the warrants listed in Chapter 4 of MUTCD, as indicated 
by pedestrian or traffic studies, or as directed by Public Works 
Director 

 
   A Flashing Beacon is a street traffic signal with one or more 

signal sections that operates in a flashing mode. It provides 
warning at crosswalks or supplemental emphasis to warning 
signs or regulatory signs, except STOP, DO NOT ENTER, 
WRONG WAY, and SPEED LIMIT sign. 

 
                    Standard: 
 

A. All Warning Beacons and Rapid Flashing Beacons shall be 
designed in accordance with the MUTCD, WSDOT Design 
Manual and WSDOT/APWA standard specification. 
  

B. Flashing Beacon units and their mountings shall comply   
with the provisions of City of Shelton and the MUTCD, 
except as otherwise provided in this Chapter. 
 

C. The flashing rates for warning beacons, rapid flashing 
beacons shall be in accordance with MUTCD. 

 
D. Warning Beacon shall consist of one or more signal sections 

of a standard traffic signal capable of flashing operation. 
 

E.  A Warning Beacon shall be used only to supplement an 
appropriate warning or regulatory sign or marker. 
 

F.  Warning Beacons, if used at intersections, shall not face 
conflicting vehicular approaches. 

 
G. Mounting heights for warning beacons mounted over the 

roadway shall meet the height requirement listed in Chapter 
4 of the MUTCD. 

 
H. Warning Beacons and Rapid Flashing Beacons shall be of 

TAPCO Inc. brand or approval equal. 
 
 
 



TRANSPORTATION 
 

  

 

January 2019  2 - 52 

                Guidance: 
 

A.  The condition or regulation justifying Rapid Flashing Beacons 
should largely govern their location with respect to the 
roadway. 
 

B.  If an obstruction is in or adjacent to the roadway, illumination 
of the lower portion or the beginning of the obstruction or a 
sign on or in front of the obstruction, in addition to the beacon, 
should be considered. 

 

C.  Beacons should be operated only during those periods or times 
when the condition or regulation exists. 
 

               Option: 
 

A.  Warning Beacons that are actuated by pedestrians, bicyclists, 
or other road users may be used as appropriate to provide 
additional warning to vehicles approaching a crossing or other 
location. 
 

B.  If Warning Beacons have more than one signal section, they 
may be flashed either alternately or simultaneously. 

 
C.  A flashing yellow beacon interconnected with a traffic signal 

controller assembly may be used with a traffic signal warning 
sign. 
 

D. An automatic dimming device may be used to reduce the 
brilliance of flashing yellow signal indications during night 
operation. 

 
 

  
 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 



TRANSPORTATION 
 

  

 

January 2019  2 - 53 

 
2.340 General Notes:  Street Construction 
 

  In addition to the General Notes in Chapter One, the Engineer 
shall include the following notes on any plans dealing with the 
construction or alterations, extensions or connections to the 
transportation systems. 

 
1. All work in the City requires a City of Shelton Business 

License.  
 

2. Prior to working within the City right-of-way or on City 
property, the contractor must obtain a City of Shelton 
Right-of-Way permit. All contractors shall be licensed and 
bonded in the State of Washington. Proponent shall 
comply with all other permits and other requirements of 
the governing authority or agency. It is the contractor’s 
responsibility to verify the location of right-of-way. 

 
3. All curb and gutter, street grades, sidewalk grades, and 

any other vertical and/or horizontal alignment shall be 
staked by a licensed engineering or surveying firm capable 
of performing such work. 

 
4. Where new asphalt joins existing asphalt, the existing 

asphalt shall be cut to a neat vertical edge and tacked 
with asphalt emulsion type CSS-1 per Section 9-02.1(6) of 
the WSDOT/APWA Standard Specifications . Tack coat 
shall be applied per Section 5-04.3(5)A. The new asphalt 
shall be feathered back over existing to provide for a seal 
at the saw cut location and the joint sealed  In accordance 
with Section 5-04.3(5)C of the WSDOT/APWA Standard 
Specifications. 

 
5. Compaction of subgrade, rock and asphalt shall be in 

accordance with the most current adopted version of the 
WSDOT/APWA Standard Specifications. 

 
6. Form and subgrade inspection by the City is required 

before placing asphalt or concrete. 24-hour notice is 
required for form inspection. 

 
7. Testing and sampling frequencies will be as described in 

the City of Shelton Design and Construction Standards. 
 

8. The Contractor/Developer provides and installs street 
name and regulatory signs at their expense.  



TRANSPORTATION 
 

  

 

January 2019  2 - 54 

 
9. All curb and gutter, street grades, sidewalk grades, and 

any other vertical and/or horizontal alignment shall be 
staked by a licensed engineering firm or surveying firm 
capable of performing such work. 

 
 

10. Compaction of subgrade, sub-base, base, surfacing, 
pavement, or layers of similar material shall be in 
accordance with Section 2-06 and Section 4.04.3(5) of the 
WSDOT/APWA Standard Specifications. Fill shall be 

provided in 6-inch maximum lifts unless otherwise 
approved by the City, and shall be compacted to 95 
percent of its maximum relative density. 

 
11. Fill shall be provided in 6-inch maximum lifts unless 

otherwise approved by the City, and shall be compacted to 
95 percent of its maximum relative density. 

 
12. Inspection by the City is required during all phases of 

construction. It is the contractor’s responsibility to notify 
the City of his/her schedule. Inspection by City personnel 
shall be required during City work hours.  City work hours 
are 8:00 AM to 5:00 PM Monday through Friday, except 
holidays. A minimum 24 hour notice is required for 
inspection of any work. No trenching on public right of way 
after 4:00 PM unless approved by the City. Other work 
such as backfilling, cleanup, etc., or as approved by the 
City is acceptable if 24 hours’ prior notice is provided to 
the City. 

 
    

 
  



TRANSPORTATION 
 

  

 

January 2019  2 - 55 

   L I S T  O F  D R A W I N G S  

C H A P T E R  2  T R A N S P O R T A T I O N  
 
 
Title Drawing 
Pavement Markings & Striping Detail .....................................................  T-01 
Sidewalk Detail.......................................................................................  T-02 
Cement Concrete Curbs and Curb & Gutter Detail .................................  T-03 
Rolled Edge Concrete Curb & Gutter Detail  ...........................................  T-03A 
Cement Concrete Driveway .....................................................................  T-04 

Cement Concrete Ramp  .........................................................................  T-05 
Sidewalk Expansion & Contraction Joint Spacing  .................................  T-06 
Types of A.D.A. Sidewalk Ramps  ...........................................................  T-07 
Type 2A & 2B Sidewalk Ramps – Plan Views and Layouts  .....................  T-08 
Type 2A & 2B Sidewalk Ramps – Sections, Notes & Details  ...................  T-09 
Type 2A & 2B Ramps – Perpendicular to Curb .......................................  T-10 
Type 2A & 2B Ramps – Radial to Curb  ..................................................  T-11 
Sight Obstruction Details  ......................................................................  T-12 
Monument Case & Cover with Riser  ......................................................  T-13 
Poured In Place Concrete Monument  .....................................................  T-14 
Monument Case Installation  ..................................................................  T-15 
Curb Markings  ......................................................................................  T-16 
Bus Stop Pullout -Arterial Streets  ..........................................................  T-17 
Pavement Section Utility Trench Restoration  .........................................  T-18 
Gravel Surface Utility Trench Restoration  ..............................................  T-19 
2-12’ Lanes w/Sidewalk (Residential)  ....................................................  T-20 
2-12’ Lanes w/Sidewalk & Bioswale (Residential)  ..................................  T-21 
2-12’ Lanes - 8’ Parking Each Side & Sidewalks (Non-Residential)  .........  T-22 
2-12’ Lanes -8’ Parking Each Side & Sidewalks w/Street Tree Corridors  
(Non-Residential) ....................................................................................  T-23 
2 -12’ Lanes – 8’ Parking Each Side, Bike Lanes & Sidewalks w/Street  
Tree Corridors (Non-Residential)  ............................................................  T-24 
4-12’ Lanes w/Sidewalks Each Side (Arterial) .........................................  T-25 
4-12’ Lanes 1/12’ Center Lane for Tree Corridor or Turn Lane w/ Bike  
Lane, Sidewalks & Street Tree Corridors (Arterial) ..................................  T-26 
Right-of-Way Improvements for Neighborhood Residential Zone .............  T-27 
 
 





L
E

F
T

 
T

U
R

N
 
L

A
N

E

C
E

N
T

E
R

L
I
N

E
 
G

U
I
D

E
 
M

A
R

K
E

R
S

E
D

G
E

 
S

T
R

I
P

E

D
O

U
B

L
E

 
C

E
N

T
E

R
L

I
N

E
 
S

T
R

I
P

E

S
K

I
P

 
L

A
N

E
 
S

T
R

I
P

E

P
A

V
E

M
E

N
T

 
M

A
R

K
E

R
 
K

E
Y

T
W

O
 
L

A
N

E
 
T

W
O

-
W

A
Y

 
T

R
A

F
F

I
C

R
E

C
E

S
S

E
D

 
P

A
V

M
E

N
T

 
M

A
R

K
E

R
 
D

E
T

A
I
L

S

A
A

S
E

C
T

I
O

N
 
A

 
A

P
L
A

N
 
V

I
E

W

T
Y

P
E

 
2
 
R

P
M

R
A

I
S

E
D

 
F

A
C

E
 
C

O
L
O

R
S

N
O

T
E

S
:

T
W

O
 
W

A
Y

 
L

E
F

T
 
T

U
R

N

C

I

O

N

N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

C

I

O

N

N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

P
A

V
E

M
E

N
T

 
M

A
R

K
S

&
 
S

T
R

I
P

I
N

G
 
D

E
T

A
I
L
S

T
-
0
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE 1 (YELLOW)

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE 2d OR 2e

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE 2e

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE 2d

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOUBLE YELLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTERLINE STRIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GORE STRIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(WHITE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE STRIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(WHITE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE 2e

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE 2d @

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE 2d OR 2e

AutoCAD SHX Text
STOP BAR (18" WHITE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
GORE STRIPE (8" WHITE OR YELLOW)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SKIP LANE STRIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CROSSWALK (24" WHITE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOUBLE YELLOW CENTER STRIPE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TWO-WAY LEFT TURN LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE STRIPE (4" WHITE OR YELLOW)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARROWS (WHITE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: ALL PAVEMENT MARKERS ARE TO BE RECESSED IN ACCORDANCE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITH THE STATE OF WASHINGTON'S DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE 2YY RPM (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SKIP CENTER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECESS LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAPER LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAPER LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF PAVEMENT MARKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE 2YY RPM (TWO-WAY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE 2W RPM (ONE-WAY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADHESIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/8" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4" MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' C/C

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR USE WHERE SPECIFIED IN CONTRACT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE 2YY

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE 2W

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE 2Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
YELLOW & YELLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHITE - ONE SIDE ONLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
YELLOW - ONE SIDE ONLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
(4" YELLOW)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(4" WHITE OR YELLOW)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECESSED PAVEMENT MARKER, WHEN SPECIFIED,

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHALL BE INSTALLED AT THE LOCATIONS SHOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR TYPE 2W RPM'S ON MULTILANE ONE-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROADWAYS, AND TYPE 2YY RPM'S ON TWO LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TWO-WAY ROADWAYS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR LANE LINES, TYPE 2W RPM'S SHALL BE SPACED

AutoCAD SHX Text
AT 80' INTERVALS ON TANGENTS AND HORIZONTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURVES WITH A RADIUS OF 5000' OR MORE, AND

AutoCAD SHX Text
40' INTERVALS ON HORIZONTAL CURVES HAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text
RADII OF LESS THAN 5000'.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR CENTER LINES, TYPE 2YY RPM'S SHALL BE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPACED AT 80' INTERVALS ON TANGENTS AND

AutoCAD SHX Text
HORIZONTAL CURVES WITH A RADIUS OF 5000'

AutoCAD SHX Text
OR MORE, AND 40' INTERVALS ON HORIZONTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURVES HAVING RADII LESS THAN 5000' TYPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2YY RPM'S ARE TO BE CENTERED BETWEEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SKIP LINES.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURRENT STANDARD PLANS SECTION M - ROADWAY DELINEATION, OR AS DIRECTED BY THE CITY ENGINEER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS



TYPE 1

TYPE 2

NOTES:

TYPE 3

SIDEWALK

DETAILS

T-02

AutoCAD SHX Text
-2%

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
-2%

AutoCAD SHX Text
-2%

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
-2%

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANTER STRIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
BALLAST

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" CSTC

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR EXPANSION, AND DUMMY JOINT REQUIREMENTS SEE CITY OF SHELTON STD. SIDEWALK DETAIL T-03A AND/ OR T-06.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE DRIVEWAYS REQUIRE A MINIMUM DEPTH OF 6" WITH REBAR.  SEE CITY OF SHELTON STD. DRIVEWAY DETAIL T-04.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BROOM FINISH TO BE PERPENDICULAR TO ROADWAY IN SIDEWALK SECTIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE SHALL BE COMMERCIAL CONCRETE 3,000 PSI HIGH EARLY STRENGTH.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" CRUSHED SURFACING TOP COURSE OR WELL GRADED SAND OVER APPROVED, COMPACTED, NATIVE MATERIAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" CONCRETE    (NOMINAL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED ROADWAY SECTION OR .17' CSTC OVER 0.69' BALLAST WHICHEVER IS GREATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" CRUSHED SURFACING TOP COURSE OR WELL GRADED SAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" CONCRETE    (NOMINAL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR CURB & GUTTER SEE DETAIL T-03

AutoCAD SHX Text
-2%

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
-2%

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
BALLAST

AutoCAD SHX Text
CSTC

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED ROADWAY SECTION OR .17' CSTC OVER 0.69' BALLAST WHICHEVER IS GREATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" CRUSHED SURFACING TOP COURSE OR WELL GRADED SAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" CONCRETE    (NOMINAL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR MONOLITHIC CURB & SIDEWALK USE DETAIL T-03A

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO KEYWAY NECESSARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" X 4" KEYWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACK OF CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS



CEMENT CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER

DOWNTOWN AREA ONLY

CEMENT CONCRETE CURBS

TYPE 2 TYPE 3

TRAFFIC CURB PEDESTRIAN CURB

TYPE 2 AND TYPE 3

TYPE 3

PEDESTRIAN CURB

AT SIDEWALK RAMPS & LANDINGS

AND DRIVEWAY ENTRANCES

NOTES:

TYPE 1

TYPE 1

CURB & GUTTER

CEMENT CONCRETE

CURBS AND

CURB & GUTTER

T-03

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIMITS OF PAVEMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAVEMENT CEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOWNSPOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE NOTE 3 BELOW.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(as approved by City Engineering Dept.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE:  SIDEWALK TO BE POURED

AutoCAD SHX Text
AFTER CURB & GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOWNSPOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"OR 6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"R

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"R

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
FROM

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" TO 0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEMENT CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK RAMP, LANDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
OR DRIVEWAY ENTRANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREMOLDED

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOINT FILLER

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
1. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL CURB, GUTTER & SIDEWALKS SHALL BE COMMERCIAL CONCRETE PER CURRENT WSDOT STD. SPECIFICATIONS IN SECTION 6-02.3(2)B. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOWN SPOUT DRAINS SHALL BE PLACED PER WSDOT STD. PLANS & AS DIRECTED BY THE ENGINEER. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS DIRECTED  BY ENGINEER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAIN PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"R

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"R

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREMOLDED JOINT FILLER

AutoCAD SHX Text
(WHEN ADJACENT TO CEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE SIDEWALK)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEMENT CONCRETE SIDEWALK 

AutoCAD SHX Text
OR ASPHALT CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PASSAGEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"R

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" EXPANSION JOINTS SHALL BE INSTALLED AT 15' C/C, OR AS DIRECTED BY THE ENGINEER, AND SHALL EXTEND TO THE BOTTOM OF THE CONCRETE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"R

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"R

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
.04'

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEYWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE NOTE 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB & GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEYWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE NOTE 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL KEYWAY, 1" x 4" (4" OR THICKNESS OF SIDEWALK/ DRIVEWAY), WHEN SIDEWALK ABUTS A TYPE 1 OR TYPE 2 CURB.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL EXPANSION JOINT MATERIAL BETWEEN IN KEYWAY DRIVEWAY AND/ OR SIDEWALK.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND NOTE 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND NOTE 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS



ROLLED EDGE CONC. CURB & GUTTER

FOR  ROUNDABOUT w/ KEYWAY

ROLLED EDGE CONC. CURB & GUTTER w/ KEYWAY

NOTE:

WHERE CURB DOES NOT ABUT

SIDEWALK NO KEYWAY IS NECESSARY.

CONCRETE CURB

& GUTTER DETAILS

T-03A

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
R12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6 "12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 "12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPTIONAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
S=0.07

AutoCAD SHX Text
S=0.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
"

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROADWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
S=0.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
 1'-11"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1' 10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
S=0.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROADWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
S=0.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"R

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"R

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
"

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREMOLDED

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOINT FILLER

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" MIN. CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4-6" CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREMOLDED

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOINT FILLER

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEYWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEYWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
R13"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROLLED CEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROLLED CEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS



D
E

T
A

I
L
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
A

-
A

N
O

T
E

S
:

I
F

 
E

X
.
G

R
A

D
E

 
P

R
O

H
I
B

I
T

S
 
A

C
H

I
E

V
I
N

G

A
 
M

A
X

.
 
G

R
A

D
E

 
O

F
 
8
.
3
%

 
T

H
E

N

W
A

S
H

D
O

W
N

 
R

A
M

P
S

 
M

U
S

T

B
E

 
E

X
T

E
N

D
E

D
 
T

O
 
1
5
 
F

T
.
 

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

C
E

M
E

N
T

 
C

O
N

C
R

E
T

E

D
R

I
V

E
W

A
Y

T
-
0
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.83%%% MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.83%%% MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LENGTH VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' MIN. - 26' MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNLESS APPROVED BY CITY ENGINEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
#5 REBAR,

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FACE OF CURB AT APPROACH 38" LIP MAX.LIP MAX. MAX.MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASHDOWN RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
THRU JOINT (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" EXPANSION

AutoCAD SHX Text
BROOM FINISH           - SIDEWALKS -  PERPENDICULAR TO RDWY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
 BROOM FINISH  -WASHDOWNS-       PARALLEL TO RDWY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASHDOWN RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" EXPANSION JOINT WHERE ABUTTING EX. BLDGS., CONCRETE, ETC.  EXPANSION JOINT TO BE FULL DEPTH OF NEW CONCRETE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVEWAY APPROACH

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.0' WIDE DRIVEWAY APPROACH

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TYPICAL RESIDENTIAL SIDEWALK WIDTH)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASHDOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
2%%% MAX. SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FACE OF CURB AT APPROACH -  "LIP MAX.38"LIP MAX.LIP MAX. MAX.MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" CONC. SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPANSION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANSITION

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
2%%% MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2%%% MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
#5 REBAR 6" O.C.(TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROADWAY SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
#5 REBAR, 6"O.C. - BARS TO EXTEND A MIN. 12" INTO WASHDOWNS BOTH SIDES.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REBAR TO BE SUSPENDED IN CONC. - CANNOT BE LAYING ON GROUND, (1" MIN. CLR.).

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVEWAY & SIDEWALK WIDTH MEASURED FROM BACK OF CURB TO BACK OF WALK.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3000 PSI HIGH EARLY STRENGTH.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE SHALL BE PORTLAND CEMENT TYPE III

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL JOINTS SHALL BE STEEL TROWELED FOR FINISH.

AutoCAD SHX Text
 IN DRIVEWAY ONLY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BROOM FINISH SHALL BE PARALLEL TO ROADWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE CURB, SIDEWALK, & GUTTER DETAILS -

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" CONC. DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
(3) #5 REBAR IN CURB.  SEE DETAIL SECTION A-A.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB OR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB & GUTTER -

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE CONTRACT PLANS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE CONTRACT PLANS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR SIDEWALK WIDTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DUMMY JOINT @ C/L IF APPROACH WIDTH OVER 10'. IF OVER 16' A 2" DEEP MIN. DUMMY JOINT REQUIRED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3 #5 REBAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
IN CURB (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
T-02, THRU T-06.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LENGTH VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEYWAY - 1" X THICKNESS OF DRIVEWAY OR SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXTEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS



I
S

O
M

E
T

R
I
C

 
V

I
E

W

E
L
E

V
A

T
I
O

N
 
V

I
E

W

P
L

A
N

E
L

E
V

A
T

I
O

N
 

T
R

U
N

C
A

T
E

D
 
D

O
M

E
S

 
(
S

E
E

 
N

O
T

E
)

D
E

T
E

C
T

A
B

L
E

 
W

A
R

N
I
N

G
 
P

A
T

T
E

R
N

 
D

E
T

A
I
L

N
O

T
E

S
:

C

I

O

N

N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

C

I

O

N

N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

R
A

M
P

T
-
0

5

C
E

M
E

N
T

 
C

O
N

C
R

E
T

E

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEMENT CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEMENT CONCRETE RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEMENT CONCRETE RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/16"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 5/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 3/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
7/16"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
7/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 7/16"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETECTABLE WARNING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATTERN AREA SHALL BE

AutoCAD SHX Text
YELLOW, IN COMPLIANCE WITH

AutoCAD SHX Text
STD. SPEC. 8-14.3(5)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: DETECTABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WARNING PATTERNS MAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BE CREATED BY ANY 

AutoCAD SHX Text
METHOD THAT WILL ACHIEVE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE TRUNCATED DOME

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIMENSIONS AND SPACING

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHOWN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/8" EXPANSION JOINT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRUNCATED DOMES

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETECTABLE WARNING PATTERN

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRUNCATED DOMES

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETECTABLE WARNING PATTERN

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
IF EX. SLOPE PROHIBITS ACHIEVING A MAX. GRADE OF 8.3% THEN RAMP MUST BE EXTENDED TO 15 FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB RAMPS SHALL NOT BE POURED INTEGRAL WITH SIDEWALK AND SHALL BE ISOLATED BY EXPANSION JOINT MATERIAL ON ALL SIDES, BUT NOT AT BOTTOM OF RAMP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB OR CURB &

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUTTER - SEE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTRACT PLANS

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.3%%% SLOPE MAX. OR 15 FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.3%%% SLOPE MAX. OR 15 FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEMENT CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLUSH AT GUTTER.  NO EXPANSION JOINT MATERIAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS



GENERAL NOTES:

SPECIAL NOTE:

C

I

O

N

N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

C

I

O

N

N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

SIDEWALK EXPANSION

AND CONTRACTION

JOINT SPACING

T-06

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
(WIDTH VARIES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(AS REQUIRED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANTER STRIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB AND

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPANSION

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPANSION

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTRACTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOINTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPANSION JOINTS SHALL BE INSTALLED IN CURB AND GUTTER, AND IN 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK AT PC AND PT AT ALL CURB RETURNS.  EXPANSION JOINTS SHALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
BE PLACED IN SIDEWALK AT SAME LOCATIONS AS THOSE IN CURB AND 

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUTTER WHEN SIDEWALK IS CONTIGUOUS TO CURB AND GUTTER, UNLESS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
OTHERWISE DIRECTED BY ENGINEER. CONTRACTION JOINTS IN SIDEWALK ONLY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSPECTION OF FORMS AND SUB GRADE BY CITY INSPECTOR IS REQUIRED BEFORE POURING CONCRETE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPANSION JOINT MATERIAL TO BE 1/2" THICK PRE MOLDED JOINT FILLER FULL THICKNESS OF CONCRETE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCORED MARKS (CONTRACTION JOINTS) SHALL BE ±1/8" WIDE BY ±1/4"DEEP.   FOR ALL SIDEWALKS OVER 8' IN WIDTH MAKE A LONGITUDINAL (PARALLEL W/ CURB) SCORE MARK ALONG CENTER OF SIDEWALK.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS



NOTES:

A.D.A. RAMP - TYPE 2B

PERPENDICULAR TO CURB

A.D.A. RAMP - TYPE 2A

RADIAL TO CURB

STREET

STREET

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

STREET

TRUNCATED DOMES

DETECTABLE WARNING PATTERN DETAIL

NOTE:

(SEE NOTE)

CURB OR CURB & SIDEWALK

SEE PLANS FOR SPECIFICATIONS

C
I ON

N

OTGNIHS

A
W

TY
of SHELT

C
I ON

N

OTGNIHS

A
W

TY
of SHELT

SIDEWALK RAMPS

T-07

TYPES OF A.D.A.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE "2B" RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE TYPE "2A" RAMP IS USED

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO PROVIDE ACCESS TO TWO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CROSSWALKS ONLY WHEN IT IS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT FEASIBLE TO PROVIDE A

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEPARATE RAMP FOR EACH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CROSSWALK.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETECTABLE WARNING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATTERN (TYPICAL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(SEE DETAIL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE "2A" RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.3%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.3%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.0%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.3%%% MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
OR 15 FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/16"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEVATION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 5/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 3/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
7/16"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
7/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 7/16"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETECTABLE WARNING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATTERN AREA SHALL BE

AutoCAD SHX Text
YELLOW, IN COMPLIANCE WITH

AutoCAD SHX Text
STD. SPEC. 8-14.3(5)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETECTABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WARNING PATTERNS MAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BE CREATED BY ANY 

AutoCAD SHX Text
METHOD THAT WILL ACHIEVE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE TRUNCATED DOME

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIMENSIONS AND SPACING

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHOWN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MID-BLOCK RAMP "2A"

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAMP AT END 

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASHDOWN RAMP GRADE IS 8.3% MAX. OR 15' IN LENGTH. CROSSING RAMP GRADE IS 2.0%. MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASHDOWN 

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CROSSING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
IN SITUATIONS WHERE RAMP STYLE 2A OR 2B IS NOT  FEASIBLE, CONTACT CITY FOR ALTERNATE CONFIGURATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE 3 PEDESTRIAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB (TYP.) SEE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DET. T-03

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE DET. T-05

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE C.O. SHELTON STD. DETAILS

AutoCAD SHX Text
T-02 THRU T-11 FOR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDITIONAL RAMP INFORMATION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS



E

F

E

F

C
R
O

S
S
W

A
L
K

C

L

CROSSWALK

C

L

B

B

CROSSWALK

C

L

C
R
O

S
S
W

A
L
K

C

L

G

F

G

F

G

F

G

F

C

C

SIDEWALK RAMP TYPE 2B

SIDEWALK RAMP TYPE 2A

E F G

RADIUS

A

B

C

A

T
-
0
9

T

-

0

9

T-09

T-09

T/09

T-09

T

-

0

9

T

-
0
9

C
I ON

N

OTGNIHS

A
W

TY
of SHELT

C
I ON

N

OTGNIHS

A
W

TY
of SHELT

TYPE 2A & 2B 

SIDEWALK RAMPS

PLAN VIEWS & LAYOUTS

T-08

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
RADIUS POINT OF 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK RAMP AND

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB RETURN (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAMP C/L

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/8" EXPANSION

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOINT (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETECTABLE WARNING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATTERN - SEE CITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DET. T-09  (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB OR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB AND GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEMENT CONC. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE 2A

AutoCAD SHX Text
-SEE CONTRACT/ PLANS FOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB RETURN RADIUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
RADIUS POINT OF 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK RAMP AND

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB RETURN (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAMP C/L

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAMP C/L

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/8" EXPANSION

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOINT (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETECTABLE WARNING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATTERN - SEE CITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DET. T-09  (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
6'-0" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB OR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB AND GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
-SEE CONTRACT FOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB RETURN RADIUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. PEDESTRIAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB, TYPE 3 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE CITY DET. T-03

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEMENT CONC. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE 2B

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEMENT CONC. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE 2B

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
(NTS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN VIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
(NTS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(AT CURB FACE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
20 FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
30 FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
40 FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
50 FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
60 FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
70 FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
80 FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
90 FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
100 FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-3 "34"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-3 "14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-2 "34"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'-10 "12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6'-10 "34"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6'-8 "34"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6'-7 "12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6'-6 "12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6'-5 "12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6'-5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-8 "14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-8 "12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-9 "12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-10 "12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-2 "14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-8 "12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/8" EXPANSION

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOINT (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK RAMPS 2A & 2B - SHT. 1 OF 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
7'-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
7'-2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-7"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'-5 "14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-5 "12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-4 "12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'-2 "12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. PEDESTRIAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB, TYPE 3 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE CITY DET. T-03

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE TYPE 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
PEDESTRIAN CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE CITY DET. T-03

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS



NOTES:

SECTION  'A'

SECTION  'B'

SECTION  'C'

DETECTABLE WARNING PATTERN

TRUNCATED DOMES (SEE NOTE)

DETECTABLE WARNING PATTERN DETAIL

NOTE: DETECTABLE

WARNING PATTERNS MAY

BE CREATED BY ANY 

METHOD THAT WILL ACHIEVE 

THE TRUNCATED DOME

DIMENSIONS AND SPACING

SHOWN.

TUNCATED DOMES

B

T-08

A

T-08

C

T-08

C
I ON

N

OTGNIHS

A
W

TY
of SHELT

C
I ON

N

OTGNIHS

A
W

TY
of SHELT

TYPES 2A & 2B RAMP

AND DETAILS

T-09

SECTIONS: NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
6'-0"MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEMENT CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB & GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
(SEE NOTE 5)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2%%% MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAMP SLOPES SHALL NOT BE STEEPER THAN 12:1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE TYPE 2A RAMP IS USED TO PROVIDE ACCESS TO TWO CROSSWALKS ONLY WHEN IT IS NOT FEASIBLE TO PROVIDE A  SEPARATE RAMP FOR EACH CROSSWALK.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE TYPE 2B RAMP LAYOUT REQUIRES TWO (2) OF THIS BID ITEM: "CEMENT CONC. SIDEWALK TYPE 2B".  THE BID ITEM DOES NOT INCLUDE THE ADJACENT CURB (OR CURB & GUTTER), THE SIDEWALK BETWEEN RAMPS, OR THE CEMENT CONC. PEDESTRIAN CURB.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVOID PLACING DRAINAGE STRUCTURES, JUNCTION BOXES OR OTHER OBSTRUCTIONS IN FRONT OF RAMP ACCESS AREAS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB & GUTTER IS SHOWN, SEE THE CONTRACT PLANS FOR THE CURB DESIGN SPECIFIED.  SEE CITY DETAIL T-03 & T-03A FOR CURB DETAILS. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE CITY DETAILS T-02 & T-06 FOR SIDEWALK JOINT PLACEMENT & DETAILS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/8" MAXIMUM LIP AT GUTTER. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB RAMPS WILL NOT BE POURED INTEGRAL WITH SIDEWALK AND SHALL BE ISOLATED BY EXPANSION JOINT MATERIAL  ON ALL SIDES, BUT NOT AT END OF RAMP ADJACENT TO ROADWAY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROADWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6'-0"MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEMENT CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB & GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
(SEE NOTE 5)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROADWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.3%%% MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
OR 15 FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIES - SEE TABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ON DETAIL SHT. T-08 

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/8" EXPANSION JOINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/8" EXPANSION

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETECTABLE WARNING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATTERN - SEE CITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETAIL BELOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK RAMPS 2A & 2B - SHT. 2 OF 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 5/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 3/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
7/16"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
7/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 7/16"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETECTABLE WARNING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATTERN AREA SHALL BE

AutoCAD SHX Text
YELLOW, IN COMPLIANCE WITH

AutoCAD SHX Text
STD. SPEC. 8-14.3(5)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(NTS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
C RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/16"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEVATION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(NTS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2%%% MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.3%%% MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
OR 15 FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB, SEE DET T-03

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEYWAY AT BACK OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS



B

B

NOTES:

SECTION B-B

A

SECTION A-A

PLAN VIEW

DETECTABLE WARNING PATTERN DETAIL

A

C
I ON

N

OTGNIHS

A
W

TY
of SHELT

C
I ON

N

OTGNIHS

A
W

TY
of SHELT

TYPE 2A & 2B RAMPS

TO CURB

T-10

PERPENDICULAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
OR 15 FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIES - SEE TABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.5' MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/8" EXPANSION JOINT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLUSH AT GUTTER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB & GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACK OF SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAMP 0.02' FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FACE OF 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACK OF 

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/16"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEVATION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 5/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 3/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
7/16"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
7/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 7/16"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRUNCATED DOMES (SEE NOTE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETECTABLE WARNING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATTERN AREA SHALL BE

AutoCAD SHX Text
YELLOW, IN COMPLIANCE WITH

AutoCAD SHX Text
STD. SPEC. 8-14.3(5)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: DETECTABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WARNING PATTERNS MAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BE CREATED BY ANY 

AutoCAD SHX Text
METHOD THAT WILL ACHIEVE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE TRUNCATED DOME

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIMENSIONS AND SPACING

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHOWN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETECTABLE WARNING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATTERN (SEE DETAIL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETECTABLE WARNING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATTERN (SEE DETAIL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB RAMPS SHALL NOT BE POURED INTEGRAL WITH SIDEWALK AND SHALL BE ISOLATED BY EXPANSION JOINT MATERIAL ON ALL SIDES, BUT NOT AT END OF RAMP ADJACENT TO ROADWAY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.3%%% MAX. SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OR 15 FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.3%%% MAX. SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DET. SHT T-08

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB OR CURB & GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER CONTRACT PLANS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FACE OF CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. PED. CURB, TYPE 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. PED. CURB, TYPE 3 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE DET. T-03

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS



B

B

SECTION A-A

PLAN VIEW

A

A

NOTES:

SECTION B-B

DETECTABLE WARNING PATTERN DETAIL

3

2

1

2

3

11

3

33

1 1

3

C
I ON

N

OTGNIHS

A
W

TY
of SHELT

C
I ON

N

OTGNIHS

A
W

TY
of SHELT

RADIAL TO CURB

T-11

TYPE 2A & 2B RAMPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
OR 15 FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RADIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
RADIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
OR 15 FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIES - SEE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RADIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SYMMETRICAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB OR CURB &

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUTTER PER CONTRACT PLANS

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.5' MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/8" EXPANSION JOINT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLUSH AT GUTTER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB & GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAMP 0.02'/FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FACE OF CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACK OF WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
THICKENED EDGE PER

AutoCAD SHX Text
WSDOT STD. DWG. 306A

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/16"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEVATION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 5/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 3/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
7/16"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
7/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 7/16"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRUNCATED DOMES (SEE NOTE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETECTABLE WARNING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATTERN AREA SHALL BE

AutoCAD SHX Text
YELLOW, IN COMPLIANCE WITH

AutoCAD SHX Text
STD. SPEC. 8-14.3(5)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: DETECTABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WARNING PATTERNS MAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BE CREATED BY ANY 

AutoCAD SHX Text
METHOD THAT WILL ACHIEVE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE TRUNCATED DOME

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIMENSIONS AND SPACING

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHOWN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETECTABLE WARNING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATTERN (SEE DETAIL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETECTABLE WARNING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATTERN (SEE DETAIL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.3%%% MAX. SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OR 15 FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.3%%% MAX. SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.3%%% MAX. SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OR 15 FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.3%%% MAX. SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.0%%% MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB RAMPS SHALL NOT BE POURED INTEGRAL WITH SIDEWALK AND SHALL BE ISOLATED BY EXPANSION JOINT MATERIAL ON ALL SIDES, BUT NOT AT END OF RAMP ADJACENT TO ROADWAY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DET. SHT. T-08

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIES - SEE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DET. SHT. T-08

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. PED. CURB, TYPE 3 -

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE DET. T-03

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS



EXAMPLE: MAJOR STREET SPEED LIMIT=25 M.P.H.

EXAMPLE:  MAJOR STREET SPEED LIMIT=30 M.P.H.

MINOR STREET SPEED LIMIT=20 M.P.H.

UNCONTROLLED INTERSECTIONS

STOP OR YIELD CONTROLLED INTERSECTIONS

SIGHT OBSTRUCTION

DETAILS

T-12

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEAR SIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT OF WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEAR SIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
90'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT OF WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS



R
I
S

E
R

 
S

I
Z

E
S

R
I
S

E
R

 
R

I
N

G

P
L

A
N

 
V

I
E

W

R
I
S

E
R

P
L

A
N

 
V

I
E

W

C
O

V
E

R

S
E

C
T

I
O

N
 
 
A

 
-
 
A

S
E

C
T

I
O

N
 
 
V

I
E

W

N
O

T
E

S
:

C

I

O

N
N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

C

I

O

N
N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

M
O

N
U

M
E

N
T

 
C

A
S

E

&
 
C

O
V

E
R

 
w

/
 
R

I
S

E
R

T
-
1
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UCOVER          %%U

AutoCAD SHX Text
CASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UAPPROXIMATE WEIGHTS%%U:

AutoCAD SHX Text
60 LBS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
19 LBS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
79 LBS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIM.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3-3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10-1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-1/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
9-1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10-1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10-1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
9-1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
9-1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
4-5/8"R

AutoCAD SHX Text
3-1/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4-5/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3-1/8"R

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-3/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3-7/8"R

AutoCAD SHX Text
3-3/4"R

AutoCAD SHX Text
3-1/4"R

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5-3/4"R

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIMENSIONS MAY VARY ACCORDING TO MANUFACTURER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BASE TO BE PLACED ON WELL COMPACTED FOUNDATION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MONUMENT CASE TO BE INSTALLED BY CONTRACTOR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE DET T-15 FOR MONUMENT CASE INSTALLATION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE DET T-14 FOR POURED IN PLACE CONCRETE MONUMENT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS



E
L

E
V

A
T

I
O

N
 
V

I
E

W

P
L

A
N

 
V

I
E

W

S
P

E
C

I
A

L
 
N

O
T

E

T
H

I
S

 
T

Y
P

E
 
O

F
 
M

O
N

U
M

E
N

T
 
O

N
L
Y

 
I
N

S
T

A
L
L
E

D

W
/
 
A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L
 
O

F
 
C

I
T

Y
 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
.

P
O

U
R

E
D

 
I
N

 
P

L
A

C
E

C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

M
O

N
U

M
E

N
T

T
-
1
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRONZE PLUG MARKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAST IN PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE (CLASS B)

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
16"

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CORE DRILLED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" DIAMETER

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" DIA. MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MONUMENT CONTROL & 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINAL MARKING TO BE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERFORMED BY A 

AutoCAD SHX Text
REGISTERED LAND SURVEYOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRONZE PLUG

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" DIAMETER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CORE DRILLED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS



M
O

N
U

M
E

N
T

 
C

A
S

E

I
N

S
T

A
L
L
A

T
I
O

N

T
-
1
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR USE PRIMARILY ON

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARTERIAL STREETS, STREETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITH BUS TRAFFIC AND

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRUCK ROUTES.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRONZE PLUG

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
MONUMENT FRAME

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE 4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAND CUSHION

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL AROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" ALL AROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
WELL COMPACTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
BASE MATERIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS



PER RCW 46.61.570

C

R

O

S

S

W

A

L

K

D

R

I
V

E

W

A

Y

AT CROSSWALKS

AT FIRE HYDRANTS

AT STOP SIGNS

AT DRIVEWAYS

CURB

MARKINGS

T-16

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASH DOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASH DOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
YELLOW PAINTED CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE C.O. SHELTON STDS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR SPECIFICATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
15'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STOP SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS



M
i
d

-
B

l
o

c
k
 
L

o
c
a

t
i
o

n

N
O

T
E

S
:

F
a

r
-
S

i
d

e
 
L

o
c
a

t
i
o

n

B
U

S
 
S

T
O

P
 
P

U
L
L
O

U
T

A
R

T
E

R
I
A

L
 
S

T
R

E
E

T
S

T
-
1
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'-100' R

AutoCAD SHX Text
* 50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60' DESIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
40' MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'-50' R

AutoCAD SHX Text
12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADD 40 FT. FOR EACH ADDITIONAL BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADD 20 FT. FOR ARTICULATED BUSES

AutoCAD SHX Text
* BASED ON A STANDARD 40 FT. LONG BUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
100' R

AutoCAD SHX Text
100' R

AutoCAD SHX Text
* 50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60' MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
80' DESIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
60' DESIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
50' MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'-50' R

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'-100' R

AutoCAD SHX Text
Plan View         

AutoCAD SHX Text
Plan View 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FACE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
FACE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
STRIPING

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROADWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROADWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS



CEMENT CONCRETE RESTORATION

UTILITY

*

SEE SPECIAL NOTE.

APPROVED TRENCH BACKFILL OR

BALLAST MEETING STD.

SPECIFICATIONS 9-03.19 OR 9-03.9(1)

MAY BE USED IN LEIU OF CDF IF

APPROVED BY CITY PUBLIC WORKS

DIRECTOR PRIOR TO PLACEMENT OF

MATERIAL.

PIPE

SPECIAL NOTE

*

PAVEMENT SECTION

RESTORATION

T-18

UTILITY TRENCH

SEE SPECIAL NOTE.

*

*

SPECIAL NOTE

#5 BAR OR DOWEL BAR SHALL

BE INSTALLED PER WSDOT

STANDARDS PLAN A-40.10-03

IN CONFORMANCE WITH

WSDOT STANDARD

SPECIFICATION SECTION

5-05.3(10).

*

*

ASPHALT RESTORATION

SEE SPECIAL NOTE.

*

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURFACING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIST. ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRENCH = O.D.+36"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP WIDTH OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
MINIMUM-

AutoCAD SHX Text
IF EXISTING ASPHALT IS DEEPER THAN 3", 

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE ASPHALT PATCH SHALL BE THE SAME

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLASS B ASPHALT CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEPTH, INSTALLED IN 1-1/2" LIFTS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAW CUT (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATERIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVER UNDISTURBED

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" MIN. OVERLAP (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS SHOWN FOR CONCRETE PAVEMENT ONLY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
IF NO ASPHALT OVERLAY EXISTS, THEN RESTORE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(MATCH EXISTING)

AutoCAD SHX Text
STANDARD SPECS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT TACK 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEALED PER

AutoCAD SHX Text
COAT W/ SEAM

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL BACKFILL FOR PIPE ZONE BEDDING.  STANDARD SPECIFICATION  9-03.12(3) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CDF TRENCH BACKFILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTROLLED DENSITY FILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER SECTION  2-09.3(1)E

AutoCAD SHX Text
STANDARD SPECIFICATION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE ZONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
O.D.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
#5 BAR OR DOWEL BAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
 18" LONG 12" O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEPTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAW CUT (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURFACING

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURFACING TOP COURSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" MIN. CRUSHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
CDF TRENCH BACKFILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTROLLED DENSITY FILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER SECTION  2-09.3(1)E

AutoCAD SHX Text
STANDARD SPECIFICATION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT PATCH TO 3" COMPACTED DEPTH OR DEPTH OF EXISTING ASPHALT WHICHEVER IS GREATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-1/2" COMPACTED DEPTH CLASS B ASPHALT CONCRETE - WEARING COURSE (MIN.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-1/2"COMPACTED DEPTH CLASS B ASPHALT CONCRETE -LEVELING COURSE (MIN.) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT TACK COAT W/ SEAM SEALED PER STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS



GRAVEL SURFACE

RESTORATION

T-19

UTILITY TRENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
**

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OR CONDUIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACT TO 90%.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLACE PIPE ZONE BACKFILL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER SECTION 7-08.3(3)** OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE ZONE BACKFILL MATERIAL SHALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONFORM TO STANDARD SPECIFICATION SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
9-03.12(3)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRENCH WIDTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
REGRADE TO MATCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING GRAVEL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
WSDOT 9-03.9(1)

AutoCAD SHX Text
10" MIN. BALLAST

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKFILL MATERIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
NATIVE SILTY SAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND GRAVELY SANDY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOILS OR BANK RUN

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL FOR TRENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKFILL WSDOT 9-03.19

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE ZONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" MIN. BLACK BASALT ROCK MEETING GRADATION REQUIREMENTS IN STANDARD SPECIFICATION SECTION 9-03.9(3) FOR BASE COURSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING GRAVEL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKFILL MATERIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
BELOW 2' - ACHIEVE 90%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKFILL COMPACTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
UPPER 2 FEET 95% BACKFILL COMPACTION REQUIRED USING MODIFIED PROCTOR TEST (ASTM:D-1557)

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKFILL MATERIAL - 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS



2
 
-
 
1
2
'
 
L
A

N
E

S

W
I
T

H
 
S

I
D

E
W

A
L
K

(
R

E
S

I
D

E
N

T
I
A

L
)

P
R

I
M

A
R

Y

U
T

I
L
I
T

Y

C
O

R
R

I
D

O
R

S
E

R
V

I
C

E

U
T

I
L
I
T

Y

C
O

R
R

I
D

O
R

S
T

O
R

M
S

T
O

R
M

S
E

W
E

R
W

A
T

E
R

N
O

T
E

:

S
E

E
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
2
.
1
8
0
 
O

F
 
C

U
R

R
E

N
T

 
D

E
S

I
G

N
 
&

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
I
O

N
 
S

T
A

N
D

A
R

D
S

 
F

O
R

 
R

E
Q

U
I
R

E
D

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y
 
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
A

L
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
.

C
R

O
S

S
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N

R
E

S
I
D

E
N

T
I
A

L

T
-
2
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
6'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
6'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITHOUT PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITH PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CORRIDOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
C/L

AutoCAD SHX Text
(PRIMARY &

AutoCAD SHX Text
SERVICE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS



2
 
-
 
1
2
'
 
L
A

N
E

S

W
I
T

H
 
S

I
D

E
W

A
L
K

(
R

E
S

I
D

E
N

T
I
A

L
)

&
 
B

I
O

S
W

A
L
E

S
T

O
R

M
S

T
O

R
M

S
E

W
E

R
W

A
T

E
R

P
R

I
M

A
R

Y

U
T

I
L
I
T

Y

C
O

R
R

I
D

O
R

S
E

R
V

I
C

E

U
T

I
L
I
T

Y

C
O

R
R

I
D

O
R

P
R

I
M

A
R

Y

U
T

I
L
I
T

Y

C
O

R
R

I
D

O
R

S
E

R
V

I
C

E

U
T

I
L
I
T

Y

C
O

R
R

I
D

O
R

N
O

T
E

:

S
E

E
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
2
.
1
8
0
 
O

F
 
C

U
R

R
E

N
T

 
D

E
S

I
G

N
 
&

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
I
O

N
 
S

T
A

N
D

A
R

D
S

 
F

O
R

 
R

E
Q

U
I
R

E
D

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y
 
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
A

L
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
.

C
R

O
S

S
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N

R
E

S
I
D

E
N

T
I
A

L

T
-
2
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
C/L

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
76' R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
6'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITHOUT PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITH PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
BIOSWALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESMT

AutoCAD SHX Text
60' R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
6'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
BIOSWALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
38'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60' - 76' R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESMT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS



2
 
-
 
1

2
'
 
L

A
N

E
S

8
'
 
P

A
R

K
I
N

G
 
-
 
E

A
C

H
 
S

I
D

E

A
N

D
 
S

I
D

E
W

A
L

K
S

(
N

O
N

-
R

E
S

I
D

E
N

T
I
A

L
)

1
0
'
 
S

I
D

E
W

A
L
K

S
 
R

E
Q

U
I
R

E
D

 
I
N

 
Z

O
N

E
S

 
O

F
 
0
'
 
B

L
D

G
.
 
S

E
T

B
A

C
K

S
.

 
 
 
S

P
E

C
I
A

L
 
N

O
T

E
:

*

P
R

I
M

A
R

Y

U
T

I
L
I
T

Y

C
O

R
R

I
D

O
R

S
T

O
R

M

S
T

O
R

M

S
E

W
E

R
W

A
T

E
R

U
T

I
L
I
T

Y

C
O

R
R

I
D

O
R

(
U

N
D

E
R

 
S

I
D

E
W

A
L
K

)

N
O

T
E

:

S
E

E
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
2
.
1
8
0
 
O

F
 
C

U
R

R
E

N
T

 
D

E
S

I
G

N
 
&

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
I
O

N
 
S

T
A

N
D

A
R

D
S

 
F

O
R

 
R

E
Q

U
I
R

E
D

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y
 
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
A

L
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
.

C
R

O
S

S
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N

N
O

N
-
R

E
S

I
D

E
N

T
I
A

L

T
-
2
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'*

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'*

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
C/L

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
61' - 65'

AutoCAD SHX Text
32.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
65' R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
61' R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS



2
 
-
 
1
2
'
 
L
A

N
E

S

8
'
 
P

A
R

K
I
N

G
 
-
 
E

A
C

H
 
S

I
D

E

A
N

D
 
S

I
D

E
W

A
L
K

S
 
W

I
T

H
I
N

(
N

O
N

-
R

E
S

I
D

E
N

T
I
A

L
)

P
R

I
M

A
R

Y

U
T

I
L
I
T

Y

C
O

R
R

I
D

O
R

S
T

O
R

M

S
T

O
R

M

S
E

W
E

R
W

A
T

E
R

D
E

S
I
G

N
A

T
E

D
 
S

T
R

E
E

T
 
T

R
E

E
 
C

O
R

R
I
D

O
R

S

1
0
'
 
S

I
D

E
W

A
L
K

S
 
R

E
Q

U
I
R

E
D

 
I
N

 
Z

O
N

E
S

 
O

F
 
0
'
 
B

L
D

G
.
 
S

E
T

B
A

C
K

S
.

 
 
 
S

P
E

C
I
A

L
 
N

O
T

E
:

*

N
O

T
E

:

S
E

E
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
2
.
1
8
0
 
O

F
 
C

U
R

R
E

N
T

 
D

E
S

I
G

N
 
&

 
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

I
O

N

S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

S
 
F

O
R

 
R

E
Q

U
I
R

E
D

 
R

O
A

D
W

A
Y

 
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
A

L
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
.

T
R

E
E

 
R

O
O

T
 
B

A
R

R
I
E

R
 
R

E
Q

U
I
R

E
D

 
A

D
J
A

C
E

N
T

 
T

O
 
A

N
Y

 
P

A
V

E
M

E
N

T
.
 
S

E
E

C
.
O

.
 
S

H
E

L
T

O
N

 
S

T
D

.
 
D

E
T

A
I
L
S

 
M

-
0
3
 
&

 
M

-
0
4
 
F

O
R

 
R

O
O

T
 
C

O
N

T
R

O
L
 
B

A
R

R
I
E

R
.

1
.

2
.

C
R

O
S

S
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N

N
O

N
-
R

E
S

I
D

E
N

T
I
A

L

T
-
2
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'*

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
C/L

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'*

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
70' - 75'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CORRIDOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CORRIDOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE ROOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARRIER

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
37.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
35'

AutoCAD SHX Text
70' R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
75' R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
CORRIDOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
(UNDER SIDEWALK)

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE ROOT BARRIER

AutoCAD SHX Text
(SEE NOTE 2)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(SEE NOTE 2)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS



2
 
-
 
1
2
'
 
L
A

N
E

S

8
'
 
P

A
R

K
I
N

G
 
-
 
E

A
C

H
 
S

I
D

E

B
I
K

E
 
L
A

N
E

S
 
A

N
D

 
S

I
D

E
W

A
L
K

S

(
N

O
N

-
R

E
S

I
D

E
N

T
I
A

L
)

W
I
T

H
I
N

 
D

E
S

I
G

N
A

T
E

D
 
S

T
R

E
E

T
 
T

R
E

E
 
C

O
R

R
I
D

O
R

S

1
0
'
 
S

I
D

E
W

A
L
K

S
 
R

E
Q

U
I
R

E
D

 
I
N

 
Z

O
N

E
S

 
O

F
 
0
'
 
B

L
D

G
.
 
S

E
T

B
A

C
K

S
.

 
 
 
S

P
E

C
I
A

L
 
N

O
T

E
:

*

P
R

I
M

A
R

Y

U
T

I
L
I
T

Y

C
O

R
R

I
D

O
R

S
T

O
R

M

S
T

O
R

M

S
E

W
E

R
W

A
T

E
R

T
R

E
E

 
R

O
O

T
 
B

A
R

R
I
E

R
 
R

E
Q

U
I
R

E
D

 
A

D
J
A

C
E

N
T

 
T

O
 
A

N
Y

 
P

A
V

E
M

E
N

T
.

R
O

O
T

 
B

A
R

R
I
E

R
 
N

O
T

E
:

U
T

I
L
I
T

Y

C
O

R
R

I
D

O
R

(
U

N
D

E
R

 
S

I
D

E
W

A
L
K

)

N
O

T
E

:

S
E

E
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
2
.
1
8
0
 
O

F
 
C

U
R

R
E

N
T

 
D

E
S

I
G

N
 
&

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
I
O

N
 
S

T
A

N
D

A
R

D
S

 
F

O
R

 
R

E
Q

U
I
R

E
D

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y
 
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
A

L
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
.

S
E

E
 
C

.
O

.
 
S

H
E

L
T

O
N

 
S

T
D

.
 
D

E
T

A
I
L
S

 
M

-
0
3
 
&

 
M

-
0
4
 
F

O
R

 
R

O
O

T

B
A

R
R

I
E

R
 
C

O
N

T
R

O
L
.

C
R

O
S

S
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N

N
O

N
-
R

E
S

I
D

E
N

T
I
A

L

T
-
2
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'*

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
C/L

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'*

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CORRIDOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
BIKE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BIKE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W/ TREE CORRIDOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
W/O TREE CORRIDOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
71' - 84' R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE ROOT BARRIER

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
42'

AutoCAD SHX Text
35.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
84' R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
71' R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
(SEE ROOT BARIER NOTE BELOW)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS



(
A

R
T

E
R

I
A

L
)

4
 
-
 
1

2
'
 
L

A
N

E
S

W
I
T

H
 
S

I
D

E
W

A
L

K
S

 
E

A
C

H
 
S

I
D

E

1
0
'
 
S

I
D

E
W

A
L
K

S
 
R

E
Q

U
I
R

E
D

 
I
N

 
Z

O
N

E
S

 
O

F
 
0
'
 
B

L
D

G
.
 
S

E
T

B
A

C
K

S
.

 
 
 
S

P
E

C
I
A

L
 
N

O
T

E
S

:

*

S
H

A
R

E
D

 
D

R
I
V

E
W

A
Y

 
A

C
C

E
S

S
E

S
 
A

R
E

 
E

N
C

O
U

R
A

G
E

D
.

P
R

I
M

A
R

Y

U
T

I
L
I
T

Y

C
O

R
R

I
D

O
R

S
T

O
R

M
S

T
O

R
M

S
E

W
E

R
W

A
T

E
R

U
T

I
L
I
T

Y

C
O

R
R

I
D

O
R

(
U

N
D

E
R

 
S

I
D

E
W

A
L
K

)

N
O

T
E

:

S
E

E
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
2
.
1
8
0
 
O

F
 
C

U
R

R
E

N
T

 
D

E
S

I
G

N
 
&

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
I
O

N
 
S

T
A

N
D

A
R

D
S

 
F

O
R

 
R

E
Q

U
I
R

E
D

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y
 
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
A

L
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
.

C
R

O
S

S
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N

A
R

T
E

R
I
A

L

T
-
2
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'*

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
C/L

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'*

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
37'

AutoCAD SHX Text
34.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
69' - 73' R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
74' R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
69' R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS



S
T

O
R

M
S

T
O

R
M

S
E

W
E

R

W
A

T
E

R

S
P

E
C

I
A

L
 
N

O
T

E
:

*

A
C

C
E

S
S

 
T

O
 
A

R
T

E
R

I
A

L
 
S

H
A

L
L
 
B

E
 
F

R
O

M
 
S

I
D

E
 
S

T
R

E
E

T
 
T

H
A

T

I
N

T
E

R
S

E
C

T
S

 
W

/
 
T

H
E

 
A

R
T

E
R

I
A

L
.
 
 
I
F

 
D

I
R

E
C

T
 
A

C
C

E
S

S
 
T

O
 
A

N

A
R

T
E

R
I
A

L
 
F

R
O

M
 
A

N
 
A

B
U

T
T

I
N

G
 
P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
 
I
S

 
A

L
L
O

W
E

D
 
B

Y

T
H

E
 
C

I
T

Y
,
 
S

H
A

R
E

D
 
A

C
C

E
S

S
 
W

I
L
L
 
B

E
 
M

A
X

I
M

I
Z

E
D

.

N
O

T
E

S
:

P
R

I
M

A
R

Y

U
T

I
L
I
T

Y

C
O

R
R

I
D

O
R

1
.

T
R

E
E

 
R

O
O

T
 
B

A
R

R
I
E

R
 
R

E
Q

U
I
R

E
D

 
A

D
J
A

C
E

N
T

 
T

O
 
A

N
Y

 
P

A
V

E
M

E
N

T
.

2
.

(
A

R
T

E
R

I
A

L
)

4
 
-
 
1

2
'
 
L

A
N

E
S

 
W

/
 
1

2
'
 
C

E
N

T
E

R
 
L

A
N

E

F
O

R
 
T

R
E

E
 
C

O
R

R
I
D

O
R

 
O

R
 
T

U
R

N
 
L

A
N

E
 
&

W
/
 
B

I
K

E
 
L

A
N

E
,
 
&

 
S

I
D

E
W

A
L

K
S

 
W

I
T

H
I
N

S
T

R
E

E
T

 
T

R
E

E
 
C

O
R

R
I
D

O
R

S

N
O

T
E

:

S
E

E
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
2
.
1
8
0
 
O

F
 
C

U
R

R
E

N
T

D
E

S
I
G

N
 
&

 
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

I
O

N

S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

S
 
F

O
R

 
R

E
Q

U
I
R

E
D

R
O

A
D

W
A

Y
 
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
A

L
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
.

S
E

E
 
C

.
O

.
 
S

H
E

L
T

O
N

 
S

T
D

.
 
D

E
T

A
I
L
S

 
M

-
0
3
 
&

 
M

-
0
4
 
F

O
R

 
R

O
O

T

C
O

N
T

R
O

L
 
B

A
R

R
I
E

R
.

1
0
'
 
S

I
D

E
W

A
L
K

S
 
R

E
Q

U
I
R

E
D

 
I
N

Z
O

N
E

S
 
O

F
 
0
'
 
B

L
D

G
.
 
S

E
T

B
A

C
K

.

C
R

O
S

S
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N

A
R

T
E

R
I
A

L

T
-
2
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
29'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'*

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8'*

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
29'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' BIKE LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' BIKE LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CORRIDOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CORRIDOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE ROOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARRIER

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE ROOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARRIER

AutoCAD SHX Text
C/L

AutoCAD SHX Text
92' - 96' R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
46'

AutoCAD SHX Text
48'

AutoCAD SHX Text
TURN

AutoCAD SHX Text
OR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CORRIDOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE ROOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARRIER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CORRIDOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
(UNDER SIDEWALK)

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
92' R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
96' R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(SEE NOTE 2)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(SEE NOTE 2)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(SEE NOTE 2)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS



C

L

PROPERTY LINE OR

EDGE OF IMPROVED R/W

V
A

R
I
E

S
1
2
'
 
M

I
N

R
I
G

H
T

-
O

F
-
W

A
Y

E
D

G
E

 
O

F
 
P

A
V

E
M

E
N

T

2
"
 
B

A
S

A
L
T

 
(
B

L
A

C
K

 
R

O
C

K
)

C
R

O
S

S
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N

N
O

T
E

:

N
R

 
-
 
N

E
I
G

H
B

O
R

H
O

O
D

 
R

E
S

I
D

E
N

T
I
A

L
 
Z

O
N

E

(
F

O
R

 
N

R
 
Z

O
N

E
)

E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G

R
/
W

 
I
M

P
R

O
V

M
E

N
T

S

F
O

R
 
N

R
 
Z

O
N

I
N

G

T
-
2
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS



STORM DRAINAGE 
 

  

 

January 2019 3 - 1 

C H A P T E R   3 

 
3.000 STORM DRAINAGE 
 
 
 3.010 Public Storm Drainage System Alterations, Extensions and 

Connections 
 

To allow the City to provide timely assistance and advice, anyone 
who wishes to alter, extend or connect to the City’s storm water 
drainage system must conform to the requirements specified in 
Section 13.02.130 of the Shelton Municipal Code, and the current 
edition of the City Comprehensive Plan.  All proposed alterations, 
extensions or connections to the public storm drainage system 
must be reviewed and approved by the City of Shelton.  The 
standards established by this Chapter are intended to represent 
the minimum standards for storm drainage and erosion control 
facilities. 

 
 3.020 Design Standards 
 

The design of storm drainage and/or retention/detention systems 
shall depend on their type and local site conditions.  The design 
elements of storm drainage systems shall conform to City 
standards as set forth herein, and follow current design practice. 
The currently adopted version of the Washington State 
Department of Ecology Storm Water Management Manual for 
Western Washington, and Chapter 13 of the Shelton Municipal 
Code are referenced as a part of these Standards.   
 
A. Swales 
 
Swales will only be allowed where approved by the City.  If 
approved, swales shall be protected by curbing and maintained by 
the abutting property owner(s).  Also, in residential developments 

a homeowners association with covenants shall be formed to 
ensure enforcement of the maintenance requirements. 
 
Swales designed for transporting, storing and/or infiltrating 
stormwater from public roadways shall not be located on a lot 
designated for single-family occupancy.  Easements proposed for 
such swales will not be allowed. This is necessary due to the 
complexity of operating and maintaining the integrity of such 
facilities within fenced and landscaped private property.  
 



STORM DRAINAGE 
 

  

 

January 2019 3 - 2 

B.   Catch Basins 
 
Catch basins shall be located on the upstream side of every 
intersection.  Where there are no intersections, maximum catch 
basin spacing shall be 300-feet on arterials and collectors and 
500-feet on local streets.  All storm drainage pipes shall be 
constructed in a straight line between catch basins and other 
drainage structures. 
 
C.  Retention/Detention Ponds 
 

The maximum depth of a retention or detention pond shall be 4.5-
feet from the pond bottom to the top of the pond slope (not the 
water elevation).  Deeper ponds may be allowed by the City if 
minimum 6-foot wide benches are provided at no more than 4.5 
vertical foot intervals.   

 
  D. Fencing 
 

Fencing for public safety shall be provided.  Surface ponds and 
infiltration basins with a maximum depth of 3.0 feet or less do not 
require fencing, provided the maximum associated interior side 
slope of the pond or basin does not exceed 4H:1V (including baffle 
side slopes).  
 
All ponds and basins with a maximum depth of water greater than 
3 feet will require a 6-foot high perimeter fence unless the 
following condition is met:   
 
1. The facility is designed and constructed with a 10-foot wide 

safety bench for every three feet of depth, and the interior 
side slopes are no greater than 4H;1V (including baffle side 
slopes); or 

 
2. When fencing is required around a facility to be dedicated to 

and/or maintained by the City, the fence shall be chain link. 
The chain link fence fabric shall be galvanized steel core wire 
and coated with bonded polyvinyl.  The polyvinyl coating 
shall not be subject to fading, cracking, peeling, or shrinkage 
and shall be brown, black, or some shade of natural green 
(such as pine, forest, or olive).  The fence manufacturer shall 
provide a 10-year (minimum) warranty on the polyvinyl 
coating. All fence/gate posts and top/brace rails shall be 
powder-coated the same color as the chain link fence fabric. 
The chain link fence shall meet all other applicable 
specifications for Type 3 chain link fence as set forth in the 
WSDOT/APWA Standard Specifications for Road, Bridge, and 



STORM DRAINAGE 
 

  

 

January 2019 3 - 3 

Municipal Construction except that the line posts for Type 3 
fence shall be set in concrete. 

 
 E. Driveway Culverts 

 
Where roadside ditches are approved, all driveway culvert pipes 
shall be corrugated metal pipe (CMP), high-density polyethylene 
(HDPE), concrete or ductile iron with a minimum diameter of 12-
inches, and of sufficient length to provide a minimum 3:1 slope 
from the edge of the driveway to the bottom of the ditch. Culverts 
shall have beveled end sections to match the side slope. 

 
 F.   Release to Public System 

 
All on-site storm drainage shall be infiltrated to the highest degree 
allowed by site conditions.  If drainage outlets (stub-outs) are 
approved by the City to be provided for each individual lot, the 
stub-outs shall conform to the following: 
 
1. The receiving drainage system shall have sufficient capacity 

for the onsite release.  The developer shall provide an 
engineered drainage analysis to verify the capacity. 

 
2. Each drainage outlet shall be suitably located at the lowest 

elevation on the lot, so as to service all future roof 
downspouts and footing drains, driveways, yard drains, and 
any other surface or subsurface drains necessary to render 
the lots suitable for their intended use.  Each outlet shall 
have free-flowing, positive drainage to an approved storm 
conveyance system or to an approved outfall location. 

 
3. Drainage outlets on each lot shall be located with a 5-foot 

long steel reinforcing bar painted fluorescent green and 
driven into the ground.  The stub-out shall visibly extend 
above the surface of the ground and be secured to the 
reinforcing bar. 

 
4. Drainage easements are required for drainage systems 

designed to convey flows through individual lots. 
 

5. The Engineer is responsible for coordinating the locations of 
all stub-out drainage conveyance lines with respect to 
utilities (e.g., water, sewer, electrical power, gas, telephone, 
and television). 

 
6. All individual stub-outs to the main or catch basin shall be 

privately owned and maintained by the lot owner. 



STORM DRAINAGE 
 

  

 

January 2019 3 - 4 

 
 3.030 Storm Water System Rainfall Design Criteria 
 

Where single-event modeling is applicable, the following values are 
to be used as design criteria for stormwater facilities:  
 
 100 Year – 24 Hour Design Event  8.50 inches 
 50 Year – 24 Hour Design Event  7.80 inches 
 25 Year – 24 Hour Design Event  7.05 inches 
 10 Year – 24 Hour Design Event  5.50 inches 
 5 year – 24 Hour Design Event   4.75 inches 

 2 Year – 24 Hour Design Event   4.00 inches 
 6 Month – 24 Hour Design Event  2.56 inches 
 100 Year – 7 Day design Event   16.60 inches 

 
The applicable design storm event shall be used in all calculations 
submitted to the City for review. 
 
All stormwater facilities shall be designed to meet all requirements 
of the currently adopted Department of Ecology Stormwater 
Management Manual for Western Washington as referenced in 
Shelton Municipal Code Title 13, and all Best Management 
Practices. 
 
All stormwater detention, infiltration and conveyance systems 
shall be sized to accommodate the modeling requirements of the 
currently adopted stormwater management manual. 
 
Additionally, whenever an overflow system is proposed, a complete 
downstream analysis will be required to ensure that downstream 
properties or stormwater conveyance systems are not 
compromised.  

 
 A. Infiltration Rate Guidelines 

 
Obtaining a design infiltration rate utilizing a soils 
evaluation and infiltration test is highly desirable for all 
projects utilizing storm water infiltration systems within the 
City.   The largest infiltration rate allowed for design without 
a soils investigation and infiltration test is 6-inches per hour 
(or ten minutes per inch).  This rate may be allowed only in 
locations where the City has sufficient knowledge of existing 
soils in the vicinity of the project, and where infiltration 
systems in that location have been performing as designed 
with this design infiltration rate. 
 



STORM DRAINAGE 
 

  

 

January 2019 3 - 5 

An adequate soils investigation for designing infiltration 
systems includes a soils exploration and an infiltration test 
at the depth of the bottom of the proposed infiltration 
system. The exploration shall be a minimum of three feet 
below the elevation of the bottom of the proposed infiltration 
system to determine if high groundwater or impermeable soil 
layers will impede vertical movement of the stormwater 
unless otherwise approved by the City. The largest 
infiltration rate allowed for design with a soils investigation 
and infiltration test is ten-inches per hour (or six-minutes 
per inch). 

 
In all cases, an adequate factor of safety shall be utilized 
when determining a design infiltration rate to compensate 
for soil clogging and cementation, high groundwater levels, 
and vertical separation between the bottom of the infiltration 
system and impermeable soil layers. Additionally, all 
infiltration rates utilized in the design shall be reviewed and 
approved by the City.  It is recommended that the infiltration 
rate proposed for the design of infiltration systems be 
approved by the City prior to the start of design to avoid 
unnecessary revisions that could prove costly for the 
applicant and cause delays in the progress of the project. 

 
Storm drain pipe within a public right-of-way or easement 
shall be sized to carry the maximum anticipated runoff for a 
100-Year 24-Hour Storm Event from the contributing area.  
The minimum size for mains and laterals shall be eight 
inches in diameter, or as otherwise approved by the City.  
Nothing shall preclude the City from requiring the 
installation of a larger-sized storm drain if the City 
determines a larger size is needed to serve adequate areas or 
for future service.  When the property discharges to the 
public storm drainage system, installation of appropriately 
sized storm drains across the face of the property may be 
required by the City where applicable. 
 
Storm drain pipe shall meet the requirements of Section 7-
04.2 of the WSDOT Standard Specifications. 

 
All storm drainage systems are required to be air testable in 
conformance with Section 7-04.3(1) of the WSDOT Standard 
Specifications.  Special structures, oil/water separators and 
outlet controls shall be installed and tested per the approved 
plans and manufacturer’s recommendations. 

 



STORM DRAINAGE 
 

  

 

January 2019 3 - 6 

The minimum cover for storm drain pipe shall be two feet, or 
as otherwise approved by the City.  Where the minimum 
depth includes the roadway section, structural calculations 
or manufacturer’s specifications for the appropriate H-
loading shall be submitted along with the plans.  All drain 
pipe specified where the cover is two feet or less shall be 
HDPE, concrete or ductile iron of a class determined by the 
structural calculations or manufacturer’s specifications. 
 
Where connections require field verifications, connection 
points will be exposed by the contractor and fittings verified 

two business days prior to beginning work. 
 
 3.040 Staking 
 
  All surveying and staking shall be performed by a Professional 

Land Surveyor, licensed within the State of Washington. A 
preconstruction meeting shall be held with the City prior to 
commencing staking.  All construction staking shall be inspected 
by the City prior to construction. 

 
  The minimum staking of stormwater lines shall be as follows, 

unless otherwise directed by the City.  
 
  A. Stake centerline alignment every 50 feet with cut or fill to 

invert of pipe. 
 
  B. Stake location of all catch basins, manholes and other 

structures for grade and alignment with cut or fill to rim and 
invert of all pipes. Two offsets to the centerline of the 
structures shall be provided. 

 
  C. Grade stake, or slope stake as appropriate, at intervals 

sufficient to control the location, size and depth of 
retention/detention facilities. 

 
  D. Stake finished grade of all stormwater features, including, but 

not limited to catch basin/manhole rim elevations, overflow 
structures, weirs and invert elevations of all pipes in catch 
basins, manholes, and those pipes that daylight. 

 
 3.050  Trench Excavation  
 

See Chapter Two, Section 2.200 for requirements regarding trench 
excavation.   

 
 3.060 Backfilling 



STORM DRAINAGE 
 

  

 

January 2019 3 - 7 

 
  See Chapter Two, Section 2.200 for requirements regarding 

backfilling.  
 
 3.070 Street Patching and Restoration 
 

See Chapter Two, Sections 2.190 and 2.200 for requirements 
regarding street patching and trench restoration.   

  
 3.080 Maintenance 
 

The City shall maintain all stormwater drainage elements such as 
catch basins, oil water separators, and conveyance systems 
located within the public rights-of-way. 
 
All private stormwater systems are required to have an Operations 
and Maintenance Manual per Department of Ecology’s 
requirements.  The manual must be submitted to the City for 
review prior to construction authorization.  The development's 
owners’ association shall be responsible for maintaining the on-
site stormwater facilities including, but not limited to, on-site 
retention/detention ponds, catch basins, oil-water separators and 
conveyance system(s).  
 
Each property shall also submit a Stormwater Maintenance 
Agreement for City approval that addresses the long-term 
maintenance of its system.  Property owners are responsible for 
conducting inspections and maintenance of their system each 
year. 

 
 3.090 Storm Drainage Construction General Notes 
 

In addition to the General Construction Notes in Chapter One, the 
Engineer shall include the following notes on any plans dealing 
with the construction, alterations, extensions or connections to 
the storm drainage system  
 
A. All storm mains, structures, conveyance systems and 

retention/detention areas shall be staked for grade and 
alignment prior to the start of construction. 

 
B. All storm drainage systems are required to be air tested in 

conformance with Section 7-04.3(1) of the WSDOT Standard 
Specifications. Special structures, oil/water separators and 
outlet controls shall be installed and tested per the approved 
plans and manufacturer’s recommendations.   

   



STORM DRAINAGE 
 

  

 

January 2019 3 - 8 

L I S T  O F  D R A W I N G S  

C H A P T E R  3  S T O R M  D R A I N A G E  
 
 
Title Drawing 
Inlet Structure  .....................................................................................  SD-01 
Catch Basin Type 1L  ............................................................................  SD-02 
Catch Basin Type 1  ..............................................................................  SD-03 
Sheet 1 of 2 ~ Combination Inlet (CB Type 1 Shown) ………………… .....  SD-04 
Sheet 2 of 2 ~ Combination Inlet Notes) .……………………………………… SD-04 

Catch Basin Type 2, 48" & 54"  .............................................................  SD-05 
Catch Basin Type 2, 72" & 96"  .............................................................  SD-06 
Flow Restrictor Catch Basin .................................................................  SD-07 
Floatable Material Separator  ................................................................  SD-08 
Typical Restrictor Installation  ..............................................................  SD-09 
East Jordan Hinged CB Type 2 Cover & Frame for Paved Areas ............  SD-10 
Manhole Ring and Cover for Unpaved Areas………………………………….. SD-10A 
Overflow Structure Detail  ....................................................................  SD-11 
Square Beehive Drain Grate  ................................................................  SD-12 
CB Type 2 w/Bird Cage Trash Rack  .....................................................  SD-13 
Debris Barrier Detail ………………………………………………………………  SD-14 
Frame for Grate or Solid Cover  ............................................................  SD-15 
Recessed Gutter Detail  ........................................................................  SD-16 
Lift Gate Assembly & Secondary Orifice Details  ...................................  SD-17 
Biofilter Swale Detail ............................................................................  SD-18 
Manhole Surface Restoration within Right-of-Way  ...............................  SD-19 
 Infiltration Gallery  ..............................................................................  SD-20 
Alternate 1 ~ Roof Drain Drywell  ..........................................................  SD-21 
Alternate 2 ~ Roof Drain Drywell  ..........................................................  SD-22 
This Page Intentionally Left Blank  ........................................................  SD-23 
This Page Intentionally Left Blank  ........................................................  SD-24 
 
 



SD-01

SD-02

SD-03

SD-04

SD-05

SD-06

SD-07

SD-08

INLET STRUCTURE

CATCH BASIN  TYPE 1L

CATCH BASIN  TYPE 1

CATCH BASIN  TYPE 2  (48" & 54")

CATCH BASIN  TYPE 2  (72" & 96")

FLOW RESTRICTOR CATCH BASIN

FLOATABLE MATERIAL SEPARATOR

TYPICAL RESTRICTOR INSTALLATIONSD-09

SD-10

SD-11

SD-12

SD-13

SD-14

SD-15

SD-16

EAST JORDAN HINGED CB TYPE 2 COVER & FRAME FOR PAVED AREAS

OVERFLOW STRUCTURE DETAIL

SQUARE BEEHIVE DRAIN GRATE

CATCH BASIN  TYPE 2  W/ BIRD CAGE TRASH RACK

DEBRIS BARRIER DETAIL

FRAME FOR GRATE OR SOLID COVER

RECESSED GUTTER DETAIL

SD-17

BIOFILTER SWALE 

STORM DRAINAGE DETAILS

TABLE OF CONTENTS

SD-18

SD-19

ALT. #2 ~ ROOF DRAIN DRYWELL

SD-20 INFILTRATION GALLERY

SD-21

SD-22

ALT. #1 ~ ROOF DRAIN DRYWELL

Sht. 1 of 2 ~ COMBINATION INLET (CB TYPE 1 SHOWN) 

MANHOLE  SURFACE RESTORATION WITHIN THE RIGHT-OF-WAY

Sht. 2 of 2 ~ COMBINATION INLET NOTES

LIFT GATE ASSEMBLY & SECONDARY ORIFICE DETAILS

(r.4)

SD-23

SD-24

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

SD-10A MANHOLE RING AND COVER for UNPAVED AREAS



ADJUSTMENT SECTION GRADE RING

NOTES:

12" ADJUSTMENT SECTION

GRADE RINGS 

REQUIRED:

INLET

STRUCTURE

SD-01

AutoCAD SHX Text
20"

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" TO 12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR PATCHING VOIDS AROUND PIPES, PICKING EYE HOLES, BETWEEN SECTIONS &  RISERS, AND FRAMES, USE: QUIKRETE  NON-SHRINK  PRECISION GROUT-PRODUCT  NO. 1585-00 OR QUIKCRETE  COMMERCIAL GRADE FASTSET DOT MIX PRODUCT NO. 1244-56 -81. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
MORTAR MUST BE MIXED BY A MECHANICAL DEVICE, SUCH AS DRILL & PADDLE MIXER. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOLLOW ALL INSTRUCTIONS PROVIDED BY QUIKRETE  CO. SPECIFIC TO PRODUCT USED REGARDING MIXING DURATION, TEMPERATURE, ETC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRAME & GRATE PER CURRENT WSDOT STD. PLANS. VERIFY TYPE W/ CITY ENGINEER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" OR 12" CONCRETE RISER SECTION CLASS 4000 CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-#3 BAR HOOP FOR 12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
34"

AutoCAD SHX Text
20"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
30"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-#3 BAR HOOP FOR 6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRECAST CONCRETE BASE SECTION W/MAX. OF ONE 17" KNOCKOUT PER SIDE ENTRANCE ANGLE TO BE LIMITED BY KNOCKOUTS CLASS 4000 CONCRETE PIPE OUTER DIAMETER PLUS INLET WALL THICKNESS SHALL NOT EXCEED 17".

AutoCAD SHX Text
26" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
22" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRADE RINGS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
16" MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
25"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJUSTMENT SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
A MIN. OF 4" RISER DEPTH IS REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
(DEPTH)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS



PRECAST BASE SECTION

FRAME AND GRATE

NOTES:

REQUIRED:

2"-6" ADJUSTMENT SECTION

GRADE RINGS 

12" ADJUSTMENT SECTION

GRADE RINGS

CATCH BASIN

TYPE 1L

SD-02

AutoCAD SHX Text
28"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN.(TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
32"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
44"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
#3 BAR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
#3 BAR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
#3 BAR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(MEASUREMENT AT THE

AutoCAD SHX Text
 TOP OF THE BASE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
40"

AutoCAD SHX Text
20"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
36"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-#3 BAR HOOP FOR 12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
(SEE STANDARD PLANS FOR DETAILS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
34"

AutoCAD SHX Text
20"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
30"

AutoCAD SHX Text
EACH SIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EACH CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-#3 BAR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-#3 BAR HOOP FOR 6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASINS TO BE CONSTRUCTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ASTM

AutoCAD SHX Text
C 478 (AASHTO M 199) & ASTM C 890 UNLESS OTHERWISE SHOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ON PLANS OR NOTED IN THE STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
KNOCKOUT OR CUTOUT HOLE SIZE IS EQUAL TO PIPE OUTER DIAMETER

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLUS CATCH BASIN WALL THICKNESS. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE BOTTOM OF THE PRECAST CATCH BASIN MAY BE

AutoCAD SHX Text
POURED ROUNDED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRAME & GRATE MAY BE INSTALLED WITH FLANGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOWN OR CAST INTO RISER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRECAST BASES SHALL BE FURNISHED W/CUTOUTS OR KNOCKOUTS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
KNOCKOUTS SHALL HAVE A WALL THICKNESS OF 2" MINIMUM.

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS AN ACCEPTABLE ALTERNATE TO REBAR, WELDED WIRE FABRIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAVING A MINIMUM AREA OF 0.12 SQUARE INCHES PER FOOT MAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BE USED.  WELDED WIRE FABRIC SHALL COMPLY TO ASTM A 497

AutoCAD SHX Text
(AASHTO M 221).  WIRE FABRIC SHALL NOT BE PLACED IN THE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
KNOCKOUTS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
KNOCKOUTS MAY BE IN ALL 4 SIDES WITH MAXIMUM DIAMETER OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
28".  KNOCKOUTS MAY BE EITHER ROUND OR "D" SHAPE.  PIPE TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
BE INSTALLED IN FACTORY SUPPLIED KNOCKOUTS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE TAPER ON THE SIDES OF THE PRECAST BASE SECTION AND 

AutoCAD SHX Text
RISER SECTION SHALL NOT EXCEED 1/2"/FT..

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EACH WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJUSTMENT SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRADE RINGS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
16" MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN FRAME AND GRATE SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS AND MEET THE STRENGTH REQUIREMENTS OF FEDERAL SPECIFICATION RR-F-62ID.  MATING SURFACES SHALL BE FINISHED TO ASSURE NON- ROCKING FIT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR PATCHING VOIDS AROUND PIPES & HOLES FOR PICKING EYES, BETWEEN SECTIONS & RISERS, AND FRAMES, USE: QUIKRETE  NON-SHRINK  PRECISION GROUT-PRODUCT  NO. 1585-00 OR QUIKCRETE  COMMERCIAL GRADE FASTSET DOT MIX PRODUCT NO. 1244-56 -81. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
MORTAR MUST BE MIXED BY A MECHANICAL DEVICE, SUCH AS DRILL & PADDLE MIXER. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOLLOW ALL INSTRUCTIONS PROVIDED BY QUIKRETE  CO. SPECIFIC TO PRODUCT USED REGARDING MIXING DURATION, TEMPERATURE, ETC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A MIN. OF 4" DEPTH OF RISER REQUIRED. ANY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEVIATION MUST BE APPROVED BY CITY ENGINEER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEPTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
R



PRECAST BASE SECTION

FRAME AND GRATE

NOTES:

REQUIRED:

12" ADJUSTMENT SECTION GRADE RING

4"-6" ADJUSTMENT SECTION GRADE RING

CATCH BASIN

TYPE 1

SD-03

AutoCAD SHX Text
22"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN.(TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
26"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
44"

AutoCAD SHX Text
21"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
#3 BAR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
#3 BAR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
#3 BAR EACH WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
(MEASUREMENT AT THE

AutoCAD SHX Text
 TOP OF THE BASE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
34"

AutoCAD SHX Text
20"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
30"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-#3 BAR HOOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
(SEE STANDARD PLAN FOR DETAILS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
34"

AutoCAD SHX Text
20"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
30"

AutoCAD SHX Text
EACH SIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EACH CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-#3 BAR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJUSTMENT SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRADE RINGS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
16" MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
IF WIRE MESH IS USED AS AN ALTERNATE TO REBAR, IT SHALL NOT BE PLACED IN KNOCKOUTS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE BOTTOM OF THE PRECAST BASE SECTION SHALL BE MINIMUM 4" THICK AND MAY BE ROUNDED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
KNOCKOUTS MAY BE ON ALL FOUR SIDES, EITHER ROUND OR "D" SHAPE.  PIPE TO BE INSTALLED IN FACTORY SUPPLIED KNOCKOUTS. HOLE SIZE SHALL BE EQUAL TO PIPE OUTER DIAMETER PLUS CATCH BASIN WALL THICKNESS, 20" MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE MAXIMUM DEPTH FROM THE FINISHED GRADE TO THE PIPE INVERT IS 5'-0".

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE TAPER ON THE SIDES OF THE PRECAST BASE SECTION AND RISER SECTION SHALL NOT EXCEED 4%.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRAME AND GRATE MAY BE INSTALLED WITH FLANGE DOWN OR CAST INTO RISER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR PATCHING VOIDS AROUND PIPES, BETWEEN SECTIONS &  RISERS, AND FRAMES, USE: QUIKRETE  NON-SHRINK  PRECISION GROUT-PRODUCT  NO. 1585-00 OR QUIKCRETE  COMMERCIAL GRADE FASTSET DOT MIX PRODUCT NO. 1244-56 -81. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
MORTAR MUST BE MIXED BY A MECHANICAL DEVICE, SUCH AS DRILL & PADDLE MIXER. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOLLOW ALL INSTRUCTIONS PROVIDED BY QUIKRETE CO. SPECIFIC TO PRODUCT USED REGARDING MIXING DURATION, TEMPERATURE, ETC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A MIN. OF 4" DEPTH OF RISER REQUIRED. ANY DEVIATION MUST BE APPROVED BY CITY ENGINEER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY ENGINEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS



F
R

A
M

E
 
D

E
T

A
I
L

T
O

P
 
V

I
E

W

S
E

C
T

I
O

N

A

D
E

T
A

I
L

 
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N

A

C
O

M
B

I
N

A
T

I
O

N
 
I
N

L
E

T

I
S

O
M

E
T

R
I
C

 
V

I
E

W

F
R

A
M

E
,
 
H

O
O

D
 
&

 
V

A
N

E
D

 
G

R
A

T
E

A

S
E

E
 
A

D
D

I
T

I
O

N
A

L
 
N

O
T

E
S

 
F

O
R

 
C

O
M

B
I
N

A
T

I
O

N
 
I
N

L
E

T
 
O

N
 
S

H
T

.
 
2

 
O

F
 
2

 
O

F
 
D

E
T

A
I
L

 
S

D
-
0

4

S
H

T
 
1
 
 
O

F
 
 
2

C
O

M
B

I
N

A
T

I
O

N
 
I
N

L
E

T

(
C

B
 
T

Y
P

E
 
1
 
S

H
O

W
N

)

S
D

-
0
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
34"

AutoCAD SHX Text
30"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF GRATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRAME

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAFETY BAR/ DEBRIS GUARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8"%%C MIN. STEEL ROD

AutoCAD SHX Text
(SEE NOTE 2)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE NOTE 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
OPENING HT. = 4" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
0 TO 1" CLR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
±1/2 OFOPENING HT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
34" (WIDE SIDE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN TYPE 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
40" (WIDE SIDE) CATCH BASIN TYPE 1L

AutoCAD SHX Text
24¼"

AutoCAD SHX Text
20¼"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1½" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOLE OR SLOT FOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
ATTACHING HOOD (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE NOTE 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE NOTE 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRAME

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
20" x 24" VANED GRATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAFETY BAR/ DEBRIS GUARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB OR CURB & GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH TOP OF HOOD TO TOP OF CURB (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FACE OF 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE NOTE 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE NOTE 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS



DESIGN ASSUMPTIONS

PRECAST BASE JOINT

REQUIRED:

NOTES:

SPECIAL NOTES:

48" & 54"

SD-05

CATCH BASIN: TYPE 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
28" MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
16"MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HANDHOLDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLAT SLAB COVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEPS & LADDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
20"x24" OR

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" DIA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
48" OR 54"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
"B" 12' MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MORTAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
48" DIA.-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
54" DIA.-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-0" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEPARATE CAST IN PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OR SEPARATE PRECAST BASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REINFORCING STEEL (FOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEPARATE BASE ONLY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.23 SQ IN/FT IN EACH

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIRECTION FOR 48" DIA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.19 SQ IN/FT IN EACH

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIRECTION FOR 54" DIA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
"O" RING

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BEARING VALUE EQUALS

AutoCAD SHX Text
3300#/FT  (MIN.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJUSTMENT SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRADE RINGS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASINS TO BE CONSTRUCTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ASTM

AutoCAD SHX Text
C 478 (AASHTO M 199) & ASTM C 890 UNLESS OTHERWISE SHOWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ON PLANS OR NOTED IN THE STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HANDHOLDS IN RISER OR ADJUSTMENT SECTION SHALL HAVE 3" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEARANCE.  STEPS IN CATCH BASIN SHALL HAVE 6" MIN. CLEAR-

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANCE. NO STEPS ARE REQUIRED WHEN "B" IS 4' OR LESS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL REINFORCED CAST IN PLACE CONCRETE SHALL BE CLASS A.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL PRECAST CONCRETE SHALL OBTAIN 4,000 PSI @ 28 DAYS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.

AutoCAD SHX Text
KNOCKOUT OR CUTOUT HOLE SIZE IS EQUAL TO PIPE OUTER DIAMETER PLUS CATCH BASIN WALL THICKNESS.  MAX. HOLE SIZE IS 36" FOR 48" CATCH BASIN, 42" FOR 54" CATCH BASIN.  MIN. DISTANCE BETWEEN HOLES IS 8".

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL BASE REINFORCING STEEL SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM YIELD STRENGTH OF 60,000 PSI AND BE PLACED IN THE UPPER HALF OF THE BASE WITH 1" MINIMUM CLEARANCE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE BOTTOM OF THE PRECAST CATCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
BASIN MAY BE POURED ROUNDED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR DETAILS SHOWING LADDER, STEPS HANDRAIL & TOP SLAB SEE STANDARD PLAN "MISCELLANEOUS CATCH BASIN DETAILS".

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRAME & GRATE MAY BE INSTALLED WITH FLANGE DOWN OR CAST INTO RISER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RING & COVER-

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR RING & COVER SEE DETAIL SD-10 & SD-10A. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE DETAIL SD-10 & SD-10A

AutoCAD SHX Text
REINFORCING STEEL (FOR PRECAST BASE  W/INTERGAL RISER) 0.15 SQ IN/FT IN EACH DIRECTION FOR 48" DIA. 0.19 SQ IN/FT IN EACH DIRECTION FOR 54" DIA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRECAST BASE  W/INTERGAL RISER

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL BACKFILL FOR PIPE BEDDING.  6" MIN. COMPACTED DEPTH.  FOR PRECAST BASES ONLY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR PATCHING PICKING EYES HOLES, HOLES AROUND PIPES, BETWEEN SECTIONS &  RISERS, AND FRAMES, USE: QUIKRETE  NON-SHRINK  PRECISION GROUT-PRODUCT  NO. 1585-00 OR QUIKCRETE  COMMERCIAL GRADE FASTSET DOT MIX PRODUCT NO. 1244-56 -81. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
MORTAR MUST BE MIXED BY A MECHANICAL DEVICE, SUCH AS DRILL & PADDLE MIXER. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOLLOW ALL INSTRUCTIONS PROVIDED BY MANUFACTURER SPECIFIC TO PRODUCT USED REGARDING MIXING DURATION, TEMPERATURE, ETC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
MORTAR - SEE SPECIAL NOTES, THIS SHT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS



DESIGN ASSUMPTIONS

NOTES:

PRECAST BASE JOINT

SPECIAL NOTES:

72" & 96"

SD-06

CATCH BASIN: TYPE 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
28" MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
16"MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HANDHOLDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLAT SLAB COVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEPS & LADDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
20"x24" OR

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" DIA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
72" OR 96"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
"B" 12' MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MORTAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
72" DIA.-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
96" DIA.-12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-0" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEPARATE CAST IN PLACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OR SEPARATE PRECAST BASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REINFORCING STEEL (FOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEPARATE BASE ONLY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.35 SQ IN/FT IN EACH

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIRECTION FOR 72" DIA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.39 SQ IN/FT IN EACH

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIRECTION FOR 96" DIA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
"O" RING

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL BEARING VALUE EQUALS

AutoCAD SHX Text
3300#/FT  (MIN)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASINS TO BE CONSTRUCTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ASTM C 478 (AASHTO M 199) & ASTM C 890 UNLESS OTHERWISE SHOWN ON PLANS OR NOTED IN THE STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HANDHOLDS IN RISER OR ADJUSTMENT SECTION SHALL HAVE 3" MIN. CLEARANCE.  STEPS IN CATCH BASIN SHALL HAVE 6" MIN.  CLEARANCE. NO STEPS ARE REQUIRED WHEN "B" IS 4' OR LESS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRECAST BASES SHALL BE FURNISHED W/CUTOUTS OR KNOCKOUTS. KNOCKOUTS SHALL HAVE A WALL THICKNESS OF 2" MINIMUM.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL REINFORCED CAST IN PLACE CONCRETE SHALL BE CLASS A. ALL PRECAST CONCRETE SHALL OBTAIN 4,000 PSI @ 28 DAYS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
KNOCKOUT OR CUTOUT HOLE SIZE IS EQUAL TO PIPE OUTER DIAMETER PLUS CATCH BASIN WALL THICKNESS.  MAX. HOLE SIZE IS 36" FOR 48" CATCH BASIN, 42" FOR 54" CATCH BASIN.  MIN. DISTANCE BETWEEN HOLES IS 8".

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL BASE REINFORCING STEEL SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM YIELD STRENGTH OF 60,000 PSI AND BE PLACED IN THE UPPER HALF OF THE BASE WITH 1" MINIMUM CLEARANCE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRAME & GRATE MAY BE INSTALLED WITH FLANGE DOWN OR CAST INTO RISER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR DETAILS SHOWING LADDER, STEPS HANDRAIL & TOP SLAB SEE STANDARD PLAN "MISCELLANEOUS CATCH BASIN DETAILS".

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR DETAILS SHOWING FRAME AND GRATE, RING AND COVER SEE STANDARD PLAN "METAL FRAME & GRATE FOR CATCH BASIN & INLET.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE BOTTOM OF THE PRECAST CATCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
BASIN MAY BE POURED ROUNDED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RING & COVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE DETAIL SD-10 & SD-10A.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR RING & COVER SEE DETAIL SD-18 & SD-19.  FRAME & GRATE SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS AND MEET THE STRENGTH REQUIREMENTS OF FEDERAL SPECIFICATION RR-F-62ID.  MATING SURFACES SHALL BE FINISHED TO ASSURE NON-ROCKING FIT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REINFORCING STEEL (FOR PRECAST BASE  W/INTERGAL RISER) 0.24 SQ IN/FT IN EACH DIRECTION FOR 72" DIA. 0.29 SQ IN/FT IN EACH DIRECTION FOR 96" DIA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL BACKFILL FOR PIPE BEDDING.  6" MIN. COMPACTED DEPTH.  FOR PRECAST BASES ONLY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRECAST BASE W/INTERGAL RISER

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR PATCHING HOLES AROUND PIPES, PICKING EYE HOLES, BETWEEN SECTIONS & RISERS, AND FRAMES, USE: QUIKRETE  NON-SHRINK  PRECISION GROUT-PRODUCT  NO. 1585-00 OR QUIKCRETE  COMMERCIAL GRADE FASTSET DOT MIX PRODUCT NO. 1244-56 -81. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
MORTAR MUST BE MIXED BY A MECHANICAL DEVICE, SUCH AS DRILL & PADDLE MIXER. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOLLOW ALL INSTRUCTIONS PROVIDED BY QUIKRETE  CO. SPECIFIC TO PRODUCT USED REGARDING MIXING DURATION, TEMPERATURE, ETC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
MORTAR -SEE SPECIAL NOTES, THIS SHT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(4" MIN. DEPTH)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RISER/ ADJUSTMENT SECTION(S)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS



NOTES:

SPECIAL NOTES:

C
I ON

N

OTGNIHS

A
W

TY
of SHELT

C
I ON

N

OTGNIHS

A
W

TY
of SHELT

CATCH BASIN

SD-07

FLOW RESTRICTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
INVERT EL= 

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESTRICTOR PLATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
W/ DRILLED ORIFICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
OUTLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
INVERT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL=

AutoCAD SHX Text
54"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.) METAL PARTS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
   B) IF GALVANIZED STEEL PIPE,

AutoCAD SHX Text
     HAVE ASPHALT TREATMENT 1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RING & COVER SOLID COVER MARKED "STORM" W/ LOCKING BOLTS, UNLESS OTHERWISE APPROVED BY ENGINEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
C) OTHER DEVICE APPROVED BY  ENGINEER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
B) LIFT GATE, #C/C/I-LG. CASCADE CULVERT INC. OR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEANOUT GATE  A) SHEAR GATE, IRON BODY BRONZE MD. OLYMPIC FADDY. STD. OR

AutoCAD SHX Text
STD. GAL. STEEL OR ALUMINUM LADDER/STEPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE SUPPORT

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERFLOW ELEVATION TO PROVIDE DETENTION AND OIL SEPARATION  EL= 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHAIN-200# CAPACITY SLACK WHEN GATE IS DOWN.  FASTEN CHAIN TO FRAME.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRAME & LADDER OR STEPS OFFSET.  SEE PLAN SHEET. FRAME & GRATE ELEVATION PER PLANS. RIM= 

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.) STRUCTURE SHALL BE A TYPE     2 CATCH BASIN MINIMUM.

AutoCAD SHX Text
   C) FRAME IS CLEAR OF        CURB.

AutoCAD SHX Text
   B) CLIMBDOWN SPACE IS        CLEAR OF RISER &        CLEANOUT GATE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
   A) CLEANOUT GATE IS       VISIBLE FROM TOP. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.) FRAME & LADDER OR      STEPS OFFSET SO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.) PIPE SIZES &      SLOPES,      SEE PLANS. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.) OUTLET CAPACITY      NOT LESS     THAN COMBINED     INLETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
   A) CORROSION RESISTANT OR        GALVANIZED OR        ALUMINIZED TYPE 2,

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR PATCHING PICKING EYES HOLES, HOLES AROUND PIPES, BETWEEN SECTIONS &  RISERS,  AND FRAMES, USE: QUIKRETE  NON-SHRINK  PRECISION GROUT-PRODUCT  NO. 1585-00  OR QUIKCRETE  COMMERCIAL  GRADE FASTSET DOT MIX  PRODUCT NO. 1244-56 -81. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
MORTAR MUST BE MIXED BY A MECHANICAL DEVICE, SUCH AS DRILL & PADDLE MIXER. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOLLOW ALL INSTRUCTIONS PROVIDED BY MANUFACTURER SPECIFIC TO PRODUCT USED REGARDING MIXING DURATION, TEMPERATURE, ETC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS



NOTES:

C
I ON

N

OTGNIHS

A
W

TY
of SHELT

C
I ON

N

OTGNIHS

A
W

TY
of SHELT

SEPARATOR

SD-08

FLOATABLE MATERIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
FROM

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
32"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" OR 12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
MORTAR (SEE NOTE) OR

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" OR 8" PVC PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" OR 8" PVC PLUG

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" OR 8" PVC

AutoCAD SHX Text
FACTORY TEE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" VENT HOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" OR 8" PVC PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE 1L CATCH BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
KOR-N-SEAL BOOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
IF REQUIRED BY CITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR PATCHING VOIDS AROUND PIPES, PICKING EYE HOLES, BETWEEN SECTIONS &  RISERS, AND FRAMES, USE: QUIKRETE  NON-SHRINK  PRECISION GROUT-PRODUCT  NO. 1585-00 OR QUIKCRETE  COMMERCIAL GRADE FASTSET DOT MIX PRODUCT NO. 1244-56 -81. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
MORTAR MUST BE MIXED BY A MECHANICAL DEVICE, SUCH AS DRILL & PADDLE MIXER. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOLLOW ALL INSTRUCTIONS PROVIDED BY QUIKRETE  CO. SPECIFIC TO PRODUCT USED REGARDING MIXING DURATION, TEMPERATURE, ETC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS



TYPICAL RESTRICTOR

INSTALLATION

SD-09

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALUM. LIFT GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE C.O. SHELTON

AutoCAD SHX Text
STD. PLAN D-09

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERFLOW IE EL=

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORIFICE DIA.=

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL=

AutoCAD SHX Text
INVERT EL=

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORIFICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECONDARY ORIFICES

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE C.O. SHELTON

AutoCAD SHX Text
STD. PLAN D-09.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
OUTLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEANING

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE SIZE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANGLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" & SMALLER

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" ID

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" OPENING

AutoCAD SHX Text
42

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" & LARGER

AutoCAD SHX Text
10" ID

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" OPENING

AutoCAD SHX Text
34

AutoCAD SHX Text
ITEM

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIZE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERFLOW IE EL=

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORIFICE DIA.=

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERFLOW IE EL=

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORIFICE DIA.=

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRIMARY 

AutoCAD SHX Text
INVERT

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESTRICTOR UNIT SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED OF CORRUGATED ALUMINUM PIPE (CAP) ALCLAD 3004-H34, AASHTO M 197-82 (1986)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EACH ORIFICE TO BE SIZED TO RELEASE 25% OF ALLOWABLE Q UNDER MAXIMUM HEAD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS



C

I

O

N

N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

C

I

O

N

N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

E
A

S
T

 
J
O

R
D

A
N

 
C

B

F
O

R
 
P

A
V

E
D

 
A

R
E

A
S

S
D

-
1

0

T
Y

P
E

 
2
 
C

O
V

E
R

 
&

 
F

R
A

M
E

I
S

O
M

E
T

R
I
C

 
V

I
E

W

N
O

T
E

S
:

T
O

P
 
V

I
E

W

E
L
E

V
A

T
I
O

N
 
V

I
E

W

P
L
A

N
 
V

I
E

W

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN TYPE 2 COVER AND FRAME SHALL BE CALLED EAST JORDAN.  COVER  AND FRAME SHALL BE MANUFACTURED FROM DUCTILE IRON.  HINGE MUST BE PERPENDICULAR TO FLOW OF TRAFFIC.  SEE PLAN VIEW.  

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVERS SHALL HAVE LOCKING ATTACHMENT.  COVERS SHALL BE HINGED AND INCORPORATE A 90 DEGREE BLOCKING SYSTEM TO PREVENT  ACCIDENTAL CLOSURE.  COVERS SHALL BE ONE MAN OPERABLE USING STANDARD TOOLS AND  SHALL BE CAPABLE OF WITHSTANDING A TEST LOAD OF 80,000 LBS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRAMES SHALL BE CIRCULAR, INCORPORATE A SEATING RING AND A FITTED PLUG IN THE  HINGE HOUSING, AND BE AVAILABLE IN A 24 INCH CLEAR OPENING.  THE FRAME DEPTH  SHALL NOT EXCEED 4 INCHES, AND THE FLANGE SHALL INCORPORATE BEDDING SLOTS, BOLT  HOLES, AND LIFTING EYES.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL COMPONENTS SHALL BE BLACK COATED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR CATCH BASIN TYPE 2 INSTALLATION OUTSIDE OF PAVED AREAS SEE C.O. SHELTON STD. DETAIL SD-10A.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" HINGED MANHOLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVER AND FRAME

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
MANHOLE FRAME

AutoCAD SHX Text
MANHOLE LID

AutoCAD SHX Text
DUCTILE IRON

AutoCAD SHX Text
DUCTILE IRON

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIFTING EYE

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEY HOLES

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIFTING EYES

AutoCAD SHX Text
HINGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIFTING EYE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HINGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCKING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ATTACHMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
HINGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRAME & COVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EP

AutoCAD SHX Text
EP

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRAFFIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIRECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
 26 3/16"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
 34"

AutoCAD SHX Text
 27 11/16"

AutoCAD SHX Text
 24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
 26 1/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 9/16"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.)



A

B

B

B
O

L
T

-
D

O
W

N
 
/
 
W

A
T

E
R

T
I
G

H
T

T
Y

P
E

 
2

S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

T
Y

P
E

 
1

B

C
O

V
E

R
 
P

L
A

N
 

R
I
N

G
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
A

A

S
K

I
D

 
G

R
O

O
V

E
 
P

A
T

T
E

R
N

D
E

T
A

I
L

I
S

O
M

E
T

R
I
C

 
V

I
E

W

B
O

L
T

-
D

O
W

N
 
/
 
W

A
T

E
R

T
I
G

H
T

D
E

T
A

I
L
 
"
B

"

1 1/4"

B
L

I
N

D
 
P

I
C

K
 
N

O
T

C
H

D
E

T
A

I
L
 
"
A

"

C
O

V
E

R
 
P

L
A

N
 

C
O

V
E

R
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N

C
O

V
E

R
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N

R
I
N

G
 
P

L
A

N
 

R
I
N

G
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N

N
O

T
E

S

×
 

A

R
I
N

G
 
P

L
A

N
 

S

T

O

R

M

S
E

E
 
D

E
T

A
I
L
 
S

D
-
1
9
 
F

O
R

A
D

D
I
T

I
O

N
A

L
 
R

E
Q

U
I
R

E
M

E
N

T
S

C

I

O

N

N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

C

I

O

N

N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

C
A

T
C

H
 
B

A
S

I
N

 
T

Y
P

E
 
2

F
O

R
 
U

N
P

A
V

E
D

 
A

R
E

A
S

S
D

-
1

0
A

R
I
N

G
 
A

N
D

 
C

O
V

E
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
~

AutoCAD SHX Text
~

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
27 5/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
26 3/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
26 3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
34 1/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 7/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRILL AND TAP 5/8" - 11NC HOLE FOR 1 1/2" x 5/8" STAINLESS STEEL SOCKET HEAD CAP SCREW (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPECIFY

AutoCAD SHX Text
(SEE NOTE 7)

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE DETAIL "A"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE DETAIL "A"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SKID GROOVE PATTERN ~  SEE DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASHER (SEE NOTES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 7/16"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 5/16"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4" DOVETAIL GROOVE WITH NEOPRENE GASKET (SEE NOTES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 3/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
 5/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 3/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3 1/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
LETTERING

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE DETAIL "A"

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOTTOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOTTOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
27 5/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
26 3/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
26 3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
34 1/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 1/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE DETAIL "B"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE GASKET AND GROOVE MAY BE IN THE SEAT (FRAME) OR IN THE UNDERSIDE OF THE COVER.  THE GASKET MAY BE "T" SHAPED IN SECTION.  THE GROOVE MAY BE CAST OR MACHINED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOLT-DOWN CAPABILITY IS REQUIRED ON ALL FRAMES, GRATES, AND COVERS, UNLESS SPECIFIED OTHERWISE IN THE CONTRACT.  PROVIDE 3 HOLES IN THE FRAME THAT ARE VERTICALLY ALIGNED WITH THE GRATE OR COVER SLOTS.  THE FRAME SHALL ACCEPT THE 5/8" - 1 NC × 2" ALLEN HEAD CAP SCREW BY BEING TAPPED, OR OTHER 2" ALLEN HEAD CAP SCREW BY BEING TAPPED, OR OTHER APPROVED MECHANISM.  LOCATION OF BOLT DOWN HOLES VARIES BY MANUFACTURER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR BOLT-DOWN CB TYPE 2 RING AND COVERS THAT ARE NOT DESIGNATED "WATERTIGHT," THE NEOPRENE GASKET, GROOVE, AND WASHER ARE NOT REQUIRED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
IN LIEU OF BLIND PICK NOTCH FOR MANHOLE COVERS, A SINGLE 1" PICK HOLE IS ACCEPTABLE.  HOLE LOCATION AND NUMBER OF HOLES MAY VARY BY MANUFACTURER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALTERNATIVE REINFORCING DESIGNS ARE ACCEPTABLE IN LIEU OF THE RIB DESIGN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASHER SHALL BE NEOPRENE (DETAIL "B").

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATERTIGHT CB TYPE 2 COVER SHALL BE OLYMPIC FOUNDRY INC., OR APPRV'D EQUAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL CB TYPE 2 RING & COVERS TO MEET CURRENT WSDOT STD. SPECIFICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
11 9/16"R

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE DETAIL "B"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 7/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE DETAIL "A"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 1/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
 5/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
 5/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
~

AutoCAD SHX Text
~

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
~

AutoCAD SHX Text
~

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/16"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR CATCH BASIN TYPE 2 INSTALLATION INSIDE OF PAVED AREAS/CONCRETE SEE C.O. SHELTON STD. DETAIL SD-10.



P
L

A
N

 
V

I
E

W

S
E

C
T

I
O

N
 
V

I
E

W

CI

ON N OT
G

N
I

H
SAW

TY
of

SH
EL

T

CI

ON N OT
G

N
I

H
SAW

TY
of

SH
EL

T

O
V

E
R

F
L
O

W
 
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

D
E

T
A

I
L

S
D

-
1
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERFLOW EL=

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
36" CMP STANDPIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
POND BOTTOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATERTIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
COUPLING

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3:1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3:1

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL PARTS SHALL BE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GALVANIZED CORROSION

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESISTENT STEEL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" CMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATERTIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
COUPLING

AutoCAD SHX Text
4 EACH 2"x5" ANCHOR STRIPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WELD TO 0.75"%%C TRASH RACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRAME.  SPACE UNIFORMLY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAX. 3" SPACING

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'x4' CONC. PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.75"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.5" GALV. OR NON-CORROSIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOLTS & NUTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
IE=

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENDS OF BARS TO BE WELDED 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO 0.75"%%C TRASH RACK FRAME

AutoCAD SHX Text
EL=

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" CMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS



* FOR TYPE 1 CATCH BASIN

SQUARE BEEHIVE

DRAIN GRATE*

SD-12

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL MATERIAL FOR GRATE SHALL BE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DUCTILE IRON, ASTM A536 GR.80-55-06

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRATE SHALL BE OLYMPIC FOUNDRY

AutoCAD SHX Text
MODEL No. SM60BH OR EQUAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL BARS 5/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL SLOTS 1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8 1/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
20"x 24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"x 12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRATE SHALL LOCK TO FRAME.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS



AA

PLAN VIEW

SECTION A-A

HOOK CLAMP DETAIL

NOTES:

ALTERNATE RACK CONNECTION DETAIL

C
I ON

N

OTGNIHS

A
W

TY
of SHELT

C
I ON

N

OTGNIHS

A
W

TY
of SHELT

CATCH BASIN, TYPE 2

w/ BIRD CAGE

TRASH RACK

SD-13

AutoCAD SHX Text
45°

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROVIDE MAINT. ACCESS BY WELDING (4)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CROSS BARS AS SHOWN.  HINGE UPPER

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENDS W/ FLANGES/BOLTS & PROVIDE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCKING MECHANISM (W/PADLOCK) ON

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOWER END.  LOCATE LADDER STEPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIRECTLY BELOW.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15%%D (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE NOTE 1 

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOOK CLAMPS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(4) PLACES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVENLY SPACED

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE DETAIL BELOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
(SEE NOTE 1)

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB TYPE 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
STD. GALVANIZED

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
UPPER ALUMINUM

AutoCAD SHX Text
BAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4"x4" WIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOWER STEEL BAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4" THICK x 4" WIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FORMED TO FIT IN

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROOVE OF CB RISER

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOWER STEEL BAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4" THICK x 4" WIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FORMED TO FIT IN

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROOVE OF CB RISER

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4" DIA. SMOOTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARS EQUALLY SPACED

AutoCAD SHX Text
(4" O.C. MAX.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4" THICK x 4" WIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LONG SMOOTH BARS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
WELDED TO UPPER & 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOWER BANDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
(24 BARS EVENLY SPACED;

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE NOTE 1)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB RISER

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOOK CLAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANCHORED

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO CB RISER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SMOOTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERTICAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
BAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
45°

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB RISER

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANCHOR BOLT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANCHORED

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO CB RISER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SMOOTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERTICAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
BAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
THROUGH TRASH RACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4" THICK x 4" WIDE LONG SMOOTH BARS  WELDED TO UPPER &  LOWER BANDS (24 BARS EVENLY SPACED; SEE NOTE 1)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIMENSIONS ARE FOR INSTALLATION ON 54" DIA. CB'S, ADJUST DIMENSIONS TO MAINTAIN 45°ANGLE ON  "VERTICAL" BARS AND 4" O.C. MAX. SPACING OF BARS AROUND LOWER ALUMINUM BAND, WHEN VERTICAL BAR SPACING EXCEEDS 4" O.C. ADD CONCENTRIC HORIZONTAL  RINGS, SPACED 4" O.C. TO THE STRUCTURE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIS DEBRIS BARRIER IS ALSO RECOMMENDED FOR  USE ON THE INLET TO ROADWAY CROSS-CULVERTS WITH HIGH POTENTIAL FOR DEBRIS COLLECTION (EXCEPT ON TYPE 2 STREAMS).

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL PARTS:  METAL BARS: 6061 T.6. ALUMINUM ALLOY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS



S
E

C
T

I
O

N
 
V

I
E

W

P
L

A
N

 
V

I
E

W

E
N

D
 
V

I
E

W

CI

ON N OT
G

N
I

H
SAW

TY
of

SH
EL

T

CI

ON N OT
G

N
I

H
SAW

TY
of

SH
EL

T

D
E

B
R

I
S

 
B

A
R

R
I
E

R

D
E

T
A

I
L

S
D

-
1
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
COUPLING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NON-CORROSIVE BOLTS & NUTS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITH 1/2" GALVANIZED OR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPACED UNIFORMLY & FASTENED

AutoCAD SHX Text
BAR-FRAME. 4 PLACES,

AutoCAD SHX Text
WELDED TO 1/2" DIAMETER

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" X 5" ANCHOR STRIPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BAR FRAME

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text
BAR SPACING

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" O.C. MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BAR-FRAME.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITH ENDS WELDED TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" DIA. SMOOTH BARS

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAY BE REMOVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL STEEL PARTS MUST BE GALVANIZED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANCHOR STRIPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
COUPLING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS



A A

A

A

TOP VIEW

SECTION A-A

NOTES:

SPECIAL NOTE:

CATCH BASINS AND GRATES TO CONFORM

TO WSDOT STANDARD PLANS.  VERIFY

TYPE W/ CITY ENGINEER.

FRAME FOR GRATE

OR SOLID COVER

SD-15

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
* = 1-5/8" (+0", -1/16")

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
7/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4-1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
"

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
"

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
"

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
"

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
"

AutoCAD SHX Text
29

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATERIAL USED SHALL BE CAST IRON PER

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASTM-A48, CLASS 30.  FRAME SHALL HAVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
A BITUMINOUS COATING APPLIED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHEN A LOCKING GRATED OR COVER IS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
REQUIRED.  THE FRAME SHALL BE FABRICATED 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SO AS TO ACCEPT TWO (2) 5/8" STAINLESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEEL SOCKET HEAD CAP SCREWS OF GRATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OR COVER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS



P
L
A

N
 
V

I
E

W

S
E

C
T

I
O

N
 
A

-
A

AA

R
E

C
E

S
S

E
D

 
G

U
T

T
E

R

D
E

T
A

I
L

S
D

-
1
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH 

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
45°

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
#5 REBAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRAME & GRATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
#5 BAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
FACE OF CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS



SECONDARY ORIFICE DETAIL

LIFT GATE ASSEMBLY

LIFT GATE DETAIL

NOTES:

LIFT GATE ASSEMBLY

& SECONDARY ORIFICE

DETAILS

SD-17

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL PARTS TO BE R-6061-T6 ALUMINUM

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELBOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
STANDPIPE WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
BAND ELBOW TO STUB

AutoCAD SHX Text
STUB WELDED TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
STANDPIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
INVERT ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEOPRENE GASKET

AutoCAD SHX Text
WELD GATE ASSEMBLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
INVERT = 

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAINLESS STEEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHAIN (400 LBS.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIFT GATE & PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIZED PER C.O. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHELTON STDS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAINLESS STEEL BOLTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITH LOCKING NUTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" OR 12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
(SIZED PER

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.O. SHELTON

AutoCAD SHX Text
STDS.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL 1/4" R-6061-T6 ALUMINUM

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIFT GATE SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED OF: 1/4" R-6061-T6 ALUMINUM WITH CLOSED CELL NEOPRENE PER ASTM 1056- 67 CHEMICAL RESISTANT (OIL & GREASE). OZONE RESISTANT, 67° TO+250° F SERVICETEMPERTURE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORIFICE PLATE WELDED TO STUB.  ORIFICE MACHINE CUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS



B
I
O

F
I
L
T

E
R

 
S

W
A

L
E

D
E

T
A

I
L

S
D

-
1
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
3:1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3:1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' 

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' OR GREATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" TOPSOIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINE SWALE WITH SOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO 2-FT. ABOVE FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINE AS SHOWN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERSEED MIXTURE PER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY STANDARDS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER WSDOT STDS. TYPE A.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOWLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOWLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWALE BOTTOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS



A A

SECTION A-A

INSTALLATION NOTES

CATCH BASIN TYPE 2 RING &

COVER W/ CONCRETE COLLAR

STORM

STORM

C

I

O

N
N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

C

I

O

N
N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

CATCH BASIN TYPE 2

WITHIN RIGHT OF WAY

SD-19

SURFACE RESTORATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL AROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
(DIAMETER)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE COLLAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL CONCRETE COLLARS TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
BE COMMERCIAL CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER CURRENT WSDOT STD. SPEC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
USE COMMERCIAL CONCRETE FOR MANHOLE COLLAR UNLESS  APPROVED BY CITY ENGINEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
MUST INSTALL MIN. OF 4" OF ADJUSTMENT RINGS (RISERS).

AutoCAD SHX Text
ONLY NON-HINGED MANHOLE COVERS IN NON-PAVED AREAS SEE DETAIL SD-10A. SEE DETAIL SD-10 FOR PAVED AREAS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATCH ALL VOIDS AROUND PIPES, BETWEEN SECTIONS &  RISERS, AND FRAMES, USE: QUIKRETE  NON-SHRINK  PRECISION GROUT-PRODUCT  NO. 1585-00 OR QUIKCRETE  COMMERCIAL GRADE FASTSET DOT MIX PRODUCT NO. 1244-56 -81  OR AN APPROVED EQUAL. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
MORTAR MUST BE MIXED BY A MECHANICAL DEVICE, SUCH AS DRILL & PADDLE MIXER. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOLLOW ALL INSTRUCTIONS PROVIDED BY  QUIKRETE CO. SPECIFIC TO PRODUCT USED REGARDING MIXING DURATION, TEMPERATURE, ETC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
RISERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECURE RING & COVER TO MANHOLE RISER USING APPRV'D GROUT AS LISTED BELOW.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENEATH PAD USE WELL COMPACTED NATIVE MAT'L OR APPROVED FILL, AS DIRECTED BY ENGINEER (TYPICAL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS



SECTION A-A

PLAN VIEW

PROFILE VIEW

A

A

*SUMP NOTE

*

*

SCHEMATIC

INFILTRATION GALLERY

SD-20

AutoCAD SHX Text
GALLERY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
GALLERY

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text
OBSERVATION WELL

AutoCAD SHX Text
(OPTIONAL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" PERFORATED PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB SUMP W/SOLID LID

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" SOLID PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET COVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
GEOTEXTILE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKFILL OVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
2' MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCK 1/2"-1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" PERFORATED PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1' MIN. TO SEASONAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUNDWATER TABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OR RELATIVELY

AutoCAD SHX Text
IMPERMEABLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" PERFORATED

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB SUMP W/SOLID LID

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" SOLID PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET COVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
GEOTEXTILE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPLASH BLOCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERFLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOWNSPOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text
1' MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1' MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GALLERY SIZE VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4" GALVANIZED MESH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
(OPTIONAL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(SEE SUMP NOTE BELOW)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOWNSPOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
(REQUIRED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
HP SUMP 1830

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"x30" SUMP WELL  CORRUGATED

AutoCAD SHX Text
POLY HANCOR CA-SWO-18 OR

AutoCAD SHX Text
EQUIVALENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERF. PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOLID PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text
A SUMP IS A REQUIRED ITEM.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLDG.

AutoCAD SHX Text
VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS



SECTION A-A

PLAN VIEW

A

A

ALTERNATE #1

ROOF DRAIN

DRYWELL

SD-21

NOTE:

FOR USAGE ONLY WHEN AUTHORIZED BY THE

CITY ENGINEER AND IF SIZE OF ROOF AREA IS

LESS THAN 1,000 SF.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPLASH BLOCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOWNSPOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOF

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TOPSOIL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"-2" WASHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAIN ROCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
FABRIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
2' MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2' MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' MINIMUM

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS NECESSARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
64

AutoCAD SHX Text
62

AutoCAD SHX Text
64

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLDG.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOF DRAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCS CLASS A OR B SOILS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' MINIMUM

AutoCAD SHX Text
62

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS



NOTE:

FOR USAGE ONLY WHEN AUTHORIZED BY THE

CITY ENGINEER AND IF SIZE OF ROOF AREA IS

LESS THAN 1,000 SF.

ALTERNATE #2

ROOF DRAIN

DRYWELL

SD-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" SOLID

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"-6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 1/2" - 3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASHED ROCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRYWELL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'x2'x2'

AutoCAD SHX Text
FABRIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOWNSPOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEBRI CAGE MUST BE INSTALLED AT TOP OF DOWNSPOUT TO PREVENT LEAVES, NEEDLES, ETC. FROM ENTERING SYSTEM.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

TITLE

SD-23

DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS



TITLE

SD-24

DETAIL

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS



WATER 
 

 

January 2019 4 - 1 

C H A P T E R 4   

 
4.000 WATER 
 
 
 4.010  Water System Alterations, Extensions and Connections 
 

To allow the City to provide timely assistance and advice, anyone 
who wishes to alter, extend or connect to the City’s water system 
should contact the City as soon as possible.  Any alteration, 
connection and/or extension of the public water supply and 
distribution system must be approved by the City of Shelton.   
Proposed alterations, connections and/or extensions must 
conform to Department of Health (DOH), and Comprehensive 
Water System Plan requirements and City Ordinances.  
 
In the case of development within the corporate City limits on 
existing lots, or on new lots or sites created by subdivisions 
desiring a connection to City water or requiring fire flows, the 
owners of each lot of parcel shall, in conjunction with an 
application for a building permit, apply for connection to be made 
at their own expense between the City’s water system and each 
premises, building or structure requiring a building permit.  
Where the property abuts a public right-of-way or easement, 
extension of the water main shall be required.  Such extension(s) 
shall be to and across the full width of the property served with 
water unless otherwise approved by the City.  For corner lots, the 
extension shall be to the middle of the adjacent roadway 
intersection. 

 
In planning and designing for any alteration, connection and/or 
extension, it is the Engineer’s responsibility to see that adequate 
water for both domestic use and fire protection is attainable. The 
proposed plans must show how water will be supplied and 
whether adequate water pressure will be available in case of fire.  

An analysis of the water supply and distribution system may be 
required if it appears that the system might be less than adequate. 
 
Any alteration, extension or connection to the City water system, 
or any plumbing in a residential or nonresidential facility 
providing water for human consumption that is connected to the 
City system shall be lead-free.  With respect to solders and flux, 
lead-free shall mean no more than 0.2% lead, and no more than 
0.89% lead with respect to pipes and pipe fittings. (After 
01/01/2014, lead-free shall mean zero parts lead for all solders, 
flux, pipes, and pipe fittings). 



WATER 
 

 

January 2019 4 - 2 

 
The design of any water system alteration/extension/connection 
shall conform to these City Standards and any applicable City 
ordinances as set forth herein.  The layout of extensions shall 
provide for the future continuation and/or ‘looping” of the existing 
system, as determined by the City.  When determined to be 
applicable by the City due to topography, existing and/or 
proposed land uses, Comprehensive Plan and other factors, 
installation of an appropriately-sized water main across the full 
width of the property may be required. 
 

All residential dwelling units, commercial and industrial 
complexes shall have at least one water meter installed per 
separate building.  All duplexes shall have two water meters 
installed. All multi-dwelling units with three or more residential 
dwelling units shall require a master meter. Master meters may be 
allowed for properties under one ownership at the Public Works 
Director approval.  All appropriate cross connection control 
devices must be installed. 

 
Prior to the installation of any water meters, all public water 
system improvements must be completed and approved by the 
City, including granting of right-of-way or easements and the 
payment of all applicable fees.  Issuance of building permits for 
new construction of single family subdivisions shall not occur 
until final City approval is given. 
 
For commercial projects, building permits may be issued upon 
completion and acceptance of the required fire protection facilities. 
A financial guarantee in accordance with Chapter One of these 
Standards will be required for the remaining water system 
improvements.  The Certificate of Occupancy will not be issued 
until final City approval of all improvements. 

 
 4.020 Water Main Design Standards  
 

Water mains shall be sized to provide adequate domestic flow, 
plus fire flow at the required residual pressure, as required by the 
current edition of the Washington State Water System Design 
Manual and the Uniform Fire Code.  Fire flow requirements will be 
determined by the City; however, the quantity of water required 
will in no case be less than 1000 GPM at 20 psi residual for all 
other occupancies except UBC Class U.  Check with the City for 
Class U requirements. 
 
The minimum water main size shall be 8 inches diameter.  If fire 
protection requirements are met, the City may approve alternate 



WATER 
 

 

January 2019 4 - 3 

pipe sizes (i.e., cul-de-sac).  Larger size mains are required in 
specific areas as outlined in the Comprehensive Water System Plan 
or as necessary to meet fire flow requirements and future service 
areas.  Water supply and fire flow quantities will dictate water 
main looping requirements.  In any case, water mains longer than 
1,200 lineal feet shall be looped. 
 
All pipe for water mains and appurtenances shall be ductile iron 
Class 52 (Class 235 C-900 may be used if approved by the City)  
and comply with the requirements for water distribution material 
(Section 9-30 of the WSDOT Standard Specifications), EXCEPT: 

Steel pipe shall not be approved. In addition: In areas of high 
groundwater (as typically found in Sewer Basins 1, 2, and 3) or 
reactive soils, Ductile Iron Pipe conforming to AWWA C 151, Class 
52 pipe and/or polyethylene encasement shall be installed. 

 
The minimum cover for all water mains from top of pipe to finish 
grade shall be 36 inches unless otherwise approved by the City.  If 
the pipe is offset to the edge of the road, the actual roadway cross 
grade shall be projected out and used to measure cover to top of 
pipe.  This will require more fill over the pipe in a fill section but 
allows the pipe adequate cover in the event of future roadway cuts 
or widening.  If the pipe is located under a ditch or on the 
“downhill” slope of the roadway cross section, the minimum cover 
over the pipe shall be 36 inches or as otherwise approved by the 
City.  All materials shall also be installed in conformance with the 
manufacturer’s written recommendations. 

 
The maximum cover for all water mains shall be 42 inches at top 
of pipe unless otherwise approved by the City.  See Standard 
Detail W-06. 

 
 4.030 Hydrant Design Standards 
 

The pipe from the main line to the fire hydrant shall be ductile 
iron cement mortar lined Class 52, no less than 6 inches in 
diameter. 

 
Fire hydrants shall have two 2-1/2 inch outlets and one 4-1/2 
inch pumper port outlet fitted with a 4 inch Stortz adapter. All 
outport threads shall be Shelton Standard No. 475 thread. The 
valve opening shall be 5-1/4 inch diameter. The hydrant shall 
have a positive and automatic barrel drain and shall be of the 
"safety" or breakaway style. 

 



WATER 
 

 

January 2019 4 - 4 

Hydrants shall be manufactured by either Mueller or M&H. All 
new hydrants shall be bagged until all new water system 
construction is approved by the City. 

 
The following guidelines shall apply for hydrant number and 
location, unless otherwise approved by the City:  
 

A. A minimum of one hydrant shall be installed at all 
intersections. 

 
B. Hydrant spacing shall conform to the requirements of the 

International Fire Code, but in no instance stall exceed 600 
feet. 

 
C. Hydrants located in cul-de-sac or dead end areas either by 

design, topographic or manmade feature that prohibit 
straight line distance measurement, shall be located to serve 
no more than 60,000 square feet of land area or have a 
maximum travel distance of 300 feet. Where a cul-de-sac or 
dead end exceeds 300 feet, a hydrant shall be required. 

 
D. When any portion of a proposed non-residential building is 

in excess of 150 feet from a water supply on a public street, 
on-site hydrants may be required by the City.  Such 
hydrants shall be located per the Standards and easements 
for such hydrants shall be granted to the City. 

 
E. A scaled down plan view of the proposed water system shall 

be included on the plans. The scale shall be appropriate to 
show the entire proposed system. This plan view shall show 
the location of all the proposed hydrants plus the location of 
the appropriate existing hydrants adjoining the project. If the 
project only includes the addition of one or two new 
hydrants, the location of at least two existing hydrants in the 
project vicinity need to be shown on the plan view. 

 
F. Fire hydrants shall be set as shown in Standard Detail W-08. 

   
For requirements regarding use, size and location of a fire 
department connection (FDC) and/or post indicator valve, 
contact the City Fire Department. Location of the FDC shall 
be shown on the plans.  

 
A Water Usage Permit is required for the use of hydrants; 
contact the City about permit procedures and fees. 

 



WATER 
 

 

January 2019 4 - 5 

Where needed, the City may require hydrants to be protected 
by two or more posts, six inches in diameter by five feet in 
height, and made of either reinforced concrete or steel. Posts 
shall be placed so that they do not interfere with the 
operation of the hydrant or cause obstruction of the ports. 
See Standard Detail W-09. 

   
 4.040  Valve Design Standards 
 
  All valves and fittings shall be ductile iron with ANSI flanges or 

mechanical joint ends.  Valves shall be installed in the distribution 

system at sufficient intervals to facilitate system repair and 
maintenance, but in no case shall there be less than one valve 
every 1,000 feet. Generally, there shall be two valves on each tee 
and three valves on each cross. Specific requirements for valve 
spacing will be made during plan review. 

 
  A. Gate Valves:  The design, materials and workmanship of all 

gate valves shall conform to AWWA C515-80, latest revision. 
Gate valves shall be resilient wedge, non-rising stem (NRS) 
with two internal O-ring stem seals. Gate valves shall be 
Mueller, M & H, Kennedy, Clow R/W, Waterous Series 500 or 
an approved equal. Gate Valves shall be used on all water 
mains, or as otherwise approved by the City. 

 
  B. Butterfly valves may be used on all lines 12 inches and larger 

except when a tapping valve is required, when approved by the 
Public Works Director. Butterfly valves shall conform to AWWA 
C504, Class 150B, with cast iron short body and O-ring stem 
seals. Butterfly valves shall be Mueller, Linseal III, Kennedy, 
Pratt Ground Hog, Allis Chalmers, or an approved equal. 

 
  C. All valves shall be installed with a valve box with a lug type 

cover from Olympic Foundry Inc., or an approved equal per 
detail W-07 and W-07A. 

 
  D. An operating nut extension shall be installed when the ground 

surface is more than 36 inches above the valve-operating nut. 
The operating nut extension shall extend into the top section of 
the standard valve box and shall clear the bottom of the valve 
box lid by a minimum of 10 inches. When an operating nut 
extension is required, it shall be furnished and installed by the 
contractor. See Note: Valve Stem Extension Legend on 
Standard Detail W-07. 

 
 4.050 Water Service Connections  
    



WATER 
 

 

January 2019 4 - 6 

  For new mains extending across the frontage of lots not a part of 
the project, service connections shall be provided as necessary for 
service to lots. At the time of water main construction, all water 
service connections required by the approved plans shall be 
installed by the contractor.  All service taps shall be shown on the 
plans.  See Standard Details W-01 through W-05.  After the water 
service lines have been constructed, inspected, tested and 
approved by the City, the property owner may apply for a water 
meter.   The Contractor will install water meters 1 ½” and larger 
after a utility application has been made and all related fees have 
been paid. The City will lock off meter until approved for service. 

All water services between the City main and the meter are the 
property of the City. 

 
  When water is desired to a parcel fronting an existing main but 

not served by an existing meter, a utility application must be 
made to the City. Upon approval of the application and payment of 
all applicable fees, the Contractor will install the service lateral, 
meter box and setter, as necessary.  

    
  Service lines shall be as specified herein. Service lines shall be 

installed at a 45-degree angle off the top of the water main. No 
glued joints will be accepted.   

 
  All service lines up to and including two (2) inches in diameter 

shall be pressure class 200, polyethylene plastic pipe 
manufactured from all virgin material, category 5, grade P34, 
Class C high density polyethylene CTS OD ASTM D-2737 SDR 9 
PE3408; cell classification 335434C to 355434C from Philips 
Driscopipe, Superlon Plastics, Type K Copper or approved equal. 
Stainless steel inserts shall be used with all polyethylene plastic 
pipe.  Service lines larger than 2 inches in diameter shall be as 
specified in section 4.020. All services shall have a minimum of 20 
inches of cover. 

 
  Service Saddles shall be ductile iron with stainless steel straps. All 

saddles shall have rubber gasket and iron pipe threaded outlets. 
 
  Corporation stops shall be iron pipe or Mueller CC threads 

conforming to AWWA C 800 or an approved equal. 
 
  When connection to the City of Shelton water system is requested 

by a customer connected to an existing domestic well, the well 
must be abandoned per Department of Ecology requirements or a 
cross connection control assembly must be installed and tested 
per Section 4.160. This is necessary to assure that an unapproved 
auxiliary water supply (the customer's well) will not contaminate 



WATER 
 

 

January 2019 4 - 7 

the City's water supply. The customer's domestic well may be kept 
serviceable for irrigation purposes after all cross connection 
control have been met.  No water meter will be installed until a 
cross connection inspection has been completed to the satisfaction 
of the City. 

 
  Development on new lot created by subdivision and each approved 

site plan shall have a water service connection to a City main 
installed. 

 
  In single-family subdivision (including mobile home and 

manufactured home subdivisions), a service shall be provided to 
each lot or site. If a separate domestic and an irrigation meter are 
desired at a particular lot or tract, additional services shall be 
installed. 

 
 4.060 Water Main/Sanitary Sewer Crossings 
 
  When water mains and sanitary sewer mains cross, the water 

main shall be above the sanitary sewer main. The contractor shall 
maintain a minimum of 18 inches of vertical separation between 
sanitary sewers and water mains. The minimum cover of 42 
inches for water mains may be reduced to 24 inches, in 
accordance with the pipe manufacturer's written 
recommendations, and upon approval by the City, to provide for 
as much vertical separation as possible. 

 
  The longest standard length of water pipe shall be installed so that 

the joints will fall equidistant from any sewer crossing. 
 
  In some cases, where minimum separation cannot be maintained, 

it may be necessary to encase the water pipe and/or the sewer 
service in pipe or concrete per the State Department of Ecology's 
Criteria for Sewage Works Design. No concrete shall be installed 
unless specifically allowed by the City. 

 
 4.070 Manholes 
 
  See Chapter 5 for design, construction and testing requirements 

regarding manholes. 
 
 4.080 Sterilization and Flushing 
 
  Sterilization of water mains shall be the responsibility of the 

contractor and shall be done in accordance with Section 7 of the 
WSDOT Standard Specifications for Road, Bridge and Municipal 
Construction and in a manner satisfactory to the City, with a 



WATER 
 

 

January 2019 4 - 8 

minimum 50mg/L chlorination in accordance with the 
requirements of the Washington State Department of Health. 

 
  At no time shall chlorinated water from the new main be flushed 

into a body of water. This is to include lakes, rivers, streams, 
drainage ways, ditches and any and all other waters where fish or 
other natural aquatic life can be expected. 

 
  When a chlorine concentration has been established throughout 

the line, the valves shall be closed and the line left undisturbed for 
a minimum of 24 hours.  The line shall then be thoroughly flushed 

and water samples taken by the  City at least 24 hours after 
flushing and disinfecting for testing by an approved laboratory. 
Should the initial treatment result in an unsatisfactory 
bacteriological test, the original chlorination procedure shall be 
repeated by the contractor until satisfactory results are obtained. 

  
 4.090 Hydrostatic Tests 
 
  Prior to the acceptance of the work, the installation shall be 

subject to hydrostatic pressure test(s) of 200 psi or twice the line 
pressure, whichever is greater, for 15 minutes in accordance with 
Section 7 of the WSDOT Standard Specifications for Road, Bridge 
and Municipal Construction.  Any leaks or imperfections developing 
under said pressure shall be remedied by the contractor.  No main 
shall be hydrostatically tested until the lines are flushed of 
chlorine. The main shall be tested between valves.  Whenever 
possible, no hydrostatic pressure shall be placed against the 
opposite side of the valve being tested.  

 
  The contractor shall provide all necessary equipment and shall 

perform all work required to complete the tests.  Tests shall be 
made on the main prior to any service tap.  Service taps will be 
made after the hydrostatic testing of the main and shall be made 
when the main is at its working pressure.  The contractor shall 
perform the test to assure that the equipment to be used for the 
test is adequate and in good operating condition and the air in the 
line has been released before requesting the City to witness the 
test. 

 
 4.100 Air and Vacuum Release Valves 
 
  Air and vacuum release valves (ARV) shall be APCO combination 

air release valve or approved equal. Installation shall be as shown 
on Standard Detail W-15. The installation shall be set at the high 
point of the line when required.  Where possible, pipes are to be 
graded to prevent the need for an air release valve. 



WATER 
 

 

January 2019 4 - 9 

 
 4.110 Blowoff Assembly 
 
  If a fire hydrant is not located at the end of a dead end main, a 

blowoff assembly shall be required.  The pressure rating for 
blowoff assemblies shall be 200 psi.  Blowoff assemblies shall be 
located near the end of cul-de-sacs when appropriate.  Installation 
shall be as shown on Standard Detail W-11.   

 
 4.120 Staking 
   

  All surveying and staking shall be performed by a Professional 
Land Surveyor licensed by the State of Washington. All 
construction staking shall be inspected by the City prior to 
beginning construction.   

 
  The minimum staking of waterlines shall be as directed by the 

City or as follows: 
 
  A. Stake centerline alignment every 50 feet with cut or fill to 

invert of pipe maintaining cover over pipe per Section 4.020.  
Cuts are normally not required when the road grade has been 
built to subgrade elevation. 

 
  B. Stake alignment of all fire hydrants, tees, water meters, setters 

and other appurtenances and mark cut or fill to hydrant flange 
finished grade. 

 
  Any deviations from these minimum staking requirements shall be 

approved by the City. 
 
 4.130  Trench Excavation and Pipe Laying 
 
  Clearing and grubbing where required shall be performed within 

the easement or public right-of-way as permitted by the City in 
conformance to WSDOT Standard Specifications. Debris resulting 
from the clearing and grubbing shall be disposed of by the 
contractor in accordance with the terms of all applicable permits. 
Track mounted equipment shall not be allowed on paved City 
streets and public rights-of-way outside of the approved project 
boundaries and gravel streets without prior approval by the City. 

 
  The contractor shall perform all excavation in whatever substance 

is encountered.  Boulders, hardpan, clay rocks, roots and other 
obstructions shall be entirely removed or cut out to the width of 
the trench and to a depth 6 inches below water main grade. Where 
materials are removed from below water main grade, the trench 



WATER 
 

 

January 2019 4 - 10 

shall be backfilled to grade with material satisfactory to the City 
and thoroughly compacted.  

 
  Trenches shall be excavated to the line and depth designated by 

the City to provide a minimum of 36 inches cover over the pipe. 
The trench sides shall be excavated vertically and the trench width 
shall be excavated only to such widths as are necessary for 
adequate working space and in compliance with all State and 
Federal guidelines. 

 
  Surface water shall be diverted so as not to enter the trench. 

Trench water or other deleterious materials shall not be allowed to 
enter the pipe at any time. The contractor shall maintain sufficient 
pumping equipment on the job to ensure that these provisions are 
carried out.  Provisions shall be made to prevent floating of the 
pipe. 

 
  The contractor shall handle all types of pipe in a manner that will 

prevent damage to the pipe, pipe lining or coating.  Pipe and 
fittings shall be loaded and unloaded using hoists and slings in a 
manner to avoid shock or damage, and under no circumstances 
shall pipe be dropped, skidded, or rolled against another pipe.  

 
  If the Inspector determines that the contractor's methods are 

damaging to the pipe, the contractor shall correct the handling 
methods. All damaged pipe will be rejected, marked as such, 
placed apart from undamaged pipe, and shall be removed from the 
site within 24 hours.  Pipe shall be stacked in such a manner as 
to prevent damage to the pipe, to prevent dirt and debris from 
entering the pipe, and to prevent any movement of the pipe.  For 
public safety, each size of pipe shall be stacked separately. 

 
   Dirt or other foreign material shall be prevented from entering 

the pipe or pipe joint during handling or laying operations, and 
any pipe or fitting that has been installed with dirt or foreign 
material in it shall be removed, cleaned and re-laid. At times, 
when pipe laying is not in progress, the open ends of the pipe 
shall be closed by a watertight plug or by other means 
approved by the Engineer to ensure cleanliness inside the pipe. 

 
   The bottom of the trench shall be finished to grade with hand 

tools in such a manner that the pipe will be bearing along the 
entire length of the barrel. The bell holes shall be excavated 
with hand tools to sufficient size to accommodate the joint. 

 
   Long radius curves, either horizontal or vertical, may be laid 

with standard pipe by deflecting the joints. The amount of 



WATER 
 

 

January 2019 4 - 11 

deflection at each pipe joint when pipe is laid on a curve shall 
not exceed the manufacturer’s printed recommended 
deflections.  When rubber gasketed pipe is laid on a curve, the 
pipe shall be jointed in a straight alignment and then deflected 
to the curved alignment. Trenches shall be made wider on 
curves for this purpose. 

 
   When the contractor is trenching and shoring adjacent to an 

existing water main or any other underground utilities or 
public safety concerns exist, the City may require more 
stringent trenching standards.  Trenching, shoring and pipe 

laying shall be in conformance with Washington Industrial 
Safety and Health Administration (WISHA), Washington 
Department of Labor and Industries (L&I), the Office of Safety 
and Health Administration (OSHA) Safety Standards and any 
other agency with jurisdiction. 

 
 4.140 Casing 
 
  Steel casing pipe shall be schedule 20 steel, ductile iron, or 

approved equal.  Spacers shall be Cascade style CCS with 8 inch 
runners as available from Cascade Waterworks.  Casing pipe and 
spacers shall be sized for the pipe being installed.  Install a 
minimum of three spaces per section of pipe. 

 
 4.150 Irrigation 
 
  All irrigation systems located within the public right-of-way shall 

be designed by a State of Washington registered professional 
engineer or licensed landscape architect, and approved by the 
City.  

   
  The contractor shall be responsible for all installation, repair, 

testing and operation of the irrigation water system until all work 
is complete and the system has been certified by the engineer or 
landscape architect who prepared the approved plans. The 
engineer or landscape architect shall be responsible for inspection 
of the irrigation system during construction and testing of the 
system operations following the completion of construction. 
Thereafter, it is the responsibility of the property owner to have 
the cross connection control assembly tested annually by a 
certified backflow assembly tester, and to submit the test results 
to the City.   

 
  The engineer or landscape architect shall provide the City with a 

letter bearing his/her professional registration and certifying the 
irrigation system as complete and constructed and all cross 



WATER 
 

 

January 2019 4 - 12 

connection control requirements per Section 4.160 have been 
complied with in full accordance with the plans approved by the 
City. 

 
 4.160 Cross Connection Control 
 
  Testing for cross connection control shall be the responsibility of 

the contractor.  A certified backflow assembly tester shall perform 
all cross connection control tests, and the test results shall be 
submitted to the City. 

 

  The installation of cross connection control assemblies is required 
to protect the existing water system and users from possible 
contamination, new commercial buildings are required to install 
RPBA and shall comply with the requirements of the City of 
Shelton Cross Connection Policy, the most current edition of the 
AWWA Cross Connection Control Manual, the USC Manual of Cross 
Connection Control, and the PNWS Cross Connection Control 
Manual. Thereafter, it is the responsibility of the property owner to 
have the cross connection control assembly tested annually by a 
certified backflow assembly tester, and to submit the test results 
to the City.  See Standard Details W-17 through W-26. 

 
 4.170 Thrust Blocking 

 
  The locations of thrust blocking shall be shown on the plans. 

Thrust blocks shall be designed for the test pressures set forth in 
the Standards. 

 
  Thrust block concrete shall be commercial concrete at least 3000 

psi compressive strength, poured against undisturbed earth.  A 
plastic barrier shall be placed between all thrust blocks and 
fittings.  Designed and approved joint restraining systems must 
include a combination of thrust blocking and RomaGrip pipe 
restraints manufactured by ROMAC or approved equal. 
Restraining joint brand, type, and size shall be specified on the 
plans.  See Standard Details W-12, W-13, and W-14 for examples.  

 
 4.180 Backfilling 
 
  Backfilling and surface restoration shall closely follow the 

installation of pipe so that not more than 100 feet of trench is left 
open at any time during construction without approval of the City. 
When public safety concerns exist, the City may require more 
stringent backfilling standards. 

 



WATER 
 

 

January 2019 4 - 13 

  Selected backfill material shall be placed and compacted around 
and under the water mains with hand tools to a height of 6 inches 
above the top of the water main. 

 
  The remaining backfill shall be compacted to 95 percent of the 

maximum density in the roadway prism and to 90 percent outside 
the roadway prism and shall be satisfactorily demonstrated to the 
City by density tests per the WSDOT Standard Specifications for 
Road, Bridge and Municipal Construction.  If native material is not 
suitable for backfill, the City will order the placing of pipe bedding 
around the water main conforming to the Standard Specifications. 

 
  Where governmental agencies other than the City have jurisdiction 

over roadways, the backfill and compaction shall be done to the 
satisfaction of the agency having jurisdiction. 

 
 4.190 Street Patching and Restoration 
 
  See Chapter 2.190 and 2.200 for requirements trench backfilling, 

temporary patching, and pavement restoration. 
   
 4.200  Watershed and Wellhead Protection Area 
 

A protection area is designated for the City’s watershed and each 
of the City’s wells as an irregular boundary determined by 
topography, waterflow patterns both above and below ground, soil 
types, flow rates and other criteria. Please contact the City to 
determine if the proposed project is situated within a watershed or 
wellhead protection area. 
 
In order to protect the public water supply, the following criteria 
shall apply to any project or portion of a project that is partially or 
completely located within a watershed or wellhead protection area.  
 
A. A storm and erosion control plan requiring treatment of 

stormwater is required. Depending on the individual 
characteristics of the project, more stringent treatment 

requirements than those required in the currently adopted 
Washington State Department of Ecology Storm Water 
Management Manual for Western Washington referenced in 
Title 13 of the Shelton Municipal Code may be imposed by the 
City.  All storm water shall be directed away from a well. 

 
B. If the project is a subdivision, it must be noted on the face of 

the plat that the project is located within a watershed or 
wellhead protection area. 

 



WATER 
 

 

January 2019 4 - 14 

C. All garbage bins and dumpsters shall be covered in a manner 
that prevents rainwater from entering the containers, and 
subsequently, the groundwater.  

 
D. In projects where hazardous spill could occur, a spill and 

containment plan shall be implemented.  Depending on the 
nature of the project, more stringent spill and containment 
requirements than those in the Washington State Department 
of Ecology Storm Water Management Manual for Western 
Washington and Title 13 of the Shelton Municipal Code may be 
imposed by the City.  

 
E. No outside storage or sales of hazardous materials will be 

allowed within a watershed or wellhead protection area.  This 
includes but is not limited to:  industrial chemicals, solvents, 
petroleum products, pesticides, herbicides, animal wastes, 
fertilizers and other lawn and garden chemicals. 

 
  4.210 Water Main Construction Standards (General Notes) - 
 
  In addition to the General Notes in Chapter One, the Engineer 

shall include the following notes on any plans dealing with water 
system design. 

   
  A. All water mains shall be staked for grades and alignment by an 

engineering or surveying firm capable of performing such work, 
in accordance with the Washington Administrative Code 
(WAC). 

 
  B. New and existing valves are to be operated only by City 

employees.  
 

C. Hydrants shall be bagged until the system is approved after 
construction.  Fire hydrants meeting required fire flows shall 
be installed, tested, and accepted prior to the issuance of a 
building permit.  A Water Usage permit is required for the use 
of hydrants; contact the City about permit procedures and 

fees. A Water Usage permit is valid only at the location 
specified on the permit. When using the hydrant to fill a 
vehicle, the vehicle must be equipped with an approved cross 
connection control device.  

 
  D. All lines shall be chlorinated and tested in conformance with 

Department of Health (DOH) requirements and City Standards. 
An approved dechlorination device shall be used when flushing 
chlorinated water that will discharge to any body of water. All 
new water mains and laterals shall include tracer wire. 



WATER 
 

 

January 2019 4 - 15 

   
  E. The Contractor shall give the City a minimum of 72 hour 

notice of any planned shutdown to make a connection to an 
existing water main. Where connections require field 
verification, connection points will be exposed by the 
contractor and fittings will be verified 48 hours prior to 
distributing shutdown notices. 

 
   This includes all cut-ins and live taps. In certain situations, 

the City may dictate scheduling of water main shutdowns so as 
not to impose unnecessary shutdowns during specific periods 

to existing customers. No tap shall be made to an existing 
main on a Friday without specific approval from the City. 

  



WATER 
 

 

January 2019 4 - 16 

LIST OF DRAWINGS 

CHAPTER 4 WATER 
 
Title Drawing 
3/4" SINGLE SERVICE INSTALLATION .............................................................. W-01 

1" SINGLE SERVICE INSTALLATION .................................................................. W-02 

1" DOUBLE SEVICE CONNECTION DETAIL (DOMESTIC AND IRRIGATION) ........ W-02A 

1-1/2 to 2" WATER SERVICE INSTALLATION   ................................................... W-03 

3” - 4" WATER SERVICE METER SETTER w/BYPASS   ....................................... W-04 

NEW CONNECTIOON TO EXISTING WATERMAIN   ............................................. W-04A 

WATER METER ASSEMBLY 6” – 8” & LARGER w/ 4” BYPASS ............................ W-05 

MINIMUM/MAXIMUM COVERAGE FOR WATER LINES ...................................... W-06 

VALVE BOX/RISER & ROAD RESTORATION ...................................................... W-07 

VALVE BOX / RISER LID DETAILS .................................................................... W-07A 

FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY (SYSTEM 1) ............................................................ W-08 

FIRE HYDRANT GUARD POST AND CONCRETE PAD ......................................... W-09 

FIRE LINE DETAIL ............................................................................................. W-10 

BLOWOFF ASSEMBLY   ..................................................................................... W-11 

VERTICAL CONCRETE BLOCKING ..................................................................... W-12 

ALTERNATE VERTICAL CONCRETE BLOCKING   ............................................... W-13 

HORIZONTAL THRUST BLOCKS   ...................................................................... W-14 

2" AIR VACUUM RELEASE VALVE ASSEMBLY ................................................... W-15 

AIR GAP FOR MAKEUP TANK ............................................................................. W-16 

PRESSURE VACUUM BREAKER ASSEMBLY ...................................................... W-17 

REDUCED PRESSURE BACKFLOW ASSEMBLY (RPBA) 2” AND SMALLER .......... W-18 

NOTES REDUCED PRESS. BACKFLOW ASSEMBLY (RPBA) 2” AND SMALLER .... W-18 

REDUCED PRESSURE DETECTOR ASSEMBLY (RPDA) 2-1/2” AND SMALLER ... W-19 

NOTES - REDUCED PRESS. DETECTOR ASSY. (RPDA) 2-1/2” AND SMALLER ... W-19 

DOUBLE CHECK VALVE ASSEMBLY (DCVA) FOR 2" AND SMALLER .................. W-20 

NOTES - DOUBLE CHECK VALVE ASSEMBLY (DCVA) FOR 2" AND SMALLER .... W-20 

DOUBLE CHECK VALVE ASSEMBLY (DCVA) & (DCDA) 2-1/2” AND LARGER ..... W-21 

NOTES - DOUBLE CHECK VALVE ASSY. (DCVA) & (DCDA) 2-1/2” & LARGER ... W-21 

SPILL RESISTANT PRESSURE VACUUM BREAKER ASSEMBLY .......................... W-22 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLLY LEFT BLANK ....................................................... W-23 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLLY LEFT BLANK ....................................................... W-24 

BACKFLOW BYPASS PARALLELED ASSEMBLY .................................................. W-25 

POST INDICATOR VALVE AND FIRE DEPT. CONNECTION (FDC) ........................ W-26 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK ......................................................... W-27 

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK ......................................................... W-28 



FIRE HYDRANT GUARD POST & CONCRETE PAD

3" - 4" WATER SERVICE METER SETTER w/ BYPASS

2" AIR VACUUM RELEASE VALVE ASSEMBLY

AIR GAP FOR MAKEUP TANK

BLOWOFF ASSEMBLY

VALVE BOX/RISER & ROAD RESTORATION

FIRE HYDRANT ASSEMBLY (SYSTEM 1)

MINIMUM/ MAXIMUM COVERAGE FOR WATER LINES

HORIZONTAL THRUST BLOCKING

1" SINGLE SERVICE INSTALLATION

1" DOUBLE SERVICE CONNECTION DETAIL (DOMESTIC AND IRRIGATION)

DOUBLE CHECK VALVE ASSEMBLY (DCVA) & (DCDA) FOR 2½" & LARGER

FIRE LINE DETAIL

VERTICAL CONCRETE BLOCKING

ALTERNATE VERTICAL CONCRETE BLOCKING

BACKFLOW BY-PASS  PARALLELED ASSEMBLY

POST INDICATOR VALVE and FIRE DEPARTMENT CONNECTION

-

3/4" SINGLE SERVICE INSTALLATION

W-02A

1 1/2" - 2" WATER SERVICE INSTALLATION

NEW CONNECTION TO EXISTING WATER MAIN

WATER METER ASSEMBLY 6" - 8" & LARGER w/ 4" BYPASS

W-04A

DOUBLE CHECK VALVE ASSEMBLY (DCVA) FOR 2" &  SMALLER

SPILL RESISTANT PRESSURE VACUUM BREAKER ASSEMBLY

W-15

W-01

W-02

W-03

W-04

W-05

W-06

W-07

W-08

W-09

W-10

W-11

W-12

W-13

W-14

W-16

W-17

W-18

W-19

W-20

W-21

W-22

W-23

W-25

W-26

--

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

--

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

WATER DETAILS

TABLE OF CONTENTS

W-19 - NOTES FOR REDUCED PRESSURE DETECTOR ASSEMBLY (RPDA) & (RPDA) - 2½" & LARGER

-

NOTES FOR DOUBLE CHECK VALVE ASSEMBLY (DCVA) FOR 2" & SMALLER

-

W-21

-

REDUCED PRESSURE BACKFLOW ASSEMBLY (RPBA) 2" & SMALLER

W-18 - NOTES FOR REDUCED PRESSURE BACKFLOW ASSEMBLY (RPBA) 2" & SMALLER

REDUCED PRESSURE DETECTOR ASSEMBLY (RPDA) & (RPDA) 2½" & LARGER

W-20

W-20

NOTES FOR DOUBLE CHECK VALVE ASSEMBLY (DCVA) & (DCDA) FOR 2½" & LARGER

--W-24 - THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

VALVE BOX/RISER LID DETAILSW-07A -

PRESSURE VACUUM BREAKER ASSEMBLY

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

-

(cont'd)

(cont'd)

(cont'd)

(cont'd)

(r.4)

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK

W-27

W-28 --

-



A
L
L
 
T

A
P

S
:

1
2
"
 
O

.
C

.
 
M

I
N

I
M

U
M

P
L
A

N
 
V

I
E

W

N
T

S

S
P

E
C

I
A

L
 
N

O
T

E
S

:

S
E

C
T

I
O

N
 
V

I
E

W

N
T

S

 
 
 
3
/
4
"
 
S

I
N

G
L
E

 
S

E
R

V
I
C

E
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
I
N

S
T

A
L
L
A

T
I
O

N
 
 
 
 
 

W
-
0
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" O.D. COPPER PIPE OR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
COPPER TUBING-POLYETHLENE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(200 psi) PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-2" MALE ADAPTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
(H15428)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-2"x 3/4" TEE (BRASS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1- 3/4" CORP. STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.P. THREAD H15028

AutoCAD SHX Text
1-2" MALE ADAPTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
(H15428)

AutoCAD SHX Text
METER BOX TO BE SET IN SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHENEVER POSSIBLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED METER BOXES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.I. OR C.I.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATERMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PVC OR A.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATERMAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4" CORP. STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.P. THREAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
(H 15028)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DS-ROMAC SADDLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
W/ 3/4" I.P. THREAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIRECT TAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
(H 15008)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(H-10283)

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4" MALE ADAPTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
(H15428) (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIGTAIL W/ 3/4" FEMALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADAPTOR (H-15451)

AutoCAD SHX Text
GALV. PLUG

AutoCAD SHX Text
MUELLER H-1404 W/ END

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONN. (H-14223 & H-14222)

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" MIN. HEIGHT WITH CHECK VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4" COPPER OR PLASTIC PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(200 psi POLYETHYLENE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COPPER TUBING O.D.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(200 psi POLYETHYLENE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COPPER TUBING O.D.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
3' MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2' MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED METER BOX 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATERMAIN -

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR FITTING CALLOUTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE SECTION VIEW BELOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
MID STATES PLASTICS, INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BCF SERIES BOX W/ CAST

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON READER STYLE LID

AutoCAD SHX Text
PART # MSBCF1324-18

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL PARTS NUMBERS ARE MUELLER. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FORD OR A.Y. McDONALD QUICKJOINTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
(200 psi POLYETHLENE COPPER

AutoCAD SHX Text
TUBING O.D.) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAINLESS STEEL LINERS #505142

AutoCAD SHX Text
REQ'D AT COUPLINGS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
*ALL SADDLES MUST HAVE SS STRAPS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAY BE USED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4" METER YOKE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
*SEE NOTE 5.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.

AutoCAD SHX Text
OR DS ROMAC

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.P. THREAD CORP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SADDLE W/ 

AutoCAD SHX Text
*SEE NOTE 5.

AutoCAD SHX Text
34" CORP. STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
34" CURB STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
" COPPER OR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLASTIC PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MINIMUM 15 FT. SEPARATION TO ADJACENT SERVICES.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACER WIRE MUST BE USED WITH POLY PIPE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TONING WIRE WHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
POLY PIPE IS USED

AutoCAD SHX Text
TONING WIRE WHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
POLY PIPE IS USED

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEAVE 1' MIN. TONING WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAIL WHEN POLY PIPE IS USED

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS







































































SANITARY SEWER 
 

  

 

January 2019 5 - 1 

C H A P T E R 5 
 
5.000 SANITARY SEWERS 
 
 
 5.010 Sewer System Alterations, Extensions and Connections 

  
   To allow the City to provide timely assistance and advice, 

anyone who wishes to alter, extend or connect to the sanitary 
sewer system should contact the City as soon as possible.  Any 
alteration of, extension of, or connection to the City of 
Shelton’s sanitary sewer system must conform to the 
Comprehensive Sewer Plan, State Department of Ecology 
(DOE), and the Department of Health (DOH) requirements, 
Section 7 of the WSDOT Standard Specifications for Road, 
Bridge and Municipal Construction, and these Standards. 

 
   In the case of development where the property abuts a right-of-

way or public easement in which a public sewer is located, or 
where a service connection is or can be otherwise provided, 
connection of all structures generating sewage shall be 
required.  Whenever a structure that generates sewage 
originates within 300 feet of the public sewer, the structure 
shall connect to the public sewer in compliance with these 
Standards.  Sewer main extensions shall be required when the 
property does not front on a sewer main or when the existing 
sewer main is not adequate for the increased use that is being 
proposed.  The minimum extension shall be to the far property 
line or for corner lots, to the middle of the adjacent intersection 
of the right of way (alley or street). Any sewage spills on City 
Right of Way shall be reported to the City immediately at (360) 
432-5178 during business hours, or (360) 426-4441 during 
non-business hours. 

 
   City utilities may be extended to properties within the Shelton 

Urban Growth Area only after the property is legally committed 
to eventual annexation per Section 1.200. 

 
   Development on new lots or sites created by subdivisions or 

site plans shall have a sewer service installed as required by 
these Standards.  In single family subdivisions and in mobile 
home/manufactured home parks, a service shall be provided 
to each lot, site or residential dwelling unit. 

 
   Development of multi-family residential buildings (3 or more 

units) and commercial complexes shall have a single side sewer 



SANITARY SEWER 
 

  

 

January 2019 5 - 2 

or lateral installed per separate building or ownership.  Duplex 
units shall have a separate side sewer or lateral for each living 
unit that connects directly to the service main.  

 
 5.020  Sewer Design Standards 
 

The design of any sewer extension/connection shall conform to 
the State Department of Ecology’s Criteria for Sewage Works 
Design and any applicable standards as set forth herein. The 
layout of extensions shall provide for the future continuation of 
the existing system as determined by the City.  All sewers shall 
be designed as a gravity sewer whenever physically feasible. 

 
   Sewer mains shall be sized for the ultimate development of the 

tributary area as determined by the City.  The minimum size 
for sub-mains and mains shall be 8-inch inside diameter. The 
minimum size for a lateral shall be 4 inches.  Nothing shall 
preclude the City from requiring the installation of a larger 
sized main if the City determines a larger size or a greater 
installation depth is needed to meet the requirements for 
future service. 

 
   Gravity sewers shall be designed with a straight alignment 

between manholes, or as otherwise approved by the City.  New 
gravity sewer systems shall be designed on the basis of an 
average daily per capita flow of sewage of not less than 100 
gallons per day.  See the following DOE table on Design Basis 
for Sewage. This figure is assumed to cover normal infiltration, 
but an additional allowance may be required by the City where 
conditions are unfavorable.  Generally, laterals and sub-main 
sewers should be designed to carry, when running full, not less 
than 400 gallons daily per capita contributions of sewage. 
When deviations from the foregoing per capita rates are used, a 
description of the procedure used for sewer design shall be 
submitted to the City for review. 

 

DESIGN BASIS FOR NEW SEWAGE WORKS 
 

Discharge Facility Design Units 
Flow* 
(gpd) 

BOD 
(lb/day) 

SS 
(lb/day) 

Flow 
Duration 

(hr) 

Dwellings Per person 100 0.2 0.2 24 

Schools w/showers 
and cafeteria 

Per person 16 0.04 0.04 8 

Schools w/o showers 
and cafeteria 

Per person 10 0.025 0.025 8 

Boarding schools Per person 75 0.2 0.2 16 

Motels at 65 
gal/person (rooms 

Per room 130 0.26 0.26 24 



SANITARY SEWER 
 

  

 

January 2019 5 - 3 

DESIGN BASIS FOR NEW SEWAGE WORKS 
 

Discharge Facility Design Units 
Flow* 
(gpd) 

BOD 
(lb/day) 

SS 
(lb/day) 

Flow 
Duration 

(hr) 

only) 

Trailer courts at 3 
persons/trailer 

Per trailer 300 0.6 0.6 24 

Restaurants Per seat 50 0.2 0.2 16 

Interstate or through 
highway restaurants 

Per seat 180 0.7 0.7 16 

Interstate rest areas Per person 5 0.01 0.01 24 

Service stations 
Per vehicle 
serviced 

10 0.01 0.01 16 

Factories 
Per person per 8-hr 
shift 

15-35 0.03-0.07 0.03-0.07 
Operating 

Period 

Shopping centers 
Per 1,000 sq. ft. of 
ultimate floor space 

200-300 0.01 0.01 12 

Hospitals Per bed 300 0.6 0.6 24 

Nursing homes Per bed 200 0.3 0.3 24 

Homes for the aged Per bed 100 0.2 0.2 24 

Doctor's office in 
medical center 

Per 1,000 sq. ft 500 0.1 0.1 12 

Laundromats, 9 to 12 
machines 

Per machine 500 0.3 0.3 16 

Community colleges 
Per student and 
faculty 

15 0.03 0.03 12 

Swimming pools Per swimmer 10 0.001 0.001 12 

Theaters, drive-in 
type 

Per car 5 0.01 0.01 4 

Theaters, auditorium 
type 

Per seat 5 0.01 0.01 12 

Picnic areas Per person 5 0.01 0.01 12 

Resort camps, day & 
night, w/limited 
plumbing 

Per campsite 50 0.05 0.05 24 

Luxury camps w/flush 
toilets 

Per campsite 100 0.1 0.1 24 

* Includes normal filtration 

 
Taken from: “Criteria for Sewage Works Design" 
By:  State of Washington Department of Ecology 
December 2008 (Table G2 – 2) 

 
 
   Gravity sewer mains shall be Class 52 ductile iron pipe or solid 

wall PVC and shall conform to the requirements of WSDOT 
Standard Specification Section 9-05. 

 
   Gravity sewer shall be as deep as possible while still being 

functional and will have a typical minimum depth of 7 feet to 
provide gravity service to adjoining parcels, adequate head 
room within manholes for maintenance personnel and vertical 
clearance between water and sewer lines.  Actual depth will be 



SANITARY SEWER 
 

  

 

January 2019 5 - 4 

determined by slope, flow, velocity and elevation of the existing 
system.  Additional depth may be required by the City. 

 
   All new mains connecting to the existing system shall connect 

either to a new manhole or existing manhole and 180° to the 
lay of the main provided the manhole placement, two mains 
cannot meet without manhole as per Chapter 5.070 is met. 
See Chapter 5.040 and Standard Details SS-05 and SS-06 for 
requirements for building or side sewer connections. 

 
   All new mains and laterals shall include Tracer Wire. 
 
   Septic Tank Effluent Pump (STEP) systems are not allowed by 

the City except as approved by the City. For a grinder pump 
system refer to Chapter 5.170. 

 
 5.030 Connection to Existing System 
 

   Before connection to the existing system, all new sewers shall 
be physically plugged until all tests have been completed and 
the City approves the removal of the plug.  

 
   Connection of new sewer pipe lines to existing manholes shall 

be accomplished by core drilling and inserting a "Kor-N-Seal" 
boot, or as otherwise approved by the City. The transition of 
connecting channels shall be constructed so as not to interrupt 
existing flow patterns. 

 
   Connection of a sewer pipe line to a sewer system where a 

manhole is not available shall be accomplished by installing an 
approved precast base or pouring a concrete base and setting 
manhole sections. The existing sewer pipe shall not be cut into 
until approval is received from the City. At connections where 
an existing stub-out is not available, or where a new building 
sewer is the same size as the existing main, a replacement 
manhole shall be installed, unless otherwise approved by the 
City.  All sewer main installations shall be per Section 5.020. 

 
   When sewer service is needed to a parcel fronting an existing 

sewer main, a Utility Application must be made to the City.  
Following approval of the application and payment of all 
related fees, the contractor may tap the existing sewer main 
and install all building side sewers or laterals required by the 
approved plans shall be installed by the contractor. All 
connections to the sewer main shall be shown on the plans. 
The City shall inspect the contractor’s work and testing. 

 



SANITARY SEWER 
 

  

 

January 2019 5 - 5 

   Taps shall not be allowed to protrude into the existing main. 
The City shall be notified 48 hours prior to any tap of a City 
sewer and a City Inspector shall be present to witness the tap. 
The mainline at the tap location shall be televised after tapping 
and prior to approval to ensure compliance upon City 
direction.   

 
   When it is necessary to break out or repair an existing sewer 

during construction, only new pipe having the same inside 
diameter will be used in reconnecting the sewer. Where joints 
must be made between pipes with a mismatched wall 
thickness, the contractor shall use a flexible gasketed coupling, 
adapter, or coupling-adapter to make a watertight joint. 
Couplings shall be those manufactured by Romac or Smith-
Blair for reinforced pipe and Fernco for non-reinforced pipe, or 
City approved equal. 

 
   Taps on PVC sewer mains shall be made with a PVC gasketed 

sewer main saddle wye conforming to ASTM D 3034 SDR 35, 
or City approved equal.  Taps on a ductile iron sewer main 
shall be made with a Romac style CB sewer saddle with 
Ductile+Plus saddle, stainless steel strap and rubber gasket 
meeting ASTM D-2000 3 BA715 or City approved equal.  See 
Standard Detail SS-14.  The manufactured bevel on the pipe to 
be inserted into the saddle shall be cut off to avoid pushing the 
pipe into the main. 

 
 5.040  Sewer Service and Laterals  
 

   Building side sewers and lateral sewers shall be a minimum 4-
inch inside diameter. Installation and maintenance of building 
side sewers and laterals up to the connection with the service 
main is the responsibility of the property owner. Prior to 
connection of a building side sewer or a lateral to the public 
sewer, an approved Utility Application must be obtained. 
Materials and design criteria for a building side sewer are 
covered by the Uniform Plumbing Code (UPC) and these 
Standards.   

 
   Each separate building shall have its own separate side sewer 

(per SMC Chapter 14.12.020) and each property shall have its 
own lateral connection to the system, except that duplex units 
shall have a separate side sewer or lateral for each living unit 
that connects directly to the service main.  Laterals for single-
family residential properties shall not be connected to the 
system at a manhole, unless otherwise approved by the City. 
Multifamily and commercial complexes may connect directly to 



SANITARY SEWER 
 

  

 

January 2019 5 - 6 

a manhole if the lateral sewer is six inches in diameter or 
larger and the manhole is channeled to accommodate the 
lateral.  Manhole sizing where laterals are connected shall be 
the same as designated in Section 5.070 of these Standards. 

 
   Lateral sewers shall be PVC ASTM D 3034 SDR 35 with flexible 

gasket joints.  Ductile iron pipe may be required in areas with 
insufficient cover.  Lateral connections shall be made by a tap 
to an existing sewer main by a licensed and bonded contractor 
upon approval of the right of way permit, or by a Y branch from 
a new main connected above the spring-line of the pipe.  PVC 
sewer T-Y fittings shall be GPK Products part number 113-004 
to 113-0278 depending on application size, or 114-0044 to 
114-0278 depending on application size, manufactured in 
accordance with ASTM D-3033 79 SDR 35, SDR 41, or ASTM 
D-3034 78 SDR 42 or SDR 35, or City-approved equal. 

 
   A cleanout is required on the lateral at the right-of-way line or 

easement line, unless otherwise approved by the City.  
Cleanout ring and cover shall be Inland Foundry, East Jordan, 
or City approved equal. See Standard Detail SS-10. A backflow 
prevention device (backwater valve) is required on the side 
sewer in an accessible location near the building unless 
otherwise approved by the City. See Standard Detail SS-07. 

 
   If the property abuts an existing sewer main, an application for 

sewer service shall be made by the owner of the property on 
which the work is to be performed or by a properly licensed 
and bonded contractor representing the owner.  All fees 
required by the City shall accompany the completed 
application.  The charge for connection to the City’s sewer 
system is established by the City Council and may be amended 
by the Council from time to time as necessary.  All charges 
incurred in establishing a connection to the City’s sewer 
system shall be at the sole expense of the applicant. 

 
   No person other than authorized personnel of the City, or a 

properly permitted, licensed and bonded contractor who is 
approved by the City, shall make any connection to or opening 
into, use, alter, or disturb any part of the City sewer system or 
appurtenance thereto without the expressed consent of the 
City. 

 
   Taps shall not be allowed to protrude into the existing main.  

The City shall be notified 48 hours prior to any tap of a City 
sewer and a City inspector shall be present to witness the tap.  



SANITARY SEWER 
 

  

 

January 2019 5 - 7 

The mainline at the tap location shall be televised after tapping 
and prior to approval to ensure compliance. 

 
   Sewer main extensions shall be required when the property 

does not front on a sewer main or when the existing sewer 
main is not adequate for the increased use that is being 
proposed.  The minimum extension shall be to a point at least 
5 feet inside the prolongation of the property line. 

 
 5.050 Pressure Sewer (Force Main) Design Standards 
  

A. Force Mains 
 
Force mains may be considered for situations where 
topography makes a gravity sewer impractical. 

  
   Force mains shall be ductile iron AWWA C151 Class 52 or an 

approved equal. A restraint-joint pipe may be required where 
excess trench widths occur. All ductile iron pipe and fittings 
shall be Protecto 401 epoxy coated or PE lined pipe or City 
approved equal, and designed for use with corrosive materials. 

 
    Force mains over 2” shall have a minimum 68 inches of cover 

to top of pipe. This minimum assumes 42 inches cover to an 8-
inch diameter water pipe and 18 inches separation from the 
bottom of water pipe to top of sewer line.  See Section 4.060 for 
sanitary sewer/water main crossing requirements 

 
   The minimum velocity allowed is 2 feet per second (fps) at 

average dry weather flow. Two fps is required to maintain 
solids in suspension although 3 fps is desired to scour settled 
solids. Maximum velocity allowed shall be 8 fps. 

 
B. Valves 

 
   Sewer force main valves shall be ductile iron and epoxy-coated, 

or PE lined and designed for use with corrosive materials. 4” to 
12” valves shall be Waterous Series 500 plug valves or an 
approved equal.  

 
   Three valves shall be installed at each cross and two valves 

shall be installed at every tee. At every lift station, a force main 
isolation valve is required within 10 feet of the station. Valves 
shall be installed at all locations where the size of the pipe 
changes. Valves shall also be installed in-line between nodes at 
sufficient intervals to facilitate system repair, but shall not 
exceed the following: 



SANITARY SEWER 
 

  

 

January 2019 5 - 8 

 

• Every 6,000’ for 4” diameter pipe 

• Every 3,000’ for 6” diameter pipe 

• Every 1,500’ for 8” diameter pipe 

• Every 1,000’ for 10” diameter pipe 

• Every 700’ for 12” diameter pipe 

• Every 500’ for 14” diameter pipe 
 
C. Air/Vacuum Valves 

 
   Air release valves and air/vacuum valves shall be located at 

the high points of the force main within a standard 48-inch 
manhole or a comparable sized approved vault. Air release 
valves shall be fitted with an activated carbon canister to 
absorb compounds with disagreeable odors prior to releasing 
the air to the surrounding area.  Grades shall be designed to 
minimize the need for air/vacuum valves when practical. 
Vehicular access to the each air release/vacuum valve is 
required for maintenance.  

  
D. Force Main Drain  

 
  Provisions to drain a pressure main to facilitate repairs or to 

temporarily remove the force main from service shall be 
provided. This shall be accomplished through the use of a 
valved tee connected to a drain line at the low point of the line. 
A manhole shall be set over the force main at the valved tee. 

 
E. Thrust Blocking 

 
  Locations of thrust blocking shall be shown on the plans. 

Thrust blocks shall be designed for the test pressures set forth 
in Section 4.170 of these Standards.  Thrust block concrete 
shall be Class B poured against undisturbed earth.  A plastic 
barrier shall be placed between all thrust blocks and fittings.  
Designed and approved restraining joint systems may be 
allowed in lieu of thrust blocking.  Restraining joint brand, 
type, and size shall be specified on the plans.  See Standard 
Details W-12, W-13 and W-14 for examples.   

 
F. Force Main Termination 

 
  Hydrogen sulfide odors (H2S), and the buildup of sulfuric acid 

(H2SO4) occur in the operation of a force main.  To mitigate 
these conditions, some type of control method(s) shall be used. 

 



SANITARY SEWER 
 

  

 

January 2019 5 - 9 

   This may include chemical addition at the pump station 
and/or the re-aeration of the wastewater at or near the 
terminus. Re-aeration may include the following: 

 
1. Construction of a vault housing and aspiration assembly. 

 
2. The use of a hydraulic fall (vertical siphon) within the 

terminal manhole. 
 

3. High velocity discharge with smooth transition so as to not 
cause splashing of force main into the downstream gravity 
sewer. 

 
   These methods all require an adequate source of fresh air at 

the vault or manhole.  At a minimum, the manhole at the 
terminus and the first manhole downstream of the terminus 
shall be coated with Tnemec 120 vinyl ester, Quantum 
polymorphic resin or approved equal, under the direction of the 
product representative.  If new gravity manholes are to be 
installed, two PVC lined manholes shall be installed 
downstream of the force main terminus.  Aerators shall be 
contained within an appropriately sized manhole or suitably 
constructed building. 

    
   The pressure main discharge shall be made with a smooth 

transition of flow into the existing flow so as not to cause  
  
 5.060 Sanitary Sewer/Water Main Crossings 
 

   See Section 4.060 for requirements regarding sewer main and 
water main separation at crossings. 

 
 5.070  Manholes 
 

   Manholes shall be provided at a maximum of 300-foot 
intervals. Manholes shall be provided at all intersections, at 
changes in direction, at changes in grade, or where the pipe 
size changes. Mastic is required between risers and between 
risers and castings. A shim will be required under the frame to 
prevent settling.  Minimum slope through the manhole shall be 
1/10th of one foot from invert "in" to invert "out". The manhole 
cone shall be offset to be located out of the tire track of a 
traveled lane. 

 
   Precast manholes shall meet the requirements of ASTM C 478 

with a precast base or a cast-in-place base made from 3000 psi 
structural concrete.  Sanitary sewer manholes shall be 48-inch 



SANITARY SEWER 
 

  

 

January 2019 5 - 10 

diameter minimum. The minimum clear opening in the 
manhole frame shall be 24-inches. Where a drop manhole is 
used, a larger opening may be required.  Joints shall be rubber 
gasketed conforming to ASTM C 443 and shall be grouted from 
the inside and outside with an approved grout and installed 
per the manufacturer’s recommendations. Lift holes shall be 
filled entirely with grout.  Acceptance of precast manholes, 
inlets and catch basins will be based on the presence of a 
“WSDOT Inspected” stamp or tag provided in the field, as 
specified in Section 9-4.41 of WSDOT Construction Manual 
and Section 9-12 of the State of Washington’s Standard 
Specifications. See Details SS-01 and SS-02. 

 
   Manhole covers and frames shall be hinged lid East Jordan 

within paved areas or unless approved by Public Works 
Director. See Standard Detail SS-11.  Manhole rings and 
covers shall be free of porosity, shrink cavities, cold shuts or 
cracks, or any surface defects which would impair 
serviceability.   

 
   Repairs of defects by welding or by the use of smooth-on or 

similar material will not be permitted. Manhole rings and 
covers shall be machine-finished or ground-on seating surfaces 
so as to assure a non-rocking, self-seating (easily removed and 
replaced without the use of a sledge hammer) fit in any 
position and be interchangeable in other standard manhole 
frames. All castings shall be coated with a bituminous coating 
prior to delivery to the job site. 

 
   Lock-type covers shall be required in all multi-family 

complexes, on school grounds, on manholes containing odor 
control devices and as determined by the City.  Where lock-
type castings are required, the casting device shall be such 
that the cover may be readily released from the ring and all 
movable parts shall be made of non-corrosive materials and 
otherwise arranged to avoid possible binding. See Detail SS-11. 

 
   Safety steps shall be fabricated of polypropylene conforming to 

an ASTM D-4101 specification, injection molded around a 1/2-
inch ASTM A-615 grade 60 steel reinforcing bar with anti-slip 
tread, per Section 7 of WSDOT Standard Specifications.  Steps 
shall project uniformly from the inside wall of the manhole. 
Steps shall be installed to form a continuous vertical ladder 
with rungs equally spaced on 12-inch centers.  

 
   Manhole sizing shall be determined by the following criteria: 
 



SANITARY SEWER 
 

  

 

January 2019 5 - 11 

   A. 48-inch Manhole 
 
    1. 2 connecting pipes, 8-inch to 12-inch diameter. 
 
    2. 3 connecting pipes, 8-inch to 10-inch diameter, 90 to 

120 degrees between all pipes. 
 
    3. 4 connecting pipes, 8-inch diameter, perpendicular. 
 
   B. 54-inch Manhole 
 
    1. 2 connecting pipes, 8-inch to 12-inch with less than 

45 degrees deflection.  Deflection=angle between any 
two pipe channels in the manhole. 

 
    2. 3 connecting pipes, 10-inch to 12-inch diameter, 90 

to 120 degrees between all pipes. 
 
    3. 4 connecting pipes, 10-inch to 12-inch diameter, 

perpendicular. 
 
   C. 72-inch Manhole 
 
    1. 2 connecting pipes, 15-inch to 18-inch diameter with 

less than 45 degrees deflection. 
 
    2. 3 connecting pipes, 15-inch diameter, 90 to 120 

degrees between all pipes 
 
    3. 4 connecting pipes, 15-inch diameter, perpendicular 
 
   The above configurations shall provide adequate shelves and 

room for maintenance and performing TV inspections.  For 
other sewer pipe configurations, the size of the manhole shall 
be approved by the City. 

 
 5.080 Slope 
 

   All sewers shall be designed and constructed to give mean 
velocities, when flowing full, of not less than 2.0 feet per 
second based on Manning's formula using an "n" value of 
0.013.  Use of other practical "n" values may be permitted by 
the City if deemed justifiable on the basis of field data 
submitted. The following minimum slopes should be provided; 
however, slopes greater than these are desirable. 

  



SANITARY SEWER 
 

  

 

January 2019 5 - 12 

MINIMUM SLOPE 

Sewer Size 
(inches) 

 
Minimum %Slope 

(Feet per 100 Feet) 

6  1.0 (0.0100 Ft/Ft) 

8  0.40 (0.0040 Ft/Ft) 

10  0.28 (0.0028 Ft/Ft) 

12  0.22 (0.0022 Ft/Ft) 

14  0.17 (0.0017 Ft/Ft) 

15  0.15 (0.0015 Ft/Ft) 

16  0.14 (0.0014 Ft/Ft) 

18  0.12 (0.0012 Ft/Ft) 

21  0.10 (0.0010 Ft/Ft) 

24  0.08 (0.0008 Ft/Ft) 

27  0.07 (0.0007 Ft/Ft) 

30  0.07 (0.0006 Ft/Ft) 

36  0.05 (0.0005 Ft/Ft) 

 
   Sewers shall be laid with uniform slope between manholes. 

Under special conditions, slopes slightly less than those 
required for the 2.0 feet per second velocity may be permitted 
by the City. Such decreased slopes will only be considered 
where the depth of flow will be 0.3 of the diameter or greater 
for design average flow. Whenever such decreased slopes are 
proposed, the engineer shall furnish computations of the 
depths of flow in such pipes at minimum, average, and daily or 
hourly rates of flow. Larger pipe size shall not be allowed to 
achieve lesser slopes unless otherwise approved by the City. 

 
   The maximum tolerance from true line and grade shall be as 

follows:  
 
   A. Maximum deviation from established line and grade shall 

not exceed .0026 feet (1/32-inch) per inch of pipe diameter, 
and not exceed .042 feet (1/2-inch) per pipe length. 

 
   B. No adverse grade in any pipe length will be permitted. 
 
   C. The difference in deviation from established line and grade 

between two successive joints shall not exceed 1/3 of the 
amounts specified above. 

 
 5.090 High Velocity Protection 
 

   Where velocities greater than 15 feet per second are expected, 
special provisions shall be applied such as thrust blocking, 



SANITARY SEWER 
 

  

 

January 2019 5 - 13 

abrasion-resistant manhole and pipe materials, and anti-
abrasive coatings as required by the City.  

 
Anti-abrasive coatings shall be Tnemec 120-5002 Vinester 
(vinyl ester) for prime coat, and Tnemec Series 120-5001 
Vinester (vinyl ester) for the finish coat, applied in a neat and 
workmanlike manner in accordance with the manufacturer’s 
recommendations, or City-approved equal.    
 

 
 5.100 Drops 
 

   Straight grades between inverts of manholes are preferred over 
drops.  Care must be taken when designing steep grades so as 
not to create a situation of excessive velocity or excavation. 

 
   Drops may be allowed as approved by the City. 

 
   An inside drop connection shall be provided for a sewer 

entering a manhole at an elevation of 24-inches or more above 
the manhole invert. Where the difference in elevation between 
the incoming sewer and the manhole invert is less than 24 
inches, the invert shall be filleted to prevent solids deposition.  
An outside drop will not be allowed unless specifically 
approved by the City Public Works Director.  Drop structures 
shall be constructed per Standard Details SS-08 and SS-09.   

 
 5.110 Lampholes 
 
   Lampholes are not an acceptable substitute for manholes. 

However, lampholes may be used in lieu of manholes at the 
end of 6 or 8 inch diameter lines, when approved by the City. 
This does not include a 6 inch building or side sewer to serve 
one or two single-family dwellings.  Location of the cleanout for 
a building sewer is governed by the Uniform Plumbing Code. 

 
   All lampholes in City right-of-way shall be extended to grade.  

A cast iron ring and cover shall be installed around all 
lampholes.  See Standard Detail SS-13.  

 
 5.120  Staking 
 

   All surveying and staking shall be performed by an engineering 
or surveying firm capable of performing such work.  The 
engineer or surveyor directing such work shall be licensed as a 
professional engineer or professional land surveyor by the 
State of Washington.  All construction staking shall be 



SANITARY SEWER 
 

  

 

January 2019 5 - 14 

inspected by the City prior to construction.  The minimum 
staking of sewer lines shall be as follows, or as otherwise 
directed by the City: 

 
   A. Stake the location of mainline pipe every 50-feet with cut to 

invert of pipe. 
 
   B. Stake the location of all manholes for alignment and grade 

with cut or fill to rim and invert of pipes with a minimum of 
two offsets. 

 
   C. Stake the location of all laterals and cleanouts at the 

property line. 
 

   Any deviations from these minimum staking requirements 
shall be approved by the City. 

 
 5.130  Trench Excavation and Pipe Laying 

 
   Clearing and grubbing shall be performed within the easement 

where required, or within the public right-of-way as permitted 
by the City.  Debris resulting from the clearing and grubbing 
shall be disposed of by the contractor in accordance with the 
terms of all applicable permits and regulations.  Track-
mounted equipment shall not be allowed on City streets and 
public rights-of-way outside of the approved project boundaries 
unless authorized by Public Works Director. 

 
   The contractor shall perform all excavation of every 

description.  Where native materials are unsuitable for pipe 
bedding (i.e. boulders, hardpan, clay, rocks, roots and other 
obstructions) the materials shall be entirely removed or cut out 
to the width of the trench and to a depth 6 inches below sewer 
grade.  Where materials are removed from below sewer main 
grade, the trench shall be backfilled to grade with material 
meeting pipe bedding specifications and thoroughly 
compacted. 

 
   Trenches shall be excavated to the line and depth approved by 

the City.  Except for unusual circumstances where approved 
by the City, the trench sides shall be excavated vertically and 
the trench width shall be excavated only to such widths as are 
necessary for adequate working space.  When the support of 
existing utilities or public safety concerns exist, the City may 
require more stringent trenching standards.  Trenching, 
shoring and pipe laying shall be in conformance with 
Washington Industrial Safety and Health Administration 



SANITARY SEWER 
 

  

 

January 2019 5 - 15 

(WISHA), Washington Department of Labor and Industries 
(L&I) and the Office of Safety and Health Administration 
(OSHA) Safety Standards.  Surface water shall be diverted so 
as not to enter the trench.  Where water is encountered in the 
trench, it shall be removed during pipe laying operations, and 
shall be so maintained until the ends of the pipe are sealed 
and provisions are made to prevent floating of the pipe.  Trench 
water or other deleterious materials shall not be allowed to 
enter the pipe at any time.  The contractor shall maintain 
sufficient pumping equipment on the job to ensure that these 
provisions are all carried out.  Disposal of all trench water 
shall meet all local, state and federal guidelines. 

 
   The contractor shall handle all types of pipe in a manner that 

will prevent damage to the pipe.  Pipe and fittings shall be 
loaded and unloaded using hoists and slings in a manner to 
avoid shock or damage, and under no circumstances shall pipe 
be dropped, skidded, or rolled against another pipe.  If the 
Inspector determines that the contractor’s methods are 
damaging to the pipe, the contractor shall correct the handling 
methods.  Damaged pipe will be rejected, and the contractor 
shall immediately place all damaged pipe apart from 
undamaged pipe, and shall remove damaged pipe from the site 
within 24 hours.  Dirt or other foreign material shall be 
prevented from entering the pipe or pipe joint during handling 
or laying operations, and any pipe or fitting that has been 
installed with dirt or foreign material in it shall be removed, 
cleaned and re-laid.  A clean whisk broom shall be used for 
this purpose, and for brushing to remove foreign matter prior 
to joining of pipe ends.  At times when pipe laying is not in 
progress, the open ends of the pipe shall be closed by a 
watertight plug or by other means approved by the Engineer, to 
ensure cleanliness inside the pipe. 

 
   Pipe shall be stacked in such a manner as to prevent damage 

to the pipe, to prevent dirt and debris from entering the pipe, 
and to prevent any movement of the pipe.  The bottom tiers of 
the stack shall be kept off the ground on timbers, rails or other 
similar supports.  Pipe on succeeding tiers shall be alternated 
by bell and plain end.  Timbers 4-inches by 4-inches in size 
shall be placed between tiers, and chocks shall be placed at 
each end to prevent movement.  For public safety, each size of 
pipe shall be stacked separately. 

 
   The trench bottom shall be finished to grade with hand tools in 

such a manner that the pipe will have bearing along the entire 



SANITARY SEWER 
 

  

 

January 2019 5 - 16 

length of the barrel.  The bell holes shall be excavated with 
hand tools to sufficient size to make up the joint. 

 
   Pea gravel backfill will be allowed only to the spring line of the 

sewer main pipe.  For additional requirements regarding trench 
backfilling, temporary patching and pavement restoration, see 
Chapter 2 of these Standards. 

  
 5.140 Testing 
 
   A. Gravity Sewer Main 
 
   Immediately following pipe cleaning, the gravity sewer pipe 

installation shall be tested with low pressure air per WSDOT 
Standard 7.17.3.  

 
The contractor shall make an air test for his own purposes 
prior to notifying the City to witness the test. The acceptance 
air test shall be made after the trench is backfilled and 
compacted and the roadway section is completed to subgrade. 

 
All wyes, tees, and ends of building or side sewer stubs shall 
be plugged with flexible joint caps, or acceptable alternates and 
securely fastened to withstand the internal test pressures. 
Such plugs or caps shall be readily removable and their 
removal shall provide a socket suitable for making a flexible 
jointed lateral connection or extension. 

 
   Prior to approval and acceptance of gravity sewer construction, 

gravity sewer pipes shall be subject to a low pressure air test 
and meet a 4 psi for 15 minutes standard.  A mandrel test or 
equivalent shall be required on all sewers except laterals.  The 
contractor shall furnish all equipment and personnel for 
conducting the tests. 

 
   Testing of the gravity sewer main shall include a television 

inspection by the contractor. The camera must be equipped 
with a rotating head to allow televising of the building or side 
sewers as mainline inspection is occurring. Any tap to an 
existing sewer system also needs to be inspected by television.   

 
   Television inspection shall be done after the air test has been 

approved and before the roadway is paved.  Immediately prior 
to a television inspection, enough water shall be run down the 
line so it comes out the lower manhole. 

 



SANITARY SEWER 
 

  

 

January 2019 5 - 17 

   One copy of the videotape and any accompanying written 
report shall be submitted to the City.  Camera work must be 
completed utilizing the latest version of Cues’ GraniteNet 
Software, or as approved by the City.  Acceptance of the gravity 
sewer line will be made after the tape has been reviewed by the 
City.  

 
    B. Manholes 
 

   A water or a negative air pressure (vacuum) test of all 
manholes on the gravity sewer line is also required. 

 
1. The water test shall be made by the contractor by 

filling the manhole up with water and letting it sit for 
24 hours to allow the water to saturate the concrete. 
After 24 hours the manhole shall be filled to the top 
of the cone. The water cannot drop more than 0.05 
gallons in 15 minutes per foot of head above invert to 
pass. 

 
2. The negative air pressure (vacuum) test may be used 

for testing concrete manholes. After backfilling, plug 
all inverts and lift holes with plugs suitably rated for 
the test pressures.  Plugs shall be placed a minimum 
of 6 inches beyond the manhole wall. Once the 
vacuum tester head assembly is suitably attached to 
the tip of the manhole, the manhole shall be 
evacuated to 10 inches Hg (0.3 bar).  Once a vacuum 
of 10 inches Hg (0.3 bar) is attained, the contractor 
and the City Inspector will monitor to ensure the 
vacuum does not drop in excess of 1-inch Hg over 
the time specified in the table below.  If the manhole 
fails the test, the contractor will identify and seal the 
leak and retest until satisfactory.  This procedure 
shall be repeated after backfilling for final 
acceptance. 

 
VACUUM TEST TIMETABLE 

 

 Manhole Diameter in Inches 

Depth 48-Inch 60-Inch 72-Inch 

4 feet 10 seconds 13 seconds 16 seconds 

8 feet 20 seconds 26 seconds 32 seconds 

12 feet 30 seconds 39 seconds 48 seconds 

16 feet 40 seconds 52 seconds 64 seconds 

20 feet 50 seconds 65 seconds 80 seconds 

24 feet 60 seconds 78 seconds 96 seconds 



SANITARY SEWER 
 

  

 

January 2019 5 - 18 

VACUUM TEST TIMETABLE 
 

 Manhole Diameter in Inches 

Depth 48-Inch 60-Inch 72-Inch 

* 0.5 seconds 6.5 seconds 8.0 seconds 

* Add "I" times for each additional 2-foot depth. (The 
values listed above have been extrapolated from ASTM 
designation C924-85.) 

  
 C. Force Mains  

 
   Prior to acceptance of force main construction, force main and 

service lines shall be subjected to a hydrostatic pressure test of 
200 pounds for 4 hours and any leaks or imperfections 
developing under said pressure shall be remedied by the 
contractor.  No air will be allowed in the line.  The force main 
shall be tested between valves. Insofar as possible, no 
hydrostatic pressure shall be placed against the opposite side 
of the valve being tested. 

 
   The contractor shall provide all necessary equipment and shall 

perform all work connected with the tests.  Tests shall be made 
after all connections shown on the plans have been made. The 
contractor shall perform all tests to ensure that the equipment 
to be used for the test is adequate and in good operating 
condition and the air in the line has been released before 
requesting the City to witness the test. 

 
   A water test for all wet wells in accordance with the manhole 

water test for gravity sewers shall be required. 
 
 5.150   Sewer Lift Station Design Standards 
 

   The design of any public sewer lift station shall conform to the 
Department of Ecology’s Criteria of Sewage Works Design and 
these Standards as applicable.  Public lift stations shall 
conform to the Uniform Plumbing Code and these Standards 
as applicable.  The City may require some lift station 
applications to be customized, depending on the size of service 
area, introduction flow to the station and the pumping 
requirements of the station. 

 
   Five copies of a Design Report with engineering plans shall be 

submitted with each lift station (custom designed or packaged), 
demonstrating its conformance with the Standards.  The 
design report and plans shall provide: 

     



SANITARY SEWER 
 

  

 

January 2019 5 - 19 

   A. Overall site drawing(s) of the lift station showing the 
location of all components including elevations; 

 
B. List(s) of specific materials and components used 

including quantity, description, manufacturer and area 
representative; 

 
C. Schematic and line diagrams of the service, motor control 

center and lift station.  Terminology and abbreviations 
shall be per industry standards.  A legend shall be 
provided on all schematics and line diagram, which shall 
show applicable telemetry points.  A common termination 
point shall be provided in the lift station to interface 
between the lift station and the Remote Telemetry Unit 
(RTU).  Telemetry points shall consist of: 

 

• High Wet Well 

• 1 Pump Run 

• Power Fail 

• Intrusion 

• Low Wet Well 

• 2 Pump Run 

• Pump Fail for each pump 

• Spare 
 

D. An electrical system designed to meet NEC, State and City 
standards.  A 460/277 three-phase system with 100 amp 
outlet and cover shall be provided, equipped with an 
Appleton reverse service receptacle, model ADR1044-RS 
for connection to an emergency generator in the event of a 
power failure, or a City-approved equal.  The receptacle 
outlet cover shall be painted red. 
 

E. All pumps shall have rail guides to facilitate removal and 
replacement. 
 

F. Pump Data: 
 

• Size and type 

• Pump curves 

• Head capacity 

• Velocity 

• Manufacturer/distributor 
 

G. Motor Data: 
 



SANITARY SEWER 
 

  

 

January 2019 5 - 20 

• Size and type 

• Horsepower 

• Service factor 

• Motor insulation 

• Cycle length 

• Full load amps 

• Voltage 

• Frame and type of mount 

• Manufacturer/distributor 
 

H. Controls 

• Timers and relay mounting 

• Motor starter size 

• Phase monitor 

• NEMA type enclosure 

• Thermal magnetic circuit breakers 

• Alternator 

• GFI outlet 

• Indicating lights 

• Level controls approved by City 

• Telemetry failure points 

• Elapse time meters 

• Component manufacturer/distributor 
 

I. Telemetry 
 

• Alarm system (compatible with City system) 
 

J. Housing 
 

• Size and type 

• Ventilation 

• Access 

• Insulation 

• Locking mechanism 

• Hold open device 

• Safety chain 
 

K. Testing 
 

• Factory test 

• Operational test 

• Pressure test 

• Personnel at test 
 



SANITARY SEWER 
 

  

 

January 2019 5 - 21 

L. Piping and Valves 
 

• Size and type 

• Bypass 

• Manufacturer/distributor 
 

M. Spare Parts 
 

• Spare motor 

• One complete mechanical seal unit 

• Two intrinsically safe relays 

• One set of replacement O-rings for all 
components 

• Spare gaskets for all components 
 
   N. Miscellaneous:  Water hose big service (unmetered) 

connected to a double check valve assembly mounted to the 
side of the lift station. 

 
   O. A lift station emergency by-pass connection shall be 

installed. 
 
 5.160 Packaged Lift Stations 
 

   In addition to provisions of Section 5.150, the following are 
minimum requirements for packaged lift stations. 

 
A. Three mercury float switches or transducers as approved 

by the City to control pump down levels in the wet well.  
Each float shall function as follows:  two pumps run; one 
pumps run and pumps off. 

 
B. One mercury float switch or transducer as approved by the 

City in the wet well to signal low wet well conditions. 
 

C. One mercury float switch or transducer as approved by the 
City in the wet well to signal high wet well conditions. 

 
D. Auxiliary Power:  Provision for connection required of all 

lift stations.  The developer may also be required to furnish 
or participate in the cost of an auxiliary generator, at the 
discretion of the City. 

 
E. Well Sizing: 
 

• Type 



SANITARY SEWER 
 

  

 

January 2019 5 - 22 

• Size 

• Storage capacity 

• Access 

• Access to locking mechanism 

• Welding 

• Safety entry equipment 
 

F. Maintenance: 
 

• Warranty 

• Staff training upon completion 

• Tools and equipment required 
 

G. Electrical Service 
 

• Specifications (service size, voltage, motor 
size, enclosure type, etc.) 

• Source of power 

• Calculations 

• Single line diagram 

• Primary distribution equipment 

• Service entrance 

• Branch circuiting 

• Mechanical equipment power requirements 

• Control diagrams and schematics 

• Schedules of fixtures, panel boards and 
switch gear 

• Shop drawings 
 

H. Corrosion Protection 
 

• Type of materials 

• Primer and finish coatings 

• Total thickness in mils, dry 

• Linings 

• Maintenance 
 

I. The control pump down mercury float switches in the wet 
well must be powered through intrinsically safe devices. 

 
J. Mercury float switches or transducers as approved by the 

City in the wet well shall be separated from each other by 
means of a wooden board and spaces to prevent tangling. 

 
K. Wet well ladder rungs shall not extend beyond the 

specified inlet pipe invert elevation into the wet well. 



SANITARY SEWER 
 

  

 

January 2019 5 - 23 

 
L. Inlet pipes into the wet well shall be baffled to reduce 

turbulence in the wet well. 
 

M. Lift station motors and pumps shall be close coupled and 
mounted vertically. 

 
N. A manual toggle switch to allow selection of lead and lag 

pump is required. 
 
O. A five-digit hour meter to 1/10 hour increments is 

required for each pump so that run time can be accounted 
for. 

 
P. The heater shall be controlled by an adjustable 

thermostat. 
 
Q. Lift stations shall have a blower capable of a minimum 

300 cfm. 
 

R. Pump motors shall have sealed bearings requiring no 
lubrication. 

 
   A complete operation and maintenance manual from the lift 

station manufacturer shall be supplied.  Two copies shall be 
submitted for the initial review.  Upon completion of 
construction, 5 copies are to be submitted to the City.  Specific 
components and model numbers shall be in the manual. 

 
 5.170  Private Grinder Pump Systems 
 

   All grinder pump systems shall be privately owned. A private 
grinder pump system may be installed to serve single-family 
residential, multi-family residential, and certain commercial 
and industrial applications where approved by the City.  
Private grinder pump systems will only be allowed where the 
City has accessible sewer service that is at an elevation 
generally higher than the subject property.  The purpose for 
permitting private grinder pump systems and requiring a 
Grinder Sewer System Agreement is to provide a mechanism 
that alerts future property owners of the presence of a 
pressurized sewer system on the property.  Although the on-
site system is private, the Public Works Department requires 
specific wet well and pump standards in addition to inspection 
and testing of the system to reduce the likelihood of inflow and 
infiltration of groundwater into the City's sanitary sewer 
system and to insure that the pump head and pressure are 



SANITARY SEWER 
 

  

 

January 2019 5 - 24 

compatible with the existing sewer system. The system must 
meet City Standards for Cross Connection Control (see section 
4.160). 

 
   If an entire plat is approved for private grinder pump systems, 

Grinder Sewer System Plat Covenants shall be included on the 
plat in lieu of the individual Grinder Sewer System Agreement.  

 
   A Private Grinder Sewer System is an on-site facility consisting 

of a wet well for collecting gravity effluent from the building, 
and a grinder pump situated in the wet well to process the 
effluent into a slurry and convey it into the City sewer system. 

 
   Operation and maintenance of the entire system, including, 

but not limited to, the wet well, pump, controls and piping, 
from the structure to the City sewer main is the responsibility 
of the property owner.  The property owner shall maintain 
access to the wet well to facilitate maintenance of the system. 
The wet well lid should not be covered or buried although the 
owner may place a birdbath, potted plant or other yard 
decoration on the lid as long as it can be readily removed for 
repair or maintenance. 

 
   Private grinder pump systems located on commercially zoned 

properties that have kitchen or cooking facilities such as 
churches, community gathering places, restaurants, schools, 
etc., shall require installation of a grease trap per the Uniform 
Plumbing Code (UPC).  The grease trap shall be installed on the 
gravity building sewer between the building and the wet well. 
Grease traps shall be maintained by the customer to the 
satisfaction of the City and DOH requirements. 

 
   Commercial private grinder pump systems and wet wells 

installed for the purpose of pumping industrial cleaning 
effluent, truck wash bays or car washes shall require the 
installation of an oil/water separator prior to the wet well.  

 
   Excessive use of a garbage disposal may clog the pump and 

piping assembly. The City encourages composting food 
materials instead of using a garbage disposal with grinder 
systems. 

 
   Only sanitary wastewater shall be discharged into the wet well. 

Roof drains and other storm water sources shall be strictly 
prohibited. 

 



SANITARY SEWER 
 

  

 

January 2019 5 - 25 

   The property owner shall be responsible for curtailing water 
usage in the event of a high water alarm or a power outage. In 
the event of an extended power outage, the property owner may 
have to have the wet well pumped to avoid a sewage backup on 
the property or into the structure. 

 
A. Design Standards 

 
   The design of any sewer shall meet all applicable standards 

and specifications as specified herein and as outlined in 
Section 5.020.  Engineered plans are not required for private, 
on-site systems, however, a Grinder Sewer System Application 
complete with a sketch and submittals for the pumping system 
are required.  In addition, either a Grinder Sewer System 
Agreement or Plat Covenants is required.  If the property is 
located outside the City limits and within the City's Urban 
Growth Management Area boundary, a Special Power of 
Attorney for Annexation is required as a condition of service.  

 
B. Building Sewer and Service Lateral  

 
The gravity building sewer pipe between the building and the 
wet well shall be designed and installed in accordance with the 
Uniform Plumbing Code and Section 5.040. A cleanout shall be 
installed on the gravity building sewer, located between the 
structure and the tank, raised to grade and installed per the 
plumbing code. A backwater valve per Section 5.040 is 
required on the gravity line downstream of the cleanout and 
prior to the wet well. 
 
The pressure service line from the pump to the City main shall 
be schedule 80 PVC water pipe, solvent weld joint located at 90 
degrees to the mainline when possible.  Solvent cements and 
primer for joining PVC pipe and fittings shall comply with 
ASTM D 2564 and shall be used as recommended by the pipe 
and fitting manufacturers.  Solvent weld fittings for 1 and 2-
inch pipe shall be socket type Schedule 80 and shall comply 
with ASTM D 1784 and ASTM D 2466.  Pressure sewer services 
shall have a minimum 24-inches cover to top of pipe. 
 
All pressure pipes shall be installed with continuous tracer 
tape installed 12 to 18-inches under the proposed finished 
grade. The marker tape shall be plastic, non-biodegradable, 
metal core or backing that can be detected by a standard metal 
detector. Tape shall be Terra Tape "D" or approved equal. 

 
C. Pressure Lateral Valve and Valve Boxes 



SANITARY SEWER 
 

  

 

January 2019 5 - 26 

 
   A ball valve shall be required at the end of the service stub at 

the property line. Ball valves at the property line shall be 1-1/4 
or 2-inch Philmac FIPT x FIPT ball valves or approved equal. 
Valves shall be left in the "off" position and have a threaded 
plug installed in the end until the lot is inspected and 
approved for connection. 

 
   A check valve is required at the end of the service stub at the 

property line and shall be installed horizontally in a valve box 
along with the ball valve mentioned above. Check valves shall 
be a tee or wye pattern swing check rated for a minimum 
working pressure of 150 psi.  Check valves shall be King 
Brothers, KSC or approved equal. 

 
   All valves shall be designed for use with corrosive fluids. 

 
   The valve box lid shall be marked "Sewer" so they can quickly 

be distinguished from valves in the water system. Valve boxes 
located in traffic areas shall be rated for traffic bearing loads. 

 
D. Wet Well 

 
   The wet well tank shall be high density polyethylene (HDPE), 

fiberglass, or as approved by the City. Both shall be designed 
specifically to function as a sewer wet well for use in corrosive 
environments and shall be sized for the pump and the specific 
contributory flows. 

 
   All tanks shall be furnished with one EPDM grommet fitting to 

accept a 4-1/2-inch outside diameter schedule 40 sewer pipe. 
 
   The access-ways shall be an integral extension of the wet well 

and include a lockable cover assembly. Access-way design and 
construction shall facilitate field adjustment rings in 
increments of 3-inches without the use of any adhesives or 
sealants requiring cure time before installation can be 
completed. 

 
   All wet wells shall have all the necessary penetrations molded 

in and factory sealed.  To ensure a leak-free installation, no 
field penetrations shall be acceptable. 

 
   All discharge piping shall be constructed of 304 series stainless 

steel and terminate outside the access-way bulkhead with a 
stainless steel, 1-1/4-inch female NPT fitting.  The discharge 



SANITARY SEWER 
 

  

 

January 2019 5 - 27 

piping shall include a stainless steel ball valve rated for 200 
psi. 

 
   The access way shall include a single NEMA 6P electrical quick 

disconnect for all power and control functions, factory installed 
with access way penetrations warranted by the manufacturer 
to be watertight. 

 
   The access-way shall also include a 2-inch PVC vent to prevent 

sewerage gases from accumulating in the tank. 
 
   HDPE wells shall have a melt index of 2.0 grams/10 minutes 

or lower to assure high environmental stress cracking 
resistance.  Corrugated sections are to be made of a double 
wall construction with the internal wall being generally smooth 
to promote scouring.  Any incidental sections of a single wall 
portion of the double wall construction area are to be a 
minimum .250-inch thick.  The wet well shall have a nominal 
thickness of 1/2-inch.  All seams created during tank 
construction are to be thermally welded and factory tested for 
leak tightness.  Tank wall and bottom must withstand the 
pressure exerted by saturated soil loading at the maximum 
designed burial depth.  All wet wells must function normally 
when exposed to 150 percent of the maximum external soil and 
hydrostatic pressure. 

 
   Fiberglass wet wells shall be custom molded fiberglass 

reinforced polyester resin.  The tank wall and bottom must 
withstand the pressure exerted by saturated soil loading at 
maximum burial depth.  All station components must function 
normally when exposed to 150 percent maximum external soil 
and hydrostatic pressure. 

 
   All wet wells shall have level transducers with float backup. 

 
E. Anti-Flotation Device 

 
   Groundwater shall be rerouted or pumped to provide a firm, 

dry subgrade for the wet well and to guard against flotation or 
other damage resulting from general water or flooding. 

 
   A concrete anti-flotation collar, sized per the manufacturer’s 

instructions, shall be required and shall be pre-cast to the 
grinder pump station or poured in place.  Each grinder pump 
station with its pre-cast anti-flotation collar shall have a 
minimum of 3 lifting eyes for loading and unloading purposes. 

 



SANITARY SEWER 
 

  

 

January 2019 5 - 28 

   If the concrete is poured in place, the unit shall be leveled, and 
filled with water to the bottom of the inlet to help prevent the 
unit from shifting while the concrete is being poured.  The 
concrete must be manually vibrated to ensure there are no 
voids.  If it is necessary to pour the concrete to a level higher 
than the inlet piping, an 8-inch sleeve is required over the inlet 
prior to the concrete being poured. 

 
F. Backfill for Wet Well 

 
   Proper backfill is critical to the long-term reliability of the wet 

well. The preferred backfill shall be controlled density fill (CDF) 
meeting WSDOT/APWA Standard Specification 2-09.3(1)E. CDF 
is the desired method as it assures proper compaction, 
especially where tight clearances make it difficult to assure 
proper compaction with dry materials. CDF shall not be 
dropped more than 4-feet from the discharge to the bottom of 
the hole to avoid separation of the constituent materials. 

 
   A minimum 6-inches of naturally rounded aggregate, clean and 

free flowing, with particle size of not less than 1/8-inch or 
more than 3/4-inch shall be used as bedding material under 
the wet well. 

 
   Native backfill may be used if it meets Class I or Class II 

backfill material as defined in ASTM 2321.  Class 1A and Class 
IB are recommended where frost heave is a concern.  Class 1B 
shall be used where the native soil is sand or if a high, 
fluctuating water table is expected. 

 
   If native soil consists of clean, compactable soil, with less than 

12 percent fines, free of rocks, roots and organic material, it 
may be an acceptable backfill. It is recommended that a 
geotechnical evaluation of the material be obtained before 
specifying backfill.  Non-compactable clays and silts are not 
suitable backfill for this or any underground structure such as 
inlet or discharge lines. 

 
   Soil must be compacted in lifts not to exceed six inches to 

reach a minimum final density of 85 percent.  The finish grade 
line shall be between 1 and 4 inches below the bottom of the 
lid and final grade shall slope away from the grinder pump 
station.  

 
G. Grinder Pump and Assembly 

 



SANITARY SEWER 
 

  

 

January 2019 5 - 29 

   The grinder pump shall be a custom designed, integral, vertical 
rotor, motor driven, solids handling pump of the progressing 
cavity type with a single mechanical seal.  The rotor shall be 
through-hardened, highly polished, precipitation hardened 
stainless steel.  Stainless steel plated rotors are not allowed. 
The stator shall be of an ethylene propylene synthetic 
elastomer.  The material shall be suitable for use in wastewater 
environments.  The pump shall be capable of delivering 15 
GPM against a rated total dynamic head of 0 feet (0 psig) and 9 
GPM against a rated total dynamic head of 138 feet (60 psig). 
The pump must also be capable of operating at negative total 
dynamic head without overloading the motor. Under no 
conditions shall in-line piping or valving be allowed to create a 
false apparent head. 

 
   The grinder shall be placed immediately below the pumping 

elements and shall be direct-driven by a single, one-piece 
motor shaft.  The grinder impeller assembly shall be securely 
fastened to the pump motor shaft by means of a threaded 
connection attaching the grinder impeller to the motor shaft. 
Attachment by means of pins or keys will not be acceptable. 
The grinder will be of the rotating type with a stationary 
hardened and ground stainless steel shredding ring spaced in 
close annular alignment with the driven impeller assembly, 
which shall carry two hardened type 400 series stainless steel 
cutter bars.  The grinder shall be positioned in such a way that 
solids are fed in an upward flow direction. The maximum flow 
rate through the cutting mechanism must not exceed 4-feet 
per second.  The inlet shroud shall have a diameter of no less 
than 5-inches.  The impeller mechanism must rotate at a 
nominal speed of no greater than 1800 rpm's.  The grinder 
shall be capable of reducing all components in normal 
domestic sewage, including a reasonable amount of "foreign 
objects" to finely divided particles that will pass freely through 
the passages of the pump. 

 
   At a maximum, the motor shall be a 1 hp, 1725 rpm, 240 Volt 

60 Hertz, 1 phase, capacitor start, ball bearing, air-cooled 
induction type with a low starting current not to exceed 30 
amperes.  Inherent protection against running overloads or 
locked rotor conditions for the pump motor shall be provided 
by the use of an automatic-reset, integral thermal overload 
protector incorporated into the motor. 

 
   The grinder pump core unit shall have two lifting hooks 

complete with nylon lift-out harness connected to its top 
housing to facilitate easy core removal when necessary.  All 



SANITARY SEWER 
 

  

 

January 2019 5 - 30 

mechanical and electrical connections must provide easy 
disconnect capability for core unit removal and installation.  A 
push-to-run feature will be provided for field troubleshooting. 
All motor control components shall be mounted on a readily 
replaceable bracket for ease of field service. 

 
   The pump, grinder, motor and control assembly shall be 

E/One complete system as manufactured by Environment One 
Corporation or City approved equal. City approved equals shall 
meet the requirements of a high head, low-pressure system as 
specified herein. 

 
H. Control Panel 

 
   The electrical controls shall be furnished and prewired to 

operate the pump and motor assembly.  A built-in alarm 
system shall be required on every system.  All alarm systems 
shall be UL approved for use in wastewater systems.  The 
alarm paned shall be located in a conspicuous location as per 
the National Electrical Code (NEC) and local codes.  

 
   The power and alarm circuits must be on separate, 15 amp; 

single pole circuit breakers.  The alarm panel shall include 
both audio and visual alarm, push-to-run switches and high 
level (redundant) pump starting controls. The alarm sequence 
is to be as follows: 

 
    1. When liquid level in the sewage wet well rises above 

the alarm level, visual and audio alarms will be 
activated. The contacts on the alarm pressure switch 
will close. The redundant pump starting system will 
be energized.  

 
    2. The audio alarm may be silenced by means of the 

externally mounted, push-to-silence button. 
 
    3. Visual alarm remains illuminated until the sewage 

level in the wet well drops below the "off" setting of 
the alarm pressure switch. 

 
    4. The visual alarm shall be mounted to the control 

panel in such a manner as to maintain NEMA 4X 
rating.  For duplex units, in addition to the above, 
two high-level indicator lights shall be mounted 
behind the access door. 

 
I. Backflow Prevention Device 



SANITARY SEWER 
 

  

 

January 2019 5 - 31 

 
   A backflow prevention device, in accordance with the 

provisions of WAC 246-290-490, is necessary to protect the 
domestic water system from contamination.  The owner shall 
install a backflow prevention device into the water system on 
the property.  The backflow prevention device shall be selected, 
installed and maintained to satisfy any governmental 
regulation and requirements and shall be in accordance with 
Department of Ecology standards. 

 
   The owner, at the owner's sole expense, shall have the 

backflow prevention device inspected annually by a contractor 
certified by the State of Washington for inspection of these 
devices.  A report shall be provided to the City of Shelton 
immediately upon receipt by the owner.  In the event that the 
City does not have a current annual inspection report on file, it 
shall have the right, but not the responsibility, to obtain one 
from a contractor of its choice.  All costs or expenses, and a 20 
percent administrative fee will be billed to the owner. 

 
 5.180  Interim Sewage Facilities – Urban Growth Area  
 

   In those areas located within the City of Shelton's Urban 
Growth Area where annexation or connection to a permanent 
public sewerage system is not feasible, an interim community 
on-site sewer system may be constructed to serve residential 
and light commercial locations, when approved by the City 
prior to design and construction.  In certain cases, a value 
engineering study or approved equivalent may be required by 
the City prior to granting approval for an interim sewerage 
facility.  

    
   Maintenance and pumping of Interim Sewerage Facilities shall 

be the responsibility of the property owner(s).   
 
 5.190  Design Standards for Interim Community On-Site Sewer 

Systems 
 

   The design of any interim on-site sewer system shall conform 
to the criteria as set forth in the City of Shelton Comprehensive 
Plan and these Standards.   

 
   All collection lines, dry lines, pumping stations and all other 

sewer appurtenances and sizing shall be installed at the time 
of initial construction.  The layout of the dry line main 
extension shall provide for the future continuation of the 
existing public sewer system as determined by the City. In 



SANITARY SEWER 
 

  

 

January 2019 5 - 32 

addition, the dry line main extension shall be installed within a 
plat or property prior to new roadway construction and 
extended to and through the side of the affected property 
fronting the main to the existing roadway and sewer main. 

 
   The interim community on-site sewer system shall be designed 

in such a way that each residence will discharge into their own 
on-site septic tank, which will then discharge by gravity into a 
community wet well.  The community wet well will pump the 
effluent into a pressurized community drain field. Upon 
approval of the City of Shelton and Mason County, a 
community system may be designed utilizing an appropriately 
sized community solids tank and subsequent settling tanks 
before discharge into a community wet well.  Tank design 
standards shall meet the applicable standards as set forth 
below for septic tanks. 

 
   Plan for the proposed on-site sewer system shall be prepared 

by a licensed professional engineer registered in the State of 
Washington and shall be submitted to the City for review and 
approval.  The City will coordinate the review by the State and 
County Health Departments, whose approval is also required. 

 
A. Pumping Chamber 
 

The pumping chamber leading to the pressurized drain 
field shall be designed and constructed as set forth in 
Sections 5.150 and 5.160 for Lift Stations.  The dry line 
installed for future connection to the public sewer system 
shall terminate in the pumping chamber.  A valve shall be 
installed outside the wet well connected to the dry line for 
future use. 

 
B. Grinder Pump 
 

All private pumps on service lines shall be grinder pumps.  
Grinder pumps must meet all Uniform Plumbing Code 
requirements and shall connect to a gravity sewer lateral 
at the property or easement line. 

 
C. Septic Tank 
 

Each residence shall have its own septic tank.  Only 
sanitary wastewater shall be discharged into the tank.  
Roof drains and other stormwater sources shall be strictly 
excluded.  The tank shall be watertight, and shall be 
equipped with twin risers as specified, with the exception 



SANITARY SEWER 
 

  

 

January 2019 5 - 33 

that the 24-inch solids riser may be covered a maximum of 
12 inches.  It is the homeowner’s responsibility to locate 
and uncover the solids riser when pumping of the septic 
tank is required.  The 30-inch pump chamber riser may 
not be covered.  It is the property owner’s responsibility to 
pump the tanks. 
 
The effluent shall be discharged by gravity to the 
community pumping chamber.  In the event that 
topography prohibits a specific lot from achieving a gravity 
discharge, an approved STEP system shall be installed. 
 

D. Pipe 
 

   1. Pressurized Drain Field 
 

    All pipe used in construction of the pressurized 
drain field shall be as specified in these Standards 
and shall be specified on the approved plans. 

 
     2. Gravity Lines 
 

   All pipe installed from the septic tanks to the 
pumping chamber, and all dry lines installed for 
future extension shall meet the criteria set forth in 
Section 5.020 of the Standards for gravity sewer 
lines. 

 
    3. Side Sewer or Lateral 

 
   The gravity side sewer or lateral between the 

building and the tank shall be designed and 
installed in accordance with the Uniform Plumbing 
Code.  Maintenance of this line is the property 
owner’s responsibility. 

 
   4.  Connection 
 

     When the dry line is activated by the City, each 
property owner shall be required to connect to the 
public sewer system and decommission the septic 
tank on their property per the applicable Standards.  
This requirement shall be placed on the property title 
prior to the initial sale of the property. 

 
 5.200  Sanitary Sewer Main Construction (General Notes) 
  



SANITARY SEWER 
 

  

 

January 2019 5 - 34 

   In addition to the General Construction Notes in Chapter One, 
the Engineer shall include the following notes on any plans 
dealing with the construction of alterations, extensions or 
connections to the sanitary sewer system. 

 
A. The City shall be notified at least 48 hours in advance of a 

tap connection to an existing sewer main.  The City’s 
inspector shall be present at the time of the tap. 

 
B. All sewer mains shall be field staked for grades and 

alignment by a registered land surveyor or licensed 
engineer. 

 
   C. Pre-cast manholes shall meet the requirements of ASTM 

C478. Manholes shall be Type 1-48" manhole unless 
otherwise specified on the plans. Joints shall be rubber 
gasket conforming to ASTM C443 and shall be grouted from 
the inside. Lift holes shall be grouted from the outside and 
inside of the manhole with an approved grout, installed per 
the manufacturer’s recommendations. 

 
   D. Side sewer services shall be PVC, ASTM D 3034 SDR 35 

with flexible gasket joints. Side sewer connections shall be 
made by a tap to an existing main or a wye branch from a 
new main connected above the spring-line of the pipe. All 
services shall include Tracer Wire. 

 
    E. All lines shall be high velocity cleaned, vacuumed and 

pressure tested in conformance with these Standards.  
Hydrant flushing of lines is not an acceptable cleaning 
method.  Testing of the sanitary sewer main shall include 
TVing of the main by the contractor.  Immediately prior to 
TVing enough water shall be run down the line so it comes 
out the lower manhole.  The video tape shall show the 
distance from the manhole that the camera enters to all 
connections and to the next manhole.  Camera work must 
be completed utilizing the latest version of Cues’ GraniteNet 
Software, or as approved by the City.  A copy of the video 
tape shall be submitted to the City. Acceptance of the line 
will be made after the tape has been reviewed and approved 
by the City. 

 
   F. The contractor shall be responsible for cleanup of any 

debris in new or existing manholes and mains associated 
with the project after the new lines are cleaned.  A vacuum 
test of all manholes in accordance with these Standards is 
also required. Testing shall take place after all underground 



SANITARY SEWER 
 

  

 

January 2019 5 - 35 

utilities are installed and compaction of the roadway 
subgrade is completed. 

 
  G. All discharges from the sewerage collection system and 

spills of any type that may affect human health or the 
environment must be immediately reported by the 
contractor to the City. 

 
  H. Pea gravel shall be allowed for pipe bedding up to the spring 

line of pipe. 
  



SANITARY SEWER 
 

  

 

January 2019 5 - 36 

LIFT STATION INSPECTION CHECKLIST 
 
 
Inspectors: ___________________________________  Date:  _______________________ 

  ___________________________________ 

  ___________________________________ 

 

Name of Lift Station:  ____________________________________________________________ 

Location:______________________________________________________________________ 

Address: ______________________________________________________________________ 

Assigned Lift Station Number:  _______________ 

 

 

AMP reading recorded at startup:  #1 __________  #2 __________  #3 __________ 

Comments:____________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Motor Data:  HP ________ RPM _________ Phase ________ Cycle ________ Volt __________ 

Comments:____________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Pump Design in gallons per minute:  #1 __________  #2 __________ #3 __________ 

 # 1, #2 and #3 __________        TDH __________ 

Comments:____________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Pump performance during startup in gallons per minute: #1 __________#2 __________   

#3 __________  #1, #2 and 3 __________        TDH __________ 

Comments:   

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Hour Meter Readings: #1 ______________ #2 ______________ #3 ______________ 

Comments:____________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Pump #1 Running Amps: L1 ____________  L2 ____________  L3 ____________ 

Pump #2 Running Amps: L1 ____________  L2 ____________  L3 ____________ 

Pump #3 Running Amps: L1 ____________  L2 ____________  L3 ____________ 

 

Note:  Check that motors are not exceeding their nameplate amperage multiplied by the motor 

service factor, (i.e., with FLA = 10 and SF = 1.15, the amperage recorded should not exceed 11.5 

amps). The motor will operate satisfactorily under the following conditions of voltage and 

frequency variation, but not necessarily in accordance with the standards established for 

operation under rated conditions. 

• The voltage variation may not exceed 10% above or below rating specified 

on the motor nameplate. 

 • The frequency variation may not exceed 5% above or below motor 

nameplate. 



SANITARY SEWER 
 

  

 

January 2019 5 - 37 

 • The sum of the voltage and frequency variations may not exceed 10% 

above or below motor nameplate rating, provided the frequency variation does 

not exceed 5%. 

 

Motor Nameplate Amps: #1 ______________ #2 ______________  #3 ______________ 

 

Motor Nameplate SF Amps: #1 ______________ #2 ______________  #3 ______________ 

 

Voltage Taken @ Terminal Block: L1 ____________  L2 ____________  L3 ____________ 

 

 

      OPERATION OKAY 

      Yes  No 

 

Unusual Noise #1 Pump or Motor:     _____  _____ 

Comments:     _______________________________________ 

___________________________________________________ 

 

Unusual Noise #2 Pump or Motor:     _____  _____ 

Comments:     _______________________________________ 

___________________________________________________ 

 

Unusual Noise #3 Pump or Motor:     _____  _____ 

Comments:     _______________________________________ 

___________________________________________________ 

 

Sealed Bearings:     _____  _____ 

Comments:     _______________________________________ 

___________________________________________________ 

 

Pump Alternator Operation:     _____  _____ 

Comments:     _______________________________________ 

___________________________________________________ 

 

Control Panel components:       

 Pump Run Lights:     _____  _____ 

 Hour Meters:     _____  _____ 

 H.O.A.:     _____  _____ 

 Limit Switches:     _____  _____ 

Comments:     _______________________________________ 

___________________________________________________ 

 

 

      OPERATION OKAY 

      Yes  No 

Alarm Functions: 

 Power Fail:     _____  _____ 

 High Wet Well:     _____  _____ 

 Low Wet Well:     _____  _____ 

 



SANITARY SEWER 
 

  

 

January 2019 5 - 38 

 

      OPERATION OKAY 

      Yes  No 

Pump #1 Fail:      _____  _____ 

 Pump #2 Fail:     _____  _____ 

 Dry Well Flood:     _____  _____ 

 Smoke and Fire:     _____  _____ 

 Intrusion:     _____  _____ 

 Pump #1 Run:     _____  _____ 

 Pump #2 Run:     _____  _____ 

Comments:     _______________________________________ 

___________________________________________________ 

 

Actual Wet Well Pump down and fill levels: 

 High Water: ________________ 

 Fill Level: ________________ 

 Pump Down: ________________ 

 Low Level: ________________ 

 

Wet Well blower Operation:     _____  _____ 

Comments:  _______________________________________ 

 _______________________________________ 

 

Wet Well Ladder:     _____  _____ 

Comments:  __________________________________________ 

 

Spare Parts Furnished:     _____  _____ 

Comments:  __________________________________________ 

 

O & M Manuals (5 copies):     _____  _____ 

Comments:  __________________________________________ 

 

Telemetry Function at Maintenance Shop: 

 Power Fail:     _____  _____ 

 High Wet Well:     _____  _____ 

 Low Wet Well:     _____  _____ 

 Pump #1 Fail:     _____  _____ 

 Pump #2 Fail:     _____  _____ 

 Dry Well Flood:     _____  _____ 

 Smoke and Fire:     _____  _____ 

 Intrusion:     _____  _____ 

 Pump #1 Run:     _____  _____ 

 Pump #2 Run:     _____  _____ 

Comments:  _______________________________________ 

 _______________________________________ 

 _______________________________________ 

  



SANITARY SEWER 
 

  

 

January 2019 5 - 39 

      OPERATION OKAY 

      Yes  No 

Locks: 

 Wet Well:     _____  _____ 

 Electrical:     _____  _____ 

 Fenced Area:     _____  _____ 

 

Heater Operation:     _____  _____ 

Comments:  __________________________________________ 

 

Disconnect Operation:     _____  _____ 

Comments:  __________________________________________ 

 

Auxiliary Generator: 

 Plug-in:     _____  _____ 

 Plug-in face plate (red if 480\277/green if 208\120): _____  _____ 

 Transfer Switch:     _____  _____ 

 Operation:     _____  _____ 

Comments:  __________________________________________ 

 

Isolation Valve Operation: 

 Dry Well:     _____  _____ 

 Outside:     _____  _____ 

Comments:  __________________________________________ 

 

Check Valve Operation:     _____  _____ 

Comments:  __________________________________________ 

 

Corrosion Resistant (epoxy coating): 

 Dry Well:     _____  _____ 

 Wet Well:     _____  _____ 

 Force Main Outfall:     _____  _____ 

 Down Stream Manhole:     _____  _____ 

Comments:  __________________________________________ 

 

Emergency Bypass: 

 Components:     _____  _____ 

 Operation:     _____  _____ 

Comments:  __________________________________________ 

 

All nuts and Bolts in Place: 

 Dry Well:     _____  _____ 

 Wet Well:     _____  _____ 

Comments:  __________________________________________ 

 

All Mechanical Components Installed: 

 Dry Well:     _____  _____ 

 Wet Well:     _____  _____ 

Comments:  __________________________________________ 



SANITARY SEWER 
 

  

 

January 2019 5 - 40 

      OPERATION OKAY 

          Yes  No 

Wet Well Piping for Proper Size:     _____  _____ 

 

Heavy Ribbed Neoprene Mat Dry Well Floor:     _____  _____ 

 

Control Panel Enclosures with Appropriate UL Labels:   _____  _____ 

Comments:  __________________________________________ 

 

Wiring Schematics for Correlation:     _____  _____ 

Comments:  _______________________________________ 

 _______________________________________ 

 _______________________________________ 

 

Wire Gauge (usually 18):      _____  _____ 

Comments:     _______________________________________ 

___________________________________________________ 

 

Electrical Conduit for Defects:     _____  _____ 

Comments:  _______________________________________ 

 _______________________________________ 

 _______________________________________ 

 

Terminal Block:      _____  _____ 

Comments:  _______________________________________ 

 _______________________________________ 

 _______________________________________ 

 

Proper Sized Circuit Breakers & Fuses:     _____  _____ 

Comments:  _______________________________________ 

 _______________________________________ 

 _______________________________________ 

 

Electrical Control Devices Sized for Motor Horse Power:   _____  _____ 

Comments:  _______________________________________ 

 _______________________________________ 

 _______________________________________ 

 

Overload Devices, Trip Test & Manual Reset:     _____  _____ 

Comments:  _______________________________________ 

 _______________________________________ 

 _______________________________________ 

 

All Wires Connected:     _____  _____ 

Comments:  _______________________________________ 

 _______________________________________ 

 _______________________________________ 

 

Air Release Valve on Discharge:     _____  _____ 

Comments:  __________________________________________ 

 



SANITARY SEWER 
 

  

 

January 2019 5 - 41 

      OPERATION OKAY 

          Yes  No 

Warranty:      _____  _____ 

Comments:  __________________________________________ 

 

Debris in Wet Well:     _____  _____ 

Comments:  _______________________________________ 

 _______________________________________ 

 _______________________________________ 

 

Infiltration Points:     _____  _____ 

Comments:  _______________________________________ 

 _______________________________________ 

 _______________________________________ 

 

Cleanliness:      _____  _____ 

Comments:  _______________________________________ 

 _______________________________________ 

 _______________________________________ 

 

Proper Pump Rotation (shaft moves in direction of arrows):   _____  _____ 

Comments:  __________________________________________ 

 

PSI Gauges Prime Chamber:     _____  _____ 

Comments:  __________________________________________ 

 

 

 

      OPERATION OKAY 

          Yes  No 

 

Operation of Latch:     _____  _____ 

Comments:  __________________________________________ 

 

Operation of Entrance Cover:     _____  _____ 

Comments:  __________________________________________ 

 

Operation of Cover Safety Latch:     _____  _____ 

Comments:  __________________________________________ 

 

Hose bib and DCVA:     _____  _____ 

Comments:  __________________________________________ 

 



SANITARY SEWER 
 

  

 

January 2019 5 - 42 

L I S T  O F  D R A W I N G S  
C H A P T E R  5  S E W E R  

 
 
Title Drawing 
Type 1 Manhole (48” & 54”) ...................................................................  SS-01 
Type 2 Manhole (72” & 96”) ...................................................................  SS-02 
Type 3 Manhole  ....................................................................................  SS-03 
Polypropylene Ladder  ............................................................................  SS-04 
Alternate Polypropylene Plastic Step  .....................................................  SS-04A 
4" Single Sanitary Sewer Lateral Service  ...............................................  SS-05 
6" Single Sanitary Sewer Lateral Service  ...............................................  SS-06 
Typical Cleanout and Backwater Valve  .................................................  SS-07 
Outside Drop Manhole Connection  .......................................................  SS-08 
Inside Drop Manhole Connection  ..........................................................  SS-09 
Manhole Ring and Cover  .......................................................................  SS-10 
East Jordan Manhole Frame And Cover  ................................................  SS-11 
Manhole & Lamphole Surface Restoration within Right-of-Way .............  SS-12 
Cleanout Detail  .....................................................................................  SS-13 
Sewer Main Lamphole Detail ..................................................................  SS-13A 
ROMAC Style “CB” Sewer Saddle  ..........................................................  SS-14 
Sewer Line Terminology  ........................................................................  SS-15 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK  ...........................................  SS-16 
THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK  ...........................................  SS-17 



TYPE 1 MANHOLE (48" & 54")

EAST JORDAN MANHOLE FRAME & COVER

ALTERNATE POLYPROPYLENE PLASTIC STEP

INSIDE DROP MANHOLE CONNECTION

MANHOLE RING AND COVER

OUTSIDE DROP MANHOLE CONNECTION

TYPICAL CLEANOUT & BACKWATER VALVE

TYPE 2 MANHOLE (72" & 96")

POLYPROPYLENE LADDER

4" SINGLE SANITARY SEWER LATERAL SERVICE

SS-01

SS-02

SS-03

SS-04

SS-04A

SS-06

SS-07

SS-08

SS-09

SS-10

SS-11

SS-12

SANITARY SEWER DETAILS

TABLE OF CONTENTS

SS-05

6" SINGLE SANITARY SEWER LATERAL SERVICE

CLEANOUT DETAILSS-13

SS-14

SEWER LINE TERMINOLOGYSS-15

ROMAC STYLE "CB" SEWER SADDLE

(TYPICAL SEWER CONNECTION TO EXISTING SEWER MAIN)

MANHOLE  & LAMPHOLE SURFACE RESTORATION WITHIN THE RIGHT-OF-WAY

TYPE 3 MANHOLE 

(r.4)

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANKSS-16

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANKSS-17

SEWER MAIN LAMPHOLE DETAILSS-13A



NOTES:

RISER DETAIL

(PLAN VIEW)

C

I

O

N

N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

C

I

O

N

N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

MAHOLE

TYPE 1

48" & 54"

SS-01

AutoCAD SHX Text
MASTIC & GROUT REQUIRED 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BETWEEN EACH RISER LIFT &

AutoCAD SHX Text
BETWEEN FRAME AND RISER

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAMREX LID

AutoCAD SHX Text
KOR-N-SEAL BOOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LADDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRECAST RISER SECTIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE DET. SS-04A

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRECAST CONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(ECCENTRIC UNLESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
OTHERWISE SPECIFIED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJUSTMENT SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRADE RINGS REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
16" MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
48" DIA.-6" 54" DIA.-8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
REINFORCING STEEL (FOR SEPARATE BASE ONLY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.23 SQ. FT./IN. EACH DIRECTION FOR 48" DIA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.30 SQ. FT./IN. EACH DIRECTION FOR 54" DIA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEPARATE CAST IN PLACE OR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRUSHED SURFACING BASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COURSE 6" MIN. DEPTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACTED TO 95% OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
STANDARD DENSITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRECAST BASE WITH 

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTEGRAL RISER

AutoCAD SHX Text
REINFORCING STEEL (FOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRECAST BASE WITH

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTEGRAL RISER)

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.15 SQ. IN/FT IN EACH

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIRECTION FOR 48" DIA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.19 SQ. IN/FT IN EACH

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIRECTION FOR 54" DIA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCT CHANNEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND SHELF TO THE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CROWN OF THE PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. HEIGHT 8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAX. HEIGHT 25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(SEE NOTE 7)

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAX. HOLE SIZE IS 36"

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR 48" MANHOLE, 42"

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR 54" MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(SEE NOTES 5 & 6)

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
48" OR 54"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(SEE RISER DETAIL THIS SHT.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(GROUT INTERIOR)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(GROUT INSIDE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEPARATE PRECAST BASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
28"

AutoCAD SHX Text
MANHOLES TO BE CONSTRUCTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH  AASHTO M-199 (ASTM C 478) UNLESS OTHERWISE SHOWN ON PLANS OR NOTED IN STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL REINFORCED CAST IN PLACE CONCRETE SHALL BE CLASS 4000.  NON-REINFORCED CONCRETE IN CHANNEL AND SHELF SHALL BE CLASS 3000.  ALL PRECAST CONCRETE SHALL BE CLASS 4000.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRECAST BASES SHALL BE FURNISHED WITH CUTOUTS OR KNOCKOUTS.  KNOCKOUTS SHALL HAVE A WALL THICKNESS OF 2" MINIMUM.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL BASE REINFORCING STEEL SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM YIELD STRENGTH OF 60,000 PS AND BE PLACED IN THE UPPER HALF OF THE BASE WITH 1" MINIMUM CLEARANCE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
KNOCKOUT OR CUTOUT HOLE SIZE IS EQUAL TO PIPE OUTER DIAMETER PLUS MANHOLE WALL THICKNESS.  MAXIMUM HOLE SIZE IS 36" FOR 48" MANHOLE, 42" FOR 54" MANHOLE. MINIMUM DISTANCE BETWEEN HOLES IS 8" (MEASURED ON THE INSIDE OF THE MANHOLE).

AutoCAD SHX Text
MANHOLE SIZE DEPENDS ON SIZES, LOCATION AND NUMBERS OF HOLES FOR PIPES.  MANHOLE DESIGN AND SIZE SHALL BE APPROVED AND WARRANTED BY THE MANHOLE SUPPLIER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR HEIGHTS OVER 25' MANHOLE BASE SLAB DESIGN SHALL  BE DESIGNED BY A STRUCTURAL ENGINEER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUT ALL PICK HOLES INSIDE & OUTSIDE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RISER SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
MASTIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
OUTSIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OUTSIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
MASTIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
RISER SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE DET. SS-04

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR PATCHING VOIDS AROUND PIPES, PICKING EYE HOLES, BETWEEN SECTIONS &  RISERS, AND FRAMES, USE: QUIKRETE  NON-SHRINK  PRECISION GROUT-PRODUCT  NO. 1585-00 OR QUIKCRETE COMMERCIAL GRADE FASTSET DOT MIX PRODUCT NO. 1244-56 -81. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOLLOW ALL INSTRUCTIONS PROVIDED BY QUIKRETE  CO. SPECIFIC TO PRODUCT USED REGARDING MIXING DURATION, TEMPERATURE, ETC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS



NOTES:

RISER DETAIL (PLAN VIEW)

PRECAST BASE JOINT

C

I

O

N

N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

C

I

O

N

N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

MANHOLE

TYPE 2

72" & 96"

SS-02

AutoCAD SHX Text
MASTIC & GROUT REQUIRED 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BETWEEN EACH RISER LIFT &

AutoCAD SHX Text
BETWEEN FRAME AND RISER

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAMREX LID

AutoCAD SHX Text
KOR-N-SEAL BOOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LADDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRECAST RISER SECTIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE STD. DETAIL ____

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRECAST CONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(ECCENTRIC UNLESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
OTHERWISE SPECIFIED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJUSTMENT SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRADE RINGS REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
28" MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
72" DIA.-8" 96" DIA.-12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
REINFORCING STEEL (FOR SEPARATE BASE ONLY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.35 SQ. FT./IN. EACH DIRECTION FOR 72" DIA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.39 SQ. FT./IN. EACH DIRECTION FOR 96" DIA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEPARATE CAST IN PLACE OR SEPARATE PRECAST BASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRUSHED SURFACING BASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COURSE 6" MIN. DEPTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACTED TO 95% OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
STANDARD DENSITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRECAST BASE WITH 

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTEGRAL RISER

AutoCAD SHX Text
REINFORCING STEEL (FOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRECAST BASE WITH

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTEGRAL RISER)

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.24 SQ. IN/FT IN EACH

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIRECTION FOR 72" DIA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.29 SQ. IN/FT IN EACH

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIRECTION FOR 96" DIA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCT CHANNEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND SHELF TO THE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CROWN OF THE PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAX. HEIGHT 25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(SEE NOTE 7)

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAX. HOLE SIZE IS 60"

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR 72" MANHOLE, 84"

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR 96" MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(SEE NOTES 5 & 6)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.

AutoCAD SHX Text
48" OR 54"

AutoCAD SHX Text
RISER SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
MASTIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
OUTSIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(SEE RISER DETAIL THIS SHT.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(GROUT INTERIOR)

AutoCAD SHX Text
MORTAR FILLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
72" OR 96"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"/FT (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
16" MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE STD. DETAIL ____

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
*"O" RING

AutoCAD SHX Text
* FOR SEPARATE CAST

AutoCAD SHX Text
IN PLACE ONLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
(GROUT INSIDE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS-04

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS-04A

AutoCAD SHX Text
MANHOLES TO BE CONSTRUCTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH  AASHTO M-199 (ASTM C 478) UNLESS OTHERWISE SHOWN ON PLANS OR NOTED IN STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL REINFORCED CAST IN PLACE CONCRETE SHALL BE CLASS 4000.  NON-REINFORCED CONCRETE IN CHANNEL AND SHELF SHALL BE CLASS 3000.  ALL PRECAST CONCRETE SHALL BE CLASS 4000.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRECAST BASES SHALL BE FURNISHED WITH CUTOUTS OR KNOCKOUTS.  KNOCKOUTS SHALL HAVE A WALL THICKNESS OF 2" MINIMUM.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL BASE REINFORCING STEEL SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM YIELD STRENGTH OF 60,000 PS AND BE PLACED IN THE UPPER HALF OF THE BASE WITH 1" MINIMUM CLEARANCE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUT ALL PICK HOLES INSIDE AND OUTSIDE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR HEIGHTS OVER 25' MANHOLE BASE SLAB DESIGN SHALL  BE DESIGNED BY A STRUCTURAL ENGINEER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MANHOLE SIZE DEPENDS ON SIZES, LOCATION AND NUMBERS OF HOLES FOR PIPES.  MANHOLE DESIGN AND SIZE SHALL BE APPROVED AND WARRANTED BY THE MANHOLE SUPPLIER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
KNOCKOUT OR CUTOUT HOLE SIZE IS EQUAL TO PIPE OUTER DIAMETER PLUS MANHOLE WALL THICKNESS.  MAXIMUM HOLE SIZE IS 60" FOR 72" MANHOLE, 84" FOR 96" MANHOLE. MINIMUM DISTANCE BETWEEN HOLES IS 12" (MEASURED ON THE INSIDE OF THE MANHOLE).

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR PATCHING VOIDS AROUND PIPES, PICKING EYE HOLES, BETWEEN SECTIONS &  RISERS, AND FRAMES, USE: QUIKRETE  NON-SHRINK  PRECISION GROUT-PRODUCT  NO. 1585-00 OR QUIKCRETE COMMERCIAL GRADE FASTSET DOT MIX PRODUCT NO. 1244-56 -81. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
MORTAR MUST BE MIXED BY A MECHANICAL DEVICE, SUCH AS DRILL & PADDLE MIXER. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOLLOW ALL INSTRUCTIONS PROVIDED BY QUIKRETE  CO. SPECIFIC TO PRODUCT USED REGARDING MIXING DURATION, TEMPERATURE, ETC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS



S
E

E
 
T

A
B

L
E

R
I
S

E
R

 
D

E
T

A
I
L
 
(
P

L
A

N
 
V

I
E

W
)

P
R

E
C

A
S

T
 
B

A
S

E
 
J
O

I
N

T

M
A

N
H

O
L

E
 
D

I
M

E
N

S
I
O

N
 
T

A
B

L
E

M
I
N

.
M

A
X

I
M

U
M

M
I
N

I
M

U
M

W
A

L
L

K
N

O
C

K
O

U
T

D
I
S

T
A

N
C

E

T
H

I
C

K
N

E
S

S
S

I
Z

E
B

E
T

W
E

E
N

K
N

O
C

K
O

U
T

S

M
I
N

.

B
A

S
E

T
H

I
C

K
N

E
S

S

4
8
"

D
I
A

M
.

4
"

6
"

3
6
"

8
"

5
4
"

4
.
5
"

8
"

4
2
"

6
0
"

5
"

4
8
"

7
2
"

6
"

6
0
"

8
4
"

8
"

7
2
"

9
6
"

8
"

8
4
"

1
2
0
"

1
0
"

4
2
"

1
4
4
"

1
2
"

1
2
"

1
0
8
"

1
2
"

8
"

8
"

1
2
"

1
2
"

1
2
"

8
"

8
"

1
2
"

1
2
"

1
2
"

1
2
"

N
O

T
E

S
:

C

I

O

N
N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

C

I

O

N
N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

M
A

N
H

O
L
E

T
Y

P
E

 
3

S
S

-
0
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAMREX LID

AutoCAD SHX Text
KOR-N-SEAL BOOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
28" MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
72" DIA.-8" 96" DIA.-12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
REINFORCING STEEL (FOR SEPARATE BASE ONLY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.35 SQ. FT./IN. EACH DIRECTION FOR 72" DIA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.39 SQ. FT./IN. EACH DIRECTION FOR 96" DIA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEPARATE CAST IN PLACE OR SEPARATE PRECAST BASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRUSHED SURFACING BASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COURSE 6" MIN. DEPTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACTED TO 95% OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
STANDARD DENSITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTEGRAL RISER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCT CHANNEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND SHELF TO THE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CROWN OF THE PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'-0" MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RISER SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(GROUT INTERIOR)

AutoCAD SHX Text
MORTAR FILLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24:1 TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
16" MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
*"O" RING

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS-04

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS-04A

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRECAST RISER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION(S)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(GROUT INSIDE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
REINFORCING STEEL (FOR PRECAST BASE WITH INTEGRAL RISER) 0.24 SQ. IN/FT IN EACH DIRECTION FOR 72" DIA. 0.29 SQ. IN/FT IN EACH DIRECTION FOR 96" DIA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LADDER SEE STD. DETAIL ____

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEPS SEE STD. DETAIL ____

AutoCAD SHX Text
* FOR SEPARATE CAST IN PLACE ONLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
MASTIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
OUTSIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MASTIC & GROUT REQUIRED  BETWEEN EACH RISER LIFT & BETWEEN FRAME AND RISER (SEE RISER DETAIL THIS SHT.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. OF 1 ADJUSTMENT SECTION GRADE RING (RISER) REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MANHOLES TO BE CONSTRUCTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH  AASHTO M-199 (ASTM C 478) UNLESS OTHERWISE SHOWN ON PLANS OR NOTED IN STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL REINFORCED CAST IN PLACE CONCRETE SHALL BE CLASS 4000.  NON-REINFORCED CONCRETE IN CHANNEL AND SHELF SHALL BE CLASS 3000.  ALL PRECAST CONCRETE SHALL BE CLASS 4000.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRECAST BASES SHALL BE FURNISHED WITH CUTOUTS OR KNOCKOUTS.  KNOCKOUTS SHALL HAVE A WALL THICKNESS OF 2" MINIMUM.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL BASE REINFORCING STEEL SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM YIELD STRENGTH OF 60,000 PS AND BE PLACED IN THE UPPER HALF OF THE BASE WITH 1" MINIMUM CLEARANCE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUT ALL PICK HOLES INSIDE AND OUTSIDE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MANHOLE SIZE DEPENDS ON SIZES, LOCATION AND NUMBERS OF HOLES FOR PIPES.  MANHOLE DESIGN AND SIZE SHALL BE APPROVED AND WARRANTED BY THE MANHOLE SUPPLIER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLAT SLAB TOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR PATCHING VOIDS AROUND PIPES, PICKING EYE HOLES, BETWEEN SECTIONS &  RISERS, AND FRAMES, USE: QUIKRETE  NON-SHRINK  PRECISION GROUT-PRODUCT  NO. 1585-00 OR QUIKCRETE  COMMERCIAL GRADE FASTSET DOT MIX PRODUCT NO. 1244-56 -81. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
MORTAR MUST BE MIXED BY A MECHANICAL DEVICE, SUCH AS DRILL & PADDLE MIXER. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOLLOW ALL INSTRUCTIONS PROVIDED BY QUIKRETE  CO. SPECIFIC TO PRODUCT USED REGARDING MIXING DURATION, TEMPERATURE, ETC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS



NOTES:

C

I

O

N
N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

C

I

O

N
N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

POLYPROLENE

LADDER

SS-04

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAIL 9/16"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROUND BAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
RUNG 1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRADE 60

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
11-1/2'

AutoCAD SHX Text
3-1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANCHOR PADS

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 3/4"x 2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
W/7/8" DIA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" DIA.x 3" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
GALVANIZED

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANCHOR BOLTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4" RADIUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEPS SHALL BE STEEL REINFORCED COPOLYMER POLYPROPYLENE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLASTIC CONFORMING TO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
(A)  ASTM C 478 AND AASHTO M-199, MINIMUM HORIZONTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
    LOAD SHALL BE 1500 LBS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(B)  ASTM A615 GRADE 60 (DEFORMED REINFORCING STEEL BAR).

AutoCAD SHX Text
(C)  POLYPROPYLENE CONFORMS TO D-4101.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MANHOLE STEPS SHALL HAVE MOLDED SAFETY HAND GRIP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RED REFLECTORS ARE PREFERRED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL FABRICATION DIMENSIONS INDICATED ARE MINIMUM.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE ENTIRE POLYPROPYLENE PLASTIC MATERIAL SURROUNDING THE REINFORCING

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEEL BAR SHALL BE CAST MONOLITHICALLY.  MINIMUM COVER SHALL BE 3/16-INCH.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEPS SHALL BE SPACED AT A MAXIMUM OF 12-INCHES.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEPS SHALL BE INSTALLED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE APPROVED MANUFACTURERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECOMMENDED PROCEDURE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS



NOTES:

SIDE ELEVATION SECTION A-A

PLAN

ELEVATION

A

A

C

I

O

N
N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

C

I

O

N
N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

ALTERNATE

POLYPROPYLENE

PLASTIC STEP

SS-04A

AutoCAD SHX Text
NON-SLIP PATTERN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXTRACTION RESISTANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NON-SLIP TREAD SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" GRADE 60

AutoCAD SHX Text
REINFORCING

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEEL BAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15/16"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 1/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
13"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3%%188"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
11%%189"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEPS SHALL BE STEEL REINFORCED COPOLYMER POLYPROPYLENE PLASTIC CONFORMING TO:

AutoCAD SHX Text
(A) ASTM D 478 AND AASHTO M-199, EXCEPT THAT THE MINIMUM HORIZONTAL PULLOUT LOAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHALL BE 1500 LBS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(B)  ASTM A 615 GRADE 60 (DEFORMED REINFORCING STEEL BAR).

AutoCAD SHX Text
ONLY STEPS APPROVED BY THE ENGINEER SHALL BE USED..

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL FABRICATION DIMENSIONS INDICATED ARE MINIMUM.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE MINIMUM TOTAL CROSS-SECTIONAL AREA OF THE EXPOSED PORTION OF THE STEEL,

AutoCAD SHX Text
INCLUDING THE 1/2-INCH DEFORMED REINFORCING STEEL BAR, AND EXCLUDING THE NON-SLIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREAD SURFACE, SHALL BE ONE SQUARE INCH.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE ENTIRE POLYPROPYLENE PLASTIC MATERIAL SURROUNDING THE REINFORCING STEEL BAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHALL BE CAST  MONOLITHICALLY.  MINIMUM COVER SHALL BE 3/16-INCH.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE FOLLOWING DIMENSIONS SHALL APPLY UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED ON THE DRAWINGS OR

AutoCAD SHX Text
STANDARD PLANS FOR SPECIFIC STRUCTURES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
  D = 6" ±1/4", E = 1/4" ±1/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEP SHALL BE SPACED AT A MAXIMUM OF 12-INCHES.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEPS SHALL BE INSTALLED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDED

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROCEDURE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS



NOTES: 

BEDDING NOTES:

TEE WYE

TYPE "CB" SEWER SADDLE

FOR CONNECTION 

TO EXISTING SEWER MAIN

FOR CONNECTION 

TO NEW SEWER MAIN

(SEE C.O. SHELTON STD. DETAIL SS-14)

PLAN VIEW

4" MIN. DIAMETER

LATERAL SERVICE

SS-05

SINGLE SANITARY SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT OF WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"%%C MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEE WYE

AutoCAD SHX Text
IF APPLICABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
45%%D VERTICAL BEND 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE TYPICAL CLEANOUT &

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKWATER VALVE INSTALLATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETAIL SS-07.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FITTINGS AS REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO GET PERPENDICULAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO GROUND SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND CLEANOUT (DET SS-13)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACER WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISHED GROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEWER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIA. PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"%%C MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
IF APPLICABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
45%%D VERTICAL BEND 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEE WYE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF PLUG TO BE 4" CLR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
REQUIRED BY CITY ENG.

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W OR AS OTHERWISE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' MIN (TYP) AT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE NOTE 5.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RING & COVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO GLUED FITTINGS ALLOWED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
45° MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(SEE DET. SS-12)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FITTINGS AS REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO GROUND SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO GET C.O. PERPENDICULAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.

AutoCAD SHX Text
IF THE LATERALS STOPS AT THE EDGE OF RIGHT OF WAY,

AutoCAD SHX Text
TERMINATE THE LINE WITH A WINGNUT PIPE PLUG/CHERNE

AutoCAD SHX Text
.01FT/FT MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WRAP LATERAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN TO C.O.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEDDING AND GRADE SHALL BE ESTABLISHED PRIOR TO PIPE BEING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLACED IN TRENCH.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE C.O. SHELTON STD. DETAILS T-18 AND T-19 FOR TRENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
RESTORATION ABOVE THE PIPE ZONE BEDDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL BACKFILL FOR PIPE ZONE BEDDING SHALL CONFORM WITH

AutoCAD SHX Text
WSDOT STD. SPEC. 9-03.12(3).  PEA GRAVEL ALLOWED TO 50%%% OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE O.D. (SPRING LINE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.

AutoCAD SHX Text
IF SEWER MAIN ELEVATION DOES NOT ALLOW 6' MIN. DEPTH OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
LATERAL AT R/W LINE, INSTALL LATERAL AS DEEP AS POSSIBLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHILE MAINTAINING MIN. SLOPE.  CONFIRM ELEVS. W/ PROJECT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
IF TERMINATING @ R/W - 

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL CHERNIE PLUG IN

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEE WYE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL BACKFILL FOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE ZONE BEDDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE BEDDING NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIS SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
BELOW UNDERSIDE OF COVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE CONCRETE COLLAR (DET SS-12)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPRING LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEER BEFORE LATERAL INSTALLATION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEWER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACER WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE SHALL BE PVC SDR 3035

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE & GASKET.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. COLLAR (SEE DET. SS-12)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WING NUT PIPE  PLUG -CHERNE  INDUSTRIES OR APPROVED EQUAL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
INDUSTRIES OR APPROVED EQUAL IN TEE WYE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACER WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ON SEWER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACER WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ON MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXTEND & SPOOL 3' OF ADDITIONAL TRACER WIRE UNDER RING AND COVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS



NOTES: 

BEDDING NOTES:

TYPE "CB" SEWER SADDLE

FOR CONNECTION 

TO EXISTING SEWER MAIN

(SEE C.O. SHELTON STD. DETAIL SS-14)

PLAN VIEW

TEE WYE

FOR CONNECTION 

TO NEW SEWER MAIN

6" MIN. DIAMETER

LATERAL SERVICE

SS-06

SINGLE SANITARY SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT OF WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACER WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISHED GROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEWER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIA. PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"%%C MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
IF APPLICABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
45%%D VERTICAL BEND 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEE WYE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF PLUG TO BE 4" CLR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
REQUIRED BY CITY ENG.

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W OR AS OTHERWISE

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' MIN (TYP) AT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE NOTE 5.

AutoCAD SHX Text
45° MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FITTINGS AS REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO GROUND SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO GET PERPENDICULAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.

AutoCAD SHX Text
IF THE LATERALS STOPS AT THE EDGE OF RIGHT OF WAY,    TERMINATE THE LINE WITH A WING NUT PIPE PLUG/CHERNE INDUSTRIES  OR APPROVED EQUAL IN TEE WYE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEDDING AND GRADE SHALL BE ESTABLISHED PRIOR TO PIPE BEING PLACED IN TRENCH.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.01FT/FT MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXTEND & SPOOL 3' OF TRACER WIRE UNDER RING AND COVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
WRAP LATERAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN TO C.O.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE C.O. SHELTON STD. DETAILS T-18 & T-19 FOR TRENCH RESTORATION ABOVE THE PIPE ZONE BEDDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL BACKFILL FOR PIPE ZONE BEDDING SHALL CONFORM WITH WSDOT STD. SPEC. 9-03.12(3).  PEA GRAVEL ALLOWED TO 50% OF THE O.D. (SPRING LINE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
IF TERMINATING @ R/W - 

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL CHERNIE PLUG IN TEE WYE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL BACKFILL FOR PIPE ZONE BEDDING SEE BEDDING NOTES THIS SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
BELOW UNDERSIDE OF COVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE COLLAR (SEE DET. SS-12)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPRING LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT OF WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"%%C MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEE WYE

AutoCAD SHX Text
IF APPLICABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
45%%D VERTICAL BEND 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FITTINGS AS REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO GET PERPENDICULAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO GROUND SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND CLEANOUT (DET SS-13)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE CONCRETE COLLAR (DET SS-12)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEWER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACER WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
(MAIN TO C.O.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
#6 REBAR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
@ END OF STUB OUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
#6 BAR FROM INVERT OF PIPE TO 4" BELOW FINISH GROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
WING NUT PIPE PLUG-CHERNE  INDUSTRIES OR APPROVED EQUAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACER WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ON SEWER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE TYPICAL CLEANOUT &

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKWATER VALVE INSTALLATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETAIL SS-07.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO GLUED FITTINGS ALLOWED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE SHALL BE PVC SDR 3035

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE & GASKET.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RING & COVER (SEE DET. SS-12)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.

AutoCAD SHX Text
IF SEWER MAIN ELEVATION DOES NOT ALLOW 6' MIN. DEPTH OF LATERAL AT R/W LINE, INSTALL LATERAL AS DEEP AS POSSIBLE WHILE MAINTAINING MIN. SLOPE.  CONFIRM ELEVS. W/ PROJECT ENGINEER BEFORE LATERAL INSTALLATION. 



TYPICAL BASEMENT INSTALLATION

BASEMENT

TYPICAL CLEANOUT &

BACKWATER VALVE INSTALLATION

BACKWATER VALVE

by CLEAN CHECK

SEE NOTE 3

"Building A Stronger Community

TOGETHER"

C

I

O

N

N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

C

I

O

N

N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

BACKWATER VALVE

SS-07

TYPICAL CLEANOUT &

AutoCAD SHX Text
BE ACCESSIBLE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(PORT MUST

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE NOTE 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING GROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEANOUT AT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. GROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT OF WAY/

AutoCAD SHX Text
3' MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"X3" REDUCER

AutoCAD SHX Text
(PORT & VALVE MUST

AutoCAD SHX Text
BE ACCESSIBLE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' MAX

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" MIN. NDS OR

AutoCAD SHX Text
ABS BACKWATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
VALVE W/ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORT

AutoCAD SHX Text
3" PVC 

AutoCAD SHX Text
KNIFE GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE DETAILS

AutoCAD SHX Text
OTHER FITTINGS MAY BE REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO MAKE CLEANOUT PERPENDICULAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO GROUND.  NO TEES ALLOWED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAST IRON

AutoCAD SHX Text
RING & COVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
RING & COVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAST IRON

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%uNOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
OTHER FITTINGS MAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BE REQUIRED TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAKE CLEANOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERPENDICULAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO THE GROUND.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO TEES ALLOWED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORT

AutoCAD SHX Text
VALVE W/ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ABS BACKWATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" MIN. NDS OR

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOX CARSON TYPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1D WATER METER BOX TRAFFIC RATED FOG

AutoCAD SHX Text
TITE TYPE OR PLASTIC #1419 WATER METER

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS-13 (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS-13 (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR BACKWATER VALVES W/ GREATER THAN 2'-6" OF COVER - INSTALL ACCESSIBLE VAULT (36" DIAM. MIN.) OR AN EXTENDABLE BACKWATER VALVE BY "CLEAN CHECK INC." OR APPROVED EQUAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-6" MAX. OR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE NOTE 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEANOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE TO BLDG.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER UPC

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT OF WAY/

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEWER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
12' (MAX.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
LATERAL TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR DEEP

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPLICATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
LATERAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEE WYE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
HORIZONTAL BENDS SHALL BE 45° MAXIMUM. IF THE HORIZONTALALIGNMENT EXCEEDS 135° IN BENDS ON A SERVICE CONNECTION THENA CLEANOUT IS REQUIRED AT NEXT BEND. A CLEANOUT SHALL BE PROVIDED FOR EACH TOTAL CHANGE OF 90° OF GRADE OR ALIGNMENT AND IN NO CASE SHALL THE SPACING OF CLEANOUTS EXCEED 100 FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACER WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACER WIRE FROM MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXTEND & SPOOL 3' OF TRACER WIRE UNDER RING & COVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXTEND & SPOOL 3' OF ADDITIONAL TRACER WIRE UNDER RING AND COVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEANOUT OUTSIDE OF BUILDING (PER UPC)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEANOUT IN R/W AT  PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKWATER VALVES REQUIRED ON ALL SERVICE CONNECTIONS, UNLESS OTHERWISE APPROVED BY THE CITY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REGARDING SPACING

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE NOTE 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
REGARDING SPACING



DUCTILE IRON DROP CONNECTION

C

I

O

N

N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

C

I

O

N

N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

MANHOLE CONNECTION

SS-08

OUTSIDE DROP

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIAMETER IS SAME AS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
HORIZONTAL PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNLESS APPROVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY THE ENGINEER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DUCTILE IRON PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
90%%D SWEEP

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANSI A21.10

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHANNEL TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAINLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECK ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
AT OR ABOVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIGHEST CROWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING MANHOLE WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DUCTILE IRON

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE CL 52

AutoCAD SHX Text
KOR-N-SEAL BOOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"X 8" D.I. CROSS

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.I. PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(GROUT INTERIOR)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSIDE DIAMETER

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' MAXIMUM

AutoCAD SHX Text
KOR-N-SEAL BOOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
(GROUT INTERIOR)

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCKING SHALL BE COMMERCIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE POURED IN PLACE AGAINST

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNDISTURBED EARTH.  ISOLATE FITTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FROM CONCRETE THRUST BLOCK WITH

AutoCAD SHX Text
6 MIL. PLASTIC OR EQUAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKFILL WITH GRAVEL  BORROW UNLESS OTHERWISE DIRECTED BY ENGINEER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACT TO 95% MAX. DENSITY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADAPTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
MECHANICAL JOINT W/MEGALUGS (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ONE LENGTH OF DUCTILE IRON  CL 52 PIPE TO SOLID BEARING WHEN SPAN IS MORE THAN 4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEANOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE DETAIL SS-13

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"%%C D.I. PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2 BLIND FLANGE AS DAM

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE  BEDDING (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISH GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL CLEANOUT WITH WING WING NUT PIPE PLUG-CHERNE INDUSTRIES OR APPROVED EQUAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" CLEAR BETWN CAP & PLUG

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXTEND & SPOOL 3' OF TRACER WIRE UNDER RING AND COVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACER WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ON SEWER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"-12" PVC RISER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE NOTES ON STD. DETAILS SS-01, SS-02, OR SS-03 FOR PATCHING REQUIREMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS



C
I ON

N

OTGNIHS

A
W

TY
of SHELT

C
I ON

N

OTGNIHS

A
W

TY
of SHELT

INSIDE DROP

CONNECTION 

SS-09

MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIAMETER SAME AS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
HORIZONTAL PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNLESS APPROVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY THE ENGINEER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED BEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHANNEL TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAINLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECK ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
AT OR ABOVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIGHEST CROWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2 CAP AS DAM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING MANHOLE WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE ADAPTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSIDE DIAMETER

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH CROWNS

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED CROSS

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAINLESS STEEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
STRAP & BOLT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO MANHOLE WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
-MAX. SPACING 5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE MANHOLE SIZING CHART

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR MINIMUM MANHOLE DIAMETER

AutoCAD SHX Text
REQUIREMENTS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
90°

AutoCAD SHX Text
ONE LENGTH OF PVC ASTM 3034 (SDR) 35 PIPE TO SOLID BEARING W/SPAN IS MORE THAN 4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKFILL WITH GRAVEL  BORROW UNLESS OTHERWISE DIRECTED BY CITY ENGINEER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACT TO 95% MAX. DENSITY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
KOR-N-SEAL BOOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
(GROUT INTERIOR)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE NOTES ON STD. DETAILS SS-01, SS-02, OR SS-03 FOR PATCHING REQUIREMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALL CLEANOUT WITH WING NUT WING NUT PIPE PLUG-CHERNE INDUSTRIES OR APPROVED EQUAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACER

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS



A

B

B

B
O

L
T

-
D

O
W

N
 
/
 
W

A
T

E
R

T
I
G

H
T

T
Y

P
E

 
2

S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

T
Y

P
E

 
1

B

C
O

V
E

R
 
P

L
A

N
 

R
I
N

G
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
A

A

S
K

I
D

 
G

R
O

O
V

E
 
P

A
T

T
E

R
N

D
E

T
A

I
L

I
S

O
M

E
T

R
I
C

 
V

I
E

W

B
O

L
T

-
D

O
W

N
 
/
 
W

A
T

E
R

T
I
G

H
T

D
E

T
A

I
L
 
"
B

"

1 1/4"

B
L

I
N

D
 
P

I
C

K
 
N

O
T

C
H

D
E

T
A

I
L
 
"
A

"

C
O

V
E

R
 
P

L
A

N
 

C
O

V
E

R
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N

C
O

V
E

R
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N

R
I
N

G
 
P

L
A

N
 

R
I
N

G
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N

N
O

T
E

S

×
 

A

R
I
N

G
 
P

L
A

N
 

C

I

O

N

N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

C

I

O

N

N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

M
A

N
H

O
L
E

R
I
N

G
 
&

 
C

O
V

E
R

f
o
r
 
U

N
P

A
V

E
D

 
A

R
E

A
S

S
S

-
1
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
~

AutoCAD SHX Text
~

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
27 5/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
26 3/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
26 3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
34 1/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 7/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRILL AND TAP 5/8" - 11NC HOLE FOR 1 1/2" x 5/8" STAINLESS STEEL SOCKET HEAD CAP SCREW (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPECIFY

AutoCAD SHX Text
(SEE NOTE 7)

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE DETAIL "A"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE DETAIL "A"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SKID GROOVE PATTERN ~  SEE DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASHER (SEE NOTES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 7/16"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 5/16"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4" DOVETAIL GROOVE WITH NEOPRENE GASKET (SEE NOTES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 3/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
 5/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 3/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3 1/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
LETTERING

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE DETAIL "A"

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOTTOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOTTOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
27 5/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
26 3/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
26 3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
34 1/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 1/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE DETAIL "B"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE GASKET AND GROOVE MAY BE IN THE SEAT (FRAME) OR IN THE UNDERSIDE OF THE COVER.  THE GASKET MAY BE "T" SHAPED IN SECTION.  THE GROOVE MAY BE CAST OR MACHINED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOLT-DOWN CAPABILITY IS REQUIRED ON ALL FRAMES, GRATES, AND COVERS, UNLESS SPECIFIED OTHERWISE IN THE CONTRACT.  PROVIDE 3 HOLES IN THE FRAME THAT ARE VERTICALLY ALIGNED WITH THE GRATE OR COVER SLOTS.  THE FRAME SHALL ACCEPT THE 5/8" - 1 NC × 2" ALLEN HEAD CAP SCREW 2" ALLEN HEAD CAP SCREW BY BEING TAPPED, OR OTHER APPROVED MECHANISM.  LOCATION OF BOLT DOWN HOLES VARIES BY MANUFACTURER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR BOLT-DOWN MANHOLE RING AND COVERS THAT ARE NOT DESIGNATED "WATERTIGHT," THE NEOPRENE GASKET, GROOVE, AND WASHER ARE NOT REQUIRED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
IN LIEU OF BLIND PICK NOTCH FOR MANHOLE COVERS, A SINGLE 1" PICK HOLE IS ACCEPTABLE.  HOLE LOCATION AND NUMBER OF HOLES MAY VARY BY MANUFACTURER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALTERNATIVE REINFORCING DESIGNS ARE ACCEPTABLE IN LIEU OF THE RIB DESIGN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASHER SHALL BE NEOPRENE (DETAIL "B").

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATERTIGHT MANHOLE COVER SHALL BE OLYMPIC FOUNDRY INC., OR APPRV'D EQUAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL MANHOLE RING & COVERS TO MEET CURRENT WSDOT STD. SPECIFICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
11 9/16"R

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE DETAIL "B"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 7/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE DETAIL "A"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 1/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
 5/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
 5/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
~

AutoCAD SHX Text
~

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
~

AutoCAD SHX Text
~

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/16"

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS



I
S

O
M

E
T

R
I
C

 
V

I
E

W

N
O

T
E

S
:

T
O

P
 
V

I
E

W

E
L
E

V
A

T
I
O

N
 
V

I
E

W

P
L
A

N
 
V

I
E

W

C

I

O

N

N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

C

I

O

N

N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

E
A

S
T

 
J
O

R
D

A
N

F
R

A
M

E
 
&

 
C

O
V

E
R

S
S

-
1

1

M
A

N
H

O
L
E

 

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" HINGED MANHOLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVER AND FRAME

AutoCAD SHX Text
MANHOLE COVER AND FRAME SHALL BE CALLED EAST JORDAN. COVER  AND FRAME SHALL BE MANUFACTURED FROM DUCTILE IRON. HINGE MUST BE PERPENDICULAR TO FLOW OF TRAFFIC.  SEE PLAN VIEW.  

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVERS SHALL HAVE LOCKING ATTACHMENT.  COVERS SHALL BE HINGED AND INCORPORATE A 90 DEGREE BLOCKING SYSTEM TO PREVENT  ACCIDENTAL CLOSURE.  COVERS SHALL BE ONE MAN OPERABLE USING STANDARD TOOLS AND  SHALL BE CAPABLE OF WITHSTANDING A TEST LOAD OF 80,000 LBS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRAMES SHALL BE CIRCULAR, INCORPORATE A SEATING RING AND A FITTED PLUG IN THE  HINGE HOUSING, AND BE AVAILABLE IN A 24 INCH CLEAR OPENING.  THE FRAME DEPTH  SHALL NOT EXCEED 4 INCHES, AND THE FLANGE SHALL INCORPORATE BEDDING SLOTS, BOLT  HOLES, AND LIFTING EYES.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL COMPONENTS SHALL BE BLACK COATED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
MANHOLE FRAME

AutoCAD SHX Text
MANHOLE LID

AutoCAD SHX Text
DUCTILE IRON

AutoCAD SHX Text
DUCTILE IRON

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIFTING EYE

AutoCAD SHX Text
KEY HOLES

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIFTING EYES

AutoCAD SHX Text
HINGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIFTING EYE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HINGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCKING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ATTACHMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
HINGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRAME & COVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EP

AutoCAD SHX Text
EP

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRAFFIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIRECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR MANHOLE INSTALLATION OUTSIDE OF PAVED AREAS SEE C.O. SHELTON  STD. DETAIL SS-12.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
 26 3/16"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
 34"

AutoCAD SHX Text
 27 11/16"

AutoCAD SHX Text
 24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
 26 1/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 9/16"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"



C
L

E
A

N
O

U
T

 
 
R

I
N

G
 
&

 
C

O
V

E
R

W
/
 
C

O
N

C
R

E
T

E
 
C

O
L

L
A

R

co

A
A

M
A

N
H

O
L

E
 
F

R
A

M
E

 
&

 
C

O
V

E
R

W
/
 
C

O
N

C
R

E
T

E
 
C

O
L

L
A

R

S
E

C
T

I
O

N
 
B

-
B

 
(
O

U
T

S
I
D

E
 
P

A
V

E
D

 
A

R
E

A
)

O
U

T
S

I
D

E
 
P

A
V

E
D

 
A

R
E

A

B
B

S
E

W
E

R

S
E

W
E

R

P
A

V
E

D
 
A

R
E

A
U

N
P

A
V

E
D

 
A

R
E

A

C

I

O

N
N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

C

I

O

N
N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

M
A

N
H

O
L
E

 
&

 
C

L
E

A
N

O
U

T

W
I
T

H
I
N

 
R

I
G

H
T

-
O

F
-
W

A
Y

S
S

-
1

2

S
U

R
F

A
C

E
 
R

E
S

T
O

R
A

T
I
O

N

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE COLLAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
RING & COVER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
RING & COVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
(DET SS-13)

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
(DIAMETER)

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEWER MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE COLLAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENEATH PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
USE WELL

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMPACTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
NATIVE MAT'L OR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED FILL,

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS DIRECTED BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TYPICAL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
36"

AutoCAD SHX Text
USE COMMERCIAL  CONCRETE FOR MANHOLE COLLARS UNLESS APPROVED BY CITY ENGINEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
MUST INSTALL MIN. OF 4" OF ADJUSTMENT RINGS (RISERS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ONLY NON-HINGED MANHOLE COVERS IN NON-PAVED AREAS. SEE DET. SS-11 FOR PAVED AREAS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECURE FRAME &

AutoCAD SHX Text
RING TO MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MANHOLE DETAILS SS-01,

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS-02, OR SS-03.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RISER USING APPRV'D GROUT AS LISTED ON

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL AROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
(DIAMETER)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE COLLAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPECIFY  LETTERING

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1' MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NATIVE MATERIAL OR CSTC AS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIRECTED BY ENGINEER (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENEATH PAD USE WELL COMPACTED 

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" BALLAST

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" C.S.T.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" ASPHALT SURFACING

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. OR MATCH EXIST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" MIN BASALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEAL JOINTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITH CSS-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" CONCRETE (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEANOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL CONCRETE COLLARS TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
BE COMMERCIAL CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER CURRENT WSDOT STD. SPEC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS



N
O

T
E

:

co

N
O

T
E

:

C
A

S
T

 
I
R

O
N

 
R

I
N

G
 
&

 
C

O
V

E
R

W
/
 
C

O
N

C
R

E
T

E
 
C

O
L

L
A

R

C

I

O

N
N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

C

I

O

N
N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

D
E

T
A

I
L

S
S

-
1

3

C
L
E

A
N

O
U

T

AutoCAD SHX Text
(PER WSDOT STDS.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RING & COVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
WING NUT PIPE PLUG/CHERNE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
INDUSTRIES OR APPROVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
OR EQUAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"-10" PVC

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJUSTABLE RING

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDITIONAL FITTINGS MAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BE REQUIRED TO MAKE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEANOUT PERPENDICULAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO GROUND SURFACE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO TEES ALLOWED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEE WYE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BE SPOOLED UNDER 

AutoCAD SHX Text
RING & COVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
3' OF TRACER WIRE TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
RING & COVER (INLAND FOUNDRY #247 WSDOT STD. OR APPROVED EQUIVALENT) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE DET. SS-12

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. COLLAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR SPECS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" CLR. BETWEEN BOTTOM OF COVER & TOP OF PLUG

AutoCAD SHX Text
A CLEANOUT SHALL BE PROVIDED FOR EACH TOTAL CHANGE OF 90 DEGREES OF GRADE OR ALIGNMENT AND IN NO CASE SHALL THE SPACING OF CLEANOUTS EXCEED 100 FEET.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT NECESSARY HERE

AutoCAD SHX Text
IF PROJECT INCLUDES

AutoCAD SHX Text
WING NUT PLUG

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTINUING TO BLDG.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WING NUT PIPE PLUG/CHERNE  INDUSTRIES OR APPROVED EQUAL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
RING & COVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
(DET SS-13)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACER WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS



N
O

T
E

:

C
A

S
T

 
I
R

O
N

 
R

I
N

G
 
&

 
C

O
V

E
R

W
/
 
C

O
N

C
R

E
T

E
 
C

O
L

L
A

R

P
A

V
E

M
E

N
T

 
A

R
E

A
N

O
N

-
P

A
V

E
M

E
N

T
 
A

R
E

A

C

I

O

N
N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

C

I

O

N
N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

L
A

M
P

H
O

L
E

 
D

E
T

A
I
L

S
S

-
1

3
A

S
E

W
E

R
 
M

A
I
N

co

AutoCAD SHX Text
10"%%C- 12"%%C PVC

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJUSTABLE RING

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO TEES ALLOWED.  TEE WYES  ONLY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEE WYE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEWER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" CLR. BETWEEN  BOTTOM OF COVER &  TOP OF WINGNUT PLUG

AutoCAD SHX Text
WING NUT PIPE PLUG/CHERNE INDUSTRIES  OR APPROVED EQUAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
3' OF TRACER WIRE TO BE SPOOLED UNDER  RING & COVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDITIONAL FITTINGS MAY BE REQUIRED TO MAKE CLEANOUT PERPENDICULAR TO GROUND SURFACE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 LF OF PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE COLLAR AROUND RING AND COVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
IN ALL AREAS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. COLLAR   SEE NOTE 4 & 5 THIS SHT. SEE DET. SS-12 FOR SPECS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"%%C VERTICAL PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL CONCRETE SHALL BE COMMERCIAL CONCRETE PER CURRENT WSDOT STD. SPECIFICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.

AutoCAD SHX Text
END OF SEWER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACER WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACER WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ON SEWER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEE WYE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL ASPHALT PAVEMENT & MATERIAL BELOW SURFACE TREATMENT TO BE PER C.O. SHELTON STANDARDS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
RING & COVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
(DET SS-13)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RING & COVER (INLAND FOUNDRY #247 WSDOT STD. OR AN APPROVED EQUAL.) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
WING NUT PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLUG/CHERNE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
INDUSTRIES OR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVEDOR EQUAL



5 6
P

I
P

E
 
D

I
A

M
E

T
E

R
T

O
R

Q
U

E

N
O

M
I
N

A
L

6

N
O

T
E

S
:

R
O

M
A

C
 
S

T
Y

L
E

 
"
C

B
"

C

I

O

N

N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

C

I

O

N

N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

S
E

W
E

R
 
S

A
D

D
L
E

 
 
 
 
T

Y
P

I
C

A
L
 
S

E
W

E
R

 
C

O
N

N
E

C
T

I
O

N
 
 
 

T
O

 
E

X
.
 
S

E
W

E
R

 
M

A
I
N

S
S

-
1
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLACE SADDLE ON PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WRAP STRAP AROUND PIPE,

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITH "THIS SIDE OUT" AS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRINTED ON STRAP.  SLIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE ADJUSTABLE BOLT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASSEMBLY TO A POINT WHICH

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEAVES MOST OF THE THREAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR TIGHTENING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOLD STRAP BACK AGAINST ITSELF,

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLACING FREE END BETWEEN STRAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND PIPE.  (ON SMALL PIPE, IT MAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
BE NECESSARY TO FOLD LOOSE END

AutoCAD SHX Text
TWICE).

AutoCAD SHX Text
TIGHTEN NUTS EVENLY,

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALTERNATING BETWEEN THEM

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNTIL APPROPRIATE TORQUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
IS REACHED (SEE BELOW)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGNIFICANT FLATTENING OF PVC PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
INDICATES OVER TIGHTENING.  IN ALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CASES WAIT 10 MINUTES AND TORQUE AGAIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"-12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
14"-48"

AutoCAD SHX Text
25 FT-LBS. = 12" WRENCH W/25 LBS. FORCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
15 - 20 FT.-LBS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20 - 30 FT.-LBS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LUBRICATE AND INSERT LATERAL/OUTLET END.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE CB SEWER SADDLES ARE PROVIDED WITH A BAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLAMP (HOSE CLAMP) WHICH ALLOWS IT TO HAVE A

AutoCAD SHX Text
RANGE.  THE BAND CLAMP COMES WITH TWO

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJUSTING SCREWS WHICH PROVIDE MUCH GREATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLAMPING FORCE THAN BAND CLAMPS WITH ONLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ONE ADJUSTING SCREW.  THE BAND CLAMP NEEDS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO BE ASSEMBLED AROUND THE LATERAL/OUTLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND BOTH ADJUSTING SCREWS TIGHTENED EVENLY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LATERAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAINLESS STEEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOSE CLAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJUSTABLE BOLT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASSEMBLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SADDLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJUSTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCREWS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECK DIAMETER OF MAIN AND BRANCH PIPE TO MAKE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURE YOU ARE USING THE CORRECT SIZE SADDLE GASKET;

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALSO CHECK GASKET TO MAKE SURE IT IS THE SIZE YOU 

AutoCAD SHX Text
THINK IT IS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVE AS MUCH DIRT AND CORROSION FROM PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURFACES AS POSSIBLE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAKE SURE NO FOREIGN MATERIALS LODGE BETWEEN SADDLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GASKET AND PIPE AS NUTS ARE TIGHTENED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVOID LOOSE FITTING WRENCHES OR WRENCHES TOO SHORT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO ACHIEVE PROPER TORQUE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAKE EXTRA CARE TO FOLLOW PROPER BOLT TIGHTENING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROCEDURES AND TORQUE RECOMMENDATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACK FILL AND COMPACT CAREFULLY AROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE HOLE CUT IN THE MAIN SHOULD BE NO LARGER THAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE INSIDE DIAMETER OF THE SADDLE GASKET.  THE 4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
GASKET HAS AN I.D. OF 5.20, THE 6" GASKET HAS AN 

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.D. OF 6.40.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LUBRICATING BETWEEN THE SADDLE GASKET AND THE MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ON ROUGH OR LARGE O.D. PIPE CAN IMPROVE THE SEALING

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAPACITY OF THE SADDLE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DURING INSTALLATION THE TEMPERATURE OF THE SADDLE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
GASKET ITSELF CAN BE IMPORTANT.  THE TEMPERATURE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF THE SADDLE GASKET SHOULD NOT FALL BELOW ~45%%D F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
IT IS NECESSARY TO BEVEL THE LATERAL/OUTLET PIPE END 

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND LUBRICATE PIPE END AND SADDLE GASKET HUB.

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHEN REINSTALLING PARTS WITH STAINLESS STEEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
HARDWARE THERE MAY BE A LOSS IN PRESSURE HOLDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
ABILITY DUE TO WORN OR DAMAGED THREADS DURING

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORIGINAL INSTALLATION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LATERAL/OUTLET.

AutoCAD SHX Text
45°

AutoCAD SHX Text
35°

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS



BUILDING

3

1

2

3

4

LEGEND:

1

2

4

SEWER LINE

TERMINOLOGY

SS-15

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT-OF-WAY/PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEWER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSMH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY SEWER BACKWATER VALVE DEVICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY SEWER CLEANOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCTED PER "UNIFORM

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLUMBING CODE" GUIDELINES

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLDG. SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SSCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
LATERAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
100' MAX. BETWEEN SSCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER UPC -

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO GLUED

AutoCAD SHX Text
FITTINGS ALLOWED

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSPECTION REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING DEPT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSPECTION REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
(SERVICE CONNECTION)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

TITLE

SS-16

DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

TITLE

SS-17

DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS



RECLAIMED WATER 
 
 

  

 

April 2018 6 - 1 

C H A P T E R  6 

6.000  RECLAIMED WATER 

  

6.010 Introduction 

Any extension of the City of Shelton reclaimed water system must 
be approved by the Public Works Department. Construction of all 
extensions must conform to these Standards and the 
specifications and details contained in this Chapter. 

Anyone who wishes to extend or connect to the City’s reclaimed 
water system shall contact the Public Works Department to 
discuss the anticipated use, anticipated volume, desired flow rate 
and the availability of reclaimed water. 

Reclaimed water, like potable water, is a limited resource.  During 
periods of high demand, the reclaimed water system MAY NOT 
have the capacity to meet individual requests. 

The developer’s engineer is responsible for determining the scope 
of work for connection to existing reclaimed water mains. 

It shall be the contractor’s responsibility to field verify the location 
and depth of the existing main and the fittings required to make 
the connections to the existing mains.  The City shall be present 
during any contractor taps.  All fittings shall be approved by the 
Public Works Department prior to installation. 

6.020 Connecting New Users 

As part of the application process, the City will meet with the 
applicant to review a draft Class A Reclaimed Water Service  
Agreement, and discuss the responsibilities of being a reclaimed 
water user. Prior to connection to the reclaimed water system and 
issuance of a reclaimed water meter, a Class A Reclaimed Water 
Service Agreement must be executed, and all applicable fees must 
be paid. All use of Reclaimed Water shall meet the current 
Washington State Department of Health and Ecology’s “Water 
Reclamation and Reuse Standards”. A copy of the standards can 
be found on the Washington State Department of Health website 
at 
www.doh.wa.gov/CommunityandEnvironment/WastewaterManag
ement/WaterReclamation. 



RECLAIMED WATER 
 
 

  

 

April 2018 6 - 2 

The user shall install a reclaimed water meter at all use sites. All 
reclaimed water use sites should be metered and the rate of flow 
and total annual volume monitored.  Should the maximum 
allowed volume of reclaimed water be exceeded in any calendar 
year, the City may terminate the service for the remainder of the 
calendar year or until the critical demand period has passed. The 
decision to terminate reclaimed water service will be at the sole 
discretion of the City. 

6.030 Irrigating with Reclaimed Water 
 

Those users approved for use of reclaimed water for irrigation 
should irrigate at the Normal Agronomic Rate or less, and should 
not exceed this limit at any time. Normal Agronomic Rate is 
defined as that rate of irrigation required by the plants or 
vegetation. Variables, such as soil type, type of vegetation and 
precipitation play a role in Normal Agronomic Rate. 

Adequate soil surface storage is required to limit translocation of 
water within the use area and perhaps causing runoff from the 
site during the infiltration process. Sprinkler systems should be 
designed with application rates that do not exceed the soil intake 
and plant evapotranspiration rate.  

The applicant must provide documentation supporting the 
requested flow rates, a description of the area to be irrigated, and 
the proposed vegetation. The City utilizes the Crop Irrigation 
Requirement found in Appendix B of the U.S. Department of 
Agriculture Irrigation Guide as the basis for determining the 
irrigation requirement for turf (USDA, 1992). The annual irrigation 
requirement for the City, utilizing the chart for Olympia, is 16.47 
inches per year.  

6.040 Design Standards 

The design of reclaimed water extensions, connection or facilities 
must conform to this Chapter, the applicable sections of the latest 
edition of DOE’s Criteria for Sewerage Works Design, the 
Washington State Department of Transportation’s Standard 
Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction and Washington 
State Department of Health Water Reclamation and Reuse 
Standards. 

6.050 Service Interruption 

The contractor must give the City a minimum of 48 hour notice of 
any planned connection to an existing pipeline, including cut-ins 
and live taps.  Notice is required so any disruptions to existing 



RECLAIMED WATER 
 
 

  

 

April 2018 6 - 3 

services can be scheduled.  The City will notify customers involved 
or affected by the reclaimed water service interruption.  The 
contractor shall make every effort to schedule reclaimed water 
main construction with a minimum interruption of reclaimed 
water service.  During periods of high demand, the City may 
dictate scheduling of reclaimed water main construction to avoid 
shut downs during specific periods. 

6.060 Main Line 

A. The minimum reclaimed water main size is 4 inches.  Where 8-

inch or larger mains are placed, reclaimed water hydrants shall 
be installed.  The location of the reclaimed water hydrants 
shall be coordinated with the City. 

B. All pipe for reclaimed water mains shall have flexible gasketed 
joints, be colored purple (Pantone 512 or 522) and bear the 
marking “Reclaimed Water – Do Not Drink” printed along the 
length, and must be one of the following types: 

1. Polyvinyl Chloride (PVC) Pipe (under four inches):  Pipe 
material shall be PVC 1120, PVC 1220, or PVC 2120, 
and have minimum wall thickness equal to or less than 
the standard dimension ratio (SDR) of 21, and meet the 
requirements of WSDOT Standard Specifications Section 
9-30.1(5)B. 

2. PVC Pipe (4 through 12 inches):  Shall meet the 
requirements of AWWA C900, Class 150 wall thickness 
equal to or less than the SDR of 18, and meet the 
requirements of WSDOT Standard Specifications Section 
9-30.1(5)A. 

3. In general, ductile iron pipe shall not be used except 
where sound engineering practice would dictate its use 
to protect pipe integrity.  In cases where ductile iron 
pipe must be used, the pipe shall be sleeved with a 
purple liner. 

C. All fittings for PVC pipe shall be ductile iron compact fittings 
conforming to AWWA C 153 or Class 250 gray iron conforming 
to AWWA C 110 and C 111.  All shall be cement mortar lined 
conforming to AWWA C 104. 

D. All pipe and service lines shall be installed with continuous 
tracer tape installed 12 to 18 inches under the final ground 
surface.  The marker shall be plastic, non-biodegradable, 
marked “Reclaimed Water – Do Not Drink” three-inch wide 
minimum.  Install 14 gauge heavy duty direct busy coated 



RECLAIMED WATER 
 
 

  

 

April 2018 6 - 4 

copper wire (PAIGE “UF” single conductor or equal), wrapped 
around the pipe, brought up and tied off at valve body.  All wire 
connections shall use wire nuts and epoxy DBY wire 
connection kit. 

E. The minimum cover for all reclaimed water mains from top of 
pipe to finished grade shall be 36 inches, unless otherwise 
approved. 

F. The contractor shall maintain a minimum of 18 inches of 
separation between sanitary sewers and reclaimed water mains 

and 18 inches of separation between reclaimed water mains 
and potable water mains.  The minimum depth below ground 
surface for reclaimed water is 36 inches and the maximum 
depth is 42” provided no conflicts with other utilities.  The 
minimum depth may be reduced, upon City approval, to 
provide for as much vertical separation as possible from water 
and sewer lines. 

The following displays the minimum vertical and horizontal 
separation requirements for water, reclaimed water and sewer 
lines.  For unusual conditions, when the minimum horizontal 
spacing requirements cannot be met, the City may consider 
reducing the minimum separation. 
 
 



RECLAIMED WATER 
 
 

  

 

April 2018 6 - 5 

 
 

6.070 Reclaimed Water Meter Location 

Reclaimed water meter locations shall be easily accessible to City 
personnel for meter reading.  Meters and service valves shall 
remain outside the property line/fence line. 

No trees or shrubs shall be planted within 3 feet of any reclaimed 
water meter.  Improvements or landscaping of any sort shall not 
be constructed in any manner which will impede easy access for 
maintenance to reclaimed water meters. 

6.080 Service Connection 

Prior to connecting to the reclaimed water system, the property 
owner shall submit an application for service to the City. The City 
will evaluate the ability of the reclaimed water system to provide 
the requested volume, flow rate and pressure. 

A. All service connections relating to new development shall be 
installed by the developer at the time of mainline construction. 
After the lines have been constructed, tested and approved, the 
owner may apply for a reclaimed water meter. The Contractor 



RECLAIMED WATER 
 
 

  

 

April 2018 6 - 6 

will install reclaimed water meters 1 ½” and larger after the 
application has been made and all applicable fees have been 
paid.  Reclaimed water meters will be set only after the system 
is inspected and has received final approval, and the parties 
have fully executed a Reclaimed Water User Agreement. The 
City will lock off meter until approved for service. All reclaimed 
water services between the City main and the meter are 
property of the City. 

B. Service lines shall be one-inch high-density polyethylene pipe, 
minimum pressure class 200 psi DR7.  No glued joints will be 
accepted.  Service lines shall be installed 90 degrees off the 
main.  Tracer wire wrapped around the pipe shall be installed 
on all service lines. 

C. Service saddle shall be all ductile iron body with stainless steel 

straps and shall be ROMAC Industries or approved equal. 

D. Corporation stop shall be all bronze and shall have iron pipe 
threads conforming to AWWA C 800.  Stainless steel inserts 
shall be used with pack joints and polyethylene pipe. 

E. A master meter may be allowed to serve multiple buildings or 
sites at the sole discretion of the City.  If a master meter is 
allowed to serve more than one building or site, an approved 
RPBA device(s) must be installed at all buildings serviced by 
potable water. 

F. A backflow assembly is required per Section 6.130. 

6.090 Hydrants 

A. The lead from the service main to the hydrant shall be purple 
(Pantone 512 or 522) PVC and meet the requirements of AWWA 
C900, Class 150 wall thickness must be equal to or greater 
than the SDR of 18, and meet the requirements of Standard 
Specifications Section 9-30.1(5)A.  The pipe shall be no less 
than six inches in diameter.  MJ joint shall be connected to the 

hydrant mechanical joint by a mechanical joint restraint, Mega 

Lug 2000PV or approved equal. 

B. Hydrants shall have two, 2 ½-inch outlets and one 4 ½-inch 
pumper port outlet.  All outlet ports shall be National Standard 
thread.  The valve opening shall be no less than 5 ¼-inch 
diameter with a 5-inch “Storz” coupling and blind flange cap 
installed on the steamer port.  The hydrant shall have a 
positive and automatic barrel drain and shall be of the “traffic 
safety” or break-away style; i.e., when accidentally broken off, 
reclaimed water will not flow. 



RECLAIMED WATER 
 
 

  

 

April 2018 6 - 7 

C. All hydrants shall be center-stem compression design and 
valves shall open against pressure.  Hydrants shall be 
manufactured by Mueller, M&H, or approved equal. All 
hydrants shall be tagged identifying the hydrant as a reclaimed 
water device.  Hydrants shall be bagged until system is 
approved or until adequate reclaimed water flow can be 
provided.  Hydrants shall be set as shown in Standard Drawing 
W-08 and W-09. 

D. Where needed for protection as determined by the City, 
hydrants shall be protected by two or more bollards, each 8 
inches in diameter by 5 feet in height made of either reinforced 
concrete or steel.  Posts shall be painted to match hydrant 
color. 

E. Reclaimed water hydrants shall be painted purple (Pantone 
512 or 522). 

6.100 Valves 

Where possible, valves shall be located at tees or crosses. 

All valves shall be ductile iron with ANSI flanges or mechanical 
joint ends.  All existing valves shall be operated by City employees 
only. 

Valves shall be installed in the distribution system at intervals no 
less than one valve every 500 feet. There shall be two valves on 
each tee and three valves on each cross. 
 
A. Gate Valves, 2 inches or greater. The design, materials and 

workmanship of all gate valves shall conform to AWWA 
standards.  Gate valves shall be Mueller, M & H, Kennedy, 
Clow R/W, Waterous Series 500 Gate valves shall be used on 
all 6 to 10 inch lines. 

B. Butterfly Valves. Butterfly valves shall conform to AWWA.  
Butterfly valves shall conform to AWWA C504, Class 150B, 

with cast iron short body and O-ring stem seals. Butterfly 
valves shall be Mueller, Linseal III, Kennedy, Pratt Ground 
Hog, Allis Chalmers, or an approved equal.  Butterfly valves 
may be used on all lines 12 inches and larger. 

C. Valve Box.  All valves shall have a standard Olympic Foundry, 
Reclaimed Water valve box or approved equal per Standard 
Detail W-07 and W-07A. 

6.110 Air and Vacuum Release Valve 



RECLAIMED WATER 
 
 

  

 

April 2018 6 - 8 

Combination air and vacuum release valves shall be 2” APCO 
combination air release valve, or approved equal.  Installation 
shall be as shown on Standard Drawing RW-04. 
 
The installation shall be set at the high point of the line.  Where 
possible, pipes are to be graded to prevent the need for an air 
release valve.  Air release valves may not be required when 
services are in the vicinity. 

 
6.120 Blow-off Assembly 

If a fire hydrant is not located at the terminus of a dead end main, 
a blow-off assembly shall be required.  On reclaimed water mains 
that will be extended in the future, the valve, which operates the 
blow-off assembly, shall be the same size as the main and 
provided with a concrete thrust block.  The pressure rating for 
blow-off assemblies shall be 200 psi.  Installation shall be as 
shown in Standard Drawing RW-07. 

 
6.130 Backflow Assembly 

The purpose of this section is to provide guidance for protecting 
potable water systems from contamination.  The installation of all 
backflow devices is required to protect the existing potable water 
system and users from potential contamination. 
 
A cross connection is any actual or potential physical connection 
between a potable water line and any pipe, vessel, or machine 
containing a non-potable fluid or that has the possibility of 
containing a non-potable fluid, solid or gas, such that it is 
possible for the non-potable fluid, solid or gas to enter the water 
system by backflow.  A cross connection could be any physical 
arrangement where a potable water supply is directly or indirectly 
connected with any non-potable or unapproved water supply 
system, sewer, drain, conduit, pool, storage reservoir, plumbing 
fixture, or any other device which contains, or may contain, 
contaminated water, liquid, gases, sewage, or other waste of 

unknown or unsafe quality which may import contamination to 
the potable water supply as a result of backflow.  Bypass 
arrangements, jumper connections, removable sections, swivel or 
change-over devices, and other temporary, permanent or potential 
connections through which, or because of which, backflow could 
occur are considered to be cross connections. 

Cross connections between the potable water and the reclaimed 
water system are not allowed under any circumstance.  The City of 
Shelton is responsible for ensuring compliance with provisions of 
their approved Cross Connection Control (CCC) program. 



RECLAIMED WATER 
 
 

  

 

April 2018 6 - 9 

Any site served with reclaimed water and potable water shall be 
provided with service-line protection.  An approved reduced 
pressure backflow assembly (RPBA) device shall be installed on 
the potable water system at the potable water meter. 

The Public Works Department shall receive the approved 
certification of test results for each RPBA device before allowing 
the hookup to the reclaimed water system.  Certified Cross 
Connection Control personnel must test the RPBA device. 

6.140 Irrigation 

Irrigation sprinklers shall be situated to not overspray onto any 
public street, sidewalk or adjacent property.  Irrigation shall be 
directed away from food facilities and public areas such as park 
barbeques.  Sites shall be graded to prevent ponding or runoff of 
reclaimed water. 

All irrigation pipes shall be purple (Pantone 512 or 522).  
Sprinkler heads shall be purple.  All valve and control boxes shall 
be identified as reclaimed water and shall be purple. 

If an existing sprinkler system is to be retrofitted for the 
application of reclaimed water, the existing pipes do not have to be 
replaced.  All sprinkler heads, however, shall be replaced with 
purple heads identifying the use of reclaimed water.  All control 
and valve boxes shall be replaced with boxes identifying the use of 
reclaimed water.  Prior to the application of reclaimed water, the 
existing system shall be thoroughly tested by the user to ensure 
there are no cross connections with the potable water system.  
Testing shall be determined by the City. 

6.150 Staking 

All surveying and staking shall be performed by a licensed 
engineer or land surveyor.  A preconstruction meeting shall be 
held with the City prior to commencing staking.  All construction 
staking shall be inspected by the City prior to construction.  

The minimum staking of reclaimed water lines shall be as directed 
by the Public Works Director, or as follows: 



RECLAIMED WATER 
 
 

  

 

April 2018 6 - 10 

 
A. Stake centerline alignment every 50 feet with cut or fill to 

invert of pipe maintaining minimum cover over pipe. 

B. Stake location of all fire hydrants, tee, reclaimed water meters 
and other fixtures and mark cut or fill to hydrant flange 
finished grade. 

          6.160 Trench Excavation and Pipe Laying 

  Clearing and grubbing where required shall be performed within 

the easement or public right-of-way as permitted by the City in 
conformance to WSDOT Standard Specifications. Debris resulting 
from the clearing and grubbing shall be disposed of by the 
contractor in accordance with the terms of all applicable permits. 
Track mounted equipment shall not be allowed on paved City 
streets and public rights-of-way outside of the approved project 
boundaries and gravel streets without prior approval by the City. 

 
  The contractor shall perform all excavation in whatever substance 

is encountered.  Boulders, hardpan, clay rocks, roots and other 
obstructions shall be entirely removed or cut out to the width of 
the trench and to a depth 6 inches below water main grade. Where 
materials are removed from below water main grade, the trench 
shall be backfilled to grade with material satisfactory to the City 
and thoroughly compacted.  

 
  Trenches shall be excavated to the line and depth designated by 

the City to provide a minimum of 36 inches cover over the pipe. 
The trench sides shall be excavated vertically and the trench width 
shall be excavated only to such widths as are necessary for 
adequate working space and in compliance with all State and 
Federal guidelines. 

 
  Surface water shall be diverted so as not to enter the trench. 

Trench water or other deleterious materials shall not be allowed to 
enter the pipe at any time. The contractor shall maintain sufficient 

pumping equipment on the job to ensure that these provisions are 
carried out.  Provisions shall be made to prevent floating of the 
pipe. 

 
  The contractor shall handle all types of pipe in a manner that will 

prevent damage to the pipe, pipe lining or coating.  Pipe and 
fittings shall be loaded and unloaded using hoists and slings in a 
manner to avoid shock or damage, and under no circumstances 
shall pipe be dropped, skidded, or rolled against another pipe.  

 



RECLAIMED WATER 
 
 

  

 

April 2018 6 - 11 

  If the Inspector determines that the contractor's methods are 
damaging to the pipe, the contractor shall correct the handling 
methods. All damaged pipe will be rejected, marked as such, 
placed apart from undamaged pipe, and shall be removed from the 
site within 24 hours.  Pipe shall be stacked in such a manner as 
to prevent damage to the pipe, to prevent dirt and debris from 
entering the pipe, and to prevent any movement of the pipe.  For 
public safety, each size of pipe shall be stacked separately. 

 
   Dirt or other foreign material shall be prevented from entering 

the pipe or pipe joint during handling or laying operations, and 

any pipe or fitting that has been installed with dirt or foreign 
material in it shall be removed, cleaned and re-laid. At times, 
when pipe laying is not in progress, the open ends of the pipe 
shall be closed by a watertight plug or by other means 
approved by the Engineer to ensure cleanliness inside the pipe. 

 
   The bottom of the trench shall be finished to grade with hand 

tools in such a manner that the pipe will be bearing along the 
entire length of the barrel. The bell holes shall be excavated 
with hand tools to sufficient size to accommodate the joint. 

 
   Long radius curves, either horizontal or vertical, may be laid 

with standard pipe by deflecting the joints. The amount of 
deflection at each pipe joint when pipe is laid on a curve shall 
not exceed the manufacturer’s printed recommended 
deflections.  When rubber gasketed pipe is laid on a curve, the 
pipe shall be jointed in a straight alignment and then deflected 
to the curved alignment. Trenches shall be made wider on 
curves for this purpose. 

 
.   When the contractor is trenching and shoring adjacent to an 

existing water main or any other underground utilities or 
public safety concerns exist, the City may require more 
stringent trenching standards.  Trenching, shoring and pipe 
laying shall be in conformance with Washington Industrial 
Safety and Health Administration (WISHA), Washington 
Department of Labor and Industries (L&I), the Office of Safety 
and Health Administration (OSHA) Safety Standards and any 
other agency with jurisdiction. 

 

6.170 Thrust Blocking 

Location of thrust blocking shall be shown on plans.  Thrust block 
concrete shall be commercial Class 3000 psi poured against 
undisturbed earth.  A plastic barrier shall be placed between all 



RECLAIMED WATER 
 
 

  

 

April 2018 6 - 12 

thrust blocks and fittings.  See Standard Drawings RW-08, RW-
09, RW-10 for thrust block locations and calculations.  If so 
desired, thrust blocking may be achieved through the use of Mega 
Lug Joint Restraints, or approved equals, to provide enough 
restrained length to make the pipe its own thrust block. 
 

6.180 Backfilling 

Backfilling and surface restoration shall closely follow installation 
of pipe so that no more than 100 feet is left exposed during 
construction hours without approval of the City.  All trenches 
shall be backfilled during non-working hours unless otherwise 
approved by the City.  Selected backfill material shall be placed 
and compacted around and under the reclaimed water main.  The 
remaining backfill shall be compacted to 95 percent of the 
maximum density in traveled areas.  Where governmental agencies 
other than the City have jurisdiction over roadways, the backfill 
and compaction shall be done to the satisfaction of the agency 
having jurisdiction.  See Standard Drawing T-19 for backfill and 
bedding materials. 
 

6.190 Street Patching and Restoration 
 

A. Temporary Street Patching 

Temporary Street Patching shall be in accordance with Shelton 
Design and Construction Standards in Chapter 2.190. 

B. Trench Pavement Restoration 

Trench Pavement Restoration shall be in accordance with 
Shelton Design and Construction Standards Chapter 2.200. 

6.200 Hydrostatic Tests 

Prior to the acceptance of the work, the installation shall be 
subjected to a hydrostatic pressure test, and any leaks or 
imperfections developing under said pressure shall be remedied by 
the contractor.  The main shall be tested between valves.  No 
hydrostatic pressure shall be placed against the opposite side of 
the valve being tested.  Test pressure shall be maintained while 
the entire installation is inspected. 

The contractor shall notify the City 48 hours in advance of the 
planned testing. 

The contractor shall provide all necessary equipment and shall 
perform all work connected with the tests.  Tests will be done after 
all connections have been made and the roadway section is 



RECLAIMED WATER 
 
 

  

 

April 2018 6 - 13 

constructed to subgrade.  This is to include all connections as 
shown on the plan.  The contractor shall perform the test to 
assure that testing equipment is in good operating condition and 
the air in the line has been released before requesting the City to 
witness the test. 

  



RECLAIMED WATER 
 
 

  

 

April 2018 6 - 14 

L I S T  O F  D R A W I N G S  

C H A P T E R  6  R E C L A I M E D  W A T E R  
 
 
Title Drawing 
2” Air Vacuum/Release Valve Combination Assembly  .........................  RW-01 
Horizontal & Vertical Separation of Reclaimed Water & Other Piping  ..  RW-02 
Reclaimed Water Valve & Valve Box  ....................................................  RW-03 
Reclaimed Water Combination Air Release / Air Vacuum Valve  ..........  RW-04 
Reclaimed Water Setter 1” Diameter  ...................................................  RW-05 

Reclaimed Water Setter 2” Diameter  ...................................................  RW-06 
Reclaimed Water Blowoff Assembly Installation  ..................................  RW-07 
Reclaimed Water Vertical Thrust Blocking  ..........................................  RW-08 
Reclaimed Water Alternate Vertical Concrete Blocking  ........................  RW-09 
Reclaimed Water Horizontal Thrust Blocking  ......................................  RW-10 
Reclaimed Water Additional Standard Thrust Blocking & Notes  ..........  RW-11 

 
 



RECLAIMED WATER SETTER 1" DIAMETER

RECLAIMED WATER ALTERNATE VERTICAL CONCRETE BLOCKING

RECLAIMED WATER VERTICAL THRUST BLOCKING

HORIZONTAL & VERTICAL SEPARATION OF RECLAIMED WATER & OTHER PIPING

RECLAIMED  WATER VALVE & VALVE BOX

2" AIR VACUUM/ RELEASE VALVE COMBINATION ASSEMBLY 

RECLAIMED WATER COMBINATION AIR RELEASE/ AIR VACUUM VALVE

RECLAIMED WATER BLOWOFF ASSEMBLY INSTALLATION

W-01

W-02

W-03

W-04

W-05

W-06

W-07

W-08

W-09

W-10

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

RECLAIMED WATER DETAILS

TABLE OF CONTENTS

-

RECLAIMED WATER SETTER 2" DIAMETER

RECLAIMED WATER HORIZONTAL THRUST BLOCKING

(r.4)



N
O

T
E

S
:

C

I

O

N

N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

C

I

O

N

N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

2
"
 
C

O
M

B
I
N

A
T

I
O

N
 
A

I
R

V
A

L
V

E
 
A

S
S

E
M

B
L
Y

R
W

-
0

1

V
A

C
C

U
M

/
A

I
R

 
R

E
L
E

A
S

E

AutoCAD SHX Text
AROUND AIR/VAC VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" MIN. CLEARANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LENGTH VARIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" DIA. CONC. PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" COPPER PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S=1/4" PER FOOT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WASHED DRAIN ROCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 1/2" MINUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUBBASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" MAX

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" CORP. STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK SUPPORT

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"X8"X6" CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" THREADED

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUND LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAST IRON VALVE BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
OLYMPIC FOUNDRY INC. 950

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" ROMAC SADDLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
W/2" I.D. THREAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL FITTINGS AND NIPPLES MUST BE BRASS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ON ALL MAINS LESS THAN 8" IN DIAMETER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL PIPE FITTINGS BETWEEN MAIN AND UNION, AFTER AIR/VACUUM RELIEF VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHALL BE BRASS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALLATIONS FOR OTHER SIZE AIR/VACUUM RELIEF VALVES SHALL BE INDIVIDUALLY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED AND WILL REQUIRE APPROVAL BY THE UTILITIES DIVISION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AIR/VAC RELEASE VALVE ASSEMBLY SHALL BE INSTALLED AT HIGH POINT ON LINE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
IF HIGH POINT FALLS IN LOCATION WHERE ASSEMBLY CANNOT BE INSTALLED,

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROVIDE ADDITIONAL DEPTH TO CREATE NEW HIGH POINT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE VAULT PENETRATIONS SHALL BE CORED DRILLED AND GROUTED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AIR-VAC UNIT & BOX TO BE INSTALLED IN NON-TRAFFIC AREA.

AutoCAD SHX Text
USE ROMAC DOUBLE STRAP SERVICE CLAMP OR APPROVED EQUAL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.I. BODY GATE VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRODUCT MANUFACTURED BY A.R.I. FLOW CONTROL ACCESSORIES Ltd.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISCHARGE OUTLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AIR VACUUM &  AIR RELEASE VALVE FOR RECLAIMED AND NON-POTABLE WATER SEE NOTE #8 FOR MANUFACTURER (MODEL "MINI-SARR" D-021)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJUSTMENT SPACER

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRESSURE RELIEF VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" MANHOLE FRAME & WATER TIGHT  COVER MARKED "RECLAIMED WATER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE DETAIL W-07A FOR SPECS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS



TYPICAL UTILITY PIPE CROSSING

TYPICAL URBAN UTILITY PIPE SEPARATIONS

C

L

C

I

O

N

N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

C

I

O

N

N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

HORIZONTAL & VERTICAL

SEPARATION OF RECLAIMED

WATER & OTHER PIPING

RW-02

1

2

3

KEYNOTES:

1

2

3

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEWER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE BEDDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECLAIMED WATER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
POTABLE WATER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
12 PIPE SEGMENT LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
18' LENGTH SEGMENT OF PIPE MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRINKING WATER MAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECLAIMED WATER PIPELINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PVC C900 ~ PURPLE CLASS 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
MID POINT OF POTABLE PIPE SEGMENT CENTERED OVER NONPOTABLE PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECLAIMED WATER WARNING TAPE SHALL BE PLASTIC  WITH NON BIODEGRADABLE METAL CORE OR BACKING  THAT CAN BE TECTED WITH A STANDARD METAL  DETECTOR.  TAPE SHALL BE PURBLE WITH BLACK LETTERING STATING "CAUTION: RELAIMED WATER- DO NOT DRINK" AND SHALL BE PLACED 12" TO 18" BELOW FINISHED SURFACE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECLAIMED WATER PIPE SHALL BE PURBLE COLOR  AND CODED INTEGRALLY TAMPED IN BLACK "CAUTION: RECLAIMED WATER - DO NOT DRINK".  

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRENCH DETAILS SHALL BE PER SHELTON STANDARDS.



RECLAIMED                                     WATER MAIN

PAVED AREAUNPAVED AREA

C

I

O

N

N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

C

I

O

N

N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

RECLAIMED

& VALVE BOX

RW-03

WATER VALVE

NOTES:

CITY OF SHELTON

RECLAIMED

VALVE STEM EXTENSION LEGEND:

AutoCAD SHX Text
THRUST BLOCKING PER CITY OF SHELTON DETAILS RW-08, RW-09 & RW-10.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINISHED GROUND SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1' MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNDISTURBED GROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
USE WELL COMPACTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
NATIVE MAT'L OR CSTC

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS DIRECTED BY ENGINEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENEATH PAD 

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" BALLAST

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" C.S.T.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" ASPHALT SURFACING

AutoCAD SHX Text
MIN. OR MATCH EXIST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" MIN BASALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEAL JOINTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITH CSS-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1. VALVE OPERATING NUT EXTENSIONS ARE REQUIRED WHEN VALVE OPERATING NUT EXTENSIONS ARE REQUIRED WHEN THE VALVE NUT IS MORE THAN TWO (2) FEET BELOW FINISHED GRADE. EXTENSIONS ARE TO BE A MINIMUM OF ONE (1) FOOT LONG ONLY.   2. ALL VALVE OPERATING NUT EXTENSIONS ARE TO BE MADE ALL VALVE OPERATING NUT EXTENSIONS ARE TO BE MADE OF STEEL. SIZED AS NOTED, AND PAINTED WITH TWO (2) COATS OF METAL PAINT.  3. IF EXTENSION IS NEEDED, USE 6" SDR 35 PVC WATER IF EXTENSION IS NEEDED, USE 6" SDR 35 PVC WATER PIPE CONFORMING TO ASTM 3034. 4. A SQUARE CONCRETE PAD PROVIDING A 1' MINIMUM A SQUARE CONCRETE PAD PROVIDING A 1' MINIMUM COLLAR AROUND THE VALVE MAY BE USED INSTEAD OF A CIRCULAR PAD. SEE DETAIL W-07A.  5. PIPE, MANHOLE, VALVE BOX & LID TO BE PAINTED PIPE, MANHOLE, VALVE BOX & LID TO BE PAINTED REQUIRED PURPLE (PANTONE 512 OR PANTONE 522).

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMERCIAL CONCRETE PAD 36" MINIMUM COLLAR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
OLYMPIC FOUNDRY INC. 950

AutoCAD SHX Text
OR APPROVED EQUIVALENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER DETAIL W-07A.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARKED "RECLAIMED"

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
VALVE STEM RISER IF NEEDED (LENGTH VARIES). 

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" MAXIMUM

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" SDR 35 PVC WATER PIPE CONFORMING TO ASTM 3034.  RISER PIPE TO BE PLUMB AND CENTERED OVER VALVE STEM.

AutoCAD SHX Text
14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
316" THICK X 5  " DIAMETER STEEL GUIDE PLATE 15" DIAMETER STEEL GUIDE PLATE WELDED TO RISER SHAFT. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.

AutoCAD SHX Text
VALVE OPERATING NUT OR 1  " X 1  " X 2" HIGH 78" X 1  " X 2" HIGH 78" X 2" HIGH GRADE STEEL WELDED TO GUIDE PLATE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" X 2" X  " SQUARE STRUCTURAL STEEL TUBING 316" SQUARE STRUCTURAL STEEL TUBING TO FIT OPERATING NUT. LENGTH AS REQUIRED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: ALL WELDS TO SHAFT SHALL BE FILLET WELD  ALL WELDS TO SHAFT SHALL BE FILLET WELD ALL AROUND, AS SPECIFIED ABOVE. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOOP AT TOP MUST EXTEND A MIN OF 3 FT. ABOVE FINISHED GRADE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRILL "1" HOLE. PULL WIRE THROUGH TO INSIDE OF CAN AND PULL THROUGH. TRACER WIRE MUST SUPPLY CONTINUOUS SIGNAL FOR THE LENGTH OF MAIN.



NOTES:

C

I

O

N

N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

C

I

O

N

N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

RECLAIMED WATER

COMBINATION AIR VACUUM/

AIR RELEASE VALVE

RW-04

AutoCAD SHX Text
VALVE MARKER PURPLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STRAP PIPE TOGETHER SECURELY

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMBINATION VALVE, SEE NOTE 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" BRASS PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEARANCE 3" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GALV. STL. RISER PIPE, BEND 180°

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNION TYP. 2" BRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" VALVE W/VALVE BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR DETAIL SEE RW-03

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
3' MAX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3'

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. M.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAINLESS STEEL DOUBLE STRAPPED SADDLE WITH I.P. CORP. STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" C.T.S. 200 PSI PURPLE POLYETHYLENE PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GALV. STL. MARKER AND SUPPORT PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
VALVE CHAMBER - SIZED TO PROVIDE ACCESS TO SERVICE VALVE AND TO WITHSTAND TRAFFIC LOADS WHERE APPLICABLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STANDARD MANHOLE CASTING WITH 2" RAISED LETTERS MARKED "RECLAIMED WATER" ON COVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAINLESS STEEL SCREEN 1/32" OPENING

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
1½' MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
IF NOT SPECIFIED, SIZE OF PIPE SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO THE CITY FOR APPROVAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUBMIT SHOP DRAWINGS OF VALVE CHAMBER FOR APPROVAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMBINATION A.V./A.R. VALVE SHALL BE APCO 143C, 145C, 147C,149C OR EQUAL AS DICTATED BY SIZE OF WATER MAIN. SUBMIT CALCULATIONS TO THE CITY FOR APPROVAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL RIGID PIPE AND FITTINGS BELOW AIR RELIEF PIPE SHALL BE US MADE BRASS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACTUAL PIPE SIZES ARE DEPENDENT ON VALVE SIZE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAINT ALL PARTS PURPLE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1..

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNION TYP. 2" BRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS



C

I

O

N

N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

C

I

O

N

N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

RECLAIMED WATER

SETTER 1" DIAMETER

RW-05

NOTES:

W
A

T
E

R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
M

A
I
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOUBLE STAINLESS STEEL STRAP SERVICE SADDLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HDPE MID-STATES - MARKED "RECLAIMED WATER" BCF1324-12 METER BOX OR APPROVED EQUAL, WITH MID-STATES CBC1324-R DUCTILE IRON COVER, OR APPROVED EQUAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" BALL VALVE CORPORATION STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" C.T.S. 200 PSI POLYETHYLENE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.75"

AutoCAD SHX Text
BALL VALVE ANGLE STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
24.5"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
-2%%%

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEAVE 1' WIRE TAIL IN BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"MIN- 6"MAX

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"

AutoCAD SHX Text
30"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SERVICE SADDLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
14 GAUGE COATED BLUE COPPER TONING WIRE WRAPPED AROUND THE PIPE AND CONNECTED TO CORP STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" CURB STOP  BALL VALVE BRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
45°

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRIP JOINT, PACK JOINT, MUELLER 110, OR T SERIES COMPRESSION

AutoCAD SHX Text
FORD 90 SERIES  V9212W15, OR MUELLER, OR AY MCDONALD EQUAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAP OR PLUG

AutoCAD SHX Text
M OR F IPS THREADS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" M.I.P.T. X C.T.S. BALL VALVE CORPORATION STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
M OR F IPS THREADS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" POLYETHYLENE LINE (USE 200 PSI GRADE PE 3408) COPPER TUBE SIZE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CORPORATION STOPS SHALL BE ALL U.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRASS AND SHALL BE FORD D, MUELLER,

AutoCAD SHX Text
OR MCDONALD, WITH THREADS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONFORMING TO AWWA C800. STAINLESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEEL INSERTS REQUIRED FOR ALL PACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOINTS OR GRIP JOINTS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SETTER SHALL BE CENTERED IN BOX.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL SERVICE SADDLES SHALL HAVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RUBBER GASKET, I.P. THREADS, AND

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAINLESS STEEL DOUBLE STRAPS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TORQUE TO MANUFACTURES REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPECIFICATIONS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEAVE 1' WIRE TAIL IN BOX



N
O

T
E

S
:

C

I

O

N

N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

C

I

O

N

N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

R
E

C
L
A

I
M

E
D

 
W

A
T

E
R

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
S

E
T

T
E

R
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
2
"
 
D

I
A

M
E

T
E

R
 
 
 
 
 

R
W

-
0
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
CS BUSHING (2) CS8-77

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECK VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
25  "1532"

AutoCAD SHX Text
      10  " FOR 14" FOR 2" THREADED METER

AutoCAD SHX Text
2  " OD COPPER 18" OD COPPER TUBE (2)

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEE (2) T1S1-774

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" FIP INLET & OUTLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
CS BUSHING CS8-44-PLUG

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: PLUGGED W/ COPPER DISC TO PREVENT WATER FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL BRASS OF 85-5-5-5 RED BRASS UNS C83600 AWWA C800-01 ASTM B62-93

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1  " OD COPPER TUBE18" OD COPPER TUBE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COUPLING C84-44-PLUG

AutoCAD SHX Text
USE FORD VBRWH87-12-11-7710 OR APPROVED EQUAL FOR 1 1/2" AND 2" SETTERS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PAINT ALL PARTS PURPLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS



NOTES:

C

I

O

N

N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

C

I

O

N

N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

RECLAIMED WATER

INSTALLATION

RW-07

BLOW-OFF ASSEMBLY

CITY OF SHELTON

RECLAIMED

AutoCAD SHX Text
1. VALVE BOX AND COVER SHALL BE PER VALVE BOX VALVE BOX AND COVER SHALL BE PER VALVE BOX STANDARD DRAWINGS RW-03. 2. LOCATE BLOWOFF HYDRANT OUTSIDE  ROADWAY, LOCATE LOCATE BLOWOFF HYDRANT OUTSIDE  ROADWAY, LOCATE VALVE WITHIN ROADWAY. 3. ON RECLAIMED MAINS WHICH WILL BE EXTENDED IN THE ON RECLAIMED MAINS WHICH WILL BE EXTENDED IN THE FUTURE, THE VALVE WHICH OPERATES THE BLOWOFF ASSEMBLY SHALL BE THE SAME SIZE AND PROVIDED WITH A CONCRETE THRUST BLOCK. 4. PIPE, MANHOLE, VALVE BOX & LID TO BE PAINTED PIPE, MANHOLE, VALVE BOX & LID TO BE PAINTED REQUIRED PURPLE (PANTONE 512 OR PANTONE 522).

AutoCAD SHX Text
OFFSET METER BOX  TO ALLOW FOR HOSE CONNECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMERCIAL CONCRETE PAD 36" MINIMUM COLLAR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
HDPE MID-STATES - MARKED "RECLAIMED WATER" BCF1324-12 METER BOX OR APPROVED EQUAL, WITH MID-STATES CBC1324-R DUCTILE IRON COVER, OR APPROVED EQUAL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE DETAIL RW-03 FOR VALVE BOX LID/COLLAR REQUIREMENTS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
VALVE BOX WITH COVER SEE NOTE 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
BELOW GROUND KUPFERLE  MAINGUARD  ECLIPSE  MODEL #78 BLOW-OFF  HYDRANT OR EQUAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" DIA. GALV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENVELOPE OF 2"  WASHED ROCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" US BRASS STREET "L"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE BEDDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" GATE VALVE SHALL BE RESILIENT SEAL WITH 2" SQUARE OPERATING NUT (COUNTERCLOCKWISE OPENING) SEE NOTE 3.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE THRUST BLOCKING. (TYP)  SEE STANDARD  DRAWINGS RW-08, RW-09, & RW-10

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNDISTURBED EARTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
MJ MEGA LUG CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRIP, PACK JOINT, OR

AutoCAD SHX Text
M110 FITTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" US BRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
I.P. CORP. STOP

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" C.T.S. 200 PSI PURPLE POLYETHYLENE PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
36" MIN. COVER

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" I.P. THREADED SADDLE TAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
OLYMPIC FOUNDRY INC. 950

AutoCAD SHX Text
OR APPROVED EQUIVALENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER DETAIL W-07A.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARKED "RECLAIMED"

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEMENT CONCRETE PER CITY OF SHELTON STANDARDS



VERTICAL BLOCKING

FOR 11 1/4° - 22 1/2° & 30° BENDS

VERTICAL BLOCKING

FOR 45° BENDS

C

I

O

N

N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

C

I

O

N

N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

RECLAIMED WATER

 VERTICAL

THRUST BLOCKING

RW-08

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERTICAL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNDISTURBED

AutoCAD SHX Text
EARTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
GALVANIZED

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROD

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNDISTURBED

AutoCAD SHX Text
EARTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
GALVANIZED

AutoCAD SHX Text
RODS

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERTICAL BLOCKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR 11 1/4%%D - 22 1/2%%D - 30%%D BENDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIZE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GU

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
11 1/4%%D 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
22 1/2%%D

AutoCAD SHX Text
30%%D

AutoCAD SHX Text
11 1/4%%D 

AutoCAD SHX Text
22 1/2%%D

AutoCAD SHX Text
30%%D

AutoCAD SHX Text
11 1/4%%D 

AutoCAD SHX Text
22 1/2%%D

AutoCAD SHX Text
30%%D

AutoCAD SHX Text
11 1/4%%D 

AutoCAD SHX Text
22 1/2%%D

AutoCAD SHX Text
30%%D

AutoCAD SHX Text
11 1/4%%D 

AutoCAD SHX Text
22 1/2%%D

AutoCAD SHX Text
30%%D

AutoCAD SHX Text
11 1/4%%D 

AutoCAD SHX Text
22 1/2%%D

AutoCAD SHX Text
30%%D

AutoCAD SHX Text
11 1/4%%D 

AutoCAD SHX Text
22 1/2%%D

AutoCAD SHX Text
30%%D

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
16"

AutoCAD SHX Text
20"

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
41

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
47

AutoCAD SHX Text
70

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
88

AutoCAD SHX Text
132

AutoCAD SHX Text
70

AutoCAD SHX Text
134

AutoCAD SHX Text
275

AutoCAD SHX Text
91

AutoCAD SHX Text
225

AutoCAD SHX Text
330

AutoCAD SHX Text
128

AutoCAD SHX Text
320

AutoCAD SHX Text
480

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.2'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.6'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.2'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.2'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.7'

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
7/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
7/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 1/3"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 1/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
7/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 1/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 3/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 3/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 3/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.3'

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERTICAL BLOCKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR 45%%d BENDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIZE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GU

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
45%%D

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
16"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
41

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.2'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.6'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.2'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.8'

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
20"

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
45%%D

AutoCAD SHX Text
45%%D

AutoCAD SHX Text
45%%D

AutoCAD SHX Text
45%%D

AutoCAD SHX Text
45%%D

AutoCAD SHX Text
45%%D

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS



VERTICAL BLOCKING

FOR 11 1/4° - 22 1/2° & 30° BENDS

CLASS 3000 CONC.

(OR COMMERCIAL)

C

I

O

N

N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

C

I

O

N

N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

RECLAIMED WATER

ALTERNATE VERTICAL

THRUST BLOCKING

RW-09

AutoCAD SHX Text
VB

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNDISTURBED

AutoCAD SHX Text
EARTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
GALVANIZED

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROD

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNDISTURBED

AutoCAD SHX Text
EARTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
GALVANIZED

AutoCAD SHX Text
RODS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE "A" BLOCKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR 11 1/4%%D - 22 1/2%%D - 30%%D BENDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE SIZE NOM.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIAMETER INCHES

AutoCAD SHX Text
11 1/4%%D 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
22 1/2%%D

AutoCAD SHX Text
30%%D

AutoCAD SHX Text
11 1/4%%D 

AutoCAD SHX Text
22 1/2%%D

AutoCAD SHX Text
30%%D

AutoCAD SHX Text
11 1/4%%D 

AutoCAD SHX Text
22 1/2%%D

AutoCAD SHX Text
30%%D

AutoCAD SHX Text
11 1/4%%D 

AutoCAD SHX Text
22 1/2%%D

AutoCAD SHX Text
30%%D

AutoCAD SHX Text
11 1/4%%D 

AutoCAD SHX Text
22 1/2%%D

AutoCAD SHX Text
30%%D

AutoCAD SHX Text
11 1/4%%D 

AutoCAD SHX Text
22 1/2%%D

AutoCAD SHX Text
30%%D

AutoCAD SHX Text
11 1/4%%D 

AutoCAD SHX Text
22 1/2%%D

AutoCAD SHX Text
30%%D

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
41

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
47

AutoCAD SHX Text
70

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
88

AutoCAD SHX Text
132

AutoCAD SHX Text
70

AutoCAD SHX Text
148

AutoCAD SHX Text
275

AutoCAD SHX Text
91

AutoCAD SHX Text
225

AutoCAD SHX Text
330

AutoCAD SHX Text
128

AutoCAD SHX Text
320

AutoCAD SHX Text
480

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
7/8

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 1/8

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
7/8

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 3/8

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 3/8

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 5/8

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
VB

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4 TURNBUCKLES

AutoCAD SHX Text
THREAD 6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 TURNBUCKLES

AutoCAD SHX Text
THREAD 6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEST PRESSURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PSI

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERTICAL BEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEGREES

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO. OF CU CT OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. BLOCKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE OF CUBE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIAMETER OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHACKLE RODS (4)

AutoCAD SHX Text
INCHES

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEPTH OF RODS

AutoCAD SHX Text
IN CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
300

AutoCAD SHX Text
300

AutoCAD SHX Text
300

AutoCAD SHX Text
250

AutoCAD SHX Text
225

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR 45%%d BENDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
45%%D

AutoCAD SHX Text
3.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
68

AutoCAD SHX Text
123

AutoCAD SHX Text
232

AutoCAD SHX Text
478

AutoCAD SHX Text
560

AutoCAD SHX Text
820

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 3/8

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
45%%D

AutoCAD SHX Text
45%%D

AutoCAD SHX Text
45%%D

AutoCAD SHX Text
45%%D

AutoCAD SHX Text
45%%D

AutoCAD SHX Text
45%%D

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE SIZE NOM.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIAMETER INCHES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEST PRESSURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PSI

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERTICAL BEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEGREES

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO. OF CU CT OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. BLOCKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE OF CUBE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIAMETER OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHACKLE RODS (4)

AutoCAD SHX Text
INCHES

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEPTH OF RODS

AutoCAD SHX Text
IN CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
300

AutoCAD SHX Text
225

AutoCAD SHX Text
300

AutoCAD SHX Text
250

AutoCAD SHX Text
300

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
200

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 1/8

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPE "B" BLOCKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
VB

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
VB

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS



CROSSTEE/DEAD END CROSS W/

ONE PLUG

CROSS W/

TWO PLUGS

TABLE B

ALLOWABLE BEARING PRESSURE

FOR SOILS TYPES

TABLE A

THRUST (IN LBS.) PER PSI OF WATER

PRESSURE AT VARIOUS FITTINGS

C

I

O

N

N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

C

I

O

N

N

O

T

G

N
I

H

S

A

W

T

Y

o

f

S
H

E

L

T

RECLAIMED WATER

HORIZONTAL

THRUST BLOCKING

RW-10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11 1/4%%D, 22 1/2%%D

AutoCAD SHX Text
VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL ELEV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
& 45%%D BENDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
90%%D BENDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPES OF CONCRETE BLOCKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNDISTURBED

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEARING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TIE RODS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAME

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS TEE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURFACE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLUG

AutoCAD SHX Text
OR CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLUG

AutoCAD SHX Text
OR CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLUG

AutoCAD SHX Text
OR CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRENCH WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 EA. SAME

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS 45%%D BEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
4 EA. SAME

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS 45%%D BEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
(WORKING PRESSURE TIMES 1.33)

AutoCAD SHX Text
IN ABSENCE OF A SOILS REPORT, AN AVERAGE SOIL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(SOFT CLAY) WITH AN ASSUMED VALUE OF 2,000 PSF 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEARING STRENGTH (FROM TABLE "B") MAY BE USED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE FOR THRUST BLOCKING SHALL BE CLASS 3OOO 

AutoCAD SHX Text
OR COMMERCIAL AT THE DISCRETION OF THE CONTRACTOR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHACKLE RODS SHALL BE ASTM A-36 WITH MINIMUM YIELD 

AutoCAD SHX Text
STRESS OF 36KSI (KIPS PER SQ. IN.) MINIMUM ROD 

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES IN FIGURES SUCH AS: "SAME AS 45%%D BEND" MEANS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE THRUST BLOCK VALUE SHALL BE THE SAME AS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETERMINED FOR A 45%%D BEND OF THE SAME SIZE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEARING PRESSURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LBS./SQ. FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL TYPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PEAT OR MUCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALLUVIAL SOIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOFT CLAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAND & GRAVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAND & GRAVEL W/CLAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1,000

AutoCAD SHX Text
2,000

AutoCAD SHX Text
4,000

AutoCAD SHX Text
6,000

AutoCAD SHX Text
8,000

AutoCAD SHX Text
12,000

AutoCAD SHX Text
20,000

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEES

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEAD ENDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
38

AutoCAD SHX Text
67

AutoCAD SHX Text
105

AutoCAD SHX Text
150

AutoCAD SHX Text
205

AutoCAD SHX Text
267

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIZE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
22 1/2%%D

AutoCAD SHX Text
11 1/4%%D

AutoCAD SHX Text
45%%D

AutoCAD SHX Text
90%%D

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
29

AutoCAD SHX Text
53

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
51

AutoCAD SHX Text
95

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
41

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
148

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
115

AutoCAD SHX Text
213

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
157

AutoCAD SHX Text
290

AutoCAD SHX Text
52

AutoCAD SHX Text
104

AutoCAD SHX Text
205

AutoCAD SHX Text
378

AutoCAD SHX Text
66

AutoCAD SHX Text
132

AutoCAD SHX Text
259

AutoCAD SHX Text
479

AutoCAD SHX Text
82

AutoCAD SHX Text
163

AutoCAD SHX Text
320

AutoCAD SHX Text
591

AutoCAD SHX Text
118

AutoCAD SHX Text
235

AutoCAD SHX Text
461

AutoCAD SHX Text
851

AutoCAD SHX Text
338

AutoCAD SHX Text
418

AutoCAD SHX Text
602

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXAMPLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REQUIRED BEARING SURFACE FOR A 90%%D BEND IN 8" LINER

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITH MAXIMUM OPERATING PRESSURE OR TEST PRESSURE OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
200 PSI AND SOIL BEARING STRENGTH OF 2,000 PSF:

AutoCAD SHX Text
THRUST

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL STRENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
THRUST = 95(FROM TABLE) X 200 = 19,000 LBS

AutoCAD SHX Text
19,000 LBS

AutoCAD SHX Text
2,000 PSF

AutoCAD SHX Text
= BEARING AREA (SQ. FT.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.5 SQ. FT. =

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA OF UNDISTURBED

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOIL REQUIRED

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIAMETER SHALL BE 5/8".

AutoCAD SHX Text
TABLE "A" SHOULD BE USED WITH THE MAXIMUM PRESSURE ANTICIPATED FOR HYDROSTATIC TEST PRESSURE OR SURGE PRESSURE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
"Building A Stronger Community

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOGETHER"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DWG#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAIG GREGORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2019

AutoCAD SHX Text
GS

AutoCAD SHX Text
NTS





WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | APPENDICES | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021  

Appendix 3E  
COMPREHENSIVE PLANS 
 





WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | APPENDICES | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021  

 

 

 

Excerpts from  
City of Shelton Comprehensive Plan  
November 2017 
 





City of Shelton Comprehensive Plan 

November 2017 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



City of Shelton Comprehensive Plan  
 

 

 
 

City of Shelton  
525 West Cota Street  
Shelton, WA 98584 

Contact: Jason Dose 
Senior Planner 

Office: (360) 432-5102 
FAX: (360) 426-7746 

Email: jason.dose@sheltonwa.gov  
 
 

 
 

November 2017 



Table of Contents  City of Shelton Comprehensive Plan 

 

 

November 2017  2 

Table of Contents 



Table of Contents  City of Shelton Comprehensive Plan 

 

 

November 2017  3 

City of Shelton Comprehensive Plan 2017 

 

I. Introduction………………………………………………………………………… . …I-1 

The Vision Statement 2036 .......................................................................................... I-3 

Population Forecast ...................................................................................................... I-5 

Organization of the Comprehensive Plan ..................................................................... I-6 

II. Land Use ............................................................................................................. II-1 

Existing Conditions/Designated Land Uses ................................................................. II-2 

Population Projection ................................................................................................... II-5 

Urban Growth Area...................................................................................................... II-6 

Land Use Goals and Policies ....................................................................................... II-9 

III. Parks and Recreation .............................................................................. III-1 

Existing Conditions ..................................................................................................... III-1 

Parks and Recreation Goals and Policies ................................................................... III-2 

IV. Transportation ............................................................................................... IV-1 

 Introduction ................................................................................................................ IV-1 

Planning Context ........................................................................................................ IV-2 

Inventory of Existing Facilities and Services ............................................................... IV-3 

Analysis of Existing Conditions ................................................................................. IV-10 

Analysis of Future Conditions ................................................................................... IV-16 

Recommended Transportation Plan ......................................................................... IV-19 

Transportation Finance ............................................................................................. IV-30 

Transportation Goals and Policies ............................................................................ IV-33 

V. Housing ............................................................................................................... V-1 

Introduction ................................................................................................................. V-1 

Existing Conditions ...................................................................................................... V-2 

Housing Costs and Affordability ................................................................................... V-5 

Housing Needs ............................................................................................................ V-7 

Housing Goals and Policies ......................................................................................... V-9 

 



Table of Contents  City of Shelton Comprehensive Plan 

 

 

November 2017  4 

VI. Capital Facilities and Utilities ............................................................ VI-1 

Introduction ................................................................................................................ VI-1 

City Services and Capital Facilities Inventory ............................................................. VI-3 

Fire and Emergency Services ................................................................................... VI-10 

Schools .................................................................................................................... VI-12 

Municipal Water Service ........................................................................................... VI-13 

Municipal Sewer/Wastewater ................................................................................... VI-15 

Municipal Stormwater ............................................................................................... VI-16 

Other Utilities ............................................................................................................ VI-18 

Capital Facilities and Utilities Goals and Policies ...................................................... VI-21 

VII. Shoreline Management .......................................................................... VII-1 

Introduction ............................................................................................................... VII-1 

Shoreline Management Goals and Policies ............................................................... VII-1 

VIII. Historic Preservation ............................................................................. VIII-1 

Introduction .............................................................................................................. VIII-1 

Historic Preservation Goals and Policies .................................................................. VIII-3 

IX. Economic Development ......................................................................... IX-1 

Introduction ............................................................................................................... IX-1 

Community Profile ..................................................................................................... IX-1 

Stakeholders ............................................................................................................. IX-7 

Economic Development Goals and Policies .............................................................. IX-9 

X. Urban Growth Area Plan ......................................................................... X-1 

Introduction ................................................................................................................. X-1 

Description of UGA ...................................................................................................... X-1 

UGA Population Profile ................................................................................................ X-2 

Land Capacity Analysis ............................................................................................... X-3 

UGA Boundaries and Land Use Designation ............................................................... X-7 

Urban Growth Area Goals and Policies ....................................................................... X-8 

 

 

 



Table of Contents  City of Shelton Comprehensive Plan 

 

 

November 2017  5 

Tables 

Table I-1: Summary of Population Forecast ............................................................................. I-5 

Table II-1: Current Land Use Distribution within City Limits ..................................................... II-2 

Table II-2: City of Shelton and UGA Current (2016) and Projected (2036) Population ............. II-5 

Table IV-1: Existing Transit Service ....................................................................................... IV-8 

Table IV-2: LOS Criteria for Signalized Intersections ........................................................... IV-12 

Table IV-3: LOS Criteria for Stop Controlled Intersections ................................................... IV-13 

Table IV-4: Existing PM Peak Hour Level of Service Summary ............................................ IV-15 

Table IV-5a:  2036 Peak Hour Level of Service Summary Intersections ............................... IV-16 

Table IV-5b:  2036 Level of Service Summary State Highway Segments ............................. IV-18 

Table IV-6:  Six Year Transportation Plan, 2017-2022 ......................................................... IV-19 

Table IV-7: Twenty Year Transportation Plan, 2017-2036 .................................................... IV-20 

Table IV-8:  Future Roadway Improvements ........................................................................ IV-21 

Table IV-9: 2036 PM Peak Hour Level of Service Summary ................................................ IV-23 

Table IV-10:  Projected Transportation Funding for Capacity Improvements ........................ IV-31 

Table V-1:  City of Shelton and Mason County Population Change 1980 to 2017 and anticipated 
population (allocated) 2036. ................................................................................. V-2 

Table V-2:  Monthly Household Costs as a percentage of Household Income 2014 ................ V-6 

Table V-3:  Housing Capacity .................................................................................................. V-7 

Table V-4:  Distribution of Incomes in Shelton, Mason County, and Washington State ........... V-7 

Table VI-1:  Projected Population in Shelton and the UGA ..................................................... VI-1 

Table VI-2: Public Buildings Inventory .................................................................................... VI-4 

Table VI-3: Municipal LOS Standards .................................................................................... VI-5 

Table VI-4:  Shelton Metropolitan Park District: 2017 Parks and Recreation Facilities............ VI-6 

Table VI-5: Parks LOS Analysis ............................................................................................. VI-8 

Table VI-6:  Police Building Level of Service Analysis ............................................................ VI-9 

Table VI-7:  Shelton School District Facilities ....................................................................... VI-12 

Table VI-8:  Water Planned Projects .................................................................................... VI-15 

Table VI-9:  Sewer Planned Projects (2013$) ...................................................................... VI-16 

 

 

 



Table of Contents  City of Shelton Comprehensive Plan 

 

 

November 2017  6 

 

Figures 

Figure 1: Future Land Use Map 

Figure 2: Vacant and Redevelopable Lands 

Figure 3: Designated Shorelines of the State and Stream Classifications 

Figure 4: Critical Areas – Potential Wetlands 

Figure 5: Critical Areas – Potential Frequently Flooded Areas 

Figure 6: Critical Areas – Potential Critical Aquifer Recharge Areas 

Figure 7: Critical Areas – Potential Geologically Hazardous Areas – Sensitive Sloped Areas 

Figure 8: Critical Areas – Potential Geologically Hazardous Areas – Landslide Hazard 

Areas 

Figure 9: Critical Areas – Potential Geologically Hazardous Areas – Liquefaction Zones 

Figure 10: Critical Areas – Potential Fish Geologically Hazardous Areas – Erosion Hazards 

Figure 11: Existing Roadway Functional Classification 

Figure 12: Preferred Freight Routes 

Figure 13: Transportation Study Intersections 

Figure 14: 2012 Existing Conditions Intersection Operations 

Figure 15: 2036 Forecast Intersection Operations 

Figure 16: Recommended Future Roadways 

Figure 17: Recommended Roadway Functional Classification 

Figure 18: Water System and Zones 

Figure 19: Wastewater Collection System and Basins  

 

 

Supporting Plans and Documents 

I. Land Capacity Analysis, BERK Consulting, July 2016 

II. Washington State Office of Financial Management (OFM) population estimates for 

Mason County and the City of Shelton (April 1, 2017). 

III. County Wide Planning Policies, Chapter 2 of Mason County Comprehensive Plan, 

August 2016 

II.  Imagine! Shelton, 1993, Washington Council American Institute of Architects 



Table of Contents  City of Shelton Comprehensive Plan 

 

 

November 2017  7 

III. City of Shelton Forested Hillsides Strategy, November 1994 

IV. Oakland Bay Action Plan, Mason County Public Health, August 16, 2007 

V. City of Shelton Parks and Recreation Comprehensive Plan, 2008 

VI. Mason County and City of Shelton Housing Needs Assessment, Common Ground, May 

2003 

VII. Housing Matters, 3 Year Housing and Homelessness Strategy for Mason County, 

Washington, Mason County Housing Coalition, December 2015 

VIII. State of Washington Housing Needs Assessment, January 2015 

IX. Shelton Industrial Lands Analysis, ECONorthwest, September 24, 2014 

X. City of Shelton Water Comprehensive Plan and Appendices, May 2010 

XI. City of Shelton Technical Memorandum Number 1, Water System Analysis for Urban 

Growth Area Expansion, Carollo and Associates, September 2016 

XII. City of Shelton Water and Sewer System Year Capital Improvement Program 2018-2032 

XIII. City of Shelton Comprehensive Sewer Plan Update and Appendices,  November 2013 

XIV. Correspondence from Ovivo USA regarding Satellite Wastewater Treatment Plant 

Capacity Upgrades, August 2017 

XV. Shelton Area Water and Sewer Regional Plan, Gray and Osborne, November 2001 

XVI. City of Shelton Inflow and Infiltration Facility Plan Update, 1997 

XVII. City of Shelton Surface Water Drainage Utility Master Plan, Brown and Caldwell, 

October 1993 

XVIII. City of Shelton Shoreline Master Program, May 2013 (Amended June 2017) 

XIX. Sanderson Field Airport Master Plan Update, March 2010 

XX. Shelton Critical Areas Ordinance Best Available Science Review and Recommendations 

for Code Update, prepared by Parametrix, August 2016 

XVI. Shelton Comprehensive Plan Update and Urban Growth Area Expansion Draft 

Environmental Impact Statement, February 2017 

XVII. Shelton Comprehensive Plan Update and Urban Growth Area Expansion Final 

Environmental Impact Statement, August 2017 

 

 



City of Shelton  

Comprehensive Plan – Capital Facilities & Utilities Element – November 2017 

 

 VI-1 

 

 

 

VI. Capital Facilities and Utilities Element 

INTRODUCTION 

The City of Shelton owns and manages a number of public facilities that support the provision of services 

(such as fire, law enforcement, city buildings, parks facilities, and streets). In addition to the city-owned 

facilities, there are facilities owned and managed by special districts (such as schools) and facilities that 

are owned and managed by private entities (such as electrical, natural gas, and telecommunications). The 

GMA requires all Comprehensive Plans to include a capital facilities element that analyzes the future 

capital improvement needs and the funding mechanisms available for implementation in support of the 

development goals in the Land Use Element. Planning for capital facilities and utilities is a complex task 

and it requires understanding of future needs, assessing the various types of capital facilities that could be 

provided, and identifying the most effective and efficient array of facilities to support the needed services. 

Projected growth from 2016-2036 is established in the Land Use Element, but an intermediate six-year 

growth figure is shown in Table VI-1 below for the purposes planning Capital Facilities and Utilities. 

Between 2010 and 2015 Shelton’s growth rate was a little over 2%. This was likely related to lingering 

effects of the Great Recession. A slight increase in growth is assumed to occur over the six-year period 

2016-2022 at approximately 3%. The majority of growth is assumed to occur after 2022. Shelton Hills 

and Goldsborough Heights will provide over 60% of the capacity for new residential growth, the first 

homes in those areas are unlikely to be constructed before 2022. 

Table VI-1: Projected Population in Shelton and the UGA 

2016 2022 2036 

13,816 14,230 23,416 

This element summarizes existing conditions and addresses future needs for capital facilities and utilities 

in Shelton and contains broad-based goals and specific policies that guide and implement the provision of 

adequate public facilities services. By analyzing the funding required to provide facilities for growth, and 

by funding projects needed to maintain level of service and concurrency, this element influences the 

quality of life in the community.    

Capital Facilities and Growth 

As the City of Shelton grows, necessary public facilities, infrastructure, and services need to be managed 

along with growth. Implementation of the land use plan must occur concurrently with the development of 

needed infrastructure. Capital facilities covered in this Element include municipal services and facilities, 

parks and recreation, police, fire and emergency services, schools, water, wastewater, stormwater, and 

solid waste. These capital facilities and utilities are considered necessary for growth. As provided in the 

Growth Management Act, Capital Facilities Plans are a required part of the Comprehensive Plan and are 

to provide capital facilities for land development that is envisioned or authorized by the Land Use 

Element. If there are funding shortfalls for necessary capital facilities and utilities and the City is not able 



City of Shelton  

Comprehensive Plan – Capital Facilities & Utilities Element – November 2017 

 

 VI-2 

 

 

to meet adopted levels of service, the City may need to review its Land Use Element and its level of 

service standards to reassess its plan for 20-year growth. 

Other utilities covered in this Element include electricity, natural gas, telecommunications, cellular 

communications, and cable television. Additional services that are important to Shelton residents, but 

owned and maintained by others include MACECOM, providing 911 emergency call services, Shelton 

Memorial Park Cemetery, and Mason General Hospital and Family of Clinics, providing health services. 

The availability of these utilities and facilities influence growth, but they are not considered necessary for 

development under the Growth Management Act. As such, the failure to fund these services does not 

require the city to reassess its land use plan. 

Due to the interrelationship between land use, public facilities, and services, the Capital Facilities 

Element should be viewed as a vehicle for identifying and coordinating capital facility needs in a manner 

that maximizes the return to the community. Also, the Element is meant to coordinate and provide 

consistency among the other plans, including the Parks and Recreation, Transportation, and Land Use 

Elements of the Plan, various master plans, and other studies.  

Capital Facilities and Level of Service 

The principal criteria used in identifying needed capital improvements are adopted standards for level of 

service (LOS). LOS standards are a summary of existing or desired public service conditions and the 

process of setting the standards requires making quality of service decisions.  

Each capital facility has been assigned a future LOS standard that is required to be maintained during the 

planning period. Concurrency requires that development not occur unless needed transportation facilities 

are adequate to insure LOS standards are not diminished and are provided at the time of the development 

or within six years (see transportation element). Other services necessary to support development are to 

be adequate at the time of development, including but not limited to water, sewer, stormwater, and fire 

protection.  

Transportation Concurrency 

Concurrency is essentially the balance between demand for, and the capacity of, capital facilities. The 

Growth Management Act (GMA) specifically defines being concurrent with development as 

“improvements or strategies that are in place at the time of development, or that show financial 

commitment is in place to complete the improvement or strategies within six years.” The GMA requires 

that transportation facilities and services necessary to support new development and to maintain adopted 

LOS, at a minimum, must be available concurrent with development occupancy or use. 

Concurrency is a central feature of the Capital Facilities Element. Under concurrency requirements, the 

level of service standards for transportation will influence the timing and location of development 

depending on what locations have existing transportation capacity or locations where needed facilities 

can’t feasibly be provided. If level of service is reduced to within 90% of the adopted standard, the 

Concurrency Management System (SMC 17.07) will impose mitigation requirements and necessary 

sanctions to alleviate any further reduction for those facilities. The System consists of an annual report on 

LOS and capacity for public facilities, public facility capacity review of development applications, and 



City of Shelton  

Comprehensive Plan – Capital Facilities & Utilities Element – November 2017 

 

 VI-3 

 

 

review of changes to planned capacity of public facilities.  See the Transportation Element for more 

discussion regarding transportation. 

Capital Facilities Financing and Revenue Sources 

In planning for needed capital facilities, only certain improvements can be afforded. Competing demands 

requires coordination of the planned facilities and a thorough understanding of the fiscal capacity of the 

City to finance the facilities.  

It is anticipated that the City will utilize some or all of the following methods to finance identified capital 

projects: 

 General Funds 

 Revenue Bonds 

 Grant Funds  

 General Obligation Bonds  

 Developer Funds  

 Local Improvement Districts  

 Utility Funds  

 Impact Fees  

 Low Interest Loans 

In 2017, Shelton expects to spend over two million dollars from the Capital Improvement Fund, mostly 

on street projects. The General Fund anticipates expenditures on minor repair and replacement capital 

projects, with no capacity related projects planned. Expenditures on water, sewer, and stormwater utilities 

are expected to remain stable at over $27 million with the City focused on paying down debts and 

maintaining existing facilities. The City currently only collects impact fees for transportation, but could 

consider the adoption of impact fees if needed to support growth-related improvements to capital facilities 

for parks, schools, or fire and emergency services. 

CITY SERVICES AND CAPITAL FACILITIES 

Municipal Services 

Inventory 

The Civic Center houses Administrative Services, City Commission, City Administrator, Public Works, 

Community and Economic Development Services, Municipal Court, and the Police Department. The City 

Shop houses field services and provides maintenance and operation services for all City public facilities. 

Table VI-2 shows the public buildings owned by the City of Shelton, as well as their location and size.  

  



City of Shelton  

Comprehensive Plan – Capital Facilities & Utilities Element – November 2017 

 

 VI-4 

 

 

Table VI-2: Public Buildings 

Facility Location Size (Sq Ft) 

Civic Center 525 W Cota Street 38,261 

Police  6,563 

911 Communications  2,472 

Municipal Court  3,766 

Kiosk  180 

Open Space  11,092 

City Hall  5,231 

Public Works/Community Development  5,469 

Timberland Regional Library* 710 W Alder Street 15,500 

City Shop 1000 W Pine Street 16,629 

Fire Department 122 W Franklin Street 14,580 

Wastewater Treatment Plant 1700 E Fairmont Avenue 21,481 

Museum* 427 W Railroad Street 3,220 

Animal Shelter 902 W Pine Street 1,128 

Satellite WRP 10891 US Hwy 101 8,150 

Storage House 218 S 5
th

 Street 980 

TOTAL  119,929 

*The City owns the library and museum facilities, but they are run by the Timberland Regional Library District and the Mason 

County Museum, respectively.  

Level of Service 

The City of Shelton uses the Washington State Standards for public building space. The standards are 

based on square feet per 1,000 of population. Table VI-3 shows the Municipal LOS standards by service 

type. The City of Shelton will need a total of 57,458 square feet of public buildings for municipal services 

in order to meet their LOS standards in 2036. Including the Civic Center and the City Shop, there is 

currently 54,890 square feet of space, indicating a small deficit in public building space by 2036. 

  



City of Shelton  

Comprehensive Plan – Capital Facilities & Utilities Element – November 2017 

 

 VI-5 

 

 

Table VI-3: Municipal LOS Standards 
  LOS Standard  

(Sq ft per 1,000 

population)* 

2022 Need (Sq Ft) 2036 Need (Sq Ft) 

Administrative Services 350 4,981 8,196 

City Commission 173 2,462 4,051 

City Administrator 100 1,423 2,342 

Development Services 598 8,510 14,003 

Field Services 135 1,921 3,161 

Police Services 575 8,182 13,464 

Emergency Community Services 188 2,675 4,402 

Municipal Court 326 4,639 7,634 

TOTAL  2,445 34,792 57,486 

Available Space  54,890 54,890 

Surplus / (Deficit)  20,098 (2,596) 

* Washington State Standards converted to per 1,000 

Space is adequate currently and in the 6-year planning period, and there is a small deficit at the 20-year 

period. At this time there are no capacity projects planned in the 20-year planning period. If that does not 

change, the City will reduce its LOS standards for the years 2023-2036 by about 5% to match the 

available space, as the LOS standard is a locally determined policy.  

Planned Projects  

The Civic Center currently provides space and facilities that meet the service needs. No capacity related 

projects are currently planned. 

Revenue Analysis 

Project-specific funding strategies are prepared for capital improvements projected to be necessary for 

public buildings. The strategies are included in annual budgets. The Real Estate Excise Tax 2 (REET 2) 

tax of one-quarter of one percent imposed on the selling price of real property in Shelton is dedicated to 

capital improvements. 

Parks and Recreation 

The City of Shelton currently has 40.27 acres of developed and undeveloped recreational facilities. In 

addition to the facilities owned and operated by the City of Shelton, the Shelton School District owns 

schools with recreational facilities. Mason County and various other agencies provide important facilities 

and programming in the community. The County is a provider of regional facilities including ball field 

complexes, water access, and nature parks. 

The City of Shelton via the Shelton Metropolitan Park District is the primary provider of recreation 

programming in the community, offering adult sports, youth sports, fitness programs, and enrichment 



City of Shelton  

Comprehensive Plan – Capital Facilities & Utilities Element – November 2017 

 

 VI-6 

 

 

activities. The Shelton Metropolitan Park District serves the Shelton City limits and was formed in May 

2010. The District Board is comprised of the three-member City of Shelton Commission. In 2014 the 

District had approximately $335,000 in expenditures. The District contracts all of its services to the City 

of Shelton. (Washington State Auditor's Office, 2015)  

Inventory 

Current parks and recreation facilities are identified in Table VI-4. 

Table VI-4: Shelton Metropolitan Park District: 2017 Parks and Recreation Facilities 

Facility Acres Amenities Address 

Brewer Park 0.30 Picnic tables, mature vegetation 220 W. Franklin 

Callanan Park 6.90 Ball field, play equipment, restroom, 

natural area, basketball court 

400 W. E Street 

City Park 1.75 Undeveloped site Northcliff Rd. 

Huff n Puff Trail 5.00 2 mile jogging trail on watershed 3600 Shelton Springs Rd 

Johnson Park 0.50 Basketball court, mature trees 325 E. Poplar 

Kneeland Park 3.90 Large play structure, picnic areas, 

restroom, horseshoes, open play area, 

landscaping 

100 Turner Ave. 

Loop Field 4.00 Ball field, athletic field, play structure, 

restroom, picnic shelter 

1020 W. Franklin 

Overlook Park 1.03 Historic marker overlooking downtown & 

mills 

1200 Olympic Hwy S. 

Post Office Park 0.07 Open space with gazebo and picnic tables 218 Reed Way 

Vogtlin-Angle 

Park 

1.00 Undeveloped site, open space Railroad Ave. 

Shelton Point/ 

SR3 Entry 

6.00 Undeveloped site, open space SR3 & Pine St. 

Sixth St. Park 0.14 Picnic shelter, barbecues, creek 330 S. 6th St. 

Catalyst Park 1.00 Community Garden 909 S. 8
th
 St. 

Skate Park 0.68 Skate park facility Wallace Kneeland Blvd. 

Eagle Point 8.00 Undeveloped site, open space, including 

some tidelands. 

Walker Park Road 

Total 40.27   

Source: Shelton Metropolitan Park District, 2016; City of Shelton 2007; BERK Consulting 2016.  

Mason County has 40 acres of parks including sports fields and play areas in the UGA and 6.5 miles of 

trails. (Mason County Facilities, Parks, and Trails, 2013) 



City of Shelton  

Comprehensive Plan – Capital Facilities & Utilities Element – November 2017 

 

 VI-7 

 

 

Planned Projects  

The City recently completed a trails plan identifying trail goals, objectives, and improvements in the 

community, but deferring a level of service policy until a future parks plan update. Priority improvements 

included formalizing the Shelton Creek trail (recently performed by a group of Choice High School 

students), extending the Huff n Puff trail, linking neighborhoods to downtown, establishing water trail 

heads, and other improvements. (City of Shelton, 2013). 

Major development is anticipated in the next 20 years in Shelton Hills and Goldsborough Heights. 16.5 

acres of new parks are anticipated to be added in Shelton Hills, as documented in the Shelton Hills EIS 

and Planned Action. Another 10 acres could be developed as part of Goldsborough Heights. 

Level of Service 

The 2008 City of Shelton Comprehensive Parks and Recreation Plan (2008 Plan) established the LOS 

standard for park and recreational facilities at five acres per 1,000 population. The effective LOS as of 

2016 is 4.0 acres per 1,000 population based on a population of 10,070 and the City’s 40.27 acres of 

parks, indicating a deficit compared to the 5-acre standard. Considering the City and UGA together in 

2016, the population is 13,816 served by a combined 80.27 acres, or effectively 5.81 acres per 1,000 

population, which meets the LOS standard. 

Under the 5.0 LOS standard, there would be a deficit of parks in the 20-year planning period. This deficit 

is likely to be reduced by the inclusion of new parks in the Goldsborough Heights development area, 

where significant new growth is planned. As grants and other funding become available in the next 20-

years, the City could potentially eliminate this anticipated deficit. However, if this is not possible, the 

City could adopt an LOS consistent with its effective LOS within city limits (4.0) as a base LOS and the 

5-acre policy as a target LOS that is dependent on additional funding.  

The City of Shelton parks department is currently updating the 2008 Comprehensive Parks and 

Recreation Plan and is adopted in this Comprehensive Plan by reference.  The policies referenced in the 

Parks Plan have been incorporated into this Comprehensive Plan in the Parks and Recreation Element.



City of Shelton  

Comprehensive Plan – Capital Facilities & Utilities Element – November 2017 

 

 VI-8 

 

 

 

Table VI-5: Parks LOS Analysis 
LOS 

Standard 

P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 (
2

0
1

6
) 

2
0

1
6

 P
a

rk
s 

A
cr

es
 

2
0

1
6

 L
O

S
 N

ee
d

ed
 

S
u

rp
lu

s 
/ 

D
ef

ic
it

 i
n

 2
0
1

6
 

2
0

2
2

 P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 

2
0

2
2

 L
O

S
 N

ee
d

ed
 

S
u

rp
lu

s/
D

ef
ic

it
 i

n
 2

0
2
2

 

2
0

3
6

 P
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 

2
0

3
6

 L
O

S
 N

ee
d

ed
 (

a
cr

es
) 

2
0

3
6

 P
ro

je
ct

ed
 P

a
rk

s 
(a

cr
es

)*
 

S
u

rp
lu

s 
/ 

D
ef

ic
it

 i
n

 2
0
3

6
 

Established 

LOS City 

Limits (5 

acres per 

1000) 

10,070 40.27 

 

50.35  (10.08) -- -- -- -- -- -- -- 

Established 

Shelton LOS 

City and 

UGA (5 per 

1,000) 

13,816 80.27 

  

69.08 11.19 14,230 71.15  9.12 23,416 117.08  96.77  (20.31) 

Source: City of Shelton, 2007; Mason County Facilities, Parks, and Trails, 2013; BERK Consulting, 2016. 

Note: Includes Shelton Hills Parks in 2036. If Goldsborough Heights is added to the City’s UGA and planned as anticipated in 

the Comprehensive Plan EIS, another 10 acres of parks could be added, which would further reduce park deficits but not 

eliminate them. 

Revenue Analysis 

A voter approved property tax levy for parks is the single source of revenue for the Shelton Metropolitan 

Park District in 2017. Around $285,000 in revenues is expected in 2017, which are expected to be used 

for operations and maintenance. 

Funding for trail development identified in the 2013 Trails Plan comes from the City Budget, Shelton 

Metropolitan Park District Budget, federal and state grants, and in-kind donation of materials and labor. 

Additional support comes in the form of financial or property donations, conservation or trail easements, 

or bequests. The development of park facilities in the Shelton Hills and Goldsborough Heights areas will 

be part of the Planned Unit Development approvals, financed through those developments. 

Police 

Inventory 

Police services within the City of Shelton are provided by the City of Shelton Police Department (SPD). 

The SPD is located within City Hall (525 W Cota Street); 6,563 square feet of building space is dedicated 

for the SPD. The SPD currently employs 18 commissioned officers to serve the City of Shelton’s 6.11 

square miles. SPD maintains a fleet of 23 police vehicles ( (City of Shelton, 2013); (Shelton Police 

Department, 2015)). Total calls for service in 2014 were 10,376, an increase over 2013 at 9,855 and 2012 

at 9,557.  



City of Shelton  

Comprehensive Plan – Capital Facilities & Utilities Element – November 2017 

 

 VI-9 

 

 

The Shelton Animal Shelter facility is also operated by the police department with 2 paid staff per day. 

The Shelter is located at 10
th
 and Pine Streets adjacent to the City Shop. There is a total of 1,040 square 

feet of space for the office, storage, and kennels. There is a maximum holding capacity of 12 animals in 

individual kennels.  

Level of Service 

In the 2007 Comprehensive Plan, the following levels of service were reported: 

 Building space: 553 sq. ft. per 1,000 population. 

 Calls per 1,000 population: 1,348 calls.  

Animal shelter space is not part of the adopted LOS. The effective LOS of 75 sq. ft. per 1,000 population 

is addressed below. 

Table VI-6 shows the LOS analysis for building space for police facilities and the animal shelter. The 

analysis indicates in 2016, 2022, and 2036, additional police facilities will be needed and in 2022 and 

2036 additional animal shelter facilities will be needed. 

Table VI-6: Police Building Level of Service Analysis 

 Population Pop/1000 Police Space 

Demand 

Deficit/Surplus Animal 

Space 

Demand 

Deficit/Surplus 

2016 13,816  13.82 7,643   (1,080) 1,040  0 

2022 14,230 14.23 7,869   (1,306) 1,067   (27) 

2036 23,416 23.42 12,951  (6,415) 1,757   (717) 

Source: BERK Consulting 2016 

The identified level of service for calls was 1,348 calls per 1,000. Based on a 2016 population of 10,070, 

the current LOS of calls per 1,000 population is 1,030 calls per 1,000 population; the standard is currently 

met. 

Current service levels for police call volumes are being met. As the population or service area grows, call 

volumes are anticipated to increase.  

As the primary provider of police services, the Shelton Police Department will require additional staff and 

facilities to maintain the high quality of service for the future population. The future increased population 

and UGA territory when annexed will generate more calls and decrease the response times if new 

personnel and supporting facilities are not available to meet those needs. 

Planned Projects  

There are no planned capacity projects for police services.  

Revenue Analysis 

Deficits in space and offices may occur in the 6- and 20-year planning periods, though in the 6-year 

period deficits are small. If the City does not have planned capital projects, it may choose to lower the 



City of Shelton  

Comprehensive Plan – Capital Facilities & Utilities Element – November 2017 

 

 VI-10 

 

 

level of service, or phase the level of service over time to allow a project-specific funding strategy for 

needed capital improvement projects. 

Fire and Emergency Services 

The current Shelton UGA is served by four districts. 

 District 5 serving the city limits and the northeast UGA along Johns Prairie Road;  

 District 11 serving the northern UGA around Island Lake and the airport, as well as areas south of 

Goose Lake; 

 District 16 serving the western UGA around the Matlock Road and SR 101 vicinity; and 

 District 4 serving a small southern UGA along SR 3. 

This CFP focuses on District 5 and District 11 that serve the lion share of the Shelton city limits and 

UGA.  

District 5 

The City of Shelton is contracted with Central Mason Fire and EMS (CFME) for Fire Services. CMFE 

protects about 157 square miles in central Mason County and the City of Shelton under an inter-local 

agreement. (Central Mason Fire & EMS, 2014).  

The District has both full time commissioned and volunteers: 

 Chief – 1 

 Assistant Chief Operations – 1 

 Assistant Chief/Fire Marshal – 1 

 Battalion Chiefs – 3 

 Clerical Staff – 2 

 Maintenance – 1 

 Paramedics – 12 

 Emergency Medical Technicians (EMT) – 13 

 Volunteers – 40 

The district has the following apparatus: 

 Medic Units (Advanced Life Support (ALS)) – 4 

 Aid Units (Basic Life Support (BLS)) – 3 

 Engines – 9 

 Tenders – 3 

 Rescue – 1 

 Brush Units – 2 

 Command Cars – 6 

 Specialty Units – 6 



City of Shelton  

Comprehensive Plan – Capital Facilities & Utilities Element – November 2017 

 

 VI-11 

 

 

District 11 

The northern UGA around Island Lake and the airport, as well as city limit areas south of Goose Lake 

including Shelton Hills, is served by Fire District 11. 

District 11 has a full-time paid Fire Chief and 12 volunteers that are paid on-call/stipends. About 9 of the 

13 firefighters are certified emergency medical technicians. The staff provides fire protection to 

approximately nine square miles of unincorporated area. (Mason County Fire District 11, 2016).  

Inventory 

Shelton city limits and the northeastern UGA are served out of a downtown Shelton station (Fire Station 

58) which was built by the City and completed in January 2011. The station is located at 122 West 

Franklin Street and is 14,580 square feet. Fire Station 58 is owned by the City and operated by CFME. 

District 11 operates from one station just north of the Shelton city limits. Fire District 11 has the 

following apparatus: engine, tender, brush (2), aid car, and command vehicle. (Mason County Fire 

District 11, 2016).  

Level of Service 

The current level of service in the Shelton Comprehensive Plan is to maintain a Level 5 Insurance Service 

Office rating; this was set with the former City Fire Department. 

The Central Mason Fire and EMS district has a qualitative level of service standard: 

 Be a proactive leader in firefighting with well-trained personnel, and programs of aggressive 

firefighting, fire prevention, and public education. 

 Be a leader in Mason County in EMS innovation committed to professional development of its 

members. 

 Provide advanced life support, basic life support, ambulance transport, and rescue services to the 

citizens. 

 Foster a safe working environment. 

 Be an organization recognized for its caring and high quality service. 

 Be an organization held in high esteem and enthusiastically supported by the community. 

 Be the leading resource for a safer community. 

 Be a team that provides efficient and effective response, prevention, public education, and 

communication services whose members are effective, empowered, and enthusiastic (Central Mason 

Fire & EMS, 2014).  

While the Department does not have a quantitative LOS standard, they do track average response times 

for the Department and individual stations. In 2012, the average response time for Central Mason Fire and 

EMS was approximately 12.67 minutes, while the average response time for Fire Station 58 was 

approximately 5.90 minutes. (City of Shelton, 2013).  



City of Shelton  

Comprehensive Plan – Capital Facilities & Utilities Element – November 2017 

 

 VI-12 

 

 

In 2013 Central Mason Fire & EMS responded to 4,407 calls for service regarding fire protection and 

EMS services including patient transport, and both advanced life support (ALS) and basic life support 

(BLS). This includes 2,210 calls for service inside the City of Shelton. (Central Mason Fire & EMS, 

2014).  

FD 11 responded to 703 emergency calls in 2015, and about 337 were mutual aid responses. (Mason 

County Fire District 11, 2016). FD 11 strives to maintain a high level of interoperability with its 

neighboring departments to include compatible procedures, accountability systems, training and 

equipment. They have an interlocal agreement with Central Mason Fire to ensure coordination of service. 

Planned Projects  

As Shelton grows in population and size (through annexation of land in the UGA), there will be greater 

demands placed on the Fire District. Longer term plans will require more intensive studies to determine 

the best placement of new facilities to serve Shelton’s residential, industrial, and commercial areas.  

The Shelton Hills Planned Action identifies that, if necessary, a suitable parcel could be dedicated on the 

Shelton Hills site for a potential future fire station, if required by the City of Shelton and Central Mason 

Fire and EMS (FD 5). This would be land provided by a developer.  

Fire District 11 does not have any planned projects at this time. 

Revenue Analysis 

Projects related to the fire station facility associated with FD 5 are funded by the City’s General Fund, or 

using other sources to close funding gaps. A 2013 property tax levy lid lift funds operation and 

maintenance expenses. A project-specific funding strategy will be prepared for future capital 

improvements. 

Schools 

The Shelton School District serves the city and unincorporated UGA as well as large areas of the County 

beyond. The district provides services for over 4,000 students and includes three K-5th grade elementary 

schools, one 6th-7th grade middle school, one 8
th
-9

th
 junior high school, one 10th-12

th
 grade high school, 

and one alternative school. Additionally, students from Hood Canal, Pioneer, and Southside all attend 

Shelton High School since those districts do not have all grade levels.  (Shelton School District, 2016) 

Inventory 

The Shelton School District’s inventory of facilities consists of those identified in Table VI-7. 

Table VI-7: Shelton School District Facilities 

Name Grades Served Location Capacity 

Bordeaux Elementary School K-5 350 E University Ave 462 

Evergreen Elementary School  K-5 900 W Franklin Street 561 

Mountain View Elementary School K-5 543 E "K" Street 489 



City of Shelton  

Comprehensive Plan – Capital Facilities & Utilities Element – November 2017 

 

 VI-13 

 

 

Olympic Middle School 6-7 800 E "K" Street 655 

Oakland Bay Junior High  8-9 3301 Shelton Springs Road 597 

Shelton High School 10-12 3737 Shelton Springs Road 1,314 

CHOICE Alternative School  K-12 807 W Pine Street 148 

 

Source: Shelton Hills Draft EIS, 2013. 

Level of Service 

The District served 4,234 students as of May 2015. There were 273 classroom teachers. That is 

approximately 15.51 students per classroom teacher. The projected enrollment for the year 2021 is 4,455.  

(State of Washington Office of the Superintendent of Public Instruction, 2016) Future growth will 

increase the demand for services and need for classrooms at the target level or above (see the 

Comprehensive Plan Update EIS for more information). 

The 2014 Initiative 1351 is under implementation and requires reduced class size standards and state 

funding for increased staffing allocations to be in place by the 2017 – 2019 biennium. The resulting 

standards require classroom sizes of between 16 and 25 students, depending on the grade. This is down 

from classroom size requirements between 22.76 and 28.74, depending on the grade.  

The Shelton School District Capital Facilities Plan is adopted by reference. 

Planned Projects  

State funding for capital projects is based on the Office of Superintendent of Public Instruction (OSPI) 

enrollment projections. Overall district enrollment is expected to increase by about 5 percent between 

2015 and 2021. In order to satisfy long-term demand for permanent facilities, the District’s capital 

improvement program must accommodate the conversion of portables into permanent facilities. 

The Shelton School District recently passed a bond measure in February of 2017 which will allow for 

expansion of Shelton High School, a new (replacement) for Mountain View Elementary School, and 

facility and technology upgrades at all other district schools.  Further, the School District is planning on 

restructuring the middle and high schools to return to a 9-12 High School.  This will help free up space at 

the other schools following expansion at Shelton High School as a result of the passing bond measure. 

The Shelton Hills Planned Action includes land that will be set aside for a potential elementary school 

site, according to the mitigation listed in the Environmental Impact Statement and Planned Action. 

Revenue Analysis 

The Shelton School District receives funding from the state and has the ability to levy bonds, based on it 

its bond indebtedness.  

Water 

The City of Shelton currently provides water service to customers within the City of Shelton, as well as a 

limited portion of the Shelton UGA on an emergency basis. In 2002, the City adopted the Shelton Water 

System Comprehensive Plan, and in 2005 completed a Water Comprehensive Plan Amendment and 



City of Shelton  

Comprehensive Plan – Capital Facilities & Utilities Element – November 2017 

 

 VI-14 

 

 

Project Report for the Shelton Area Regional Water System; the Shelton Water System Comprehensive 

Plan was updated in 2010 and is currently undergoing a comprehensive update as of the writing of this 

plan. In 2016 Carollo also conducted a system analysis to examine future needs related to Urban Growth 

expansion. These plans and studies provide recommendations to improve the existing facilities, meet 

future supply needs, and ensure compliance with water quality regulations for the 6-year and 20-year 

planning periods for water service in the City of Shelton.  The most recent iteration (2010) of the Shelton 

Water System Comprehensive Plan is incorporated into this Comprehensive Plan by reference. 

It should be noted that a retail service area is the area where a municipal water supplier (Shelton in this 

case) has a duty to serve new service connections under certain conditions. The retail service area 

includes the existing service area and areas where new service is planned. According to RCW 43.20.260, 

municipal water suppliers have a duty to provide service to new customers within their retail service area 

if the following four threshold factors are met: 

1. The municipal water supplier has sufficient capacity to serve water in a safe and reliable manner. 

2. The service request is consistent with adopted local plans and development regulations. 

3. The municipal water supplier has sufficient water rights to provide service. 

4. Service can be provided in a timely and reasonable manner. 

The Upper Mountain View Reservoir was recently constructed and will increase water storage capacity 

within the Mountain View Water Pressure Zone.  It established a new pressure zone (the Upper Mountain 

View Water Pressure Zone) to serve the northern portion of the Shelton UGA. 

Inventory 

The City of Shelton currently holds annual water rights totaling approximately 4,034 acre-feet. The 

primary source of water supply for the City of Shelton is from drilled wells. The distribution system 

consists of five independent pressure zones.  

As stated in the 2010 Shelton Water System Comprehensive Plan (2010 Plan), the City of Shelton water 

system has approximately 3,353 service connections, including approximately 2,736 single family 

residential connections and approximately 617 multifamily/non-residential connections. Water usage in 

the City of Shelton has decreased substantially over the last 10 years. In 1998, water demand averaged 

approximately 1.7 mgd (million gallons per day), while in 2008 average daily water demand (ADD) was 

reduced to approximately 1.1 mgd. The reduction in demand is generally attributed to a reduction in 

distribution system leakage and changes in the rate structure in which usage over 900 cubic feet per 

month was charged at an increased rate. 

The distribution system consists of five independent pressure zones. A map of the existing water 

distribution system depicting the zones is shown in Figure 18 in the appendix.  

 

Level of Service 

The City must provide sufficient supply to meet the projected ADD and Maximum Daily Demand 

(MDD). Additionally, the City has established the goal, in excess of the Washington State Department of 

Health (DOH) reliability recommendation, to provide sufficient supply with the largest source out-of-

service during the MDD, referred to as redundant supply capacity. 



City of Shelton  

Comprehensive Plan – Capital Facilities & Utilities Element – November 2017 

 

 VI-15 

 

 

Planned Projects  

The City currently has adequate water rights to accommodate the next 20 years of planned development 

in the UGA expansions and has performed the necessary hydraulic modeling and system planning to 

identify the potential capital improvements that would be required to meet the system demand.  Table VI-

8 shows the planned projects between 2016 and 2029 (2009$). 

Table VI-8: Water Planned Projects 

Project Type 2018 - 2032 (2017$) 

Source Projects $5,000,000 

Storage and Treatment Projects $4,900,000 

Transmission and Distribution System Projects $4,250,000 

TOTAL $14,150,000 

Source: 2010 Water Comprehensive Plan and 2018-2032 Capital Improvement Program (see Appendices X and XII)  

Revenue Analysis 

Revenues committed to the water fund and spent on water-related expenditures include charges for water 

service and connection fees. Additional revenue sources include grants, bonds, and intergovernmental 

revenues. There is over $5 million in debt revenue that the City has debt service commitments to for 

water. The City of Shelton Water System Plan contains a detailed revenue analysis and forecast and is 

adopted by reference. 

Sewer/Wastewater 

Inventory 

The City of Shelton owns, operates, and maintains a wastewater treatment facility, a Satellite Water 

Reclamation Plant (WRP), five sewage pump stations, and over 35 linear miles of sewer lines. The 

wastewater treatment plant is located near downtown Shelton and is a secondary treatment facility that 

cleanses the wastewater that flows into the plant via the collection system and discharges the clarified and 

disinfected effluent into Oakland Bay. The wastewater treatment plant was originally designed to handle 

an average design flow of 4.02 mgd, but went through a significant upgrade and rehabilitation in 2010-11 

and is currently rated for a maximum month flow of 4.41 mgd.  

The satellite WRP is located northeast of the Shelton Hills site, near upper Goose Lake. The plant 

processes wastewater into reclaimed water that can be reused for irrigation or other purposes. The 

maximum capacity of the satellite WRP is approximately 400,000 gallons per day, and the plant and 

existing pipe system is currently running at approximately 50 percent of the phase 1 design capacity. The 

Shelton WRP came online in October 2009, and was built to service the Washington Corrections Center 

(WCC), the Washington State Patrol (WSP), and portions of the City’s sewer service area. Figure 19 in 

the appendix shows existing wastewater facilities and basins. 



City of Shelton  

Comprehensive Plan – Capital Facilities & Utilities Element – November 2017 

 

 VI-16 

 

 

Level of Service 

Based on the current population of the City (approximately 9,800 people according to the 2010 Census; or 

10,070 people according to 2016 OFM estimates), the plant has available capacity for its current service 

area. The population including the city and current UGA equals 13,816 persons as of 2016 based on OFM 

small area estimates. The City of Shelton Sewer Comprehensive Plan addresses future sewer service in 

unserved areas of the city and UGA. 

Planned Projects  

When the wastewater treatment facility and the Satellite Wastewater Reclamation plant were constructed, 

the engineers designed the plants to be easily expanded to meet future treatment needs in Shelton. 

Expansion projects are included in the future planned projects, specifically the Shelton WRP Expansion 

Phase II and III (.8 mgd additional capacity). The Public Works Department recently updated their 

Capital Improvement Program for the term 2018-2032 to anticipate probable sewer projects in the 

planning period.  As areas of the City develop further this plan will need to be adjusted and updated based 

on the size and intensity of development proposed.  Table VI-9 Illustrates dollar amounts of known and 

planned projects for the sewer department during the planning period.  The City of Shelton Sewer 

Comprehensive Plan (2013) contains a number of system expansion projects to accommodate new 

development, as it occurs, that totals approximately $40,000,000.  These projects include expansion of the 

City’s Satellite Wastewater Treatment Plant.  However, new technology developed since the Satellite 

Wastewater Treatment Plant was constructed allow the existing plant to be expanded in capacity within 

its existing footprint at an extremely reduced cost.  The planned projects identified in Table VI-9 reflect 

these same expansions but with updated costs. Figure 20 in the appendix also shows existing and future 

wastewater facilities envisioned by the department. 

Table VI-9: Sewer Planned Projects 

Project Type Short Term 

(2017$)  

(2018 - 2023) 

Long-Term 

(2017$)  

(2024 - 2032) 

Total Costs  

(2017$) 

(2018-2032) 

Repair/Rehabilitation/Maintenance 

Projects 

$200,000 $69,000 $269,000 

Expansion Projects $2,800,000 $0 $2,800,000 

TOTAL $3,000,000 $69,000 $3,069,688 

Source:  City of Shelton 2018-2032 Capital Improvement Program, Correspondence from Ovivo USA, and City of Shelton 

Comprehensive Sewer Plan (2013) (see Appendices XII, XIII, and XIV) 

Revenue Analysis 

Revenues to the sewer fund, which commits money to capital spending include charges for service and 

connection fees for new development. Additional revenue sources include grants and intergovernmental 

revenues. Currently, the City of Shelton Sewer Utility has approximately $40 million in debt service 

commitments that must be considered due to to recent sewer projects and upgrades.  



City of Shelton  

Comprehensive Plan – Capital Facilities & Utilities Element – November 2017 

 

 VI-17 

 

 

The Shelton Sewer Comprehensive Plan includes a revenue analysis with detailed information on funding 

sources and anticipated projects and is adopted by reference.  

Stormwater Management 

Stormwater originates from precipitation that falls to the ground within watersheds. The surface water 

that is not absorbed into the soil accumulates and flows downhill towards drainage basins, creating 

intermittent and diurnal streams. Impervious surfaces such as roads and roofs diminish absorbency and 

accelerate the amount and movement of surface water and creates the need for stormwater management. 

The presence of hazardous substances such as gas and oil from vehicles creates additional stormwater 

management challenges as stormwater flushes these pollutants into streams and wetlands and negatively 

impact the natural environment. Managing stormwater decreases flooding and reduces water quality risks 

to water bodies and ground water. Collected stormwater is discharged into several creeks flowing through 

Shelton or directly into Oakland Bay.  

Inventory 

The city’s stormwater system manages surface water through collection and conveyance in storm drains, 

collection and conveyance in roadside ditches and culverts, retention in impoundments, and disposal into 

infiltration dry wells.  

Level of Service 

Storm drainage is dependent on the carrying capacity of the receiving streams. The City contributes only 

20 percent of these stream flows and the watershed outside of city limits contributes the remaining 80 

percent. New and intensive land use in the surrounding watershed impacts stream flows and reduces the 

stream loading capacity available to the City. New development must incorporate storm drainage design, 

including retention/detention of stormwater as mandated in the Shelton municipal Code and by the 

National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System Phase II stormwater permit.  

Planned Projects 

Projects budgeted for 2017 include a Laurel Street Storm extension for $33,900 (2016$). New 

development will be required to construct stormwater facilities in accordance with Chapter 13.02 of the 

Shelton Municipal Code. 

Revenue Analysis 

Revenues committed to the stormwater fund include charges for service. Additional revenue sources 

include grants and intergovernmental revenues.  

Solid Waste Management 

Inventory 

Until June of 2017 the City of Shelton operated its own garbage and recycling collection utility system 

that serves over 3,400 residential and some limited commercial customers. That service and utility have 

now been transferred over to a private hauler though service options within the City remains the same. 



City of Shelton  

Comprehensive Plan – Capital Facilities & Utilities Element – November 2017 

 

 VI-18 

 

 

Within the City, refuse collection is mandatory; all residents pay for the service, whether they use it or 

not. The service fee is based on the size of container that the customer requests.  

Collected refuse is transported to a transfer station at the Mason County Solid Waste Facility, located 

northwest of Shelton. Mason County charges the City to export refuse to the regional landfill in Klickitat 

County.  

Waste reduction efforts are accomplished through the inclusion of a residential and commercial recycling 

programs and a residential yard waste program in the services offered by the hauler.  The costs for the 

program are “rolled” into the refuse collection fees.  The program accepts most commonly accepted 

materials including; newspaper, magazines, mixed paper, cardboard, tin cans, aluminum cans, and glass.  

Planned Projects  

Projects budgeted for 2017 include work on the “C” Street Landfill Closure which, as of the writing of 

this plan, is in the remedial investigation phase. This project will require expenditures of almost $300,000 

(2016$).  

Revenue Analysis 

The City collects a utility tax from the private hauler that is expected to be in the realm of $500,000.  The 

tax is accepted into the City’s General Fund.   It is expected that these funds will be utilized, in part, to 

continue funding the “C” Street Landfill closure. 

Transportation 

See Transportation Element and Transportation Plan. 

UTILITIES 

Electricity – Mason County Public Utility District #3 

Residents of the City of Shelton and the Urban Growth Area receive their electricity from the Bonneville 

Power Administration via Mason County Public Utility District #3. Mason County P.U.D. #3 was 

organized in 1939 in an effort to address the utility needs of local residents.  

Mason County P.U.D. #3 currently serves residents throughout the City of Shelton and Urban Growth 

Area.  

Mason County PUD #3 is a full requirements customer of the Bonneville Power Administration (BPA), 

meaning that BPA provides all of the District’s power requirements at cost based rates.  PUD #3 takes 

delivery of BPA power at eleven substations, ten of which are owned by the utility.  It has 1,777 miles of 

primary lines and owns and operates 29.80 miles of 115 KV transmission lines. 

PUD #3 also receives small amounts of electricity from the Nine Canyon and White Creek wind farms, 

and Packwood Lake Hydroelectric Project.  The PUD owns a 5.4 megawatt natural gas-fired generator 

(Olympic View Generating Station) located on Highway 102 near Shelton.  The station is powered by 

reciprocating natural gas engines.  The generator was used during the 2001 energy crisis to reduce energy 

demands.  It is kept on standby for potential demand reduction, backup, reduction of Bonneville Power 



City of Shelton  

Comprehensive Plan – Capital Facilities & Utilities Element – November 2017 

 

 VI-19 

 

 

Administration transmission congestion on the Olympic Peninsula, or load shedding during times of high 

power demands in the region. 

The PUD is subject to the Washington State Energy Independence Act (Chapter 19.285 RCW), which 

establishes a renewable portfolio standard with renewable energy targets as a percentage of customer 

load. The targets have increased over time, from 3 percent in 2012, to 9 percent in 2016, to 15 percent in 

2020. Eligible resources include water, wind, solar energy, geothermal energy, landfill gas, wave, ocean 

or tidal power, gas for sewage treatment plants and biodiesel fuel and biomass energy. Electricity 

generated at existing hydropower facilities do not count towards I-937 renewable portfolio compliance. 

There are 11 substations that serve PUD 3 customers. They are Collins Lake, Union River, Belfair, 

Benson (Mason-Benson Rd.), Pioneer (Highway 3, near Pickering Rd.) Mason (Downtown Shelton), 

Dayton, Skookum (near the Hwy 108 & Hwy 101 intersection), Mountain View, and Potlatch (near Lake 

Cushman, owned by BPA). To increase system reliability, there is another substation planned for 

construction near Taylor Towne. 

Substations and distribution networks are constructed or improved to meet electrical demand and ensure 

reliable and safe operation of the PUD 3 power grid. The utility is demand driven - that is, it expands its 

level of service to meet demand as needed or projected. Customers needing to be connected to the service 

generally cover the costs of the connection. This may include infrastructure expansion and improvements, 

which vary by site and service requirements. Once service is connected, costumers in the same class of 

service (for instance, residential) pay a rate based on the cost to serve their type of energy demand and 

consumption.  

The PUD has not identified any lands needed for future expansions of facilities as capital or maintenance 

projects. However, when land developers submit an application for connection, the utility plans and 

coordinates construction of the required electrical facilities to serve the load of the completed planned 

development. The developer bears the cost of required infrastructure improvements. 

Existing transmission lines are generally located in road rights-of-way. The PUD does not normally 

purchase or condemn rights-of-ways for their utility lines, but hopes to continue to use public rights-of-

way for their utility lines in the future. The location of electrical lines on property being developed is 

determined by the property owner, although the county subdivision regulations provide for utility 

easements. These usually include the roadways and along lot lines. 

The PUD recommends installation of distribution facilities below ground and in conduit. Although this 

method of installation is more expensive, the benefits include greater reliability, lower maintenance costs, 

and improved aesthetics. 

Natural Gas – Cascade Natural Gas 

Cascade Natural Gas Corporation (CNG) builds, operates, and maintains the natural gas facilities that 

serve Shelton. CNG is an investor-owned utility serving customers in sixteen counties within Washington 

State. Cascade Natural Gas provides natural gas for residential, commercial, and industrial uses in Shelton 

and the Urban Growth Area. 

Natural gas is supplied to the region via two interstate pipeline systems. The Pacific Gas Transmission 

Company and The Williams Companies each own and operate their respective regional pipeline networks, 

which supply natural gas to Washington, Oregon, and Idaho. 



City of Shelton  

Comprehensive Plan – Capital Facilities & Utilities Element – November 2017 

 

 VI-20 

 

 

Customer hook-up to the distribution system is governed by CNG’s tariffs as filed with and approved by 

the Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission. Connection to CNG’s distribution system is 

solely demand driven. Connections cannot be planned in advance and are initiated by customer requests. 

The location, capacity, and timing of new improvements depend greatly on opportunities for expansion, 

and how quickly Shelton grows. Cascade Natural Gas has an active policy of expanding its supply system 

to serve additional natural gas customers. CNG’s engineering department continually performs load 

studies to determine CNG’s capacity to serve its customers. More information is available in the current 

CNG Integrated Resource Plan, available at www.cngc.com. 

Telecommunications 

Telephone Services 

Several companies provide local telephone service in Mason County. They include Hood Canal 

Telephone Company, Inland Telephone Company, and Century Link. Century Link serves over 90% of 

Mason County Residents.  Existing transmission lines are generally located in road right-of-ways. The 

location of telephone lines on property being developed is determined by the property owner, although the 

county subdivision regulations provide for utility easements. These usually include the roadways and 

along lot lines. 

 

Hood Canal Telephone Company 

Hood Canal Telephone Co. Inc, dba as Hood Canal Communications is the Local Exchange Carrier 

(ILEC) in Union. They provide telephone, broadband and cable services using fiber, copper telephone 

cables, and coaxial lines. They are also a Competitive Local Exchange Carrier (CLEC) providing the 

same services into CenturyLink’s serving territory using fiber and coaxial cables. The CLEC serves the 

communities of Skokomish Reservation, Potlatch, Hoodsport, Lilliwaup, Hamma Hamma, Lake 

Cushman, Skokomish Valley, Shelton, Squaxin Tribe, Kamaliche, Timberlakes, Shorecrest, and Spencer 

Lake. They have interconnection agreements with CenturyLink for telephone service and utilize multiple 

providers for middle mile fiber connections. They provide telecommunication services to approximately 

5,000 business and residential customers. This is a significant growth in services from 930 customers in 

1993.   

CenturyLink 

CenturyLink is the largest provider of local exchange service in Mason County, with a service area that 

includes all areas of the county not served by the Hood Canal and Inland Telephone Companies. The 

company provides telephone service to both of the urban growth areas in the county. Century Link 

generally provides a full range of telecommunication services, however services available in specific 

areas depend on customer demand and the capabilities of the local central offices. 

Century Link facilities are created ultimately by customers’ demands upon the existing system. As 

communities grow, facilities are upgraded to ensure adequate services levels. To make additional services 

available, facilities are upgraded with new technology.  

Cellular Communications 

Cellular communications services are play an important role in the day-to-day transfer of information and 

communications for business, emergency, and personal uses. As new uses for cellular technology are 

https://www.cngc.com/rates-services/rates-tariffs/integrated-resource-plan


City of Shelton  

Comprehensive Plan – Capital Facilities & Utilities Element – November 2017 

 

 VI-21 

 

 

created and as the cellular technology itself is improved the use of this technology is likely to increase, 

requiring additional transmission site facilities and the need for coordinated planning to ensure that 

permits and applications are processed in a timely manner, and in a manner consistent with the Land Use 

Element.  

It is expected that Verizon, Sprint, and others will continue to offer cellular communications services 

throughout Shelton and its UGA during the planning period.  The City of Shelton adopted a Wireless 

Communications Ordinance (Chapter 20.66 SMC) in 1997 to address the use. 

Cable Television  

Cable television service is provided in the greater Shelton area by providers like Comcast, Dish Network, 

X-finity, etc. These privately-owned utility are expected to serve the future corporate boundaries of 

Shelton.  

ADDITIONAL REGIONAL SERVICES 

Mason General Hospital & Family of Clinics 

Mason General employs more than 540 employees and 100 volunteers, including staff, physicians, and 

physical plant. It is known as a top rural hospital in the region. The Mason General Hospital Foundation 

is a non-profit charitable organization serving Public Hospital District No.1 with healthcare and funded 

through donations to Mason General Hospital Foundation, MGH Auxiliary, Treasures Thrift Store, and 

the Centennial and Sherwood Guilds.  

MACECOM 

MACECOM was created through the consolidation of the Shelton Police Dispatch and the Mason County 

Sheriff’s Office Dispatch. MACECOM collectively dispatches for Law, Fire, and EMS for all of Mason 

County and is the 911 center. 

Shelton Memorial Park Cemetery 

The Shelton Cemetery is owned and operated by the non-profit Shelton Memorial Park and is managed by 

Trustees of the Shelton Cemetery Association. There is no City operational or ownership stake. Memorial 

Park employs an office sales manager, a grounds manager, and a park attendant.  

Income devoted to operations and maintenance comes from sales as well as donations and endowments. 

 

GOALS AND POLICIES 

CFU1. Ensure that utilities, public facilities, and services are provided, operated, and maintained in 

an effective and efficient manner. 

CFU1a. Utilities, public facilities, and services should be designed and constructed to handle the 

anticipated growth of the service area, and to minimize future maintenance and repair costs. 



City of Shelton  

Comprehensive Plan – Capital Facilities & Utilities Element – November 2017 

 

 VI-22 

 

 

CFU1b. Sewer and water lines and related facilities needed to serve new development should be 

the responsibility of the developer or provided through a local improvement district. 

CFU1c. The City should update and conduct capital facilities planning through the annual review 

process of the CFE, mandated by the GMA. 

CFU1d. The City should apply for all available state and federal grants and other funds to assist 

development and improvement of sewer, water, and other public facilities and services. 

CFU1e. Siting for new utilities and facilities shall be compatible with other plan elements and 

consider impacts on future City development and land use patterns. 

CFU1f. The City should, in conjunction with private utility providers and special purpose 

districts, designate areas for the location of utility facilities when it is known that facilities 

are needed and planned. 

CFU2. Maintain and enhance current level of service standards and capacities, as growth occurs, to 

enhance quality of life in Shelton. 

CFU2a. The City will maintain a Concurrency Management System to monitor the effects of 

population growth and contain requirements for maintaining the adopted transportation 

LOS standards. 

CFU2b. Ensure that new development occurs only when adequate utilities and public facilities 

necessary to support the development are available. 

CFU3. Prioritize capital facilities in such a way that existing deficiencies are eliminated before 

other improvements are considered. 

CFU3a. The City should actively seek public input and analyze needs when establishing capital 

facility priorities. 

CFU3b. Available revenue sources should be allocated to finance facility improvements that 

eliminate the most important deficiencies first. 

CFU4. The City should maintain a financing strategy to cover the costs of needed facilities and 

improvements contained in the Capital Facilities Element. 

CFU4a. The City's CFE shall identify all funding sources to pay for the needed projects, as 

required by the GMA. 

CFU4b. If probable funding falls short the City shall incorporate one or all of the following: 

a. Reassess the Land Use Element to reduce the impacts associated with densities and 

land use designations; 

b. Lower the adopted level of service standards to reflect service levels that can be 

maintained given the known financial resources; 

c. Increase the amount of available revenue through rate increases; 

d. Impose impact fees; or 

e. Decrease the amount of project costs. 

CFU5. A concurrency management system should support adopted service standards for parks and 

open space. 



City of Shelton  

Comprehensive Plan – Capital Facilities & Utilities Element – November 2017 

 

 VI-23 

 

 

CFU5a. Development in the City and Urban Growth Area are required to satisfy at least one of 

the following requirements in a manner proportional to the impact and/or size of the 

development as part of expected growth: 

a. Provide an open space easement or dedication as a development requirement if within 

designated open space areas. Development incentives may be offered for remainder of 

property. These could include, current use taxation programs, or transfer of 

development rights programs; or 

b. Contribute to open space acquisition fund; or 

c. Donate property open space designation to the City; or 

d. Create an irrevocable living will or trust providing that the open space area will be 

donated or an easement created in the future. Such agreements must be guaranteed by 

an encumbrance to property title. (For purposes of this policy, "development" is 

defined as any construction of a new residential unit, or a commercial or industrial 

building.) 

CFU6. Implement the Capital Facilities Plan in a manner that coordinates and is consistent with 

the plans and policies of other elements of the Comprehensive Plan, Countywide Planning Policies, 

and the Growth Management Act. 

CFU6a. All capital facilities and improvements should be consistent with the adopted Land Use 

Map and the goals and policies of other elements of this Comprehensive Plan. 

CFU6b. The City of Shelton should maintain a Memorandum of Understanding with Mason 

County to coordinate planning for and development of the Urban Growth Area, and to 

ensure that development and facilities follow the vision set out in the Comprehensive Plan. 

CFU7. Promote consistency between the long-range capital facilities and utilities planning and the 

Comprehensive Plan. 

CFU7a. The City shall adopt the following utilities plans as they now exist, and as subsequently 

amended, as part of this comprehensive plan: The City of Shelton Water System Plan, the 

City of Shelton Sewer Comprehensive Plan, Shelton Regional Sewer Plan Wastewater 

Facility Plan and Water Comprehensive Plan Amendment and Project Report for the 

Shelton Area Regional Water System, Addendum To Shelton Regional Sewer Plan 

Wastewater Facility Plan And To Shelton Water Comprehensive Plan And Project Report 

For The Shelton Area Regional Water Systems. 

CFU7b. All utility master plans should be updated to support the objectives of the 

Comprehensive Plan. 

CFU7c. The City should provide periodic updates of population, employment, and development 

forecasts to all utility managers to promote joint planning efforts. 

CFU8. Provide and maintain public utility facilities and services to all persons living within utility 

service areas in a cost-effective manner. 

CFU8a. Promote conservation and demand management programs to reduce the need for rate 

increases and new facilities created by future growth. 

CFU8b. Public utility maintenance and rehabilitation programs should be implemented to reduce 

maintenance costs and minimize rate increases. 



City of Shelton  

Comprehensive Plan – Capital Facilities & Utilities Element – November 2017 

 

 VI-24 

 

 

CFU8c. Public facilities and services should be designed and constructed to handle the 

anticipated growth of the service area, and to minimize future maintenance and repair costs. 

CFU9. Ensure environmentally sensitive, safe, and reliable capital facility and utility services that 

are reasonably compatible with surrounding land uses. 

CFU9a. The City should ensure that capital facilities and utilities are reasonably compatible with 

surrounding land uses and reasonably minimize their impacts on the natural environment, 

consistent with the serving utility's public service obligations. 

CFU10. Provide an adequate and effective recycling program to serve the needs of Shelton's 

residents. 

CFU10a. The City should encourage multi-family and commercial developments to provide 

onsite recycling containers through land development regulations. 

CFU11. Process permits and approvals for utility facilities in a fair and timely manner and in 

accord with the development regulations. 

CFU11a. The City should promote, when reasonably feasible, co-location of new public and 

private service distribution facilities in shared trenches and coordination of construction 

timing to minimize construction-related disruptions to the public and reduce the cost to the 

public of service delivery. 

CFU11b. Private utility providers and special purpose districts shall prepare such plans and 

strategies as may be necessary to provide necessary services concurrent with demand. 



City of Shelton 

Comprehensive Plan – Urban Growth Area Element – November 2017 

X-1 

 

X.Shelton Urban Growth Area Plan 

Introduction 

The Shelton Urban Growth Area (UGA) Plan has been prepared as a subarea plan pursuant to the Growth 

Management Act (GMA).  The purpose of this UGA Plan is to establish guiding goals and policies for 

future development within the Shelton UGA.  Goals and policies contained in this UGA Plan address 

land use, population growth, transportation, annexation, and interjurisdictional coordination.  

The Shelton UGA is the area immediately outside of the Shelton City limits located within 

unincorporated Mason County.  Under the Washington State Growth Management Act (GMA), counties, 

in consultation with cities, may designate areas abutting municipal limits, characterized by urban growth 

and able to be served, as UGAs. In 1995/1996, the City of Shelton and Mason County first established an 

UGA around the City in accordance with the principles of the GMA.  The boundaries of the UGA were 

based upon an assessment of the anticipated population growth, existing urbanized character, natural and 

manmade topographical constraints, infrastructure availability, and the community’s vision for growth. 

The Dayton Airport Road Commercial Industrial Center and Goldsborough Heights areas represent the 

largest proposed expansions to the Shelton UGA since being established. 

Description of UGA  

The Shelton UGA is a part of the larger Shelton community, but is distinct in its own right.  The Shelton 

UGA and the Shelton City limits share an interdependent transportation network, school district/utility 

districts, and a regional economic role.   However, the UGA has its own unique characteristics.  The 

UGA is characterized by its residential development pattern, developed at urban densities, but located 

within partially developed areas.  Natural features such as the creeks and the presence of old growth trees 

also help to define the character of the UGA.  The presence of essential public facilities such as 

Sanderson Field, other Port of Shelton properties, and the presence of traditional forest industries such as 

finished forest products all contribute to the economic base of the region. 

In the past, Mason County’s Comprehensive Plan designated Shelton’s UGA as an “Urban Area”.  

Previous land use designations did not break down this “Urban” designation further. However, Mason 

County’s Comprehensive Plan has consistently contained general goals and policies for the Shelton 

UGA.   

The Shelton UGA Plan now provides area-specific goals and policies, and a more detailed Future Land 

Use Map identifying a variety of residential, commercial, and industrial uses reflecting current land uses 



City of Shelton 

Comprehensive Plan – Urban Growth Area Element – November 2017 

X-2 

 

and the future vision for the area.  This UGA Plan is incorporated into the City of Shelton Comprehensive 

Plan. 

Relationship to Existing Comprehensive Plan 

This UGA Plan augments the other chapters of the City of Shelton Comprehensive Plan and addresses the 

Shelton UGA in greater detail.  Other Comprehensive Plan Elements provide the general goals and 

policies for land use, transportation, economic development, etc. for the UGA.  However, policies in the 

UGA Plan are intended to address unique characteristics or issues relevant to the UGA.   

The UGA Plan was developed to delineate and implement several goals, policies and objectives, 

including: 

 To serve as an informational resource for the City and County staff, elected officials, residents, 

property owners, and business owners; 

 To plan for orderly growth and development; 

 To facilitate the cost-effective extension of services; 

 To identify UGA specific goals and policies; 

 To provide greater predictability to property owners on the future use and enjoyment of their 

property; 

 To provide a framework to guide future annexation decisions and extension of public services.  

To implement the goals, policies, and recommended actions of this plan, the City and County have 

incorporated the UGA plan into their Comprehensive Plans. The County will then revise and implement 

development regulations for the UGA consistent with the City of Shelton’s regulations.  

UGA Population Profile 

In order to plan for future population growth in the UGA, it is important to understand the current 

population characteristics.  The UGA population was 3,746 persons in 2016.  

Population characteristics according to 2013 American Community Survey data, the average age of 

residents in the UGA is 36 years old, with 58 percent of the population over 65 being female, and 41 

percent being male. Approximately 26 percent of the population in the UGA are children (under age 18). 

Approximately one-eighth of the UGA population is age 65 or older.  

Based on the 2013 American Community Survey data, roughly approximated to the UGA boundaries, a 

majority of the population is white.  A minority of the population identify with other races.  Results 

show: 



City of Shelton 

Comprehensive Plan – Urban Growth Area Element – November 2017 

X-3 

 

 White—78.8% 

 Black or African American—0.5% 

 American Indian and Alaska Native—2.9% 

 Asian—0.9% 

 Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander—1.1% 

 Other single race—8.8% 

 Two or more races—6.0% 

The U.S. Census Bureau considers Hispanic or Latino origin an ethnicity, not a race, and reports statistics 

on these populations separately.  As a result, Hispanics or Latinos may belong to any race or combination 

of races.  Results for the UGA show approximately 19.1 percent of the residents to be of Hispanic or 

Latino origin. 

Housing and Household Characteristics 

According to the 2013 American Community Survey, the average household size in the UGA is 2.69 

persons per household, while the average family size is 3.45 persons per family.  As of 2016, 

approximately 1,400 households reside in the UGA. Approximately 56 percent of the housing units in the 

UGA are owner-occupied, while the remaining 44 percent  are rentals.   

Land Capacity Analysis 

A land capacity analysis was prepared for both the City of Shelton and the Shelton UGA to identify the 

amount of residential, commercial, and industrial land available to accommodate the projected population 

growth. This exercise was conducted to determine whether the City and UGA are adequately sized to 

accommodate population projections through 2036. The analysis looked at the vacant and potentially 

redevelopable areas (land not developed to full potential). (See Figure 2) For residential capacity, the 

total vacant and underdeveloped acres were discounted for critical areas such as wetlands, streams, and 

steep slopes, rights-of-way and public purpose lands, and market factors (i.e. not all property owners 

would want to sell or develop).  These acres were then multiplied by a density factor of 4 dwelling 

units/acre in the unincorporated UGA and 5.2 dwelling units per acre in the City limits.  It should be 

noted that a capacity analysis may make adjustments or discounts to the amount of available land, but 

does not estimate the time or rate that growth will occur, only the capacity of the land for additional 

development.  The market demand for homes and potential commercial/industrial development interest 

will in part determine the timing and rate of growth within the 20-year planning period for the UGA.  



City of Shelton 

Comprehensive Plan – Urban Growth Area Element – November 2017 

X-4 

 

Residential Growth 

The Shelton UGA was originally sized in the 1995 City of Shelton Comprehensive Plan and the 1996 

Mason County Comprehensive Plan and updated in 2004/2005.  As part of that Comprehensive Plan 

update a Shelton Urban Growth Area Element was included to address projected UGA growth and the 

sizing of the UGA boundary as appropriate to meet the projected growth in 2025
1
.  The addition of the 

Goldsborough Heights area to the UGA in 2017 allows for the transfer the development potential in 

portions of unincorporated Mason County into an area where urban services (i.e. municipal water and 

sewer) can be provided. 

Consistent with GMA provisions regarding UGA sizing, the designated UGA is to include densities 

sufficient to permit the urban growth projected to occur in the community for the 20-year planning 

period. Population targets are formally designated by Mason County in accordance with the GMA.  

UGAs may also include greenbelts and open space areas, including lands useful for recreation, wildlife 

habitat, trails and connection of critical area habitat. Typically, this will include public properties but may 

include private properties that are unique, recognizing that any such designations need to provide for 

reasonable use of private property.   

Further, GMA describes the phasing of growth.  Communities are to promote growth first in areas 

already characterized by urban growth that have adequate existing public facility and service capacities, 

second in areas already characterized by urban growth that will be served adequately by a combination of 

both existing and future public/private facilities and services, and third in the remaining portions of the 

UGAs. 

Western Washington Growth Management Hearings Board (WWGMHB) cases have generally held that 

UGAs should be sized to match the population allocations projected for a community.  The WWGMHB 

has acknowledged that there may be unique cases in determining UGA boundaries.   

Commercial/Industrial Growth 

In 2006, a Mason County Industrial Needs Analysis was prepared for the Mason County Economic 

Development Council that looked at the industrial land needed to sustain economic development in 

Mason County through 2025.  The analysis projected a need for 1,790 gross acres of land designated for 

industrial use throughout Mason County and identifies a great need for 20 – 40 acre sized parcels—both 

leased and purchased.  Minus already designated industrial land as of the date of the Industrial Needs 

                                                 

1
 A planning level capacity analysis in Appendix A shows a capacity within 2% of the growth target assuming revised UGA 

boundaries.   



City of Shelton 

Comprehensive Plan – Urban Growth Area Element – November 2017 

X-5 

 

Analysis there is an unmet countywide need for about 804 additional vacant industrial acres.
2
 In 2014, the 

City, in conjunction with Mason County and other partners, commissioned an updated industrial lands 

analysis to better understand future need and demand within the region since the great recession of 2008.  

This analysis indicated that: 

 Employment in Mason County declined by more than 1,500 jobs from 2008 to 2012. 

 In the last 15 years, over 80 percent of the industrial or warehouse buildings constructed in Mason 

County were located in the Shelton UGA  

 The need for added industrial lands would likely come from activity or sectors that are not 

currently located or very large in the local market, or from regional public facilities. 

The Dayton Airport Road Industrial-Commercial Center is anticipated to complement and expand upon 

business generated from the Ridge Motorsports Facility, located directly to the west which opened in 

2012. Industrial land use would be proposed to the south of Dayton Airport Road (SR-102), a mix of 

commercial and industrial uses would be allowed consistent with Shelton’s Commercial Industrial zone 

to the north, which favors large format retail (“big box”), warehousing, and light and medium industrial 

uses.  The results of the employment capacity analysis are that the industrial and commercial buildable 

acres could support between 2,000 and 4,000 jobs. 

Shelton serves as the major community in south Mason County.  The Industrial Land Needs Analysis for 

Mason County identified a high retail leakage to other areas – only 54% of residents’ retail spending 

occurs in Mason County. By bringing in more family wage industrial jobs, and reducing out-commuting, 

more retail dollars may be spent locally than spent in Olympia or elsewhere. Please see Appendix A.  

Annexation 

For purposes of efficient services, coordinated land planning and development, and unity between 

economically and socially related areas, citizens, property owners, and the City of Shelton may desire 

annexation.  As noted above, the GMA provides for coordinated UGA planning between counties and 

cities with the intent that urban and urbanizing areas ultimately be served by municipalities.  In the GMA 

framework, annexations may occur only within a jurisdiction’s designated UGA. By addressing the 

Shelton City limits and the Shelton UGA in the Shelton Comprehensive Plan, and by addressing the 

                                                 

2
 The Industrial Land Needs Analysis assumed 872 acres of land 3 acres or greater were designated as Industrial in Shelton.  

Based on the current land capacity analysis for the December 2007 Future Land Use Map, the number of gross vacant 

industrial acres equals about 848 rather than 872.  That would mean that the new net land demand need Countywide would be 

about 828 acres rather than 804.   



City of Shelton 

Comprehensive Plan – Urban Growth Area Element – November 2017 

X-6 

 

Shelton UGA in the Mason County Comprehensive Plan, the City and the County are responding to the 

GMA framework to manage growth, provide efficient services, and plan for the community needs of the 

broader Shelton community.   

The methods of annexation applicable to the Shelton UGA include: 

 The Election Method, Initiated by Ten Percent Petition, is initiated by the collection of signatures 

from qualified electors in the area proposed for annexation equal to ten percent of the number of 

voters in the last general election in that area.  This method would require an election by the residents 

of the area being considered for annexation.  This method could be used to annex portions of or all of 

the UGA at a time. 

 The Election Method, Initiated by Resolution, may be initiated by city commission resolution.  This 

method would require an election by the residents of the area being considered for annexation. This 

method could be used to annex portions of or all of the UGA at a time. 

 In May 2003, legislation became effective which adopted a new “Petition Method of Annexation.”  

Under the law, the annexation petition must be signed by property owners (owning a majority of the 

area) and by registered voters (a majority in the area). If there are no registered voters (vacant, 

commercial, or industrial property, or property that has residents but no registered voters), then only 

owners of a majority of the area need sign. This method could be used to annex portions of or all of 

the UGA at a time. 

 The Sixty Percent Petition Annexation Method is initiated by the collection of signatures from the 

owners of property representing not less than ten percent of the assessed value of the property for 

which annexation is sought.  If the legislative body of the city accepts the 10 percent petition, then 

petitioners must collect petition of the owners of at least 60 percent of the property value in the area, 

computed according to the assessed valuation of the property for general taxation purposes.  A public 

hearing is held before a decision is made by the city legislative body. This is the most frequently used 

method of annexing unincorporated territory for code cities. 

 Unincorporated Island Annexation.  Annexation statutes provide for an abbreviated procedure to 

annex unincorporated islands or pockets of property within a city. When there is an unincorporated 

area (1) containing less than 100 acres of which at least 80 percent of the boundaries are contiguous 

to a city or (2) of any size and having at least 80 percent of the boundaries contiguous to a city if the 

area existed before June 30, 1994 and the city was planning under the Growth Management Act as of 

that date, the city commission may initiate annexation proceedings by resolution. However, 

annexation by this method is potentially subject to a referendum election within the unincorporated 

territory. 

 Annexation for municipal purpose, where a code city may, by majority vote of the city commission, 

annex territory outside its limits for any municipal purpose, if the territory is owned by the city. This 

may be done regardless of whether the territory is contiguous or noncontiguous. 

As indicated in the methods above, annexation is largely a citizen/property owner driven process.  The 

City of Shelton intends to promote a smooth transition from Mason County to City of Shelton 

administration, upon approval of annexation petitions. 



City of Shelton 

Comprehensive Plan – Urban Growth Area Element – November 2017 

X-7 

 

Key issues for the City of Shelton will be the feasibility of providing services to areas that request 

annexation, and the coordination with the County as areas transition to the City.  UGA policies (UGA5a-

5f) address annexation and coordination between the City of Shelton and Mason County.   

Coordinated Development Review 

One of the key implementation goals for the UGA Plan is to develop a coordinated development review 

process between the City and County for the UGA.  The 2003 Memorandum of Understanding that 

County staff, upon adoption of the UGA Plan, will apply the City’s land use designations when reviewing 

land use and development proposals in the UGA.  This approach will help to minimize future land use 

conflicts for permitted projects in the UGA.  Goals and policies provide direction on this coordinated 

development review process with the ultimate objectives being: 

 Provide a predictability and timeliness and use process for property owners 

 Facilitate land use compatibility 

 Implement the Memorandum of Understanding between the City and County 

UGA Boundaries and Land Use Designation  

Nonconforming Uses in the UGA 

Cottage Industries (Home Occupations) 

Mason County allows for more intense home occupations by special use permit (e.g. home occupations 

requiring parking – called cottage industries), whereas this process is not available in the City of Shelton.  

Although residential properties with a cottage industry/special use permit would be allowed as a pre-

existing non-conforming use if annexed to the City, there could be potential future land use conflicts 

associated with incompatible land uses over time as infill and increased urban densities occur within 

residential areas. UGA policies (UGA2c & 2d) address County/City procedures, grandfathering (i.e. 

allowance of legal nonconforming uses), and buffering next to less intense uses. 

Pre-existing, Non-conforming Uses 

A comparison of existing land uses (current use) to future land use designations identified in the City of 

Shelton’s 1995 plan indicate that there would be a limited number of non-conforming uses once under the 

City’s jurisdiction (Jones & Stokes, August 2004).  Based on the 1995 land use plan, there would be 

limited cases of residential uses in industrially designated areas and commercial/industrial uses in 

residentially designated areas.  For the most part the future land use designations for the UGA resolves 

the nonconformities applying land classes that match groupings of nonconforming uses.  In some cases 

there are isolated residential or commercial uses in land use classes that promote the opposite uses. UGA 

policies (UGA2c & 2d) address grandfathering (i.e. allowance of legal nonconforming uses) of these 

uses. 



City of Shelton 

Comprehensive Plan – Urban Growth Area Element – November 2017 

X-8 

 

Gateways 

The Future Land Use Map (Figure 1) identifies three gateway locations that provide an important first 

impression for visitors to the community.  The gateway corridors are located along Highway 101 and on 

SR-3 at the north and south entrances to City limits. These three gateway locations either extend into the 

UGA or represent the approach into the City limits and provide the opportunity to create the feeling of 

entering a distinct, unique place. UGA policy (UGA 2a) addresses the landscaping and buffers associated 

with these gateway locations in the UGA. 

Urban Growth Area Goals & Policies 

The following UGA goals and policies are in addition to the goals and policies contained in other 

chapters of the Comprehensive Plan, and are specific to the unique circumstances of the UGA.  As 

appropriate, the UGA Plan goals and policies shall be applied together with other Comprehensive Plan 

goals and policies. 

Urban Growth Area Land Use  

UGA Goal 1: Provide for orderly growth in Shelton’s UGA. 

Policy UGA1a.  Land use policies and regulations shall accommodate a residential growth target of 

approximately 9,417 additional persons within the City and UGA boundary by 2036, as established in the 

Countywide Planning Policies. 

Policy UGA1b.  The UGA shall include land sufficient to accommodate commercial uses serving local 

and regional populations, including retail, service, financial, and institutional uses of small, medium, and 

large sizes.  

Policy UGA1c. The UGA shall designate land suitable for industrial purposes, sufficient in acres and 

parcel sizes to accommodate small to large industrial uses. Such uses shall be sited and designed to be 

compatible with adjacent non-industrial uses while meeting employer needs. 

Policy UGA1d.  The UGA designations shown on the official Land Use Map (Figure 1) includes enough 

land to provide the capacity to accommodate growth expected over the 20-year planning period. These 

lands should include only those lands that meet the following criteria. 

a. Are characterized by urban development, which can be efficiently and cost effectively served 

by urban governmental services within the next 20 years; 



City of Shelton 

Comprehensive Plan – Urban Growth Area Element – November 2017 

X-9 

 

b. Greenbelts and open space in the UGA including lands useful for recreation, wildlife habitat, 

trails, and connection of critical areas, consistent with GMA requirements and in a manner 

recognizing reasonable use of private property; 

c. Are not unincorporated agricultural or forestry lands of long-term commercial significance 

designated through Mason County Comprehensive Plan or the Countywide Planning Policies 

process. 

Policy UGA1e.  Areas with significant environmental hazards, unique or fragile ecosystems of high rank, 

order, and function, or long-term infrastructure limitations, may be further protected beyond the 

application of development regulations through low-density zoning. 

Policy UGA1f.  Parcels which are split by the UGA boundary line should be redesignated to either all 

urban or all rural unless the parcel is split to recognize unique physical and environmental features, or the 

requirements of interlocal agreements, or other County or City plans.  

Land Use Compatibility 

UGA Goal 2: Protect and enhance the character, quality and function of development in the UGA 

while accommodating future growth.  

Policy UGA2a. The City, in consultation with Mason County, the Port and WSDOT, shall establish 

landscape standards and buffers for designated Gateway areas that emphasize the importance of retaining 

existing trees as key elements of Shelton’s character.  

Policy UGA2b. The City and County should ensure plans and regulations address, where appropriate, 

compatibility issues including height hazards, safety and noise that can affect the long-term viability of 

Sanderson Field.  Through the airport overlay zone adopted by the City and the County, allow compatible 

uses, buildings, or activities in the vicinity that do not present safety problems to normal airport 

operations, or that would not be sensitive to noise from the Airport operations.   

Policy UGA2c. The City should work with the County to develop standards for unincorporated land 

within the UGA that will require buffering of cottage uses next to less intense properties, such as 

landscaping, fencing, setbacks, or a combination of approaches. The City should recognize cottage 

industries permitted in the UGA as grandfathered uses when annexed.  The County should consider 

applying the City’s home occupation standards to land within the Shelton UGA.  

Policy UGA2d. The City shall recognize legally established residences in commercial/industrial zones, 

and legally established commercial/industrial uses in residential zones as grandfathered (nonconforming) 

uses when annexed.  



City of Shelton 

Comprehensive Plan – Urban Growth Area Element – November 2017 

X-10 

 

Urban Growth Area Transportation 

UGA Goal 3:  Establish a safe, coordinated, and linked multimodal transportation system to 

service local and area-wide travel needs. 

Policy UGA3a. As appropriate, subsequent transportation modeling should jointly be conducted by the 

County and the City, to identify current traffic levels, identify recommended improvements, and address 

future levels of service. 

Policy UGA3b. To address traffic concerns and mitigation, the City and County should jointly determine 

an appropriate LOS standard as part of an interlocal agreement. The City and County may revisit 

standards upon the completion of additional traffic analyses.  

Policy UGA3c. To the greatest extent possible, given topographic and environmental constraints, future 

functionally classified roadways should attempt to provide a grid system to facilitate an interconnected 

system of streets in the UGA. 

Urban Growth Area Services Provision 

The following goals and policies for future annexations and the provision of services in the UGA provide 

direction regarding utility extension and the circumstances in which it will occur. This will help to 

facilitate a seamless transition of services in the UGA if and when properties become annexed to the City.    

UGA Goal 4:  Provide effective, efficient, and quality capital facilities and public services at the 

level necessary to meet community needs and support allowed growth.  

Policy UGA4a. The County and City should coordinate with service and utility providers to ensure UGA 

services support planned growth, meet desired customer service needs, and result in a comparable 

community system in the greater Shelton area. 

Policy UGA4b.  The City and County should coordinate with local Fire Districts, to ensure adequate fire 

and emergency response in the UGA. 

Policy UGA4c.  The City’s level of service standards for sewer and water service should be applied to 

the UGA once services are extended into the UGA.  Sewer and water improvements and services should 

be consistent with the Regional Water and Sewer Plans identified in the City of Shelton Comprehensive 

Plan Utilities Element as amended over time. 



City of Shelton 

Comprehensive Plan – Urban Growth Area Element – November 2017 

X-11 

 

Policy UGA4d.  In consultation with the Mason County Sheriff’s Department, the City should ensure 

adequate police services are provided within the UGA. 

Policy UGA4e. To avoid City assumption of nonconforming infrastructure, a coordinated Capital 

Improvement Program and maintenance plan should be prepared between the City and County.  Such a 

program should be developed prior to annexation required to meet levels of service are implemented 

concurrent with new development.  When considering annexation proposals that have significant existing 

nonconforming infrastructure, the City should consider service delivery and revenue enhancement 

options. 

Policy UGA4f. The City will consider extension of water and sewer services outside City limits based on 

criteria including, but not limited to the following: 

 The lands to be served must be, either: 

●  Inside the City’s UGA, or 

● Intended to service essential public facilities, or 

● In rural areas only in limited circumstances when shown necessary to protect basic public health 

and safety and the environment and when such services are financially supportable at rural 

densities and do not permit urban development, consistent with State law. 

 Extension of services to Regional Plan Partners is to be accomplished in accordance with Regional 

Water and Sewer Plans and agreements.  

 Land owners requesting water and/or sewer service outside the City limits are to sign a utility 

extension agreement that addresses the following: 

● Costs of design, engineering, construction, and inspection of extension as paid by the owner; 

● Easements and permits to be secured and obtained by the owner; 

● Dedication of capital facilities to the City; 

● Connection charges paid by the owner; 

● Agreement by the owner not to protest annexation; 

● Connection to both sewer and water services; 

● Waiver of right to protest local improvement district; 

● Development of property to conform to City code when developing or redeveloping the property 

subject to the agreement; and 

● Remedies that may be required due to noncompliance with the terms of the agreement. 



City of Shelton 

Comprehensive Plan – Urban Growth Area Element – November 2017 

X-12 

 

Annexation  

UGA Goal 5: Provide a framework for processing annexation requests. 

Policy UGA5a. The City should use, but is not limited to, the following factors in determining the 

specific location of an annexation proposal boundary: 

a. The annexation boundary, where appropriate, should adjust any impractical or irregular 

boundaries created in the past. 

b. The annexation boundary should, where appropriate, provide a contiguous and regular boundary 

with current City limits.  

c. The annexation boundary, where appropriate, should be drawn along property lines and/or 

existing or future right-of-way boundaries. Annexation boundaries, where possible, should not be 

drawn along right-of-way centerlines.   

d. UGA roadways contiguous to a proposed annexation area should not be included within the 

proposed annexation boundary, unless the roadways are contiguous to current City limits.  

e. When a proposed annexation includes portions of a natural lake, the annexation boundary should 

be modified to include or exclude the entire lake area from the proposed annexation. If more than 

50 percent of lakefront property is included in an annexation proposal, then the annexation 

boundary should include the entire lake; if less than 50 percent of the lakefront property is part of 

the annexation proposal, then the lake should be excluded. 

Policy UGA5b. The City should process annexation requests in accordance with review criteria.  Review 

criteria should include, but are not limited to: 

 Areas to be annexed are included in the Shelton UGA. 

 The annexation proposal should create and/or preserve logical service areas. Annexations generally 

should not have or create abnormally irregular boundaries that are difficult to serve. 

 The annexation proposal should use physical boundaries, including but not limited to bodies of water, 

highways, and land contours as noted in Policy UGA5a. 

Policy UGA5c. The City should give priority consideration to annexation proposals that are financially 

self-sufficient or those where the fiscal impact can be improved. The City should develop a variety of 

service delivery or revenue enhancement options to increase the feasibility of annexation.   

Policy UGA5d. The City may request a fiscal analysis of the annexation proposal by annexation 

proponents.  

Policy UGA5e. Upon annexation, the City shall require properties to assume zoning consistent with the 

UGA Plan Land Use Map, as adopted or as amended where appropriate.  



City of Shelton 

Comprehensive Plan – Urban Growth Area Element – November 2017 

X-13 

 

Policy UGA5f. Where appropriate, the City and/or County should allow development agreements in the 

UGA that are consistent with the approved UGA Plan.  

Interjurisdictional Coordination 

UGA Goal 6: Coordinate UGA planning efforts with Mason County and other neighboring 

jurisdictions and agencies. 

Policy UGA6a. Following the approval and adoption of this plan, the City of Shelton and Mason County 

shall enter into an agreement that details the process and expectations for coordinated development 

review in the UGA. Topics may include but are not limited to: land use and development regulations, 

public service delivery responsibilities, infrastructure standards, procedures and fees, and other relevant 

topics. 

Policy UGA6b. The City of Shelton and Mason County should conduct a regulatory consistency analysis 

with County and City regulations.  The City and County should jointly determine which regulations apply 

to lands and development in the UGA, and apply regulations consistently.  





WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | APPENDICES | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021  

 

 

 

Excerpts from  
Mason County Comprehensive Plan  
2036 
 





 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Mason County Plan 2036  
 

Growth and Opportunity:   
 

Planning for sustainable community and economic 

development   
 

 



 

 

   
 
 
 
 
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
  

 

 

 

CHAPTER 2 – COUNTYWIDE PLANNING POLICIES & OBJECTIVES 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 

 

 

 

 
 

Table of Contents 
  
  I. INTRODUCTION              6 

       History of Public Engagement          7 

 II. MASON COUNTY VISION STATEMENT          9 

III.    COUNTYWIDE PLANNING POLICIES        10 

1:  URBAN GROWTH           10 

2:  REDUCE SPRAWL           10 

3:  TRANSPORTATION          11 

4:  HOUSING                   12 

5:  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT               13 

6:  PROPERTY RIGHTS          14 

7:  PERMITS            14 

8:  RESOURCE INDUSTRIES          14 

9:  OPEN SPACE           14 

              10:  ENVIRONMENT           15 

               11:  CITIZEN PARTICIPATION          15 

               12:  FACILITIES/SERVICES          16 

               13:  HISTORIC PRESERVATION           16 

 IV.    OBJECTIVES AND PROCEDURES         17 



 

 

 

 

 
 
 

The Role of the Countywide Planning Policies 
 

• These countywide planning policies shall be the foundation for the Mason County Comprehensive Plan.  
 

• As required by RCW 36.70A.120, all elements of the Comprehensive Plan and implementing regulations, including 
zoning maps, zoning regulations, and any amendments, shall be consistent with and implement these policies.   

 

• As required by RCW 36.70A.120, all planning, land use permitting actions and capital budgeting decisions shall be 
made in conformity with the adopted comprehensive plan.  

 

• The Mason County Comprehensive Plan adopts by reference the following functional plans: Shoreline Master Plan, 
Drainage, Floodplain, Schools, Special Districts, Economic Development, Parks and Recreation, Transportation, 
Watershed, and any other functional or subarea plans adopted by Mason County. Each referenced plan shall be 
coordinated with, and consistent with, the Comprehensive Plan.  

 

• All disputes over the proper interpretation of other functional plans and all implementing regulations, including 
zoning maps and zoning regulations, shall be resolved in favor of the interpretation which most clearly achieves 
Countywide Planning Policies.  

 

• A definition section will be incorporated into the final Comprehensive Plan document with definitions that are 
clearly articulated in Mason County Code or state or federal statutes.   

 



 

 

Table 1.  Crosswalk - Countywide Planning Policies and Comprehensive Plan Chapter  

Comprehensive Plan 
Element Development Regulations  

Countywide Planning 
Policy  Policy Statement 

Chapter 3 Land Use  
MCC 17.07; 17.10-17.17; 
17.20-17.35; 17.70 #1 URBAN GROWTH 

Encourage development in urban areas where adequate public facilities and services exist 
or can be provided in an efficient manner. 

Chapter 3 Land Use  
MCC 17.02; 17.05; 17.70; 
17.90 #2 REDUCE SPRAWL 

Reduce the inappropriate conversion of undeveloped land into sprawling, low-density 
development. 

Chapter 8 Transportation  MCC Title 12 #3 TRANSPORTATION 
Encourage efficient multimodal transportation systems that are based on regional 
priorities and coordinated with county and city comprehensive plans. 

Chapter 5 Housing  MCC 17.11; 17.90 #4 HOUSING 

Encourage the availability of affordable housing to all economic segments of the 
population of this state, promote a variety of residential densities and housing types, and 
encourage preservation of existing housing stock. 

Chapter 10 Economic 
Development MCC 2.78; 17.07; 17.24 

#5 ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT 

Encourage economic development throughout the state that is consistent with adopted 
comprehensive plans, promote economic opportunity for all citizens of this state, 
especially for unemployed and for disadvantaged persons, promote the retention and 
expansion of existing businesses and recruitment of new businesses, recognize regional 
differences impacting economic development opportunities, and encourage growth in 
areas experiencing insufficient economic growth, all within the capacities of the state's 
natural resources, public services, and public facilities. 

Chapter 3 Land Use  MCC 17.01 #6 PROPERTY RIGHTS 

Private property shall not be taken for public use without just compensation having been 
made. The property rights of landowners shall be protected from arbitrary and 
discriminatory actions. 

Chapter 3 Land Use & Chapter 
10 Economic Development MCC 15.05 #7 PERMITS 

Applications for both state and local government permits should be processed in a timely 
and fair manner to ensure predictability. 

Chapter 4 Rural  MCC 8.52; 17.02 
#8 NATURAL RESOURCE 
INDUSTRIES 

Natural resource industries. Maintain and enhance natural resource-based industries, 
including productive timber, agricultural, and fisheries industries. Encourage the 
conservation of productive forestlands and productive agricultural lands, and discourage 
incompatible uses. 

Chapter 3 Land Use, Chapter 4 
Rural, & Chapter 9 Parks  

MCC 16.23; 17.07; 17.10; 
17.26 #9 OPEN SPACE 

Retain open space, enhance recreational opportunities, conserve fish and wildlife habitat, 
increase access to natural resource lands and water, and develop parks and recreation 
facilities. 

Chapter 3 Land Use & Chapter 
4 Rural  

MCC 8.52 Resource 
Ordinance/Shorelines #10 ENVIRONMENT 

Protect the environment and enhance the state's high quality of life, including air and 
water quality, and the availability of water. 

See Public Involvement Plan MCC 15.09.060 
#11 CITIZEN 
PARTICIPATION 

Encourage the involvement of citizens in the planning process and ensure coordination 
between communities and jurisdictions to reconcile conflicts. 

Chapter 7 Utilities  MCC Title 13, Title 6 
#12 PUBLIC FACITILES 
AND SERVICES 

Ensure that those public facilities and services necessary to support development shall be 
adequate to serve the development at the time the development is available for 
occupancy and use without decreasing current service levels below locally established 
minimum standards. 

Chapter 3 Land Use  MCC 17.40 
#13 HISTORIC 
PRESERVATION 

Identify and encourage the preservation of lands, sites, and structures that have historical 
or archaeological significance. 

 



 

 

Page 6 of 30       Countywide Planning Policies & Objectives 

INTRODUCTION 
This chapter presents the Countywide Planning Policies used to 
develop Mason County’s Comprehensive Plan.  The policies in 
this document are organized and numbered based on the 
thirteen goals adopted in Washington’s State’s Growth 
Management Act (RCW 36.70A) to guide counties and cities in 
the development and adoption of comprehensive plans.  Table 1 
shows which Chapter of the Comprehensive Plan provides 
additional information, statistics, maps and other detail related 
to each policy.   

 
About Mason County 
 
GEOGRAPHY 
Mason County is situated along the southwestern portion of Puget 
Sound, and encompasses roughly 972 square miles. It borders 
Jefferson County to the north, Grays Harbor County to the west and 
southwest, Thurston County to the southeast, Pierce County to the 
east, and Kitsap County to the northeast. Mason County remains a 
predominantly rural county despite the urban growth in both 
Thurston and Kitsap Counties. The City of Shelton, the only 
incorporated area in Mason County, includes approximately 4.77 
square miles, or less than one percent of the County’s total land 
area. Two urban growth areas, Allyn (1.5 square miles) and Belfair 
(3.9 square miles) are located in the northeast portion of the County 
adjacent to the eastern border between Mason and Kitsap Counties.  
Two Native American Tribal Nations, the Skokomish and the Squaxin 
Island Tribes, have reservations within the boundaries of Mason 
County. 
 
 
 

 
 
Three geological provinces combine to form Mason County. They 
include the Puget Sound Lowland, the Olympic Mountains, and the 
Black Hills. Additionally, Seven watersheds exist within Mason  
 
County. They include Case Inlet, Chehalis, Lower Hood Canal, 
Oakland Bay, Skokomish, Totten-Little Skookum, and West Hood 
Canal. Mason County also includes over 700 miles of some of the 
most pristine shoreline in the state, nearly 100 freshwater lakes, 
two major rivers, and a number of smaller tributaries and creeks. 
 
Mason County’s rich natural resources and open spaces dominate 
the County’s landscape.  Combined national, state, and private 
forests currently account for over fifty (50) percent of the land area 
that makes up Mason County. Mineral deposits underlie Mason 
County’s top soils. Agricultural and aquaculture areas contribute 
both to the County’s natural beauty and its economy.  Mason 
County also includes substantial open space. Open space within the 
County hosts wildlife habitat, undeveloped natural areas, and many 
developed park and recreation sites. These open space areas are 
managed by federal, state, county, municipal, and private interests. 
 
CLIMATE 
Mason County’s climate can be characterized as moderate-
maritime, influenced by the Pacific Ocean, yet sheltered by the 
Olympic Mountains. Average temperatures range from a high of 78° 
F. in July to 32 F. in January. The average daily temperature in 
Mason County is 51° F. The County receives an average of 64 inches 
of precipitation annually, with average monthly rainfalls ranging 
from a low in July of 0.8 inches, to a high of 10.4 inches in January. 

 
 



 

 

Page 7 of 30       Countywide Planning Policies & Objectives 

 

 

 

History of Public Engagement 
Mason County organized a public process for developing the 
Countywide Planning Policies (CWPPs) in 1992. That process 
established a Joint City/County Elected Official Review Board 
(Board). This Board included the commissioners from both 
Mason County and the City of Shelton. The Board was guided by 
the requirements of House Bill 1025 and the Mason County/City 
of Shelton Regional Strategy Agreement.  In addition, the Board 
used an iterative process for preparing the CWPPs. The approach 
focused on coordination among Mason County, the City of 
Shelton, and other public agencies.  See Table 2. 
 
The first draft of the Countywide Planning Policies was 
completed in late January, 1992. The draft went through an 
informal review and revision period that ended in March of 1992. 
The formal review period for the CWPPs began in May, 1992 and 
continued through August, 1992. Public hearings were held in 
May and June of 1992. CWPPs were revised to reflect input 
received through the public review process and the public 
hearings. Mason County and the City of Shelton jointly adopted 
the Countywide Planning Policies on August 17, 1992. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Table 2.  Original Drafters of the  

Countywide Planning Policies – 1992 

City and County Departments 

City of Shelton Fire Department 

Economic Development Council 

Fire Districts  

Hospital Districts 

Mason County Fire Marshal 

Mason County Growth Management Advisory Committee 

Peninsula Regional Transportation Planning Organization  

Port Districts  

Public Utility District No. 1 

Public Utility District No. 3 

School Districts 

Sewer Districts  

Shelton City Commission 

Shelton/Mason Chamber of Commerce 

Skokomish Tribal Nation 

Squaxin Island Tribal Nation 

Water Districts 

 



 

 

Page 8 of 30       Countywide Planning Policies & Objectives 

In the 2016 - 2036 Comprehensive Plan Update, the Countywide Planning Policies were revisited and updated to incorporate current 
public input, reflect current trends, and consolidate what has become a broad array of goals, policies and objectives throughout the 
planning documents Mason County has adopted over time.  The foundational documents used to update the Countywide Planning Policies 
and help support the Comprehensive Plan update are included in Table 3.  
 
 

 

Table 3.  Mason County Plans Supporting the 2016-2036 Comprehensive Plan Update 

Topic Foundational Plans Date of Adoption 
Comp Plan Mason County Comprehensive Plan 1970, 1993, 2005 

Economic Development Business Demographic Report, Mason County Economic Development Council 2017 

Economic Development Belfair Urban Growth Area Market Analysis, EcoNorthwest 2003 

Economic Development 
Targeted Cluster Identification and Strategic Alignment, Pacific Mountain 

Workforce Development 
2012 

Electricity Mason County PUD No.3 Comprehensive Financial Report 2015 

Fire Mason County Wildfire Protection Plan 2012 

Homelessness Mason County Homeless Plan 2016 

Housing Mason County and City of Shelton Housing Needs Assessment 2004 

Housing 
Housing Matters:  3 Year Housing and Homelessness Strategy for Mason County 

Washington 
2015 

Solid Waste Mason County Solid Waste Management Plan 2010 and Update 

Solid Waste Mason County Solid Waste Investment Needs 2016 

Sub-Area Belfair Sub-Area Plan 2004 

Sub-Area Allyn Sub-Area Plan 2006 

Sub-Area Southeast Mason Sub-Area Plan 1994 

Sub-Area North Mason Sub-Area Plan 1993 

Sub-Area Harstine Island Sub-Area Plan 1993 

Stormwater Mason County Stormwater Management Plan 2009 

Transportation 2016 Annual Mason County Bridge Report 2016 

Water 
Washington State Department of Ecology Water Resource Inventory Area 14 - 

Storage Assessment Report 2005 



 

 

Page 9 of 30       Countywide Planning Policies & Objectives 

VISION STATEMENT 
Mason County will remain a primarily rural county, characterized 
by quiet tranquility, privacy, natural views, and rural enterprise. 
Although rural character means different things to different 
people, aspects of it include: natural vistas, fish, shellfish, 
wildlife, and natural ecosystems; fewer restrictions and more 
privacy than in an urban area; Urban Growth Areas that are 
vibrant economic and social centers, the responsible operation of 
resource based industries such as timber, mining, agriculture, 
and aquaculture; and the close ties of family and community to 
the land. 
 

THE URBAN GROWTH AREAS 
The Urban Growth Areas of Shelton, Belfair, and Allyn as well as 
Rural Activity Centers throughout the County will serve as the 
principal housing, economic, civic, and social centers including 
commercial, industrial, and airport and business hubs. Each will 
have a compact core area anchored by retail, service industries, 
government, housing and education facilities. Shelton will serve 
as a regional health center serving the Olympic Peninsula, and 
regional retail will be centered in the City's Olympic Highway 
North area. The three Urban Growth Areas will provide a strong 
employment and tax base. 
 

THE RURAL AREAS 
Natural resources will continue to provide the foundation of the 
County's economy. Forestry, agriculture, aquaculture including 
shellfish and other fisheries industries, Christmas tree farming  
 
 

 
 
and mining will provide the natural resource employment.  Rural 
Activity Centers and compatible businesses such as cottage 
industries will continue to be encouraged and supported.  The 
County's abundance of natural attractions including mountains, 
lakes, rivers, and wildlife will continue to support the County's 
thriving tourist industries, including Master Planned 
Developments. The County's land use regulations will protect 
natural resource lands and industries against encroachment from 
incompatible, competing uses. 
 

HOUSING 
Residential growth within the County will primarily occur in the 
Urban Growth Areas of Shelton, Belfair and Allyn.  Mason County 
will offer a range of affordable rural and urban housing choices 
including single family, multifamily, and mixed-use.  Innovations 
in housing that provide affordable choices will be encouraged.  
Home owner associations will be encouraged to support 
compact, well maintained housing in rural areas. 
 

THE ENVIRONMENT AND OPEN SPACE 
Mason County will protect the environment in a way that is 
compatible with the needs of a growing population. One focus 
will be watersheds and their water quality and quantity. The 
county will also conserve an open space network that will include 
wildlife habitat and corridors, greenways, estuaries, parks, trails 
and campgrounds. This system will help preserve the County's 
environment and rural character, support the County's tourism 
industry, and meet the recreation needs of County residents.



 

 

Page 10 of 30       Countywide Planning Policies & Objectives 

PLANNING POLICIES 
Mason County's Comprehensive Plan addresses each of the 
thirteen GMA goals according to the vision shared by County 
residents. The following discussion identifies the Countywide 
Planning Policies for Mason County organized by the GMA goal 
they address.  

 
1:  URBAN GROWTH 

GMA encourages concentrating development where adequate 
public facilities and services exist, or can be provided within a 
reasonable amount of time.  In conjunction with the City of 
Shelton, Mason County adopted County-Wide Planning 
Policies (CWPP), some of which deal specifically with the issue 
of urban growth and are designed to ensure growth can be 
supported by adequate public infrastructure and services. 

 
1.1. Designate Urban Growth Areas around the 

incorporated City of Shelton and two unincorporated 
areas of Belfair and Allyn: where infrastructure exists, 
infrastructure is planned, as identified in an approved 
Capital Facilities Plan, or services can be reasonably 
and economically extended; where there is a 
sufficient supply of environmentally sound land to 
support urban densities and urban growth forecasted 
for the 20-year planning cycle, and where the 
community’s vision has identified its area as an Urban 
Growth Area. 

 
 

 

1.2 Mixed-use developments, multi-family 
developments, employment centers, and other 
urban land uses are appropriate development to 
be encouraged within designated Urban Growth 
Areas, in order to protect rural character in the 
remainder of the County. 

 
1.3 Encourage development in Urban Growth Areas 

where: 
 infrastructure exists or is planned; or 
 infrastructure is provided by the developer 

according to locally established minimum 
urban standards 

 

2:  REDUCE SPRAWL 
GMA discourages the inappropriate conversion of 
undeveloped land into sprawling, low density development. 
Several of Mason County's CWPPs are designed to reduce the 
impacts of growth, including sprawl, in areas outside of Urban 
Growth Areas. 

 
2.1   Rural areas now exist throughout Mason County 

and contribute to a large measure of the quality of 
life enjoyed by residents. These areas are 
characterized by low housing densities, wilderness 
and recreational living opportunities, and open 
space. Other rural qualities include tranquility, low 
traffic volumes, natural views, privacy, and rural 
enterprise. Intensive development will be 
discouraged in these rural areas due to the 
difficulty of providing cost-effective services, or 
because the disappearance of rural areas from the 



 

 

Page 11 of 30       Countywide Planning Policies & Objectives 

landscape would impact the character of the 
county. Rural areas of Mason County should be 
designated as such and protected from 
encroachment by intensive development. Rural 
development and accompanying water availability, 
including permit exempt wells, shall be consistent 
with protection of natural surface water flows and 
groundwater recharge.  Rural areas include those 
portions of the County that lie outside designated 
growth areas, master planned communities, home 
owner’s associations, and destination resorts, and 
may have lower standards of infrastructure and 
service that reflect and maintain this rural 
character. 

 
2.2   The Comprehensive Plan  will include a Rural 

Element protecting rural character, lifestyles, and 
values. 

 
2.3   Establish Level of Service Standards, timely 

development of essential infrastructure, and 
adherence to design standards for rural and urban 
areas. 

 
2.4 Establish a rural land use system that provides for 

continued vitality of our activity centers that may 
become urban growth areas or incorporated 
communities.  The categories of these areas include 
rural activity centers, hamlets, commercial centers, 
industrial areas, and tourist and recreational areas. 

 

3:  TRANSPORTATION 
GMA encourages development of efficient, multi-modal 
transportation systems that are based on regional priorities 
and are coordinated with county and city comprehensive 
plans. 

 
3.1 Encourage efficient multi-modal transportation 

systems that are based on regional priorities and 
coordinated with county and city comprehensive 
plans. 

 
3.2 Establish Level of Service standards that 

encourage densities in Urban Growth Areas 
where services such as public transit, sidewalks, 
car-pooling, etc., are available. 

 
3.3 Establish Level of Service Standards, timely 

development of essential infrastructure, and 
adherence to design standards for rural and 
Urban Growth Areas. 

 
3.4 Protect functions of designated high volume 

corridors by restricting individual access points. 
 
3.5 Promote interconnecting street networks which 

provide alternative routes. 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Page 12 of 30       Countywide Planning Policies & Objectives 

3.6 Encourage use of varied multi-modal 
transportation alternatives by providing 
bikeways, sidewalks, trails, public transit, etc., as 
appropriate to location and terrain, especially in 
Urban Growth Areas, and accommodating the 
young, aging and disabled.  

 
3.7 Ensure that cooperative planning efforts continue 

with the Peninsula Regional Transportation Policy 
Organization and the County’s Citizen Advisory 
Panel on the Transportation Improvement 
Program, and that policies of the County and the 
organization are consistent and coordinated, with 
the Comprehensive Plan as the guiding document 
for Mason County. 

 
3.8 The County and the City and Urban Growth Area 

should work cooperatively with the Mason 
County Transit Authority (MCTA) to provide 
equitable public transit throughout the County. 

 

4:  HOUSING 
GMA encourages the availability of affordable housing to all 
economic segments of the population, promotes a variety of 
residential densities and housing types, and encourages 
preservation of existing the housing stock. 

 
4.1 Incentivize affordable housing, promote a variety 

of residential densities and housing types, and 
encourage preservation of existing housing stock. 

 

4.2 Define and establish the need for affordable 
housing countywide through creation of a 
collaborative City/County Housing Plan. 

 
4.3 Encourage affordable housing through innovation 

including infill housing incentives, variety of lot 
sizes, mixed use, multifamily units, and density 
bonuses for affordable units. Encourage 
affordable housing in rural areas by utilizing the 
supply of existing platted smaller lots which can 
meet applicable subdivision, environmental and 
building regulations, and by ensuring existing 
legally built lots retain their conforming status, 
and by allowing manufactured housing, mobile 
homes, micro or tiny homes and other options in 
both urban and rural areas. It is recognized that 
the techniques for encouraging affordable 
housing will differ in rural and urban areas. 

 
4.4 Encourage the preservation of historic structures 

for use or conversion to single or multi-family 
housing. 

 
4.5 As part of a comprehensive program to address 

affordability, examine current local regulations 
and policies for impacts on housing cost. Prior to 
adoption of any new ordinance or regulation 
affecting homebuilding, evaluate the impact on 
the provision of affordable housing options. 

 



 

 

Page 13 of 30       Countywide Planning Policies & Objectives 

4.6 Affordable housing should be convenient to 
public transportation, major employment 
centers, and public services. 

 
4.7 Affordable housing needs will be examined in 

both city and rural contexts.  Strategies to 
address housing affordability will reflect local 
definitions of affordable housing, urban and rural 
values, cost and availability of land, infrastructure 
cost, private property rights, and broad-based 
citizen involvement. 

 
4.8 The County will consider direct participation in 

the development and/or management of 
affordable and low-income housing. 

 

5:  ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
GMA encourages economic development that is consistent 
with adopted comprehensive plans, promotes economic 
opportunity for all citizens of the County, especially for 
unemployed and disadvantaged persons, and encourages 
growth in areas experiencing insufficient economic growth, all 
within the capacities of the County's natural resources, public 
services and public facilities. 

 
5.1 Encourage economic development throughout the 

County that is consistent with the adopted 
Comprehensive Plan, promote economic 
opportunity for all citizens of the County, especially 
for unemployed and disadvantaged persons, and 
encourage growth in areas experiencing slower 
economic growth, all within the capacities of 
Mason County's natural resources, public services 
and public facilities. 

5.2  Maintain and enhance natural resource-based 
industries including productive timber, 
agriculture, aquaculture, mining and fisheries 
industries. Encourage the conservation of 
productive natural resources, and discourage 
incompatible uses. Assure that adjacent land uses 
do not contribute to the demise of the long term 
commercial forest, aquaculture, and agricultural 
production lands and the resource based 
industries associated with these areas. 

 
5.3  Establish coordinated incentives to promote 

economic development with respect to Vision 
Statements and Goals for each Urban Growth 
Area. 

 
5.4  Promote economic development activities where 

services needed by such activities already exist or 
can be easily and economically provided. 

 
5.5  Promote economic development where off-site 

impacts, such as transportation, can be 
effectively managed. 

 
5.6  In environmentally sensitive areas, ensure land 

use permit processes control activities which may 
have a detrimental effect on public health, safety, 
or environment consistent with state and federal 
requirements. 

 
 



 

 

Page 14 of 30       Countywide Planning Policies & Objectives 

5.7  Increase economic vitality in Mason County by 
stimulating the creation of jobs in tourism, 
trades, and other areas that provide livable wages 
and that promote economic diversity, 
stabilization, and maintenance of a high quality 
environment. 

 
5.8  Support school district, post-secondary, and 

higher education efforts including vocational 
education training, and education of a highly 
trained, technically skilled population. 

 

6:  PROPERTY RIGHTS 
GMA states, "Property rights of landowners shall be protected 
from arbitrary and discriminatory actions. Further, private 
property shall not be taken for public use without just 
compensation having been made.” 
 

6.1   Non-conforming uses shall be allowed alterations 
and expansions when appropriate. 

 

7:  PERMITS 
Both GMA and Mason County express that applications for 
land use and planning permits be processed in a timely and 
fair manner to ensure predictability. 

 
7.1  Applications for permits should be processed in a 

timely and fair manner to ensure predictability. 
 
 
 
 

8:  RESOURCE INDUSTRIES 
GMA recommends Counties maintain and enhance natural 
resource-based industries including productive timber, 
agriculture, aquaculture, mining, and fisheries industries, and 
encourage the conservation of productive forest lands and 
productive agricultural lands, and provide mitigation 
opportunities for incompatible uses. 

 

9:  OPEN SPACE 
GMA encourages the retention of open space and 
development of recreational opportunities.  GMA further 
encourages conservation of fish and wildlife habitat, and 
increased access to natural resource lands, water and 
developed parks and requires mapping of open space 
corridors. 
 

9.1  Designate and map open space areas in 
coordination with the incorporated and 
unincorporated areas designated as Urban 
Growth Areas. Criteria for designation shall 
include: 
 provides multiple use open space 
 environmentally unique and or fragile 
 separates incompatible land uses  

 consistency with the UGA’s vision statement 
 traditional cultural places and landscapes. 

 
9.2   Provide accessible public open space and protect 

environmentally important areas without 
compromising private property rights. 

 



 

 

Page 15 of 30       Countywide Planning Policies & Objectives 

9.3   Identify and prioritize open space areas, both 
urban and rural, which may be conserved through 
conservation easements, life estates, and/or 
conveyance to a land trust. Assure that private 
property rights are protected.  

 
9.4   Encourage increased access to publicly owned 

natural resource lands. Protect existing public 
access to shorelines and water. Encourage 
acquisition of lands to provide additional public 
shoreline and water access. 

 
9.5   Encourage retention of open space and the 

development of recreational opportunities like 
parks and public-use recreation areas appropriate 
for camping, hiking, horseback riding, and off-leash 
dog exercise. 

 
 

10:  ENVIRONMENT 
GMA strives to protect the environment and enhance the 
quality of life, including air and water quality, and the 
availability of water. 
 

10.1    In order to protect public health and water 
quality, septic systems and/or appropriate 
alternative disposal systems will be installed 
where appropriate in rural areas, according to 
adopted County health codes. Alternative sewage 
collection and treatment systems should be 
considered as an option when public health is in 
jeopardy, and or to correct environmental 

damage and when consistent with land use 
designations in the Comprehensive Plan. 
Development permits and/or franchises for 
sewage treatment systems should be granted 
when consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 

 
10.2   Mason County and the cities therein shall protect 

drinking water supplies from contamination, 
ensure that water for development is both legally 
and physically available, and identify and reserve 
future supplies. 

 
10.3  In environmentally sensitive areas, ensure land 

use permit processes control activities which may 
have a detrimental effect on public health, safety, 
environment, and physical integrity of the area 
consistent with state and federal requirements. 

 

11:  CITIZEN PARTICIPATION 
GMA encourages the involvement of residents in the 
planning process and coordination between communities 
and jurisdictions to reconcile conflicts. 

 
11.1  Encourage the involvement of citizens in the 

planning process and coordinate between 
communities and jurisdictions to reconcile 
conflicts. 

 
11.2  Mason County and the City of Shelton will 

maintain joint procedures for review of land 
development activities within the City’s Urban 
Growth Area. 



 

 

Page 16 of 30       Countywide Planning Policies & Objectives 

12:  FACILITIES/SERVICES 
GMA strives to ensure that public facilities and services 
necessary to support development shall be adequate to 
serve the development at the time of occupancy without 
decreasing the level of service provided. 
 

12.1   Ensure that those public facilities and services 
necessary to support development shall be 
adequate to serve the development at the time 
of occupancy without decreasing current levels 
below locally established minimum standards. 

 
12.2    Mason County and the cities therein, shall 

develop, with public participation, a cooperative 
regional process to site essential public facilities 
of regional and statewide importance. The 
objective of the process shall be to ensure that 
such facilities are located so as to protect 
environmental quality, optimize access and 
usefulness to all jurisdictions, and equitably 
distribute benefits/burdens throughout the 
region or county. 

 
12.3   Major public facilities that generate substantial 

travel demand should be sited along or near 
major transportation and public transit corridors. 

 
12.4   Sharing of corridors for major utilities, trails and 

other transportation rights of way is encouraged. 
 
 

12.5   Advance waste reduction efforts through support of 
state and federal programs, and through public 
information and education programs and other 
available, appropriate methods. 

 

13:  HISTORIC PRESERVATION 
GMA states that jurisdictions should, "identify and 
encourage the preservation of lands, sites, and structures 
that have historical or archeological significance”.  
 
 

13.1    Support the efforts of the Mason County Historic 
Preservation Commission created to identify and 
actively encourage the conservation of Mason 
County's historic resources (MCC 17.40). 

 
13.2   Identify and encourage the preservation of lands, 

sites, and structures that have historical or 
archeological significance through enforcement 
of regulations that implement the State's goals 
and objectives for historic preservation at the 
local level.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Page 17 of 30       Countywide Planning Policies & Objectives 

Objectives & Procedures  
The following section of this Chapter provides objectives and 
procedures identified through the development of each Element 
of the Comprehensive Plan to help guide capital investment and 
land use decisions in implementing the Plan. They are organized 
in the order of the thirteen Countywide Planning Policies.   
 
1. URBAN GROWTH  
 
Objective:  Assure compliance with the Growth Management Act, 
the County-Wide Planning Policies, the Comprehensive plan and 
Land Use Map in all adopted land use, environmental and 
development regulations and subsequent land use decisions and 
approvals. 
 

1. Review and amend the Comprehensive Plan on a minimum 
of once every five years, and if needed on an annual basis, 
consistent with the requirements of the GMA.  Revisions to 
the Land Use Map and/or implementing regulations shall be 
in compliance with the Comprehensive Plan policies and 
criteria. 
 

2. Maintain four categories of Comprehensive Plan 
amendments to be considered during the annual review of 
the Comprehensive Plan: Policy Amendments, Map 
Amendments, General Amendments, Site Specific 
Amendments (i.e. LAMIRDS). 
 

3. Allow submission of requests to the County for map 
amendments related to: errors in mapping rural densities, 
uses; errors in mapping boundaries of UGA’s, RAC’s, 

Hamlets; errors in mapping other LAMIRDS; errors in 
interpretation of criteria for land use designations. 
 

4. Mapping errors that are clearly erroneous based on 
inaccurate information or technical error may be corrected 
at the discretion of the Board of County Commissioners 
within 180 days of passage of this update. Map corrections 
of this nature shall not require a Comprehensive Plan 
amendment. After the 180 days, mapping errors will be 
processed as part of the annual comprehensive plan 
amendment cycle. 

 
5. Promote development which supports multimodal forms of 

transportation and pedestrian safety. 
 
2. REDUCE SPRAWL 
 
Objective:  Encourage development in urban areas to reduce 
sprawl and ensure adequate public facilities and services. 

 

6. The Urban Growth Areas (UGAs) should reflect the abilities 
of service purveyors to provide urban levels of facilities and 
services during the 20-year planning period.  
 

7. To minimize inefficient provision of essential urban services, 

annexation of additional property into the UGA shall be 

facilitated whenever desired by property owners and when 

necessary for efficient service provision. 

 

8. Annexation of unincorporated islands as they occur shall be 

encouraged. 

 



 

 

Page 18 of 30       Countywide Planning Policies & Objectives 

9. The jurisdictions will discuss formulas and methods for 

amortization of sales tax benefit lost by the County after 

annexation. 

 

10. The jurisdictions will discuss formulas and methods for 

amortization of County owned capital facilities transferred 

to the City as a result of annexation. 

 

11. The County and the City shall each notify the other of any 

discretionary land use permit or development proposal 

within the Urban Growth Area or within 1000 feet of the 

UGA boundary. Such notification shall be adequate to 

provide opportunity to review and comment on such 

applications prior to action by the designated body of the 

jurisdiction. 

 

12. All threshold determinations pursuant to the State 

Environmental Policy Act (SEPA) issued by the County for 

proposals within the UGA or within 1000 feet of the UGA, 

will be provided to the City. All such threshold 

determinations issued by the City for projects or areas 

within 1000 feet of the City boundary shall be provided to 

the County. Such notice shall be adequate to provide 

County staff with opportunity to review and comment on 

such actions prior to expiration of comment periods. 

 

13. The County and City shall each take due heed of comments 

offered by the other regarding any application for 

discretionary land use permits being processed by the 

other.  Each jurisdiction shall have formal standing for 

appeal of decisions made by the other on such matters. 

SUBDIVISIONS 

14. Subdivision of land shall facilitate current or eventual 
residential development at urban densities in Urban Growth 
Areas. 
 

15.  In areas within the Urban Growth Area, where public sewer 
and water are not available, subdivisions must be designed 
to allow more intensive development when such services 
become available. This can be accomplished on one of the 
following two ways: 
 

• Before annexation or before urban services are 
otherwise available at a property, subdivision shall be to 
urban densities. However, development may be 
allowed wherein non-urban services are provided on 
several lots in support of development on others. 
 

• Before annexation or before urban services are 
otherwise available on a property, subdivision of the 
property may provide for a number of lots meeting the 
definition of urban density while the remainder of the 
property is maintained as a single large lot. The large lot 
portion may be used to site non-urban type services 
such as wells and septic systems to serve development 
on the smaller, urban size, lots. 
  

16. Specific improvements bringing properties subdivided in 
one of the ways discussed above to city standards may be 
deferred until City services are provided. This deferment 
will only be granted if, as a condition of approval of such 
subdivisions, an obligation to bring the property to specified 
city standard at that time is provided as an attachment to 
title. 
 



 

 

Page 19 of 30       Countywide Planning Policies & Objectives 

17. Whether roads provided in new subdivisions are public or 
private, the layout of the roadways should support the 
modified grid street pattern matching up with the City. Use 
of cul-de-sacs should be minimized. 
 

UTILITIES 

18. When water or sewer lines are installed for use prior to 
connection to city utilities, the lines should be sized to meet 
the future system requirements and standards. 
 

19. City Utilities may be extended to properties within the UGA 
either upon annexation or through the creation of a Utility 
Extension Agreement with the owners of properties not 
annexed. 

 
20. No utility extension will be permitted to any County area 

within the UGA unless a Utility Extension Agreement is 
signed between the owner of the subject property and the 
City.  The Agreement shall provide for the following; 

 

• Utility Extension Agreements will be an instrument 
recorded against the title of the property and the 
responsibilities therein shall transfer to successors in 
ownership of all or part of the property. 

 

• Extension and hook up must not result in lowering of 
service delivery below adopted City LOS standards. 
Hookups outside of the City shall not be permitted until 
such standards are adopted. 

 

• Sewer extensions will not be allowed without 
demonstration that equivalent will be removed from 

the system or a contribution to a sewer system 
mitigation fund is made. 

 

• Water hook up will not be allowed until a contribution 
to a source development fund is made by property 
owner/developer. 

 

• Extensions will not be permitted unless agreement is 
made to pay a system development charge as identified 
by the City in a rate study. 

 

• All costs for utility system extension, steps necessary to 
maintain LOS, sewer system removal fund 
contributions, water source development fund 
contributions and system development charges shall be 
borne by the property owner served. 

 

• All served property must have a commitment to annex 
when contiguous and requested by City and placed on 
title. 

 

• All utility users shall be subject to rates and surcharges 
as established by the City. 

 

• In the event that a Utility Extension Agreement is made 
in an area that is served by a State Department of 
Health approved water system, which system may 
continue to be operated by the present owners or their 
satellite management agency. Fire flow, service line 
size, and main size will remain until State DOH requires 
an upgrade for a green operating permit. 

 



 

 

Page 20 of 30       Countywide Planning Policies & Objectives 

21.  The following must be provided in Utility Extension 
Agreements extending City services to new development 
not vested by virtue of a complete development 
application; 

 

• City owned utilities will only be extended to land uses 
consistent with the City's Comprehensive Plan Future 
Land Use Map as determined by the City. 

 

• City owned utilities will only be extended to 
development meeting city development standards. 

 

• When extended to residential development, city owned 
utilities will only be extended to development that 
meets the definition of urban densities as per Joint 
Planning Agreement and is consistent with the policies 
for subdivision of land therein. 

 
22. Urban services and facilities within the Belfair UGA that are 

required to meet the needs of new development should be 
planed to be available within ten years of the completion of 
development to meet the levels of services established for 
such services and facilities. 
 

23. Designate a Phase 1 sewer provision area that includes the 
downtown core of Belfair. This area is where sewer should 
be provided first. Encourage urban development of mixed 
uses to locate there, based on provision of services, good 
site design and adequate transportation facilities. 
 

24. Designate a Phase 2 sewer provisions area located outside 
the downtown core of Belfair. This area is intended to be 
provided with sewer service after Phase 1 is serviced. 

25. Facilities and services in the UGAs should be sufficient to 
accommodate seasonal increases in population. 
 

26. In the interim, before sewer is provided, allow mixed-use 
urban-level development to proceed if the proposal can 
demonstrate it can meet the following criteria: 
•  It complies with the applicable health regulations and 

other Mason County building regulations; e.g. critical 
areas, storm water management, etc. 

•  It provides a binding site plan which shows how the 
current proposal will be accommodated and how the 
remainder of the site will accommodate and not 
preclude urban services and densities. 

•  Sewer pipelines appropriately designed for future 
connection to the community sewer system will be 
installed from the plumbed structure to the lot line. 

•  A waiver of protest is given to the future formation of a 
utility local improvement district for the purpose of 
constructing sewer mains to serve the area. 

 
27.  The binding site plan for development in areas not yet 

served by sewer should also show how the development 
would address the following: 

•  Buffers 
•  Landscaping 
•  Traffic access and parking standards 
•  Height and scale in relation to surrounding uses 

and future uses 
•  Vegetation removal 
•  Storm water 
•  Lot coverage 
•  Compatibility with surrounding existing and 

future uses 
 



 

 

Page 21 of 30       Countywide Planning Policies & Objectives 

28. Conduct design review of proposed development to ensure 
compatibility with rural character. Suggested 
Implementation: Use a design review board to review plans 
for sight development, architecture, landscaping, parking, 
signage, and building height. 
 

29. Ensure that the natural beauty is not impaired nor the rural 
character compromised as a result of commercial 
development. 
 

 
3. TRANSPORTATION 
 
Objective:  Encourage efficient multimodal transportation 
systems. 
 

30. Subdivisions shall provide for current or eventual streets on 
a grid or modified grid pattern providing access to property 
and to adjacent properties where appropriate, consistent 
with urban densities. 
 

31. Assure that new on-site development occurs to standards 
that do not result in future inconsistencies with City 
standards where UGA is adjacent to incorporated City. 
 

32. On site development standards for sidewalks, landscaping, 
signage, shall be consistent with City standards where UGA 
is adjacent to incorporated City. 
 

33. New subdivisions should incorporate transit facilities into 
their site designs. 
 

34. Develop pedestrian ways to create safe, pedestrian friendly 
communities. 
 

35. Secure traffic calming devices on SR 3 to reduce the 
disruption to Village life as fast traffic cuts off the uphill 
development from the waterfront and businesses on the 
east side of the highway. 
 

36. On Harstine Island, roads should be kept as narrow as safety 
allows to encourage drivers to slow down. Extensive cutting 
of vegetation along the shoulders of property should be 
discouraged as it alters the character of the roadways. 
Numbers of roads and driveways should be kept to a 
minimum. 
 

37. Continue working with stakeholders to secure full funding 
and subsequent construction of the Belfair Bypass so that it 
is operational no later than 2022. 
 

38. Participate in transportation and economic development 
partnerships that support jobs and industry at the Puget 
Sound Industrial Center. 
 

39. Partner with the tribes to maintain safe and convenient 
access for pedestrians, bicyclists, and vehicles to tribal 
enterprises for visitors, vendors, and employees. 
 

40. Support transportation investments that ensure the long-
term viability of the Bremerton Naval Shipyard and 
development of the Puget Sound Industrial Center as major 
employment centers for Mason County residents. 
 



 

 

Page 22 of 30       Countywide Planning Policies & Objectives 

41. Collaborate with private land owners and state and federal 
forest management agencies to identify and upgrade 
County transportation facilities that are deficient in their 
design or operation. 
 

42. Support the year-round transport needs of logging, 
aquaculture, and other natural resources that sustain the 
region’s economy. 
 

43. Make funding for preservation and maintenance of the 
existing transportation system the top priority, especially 
when resources are tight, because deferred preservation is 
expensive preservation. 
 

44. Work with rail operators and property owners to keep at-
grade rail crossings as safe as possible. 
 

45. Identify critical gaps in transportation and access needed to 
ensure system redundancy for emergency management 
purposes and develop an implementation strategy for 
addressing priority deficiencies. 
 

46. Continue to partner with the Department of the Military’s 
Emergency Management Division and local, tribal, transit, 
and state governments to identify and coordinate strategies 
for transportation evacuation and recovery after a major 
earthquake, flooding, or other catastrophic event. 
 

47. Work to improve access to and connections between transit 
and park-and-ride lots. 
 

48. Secure funding for Phase 2 improvements to SR 3 through 
Belfair, to enhance mobility for all modes of travel and 

improve travel reliability between Kitsap and Mason 
Counties. 
 

49. Develop strategies for unused public rights-of-way in Allyn 
to protect future travel options while maximizing the value 
of these community resources in supporting local business 
and residential needs today and in the future. 
 

50. Work to integrate trails with the County’s transportation 
system to further enhance multimodal travel opportunities 
in Mason County. 
 

51. Promote activities that enhance efficient access for Mason 
County commuters to state ferries in Bremerton and 
Southworth. 
 

52. Support MTA efforts to increase transit and vanpool 
ridership among Mason County commuters bound for 
Olympia-area job centers. 
 

53. Partner with Mason Transit Authority and other local 
service providers to increase the cost-effectiveness and 
efficiency of transportation for rural residents with special 
transportation needs. 
 

54. Support Mason Transit Authority in its design and upgrade 
of existing park-and-ride facilities and in the location and 
design of a new facility in Belfair, working to ensure safe 
and convenient access for MTA and the traveling public. 
 

55. Minimize transportation-related impacts on salmon, 
shellfish, and other wildlife or habitats through the 
replacement or retrofit of inadequate facilities, reducing 



 

 

Page 23 of 30       Countywide Planning Policies & Objectives 

and treating stormwater runoff, regularly sweeping streets 
to reduce runoff of waterway pollutants, and decreasing 
toxics and herbicides used in road maintenance. 
 

56. Support electric vehicle charging infrastructure at park-and-
ride lots and other local locations, and work with local, 
regional, private, and state partners to establish a robust 
electric vehicle charging network for the US 101 Olympic 
Peninsula loop. 
 

57. Promote travel demand management and Commute Trip 
Reduction measures that reduce vehicle trips necessary to 
meet basic daily needs. 
 

58. Improve the ability of children to walk or bike to and from 
school with investments and policies that promote ‘Safe 
Routes to School.’ 
 

59. Work to accommodate LOS ‘C’ for peak hour congestion on 
all County arterials outside designated urban growth areas 
and LOS D for local arterials lying inside designated urban 
growth areas.  LOS is defined in the AASHTO Greenbook. 
 

60. Support WSDOT LOS ‘C’ for state highways outside of urban 
growth areas and LOS ‘D’ for state highways inside of 
designated urban growth areas. LOS is defined in the 
AASHTO Greenbook. 
 

61. Identify and implement meaningful system performance 
measures that reflect the values and priorities of Mason 
County residents and businesses to evaluate the 
effectiveness of transportation policies and investments 
over time. 

62. Work with PRTPO, Mason Transit Authority, and other 
affected transportation partners to monitor and implement 
federally required performance measures and targets. 
 

63. Foster partnership and cooperation between tribal and non-
tribal providers of public transit services. 
 

64. Collaborate with the Squaxin and Skokomish Indian Tribes 
to improve access, safety, and mobility to and from tribal 
lands and where appropriate, within tribal lands. 
 

65. Coordinate with school districts to enhance safe and 
efficient school transportation such as school bus routes, 
student walking routes, and crossings. 

 
 

4. HOUSING 

Objective: Mason County will provide opportunities for housing 
that are within the financial means of all of its residents, which 
include persons with physical and mental disabilities, and 
providing a reasonable opportunity to live and work in their 
community. 
 

66. Support a continuum of housing and related services for 
homeless people and forestall growth in homelessness 
through prevention and intervention.  This continuum of 
housing may include, but not be limited to Housing First 
programs; year-round shelters; and sanctioned tent 
encampments which, at a minimum, provide adequate 
toilet facilities, garbage collection, and access to public 
transportation.  Services will be of sufficient number to 
distribute units throughout the County without 
overburdening any particular part of the County. 



 

 

Page 24 of 30       Countywide Planning Policies & Objectives 

 
67. Promote a continuum of housing and related services for 

people with special needs, such as frail elderly, mentally and 
physically disabled persons, and recovering substance 
abusers. 

 
68. Fully utilize federal and state housing programs to meet the 

needs of low-and moderate-income households, and the 
special needs population that cannot be served by the 
private sector. 
 

69. Allow creative design practices that allow for residential 
uses in business zones, residential buildings that have 
shared facilities, such as single-room occupancy facilities, 
and micro-housing.  Also allow development utilizing 
creative design such as tiny homes, etc.   
 

70. In partnership with the City of Shelton, develop a set of 
priority housing measures to monitor housing short-fall on 
an annual basis as a means of evaluating the effectiveness 
of housing policies, goals and implementation measures. 
 

71. When developing housing regulations, consider the balance 
between housing affordability, environmental quality, and 
design quality. 
  

72. Identify and employ cost-effective incentives that are 
reasonably likely to result in an increased supply of housing 
suitable to the needs and income of all Mason County 
residents.  Incentives may include, but not be limited to, 
smaller lot sizes, zero-lot-line design, fee waivers and 
exemptions, parking requirement reductions, and expedited 
permitting. 
 

73. Provide for exemptions to or reductions of impact fees 
and/or permit fees to encourage the development of low-
income housing. 
 

74. Offer a variety of pre-approved housing designs available to 
developers and builders that serve to streamline the 
permitting process. 
 

75. Adopt a process, consistent with the Countywide Planning 
Policies, for the siting of those special needs housing 
defined as essential public facilities. 
 

 
5. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT  

 

76. Evaluate the return on investment of select infrastructure 
projects aimed at countywide economic expansion. 
  

77. Coordinate land use activities with the Skokomish Tribe and 
Squaxin Island Tribe, and tailor regulations for lands adjacent 
to reservation lands. 
 

78. Align zoning and other regulations with market needs for 
continued growth in the industrial sector with a focus on 
UGAs and regional activity centers. 
 

79. Continue to provide flexibility in the interpretation and 
application of zoning requirements to encourage adaptive 
reuse and compatible commercial/industrial development. 
 

80. Facilitate expansion of existing business activities in Mason 
County, when consistent with the predominant rural 
character and environmental protection goals. 



 

 

Page 25 of 30       Countywide Planning Policies & Objectives 

 

81. Expand local vocational training, offerings, and certifications 
and connect programs with local employers for maximum 
utility. 
 

82. Support public-private partnerships with local education and 
training providers to develop an educated, skilled work 
force; partners may include Olympic College, WSU Extension 
Mason County, and the public school districts. 
 

83. Advocate for expansion of the Olympic College Shelton 
Campus, and the development of relationships with County 
businesses. 
 

84. Track and periodically report on the progress, results, and 
return on investment of specific programs. 
 

85. Investigate specific investments that could support 
community livability and increase tourism. 
 

86. Identify and market sites suitable for advanced 
manufacturing development. 
 

87. Identify strategies to address transportation challenges 
related to Mason County's distance from interstate 
highways. 
 

88. Expand marina, campground, and RV park offerings. 
 

  
89. Maintain and regularly update an inventory of available 

properties with catalytic industrial or commercial 
development potential. 

 

90. Recruit or develop pilot facilities for innovative practices in 
aquaculture. 
 

91. Recruit or develop pilot facilities to augment timber 
processing and accelerate or incubate innovative methods 
and products. 
 

92. Expand opportunities for new agricultural crops, such as 
industrial hemp, in an effort to preserve agricultural land.  
 

93. Work with Washington State agencies to identify dedicated 
funding sources to address nonpoint pollution. 
 

94. Work collaboratively with local jurisdictions to develop a 
strategic plan to address gaps in critical health and human 
services 
 

95. Enhance bicycle tourism by adding signage for motorists to 
accommodate cyclists and painting bicycle access markers 
on the pavement along key cycling routes, and ensuring a 
regular program of sweeping and cleaning shoulders is 
maintained. 
 

96. Work with Washington State Department of Natural 
Resources, Recreation and Conservation Office and other 
partner agencies to expand programming and amenities at 
upland camping areas and trailheads. 

 

 

 



 

 

Page 26 of 30       Countywide Planning Policies & Objectives 

 

6. PROPERTY RIGHTS 

 

97. Ensure that the designation of Open Space shall in no way 

violate or void any private property ownership rights and 

does not imply or create access to Open Space property. 

 

 

7. PERMITS 

 

98. Streamline code and development review processes to 
ensure compatibility between adjacent uses and to 
coordinate urban and rural transitions. 

 

8. NATURAL RESOURCE INDUSTRIES 

 

99. Give preference to those efforts undertaken to enhance 
habitat or increase fish, shellfish and other aquatic 
resources for the good of the general public (e.g. 
Department of Fish and Wildlife efforts for salmon 
enhancement). 

 
100. Activities which enhance habitat or increase fish, 

shellfish, and aquatic resources should be encouraged 
as an important part of the economy and lifestyle of the 
area. 

 

101. Forestry, open space, and low-density residential 
development should be the preferred land uses 
adjacent to productive aquaculture areas. 

 

102. Establishment of a watershed/shellfish protection 
district or districts should be considered in order to 
focus all efforts on improving water quality and 
lessening impacts which degrade aquaculture areas; 
protection district funding should come out of 
assessments that have been raised within the 
watershed. 

 

9. OPEN SPACE & RECREATION 

 

103. Protect and preserve natural beauty and resources 

including North Bay, Sherwood Creek, the views and 

vistas of upland Allyn, and the forests and lakes to the 

west. 

 

104. In the Allyn UGA, acquire small parcels of property, 

development rights, easements or density credits to 

maintain natural resources, view areas, access points to 

the shore and pedestrian walkways to meet goals in the 

plan. 

 

105. Provide an attractive, safe, child-friendly environment 

for Allyn’s growing local population. 

 

106. Provide a Village Recreation Area in Allyn including a 

ball field and a playground area for young children 

 

107. Develop facilities which will attract tourists and 

stimulate economic activity with dollars from outside 

the area. 

 



 

 

Page 27 of 30       Countywide Planning Policies & Objectives 

108. Preserve the historic landmarks of the Allyn community, 

including: 

• St. Hugh’s Church 
• Native American petroglyphs on the beach 
• Allyn School bell 
• Drum Street, which leads to the Port dock. 

 
109. New development adjacent to existing or approved 

public parks or open space areas should provide for 
access to these areas from the development. 

 
110. Encourage the improvement of shoulders along roads 

and old highway spurs for pedestrian, bicycle, and 
recreational use. 

 

111. Develop long range trail planning with a view to 2055.  
 

112. Coordinate open space planning with Grays Harbor, 
Jefferson, Kitsap, Pierce and Thurston Counties to more 
effectively preserve watersheds, wildlife, scenic views 
and recreational opportunities. 

 

113. Where feasible, connect parks, open space parcels, 
wildlife corridors, trails, and educational facilities 
throughout Mason County. 

 

114. Integrated trails with the county transportation system 
to provide or facilitate alternative modes of 
transportation (multimodal).  

 
115. Encourage the development and maintenance of trails 

that provide access to historic, natural, recreational, 
cultural, and tourist-oriented points of interest and 

attractions, as well as other local and regional trail 
systems.  

 
116. Consider providing alternative routes of circulation 

within local communities. Mason County shall further 
consider developing trails that allow users non-
motorized access to various urban destinations (e.g. 
schools, ball fields, downtown areas, and commercial 
and residential districts), circulation within the local 
area, and access and integration with public 
transportation systems.  

 

117. Consider potential and existing opportunities for trail 
system design and development. The County shall 
consider potential and existing county and other rights-
of-way as potential trail sites, when feasible; take 
advantage of public lands and facilities; consider 
requiring trails and open space in commercial and 
residential development projects; and seek to form 
partnerships that foster trail development and 
expansion. 

 

118.  Outdoor education and recreation in the form of 
viewing wildlife, waterfowl and other native organisms, 
plus learning about and experiencing aspects of local 
history should be provided for County residents. 

 
119. Special consideration should be given to Mason 

County’s extensive wetlands resources in regard to 
educating the public on the importance of preserving 
these areas.  

 
120. Promote environmental protection and education in its 

trail design and development.  



 

 

Page 28 of 30       Countywide Planning Policies & Objectives 

 

121. Consider water resources as vital for the county and 
should utilize and promote these resources in its system 
of trails. Access to lakes and rivers, and fresh and 
saltwater activities shall be encouraged.  

 

122. Consider trails as an essential element for quality of life.  
 

123. Trails should be constructed to provide for the growing 
population of the County. 

 
124. Trails should traverse areas of natural beauty, historic 

significance or other special interest but in no way 
destroy or degrade the naturalness or character of the 
surrounding area. 

 
125. Railroad right-of-ways through Mason County are 

suitable corridors for open space between and within 
urban growth areas. Should the opportunity arise, such 
as through abandonment of the rail road line, then 
Mason County should pursue acquisition of the right-of-
ways for use for trails, open space, bike trails or other 
suitable recreational applications. Right-of-ways should 
also be preserved for potential transportation purposes, 
rather than divided and lose utility. (adopted April 
1996) 
 

126. Consistent with the county’s transportation and open 
space policies, the Belfair By-Pass will provide a bicycle-
pedestrian trail parallel to the county road, connected 
to State Route 3 north of the Belfair UGA, continuing 
through the UGA, to re-connect with State Route3 
south of the UGA. 

 
10. ENVIRONMENT 
 

127. Traditional plant species should be retained on 
development sites. Open space and building sites should 
contain sufficient overstory and other indigenous 
vegetation to maintain the forested character. Retaining 
trees along shorelines should be encouraged. 

 
128. An updated soil survey should be completed to aid in land 

use decision-making. The survey should include the 
current descriptions of soil physical properties and the 
limitations and suitability of each soil for numerous land 
uses. 

 

129. Water conservation should be reflected in development 
regulations, and development features such as 
landscaping, architecture, and storm water runoff 
collection and detention systems. 

 

130. Conservation and efficiency strategies should be 
developed and implemented County-wide to provide the 
most efficient use of all water resources. 

 

131. Conservation plans and programs should be coordinated 
with Grays Harbor, Jefferson, Kitsap, Pierce and Thurston 
Counties to ensure water resource protection measures 
address the needs and conditions of entire watersheds. 

 

132. Continue and enhance County-wide education efforts on 
water use, conservation and protection. 



 

 

Page 29 of 30       Countywide Planning Policies & Objectives 

133. Actively promote the concept of watershed 
management with respect to land use planning and the 
review of proposed development. 

 

134. The volume of surface and ground water used should be 
limited through comprehensive conservation programs, 
including provisions for emergency restrictions on use, 
and design standards promoting efficiency. 

 

135. Support efforts to monitor all aspects of water quality, 
especially for areas that have a great potential for water 
quality degradation/contamination (i.e. landfills, sludge 
disposal sites, master drain fields, etc.). 
 

136. Protect the environmentally sensitive areas of Theler 
Wetlands, the Union River Valley, and the steep slopes 
east of SR 3 from detrimental development pressures 
and impacts by the designation of major portions of the 
valley as rural, by encouraging clustering of 
development on the flatter and more stable portions of 
the steep slopes, and by consideration of either rural 
designations or additional development standards for 
development adjacent to the Theler Wetlands. 
 

137. Plan for and implement a program of roadside planting 
and maintenance that eliminates the use of herbicides 
for vegetation control. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

PUBLIC SERVICES 
 

138. Mason County should process permits and approvals for 
utility facilities in a fair and timely manner, and in 
accordance with development regulations that ensure 
predictability. 

 
139. Provide timely and effective notice to utilities of the 

construction, maintenance or repair of streets, roads, 
highways or other facilities, and coordinate such work 
with the serving utilities to ensure that utility needs are 
appropriately considered. 

 

140. Promote, when feasible, the co-location of new public and 
private utility distribution facilities in shared trenches and 
coordination of construction timing to minimize 
construction-related disruptions to the public and reduce 
the cost to the public of utility delivery. 

 

141. Provide for efficient, cost effective and reliable utility 
service by ensuring land will be made available for the 
location of utility lines, including location within 
transportation corridors. 

 

142. Encourage utility system design practices intended to 
minimize the number and duration of interruptions to 
customer service. 

 

143. Promote the conversion to cost-effective and 
environmentally sensitive alternative technologies and 
energy sources. 

 



 

 

Page 30 of 30       Countywide Planning Policies & Objectives 

144. Conserve the use of energy and water in the County’s 
own facilities. 

 

145. Ensure that all elements of the Mason County 
Comprehensive Plan (and the implementing development 
regulations) are consistent with, and do not otherwise 
impair the fulfillment of, the public service obligations 
imposed upon the utility providers by federal and state 
law. 

 
CITIZEN PARTICIPATION 

 

Objective: Citizen engagement should be a priority as part of 
updating subarea plans for Mason County Urban Growth Areas. 

 
 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION 
 

Objective: Areas containing potentially valuable historical/cultural 
features should be identified and procedures for protecting and 
preserving such resources should be employed. 
 

146. Landmarks and buildings of historical significance should 
be preserved. 

 
147. During development, when sites of historical significance 

are discovered, they should remain undisturbed until they 
are examined and a determination of disposition is made 
by the appropriate agency. 

 
148. Public access to historical and cultural sites should ensure 

against negative impacts and environmental degradation. 
Access should not detract from the sites' significance. 

 

149. Development in areas that contain potentially valuable 
historical/cultural features shall be in compliance with 
RCW 27.44 (Indian Graves and Records) and RCW 27.53 
(Archeological Sites and Records).  

 

150. Develop a comprehensive Historic Preservation Plan for 
Mason County to establish a clear understanding of 
historic resources and recommendations for policies for 
land use development protection of historic resources. 

 

151. Integrate historic preservation and traditional cultural 
places and landscapes into land use decision making 
processes.   



 

   
 
 
 
 
 
   
 
 
 
 
   
  

 

 

 
CHAPTER 3 – LAND USE ELEMENT 



Land Use Element Page 2 of 43 11/29/2017 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Land Use Element Page 3 of 43 11/29/2017 

 
 

 
 

Table of Contents 
  
I. INTRODUCTION                5 
II. POPULATION                6 

A. Historic Trends  8 
B. Current Conditions  9 
C. Projecting Future Growth  9 
D. Components of Population Change     10 

 
III.    EXISTING LAND USE            12 
  A. Mason County Land Use Categories 12 
  B.  Mason County Land Area   13 
  C.  Land Use in Urban Growth Areas 14 
 

IV.    FUTURE LAND USE PLAN           21 
A.  Land Capacity Summary   22 

 

B. Accommodating Growth and  
Protecting Critical Areas   23 
 

C. Protecting Natural, Historic, 
& Cultural Resources   32 

D. Protecting Water Quality and  
Reducing Runoff    41 
 

     



Land Use Element Page 4 of 43 11/29/2017 

 

 
 
 

List of Tables 

 

Table 1. Mason County Population Projection 2016-2036 ........................................................................... 6 
Table 2. Population by Decade – Washington State and Mason County ..................................................... 8 
Table 3. Population Growth by Decade – Washington State and Mason County ........................................ 8 
Table 4.  Countywide Growth/Annual Growth in Population 2010-2015 .................................................. 10 
Table 5. Components of Population Change 2000-2010 ............................................................................ 11 
Table 6.  Components of Population Change 2010-2015 ........................................................................... 11 
Table 7.  Urban and Rural Land Area (Acres) within Mason County........................................................... 13 
Table 8. Land Uses in Belfair Urban Growth Area 2015-2016 .................................................................... 14 
Table 9.  Belfair Urban Growth Area Land Use Analysis 2015-2016 ........................................................... 15 
Table 10.  Land Uses in Allyn Urban Growth Area 2015-2016 .................................................................... 17 
Table 11. Land Use Analysis for Allyn Urban Growth Area 2015-2016 ....................................................... 18 
Table 12.  Land Uses in the Shelton Urban Growth Area 2015-2016 ......................................................... 19 
Table 13. Land Use Analysis for the Shelton Urban Growth Area 2015-2016 ............................................ 20 
Table 14.  Area Growth Projections for Mason County 2016-2036 ............................................................ 21 
Table 15.  Historic Population Increase and Distribution – Urban Growth Areas and Rural County ......... 22 
Table 16. Land Capacity Summary (Net Acres) ........................................................................................... 22 
Table 17. Classification of Water Bodies of Mason County ........................................................................ 29 
 

List of Figures 

Figure 1.  Mason County Urban Growth Areas ............................................................................................. 7 
Figure 2.  Population Growth by Decade – Washington State and Mason County ...................................... 9 
  



 

Land Use Element Page 5 of 43 11/29/2017 

 I.  INTRODUCTION  

 

Washington State’s Growth Management Act (RCW 36.70A) is a 

series of state statutes that were first adopted in 1990, that require 

growing cities and counties to develop a Comprehensive Plan that 

will help ensure municipal services and infrastructure are planned in 

a way that support projected population and housing growth while 

maintaining the quality of life Washington is known for.  It is 

primarily codified under Chapter 36.70A RCW, although it has been 

amended and added to in several other parts of the RCW. 

The Land Use Element of a Comprehensive Plan is the central 

document required by the Growth Management Act that directs 

land use patterns and guides land use decisions within Mason 

County. This element provides the basis for the Housing, Parks, 

Transportation, Utility, Transportation, Economic Development, and 

Capital Facility Plans because it identifies the proposed distribution 

of land uses and addresses other concerns such as the protection of 

groundwater quality and quantity, drainage, flooding, and storm 

water run-off and potential mitigation measures.   

The Growth Management Act specifies: 

“A land use element designating the proposed 

general distribution and general location and 

extent of the uses of land, where appropriate, 

for agriculture, timber production, housing, 

commerce, industry, recreation, open spaces, 

general aviation airports, public utilities, public 

facilities, and other land uses. The land use 

element shall include population densities, 

building intensities, and estimates of future 

population growth. The land use element shall  

provide for protection of the quality and 

quantity of groundwater used for public water 

supplies. Wherever possible, the land use 

element should consider utilizing urban 

planning approaches that promote physical 

activity. Where applicable, the land use element 

shall review drainage, flooding, and storm 

water run-off in the area and nearby 

jurisdictions and provide guidance for corrective 

actions to mitigate or cleanse those discharges 

that pollute waters of the state, including Puget 

Sound or waters entering Puget Sound.” 

The Land Use Element of Mason County’s Comprehensive Plan 

identifies the existing land use conditions throughout Mason 

County, projects the land requirements to the year 2036 to meet 

projected population growth, and determines how that growth 

should be most cost effectively accommodated.  It is organized into 

the following four sections:  

•  INTRODUCTION:  The Growth Management Act – the 

reason for the Land Use Element  

•  POPULATION:  The twenty (20) year projected 

population growth the County will accommodate  

•  EXISTING LAND USE:  The buildable lands analysis and 

existing zoning and demographics for the Urban Growth 

Areas and Rural Mason County 

•  FUTURE LAND USE PLAN:  The population growth 

distribution throughout the County and plan for 

protection of critical areas, natural resource lands, 

historic and cultural resources, and more.  

http://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=36.70A


 

Land Use Element Page 6 of 43 11/29/2017 

II. POPULATION 

 

The Mason County Comprehensive Plan was developed based on 

both historical trends and future projections of Mason County’s 

population.  Using this information, future development demands 

and appropriate ways to manage land use in the county were 

developed.  

The population projections used were prepared by the Washington 

State Office Financial Management in August of 2012.  Additionally, 

the City of Shelton prepared a detailed population forecast.  Mason 

County is required to use these population projections shown in 

Table 1 as a basis for developing the County’s Comprehensive Plan 

and across all elements of the Plan.  

The State Office of Financial Management projections coupled with 

the Shelton forecast show that the total population for Mason 

County will be 83,800 by 2036.  This means an increase in the total 

population of the county by 19,300 people, or 31 percent over the 

20-year period from 2016 to 2036.  While an increase in population 

this large sounds remarkable, the historic population growth in 

Mason County in the 20 years from 1980 to 2000 was 58 percent.  In 

the last thirteen years, from 2000 to 2014, the population grew an 

additional 28 percent. 

 

 

 

Table 1. Mason County Population Projection 2016-2036 

MASON COUNTY AND URBAN GROWTH AREA   
20 YEAR POPULATION PROJECTION  

   2016 2036 Population 

Increase  
Percent 

Increase 

2016-2036 
Mason County 

Total  62,320 83,800 21,480 34% 

City of Shelton  10,070 16,200 6,130 61% 
       Shelton UGA 3,740 7,220 3,480 93% 
Urban Growth 

Areas (Allyn, 

Belfair)   2,990 4,720 1,730 58% 
Rural County   45,520 55,660 10,140 22% 
Source:  Washington State Office of Financial Management 

 

 

 



 

Land Use Element Page 7 of 43 11/29/2017 

Figure 1. provides a map of the areas of Mason County discussed 

throughout this Land Use Element and referenced throughout the 

Mason County Comprehensive Plan.  See also See the Mason 

County Planning Map Library available on the Mason County 

Website for a series of maps reference throughout the 

Comprehensive Plan.for a map series illustrating the land use, 

future land use and critical areas throughout Mason County. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Figure 1.  Mason County Urban Growth Areas 

 

Shelton 

Belfair 

Allyn 



 

Land Use Element Page 8 of 43 11/29/2017 

 

 

 

Population 
 

 

 

1960 1970 1980 1990 2000 2010 

 

Washington State 
2,853,214 3,413,250 4,132,353 4,866,663 5,884,143 6,724,540 

 

Mason County 
16,251 20,918 31,184 38,341 49,405 60,699 

 

 

 

 

Percent Change 

 

Average Annual Increase 

 60-70 70-80 80-90 90-00 00-10 

 

60-70 

 

70-80 

 

80-90 90-00 00-10 

 

Washington 

State 

 

19.6 

 

21.1 

 

17.8 

 

21.1 14.3 1.8 1.9 1.6 1.9 1.3 

 

Mason County 

 

28.7 

 

49.0 

 

23.0 

 

28.9 22.9 2.6 4.0 2.1 2.6 2.1 

 

A.  Historic Trends 

In 1970, Mason County's population was 20,918, only slightly more 

than one third of the County's population in 2010.  During the 

decade of 1970 to 1980, the statewide population grew by 21 

percent, or an average of 2.1 percent annually.  At the same time, 

Mason County's population grew by 49.1 percent to reach a 1980 

population of 31,184.   

Table 2 and Table 3, based on data provided by the Washington 

State Office of Financial Management, show fairly consistent 

historical population growth. 

Table 2. Population by Decade – Washington State and Mason County 

Table 3. Population Growth by Decade – Washington State and Mason 

County   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Land Use Element Page 9 of 43 11/29/2017 

Figure 2.  Population Growth by Decade – Washington State and Mason 

County 

 

 
The decade between 1980 and 1990 Mason County experienced a 
slower rate of growth going from 49 percent in 1980 to 23 percent 
in 1990.  By 2010, growth had slowed to 22.9 percent.  Increases in 
the state’s overall population have remained steady from 1960 
through 2010 at levels between 1 percent and 2 percent 
consistently. 
 
In April of 1996, Mason County adopted its first GMA compliant 

Comprehensive Plan replacing the Comprehensive Plan of Mason 

County from 1970 and incorporating the Southeast Mason County 

Subarea Plan.  At that time, growth projections for 2014 were 

81,102 (20,000 more than actual 2014 population).  However, 

refinements in population forecasting methods and a larger data set 

have improved the ability to project and plan for population, 

housing, transportation and related growth over time. 

 

B. Current Conditions 
According to the Washington Office of Financial Management, 
growth in the state continues to be concentrated in the 
metropolitan areas with 79 percent occurring in the five largest 
counties (Clark, King, Pierce, Snohomish, and Spokane).  King County 
had the largest portion of the state’s growth with a 38 percent 
increase over the past year.  Mason County had the fourth highest 
percent increase from 2000 to 2010, and fell to twenty fifth 
between 2010 and 2015.   
 
The majority of Washington’s population (78 percent) lives in the 
western portion of the State.  In 2015, Eastern Washington’s 
population grew by 0.8 percent and Western Washington by 1.5 
percent.  That is also a pattern of higher growth in counties along 
the Interstate 5 corridor compared to the rest of the state; and a 
similar pattern of faster growth in metropolitan than non-
metropolitan counties.  In 2015, 10 counties had a growth rate of 
more than 1 percent, three of those were non-metropolitan 
counties (Grant, Kittitas and Whitman).  Grays Harbor and 
Wahkiakum counties lost population over the past year.  Mason 
County’s population stayed fairly consistent with an increase of 200 
people in 2015, or 0.32 percent. 
 
C. Projecting Future Growth 
Using the historic trends and current conditions, Mason County has 

chosen to base it’s 2016-2036 Comprehensive Plan on the State’s 

mid-range population projection prepared by the Office of Financial 

Management (OFM).  The decision to use the medium series 

projection for planning purposes was based on a recent slowing of 

growth rates in the county that trend toward the medium series.  

Growth in Mason County is still expected to experience steady 

growth and the City of Shelton has developed a population forecast 

based on recent developments and infrastructure investments that 

also indicate steady strong growth.   

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

60-70 70-80 80-90 90-00 00-10

Washington State

Mason County



 

Land Use Element Page 10 of 43 11/29/2017 

Table 4.  Countywide Growth/Annual Growth in Population 2010-2015 
 

 Population Annual Growth in Population 

Mason 

County 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2010-

2011 

2011-

2012 

2012-

2013 

2013-

2014 

2014-

2015 

Unincorporated 44,173 44,455 44,862 45,075 45,255 45,367 282 407 213 180 112 

Allyn UGA 1,971 1,976 1,988 2,001 2,000 2,003 5 12 13 -1 3 

Belfair UGA 992 992 996 997 1,001 1,007 0 4 1 4 6 

Shelton and 

UGA 

13,563 13,577 13,604 13,727 13,744 13,823 14 27 123 17 79 

 

Source:  Washington State Office of Financial Management, Small Area Estimate Program, September 2015; 

State of Washington 2015 Population Trends, Forecasting & Research Division, Office of Financial 

Management, September 2015 

 

What Is Driving Growth? 

Statewide increases in population have been mostly due to net 

migration.  In 2015 there was a statewide increase of 1.34 percent 

due to migration, the highest since 2008.  Mason County is expected 

to follow that trend, although it may be at a slower rate.  Between 

2010 and 2015, the state experienced a 5 percent increase in 

population, while Mason County’s increase was at 2.5 percent.  

Technological advances make it possible to work for companies 

located in the more metropolitan areas along the Puget Sound 

corridor, while still living in rural areas.  Since Mason County is in 

relative proximity to Olympia, Bremerton, Tacoma, and Seattle, it is 

a desirable location for those looking to live in a rural area while 

telecommuting to work in metropolitan areas. 

 

 

Given that Mason County is a popular destination for retirees, the 

County is expected to experience a higher rate of population growth 

as baby-boomers continue to retire, and a higher conversion rate of 

seasonal residence to year round occupancy is projected.  Table 4 

shows the annual population growth of Mason County in the rural 

versus urban areas.  The rate of growth in the rural areas has been 

slower since 2012, while the urban growth areas population has 

fluctuated. 

 

D. Components of Population Change   
 
Net Migration and Natural Increase 
The main components of population change are births and deaths, 

”decrease” is defined as 
the difference between 
live births and 
deaths. “Net migration” 
is defined as the 
difference between the 
number of people 
moving into an area and 
the number of people 
moving out.   Tables 5 
and 6 show the impact 
net migration and 
natural increase have 
had on both the State's 
and County's 
populations.   
 
 



 

Land Use Element Page 11 of 43 11/29/2017 

Over the past 15 years, Mason County experienced more deaths 
than births and a lower rate of in migration (2.5 percent) decreasing 
the total population by 11 people.  It should be noted that the State 
and nation experienced a recession during this same time period.  
The overall percentages for the State are still greater with a 
reduction of almost half the number of people moving to 
Washington from 2010 to 2015.   
 
Table 5. Components of Population Change 2000-2010 

 2000 2010 Natural 
Increase 

Net 
Migration 

Percent 
Change 

Washington 5,894,143 6,724,540 380,065 450,332 14.09 

Mason 
County 

49,405 60,699 521 10,773 22.86 

 
Table 6.  Components of Population Change 2010-2015  

 2010 2015 Natural 
Increase 

Net 
Migration 

Percent 
Change 

WASHINGTON 6,724,540 7,061,410 184,107 152,763 5.01 

MASON 

COUNTY 
60,699 62,200 -11 1,512 2.47 

Source:  State of Washington 2015 Population Trends, Forecasting & Research 

Division, Office of Financial Management, September 2015 

 

Seasonal Population 
Mason County experiences significant seasonal fluctuations in 

population.  Seasonal residents are not completely captured in the 

State population projections because their official residence may 

not be in Mason County.  However, it is important that they be 

considered since there are definite increases in demand for certain 

types of capital facilities during the summer months when seasonal 

population is high and tourism is at its peak.   

In order to approximate the seasonal population variation, the 

County has used billing addresses from both PUD #1 and PUD #3 

customers.  In this case, a seasonal resident is one who receives 

utility billings at an out of county address. 

According to Mason County PUD #3 records, there are 27,730 
residential households in their service area; however 21 percent of 
those are seasonally occupied.  The billing records for Mason 
County PUD #1 show a total of 5,058 customers, with 54 percent of 
those customers considered seasonal. 
 

Seasonal increases in population will have a number of long term 

impacts on the County, particularly along the County’s waterfront 

areas.  Visitors and seasonal residents contribute to peak 

congestion resulting from vehicle and pedestrian traffic.  Seasonal 

population increases will also continue to place increased demands 

on County services.  Those services, which are designed to 

accommodate the average and peak demands of resident 

populations, are often under severe stress during seasonal 

population peaks. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Land Use Element Page 12 of 43 11/29/2017 

 

III. EXISTING LAND USE 

 
This section of the Land Use Chapter summarizes existing and 

planned land use in the Urban Growth Areas and rural Mason 

County.  Data presented in this section was compiled from the 

Mason County Tax Assessor’s database.  In addition, the National 

Park Service provided data related to the National Park and Forest 

lands, and the Squaxin Island and Skokomish Tribes provided data 

related to tribal lands. 

 

A. Mason County Land Use Categories 
 

Residential 

This category includes properties that have any type of dwelling unit 

placed upon it, except those with an improvement value of less than 

$20,000.  The Assessor considers properties with improvements 

valued at less than $20,000 as vacant. Residential uses include 

single family, multi family, mobile homes, convalescent centers, 

rooming and boarding houses, etc.  In addition, this category 

includes personal properties that have a building (other than a 

dwelling unit) with an improvement value of greater than $20,000.  

 

Rural Vacant 

This category includes parcels determined vacant by the Mason 

County Assessor’s office. Additionally, this category includes Lake 

Cushman leasehold properties and residential and personal 

property with an improvement value of less than $20,000. 

 

 

Commercial 

This category includes properties used for wholesale and retail 

trade, service industries, health care providers, and warehouses.  

This category also includes privately owned open spaces, such as 

privately owned parks and other privately owned entertainment 

and recreation facilities.  

 

Agriculture/Aquaculture 

This category includes all agricultural properties, tidelands, fisheries, 

and aquaculture related land classes. 

 

Forestry 

This category includes all properties in open space forest lands, 

classified forests, designated forest lands, forest-related activities, 

and Christmas tree farms.  The Forestry category does not include 

Long Term Commercial Forests designated under Mason County’s 

Resource Land Ordinance, Ordinance Number 77-93, as required by 

GMA. 

 

Long Term Commercial Forests 

This category includes only those lands designated as Long Term 

Commercial Forests under Mason County’s Resource Lands 

Ordinance, Ordinance Number 77-93, as required by GMA. 



 

Land Use Element Page 13 of 43 11/29/2017 

Mineral Extraction 

This category includes mining activities and mining services. 
 

Transportation 

This category includes all parcels related to transportation uses 

including railroads, rights-of-way, motor vehicle transportation, 

mass transit, aircraft runways, and parking lots. 

 

Utilities 

This category includes all parcels used for utility related purposes 

including communications, electrical, natural gas, water, and 

sewage related uses; landfills; and pipelines.  

 

B. Mason County Land Area 
This section characterizes the current land use in Mason County.  

The Mason County Assessor’s Database provided the primary 

source of data for this section.  It is important to distinguish land 

use as categorized by the Assessor from zoning.  The Assessor’s data 

is based on the parcel’s actual use and taxing distinction.  Zoning 

indicates a link to the Mason County Municipal Code, Development 

Regulations and helps determine what types of development are 

appropriate and which restrictions may apply to development. 

Countywide Land Use 

Mason County includes approximately 620,067 acres of land, about 

972 square miles, and an additional 57,600 acres, 90 square miles of 

water, as shown in Table 7.   

 

Approximately 154,080 acres of Mason County are within the 

boundaries of the Olympic National Park and the Olympic National 

Forest.   

The incorporated City of Shelton occupies an additional 3,900 acres 

of Mason County and Tribal lands account for approximately 8,180 

acres of the County.  Mason County includes three Urban Growth 

Areas - Belfair, Allyn, and Shelton (See Figure 1 for a map of these 

areas).  Belfair is located in the northeastern corner of Mason 

County and covers approximately 2,500 acre.  Just south of Belfair 

along the western shoreline of Case Inlet is Allyn, consisting of 

approximately 1,000 acres.  In the southeastern region is the 

Shelton UGA, encompassing 5,500 acres that surround the Shelton 

city limits.    

Table 7.  Urban and Rural Land Area (Acres) within Mason County 

Area Total Acres Percent of Total Acres 

Rural Lands 387,300 63% 

Olympic National Forest  154,080 25% 

Waters  57,600 9% 

Tribal Nations 8,180 1% 

Shelton Urban Growth Area 5,500 .9% 

City of Shelton  3,900 .6% 

Belfair Urban Growth Area 2,500 .4% 

Allyn Urban Growth Area 1,000 .1% 

Total County 620,060 100% 

C. Land Use in the Urban Growth Areas  
 



 

Land Use Element Page 14 of 43 11/29/2017 

Table 8. Land Uses in Belfair Urban Growth Area 2015-2016 

Land use Total  

Acres 

% of 

UGA 

Improved 

Acres 

(building 

value >$20k) 

% Total Unimproved  

Acres 

(building 

value <$20k) 

% Total Total  

Acres 

2005 

Percent 

Change 

Forest/Water 888 35% 33 4% 855 53% 877 42% 

Vacant 584 22% 30 3% 554 34% 483 23% 

Residential 499 20% 423 45% 76 5% 403 19% 

Commercial 327 13% 315 33% 12 <1% 183 9% 

Utilities 90 4% 79 8% 11 <1% 57 3% 

Transportation 83 3% 2 <1% 81 5% 52 2% 

Agriculture/ 

Aquaculture 67 3% 50 5% 17 1% 32 2% 

Mining         

Government 8 <1% 8 <1% 0 <1% 8 <1% 

Parks 4 <1% 3 <1% 1 <1% Na   

Total  2,551 100% 943 100% 1,608 100% 2,095  

 

Source:  Mason County Assessor’s Office, 2015 

*Assessor’s data only reflects primary use of land and does not identify secondary uses like home-based businesses. 

 

Methods for Determining Land Use Acreage 
By comparing two different data sets, the Assessor’s data and the 

County zoning data, we see a clearer picture of trends in land use.  It 

should be noted that the Assessor’s data and the County zoning 

data are two different data sets 

used for different purposes.  While 

the categories are similar, the total 

acreage will differ.  In order to get 

to a general capacity for dwelling 

units, parcel data was first 

organized by current land use in 

accordance with the codes as 

provided by the County Assessor’s 

Office.  Zoning district data 

obtained from Mason County 

Geographic Information Systems 

(GIS) was also compiled in order to 

determine the number of parcels 

and amount of acreage in each 

area that is currently devoted to 

various land uses, land use codes 

were grouped into broader land 

use categories (i.e. Residential, 

Commercial, Transportation, etc.).   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Land Use Element Page 15 of 43 11/29/2017 

Table 9.  Belfair Urban Growth Area Zoning Summary 2015-2016 

Zone Total 

Acres 

Undeveloped 

Acres 

Dwelling 

units/acres 

Potential 

Units 

Times 2.5 

persons/unit 

Long Term Agriculture (LTA) 17 0 1/10 1 2 

Festival Retail (FR) 20 3 0 0 0 

General Commercial (GC) 146 107 0 0 0 

General Commercial Business 

Industrial (GC-BI) 146 83 0 0 0 

Mixed Use (MU) 185 78 10/1 787 1967 

Business Industrial (B-I) 133 59 0 0 0 

Multi Family Residential (R-10) 197 158 10/1 1584 3961 

Med. Density Residential (R-5) 825 716 5/1 3580 8951 

Single Family Residential (R-4) 723 279 4/1 1117 2794 

Totals 2,392 1,483  7,069 17,675 

Source:  Mason County Assessor’s Office, 2015 and Mason County Zoning Map 

*Assessors Data and Zoning Data are different data sets, used for distinct purposes, and define land use differently. 

 

Once divided by existing land use, the zoning classification of each 

parcel was determined.  This shows the current land use and what 

its potential residential use was according to its zoning district.  This 

type of calculation and analysis was conducted for each of the 

districts and zones.   

 

Belfair Urban Growth Area 
Unincorporated Belfair is the primary commercial center in the 

Northeast corner of North Mason County. Mason County recently 

identified Belfair as an Urban Growth Area (UGA) of approximately 

2,500 acres.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Land Use Element Page 16 of 43 11/29/2017 

The current population within the UGA is approximately 1,000. 

However, Belfair serves residents within a larger rural geographic 

area as well as tourists visiting the Hood Canal and unique Theler 

Wetlands. 

While new development is on the rise in Belfair, the town is in the 

midst of trying to develop a particular character or ‘theme’ based 

around the Theler Wetlands as the town’s anchor. Belfair is also 

home to over 150 businesses located mostly along State Route 3.  

With the anticipated addition of pedestrian facilities, the continued 

development of a consistent town theme, an improved local 

economy, Belfair will be served as a destination well into the 

foreseeable future. 

As shown in Table 8, forested lands and water represent the 

primary land use within the Belfair UGA encompassing more than 

800 acres, and accounting for approximately 35 percent of the 

area’s total land.  There is also a large share of vacant land, over 20 

percent in the UGA.  

Belfair Buildable Lands 

Table 9 shows “buildable lands” or land supply with potential for 

development.  This data is a combination of both Assessor land use 

and Mason County Municipal Code Zoning Districts or the 

classifications that tell what types of development are permitted.   

Each parcel is separated into its Urban Growth Area and Zoning 

District, and then identified as developed or undeveloped.   

Undeveloped parcels of land that are zoned for residential housing 

development are identified.  Then average household size based on 

US Census Data is applied to determine persons per household.   

Based on this data, Belfair UGA has nearly 1,500 undeveloped acres 

and if developed, it has the potential to accommodate over 17,000 

people. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Land Use Element Page 17 of 43 11/29/2017 

Table 10.  Land Uses in Allyn Urban Growth Area 2015-2016 

Land use Total 

Acres 

% of 

UGA 

Improved 

Acres 

(building 

value 

>$20k) 

% Total Unimproved 

Acres 

(building 

value <$20k) 

% Total Total 

2005 

Percent 

Change 

Vacant 698 70% 521 79% 177 52% 369 89% 

Residential 110 11%  

91 

14% 19 6% 479 -77% 

Utilities 107 11% 0   107 32% 29 269% 

Transportation 38 4% 30 5% 8 2% 66 -42% 

Commercial 19 1% 19 2% 0 0 167 -89% 

Government 17 2% 0   17 5% na   

Parks 7 <1% 0   7 2% na   

Forest/Water 3 <1% 0 <1% 3 1% 137 -98% 

Total 999 110% 661 100% 338 100% 1,247  

Source:  Mason County Assessor’s Office, 2015  

*Assessor’s data only reflects primary use of land and does not identify secondary uses like home-based businesses. 

 

Allyn Urban Growth Area 
The Allyn Urban Growth Area is located along the upper, western 

shoreline of the Case Inlet in eastern Mason County (See Figure 1 

for a Map).  A portion of the Urban Growth Area called Lower Allyn 

was the original community first platted in 1889.  It has a mix of 

residences and commercial businesses covering 385 of the 1000 

acres within the Urban Growth Area.  Lakeland Village, a planned 

residential development, makes up the largest land area and 

population base.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Land Use Element Page 18 of 43 11/29/2017 

Table 11. Allyn Urban Growth Area Zoning Summary 2015-2016 

Zone Total 
Acres 

Total 
Undeveloped 

Acres 

Dwelling 
Units/Acre 

Potential 
Units 

Times 2.5 
persons/unit 

Business Park (BP) 30 25 0 0 0 

Highway Commercial (HC) 8 0 0 0 0 

Public Open Space (POS) 5 2 0 0 0 

Residential 1 (R-1) 158 87 4/1 347 867 

Residential 1 Platted (R-1P) 490 45 6/1 270 675 

Residential 2 (R-2) 43 3 10/1 33 84 

Residential 3 (R-3) 46 38 20/1 752 1881 

Village Commercial (VC) 43 3    

Residential 1 Recreational (R-1R) 200 45 5/1 223 558 

Total 1,023 248  1,625 4,065 

Source:  Mason County Assessor’s Office, 2015 and Mason County Zoning Map 

*Assessors Data and Zoning Data are different data sets, used for distinct purposes, and define land use differently. 

 

Table 11 reviews the Assessor’s data with zoning to determine build 

out potential and shows that nearly 250 acres remain undeveloped 

with the potential to accommodate over 4,000 people in Allyn UGA.  

State Route 3 connects Allyn to several major regional cities.  

Shelton is 18.5 miles to the south and Bremerton, in Kitsap County, 

is 16 miles to the north.  The Belfair Urban Growth Area is just 4 

miles north.  Table 10 indicates that some land in Allyn has been 

reclassified since 2005, making comparisons of some land 

categories difficult.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Land Use Element Page 19 of 43 11/29/2017 

Table 12.  Land Uses in the Shelton Urban Growth Area 2015-2016 

Land use Total 

Acres 

% of 

UGA 

Improved 

Acres 

(building 

value >$20k) 

% Total Unimproved 

Acres 

(building 

value <$20k) 

% Total Total  

Acres 

2005 

Percent 

Change 

Forest 1430 26% 20 <1% 1410 45% 1395 3% 

Residential 1109 20% 1014 43% 95 3% 1103 1% 

Vacant 954 17% 34 1% 920 29% 835 14% 

Commercial 672 12% 578 24% 94 3% 240 180% 

Transportation 505 9% 485 20% 20 <1% 662 -24% 

Government 499 9% 147 6% 352 11% Na   

Parks 274 5% 28 2% 246 8% Na   

Utilities 51 1% 41 2% 10 <1% 57 -11% 

Agriculture/ 

Aquaculture 42 1% 35 2% 

7 

<1% 72 -42% 

Mining 18 <1% 6 <1% 12  <1% 12 50% 

Total 5,554 100% 2,388 100% 3,166 100% 4,376  

Source:  Mason County Assessor’s Office, 2015  

*Assessor’s data only reflects primary use of land and does not identify secondary uses like home-based businesses. 

 

 
Shelton Urban Growth Area 
The Shelton UGA is about 5,500 acres total.  This does not include 

the incorporated City of Shelton.  

The existing land use patterns 

within the Shelton UGA can 

generally be described as containing 

a mix of land uses including 

residential, commercial, parks, 

resource lands and undeveloped 

areas.  In the 2005 Plan update, 

residential development was the 

predominant land use.  A review of 

2016 data shows that forestry is 

now the primary at 26 percent of 

Shelton’s UGA’s.  Residential is the 

second largest use, followed by 

undeveloped or vacant land.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Land Use Element Page 20 of 43 11/29/2017 

Table 13. Shelton Urban Growth Area Zoning Summary 2015-2016 

Zone Total 
Acres 

Total 
Undeveloped 

Acres 

Dwelling Units/Acre Potential Units Times 2.5 persons/unit 

Airport Industrial (AI) 981 79 0 0 0 

Commercial Industrial (CI) 409 277 0 0 0 

General Commercial (GC) 75 31 0 0 0 

Industrial (I) 738 508 0 0 0 

Mixed Use (MU) 309 143 12/1 1716 4290 

Neighborhood Residential 
(NR) 

2171 1508 4/1 6032 15080 

Public Institutional (PI) 503 351 0 0 0 

Total 5,186 3,079  7,748 19,370 

Source:  Mason County Assessor’s Office, 2015 and Mason County Zoning Map 

*Assessors Data and Zoning Data are different data sets, used for distinct purposes, and define land use differently.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

Table 13 reflects the Assessor’s data together with zoning to show 

the build out and population potential of undeveloped lots in the 

Shelton Urban Growth Area (See Figure 1. for an Urban Growth 

Area Map).  As shown in Table 15, there are over 3,000 acres 

undeveloped in the Shelton UGA with the potential to 

accommodate over 19,000 people. 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Land Use Element Page 21 of 43 11/29/2017 

Table 14.  Area Growth Projections for Mason County 2016-2036  

Area Additional 

Population 

Share of 

Population 

Growth 

Percent Total 

Land Area 

Shelton Urban Growth 

Area 9,610 44% 1.5% 

Belfair Urban Growth Area 430 2% .4% 

Allyn Urban Growth Area 1,300 6% .1% 

Fully Contained 

Community Reserve 600 3% - 

RAC – LAMIRDS 400 2% <1% 

Rural Lands 9,140 43% 63% 

Total County 21,480 100%  

 

IV.  FUTURE LAND USE PLAN 

 

The future land use map represents Mason County’s plan to 

accommodate projected population growth in a way that maximizes 

existing infrastructure and ensures adequate public facilities and 

services can be provided in a way that maintains the quality of life 

enjoyed in Mason County.  Urban type growth and development is 

planned for the urban growth areas, including the City of Shelton 

and the communities of Allyn and Belfair.  A more rural 

development pattern for housing and a slower rate of growth is 

planned for the rural county.  The Rural Activity Centers, or areas 

where you would expect to find rural commercial services and other 

rural community development include Union, Hoodsport and Taylor 

Town. The Hamlets include Bayshore, Dayton, Deer Creek, 

Grapeview, Lilliwaup, Matlock, Potlatch, Spencer Lake, and Tahuya. 

See the Mason County Planning Map Library available on the 

Mason County Website for a series of maps referenced throughout 

the Comprehensive Plan. 

Based on historic trends, the County has estimated how the future 

growth in population will be distributed between Urban Growth 

Areas and rural Mason County.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Table 14 shows population growth projected for these areas as it 

relates to the total land area.  The trend of faster growth in the 

urban growth areas that Mason County has experienced over the 

past decades is expected to continue through the 20 year planning 

horizon. 

 

 

 



 

Land Use Element Page 22 of 43 11/29/2017 

Table 15.  Historic Population Increase and Distribution – Urban Growth Areas and Rural County  

 ALLYN BELFAIR SHELTON RURAL 

 Increase Share Increase Share Increase Share Increase Share 

2000-2005 460 9% 97 2% 834 16% 3943 74% 

2006-2010 374 8% 81 0.10% 717 16% 3313 74% 

2011-2014 21 2% 11 1% 169 19% 699 78% 

2000-2014 855 8% 189 2% 1720 16% 7955 74% 

 

          Table 16. Land Capacity Summary (Net Acres) 

 

Area (all acres 

are net 

acres)** 

 

Residential 

Capacity  

 

Non-

Residential 

Capacity 

 

Total 

Capacity  

 

Urban Growth 

Areas 3,100 1,710 4,810 
 

 - Shelton 1,650 1,430 3,080 
 

- Belfair 1,230 250 1,480 

- Allyn 220 30 250 

*Exclusively non-residential 
** Net acres excludes unavailable lands, unsuitable lands; 20 percent roads & 25 

percent market factor 

Table 15 provides a detailed picture of people moving to Mason 

County over the past 15 years and where they chose to live.   

While a greater number of people overall located in rural Mason 

County as shown in Tables 16 and 17, population and growth in 

development was and is still very concentrated in the Urban Growth 

Areas.  The relative size of rural Mason County when compared to 

the size of the Urban Growth Areas is important to consider.  Rural 

Mason County is approximately 970 square miles and the Urban 

Growth Areas combined are a fraction of that at approximately 50 

square miles.   

A. Land Capacity Summary for Mason County 
The Future Land Use Map for Mason County includes designated 

areas for the National Park and Forest, Long-Term Commercial 

Forest Lands, In-holding lands, Agricultural Resource Lands, Urban 

Growth Areas (UGAs), Rural Activity Centers, and Rural Areas.  

Mineral Resource Lands are also designated, but that designation is 

an overlay on other districts, primarily the Forest Lands or the Rural 

Areas.   

  

The Urban Growth Areas include the City of 

Shelton and the un-incorporated communities of 

Belfair and Allyn.  Rural Activity Centers include 

Union, Taylor Town, and Hoodsport.  Table 16 

provides a summary of demand for residential 

and non-residential land in the Urban Growth 

Areas over the 20 year planning horizon. 

See the Mason County Planning Map 

Library available on the Mason County 

Website for a series of maps reference 

throughout the Comprehensive Plan. 

 



 

Land Use Element Page 23 of 43 11/29/2017 

Green Diamond Resource Company Lot Retirement Project 
The Green Diamond Resource Company has worked with The Trust 

for Public Lands to retire thousands of acres of timberland into 

conservation easements in the coming decades.  By 2020, it is 

anticipated that Green Diamond will have retired more than 1,700 

units of potential residential development through this conservation 

process.   

Rural residential districts are distinguished by the minimum number 

of acres required for each dwelling unit (e.g. rural residential 5 

require a minimum of 5 acres per unit). The total number of housing 

units that will be forgone was estimated to be over 1,700 based on 

review of the buildable land in each zoning district.  The population 

that would have occupied those residential units by 2036 is 

estimated at over 4,000 people.1    

 

B.  Accommodating Growth and Protecting Critical Areas  
 

Geologically Hazardous Areas 
Geologically hazardous areas include areas susceptible to landslide, 

erosion, earthquake or other geological events.  In many cases, 

hazards can be reduced or mitigated by engineering, design or 

modified construction practices.  Because of their susceptibility 

however, some of these areas may not be suitable for new 

development. 

Mason County’s Resource Ordinance identifies three types of 

Geologic Hazard Areas: 1) Landslide Hazard Areas, 2) Seismic Hazard 

Areas, and 3) Erosion Hazard Areas.  Landslide Hazard Areas are 

                                                           

1 US Census Bureau, American Community Survey 5 year Estimates, 2.57 average 

household size for Mason County in 2014.  1700 units x 2.57 persons = 4,369. 

lands that have an increased potential for landslides and other earth 

movement.  Seismic Hazard Areas are lands that are particularly 

susceptible to damage from earthquakes and other seismic activity.  

Lastly, Erosion Hazard Areas are lands that are more susceptible to 

excessive erosion. 

 

Landslide Hazard Areas 

A landslide is a rapid down slope movement of a mass of material 

such as rocks, soil, or other debris.  The speed and distance of 

movement, as well as the amount of material, varies greatly and 

depends on a combination of geologic, topographic and hydrologic 

factors.  Especially susceptible to landslide hazards are marine bluffs 

and unconsolidated glacial deposits on steep hillsides (greater than 

40 percent). 

 

Potential Landslide Hazard Areas are areas that meet the following 

criteria: 

1. Areas with indication of earth movement such as debris 
slides, earth flows, slumps and rock falls; or 

2. Areas with artificial over steepened or unengineered 
slopes, i.e. cuts or fills; 

3. Areas containing soft or potentially liquefiable soils; 
4. Areas unstable as a result of stream incision, stream 

bank erosion, and undercutting by wave action; 
5. Slopes greater than 15 percent (8.5 degrees), except 

areas composed of consolidated rock, and having either 
of the following: 

a. Steep hillsides; or 
b. Springs or groundwater seepage. 



 

Land Use Element Page 24 of 43 11/29/2017 

A key indicator of potential landslide areas is slope of the land. 

Approximately 10 percent of the landscape in Mason County 

(excluding Olympic National Forest and Olympic National Park 

areas) has a slope of 15-30 percent, and approximately 3 percent 

has steeper slopes of 30-45 percent (See See the Mason County 

Planning Map Library available on the Mason County Website for a 

series of maps reference throughout the Comprehensive Plan.for 

the Landslide Hazard Map). 

The risk of landslide occurrence depends on a number of factors 

including soil vulnerability, slope, and the degree of water 

saturation.  Development activities can increase the risk by exposing 

soil through clearing, altering natural drainage patterns, excavating 

the “toe” of slopes, or increasing soil moisture content. 

An important measure of potential risk for landslide when 

development occurs is land clearing and alteration for development.  

Potential impacts to Mason County can be assessed based on the 

relative amount of land converted to urban uses during the 20-year 

planning under each of the alternatives.   

In addition to the critical area regulations, the Comprehensive Plan 

minimizes the amount of land cleared for development by directing 

it to the County’s growth into Urban Areas.  Further, options such as 

Master Planned Developments require clustering and open space.  

Both techniques reduce the amount of land disturbed by 

development while maintaining overall rural densities. 

 

 

 

 

Seismic Hazards 

Seismic Hazards occur in areas subject to severe risk of earthquake 

damage as a result of seismic induced settlement or soil 

liquefaction.  These areas include soils containing high organic 

content (e.g., wetland soils), areas of loose sand and gravel, artificial 

fills, landslide deposits, and fine-grained soils with high water 

tables. 

Seismic Hazard Areas are areas susceptible to ground failure, 

including the following: 

1. Mapped geologic faults; 

2. Deep road fills and areas of poorly compacted 

artificial fill; 

3. Areas with artificially steepened slopes; 

4. Post-glacial stream, lake or beach sediments; 

5. River Deltas; 

6. Areas designated as potential Landslide Hazard 

Areas; 

7. Bluff areas; 

8. Areas underlain by potentially liquefiable soils. 

 

Seismic Hazard Areas are shown on the Mason County Seismic 

Hazards Map (FIGURE IV-4.2), as documented by the Coastal Zone 

Atlas of Washington and Geology and Related Groundwater 

Occurrence, Southeastern Mason County, Washington, Water 

Supply Bulletin 29. 

 

 

 



 

Land Use Element Page 25 of 43 11/29/2017 

All structures in Mason County are subject to the engineering and 

design requirements of the International Building Code for 

earthquakes.  Seismic hazards requirements focus on effects to 

buildings and other facilities from intense ground shaking and/or 

liquefaction.  Attention to seismically induced landslides could also 

cause structural damage to buildings, particularly on steeper slopes 

and shoreline bluffs. In addition, the critical area regulations do not 

allow significant public buildings in seismic hazard areas; and the 

future land use plan directs most growth away from these areas. 

 

Erosion Hazard Areas 
Erosion is a natural process in which the land surface is worn away 

by the action of water, wind, ice or other geologic processes.  The 

most common cause of erosion is water falling or flowing across the 

land.  Factors contributing to erosion hazard are soil type and slope.  

Erosion hazards generally occur on erosive soils where slopes 

exceed 15 percent. 

The Mason County Resource Ordinance classifies Erosion Hazard 

Areas  underlain by soils which are subject to severe erosion when 

disturbed. Such soils include, but are not limited to, those for which 

potential for erosion is identified in the Soil Survey of Mason 

County, USDA Soil Conservation Service, 1960, or any subsequent 

revisions or addition to that Ordinance.   

The erosion process can be accelerated by development activity 

that exposes and disturbs soils so they are more vulnerable to 

erosive forces.  Further, increased areas of impervious surfaces 

reduce the infiltration of rainfall, increase stormwater runoff, and 

result in even greater erosion potential.  Increased runoff, erosion, 

and sedimentation may adversely affect the physical and biological 

characteristics of streams and other water resources. 

Erosion Hazards are similar to Landslide Hazards in that they are 

both often created by, or aggravated by development activities such 

as clearing and grading.  The comprehensive plan controls the 

hazards through the critical areas regulations and by concentrating 

development in suitable areas.  

 

Wetlands 
Wetlands are natural ecosystems that serve a number of important 

beneficial functions.  They assist in reducing erosion, siltation, 

flooding, and ground and surface water contamination. Wetlands 

provide habitat for wildlife, plants, and fisheries.  They may also 

assist in recharging groundwater supplies.  In addition, wetlands 

provide opportunities for recreation and education. 

Wetlands are areas that are inundated or saturated by surface or 

groundwater at a frequency and duration sufficient to support, and 

that under normal circumstances do support, a prevalence of 

vegetation typically adapted for life in saturated soil conditions. 

Wetlands generally include swamps, marshes, bogs and similar 

areas. However, the term ‘wetlands’ may also include artificial 

wetlands intentionally created from non-wetland areas to for 

mitigation, if permitted by the county.   

In making a determination regarding a wetland, Washington State 

Wetland Identification and Delineation Manual (Ecology #96-94), or 

as amended hereafter, shall serve as the technical resource guide 

on determining if an area possesses hydrophytic vegetation, hydric 

soils, and/or wetland hydrology. 

Wetlands are classified by a rating system set forth in the 

Washington State Wetland Rating System for Western Washington 

by Washington State Department of Ecology.  A four-tier wetlands 



 

Land Use Element Page 26 of 43 11/29/2017 

rating system has been adopted as the rating system for Mason 

County to protect wetlands and their critical functions.  Wetland 

buffer widths, wetland activities, and replacement ratios are based 

on this rating system.  These four categories include: 

1) Category I Wetlands. Category I wetlands are those 

regulated wetlands that include but are not limited 

to rare, unique wetland types that are more 

sensitive to disturbance than most wetlands and 

that contain ecological attributes that are 

impossible to replace within a human lifetime. 

Category I wetlands score 70 points or more out of 

100 on the wetlands ratings systems. 

2) Category II Wetlands. Category II wetlands are 

those regulated wetlands that score between 51-69 

points out of 100 on the wetlands ratings system. 

3) Category III Wetlands. Category III wetlands are 

those regulated wetlands that score between 30-50 

points on the wetlands ratings system.* 

4) Category IV Wetlands. Category IV wetlands are 

those regulated wetlands that score less than 30 

points out of 100 on the wetlands ratings system.* 

 

* Non-Regulated Wetlands. Isolated wetlands under 1,000 square 

feet which are not associated with a riparian corridor, not part of a 

wetland mosaic, and not essential habitat of a priority species as 

identified by the Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife. 

Mason County includes an abundance of wetland areas.  Most of 

these areas are associated with larger freshwater and saltwater 

systems.  Approximately 940 square miles in the County have been 

mapped as wetlands as documented by the National Wetland 

Inventory, Mason County Generalized Wetland Inventory Map.  

Agricultural wetlands and isolated wetlands under one acre in size 

are exempt from most of the regulatory requirements of the Mason 

County Critical Area Ordinance. 

The alteration or destruction of wetlands can eliminate or reduce 

the variety of biological and hydrological functions that wetlands 

perform.  Direct impacts may result from clearing, grading or filling 

in advance of development.  Of equal potential are indirect impacts 

from new development, which may alter surface water flows, or 

interrupt the infiltration of groundwater. 

New development may increase volumes of sediment-laden runoff 

entering wetlands.  This may inhibit the wetlands’ natural capacity 

to remove nutrients and process chemical and organic wastes.  In 

addition, increased sedimentation within wetlands may reduce their 

ability to temporarily store flood waters and increase the risk and 

magnitude of downstream impacts. 

Wetlands may also often provide groundwater recharge.  

Development activities in areas near or connected to wetlands in 

recharge areas could interrupt infiltration to the groundwater 

system. 

The Comprehensive Plan concentrates growth to Urban Growth 

Areas.  It also provides for permanent open space and designated 

natural resource areas in development allowed within Rural Areas.   

 
 

 



 

Land Use Element Page 27 of 43 11/29/2017 

Fish and Wildlife Habitat Conservation Areas 
Mason County contains an abundance of marine, freshwater and 

upland habitat for fish and wildlife.  Preservation of fish and wildlife 

habitat is critical to protecting suitable environments for animal 

species, and in providing an important part of the local quality of life 

for County residents and visitors. 

One of the most important functions of wildlife is in maintaining the 

health and diversity of ecosystems.  Each species has its role in an 

ecosystem.  When a species is eliminated, the ecosystem loses the 

functions it performed.  As a result, the balance of the ecosystem is 

sometimes irreversibly lost or diminished.  Given the inter-relation 

of all species in an ecosystem, species elimination may result in 

unpredictable consequences, though some consequences of habitat 

impact are known in advance.  For example, a loss of marine 

invertebrates and kelp from over-harvesting ultimately affects the 

quality of habitat for larger fish, mammals and birds. 

Fish and wildlife also provide important recreational and economic 

benefits such as hunting and fishing opportunities.  The continued 

prosperity of the commercial and recreational fish and shellfish 

industries depends on maintenance of excellent water quality and 

unpolluted habitats for fish, shellfish, and their food sources.  

Fish and wildlife habitat also provide significant social benefits.  

Mason County residents are accustomed to occasional encounters 

with wildlife such as bald eagles, great blue heron and elk.  Wildlife 

provides the opportunity to educate the public about biological and 

ecological processes.  Other less quantifiable benefits include 

wildlife viewing, and maintaining the historical, cultural, and 

spiritual values of Native American Tribes and the general public. 

The Mason County Resource Ordinance guides management of the 

County’s Fish and Wildlife habitat through the regulation of 

conservation areas. Fish and wildlife habitat conservation means 

land management for maintaining species in suitable habitats within 

their natural geographic distribution so that isolated populations 

are not created. This does not mean maintaining all individuals of all 

species at all times, but it does mean intergovernmental 

cooperation and coordination is critically important in a region. In 

some cases, it is sufficient to assure that a species will usually be 

found in certain regions across the state.  

The provisions for the protection of habitat cannot succeed in their 

purpose of supporting viable populations of fish and wildlife species 

unless other agencies and the public also act to protect the species. 

In the case of anadromous fish, the Statewide Salmon Recovery 

Strategy identifies that it will take a balanced approach to 

addressing the factors of decline that are within human control, 

including harvest, hatchery, habitat, and hydropower. The 

underlying assumption is that impacts to anadromous fish or their 

habitat or to fish and wildlife conservation areas shall be avoided or 

mitigated.  Fish and wildlife habitat conservation areas include both 

aquatic and terrestrial areas within Mason County. The approximate 

location and extent of critical fish and wildlife habitat areas are 

displayed in the Washington Department of Fish & Wildlife's 

(WDFW) Priority Habitat and Species (PHS) Program database. The 

following categories are used in classifying critical areas:  

(1) Commercial and recreational shellfish areas; 

(2) Kelp and eelgrass beds; herring, sand lance, and 

smelt spawning areas; 

(3) Naturally occurring lakes and ponds under twenty 

acres and their submerged aquatic beds that 

provide fish or wildlife habitat;  

(4) Streams; 



 

Land Use Element Page 28 of 43 11/29/2017 

(5) Saltwater Shorelines, and Lakes 20 Acres and 

Greater in Surface Area; 

(6) Lakes, ponds, streams, and rivers planted with 

game fish by a governmental or tribal entity;  

(7) State Department of Natural Resources natural area 

preserves and natural resource conservation areas;  

(8) Areas with which federal or state endangered, 

threatened and sensitive species of fish and wildlife 

have a primary association. Those species known to 

be found in Mason County shall be listed in the 

Resource Ordinance. Protection of species habitats 

is determined by the state or federal listing, and 

their actual presence near the site subject to 

review. Other listed and protected species may be 

found in Mason County, which are not listed.  

(9) Other areas that contain habitats and species of 

local importance (which include juvenile salmonid 

migration areas) as also listed. Species of local 

importance may include, but are not limited to, 

state candidate and monitor species.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Aquatic Areas 
Mason County includes three principal river systems and numerous 

lakes, small rivers, and streams.  The Skokomish and Hamma 

Hamma rivers are swiftly flowing, deeply incised rivers that 

originate high in the Olympic Mountains and empty into Hood 

Canal.  The East and Middle Forks of the Satsop River originate in 

the Olympic Mountains, converge at the southwestern corner of the 

County and flow southward into the Chehalis River.  All of the 

eastern part of the County is drained by smaller streams which flow 

only short distances before reaching outlets to Puget Sound.  Many 

of the small streams, as well as the larger systems, support 

significant fisheries, including anadromous fish. Other surface 

waters are made up of numerous lakes and wetland areas, some of 

which include Cushman, Mason, Nahwatzel, Lost, Isabella, Island, 

Cranberry, Limerick and Spencer lakes. 

The waters and shorelines of Mason County are an important 

resource.  In addition to their natural beauty, and cultural value, 

they provide the base for a sizable shellfish industry, aquaculture, 

fish and wildlife habitat. 

Water systems are classified by the Washington Department of 

Natural Resources (WAC 222-16-030) and Table 17 provides a 

general description of water type classifications currently in use.  

 

 

 

 

 



 

Land Use Element Page 29 of 43 11/29/2017 

 

 Table 17. Classification of Water Bodies of Mason County 

Type Description 

Type"S"= 

Shoreline 

  

Streams and waterbodies that are designated “shorelines of 

the state” as defined in RCW 90.58.030. 

(formerly type 1) 

Type "F" = 

Fish 

Streams and waterbodies that are known to be used by fish, 

or meet the physical criteria to be potentially used by fish. 

Fish streams may or may not have flowing water all year; 

they may be perennial or seasonal. 

(formerly type 2 or 3) 

Type"Np"= 

Non-Fish 

Streams that have flow year round and may have spatially 

intermittent dry reaches downstream of perennial flow. 

Type Np streams do not meet the physical criteria of a Type 

F stream. This also includes streams that have been proven 

not to contain fish using methods described in Forest 

Practices Board Manual Section 13. 

(formerly type 4) 

Type"Ns"= 

Non-Fish 

Seasonal 

  

Streams that do not have surface flow during at least some 

portion of the year, and do not meet the physical criteria of a 

Type F stream. 

(formerly type 5) 

 
Terrestrial Areas 
All development activities have the potential to impact native plant 

and animal species. Terrestrial Management Areas are those areas 

where the presence of state endangered or state threatened 

terrestrial species have been identified.  The Mason County Critical 

Area Ordinance specifies that all development in these areas shall 

be consistent with State and Federal law. 

See the Mason County Planning Map Library available on the 

Mason County Website for a series of maps referenced throughout 

the Comprehensive Plan. 

There are also a number of publicly and privately managed natural 

areas in Mason County that have been designated as preserves or 

refuges.  These areas are important for fish and wildlife habitat, 

scenic vistas, protection of sensitive plant species, and preservation 

of open space. 

The Washington State Department of Natural Resources manages 

three Natural Area Preserves in Mason County. They include 17 

acres at Oak Patch Lake, 28 acres on Skookum Inlet, and a 56-acre 

site on Totten Inlet. The Washington State Department of Fish and 

Wildlife manages a number of properties in the County, including 

the 172-acre Skokomish River Tidelands Wildlife Area and the 122-

acre Union River Wildlife Area. 

Mason County also includes a number of properties managed by the 

Hood Canal Land Trust (HCLT). HCLT is a non-profit organization that 

either owns properties outright or manages them under the terms 

of conservation easements. Key HCLT sites include the Klingall and 

Jimmy Bryan Wetland Preserves, 88 acres  on the north side of 

Lynch Cove and 140 acres along the Union River under a 

conservation easement. 

The impacts of development to habitat include the replacement of 

woodlands, pastures and other undeveloped areas with buildings, 

roads, parking lots, landscaping, and other structures. Depending on 

the location, density and intensity of uses, this may result in the 

removal and displacement of habitat and cause some wildlife 

http://www.dnr.wa.gov/publications/fp_board_manual_section13.pdf
http://www.dnr.wa.gov/publications/fp_board_manual_section13.pdf


 

Land Use Element Page 30 of 43 11/29/2017 

species to relocate to other areas.  Since most habitats are currently 

assumed to be at or near their carrying capacity, displaced animals 

may perish. 

Loss of wetlands, riparian areas and adjacent fields may affect the 

overall number and variety of wildlife and waterfowl.  Loss of 

riparian vegetation could also affect migrating or nesting areas.  

Plant and animal species can also be affected by erosion and 

sedimentation of streams, coastal waters, and wetlands.  Shoreline 

and related over-water development can harm valuable kelp and 

eelgrass beds. 

In addition to the critical areas protections adopted by the county, 

the comprehensive plan promotes urban development in the 

County’s Urban Growth Areas and rural development in the rural 

areas.  The comprehensive plan also provides for permanent open 

space and designated resource areas to promote the protection, 

preservation, and enhancement of fish and wildlife habitat.   

 

Critical Aquifer Recharge Areas 
The State of Washington's definition of aquifer recharge areas for 

GMA planning purposes focuses on existing areas of supply which 

are vulnerable to contamination.  Critical Aquifer Recharge Areas  

“Areas with a critical recharging effect on aquifers 

used for potable water, including areas where an 

aquifer that is a source of drinking water is 

vulnerable to contamination that would affect the 

potability of the water, or is susceptible to reduced 

recharge.” (WAC 365-190-030). 

 

Groundwater exists in underground layers of porous rock or soil 

called aquifers.  Water stored in aquifers reaches the ground 

surface through springs, wells, or by seepage into surface water 

features, including wetlands.  Surface waters replenish, “recharge”, 

aquifers through seepage from streams, lakes, and wetlands, and 

from precipitation that percolates through soil or rock. 

Potable water means water suitable for drinking.  Groundwater 

provides virtually all of Mason County's potable water.  Protecting 

aquifers and aquifer recharge areas, therefore, is critical to 

maintaining Mason County’s water supply.  Aquifers exist 

throughout the County. The groundwater supplying most of the 

County’s water is obtained from the aquifers running through the 

coarser and more permeable glacial and fluvial sedimentary 

deposits.  The older, undifferentiated sedimentary deposits provide 

large quantities of water for industrial and municipal wells.  Bedrock 

forms the bottom of the groundwater layer although fractures and 

joints in the relatively impermeable rocks may yield small quantities 

of water.  

Precipitation provides the primary source of recharge for Mason 

County’s groundwater.  Precipitation within the County averages 64 

inches annually.  It increases rapidly towards the Olympic 

Mountains where, at Lake Cushman, precipitation is in excess of 100 

inches per year.  Water levels in wells are typically within 125 feet 

of the land surface. The quality of groundwater in an aquifer is 

inextricably linked to its recharge area.  Approximately 24,970 acres 

have been mapped as Critical Aquifer Recharge Areas in Mason 

County. See the Mason County Planning Map Library available on 

the Mason County Website for a series of maps referenced 

throughout the Comprehensive Plan including Critical Aquifer 

Recharge Areas. 



 

Land Use Element Page 31 of 43 11/29/2017 

All Critical Aquifer Recharge Areas in Mason County are classified as 

Extremely Susceptible, Highly Susceptible, Moderately Susceptible, 

or Low Susceptibility as defined by the County's Resource 

Ordinance. 

Urban development has two potential impacts on groundwater 

resources: 1) increases in impervious surfaces reduce the volume of 

precipitation available to recharge groundwater, and 2) urban 

development may introduce pollutants into the groundwater 

system.  When groundwater recharge is reduced, groundwater 

supplies may be depleted.  In many instances, this is coupled with 

withdrawals of groundwater in excess of recharge capacity.  

Potential long-term impacts include reduced capacity of water 

wells, reduced flows in groundwater-fed streams, and depletion of 

water supplies to lakes or wetlands. 

Pollutants can be introduced into the groundwater system through 

a variety of means.  They include failing septic systems, agricultural 

chemicals and animal waste, urban runoff, solid waste disposal, and 

leaking underground storage tanks. 

 

Frequently Flooded Areas 
The Frequently Flooded Areas, or Flood Hazard Areas, of Mason 

County are subject to periodic inundation which can result in loss of 

life and property, health, and safety hazards, disruption of 

commerce and governmental services, extraordinary public 

expenditures for flood protection and relief, and impairment of the 

tax base, all of which adversely affect the public health, safety, and 

general welfare. These flood losses could be exacerbated by the 

cumulative effect of obstructions in areas of special flood hazards 

which increase flood heights and velocities, and when inadequately 

anchored, damage uses in other areas. Uses that are inadequately 

floodproofed, elevated, or otherwise protected from flood damage 

also contribute to the flood loss. Mason County has prepared this 

flood damage prevention ordinance to implement comprehensive 

flood damage reduction measures that are necessary for public 

health safety and welfare and that allow property owners to protect 

their property. 

Flooding in Mason County generally occurs from November through 

April.  The greatest cause of flooding is heavy rainfall combined with 

snow melt.  A special flood risk zone has been established for the 

zones A and A2 floodplain of the Skokomish River, Vance Creek and 

tributaries. This special flood risk zone is designated as a floodway 

and the entire floodway is designated an avulsion risk area. 

Construction of a new structure or an expansion of the square foot 

area of an existing structure is prohibited in this designated 

floodway.  

The Skokomish River Valley floods several times annually. In recent 

history there have been large flood events in 1955, 1972, 1990, 

2003, and 2007. Many homes, pastures and personal property were 

damaged in those years as well as lesser damage on a more 

frequent basis. Flooding on the Tahuya River and Goldsborough 

Creek have been known to cause some damage, whereas the Union 

River tends to have high flows, but minimal overbank flooding. 

Flooding of marine shorelines is caused by a number of factors, 

which can occur individually or in combination.  They include 

extreme high tides, waves generated by winds, tsunamis of distant 

origin, and locally generated seismic waves or boils.  Wind-driven 

waves, superimposed on extreme high tides, represent the most 

common form of coastal flooding in Mason County. 

 



 

Land Use Element Page 32 of 43 11/29/2017 

Floodways, floodplains and coastal flood areas are identified by the 

Mason County Federal Flood Insurance Study FEMA maps. 

The comprehensive plan is intended to provide for the protection of 

Frequently Flooded Areas by concentrating urban development on 

the least amount of land, considering the suitability of the land for 

development through the use of performance standards, and by 

providing  for significant open space and resource use areas in 

development within the Rural Area. 

The County-Wide Planning Policies call for Mason County and the 

City of Shelton to protect all types of Critical Areas. 

 

C. Protecting Natural, Historic and Cultural Resources 
 

Natural resources abound in Mason County and provide the 

foundation for the County's economy.  While timber has played the 

dominant role, other natural resources including agricultural lands 

and minerals, have also fostered economic development within the 

County.   

Forest Lands 
Without question, timber is the foundation upon which Mason 

County’s economy is built.  Forest Products continue to be Mason 

County’s premier natural resource industry.  The early explorers 

marveled at the vast timber expanse in the region, describing it as 

“thick as fur on a dog’s back.” For 140 years, Mason County’s 

extensive forests have supplied logs, lumber, building components, 

pulp, and other products to national and international markets. 

 

Long Term Commercial Forest lands and Forest Products represent 

the primary land uses throughout Mason County and within each of 

its seven watersheds.  The Rural Element of Mason County’s 

Comprehensive Plan shows that there are approximately 300,000 

acres of Long Term Commercial Forest and 13,500 acres of In-

holding lands in Mason County.  These figures do not include federal 

and tribal lands.  Long Term Commercial Forest lands and Forestry 

play an even greater role in the County's land use, due to the 

acreage that the U.S. Forest Service maintains as well as lands 

forested by both the Skokomish and Squaxin Island Tribes. 

Mason County currently has an abundance of forested lands with 

long term commercial significance.  Although continued population 

growth will place additional demands on forest resources, these are 

not expected to significantly affect the County’s forest resources 

during the 20 year planning period.   

Impacts associated with forestry operations include erosion and 

sedimentation, noise from machinery and vehicles, fugitive dust, 

and the visual impacts of harvested areas. The state Department of 

Natural Resources is responsible for regulating these impacts.  The 

comprehensive plan concentrates urban development on the least 

amount of land.  It also provides for permanent open space and 

resource use areas in development allowed within the Rural Areas. 

Historic Resources 
As Mason County continues to grow, it is important that the history 

of Mason County be preserved.  The state and federal governments 

have developed inventories of those sites and facilities that have 

special historical importance.  Some of the sites are formally listed 

on an historical register, which provides some tax and other 

advantages to their owners for preserving their historic attributes. 

Native American tribes also have sites identified of cultural or 



 

Land Use Element Page 33 of 43 11/29/2017 

historical significance.  The County intends to cooperate with the 

state agencies and the area tribes to protect historically and 

culturally important areas.  The Countywide Planning Policies 

include policies guiding the county in the protection of these areas 

with support and oversight by the County’s Historic Preservation 

Committee.   

See the Mason County Planning Map Library available on the 

Mason County Website for a series of maps reference throughout 

the Comprehensive Plan including a map of Public and Historic 

Lands and Facilities identifying historic sites throughout Mason 

County.   

 

Agriculture 
The State of Washington's GMA guidelines define agricultural land 

as land primarily devoted to the commercial production of 

horticultural, viticultural, floricultural, dairy, apiary, vegetable, or 

animal products or of berries, grain, hay, straw, turf, seed, 

Christmas trees, or livestock, and that has long term commercial 

significance for agricultural production.  Long term commercial 

significance includes the growing capacity, productivity, and soil 

composition of the land for long term commercial production, while 

considering the land's proximity to population areas, and the 

possibility of more intense uses of the land. 

Agricultural practices have taken place in Mason County since the 

early days of logging. The clear-cutting practices of those early 

logging companies opened a considerable amount of County land to 

agriculture, particularly to dairying and cattle raising.  Crop 

production was limited to the growing of hay, berries and potatoes.  

In the eastern part of the County where the weather was milder, 

extensive vineyards and fruit orchards were planted. Despite its rich 

agricultural history, however, Mason County is not well-endowed 

with the resources necessary to create a strong competitive 

advantage for agricultural production.  Consequently, agriculture’s 

current role in Mason County's economy is relatively minor.   

In 1993, there were 320 farms in operation in the County covering 

approximately 21,640 acres or nearly 4 percent of Mason County 

land area.  In 2016, that acreage has declined to about 8,000 acres a 

loss of over 60 percent.  Continued population and housing growth 

in Mason County is likely to increase land use conflicts between 

urban uses and remaining agricultural uses.  As land values rise, the 

potential economic returns will likely increase the pressure on 

owners to sell or develop their properties. 

Much of the agricultural land within the County is located in the 

rural areas, outside the UGA’s. 

In order to better conserve agricultural lands of long-term 

commercial significance, Mason County designated Agricultural 

Resource Lands in its Resource Ordinance.  The amendments also 

provided for continuing protections for lands in agricultural use, but 

not qualified as lands of long-term commercial significance.   

 

Aquaculture 

Mason County is the largest producer of shellfish in Washington 

State and Washington is the top shellfish producing state in the 

nation.  Mason County has seen an increase in shellfish farms and 

revenue from shellfish sales of 25 percent between 2013 and 2005,  

based on the US Aquaculture Census.  

 

 

 



 

Land Use Element Page 34 of 43 11/29/2017 

Shellfish farms are significant contributors to Mason County’s. 

Shellfish farming is the second largest employer in Mason County, 

Washington with over 70 farms generating $32 million in revenue 

annually.  Shellfish also do their part to reduce the trade deficit. 

Shellfish grown in Mason County are exported around the world, 

bringing in millions of dollars from foreign countries each year 

directly benefitting our local economy as well as federal and state 

economies. 

Shellfish production requires a healthy, functioning ecosystem to 

provide safe water quality and appropriate quantities of 

phytoplankton for food. Scientific research indicates well-managed 

shellfish farming can improve water quality, species diversity, and 

habitat complexity.   

In order to better support shellfish production, Mason County has 

adopted its Shoreline Master Program and Resource Ordinance.  

These policy documents provide for continuing protections for 

aquaculture lands and the watersheds that feed into these lands.   

Fish, crustaceans, mollusks, and other aquatic products which are 

caught or harvested by the public from non-controlled waters or 

beds are considered wild caught and are not included as 

aquaculture.  Mason County has 25 public access beaches for 

shellfish harvesting and maintaining and enhancing this access 

remains a priority.  

The shellfish industry across the state of Washington, including 

business owners in Mason County, have developed 

recommendations to support shellfish (Washington Shellfish 

Initiative): 

 

1. Establish a state shellfish aquaculture coordinator  
2. Create a centralized mapping and data tracking portal 
3. Develop consistent, practicable, and effective best 

management practices 
4. Address overall permit timeliness 
5. Continue outreach to growers 
6. Provide technical assistance to local government 
7. Assess permit compliance 
8. Reduce redundancies and improve interagency 

coordination 
9. Devote funding to support shellfish aquaculture 

permitting 
10. Designate a lead state agency to manage shellfish 

aquaculture  
 

Voluntary Stewardship Program 
In 2012, Mason County elected by a vote of the Commission to opt 

in to the Voluntary Stewardship Program as established under 

Ruckelshaus Process Bill and codified in RCW 36.70A.700.  This 

program is intended to promote local plans that protect and 

enhance critical areas within areas where agricultural activities are 

conducted, while maintaining and improving the long-term viability 

of agriculture in the state of Washington and reducing the 

conversion of farmland to other uses.  These plans establish 

voluntary incentive programs that encourage good riparian and 

ecosystem stewardship, protect water quality and fish habitat, and 

discourage the cessation of agricultural activities. 

In 2015 Mason County entered into a contractual agreement with 

the Washington State Conservation Commission to receive funding 

for the Voluntary Stewardship Program Workplan Development to 

be complete by 2017.  



 

Land Use Element Page 35 of 43 11/29/2017 

Mineral Resource Lands 
The State of Washington's GMA guidelines define mineral resource 

lands as lands primarily devoted to the extraction of minerals, or 

that have known or potential long term significance for the 

extraction of minerals.  Minerals include gravel, sand, and valuable 

metallic substances. 

See the Mason County Planning Map Library available on the 

Mason County Website for a series of maps referenced throughout 

the Comprehensive Plan including Mineral Resource Lands 

identifying locations of known and potential mineral resources.  The 

mineral resources identified on the map are based primarily on soil 

types identified by the SCS in the Mason County Soil Survey and the 

Department of Ecology in the Coastal Zone Atlas of Washington.  It 

should be noted that many of the soil characteristics which increase 

an area's potential as a source of mineral resources also increase its 

potential for aquifer recharge. 

 Mason County contains a large supply of construction aggregate 

(i.e., sand and gravel). There are three remaining, undeveloped, 

large sources of high-quality sand and gravel located in close 

proximity to the waters of Puget Sound, such that materials can be 

transported from the site by barge to water-dependent 

metropolitan construction aggregate markets also located on the 

Puget Sound tide lands.  Two of these large deposits of aggregate 

are located in Mason County. They include the proposed Hamma 

Hamma site at Eldon on Hood Canal, and the permitted Johns 

Prairie site north of Shelton on Oakland Bay. Both Mason County 

sites contain a high-volume source of high-quality sand and gravel. 

These resources are suitable for processing into a wide variety of 

finished construction aggregate classes, all meeting government 

and ASTM (American Society for Testing and Materials) 

specifications. 

Mason County has nineteen operating surface mines at the present 

time, approximately 2,220 acres considered as active permitted 

mines according to the Department of Natural Resources.  The 

Resource Ordinance protects mineral resources lands for the future 

use of these areas for mineral resource extraction.   

Continued population growth may place additional demands on 

local mineral resources.  Impacts associated with mineral extraction 

include erosion and sedimentation, noise from machinery and 

vehicles, fugitive dust, and the visual impacts of excavated areas. 

Open Space 
There are three kinds of open space land: private, common use, and 

public open space. Private open space includes farms, forest lands, 

and other parcels of undeveloped land. Common use open space is 

land within a residential development or other development that is 

designated for common access by the residents of the development 

or by the general community. Public open space is publicly-owned 

land available for recreational use of the entire community.  Open 

water areas, such as the Hood Canal or lakes, is also often 

considered as open space because it creates a sense of openness.  

Open space land is valuable to the community for a number of 

reasons. It can provide recreational opportunities, it is aesthetically 

pleasing, it enhances the quality of life in urban areas, and it 

increases property values.  It creates natural boundaries, which can 

act as greenbelts and define neighborhood identity and can protect 

natural resources such as groundwater recharge areas, streams, 

soils, tidal areas, agricultural areas, and wildlife.  Open space often 

provides habitat areas for wildlife. 

Open space land is an essential component of rural character. 

Without adequate open space, the land will not appear rural.  Rural 



 

Land Use Element Page 36 of 43 11/29/2017 

character is discussed in the Rural Element of Mason County’s 

Comprehensive Plan. 

Mason County enjoys extensive open spaces.  In addition to the 

Olympic National Park and Olympic National Forest, there are 

significant tracts of state owned or privately held timber.  Farmlands 

in river valleys, particularly the Skokomish, also are open space 

lands.  A detailed listing of park and recreation facilities in the 

County is presented in the Capital Facilities element of the Mason 

County Comprehensive Plan. 

 

See the Mason County Planning Map Library available on the 

Mason County Website for a series of maps referenced throughout 

the Comprehensive Plan including existing and planned Open Space 

and open space corridors in Mason County.  

Projected growth in Mason County is likely to increase the pressure 

for conversion of existing open space to urban uses over the next 20 

years.  As land values rise, the potential economic returns will likely 

increase the pressure on owners of larger tracts of undeveloped 

land to sell or develop their properties. 

The Comprehensive Plan provides for the preservation, protection, 

and enhancement of open space . It does this by directing 

substantial population and housing growth into Urban Growth 

Areas.  Also, the comprehensive plan provides for incentives to 

cluster development, as well as requiring the preservation of open 

space in some situations. It should be noted that if the incentives for 

rural clustered development are implemented, tens of thousands of 

acres could be preserved as open space.   Both techniques are 

intended to preserve open space including: Long-Term Commercial 

Forest lands, Agricultural Resource Lands, local parks, state parks 

and other state lands, the Olympic National Park and the Olympic 

National Forest, land slide hazard areas and their associated buffers, 

flood ways, streams and their associated vegetation area, wetlands 

and their associated buffer areas, lands preserved as part of a 

clustered development plan, lands preserved as part of the 

designation of a master planned resort, and major utility corridors. 

Additionally, cluster development policies could result in tens of 

thousands of acres preserved as open space across the County. 

Undeveloped land, non-designated forest lands and non-designated 

agricultural lands may also function as open space.   

 

Master Planned Communities 
Master Planning is a new tool for accommodating population 

growth in Mason County while protecting the resources of Mason 

County.  It requires the implementation of additional design and 

performance standards for all aspects associated with development 

of the site, including protection of the environment and natural 

features, construction of utilities and roadways, and site 

construction. Low Impact Development (LID) techniques shall be 

incorporated into all Master Development Plans. LID is a land use 

development strategy that emphasizes protection and use of on-site 

natural features, integrated with engineered, small-scale hydrologic 

controls at the parcel and subdivision scale to manage stormwater 

and more closely mimic predevelopment watershed hydrologic 

functions. 

Master Development Planning in Mason County is intended to 

facilitate long range, predictable and innovative development 

possibilities on large tracts of land.  A Master Development Plan 

allows larger properties with unique characteristics or 

circumstances benefit from more detailed and thorough planning of 



 

Land Use Element Page 37 of 43 11/29/2017 

future development to accomplish desired land development over a 

multiple year and phased term. A Master Development Plan 

provides a common and interrelated development theme within the 

boundaries of the Master Development Plan, while ensuring its 

integration and compatibility with the surrounding community and 

land uses. 

The intent of a Master Development Plan is to: preserve unique, 

fragile, and environmentally critical areas; provide efficient use of 

the land and infrastructure; implement low impact development 

techniques; promote innovative, quality design; and provide for the 

inclusion of on-site amenities such as open spaces, community 

facilities, enhanced landscaping, and recreational opportunities. 

Uses allowed within the Master Development Plan should be 

consistent overall with those uses allowed within the base land use 

districts, provided that a Master Development Plan may allow for 

more flexibility in density, the location of uses and development 

standards in a manner consistent with the intent of the base land 

use district. A Master Development Plan allows for a mixture of 

residential and non-residential land use development types, such as 

clustering of single-family residential dwellings, attached residential 

units, zero lot line development, public facilities, and commercial 

and office uses. 

A Master Development Plan shall be applied through the Mason 

County Development Regulations and be accompanied by a 

Development Agreement. 

Separate provisions are necessary that address unique conditions 

when locating a Master Development Plan within an Urban Growth 

Area or within lands designated rural. A Master Development Plan 

could also be appropriate for areas adjacent to but outside existing 

Urban Growth Boundaries. When a specific location is identified for 

within Mason County, a Master Development Plan will be required 

to demonstrate consistency with the Comprehensive Plan and RCW 

36.70A.35. 

 

Master Development Plan Policies 

1. LAND USE.  Adopt regulations to guide the location and 

sitting of Master Development Plans within rural and urban 

areas, consistent with policy direction contained throughout 

the Comprehensive Plan. These regulations shall: 

1.1. Clarify that a Master Development Plan is appropriate 

for large contiguous areas of land under common 

ownership or control, with common characteristics and 

connectivity. Include criteria for when and where a 

Development Master Plan may be appropriate within 

rural lands and within urban growth areas. 

1.2. Require a Master Development Plan pursuant to RCW 

36.70A.350. 

1.3. Require that adequate road, water, drainage, sewer 

and/or septic capacity exist or is planned to meet the 

demands of the proposed development within the 

Master Development Plan. Consider alternative 

standards for utilities and roads that address rural and 

urban character and utilize low impact development 

techniques in harmony with the unique environmental 

characteristics of the area. 

 



 

Land Use Element Page 38 of 43 11/29/2017 

1.4. Provide transportation circulation that addresses public 

service and emergency response requirements and the 

needs of pedestrians and bicyclists. 

1.5. Encourage flexibility in design to promote a variety of 

housing types, densities, and affordability. 

Accommodate a mix of commercial, retail and 

residential uses, as well as opportunities for social and 

cultural expression while preserving the areas natural 

features. Individual lot sizes should vary in a Master 

Development Plan to promote a range of housing 

options and the preservation of unique and fragile 

environmental features and critical areas. 

1.6. Provide levels of service compatible with the project’s 

location, development intensity and the surrounding 

lands uses. Proposed Master Development Plans in 

rural areas shall not require urban services. 

1.7. Allow for increased density and/or a reduction in 

dimensional standards within the Master Development 

Plan when enhanced on-site amenities are 

incorporated into the overall development, such as 

open spaces, community facilities, landscaping and 

buffers, recreational opportunities, and other similar 

amenities that benefit the community and the 

environment and exceed the existing minimum 

requirements. 

1.8. Include a process to allow phased development within 

the Master Development Plan in an orderly, 

coordinated, and thoughtful manner. The phasing plan 

for the development shall demonstrate that the 

various segments of the development are served by 

adequate public facilities and services. 

1.9. Promote the incorporation of LID techniques in the 

development and management of the area within the 

Master Development Plan. 

1.10. Include technical guidance on the use of LID 

techniques in public and private developments 

within the Master Development Plan. These 

techniques shall: 

i. Preserve the site characteristics, including natural 

terrain, drainage patterns, soil structure, and native 

vegetation; 

ii. Preserve the natural hydrologic cycle, including 

vegetative rainfall interception and 

evapotranspiration, and groundwater infiltration 

and percolation to the extent the subsurface 

conditions permit; 

iii. Mimic natural rainfall capture capacity in areas 

of site disturbance, and ensure the protection of 

property and public safety in the design of overflow 

capacity, and 

iv. Incorporate measures to manage stormwater 

within the Master Development Plan that will 

enhance water quality downstream. 

 

 



 

Land Use Element Page 39 of 43 11/29/2017 

1.11. Require all Master Development Plans to include 

specific design guidelines and development 

standards to ensure that the proposed development 

promotes community identity, has a consistent 

theme, and is integrated and compatible with its 

surroundings. 

 

2.  Water & Sewer Utilities in Master Development Plans.  
Water and sewer utility infrastructure in master 
development plans shall be designed with quality 
components, and to be operated and maintained efficiently. 

 

2.1  Potable water service shall be consistent with 

coordinated water supply plans for urban growth 

areas (UGAs), and provide through community-

based systems for planned developments in rural 

areas. Such rural systems should preferably be 

operated and maintained by a public entity with 

authority to operate in the proposed area. 

2.2  To the extent available, Master Development Plans 

should utilized reclaimed water supplies in 

addressing non-potable water demands. 

2.3   Development within a UGA shall plan for 

wastewater service consistent with sewer service 

plans for the UGA and current development 

standards and the costs for capacity borne by the 

development. 

 

2.4  Clustered development is encouraged to maximize 

the efficiency of wastewater service provisions, 

taking into account the proximity to connection 

outside the development. 

2.5   Development in future phases of a Master 

Development Plan that will be served by 

wastewater collection and treatment shall be 

planned to facilitate future connection to a public 

system with attention to the location of those lines 

in public rights of ways or easements that will 

ultimately be the responsibility of the sewer service 

provider. 

2.6  Development in areas not planned for future public 

sewer service shall provide community-based 

collection and treatment systems, preferably 

maintained by a public entity, consistent with the 

best available knowledge of hydrogeologic 

connectivity and the potential impacts to surface 

and groundwater resources. 

2.7  Development shall address the storage location and 

collection of solid waste and recyclable materials. In 

UGAs, developments shall facilitate curbside 

collection of solid waste and recyclable materials. 

 



 

Land Use Element Page 40 of 43 11/29/2017 

3. Parks & Recreational Facilities in Master Development 
Plans.   Improvements and phasing in a Master 
Development Plan shall address adequate passive and 
active parks and open spaces consistent with the standards 
in the County-Wide Parks Plan. 

 

3.1  Parks and other recreational or trail facilities shall be 

designed and developed consistent with industry 

standards for quality of materials, safety and efficient 

operations and maintenance. 

3.2  Master Development Plans shall include connections to 

future or existing open space corridors and trail 

connections, with internal community circulation. 

3.3  Master Development Plans with access to surface water 

amenities shall incorporate access for residents and 

visitors outside the proposed development. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Land Use Element Page 41 of 43 11/29/2017 

D. Protecting Water Quality and Reducing Runoff 
 

Mason County has an abundance of marine and freshwater areas 

that include Puget Sound, Hood Canal, and thousands of rivers, 

streams, lakes, ponds, and wetlands.  Surface water flows in the 

County result from precipitation.  Precipitation occurs year round.  

It tends to be particularly heavy during the months of November 

through April, when heavy rainfall at the lower elevations combines 

with seasonal snowmelt in the mountains. 

Mason County’s drainage system for surface runoff is characterized 

by thousands of small tributaries which form the several hundred 

streams and rivers that eventually make their way into Hood Canal, 

Oakland Bay, Totten Inlet, Skookum Inlet and Case Inlet.  Some of 

the larger of these rivers include the Skokomish, Union, and Tahuya 

Rivers. 

See the Mason County Planning Map Library available on the 

Mason County Website for a series of maps referenced throughout 

the Comprehensive Plan including Water Mitigation Planning 

Areas. 

Mason County’s natural drainage system contains hundreds of lakes 

and ponds that further help to moderate the effects of surface 

water storm flows.  The largest of these include: Lake Cushman, 

Mason Lake, Cranberry Lake, Lake Limerick, and Lake Nahwatzel. 

Mason County has done a significant amount of planning related to 

stormwater management and water quality.  The County has 

cooperated with the adjoining counties, tribes and the state to 

develop specific watershed management plans and implemented 

water quality protections in several significant ways.  For example, 

the County created a clean water district and stronger on-site septic  

 

 

system controls including an operations and management 

ordinance.  Sanitary sewer systems have been constructed in the 

the North Bay - Case Inlet area as well as in the Belfair Urban 

Growth Area to improve water quality in those areas.  The county 

also adopted the “Skokomish River Comprehensive Flood Hazard 

Plan” to identify means of managing flooding problems. 

 Mason County’s management of stormwater is primarily 

regulatory.  The Puget Sound Water Quality Management Plan 

requires all counties and cities within the Puget Sound drainage 

basin to adopt ordinances to control runoff from new development 

and redevelopment.  The plan directs local governments to adopt 

the stormwater programs which include minimum requirements as 

developed by the Department of Ecology.  The County created and 

adopted the Storm Water and Surface Water Utility and Stormwater 

Management Ordinance incorporating the minimum requirements 

of the most current edition of the Department of Ecology's 

Stormwater Manual.    These address many of the stormwater 

concerns by requiring appropriate design and best management 

practices for new development or redevelopment for both water 

quantity and quality.   

See also the Utility Element of the Mason County Comprehensive 

Plan for more information about stormwater management. 

The City of Shelton has provisions for stormwater management in 

its Comprehensive Plan and city ordinances. The Capital Facilities 

Element and Utilities Element of the City’s Plan discuss existing 

provisions and the need for continued joint planning between the 

city and the county to coordinate stormwater management in the 

urban growth area.  



 

Land Use Element Page 42 of 43 11/29/2017 

 

New development almost always results in the clearing of 

vegetative areas and increases in impervious surfaces.  The purpose 

of the plans and ordinances discussed above is to remove or 

minimize the impacts that can be caused by development through 

implementation of Low Impact Development (LID) practices, or 

stormwater management techniques designed to mimic natural 

processes.  If not appropriately designed using these LID techniques, 

urban development can result in the impacts of increased soil 

erosion and sedimentation during and after clearing; encroachment 

into streams and wetlands; alteration of stream courses; and loss of 

critical habitat.  Urban development can result in nonpoint pollution 

of surface waters.  Increased runoff from development may also 

increase the incidence of downstream flooding and erosion. 

This Land Use Element includes policies and designated districts 

requiring clustering of development and preservation of open 

space.  Both techniques reduce the amount of land disturbed by 

development while maintaining overall rural densities.  The open 

space design provides additional protection to wetlands, floodways 

and streams.  

The Countywide Planning Policies call for Mason County and the City 

of Shelton to provide for the protection of water quality and 

address public education, stormwater management, and watershed 

management. 

 

 

 

 

 
 



 

 

Page 43 of 43       Ch. 3 Land Use 

 



 

   
 
 
 
 
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
  

 

 

 

CHAPTER 7 – UTILITIES ELEMENT 



 

Utilities Element  Page 2 of 29 11/27/17        

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 

Utilities Element  Page 3 of 29 11/27/17        

 

 

   Table of Contents 

 
I.  EXISTING CONDITIONS    5 

II. REGULATORY CONTEXT    7 

III. PUBLIC & PRIVATE UTILITIES   8 

  A. ELECTRICITY     8 

  B. NATURAL GAS     11 

  C. TELECOMMUNICATIONS     13 

  D. SEWER AND ON-SITE SEWAGE    15 

  E. SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT    16 

  F. WATER & STORMWATER    19 

IV. MEETING FUTURE UTLITIES DEMANDS  22 

  A. Projecting Energy Demand  23 

  B. Projecting Water Demand   24 

  C. Projecting Solid Waste Needs  26 

  D. Moving Toward Zero Waste  26 

V. POTENTIAL IMPACTS OF CLIMATE CHANGE 27  

 



 

Utilities Element  Page 4 of 29 11/27/17        

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

List of Tables 
Table 1.  Natural Gas Pipelines in Mason County ..................................................................................................................................... 13 

Table 2.  Inventory of Telecommunications Infrastructure ...................................................................................................................... 15 

Table 3.  Solid Waste Tonnage Produced by Mason County Residents 2010-2016 ................................................................................. 18 

Table 4.  Projected Housing Needs 2016-2036 ......................................................................................................................................... 23 

Table 5.  Mason County Residential, Commercial, Industrial Electricity Demand 2016-2036 ................................................................. 24 

Table 6. Mason County Water Demand 2016 .......................................................................................................................................... 25 

Table 7.  Existing Options for Water Conservation, Recycling or Reuse in Washington State ................................................................. 26 

Table 8.  Low, Intermediate, and High Projections for Total Waste Stream, 2020 through 2040 ........................................................... 27 

 

List Figures 
Figure 1.  Current Fuel Mix for Electricity in Mason County .......................................................................................................................................... 9 

Figure 2.  2016 Mason County Water Consumption by Well Type .............................................................................................................................. 20 

file:///C:/Users/preeves/Desktop/FINAL%2011_27_17/Chapters/7_Utilities.docx%23_Toc499554214
file:///C:/Users/preeves/Desktop/FINAL%2011_27_17/Chapters/7_Utilities.docx%23_Toc499554215
file:///C:/Users/preeves/Desktop/FINAL%2011_27_17/Chapters/7_Utilities.docx%23_Toc499554216
file:///C:/Users/preeves/Desktop/FINAL%2011_27_17/Chapters/7_Utilities.docx%23_Toc499554217
file:///C:/Users/preeves/Desktop/FINAL%2011_27_17/Chapters/7_Utilities.docx%23_Toc499554218
file:///C:/Users/preeves/Desktop/FINAL%2011_27_17/Chapters/7_Utilities.docx%23_Toc499554219
file:///C:/Users/preeves/Desktop/FINAL%2011_27_17/Chapters/7_Utilities.docx%23_Toc499555604
file:///C:/Users/preeves/Desktop/FINAL%2011_27_17/Chapters/7_Utilities.docx%23_Toc499555605


 

Utilities Element  Page 5 of 29 11/27/17        

 
 

 

 



 

Utilities Element  Page 6 of 29 11/27/17        

I. EXISTING CONDITIONS 

 
Washington’s Growth Management Act requires that County 
Comprehensive Plans contain a Utilities Element.  The purpose 
of the Utilities Element is to ensure that utility services 
provided by both public and private suppliers are consistent 
with the County’s Comprehensive Plan and can support the 
community’s growth and development as anticipated over the 
20 year planning period.  
 
The Utilities Element must include an inventory of the general 
location of all existing and proposed utility facilities and a 
description of the current capacity and expected future 
capacity of each utility. This Plan identifies ways of improving 
the quality of these services and includes policies that ensure a 
provision of utilities is coordinated with land use.  Mason County 
will implement these policies through its agreements with the 
utilities and through the land use permit process.   
 
This Element of the Mason County Comprehensive Plan is 
based on the same assumptions and is consistent with the 
Land Use Element, which establishes the overall growth 
strategy for the County and its Urban Growth Areas. The 
system design and timing for extension of utility services 
supports the land use pattern and policies proposed 
throughout the Comprehensive Plan.  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
The level of service standards established for public utilities 
determines capital facilities costs and revenue analysis in the 
Capital Facilities Element and provides a foundation for 
analysis of the existing utility delivery system and proposed 
improvements which are necessary to meet the changing 
demands in six primary areas including: 

• Electricity 

• Natural Gas  

• Solid Waste Management Systems 

• Telecommunications  

• Utility pipelines  

• Water 
 

Water, sewer, storm water and solid waste, which are also 
often considered as utilities, are also discussed in the Capital 
Facilities Chapter VI.  
 
Appendix A includes a map showing the general location of 
existing or proposed utility districts, major electrical 
transmission lines, electrical distribution substations, natural 
gas pipelines and service areas, telecommunications service 
areas, cellular communication tower sites. 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Utilities Element  Page 7 of 29 11/27/17        

A. Connecting Land Use and Utilities 
Gas, electricity, and telecommunications in Mason County are 

each tied into a regional system, where local capacity depends 

on regional capacity. The greatest growth in demand for 

services will be in the urban growth areas, which are near 

major transmission lines. 

Many land use policies that address rural areas provide for 

clustering of development. Neighborhood distribution needs 

will have to be met, but this type of development allows for 

more efficient provision of utilities and services.  By 

encouraging clustering of rural development at the scale of 

the rural activity centers and community centers, or at the 

scale of an individual clustered subdivision, local distribution 

costs should be reduced. 

Growth is also focused in the designated Urban Growth Areas 

of Shelton, Allyn and Belfair and within fully contained 

communities in rural Mason County.  It will be most cost 

effective to provide utility services to these urban 

development patterns and more cost effective for residents as 

well.  For example, an analysis of electricity rates conducted 

by the Northwest Power and Conservation Council shows that 

the wholesale cost per megawatt-hour is not significantly 

different for customers in rural vs. urban areas.  On the other 

hand, Retail electricity prices in rural communities tend to be 

somewhat lower than urban areas.  This is primarily due to the 

fact that most rural areas of Washington State are served by 

not for profit electrical utilities, such as electric cooperatives 

or public utility districts. 

 

The limited availability of natural gas heating in rural areas 

means many rural customers use electricity for heating which 

contributes to the difference in energy use.      

Private utility providers in Mason County project and plan for 

growth. The Mason County Comprehensive Plan will be a 

resource for each of these providers that will assist in 

determining the longer-term need for service expansion and 

new facilities. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Utilities Element  Page 8 of 29 11/27/17        

II. REGULATORY CONTEXT 

 
Most development requires public and private utilities, 
whether it is residential, commercial, industrial, or 
agricultural. Public utilities in Mason County generally include: 
water, sanitary sewer systems, stormwater management 
systems, and solid waste management systems. Washington 
State Department of Health and local Health Departments 
define approved water systems serving more than one 
residence as "public" even though these systems may be 
owned and operated by a private person or company.   
 
In Washington State, electricity is also often a publicly owned 
utility. This is true in Mason County where two public utility 
districts, PUD No. 1 and PUD No. 3, provide electricity services. 
In addition to electricity, PUD 1 manages a number of water 
systems in Mason County. In addition to electricity, PUD 3 
operates a wholesale telecommunications network in Mason 
County. The public utility districts, authorized by RCW 54, are 
governed by elected boards of commissioners. All decisions 
regarding rates and policies are made at the local level. 
 
Private utilities in Washington State including CenturyLink, 
iFiber One, Wave, and Cascade Natural Gas are regulated by 
the Washington State Utilities and Transportation Commission 
(WUTC). These public and private utilities and water and 
sewer systems are also discussed in the Capital Facilities 
Element of the Plan, Chapter VI. 
 
 
 

 
 
A. State Regulations  
Investor-owned utilities are regulated in Washington by the 
Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission (WUTC).  
WUTC is empowered by Title 80 of the Revised Code of 
Washington (RCW) to regulate electricity, gas, irrigation, 
telecommunications, and water providers. State law directs 
the commission to regulate the rates, charges, services, 
facilities, and practices of the utilities. Any change in customer 
charges or service provision requires commission approval.  
 
The WUTC, under Title 81 RCW, also regulates the rates and 
safety practices of the transportation of solid waste (garbage), 
intrastate petroleum and gas products via pipeline, and 
scheduled auto transportation services. 
 
 
B. Federal Regulations 
The Federal Energy Regulatory Commission is an independent 
five-member commission working with the U.S. Department 
of Energy. The Commission regulates the interstate transmission of 
natural gas, oil, and electricity, as well as licensing natural gas and 
hydropower generation projects.  
 
The Federal Communications Commission regulates interstate and 

international communications by television, wire, satellite, and 

cable.  An independent U.S. government agency overseen by 

Congress, the five-member commission is the United States’ 

primary authority for communications laws, regulation, and 

technological innovation. 



 

Utilities Element  Page 9 of 29 11/27/17        

Figure 1.  Current Fuel Mix for Electricity in Mason County 

 

Hydro –
Electric  86%

Nuclear
10%

Coal 2%

Natural 
Gas 1%

Biomass <1%

, 0

III. PUBLIC AND PRIVATE UTILITIES 

 
A. Electricity 
 
Public Utilities District No. 1 and Public Utilities District No. 3 

provide electrical power to residents of Mason County. Both 

districts purchase power marketed by the Bonneville Power 

Administration and distribute it to their customers.  Neither public 

utility district has large-scale power production facilities. The 

Bonneville Power Administration and the City of Tacoma have 

transmission facilities in Mason County.  

 

The City of Tacoma also has an electrical generation facility near 

Hoodsport, which uses water drawn from Lake Cushman. It does not 

provide local service in Mason County. 

 

The electrical power for Mason County is supplied through a 

regional transmission grid (which is the interconnected network of 

transmission lines and other supporting equipment) at 500,000 volt 

and 230,000 volts from 31 federally managed dams in the Columbia 

River Basin, and a nuclear power plant in Kennewick, Washington. 

Transmission to Mason County is through the Olympia Transmission 

Substation through 115,000 and 230,000 volt power lines which go 

to the BPA Shelton Transmission Substation, where service is split to 

serve East and West of the Hood Canal.  The Mason County Urban 

Growth Areas are served by 115,000 volt power lines. The network 

connects to the PUDs through switching stations and then to 

distribution substations. The electrical power carried by the high 

voltage lines is transformed to lower voltages for distribution to  

 

 

 

 

 

 

PUD’s neighborhood distribution substations and on to the user. 

Both PUDs provide annual capital improvement programs either 

directly from user revenues, or from the sale of bonds which are 

redeemed by user revenues. 

 

 

 



 

Utilities Element  Page 10 of 29 11/27/17        

Public Utility District No. 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Mason County PUD No. 1 became the first operating Public 

Utility District in the State of Washington when voters 

approved a proposition on November 6, 1934. Mason County 

PUD No. 1 is publicly owned and serves approximately 4,770 

electric customers.  

The electric service area for Mason County Public Utility 

District 1 (PUD No. 1) begins approximately one mile west of 

Twanoh State Park, on the south side of Hood Canal, and 

extends approximately 50 miles along the Canal to the 

Mason/Jefferson County line.  

 

PUD No. 1 also serves into south Jefferson County up to 

Walker Mountain The district encompasses several river 

valleys including the Skokomish, Lilliwaup, Hamma Hamma, 

Duckabush and Dosewallips. PUD No. 1 serves power to the 

communities of Lilliwaup, Hoodsport, Potlatch, Union, and the 

Skokomish Indian Reservation. PUD No. 1 provides water 

services throughout all of Mason County. Both PUD 1 and PUD 

3 have a memorandum of understanding that allows PUD No. 

1 to provide water/wastewater services in PUD 3’s service 

territory and PUD No. 3 may provide telecom services in PUD 

1’s service territory. 

 

In 1993, PUD No. 1 supplied a total of 58.7 million kilowatt 

hours to customers within the service area and in 2016, PUD 

No. 1 sold 73.1 million kilowatt hours, an increase of 25 

percent.  

 

The district purchases power from the Lilliwaup Falls and 

Rocky Brook Hydro Facilities, with the remainder of their 

energy provided by Bonneville Power Administration. PUD No. 

1 has substations located at Potlatch (T3ba’das), Duckabush, 

Hoodsport, and Union. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Utilities Element  Page 11 of 29 11/27/17        

Public Utility District No. 3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Mason County PUD No. 3 provides electrical power to all areas 

of Mason County except those serviced by PUD No. 1.  In 

1993, PUD No.3 provided electrical power to approximately 

24,400 customers.  That service population has risen to nearly 

33,000 in 2016.  Similarly, in 1993, PUD No. 3 supplied a total 

of 493 million kilowatt hours and in 2016, over 610 million 

kilowatt hours are being supplied.  

 

Mason County PUD No. 3 is a full-requirements customer of 

the Bonneville Power Administration (BPA), meaning that BPA 

provides all of the District’s power requirements at cost-based 

rates.  PUD No. 3 takes delivery of BPA power at eleven 

substations, ten of which are owned by the utility. It has 1,777 

miles of primary lines and owns and operates 29.80 miles of 

115 kV transmission lines.  

 

PUD 3 also receives small amounts of electricity from the Nine 

Canyon and White Creek wind farms, and Packwood Lake 

Hydroelectric Project. The PUD owns a 5.4 megawatt natural 

gas-fired generator (Olympic View Generating Station) located 

on Highway 102 near Shelton. The station is powered by 

reciprocating natural gas engines. The generator was used 

during the 2001 energy crisis to reduce energy demands. It is 

kept on standby for potential demand reduction, backup, 

reduction of Bonneville Power Administration transmission 

congestion on the Olympic Peninsula, or load shedding during 

times of high power demands in the region. 

 

The PUD is subject to the Washington State Energy 

Independence Act (Chapter 19.285 RCW), which establishes a 

renewable portfolio standard with renewable energy targets 

as a percentage of customer load. The targets have increased 

over time, from 3 percent in 2012, to 9 percent in 2016, to 15 

percent in 2020. Eligible resources include water, wind, solar 

energy, geothermal energy, landfill gas, wave, ocean or tidal 

power, gas for sewage treatment plants and biodiesel fuel and 

biomass energy. Electricity generated at existing hydropower 

facilities do not count towards I-937 renewable portfolio 

compliance. 

 

There are 11 substations that serve PUD 3 customers. They 

are Collins Lake, Union River, Belfair, Benson (Mason-Benson 

Rd.), Pioneer (Highway 3, near Pickering Rd.) Mason 

(Downtown Shelton), Dayton, Skookum (near the Hwy 108 



 

Utilities Element  Page 12 of 29 11/27/17        

and Hwy 101 intersection), Mountain View, and Potlatch (near 

Lake Cushman, owned by BPA). To increase system reliability, 

there is another substation planned for construction near 

Taylor Towne. 

 

Substations and distribution networks are constructed or 

improved to meet electrical demand and ensure reliable and 

safe operation of the PUD 3 power grid. The utility is demand 

driven - that is, it expands its level of service to meet demand 

as needed or projected. Customers needing to be connected 

to the service generally cover the costs of the connection. This 

may include infrastructure expansion and improvements, 

which vary by site and service requirements. Once service is 

connected, costumers in the same class of service (for 

instance, residential) pay a rate based on the cost to serve 

their type of energy demand and consumption.  

 

The PUD has not identified any lands needed for future 

expansions of facilities as capital or maintenance projects. 

However, when land developers submit an application for 

connection, the utility plans and coordinates construction of 

the required electrical facilities to serve the load of the 

completed planned development. The developer bears the 

cost of required infrastructure improvements. 

 

Existing transmission lines are generally located in road rights-

of-way. The PUD does not normally purchase or condemn 

rights-of-ways for their utility lines, and plans to continue to 

use public rights-of-way for their utility lines in the future. The 

location of electrical lines on property being developed is 

determined by the property owner, although the county 

subdivision regulations provide for utility easements. These 

usually include the roadways and along lot lines. 

 

The PUD recommends installation of distribution facilities 

below ground and in conduit. Although this method of 

installation is more expensive, the benefits include greater 

reliability, lower maintenance costs, and improved aesthetics. 

 

B. Natural Gas 

 

Cascade Natural Gas 

Cascade Natural Gas Corporation provides natural gas 

throughout Mason County. It has offices in Aberdeen and 

Bremerton. The Aberdeen office serves the Shelton, Oak Park 

and Lake Limerick areas. The Bremerton office serves the 

Belfair area. 

 

In 1993, Cascade Natural Gas served 1,450 commercial and 

residential customers.  Today they serve 2,300 customers 

throughout Mason County, a nearly 60 percent increase, 

providing 30 million cubic feet of natural gas monthly. The 

company does not plan for individual connections, but 

responds to requests for service which might be for new 

development or for conversion from other energy sources. 

System expansions generally use existing rights-of-way or 

public road rights-of-way. Transmission capacity can be 



 

Utilities Element  Page 13 of 29 11/27/17        

expanded through existing lines or by adding or enlarging 

lines. Cascade Natural Gas serves 16 counties in Washington 

State. 

 

Cascade Natural Gas provides gas service to Mason County 

from a tap off of Williams Northwest Pipeline in Shelton.  A 

major supply line for the company runs through Mason 

County by the Shelton Urban Growth Area and the Belfair 

Urban Growth Area.   The company continually expands its 

natural gas system in response to demand.    The method used 

to determine the economic viability of natural gas system 

expansion is regulated by the Washington Utilities and 

Transportation Commission.  Routes for expansion of services 

depends on the demand, available rights-of-way, 

environmental permitting issues, and opportunities created by 

new development, or the work in rights-of-way by other 

utilities or the county or state. 

 

Table 1.  Natural Gas Pipelines in Mason County 

Northwest Pipeline LLC 10 Miles 

Cascade Natural Gas 

Corp 

23 Miles 

 

 

 

Natural Gas Regulation  

The activities of Puget Sound Energy are regulated by both 

federal and state legislation. This legislation is primarily 

concerned with promoting competition among gas suppliers 

and controlling the cost of natural gas to the consumer. 

Cascade Natural Gas is subject to the general regulations and 

oversight by the energy agencies, such as the Washington 

Utilities and Transportation Commission (WUTC) and the 

Federal Energy Regulatory Commission.  WUTC regulations 

prohibit extending gas facilities to areas that are not expected 

to pay for themselves from the outset. While this keeps the 

existing ratepayers from financing improvements to other 

areas, it does limit service delivery of natural gas to marginally 

profitable areas. 

Other pieces of legislation that have specific implications for 

the natural gas industry are described below:  

 

Natural Gas Policy Act 1978  

The National Gas Policy Act encouraged competition among 

fuels and suppliers across the United States. As a result, 

natural gas has essentially been de-controlled. The Act also 

contained incentives for developing new natural gas resources 

and a tiered pricing structure aimed at encouraging the 

development of national transmission pipelines.  

 

 

 

 



 

Utilities Element  Page 14 of 29 11/27/17        

The Clean Air Act Amendment of 1990  

The passage of the Clean Air Act amendments in 1990 has 

shown a federal intent to promote the diversification of fuel 

sources for motor vehicles. This is in response to the need to 

both reduce carbon dioxide atmospheric emissions and to 

reduce the nation's reliance on gasoline for strategic reasons.  

 

The Olympic Region Clean Air Agency serves Clallam, Grays 

Harbor, Jefferson, Mason, Pacific, and Thurston counties and 

it is one of seven such regional air pollution control agencies in 

the state of Washington. Olympic Region Clean Air Agency 

works cooperatively with the State Department of Ecology and 

the regional United States Environmental Protection Agency 

to measure criteria ambient air pollutants, meteorological 

parameters, and other air-related data. It currently operates 

and maintains air monitoring equipment for measurement of 

three of the six criteria pollutants: particulate matter (PM2.5), 

ozone (O3), and carbon monoxide (CO). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

C. Telecommunications 

 

Telephone Services 

Several companies provide local telephone service in Mason 

County. They include Hood Canal Telephone Company, Inland 

Telephone Company, and Century Link. Century Link serves 

over 90 percent of Mason County Residents.  Existing 

transmission lines are generally located in road right-of-ways. 

The location of telephone lines on property being developed is 

determined by the property owner, although the county 

subdivision regulations provide for utility easements. These 

usually include the roadways and along lot lines. 

 

Hood Canal Telephone Company 

Hood Canal Telephone Co. Inc, dba as Hood Canal 

Communications is the Local Exchange Carrier (ILEC) in Union. 

They are a Competitive Local Exchange Carrier (CLEC) 

providing the same services into CenturyLink’s serving 

territory using fiber and coaxial cables. The CLEC serves the 

communities of Skokomish Reservation, Potlatch, Hoodsport, 

Lilliwaup, Hamma Hamma, Lake Cushman, Skokomish Valley, 

Shelton, Squaxin Tribe, Kamaliche, Timberlakes, Shorecrest, 

and Spencer Lake. They have interconnection agreements 

with CenturyLink for telephone service and utilize multiple 

providers for middle mile fiber connections. They provide 

telecommunication services to approximately 5,000 business 

and residential customers. This is a significant growth in 

services from 930 customers in 1993.   



 

Utilities Element  Page 15 of 29 11/27/17        

Infrastructure Number 

Cell Phone Towers  64  

Antenna Towers  10  

Maritime Coast & Aviation Ground Towers  3  

Amateur Radio Licenses  122  

 

Inland Telephone Company 

The Inland Telephone Company provides local telephone 

service in the Dewatto area. Its service area includes the east 

shore of Hood Canal from the Mason/Kitsap County Line south 

to Red Bluff. Inland Telephone provides single party service to 

business and residential customers. 

 

CenturyLink 

CenturyLink is the largest provider of local exchange service in 

Mason County, with a service area that includes all areas of 

the county not served by the Hood Canal and Inland 

Telephone Companies. The company provides telephone 

service to the urban growth areas in the county. Century Link 

generally provides a full range of telecommunication services, 

however services available in specific areas depend on 

customer demand and the capabilities of the local central 

offices. 

 

Cellular Communications 

Cellular communications differs from other types of 

telecommunications in that cellular communications systems 

use phones and other communication devices that transmit 

and receive radio signals on bands reserved solely for such 

activity. Signals are transmitted and received by low power 

antennae. The area one antenna can transmit and receive to 

the individual phones is called a cell. The coverage of the cells 

overlaps so that, ideally, the user can be transferred from one 

cell to another without interruption of service. 

Fiber Optics 

PUD No. 3 provides wholesale fiber optic services to five 

service providers, who in turn provide retail services to 

approximately 1,000 devices over 467 miles of fiber optic lines 

within Mason County. PUD No. 3 is also a major hub for high 

capacity data lines throughout western Washington. Its 

strategic location provides redundant service capabilities 

through two major internet routes. 

 

The demand for service and new facilities for 

telecommunications is difficult to assess because of the 

changing technologies and the consumer demand for new 

services. Known service providers with facilities located or 

currently applied for in Mason County include United States 

Cellular, CenturyLink, Air Touch Cellular, and NEXTEL, Sprint, 

AT&T, T-Mobile. 

 

Table 2.  Inventory of Telecommunications Infrastructure 

 

 



 

Utilities Element  Page 16 of 29 11/27/17        

Telecommunication Regulation 

The cellular industry is regulated by the Federal 

Communications Commission (FCC). Local government 

authority to regulate telecommunication services are also 

limited and defined by Federal law. In 1998, Mason County 

adopted an ordinance to regulate telecommunication 

facilities. This was a response to the Federal 

Telecommunications Act of 1996, which established the 

ground rules for increased competition in the 

telecommunications industry. The Act removed previous limits 

on the entry of new providers into an area. 
 
 

D. Sewer and On-Site Sewage Systems 

Mason County Utilities and Waste Management is a Division of the 

Mason County Public Works Department. It is responsible for 

managing water, waste water and solid waste facilities in the 

unincorporated areas of Mason County.  This includes operations of 

the Rustlewood and Beards Cove water systems and the 

Rustlewood, North Bay/Case Inlet, and Belfair water 

reclamation/sewer collection and treatment facilities.   

In 2013, Mason County Board of County Commissioners 

established the Belfair Sewer Advisory Committee through 

Resolution No. 14- 13 in order to gather community input and 

provide recommendations to the Mason County Board of 

County Commissioners regarding the development and 

funding of the existing and subsequent phases of the Belfair 

Sewer System. 

Mason County also manages the On-Site Sewage System 

Program with the goal of protecting public health and the 

environment by minimizing the threat of surface and ground 

water contamination from failing or improperly designed, 

installed or maintained onsite sewage systems.  There are 

currently about 25,000 on-site sewage systems across Mason 

County.  These sewage systems play an important role of 

groundwater recharge often overlooked in water and 

stormwater management discussions. Activities of the On-Site 

Sewage Program include: 

 

• Soil evaluation to determine site suitability for an on-

site sewage system 

• Review and inspect on-site system designs and 

installations. 

• Provide homeowner education about on-site sewage 

system maintenance and operation 

• Review building permits 

• License onsite sewage system Installers, operation & 

maintenance service providers and pumpers 

  

E. Solid Waste Management Systems 

 

Mason County Solid Waste Facilities 

 

The Mason County Landfill is located near Shelton in Mason 

County, Washington (Section 4, Township 20 North, Range 4 

West). The site address is 501 West Eells Hill Road, Shelton, 

Washington.  



 

Utilities Element  Page 17 of 29 11/27/17        

The facility is located in a sparsely populated area used 

primarily for tree farming. Two private properties, the Culver 

(formerly Ruggle) residence and the Shelton Auto Yard, are 

located within 1 mile of the facility.  The 8‐acre landfill is 

situated within a 77‐acre property and was the primary 

municipal solid waste disposal facility for Mason County from 

the early 1970s until the summer of 1993, when closure 

construction began.  Closure activities were completed in 

1993 and consisted of capping, implementing surface water 

controls, and constructing a gas extraction system. 

 

A solid waste transfer station is currently operating at the 

facility.  Solid waste from a majority of Mason County is 

transported to this transfer station.  Then it is trucked to 

Chehalis and placed on a train to the Roosevelt landfill in 

Goldendale, WA.  Solid waste from Belfair and Tahuya is 

transported to Olympic View Transfer Station in Port Orchard.  

Waste Management then transports it by train to their landfill 

in Arlington, WA.   

 

The County’s four solid waste facilities include: 

• Shelton transfer station and recycling facilities, 

501 W Eells Hill Road 

• Belfair drop box station, 1611 NE Sand Hill Road 

• Union drop box station, 1391 E McReavy Road 

• Hoodsport drop box station, 260 N Foothills 

Park Road 

 

Shelton-Matlock Landfill 

 

This landfill is located in the unincorporated Matlock area.  It 

operated for an unknown period of time prior to its closure 

in 2001.  While the landfill was open, it was receiving wood 

waste from nearby forest product operations. The landfill has 

a groundwater monitoring system in place and has been 

monitored since 1997.  It is currently in post-closure stage 

and has continued to have groundwater monitoring as part 

of the post-closure agreement.  As of early 2017, there is 

discussion on the potential for this landfill to end its post-

closure care due to evidence that suggests the landfill has 

reached stability. 

 

Simpson Dayton Landfill 

This landfill is located in the unincorporated Dayton area.  

This landfill was also operated for an unknown period of time 

prior to its discontinued use in 2006.  The material that was 

accepted at this site was mostly wood waste and an 

unlimited amount of wood ash.  A groundwater monitoring 

system has been in place and monitored since 1997.  In 2016, 

the closure process was completed and the application for a 

post-closure permit was submitted and officially accepted in 

early 2017.  The landfill is now moving into post-closure 

status with limited monitoring. 

 

 

 



 

Utilities Element  Page 18 of 29 11/27/17        

Table 3.  Solid Waste Tonnage Produced by Mason County Residents 2010-2016 

Total Tonnage 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 

Exported for land disposal 33,474 31,484 31,447 32,340 33,558 33,779 33,880 

Collected through recycling 1,302 1,229 1,318 1,313 1,375 1,464 1,590 

Total Tons generated 34,776 32,713 32,766 33,653 34,933 35,243 35,345 

Per Capita Annual Tonnage 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 

OFM Population for Mason County 60,699 61,100 61,450 61,800 62,000 62,200 62,320 

Exported for land disposal 0.551 0.515 0.512 0.523 0.541 0.543 0.544 

Collected through recycling 0.05 0.049 0.051 0.05 0.053 0.054 0.026 

Total tons generated per capita 0.601 0.564 0.563 0.573 0.595 0.597 0.567 
Source:  Mason County Public Works Division 

 

City of Shelton – C Street Landfill 

The C Street landfill is located on a 16.7 acre parcel located 

southwest of the intersection of West C Street and US 

Highway 101.  The property was acquired by the City in 1928 

for use as a municipal landfill.  Landfilling operations occurred 

at the site between 1928 and 1974.  After that time, municipal 

solid waste was sent to the Eells Hill facility to the northwest 

of Shelton.  The City of Shelton has entered into an Agreement 

with the Washington State Department of Ecology and is 

working with the agency to conduct a Remedial Investigation 

and Cleanup Action Plan as well as to finalize closure of the 

facility. 

Total solid waste tonnage generated in Mason County is 
reported in Table 3.  

 

Regulating Solid Waste  
 
The Federal Resource Conservation and Recovery Act is our 
nation’s primary law governing the disposal of solid and 
hazardous waste. Congress passed this Act on October 21, 
1976, to address the increasing problems the nation faced 
from our growing volume of municipal and industrial waste. 
The Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, which amended 
the Solid Waste Disposal Act of 1965, set national goals for: 

• Protecting human health and the environment from 
the potential hazards of waste disposal 

• Conserving energy and natural resources 
• Reducing the amount of waste generated 
• Ensuring that wastes are managed in an 

environmentally-sound manner. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.epa.gov/laws-regulations/summary-resource-conservation-and-recovery-act


 

Utilities Element  Page 19 of 29 11/27/17        

Washington State Regulations 

 

Similar to federal regulations, laws for waste disposal are 

established in the Revised Code of Washington (RCW) and 

implemented through the Washington Administrative Code 

(WAC).  The laws related to solid waste are found in several 

sections which include: 

• Title 36  Counties  - establishes all County authorities 

and responsibilities 

• Title 70 Public Health and Safety – establishes 

programs and responsibilities for public health and 

safety  

• Title 80 Public Utilities – establishes the Public Utilities 

and Transportation Commission with its authorities 

and responsibilities 

• Title 81 Transportation – establishes laws relative 

transportation activities such as motor transport, 

ferries, pipelines, railroads and air transport. 

State law, RCW 70.95, is of particular importance to Mason 
County’s Comprehensive Plan.  It requires that county and city 
governments assume the primary responsibility for solid 
waste management and implement effective waste reduction 
and recycling strategies. In addition, RCW 70.95 requires that 
local solid waste management plans demonstrate how the 
following goals will be met: 
 
 

• Washington State’s goal is to achieve a statewide 
recycling and composting rate of 50 percent. 

• There is a statewide goal to eliminate yard debris 
from landfills by 2012 in those areas where 
alternatives exist. 

• Source separation of waste (at a minimum, 
separation into recyclable and non-recyclable 
fractions) must be a fundamental strategy of solid 
waste management. 

• Steps should be taken to make recycling at least as 
affordable and convenient to the ratepayer as 
mixed waste disposal. 

 

Also, under Washington State Growth Management Act 

36.70A, all Counties and Cities are required to establish a 

process for siting essential public facilities, including those 

facilities typically difficult to site like solid waste handling 

facilities and other regional utility facilities, as well as facilities 

like regional transportation facilities, state education or 

correctional facilities, substance abuse and mental health 

facilities, and secure community transition facilities. 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Utilities Element  Page 20 of 29 11/27/17        

 

Figure 2.  2016 Mason County Water Consumption by Well Type 

26%
930 Million 

Gallons

22%
790 Million 

Gallons

Group A Wells

Group B Wells

Exempt Wells

51%
2.1 Billion 

Gallons

F. Water and Stormwater 
 
PUD No. 1 
PUD No. 1 owns and manages 40 water systems throughout 
Mason County serving approximately 1,860 connections and 
providing 93 million gallons of water annually to customers 
across the service area (about 50,000 average annual gallons 
per connection).  
 
Washington State Department of Health – Public Water 
Systems 
 
In Mason County, there are 300 Group A wells including those 
managed by PUD 1, 230 are active with over 24,000 
connections providing water to over 44,000 people.  These 
wells provide an estimated 2.1 billion gallons of water 
annually across the County.   
 
Of the 750 existing Group B wells in Mason County (including 
those managed by PUD 1), 520 are active and provide water to 
over 6,000 people through 3,000 connections.  These wells 
provide an estimated 935 million gallons of water annually. 
 
Exempt Wells 
Currently, there are an estimated 1,490 exempt wells serving 
11,000 connections in Mason County, based on data collected 
by the County from 1992 to the present.  These wells provide 
an estimated 790 million gallons of water annually.    
 
 
 

Regulating Water  
There are three types of public water systems: Group A, Group 
B and Two-Party.  A Group A system is the largest type of 
system. Any system with more than 14 connections or that 
serves 25 or more individuals for 60 or more days per year is 
considered a Group A public water system.  All Group A 
systems are regulated by the State Department of Health 
Office of Drinking Water.  

 



 

Utilities Element  Page 21 of 29 11/27/17        

Mason County Public Health regulates all Group B Water 
Systems in Mason County.  A Group B water system serves 
from 1 to 14 connections and less than 25 individuals per day. 
 The regulations governing public water systems are 
Washington Administrative Code (WAC) 246-290 for Group A 
systems and WAC 246-291 for Group B systems.  

Managing Stormwater 
Mason County is in compliance with state and federal 
requirements and continues to develop and improve its 
Stormwater Management Program.  The County is also 
working to raise awareness of the importance of stormwater 
management among development partners and others.   
 
In 2008, Mason County adopted a Countywide Stormwater 
Management Plan to both protect and enhance water quality.  
Of special concern are the impacts of continued and increased 
stormwater discharges to the local water quality of Hood 
Canal, Oakland and Annas Bays, and the rich shellfish habitat 
in nearby natural and commercial rearing areas. Pollution 
from pathogens in sewage and animal wastes are a chronic 
problem in many areas of Puget Sound and is closely 
associated with rainfall events and stormwater runoff as well 
as being influenced by population densities and development 
levels. Because of fecal contamination, shellfish beds in both 
Oakland and Annas Bays have been downgraded and shellfish 
protection districts have been created to improve water 
quality and preserve natural resources. 
 
 

As part of the Stormwater Management Plan development 
process, Mason County Board of County Commissioners 
created a Stormwater Task Force of eight community 
members to assist in review and development of the Plan. The 
composition of the Task Force reflected major stakeholder 
groups such as business owners, the timber and shellfish 
industries, the Tribes, environmental groups, the Washington 
Association of Sewer and Water Districts, the City of Shelton 
and the general public. Over the course of a series of meetings 
and briefings, the Task Force facilitated public input and 
provided feedback that helped to ensure the public’s interests 
were represented and that contributed to shaping the final 
plan. 
 
The Allyn, Belfair and Hoodsport Stormwater Management 
Plans complement and support the development of the 
Comprehensive Countywide Stormwater Management Plan 
and are incorporated as part of the Comprehensive Plan by 
reference. 
 
Mason County’s 2008 Stormwater Management Ordinance 
was codified in Mason County Code Chapter 14.46. The 
adoption and application of this Ordinance based on the 2005 
Ecology Manual will further reduce erosion and sedimentation 
provided effective enforcement authority is established and 
exercised. 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Utilities Element  Page 22 of 29 11/27/17        

Mason County’s Stormwater Management Plan takes a 
decentralized approach that is based on low impact 
development (LID) techniques, innovative stormwater 
management designs with the basic principle that they are 
modeled after nature.  The goal of the Plan is to minimize the 
impacts of future land use changes, as well as promote the 
design and construction of onsite LID systems.   
 
Significant steps have been taken in implementation of the 
County Stormwater Management Plan, including: 

•  Establishing a Countywide Stormwater Utility. 

• Implementing a facility retrofit program to detain 
and treat the runoff from 
existing development using LID techniques. 

•  Treating county road runoff by retrofitting existing 
facilities, as well as by adding water quality 
treatment to all new County road designs. 

•  Pursuing further expansion of these programs, 
particularly maintenance. 

 

Regulating Stormwater 
Under the Federal Clean Water Act regulations, local 
governments in Washington subject to the federal National 
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Storm Water 
Program, including Mason County, are required to have 
stormwater management programs.   
 
 
 
 

The U.S. Envornmental Protection Agency controls water 
pollution by regulating point sources that discharge pollutants 
into waters of the United States. The Washington State 
Department of Ecology (DOE) administers the federal NPDES 
program in the state.  
 
Also, the listing of salmon under the Endangered Species Act 
(ESA) requires that streams and wetlands be protected. All 
local governments with salmon habitats are encouraged to 
develop storm water management plans.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Utilities Element  Page 23 of 29 11/27/17        

Table 4.  Projected Housing Needs 2016-2036 

  2016 Housing 

Units  

2036 Housing 

Units  

Number of New 

Housing Units 

% Increase 

2016-2036 

Urban Growth Areas 3,000 4,500 1,500 50% 

Rural County 26,500 34,500   8,000 30% 

Shelton 3,900 5,000 1,150 30% 

Mason County Total 33,400 44,000 10,650 32% 

Source: US Census Housing Survey and Office of Financial Management 

 

IV. MEETING FUTURE UTILITIES DEMANDS 

A projected inflow of 19,400 new residents are expected 
between 2016 and 2036 in Mason County and services areas 
of PUD 1 and PUD 3. This will increase the electric service 
territory population to almost 82,000 by 2036.  The growth in 
housing as shown in Table 4 is similar to trends in population 
growth, with a projected 7,500 housing units being added in 
Mason County by 2036 with 3,900 of these new housing units 
in the Urban Growth Areas.   
 
There were 13,800 jobs in Mason County in 2016.  
Additionally, employment is expected to grow at an average 
annual rate of 0.7 percent between 2016 and 2035, 
manufacturing employment is expected to decline annually by 
0.4 percent on average between 2016 and 2035, and local 
employers are expected to create about 2,100 jobs between 
2016 and 2035.  The gain in employment is primarily in the 
areas of government, professional services, and retail.  

 
The biggest changes in employment occur in information, 
construction, and utilities.  
 
These projections form the basis of the utility forecast for 
Mason County helping ensure adequate services are in place 
and identify potential changes or adjustments needed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Utilities Element  Page 24 of 29 11/27/17        

Table 5.  Mason County Residential, Commercial, Industrial Electricity Demand 2016-2036 

  1993 2016  2036 Projection 

Mason County Population 38,350 62,320 83,850 

PUD 3 Electricity (kWh)  493,000,000 610,000,000 770,000,000 

PUD 1 Electricity (kWh) 58,700,000 73,100,000  91,000,000  

Per Capita kWh 14,390 10,960 10,000 
Source: U.S. Energy Information Administration (EIA) State Energy Data System, PUD No. 1, PUD No.3, and 
the 2010 Census  
Average household size was estimated to be 2.57, US Census Bureau, American Community Survey  

A. Projecting Energy Demand 

One simple measure of the energy intensity is the gross 

measure of total energy consumed divided by the population. 

This per capita indicator is a good measure of energy 

consumption because decisions by individual consumers have 

an important effect on overall energy consumption. Combined 

with energy efficiency projections outlined in this document, 

this measure provides a straight-line projection that provides 

a picture of anticipated demand based on historic trends.  This 

projection does not take into account innovation and 

efficiencies expected from the building industry or other 

innovations that could be as high as 20 percent over the 20 

year planning horizon based on Washington State Department 

of Energy studies. 

 

System-level Impacts of Energy Efficiency  
The Energy Independence Act requires electric utilities with 
25,000 or more retail customers in Washington to use 
renewable resources and conservation to help meet their 
customers’ energy needs. The utilities report annually to the 
State Department of Commerce on their compliance.  
 
Utilities in Washington State use wind power to meet about 
80 percent of their mandated renewable requirements. 
Energy efficiency improvements, solar, and other various 
qualified sources account for about 15 percent.  In 2016, the 
renewable energy target increased from 3-9 percent of 
customers’ electricity load, and in 2020, the target will 
increase to 15 percent.  
 

In 2005, in response to Washington 
Administrative Code 458-20-273, 
PUD No. 3 serving Mason County 
participated in the Washington 
State renewable energy production 
incentive payment program. Under 
this program, the PUD facilitates 
payments from the state program 
to interconnected electric 
customers who own and operate 
eligible renewable energy systems. 
The renewable sources may include 
solar PV, wind, anaerobic digesters, 
or microhydro.   
 



 

Utilities Element  Page 25 of 29 11/27/17        

Average annual credits range from $0.12 to $1.08 per kWh of 
energy produced by their system. The PUD receives a state tax 
credit equal to the payments made to customers.   
 
In 2016, PUD No. 3 was meeting its renewable energy target 
at 9 percent of customers’ electric load and exceeding its 
energy conservation target.  Washington State Department of 
Energy anticipates that electric demand side efficiency efforts 
have the potential to continue to reduce statewide 
consumption by an estimated 20 percent by 2035. 
 
B. Projecting Water Demand 

Table 6. shows an estimate of current and water consumption.  

Estimating demand for water is more complex than other 

utilities as we know much less about the amount of water in 

ground water stores and have a limited ability to estimate 

potential impacts of water conservation, recycling, reuse and 

recharge.  A collaborative study is necessary to help the 

County and partner agencies learn more about future supply 

and demand.  

System-level Impacts of Recharge 
Water conservation, wastewater recycling, and reuse is 
becoming more important due to increases in: 

• Demand on potable water resources,  
• The cost of treating wastewater,  
• Regulations requiring greater flows for streams and 

rivers, which reduces irrigation sources, and  
• The demand for sustainable building options.  

 
By design, on-site sewage systems, also known as septic 

systems, naturally recycle wastewater by recharging ground 

water.  To ensure on-site sewage systems are treating waste 

effectively and not polluting the ground water, there must be 

a strong commitment to regular and ongoing monitoring to 

ensure these systems are working properly. 

Under existing Washington State Law, several types of water 

conservation, recycling and reuse are currently permitted and 

regulated as shown in Table 7.  However, additional State 

policy innovation and flexibility for Washington Counties 

promoting water conservation, recycling and reuse will be 

critical over the 20 year planning horizon in order to 

support projected growth and development in the way 

Mason County envisions, a way that maintains rural 

character, quality of life, and unique natural 

environment.  

 

 

Table 6. Mason County Water Demand 2016 

 
2016 

Source 
2016 Gallons per Year 

(millions) 2016 Connections 

Group A Systems 2100 24,000 

Group B Systems 930 3,000 

Exempt Wells 790 11,000 

TOTALS 3,820 38,000 
Source:  PUD No.1, Washington State Department of Health, and Mason County  



 

Utilities Element  Page 26 of 29 11/27/17        

Table 7.  Existing Options for Water Conservation, Recycling or Reuse in Washington State 

State Law Methods Description Benefits 

WAC 246-
272A 

On Site Septic - Using 
Subsurface 
(Underground) Drip 
Irrigation  

Treats residential 
wastewater for subsurface 
irrigation of plants. 

All wastewater from 
building can be used and 
irrigation can be controlled 
precisely for maximum 
benefit 

WAC 246-
272A 

Greywater On Site 
Septic 

On-site sewage system 
used in a building equipped 
with waterless toilets 

Reduction in total volume 
of water used and 
wastewater irrigates 
vegetation 

WAC 246-
272A 

Greywater for 
Subsurface Irrigation 

Treats residential 
wastewater for subsurface 
irrigation of plants. 

 Reduction in total volume 
of water used and 
wastewater irrigates 
vegetation 

WAC 51-56-
1600 

Greywater and 
Rainwater Recycling 

Recycling of any water, 
including greywater, inside 
of a building and using it for 
flushing toilets and other 
non-potable water uses 

Reduces water use by 
recycling greywater or 
rainwater for surface 
irrigation, industrial 
processes, toilet flushing, 
and other non-potable 
water needs. 

WAC 246-
272B  

 Large On-site Sewage 
Systems 

Provides subsurface soil 
treatment and disposal of 
sewage for a design flow of 
3,500 to 100,000 gallons 
per day for 10-350 homes. 

Can accommodate 
developments, schools, 
churches, campgrounds, 
business parks, parks, 
resorts, etc. 

RCW 90.46 Reclaimed Water 

Wastewater (sewage) that 
is treated to remove solids 
and impurities and recycled 

Reduces water use by 
recycling wastewater for 
surface irrigation, industrial 
processes, toilet flushing, 
and other non-potable 
water needs. 

*Greywater - Flows from bathtubs, showers, bathroom sinks, washing machines, dishwashers, and kitchen or utility sinks. 

  



 

Utilities Element  Page 27 of 29 11/27/17        

Table 8.  Low, Intermediate, and High Projections for Total Waste Stream, 2020 through 2040 

Year 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 

High Range Population 76,240 82,620 89,090 95,470 101,580 

High-Range Tonnage 45,740 49,570 53,460 57,280 60,950 

Mid-Range Population 67,550 71,930 76,400 80,780 84,920 

Mid-Range Tonnage 40,530 43,160 45,840 48,470 50,950 

Low Range Population 58,740 61,080 63,490 65,820 67,930 

Low Range Tonnage 35,250 36,650 38,090 39,490 40,760 

Source:  Mason County Public Works Division 

The amount of runoff entering streams and the amount of 

precipitation entering groundwater systems in Mason County 

can and has been estimated by Washington State Department 

of Ecology using annual rainfall of 65 inches, based on 

Western Regional Climate Center data.  Assuming one-third of 

the 65 inches of rainfall infiltrates to groundwater, that is 22 

inches or 1.8 feet of water into each acre of land per year.   

 

C. Projecting Solid Waste Needs 
 
Table 8. provides an estimate of future total solid waste 

tonnage using the OFM Growth Management projections 

assuming Mason County continues to generate 0.6 tons of 

solid waste per person.  In terms of population and waste 

stream tonnage, Mason County has been following the mid-

range growth rate.  Solid Waste projections for the 20 year 

planning horizon show that the County’s waste stream will 

exceed 50,000 tons of solid waste per year by 2036.   

D. Moving Toward Zero Waste 

Despite new technologies and processes that have improved 

the ability of residents, businesses and municipalities to 

handle, sort, and recycle materials, recycling volumes, 

including yard and food waste, only remove approximately 

one percent of the waste stream.   

As more landfills in the region close and the County seeks 

innovative solutions to the problem of higher waste disposal 

costs, state government has fewer resources to help.  Solid 

waste continues to be a contributor to greenhouse gas (GHG) 

emissions, which Washington is bound by law to reduce 25 

percent by 2020 below 1990 levels and 80 percent by 2050. 

Waste reduction is the highest priority for solid waste 

management and is preferred over recycling and composting 

because the social, environmental and economic costs are 

typically lower for waste reduction.  All three methods avoid 

the cost of disposing the diverted materials as garbage, but 

recycling and composting 

frequently require significant 

additional expenses for 

collecting and processing the 

materials. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Utilities Element  Page 28 of 29 11/27/17        

 
Consistent with Mason County’s Comprehensive Solid Waste 

Management Plan and through a blend of innovative policies, 

ranging from technical assistance to legislation and initiatives 

prioritizing waste reduction, Mason County is addressing 

these challenges and placing the County on the pathway to 

higher reuse and recycling volumes that will help make zero 

waste a reality.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

V. POTENTIAL IMPACTS OF CLIMATE CHANGE 

There are at least two ways in which climate change can affect 

energy demand and availably. First, long-term changes in 

temperature will alter electricity demand and change 

precipitation patterns, river flows and hydroelectric 

generation. Second, policies enacted to reduce greenhouse 

gases will affect future resource choices.   

Northwest Power and Conservation Council (NPCC) analysis 

and planning shows that climate induced changes to loads and 

river flows will not affect resource choices during the period 

2016 through 2021. However, beyond 2026, resource 

decisions may be impacted. 

NPCC predicts the Pacific Northwest will have less snow and 

more rain during winter months, resulting in a smaller spring 

snowpack and lower summer flows.  Winter electricity 

demands would decrease with warmer temperatures, easing 

generating requirements. In the summer, demands driven by 

air conditioning and irrigation loads would rise.  

Power supplies projected through 2026 are anticipated to 

meet demand, even under a climate change scenario. After 

considering the climate induced shift in river flows and load to 

the assumptions in NPCC’s modeling scenarios, the likelihood 

of a shortfall in 2035 grows to 15 percent.  

Other potential climate change impacts include increased 

flooding concerns in fall and winter, reduced salmon migration 

survival due to lower summer river flows and higher water 

temperatures, and increased summer electricity prices. 



 

Utilities Element  Page 29 of 29 11/27/17        

Increased diversion of water from electricity generation to 

salmon migration and survival may mean foregone power 

supplies and rate revenues. 

Washington utility agencies recommend that research 

continue in this area and suggest that while no immediate 

actions regarding reservoir operations are indicated, the 

region should consider alternative reservoir operations that 

could potentially mitigate for future climate change impacts.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

   
 
 
 
 
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
  

 

 

 

CHAPTER 12 – IMPLEMENTATION  



 

Implementation Element  Page 2 of 11 11/27/17    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 

Implementation Element  Page 3 of 11 11/27/17    

 

 

 

 
 

Table of Contents 
  
   

I.    INTRODUCTION               4 

 

II. PLAN IMPLEMENTATION TOOLS  
& AUTHORITIES       5 

   

III. ESTABLISHING ANNUAL PROGRESS 
REPORTING                       9 

A. Comprehensive Plan Amendments   9 
B. Urban Growth Area Review   10 

 
IV. COORDINATION WITH OTHER PLANS  11 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 



 

Implementation Element  Page 4 of 11 11/27/17    

K
EY

 IS
SU

ES
 How can Mason County make sure its Comprehensive Plan achieves 

measurable results? 

• Update Ordinances as required by State law 

• Update Ordinances consistent with the Countywide Planning Policies 

• Use the County’s full range of planning tools and authorities to implement the Plan  

• Report annually on key performance measures and revise as needed 

• Coordinate with all jurisdictions within Mason County to ensure consistency and reduce 
redundancy 

 

I. Introduction 
 

The Mason County Comprehensive Plan provides a framework 

for a wide variety of public decisions affecting growth, 

development, community character, and public expenditures.  

Without an implementation process, the County may not 

achieve its adopted goals and objectives or fail to realize 

opportunities for improvement in time to take advantage of 

them. 

 

Implementation of the Mason County Comprehensive Plan is 

carried out through a process that assures the land use plan 

and implementing zoning provide reasonable use of private 

properties.    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This implementation process ensures protection of citizen 

property rights while achieving countywide goals and policies.  

A permit process system implements the Comprehensive Plan 

to ensure that there is consideration of applications in a timely 

manner. Comment and appeal procedures are included as 

appropriate to provide avenues for public and property owner 

input. 

 

The County’s role in regional growth management includes: 

• Coordination with other jurisdictions.  

• Regional economic development in partnership with 
the Economic Development Council.  

• Community Planning and Design for Mason County.  

• Regional transportation planning through the 
Peninsula Regional Transportation Planning 
Organization. 

• Comprehensive Plan implementation  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Implementation Element  Page 5 of 11 11/27/17    

 

II.  Plan Implementation Tools and Authorities 
 

Capital Facilities Planning (CFP)  

Capital projects are major projects that benefit the County, 

including the construction of new roads and sidewalks, the 

purchase of new firefighting equipment, the repair of sewer 

and water mains, as well as many more public improvements. 

The CFP (see Chapter 6 of the Comprehensive Plan) outlines 

County expenditures for the upcoming six and twenty year 

planning periods. It also outlines ways to finance the proposed 

expenditures, including the sale of Bonds or user fees from 

Enterprise Funds.  The Mason County Board of County 

Commissioners updates and approves the CFP annually. 

 

To achieve the goals and objectives described in the 

Comprehensive Plan, the Mason County has established 

regulations for zoning, subdivision of land, master planned 

development, and shoreline management.  All are 

administered through the County Planning Office. 

 

Zoning 

County zoning codes regulate land use to promote the health, 

safety, order, convenience, and general welfare of all citizens.  

Zoning codes regulate location, size, use and height of 

buildings, the arrangement of buildings on lots, and the 

density of population within the Urban Growth Areas and the 

rural county.  The County zoning districts effectively guide 

development throughout the County. 

 

Subdivision of Land 

County controls to regulate subdivision of land include an 

application process, public notice and informal public hearing, 

Planning Commission review, legal notice and public hearing 

by the Board of County Commissioners.  After applicants 

submit completed subdivision paperwork to the Planning 

Office, staff schedule an informal public hearing by the 

Planning Commission within 30 days of application 

acceptance.   Before the Planning Commission hearing date, 

the County mails notice of the hearing to owners of all 

property within 500 feet of the subject property. The Planning 

Commission considers various conditions of the application 

and makes a recommendation to the Board of County 

Commissioners to approve or deny the proposed subdivision 

or consolidation. 
 

Master Planned Developments  

A Master Planned Development provides an optional method 

of regulating land use that permits flexibility from the other 

provisions of County Code, including flexibility in uses allowed, 

setbacks, height, parking requirements, number of buildings 

on a lot, and similar regulations. 

 

Applicants must submit a preliminary plan of the proposed 

development that illustrates its nature and type. The Master 

Plan must also identify all land uses and proposed square 

footage: 

 



 

Implementation Element  Page 6 of 11 11/27/17    

• the location of buildings 

• existing and proposed roadways 

• and accesses 

• pedestrian ways and sidewalks 

• proposed parking areas 

• preliminary traffic volume projections 

• areas to be preserved 

• public and common areas 

• preliminary building elevations, including height and 
materials 

• preliminary utilities plan 

• the location of the parcel’s boundaries 

• the net and gross density of the development 

• the total area occupied by the development 

• lot coverage 

• development schedule 
 

The Planning Commission will then hold an informal public 

hearing and consider the application for consistency with 

various County guidelines and other requirements. The 

Planning Commission’s report to the Board of County 

Commissioners will include recommended changes, 

conditions, or modifications. The County Commission will then 

hold a public hearing, take action on the application, and 

make findings on the proposal. This may include a request for 

plan amendments, approval, denial, or other action deemed 

appropriate by the Council, such as referral back to the 

Planning Commission.  

 

Following Commission approval of a Final Master Plan, the 

County issues an agreement that references all applicable 

plans and specifies permitted uses, allowable densities, 

development phasing, required improvements, completion 

dates for improvements, and additional requirements for each 

Master Planned Development, in accordance with the 

conditions established in the County Commission approval of 

the Final Master Plan and ordinance. 

 

Shoreline Management 

The Washington State Legislature has delegated to 

municipalities the responsibility to regulate the subdivision, 

use, and development of shorelines of public waters.  The goal 

is to preserve and enhance the quality of surface waters, 

preserve the economic and natural environmental values of 

shoreline, and provide for the wise use of waters and related 

land resources.   Mason County accomplishes these goals 

through the Mason County Code Chapters 8.52, Resource 

Ordinance and Title 17, Zoning.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Implementation Element  Page 7 of 11 11/27/17    

Other Land Use Tools  

Opportunities exist for Mason County to raise 
awareness and expand use of other land use tools 
provided under state law and also incorporated into 
the Mason County Development Regulations 
including: 

 

• Planned Action Environmental Impact 
Statements – The County conducts the 
required environmental analysis before 
development is proposed to streamline and 
incentivize development in desired locations. 
(RCW 43.21C.031) 

 

• State Environmental Policy Act Mitigation 
Fees – Fees collected to mitigate impacts 
under SEPA can be used to offset infrastructure 
costs and develop shovel ready sites. (RCW 
43.21C) 

 

• Transfer Development Rights - voluntary, 

incentive- based program that allows 

landowners to sell development rights from 

their agricultural lands to a developer or other 

interested party who then can use 

these rights to increase the density 

of development at another designated 

location.  (MCC 17.03.037) 

 

 

 

• Clustering  - Clustering development allows grouping 

of residential structures on a portion of the available 

land while reserving a significant amount of the site as 

undeveloped open space. (MCC 16.23) 

 

• Restoration Planning - Provides the option to develop 

a plan, tailored to a specific property, as an alternative 

to strict adherence to development regulations. 

Modification of buffers, a streamlined permit process 

and/or other departures from standards may be 

permitted on properties that provide a plan of 

alternative actions that will protect environmental 

resources and avoid environmental harm. (MCC 

8.52.275) 

 

• Design Guidelines – Specify that the design, shape, 

size, and orientation of lots shall be appropriate to the 

use for which the lots are intended and the character 

of the area and consistent with the policies of the 

county comprehensive plan and other land control 

ordinances. Lot areas in excess of minimum standards 

may be required for reasons of sanitation, steep 

slopes, slide hazards, poor drainage, flood hazards, or 

other unique conditions or features which may 

warrant protection of the public interest. (MCC 16.38) 

 

 

http://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=43.21C.031
http://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=43.21C


 

Implementation Element  Page 8 of 11 11/27/17    

 

• Voluntary Stewardship Program - This program is 

intended to promote local plans that protect and 

enhance critical areas within areas where agricultural 

activities are conducted, while maintaining and 

improving the long-term viability of agriculture in the 

state of Washington and reducing the conversion of 

farmland to other uses.  These plans establish 

voluntary incentive programs that encourage good 

riparian and ecosystem stewardship, protect water 

quality and fish habitat, and discourage the cessation 

of agricultural activities. 

 

• Conservation Easements – Establish rights in 

perpetuity to future development which may be 

acquired by the county on any open space land, farm 

and agricultural land, and timberland.  (Chapter 84.34 

RCW) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Implementation Element  Page 9 of 11 11/27/17    

III. Establishing Annual Progress Reporting 
 

To fulfill Mason County’s role in regional growth management 

and ensure success of the Comprehensive Plan, Mason County 

will report annually as part of the required periodic review of 

Mason County’s Comprehensive Plan.   

 

The Annual Progress Report will include the collection and 

evaluation of land use development trends.  Certain data, such 

as population, age, family size, cost and number of housing 

units, school enrollments, building permits, and others, 

contribute to an understanding of how these factors relate to 

public policies and programs.  Regular collection, evaluation, 

and reporting of data assists County policy- and decision-

makers, and the public, in identifying whether the Plan’s 

policies are furthering their intended goals, and whether 

programs and public services are meeting the public’s needs.  

This regular reporting can also streamline and simplify the 

Comprehensive Plan Update process.  

 

Comprehensive Plan Amendments 

The Comprehensive Plan may be amended once annually 

(with some exceptions under RCW 36.70A) to ensure 

consistency with population projections, development 

regulations, and other functional plans.  

 

 

 

 

 

Amendments to the Comprehensive Plan must be supported 

by findings from monitoring economic indicators, changes in 

law, omissions or errors, population changes or declared 

emergency. Comprehensive Plan amendments may be 

initiated by the County or by other entities, organizations, or 

individuals according to the process and procedures specified 

in Mason County Code 15.09.060. 

 

The docketing cycle for these amendments submitted by both 

the public and the County is initiated annually by an official 

notice that specifies the requirements and the process.  

According to procedures and timelines in Mason County Code, 

the County Planning Office will evaluate each complete 

amendment proposal to determine whether it would: 

 

• adversely affect the County’s budget; 

• meet the State Environmental Policy Act requirements; 

• require additional amendments to policies or 
regulations; 

• be more appropriately addressed as part of a different 
code revision or action; 

• be consistent with the Comprehensive Plan goals and 
other state and local requirements. 

 

After receiving staff recommendations, the Board of County 

Commissioners conducts a public meeting to consider 

including each amendment in the annual docket of proposed 

amendments.  



 

Implementation Element  Page 10 of 11 11/27/17    

A decision by the Board to include or exclude an amendment 

from the annual docket is final, procedural only, and does not 

constitute a decision by the Board as to whether the 

amendment will ultimately be approved. Applicants whose 

proposals were not included in the docket are free to resubmit 

the same or modified proposal in a future year’s amendment 

cycle. 

   

An emergency amendment can be considered any time and 

may only be adopted if the Board of County Commissioners 

finds that the amendment is necessary to address an 

immediate situation of federal, state, countywide, or local 

concern. 

 

Periodic Urban Growth Area Review 

Urban Growth Areas (UGAs) in Mason County includes the 

incorporated City of Shelton and unincorporated communities 

of Allyn and Belfair, combined with whatever surrounding 

unincorporated area is necessary to accommodate urban 

growth projected to occur over 20 years.  The County is 

required to periodically assess the Urban Growth Area 

boundaries and densities, and revise their comprehensive 

plans and development regulations as necessary to 

accommodate the urban growth projected to occur in Mason 

County for the 20-year planning period. 

 

 

 

The update of the Comprehensive Plan, land use maps and 

development regulations is made official through legislative 

action of the Board of County Commissioners. However, the 

planning process is actually ongoing. 

 

The boundaries separating the Urban Growth Area, Rural and 

Natural Resource Lands designations are intended to be long-

term and unchanging.  Amendments or changes to Rural 

Natural Resource lands and critical area designations should 

be based on changes in law or local circumstances, errors in 

designation, or revised when new information on natural 

resource lands or critical areas becomes available. 

 

Comprehensive Plan policies guide the establishment of more 

functional plans, regulations, and programs.  For example, 

functional plans would include the Comprehensive Solid 

Waste Plan, Hazard Mitigation Plan, Utility Plans, etc.  These 

plans must use the policies and population projections 

adopted through the County Comprehensive Plan to develop 

their preferred alternatives.  Amendments that occur between 

the periodic updates of the Comprehensive Plan keep the 

Comprehensive Plan and development regulations 

continuously up to date. At the end of the periodic update 

cycle, these various amendments and other required updates 

are reviewed and incorporated into the official action by the 

Board of County Commissioners to affirm that the Plan and 

regulations are updated.  

 

 



 

Implementation Element  Page 11 of 11 11/27/17    

IV. Coordination with other Plans 
 

During the development of Mason County’s Comprehensive 

Plan, some residents expressed an interest in developing sub-

area plans and discussed the need for more functional plans.  

This section outlines the administrative processes for initiation 

and development of subarea and functional plans and the 

relationship between these plans and the Comprehensive 

Plan. 

 

The Comprehensive Plan is based on public input and seeks to 

assure affordable growth and development.  It is required by 

state law (RCW 36.70A) and serves as an umbrella for 

coordinated and unified planning within Mason County.  

Subarea and functional plans result from partnerships uniting 

the County, other jurisdictions and organizations inside and 

outside the County, and citizens of a specific area like an 

Urban Growth Area or community.   

 

Subarea and functional plans take a more detailed approach 

to planning for public infrastructure and services in an area  or 

for a specific public service or facility type while still 

maintaining consistency with the Comprehensive Plan and its 

foundational assumptions and policies as required.  These 

plans focus on enhancing specific subareas of the County in a 

manner that benefits the entire county.   

 

 

 

 

 

They should clearly demonstrate consistency with the 

Countywide Planning Policies and Capital Facilities Plans, as 

well as identifying ways they support and utilize the 

implementation tools and authorities of the County outlined 

in this Chapter.   
 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | APPENDICES | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021  

Appendix 4A  
WUE PERFORMANCE REPORT 
 





Annual Performance Report - 2019
Water Use Efficiency

Date Submitted: 6/8/2020

Ken DickinsonReport submitted by: 

MASONWS County:78170Water System ID# : 

WS Name: SHELTON CITY OF

Meter Installation Information:

Within your meter installation plan, what date did you commit to completing meter installation?

100%

If not 100% metered – Did you submit a meter installation plan to DOH?

Estimate the percentage of metered connections:

Current status of meter installation:

No

Production, Authorized Consumption, and Distribution System Leakage Information:

If yes, explain:

NoIncomplete or missing data for the year?

12/31/2019To01/01/201912-Month WUE Reporting Period

Total Water Produced & Purchased (TP) – Annual volume gallons

Authorized Consumption (AC) – Annual Volume in gallons

Distribution System Leakage – Annual Volume TP – AC 23,130,301 gallons

365,529,096 gallons

342,398,795 gallons

Distribution System Leakage – DSL = [(TP – AC) / TP] x 100 % 6.3 %

3-year annual average - % 11.2 % 2017, 2018, 2019

No

03/17/2014Enter the date of most recent public forum to establish WUE goal:

Has goal been changed since last performance report?

Goal-Setting Information:

Note: Customer goal must be re-established every 6 years through a public process.

1. Reduce total water consumption by 1% annually from 2014 to 2020. 2. Maintain a Distribution 
System Leakage amount equal to or lesser than 8% for the period 2014 to 2020. 3. Reduce 
residential water consumption by 3% from 2014 to 2020.

Customer WUE Goal (Demand Side):

Customer (Demand Side) Goal Progress:

Additional Information Regarding Supply and Demand Side WUE Efforts



Describe Progress in Reaching Goals:

• Estimate how much water you saved.

• Report progress toward meeting goals within your established timeframe.

• Identify any WUE measures you are currently implementing.

• If you established a goal to maintain a historic level (such as maintaining daily 
consumption at 65 gallons per person per day for the next two years) you must 
explain why you are unable to reduce water use below that level.

The following questions will help DOH better understand water usage, water resources management and 
drought response. The data will be used to provide technical assistance, not for regulatory purposes.

All questions are voluntary

Month Date of 
Measurement

Static Water Level 
(feet below measuring point)

Dynamic Water Level 
(feet below measuring point)

January

February

March

April

May

June

July

August

September

October

November

December

Please provide the following information (if known) to help us better utilize the water level data.

Well tag Id number:

Well depth:

Water level accuracy (within 0.01 ft < 1 ft  ~ 1 ft)

Completion type (e.g., cased open interval, cased open-ended, 
cased open-ended with perforations, etc…)

Location coordinates (latitude, longitude) and accuracy of the 
coordinates (< 1ft, ~1ft, >1000ft)

Water level parameter name (e.g. depth below measuring point, 
depth below top of casing, depth below ground surface)

Elevation of top of casing OR elevation of measuring point if 
different than top of casing (as specified in question 7)

Water level data:



Monthly/Seasonal Water Usage:  

What was your maximum daily water demand for the previous year (in gallons per day)?

Month Volume of Water Produced in gallons

January

February

March

April

May

June

July

August

September

October

November

December

____________

Water shortage response:

Did you activate any level of water shortage response plan the previous year?

If you activated a water shortage response plan the previous year, what level did you activate? (Check all that apply)

What factors caused your water shortage the previous year? 

Yes No There was no need to

Advisory Conservation Voluntary Conservation

Mandatory Conservation Rationing Other

Drought Fire

Flooding Water Supply Limitations Other

Landslides Earthquakes

Do not mail, fax, or email this report to DOH





WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | APPENDICES | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021  

Appendix 4B  
WUE PUBLIC EDUCATION 
 









WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | APPENDICES | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021  

Appendix 5A  
HYDRAULIC MODEL CALIBRATION 
 





 

PAGE ͭ of Ͳ 

pw:\\Carollo/Documents\Error! Unknown document property name.\Error! Unknown document property name. 

HYDRANT  FLUSHING  PROCEDURE  HANDOUT  

ͮͬͭͳ WATER SYSTEM PLAN UPDATE 
City of Shelton 

Date:  ͱ/ͭͲ/ͮͬͭͳ    

Subject:  Hydrant Flushing Procedure Project No.:  ͭͬͲͲ͵A.ͬͬ 

  Handout for Model Calibration 

      

      

1. Objective 

This handout presents procedures and recommendations for conducting hydrant flow testing. 

2. General Hydrant Flushing Protocol 

This section presents the general protocol for performing hydrant flushing. It is intended to provide a 

general reference for the operations staff performing flushing operations. In addition to the protocol, safety 

considerations, and sensitive area considerations are also presented. Specific procedures for performing 

hydrant flow tests for hydraulic model calibration are described below. 

a. Flushing Protocol 

The following protocol should be used for each hydrant flush. Safety is a key issue when implementing a 

hydrant‐flushing program. While performing a flush, it is important to avoid damage to private property, to 

allow adequate drainage, and to use traffic control where necessary. In addition, it is important to be aware 

of sensitive areas such as creeks and other areas that might suffer erosion from the high flow rates. In 

addition to safety concerns, chlorinated water may be toxic to fish, and water with high sediment content 

can adversely affect aquatic life. Therefore, it is important to dechlorinate the water, and to ensure that 

excessive sediment is not discharged into a sensitive creek. 

 
Hydrant flushing should follow this procedure: 

1. Assess the hydrant to be flushed and the area surrounding the hydrant to determine the safety and 

sensitivity of the site. 

2. Locate the hose outlet on the flush hydrant. Remove the outlet cap and install any necessary adaptors. 

3. Flush the hydrant at a low flow rate (about 10 gpm) by slightly opening the hose outlet. Flush the 

hydrant until the water runs fairly clear. Accumulated sediment in the hydrant line may damage the 

pressure testing equipment; the water should run clear before any testing is attempted. 
Note: Verify the direction of the water flow away from the test area. Ensure that water is not causing any 

damage to neighboring property. Water should also discharge properly into a drain inlet. Check the path of 

the water and visually inspect the drain inlet for plugging or other obstructions. If water drainage is 

problematic, do not conduct any further testing. Shut off the hydrant, remove all equipment, and choose 

another hydrant.  
4. Turn the hydrant off and install a pressure gauge on the hose outlet. 



PAGE ͮ of Ͳ 

5. Slowly open the operating nut one to two turns. Bleed the air out of the gauge, read, and record the 

static pressure. 

6. Once a static pressure reading is taken, close the operating nut slowly to avoid water hammer. 

7. Determine which remaining outlet (usually the steamer or pumper outlet) will be used for flushing. 

8. Remove the steamer outlet cap and install a combination flow tester/discharge diffuser on the hydrant. 

Also, set up the dechlorination system of choice. 

Note: The need to dechlorinate discharges to the environment is more critical with chloramines than with 

chlorine. This is due in part to the higher disinfectant residual concentration throughout the distribution 

system and, in the case of chloramines, the stability of the disinfectant residual even when introduced to 

the environment (i.e., light, heat, soil, etc.). Therefore, it is important to dechlorinate the discharge before it 

reaches a drainage inlet or another water body. If flushing discharge flows to a sewer dechlorination is not 

required. 

9. Slowly open the flush hydrant; opening the hydrant too quickly can cause negative pressure in the 

distribution system. Flush the hydrant until an adequate pressure reading is obtained.  

ͭͬ. Once the flush is completed, slowly turn off the hydrant. If the hydrant is closed too quickly, a water 

hammer (pressure surge) may occur. 
Note: Pressure regulated areas require an even slower shutdown of the hydrant. In pressure regulated 

areas, shut the hydrant down halfway while monitoring the pressure gauge and let the water flow for ͯͬ to 

Ͱͱ seconds. This allows the distribution system to recover and permits water pressures to level off. Then, 

partially close the hydrant and again allow the system to recover. After the short wait, shut down the 

hydrant slowly until fully closed. Monitor the pressure gauge and avoid pressure spikes. 

11. After hydrant is closed, remove equipment from hydrant, and close all nozzle caps. 

 

b. Safety Considerations 

Before beginning the hydrant flushing, it is important to inspect the site for safety. The following issues 

should be addressed. 

1. Water flow path to a nearby drain inlet should be unencumbered. 

2. Drain inlets should be free of debris. 

3. Potential flooding/damage to neighboring property should be strictly avoided. 

4. The flow trajectory of the water should not endanger passing vehicles or pedestrian traffic. 

5. Water should not cause slick or unsafe conditions in traveled areas. 

6. No freestanding water should be left in extremely cold conditions; water could become icy and 

create slick or unsafe conditions. 

7. Do not flush a hydrant if the above or any other conditions create an unsafe situation. 

c. Sensitive Area Considerations 

Sensitive areas are those that could be adversely impacted by a large influx of drinking water. Such areas 

might include creeks, ponds, or other water bodies. 

Chloramine residual in the drinking water helps prevent the regrowth of bacteria. Chloramine is a combined 

form of chorine and ammonia, which is more stable than free chlorine. The concentration is measured as 



PAGE ͯ of Ͳ 

total chlorine residual. Both chlorine and chloramine that are present in flush water are toxic to fish and 

other small freshwater biota and must be removed before the water reaches any natural water bodies. In 

addition, extremely silty water can potentially suffocate animals living in natural ponds and streams. The 

following questions should be addressed before flushing a hydrant in any area suspected as sensitive: 

 Are the road surfaces free of significant debris that could flow into the drain inlets? 

 Are curbs or ditches sufficient to handle hydrant flow without creating a buildup of silt? 

 Are the surfaces over which water will flow free of possible contaminants such as oil, soil, etc? 

 Will water discharged during the flow test erode unpaved areas, etc? 

If any of the above conditions exist, steps should be taken to mitigate the situation and/or re‐route the flow 

away from the sensitive area. If neither mitigation nor re‐routing is possible, then the next available (i.e., not 

in a sensitive area) hydrant should be flushed instead. 

3. Hydrant Flow Testing Procedure 

For each of the hydrant flow tests one flow hydrant is opened while residual pressure is measured at two 

pressure hydrants. If a sufficient pressure drop is not generated with one hydrant flowing, a second hydrant 

should be opened. Generally, the two flow hydrants should be located adjacent to one another with one 

pressure hydrant upstream and the other pressure hydrant downstream of the flow hydrants. 

a. Hydrant Flow Testing Equipment 

Table ͭ lists the equipment needed for hydrant flow testing. After safety equipment, the most important 

component for hydrant flushing is the flow diffuser/dechlorination equipment. This equipment reduces the 

energy of the water as the flow from the hydrant is released to the street gutter. Even though the flushing 

flow rate may be high, the energy diffuser will minimize damage from erosion and allow the water to flow 

down the gutter instead of spray across the street. The energy diffuser is sometimes used to mix 

dechlorination chemical. The two methods for dechlorination of potable water are injecting chlorine 

neutralizer such as Sodium Bisulfite or allowing the water to flow past a solid form of dechlorination 

chemical such as sodium Bisulfite or ascorbic acid. A metering pump may inject liquid or the dechlorination 

equipment may have an eductor and a flow control valve that will suck in the required amount of chemical. 

Dry chemical tablets may be placed in the flow diffuser, or in porous bags in the gutter. The equipment 

selected for use by the City will have directions for the proper application of chemical. Always sample water 

before it flows into a storm drain inlet to ensure it is fully dechlorinated.  

 

Table ͭ  Hydrant Flow Test Equipment 

Item Quantity 

Pressure gauge and necessary adaptor to connect gauge to hydrant ͯ 

Dechlorinating hydrant diffuser with hose  
(as needed for directing flow) and dechlorinating tablets 

ͯ 

Handheld pitot gage with conversion chart  
(not needed if diffuser includes built in pitot gage) 

ͮ 

Adjustable Combination Hydrant and Spanner Wrench Ͱ 

Hand‐held radios or push‐to‐talk type cell phones Ͱ 

ͭʹ inch pipe wrench ͭ 



PAGE Ͱ of Ͳ 

Adjustable ͭͮ inch crescent wrench ͭ 

ͭͮ inch channellock pliers ͭ 

Ͳ inch screwdriver ͭ 

ͮͰ foot engineers tape measure ͭ 

Roll of ͭ/ͮ inch x ͱͮͬ inch PTFE tape for thread sealing ͭ 

Clipboard with testing forms ͭ 

Map for locating hydrants ͭ 

Repair forms for identifying valves and hydrants that need repair As needed 

Cloth rags As needed 

Traffic Cones As needed 

Warning Signs As needed 

b. Hydrant Flow Testing Procedure 

The essential guidelines of a hydrant flow test for model calibration are listed below. On the day of hydrant 

flow testing, all pressure and flow meters should be calibrated by comparing readings when attached to the 

same hydrant. 

1. Identify the flow hydrant and the pressure hydrants. The proposed hydrant flow test sites will be 

provided by Carollo to the City.  

2. Record the location, date, time, and temperature on the testing form provided by Carollo to the 

City. 

3. Take a static pressure reading at each of the flow hydrants (F1 and F2) and pressure hydrants (P1 

and P2) and record on testing form. 

4. Attach flow gauge to the flow hydrant (F1). 

5. Open the flow hydrant (F1). Make sure to avoid opening the flowing hydrant too fast to avoid water 

hammer. Dechlorinate the water as it is leaving the system. 

6. Record flow and flow hydrant residual pressure. 

7. Take a residual pressure reading at each pressure hydrant (the pressure should bottom out and then 

rise slightly before stabilizing). Record the residual pressure.  

A residual pressure drop (ΔP) of 10 psi is preferable, but 5 psi is acceptable.  

a. If ΔP ≥ 10 psi, go to next step. 

b. ΔP < 10 psi, repeat steps above with two flowing hydrants. Flowing hydrants should be located 

adjacent to one another. The back‐up hydrant shown on detail maps becomes a pressure 

hydrant and one of the original pressure hydrants becomes the second flow hydrant.  

c. If ΔP ≥ 5 psi with two flow hydrants, go to next step. 

d. If ΔP < 5 psi, then the test failed and should be repeated. 

8. Document all data on the testing forms that have been provided in Appendix A. 

9. Slowly close the flowing hydrant. If two hydrants are flowing, close one at a time. 



PAGE ͱ of Ͳ 

c. Contingencies 

It is important to be prepared for unplanned events prior to commencing the hydrant flow tests. Some of the 

following issues may arise during hydrant flushing: 

1. Loss of system pressure or water supply to a specific area. 

2. The hydrant may continue to leak after shut down. 

3. Customer complaints may arise after flushing a particularly sensitive area. 

If there is a significant loss of pressure during a hydrant flow test, it could be an indication that there are 

valves in the system that are closed but should not be. Review the system maps to find valves that may be 

causing the low‐pressure issue. Verify that they are open and repeat the flushing procedure. 

Once a flush is complete, the operations staff will close the flow hydrant and pressure hydrants. If any of 

these facilities are not functioning properly, i.e. the hydrant continues to leak, a report should be made to 

repair the equipment. 

Customer complaints that could arise during the hydrant flow tests include low water pressure, discolored 

water, odor, damaged laundry, etc. Both the crew working in the field, as well as staff answering the phones 

at the utility office should be sensitive to these issues and be prepared to answer any questions. Low water 

pressure will be corrected when the flow tests are complete. Customer water that is discolored or has an 

odor should be flushed from the plumbing by allowing the water to run until it is clear. 

4. System Data Needs 

Data required for the calibration consists of records of tank levels, and flows from booster stations, wells, 

and pressure reducing valve stations (PRVs), if available throughout the distribution system. This data 

should be recorded at the time of the hydrant flow testing, if possible. A spreadsheet was provided to the 

City to record this information at each hydrant test site. 

If available, SCADA monitoring data can be provided. A target time interval of ͱ to ͭͱ minutes is sufficient 

for model calibration.  

The data required is listed in Table ͮ. 

Table ͮ  Data Gathering Parameters (if easily available) 

Facility Type Measurement Unit Interval  Source 

Hydrant Testing Period      

Reservoirs Level ft ͱ min SCADA 

Booster Pump Stations Flow gpm ͱ min SCADA 

Booster Pump Stations Discharge HGL gpm ͱ min  SCADA 

Pressure Reducing Valve Stations Flow gpm ͱ min SCADA 

a. Format of Data 

i. SCADA Data 

All SCADA data needs to be provided in MS Excel or a MS database format. Table ͯ presents a sample 

format for the SCADA data. 

Depending on the interval of data available and record keeping capabilities of the SCADA system, 

modifications may need to be made to the SCADA system prior to the hydrant testing week. It would be 

preferable to our team to obtain SCADA data on ͱ‐minute intervals. However, ͭͱ‐minute or hourly intervals 



PAGE Ͳ of Ͳ 

would be sufficient if ͱ‐minute intervals are not possible. Please note the wells and booster pumps that are 

running at the time of the test for ͭͱ‐minute and greater interval data. If the SCADA data is queried from 

each facility independently, the time of each data point should be included in the output report. 

ii. Manual Facilities 

For any manually operated facilities operated during the data gathering periods, an operational log should 

be substituted for the requested facility parameters. It is assumed that flow totalizers are used to take daily 

readings of the amount of water pumped during each ͮͰ‐hour period. For any manually operated pump used 

during the hydrant testing period, the hours that the pump is on or off, along with the flow rate during each 

operation period will be needed. Photocopies of the log sheets for these pumps would be sufficient. If the 

City finds it more convenient, a handwritten or electronic log of all sites would also be sufficient. 

 

Table ͯ  Sample SCADA Data Format 

TANK ͯ LEVEL TANK ͮ LEVEL PS͵ PRESSURE SUCT PS͵ PRESSURE DISC 

Time Feet Time Feet Time psi Time  psi 

ͮ/ͭ/ͬ͵ ͭ:ͬͬ ͮͳ.Ͳͭ ͮ/ͭ/ͬ͵ ͭ:ͬͬ ͮͱ.ͳͯ ͮ/ͭ/ͬ͵ ͭ:ͬͬ ͰͰ.ͱͯ ͮ/ͭ/ͬ͵ ͭ:ͬͬ ͭͮͬ.ͱ͵ 

ͮ/ͭ/ͬ͵ ͭ:ͭͱ ͮͳ.ͱͮ ͮ/ͭ/ͬ͵ ͭ:ͭͱ ͮͱ.ͱͰ ͮ/ͭ/ͬ͵ ͭ:ͭͱ ͰͰ.Ͳͱ ͮ/ͭ/ͬ͵ ͭ:ͭͱ ͭͭͳ.ͬͱ 

ͮ/ͭ/ͬ͵ ͭ:ͯͬ ͮͳ.ͯͱ ͮ/ͭ/ͬ͵ ͭ:ͯͬ ͮͱ.ͯ͵ ͮ/ͭ/ͬ͵ ͭ:ͯͬ ͰͰ.ͮͬ ͮ/ͭ/ͬ͵ ͭ:ͯͬ ͭͭ͵.Ͳͯ 

ͮ/ͭ/ͬ͵ ͭ:Ͱͱ ͮͱ.ͭͮ ͮ/ͭ/ͬ͵ ͭ:Ͱͱ ͮͱ.ͮ͵ ͮ/ͭ/ͬ͵ ͭ:Ͱͱ Ͱͱ.ͯͰ ͮ/ͭ/ͬ͵ ͭ:Ͱͱ ͭͭ͵.Ͱͮ 

ͮ/ͭ/ͬ͵ ͮ:ͬͬ ͮͱ.ͱ͵ ͮ/ͭ/ͬ͵ ͮ:ͬͬ ͮͱ.ͭͯ ͮ/ͭ/ͬ͵ ͮ:ͬͬ Ͱͱ.ͭͯ ͮ/ͭ/ͬ͵ ͮ:ͬͬ ͭͭͱ.ͱͮ 

ͮ/ͭ/ͬ͵ ͮ:ͭͱ ͮͱ.Ͳͬ ͮ/ͭ/ͬ͵ ͮ:ͭͱ ͮͳ.ͱͲ ͮ/ͭ/ͬ͵ ͮ:ͭͱ Ͱͱ.ͮͲ ͮ/ͭ/ͬ͵ ͮ:ͭͱ ͭͭͳ.ͮͭ 

ͮ/ͭ/ͬ͵ ͮ:ͯͬ ͮͱ.ͱͱ ͮ/ͭ/ͬ͵ ͮ:ͯͬ ͮͳ.Ͳͬ ͮ/ͭ/ͬ͵ ͮ:ͯͬ ͰͰ.ͱ͵ ͮ/ͭ/ͬ͵ ͮ:ͯͬ ͭͭͳ.ͮ͵ 

ͮ/ͭ/ͬ͵ ͮ:Ͱͱ ͮͳ.͵Ͳ ͮ/ͭ/ͬ͵ ͮ:Ͱͱ ͮͳ.͵ͬ ͮ/ͭ/ͬ͵ ͮ:Ͱͱ Ͱͱ.ͬͭ ͮ/ͭ/ͬ͵ ͮ:Ͱͱ ͭͭͳ.ͬͱ 

ͮ/ͭ/ͬ͵ ͯ:ͬͬ ͮͱ.ͳͲ ͮ/ͭ/ͬ͵ ͯ:ͬͬ ͮͳ.Ͳͳ ͮ/ͭ/ͬ͵ ͯ:ͬͬ Ͱͱ.ͳͱ ͮ/ͭ/ͬ͵ ͯ:ͬͬ ͭͭͲ.ͱͱ 

ͮ/ͭ/ͬ͵ ͯ:ͭͱ ͮͱ.Ͱͭ ͮ/ͭ/ͬ͵ ͯ:ͭͱ ͮͲ.ͱͭ ͮ/ͭ/ͬ͵ ͯ:ͭͱ ͰͰ.ͮͮ ͮ/ͭ/ͬ͵ ͯ:ͭͱ ͭͭͲ.͵ͭ 

ͮ/ͭ/ͬ͵ ͯ:ͯͬ ͮͱ.ͱͲ ͮ/ͭ/ͬ͵ ͯ:ͯͬ ͮͳ.ͯͭ ͮ/ͭ/ͬ͵ ͯ:ͯͬ ͰͰ.Ͱͮ ͮ/ͭ/ͬ͵ ͯ:ͯͬ ͭͭͱ.ͭͱ 

ͮ/ͭ/ͬ͵ ͯ:Ͱͱ ͮͱ.ͬͲ ͮ/ͭ/ͬ͵ ͯ:Ͱͱ ͮͲ.͵Ͳ ͮ/ͭ/ͬ͵ ͯ:Ͱͱ Ͱͱ.ͬͰ ͮ/ͭ/ͬ͵ ͯ:Ͱͱ ͭͭ͵.ͬͮ 

ͮ/ͭ/ͬ͵ Ͱ:ͬͬ ͮͱ.ͭͭ ͮ/ͭ/ͬ͵ Ͱ:ͬͬ ͮͳ.ͬͬ ͮ/ͭ/ͬ͵ Ͱ:ͬͬ ͰͰ.ͭͳ ͮ/ͭ/ͬ͵ Ͱ:ͬͬ ͭͮͬ.ͬͬ 

Notes: 
(ͭ) This sample was taken from a different SCADA system and thus may not represent the exact format of the City’s SCADA 

output. 

 



Table 1 ‐ Fire Hydrant Test Results City to fill out

City of Shelton

Water System Plan

Hydrant Test #1

Date: 6/20/2017

Time: 10:30am

Pressure Zone: UMVPZ

Flowing Hydrant Pressure Hydrant 1 Pressure Hydrant 1

Hydrant # / location MV278 Hydrant # / location MV277 Hydrant # / location MV279

Static Pressure (psi) 66 Static Pressure (psi) 65 Static Pressure (psi) 62

Residual Pressure (psi) 50 Residual Pressure (psi) 60 Residual Pressure (psi) 69

Flow (gpm) 1060

Flush Duration (psi) 30sec

Hydrant Test #2

Date: 6/20/2017

Time: 10:50am

Pressure Zone: Mountain PZ

Flowing Hydrant Pressure Hydrant 1 Pressure Hydrant 1

Hydrant # / location MV247 Hydrant # / location MV246 Hydrant # / location MV249

Static Pressure (psi) 64 Static Pressure (psi) 63 Static Pressure (psi) 65

Residual Pressure (psi) 52 Residual Pressure (psi) 58 Residual Pressure (psi) 58

Flow (gpm) 1060

Flush Duration (psi) 30sec

Hydrant Test #3

Date: 6/20/2017

Time: 11:10am

Pressure Zone: Mountain PZ

Flowing Hydrant Pressure Hydrant 1 Pressure Hydrant 1

Hydrant # / location MV057 Hydrant # / location MV056 Hydrant # / location MV058

Static Pressure (psi) 58 Static Pressure (psi) 58 Static Pressure (psi) 59

Residual Pressure (psi) 50 Residual Pressure (psi) 52 Residual Pressure (psi) 52

Flow (gpm) 1130

Flush Duration (psi) 30sec

Hydrant Test #4

Date: 6/20/2017

Time: 12:45pm

Pressure Zone: Capitol Hill PZ

Flowing Hydrant Pressure Hydrant 1 Pressure Hydrant 1

Hydrant # / location CH012 Hydrant # / location CH010 Hydrant # / location CH013

Static Pressure (psi) 73 Static Pressure (psi) 72 Static Pressure (psi) 79

Residual Pressure (psi) 45 Residual Pressure (psi) 65 Residual Pressure (psi) 52

Flow (gpm) 1060

Flush Duration (psi) 30sec

Hydrant Test #5

Date: 6/20/2017

Time: 1:05pm

Pressure Zone: High School PZ

Flowing Hydrant Pressure Hydrant 1 Pressure Hydrant 1

Hydrant # / location DT102 Hydrant # / location DT100 Hydrant # / location DT105

Static Pressure (psi) 60 Static Pressure (psi) 68 Static Pressure (psi) 58

Residual Pressure (psi) 42 Residual Pressure (psi) 60 Residual Pressure (psi) 42

Flow (gpm) 1060

Flush Duration (psi) 30sec

Hydrant Test #6 Without Angleside BPS Off

Date: 6/20/2017

Time: 1:40pm

Pressure Zone: Angleside PZ

Flowing Hydrant Pressure Hydrant 1 Pressure Hydrant 1

Hydrant # / location AS020 Hydrant # / location AS019 Hydrant # / location AS021

Static Pressure (psi) 39 Static Pressure (psi) 32 Static Pressure (psi) 61

Residual Pressure (psi) 30 Residual Pressure (psi) 32 Residual Pressure (psi) 60

Flow (gpm) 920

Flush Duration (psi) 30sec

Hydrant Test #7 With Angleside BPS ON

Date: 6/20/2017

Time: 1:30pm

Pressure Zone: Angleside PZ

Flowing Hydrant Pressure Hydrant 1 Pressure Hydrant 1

Hydrant # / location AS020 Hydrant # / location AS019 Hydrant # / location AS021

Static Pressure (psi) 38 Static Pressure (psi) 32 Static Pressure (psi) 61

Residual Pressure (psi) 30 Residual Pressure (psi) 32 Residual Pressure (psi) 60

Flow (gpm) 920

Flush Duration (psi) 30sec





Table 2 ‐ Fire Hydrant Test SCADA Data

City of Shelton

Water System Plan

SCADA DATA INFORMATION TO RECORD AT EACH HYDRANT TEST:

Hydrant Test #1

Reservoir Levels (ft): City Sources Flows (gpm): Pump Station Status/Flow (gpm):

Angleside City Well #1 Angleside BSP

Capitol Hill  City Well #3 Not running Mountain View BPS

High School City Well #4 Capitol Hill BPS

Mountain View

UMVPZ 121.6

Other Comments:  PRV station at Tarragon Ave. running 584 gpm. This station connects UMVPZ to Mt. View

Hydrant Test #2

Reservoir Levels (ft): City Sources Flows (gpm): Pump Station Status/Flow (gpm):

Angleside City Well #1 Angleside BSP

Capitol Hill  City Well #3 Mountain View BPS

High School City Well #4 Not running Capitol Hill BPS

Mountain View 59.8

Other Comments:  PRV running 608 gpm.

Hydrant Test #3

Reservoir Levels (ft): City Sources Flows (gpm): Pump Station Status/Flow (gpm):

Angleside City Well #1 Angleside BSP

Capitol Hill  City Well #3 Mountain View BPS

High School City Well #4 1100gpm Capitol Hill BPS

Mountain View 59.1

Other Comments:  PRV running 214 gpm.

Hydrant Test #4

Reservoir Levels (ft): City Sources Flows (gpm): Pump Station Status/Flow (gpm):

Angleside 58.3 City Well #1 Angleside BSP

Capitol Hill  64.3 City Well #3 Mountain View BPS

High School 18.7 City Well #4 Capitol Hill BPS 500gpm

Mountain View 63.7

UMVPZ 122.3

Other Comments: 

Hydrant Test #5

Reservoir Levels (ft): City Sources Flows (gpm): Pump Station Status/Flow (gpm):

Angleside 57.6 City Well #1 Angleside BSP

Capitol Hill  65.8 City Well #3 Mountain View BPS

High School 19.5 City Well #4 Capitol Hill BPS

Mountain View 59.1

UMVPZ 121.1

Other Comments: 

Hydrant Test #6

Reservoir Levels (ft): City Sources Flows (gpm): Pump Station Status/Flow (gpm):

Angleside 59 City Well #1 Angleside BSP

Capitol Hill  65.8 City Well #3 Mountain View BPS

High School 19.5 City Well #4 Capitol Hill BPS

Mountain View 59.1

UMVPZ 120

Other Comments: 

Hydrant Test #7

Reservoir Levels (ft): City Sources Flows (gpm): Pump Station Status/Flow (gpm):

Angleside 58.3 City Well #1 Angleside BSP 1250gpm

Capitol Hill  65.8 City Well #3 Mountain View BPS

High School 19.6 City Well #4 Capitol Hill BPS

Mountain View 59.1

UMVPZ 119.3

Other Comments: 





X

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

x x

xxxxx

x
x

x
x

x
x

x
x

x
x

x
x

xxxxx

x

xx
x

x
x

x
x

x
x

x
x

x
x

x x x x x x x

x
x

x

x x x x
x

x
x

x
x

x
x

x
x

x
x

x

x x

x x x x x x x x

xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx

x x

xxxxx

x
x

x
x

x
x

x
x

x
x

x
x

xxxxx

x

xx
x

x
x

x
x

x
x

x
x

x
x

x x x x x x x

x
x

x

x x x x
x

x
x

x
x

x
x

x
x

x
x

x

x x

x x x x x x x x

G
O

LD
SB

O
R

ISLAND LAKE

FIELD
SANDERSON

CR

OAKLAND BAY

OUGH

EE
K

DONATION LINE

RA
IL

RO
AD

T

EX. RESERVOIR

TTTTTTTTTTTTTTTT

T

T

T

T

P

DC

W

W

W

C
IT

Y 
LI

M
IT

N
. 1

3T
H

 S
T.

8" D
.I.

16" D.I.

16
" D

.I.

16
" D

.I.

8"DI
1" CI

12
"

8" DI 8"
 D

I6"

8" DI

12" DI

12" DI

4" AC

6" CI

12" DI

DI

6" DI

6"
 D

I

6" DI8" DI

8" 
DI

D
I

8"8"
DI

8" DI

6"

6"

D
I

8"DI

8"DI
ALL

10" D
I10" DI

12
" D

I

12" DI

12" DI

4" 
DI

8" DI

12
" D

I

8"
 D

I

12" DI
8" DI

2" P
OLY

12
" D

I

10" DI

10
" D

I
10

" D
I8" DI

12" AC

12"DI

8"
 P

8" P

12
" P

12
" P

8"
   

 A
C8" 

P

8" DI
8" DI

8"
 D

I8"
 D

I

8"
 D

I
2" P

SANDTRAP

12
" A

C

12" AC

12" P IN OLD
SANDTRAP

12" DI

8"
 D

I

8"
 D

I

16" S8" DI ALL

12" AC

3"
 P

8" AC

8" DI

12
" A

C

8"
 A

C
8"

 D
I

8"12
" D

I

ALL

3"

DI

16" DI

16" DI

16" DI

16" DI

10"

6"8"

12" C
I

12" DI

8" P

12" DI

12
" D

I

8" DI

12
" D

I
8"

  D
I

8"  DI

12" DI

8"
   

D
I

12" DI

12" DI

8" 8" 8"
8"

8"
8"8"

12"

12"
12"

12"
8"

8"

8"
8"

8"
8"

8"

6" CI

6" CI

8"DI

8"
 D

I

DI8"

8" DI

8" DI

8" DI

AC

6"

1"

ALL

6"C
I8"DI

C
I

6"

8" P

8" C
I

8" C
I

6"
 A

C

6" AC

8" AC

12" AC

24
" S

12
" D

I

12" DI

8" P

6" CI8" AC
8"AC

8" AC
8" AC 8" AC

12" DI 12" CI
12" CI

12" CI
12" CI

12"

6"  C
I

6"   C
I

12" D

6" CI

6" CI

6" CI

6" P
6" CI

6" CI

6" CI
6" CI6" CI

6" CI
6" CI

6" CI

6" T

12" CI

12" CI

6" CI

6" CI

6" CI

8" AC
8" CI

8" DI

6" AC

6" CI
6" CI6" AC4" AC

8" CI

6"CI

6" CI

6"    AC6" AC

6" AC

6" AC

6"  AC 4" AC

1.
5"

G

8" AC

8" CI

8" CI

8" CI

8" CI

12" DI 12" DI 12" DI 12" DI

6" CI
6" CI

6" CI

6" CI

4" AC

6" CI

6" CI

6" CI
6" CI

12" DI

6" CI

6" CI

6" CI

6" CI

6" CI

8" DI

20" S

8" P
8" P

6"   C
I

8" P
8" AC

6" CI

6" CI

12" CI
12" AC

12" CI

12" CI

6" CI

6" CI

6" CI
6" CI

6" CI

6"
 C

I

6" P

8" CI 12" DI 6" C
I

8" DI
6"

8"

12" DI

8" P

8" P

8" AC

12" DI

12
" D

I
12

" D
I

8" DI

6"
D

I

12
"D

I 8"DI

4"DI

8" DI 6" DI

6"
 A

C

8" DI

6" CI

12" DI

CI

8"DI

8"
D

I

8"D
I

8"DI

6" AC

6" CI6" CI6" CI 6" P

6" CI
6" CI

6" CI

6"
 C

I
6"

P

6" CI

6" P 6" P

6"
 P

6"
P

6"
 P

6"
 P

6" P

6" 
P

6" P

6" P

6" P

6" P

6" CI 6" DI

2" PE1"
 C 8"
 C

I

8"
 C

I6"
 C

I
4"

 C
I

6" CI

6" CI
6" CI

6" CI

6" AC
6" CI

6" P

8" CI

8" CI 8" CI

6" CI
6" AC

6" C
I6"

 C
I

6" CI 6" CI 6" CI 6" CI 6" CI

4"
 C

I

8" CI
8" CI2" PE

6" CI

8" CI

6"
 C

I
6"

 D
I

6"
 C

I

2"G

2"
 C

I

PE

12
" S

10" DI

3/4" P

12"
16"AC

8"
D

I

1"G

3/
4"

2" PE

2"
 P

E

2" G
6" CI

12" AC

2" PE

12
" D

I

6" CI

12
" S

6" CI

6"
 C

I

16
" A

C

12" AC

6" CI

6" CI

8" CI

6" AC

12" AC8" AC

6"
 A

C

10"CI

12" AC

10" CI 10" CI
10"CI

2"PE

12" AC12"   DI

12
" S

16
" D

I

16
" D

I

16" H

1"G

16
"A

C

2"PE 2"
PE

12"DI

2"
 C

2"
 C

6"
CI

8"P

6"P

1"
PE

6"    CI

6" CI
6" CI

6" CI
6" CI

6" CI 8" CI

8"
 C

I
8"

 C
I

6"
 C

I
6"

 C
I

8"
 C

I

8"
 C

I

6"
 C

I

6"
 C

I
6"

 C
I

6"
 C

I

6"
 C

I

6" CI 6"  CI6"
 C

I 6"
 C

I

6"
 C

I

14" AC

14"        AC

6" CI 6" CI
6" CI

6"
 A

C
14

" A
C

14
"

6" CI

8"
P

6"
 C6"

 A
C

6"
 C

I

6" CI

2"
 P

E

1"PE

6" P

6"
 C

I

6" 2" 6" 6"
6"

6"

12" H

(SLIP LINE EX. 30" S)

8" CI

6"
 D

I

6"
 C

I

12"DI

12
"D

I

8" CI8" CI

12"     CI

8" CI 8" CI 8" CI

12
" S

12
" S

12
" S

12
" S

8" AC8" AC
8" AC

4"
 A

C

6" AC

6" CI

6" AC6"
 D

I

2"
PE

6" CI

6"
 C

I
6"

 C
I

2"P 6"CI

6"CI
6"CI

2" PE8" P8" P

8" P

6"
 C

I

12
"D

I

6"CI

12" CI

12
" A

C

8"DI

4" AC

12
"A

C

6"
D

I

6"
 C

I
6"

 C
I

6"
C

I

8"DI

8"
D

I
6" C
I 6" CI

12
" D

I

3 4"
 C

2"
 G

6" 
CI

6" CI

2" P

6"
 C

I

8" CI

8" CI

8"
 D

I

6" 
CI

E

6" P

6" C
I

2" PE6"
 C

I

6" AC

8" CI

6" AC

6" AC
4" CI

6"
 A

C
6"

 A
C

8" CI 8"CI 8"
C

I

8"C
I

4" CI

6"
 C

I

8"
CI

4" CI
F.L.

1.5" C

1"P

12" A
C

C

8" DI8"
D

I

2"

8" DI
8" DI

8" DI 2" PE

8"
 D

I

8"
 D

I

2" PE

2" PE

8" CI

8"
D

I

8"DI

4"AC

8"DI

12
"D

I
12

"D
I

DI

6" AC

6" P

12"DI

6" CI

6" 
CI

8"
D

I

6"CI

2" 
G

2"G

6" 
P

6" 
CI

6" CI

6" 
CI

6" 
CI

6" 
CI

6" 
CI

6" 
CI

6"
 C

I
6"

 C
I

6"
 P

6"
 C

I
6"

 C
I

6"
 C

I
6"

 C
I

6"
 C

I
8"

 C
I

1"
PE

6"
 C

I

6"CI 6" CI

6" CI
12" P

6" CI

6" CI
6" CI

12"
12" AC

6" CI

12" AC

8"
 C

I
8"

 C
I

8"
 C

I

6" CI

6" CI

6" CI

12"P

6"
 C

I

6" P

6" P

2" PE
6" 

P

6" P

6" P

6" CI

6"AC 6" CI 6" CI 6" CI

6"
 P

6" P

6" CI
6" P6"P

12" AC

6" P

6" CI

12
" A

C
12

" A
C

12
" A

C

6" CI 6" CI

1 1/4" G

8"
 C

I

6" CI 6" CI

6" P 6" P 6" P

6"
 C

I

8"
 C

I

2"
 P

E

6"
C

I
6"

 C
I

12" AC12" S

8"
 D

I

12" DI

8"
 D

I 8" DI 8"
 D

I

6" DI

4"
 D

I

8" DI

6" DI

6"

6" AC

12
"D

I

6"
 C

I

8"DI

8"
 D

I

8"DI

8"
 D

I

8"DI 8"
D

I
8"

D
I

3 4"
 G

6"DI

6" AC

8"DI

8"DI

8" AC

6" 
CI

12" AC
12" AC

6" CI
6" CI 6" CI 6" CI

6" CI 8"   AC 8" AC

6" CI

6" CI 6" CI

6"
 C

I
6"

 C
I

6"
 C

I

6" C
I

6" CI

6" CI

12" CI 12" CI 12" CI 12" DI 12" DI 12" DI

1"
PO

LY

6" CI

6"
 C

I

6"
 P 6" CI

6"
 C

I
6"

 C
I

6"
 C

I
6"

 C
I

6" CI

12" DI 8" DI

8" DI

12" DI

8"
 D

I

12
" D

I

12
" D

I

2"
 G

6" P

6"
 A

C
6"

 A
C

6"
 A

C

6" P

6" P

6"
 C

I
6"

 C
I

2"
 G

6"
 C

I

12" DI 12" DI

6"
 P

6"
D

I

6"
 P

6"
 C

I 8" AC

6"
 C

I

2"PE

8"
 D

I

6"
 C

I

12"DI 12"DI

8"DI

AC

8"
 D

I

6"
 C

I

6" CI

12
" D

I
12

" D
I

8" CI UNDER
TRACKS

8" D.I.

8"
 D

I

16" D.I.

6"
 D

.I.

8"
 D

.I.

8"
 D

.I.

8"
 D

.I.

8" D.I.

8" D.I.
8" D.I.

8"
 D

.I.10" D.I.

10" D.I.

12" P C900

12" P C900

12" P C900

12" P C900

12" P C
900

12" P C900

12" DI

8"
 D

I

6" CI
8" DI

6" DI

8" DI

8" D.I. 6"

PORT OF SHELTON LIMIT

8"
 D

I

WELL #1

PRIVATE

PRIVATE

CASING
(TYP.)

CITY LIMIT
8"

(1
40

 p.
s.i

.)

CAPITOL HILL 
WATER TANK

225,000 GALLON

ANGLESIDE
WATER TANK

500,000 GALLON

MT. VIEW
WATER TANK

535,000 GALLON

12" AC

8" S(OFF)

1"
PE

1"
PE

1"
PE

1½"
1"

1"
PE

2"PE
OFF

1"PE
OFF6"CI

2"
PE(2
)1

"P
E

1"
PE

P

12" P

AC12"P
12"

P

6P

12"  P

ALL

STEEL CASING 

JO
HN'S

 P
RAI

RIE
 R

D.

12
"

12" P

12" P

12"P

(TYP.)

16" PVC
16" PVC

16" PVC
STEEL CASING 
(TYP.)

UPPER MT. VIEW
WATER TANK

400,000 GALLON

ANGLESIDE RESERVOIR
BOOSTER PUMP STATION

12" DI
ALL

VAULT

8"D
I

WELL #3
WELL #4

12
" D

I

12"    P      C900

12" DI

Not
Connected

Not
Connected

Not Shown

6"
 P

Not Shown

Not
Shown

12"P

20'

5'

9'PVC

15' 7'

7'

WATER MAP
CITY OF SHELTON'S

SEE
DETAIL 4

SEE
DETAIL 5

SEE
DETAIL 1

SEE
DETAIL 3

SEE
DETAIL 2

FIELD
LOOP

METER
LOOP

STATION
BOOSTER

16
" D

I  (
14

0 p
.s.

i.)
12

" S

STATION
PUMP
OLD

SHOPS
CITY

ANGLESIDE

CAPPED

12" C.I.

TO MT. VIEW

12" D.I.

LM

12" A.C.

12" A.C.

TO H.S. TANK

TO PINE ST.

DETAIL 2
NTS

(OFF)
8" S

12
TH

 S
T.

RAILROAD

FRANKLIN

12
"D

I

12"DI

16
" D

I

6" CI

6" CI

6"
 C

I

12
" S

3/4"P

12
" S

2"G

AVE.

16" HDPE

AVE.

GV

12" DI

GV

GV GV
BV

GV

GV

12
" S

GV

20
19

DETAIL 3
NTS

(CLSD.)

6
PASS LINE

BY-

12" AC

10
"

20" S

STATION
PRESSURE RELIEF VALVE

VALVE STATION
ALTITUDE

20 LF 8" &

10"DI

16"
AC

18 LF 10" &

12
"

WATER TANK

18"

DETAIL 1
NTS

12" 12"
12"

HIGH SCHOOL

500,000 GALLON

P

6666666666666
T

05.2017 WATER MAP. dwg

SHOWING APPROXIMATE LOCATIONS OF 
THIS MAP IS A REPRESENTATION OF THE CITY

UTILITY STRUCTURES AND LINES.  IT IS NOT
A SURVEY ACCURATE DRAWING.  THIS CITY OF

FOR FIELD VERIFICATION OF UTILITIES

SHELTON UTILITY MAP IS NOT VERIFICATION OF ALL

UNDERGROUND UTILITY LOCATION CENTER

UNDERGROUND UTILITY STRUCTURES AND LINES.

DEPT. 1082
P.O. BOX 34936
SEATTLE, WA 98124-1936
PH. #1 800 424-5555

CONTACT:

DETAIL 4
NTS

DETAIL 5
NTS

WELL #3

WELL #4

VALVE

HYDRANT

(TYP.)

FLOW
METER

12" DI
12" PVC

8" D
I 

FIRE

BUTTERFLY
12" x 8" 
REDUCER

GATE VALVE
(TYP.)

PRESSURE REDUCING 
VALVE VAULT

VAULT
FLOW  METER

VALVE (TYP.)

FH

12" DI

12" PVC C900

8"
 D

I

12" C900

8" x 12"
REDUCER

SHELTON      SPRINGS    RD.

TA
RRAGON   A

VE.

12
" D

I

PRV
FM

12
" D

I

(TYP.)

GATE VALVE
FIRE HYDRANT (Private, no City maint.)

BLOWOFF ASSEMBLY

WATER LINE

LEGEND

CITY WATER TANK

PUMP STATION

PRESSURE RELIEF VALVE STATION

ALTITUDE VALVE STATION

G

C

PIPE MATERIAL ABBREVIATIONS

WATER LINE ##LETTER
PIPE DIAMETER - (INCHES)

PIPE MAT'L. ABBREVIATION

H

W

DI

P

S

AC

CI

PE

GALVANIZED

COPPER

HDPE (HIGH DENSITY POLYETHELYNE)

WOOD

DUCTILE IRON

PVC  (POLYVINYL CHLORIDE)

STEEL

ASBESTOS CONCRETE

CAST IRON

POLYETHELYNE

=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=
=

GV

GV

BV

GATE VALVE (CLOSED)

GATE VALVE (OPEN)

BUTTERFLY VALVE

REDUCER/ INCREASER

FIRE HYDRANT (City Maintained)

T

P

WELL

AIR/ VACUUM ASSEMBLY

BUTTERFLY VALVE





0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1

1.2

1.4

1.6

1.8

2

0:00 2:00 4:00 6:00 8:00 10:00 12:00 14:00 16:00 18:00 20:00 22:00 0:00

P
e

a
k

in
g

 F
a

ct
o

r

Time of Day

2019 Diurnal Pattern

Note: Diurnal pattern was used 

for 2019 model scenarios.



0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1

1.2

1.4

1.6

1.8

0:00 2:00 4:00 6:00 8:00 10:00 12:00 14:00 16:00 18:00 20:00 22:00 0:00

P
e

a
k

in
g

 F
a

ct
o

r

Time of Day

2029 Diurnal Pattern

Note: Diurnal pattern was used for 

2029 and 2039 model scenarios.



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | APPENDICES | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021  

Appendix 5B  
WATER RIGHTS SELF-ASSESSMENT 
 





Water Right Self-Assessment Form for 
Water System Plans 
331-372 • 1/13/2017 

If you need this publication in an alternative format, call 800.525.0127 
(TDD/TTY call 711). This and other publications are available at 
www.doh.wa.gov/drinkingwater. 

All water right permits, claims, and certificates must be evaluated in a water right self-
assessment for all sources used to supply the water system. The self-assessment compares the 
parameters and other limitations of existing water rights against current and forecasted water 
production, as described in your water system plan, to determine whether the rights are 
adequate to serve your system’s current and future water needs. 

You must account for all sources of supply and total quantities of water withdrawn from the 
source. If you purchase water from another purveyor through a non-emergency intertie, you 
must complete the INTERTIES section of the self-assessment. 

A Note on Exempt Wells 
If you’re seeking DOH approval of a new Group A or Group B water system using an exempt 
well, you must complete the self-assessment, although certain fields will not apply. Talk to your 
DOH regional planner about using the Water Right Self-Assessment form for a Small Water 
System Management Program instead of this version. 

Local governments must ensure that an adequate potable water supply is available from the 
exempt well before issuing a building permit. Before developing a permit exempt well, check 
with your local authorities on their criteria for establishing an adequate potable water supply for 
your planned public water system. 

Water Right Parameters 
Below is a brief description of the parameters associated with a typical water right. For the self-
assessment, you only need to describe the last two bulleted items if they apply to your water 
rights. 

Source Type – this refers to whether the source is surface water, groundwater or a 
spring. 
Source Location – this refers to the location of points of groundwater withdrawal or 
surface water diversion for each right. 
Purpose of Use – this refers to the type of use, such as municipal water supply, 
community domestic, industrial or agricultural purposes. 
Place of Use – this describes where water can be put to beneficial use under the right. 
Under the 2003 Municipal Water Law, RCW 90.03.386, the place of use for a water right 
held for municipal water supply purposes may be the system’s service area as identified 
in an approved water system plan or small water system management program. 
See Ecology Policy 2030 for information on how Ecology administers the Municipal 
Water Law. 

http://www.ecy.wa.gov/programs/wr/rules/images/pdf/pol2030.pdf


Page 2 of 6 

Period of Use – this refers to time-of-year limitations in which the water right may be 
put to use. If any water right has a time-of-year limitation, please include this 
information in the INTERRUPTIBLE WATER RIGHTS section. 
Provisions or Limiting Conditions – this refers to any provisions or conditions placed 
on the water right. If a water right has a limiting condition or other provision, such as a 
collection and reporting requirement, other than a time-of year limitation, include this 
information in the ADDITIONAL COMMENTS section at the bottom of the self-
assessment and in the water system plan narrative. 

See Ecology Policy 1040 for more information on water right terminology. If you have questions 
about your water rights, please contact the Ecology regional office in your area. 

Completing the Water Right Self-Assessment Form 
The self-assessment is a Word document to allow users to make changes or to expand the 
document. You may use another format, if preferred, as long as all required information is 
included. Below is a description of all fields and how to complete them. This form is divided into 
four different sections. Each section is described in the headings below. 

See the column identifiers (A, B, C, etc) at the bottom of each column for guidance in 
completing the necessary calculations. 

Water Right Permit, Certificate, or Claim Number: This number is assigned by Ecology 
when a permit application is filed. It’s listed at the top of the permit or certificate. For water 
right claims, this is the registration number stamped in the lower left hand corner of the 
claim form. 

WFI Source #: Identify the individual sources (e.g. well #1, well #2) as defined on the DOH 
Water Facilities Inventory form. If a water right is associated with multiple sources, list all 
sources in the same row in this column. If a source is associated with multiple water rights, 
identify each water right on a separate row. 

If you have any source(s) that is not currently being used (categorized as standby, back-up, or 
emergency), and the source has an associated water right that is not listed in column #1, please 
include the source and water right information in the ADDITIONAL COMMENTS section. This will 
identify that the source is still intended for a beneficial use under RCW 90.03.015(4). See Ecology 
Policy 1040. 

EXISTING WATER RIGHTS SECTION (olive green color, top section) 

This section refers to existing water rights. It does not include any water right applications that 
have been submitted to Ecology. 

Primary Qi (Instantaneous Quantity): This is also known as instantaneous flow rate. It’s the 
amount of water allowed to be taken under the right from the source during a period of 
peak operation. For surface water, this is generally expressed in terms of cubic feet per 

http://www.ecy.wa.gov/programs/wr/rules/images/pdf/pol1040.pdf
http://www.ecy.wa.gov/programs/wr/rules/images/pdf/pol1040.pdf
http://www.ecy.wa.gov/programs/wr/rules/images/pdf/pol1040.pdf


Page 3 of 6 

second (cfs). For groundwater, this is generally expressed in terms of gallons per minute 
(gpm). One cfs equals 448.8 gpm. Please indicate the units of measurement you are using for 
each source. If there are situations where the flow rate will be limited (e.g. limitations 
established on the source when other sources are utilized), please note them in the 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS section in the form and in the WSP narrative. 

Non-Additive Qi: This term was formally known as “supplemental.” Your water rights may 
use the old terminology. See Ecology Policy 1040 for more information. Not all water rights 
have non-additive quantities. If a water right has non-additive Qi quantities, include the non-
additive quantity in this field. This is generally listed in the “quantity, type of use, period of 
use” section on both permits and certificates. Non-additive quantities should not be included 
in the primary Qi totals. 

Primary Qa (Annual Quantity): This is the amount of water that can be taken from the 
source under the right on an annual basis. It’s usually expressed in terms of acre-feet. An 
acre-foot is the amount of water necessary to submerge an acre of land to a depth of one 
foot. One acre-foot equals 43,560 cubic feet or 325,851 gallons of water. 

Non-Additive Qa: This term was formerly known as “supplemental.” Your water rights may 
use the old terminology. See Ecology Policy 1040 for more information. Not all water rights 
have non-additive quantities. If a water right has non-additive Qa quantities, include the 
non-additive quantity in this field. This is generally listed in the “quantity, type of use, period 
of use” section on both permits and certificates. Non-additive quantities should not be 
included in the primary Qa totals. 

CURRENT SOURCE PRODUCTION SECTION (light green color, top section) 

This section refers to how much water is withdrawn from the source under each water right for 
the most recent full calendar year. You will need to determine any excess or deficiency for each 
water right after calculating how much water was withdrawn compared to how much water is 
allowed under each water right. If demand has decreased over past years, you may wish to 
include historic maximum production information in the ADDITIONAL COMMENTS section. This 
will provide a more complete picture of the use of your water rights. 

Use the water use data and demand projections from your water system plan to define current 
and projected water needs. You can determine if you’ll need additional water rights based on 
the comparison of existing water rights, current water production, and projected 10- and 20-
year needs. 

Total Qi (Instantaneous Quantity): This refers to the total maximum instantaneous flow 
rate withdrawn from the source under each water right during the most recent calendar year. 
For surface water, this is expressed in terms of cubic feet per second (cfs). For groundwater, 
this is expressed in terms of gallons per minute (gpm). One cfs equals 448.8 gpm. 

http://www.ecy.wa.gov/programs/wr/rules/images/pdf/pol1040.pdf
http://www.ecy.wa.gov/programs/wr/rules/images/pdf/pol1040.pdf


Page 4 of 6 

Current Excess or Deficiency (Qi): Please calculate the excess or deficiency for each water 
right after comparing the total amount withdrawn against each water right. Please use 
parentheses for deficient amounts. 

Total Qa (Annual Quantity): This refers to the total volume of water withdrawn from each 
source under each water right during the most recent calendar year. It’s usually expressed in 
acre-feet. 

Current Excess or Deficiency (Qa): Please calculate the excess or deficiency for each water 
right after comparing the total amount withdrawn against each water right. Please use 
parentheses for deficient amounts. 

10-YEAR FORECASTED SOURCE PRODUCTION SECTION (light blue color, top section) 

This section refers to how much water you project to withdraw from each source in ten years as 
determined in your water system plan. Please complete this section in the same manner (using 
the same units of measurement) as the current source production section using your 10-year 
forecasted amounts. 

20-YEAR FORECASTED SOURCE PRODUCTION SECTION (darker blue color, top section) 

This section refers to how much water you project to withdraw from each source in twenty years 
as determined in your water system plan. Please complete this section in the same manner 
(using the same units of measurement) as the current source production section using your 20-
year forecasted amounts. If you are unable to provide 20-year forecasts for each source, you 
may choose to include the combined 20-year total at the bottom. 

PENDING WATER RIGHTS SECTION (second section of form) 

Please complete this section for any water right applications that have been submitted to 
Ecology. Please include the application number, whether it’s a new or a change application, the 
date submitted, and the total quantities requested. 

INTERTIES SECTION (third section of form) 

This section must be completed by purveyors who purchase any amount of wholesale water. If 
your system sells water to another public water system, include the quantity sold in the 
CURRENT SOURCE PRODUCTION section. 

Purchasers of wholesale water must account for all water obtained through the intertie for non-
emergency supply purposes. This is to ensure that all sources of supply are considered when 
evaluating whether new water rights are needed within 20 years. 

Please identify the maximum quantity of water, expressed in the same manner as the above 
sections, allowed under each intertie contract. If there are limiting conditions or temporary 



Page 5 of 6 

agreements that effect the long-term use of the intertie, you must account for such limiting 
conditions when evaluating the current and forecasted water supply needs in your water system 
plan. 

Finally, purchasers of wholesale water are responsible for ensuring that the underlying water 
right (held by the purveyor selling water) are adequate for such use. You should confirm that the 
selling system has accounted for the wholesale area in their water system plan to ensure that 
the water right authorizes the distribution of water through the intertie. 

INTERRUPTIBLE WATER RIGHTS SECTION (bottom section of form) 

This section refers to water rights that have an annual time-of-year interruption. Please 
complete this section for any water right listed in the above fields that has a time-of-year 
interruption. Please include the water right number, describe the limitation, and the time period 
of interruption. Purveyors with interruptible rights should develop a water shortage response 
plan as part of their water system plan to describe how demand will be met during periods of 
interruption through aggressive demand-side conservation, fixing leaks or other means. 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS SECTION (bottom section of form) 

If the system has any source that is not currently being used on a regular basis (such a source 
may be categorized as stand-by, back-up, emergency), you should identify the source in this 
section if the source has an associated water right that is not listed in the above sections. The 
purpose is to identify that such water rights are still intended for a future beneficial use as 
required under RCW 90.03.015(4). See Page 2, Item 9 (b) in ECY Policy 2030. For these water 
rights, please briefly describe the future intended use of the source and when you expect to 
utilize the water right. This does not refer to sources categorized as seasonal sources. 

You should also include any other comments in this section that will explain aspects of your 
water right portfolio that are not identified above. 

http://www.ecy.wa.gov/programs/wr/rules/images/pdf/pol2030.pdf




 

Water Right Self-Assessment Form for Water System Plan 
Mouse-over any link for more information. Click on any link for more detailed instructions. 

Water Right 
Permit, 

Certificate, or 
Claim # 

*If water right is 
interruptible, 

identify limitation 
in yellow section 

below 

WFI Source # 
If a source has 
multiple water 
rights, list each 
water right on 
separate line 

Existing Water Rights 
Qi= Instantaneous Flow Rate Allowed (GPM or CFS) 

Qa= Annual Volume Allowed (Acre-Feet/Year) 
This includes wholesale water sold 

Current Source Production – Most Recent 
Calendar Year 

Qi = Max Instantaneous Flow Rate Withdrawn (GPM or CFS) 
Qa = Annual Volume Withdrawn (Acre-Feet/Year) 

This includes wholesale water sold 

10-Year Forecasted Source Production 
(determined from WSP) 

This includes wholesale water sold 

20-Year Forecasted Source Production 
(determined from WSP) 

This includes wholesale water sold 

Primary 
Qi 

Maximum 
Rate Allowed 

Non-Additive 
Qi 

Maximum 
Rate 

Allowed 

Primary 
Qa 

Maximum 
Volume 
Allowed 

Non-
Additive Qa 
Maximum 
Volume 
Allowed 

Total Qi 
Maximum 

Instantaneous 
Flow Rate 
Withdrawn 

Current 
Excess or 

(Deficiency) 
Qi 

Total Qa 
Maximum 

Annual 
Volume 

Withdrawn 

Current 
Excess or 

(Deficiency) 
Qa 

Total Qi 
Maximum 

Instantaneous 
Flow Rate 
in 10 Years  

10-Year 
Forecasted 
Excess or 

(Deficiency) 
Qi 

Total Qa 
Maximum 

Annual 
Volume 

in 10 Years 

10-Year 
Forecasted 
Excess or 

(Deficiency) 
Qa 

Total Qi 
Maximum 

Instantaneous 
Flow Rate 
in 20 Years 

20-Year 
Forecasted 
Excess or 

(Deficiency) 
Qi 

Total Qa 
Maximum 

Annual 
Volume 

in 20 Years 

20-Year 
Forecasted 
Excess or 

(Deficiency) 
Qa 

745 S01 2,250 gpm  3,620 ac-ft               
1008-A S02 3,000 gpm  1,190 ac-ft    246 ac-ft          
2072-A S05 1,200 gpm   1,344 ac-ft   661 ac-ft          
G2-25241 S04 1,000 gpm   1,500 ac-ft   258 ac-ft          
                  

  TOTALS = 7,450 gpm  4,810 ac-ft  1,458 gpm 5,992 gpm 1,165 ac-ft 3,645 ac-ft 2,681 gpm 4,769 gpm 2,016 ac-ft 2,794 ac-ft 3,500 gpm 3,950 gpm 2,632 ac-ft 2,178 ac-ft 

Column Identifiers for Calculations: A B C =A-C D =B-D E  = A-E F =B-F  G =A-G H =B-H 

PENDING WATER RIGHT APPLICATIONS: Identify any water right applications that have been submitted to Ecology. 

Application 
Number 

New or Change 
Application? Date Submitted 

Quantities Requested  
Primary Qi Non-Additive Qi Primary Qa Non-Additive Qa 

       
       

 
INTERTIES: Systems receiving wholesale water complete this section. Wholesaling systems must include water sold through intertie in the current and forecasted source production columns above. 

Name of Wholesaling 
System Providing Water  

Quantities Allowed 
In Contract 

Expiration 
Date of 
Contract 

Currently Purchased 
Current quantity purchased through intertie  

10-Year Forecasted Purchase 
Forecasted quantity purchased through intertie 

20-Year Forecasted Purchase 
Forecasted quantity purchased through intertie 

Maximum 
 Qi 

Instantaneous 
Flow Rate  

Maximum 
Qa 

Annual 
Volume 

Maximum 
Qi 

Instantaneous 
Flow Rate  

Current 
Excess or 

(Deficiency) 
Qi 

Maximum 
Qa 

Annual 
Volume 

Current 
Excess or 

(Deficiency) 
Qa 

Maximum 
Qi 

10-Year 
Forecast 

Future Excess 
or 

(Deficiency) 
Qi 

Maximum 
Qa 

10-Year 
Forecast 

Future 
Excess or 

(Deficiency) 
Qa 

Maximum 
Qi 

20-Year 
Forecast 

Future 
Excess or 

(Deficiency) 
Qi 

Maximum 
Qa 

20-Year 
Forecast 

Future 
Excess or 

(Deficiency) 
Qa 

1                 
2                
3                

TOTALS =                

Column Identifiers for Calculations:  A B  C =A-C D =B-D E =A-E F =B-F G =A-G H =B-H 

INTERRUPTIBLE WATER RIGHTS: Identify limitations on any water rights listed above that are interruptible. 

Water Right # Conditions of Interruption Time Period of Interruption 
1   
2   
3   

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: 

 





WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | APPENDICES | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021  

Appendix 6A  
DRINKING WATER QUALITY MONITORING 
PROGRAM 
 





Apr
2021

May
2021

Jun
2021

Jul
2021

Aug
2021

Sep
2021

Oct
2021

Nov
2021

Dec
2021

Jan
2022

Feb
2022

Mar
2022

Coliform
Monitoring Population

21413 21413 21413 17463 17463 21413 21313 21313 21313 21313 21313 21413

Number of Routine
Samples Required 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20

Coliform Monitoring Requirements

     - Collect samples from representative points throughout the distribution system.
     - Collect required repeat samples following an unsatisfactory sample. In addition, collect a sample from each operating groundwater source.
     - For systems that chlorinate, record chlorine residual (measured when the coliform sample is collected) on the coliform lab slip.

Test Panel/Analyte # Samples 
Required

Compliance Period Frequency Last Sample Date Next Sample Due

Lead and Copper 30 Jan 2019 - Dec 2021 standard - 3 year 08/22/2018 Aug 2021

Asbestos 0 Jan 2020 - Dec 2028 waiver - 9 year 09/10/2013

Total Trihalomethane (THM) 2 Jan 2021 - Dec 2021 reduced - 1 year 11/09/2020 Nov 2021

Halo-Acetic Acids (HAA5) 2 Jan 2021 - Dec 2021 reduced - 1 year 11/09/2020 Nov 2021

Chemical Monitoring Requirements

Distribution Monitoring

System: SHELTON CITY OF
Contact: Matt C Deemer

PWS ID: 78170 N
Group: A - Comm

Region: SOUTHWEST
County: MASON

NOTE:  To receive credit for compliance samples, you must fill out laboratory and sample paperwork completely, send your samples to a laboratory accredited by 
Washington State to conduct the analyses, AND ensure the results are submitted to DOH Office of Drinking Water.  There is often a lag time between when you collect 
your sample, when we credit your system with meeting the monitoring requirement, and when we generate the new monitoring requirement.

Generated on: 04/01/2021 Page 1 of 4

Water Quality Monitoring Schedule



Notes on Distribution System Chemical Monitoring

For Lead and Copper: -  Collect samples from the COLD WATER side of a KITCHEN or BATHROOM faucet that is used daily.
- Before sampling, make sure the water has sat unused in the pipes for at least 6 hours, but no more than 12 hours (e.g. overnight).
- If you are sampling from a faucet that has hot water, make sure cold water is the last water to run through the faucet before it sits overnight.
- If your sampling frequency is annual or every 3 years, collect samples between June 1 and September 30.

For Asbestos: Collect the sample from one of your routine coliform sampling sites in an area of your distribution system that has asbestos concrete pipe.

For Disinfection Byproducts (HAA5 and THM): Collect the samples at the locations identified in your Disinfection Byproducts (DBP) monitoring plan.

Collect ‘source’ chemical monitoring samples from a tap after all treatment (if any), but before entering the distribution system.
Washington State grants monitoring waivers for various test panels /analytes. Please note that we may require some monitoring as a condition of some waivers.
We have granted complete waivers for dioxin, endothal, glyphosate, diquat, and insecticides.
Nitrate, arsenic, iron, and other individual inorganics are included as part of a Complete Inorganic (IOC) analysis when it is collected.

Source Monitoring

-
-

-

Source S02  WELL #1 AHB646 Use - Permanent Susceptility - HighWell

Test Panel/Analyte # Samples
Required

Compliance Period Frequency Last Sample
Date

Next Sample
Due

Nitrate 1 Jan 2021 - Dec 2021 standard - 1 year 10/12/2020 Mar 2021

Complete Inorganic (IOC)   1 Jan 2020 - Dec 2028 waiver - 9 year 10/09/2018 Oct 2027

Iron 1 Jan 2020 - Dec 2022 standard - 3 year 10/09/2018 Oct 2022

Volatile Organics (VOC)   1 Jan 2020 - Dec 2022 standard - 3 year 07/11/2019 Jul 2022

Herbicides 1 Jan 2014 - Dec 2022 waiver - 9 year 04/23/2018

Pesticides 0 Jan 2020 - Dec 2022 waiver - 3 year 04/13/2009

Soil Fumigants 0 Jan 2020 - Dec 2022 waiver - 3 year

Gross Alpha 1 Jan 2020 - Dec 2025 standard - 6 year 09/08/2016 Sep 2022

Radium 228 1 Jan 2020 - Dec 2025 standard - 6 year 09/08/2016 Sep 2022

Source S04  WELL #3 AHB645 Use - Permanent Susceptility - LowWell

Test Panel/Analyte # Samples
Required

Compliance Period Frequency Last Sample
Date

Next Sample
Due

Nitrate 1 Jan 2021 - Dec 2021 standard - 1 year 10/12/2020 Oct 2021

Complete Inorganic (IOC)   1 Jan 2020 - Dec 2028 waiver - 9 year 10/09/2018 Oct 2027

Generated on: 04/01/2021 Page 2 of 4

Water Quality Monitoring Schedule



Collect ‘source’ chemical monitoring samples from a tap after all treatment (if any), but before entering the distribution system.
Washington State grants monitoring waivers for various test panels /analytes. Please note that we may require some monitoring as a condition of some waivers.
We have granted complete waivers for dioxin, endothal, glyphosate, diquat, and insecticides.
Nitrate, arsenic, iron, and other individual inorganics are included as part of a Complete Inorganic (IOC) analysis when it is collected.

Source Monitoring

-
-

-

Source S04  WELL #3 AHB645 Use - Permanent Susceptility - LowWell

Test Panel/Analyte # Samples
Required

Compliance Period Frequency Last Sample
Date

Next Sample
Due

Iron 1 Jan 2020 - Dec 2022 standard - 3 year 10/09/2018 Oct 2022

Volatile Organics (VOC)   1 Jan 2020 - Dec 2022 standard - 3 year 07/09/2013 Mar 2021

Herbicides 1 Jan 2014 - Dec 2022 waiver - 9 year 04/23/2018

Pesticides 0 Jan 2020 - Dec 2022 waiver - 3 year 04/13/2009

Soil Fumigants 0 Jan 2020 - Dec 2022 waiver - 3 year

Gross Alpha 1 Jan 2020 - Dec 2025 standard - 6 year 10/20/2016 Oct 2022

Radium 228 1 Jan 2020 - Dec 2025 standard - 6 year 10/20/2016 Oct 2022

Source S05  WELL #4 AEC942 Use - Permanent Susceptility - LowWell

Test Panel/Analyte # Samples
Required

Compliance Period Frequency Last Sample
Date

Next Sample
Due

Nitrate 1 Jan 2021 - Dec 2021 standard - 1 year 08/21/2020 Oct 2021

Complete Inorganic (IOC)   1 Jan 2020 - Dec 2028 waiver - 9 year 07/14/2016 Jul 2025

Volatile Organics (VOC)   1 Jan 2020 - Dec 2025 waiver - 6 year 10/12/2020

Herbicides 1 Jan 2014 - Dec 2022 waiver - 9 year 04/25/2017

Pesticides 0 Jan 2020 - Dec 2022 waiver - 3 year 04/29/2008

Soil Fumigants 0 Jan 2020 - Dec 2022 waiver - 3 year

Gross Alpha 1 Jan 2020 - Dec 2025 standard - 6 year 08/19/2015 Aug 2021

Radium 228 1 Jan 2020 - Dec 2025 standard - 6 year 08/19/2015 Aug 2021

Generated on: 04/01/2021 Page 3 of 4

Water Quality Monitoring Schedule



Other Information

Other Reporting Schedules 

Special Notes

None

Southwest Regional Water Quality Monitoring Contacts

For questions regarding chemical monitoring: Sophia Petro: (360) 236-3046 or sophia.petro@doh.wa.gov

For questions regarding DBPs: Regina Grimm, p.e.: (360) 236-3035 or regina.grimm@doh.wa.gov
For questions regarding coliform bacteria and microbial issues: Southwest Office: (360) 236-3030 or SWRO.Coli@doh.wa.gov

Additional Notes

The information on this monitoring schedule is valid as of the date in the upper left corner on the first page. However, the information may change with subsequent 
updates in our water quality monitoring database as we receive new data or revise monitoring schedules. There is often a lag time between when you collect your 
sample and when we credit your system with meeting the monitoring requirement.

We have not designed this monitoring schedule to display all compliance requirements. The purpose of this schedule is to assist water systems with planning for most 
water quality monitoring, and to allow systems to compare their records with DOH ODW records. Please be aware that this monitoring schedule does not include 
constituents that require a special monitoring frequency, such as monitoring affiliated with treatment.

Any inaccuracies on this schedule will not relieve the water system owner and operator of the requirement to comply with applicable regulations.

If you have any questions about your monitoring requirements, please contact the regional office staff listed above.

Due Date     

Measure chlorine residuals and submit monthly reports if your system uses continuous chlorination: monthly

Submit Consumer Confidence Report (CCR) to customers and ODW (Community systems only): 07/01/2021
Submit CCR certification form to ODW (Community systems only): 10/01/2021
Submit Water Use Efficiency report online to ODW and to customers (Community and other municipal water systems only): 07/01/2021
Send notices of lead and copper sample results to the customers sampled: 30 days after you receive the laboratory results
Submit Certification of customer notification of lead and copper results to ODW: 90 days after you notify customers

Generated on: 04/01/2021 Page 4 of 4

Water Quality Monitoring Schedule



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | APPENDICES | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021  

Appendix 6B  
CONSUMER CONFIDENCE REPORT 
 





2020 Report for the Year 2019

THE PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT:

The Federal Safe Drinking Water Act (SDWA) and the 
US Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) requires 
that every community water system must prepare 
and distribute a consumer confidence report 
(water quality report) annually to the public it 
serves.  This annual report describes your drinking 
water sources, provides actual water quality test 
results, compares those results to stringent federal 
water quality standards, and informs you about 
important water quality issues.  Although this 
report is technical in nature, we have attempted to 
provide this information in such a way as to make 
it meaningful to our customers. Our goal is to help 
you understand what is in your water and how 
it may affect you.  So please, take a few minutes 
to read this important information regarding the 
quality of the water you and your family drink every 
day.  

2019 Test Results for the City of Shelton 
Total W

ater System

City of Shelton
ANNUAL WATER QUALITYANNUAL WATER QUALITY
AND EFFICIENCY REPORTAND EFFICIENCY REPORT

Water System Information

Public Water System ID# 78170N

City of Shelton-Public Works 
Department

525 W Cota Street
Shelton, W A98584

Water System Lead Worker - Matt 
Deemer

Water Quality Specialist  - Ken 
Dickinson

KDickinson@ci.shelton.wa.usThe City is pleased to provide you with our 
2019 Annual Water Quality Report.  You will be 
happy to know that our drinking water is safe 
and meets all state and federal requirements 
for water-quality standards, safety, and 
appearance. Our goal is, and always has 
been, to provide you a safe and dependable 
supply of drinking water.  We encourage 
public interest and participation in our utility 
decisions affecting drinking water.  Citizen 
input is welcomed at our regularly scheduled 
Council Meetings.  Please visit the City’s 
website at www.sheltonwa.gov or contact the 
City Clerk’s office for a schedule of meetings.

Este informe contiene información importante 
acerca de su agua potable. Haga que alguien lo 
traduzca para usted, o hable con alguien que 
lo entienda.  This report contains important 
information about your drinking water.  Have 
someone translate it for you, or speak with 
someone who understands it.  If you have 
any questions about this report or concerning 
your water utility, please contact the Water 
Department at (360) 432-5192 or the Public Works 
Department at (360) 426-9731.

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Chlorine: Disinfectant 
Residual Results

Contam
inant

M
CLG

M
CL

Your W
ater

Range

C
hlorine C

l2 (m
g/L)

4
4

.01 to 1.0
.01 to 4.0

2019 Volatile O
rganic 

Com
pounds

Contam
inant

M
RDLG

M
RDL

Your W
ater

Range
Trihalom

ethanes 
TTH

M
 [Total ppb]

N
A

80
29.6

N
A

H
aloacetic Acids 
H

AA5 (ppb)
N

A
60

9.9
N

A

2019 Coliform
 Bacteria and 

Fecal Coliform
Contam

inant
M

CLG
SRL

M
CL

Unit 
M

easure
Total C

oliform
 

Bacteria
0

0
Presence 
of coliform

 
bacteria 
in 5%

 of 
m

onthly 
sam

ples

# per 100 
m

L

Fecal coliform
 

(E.coli)
0

0
A routine 
sam

ple 
& repeat 

sam
ple are 

total coliform
 

positive, 
& one is 

also fecal 
coliform

 
or E.coli 
positive

# per 100 
m

L

2019 Test Results by W
ater 

Source Nitrates
Source

Contam
inant

M
CLG

SRL
M

CL
W

ell #1
N

itrate
10

0.5
10

W
ell #3

N
itrate

10
0.5

10
W

ell #4
N

itrate
10

0.5
10

2019 Volatile O
rganic 

Com
pounds

Source
Contam

inant
SRL

M
CL

Unit 
m

easure
W

ell #1
EPA/State 
regulated

0.5
Varies

U
g/L

EPA Unregulated 
Contam

inants M
onitoring 

(UCM
R4)

Com
pounds

Results
Units

SRL
Trigger

H
alo-acetic acids

3.2
U

g/L
1

45
H

alo-acetic acids
2.2

U
g/l

1
45

Trihalom
ethanes

9.3
U

g/L
0.5

60
Trihalom

ethanes
9.3

U
g/L

0.5
60

 
 

W
ells 1, 3, 4

Com
pounds 

Pesticides
Results

Units
M

RL
Date 

Collected
C

hlorpyrifos
N

D
U

g/L
0.03

5/19-11/19
D

im
ethipin

N
D

U
g/L

0.2
5/19-11/19

Ethoprop
N

D
U

g/L
0.03

5/19-11/19
N

D
U

g/L
0.05

5/19-11/19
Profenofos

N
D

U
g/L

0.3
5/19-11/19

Tebuconazole
N

D
U

g/L
0.2

5/19-11/19
Perm

ethrin Total
N

D
U

g/L
0.04

5/19-11/19
Com

pounds 
SVO

Cs
Results

Units
M

RL
Date 

Collected
Butylated

N
D

U
g/L

0.03
5/19-11/19

*O
-Toluidine

N
D

U
g/L

0.007
5/19-11/19

*Q
uinoline

N
D

U
g/L

0.02
5/19-11/19

Alcohols
Results

Units
M

RL
Date 

Collected
*1-Butanol

N
D

U
g/L

2
5/19-11/19

*2-M
ethoxyethanol

N
D

U
g/L

0.4
5/19-11/19

*2-Propen-1-O
L

N
D

U
g/L

0.5
5/19-11/19

Com
pounds 

M
etals

Results
Units

M
RL

Date 
Collected

G
erm

anium
N

D
U

g/L
0.3

5/19-11/19
M

anganese
W

ell 1 15.5, 
W

ells 3, 4 
N

D

U
g/L

0.4
5/19-11/19

EPA 
Unregulated 

Contam
inants 

Level 1, 3, 4

Com
pounds

Results
Units

M
RL

Date 
Collected

Brom
ide

N
D

U
g/L

20
5/19-11/19

Total O
rganic 

C
arbon

N
D

U
g/L

1000
5/19-11/19





Taste and odor problems within the distribution 
system are generally caused by pressure surges in 
the main water system, which causes sediment in 
the pipes to become suspended in the water.  Among 
the causes of pressure disturbances are watermain 
breaks, street construction, or the use of firefighting 
connections. This is why the City flushes its water 
mains periodically.  The most common cause of 
pressure changes in home plumbing systems is the 
corrosion of galvanized plumbing systems.  This 
situation is usually indicated by yellow or reddish 
water and appears in the first water drawn from the 
faucet each day.

If present, elevated levels of lead can cause serious 
health problems, especially for pregnant women and 
young children.  Lead in drinking water is primarily from 
materials and components associated with service lines 
and home plumbing. The City is responsible for providing 
high quality drinking water and is also required to test 
for lead and copper contamination every 3 years; the 
next testing is in June 2021.
Although the City complies with state lead free 
requirements, the City cannot control the variety of 
materials used in private plumbing components. When 
your water has been sitting for several hours, you can 
minimize the potential for lead exposure by flushing 
your tap for 30 seconds to 2 minutes before using water 
for drinking or cooking.  If you are concerned about lead 
in your water, you may wish to have your water tested. 

Tastes and Odors

2020 Report for the Year of 2019: City of Shelton

Backflow Prevention
(Cross Connection Control)

Lead Water Pressures

What do the tables mean? 

Key & Definition to Tables 

Standards recommend that normal water pressure 
should range between 30 and 80 pounds per square 
inch (psi). If water pressure is greater than 80 psi 
the customer should consider installing a pressure-
reducing valve (PRV) to reduce pressure to a normal 
level of between 30 and 80 psi.  The City is working 
to resolve areas that have a pressure of 30 psi by 
adding additional storage and pumping capabilities 
to the City water system.

Every year the City is mandated by the Department of Health to test for contaminant compounds.  The tables on 
the back page display the results for each City water source and the compounds tested in 2018. Each table also lists 
the ideal goals for public health (MCLG), the highest level allowed by regulation (MCL), the amount detected, and 
the usual sources of such contamination. Below is a key and definitions to terms in the tables.

Term Definition
AL Action Level: The concentration of a contaminant, which if exceeded, triggers treatment or other 

requirements that a water system must follow.
MCLG Maximum Contaminant Level Goal: The level of a contaminant in drinking water below which there is no 

known or expected risk to health.  MCLGs allow for a margin of safety.
MCL  Maximum Contaminant Level: The highest level of a contaminant that is allowed in drinking water.  MCLs 

are set as close to the MCLs as feasible using the best available treatment technology.
MFL:     Million Fibers per liter
mg/L: Milligrams per liter
mL:       Milliliter
MRDLG:   Maximum Residual /Disinfectant Level Goal: The level of a drinking water disinfectant below which there is 
no known or expected risk to health. MRDLGs do not reflect the benefits of the use of disinfectants to control microbial 

contaminants.
MRDL:   Maximum Residual Disinfectant Level: The highest level of a disinfectant allowed in drinking water.  There 
is convincing evidence that addition of a disinfectant is necessary for control of microbial contaminates (e.g. chlorine, 

chloramines, chlorine dioxide)
MRL:  Method Reporting Limit
N/A: Not Applicable
ND: Not Detected 
pCi/L: Picocuries per liter (a measure of radioactivity)
PPB: Parts per billion or Micrograms per liter
PPM: Parts per million or Milligrams per liter (mg/l)
RDL:  Reporting Detection Limits

Term   Definition
AL   Action Level: The concentration of a contaminant, which if exceeded, triggers treatment or  
   other requirements that a water system must follow.
MCLG   Maximum Contaminant Level Goal: The level of a contaminant in drinking water below  
   which there is no known or expected risk to health.  MCLGs allow for a margin of safety.
MCL            Maximum Contaminant Level: The highest level of a contaminant that is allowed in   
   drinking water.  MCLs are set as close to the MCLs as feasible using the best available  
   treatment technology.
MFL       Million Fibers per liter
mg/L   Milligrams per liter
mL         Milliliter
MRDLG    Maximum Residual /Disinfectant Level Goal: The level of a drinking water disinfectant 
below    which there is no known or expected risk to health. MRDLGs do not reflect the benefits of  
   the use of disinfectants to control microbial contaminants.
MRDL                Maximum Residual Disinfectant Level: The highest level of a disinfectant allowed in   
   drinking water.  There is convincing evidence that addition of a disinfectant is necessary  
   for control of microbial contaminates (e.g. chlorine, chloramines, chlorine dioxide).
MRL   Method Reporting Limit
N/A   Not Applicable
ND   Not Detected 
pCi/L   Picocuries per liter (a measure of radioactivity)
PPB   Parts per billion or Micrograms per liter
PPM   Parts per million or Milligrams per liter (mg/l)
RDL    Reporting Detection Limits

In a continuing effort to ensure that we maintain 
the highest quality of water, the City has a Cross 
Connection Control Program that requires customers 
with a potential backflow or cross connections to 
install a backflow prevention assembly.  It also 
requires (in compliance with state law) customers 
to have them tested by a certified backflow 
assembly tester annually. The most common 
cause of backflow is backsipohonage due to 
lowered main pressure caused by instances of high 
water withdrawal (i.e., during firefighting).  When 
backsiphonage occurs, water can be siphoned from 
a home or business bringing unwanted materials 
into the distribution system.  For example, typical 
in-ground sprinkler systems may have stagnant or 
polluted water in the pipes that could be siphoned 
back into the water system and forced back into 
your home.  For this reason, the City requires all 
sprinkler systems to have a backflow prevention 
assembly installed. A Double Check Valve Assembly 
(DC) is the minimum assembly allowed for sprinkler 
systems in the city.  If you have any questions 
regarding this program, or would like more 
information, please call (360) 432-5192.

Source Information
The City has four water sources. We currently draw water from Well #1, Well #3, and Well #4. The wells and Shelton 
Springs are all located on a City owned 266-acre water shed and the wells draw water deep from underground aquifers. 
The most recent evaluation of the City’s Water System Model (Carollo, March 2016) indicated that redevelopment 
(replacement) of Well #1 is needed to supply the systems existing customers. At the time of this publication the Shelton 
City Council is considering refurbishing the well and replacing the pump. Also slip lining the distribution water line from 
Well #1 to the High School Tank.  

All City supplied water is treated with the least amount of chlorine necessary to provide safe drinking water to everyone, 
while minimizing taste and odor issues.  Staff collects samples daily to verify if the appropriate residual level of chlorine 
exists in the system required for public safety.   Shelton Springs is an additional water source that the City can use in 
the event of a water emergency. It is not chlorinated. 

For further information on the City’s water system, please refer to the 2010 Water Comprehensive Plan, (new Water 
Comprehensive Plan will be available sometime in 2019) available from our Public Works office. The 2010 Water 
Comprehensive Plan includes a water system analysis, demand forecasting, water conservation and reliability, and a 
source water assessment and protection plan.

To ensure that tap water is safe to drink, the Department of Health and EPA prescribe regulations that limit the amount 
of certain contaminants in water provided by public water systems. The Food and Drug Administration (FDA) and the 
Washington Department of Agriculture regulations established limits for contaminants in bottled water that must 
provide the same protection for public health.  Drinking water, including bottled drinking water, may be reasonably 
expected to contain at least small amounts of some contaminants.  The presence of contaminants does not necessarily 
indicate that the water poses a health risk. More information about contaminants and potential health affects can be 
obtained by calling the Environmental Protection Agency’s Safe Drinking Water Hotline at 1-800-426-4791 or EPA website 
http://water.epa.gov/drink/.

Some people may be more vulnerable to contaminants in drinking water than the general population.  Immuno-
compromised persons such as persons with cancer undergoing chemotherapy, persons who have undergone organ 
transplants, people with HIV/AIDS or other immune system disorders, some elderly, and infants can be particularly at 
risk from infections.  These people should seek advice about drinking water from their health care providers.  EPA/CDC 
guidelines on appropriate means to lessen the risk of infection by cryptosporidium and other microbial contaminants 
are available from the Safe Drinking Water Hotline 1-800-426-4791 or EPA website http://water.epa.gov/drink/info/.





WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | APPENDICES | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021  

Appendix 6C  
COLIFORM MONITORING PLAN AND 
DETECTION ADVISORY 
 





WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | APPENDICES | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021  

 

 

 

Coliform Monitoring Plan 

 

























WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | APPENDICES | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021  

 

 

 

Boil Water Notice and  
Coliform Detection Advisory 













WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | APPENDICES | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021  

Appendix 7A  
WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN 
 





CITY OF SHELTON 
WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN 

SHELTON, WASHINGTON 

Matthew G. Lutz, GIT 
Staff Geologist 

NOVEMBER 2019 

by 

�howski, LHG 
Principal Hydrogeologist 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 









 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 















 
 
 





















 
 
 
 

 

 
 







 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 







 



 

 

 
 



 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 



 
 
 









 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

FIGURES 
 

 





Shelton SpringsShelton SpringsShelton Springs

Well 1Well 1Well 1

Well 3Well 3Well 3

Well 4Well 4Well 4

Legend

Well Location

Shelton City Boundary

Study Area

Mason County

T 20 N/R 03

City of Shelton: Wellhead Protection Plan

PM: MFP

November 2019

1840-003B

Figure 1

Study Area Location Map
                                     

Scale 1” = 2000’

Note: Basemap 
taken from 
USGS Shelton 
Quadrangle

2000’0’





31C1 31A1

32E1

32E2-6

32M1,2

32M3,431R2,3

32N131R1

31F1

36H1

01H1

01D1

01E1

01J1

01R6-8

01P1-3

01P401N5

01N3

01N2

12D3,4

01N4

12D1

01N1

12D2
12C1-3

12B2

12B1,3

12Q1

01R1-5

06E1-4

06B1-3

06A2

06G1-4

06B6

06F1-4

06F5

06E5

06L1-3 06J1-3

06K4,5
06K2,306K6

06K1
06Q1

06P1-5

06P6

06N1
06N2 06R1

06H1,2

06A1

06B4,5

06M1

05D1
05C4

05C3 05C1,2

05B2,3

05B1 05A2,4

05A3

05A1

05H1

05G1

05J1

05J3

05J205K1

05F2-5

05L1,3-5

05F1

05E1,2

05E3

05M1

05L605L7

05L2

05N3

05N1

05N2
05N4

05G2

05R1

08H1,2

08D1,2

08K1

08J1

08Q1,2

08L1

08E1,2

17A2

17A1

17G1

17K1

17R1

17L1,2

17L3

17L4

17R217N1

18J4

18J1,2

18J3

18K2

18K1,3,4

18G118F1

07D1

07E1

07A2
07B1-2

07A5,6

07H1

07G1

07A4

07A3

07A1

07L2-5
07L1

07P1,2

13H1

13H2,3

32F1

31R4

05P1

AAA

A'A'A'

B'B'B'

B'B'B'

SITE
AREA

Shelton SpringsShelton SpringsShelton Springs

Well 1Well 1Well 1

Well 3Well 3Well 3

Well 4Well 4Well 4

Mason County

T 20 N/R 03

City of Shelton: Wellhead Protection Plan

PM: MFP

November 2019

1840-003B

Legend

Well Location

Shelton City Boundary

Study Area

2000’0’

Well Completed in Recessional Aquifer Zone 
Well that Encounters Recessional Aquifer Zone 
Well with no Sign of Recessional Aquifer Zone

A
A’

Hydrogeologic Cross Section Line

Figure 2

Well and Cross Section Location Map
                        

Scale 1” = 2000’

Note: Basemap 
taken from 
USGS Shelton 
Quadrangle





Ground Water 

� 
Q) 

� 
() 

Divide 

� 
. 

. 
. 

� 
/

SurfaceWater 
�

� 
Divides 

� Island Lake 

61::D. 
. 

. 
. 

' Possible Ground Water 
Divide 

Water Table 

�� 1shelton Springs

Oakland Bay 

Qu 

NOTE: 
SEE TABLE 1, IN TEXT, FOR THE DESCRIPTION OF THE HYDROSTRATIGRAPHIC UNITS. 

DRAWING NOT TO SCALE 

1
--

1 
ROBINSON 

NOBLE 

PM: MFP 
I 

Mason County 
November 2019 T 20 N/R 03 

1840-0038 

Figure 3 

Conceptual Model 

City of Shelton: Wellhead Protection Plan 



SURFACE DRAINAGE
BASIN

ESTIMATED MINIMUM
AQUIFER RECHARGE
AREA

ESTIMATED MAXIMUM
AQUIFER RECHARGE
AREA

LEGEND:

Figure 4

Shelton Springs Recharge Area Map

Note: Basemap Taken 
From USGS Shelton, 
Shelton Valley,  
Skokomish and Union 
Quadrangles

2000’0’

Scale 1” = 2000’

Mason County

T 20 N/R 03

City of Shelton: Wellhead Protection Plan

PM: MFP

November 2019

1840-003B











22
5'

22
5'

22
5'

220'
220'
220'

215'215'215'
Shelton SpringsShelton SpringsShelton Springs

Well 1Well 1Well 1

Well 3Well 3Well 3

Well 4Well 4Well 4

Shelton SpringsShelton Springs
Aquifer BoundaryAquifer Boundary
Shelton Springs
Aquifer Boundary

Mason County

T 20 N/R 03

City of Shelton: Wellhead Protection Plan

PM: MFP

November 2019

1840-003B

Figure 7

Generalized Potentiometric Surface for the Recessional Aquifer
                                     

Scale 1” = 2000’

Note: Basemap 
taken from 
USGS Shelton 
Quadrangle

2000’0’





100'100'100'

75'75'75'

50'50'50'

25'
25'
25'

100'
100'
100'

75'
75'
75'

50'
50'
50'

25'
25'
25'

120'
120'
120'

120'
120'
120'

Shelton SpringsShelton SpringsShelton Springs

Well 1Well 1Well 1

Well 3Well 3Well 3

Well 4Well 4Well 4

Mason County

T 20 N/R 03

City of Shelton: Wellhead Protection Plan

PM: MFP

November 2019

1840-003B

Figure 8

Generalized Potentiometric Surface for the Sea Level Aquifer
                                     

Scale 1” = 2000’

Note: Basemap 
taken from 
USGS Shelton 
Quadrangle

2000’0’





40'
40'
40'

30'
30'
30'

20'
20'
20'

20'
20'
20'

Shelton SpringsShelton SpringsShelton Springs

Well 1Well 1Well 1

Well 3Well 3Well 3

Well 4Well 4Well 4

Mason County

T 20 N/R 03

City of Shelton: Wellhead Protection Plan

PM: MFP

November 2019

1840-003B

Figure 9

Generalized Potentiometric Surface for the Deep Aquifer
                                     

Scale 1” = 2000’

Note: Basemap 
taken from 
USGS Shelton 
Quadrangle

2000’0’





900900900

120012001200

120012001200

Shelton SpringsShelton SpringsShelton Springs

Well 1Well 1Well 1

Well 3Well 3Well 3

Well 4Well 4Well 4

Mason County

T 20 N/R 03

City of Shelton: Wellhead Protection Plan

PM: MFP

November 2019

1840-003B

Figure 10

Hydraulic Conductivity Values Used for the Modeling of the Recessional Aquifer
                                     

Scale 1” = 2000’

Note: Basemap 
taken from 
USGS Shelton 
Quadrangle

2000’0’





250250250

350350350

600600600

505050
900900900

250250250

Shelton SpringsShelton SpringsShelton Springs

Well 1Well 1Well 1

Well 3Well 3Well 3

Well 4Well 4Well 4

Mason County

T 20 N/R 03

City of Shelton: Wellhead Protection Plan

PM: MFP

November 2019

1840-003B

Figure 11

Hydraulic Conductivity Values Used for the Modeling of the Sea Level Aquifer
                                     

Scale 1” = 2000’

Note: Basemap 
taken from 
USGS Shelton 
Quadrangle

2000’0’





Legend

Capture Zones

1 Year

5 Year

10 Year

6 Month

Figure 12

Recessional Aquifer Capture Zones

Note: Basemap 
taken from USGS 
Shelton 
Quadrangle

2000’0’

Scale 1” = 2000’

Mason County

T 20 N/R 03 E

City of Shelton: Wellhead Protection

PM: MFP

November 2019

1840-003B



Legend

Capture Zone

6 Month

1 Year

5 Year

10 Year

Figure 13

Sea Level Aquifer Capture Zones

Note: Basemap 
taken from USGS 
Shelton 
Quadrangle

2000’0’

Scale 1” = 2000’

Mason County

T 20 N/R 03 E

City of Shelton: Wellhead Protection

PM: MFP

November 2019

1840-003B



Legend

Capture Zone

6 Month

1 Year

5 Year

10 Year

Figure 14

Deep Aquifer Capture Zones

Note: Basemap 
taken from USGS 
Shelton 
Quadrangle

2000’0’

Scale 1” = 2000’

Mason County

T 20 N/R 03 E

City of Shelton: Wellhead Protection

PM: MFP

November 2019

1840-003B





 /#/ 

Projection: Washington State Plane

Zone: South Zone

Datum: NAD83

Units: Feet US

Source: City of Shelton Planning Department (2002).

   City of Shelton 1995 Comprehensive Plan.

   Mason County GIS (2006).

Figure 1
Future Land Use

Future Land Use

City of Shelton
Comprehensive Plan Update

December 2007

2,000 0 2,000 4,000

Feet

Commercial

Commercial - Targeted for
Potential Residential Rezone

Commercial/Residential-Valley

Commercial/Residential - Goose Lake

Low Intensity Commercial

Professional Office/Residential
Mixed Usage

Downtown

Medical / Educational

Low Intensity Mixed Use

Neighborhood Residential

Commercial/Industrial

Industrial

Public Lands/Open Space

±

Gateway Corridor Overlay

Roads

Railroads

Streams

Parcels

City of Shelton Limits

2006 UGA

UGA effective upon Mason County Approval

C/I

I

P

C/R-V

C/R-G

LI-C

PR-A

DT

ME

MU

NR

C

C

City of Shelton
Future Land Use

Source: Jones and Stokes, City of Shelton 
Comprehensive Plan Update (2007).      

 

I

C/I

NR

NR

C/I

NR

NR

NR

I

I

NR

MU
Seatte Ave.

Wyandotte Ave.

1
0

th
 S

t.

Turner St.

Olympic Ave.

O
lym

p
ic H

ig
hw

a
y N

o
rthj

Fairmount Ave.

M
a
s
o
n

 S
t.

Lake Blvd.

Shelton S
prings R

d.

N
. 
1

3
th

 S
t.

K St.

I S
t.

E St.

C St.

Railroad Ave. Franklin St.

7
th

 S
t.

1
s
t 
S

t.

Dickinson Ave.

F
ro

n
t 

S
t.

Northcliff Rd.

M
o
re

la
n

d
 A

ve
.

C
ap

ito
l H

ill 
R
d.

O

lym
p
ic

 H
ig

h
w

a
y S

outh

E
. D

e
e
g

a
n

 R
d
.

Jo
hn

's
 P

ra
rie

 R
d.

B
ro

ck
d
a

le
 R

d
.

Island
Lake

Oakland
Bay

Port of Shelton
Sanderson Field

Goose
Lake

P

P

P

P

P

ME

ME

ME

ME ME

ME

C

C

C

C

C

C/R-G

C/R-V

C/R-V

C/R-V

C/R-V

L
I-CL

I-C

Coffe
e 

  
C

re
e
k

M
ill
   

Cre
ek

Gol dsborough  Creek

S

helton
   C

reek

Jo hn' s   Creek

John's   Creek

P

P

MU

MU

MU

MU

MU

P

C/R-V

C/I

I

P

I

C

P

C

PR-A

C

NR P

I

P

MU

£¤101

£¤101

I

C/I

NR

NR

C/I

NR

NR

NR

I

I

NR

MU
Seatte Ave.

Wyandotte Ave.

1
0

th
 S

t.

Turner St.

Olympic Ave.

O
lym

p
ic H

ig
hw

a
y N

o
rthj

Fairmount Ave.

M
a
s
o
n

 S
t.

Lake Blvd.

Shelton S
prings R

d.

N
. 
1

3
th

 S
t.

K St.

I S
t.

E St.

C St.

Railroad Ave. Franklin St.

7
th

 S
t.

1
s
t 
S

t.

Dickinson Ave.

F
ro

n
t 

S
t.

Northcliff Rd.

M
o
re

la
n

d
 A

ve
.

C
ap

ito
l H

ill 
R
d.

O

lym
p
ic

 H
ig

h
w

a
y S

outh

E
. D

e
e
g

a
n

 R
d
.

Jo
hn

's
 P

ra
rie

 R
d.

B
ro

ck
d
a

le
 R

d
.

Island
Lake

Oakland
Bay

Port of Shelton
Sanderson Field

Goose
Lake

P

P

P

P

P

ME

ME

ME

ME ME

ME

C

C

C

C

C

C/R-G

C/R-V

C/R-V

C/R-V

C/R-V

L
I-CL

I-C

Coffe
e 

  
C

re
e
k

M
ill
   

Cre
ek

Gol dsborough  Creek

S

helton
   C

reek

Jo hn' s   Creek

John's   Creek

P

P

MU

MU

MU

MU

MU

P

C/R-V

C/I

I

P

I

C

P

C

PR-A

C

NR P

I

P

MU

£¤101

£¤101

WELL NO. 3
WELL NO. 4

WELL NO. 1

SHELTON SPRINGS

Existing Source

F
ig

u
re

 1
5

L
a
n
d
 U

se
 M

a
p

N
o
te

: 
B

a
se

m
a
p
 

F
ro

m
 C

ity
 o

f 
S

h
e
lto

n
 

2
0
1
0
 W

a
te

r 
C

o
m

p
re

h
e
n
si

ve
 P

la
n

M
a

so
n

 C
o

u
n

ty

T
 2

0
 N

/R
 0

3
 E

P
M

: 
M

F
P

N
o

ve
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

9

1
8

4
0

-0
0

3
B

C
ity

 o
f 
S

h
e
lto

n
: 
W

e
llh

e
a
d
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n





555666

999

101010

121212

131313

141414 151515

161616

171717

181818

191919

202020

212121

222222

232323

252525

262626

282828
292929

303030

313131

323232

333333

343434

353535

363636

373737

383838

393939

404040

414141424242

434343

444444

454545

474747

484848

494949

505050

515151

525252

545454

555555

565656

575757
585858

595959

606060

616161

626262

636363

646464

656565 666666

676767

707070

717171

727272

737373

747474

757575

767676

Mason County

T 20 N/R 03

City of Shelton: Wellhead Protection Plan

PM: MFP

November 2019

1840-003B

Legend

Hazard Site

Capture Zone

6 Month

1 Year

5 Year

10 Year

Buffer Zone

Figure 16

Hazard Site Location Map
                                     

Scale 1” = 1400’

Note: Basemap 
taken from 
USGS Shelton 
Quadrangle

1400’0’





RESPONSIBLE PARTY (RP)
Notifies State Emergency Divisions

Responsible for Containment, Cleanup,
Disposal, Restoration, and Damage
Payment

911 EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT

FIRST RESPONDERS

Local
Fire
Dept. Dept.

Police
Local Local

State
Patrol

INCIDENT MANAGEMENT SYSTEM (IMS)

Planning

Command

Logistics

Administrative

INCIDENT COMMANDER (IC)

In Charge of Entire Operation

ON-SCENE/SITE COORDINATOR

Federal, State, and Industry Representatives

Coordinate Togethor to Address and Resolve
Spill Response and Cleanup Management
Issues

In Charge of Cleanup During Incident

Protect Health, Property, and Environment

PRIMARY

Mobilize Additional Resources from Local,
State, and Federal Levels

Determine Need for Assistance

SECONDARY

UNIFIED COMMAND STRUCTURE (UCS)

When Multi-Jurisdictional Response Required
for an Area-Wide Threat

When Substantial Environmental Damage
Occurs

as Needed
Identifies Potential Resources, Provides

Emergency Response
Central Location for Management of

EMERGENCY OPERATIONS CENTER
(EOC)

Coordinates with IC

For Severe Spills/Incidents

State Patrol (Land)

USCG (Marine)

INCIDENT COMMAND AGENCY (ICA)

Figure 17

General Local Response System
City of Shelton: Wellhead Protection Plan

PM: MFP

November 2019

1840-003B





 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Hydraulic
Reference 

# Location Owner Name Well WL
Depth to 
water (ft)

Depth 
drilled (ft)

Top 
Completion

Bottom 
Completion

Q 
(gpm) dd (ft)

 conductivity 
(K)

Calculated 
T

Reported 
T

01D1 20N/4W-1 Rae Lake Subdivision 280 231 49 130 119 130 30 2 164 25,625
01E1 20N/4W-1 Dick Shrum 290 253 37 100 93 99 30
01H1 20N/4W-1 David Bayley 230 191 39 140 131.8 140 32
01J1 20N/4W-1 Gary Wilson 240 230 10 61 25 61 50
01N1 20N/4W-1 Edna Johnson 280 235 45 60 58 60 15 21 44
01N2 20N/4W-1 Edna Johnson 280 233 47 62 57 62 15 3 306
01N3 20N/4W-1 Edna Johnson 280 236 44 66 61 66 30 2 701 26,154
01N4 20N/4W-1 J. B. Miklethun 280 230 50 82.6 72 82 40 3 384 28,688
01N5 20N/4W-1 Edna Rae Shively 280 246 34 117 45 117 100 3 168 59,029
01P1 20N/4W-1 Dwight McKay 270 220 50 78.3 72 78 32 23 40 1,778
01P2 20N/4W-1 West Realty 270 216 54 104 93 104 132 28 124 6,498
01P3 20N/4W-1 Al Brotche 270 227 43 69 55 69 20 4 306
01P4 20N/4W-1 Rae Lake Subdivision 270 221 49 130 119 130 30 2 312 25,625
01R1 20N/4W-1 Lawrence Starr 230 198 32 53 44 53 15 2 460
01R2 20N/4W-1 David C. Bayley 230 200 30 126 96 108 30
01R3 20N/4W-1 David Bayley 230 200 30 110 102 109 100
01R4 20N/4W-1 David C. Bayley 230 200 30 111 95 103 100
01R5 20N/4W-1 David C. Bayley 230 200 30 113 106 111 150
01R6 20N/4W-1 Dave Strom 230 210 20 66 62 66 10 15 41
01R7 20N/4W-1 Don Links 230 225 5 33 28 33 20
01R8 20N/4W-1 D & T Parker 230 194 36 57.5 35 57 20
05A1 20N/3W-5 Rayonier, Inc, TW # 5 215 215 383 275 300 140 21 26 10,961
05A2 20N/3W-5 Robert E. Barhite 215 200 15 40 36 40 20 28 33 976
05A3 20N/3W-5 William White 210 112 98 140 135 140 25 18 85
05A4 20N/3W-5 Robert E. Barhite 215 145 70 95 89 95 30 1 1,225 54,847
05B1 20N/3W-5 Rick Simpson 220 202 18 70 60 70 20 32 10 764
05B2 20N/3W-5 Maureen Dockery 220 182 38 89 83 89 30 18 102
05B3 20N/3W-5 L.G. Shelton 220 210 10 48 42 48 30 18 102
05C1 20N/3W-5 Dawn Butcher 220 125 95 141 132 141 25
05C2 20N/3W-5 Robert Paulk 220 122 98 125 114 125 30
05C3 20N/3W-5 Robert Ramsey 220 120 100 185 180 185 20 8 158
05C4 20N/3W-5 Harry Floyd 220
05D1 20N/3W-5 Robert Linn 210 110 100 139 130 139 30 5 368
05E1 20N/3W-5 Brad Banner 210 155 55 100 90 100 30 20 92
05E2 20N/3W-5 Jim Rutledge 210 134 76 140 113 137 30
05E3 20N/3W-5 Larry A. Warren 215 197 18 30 16 30 30 1 1,506 56,180
05F1 20N/3W-5 Rayonier, Inc, TW # 4 210 92 118 500 437 404 452
05F2 20N/3W-5 Island West/ Kamin 210 149 61 94 91 94 30
05F3 20N/3W-5 Island West/ Kamin 210 149 61 99 94 99 12
05F4 20N/3W-5 Island West/ Kamin 210 191 19 58 50 58 30
05F5 20N/3W-5 Island West/ Kamin 210 189 21 58 54 57.6 12

Elevation above 
MSL (ft)



05G1 20N/3W-5 June Sims 210 165 45 88.5 78.5 88 32
05G2 20N/3W-5 Bill Petty 200 150 50 130 120 130 40 1 2,451
05H1 20N/3W-5 Kelly Neill 210 119 91 148 143 148 50
05J1 20N/3W-5 O. E. Lee 190 120 70 102 100 102 5 11 17
05J2 20N/3W-5 Terry A. Dihmer 197 122 75 105 100 105 30 1 1,115 41,610
05J3 20N/3W-5 Rayonier, Inc 190 189 1 10
05K1 20N/3W-5 Al Glenn 213 203 10 52 51 52 10 30 20
05L1 20N/3W-5 Don Johnson, Constr. Inc. 210 181 29 81 72.7 80 100
05L2 20N/3W-5 S.R. Steehler 230 220 10 32 25 32 20 2 613
05L3 20N/3W-5 Don Johnson, Constr. Inc. 210 181 29 82 73.7 81 100
05L4 20N/3W-5 Don Johnson, Constr. Inc. 210 179 31 81 72.5 80 100
05L5 20N/3W-5 Don Johnson 210 180 30 89 82.6 88.6 40
05L6 20N/3W-5 Mike Fitzgerald 213 114 99 179 105 179 50 14 219
05L7 20N/3W-5 S.R. Steehler 213 28
05M1 20N/3W-5 Joe Snider 215 147 68 140 130 140 92 21 201
05N4 20N/3W-5 Robert Hodgson 245 62
05N1 20N/3W-5 Tom Bolling 245 212 33 60 55 60 12 11 38 1,411
05N2 20N/3W-5 Rayonier, Inc.TW #6 245 245 460 93 166
05N3 20N/3W-5 Arlie Umphrey 250 211 39 98 93 98 20
05P1 20N/3W-5 Bob Hatton 213 206 7 36 31 36 25 10 94 3,491
05R1 20N/3W-5 Port of Shelton 210 103.5 106.5 227 217 227 380 14.6 634 47,300
065F 20N/3W-6 W.E. Conklin 240 56 13
06A1 20N/3W-6 Carl Nelson 220 205 15 32 29 32 20 12 102
06A2 20N/3W-6 Oak Park, Inc. 220 120.5 99.5 173.5 165 173.5 200 44 179 7,325
06B1 20N/3W-6 Richard Hopkins 230 217 13 43 38 43 15 2 299 11,158
06B2 20N/3W-6 Rick Leffler 230 100 130 200 160 200 35 20 107
06B3 20N/3W-6 Peter Quaade 230 220 10 48 20 48 32 3 438 16,334
06B4 20N/3W-6 Ron Shipley 225 124 101 181 171 181 200
06B5 20N/3W-6 Lois Pearson 225 210 15 73 68 73 10 35 11 412
06B6 20N/3W-6 L.S. Rutherford 220 208 22 32 29 32 16
06E1 20N/3W-6 Dave Waite 240 216 24 57 52 57 40
06E2 20N/3W-6 Tracy Young 240 212 28 73.4 65 73.4 100
06E3 20N/3W-6 J. A. Tobler 240 213 27 72 70 73 60
06E4 20N/3W-6 Steve Eridkson 240 209 31 72 66 72 18 20 55
06E5 20N/3W-6 Bud Franklin 240 228.5 21.5 49
06F1 20N/3W-6 Mike Fox 240 210 30 51 30 43 20 1 1,226
06F2 20N/3W-6 Vern Helgert 240 234 6 40 36 40 15 10 92
06F3 20N/3W-6 Norman Jones 240 220 20 50 39 48 20 8 153
06F4 20N/3W-6 B. Scoles 240 200 40 75 70 75 12
06G1 20N/3W-6 Real Estate Transaction 220 210 10 58 21 58 150
06G2 20N/3W-6 Real Estate Transaction 220 210 10 59 23 56 150
06G3 20N/3W-6 Don Rutherford 220 211 9 80 76 80 30 4 460
06G4 20N/3W-6 Erma Rutherford 220 202 18 57 32 57 35
06H1 20N/3W-6 Larry A. Warren 215 140 75 135 130 135 15 10 55
06H2 20N/3W-6 Larry A. Warren 215 138 77 127 15 5 184
06J1 20N/3W-6 Tracy Johnson 250 241 9 52 43 52 15



06J2 20N/3W-6 Harold Martin 250 219 31 88 80 88 10
06J3 20N/3W-6 Jess Morris 250 210 40 90 84 90 30
06K1 20N/3W-6 Kenn Mcintosh 235 223 12 50 14 50 20 8 153
06K2 20N/3W-6 Detray's Quality Homes 240 158 82 117 108 117 35
06K3 20N/3W-6 Steve Wood 240 230 10 40 37 40 10
06K4 20N/3W-6 Himlie Realty Inc 240 167 73 137 130 137 30 8 153
06K5 20N/3W-6 Arden Pierce 240 221 19 78 60 65 50
06K6 20N/3W-6 R.C. Sargent 235 236.2 18.8 46
06L1 20N/3W-6 Jeff Conklin 230 195 35 105 100 105 36 11.3 129 4,819
06L2 20N/3W-6 John Gregory 230 210 20 83 80 83 30 6 306
06L3 20N/3W-6 Jamie Tiffany 230 185 45 112 108 112 15 5 184
06M1 20N/3W-6 J. Richert 230 70
06N1 20N/3W-6 Andy Tuson 230 203 27 59.4 35 59.4 30
06N2 20N/3W-6 W.D. Fox 230 228 12 72 60 72 160
06P1 20N/3W-6 George Lamagie 230 216 14 50 44 50 25 10 153
06P2 20N/3W-6 Mickey Goodwin 230 207 23 82 79 82 50 5 613
06P3 20N/3W-6 Jack Marquett 230 216 14 38 24 38 25
06P4 20N/3W-6 Raymond Orr 230 214 16 52 47 52 25 10 153
06P5 20N/3W-6 T & R Welch 230 212 18 61 36 61 50
06P6 20N/3W-6 R.H. Lamb 230 225 15 65 58 65 290
06Q1 20N/3W-6 Larry Brimmer 245 212 33 50 42 50 30
06R1 20N/3W-6 Loren Hansen 245 202 43 59 25 59 16 2 339 12,650
07A1 20N/3W-7 Lee Eyler 245 212 33 68 60 68 40
07A2 20N/3W-7 Dave Strom 240 204 36 79 56 79 15
07A3 20N/3W-7 J. & J. Hiedebrand 240 210 30 50 48 50 10 15 41
07A4 20N/3W-7 Miska- ERA Conklin & Co. 240 206 34 61 37 61 20
07A5 20N/3W-7 Stock Sobotka #1 235 208 27 88 80 88 50 27 114
07A6 20N/3W-7 Stock Sobotka #2 235 208 27 88 80 88 35 20 107
07B1 20N/3W-7 David Strom 240 209 31 71 33 71 30
07B2 20N/3W-7 David Strom 240 215 25 61 26 61 30
07D1 20N/3W-7 Rice & Quinn 230 216 14 83 80 83 40 12 204
07E1 20N/3W-7 S & P Properties 230 199 31 63.5 35 63.5 60 6 460
07G1 20N/3W-7 R. Miska 235 220 15 60 55 60 30 55 33
07H1 20N/3W-7 Bryce Campbell 235 213 22 58 55 58 30 33 56
07L1 20N/3W-7 City of Shelton, Well 2 225 109.9 115.1 708 205 673 905 25 54 56,327 26400
07L2 20N/3W-7 Gary Cronce 230 200 30 61 52 61 32
07L3 20N/3W-7 Gary Cronce 230 200 30 61 52.5 61 50
07L4 20N/3W-7 Gary Cronce 230 200 30 61 55 61 45
07L5 20N/3W-7 City of Shelton, Well 3 230 120 110 298 210 273 900 24 256 114,741
07P1 20N/3W-7 City of Shelton, Well 1 213 63 150 745 515 725 1485 27 76 119,306
07P2 20N/3W-7 City of Shelton, Well 4 213 30 183 815 770 809 700 350 53
08D1 20N/3W-8 Dave Walterick 235 217 18 52 42 56 33 13 110 4,089
08D2 20N/3W-8 Jim Barstow 235 201 34 80 68 80 60
08E1 20N/3W-8 Carl Johnson 245 210.5 34.5 60 34 60 20 6 124 4,623
08E2 20N/3W-8 Carl Johnson 245 207.8 37.16 80 62 80 60
08H1 20N/3W-8 Nicolas Cardona 225 182 43 67 44 65 24



08H2 20N/3W-8 Nicolas Cardona 225 183 42 62 41 62 23
08J1 20N/3W-8 H.E. Wilson 213 208.3 11.7 14
08K1 20N/3W-8 Edward W. Hellman 215 165 50 116 108 116 15 5 184
08L1 20N/3W-8 Hiapark 265 234 31 80 74 79 100
08Q1 20N/3W-8 Dana Carroll 230 154 76 112 95 112 32
08Q2 20N/3W-8 George Lombardie 230 158 72 90 86 90 8 2 287 6,435
12B1 20N/4W-12 Nancy Wright 265 231.3 33.7 60.2 53 60.2 15 5 17
12B2 20N/4W-12 Wm. J. Russell 260 230 30 86 71 86 250 30 115 12,882
12B3 20N/4W-12 Tom Keeler 265 231.3 33.7 60.2 53 60.2 15 55 17
12C1 20N/4W-12 Don Knudson 275 237 38 80 42 65 25 8 191
12C2 20N/4W-12 Carol Flutcher 275 246 29 69 15 17 54
12C3 20N/4W-12 Himlie Realty 275 235 40 91 86 91 50 27 68 2,526
12D1 20N/4W-12 Airport Home Tracts Water Assoc.280 232 48 60
12D2 20N/4W-12 F. & J. Pascher 280 239 41 69 50 69 40 8 306
12D3 20N/4W-12 E.E. Fluckinger 280 232.2 47.8 63
12D4 20N/4W-12 L.F. Kiefer 280 245.5 34.5 63
12Q1 20N/4W-12 Sam Tasi 230 218 12 138 130 138 10
13H1 20N/4W-13 Arne Johnsen 213 188 25 76 73 76 1500 30 51
13H2 20N/4W-13 Curt Nielsen 213 194 19 49 44 49 24 11 78 2,911
13H3 20N/4W-13 J Tancrell 213 201 12 29 26 29 30 4 560
17A1 20N/3W-17 Rayonier, Inc.TW #12 195 63 132 485 163 413 145 29 15000
17A2 20N/3W-17 Rayonier, Inc TW #14 200 97 103 204 175 200 188 56 28 5,166
17G1 20N/3W-17 S & R James 200 79.6 120.4 191 189 191 15 11.45 80
17K1 20N/3W-17 Rayonier, Inc TW #13 200 200 500 265 390
17L1 20N/3W-17 Fredson Homes 180 -35 215 270 261 270 22
17L2 20N/3W-17 Fredson Homes 180 95 85 120 106 120 18
17L3 20N/3W-17 Einar Matson 163 50
17L4 20N/3W-17 Omer Noble 168 44.7 123.3 152 150 152
17N1 20N/3W-17 Gene Bergeson 100 100 0 73 66 79 20 60 20
17R1 20N/3W-17 Monty Marshall 98 -10 108 220 218 220 10 10 61
17R2 20N/3W-17 Marty Marshall 98 108 220
18F1 20N/3W-18 John Kangas 185 128.8 56.2 75
18G1 20N/3W-18 Jay J. Abel 213 213 149 143 149 5
18J1 20N/3W-18 Kelly Buechel 197 178 19 40 13 40 20
18J2 20N/3W-18 Kelly Buechel 197 178 19 40 13 40 20
18J3 20N/3W-18 L. J. Anderson 180 145 35 103 97 103 60 10 265 9,874
18J4 20N/3W-18 L.J. Anderson 200 168.8 31.2 43
18K1 20N/3W-18 Bernhard T. Winiecki 230 92 138 164 160 164 60 3 919
18K2 20N/3W-18 Wayne Clary 230 224 6 48.5 42 48.5 30 11 167
18K3 20N/3W-18 Fred D. Peste 230 210 20 100 83 100 100 70 66
18K4 20N/3W-18 Winiecki 230 143 55 66
31A1 21N/3W-31 Rayonier, Inc.TW #8 225 116 109 452 212 300 90 62.5
31C1 21N/3W-31 Rayonier, Inc TW #9 225 225 258
31F1 21N/3W-31 Rayonier, Inc TW #10 225 95 130 265
31R1 21N/3W-31 D & C Sandridge 225 209 16 40 28 40 30
31R2 21N/3W-31 Melvin Arnold 225 208 17 33 19 33 8 13 38



31R3 21N/3W-31 Lee Laferrier 225 207 18 35 31 35 40 14 175
31R4 21N/3W-31 George Plews 225 201 24 33
32E1 21N/3W-32 Rex Anderton 220 211 9 55 50 55 35
32E2 21N/3W-32 Keith Fuller 220 214 6 60 52 60 40
32E3 21N/3W-32 Keith Fuller 220 212 8 59 53 59 25
32E4 21N/3W-32 Keith Fuller 220 212 8 57 39 57 30
32E5 21N/3W-32 Keith Fuller 220 208 12 60 51 60 100
32E6 21N/3W-32 Keith Fuller 220 208 12 39 30 39 60
32F1 21N/3W-32 Rayonier, Inc TW #10 230 100 130 264
32M1 21N/3W-32 John Glenn 220 210 10 39 18 39 40 5 330 12,326
32M2 21N/3W-32 Pete Fassio 220 83 137 161 151 161 15 4 230
32M3 21N/3W-32 D.D. McCormick 220 16
32M4 21N/3W-32 D.D. McCormick 220 216.5 1.5 4
32N1 21N/3W-32 Rayonier, Inc TW # 7 222 222 658
36H1 21N/4W-36 R & I Dethlefs 230 96 134 159 137 159 30

WL = Water level
Q = Pumping rate in gallons per minute
dd = Drawdown in feet



Consider the Source:
A Pocket Guide to Protecting
Your Drinking Water

Drinking Water Pocket Guide #3



Office of Ground Water and
Drinking Water (4606-M)
EPA 816-K-02-002
www.epa.gov/safewater
June 2002

Printed on Recycled Paper

Cover Photo: The Kakagon Sloughs is located
in northern Wisconsin, on the Bad River
Chippewa Indian reservation. The Tribe
depends on its waters for wild rice harvesting,
fishing, and hunting. The integrity of this
wetland is also important to drinking water
sources in Lake Superior’s Chequamegon Bay
region. — USEPA Region 5, Great Lakes
National Program Office.



Safe Drinking Water Hotline 1 (800) 426-4791 • www.epa.gov/safewater i

Table of Contents

I. Introduction ........................................................................................................................ 1

II. Ensuring Safe Drinking Water Through the Multiple-Barrier Approach .............................. 2

III. SDWA and the Source Water Assessment and Protection Program ................................. 5

IV. Tools, Resources, and Actions Useful In Protecting Your Drinking Water Supplies .......... 17

V. Additional Resources Available Under the Clean Water Act ............................................ 20

VI. Financing for Source Water Assessment and Protection Programs ................................ 23

VII. The Underground Injection Control (UIC) Program and SWAP ......................................... 26

VIII. SWAP Milestones ............................................................................................................ 28

IX. Best Management Practices (BMPs) Available for SWPAs ............................................. 29

X. Glossary ........................................................................................................................... 44

XI. Contacts ........................................................................................................................... 46



I. Introduction
Virtually every stream, lake, river and aquifer in this country is used as a drinking water source.
Protecting these source waters from contaminants is a major national priority in protecting public
health through ensuring a clean, safe drinking water supply. Reducing the threat of waterborne
illnesses helps save hundreds of millions of dollars annually by eliminating costly health care
expenses, lost wages, work absences, decreased job productivity, and additional treatment costs
incurred by Public Water Sytems (PWSs) required to meet federal drinking water quality stan-
dards. The Source Water Protection Program, authorized by the 1996 Amendments to the Safe
Drinking Water Act (SDWA), outlines a comprehensive plan to achieve maximum public health
protection. According to the plan, it is essential that every community take these six steps:

• DELINEATE your drinking water source protection area
• INVENTORY known and potential sources of contamination within these areas
• DETERMINE THE SUSCEPTIBILITY of your water supply system to these contaminants
• NOTIFY AND INVOLVE THE PUBLIC about threats identified in the contaminant source in-

ventory and what they mean to their PWS.
• IMPLEMENT MANAGEMENT MEASURES to prevent, reduce, or eliminate threats
• DEVELOP CONTINGENCY PLANNING STRATEGIES to deal with water supply contamina-

tion or service interruption emergencies

1



Safe Drinking Water Hotline 1 (800) 426-4791 • www.epa.gov/safewater 2

II. Ensuring Safe Drinking Water Through the
Multiple-Barrier Approach

Whether your tap water comes from surface or ground water, all drinking water sources are
vulnerable to a variety of contaminants from a variety of activities.  The origin of contaminants
might be in your neighborhood or many miles away.  When rain falls or snow melts, it picks up
and carries away pollutants, depositing them into lakes, rivers, wetlands, coastal and even un-
derground sources of drinking water. Because we know these activities have the potential to



contaminate the source of our drinking water, we have created four major barriers to protect our
source water from contamination. Preventing pollution is critical to protecting drinking water
from contamination and reducing the need for costly treatment. Community involvement and
individual action are key to providing a safe supply of drinking water.

Risk Prevention Barrier

The best way to protect drinking water  is to keep contaminants from entering source water.
Multiple federal, state, and local laws and programs and individual action help communities
identify the sources of drinking water and potential threats. This work enables communities to
take appropriate steps to protect the watershed.

Risk Management Barrier

The public water system is the first line of defense to reduce or eliminate contaminants in source
water.  The Safe Drinking Water Act, which regulates these systems, develops standards and
guidance to help them reach the goal of providing safe and reliable drinking water. They must
collect and treat water, hire trained and qualified operators and have an emergency response
plan in case of natural disaster or terrorist attack.

3



Risk Monitoring and Compliance Barrier

Dealing effectively with risks to drinking water requires constant evaluation of the water quality.
Water is monitored at the source; at the treatment plant, after it has been treated and disin-
fected; at the distribution system, which delivers water through pumps and pipes to your home;
and in some cases, at the consumer’s tap. If systems have difficulty meeting regulations and
providing safe, reliable drinking water, assistance can be provided to help them. If all this fails,
enforcement action can be taken against the system.

Individual Action Barrier

Constant vigilance to protect water before it becomes your drinking water is essential and in-
volves all of us. An informed, involved and supportive public is the foundation of drinking water
protection.  What we do in the watershed can directly impact the quality of water that arrives at
the treatment plant.  The more you know about drinking water, the better equipped you are to
help protect it. See what you can do in the next section, titled, “What You Can Do to Protect Your
Drinking Water.”

Safe Drinking Water Hotline 1 (800) 426-4791 • www.epa.gov/safewater 4



III. SDWA and the Source Water Assessment
and Protection Program

Originally created in 1970, EPA’s primary mission was to address the potential risks to public
health posed by a variety of sources polluting our air and water, and initial program efforts within
the agency focused on individual threats from unique, discreet sources. Since then an under-
standing of the complexity of contaminants and activities posing threats has increased dramati-
cally, and has resulted in the need for a
combined and coordinated interdisciplinary
approach in order to address the problem
in a cross-media fashion. Conse-
quently, lessons learned over the
last two decades have enabled
a more comprehensive
understanding of the
concept of cumulative
risk (e.g., net im-
pact from many

5



media such as air, water, and land uses) and we have modified preventive programs to meet
those changing needs.

The 1996 amendments to the Safe Drinking Water Act (SDWA 1996) established EPA’s Source
Water Assessment and Protection Programs. They are the Agency’s newest programs targeted
at providing clean safe drinking water, but they build on programs developed to carry out EPA’s
original mission. Congress recognized the need for a more comprehensive and integrated ap-
proach to the problem of cumulative risk reduction, and SDWA 1996 mandated specific program
elements to address the areas of risk identification (delineation and source inventories), risk
ranking and screening (susceptibility analyses), risk management measures (prevention programs),
and preparation for unexpected drinking water supply replacement emergencies (contingency
planning).

The SDWA Amendments of 1996 outline six steps for prevention programs to protect and benefit
public drinking water systems. Together, they form the basis of comprehensive drinking water
source protection.

Safe Drinking Water Hotline 1 (800) 426-4791 • www.epa.gov/safewater 6



• STEP 1 – DELINEATE the Source Water Protection Area (SWPA).

PURPOSE: Delineating the SWPA shows the area to be protected and prescribes the bound-
aries of the area from which drinking water supplies are drawn.

This step also designates the area within which contaminant source inventories are con-
ducted, identifying substances or activities that may pose potential risks to the drinking water
supplies withing that area.  Delineations may be performed using a variety of accepted meth-
ods (e.g., calculated fixed radius; computer modeling, etc.), and are most protective when
they include all sources of water and potential contaminants and activities affecting them
within the prescribed area.

7



Safe Drinking Water Hotline 1 (800) 426-4791 • www.epa.gov/safewater 8

500 0 500 1000 1500 FEET

LEGEND
Minimum Setback Zone
Existing or Potential 
Maximum Setback Zone
Recharge Area

Rails

Roads Community Water
System Wells
Surface Water IntakeStreams

Rivers

This map shows the delineation of a Source Water Protection Area.



9

• STEP 2 – INVENTORY known and potential sources of contamination.

PURPOSE: The source inventory lists all documented and potential contaminant sources or
activities of concern that may be potential threats to drinking water supplies.

The source inventory indicates the level of concern assigned to each potential risk by ranking,
rating, or prioritzing management measures to reduce or eliminate them.

A contaminant source list may look like this:

Potential
Contaminant/Activity Threat or Risk Level of Concern
Agricultural Crop Excess amounts of Low to moderate, depending on
Spraying material or improper proximity to source waters

application methods
Industrial Waste Introduction of Moderate to high, depending on
Disposal Wells chemicals directly into surrounding hydrogeology
(e.g., Class V Wells) or above USDWs
Storm water runoff; Introduction of Low to moderate, depending on type
car washes; service contaminants into of surrounding facilities (e.g., parking
stations ground or surface water lots) and proximity to source waters.



Safe Drinking Water Hotline 1 (800) 426-4791 • www.epa.gov/safewater 10

Gas Station

Gas Station

City Building
Fuel Storage

City
Landfill

Storm Water
Retention Pond

Dry Cleaners

Oil Change
Shop

Storm Water
Retention Pond

Petroleum/Natural
Gas PipelineCar Dealer

Fuel Station

Underground
Oil Storage

500 0 500 1000 1500 FEET

LEGEND
Minimum Setback Zone
Existing or Potential 
Maximum Setback Zone
Recharge Area

Rails

Roads Community Water
System Wells
Surface Water Intake

Streams

Rivers

Potential Sources
of Contamination

This map inventories known and potential sources of contamination.



11

• STEP 3 – DETERMINE THE SUSCEPTIBILITY of the PWS to contaminant sources or activi-
ties within the SWPA.

PURPOSE: Determining susceptibility of the PWS to inventoried threats relates the nature and
severity of the threat to the likelihood of source waters serving that system being contaminated.

Mitigating factors taken into account when determining susceptibility include potency or toxicity
of the contaminant, volume of discharge or release, distance from wells or intakes, and the
likelihood of entry of the contaminant into the source waters.

A susceptibility determination for an individual PWS may look like this:

Contaminant/ Level of Risk Reducing Susceptibility
Activity Concern Factors Rating
Leaking Underground High Remove or Repair Tanks High
Storage Tanks
Concentrated Animal Moderate New/Upgraded Facility Low
Feeding  Operations and Equipment
Road Salt Storage Shed Moderate Diked facility with berms Moderate



Safe Drinking Water Hotline 1 (800) 426-4791 • www.epa.gov/safewater 12

500 0 500 1000 1500 FEET

LEGEND
Minimum Setback Zone
Existing or Potential 
Maximum Setback Zone
Recharge Area

Rails

Roads

Community Water
System Wells

Streams

Gas Station

Gas Station

City Building
Fuel Storage

High School
Bus Fueling

Station

City
Landfill

Storm Water
Retention Pond

Dry
Cleaners

Oil Change
Shop

Storm Water
Retention Pond

Petroleum/Natural
Gas Pipeline

Car Dealer
Fuel Station

Battery
Warehouse

Underground
Oil Storage

High Level of Risk

Medium Level of Risk

Low Level of Risk

Storm Water
Retention Pond

Auo
Service
Bays

Car Dealer
Fuel 

Station
Car Dealer

Fuel Station

Ready Mix
Cement

Closed
City Landfill

Gas Station

Auto
Repair
Shop

Gas Station

Auto
Repair
Shop

Auto
Repair
Shop

Auto
Repair
Shop

Gas Station Gas Station

Rivers Surface Water Intake

This map rates the susceptibility of a PWS to inventoried threats.



13

• STEP 4 – NOTIFY AND INVOLVE THE PUBLIC about threats identified in the contaminant
source inventory and what they mean to their PWSs.

PURPOSE: To ensure that the public has information necessary to control and modify their
own actions to prevent contamination and to participate effectively in community activities to
protect drinking water.

– Use plain English in reports

– Provide maps of the SWPA

– List, show or indicate potential sources/threats to the PWS identified within the SWPA

– List, rank, or otherwise prioritize importance of threats identified to the individual PWS and
explains what it means to your water supply

– Reports are unique to each individual PWS

– Public meetings are effective methods of involving the community.



Safe Drinking Water Hotline 1 (800) 426-4791 • www.epa.gov/safewater 14

• STEP 5 – IMPLEMENT MANAGEMENT MEASURES to prevent, reduce, or eliminate risks to
your drinking water supply.

PURPOSE: Using the information gathered from the assessments allows specific manage-
ment measures to be formulated and put in place.  By examining the results of the contami-
nant source inventory and the susceptibility determination for each PWS, these measures can
be tailored to address each threat or array of
risks specific to each PWS.

A successful drinking water contamination
prevention plan is tailored to the unique
concerns and circumstances of the local
community. Effective involvement is a critical
component to a successful public health plan.

– Every PWS’s source water is unique.

– Management measures need to tailor local
actions to address threats to your water
supplies.



15

– Early involvement in the source water protection process and consensus on need for action
is essential — you can help!

– Many players make for broad application and coverage of management strategies that
bring the best individual programs into play.

– Some key players and tools are:
- local business communities
- media
- parent-teacher associations
- citizen activists
- state, county, and local governments
- sanitary surveys
- zoning regulations
- voluntary best management practices (BMPs)



Safe Drinking Water Hotline 1 (800) 426-4791 • www.epa.gov/safewater 16

• STEP 6 – DEVELOP CONTINGENCY PLANNING STRATEGIES to deal with water supply
contamination or service interruption emergencies.

PURPOSE: In the event of short- or long-term water drinking water supply disruption as a
result of natural causes (e.g., biological contamination or floods) or intentional destruction
(e.g., vandalism or terrorism), water supply replacement strategies that coordinate all avail-
able efforts to restore service to single or multiple PWSs are an indispensible part of any
drinking water protection program.

– Outline emergency plans for short or long-term drinking water supply replacement

– Direct plan towards water supply interruption due to contamination or physical damage to
supply system

– Coordinate the efforts of water supply managers with those of civil defense, local emer-
gency response, hazmat/spill cleanup, and local area disaster response networks



17

IV. Tools, Resources, and Actions Useful In
Protecting Your Drinking Water Supplies

The Safe Drinking Water Act provides for a number of resources to help local communities protect
their drinking water:

• Source Water Assessments — States are required to complete source water assessments
for every public water supply in the U.S. Congress provided for funds under Section 1453
through the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) for support.

• Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Set Asides — States may set aside funds under
1452(g) from the DWSRF up to 10 percent of a state’s allotment for the DWSRF to administer
or provide technical assistance. States must match, dollar-for-dollar, the 10 percent set aside
(see Section VIII).

• Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Set Asides — States may set aside funds under
1452(k) from the DWSRF up to 15 percent of the state’s capitalization grant for more than one
of several source water protection activities (i.e., land acquisition/easements, voluntary
protection and petition activities, source water assessments and well head protection).



Safe Drinking Water Hotline 1 (800) 426-4791 • www.epa.gov/safewater 18

• Wellhead Protection — Each state must establish a program under Section 1428 to protect
the land areas around water supply wells from contaminants that may enter the ground water
and adversely affect human health.

• Source Water Petition Program — A state may establish a source water protection partner-
ship petition program under 1454 of the Act designed to assist in the local development of a
voluntary, incentive-based partnership between water supplies and community members.
States can use DWSRF funds for loans to water supplies to implement local programs.

• Water Conservation Planning Guidelines — EPA issued guidelines under Section 1455 for
water conservation plans for public water systems. States may require systems to submit
water conservation plans as a condition of receiving a DWSRF loan.

• Sole Source Aquifer Protection — Entities may petition EPA for protection of an aquifer that
is the sole or principal source of drinking water for 50 percent or greater of the local population
served (see “Petition’s Guidance for Sole Source Aquifers”, EPA 44016-87-003 Feb. 1987).

• State Underground Injection Control Programs — EPA must review applications under Section
1422 of the Act for state or tribal primacy (primary enforcement responsibility). Approved
programs will be adopted by the state or tribe, which will promulgate rules to ensure non-
endangerment of drinking water sources.



19

• Oil and Gas Programs — Section 1425 of the Act allows EPA approval of existing state oil
and gas programs if the state can show that the program is effective in preventing endanger-
ment of drinking water supplies.

• More Information — “State Source Water Assessment and Protection Program Guidance”
(EPA 816-R-97-009 Aug. 1997) on www.epa.gov/safewater/Pubs/index.html discusses these
and other statues and provisions pertaining to Source Water Assessment and Protection.



Safe Drinking Water Hotline 1 (800) 426-4791 • www.epa.gov/safewater 20

V. Additional Resources Available Under
the Clean Water Act

The Clean Water Act was established by Congress in 1972 and is the primary federal law that
protects our nation’s waters, including lakes, rivers, aquifers and coastal areas. The Clean Water
Act’s primary objective is to restore and maintain the integrity of the nation’s waters. This objec-
tive translates into two fundamental national goals: eliminate the discharge of pollutants into the
nation’s waters, and  achieve water quality levels that are fishable and swimmable.

• Federal Assistance to States — Under Section 106 of the Act, EPA may provide money to
states (including territories, the District of Columbia, tribes) and interstate agencies to establish
and implement ongoing water pollution control programs, including ground water programs.

• Water Quality Standards — Under Section 303(C)(1) define water quality goals for a water
body by designating the use of the water, setting criteria to protect those uses, and setting
anti-degradation provisions for the water body. States must update their water quality standards
every three years.

New and revised water quality standards “shall be submitted” to EPA for review. Under Section
303(c)(2) of the Act, water quality standards “shall consist of” designated uses and water



21

quality criteria. In setting water quality standards, states shall consider the use and value of
public water supplies.

• Point Source Effluent Limits, or Total Maximum Daily Loads (TMDLs) — Under Section
303(d), States “shall identify those waters for which” the point source effluent limits [see
§§301 (b)(l)(A)-(B)] are not stringent enough to implement a water quality standard, and
establish a ranking of such waters taking into account the severity of pollution and the uses
made of such waters.

Section 303(d)(1) provides for the establishment of TMDLs for pollutants that EPA has listed
under §304(a)(2) as “suitable for such calculation.” States shall set the TMDLs “at a level
necessary to implement the applicable water quality standards with seasonal variation and a
margin of safety taken into account.”

Section 303(d)(2) requires States to submit to EPA for approval “from time to time” their list of
impaired and threatened waters and the TMDLs they have established for those waters.

• The National Water Quality Inventory Report to Congress — Under 305(b) States must
report to EPA on the quality of their waters.



Safe Drinking Water Hotline 1 (800) 426-4791 • www.epa.gov/safewater 22

• Publishing of TMDLs — 304(a)(2) of the Act requires EPA to publish information on, “and the
identification of, pollutants suitable for maximum daily load measurement correlated with the
achievement of water quality objectives.”

• NPS Program — States must 1) conduct statewide assessments of their waters under Section
319 to identify those that were either impaired or threatened because of NPSs; 2) develop
NPS management programs to address the impaired or threatened waters.

Under 212, 319, and 320, funding is provided through the Clean Water State Revolving Fund
(CWSRF) — funding is provided for non point source, point source and estuary source water
protection projects, depending on priorities determined by each State.

• Dredge and Fill — Section 404 regulates the discharge of dredged or fill material into waters
of the U.S.

• NPDES Program — The National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System Program — regulates
point source discharges to surface waters under Section 402 of the Act.



23

VI. Financing for Source Water Assessment and
Protection Programs

There are two major avenues of funding for the drinking water source water assessment and
protection programs. They are the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) and the Clean
Water Act State Revolving Fund (CWSRF).

  Section Description

  SDWA 1452 The 1996 Amendments to the Safe Drinking Water Act authorized the DWSRF
to assist public water suppliers to finance the cost of infrastructure needed
to achieve or maintain compliance with SDWA requirements and to protect
public health. In addition, states may use a portion of their capitalization
grants to fund various state and local water systems management pro-
grams and projects including SWP activities. States may elect to use up to
31 percent of the funds available to them under Section 1452 for eligible
“set-aside” activities. The DWSRF program has made available billions of
dollars in assistance since 1997 to finance infrastructure improvements for
drinking water utilities. States have also reserved $575 million from the



Safe Drinking Water Hotline 1 (800) 426-4791 • www.epa.gov/safewater 24

$3.6 billion in federal grants they have received to fund other programs and
activities that support their drinking water programs through these “set-
asides;”

  CWA 106; 319 Subchapter VI of the CWASRF provides a powerful partnership between EP
A and the states, providing states with the flexibility to fund projects that
will address the highest priority water quality needs (see Sections 601-
607). CW A funds may be used to fund certain source water protection
activities, and cost savings can be realized through combining SWP and
CWA efforts. CWASRF loans can be used for watershed protection; funds
allocated under Section 106 of the Act may be set aside for state ground
water programs, and Section 319 funds, which are aimed at non-point source
pollution prevention, may also be used for source water protection. Nation-
ally, the CWSRF program has more than $37 billion in assets and has pro-
vided $34 billion in assistance since 1988. The CWSRF program currently
funds nearly $4 billion annually in water-quality related projects, including
more than $1 billion to fund projects addressing non-point sources of pollu-
tion that can often negatively impact sources of drinking water.



25

In addition to federal resources, these tools bolster protection at the local level.

• Education: Consumer awareness and citizen advocacy highlight the problem

• Voluntary Best Management Practices (BMPs): Once individuals understand they may be
part of the problem, they also understand they can be part of the solution

• Sanitary Setbacks are prescribed by local health codes for the placement of individual private
waste disposal systems (septic tanks) and community waste-treatment systems

• Zoning has proven to be a very powerful tool in preventing siting of potential contaminant
threats or activities adjacent to public drinking water supply source waters



Safe Drinking Water Hotline 1 (800) 426-4791 • www.epa.gov/safewater 26

VII. The Underground Injection Control (UIC)
Program and SWAP

The UIC program is a crucial component of the source water assessment and protection program,
because it identifies, permits, and regulates the design, siting, operation, and maintenance of
injection wells that are designed to dispose of waste underground. It is the major federal and
state program to control some 800,000 wells with the potential to contaminate drinking water
sources if not properly managed. The program identifies, as such, these wells are considered
potential contaminant sources in any source water assessment and protection program
contaminant source inventory. For example, all new motor vehicle waste disposal wells (e.g.,
service station bay floor drains) and all new large-capacity cesspools (e.g., serving multiple
dwellings or single units serving more than 20 persons per day) were banned as of April 2000.
The Safe Drinking Water Act requires EPA to provide safeguards so that injection wells or other
similar conveyance systems do not endanger current and future underground sources of drinking
water (USDWs).

Through the UIC program, EPA has developed minimum federal standards to regulate wells that
range from deep, technically-sophisticated and highly-monitored wells, to shallow on-site drain-
age systems such as septic systems, cesspools, and storm water drainage wells. These require-



27

ments also cover wells that discharge a variety of hazardous and nonhazardous fluids above,
into, or below aquifers. A comprehensive description of the five different classes of UIC wells
may be found in “Protecting Drinking Water Through Underground Injection Control,” EPA 816-K-
02-001.

EPA’s main concern relative to the source water assessment and protection program is the large
inventory of Class V UIC wells — typically shallow on-site drainage systems such as septic
systems, cesspools, and storm water drainage wells. They are a concern because their simple
construction provides little or no treatment of the injected fluids. There are more than 500,000
Class V wells in operation. Some examples are agricultural drainage wells, aquifer recharge and
aquifer storage and recovery wells, industrial waste disposal wells, large capacity cesspools,
large capacity septic systems, motor vehicle waste disposal wells, and storm water drainage
wells. There are many other subcategories of Class V wells.



Safe Drinking Water Hotline 1 (800) 426-4791 • www.epa.gov/safewater 28

VIII. SWAP Milestones

The focus of many of EPA’s efforts in the 1990s shifted from a cleanup and remediation-oriented
approach to one of prevention. In the next few years, citizens, local, state, tribal, and federal
officials will work together to collect information and take action to protect our precious drinking
water sources. Because of the changing nature of potential threats and local needs, communi-
ties will need to periodically revise their strategies.

Amendments
to SDWA
Create SWAP

EPA Final
Guidance
for State
SWAPs

States submit
SWAPs for
EPA Review
and Approval

SDWA
1429 GW
Report to
Congress

EPA's National DW
Contamination
Prevention
Strategy Released

States Begin
Implementing
SWAP Programs

State SWAs
Due for
Completion
05/03

Transition to
State SWAPs

19
96

19
97

19
98

19
99

20
00

20
01

20
02

20
03

20
04

20
05



29

IX. Best Management Practices (BMPs) Available
for SWPAs

Category, Activity,
or Threat

Impacts, Implications,
or Risk Possible BMPs Available

Septic Systems Improper siting, maintenance and
use may contaminate both
surface and ground water by
percolation or runoff.

Bacteria, protozoa, and viruses
present in sanitary wastewater
can cause gastrointestinal illness,
cholera, hepatitis A and typhoid if
consumed.

• Establish proper siting criteria

• Specify appropriate design and
construction criteria

• Establish operation and
maintenance protocols
(“Septic System Ground Water
Protection” EPA, July 1986
GPO 1991-517-003-28046)

• Analyze assimilative capacity
of soils and receiving water to



Category, Activity,
or Threat

Impacts, Implications,
or Risk Possible BMPs Available

Safe Drinking Water Hotline 1 (800) 426-4791 • www.epa.gov/safewater 30

determine appropriate density
of septic system units.

• Consider connecting to a
public water system

Lawn and Garden
Fertilizer

Field leaching or runoff into
surface and ground water.

Nitrogen leaching into drinking
water supplies at levels above
MCLs may cause “blue baby
syndrome” in infants under 6
months — life-threatening
without immediate medical

• Eliminate excess uses

• Ensure proper application

• Select appropriate fertilizer

• Avoid application near wells
used for drinking water,
agricultural drainage wells;
surface waters



31

Category, Activity,
or Threat

Impacts, Implications,
or Risk Possible BMPs Available

attention. Symptoms are
shortness of breath and blue skin
color.

Phosphorus may affect taste and
odor of drinking water and may
require treatment.

• Plant native plants and
grasses requiring less
fertilizer and water

Pet Waste Watershed runoff or direct
contact can introduce wastes
into drinking water supplies.
Cryptosporidium; Giardia lamblia,
Salmonella, and E. coli pose the
greatest threats

• Pick up after pets



Safe Drinking Water Hotline 1 (800) 426-4791 • www.epa.gov/safewater 32

Category, Activity,
or Threat

Impacts, Implications,
or Risk Possible BMPs Available

Pesticide
Application
(Large Scale)

Runoff to surface waters due to
rainfall or irrigation return flow.
Soil injection threatens ground
water sources.

Possible health from exposure to
large amounts of pesticides in
drinking water over a long period
of time include: effects include
cancer, liver and kidney damage,
reproductive difficulties, and
nervous system effects.

• Pesticide alternatives through
Integrated Pest Management

• Mix, load, and apply
consistent with label
directions

• Reduce techniques such as
soil incorporation, pre- and
post-plant emergence
applications, spot treatments;
split applications

• Proper storage and disposal



33

Category, Activity,
or Threat

Impacts, Implications,
or Risk Possible BMPs Available

• Avoid application around
wells used for drinking water,
agricultural drainage wells,
and surface water

Turfgrass/
Agricultural
Fertilizer
Application

Field leaching or runoff into
surface and ground water.

Nitrogen leaching into drinking
water supplies at levels above
MCLs may cause “blue baby
syndrome” in infants under 6
months — life-threatening
without immediate medical

• Utilize application rates and
fertilizer types consistent with
actual plant needs.

• Time applications with periods
of maximum crop uptake

• Impede runoff by using tillage
buffer strips, or filter strips



Safe Drinking Water Hotline 1 (800) 426-4791 • www.epa.gov/safewater 34

Category, Activity,
or Threat

Impacts, Implications,
or Risk Possible BMPs Available

attention. Symptoms are
shortness of breath and blue skin
color.

Phosphorus may affect taste and
odor of drinking water and may
require treatment.

• Store and dispose fertilizers
properly

• Avoid application near wells
used for drinking water

Livestock and
Poultry Waste

High Nitrogen and pathogens
(Cryptosporidium; Giardia
lamblia, Salmonella, and E. coli
can enter both ground and
surface water sources used for
drinking water via runoff or
percolation.

• Prevent animal waste contact
with water

• Ensure proper land application
of manure



35

Category, Activity,
or Threat

Impacts, Implications,
or Risk Possible BMPs Available

• Avoid application near
drinking water wells and
surface waters

• Use pasture management
techniques such as fencing
and planting legumes

• Avoid siting animal waste
lagoons near drinking water
wells or flood plains

• Use low-permeability lagoon
liners

• Aerobically compost horse
manure



Safe Drinking Water Hotline 1 (800) 426-4791 • www.epa.gov/safewater 36

Category, Activity,
or Threat

Impacts, Implications,
or Risk Possible BMPs Available

• Divert wildlife from sensitve
areas by fencing, mowing,
landscaping, tree pruning, and
drainage devices

Sanitary and
Combined Sewer
Overflows
(SSOs/CSOs)

SSOs discharge untreated
sewage through broken pipes,
equipment failures and overloads

CSOs discharge untreated
sewage and storm water when
system capacity is exceeded

Contaminants are bacteria,
molds, fungi, protozoa and
helminths

• Non-structural prevention
methods such as visual
inspections, monitoring and
maintenence programs,
employee training and public
education

• Consider structural preven-
tion methods such as
upgrading of collection



37

Category, Activity,
or Threat

Impacts, Implications,
or Risk Possible BMPs Available

Chief threats are gastroenteritis,
cholera, dysentery and infectious
hepatitis

systems, wet-weather storage
facilities, and new sewer
collection systems

Injection Wells
(UIC Program),
Classes I-IV

Misuse or discharge of
harzardous chemicals into Class
V Wells

See companion Pocket Guide for
descriptions of well classes and
regulations that apply to each

Injection Wells
(UIC Program),
Class V

Injection of nonhazardous fluids
into or above USDWs

(Available BMPs for selected
representative examples below)

See vehicle washing, small
quantity chemical use, and
underground storage tanks



Safe Drinking Water Hotline 1 (800) 426-4791 • www.epa.gov/safewater 38

Category, Activity,
or Threat

Impacts, Implications,
or Risk Possible BMPs Available

Storm Water Runoff

– Rain or snow runoff
carrying sediments
and contaminants
into surface or
ground waters

– Pathways include
excess volume
runoff from settling
ponds, municipal
storm drains,
parking lots, truck
stops, gas stations,
airports (fuel and

Possible contaminants include
gasoline, oil, automotive fluids,
sediment, pesticides, nutrients,
animal wastes, and hazardous
wastes. Nationally, 77 of 127
priority pollutants have been
detected in urban runoff.

Potential health effects from
these contaminants include
gastrointestinal illness, reproduc-
tive and developmental effects
and increased cancer risk.

Basic pollution prevention
practices such as erosion
control and sedimentation
control measures; land use
controls; grassed swales; buffer
strips; filter strips; storm water
capture and retainment ponds,
and constructed wetlands.



39

Category, Activity,
or Threat

Impacts, Implications,
or Risk Possible BMPs Available

deicing fluids) and
road chemical
storage

– Sediment and
contaminants
carried to surface
and ground
waters via
infiltration through
soil of drainage to
subsurface wells
or septic systems.



Safe Drinking Water Hotline 1 (800) 426-4791 • www.epa.gov/safewater 40

Category, Activity,
or Threat

Impacts, Implications,
or Risk Possible BMPs Available

Vehicle Washing

– Nationally, States
estimate that there
are in excess of
7,200 facilities of
this type currently
in operation.

Contaminants include used oil,
degreasers, antifreeze and
synthetic oils.

Patrons may use solvents or
degreasers at unmanned washing
facilities, thereby contributing to
contamination of rinse waters
entering Class V wells.

Potential health effects from
these contaminants include
kidney damage; circulatory
problems, increased cancer risk;
delays in physical or mental
development.

• Use alternative cleansing
agents such as phosphate-
free, biodegradable
detergents.

• Discourage use of solvent
and emulsifier-based agents

• Install water-recycling
systems

• Train employees on spill
control and response to
problems

• Control and manage spills



41

Category, Activity,
or Threat

Impacts, Implications,
or Risk Possible BMPs Available

Small Quantity
Chemical Use

Chemicals of
concern may reach
ground and surface
waters through
improper disposal
practices via
discharge to
sewers, septic
systems, dry wells,
or through improper
handling, hauling
and disposal.

Includes chemicals used in
cleaning, degreasing, polishing,
paint preparation, rust removal,
photo processing, medical
practices.

• Avoid excess use of
chemicals

• Follow label directions on
proper use, storage and
disposal

• Train employees on spill
control and response
protocols

• Refer to manufacturer’s
Material Safety Data Sheets
for specific hazard
descriptions



Safe Drinking Water Hotline 1 (800) 426-4791 • www.epa.gov/safewater 42

Category, Activity,
or Threat

Impacts, Implications,
or Risk Possible BMPs Available

Underground
Storage Tanks
(USTs)

National inventory
shows approximately
714,000 USTs on
269,000 sites.

Releases of petroleum fuel
substances through corrosion of
parts, improper installation,
failure of piping systems, sloppy
fuel deliveries, and improper
operation and maintenance

• Ensure compliance with
federal UST requirements
(see: www.epa.gov/oilspill)

• Consider local registration
programs for exempt tanks

• Consider local land-use
controls such as zoning, use
restrictions, permits and
setbacks



43

Category, Activity,
or Threat

Impacts, Implications,
or Risk Possible BMPs Available

Above Ground
Storage Tanks
(ASTs)

Release of petroleum fuel
substances mainly through leaks
or spills may enter drinking water
supplies via soil accumulation or
runoff in storm waters to surface

• Follow federal AST
requirements
(see: www.epa.gov/oilspill)

• Periodic cleanup of
containment areas

• Consider local registration
programs for exempt tanks

• Consider local land-use
controls such as zoning, use
restrictions, permits and
setbacks



Safe Drinking Water Hotline 1 (800) 426-4791 • www.epa.gov/safewater 44

X. Glossary

Aquifer – A natural underground layer, often of sand or gravel, that contains water.

Assessment – An analysis of the susceptibility of drinking water sources to contamination,
communicated effectively to the public.

Ground Water – The water that systems pump and treat from aquifers.

Potential Contaminant Source – Specific point or nonpoint sources from which contamination
of drinking water may originate; activities that may result in drinking water contamination.

Public Water System (PWS) – Any water system which provides water to at least 25 people for
at least 60 days annually. There are more than 170,000 PWSs providing water from wells, rivers
and other sources to about 250 million Americans. The others drink water from private wells.
There are differing standards for PWSs of different sizes and types.

Risk Ranking – Rating or prioritizing levels of concern of potential contaminant sources based on
susceptibility of public water systems.

Sole Source Aquifer – A drinking water supply in an area with few or no alternative sources to
the ground water resource, and where if contamination occurred, using an alternative source



45

would be extremely expensive. If such an aquifer supplies a public water system on which at
least 50 percent of the population depends, it may be designated as a sole source aquifer.

Source Water Protection Area – The area delineated by the state for a public water system, or
including numerous PWSs, whether the source is ground water, surface water, or both. Delineat-
ing the source water protection area is part of the state source water assessment plan approved
by EPA under section 1453 of the Safe Drinking Water Act.

Surface Water – The water that systems pump and treat from sources open to the atmosphere,
such as rivers, lakes, and reservoirs.

Susceptibility – The level of risk of drinking water contamination, based on the nature and
severity of contaminants, and the likelihood of the contaminants getting into a drinking water
source.

Underground Injection Control Program – A program to prevent injection activities from
endangering underground sources of drinking water.

Wellhead Protection Area – The surface and subsurface area surrounding a well or well field,
supplying a public water system, through which contaminants are reasonably likely to move
toward and reach such water well or field.



Safe Drinking Water Hotline 1 (800) 426-4791 • www.epa.gov/safewater 46

XI. Contacts
The following list includes regional office contacts for Source Water Assessment and Protection
and Underground Injection Control. For state contacts, regional and local contacts at other fed-
eral agencies, and other partners, see www.epa.gov/safewater/protect/contacts.html.  The Safe
Drinking Water Hotline (bottom of page) also maintains the list of these contacts.

EPA Region 1 – Maine, New Hampshire, Vermont,
Massachusetts, Rhode Island, and Connecticut ................................................  (617) 918-1578

EPA Region 2 – New York, New Jersey, Puerto Rico
and the U.S. Virgin Islands .................................................................................  (212) 637-3822

EPA Region 3 – Pennsylvania Delaware, Maryland,
Virginia, West Virginia, and Washington, DC .....................................................  (215) 814-5779

EPA Region 4 – Kentucky, Tennessee, North Carolina,
South Carolina, Mississippi, Alabama, Georgia, and Florida ..............................  (404) 562-9459

EPA Region 5 – Minnesota, Wisconsin, Illinois,
Michigan, Indiana, and Ohio ...............................................................................  (312) 886-9262



47

EPA Region 6 – New Mexico, Texas, Oklahoma,
Arkansas, and Louisiana ....................................................................................  (214) 665-7129

EPA Region 7 – Nebraska, Kansas, Iowa, and Missouri ...................................  (913) 551-7423

EPA Region 8 – Montana, North Dakota, Wyoming,
South Dakota, Utah and Colorado .......................................................................  (303) 312-6753

EPA Region 9 – California, Nevada, Arizona, Hawaii,
Guam, and American Samoa .............................................................................  (415) 744-1829

EPA Region 10 – Washington, Oregon, Idaho, and Alaska ................................  (206) 553-1563

Headquarters – Office of Ground Water and Drinking Water ............................  (202) 564-3867





For More Information

EPA Office of Ground Water
and Drinking Water

www.epa.gov/safewater
Safe Drinking Water Hotline 1 (800) 426-4791



November 25, 2019 
 

Central Mason Fire and EMS 
 
 
Dear Emergency Responder: 
The City of Shelton has recently revised their wellhead protection plan as required by 
the Washington Department of Health (DOH). As part of this plan, the water system 
must coordinate with agencies responsible for incident/spill response procedures. As 
stated in the DOH Wellhead Protection Program Guidance Document, “if a public 
water system’s source water is determined to be vulnerable to surface activities, 
special procedures may need to be incorporated into local emergency response 
plans.”  As part of wellhead protection planning, emergency responders are asked to 
evaluate whether changes in incident/spill response procedures are needed to better 
protect groundwater within wellhead protection areas. To assist with your review, a 
map of the wellhead protection area is enclosed. 
The findings of the wellhead protection study indicate that, due to the nature of the 
surficial geology, surface spills will not likely be quickly absorbed into the production 
aquifer unless the spill is in close proximity to the production wells. However, care 
should still be exercised because the nature of the geology can vary appreciably over 
short distances. 
Thank you for your attention in this matter.  If you have any questions about the plan, 
please feel free to contact us. 
Sincerely, 

City of Shelton 
 
cc. Mason County Sheriff, City of Shelton Police Department 
 

City of Shelton 













































































































FORM-LBF-CHM

tropeR ™paM suidaR RDE ehT

6 Armstrong Road, 4th floor
Shelton, CT 06484
Toll Free: 800.352.0050
www.edrnet.com

1840-003B Shelton WHPA
784 E Island Lake Dr
Shelton, WA  98584

Inquiry Number: 5712009.2s
July 11, 2019



SECTION PAGE

Executive Summary ES1

Overview Map 2

Detail Map 3

Map Findings Summary 4

Map Findings 8

Orphan Summary 542

Government Records Searched/Data Currency Tracking GR-1

GEOCHECK ADDENDUM

GeoCheck - Not Requested

TC5712009.2s   Page 1

Thank you for your business.
Please contact EDR at 1-800-352-0050

with any questions or comments.

Disclaimer - Copyright and Trademark Notice

This Report contains certain information obtained from a variety of public and other sources reasonably available to Environmental Data
Resources, Inc. It cannot be concluded from this Report that coverage information for the target and surrounding properties does not exist from
other sources. NO WARRANTY EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, IS MADE WHATSOEVER IN CONNECTION WITH THIS REPORT. ENVIRONMENTAL
DATA RESOURCES, INC. SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMS THE MAKING OF ANY SUCH WARRANTIES, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION,
MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR USE OR PURPOSE. ALL RISK IS ASSUMED BY THE USER. IN NO EVENT SHALL
ENVIRONMENTAL DATA RESOURCES, INC. BE LIABLE TO ANYONE, WHETHER ARISING OUT OF ERRORS OR OMISSIONS, NEGLIGENCE,
ACCIDENT OR ANY OTHER CAUSE, FOR ANY LOSS OF DAMAGE, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL,
CONSEQUENTIAL, OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES. ANY LIABILITY ON THE PART OF ENVIRONMENTAL DATA RESOURCES, INC. IS STRICTLY
LIMITED TO A REFUND OF THE AMOUNT PAID FOR THIS REPORT. Purchaser accepts this Report "AS IS". Any analyses, estimates, ratings,
environmental risk levels or risk codes provided in this Report are provided for illustrative purposes only, and are not intended to provide, nor
should they be interpreted as providing any facts regarding, or prediction or forecast of, any environmental risk for any property. Only a Phase I
Environmental Site Assessment performed by an environmental professional can provide information regarding the environmental risk for any
property. Additionally, the information provided in this Report is not to be construed as legal advice.

Copyright 2019 by Environmental Data Resources, Inc. All rights reserved. Reproduction in any media or format, in whole
or in part, of any report or map of Environmental Data Resources, Inc., or its affiliates, is prohibited without prior written permission.

EDR and its logos (including Sanborn and Sanborn Map) are trademarks of Environmental Data Resources, Inc. or its affiliates. All other
trademarks used herein are the property of their respective owners.

TABLE OF CONTENTS



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5712009.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 1

A search of available environmental records was conducted by Environmental Data Resources, Inc (EDR).
The report was designed to assist parties seeking to meet the search requirements of EPA’s Standards
and Practices for All Appropriate Inquiries (40 CFR Part 312), the ASTM Standard Practice for
Environmental Site Assessments (E 1527-13), the ASTM Standard Practice for Environmental Site
Assessments for Forestland or Rural Property (E 2247-16), the ASTM Standard Practice for Limited
Environmental Due Diligence: Transaction Screen Process (E 1528-14) or custom requirements developed
for the evaluation of environmental risk associated with a parcel of real estate.

TARGET PROPERTY INFORMATION

ADDRESS

784 E ISLAND LAKE DR
SHELTON, WA 98584

COORDINATES

47.2488130 - 47˚ 14’ 55.72’’Latitude (North): 
123.1212250 - 123˚ 7’ 16.41’’Longitude (West): 
Zone 10Universal Tranverse Mercator: 
490826.4UTM X (Meters): 
5232603.0UTM Y (Meters): 
242 ft. above sea levelElevation:

USGS TOPOGRAPHIC MAP ASSOCIATED WITH TARGET PROPERTY

6005141 SHELTON, WATarget Property Map:
2014Version Date:

6005151 UNION, WANortheast Map:
2014Version Date:

6005143 SHELTON VALLEY, WASouthwest Map:
2014Version Date:

6005145 SKOKOMISH VALLEY, WANorthwest Map:
2014Version Date:

AERIAL PHOTOGRAPHY IN THIS REPORT

20150817, 20150728Portions of Photo from:
USDASource:



5712009.2s   Page  2

39 OAK PARK WATER SYSTE E OAK PARK WAY FINDS, ECHO Lower 5376, 1.018, ENE

38 JIM’S AUTOMOTIVE, IN 2911 E BROCKDALE RD WA SWF/LF Lower 5257, 0.996, NE

F37 OLYMPIC AIR INC 11771 N HWY 101 WA UST, WA ALLSITES Higher 5110, 0.968, SW

F36 OLYMPIC AIR INC 11771 N HWY 101 FINDS Higher 5110, 0.968, SW

E35 HIAWATHA INC 681 E JOHNS PRAIRIE WA LUST, WA UST, WA ALLSITES, WA CSCSL NFA, FINDS Lower 5085, 0.963, SE

E34 HIAWATHA INC 681 E JOHNS PRAIRIE WA RGA LUST Lower 5085, 0.963, SE

33 11840 HWY 101 WA ASBESTOS Higher 5034, 0.953, SW

32 TRACTOR SUPPLY SHELT 12001 N US 101 WA ALLSITES Higher 5018, 0.950, SW

D31 AIRPORT GROCERY DELI 11900 HIGHWAY 101 WA RGA LUST Higher 5010, 0.949, SW

D30 AIRPORT GROCERY 11900 HWY 101 WA RGA LUST Higher 5010, 0.949, SW

D29 AIRPORT GROCERY & DE 11900 HWY 101 WA RGA LUST Higher 5010, 0.949, SW

D28 AIRPORT GROCERY 11900 N US HIGHWAY 1 EDR Hist Auto Higher 5010, 0.949, SW

D27 AIRPORT GROCERY 11900 HWY 101 WA LUST, WA UST, WA VCP, WA ICR, WA ALLSITES, WA... Higher 5010, 0.949, SW

D26 AIRPORT GROCERY STOR 11900 HWY 101 WA RGA HWS Higher 5010, 0.949, SW

D25 AIRPORT GROCERY STOR 11900 HWY 101 FINDS Higher 5010, 0.949, SW

D24 AIRPORT GROCERY & 11900 HWY 101 WA RGA LUST Higher 5010, 0.949, SW

23 HIDDEN HAVEN MOBILE 1700 E SHELTON SPRIN FINDS, ECHO Higher 4926, 0.933, WSW

C22 MASON COUNTY TRANSPO 3740 SHELTON SPRINGS WA UST, WA Financial Assurance, WA MANIFEST Lower 4767, 0.903, South

C21 MASON COUNTY TRANSPO 3740 SHELTON SPRINGS WA RGA HWS Lower 4767, 0.903, South

C20 MASON COUNTY TRANSPO 3740 SHELTON SPRINGS WA RGA LUST Lower 4767, 0.903, South

C19 MASON COUNTY TRANSPO 3740 SHELTON SPRINGS WA CSCSL, WA LUST, WA ALLSITES, RCRA NonGen / NLR,...Lower 4767, 0.903, South

C18 MASON COUNTY TRANSPO 3740 SHELTON SPRINGS WA RGA LUST Lower 4767, 0.903, South

C17 MASON COUNTY TRANSPO 3740 SHELTON SPRINGS WA RGA LUST Lower 4767, 0.903, South

C16 MASON COUNTY TRANSPO 3740 SHELTON SPGS RD ICIS, FINDS, ECHO Lower 4767, 0.903, South

15 310 E. BLEVINS RD. WA HIST CDL Higher 4182, 0.792, West

B14 WILSON RECYCLING 2278 E BROCKDALE RD ECHO Lower 3798, 0.719, East

B13 WILSON RECYCLING 2278 E BROCKDALE RD FINDS, ECHO Lower 3798, 0.719, East

B12 WILSON RECYCLING 2278 E BROCKDALE RD WA SWF/LF Lower 3798, 0.719, East

B11 WILSON RECYCLING 2278 E. BROCKDALE RD WA RGA LF Lower 3798, 0.719, East

B10 PAY MORE RECYCLE & S 2278 E BROCKDALE RD WA SWRCY, WA ALLSITES, WA SPILLS, WA NPDES Lower 3798, 0.719, East

A9 SHELTON HIGH SCHOOL 3737 N SHELTON SPRIN WA ALLSITES, WA NPDES Lower 3782, 0.716, SSW

A8 3737 SHELTON SPRINGS WA ASBESTOS Lower 3782, 0.716, SSW

A7 SSD - SHELTON HIGH S 3737 N SHELTON SPRIN CA HAZNET Lower 3782, 0.716, SSW

6 SHELTON SPRINGS WA ALLSITES Lower 3282, 0.622, South

5 LEES & SONS AUTO SER 71 E BOARDWALK RD EDR Hist Auto Higher 3150, 0.597, SW

4 2201 E. ISLAND LK. D WA ASBESTOS Lower 2993, 0.567, ESE

3 WOODLAND MANOR WATER E WOODLAND DR FINDS, ECHO Higher 2960, 0.561, SSW

2 CHERRY PARK WATER SY E ISLAND LAKE RD FINDS, ECHO Higher 2758, 0.522, SW

1 784 E ISLAND LAKE DR WA ASBESTOS TP

MAPPED SITES SUMMARY

Target Property Address:
784 E ISLAND LAKE DR
SHELTON, WA  98584

Click on Map ID to see full detail.

MAP RELATIVE DIST (ft. & mi.)
ID DATABASE ACRONYMS ELEVATION DIRECTIONSITE NAME ADDRESS



5712009.2s   Page  3

Q78 OFF HIGH 101 WA SPILLS Higher 6259, 1.185, West

Q77 DAYTON AIRPORT RD WA DAYTON AIRPORT, SHEL FINDS, ECHO Higher 6253, 1.184, West

Q76 HWY 102 WA SPILLS Higher 6218, 1.178, WNW

75 GRADENS SHELTON CHEV 701 E WALLACE KNEELA WA ALLSITES, FINDS Lower 6195, 1.173, South

Q74 DAYTON AIRPORT RD WA DAYTON AIRPORT SHELT WA ALLSITES Higher 6155, 1.166, West

N73 OLYMPIC TOOL ENGINEE W 21 SANDERSON WAY WA ALLSITES, RCRA NonGen / NLR Higher 6103, 1.156, West

P72 REPAIRS PLUS 1022 E JOHNS PRAIRIE WA ALLSITES Higher 6090, 1.153, ESE

P71 REPAIRS PLUS E 1022 JOHNS PRAIRIE RCRA NonGen / NLR, WA MANIFEST Higher 6058, 1.147, ESE

P70 REPAIRS PLUS E 1022 JOHNS PRAIRIE FINDS, ECHO Higher 6053, 1.146, ESE

N69 SUNRISE FIBERGLASS E W 171 SANDERSON WAY WA ALLSITES, RCRA NonGen / NLR Higher 6042, 1.144, West

O68 WAL MART TIRE & LUBE 100 E WALLACE KNEELA FINDS Lower 6018, 1.140, South

O67 100 WALLACE KNEELAND WA SPILLS Lower 6018, 1.140, South

O66 WAL MART STORE 2121 100 E WALLACE KNEELA RCRA-SQG, WA ALLSITES, FINDS, ECHO, WA MANIFEST Lower 6018, 1.140, South

N65 AERO CONTROLS INC SA W 231 SANDERSON WAY RCRA-LQG, WA ALLSITES Higher 5990, 1.134, West

M64 TRANSMISSIONS PLUS A 31 E VANCE CT WA ALLSITES Lower 5965, 1.130, ESE

M63 TRANSMISSIONS PLUS A 31 E VANCE CT FINDS Lower 5965, 1.130, ESE

L62 SHELTON WATER RECLAM 10891 SR101 FINDS Higher 5952, 1.127, SSW

L61 SHELTON WATER RECLAM 10891 SR101 WA ALLSITES, WA NPDES Higher 5952, 1.127, SSW

60 PORT OF SHELTON ALL SANDERSON FIELD WA HSL, WA CSCSL, WA ALLSITES Higher 5873, 1.112, WSW

I59 VACANT 450 W. ENTERPRISE RD PADS Higher 5872, 1.112, SW

K58 ROSAND DAM FINDS Lower 5868, 1.111, East

K57 ROSAND DAM WA ALLSITES Lower 5842, 1.106, East

56 TECHWOOD 121 W ENTERPISE RD A FINDS Higher 5841, 1.106, WSW

55 TACOMA PUBLIC UTILIT N 21451 HWY 101 RCRA-CESQG, WA ALLSITES, WA MANIFEST Higher 5813, 1.101, West

J54 MASON COUNTY TRANSPO 790 E JOHNS PRAIRIE FINDS Lower 5788, 1.096, ESE

J53 BARNES MACHINE INC 790 E JOHNS PRAIRIE WA VCP, WA ALLSITES, WA CSCSL NFA, RCRA NonGen /... Lower 5788, 1.096, ESE

I52 PORT OF SHELTON 430 W. ENTERPRISE RD PADS Higher 5682, 1.076, WSW

I51 SANDERSON INDUSTRIAL 430 W ENTERPRISE RD WA ALLSITES, RCRA NonGen / NLR, FINDS, ECHO, WA... Higher 5682, 1.076, WSW

50 GREEN CROW SHELTON L 12721 US HWY 101 FINDS Higher 5528, 1.047, West

H49 OLYMPIC FABRICATION 410 W ENTERPRISE RD WA ALLSITES Higher 5525, 1.046, WSW

H48 OLYMPIC FABRICATION 410 W ENTERPRISE RD RCRA NonGen / NLR Higher 5525, 1.046, WSW

H47 WA317947476 - TRUFAB 410 W ENTERPRISE RD FINDS, ECHO Higher 5525, 1.046, WSW

H46 SHELTON PORT 400 W ENTERPRISE RD FINDS, ECHO Higher 5508, 1.043, WSW

45 BPA RIGHT OF WAY PAI 200 YDS NW OF E 1892 RCRA NonGen / NLR, FINDS, ECHO Lower 5482, 1.038, SE

44 SHELTON FLIGHT INC HWY 101 SANDERSON FI WA UST, WA ALLSITES, FINDS Higher 5460, 1.034, SSW

G43 WA317943733 - P U D 43 W. SANDERSON WAY FINDS Higher 5448, 1.032, West

42 PRIVATE RESIDENCE 855 E JOHNS PRAIRIE WA SPILLS Lower 5408, 1.024, ESE

G41 PORT OF SHELTON 21 W SANDERSON WAY WA ALLSITES Higher 5383, 1.020, West

G40 PORT OF SHELTON ALL 21 W SANDERSON WAY ICIS, FINDS, ECHO Higher 5383, 1.020, West

MAPPED SITES SUMMARY

Target Property Address:
784 E ISLAND LAKE DR
SHELTON, WA  98584

Click on Map ID to see full detail.

MAP RELATIVE DIST (ft. & mi.)
ID DATABASE ACRONYMS ELEVATION DIRECTIONSITE NAME ADDRESS



5712009.2s   Page  4

X117 FRED MEYER #603 FUEL 301 E WALLACE KNEELA WA UST, WA ALLSITES Lower 6876, 1.302, South

X116 KNEELAND PLAZA CLEAN 301 E WALLACE KNEELA EDR Hist Cleaner Lower 6876, 1.302, South

X115 JAMES FOOD MART 301 E WALLACE KNEELA FINDS Lower 6876, 1.302, South

X114 VEHICLE OWNER 301 EAST WALLACE KNE WA SPILLS Lower 6876, 1.302, South

W113 SHELTON SOC 070821 140 BELL LN WA RGA LUST Lower 6872, 1.302, South

W112 US WEST SOC 140 BELL LN FINDS Lower 6872, 1.302, South

W111 US WEST SOC 140 BELL LN WA LUST, WA ICR, WA ALLSITES, WA CSCSL NFA Lower 6872, 1.302, South

W110 SHELTON SOC 070821 140 BELL LN WA UST Lower 6872, 1.302, South

109 WA317946698 - SSI CA 820 E HIAWATHA BLVD FINDS Higher 6814, 1.291, ESE

108 INGRAHAM OIL COMPANY 6 COMET LN EDR Hist Auto Lower 6757, 1.280, SSE

V107 NEAR: 1347 E JOHNS PRAIRIE WA SPILLS Lower 6666, 1.263, East

V106 APEX COLLISION SERVI 1347 E JOHNS PRAIRIE WA ALLSITES Lower 6666, 1.263, East

V105 APEX COLLISION SERVI 1347 E JOHNS PRAIRIE FINDS Lower 6666, 1.263, East

V104 DAVES PERFORMANCE MA 1341 E JOHNS PRAIRIE WA ALLSITES Higher 6653, 1.260, East

V103 DAVES PERFORMANCE MA 1341 E JOHNS PRAIRIE FINDS Higher 6653, 1.260, East

102 WA SPILLS Lower 6610, 1.252, ENE

S101 WA317947269 - WHISKE 21 ADONAI CT FINDS Higher 6598, 1.250, ESE

U100 BRADY’S NURSERY 920 E JOHNS PRAIRIE WA SWF/LF Lower 6530, 1.237, ESE

U99 BRADYS NURSERY 920 E JOHNS PRAIRIE WA RGA LF Lower 6530, 1.237, ESE

T98 ARCO 106 EAST WALLACE KNE WA SPILLS Lower 6520, 1.235, SSW

T97 ARCO 82609 106 E WALLACE KNEELA RCRA NonGen / NLR, FINDS, ECHO, WA MANIFEST Lower 6520, 1.235, SSW

T96 ARCO 82609 106 E WALLACE KNEELA WA RGA LUST Lower 6520, 1.235, SSW

T95 AM/PM GAS STATION 106 E WALLACE KNEELA WA RGA LUST Lower 6520, 1.235, SSW

T94 ARCO AMPM - SHELTON 106 E WALLACE KNEELA WA LUST, WA VCP, WA ALLSITES, WA CSCSL NFA, WA... Lower 6520, 1.235, SSW

T93 AM/PM GAS STATION 106 E WALLACE KNEELA WA Financial Assurance Lower 6520, 1.235, SSW

T92 PRESTIGE STATIONS IN 106 E WALLACE KNEELA EDR Hist Auto Lower 6520, 1.235, SSW

T91 ARCO AM/PM MINI MARK 106 E WALLACE KNEELA WA RGA LUST Lower 6520, 1.235, SSW

T90 ARCO 82609 106 E WALLACE KNEELA WA RGA HWS Lower 6520, 1.235, SSW

T89 AM/PM GAS STATION 106 E WALLACE KNEELA WA UST, WA MANIFEST Lower 6520, 1.235, SSW

S88 HIAWATHA BOULEVARD A WA SPILLS Higher 6500, 1.231, ESE

R87 SUNRISE FIBERGLASS E 171 W SANDERSON WAY ICIS Higher 6417, 1.215, West

R86 SUNRISE FIBERGLASS E 171 W SANDERSON WAY FINDS, ECHO Higher 6417, 1.215, West

R85 SUNRISE FIBERGLASS E W 171 SANDERSON WAY FTTS, HIST FTTS Higher 6404, 1.213, West

R84 SANDERSON FIELD/INDU 150 W SANDERSON WA RGA LUST Higher 6282, 1.190, West

R83 DON SMALL & SONS OIL 150 W SANDERSON WY WA LUST, WA VCP, WA ALLSITES, WA CSCSL NFA Higher 6282, 1.190, West

R82 DON SMALL & SONS OIL 150 W SANDERSON WAY WA UST, FINDS Higher 6282, 1.190, West

R81 TOSCO #0731 150 W. SANDERSON WA ICR Higher 6282, 1.190, West

R80 TOSCO CORPORATION 150 W SANDERSON WA RGA LUST Higher 6282, 1.190, West

R79 SHELTON BULK PLANT 150 W SANDERSON WAY WA Financial Assurance Higher 6282, 1.190, West

MAPPED SITES SUMMARY

Target Property Address:
784 E ISLAND LAKE DR
SHELTON, WA  98584

Click on Map ID to see full detail.

MAP RELATIVE DIST (ft. & mi.)
ID DATABASE ACRONYMS ELEVATION DIRECTIONSITE NAME ADDRESS



5712009.2s   Page  5

AF156 OIL CAN HENRYS SHELT 2919 OLYMPIC HWY N WA ALLSITES Lower 7494, 1.419, South

AF155 OIL CAN HENRYS SHELT 2919 OLYMPIC HWY N FINDS Lower 7494, 1.419, South

154 WA AGR MASON 1 751A WEST FAIRGROUND FINDS, ECHO Higher 7467, 1.414, SW

AE153 MASON COUNTY 100 PUBLIC WORKS DR WA Financial Assurance Higher 7424, 1.406, WNW

AE152 MASON COUNTY PUBLIC 100 PUBLIC WORKS DR FINDS Higher 7424, 1.406, WNW

AE151 MASON COUNTY PUBLIC 100 PUBLIC WORKS DR WA ALLSITES Higher 7424, 1.406, WNW

AE150 MASON CNTY CENTRAL S 100 W PUBLIC WORKS D WA ALLSITES, WA MANIFEST Higher 7424, 1.406, WNW

AE149 MASON CNTY CENTRAL S 100 W PUBLIC WORKS D FINDS, ECHO Higher 7424, 1.406, WNW

AE148 MASON CNTY CENTRAL S 100 W PUBLIC WORKS D RCRA-CESQG Higher 7424, 1.406, WNW

AE147 MASON COUNTY 100 PUBLIC WORKS DR WA UST Higher 7424, 1.406, WNW

AD146 SHELTON PORT BUSINES W 410 BUSINESS PARK FINDS, ECHO Higher 7413, 1.404, West

145 PUD #3 120 BRAMBLE LANE WA SPILLS Lower 7409, 1.403, NE

AC144 SIMPSON COMMUNITY CR 2948 OLYMPIC HWY N WA UST, WA ALLSITES Lower 7255, 1.374, South

AC143 SIMPSON COMMUNITY CR 2948 OLYMPIC HWY N FINDS Lower 7255, 1.374, South

AB142 GREEN DIAMOND RESOUR 521 W BUSINESS PARK FINDS Higher 7222, 1.368, West

AB141 GREEN DIAMOND RESOUR 521 W BUSINESS PARK WA RGA HWS Higher 7222, 1.368, West

AB140 GREEN DIAMOND RESOUR 521 W BUSINESS PARK WA RGA HWS Higher 7222, 1.368, West

AB139 GREEN DIAMOND RESOUR WA HSL Higher 7222, 1.368, West

138 AERO CONTROLS INC SA W 231 SANDERSON WAY FINDS Higher 7216, 1.367, West

AB137 PORT OF SHELTON 450 W BUSINESS PARK FTTS, HIST FTTS Higher 7203, 1.364, West

AB136 PORT OF SHELTON 450 W BUSINESS PARK FINDS Higher 7203, 1.364, West

AB135 430 W. BUSINESS PARK WA ASBESTOS Higher 7189, 1.362, West

AB134 SHELTON MUNICIPAL AI 410 W BUSINESS PARK WA CSCSL, WA ALLSITES, WA ASBESTOS Higher 7173, 1.359, West

AB133 SHELTON MUNICIPAL AI 410 W BUSINESS PARK FINDS Higher 7173, 1.359, West

AA132 DAVID M BLAIN 3001 OLYMPIC HWY N WA UST Lower 7118, 1.348, South

AA131 BURGERMASTER SHELL F 3001 OLYMPIC HWY N WA ALLSITES, WA SPILLS, WA Financial Assurance Lower 7118, 1.348, South

AA130 BURGERMASTER SHELL F 3001 OLYMPIC HWY N FINDS Lower 7118, 1.348, South

129 WA317948377 - OLYMPI 822 E HIAWATHA BLVD FINDS Higher 7090, 1.343, ESE

Z128 GOOSE LAKE NW OF SHELTON OFF HW FINDS Lower 7083, 1.341, SSW

Z127 GOOSE LAKE NW OF SHELTON OFF HW SEMS Lower 7082, 1.341, SSW

126 E 250 HIAWATHA BLVD WA SPILLS Lower 7066, 1.338, SE

Z125 GOOSE LAKE NW OF SR 101 WA HSL, WA CSCSL, WA BROWNFIELDS, WA ALLSITES Lower 7046, 1.334, SSW

Y124 MASON COUNTY GARBAGE 81 WILBUR WAY WA SWF/LF, WA ALLSITES Higher 6959, 1.318, East

Y123 MASON COUNTY GARBAGE 81 WILBUR WAY WA RGA LF Higher 6959, 1.318, East

Y122 MASON COUNTY GARBAGE 81 WILBUR WAY FINDS Higher 6959, 1.318, East

W121 L & R DIESEL SERVICE 211 BELL LN WA UST, WA ALLSITES, FINDS Lower 6890, 1.305, South

X120 GOODWILL OF THE OLYM 301 WALLACE KNEELAND WA SWRCY Lower 6876, 1.302, South

X119 GRADENS SHELTON CHEV 301 E WALLCE KNEELND EDR Hist Auto Lower 6876, 1.302, South

X118 JAMES FOOD MART 301 E WALLACE KNEELA WA Financial Assurance Lower 6876, 1.302, South

MAPPED SITES SUMMARY

Target Property Address:
784 E ISLAND LAKE DR
SHELTON, WA  98584

Click on Map ID to see full detail.

MAP RELATIVE DIST (ft. & mi.)
ID DATABASE ACRONYMS ELEVATION DIRECTIONSITE NAME ADDRESS



5712009.2s   Page  6

AP195 161 JOHNS CREEK DR ERNS Lower 8665, 1.641, East

AP194 161 JOHNS CREEK DRIV WA SPILLS Lower 8665, 1.641, East

193 GLENN CUSTOM MILLING 1892 JOHNS PRAIRIE R FINDS Lower 8644, 1.637, East

AO192 ACE PAVING CO INC E 4801 BROCKDALE RD WA AIRS Lower 8627, 1.634, North

AO191 ACE PAVING, PLANT 3 EAST 4801 BROCKDALE WA SWF/LF Lower 8627, 1.634, North

190 MASON COUNTY PUD #3 116 W K STREET WA SPILLS Lower 8600, 1.629, South

189 SANDERSON FIELD UNKNOWN FINDS Higher 8583, 1.626, SW

AN188 2505 OLYMPIC HWY #20 WA SPILLS Lower 8509, 1.612, South

AN187 UNKNOWN 2505 OLYMPIC HIGHWAY WA SPILLS, WA ASBESTOS Lower 8509, 1.612, South

AM186 MASON CNTY PUD 3 116 E K ST WA ALLSITES, RCRA NonGen / NLR, FINDS, ECHO Lower 8428, 1.596, South

AL185 UPPER MOUNTAIN VIEW S OF HWY 101 FINDS, ECHO Higher 8411, 1.593, WNW

AM184 MASON COUNTY PUD #3 116 K ST WA SPILLS Lower 8409, 1.593, South

AL183 MASON COUNTY PUBLIC S OF HWY 101 WA ALLSITES Higher 8395, 1.590, WNW

182 WA DOT SHELTON 633 W 633 DAYTON AIRPORT WA ALLSITES, FINDS Higher 8394, 1.590, West

AK181 BELCO FOREST PRODUCT 1890 E JOHNS PRAIRIE RCRA NonGen / NLR Lower 8393, 1.590, East

AK180 1890 E JOHN PRAIRIE WA SPILLS Lower 8393, 1.590, East

AK179 BELCO FOREST PRODUCT 1890 E JOHNS PRAIRIE WA ALLSITES, FINDS, ECHO, WA MANIFEST Lower 8393, 1.590, East

178 1892 E JOHNS PRAIRIE WA SPILLS Lower 8238, 1.560, East

AJ177 MASON GENERAL HOSPIT 901 MOUNTAIN VIEW DR WA ALLSITES, WA ASBESTOS, WA NPDES Lower 8230, 1.559, South

AJ176 MASON GENERAL HOSPIT 901 MOUNTAIN VIEW DR FINDS Lower 8230, 1.559, South

175 SHELTON MUNICIPAL AI APPROX 2.5 MILES NW SEMS-ARCHIVE Higher 8056, 1.526, SW

AI174 BONNEVILLE POWER ADM 2508 OLYMPIC HWY N WA CSCSL, WA ALLSITES, WA SPILLS Lower 8026, 1.520, South

AI173 2508 OLYMPIC HWY N ERNS Lower 8026, 1.520, South

AI172 BONNEVILLE POWER ADM 2508 OLYMPIC HWY N WA RGA HWS Lower 8026, 1.520, South

AI171 BONNEVILLE POWER ADM 2508 OLYMPIC HWY N FINDS Lower 8026, 1.520, South

170 WA AGR MASON 1 751 A W FAIRGROUNDS WA ALLSITES, RCRA NonGen / NLR, WA MANIFEST Higher 8021, 1.519, SW

169 HOUSE 2421 LAUREL ST WA ASBESTOS Lower 8003, 1.516, South

168 CERTIFIED MFG CO INC SANDERSON FIELD WA UST, WA ALLSITES Higher 7990, 1.513, WSW

AG167 MASON CO PUD 3 MT VI 350 E L ST FINDS Lower 7937, 1.503, South

AH166 SHELTON ELEMENTARY 402 E K ST WA ALLSITES, WA NPDES Lower 7901, 1.496, South

AH165 SHELTON ELEMENTARY 402 E K ST FINDS, ECHO Lower 7901, 1.496, South

AH164 534 EAST K STREET WA ASBESTOS Lower 7887, 1.494, South

163 MASON GENERAL HOSPIT M.G. HOSP., 901 MTN. FINDS Lower 7824, 1.482, SSE

AG162 MASON CO PUD 3 MT VI 350 E L ST WA ALLSITES Lower 7824, 1.482, South

161 SIMS VIBRATION LABOR 121 W DEVELOPMENT RD WA ALLSITES Higher 7685, 1.455, West

AF160 ADVANCED AUTOMOTIVE 2921 NORTHVIEW CIR WA ALLSITES Lower 7681, 1.455, South

AF159 2921 N VIEW CIRCLE WA SPILLS Lower 7681, 1.455, South

AF158 ADVANCED AUTOMOTIVE 2921 NORTHVIEW CIR FINDS Lower 7681, 1.455, South

AD157 SHELTON PORT BUSINES W 410 BUSINESS PARK WA ALLSITES, RCRA NonGen / NLR, WA MANIFEST Higher 7526, 1.425, West

MAPPED SITES SUMMARY

Target Property Address:
784 E ISLAND LAKE DR
SHELTON, WA  98584

Click on Map ID to see full detail.

MAP RELATIVE DIST (ft. & mi.)
ID DATABASE ACRONYMS ELEVATION DIRECTIONSITE NAME ADDRESS



5712009.2s   Page  7

234 124 E. "G" ST., WA HIST CDL Lower 9710, 1.839, South

233 506 WEST I STREET WA ASBESTOS Lower 9654, 1.828, South

232 WA WSP ACADEMY W 631 DAYTON AIRPORT FINDS, ECHO Higher 9635, 1.825, West

BA231 D & L AUTOMOTIVE & M 2033 OLYMPIC HWY N WA ALLSITES Lower 9581, 1.815, South

BA230 D & L AUTOMOTIVE & M 2033 OLYMPIC HWY N FINDS Lower 9581, 1.815, South

AZ229 PUD 801 TERRACE BLVD WA SPILLS Lower 9266, 1.755, SSE

AZ228 809 TERRACE BLVD WA SPILLS Lower 9236, 1.749, SSE

AY227 SHELTON SATELLITE WW 10891 HIGHWAY 101 WA SWF/LF Lower 9216, 1.745, South

AY226 SHELTON SATELLITE WW 10891 HIGHWAY 101 WA RGA LF Lower 9216, 1.745, South

AW225 AERO CONTROLS INC DA W 520 DAYTON AIRPORT FINDS Higher 9189, 1.740, West

AX224 TRANSFORMER SVC CO SANDERSON INDUSTRIAL FINDS, ECHO Higher 9184, 1.739, SW

AX223 TRANSFORMER SVC CO PORT OF SHELTON SAND WA ALLSITES, RCRA NonGen / NLR Higher 9184, 1.739, SW

222 MASON CO PUD # 3 237 PROFFESSIONAL AW WA SPILLS Lower 9107, 1.725, SSE

AV221 FIR CREEK WORK CENTE S3 T21N R5W NW1/4 FINDS Higher 9077, 1.719, SSE

AV220 MATLOCK SHOP 50 MATLOCK DECKERVIL FINDS Higher 9077, 1.719, SSE

AW219 AERO CONTROLS INCORP 520 W DAYTON AIRPORT ECHO Higher 9066, 1.717, West

AV218 MATLOCK SHOP WEST 50 MATLOCK DECK WA UST, WA ALLSITES Higher 9065, 1.717, SSE

217 2125 WASHINGTON STRE WA ASBESTOS Lower 9028, 1.710, South

216 MASON GENERAL HOSPIT UNKNOWN FINDS Lower 9023, 1.709, SSE

AU215 JACKPOT FOOD MART 36 2210 OLYMPIC HWY N WA UST, WA ALLSITES Lower 9015, 1.707, South

AU214 JACK POT GAS STATION 2210 OLYMPIC HWY N EDR Hist Auto Lower 9015, 1.707, South

AU213 JACKPOT FOOD MART 36 2210 OLYMPIC HWY N FINDS Lower 9015, 1.707, South

AR212 SHELTON TEXACO 2235 OLYMPIC HWY N WA ALLSITES, WA Financial Assurance Lower 8975, 1.700, South

AR211 B & N ENTERPRISES/B 2235 OLYMPIC HWY N EDR Hist Auto Lower 8975, 1.700, South

AR210 SHELTON TEXACO 2235 OLYMPIC HWY N WA UST Lower 8975, 1.700, South

AR209 SHELTON TEXACO 2235 OLYMPIC HWY N FINDS Lower 8975, 1.700, South

AT208 PUBLIC UTILITY DISTR HWY 101 & K ST. WA ICR Lower 8968, 1.698, South

AU207 HOOD CANAL COMMUNICA 2218 OLYMPIC HWY N WA UST, WA ALLSITES Lower 8961, 1.697, South

AU206 HOOD CANAL COMMUNICA 2218 OLYMPIC HWY N FINDS Lower 8961, 1.697, South

205 1707 NORTHCLIFF RD WA SPILLS Lower 8948, 1.695, SSE

AT204 PUBLIC UTILITY DIST HWY 101 & K ST WA CSCSL, WA LUST, WA UST, WA ALLSITES, FINDS Lower 8869, 1.680, South

AS203 WA DOT SKOKOMISH RIV SR 101 MP 338.77 FINDS, ECHO Lower 8812, 1.669, SSW

AS202 WA DOT SKOKOMISH RIV SR 101 MP 338.77 WA ALLSITES, RCRA NonGen / NLR Lower 8809, 1.668, SSW

201 2136 LAUREL ST WA ASBESTOS Lower 8803, 1.667, South

AR200 SHELTON VETERINARY H 104 E J ST FINDS Lower 8753, 1.658, South

AR199 SHELTON VETERINARY H 104 E J ST WA ALLSITES Lower 8753, 1.658, South

AQ198 CAMP GRISDALE NE1/4 S31 T22N RTW W FINDS Higher 8706, 1.649, SSE

AQ197 SHELTON PRINT482 11T PACIFIC DIVISION UST FINDS Higher 8706, 1.649, SSE

AQ196 CANYON RIVER SHOP SE1/4 S24 T21N RTW W FINDS Higher 8706, 1.649, SSE

MAPPED SITES SUMMARY

Target Property Address:
784 E ISLAND LAKE DR
SHELTON, WA  98584

Click on Map ID to see full detail.

MAP RELATIVE DIST (ft. & mi.)
ID DATABASE ACRONYMS ELEVATION DIRECTIONSITE NAME ADDRESS



5712009.2s   Page  8

BA235 CUZICK ROLAND 2005 OLYMPIC HWY N EDR Hist Auto Lower 9713, 1.840, South

MAPPED SITES SUMMARY

Target Property Address:
784 E ISLAND LAKE DR
SHELTON, WA  98584

Click on Map ID to see full detail.

MAP RELATIVE DIST (ft. & mi.)
ID DATABASE ACRONYMS ELEVATION DIRECTIONSITE NAME ADDRESS



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5712009.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 9

TARGET PROPERTY SEARCH RESULTS

The target property was identified in the following records. For more information on this
property see page 8 of the attached EDR Radius Map report:

 EPA IDDatabase(s)Site

784 E ISLAND LAKE DR
784 E ISLAND LAKE DR
SHELTON, WA  98584

   N/AWA ASBESTOS

DATABASES WITH NO MAPPED SITES

No mapped sites were found in EDR’s search of available ("reasonably ascertainable ") government
records either on the target property or within the search radius around the target property for the
following databases:

STANDARD ENVIRONMENTAL RECORDS

Federal NPL site list

NPL National Priority List
Proposed NPL Proposed National Priority List Sites
NPL LIENS Federal Superfund Liens

Federal Delisted NPL site list

Delisted NPL National Priority List Deletions

Federal CERCLIS list

FEDERAL FACILITY Federal Facility Site Information listing

Federal RCRA CORRACTS facilities list

CORRACTS Corrective Action Report

Federal RCRA non-CORRACTS TSD facilities list

RCRA-TSDF RCRA - Treatment, Storage and Disposal

Federal institutional controls / engineering controls registries

LUCIS Land Use Control Information System
US ENG CONTROLS Engineering Controls Sites List
US INST CONTROL Sites with Institutional Controls

State and tribal leaking storage tank lists

INDIAN LUST Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5712009.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 10

State and tribal registered storage tank lists

FEMA UST Underground Storage Tank Listing
WA AST Aboveground Storage Tank Locations
INDIAN UST Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land

State and tribal institutional control / engineering control registries

WA INST CONTROL Institutional Control Site List

State and tribal voluntary cleanup sites

INDIAN VCP Voluntary Cleanup Priority Listing
WA PTAP PTAP Site Listing

ADDITIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL RECORDS

Local Brownfield lists

US BROWNFIELDS A Listing of Brownfields Sites

Local Lists of Landfill / Solid Waste Disposal Sites

WA SWTIRE Solid Waste Tire Facilities
INDIAN ODI Report on the Status of Open Dumps on Indian Lands
DEBRIS REGION 9 Torres Martinez Reservation Illegal Dump Site Locations
ODI Open Dump Inventory
IHS OPEN DUMPS Open Dumps on Indian Land

Local Lists of Hazardous waste / Contaminated Sites

US HIST CDL Delisted National Clandestine Laboratory Register
WA CDL Clandestine Drug Lab Contaminated Site List
US CDL National Clandestine Laboratory Register
WA PFAS PFAS Contamination Site Location Listing

Local Land Records

LIENS 2 CERCLA Lien Information

Records of Emergency Release Reports

HMIRS Hazardous Materials Information Reporting System
WA SPILLS 90 SPILLS 90 data from FirstSearch

Other Ascertainable Records

FUDS Formerly Used Defense Sites
DOD Department of Defense Sites
SCRD DRYCLEANERS State Coalition for Remediation of Drycleaners Listing
US FIN ASSUR Financial Assurance Information
EPA WATCH LIST EPA WATCH LIST
2020 COR ACTION 2020 Corrective Action Program List



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5712009.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 11

TSCA Toxic Substances Control Act
TRIS Toxic Chemical Release Inventory System
SSTS Section 7 Tracking Systems
ROD Records Of Decision
RMP Risk Management Plans
RAATS RCRA Administrative Action Tracking System
PRP Potentially Responsible Parties
MLTS Material Licensing Tracking System
COAL ASH DOE Steam-Electric Plant Operation Data
COAL ASH EPA Coal Combustion Residues Surface Impoundments List
PCB TRANSFORMER PCB Transformer Registration Database
RADINFO Radiation Information Database
DOT OPS Incident and Accident Data
CONSENT Superfund (CERCLA) Consent Decrees
INDIAN RESERV Indian Reservations
FUSRAP Formerly Utilized Sites Remedial Action Program
UMTRA Uranium Mill Tailings Sites
LEAD SMELTERS Lead Smelter Sites
US AIRS Aerometric Information Retrieval System Facility Subsystem
US MINES Mines Master Index File
ABANDONED MINES Abandoned Mines
UXO Unexploded Ordnance Sites
DOCKET HWC Hazardous Waste Compliance Docket Listing
FUELS PROGRAM EPA Fuels Program Registered Listing
WA COAL ASH Coal Ash Disposal Site Listing
WA DRYCLEANERS Drycleaner List
WA Inactive Drycleaners Inactive Drycleaners
WA UIC Underground Injection Wells Listing

EDR HIGH RISK HISTORICAL RECORDS

EDR Exclusive Records

EDR MGP EDR Proprietary Manufactured Gas Plants

SURROUNDING SITES: SEARCH RESULTS

Surrounding sites were identified in the following databases.

Elevations have been determined from the USGS Digital Elevation Model and should be evaluated on
a relative (not an absolute) basis. Relative elevation information between sites of close proximity
should be field verified. Sites with an elevation equal to or higher than the target property have been
differentiated below from sites with an elevation lower than the target property.
Page numbers and map identification numbers refer to the EDR Radius Map report where detailed
data on individual sites can be reviewed.

Sites listed in bold italics are in multiple databases.

Unmappable (orphan) sites are not considered in the foregoing analysis.

STANDARD ENVIRONMENTAL RECORDS

Federal CERCLIS list



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5712009.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 12

SEMS: SEMS (Superfund Enterprise Management System) tracks hazardous waste sites, potentially
hazardous waste sites, and remedial activities performed in support of EPA’s Superfund Program across the
United States. The list was formerly know as CERCLIS, renamed to SEMS by the EPA in 2015. The list contains
data on potentially hazardous waste sites that have been reported to the USEPA by states, municipalities,
private companies and private persons, pursuant to Section 103 of the Comprehensive Environmental Response,
Compensation, and Liability Act (CERCLA). This dataset also contains sites which are either proposed to or on
the National Priorities List (NPL) and the sites which are in the screening and assessment phase for possible
inclusion on the NPL.

     A review of the SEMS list, as provided by EDR, and dated 04/11/2019 has revealed that there is 1 SEMS
     site  within approximately  1.85 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     GOOSE LAKE   NW OF SHELTON OFF HW SSW 1 - 2 (1.341 mi.) Z127 360
Site ID: 1000957
EPA Id: WAD980723159

Federal CERCLIS NFRAP site list

SEMS-ARCHIVE: SEMS-ARCHIVE (Superfund Enterprise Management System Archive) tracks sites that have no
further interest under the Federal Superfund Program based on available information. The list was formerly
known as the CERCLIS-NFRAP, renamed to SEMS ARCHIVE by the EPA in 2015. EPA may perform a minimal level of
assessment work at a site while it is archived if site conditions change and/or new information becomes
available. Archived sites have been removed and archived from the inventory of SEMS sites. Archived status
indicates that, to the best of EPA’s knowledge, assessment at a site has been completed and that EPA has
determined no further steps will be taken to list the site on the National Priorities List (NPL), unless
information indicates this decision was not appropriate or other considerations require a recommendation for
listing at a later time. The decision does not necessarily mean that there is no hazard associated with a
given site; it only means that. based upon available information, the location is not judged to be potential
NPL site.

     A review of the SEMS-ARCHIVE list, as provided by EDR, and dated 04/11/2019 has revealed that there
     is 1 SEMS-ARCHIVE site  within approximately  1.85 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     SHELTON MUNICIPAL AI   APPROX 2.5 MILES NW SW 1 - 2 (1.526 mi.) 175 454
Site ID: 1001835
EPA Id: WA0001101955

Federal RCRA generators list

RCRA-LQG: RCRAInfo is EPA’s comprehensive information system, providing access to data supporting
the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) of 1976 and the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments (HSWA)
of 1984.  The database includes selective information on sites which generate, transport, store, treat and/or
dispose of hazardous waste as defined by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA).  Large quantity
generators (LQGs) generate over 1,000 kilograms (kg) of hazardous waste, or over 1 kg of acutely hazardous
waste per month.

     A review of the RCRA-LQG list, as provided by EDR, and dated 03/25/2019 has revealed that there is 1



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5712009.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 13

     RCRA-LQG site  within approximately  1.85 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     AERO CONTROLS INC SA   W 231 SANDERSON WAY W 1 - 2 (1.134 mi.) N65 156
EPA ID:: WAD988504288

RCRA-SQG: RCRAInfo is EPA’s comprehensive information system, providing access to data supporting
the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) of 1976 and the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments (HSWA)
of 1984.  The database includes selective information on sites which generate, transport, store, treat and/or
dispose of hazardous waste as defined by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA).  Small quantity
generators (SQGs) generate between 100 kg and 1,000 kg of hazardous waste per month.

     A review of the RCRA-SQG list, as provided by EDR, and dated 03/25/2019 has revealed that there is 1
     RCRA-SQG site  within approximately  1.85 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     WAL MART STORE 2121   100 E WALLACE KNEELA S 1 - 2 (1.140 mi.) O66 160
EPA ID:: WAR000002113

RCRA-CESQG: RCRAInfo is EPA’s comprehensive information system, providing access to data supporting
the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) of 1976 and the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments (HSWA)
of 1984.  The database includes selective information on sites which generate, transport, store, treat and/or
dispose of hazardous waste as defined by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA).  Conditionally
exempt small quantity generators (CESQGs) generate less than 100 kg of hazardous waste, or less than 1 kg of
acutely hazardous waste per month.

     A review of the RCRA-CESQG list, as provided by EDR, and dated 03/25/2019 has revealed that there are
     2 RCRA-CESQG sites within approximately  1.85 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     TACOMA PUBLIC UTILIT   N 21451 HWY 101 W 1 - 2 (1.101 mi.) 55 109
EPA ID:: WAD988502340

     MASON CNTY CENTRAL S   100 W PUBLIC WORKS D WNW 1 - 2 (1.406 mi.) AE148 384
EPA ID:: WAH000034273

Federal ERNS list

ERNS: The Emergency Response Notification System records and stores information on reported
releases of oil and hazardous substances. The source of this database is the U.S. EPA.

     A review of the ERNS list, as provided by EDR, and dated 03/25/2019 has revealed that there are 2
     ERNS sites within approximately  1.85 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     Not reported   2508 OLYMPIC HWY N S 1 - 2 (1.520 mi.) AI173 448
NRC Report #: 53897

     Not reported   161 JOHNS CREEK DR E 1 - 2 (1.641 mi.) AP195 494



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5712009.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 14

NRC Report #: 1076113

State- and tribal - equivalent NPL

WA HSL: The Hazardous Sites List is a subset of the CSCSL Report.  It includes sites which have
been assessed and ranked using the Washington Ranking Method (WARM).

     A review of the WA HSL list, as provided by EDR, and dated 02/27/2019 has revealed that there are 3
     WA HSL sites within approximately  1.85 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     PORT OF SHELTON ALL   SANDERSON FIELD WSW 1 - 2 (1.112 mi.) 60 152
Facility Type: Hazardous Sites List
FSID Number: 1187
Facility Status: Cleanup Started

     GREEN DIAMOND RESOUR    W 1 - 2 (1.368 mi.) AB139 379
Facility Type: Hazardous Sites List
FSID Number: 189457
Facility Status: Awaiting Cleanup

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     GOOSE LAKE   NW OF SR 101 SSW 1 - 2 (1.334 mi.) Z125 355
Facility Type: Hazardous Sites List
FSID Number: 1185
Facility Status: Cleanup Started

State- and tribal - equivalent CERCLIS

WA CSCSL: The State Hazardous Waste Sites records are the states’ equivalent to CERCLIS. These sites
may or may not already be listed on the federal CERCLIS list. Priority sites planned for cleanup using state
funds (state equivalent of Superfund) are identified along with sites where cleanup will be paid for by
potentially responsible parties. The data come from the Department of Ecology’s Confirmed & Suspected
Contaminated Sites List.

     A review of the WA CSCSL list, as provided by EDR, and dated 01/15/2019 has revealed that there are 6
     WA CSCSL sites within approximately  1.85 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     PORT OF SHELTON ALL   SANDERSON FIELD WSW 1 - 2 (1.112 mi.) 60 152
Site Status: Cleanup Started
Facility ID: 1187
Clean Up Siteid: 2411

     SHELTON MUNICIPAL AI   410 W BUSINESS PARK W 1 - 2 (1.359 mi.) AB134 365
Site Status: Construction Complete-Performance Monitoring
Facility ID: 3018
Clean Up Siteid: 12954

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     MASON COUNTY TRANSPO   3740 SHELTON SPRINGS S 1/2 - 1 (0.903 mi.) C19 32



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5712009.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 15

Site Status: Cleanup Started
Facility ID: 23634752
Clean Up Siteid: 5731

     GOOSE LAKE   NW OF SR 101 SSW 1 - 2 (1.334 mi.) Z125 355
Site Status: Cleanup Started
Facility ID: 1185
Clean Up Siteid: 2537

     BONNEVILLE POWER ADM   2508 OLYMPIC HWY N S 1 - 2 (1.520 mi.) AI174 452
Site Status: Awaiting Cleanup
Facility ID: 9434357
Clean Up Siteid: 1636

     PUBLIC UTILITY DIST   HWY 101 & K ST S 1 - 2 (1.680 mi.) AT204 504
Site Status: Cleanup Started
Facility ID: 53171158
Clean Up Siteid: 9575

State and tribal landfill and/or solid waste disposal site lists

WA SWF/LF: The Solid Waste Facilities/Landfill Sites records typically contain an inventory of solid
waste disposal facilities or landfills in a particular state. The data come from the Department of Ecology’s
Solid Waste Facilities Handbook.

     A review of the WA SWF/LF list, as provided by EDR, has revealed that there are 6 WA SWF/LF sites
     within approximately  1.85 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     MASON COUNTY GARBAGE   81 WILBUR WAY E 1 - 2 (1.318 mi.) Y124 354
Database: SWF/LF, Date of Government Version: 06/06/2019
Facility ID: 1984

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     WILSON RECYCLING   2278 E BROCKDALE RD E 1/2 - 1 (0.719 mi.) B12 27
Database: SWF/LF, Date of Government Version: 06/06/2019
Facility ID: 3207

     JIM’S AUTOMOTIVE, IN   2911 E BROCKDALE RD NE 1/2 - 1 (0.996 mi.) 38 79
Database: SWF/LF, Date of Government Version: 06/06/2019
Facility ID: 1771

     BRADY’S NURSERY   920 E JOHNS PRAIRIE ESE 1 - 2 (1.237 mi.) U100 332
Database: SWF/LF, Date of Government Version: 06/06/2019
Facility ID: 845

     ACE PAVING, PLANT 3   EAST 4801 BROCKDALE N 1 - 2 (1.634 mi.) AO191 489
Database: SWF/LF, Date of Government Version: 06/06/2019
Facility ID: 624

     SHELTON SATELLITE WW   10891 HIGHWAY 101 S 1 - 2 (1.745 mi.) AY227 535
Database: SWF/LF, Date of Government Version: 06/06/2019
Facility ID: 504



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5712009.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 16

State and tribal leaking storage tank lists

WA LUST: The Leaking Underground Storage Tank Incident Reports contain an inventory of reported
leaking underground storage tank incidents. The data come from the Department of Ecology’s Leaking Underground
Storage Tanks Site List.

     A review of the WA LUST list, as provided by EDR, has revealed that there are 7 WA LUST sites within
     approximately  1.85 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     AIRPORT GROCERY   11900 HWY 101 SW 1/2 - 1 (0.949 mi.) D27 59
Database: LUST, Date of Government Version: 05/13/2019
Facility Status: LUST - NFA
Cleanup Site ID: 6577
Facility ID: 72961678

     DON SMALL & SONS OIL   150 W SANDERSON WY W 1 - 2 (1.190 mi.) R83 287
Database: LUST, Date of Government Version: 05/13/2019
Facility Status: LUST - NFA
Cleanup Site ID: 6523
Facility ID: 69261716

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     MASON COUNTY TRANSPO   3740 SHELTON SPRINGS S 1/2 - 1 (0.903 mi.) C19 32
Database: LUST, Date of Government Version: 05/13/2019
Facility Status: LUST - Cleanup Started
Cleanup Site ID: 5731
Facility ID: 23634752

     HIAWATHA INC   681 E JOHNS PRAIRIE SE 1/2 - 1 (0.963 mi.) E35 71
Database: LUST, Date of Government Version: 05/13/2019
Facility Status: LUST - NFA
Cleanup Site ID: 10400
Facility ID: 75267324

     ARCO AMPM - SHELTON   106 E WALLACE KNEELA SSW 1 - 2 (1.235 mi.) T94 313
Database: LUST, Date of Government Version: 05/13/2019
Facility Status: LUST - NFA
Cleanup Site ID: 6444
Facility ID: 64487875

     US WEST SOC   140 BELL LN S 1 - 2 (1.302 mi.) W111 337
Database: LUST, Date of Government Version: 05/13/2019
Facility Status: LUST - NFA
Cleanup Site ID: 6117
Facility ID: 45763147

     PUBLIC UTILITY DIST   HWY 101 & K ST S 1 - 2 (1.680 mi.) AT204 504
Database: LUST, Date of Government Version: 05/13/2019
Facility Status: LUST - Cleanup Started
Cleanup Site ID: 9575
Facility ID: 53171158



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5712009.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 17

State and tribal registered storage tank lists

WA UST: The Underground Storage Tank database contains registered USTs. USTs are regulated under
Subtitle I of the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA). The data come from the Department of
Ecology’s Statewide UST Site/Tank Report.

     A review of the WA UST list, as provided by EDR, and dated 02/09/2019 has revealed that there are 19
     WA UST sites within approximately  1.85 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     AIRPORT GROCERY   11900 HWY 101 SW 1/2 - 1 (0.949 mi.) D27 59
Site Id: 100186
Facility ID: 72961678

     OLYMPIC AIR INC   11771 N HWY 101 SW 1/2 - 1 (0.968 mi.) F37 76
Site Id: 10307
Facility ID: 99574416

     SHELTON FLIGHT INC   HWY 101 SANDERSON FI SSW 1 - 2 (1.034 mi.) 44 82
Site Id: 4843
Facility ID: 95688881

     DON SMALL & SONS OIL   150 W SANDERSON WAY W 1 - 2 (1.190 mi.) R82 284
Site Id: 8372
Facility ID: 69261716

     MASON COUNTY   100 PUBLIC WORKS DR WNW 1 - 2 (1.406 mi.) AE147 383
Site Id: 619610
Facility ID: 12001

     CERTIFIED MFG CO INC   SANDERSON FIELD WSW 1 - 2 (1.513 mi.) 168 426
Site Id: 9205
Facility ID: 68491588

     MATLOCK SHOP   WEST 50 MATLOCK DECK SSE 1 - 2 (1.717 mi.) AV218 529
Site Id: 4212
Facility ID: 3626955

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     MASON COUNTY TRANSPO   3740 SHELTON SPRINGS S 1/2 - 1 (0.903 mi.) C22 52
Site Id: 331
Facility ID: 23634752

     HIAWATHA INC   681 E JOHNS PRAIRIE SE 1/2 - 1 (0.963 mi.) E35 71
Site Id: 689
Facility ID: 75267324

     AM/PM GAS STATION   106 E WALLACE KNEELA SSW 1 - 2 (1.235 mi.) T89 295
Site Id: 341849
Facility ID: 64487875

     SHELTON SOC 070821   140 BELL LN S 1 - 2 (1.302 mi.) W110 336
Site Id: 10463
Facility ID: 45763147

     FRED MEYER #603 FUEL   301 E WALLACE KNEELA S 1 - 2 (1.302 mi.) X117 342
Site Id: 620312
Site Id: 341193
Facility ID: 21924



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5712009.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 18

Facility ID: 71359371

     L & R DIESEL SERVICE   211 BELL LN S 1 - 2 (1.305 mi.) W121 352
Site Id: 3119
Facility ID: 37339798

     DAVID M BLAIN   3001 OLYMPIC HWY N S 1 - 2 (1.348 mi.) AA132 364
Site Id: 476293
Facility ID: 36446543

     SIMPSON COMMUNITY CR   2948 OLYMPIC HWY N S 1 - 2 (1.374 mi.) AC144 381
Site Id: 618947
Facility ID: 4324447

     PUBLIC UTILITY DIST   HWY 101 & K ST S 1 - 2 (1.680 mi.) AT204 504
Site Id: 12485
Facility ID: 53171158

     HOOD CANAL COMMUNICA   2218 OLYMPIC HWY N S 1 - 2 (1.697 mi.) AU207 510
Site Id: 566419
Facility ID: 97112556

     SHELTON TEXACO   2235 OLYMPIC HWY N S 1 - 2 (1.700 mi.) AR210 512
Site Id: 3720
Facility ID: 61696173

     JACKPOT FOOD MART 36   2210 OLYMPIC HWY N S 1 - 2 (1.707 mi.) AU215 518
Site Id: 4007
Facility ID: 42746522

State and tribal voluntary cleanup sites

WA ICR: These are remedial action reports Ecology has received from either the owner or operator
of the site. These actions have been conducted without department oversight or approval and are not under an
order or decree.

     A review of the WA ICR list, as provided by EDR, and dated 12/01/2002 has revealed that there are 4
     WA ICR sites within approximately  1.85 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     AIRPORT GROCERY   11900 HWY 101 SW 1/2 - 1 (0.949 mi.) D27 59
     TOSCO #0731   150 W. SANDERSON W 1 - 2 (1.190 mi.) R81 284

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     US WEST SOC   140 BELL LN S 1 - 2 (1.302 mi.) W111 337
     PUBLIC UTILITY DISTR   HWY 101 & K ST. S 1 - 2 (1.698 mi.) AT208 512

WA VCP: Sites that have entered either the Voluntary Cleanup Program or its predecessor
Independent Remedial Action Program.

     A review of the WA VCP list, as provided by EDR, and dated 01/15/2019 has revealed that there are 4
     WA VCP sites within approximately  1.85 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     AIRPORT GROCERY   11900 HWY 101 SW 1/2 - 1 (0.949 mi.) D27 59



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5712009.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 19

Facility ID: 72961678
Cleanup Siteid: 6577

     DON SMALL & SONS OIL   150 W SANDERSON WY W 1 - 2 (1.190 mi.) R83 287
Facility ID: 69261716
Cleanup Siteid: 6523

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     BARNES MACHINE INC   790 E JOHNS PRAIRIE ESE 1 - 2 (1.096 mi.) J53 104
Facility ID: 53878546
Cleanup Siteid: 1715

     ARCO AMPM - SHELTON   106 E WALLACE KNEELA SSW 1 - 2 (1.235 mi.) T94 313
Facility ID: 64487875
Cleanup Siteid: 6444

State and tribal Brownfields sites

WA BROWNFIELDS: A listing of brownfields sites included in the Confirmed & Suspected Sites Listing. 
Brownfields are abandoned, idle or underused commercial or industrial properties, where the expansion or
redevelopment is hindered by real or perceived contamination. Brownfields vary in size, location, age, and
past use -- they can be anything from a five-hundred acre automobile assembly plant to a small, abandoned
corner gas station.

     A review of the WA BROWNFIELDS list, as provided by EDR, and dated 04/16/2019 has revealed that there
     is 1 WA BROWNFIELDS site  within approximately  1.85 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     GOOSE LAKE   NW OF SR 101 SSW 1 - 2 (1.334 mi.) Z125 355
Facilty ID: 1185
Facility Status: Cleanup Started

ADDITIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL RECORDS

Local Lists of Landfill / Solid Waste Disposal Sites

WA SWRCY: A llisting of recycling center locations.

     A review of the WA SWRCY list, as provided by EDR, and dated 04/08/2019 has revealed that there are 2
     WA SWRCY sites within approximately  1.85 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     PAY MORE RECYCLE & S   2278 E BROCKDALE RD E 1/2 - 1 (0.719 mi.) B10 17
     GOODWILL OF THE OLYM   301 WALLACE KNEELAND S 1 - 2 (1.302 mi.) X120 348



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5712009.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 20

Local Lists of Hazardous waste / Contaminated Sites

Information on facilities and sites of interest to the Department of Ecology.

     A review of the WA ALLSITES list, as provided by EDR, and dated 05/08/2019 has revealed that there
     are 62 WA ALLSITES sites within approximately  1.85 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     AIRPORT GROCERY   11900 HWY 101 SW 1/2 - 1 (0.949 mi.) D27 59
Facility Id: 72961678

     TRACTOR SUPPLY SHELT   12001 N US 101 SW 1/2 - 1 (0.950 mi.) 32 66
Facility Id: 20142

     OLYMPIC AIR INC   11771 N HWY 101 SW 1/2 - 1 (0.968 mi.) F37 76
Facility Id: 99574416

     PORT OF SHELTON   21 W SANDERSON WAY W 1 - 2 (1.020 mi.) G41 81
Facility Id: 9251

     SHELTON FLIGHT INC   HWY 101 SANDERSON FI SSW 1 - 2 (1.034 mi.) 44 82
Facility Id: 95688881

     OLYMPIC FABRICATION   410 W ENTERPRISE RD WSW 1 - 2 (1.046 mi.) H49 91
Facility Id: 16049

     SANDERSON INDUSTRIAL   430 W ENTERPRISE RD WSW 1 - 2 (1.076 mi.) I51 92
Facility Id: 56493627

     TACOMA PUBLIC UTILIT   N 21451 HWY 101 W 1 - 2 (1.101 mi.) 55 109
Facility Id: 36292444

     PORT OF SHELTON ALL   SANDERSON FIELD WSW 1 - 2 (1.112 mi.) 60 152
Facility Id: 1187

     SHELTON WATER RECLAM   10891 SR101 SSW 1 - 2 (1.127 mi.) L61 154
Facility Id: 9737

     AERO CONTROLS INC SA   W 231 SANDERSON WAY W 1 - 2 (1.134 mi.) N65 156
Facility Id: 62294393

     SUNRISE FIBERGLASS E   W 171 SANDERSON WAY W 1 - 2 (1.144 mi.) N69 263
Facility Id: 1744198

     REPAIRS PLUS   1022 E JOHNS PRAIRIE ESE 1 - 2 (1.153 mi.) P72 273
Facility Id: 89922321

     OLYMPIC TOOL ENGINEE   W 21 SANDERSON WAY W 1 - 2 (1.156 mi.) N73 273
Facility Id: 35651653

     DAYTON AIRPORT RD WA   DAYTON AIRPORT SHELT W 1 - 2 (1.166 mi.) Q74 279
Facility Id: 19491

     DON SMALL & SONS OIL   150 W SANDERSON WY W 1 - 2 (1.190 mi.) R83 287
Facility Id: 69261716

     DAVES PERFORMANCE MA   1341 E JOHNS PRAIRIE E 1 - 2 (1.260 mi.) V104 334
Facility Id: 10369

     MASON COUNTY GARBAGE   81 WILBUR WAY E 1 - 2 (1.318 mi.) Y124 354
Facility Id: 4865154

     SHELTON MUNICIPAL AI   410 W BUSINESS PARK W 1 - 2 (1.359 mi.) AB134 365
Facility Id: 3018

     MASON CNTY CENTRAL S   100 W PUBLIC WORKS D WNW 1 - 2 (1.406 mi.) AE150 389



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5712009.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 21

Facility Id: 1049634

     MASON COUNTY PUBLIC   100 PUBLIC WORKS DR WNW 1 - 2 (1.406 mi.) AE151 403
Facility Id: 12001

     SHELTON PORT BUSINES   W 410 BUSINESS PARK W 1 - 2 (1.425 mi.) AD157 406
Facility Id: 41855348

     SIMS VIBRATION LABOR   121 W DEVELOPMENT RD W 1 - 2 (1.455 mi.) 161 418
Facility Id: 8140

     CERTIFIED MFG CO INC   SANDERSON FIELD WSW 1 - 2 (1.513 mi.) 168 426
Facility Id: 68491588

     WA AGR MASON 1   751 A W FAIRGROUNDS SW 1 - 2 (1.519 mi.) 170 429
Facility Id: 81428124

     WA DOT SHELTON 633   W 633 DAYTON AIRPORT W 1 - 2 (1.590 mi.) 182 478
Facility Id: 74566742

     MASON COUNTY PUBLIC   S OF HWY 101 WNW 1 - 2 (1.590 mi.) AL183 479
Facility Id: 5194

     MATLOCK SHOP   WEST 50 MATLOCK DECK SSE 1 - 2 (1.717 mi.) AV218 529
Facility Id: 3626955

     TRANSFORMER SVC CO   PORT OF SHELTON SAND SW 1 - 2 (1.739 mi.) AX223 533
Facility Id: 79875812

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     SHELTON SPRINGS    S 1/2 - 1 (0.622 mi.) 6 14
Facility Id: 55191

     SHELTON HIGH SCHOOL   3737 N SHELTON SPRIN SSW 1/2 - 1 (0.716 mi.) A9 16
Facility Id: 48180

     PAY MORE RECYCLE & S   2278 E BROCKDALE RD E 1/2 - 1 (0.719 mi.) B10 17
Facility Id: 2932

     MASON COUNTY TRANSPO   3740 SHELTON SPRINGS S 1/2 - 1 (0.903 mi.) C19 32
Facility Id: 23634752

     HIAWATHA INC   681 E JOHNS PRAIRIE SE 1/2 - 1 (0.963 mi.) E35 71
Facility Id: 75267324

     BARNES MACHINE INC   790 E JOHNS PRAIRIE ESE 1 - 2 (1.096 mi.) J53 104
Facility Id: 9519
Facility Id: 53878546

     ROSAND DAM    E 1 - 2 (1.106 mi.) K57 151
Facility Id: 55386655

     TRANSMISSIONS PLUS A   31 E VANCE CT ESE 1 - 2 (1.130 mi.) M64 155
Facility Id: 4542

     WAL MART STORE 2121   100 E WALLACE KNEELA S 1 - 2 (1.140 mi.) O66 160
Facility Id: 13975422
Facility Id: 19299

     GRADENS SHELTON CHEV   701 E WALLACE KNEELA S 1 - 2 (1.173 mi.) 75 280
Facility Id: 36168529

     ARCO AMPM - SHELTON   106 E WALLACE KNEELA SSW 1 - 2 (1.235 mi.) T94 313
Facility Id: 64487875

     APEX COLLISION SERVI   1347 E JOHNS PRAIRIE E 1 - 2 (1.263 mi.) V106 335



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5712009.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 22

Facility Id: 18143

     US WEST SOC   140 BELL LN S 1 - 2 (1.302 mi.) W111 337
Facility Id: 45763147

     FRED MEYER #603 FUEL   301 E WALLACE KNEELA S 1 - 2 (1.302 mi.) X117 342
Facility Id: 71359371
Facility Id: 21924
Facility Id: 23424

     L & R DIESEL SERVICE   211 BELL LN S 1 - 2 (1.305 mi.) W121 352
Facility Id: 37339798

     GOOSE LAKE   NW OF SR 101 SSW 1 - 2 (1.334 mi.) Z125 355
Facility Id: 1185

     BURGERMASTER SHELL F   3001 OLYMPIC HWY N S 1 - 2 (1.348 mi.) AA131 363
Facility Id: 36446543

     SIMPSON COMMUNITY CR   2948 OLYMPIC HWY N S 1 - 2 (1.374 mi.) AC144 381
Facility Id: 4324447

     OIL CAN HENRYS SHELT   2919 OLYMPIC HWY N S 1 - 2 (1.419 mi.) AF156 406
Facility Id: 10000

     ADVANCED AUTOMOTIVE   2921 NORTHVIEW CIR S 1 - 2 (1.455 mi.) AF160 417
Facility Id: 15833

     MASON CO PUD 3 MT VI   350 E L ST S 1 - 2 (1.482 mi.) AG162 418
Facility Id: 3460

     SHELTON ELEMENTARY   402 E K ST S 1 - 2 (1.496 mi.) AH166 425
Facility Id: 51510

     BONNEVILLE POWER ADM   2508 OLYMPIC HWY N S 1 - 2 (1.520 mi.) AI174 452
Facility Id: 9434357

     MASON GENERAL HOSPIT   901 MOUNTAIN VIEW DR S 1 - 2 (1.559 mi.) AJ177 455
Facility Id: 15678

     BELCO FOREST PRODUCT   1890 E JOHNS PRAIRIE E 1 - 2 (1.590 mi.) AK179 469
Facility Id: 7463982

     MASON CNTY PUD 3   116 E K ST S 1 - 2 (1.596 mi.) AM186 480
Facility Id: 45521314

     SHELTON VETERINARY H   104 E J ST S 1 - 2 (1.658 mi.) AR199 499
Facility Id: 1960

     WA DOT SKOKOMISH RIV   SR 101 MP 338.77 SSW 1 - 2 (1.668 mi.) AS202 501
Facility Id: 72915915

     PUBLIC UTILITY DIST   HWY 101 & K ST S 1 - 2 (1.680 mi.) AT204 504
Facility Id: 53171158

     HOOD CANAL COMMUNICA   2218 OLYMPIC HWY N S 1 - 2 (1.697 mi.) AU207 510
Facility Id: 97112556

     SHELTON TEXACO   2235 OLYMPIC HWY N S 1 - 2 (1.700 mi.) AR212 515
Facility Id: 61696173

     JACKPOT FOOD MART 36   2210 OLYMPIC HWY N S 1 - 2 (1.707 mi.) AU215 518
Facility Id: 42746522

     D & L AUTOMOTIVE & M   2033 OLYMPIC HWY N S 1 - 2 (1.815 mi.) BA231 538
Facility Id: 8147



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5712009.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 23

WA HIST CDL: This listing of contaminated sites by Clandestine Drug Labs includes non-remediated
properties.  The current CDL listing does not.  This listing is no longer updated by the state agency.

     A review of the WA HIST CDL list, as provided by EDR, and dated 02/08/2007 has revealed that there
     are 2 WA HIST CDL sites within approximately  1.85 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     Not reported   310 E. BLEVINS RD. W 1/2 - 1 (0.792 mi.) 15 29
Facility ID: 93010

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     Not reported   124 E. "G" ST., S 1 - 2 (1.839 mi.) 234 540
Facility ID: 20015

WA CSCSL NFA: The data set contains information about sites previously on the Confirmed and Suspected
Contaminated Sites list that have received a No Further Action (NFA) determination. Because it is necessary to
maintain historical records of sites that have been investigated and cleaned up, sites are not deleted from
the database when cleanup activities are completed. Instead a No Further Action code is entered based upon the
type of NFA determination the site received.

     A review of the WA CSCSL NFA list, as provided by EDR, and dated 04/16/2019 has revealed that there
     are 6 WA CSCSL NFA sites within approximately  1.85 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     AIRPORT GROCERY   11900 HWY 101 SW 1/2 - 1 (0.949 mi.) D27 59
Facility/Site Id: 72961678
CS Id: 6577

     DON SMALL & SONS OIL   150 W SANDERSON WY W 1 - 2 (1.190 mi.) R83 287
Facility/Site Id: 69261716
CS Id: 6523

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     HIAWATHA INC   681 E JOHNS PRAIRIE SE 1/2 - 1 (0.963 mi.) E35 71
Facility/Site Id: 75267324
CS Id: 10400

     BARNES MACHINE INC   790 E JOHNS PRAIRIE ESE 1 - 2 (1.096 mi.) J53 104
Facility/Site Id: 53878546
CS Id: 1715

     ARCO AMPM - SHELTON   106 E WALLACE KNEELA SSW 1 - 2 (1.235 mi.) T94 313
Facility/Site Id: 64487875
CS Id: 6444

     US WEST SOC   140 BELL LN S 1 - 2 (1.302 mi.) W111 337
Facility/Site Id: 45763147
CS Id: 6117



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5712009.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 24

Records of Emergency Release Reports

WA SPILLS: Depending on the state, these may be active or inactive facilities or open dumps that
failed to meet RCRA Subtitle D Section 4004 criteria for solid waste landfills or disposal sites.

     A review of the WA SPILLS list, as provided by EDR, and dated 06/12/2019 has revealed that there are
     26 WA SPILLS sites within approximately  1.85 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     Not reported   HWY 102 WNW 1 - 2 (1.178 mi.) Q76 280
Facility ID: 96870

     Not reported   OFF HIGH 101 W 1 - 2 (1.185 mi.) Q78 282
Facility ID: 90713

     Not reported   HIAWATHA BOULEVARD A ESE 1 - 2 (1.231 mi.) S88 294
Facility ID: 526368

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     PAY MORE RECYCLE & S   2278 E BROCKDALE RD E 1/2 - 1 (0.719 mi.) B10 17
Facility ID: 646714
Facility ID: 630869

     PRIVATE RESIDENCE   855 E JOHNS PRAIRIE ESE 1 - 2 (1.024 mi.) 42 81
Facility ID: 102939

     Not reported   100 WALLACE KNEELAND S 1 - 2 (1.140 mi.) O67 262
Facility ID: 554855

     ARCO   106 EAST WALLACE KNE SSW 1 - 2 (1.235 mi.) T98 331
Facility ID: 528614

     Not reported    ENE 1 - 2 (1.252 mi.) 102 333
Facility ID: 94989

     NEAR:   1347 E JOHNS PRAIRIE E 1 - 2 (1.263 mi.) V107 335
Facility ID: 103387

     VEHICLE OWNER   301 EAST WALLACE KNE S 1 - 2 (1.302 mi.) X114 340
Facility ID: 538614
Facility ID: 647431

     Not reported   E 250 HIAWATHA BLVD SE 1 - 2 (1.338 mi.) 126 359
Facility ID: 629484

     BURGERMASTER SHELL F   3001 OLYMPIC HWY N S 1 - 2 (1.348 mi.) AA131 363
Facility ID: 616062

     PUD #3   120 BRAMBLE LANE NE 1 - 2 (1.403 mi.) 145 382
Facility ID: 621906

     Not reported   2921 N VIEW CIRCLE S 1 - 2 (1.455 mi.) AF159 417
Facility ID: 603262

     BONNEVILLE POWER ADM   2508 OLYMPIC HWY N S 1 - 2 (1.520 mi.) AI174 452
Facility ID: 501139
Facility ID: 602368

     Not reported   1892 E JOHNS PRAIRIE E 1 - 2 (1.560 mi.) 178 468
Facility ID: 609709

     Not reported   1890 E JOHN PRAIRIE E 1 - 2 (1.590 mi.) AK180 474



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5712009.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 25

Facility ID: 633378

     MASON COUNTY PUD #3   116 K ST S 1 - 2 (1.593 mi.) AM184 479
Facility ID: 547205

     UNKNOWN   2505 OLYMPIC HIGHWAY S 1 - 2 (1.612 mi.) AN187 485
Facility ID: 632953
Facility ID: 560081

     Not reported   2505 OLYMPIC HWY #20 S 1 - 2 (1.612 mi.) AN188 487
Facility ID: 560081

     MASON COUNTY PUD #3   116 W K STREET S 1 - 2 (1.629 mi.) 190 488
Facility ID: 633376

     Not reported   161 JOHNS CREEK DRIV E 1 - 2 (1.641 mi.) AP194 493
Facility ID: 647341

     Not reported   1707 NORTHCLIFF RD SSE 1 - 2 (1.695 mi.) 205 509
Facility ID: 554953

     MASON CO PUD # 3   237 PROFFESSIONAL AW SSE 1 - 2 (1.725 mi.) 222 532
Facility ID: 615799

     Not reported   809 TERRACE BLVD SSE 1 - 2 (1.749 mi.) AZ228 536
Facility ID: 555154

     PUD   801 TERRACE BLVD SSE 1 - 2 (1.755 mi.) AZ229 537
Facility ID: 620758

Other Ascertainable Records

RCRA NonGen / NLR: RCRAInfo is EPA’s comprehensive information system, providing access to data supporting
the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) of 1976 and the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments (HSWA)
of 1984.  The database includes selective information on sites which generate, transport, store, treat and/or
dispose of hazardous waste as defined by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA).  Non-Generators do
not presently generate hazardous waste.

     A review of the RCRA NonGen / NLR list, as provided by EDR, and dated 03/25/2019 has revealed that
     there are 15 RCRA NonGen / NLR sites within approximately  1.85 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     OLYMPIC FABRICATION   410 W ENTERPRISE RD WSW 1 - 2 (1.046 mi.) H48 89
EPA ID:: WAH000038030

     SANDERSON INDUSTRIAL   430 W ENTERPRISE RD WSW 1 - 2 (1.076 mi.) I51 92
EPA ID:: WAH000015958

     SUNRISE FIBERGLASS E   W 171 SANDERSON WAY W 1 - 2 (1.144 mi.) N69 263
EPA ID:: WAD103362448

     REPAIRS PLUS   E 1022 JOHNS PRAIRIE ESE 1 - 2 (1.147 mi.) P71 269
EPA ID:: WAD988521217

     OLYMPIC TOOL ENGINEE   W 21 SANDERSON WAY W 1 - 2 (1.156 mi.) N73 273
EPA ID:: WAD988498499

     SHELTON PORT BUSINES   W 410 BUSINESS PARK W 1 - 2 (1.425 mi.) AD157 406
EPA ID:: WAD988515805

     WA AGR MASON 1   751 A W FAIRGROUNDS SW 1 - 2 (1.519 mi.) 170 429



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5712009.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 26

EPA ID:: WAH000015826

     TRANSFORMER SVC CO   PORT OF SHELTON SAND SW 1 - 2 (1.739 mi.) AX223 533
EPA ID:: WAD980977854

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     MASON COUNTY TRANSPO   3740 SHELTON SPRINGS S 1/2 - 1 (0.903 mi.) C19 32
EPA ID:: WAD988510756

     BPA RIGHT OF WAY PAI   200 YDS NW OF E 1892 SE 1 - 2 (1.038 mi.) 45 85
EPA ID:: WAD988504973

     BARNES MACHINE INC   790 E JOHNS PRAIRIE ESE 1 - 2 (1.096 mi.) J53 104
EPA ID:: WAH000012211

     ARCO 82609   106 E WALLACE KNEELA SSW 1 - 2 (1.235 mi.) T97 324
EPA ID:: WAR000007260

     BELCO FOREST PRODUCT   1890 E JOHNS PRAIRIE E 1 - 2 (1.590 mi.) AK181 474
EPA ID:: WAH000033711

     MASON CNTY PUD 3   116 E K ST S 1 - 2 (1.596 mi.) AM186 480
EPA ID:: WAR000002923

     WA DOT SKOKOMISH RIV   SR 101 MP 338.77 SSW 1 - 2 (1.668 mi.) AS202 501
EPA ID:: WAR000009720

PADS: The PCB Activity Database identifies generators, transporters, commercial storers and/or
brokers and disposers of PCBs who are required to notify the United States Environmental Protection Agency of
such activities. The source of this database is the U.S. EPA.

     A review of the PADS list, as provided by EDR, and dated 03/20/2019 has revealed that there are 2
     PADS sites within approximately  1.85 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     PORT OF SHELTON   430 W. ENTERPRISE RD WSW 1 - 2 (1.076 mi.) I52 103
EPAID:: WAW000000590

     VACANT   450 W. ENTERPRISE RD SW 1 - 2 (1.112 mi.) I59 151
EPAID:: WAW000000178

ICIS: The Integrated Compliance Information System (ICIS) supports the information needs of the
national enforcement and compliance program as well as the unique needs of the National Pollutant Discharge
Elimination System (NPDES) program.

     A review of the ICIS list, as provided by EDR, and dated 11/18/2016 has revealed that there are 3
     ICIS sites within approximately  1.85 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     PORT OF SHELTON ALL   21 W SANDERSON WAY W 1 - 2 (1.020 mi.) G40 80
FRS ID:: 110056487626

     SUNRISE FIBERGLASS E   171 W SANDERSON WAY W 1 - 2 (1.215 mi.) R87 292
FRS ID:: 110002150813

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     MASON COUNTY TRANSPO   3740 SHELTON SPGS RD S 1/2 - 1 (0.903 mi.) C16 29



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5712009.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 27

FRS ID:: 110005378457

FTTS: FTTS tracks administrative cases and pesticide enforcement actions and compliance
activities related to FIFRA, TSCA and EPCRA (Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act) over the
previous five years. To maintain currency, EDR contacts the Agency on a quarterly basis.

     A review of the FTTS list, as provided by EDR, has revealed that there are 2 FTTS sites within
     approximately  1.85 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     SUNRISE FIBERGLASS E   W 171 SANDERSON WAY W 1 - 2 (1.213 mi.) R85 290
Database: FTTS INSP, Date of Government Version: 04/09/2009

     PORT OF SHELTON   450 W BUSINESS PARK W 1 - 2 (1.364 mi.) AB137 378
Database: FTTS INSP, Date of Government Version: 04/09/2009

HIST FTTS: A complete administrative case listing from the FIFRA/TSCA Tracking System (FTTS) for all
ten EPA regions.  The information was obtained from the National Compliance Database (NCDB).  NCDB supports
the implementation of FIFRA (Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act) and TSCA (Toxic Substances
Control Act). Some EPA regions are now closing out records.  Because of that, and the fact that some EPA
regions are not providing EPA Headquarters with updated records, it was decided to create a HIST FTTS
database.  It included records that may not be included in the newer FTTS database updates.  This database is
no longer updated.

     A review of the HIST FTTS list, as provided by EDR, has revealed that there are 2 HIST FTTS sites
     within approximately  1.85 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     SUNRISE FIBERGLASS E   W 171 SANDERSON WAY W 1 - 2 (1.213 mi.) R85 290
Database: HIST FTTS INSP, Date of Government Version: 10/19/2006

     PORT OF SHELTON   450 W BUSINESS PARK W 1 - 2 (1.364 mi.) AB137 378
Database: HIST FTTS INSP, Date of Government Version: 10/19/2006

FINDS: The Facility Index System contains both facility information and "pointers" to other
sources of information that contain more detail. These include: RCRIS; Permit Compliance System (PCS);
Aerometric Information Retrieval System (AIRS); FATES (FIFRA [Federal Insecticide Fungicide Rodenticide Act]
and TSCA Enforcement System, FTTS [FIFRA/TSCA Tracking System]; CERCLIS; DOCKET (Enforcement Docket used to
manage and track information on civil judicial enforcement cases for all environmental statutes); Federal
Underground Injection Control (FURS); Federal Reporting Data System (FRDS); Surface Impoundments (SIA); TSCA
Chemicals in Commerce Information System (CICS); PADS; RCRA-J (medical waste transporters/disposers); TRIS;
and TSCA. The source of this database is the U.S. EPA/NTIS.

     A review of the FINDS list, as provided by EDR, and dated 02/15/2019 has revealed that there are 80
     FINDS sites within approximately  1.85 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     CHERRY PARK WATER SY   E ISLAND LAKE RD SW 1/2 - 1 (0.522 mi.) 2 10
Registry ID:: 110013059812

     WOODLAND MANOR WATER   E WOODLAND DR SSW 1/2 - 1 (0.561 mi.) 3 10



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5712009.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 28

Registry ID:: 110013092456

     HIDDEN HAVEN MOBILE   1700 E SHELTON SPRIN WSW 1/2 - 1 (0.933 mi.) 23 58
Registry ID:: 110013033822

     AIRPORT GROCERY STOR   11900 HWY 101 SW 1/2 - 1 (0.949 mi.) D25 59
Registry ID:: 110015427144

     OLYMPIC AIR INC   11771 N HWY 101 SW 1/2 - 1 (0.968 mi.) F36 76
Registry ID:: 110015383244

     PORT OF SHELTON ALL   21 W SANDERSON WAY W 1 - 2 (1.020 mi.) G40 80
Registry ID:: 110056487626

     WA317943733 - P U D   43 W. SANDERSON WAY W 1 - 2 (1.032 mi.) G43 82
Registry ID:: 110070296325

     SHELTON FLIGHT INC   HWY 101 SANDERSON FI SSW 1 - 2 (1.034 mi.) 44 82
Registry ID:: 110015389523

     SHELTON PORT   400 W ENTERPRISE RD WSW 1 - 2 (1.043 mi.) H46 87
Registry ID:: 110000739130

     WA317947476 - TRUFAB   410 W ENTERPRISE RD WSW 1 - 2 (1.046 mi.) H47 88
Registry ID:: 110070345994
Registry ID:: 110045002894

     GREEN CROW SHELTON L   12721 US HWY 101 W 1 - 2 (1.047 mi.) 50 92
Registry ID:: 110015548380

     SANDERSON INDUSTRIAL   430 W ENTERPRISE RD WSW 1 - 2 (1.076 mi.) I51 92
Registry ID:: 110012561076

     TECHWOOD   121 W ENTERPISE RD A WSW 1 - 2 (1.106 mi.) 56 150
Registry ID:: 110070325103

     SHELTON WATER RECLAM   10891 SR101 SSW 1 - 2 (1.127 mi.) L62 155
Registry ID:: 110040164309

     REPAIRS PLUS   E 1022 JOHNS PRAIRIE ESE 1 - 2 (1.146 mi.) P70 268
Registry ID:: 110005386670

     DAYTON AIRPORT RD WA   DAYTON AIRPORT, SHEL W 1 - 2 (1.184 mi.) Q77 281
Registry ID:: 110046454047

     DON SMALL & SONS OIL   150 W SANDERSON WAY W 1 - 2 (1.190 mi.) R82 284
Registry ID:: 110015431601

     SUNRISE FIBERGLASS E   171 W SANDERSON WAY W 1 - 2 (1.215 mi.) R86 291
Registry ID:: 110002150813

     WA317947269 - WHISKE   21 ADONAI CT ESE 1 - 2 (1.250 mi.) S101 333
Registry ID:: 110070345073

     DAVES PERFORMANCE MA   1341 E JOHNS PRAIRIE E 1 - 2 (1.260 mi.) V103 334
Registry ID:: 110040598939

     WA317946698 - SSI CA   820 E HIAWATHA BLVD ESE 1 - 2 (1.291 mi.) 109 336
Registry ID:: 110070306044

     MASON COUNTY GARBAGE   81 WILBUR WAY E 1 - 2 (1.318 mi.) Y122 353
Registry ID:: 110037068936

     WA317948377 - OLYMPI   822 E HIAWATHA BLVD ESE 1 - 2 (1.343 mi.) 129 362
Registry ID:: 110070309097

     SHELTON MUNICIPAL AI   410 W BUSINESS PARK W 1 - 2 (1.359 mi.) AB133 365
Registry ID:: 110067121126

     PORT OF SHELTON   450 W BUSINESS PARK W 1 - 2 (1.364 mi.) AB136 377



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5712009.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 29

Registry ID:: 110011620488

     AERO CONTROLS INC SA   W 231 SANDERSON WAY W 1 - 2 (1.367 mi.) 138 378
Registry ID:: 110005374086

     GREEN DIAMOND RESOUR   521 W BUSINESS PARK W 1 - 2 (1.368 mi.) AB142 380
Registry ID:: 110022929205

     SHELTON PORT BUSINES   W 410 BUSINESS PARK W 1 - 2 (1.404 mi.) AD146 383
Registry ID:: 110005382488

     MASON CNTY CENTRAL S   100 W PUBLIC WORKS D WNW 1 - 2 (1.406 mi.) AE149 388
Registry ID:: 110038118266

     MASON COUNTY PUBLIC   100 PUBLIC WORKS DR WNW 1 - 2 (1.406 mi.) AE152 404
Registry ID:: 110039226129

     WA AGR MASON 1   751A WEST FAIRGROUND SW 1 - 2 (1.414 mi.) 154 404
Registry ID:: 110012561003

     WA DOT SHELTON 633   W 633 DAYTON AIRPORT W 1 - 2 (1.590 mi.) 182 478
Registry ID:: 110015424183

     UPPER MOUNTAIN VIEW   S OF HWY 101 WNW 1 - 2 (1.593 mi.) AL185 480
Registry ID:: 110067180339

     SANDERSON FIELD   UNKNOWN SW 1 - 2 (1.626 mi.) 189 488
Registry ID:: 110037978025

     CANYON RIVER SHOP   SE1/4 S24 T21N RTW W SSE 1 - 2 (1.649 mi.) AQ196 498
Registry ID:: 110015542386

     SHELTON PRINT482 11T   PACIFIC DIVISION UST SSE 1 - 2 (1.649 mi.) AQ197 498
Registry ID:: 110015506834

     CAMP GRISDALE   NE1/4 S31 T22N RTW W SSE 1 - 2 (1.649 mi.) AQ198 498
Registry ID:: 110015452561

     MATLOCK SHOP   50 MATLOCK DECKERVIL SSE 1 - 2 (1.719 mi.) AV220 531
Registry ID:: 110015554336

     FIR CREEK WORK CENTE   S3 T21N R5W NW1/4 SSE 1 - 2 (1.719 mi.) AV221 532
Registry ID:: 110015490887

     TRANSFORMER SVC CO   SANDERSON INDUSTRIAL SW 1 - 2 (1.739 mi.) AX224 534
Registry ID:: 110011638692

     AERO CONTROLS INC DA   W 520 DAYTON AIRPORT W 1 - 2 (1.740 mi.) AW225 535
Registry ID:: 110005383548

     WA WSP ACADEMY   W 631 DAYTON AIRPORT W 1 - 2 (1.825 mi.) 232 538
Registry ID:: 110005372060

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     WILSON RECYCLING   2278 E BROCKDALE RD E 1/2 - 1 (0.719 mi.) B13 28
Registry ID:: 110040599046
Registry ID:: 110064831491

     MASON COUNTY TRANSPO   3740 SHELTON SPGS RD S 1/2 - 1 (0.903 mi.) C16 29
Registry ID:: 110005378457

     HIAWATHA INC   681 E JOHNS PRAIRIE SE 1/2 - 1 (0.963 mi.) E35 71
Registry ID:: 110015422639

     OAK PARK WATER SYSTE   E OAK PARK WAY ENE 1 - 2 (1.018 mi.) 39 79
Registry ID:: 110013013069

     BPA RIGHT OF WAY PAI   200 YDS NW OF E 1892 SE 1 - 2 (1.038 mi.) 45 85



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5712009.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 30

Registry ID:: 110008224625

     BARNES MACHINE INC   790 E JOHNS PRAIRIE ESE 1 - 2 (1.096 mi.) J53 104
Registry ID:: 110005398104

     MASON COUNTY TRANSPO   790 E JOHNS PRAIRIE ESE 1 - 2 (1.096 mi.) J54 109
Registry ID:: 110054937431

     ROSAND DAM    E 1 - 2 (1.111 mi.) K58 151
Registry ID:: 110015453953

     TRANSMISSIONS PLUS A   31 E VANCE CT ESE 1 - 2 (1.130 mi.) M63 155
Registry ID:: 110056478547

     WAL MART STORE 2121   100 E WALLACE KNEELA S 1 - 2 (1.140 mi.) O66 160
Registry ID:: 110005399764

     WAL MART TIRE & LUBE   100 E WALLACE KNEELA S 1 - 2 (1.140 mi.) O68 263
Registry ID:: 110040341895

     GRADENS SHELTON CHEV   701 E WALLACE KNEELA S 1 - 2 (1.173 mi.) 75 280
Registry ID:: 110015486277

     ARCO 82609   106 E WALLACE KNEELA SSW 1 - 2 (1.235 mi.) T97 324
Registry ID:: 110006461006

     APEX COLLISION SERVI   1347 E JOHNS PRAIRIE E 1 - 2 (1.263 mi.) V105 334
Registry ID:: 110056461975

     US WEST SOC   140 BELL LN S 1 - 2 (1.302 mi.) W112 339
Registry ID:: 110015469660

     JAMES FOOD MART   301 E WALLACE KNEELA S 1 - 2 (1.302 mi.) X115 341
Registry ID:: 110015429767
Registry ID:: 110056469325

     L & R DIESEL SERVICE   211 BELL LN S 1 - 2 (1.305 mi.) W121 352
Registry ID:: 110015484117

     GOOSE LAKE   NW OF SHELTON OFF HW SSW 1 - 2 (1.341 mi.) Z128 362
Registry ID:: 110009314410

     BURGERMASTER SHELL F   3001 OLYMPIC HWY N S 1 - 2 (1.348 mi.) AA130 362
Registry ID:: 110015485795

     SIMPSON COMMUNITY CR   2948 OLYMPIC HWY N S 1 - 2 (1.374 mi.) AC143 380
Registry ID:: 110015930340

     OIL CAN HENRYS SHELT   2919 OLYMPIC HWY N S 1 - 2 (1.419 mi.) AF155 405
Registry ID:: 110040598911

     ADVANCED AUTOMOTIVE   2921 NORTHVIEW CIR S 1 - 2 (1.455 mi.) AF158 416
Registry ID:: 110040341822

     MASON GENERAL HOSPIT   M.G. HOSP., 901 MTN. SSE 1 - 2 (1.482 mi.) 163 418
Registry ID:: 110020791491

     SHELTON ELEMENTARY   402 E K ST S 1 - 2 (1.496 mi.) AH165 425
Registry ID:: 110070254957

     MASON CO PUD 3 MT VI   350 E L ST S 1 - 2 (1.503 mi.) AG167 426
Registry ID:: 110067357648

     BONNEVILLE POWER ADM   2508 OLYMPIC HWY N S 1 - 2 (1.520 mi.) AI171 447
Registry ID:: 110038118685

     MASON GENERAL HOSPIT   901 MOUNTAIN VIEW DR S 1 - 2 (1.559 mi.) AJ176 455
Registry ID:: 110043378056

     BELCO FOREST PRODUCT   1890 E JOHNS PRAIRIE E 1 - 2 (1.590 mi.) AK179 469



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5712009.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 31

Registry ID:: 110037370109

     MASON CNTY PUD 3   116 E K ST S 1 - 2 (1.596 mi.) AM186 480
Registry ID:: 110005400299

     GLENN CUSTOM MILLING   1892 JOHNS PRAIRIE R E 1 - 2 (1.637 mi.) 193 493
Registry ID:: 110015535900

     SHELTON VETERINARY H   104 E J ST S 1 - 2 (1.658 mi.) AR200 499
Registry ID:: 110056455991

     WA DOT SKOKOMISH RIV   SR 101 MP 338.77 SSW 1 - 2 (1.669 mi.) AS203 504
Registry ID:: 110006140791

     PUBLIC UTILITY DIST   HWY 101 & K ST S 1 - 2 (1.680 mi.) AT204 504
Registry ID:: 110015458360

     HOOD CANAL COMMUNICA   2218 OLYMPIC HWY N S 1 - 2 (1.697 mi.) AU206 510
Registry ID:: 110015387151

     SHELTON TEXACO   2235 OLYMPIC HWY N S 1 - 2 (1.700 mi.) AR209 512
Registry ID:: 110015444740

     JACKPOT FOOD MART 36   2210 OLYMPIC HWY N S 1 - 2 (1.707 mi.) AU213 517
Registry ID:: 110015475724

     MASON GENERAL HOSPIT   UNKNOWN SSE 1 - 2 (1.709 mi.) 216 520
Registry ID:: 110041536255

     D & L AUTOMOTIVE & M   2033 OLYMPIC HWY N S 1 - 2 (1.815 mi.) BA230 537
Registry ID:: 110040599536

ECHO: ECHO provides integrated compliance and enforcement information for about 800,000
regulated facilities nationwide.

     A review of the ECHO list, as provided by EDR, and dated 04/07/2019 has revealed that there are 29
     ECHO sites within approximately  1.85 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     CHERRY PARK WATER SY   E ISLAND LAKE RD SW 1/2 - 1 (0.522 mi.) 2 10
Registry ID: 110013059812

     WOODLAND MANOR WATER   E WOODLAND DR SSW 1/2 - 1 (0.561 mi.) 3 10
Registry ID: 110013092456

     HIDDEN HAVEN MOBILE   1700 E SHELTON SPRIN WSW 1/2 - 1 (0.933 mi.) 23 58
Registry ID: 110013033822

     PORT OF SHELTON ALL   21 W SANDERSON WAY W 1 - 2 (1.020 mi.) G40 80
Registry ID: 110056487626

     SHELTON PORT   400 W ENTERPRISE RD WSW 1 - 2 (1.043 mi.) H46 87
Registry ID: 110000739130

     WA317947476 - TRUFAB   410 W ENTERPRISE RD WSW 1 - 2 (1.046 mi.) H47 88
Registry ID: 110045002894

     SANDERSON INDUSTRIAL   430 W ENTERPRISE RD WSW 1 - 2 (1.076 mi.) I51 92
Registry ID: 110012561076

     REPAIRS PLUS   E 1022 JOHNS PRAIRIE ESE 1 - 2 (1.146 mi.) P70 268
Registry ID: 110005386670

     DAYTON AIRPORT RD WA   DAYTON AIRPORT, SHEL W 1 - 2 (1.184 mi.) Q77 281



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5712009.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 32

Registry ID: 110046454047

     SUNRISE FIBERGLASS E   171 W SANDERSON WAY W 1 - 2 (1.215 mi.) R86 291
Registry ID: 110002150813

     SHELTON PORT BUSINES   W 410 BUSINESS PARK W 1 - 2 (1.404 mi.) AD146 383
Registry ID: 110005382488

     MASON CNTY CENTRAL S   100 W PUBLIC WORKS D WNW 1 - 2 (1.406 mi.) AE149 388
Registry ID: 110038118266

     WA AGR MASON 1   751A WEST FAIRGROUND SW 1 - 2 (1.414 mi.) 154 404
Registry ID: 110012561003

     UPPER MOUNTAIN VIEW   S OF HWY 101 WNW 1 - 2 (1.593 mi.) AL185 480
Registry ID: 110067180339

     AERO CONTROLS INCORP   520 W DAYTON AIRPORT W 1 - 2 (1.717 mi.) AW219 531
Registry ID: 110005383548

     TRANSFORMER SVC CO   SANDERSON INDUSTRIAL SW 1 - 2 (1.739 mi.) AX224 534
Registry ID: 110011638692

     WA WSP ACADEMY   W 631 DAYTON AIRPORT W 1 - 2 (1.825 mi.) 232 538
Registry ID: 110005372060

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     WILSON RECYCLING   2278 E BROCKDALE RD E 1/2 - 1 (0.719 mi.) B13 28
Registry ID: 110040599046

     WILSON RECYCLING   2278 E BROCKDALE RD E 1/2 - 1 (0.719 mi.) B14 29
Registry ID: 110064831491

     MASON COUNTY TRANSPO   3740 SHELTON SPGS RD S 1/2 - 1 (0.903 mi.) C16 29
Registry ID: 110005378457

     OAK PARK WATER SYSTE   E OAK PARK WAY ENE 1 - 2 (1.018 mi.) 39 79
Registry ID: 110013013069

     BPA RIGHT OF WAY PAI   200 YDS NW OF E 1892 SE 1 - 2 (1.038 mi.) 45 85
Registry ID: 110008224625

     BARNES MACHINE INC   790 E JOHNS PRAIRIE ESE 1 - 2 (1.096 mi.) J53 104
Registry ID: 110005398104

     WAL MART STORE 2121   100 E WALLACE KNEELA S 1 - 2 (1.140 mi.) O66 160
Registry ID: 110005399764

     ARCO 82609   106 E WALLACE KNEELA SSW 1 - 2 (1.235 mi.) T97 324
Registry ID: 110006461006

     SHELTON ELEMENTARY   402 E K ST S 1 - 2 (1.496 mi.) AH165 425
Registry ID: 110070254957

     BELCO FOREST PRODUCT   1890 E JOHNS PRAIRIE E 1 - 2 (1.590 mi.) AK179 469
Registry ID: 110037370109

     MASON CNTY PUD 3   116 E K ST S 1 - 2 (1.596 mi.) AM186 480
Registry ID: 110005400299

     WA DOT SKOKOMISH RIV   SR 101 MP 338.77 SSW 1 - 2 (1.669 mi.) AS203 504
Registry ID: 110006140791



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5712009.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 33

WA AIRS: State of Washington, Department of Ecology, Washington Emissions Data System.

     A review of the WA AIRS list, as provided by EDR, and dated 12/31/2017 has revealed that there are 2
     WA AIRS sites within approximately  1.85 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     ARCO AMPM - SHELTON   106 E WALLACE KNEELA SSW 1 - 2 (1.235 mi.) T94 313
     ACE PAVING CO INC   E 4801 BROCKDALE RD N 1 - 2 (1.634 mi.) AO192 489

WA ASBESTOS: Asbestos sites

     A review of the WA ASBESTOS list, as provided by EDR, and dated 03/21/2019 has revealed that there
     are 12 WA ASBESTOS sites within approximately  1.85 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     Not reported   11840 HWY 101 SW 1/2 - 1 (0.953 mi.) 33 66
     SHELTON MUNICIPAL AI   410 W BUSINESS PARK W 1 - 2 (1.359 mi.) AB134 365
     Not reported   430 W. BUSINESS PARK W 1 - 2 (1.362 mi.) AB135 373

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     Not reported   2201 E. ISLAND LK. D ESE 1/2 - 1 (0.567 mi.) 4 11
     Not reported   3737 SHELTON SPRINGS SSW 1/2 - 1 (0.716 mi.) A8 14
     Not reported   534 EAST K STREET S 1 - 2 (1.494 mi.) AH164 419
     HOUSE   2421 LAUREL ST S 1 - 2 (1.516 mi.) 169 427
     MASON GENERAL HOSPIT   901 MOUNTAIN VIEW DR S 1 - 2 (1.559 mi.) AJ177 455
     UNKNOWN   2505 OLYMPIC HIGHWAY S 1 - 2 (1.612 mi.) AN187 485
     Not reported   2136 LAUREL ST S 1 - 2 (1.667 mi.) 201 500
     Not reported   2125 WASHINGTON STRE S 1 - 2 (1.710 mi.) 217 520
     Not reported   506 WEST I STREET S 1 - 2 (1.828 mi.) 233 539

WA Financial Assurance: A listing of financial assurance information for underground storage tank facilities. 
Financial assurance is intended to ensure that resources are available to pay for the cost of closure,
post-closure care, and corrective measures if the owner or operator of a regulated facility is unable or
unwilling to pay.

     A review of the WA Financial Assurance list, as provided by EDR, has revealed that there are 8 WA
     Financial Assurance sites within approximately  1.85 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     AIRPORT GROCERY   11900 HWY 101 SW 1/2 - 1 (0.949 mi.) D27 59
Database: Financial Assurance 1, Date of Government Version: 05/28/2019
DOE Site ID: 100186

     SHELTON BULK PLANT   150 W SANDERSON WAY W 1 - 2 (1.190 mi.) R79 282
Database: Financial Assurance 1, Date of Government Version: 05/28/2019
DOE Site ID: 8372

     MASON COUNTY   100 PUBLIC WORKS DR WNW 1 - 2 (1.406 mi.) AE153 404
Database: Financial Assurance 1, Date of Government Version: 05/28/2019
DOE Site ID: 619610

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     MASON COUNTY TRANSPO   3740 SHELTON SPRINGS S 1/2 - 1 (0.903 mi.) C22 52
Database: Financial Assurance 1, Date of Government Version: 05/28/2019



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5712009.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 34

DOE Site ID: 331

     AM/PM GAS STATION   106 E WALLACE KNEELA SSW 1 - 2 (1.235 mi.) T93 312
Database: Financial Assurance 1, Date of Government Version: 05/28/2019
DOE Site ID: 341849

     JAMES FOOD MART   301 E WALLACE KNEELA S 1 - 2 (1.302 mi.) X118 346
Database: Financial Assurance 1, Date of Government Version: 05/28/2019
DOE Site ID: 341193

     BURGERMASTER SHELL F   3001 OLYMPIC HWY N S 1 - 2 (1.348 mi.) AA131 363
Database: Financial Assurance 1, Date of Government Version: 05/28/2019
DOE Site ID: 476293

     SHELTON TEXACO   2235 OLYMPIC HWY N S 1 - 2 (1.700 mi.) AR212 515
Database: Financial Assurance 1, Date of Government Version: 05/28/2019
DOE Site ID: 3720

CA HAZNET: The data is extracted from the copies of hazardous waste manifests received each year by
the DTSC.  The annual volume of manifests is typically 700,000-1,000,000 annually, representing approximately
350,000-500,000 shipments. Data from non-California manifests & continuation sheets are not included at the
present time. Data are from the manifests submitted without correction, and therefore many contain some
invalid values for data elements such as generator ID, TSD ID, waste category, & disposal method. The source
is the Department of Toxic Substance Control is the agency.  This database begins with calendar year 1993.

     A review of the CA HAZNET list, as provided by EDR, and dated 12/31/2017 has revealed that there is 1
     CA HAZNET site  within approximately  1.85 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     SSD - SHELTON HIGH S   3737 N SHELTON SPRIN SSW 1/2 - 1 (0.716 mi.) A7 14
GEPAID: WAC981201054

WA MANIFEST: Hazardous waste manifest information.

     A review of the WA MANIFEST list, as provided by EDR, and dated 03/29/2019 has revealed that there
     are 13 WA MANIFEST sites within approximately  1.85 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     SANDERSON INDUSTRIAL   430 W ENTERPRISE RD WSW 1 - 2 (1.076 mi.) I51 92
Facility Site ID Number: 56493627
Gen Status CD: XQG
Gen Status CD: SQG
EPA ID: WAH000015958

     TACOMA PUBLIC UTILIT   N 21451 HWY 101 W 1 - 2 (1.101 mi.) 55 109
Facility Site ID Number: 36292444
Gen Status CD: MQG
Gen Status CD: SQG
Gen Status CD: LQG
EPA ID: WAD988502340

     REPAIRS PLUS   E 1022 JOHNS PRAIRIE ESE 1 - 2 (1.147 mi.) P71 269
Facility Site ID Number: 89922321
Gen Status CD: XQG
EPA ID: WAD988521217

     MASON CNTY CENTRAL S   100 W PUBLIC WORKS D WNW 1 - 2 (1.406 mi.) AE150 389



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5712009.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 35

Facility Site ID Number: 1049634
Gen Status CD: SQG
EPA ID: WAH000034273

     SHELTON PORT BUSINES   W 410 BUSINESS PARK W 1 - 2 (1.425 mi.) AD157 406
Facility Site ID Number: 41855348
Gen Status CD: XQG
EPA ID: WAD988515805

     WA AGR MASON 1   751 A W FAIRGROUNDS SW 1 - 2 (1.519 mi.) 170 429
Facility Site ID Number: 81428124
Gen Status CD: XQG
EPA ID: WAH000015826

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     MASON COUNTY TRANSPO   3740 SHELTON SPRINGS S 1/2 - 1 (0.903 mi.) C19 32
Facility Site ID Number: 23634752
Gen Status CD: XQG
EPA ID: WAD988510756

     MASON COUNTY TRANSPO   3740 SHELTON SPRINGS S 1/2 - 1 (0.903 mi.) C22 52
Facility Site ID Number: 23634752
Gen Status CD: XQG
EPA ID: WAD988510756

     WAL MART STORE 2121   100 E WALLACE KNEELA S 1 - 2 (1.140 mi.) O66 160
Facility Site ID Number: 13975422
Gen Status CD: MQG
Gen Status CD: SQG
EPA ID: WAR000002113

     AM/PM GAS STATION   106 E WALLACE KNEELA SSW 1 - 2 (1.235 mi.) T89 295
Facility Site ID Number: 64487875
Gen Status CD: XQG
Gen Status CD: SQG
EPA ID: WAR000007260

     ARCO AMPM - SHELTON   106 E WALLACE KNEELA SSW 1 - 2 (1.235 mi.) T94 313
Facility Site ID Number: 64487875
Gen Status CD: XQG
EPA ID: WAR000007260

     ARCO 82609   106 E WALLACE KNEELA SSW 1 - 2 (1.235 mi.) T97 324
Facility Site ID Number: 64487875
Gen Status CD: MQG
EPA ID: WAR000007260

     BELCO FOREST PRODUCT   1890 E JOHNS PRAIRIE E 1 - 2 (1.590 mi.) AK179 469
Facility Site ID Number: 7463982
Gen Status CD: SQG
EPA ID: WAH000033711

WA NPDES: A listing of permitted wastewater facilities.

     A review of the WA NPDES list, as provided by EDR, and dated 04/16/2019 has revealed that there are 5
     WA NPDES sites within approximately  1.85 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     SHELTON WATER RECLAM   10891 SR101 SSW 1 - 2 (1.127 mi.) L61 154



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5712009.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 36

Permit ID: ST0006216

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     SHELTON HIGH SCHOOL   3737 N SHELTON SPRIN SSW 1/2 - 1 (0.716 mi.) A9 16
Permit ID: WAR306589

     PAY MORE RECYCLE & S   2278 E BROCKDALE RD E 1/2 - 1 (0.719 mi.) B10 17
Permit ID: WAR303433

     SHELTON ELEMENTARY   402 E K ST S 1 - 2 (1.496 mi.) AH166 425
Permit ID: WAR306764

     MASON GENERAL HOSPIT   901 MOUNTAIN VIEW DR S 1 - 2 (1.559 mi.) AJ177 455
Permit ID: WAR307222

EDR HIGH RISK HISTORICAL RECORDS

EDR Exclusive Records

EDR Hist Auto: EDR has searched selected national collections of business directories and has collected
listings of potential gas station/filling station/service station sites that were available to EDR
researchers.  EDR’s review was limited to those categories of sources that might, in EDR’s opinion, include
gas station/filling station/service station establishments. The categories reviewed included, but were not
limited to gas, gas station, gasoline station, filling station, auto, automobile repair, auto service station,
service station, etc. This database falls within a category of information EDR classifies as "High Risk
Historical Records", or HRHR.  EDR’s HRHR effort presents unique and sometimes proprietary data about past
sites and operations that typically create environmental concerns, but may not show up in current government
records searches.

     A review of the EDR Hist Auto list, as provided by EDR, has revealed that there are 8 EDR Hist Auto
     sites within approximately  1.85 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     LEES & SONS AUTO SER   71 E BOARDWALK RD SW 1/2 - 1 (0.597 mi.) 5 13
     AIRPORT GROCERY   11900 N US HIGHWAY 1 SW 1/2 - 1 (0.949 mi.) D28 65

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     PRESTIGE STATIONS IN   106 E WALLACE KNEELA SSW 1 - 2 (1.235 mi.) T92 311
     INGRAHAM OIL COMPANY   6 COMET LN SSE 1 - 2 (1.280 mi.) 108 336
     GRADENS SHELTON CHEV   301 E WALLCE KNEELND S 1 - 2 (1.302 mi.) X119 347
     B & N ENTERPRISES/B   2235 OLYMPIC HWY N S 1 - 2 (1.700 mi.) AR211 515
     JACK POT GAS STATION   2210 OLYMPIC HWY N S 1 - 2 (1.707 mi.) AU214 517
     CUZICK ROLAND   2005 OLYMPIC HWY N S 1 - 2 (1.840 mi.) BA235 541

EDR Hist Cleaner: EDR has searched selected national collections of business directories and has collected
listings of potential dry cleaner sites that were available to EDR researchers. EDR’s review was limited to
those categories of sources that might, in EDR’s opinion, include dry cleaning establishments. The categories
reviewed included, but were not limited to dry cleaners, cleaners, laundry, laundromat, cleaning/laundry, wash
& dry etc.  This database falls within a category of information EDR classifies as "High Risk Historical



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5712009.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 37

Records", or HRHR.  EDR’s HRHR effort presents unique and sometimes proprietary data about past sites and
operations that typically create environmental concerns, but may not show up in current government records
searches.

     A review of the EDR Hist Cleaner list, as provided by EDR, has revealed that there is 1 EDR Hist
     Cleaner site  within approximately  1.85 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     KNEELAND PLAZA CLEAN   301 E WALLACE KNEELA S 1 - 2 (1.302 mi.) X116 342

EDR RECOVERED GOVERNMENT ARCHIVES

Exclusive Recovered Govt. Archives

WA RGA HWS: The EDR Recovered Government Archive State Hazardous Waste database provides a list of
SHWS  incidents derived from historical databases and includes many records that no longer appear in current
government lists. Compiled from Records formerly available from the Department of Ecology in Washington.

     A review of the WA RGA HWS list, as provided by EDR, has revealed that there are 6 WA RGA HWS sites
     within approximately  1.85 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     AIRPORT GROCERY STOR   11900 HWY 101 SW 1/2 - 1 (0.949 mi.) D26 59
Facility ID: 72961678

     GREEN DIAMOND RESOUR   521 W BUSINESS PARK W 1 - 2 (1.368 mi.) AB140 379
Facility ID: 189457

     GREEN DIAMOND RESOUR   521 W BUSINESS PARK W 1 - 2 (1.368 mi.) AB141 380
Facility ID: 189457

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     MASON COUNTY TRANSPO   3740 SHELTON SPRINGS S 1/2 - 1 (0.903 mi.) C21 52
Facility ID: 23634752

     ARCO 82609   106 E WALLACE KNEELA SSW 1 - 2 (1.235 mi.) T90 311
Facility ID: 64487875

     BONNEVILLE POWER ADM   2508 OLYMPIC HWY N S 1 - 2 (1.520 mi.) AI172 447
Facility ID: 9434357

WA RGA LF: The EDR Recovered Government Archive Landfill database provides a list of landfills
derived from historical databases and includes many records that no longer appear in current government lists.
Compiled from Records formerly available from the Department of Ecology in Washington.

     A review of the WA RGA LF list, as provided by EDR, has revealed that there are 4 WA RGA LF sites
     within approximately  1.85 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     MASON COUNTY GARBAGE   81 WILBUR WAY E 1 - 2 (1.318 mi.) Y123 354
Facility ID: 1,019



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5712009.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 38

Facility ID: 1019

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     WILSON RECYCLING   2278 E. BROCKDALE RD E 1/2 - 1 (0.719 mi.) B11 27
Facility ID: 1,734
Facility ID: 1734

     BRADYS NURSERY   920 E JOHNS PRAIRIE ESE 1 - 2 (1.237 mi.) U99 332
Facility ID: 1,214
Facility ID: 1214

     SHELTON SATELLITE WW   10891 HIGHWAY 101 S 1 - 2 (1.745 mi.) AY226 535
Facility ID: 2928

WA RGA LUST: The EDR Recovered Government Archive Leaking Underground Storage Tank database provides a
list of LUST incidents derived from historical databases and includes many records that no longer appear in
current government lists. Compiled from Records formerly available from the Department of Ecology in
Washington.

     A review of the WA RGA LUST list, as provided by EDR, has revealed that there are 14 WA RGA LUST
     sites within approximately  1.85 miles of the target property.

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Equal/Higher Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     AIRPORT GROCERY &   11900 HWY 101 SW 1/2 - 1 (0.949 mi.) D24 59
Facility ID: 100186

     AIRPORT GROCERY & DE   11900 HWY 101 SW 1/2 - 1 (0.949 mi.) D29 65
Facility ID: 100186

     AIRPORT GROCERY   11900 HWY 101 SW 1/2 - 1 (0.949 mi.) D30 66
Facility ID: 100186
Facility ID: 100186.0

     AIRPORT GROCERY DELI   11900 HIGHWAY 101 SW 1/2 - 1 (0.949 mi.) D31 66
Facility ID: 4981

     TOSCO CORPORATION   150 W SANDERSON W 1 - 2 (1.190 mi.) R80 283
Facility ID: 8372

     SANDERSON FIELD/INDU   150 W SANDERSON W 1 - 2 (1.190 mi.) R84 290
Facility ID: 8372

PageMap IDDirection / Distance     Address     Lower Elevation     ____________________      ________  ___________________ _____ _____

     MASON COUNTY TRANSPO   3740 SHELTON SPRINGS S 1/2 - 1 (0.903 mi.) C17 31
Facility ID: 23634752

     MASON COUNTY TRANSPO   3740 SHELTON SPRINGS S 1/2 - 1 (0.903 mi.) C18 31
Facility ID: 331
Facility ID: 331.0

     MASON COUNTY TRANSPO   3740 SHELTON SPRINGS S 1/2 - 1 (0.903 mi.) C20 52
Facility ID: 5247

     HIAWATHA INC   681 E JOHNS PRAIRIE SE 1/2 - 1 (0.963 mi.) E34 71
Facility ID: 75267324

     ARCO AM/PM MINI MARK   106 E WALLACE KNEELA SSW 1 - 2 (1.235 mi.) T91 311



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5712009.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 39

Facility ID: 341849

     AM/PM GAS STATION   106 E WALLACE KNEELA SSW 1 - 2 (1.235 mi.) T95 324
Facility ID: 341849

     ARCO 82609   106 E WALLACE KNEELA SSW 1 - 2 (1.235 mi.) T96 324
Facility ID: 64487875

     SHELTON SOC 070821   140 BELL LN S 1 - 2 (1.302 mi.) W113 340
Facility ID: 10463
Facility ID: 2926



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TC5712009.2s  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 40

There were no unmapped sites in this report.  



EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.

115 kV

23
0 kV

2 8 0 2
8 0

2 8 0

2
8

0

360

3 203 6 0

3 6 0

3 6 0

3 6 0

3 6 0

3 6 03
60

3 203 6 0

3 6 0
3 6 0

2
4

0

3
2

0

2 4 0

3 6 0

3
6

0

3
6

0

2 0 3 2 0

3
2 0

3
2

0

3 2 0

3 2 0

2
8 0

2
8

0

2 80

2
8

0

2
8

0

2
0

3
20

2
8

0

2 40 3 2 0

3 2 0

3
2

0

3 2 0

2 8 0

2 8 02 8 0

2

8
02 4 0

2
4

0

2 4 0

2
4

0

2 4 0

2
4

0

2 4 0

2 4 0

2 4 0

2 4 02 4 02 4 0

2 4 0

2 0 0 2 0 0

2 8 0

3 2 0

3 2 0

3 2 0

3 2 0

3 2 0

2 8 0 2 8 0

2 8 0

2 8 0

2 8 02 8 0

8
0 2 4

0

240

2
4

0

2 4 0
2 4 0

2 4 0

0

2
8

0

2

8
0

2
8

0

2
8

0

2 8 0

1 2 0

11 6 0

1
6 00 020

2 0 0

2 0

2
0

0

2 4 0

2 4 0

2
4

0

2
4

0

2

0

02
4 0

2 0 0

2
4

0

280

2 8 0

2 8 0

2 8 02 8 0

2 8 0

2 4 0

2 4 0

2
4

0

2 4 0

2 4 0

240

2
4

0

2
4

0

2 4 0
200

2
0

0

2 0 0

2 0 0

2 0 0

2 0 0

2
0

0

2
0

0

1 6 0

1
6

0

1
6 0

1 6
0

1
6

01
6

0

1 2 0

1
2

0
1

2
0 8 0

8 0

40



EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.EDR Inc.

240

240



MAP FINDINGS SUMMARY

Search
TargetDistance Total

Database Property(Miles) < 1/8 1/8 - 1/4 1/4 - 1/2 1/2 - 1 > 1 Plotted

STANDARD ENVIRONMENTAL RECORDS

Federal NPL site list

    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850NPL
    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850Proposed NPL
    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850NPL LIENS

Federal Delisted NPL site list

    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850Delisted NPL

Federal CERCLIS list

    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850FEDERAL FACILITY
    1    1     0      0      0    0 1.850SEMS

Federal CERCLIS NFRAP site list

    1    1     0      0      0    0 1.850SEMS-ARCHIVE

Federal RCRA CORRACTS facilities list

    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850CORRACTS

Federal RCRA non-CORRACTS TSD facilities list

    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850RCRA-TSDF

Federal RCRA generators list

    1    1     0      0      0    0 1.850RCRA-LQG
    1    1     0      0      0    0 1.850RCRA-SQG
    2    2     0      0      0    0 1.850RCRA-CESQG

Federal institutional controls /
engineering controls registries

    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850LUCIS
    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850US ENG CONTROLS
    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850US INST CONTROL

Federal ERNS list

    2    2     0      0      0    0 1.850ERNS

State- and tribal - equivalent NPL

    3    3     0      0      0    0 1.850WA HSL

State- and tribal - equivalent CERCLIS

    6    5     1      0      0    0 1.850WA CSCSL

State and tribal landfill and/or
solid waste disposal site lists

    6    4     2      0      0    0 1.850WA SWF/LF

State and tribal leaking storage tank lists

    7    4     3      0      0    0 1.850WA LUST

TC5712009.2s   Page 4



MAP FINDINGS SUMMARY

Search
TargetDistance Total

Database Property(Miles) < 1/8 1/8 - 1/4 1/4 - 1/2 1/2 - 1 > 1 Plotted

    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850INDIAN LUST

State and tribal registered storage tank lists

    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850FEMA UST
   19   15     4      0      0    0 1.850WA UST
    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850WA AST
    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850INDIAN UST

State and tribal institutional
control / engineering control registries

    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850WA INST CONTROL

State and tribal voluntary cleanup sites

    4    3     1      0      0    0 1.850WA ICR
    4    3     1      0      0    0 1.850WA VCP
    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850INDIAN VCP
    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850WA PTAP

State and tribal Brownfields sites

    1    1     0      0      0    0 1.850WA BROWNFIELDS

ADDITIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL RECORDS

Local Brownfield lists

    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850US BROWNFIELDS

Local Lists of Landfill / Solid
Waste Disposal Sites

    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850WA SWTIRE
    2    1     1      0      0    0 1.850WA SWRCY
    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850INDIAN ODI
    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850DEBRIS REGION 9
    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850ODI
    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850IHS OPEN DUMPS

Local Lists of Hazardous waste /
Contaminated Sites

    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850US HIST CDL
   62   54     8      0      0    0 1.850WA ALLSITES
    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850WA CDL
    2    1     1      0      0    0 1.850WA HIST CDL
    6    4     2      0      0    0 1.850WA CSCSL NFA
    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850US CDL
    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850WA PFAS

Local Land Records

    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850LIENS 2

Records of Emergency Release Reports

    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850HMIRS

TC5712009.2s   Page 5



MAP FINDINGS SUMMARY

Search
TargetDistance Total

Database Property(Miles) < 1/8 1/8 - 1/4 1/4 - 1/2 1/2 - 1 > 1 Plotted

   26   25     1      0      0    0 1.850WA SPILLS
    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850WA SPILLS 90

Other Ascertainable Records

   15   14     1      0      0    0 1.850RCRA NonGen / NLR
    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850FUDS
    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850DOD
    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850SCRD DRYCLEANERS
    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850US FIN ASSUR
    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850EPA WATCH LIST
    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.8502020 COR ACTION
    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850TSCA
    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850TRIS
    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850SSTS
    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850ROD
    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850RMP
    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850RAATS
    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850PRP
    2    2     0      0      0    0 1.850PADS
    3    2     1      0      0    0 1.850ICIS
    2    2     0      0      0    0 1.850FTTS
    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850MLTS
    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850COAL ASH DOE
    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850COAL ASH EPA
    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850PCB TRANSFORMER
    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850RADINFO
    2    2     0      0      0    0 1.850HIST FTTS
    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850DOT OPS
    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850CONSENT
    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850INDIAN RESERV
    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850FUSRAP
    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850UMTRA
    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850LEAD SMELTERS
    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850US AIRS
    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850US MINES
    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850ABANDONED MINES
   80   72     8      0      0    0 1.850FINDS
   29   23     6      0      0    0 1.850ECHO
    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850UXO
    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850DOCKET HWC
    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850FUELS PROGRAM
    2    2     0      0      0    0 1.850WA AIRS
   13    9     3      0      0    0 1.850          1WA ASBESTOS
    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850WA COAL ASH
    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850WA DRYCLEANERS
    8    6     2      0      0    0 1.850WA Financial Assurance
    1    0     1      0      0    0 1.850CA HAZNET
    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850WA Inactive Drycleaners
   13   11     2      0      0    0 1.850WA MANIFEST
    5    3     2      0      0    0 1.850WA NPDES
    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850WA UIC

TC5712009.2s   Page 6



MAP FINDINGS SUMMARY

Search
TargetDistance Total

Database Property(Miles) < 1/8 1/8 - 1/4 1/4 - 1/2 1/2 - 1 > 1 Plotted

EDR HIGH RISK HISTORICAL RECORDS

EDR Exclusive Records

    0    0     0      0      0    0 1.850EDR MGP
    8    6     2      0      0    0 1.850EDR Hist Auto
    1    1     0      0      0    0 1.850EDR Hist Cleaner

EDR RECOVERED GOVERNMENT ARCHIVES

Exclusive Recovered Govt. Archives

    6    4     2      0      0    0 1.850WA RGA HWS
    4    3     1      0      0    0 1.850WA RGA LF
   14    6     8      0      0    0 1.850WA RGA LUST

  364  299   64    0    0    0    1- Totals --

NOTES:

   TP = Target Property

   NR = Not Requested at this Search Distance

   Sites may be listed in more than one database

TC5712009.2s   Page 7



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        Not reportedRoofing:
                                        Not reportedVAT:
                                        Not reportedDuct Paper:
                                        Not reportedBoiler Insulation:
                                        Not reportedAsbestos Paper:
                                        1Sheet Vinyl:
                                        Not reportedCAB:
                                        Not reportedPopcorn Ceiling:
                                        Not reportedFireproofing:
                                        500Quantity Sq Ft:
                                        Not reportedEncapsulated:
                                        1Removed:
                                        Not reportedFacility Maint:
                                        Not reportedFacility Repair:
                                        1Facility Demo:
                                        Not reportedFacility Remodel:
                                        Not reportedFacility Size:
                                        1900Facility Age:
                                        Not reportedJob Site Room:
                                        360-490-5264Property Owner Phone:
                                        98584Property Owner Zip4:
                                        WAProperty Owner State:
                                        SheltonProperty Owner City:
                                        784 E Island Lake DrProperty Owner Address:
                                        SRMGJS LLCProperty Owner Company:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner Agent:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner Name:
                                        advanceenvironmental@comcast.netProject Form Email:
                                        Genaro MaganaJob Site CAS:
                                        360-357-5666Phone:
                                        1317Contractor ID:
                                        Not reportedSaturday:
                                        1Friday:
                                        1Thursday:
                                        Not reportedWednesday:
                                        Not reportedTuesday:
                                        Not reportedMonday:
                                        Not reportedSunday:
                                        4:00 p.m.Site Hours End:
                                        8:00 AMSite Hours Start:
                                        Not reportedEmergency:
                                        Not reportedOff Hold:
                                        Not reportedOn Hold:
                                        Not reportedAmended:
                                        1Initial:
                                        11/20/2015Completion Date:
                                        11/19/2015Start Date:
                                        10/23/2015Notice Date:
                                        107422##1317Advan987721Form ID:
                                        0Parent ID:
                                        ResidentialFacility Type:
                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                        784 E ISLAND LAKE DRAddress:
                                        Not reportedName:

ASBESTOS:

Actual:
242 ft.

 

Property SHELTON, WA  98584
Target 784 E ISLAND LAKE DR    N/A
1 WA ASBESTOS S119171964

TC5712009.2s   Page 8



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        08/13/2009Contractor Effective Date:
                                        02/01/2001Contractor Original Date:
                                        2016-08-25 00:00:00Contractor Cert Prn Date:
                                        3603575665Contact Fax:
                                        3603575666Contact Phone:
                                        Dan VenableContact Name:
                                        ActiveContractor Status:
                                        Advance Environmental IncContractor Name:
                                        ADVANEI972MHContractor Cris Num:
                                        MContractor Priority:
                                        602306184Contractor UBI:
                                        1317Contractor ID:

Contractor:

                                        Not reportedCertificate Status:
                                        Not reportedSupervisor Phone:
                                        Not reportedSupervisor:
                                        Not reportedProject Type:
                                        Not reportedNotice type:
                                        Not reportedUBI:
                                        Not reportedRegion:
                                        73.221.74.245Submitter IP Address:
                                        2015-10-23 11:23:34Date Time Submitted:
                                        Not reportedComments:
                                        Not reportedOther Resp Pro Text:
                                        Not reportedOther Resp Pro:
                                        Not reportedType C Pressure:
                                        Not reportedType C Continuous:
                                        Not reportedPAPR:
                                        Not reportedFull Face APR:
                                        1Half Mask APR:
                                        Not reportedOther CM2 Text:
                                        Not reportedOther CM2:
                                        Not reportedOther CM1 Text:
                                        Not reportedOther CM1:
                                        1MANUALMETHODS     :
                                        1HEPA Vacuum:
                                        1Wet Methods:
                                        Not reportedWrap And Cut:
                                        1Critical Barriers:
                                        1Mini Enclosure:
                                        Not reportedGlove Bag:
                                        1Neg Pres Enclosure:
                                        Not reportedOutdoors:
                                        1Indoors:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other2 Text:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other2:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other1 Text:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other1:
                                        Not reportedDuct Tape:
                                        Not reportedMudded Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedCement Asbestos Pipe:
                                        Not reportedDucting Insulation:
                                        Not reportedAir Cell Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedMag Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedQuantity Lin Ft:
                                        Not reportedSq Ft Other Text:
                                        Not reportedSq Ft Other:

  (Continued) S119171964

TC5712009.2s   Page 9



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        Not reportedContractor Memo:
                                        98512Contractor Mail Zip:
                                        WAContractor Mail State:
                                        OLYMPIAContractor Mail City:
                                        3620 49TH AVE SWContractor Mail Street Address:
                                        Not reportedContractor Web Address:
                                        advanceenvironmental@comcast.netContractor Email:
                                        3603575666Contractor Phone:
                                        98512Contractor Zip:
                                        WAContractor State:
                                        OLYMPIAContractor City:
                                        3620 49TH AVE SWContractor Street Address:
                                        34Contractor Cnty Code:
                                        Not reportedContractor Suspended Date:
                                        08/22/2017Contractor Exp Date:
                                        06/21/2016Contractor Renewal Letter Date:

  (Continued) S119171964

                                   http://echo.epa.gov/detailed-facility-report?fid=110013059812DFR URL:
                                   110013059812Registry ID:
                                   1024010671Envid:

ECHO:

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

COMMUNITY WATER SYSTEM
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110013059812Registry ID:

FINDS:

2758 ft.
0.522 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
255 ft.

 

1/2-1 SHELTON, WA  98584
SW ECHOE ISLAND LAKE RD    N/A
2 FINDSCHERRY PARK WATER SYSTEM 1024010671

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

COMMUNITY WATER SYSTEM
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110013092456Registry ID:

FINDS:

2960 ft.
0.561 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
245 ft.

 

1/2-1 SHELTON, WA  98584
SSW ECHOE WOODLAND DR    N/A
3 FINDSWOODLAND MANOR WATER SYSTEM 1024010728

TC5712009.2s   Page 10

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6fdp64huf9T.dk4zppDA3Yc44JavhfAguENkAMxY9OHvTawV.umN4eEzkHxa4wxbzgrE3Mm8pDL.DEGRAVuy4S1oYx.ucwNZ4Z0k4WypJQqRaVu4vu9xBN0tfmrWAHqCgoAV3t0ZE5yJNvDWkS7L3tJXM5QBx.kjYOlL6yEGfw7PdMvDpizJ31vX47zVhkGrucM99pXW9rpVTCHW.N463Kk0kBGs4cIQzFb3AD7DpjORDDARAvD04abKYRLGcV4T4X3T4ZX0JDouainivs9k448lfQ8NAesQgggUC7DWEUcoNkaNkDK96qGJfkFudnfTpsxJ4azW4vDYhegguefU3pQJ93gXTmce.ZEZ8nNykm974dv5zKAhALJTpyfUDXaeAvhX4C7jY3qoccWa4.8r5gfWJYHaaxYevOkU3OkQfgeHAqQugdAJ31n3EY31NM.4k3d6CyyyMKzSxQzRYuAg2qByOCVqHAgmv6MJ5uHoaKKdwRCDViIkvgWquy8amnqENdAZ6t.ufM9Adp45pZkm4UZf45pehBTYuNg33TPK9NnyTsPF.Shw4D8ZkKir45J.zKUG3K7.paMcDxXmAXzO5XExYkTYcSz.4.Xh7DXIJjscatpTvzib3ubbfPXgAawugN3G4hEgEz14N4Whkd1q3WXjM6GFxuwSY1rp9.8VO0M4HCPHvxVHAJOLaG1AwSluVuh.4RLDuRGtmp68NCJV3
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6fdp64huf9T.dk4zppDA3Yc44JavhfAguENkAMxY9OHvTawV.umN4eEzkHxa4wxbzgrE3Mm8pDL.DEGRAVuy4S1oYx.ucwNZ4Z0k4WypJQqRaVu4vu9xBN0tfmrWAHqCgoAV3t0ZE5yJNvDWkS7L3tJXM5QBx.kjYOlL6yEGfw7PdMvDpizJ31vX47zVhkGrucM99pXW9rpVTCHW.N463Kk0kBGs4cIQzFb3AD7DpjORDDARAvD04abKYRLGcV4T4X3T4ZX0JDouainivs9k448lfQ8NAesQgggUC7DWEUcoNkaNkDK96qGJfkFudnfTpsxJ4azW4vDYhegguefU3pQJ93gXTmce.ZEZ8nNykm974dv5zKAhALJTpyfUDXaeAvhX4C7jY3qoccWa4.8r5gfWJYHaaxYevOkU3OkQfgeHAqQugdAJ31n3EY31NM.4k3d6CyyyMKzSxQzRYuAg2qByOCVqHAgmv6MJ5uHoaKKdwRCDViIkvgWquy8amnqENdAZ6t.ufM9Adp45pZkm4UZf45pehBTYuNg33TPK9NnyTsPF.Shw4D8ZkKir45J.zKUG3K7.paMcDxXmAXzO5XExYkTYcSz.4.Xh7DXIJjscatpTvzib3ubbfPXgAawugN3G4hEgEz14N4Whkd1q3WXjM6GFxuwSY1rp9.8VO0M4HCPHvxVHAJOLaG1AwSluVuh.4RLDuRGtmp68NCJV3
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6fdp64huf9T.dk4zppDA3Yc44JavhfAguENkAMxY9OHvTawV.umN4eEzkHxa4wxbzgrE3Mm8pDL.DEGRAVuy4S1oYx.ucwNZ4Z0k4WypJQqRaVu4vu9xBN0tfmrWAHqCgoAV3t0ZE5yJNvDWkS7L3tJXM5QBx.kjYOlL6yEGfw7PdMvDpizJ31vX47zVhkGrucM99pXW9rpVTCHW.N463Kk0kBGs4cIQzFb3AD7DpjORDDARAvD04abKYRLGcV4T4X3T4ZX0JDouainivs9k448lfQ8NAesQgggUC7DWEUcoNkaNkDK96qGJfkFudnfTpsxJ4azW4vDYhegguefU3pQJ93gXTmce.ZEZ8nNykm974dv5zKAhALJTpyfUDXaeAvhX4C7jY3qoccWa4.8r5gfWJYHaaxYevOkU3OkQfgeHAqQugdAJ31n3EY31NM.4k3d6CyyyMKzSxQzRYuAg2qByOCVqHAgmv6MJ5uHoaKKdwRCDViIkvgWquy8amnqENdAZ6t.ufM9Adp45pZkm4UZf45pehBTYuNg33TPK9NnyTsPF.Shw4D8ZkKir45J.zKUG3K7.paMcDxXmAXzO5XExYkTYcSz.4.Xh7DXIJjscatpTvzib3ubbfPXgAawugN3G4hEgEz14N4Whkd1q3WXjM6GFxuwSY1rpA.8VO0M4HCPHvxVH5JOLaG1AwSluVuh.BRLDuRGtmp68NCJV3
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6fdp64huf9T.dk4zppDA3Yc44JavhfAguENkAMxY9OHvTawV.umN4eEzkHxa4wxbzgrE3Mm8pDL.DEGRAVuy4S1oYx.ucwNZ4Z0k4WypJQqRaVu4vu9xBN0tfmrWAHqCgoAV3t0ZE5yJNvDWkS7L3tJXM5QBx.kjYOlL6yEGfw7PdMvDpizJ31vX47zVhkGrucM99pXW9rpVTCHW.N463Kk0kBGs4cIQzFb3AD7DpjORDDARAvD04abKYRLGcV4T4X3T4ZX0JDouainivs9k448lfQ8NAesQgggUC7DWEUcoNkaNkDK96qGJfkFudnfTpsxJ4azW4vDYhegguefU3pQJ93gXTmce.ZEZ8nNykm974dv5zKAhALJTpyfUDXaeAvhX4C7jY3qoccWa4.8r5gfWJYHaaxYevOkU3OkQfgeHAqQugdAJ31n3EY31NM.4k3d6CyyyMKzSxQzRYuAg2qByOCVqHAgmv6MJ5uHoaKKdwRCDViIkvgWquy8amnqENdAZ6t.ufM9Adp45pZkm4UZf45pehBTYuNg33TPK9NnyTsPF.Shw4D8ZkKir45J.zKUG3K7.paMcDxXmAXzO5XExYkTYcSz.4.Xh7DXIJjscatpTvzib3ubbfPXgAawugN3G4hEgEz14N4Whkd1q3WXjM6GFxuwSY1rpA.8VO0M4HCPHvxVH5JOLaG1AwSluVuh.BRLDuRGtmp68NCJV3


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                   http://echo.epa.gov/detailed-facility-report?fid=110013092456DFR URL:
                                   110013092456Registry ID:
                                   1024010728Envid:

ECHO:

WOODLAND MANOR WATER SYSTEM  (Continued) 1024010728

                                        80Quantity Sq Ft:
                                        Not reportedEncapsulated:
                                        1Removed:
                                        Not reportedFacility Maint:
                                        1Facility Repair:
                                        Not reportedFacility Demo:
                                        Not reportedFacility Remodel:
                                        1200Facility Size:
                                        1969Facility Age:
                                        Not reportedJob Site Room:
                                        253-830-5945Property Owner Phone:
                                        98409Property Owner Zip4:
                                        WaProperty Owner State:
                                        SheltonProperty Owner City:
                                        2201 E. Island Lk. Dr.Property Owner Address:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner Company:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner Agent:
                                        Vonda DrougmundProperty Owner Name:
                                        mmiller@tacomaabatement.comProject Form Email:
                                        Matthew WareJob Site CAS:
                                        253-830-5945Phone:
                                        1532Contractor ID:
                                        Not reportedSaturday:
                                        1Friday:
                                        1Thursday:
                                        Not reportedWednesday:
                                        Not reportedTuesday:
                                        Not reportedMonday:
                                        Not reportedSunday:
                                        3:30pmSite Hours End:
                                        8:30 AMSite Hours Start:
                                        Not reportedEmergency:
                                        Not reportedOff Hold:
                                        Not reportedOn Hold:
                                        Not reportedAmended:
                                        1Initial:
                                        04/18/2014Completion Date:
                                        04/17/2014Start Date:
                                        04/11/2014Notice Date:
                                        83706##1532TACOM003032Form ID:
                                        0Parent ID:
                                        HouseFacility Type:
                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                        2201 E. ISLAND LK. DR.Address:
                                        Not reportedName:

ASBESTOS:

2993 ft.
0.567 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
236 ft.

 

1/2-1 SHELTON, WA  98584
ESE 2201 E. ISLAND LK. DR.    N/A
4 WA ASBESTOS S119166988

TC5712009.2s   Page 11



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        1532Contractor ID:
Contractor:

                                        Not reportedCertificate Status:
                                        Not reportedSupervisor Phone:
                                        Not reportedSupervisor:
                                        Not reportedProject Type:
                                        Not reportedNotice type:
                                        Not reportedUBI:
                                        Not reportedRegion:
                                        69.10.218.22Submitter IP Address:
                                        2014-04-11 10:17:53Date Time Submitted:
                                        with Wendy Drapeau asking for a 10 day waiver.
                                        displaced all sheet vinyl flooring needs to come out. I left a message
                                        Water damage to kitchen, dining room and laundry rm. Owner isComments:
                                        Not reportedOther Resp Pro Text:
                                        Not reportedOther Resp Pro:
                                        Not reportedType C Pressure:
                                        Not reportedType C Continuous:
                                        Not reportedPAPR:
                                        Not reportedFull Face APR:
                                        1Half Mask APR:
                                        Not reportedOther CM2 Text:
                                        Not reportedOther CM2:
                                        Not reportedOther CM1 Text:
                                        Not reportedOther CM1:
                                        1MANUALMETHODS     :
                                        1HEPA Vacuum:
                                        1Wet Methods:
                                        Not reportedWrap And Cut:
                                        1Critical Barriers:
                                        Not reportedMini Enclosure:
                                        Not reportedGlove Bag:
                                        Not reportedNeg Pres Enclosure:
                                        Not reportedOutdoors:
                                        1Indoors:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other2 Text:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other2:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other1 Text:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other1:
                                        Not reportedDuct Tape:
                                        Not reportedMudded Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedCement Asbestos Pipe:
                                        Not reportedDucting Insulation:
                                        Not reportedAir Cell Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedMag Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedQuantity Lin Ft:
                                        Not reportedSq Ft Other Text:
                                        Not reportedSq Ft Other:
                                        Not reportedRoofing:
                                        Not reportedVAT:
                                        Not reportedDuct Paper:
                                        Not reportedBoiler Insulation:
                                        Not reportedAsbestos Paper:
                                        1Sheet Vinyl:
                                        Not reportedCAB:
                                        Not reportedPopcorn Ceiling:
                                        Not reportedFireproofing:

  (Continued) S119166988

TC5712009.2s   Page 12



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        Not reportedContractor Memo:
                                        98409Contractor Mail Zip:
                                        WAContractor Mail State:
                                        TACOMAContractor Mail City:
                                        5111 S BURLINGTON WAYContractor Mail Street Address:
                                        www.tacomaabatement.comContractor Web Address:
                                        info@tacomaabatement.comContractor Email:
                                        2538305945Contractor Phone:
                                        98409Contractor Zip:
                                        WAContractor State:
                                        TACOMAContractor City:
                                        5111 S BURLINGTON WAYContractor Street Address:
                                        27Contractor Cnty Code:
                                        Not reportedContractor Suspended Date:
                                        10/05/2017Contractor Exp Date:
                                        07/19/2016Contractor Renewal Letter Date:
                                        10/17/2011Contractor Effective Date:
                                        10/17/2011Contractor Original Date:
                                        2016-10-06 00:00:00Contractor Cert Prn Date:
                                        2532760267Contact Fax:
                                        2538305945Contact Phone:
                                        Adriana HeadContact Name:
                                        ActiveContractor Status:
                                        TACOMA ABATEMENT CO LLCContractor Name:
                                        TACOMAC894PEContractor Cris Num:
                                        MContractor Priority:
                                        603144219Contractor UBI:

  (Continued) S119166988

                                                            Automotive Transmission Repair Shops2005     CUSTOM TRANSMISSIONS AND AUTO
                                                            Automotive Transmission Repair Shops2004     CUSTOM TRANSMISSIONS AND AUTO
                                                            Automotive Transmission Repair Shops2003     CUSTOM TRANSMISSIONS AND AUTO
                                                            General Automotive Repair Shops1996     LEE & SONS AUTO SERVICE
                                                            General Automotive Repair Shops1995     LEE & SONS AUTO SERVICE
                                                            General Automotive Repair Shops1994     LEES & SONS AUTO SERVICE
                                                            General Automotive Repair Shops1993     LEES & SONS AUTO SERVICE
                                                            General Automotive Repair Shops1992     LEES & SONS AUTO SERVICE
                                                            General Automotive Repair Shops1991     LEES & SONS AUTO SERVICE
                                                            General Automotive Repair Shops1990     LEES & SONS AUTO SERVICE
                                                            General Automotive Repair Shops1989     LEES & SONS AUTO SERVICE
                                                            General Automotive Repair Shops1988     LEES & SONS AUTO SERVICE
                                                            General Automotive Repair Shops1987     LEES & SONS AUTO SERVICE
                                                            Type:Year:    Name:

EDR Hist Auto

3150 ft.
0.597 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
271 ft.

 

1/2-1 SHELTON, WA  98584
SW 71 E BOARDWALK RD    N/A
5 EDR Hist AutoLEES & SONS AUTO SERVICE 1020706709

TC5712009.2s   Page 13



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              55191Facility Id:
                              SHELTON SPRINGSFacility Name:

ALLSITES:

3282 ft.
0.622 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
233 ft.

 

1/2-1 SHELTON, WA  98584
South    N/A
6 WA ALLSITESSHELTON SPRINGS S122493322

     99Facility County:
     D99-Disposal, OtherMethod:
     151-Asbestos containing wasteCA Waste Code:
     0.0075Tons:
     Los AngelesTSD County:
     CAD044429835TSD EPA ID:
     99Gen County:
     SHELTON, WA 985840000Mailing City,St,Zip:
     207 N 9TH STMailing Address:
     Not reportedMailing Name:
     0000000000Telephone:
     SHELTON SCHOOL DISTRICTContact:
     WAC981201054GEPAID:
     1999Year:
     SHELTON, WA 985840000City,State,Zip:
     3737 N SHELTON SPRINGS RDAddress:
     SSD - SHELTON HIGH SCHOOLName:

HAZNET:

3782 ft. Site 1 of 3 in cluster A
0.716 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
233 ft.

 

1/2-1 SHELTON, WA  98584
SSW 3737 N SHELTON SPRINGS RD    N/A
A7 CA HAZNETSSD - SHELTON HIGH SCHOOL S113185904

                                        Not reportedSite Hours End:
                                        Not reportedSite Hours Start:
                                        Not reportedEmergency:
                                        Not reportedOff Hold:
                                        Not reportedOn Hold:
                                        Not reportedAmended:
                                        Not reportedInitial:
                                        09/25/2018Completion Date:
                                        09/15/2018Start Date:
                                        09/21/2018Notice Date:
                                        130189#1200271179Form ID:
                                        Not reportedParent ID:
                                        Not reportedFacility Type:
                                        SHELTON, WACity,State,Zip:
                                        3737 SHELTON SPRINGS RDAddress:
                                        Not reportedName:

ASBESTOS:

3782 ft. Site 2 of 3 in cluster A
0.716 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
233 ft.

 

1/2-1 SHELTON, WA  
SSW 3737 SHELTON SPRINGS RD    N/A
A8 WA ASBESTOS S123247923

TC5712009.2s   Page 14



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        Not reportedCritical Barriers:
                                        Not reportedMini Enclosure:
                                        Not reportedGlove Bag:
                                        Not reportedNeg Pres Enclosure:
                                        Not reportedOutdoors:
                                        Not reportedIndoors:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other2 Text:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other2:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other1 Text:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other1:
                                        Not reportedDuct Tape:
                                        Not reportedMudded Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedCement Asbestos Pipe:
                                        Not reportedDucting Insulation:
                                        Not reportedAir Cell Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedMag Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedQuantity Lin Ft:
                                        Not reportedSq Ft Other Text:
                                        Not reportedSq Ft Other:
                                        Not reportedRoofing:
                                        Not reportedVAT:
                                        Not reportedDuct Paper:
                                        Not reportedBoiler Insulation:
                                        Not reportedAsbestos Paper:
                                        Not reportedSheet Vinyl:
                                        Not reportedCAB:
                                        Not reportedPopcorn Ceiling:
                                        Not reportedFireproofing:
                                        Not reportedQuantity Sq Ft:
                                        Not reportedEncapsulated:
                                        Not reportedRemoved:
                                        Not reportedFacility Maint:
                                        Not reportedFacility Repair:
                                        Not reportedFacility Demo:
                                        Not reportedFacility Remodel:
                                        Not reportedFacility Size:
                                        Not reportedFacility Age:
                                        Not reportedJob Site Room:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner Phone:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner Zip4:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner State:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner City:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner Address:
                                        RSG ABATEMENT & DMLTN CORP (TACOMA)Property Owner Company:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner Agent:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner Name:
                                        Not reportedProject Form Email:
                                        Not reportedJob Site CAS:
                                        Not reportedPhone:
                                        ABCN00001669Contractor ID:
                                        Not reportedSaturday:
                                        Not reportedFriday:
                                        Not reportedThursday:
                                        Not reportedWednesday:
                                        Not reportedTuesday:
                                        Not reportedMonday:
                                        Not reportedSunday:

  (Continued) S123247923

TC5712009.2s   Page 15



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        ACertificate Status:
                                        ABAS0027904Supervisor Phone:
                                        Jeff HansonSupervisor:
                                        Cement Asbestos PipeProject Type:
                                        EmergencyNotice type:
                                        604274440UBI:
                                        4Region:
                                        Not reportedSubmitter IP Address:
                                        Not reportedDate Time Submitted:
                                        Not reportedComments:
                                        Not reportedOther Resp Pro Text:
                                        Not reportedOther Resp Pro:
                                        Not reportedType C Pressure:
                                        Not reportedType C Continuous:
                                        Not reportedPAPR:
                                        Not reportedFull Face APR:
                                        Not reportedHalf Mask APR:
                                        Not reportedOther CM2 Text:
                                        Not reportedOther CM2:
                                        Not reportedOther CM1 Text:
                                        Not reportedOther CM1:
                                        Not reportedMANUALMETHODS     :
                                        Not reportedHEPA Vacuum:
                                        Not reportedWet Methods:
                                        Not reportedWrap And Cut:

  (Continued) S123247923

                    -625Days to Expiration:
                    05/24/2018Effective Date:
                    12/31/2020Permit Expiration Date:
                    Not reportedWRIA:
                    Not reportedEcology Contact:
                    Not reportedPermit SubStatus:
                    ActivePermit Status:
                    Not reportedPermit Version:
                    WAR306589Permit ID:
                    Not reportedLongitude:
                    Not reportedLatitude:
                    11/18/2015Date Issued:
                    HeadqartersAdmin Region:
                    Construction SW GPFacility Type:
                    Not reportedFacility Status:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    3737 N SHELTON SPRINGS RDAddress:
                    SHELTON HIGH SCHOOLName:

NPDES:

                              48180Facility Id:
                              SHELTON HIGH SCHOOLFacility Name:

ALLSITES:

3782 ft. Site 3 of 3 in cluster A
0.716 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
233 ft.

 

1/2-1 SHELTON, WA  98584
SSW WA NPDES3737 N SHELTON SPRINGS RD    N/A
A9 WA ALLSITESSHELTON HIGH SCHOOL S122493232

TC5712009.2s   Page 16



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    Denise SchupbachContact Name:
                    AluminumMaterial Accepted:
                    MetalMaterial Category:
                    denise@pmrecycle.comEmail:
                    http://www.pmrecycle.com/home.htmlWebsite:
                    Not reportedExtension:
                    360-462-6800Phone:
                    Pay More Recycle and Salvage - SheltonService:
                    1389Facility ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    2278 E. BROCKDALE RDAddress:
                    PAY MORE RECYCLE AND SALVAGEName:

                    fuels and fluids before bringing in!
                    Help us help the environment! Please drain all materials of oils,Comments:
                    Mon-Fri, 9am-5pmHours:
                    YesE-Cycle:
                    NoLight Recycle Participant:
                    DropoffService Type:
                    ResidentialType:
                    Denise SchupbachContact Name:
                    Cars, RV s & trailersMaterial Accepted:
                    AutomotiveMaterial Category:
                    denise@pmrecycle.comEmail:
                    http://www.pmrecycle.com/home.htmlWebsite:
                    Not reportedExtension:
                    360-462-6800Phone:
                    Pay More Recycle and Salvage - SheltonService:
                    1389Facility ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    2278 E. BROCKDALE RDAddress:
                    PAY MORE RECYCLE AND SALVAGEName:

                    fuels and fluids before bringing in!
                    Help us help the environment! Please drain all materials of oils,Comments:
                    Mon-Fri, 9am-5pmHours:
                    YesE-Cycle:
                    NoLight Recycle Participant:
                    DropoffService Type:
                    ResidentialType:
                    Denise SchupbachContact Name:
                    Computers & laptopsMaterial Accepted:
                    ElectronicsMaterial Category:
                    denise@pmrecycle.comEmail:
                    http://www.pmrecycle.com/home.htmlWebsite:
                    Not reportedExtension:
                    360-462-6800Phone:
                    Pay More Recycle and Salvage - SheltonService:
                    1389Facility ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    2278 E. BROCKDALE RDAddress:
                    PAY MORE RECYCLE AND SALVAGEName:

SWRCY:

3798 ft. Site 1 of 5 in cluster B
0.719 mi. WA NPDES

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
238 ft.

 

1/2-1 WA SPILLSSHELTON, WA  98584
East WA ALLSITES2278 E BROCKDALE RD    N/A
B10 WA SWRCYPAY MORE RECYCLE & SALVAGE S110275820

TC5712009.2s   Page 17



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    denise@pmrecycle.comEmail:
                    http://www.pmrecycle.com/home.htmlWebsite:
                    Not reportedExtension:
                    360-462-6800Phone:
                    Pay More Recycle and Salvage - SheltonService:
                    1389Facility ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    2278 E. BROCKDALE RDAddress:
                    PAY MORE RECYCLE AND SALVAGEName:

                    fuels and fluids before bringing in!
                    Help us help the environment! Please drain all materials of oils,Comments:
                    Mon-Fri, 9am-5pmHours:
                    YesE-Cycle:
                    NoLight Recycle Participant:
                    DropoffService Type:
                    ResidentialType:
                    Denise SchupbachContact Name:
                    Car batteriesMaterial Accepted:
                    AutomotiveMaterial Category:
                    denise@pmrecycle.comEmail:
                    http://www.pmrecycle.com/home.htmlWebsite:
                    Not reportedExtension:
                    360-462-6800Phone:
                    Pay More Recycle and Salvage - SheltonService:
                    1389Facility ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    2278 E. BROCKDALE RDAddress:
                    PAY MORE RECYCLE AND SALVAGEName:

                    fuels and fluids before bringing in!
                    Help us help the environment! Please drain all materials of oils,Comments:
                    Mon-Fri, 9am-5pmHours:
                    YesE-Cycle:
                    NoLight Recycle Participant:
                    DropoffService Type:
                    ResidentialType:
                    Denise SchupbachContact Name:
                    Tin, steel cansMaterial Accepted:
                    MetalMaterial Category:
                    denise@pmrecycle.comEmail:
                    http://www.pmrecycle.com/home.htmlWebsite:
                    Not reportedExtension:
                    360-462-6800Phone:
                    Pay More Recycle and Salvage - SheltonService:
                    1389Facility ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    2278 E. BROCKDALE RDAddress:
                    PAY MORE RECYCLE AND SALVAGEName:

                    fuels and fluids before bringing in!
                    Help us help the environment! Please drain all materials of oils,Comments:
                    Mon-Fri, 9am-5pmHours:
                    YesE-Cycle:
                    NoLight Recycle Participant:
                    DropoffService Type:
                    ResidentialType:

PAY MORE RECYCLE & SALVAGE  (Continued) S110275820

TC5712009.2s   Page 18



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    360-462-6800Phone:
                    Pay More Recycle and Salvage - SheltonService:
                    1389Facility ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    2278 E. BROCKDALE RDAddress:
                    PAY MORE RECYCLE AND SALVAGEName:

                    fuels and fluids before bringing in!
                    Help us help the environment! Please drain all materials of oils,Comments:
                    Mon-Fri, 9am-5pmHours:
                    YesE-Cycle:
                    NoLight Recycle Participant:
                    DropoffService Type:
                    ResidentialType:
                    Denise SchupbachContact Name:
                    MonitorsMaterial Accepted:
                    ElectronicsMaterial Category:
                    denise@pmrecycle.comEmail:
                    http://www.pmrecycle.com/home.htmlWebsite:
                    Not reportedExtension:
                    360-462-6800Phone:
                    Pay More Recycle and Salvage - SheltonService:
                    1389Facility ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    2278 E. BROCKDALE RDAddress:
                    PAY MORE RECYCLE AND SALVAGEName:

                    fuels and fluids before bringing in!
                    Help us help the environment! Please drain all materials of oils,Comments:
                    Mon-Fri, 9am-5pmHours:
                    YesE-Cycle:
                    NoLight Recycle Participant:
                    DropoffService Type:
                    ResidentialType:
                    Denise SchupbachContact Name:
                    Large appliancesMaterial Accepted:
                    AppliancesMaterial Category:
                    denise@pmrecycle.comEmail:
                    http://www.pmrecycle.com/home.htmlWebsite:
                    Not reportedExtension:
                    360-462-6800Phone:
                    Pay More Recycle and Salvage - SheltonService:
                    1389Facility ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    2278 E. BROCKDALE RDAddress:
                    PAY MORE RECYCLE AND SALVAGEName:

                    fuels and fluids before bringing in!
                    Help us help the environment! Please drain all materials of oils,Comments:
                    Mon-Fri, 9am-5pmHours:
                    YesE-Cycle:
                    NoLight Recycle Participant:
                    DropoffService Type:
                    ResidentialType:
                    Denise SchupbachContact Name:
                    Other metalsMaterial Accepted:
                    MetalMaterial Category:

PAY MORE RECYCLE & SALVAGE  (Continued) S110275820

TC5712009.2s   Page 19



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    2278 E. BROCKDALE RDAddress:
                    PAY MORE RECYCLE AND SALVAGEName:

                    fuels and fluids before bringing in!
                    Help us help the environment! Please drain all materials of oils,Comments:
                    Mon-Fri, 9am-5pmHours:
                    YesE-Cycle:
                    NoLight Recycle Participant:
                    DropoffService Type:
                    ResidentialType:
                    Denise SchupbachContact Name:
                    Televisions (TVs)Material Accepted:
                    ElectronicsMaterial Category:
                    denise@pmrecycle.comEmail:
                    http://www.pmrecycle.com/home.htmlWebsite:
                    Not reportedExtension:
                    360-462-6800Phone:
                    Pay More Recycle and Salvage - SheltonService:
                    1389Facility ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    2278 E. BROCKDALE RDAddress:
                    PAY MORE RECYCLE AND SALVAGEName:

                    fuels and fluids before bringing in!
                    Help us help the environment! Please drain all materials of oils,Comments:
                    Mon-Fri, 9am-5pmHours:
                    YesE-Cycle:
                    NoLight Recycle Participant:
                    DropoffService Type:
                    ResidentialType:
                    Denise SchupbachContact Name:
                    Portable DVD playersMaterial Accepted:
                    ElectronicsMaterial Category:
                    denise@pmrecycle.comEmail:
                    http://www.pmrecycle.com/home.htmlWebsite:
                    Not reportedExtension:
                    360-462-6800Phone:
                    Pay More Recycle and Salvage - SheltonService:
                    1389Facility ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    2278 E. BROCKDALE RDAddress:
                    PAY MORE RECYCLE AND SALVAGEName:

                    fuels and fluids before bringing in!
                    Help us help the environment! Please drain all materials of oils,Comments:
                    Mon-Fri, 9am-5pmHours:
                    YesE-Cycle:
                    NoLight Recycle Participant:
                    DropoffService Type:
                    ResidentialType:
                    Denise SchupbachContact Name:
                    TabletsMaterial Accepted:
                    ElectronicsMaterial Category:
                    denise@pmrecycle.comEmail:
                    http://www.pmrecycle.com/home.htmlWebsite:
                    Not reportedExtension:

PAY MORE RECYCLE & SALVAGE  (Continued) S110275820

TC5712009.2s   Page 20



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    Help us help the environment! Please drain all materials of oils,Comments:
                    Mon-Fri, 9am-5pmHours:
                    YesE-Cycle:
                    NoLight Recycle Participant:
                    DropoffService Type:
                    CommercialType:
                    Denise SchupbachContact Name:
                    Car batteriesMaterial Accepted:
                    AutomotiveMaterial Category:
                    denise@pmrecycle.comEmail:
                    http://www.pmrecycle.com/home.htmlWebsite:
                    Not reportedExtension:
                    360-462-6800Phone:
                    Pay More Recycle and Salvage - SheltonService:
                    1389Facility ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    2278 E. BROCKDALE RDAddress:
                    PAY MORE RECYCLE AND SALVAGEName:

                    50 employees can use the E-Cycle WA program.
                    fuels and fluids before bringing in! Small businesses with less than
                    Help us help the environment! Please drain all materials of oils,Comments:
                    Mon-Fri, 9am-5pmHours:
                    YesE-Cycle:
                    NoLight Recycle Participant:
                    DropoffService Type:
                    CommercialType:
                    Denise SchupbachContact Name:
                    Portable DVD playersMaterial Accepted:
                    ElectronicsMaterial Category:
                    denise@pmrecycle.comEmail:
                    http://www.pmrecycle.com/home.htmlWebsite:
                    Not reportedExtension:
                    360-462-6800Phone:
                    Pay More Recycle and Salvage - SheltonService:
                    1389Facility ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    2278 E. BROCKDALE RDAddress:
                    PAY MORE RECYCLE AND SALVAGEName:

                    50 employees can use the E-Cycle WA program.
                    fuels and fluids before bringing in! Small businesses with less than
                    Help us help the environment! Please drain all materials of oils,Comments:
                    Mon-Fri, 9am-5pmHours:
                    YesE-Cycle:
                    NoLight Recycle Participant:
                    DropoffService Type:
                    CommercialType:
                    Denise SchupbachContact Name:
                    Computers & laptopsMaterial Accepted:
                    ElectronicsMaterial Category:
                    denise@pmrecycle.comEmail:
                    http://www.pmrecycle.com/home.htmlWebsite:
                    Not reportedExtension:
                    360-462-6800Phone:
                    Pay More Recycle and Salvage - SheltonService:
                    1389Facility ID:

PAY MORE RECYCLE & SALVAGE  (Continued) S110275820

TC5712009.2s   Page 21



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    Denise SchupbachContact Name:
                    Televisions (TVs)Material Accepted:
                    ElectronicsMaterial Category:
                    denise@pmrecycle.comEmail:
                    http://www.pmrecycle.com/home.htmlWebsite:
                    Not reportedExtension:
                    360-462-6800Phone:
                    Pay More Recycle and Salvage - SheltonService:
                    1389Facility ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    2278 E. BROCKDALE RDAddress:
                    PAY MORE RECYCLE AND SALVAGEName:

                    50 employees can use the E-Cycle WA program.
                    fuels and fluids before bringing in! Small businesses with less than
                    Help us help the environment! Please drain all materials of oils,Comments:
                    Mon-Fri, 9am-5pmHours:
                    YesE-Cycle:
                    NoLight Recycle Participant:
                    DropoffService Type:
                    CommercialType:
                    Denise SchupbachContact Name:
                    Large appliancesMaterial Accepted:
                    AppliancesMaterial Category:
                    denise@pmrecycle.comEmail:
                    http://www.pmrecycle.com/home.htmlWebsite:
                    Not reportedExtension:
                    360-462-6800Phone:
                    Pay More Recycle and Salvage - SheltonService:
                    1389Facility ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    2278 E. BROCKDALE RDAddress:
                    PAY MORE RECYCLE AND SALVAGEName:

                    50 employees can use the E-Cycle WA program.
                    fuels and fluids before bringing in! Small businesses with less than
                    Help us help the environment! Please drain all materials of oils,Comments:
                    Mon-Fri, 9am-5pmHours:
                    YesE-Cycle:
                    NoLight Recycle Participant:
                    DropoffService Type:
                    CommercialType:
                    Denise SchupbachContact Name:
                    Other metalsMaterial Accepted:
                    MetalMaterial Category:
                    denise@pmrecycle.comEmail:
                    http://www.pmrecycle.com/home.htmlWebsite:
                    Not reportedExtension:
                    360-462-6800Phone:
                    Pay More Recycle and Salvage - SheltonService:
                    1389Facility ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    2278 E. BROCKDALE RDAddress:
                    PAY MORE RECYCLE AND SALVAGEName:

                    50 employees can use the E-Cycle WA program.
                    fuels and fluids before bringing in! Small businesses with less than

PAY MORE RECYCLE & SALVAGE  (Continued) S110275820

TC5712009.2s   Page 22



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    360-462-6800Phone:
                    Pay More Recycle and Salvage - SheltonService:
                    1389Facility ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    2278 E. BROCKDALE RDAddress:
                    PAY MORE RECYCLE AND SALVAGEName:

                    50 employees can use the E-Cycle WA program.
                    fuels and fluids before bringing in! Small businesses with less than
                    Help us help the environment! Please drain all materials of oils,Comments:
                    Mon-Fri, 9am-5pmHours:
                    YesE-Cycle:
                    NoLight Recycle Participant:
                    DropoffService Type:
                    CommercialType:
                    Denise SchupbachContact Name:
                    MonitorsMaterial Accepted:
                    ElectronicsMaterial Category:
                    denise@pmrecycle.comEmail:
                    http://www.pmrecycle.com/home.htmlWebsite:
                    Not reportedExtension:
                    360-462-6800Phone:
                    Pay More Recycle and Salvage - SheltonService:
                    1389Facility ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    2278 E. BROCKDALE RDAddress:
                    PAY MORE RECYCLE AND SALVAGEName:

                    50 employees can use the E-Cycle WA program.
                    fuels and fluids before bringing in! Small businesses with less than
                    Help us help the environment! Please drain all materials of oils,Comments:
                    Mon-Fri, 9am-5pmHours:
                    YesE-Cycle:
                    NoLight Recycle Participant:
                    DropoffService Type:
                    CommercialType:
                    Denise SchupbachContact Name:
                    TabletsMaterial Accepted:
                    ElectronicsMaterial Category:
                    denise@pmrecycle.comEmail:
                    http://www.pmrecycle.com/home.htmlWebsite:
                    Not reportedExtension:
                    360-462-6800Phone:
                    Pay More Recycle and Salvage - SheltonService:
                    1389Facility ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    2278 E. BROCKDALE RDAddress:
                    PAY MORE RECYCLE AND SALVAGEName:

                    50 employees can use the E-Cycle WA program.
                    fuels and fluids before bringing in! Small businesses with less than
                    Help us help the environment! Please drain all materials of oils,Comments:
                    Mon-Fri, 9am-5pmHours:
                    YesE-Cycle:
                    NoLight Recycle Participant:
                    DropoffService Type:
                    CommercialType:

PAY MORE RECYCLE & SALVAGE  (Continued) S110275820

TC5712009.2s   Page 23



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    50 employees can use the E-Cycle WA program.
                    fuels and fluids before bringing in! Small businesses with less than
                    Help us help the environment! Please drain all materials of oils,Comments:
                    Mon-Fri, 9am-5pmHours:
                    YesE-Cycle:
                    NoLight Recycle Participant:
                    DropoffService Type:
                    CommercialType:
                    Denise SchupbachContact Name:
                    Tin, steel cansMaterial Accepted:
                    MetalMaterial Category:
                    denise@pmrecycle.comEmail:
                    http://www.pmrecycle.com/home.htmlWebsite:
                    Not reportedExtension:
                    360-462-6800Phone:
                    Pay More Recycle and Salvage - SheltonService:
                    1389Facility ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    2278 E. BROCKDALE RDAddress:
                    PAY MORE RECYCLE AND SALVAGEName:

                    50 employees can use the E-Cycle WA program.
                    fuels and fluids before bringing in! Small businesses with less than
                    Help us help the environment! Please drain all materials of oils,Comments:
                    Mon-Fri, 9am-5pmHours:
                    YesE-Cycle:
                    NoLight Recycle Participant:
                    DropoffService Type:
                    CommercialType:
                    Denise SchupbachContact Name:
                    AluminumMaterial Accepted:
                    MetalMaterial Category:
                    denise@pmrecycle.comEmail:
                    http://www.pmrecycle.com/home.htmlWebsite:
                    Not reportedExtension:
                    360-462-6800Phone:
                    Pay More Recycle and Salvage - SheltonService:
                    1389Facility ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    2278 E. BROCKDALE RDAddress:
                    PAY MORE RECYCLE AND SALVAGEName:

                    50 employees can use the E-Cycle WA program.
                    fuels and fluids before bringing in! Small businesses with less than
                    Help us help the environment! Please drain all materials of oils,Comments:
                    Mon-Fri, 9am-5pmHours:
                    YesE-Cycle:
                    NoLight Recycle Participant:
                    DropoffService Type:
                    CommercialType:
                    Denise SchupbachContact Name:
                    Cars, RV s & trailersMaterial Accepted:
                    AutomotiveMaterial Category:
                    denise@pmrecycle.comEmail:
                    http://www.pmrecycle.com/home.htmlWebsite:
                    Not reportedExtension:

PAY MORE RECYCLE & SALVAGE  (Continued) S110275820

TC5712009.2s   Page 24



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                             115626Interaction:

                                             -123.105152069Longitude:
                                             47.251055485000002Latitude:
                                             Industrial SW GPDate Interaction 3:
                                             2015-09-18 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             WAR303433Program ID:
                                             Pay More Recycle & SalvageFacility Alt.:
                                             PARISProgram Data:
                                             WATQUALEcology Program:
                                             INDSWGPInteraction 2:
                                             AInteraction 1:
                                             115033Interaction:

                                             -123.105152069Longitude:
                                             47.251055485000002Latitude:
                                             Local Source Cntrl 7/09-3Date Interaction 3:
                                             2011-02-25 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             Not reportedProgram ID:
                                             Wilson Recycling LLCFacility Alt.:
                                             LSCProgram Data:
                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             LSCInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             100754Interaction:

                                             -123.105152069Longitude:
                                             47.251055485000002Latitude:
                                             Energy RecoveryDate Interaction 3:
                                             1900-01-01 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             Not reportedProgram ID:
                                             Wilson RecyclingFacility Alt.:
                                             SWFDProgram Data:
                                             SOLIDWASTEEcology Program:
                                             RECOVERYInteraction 2:
                                             AInteraction 1:
                                             91160Interaction:

                                             -123.105152069Longitude:
                                             47.251055485000002Latitude:
                                             Industrial SW GPDate Interaction 3:
                                             2011-04-15 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             WAR125109Program ID:
                                             Wilson RecyclingFacility Alt.:
                                             PARISProgram Data:
                                             WATQUALEcology Program:
                                             INDSWGPInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             96762Interaction:

                              2932Facility Id:
                              WILSON RECYCLINGFacility Name:

ALLSITES:

PAY MORE RECYCLE & SALVAGE  (Continued) S110275820

TC5712009.2s   Page 25



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              Not reportedResp Party Contact:
                              Not reportedRecovered Quantity:
                              Not reportedVessel Facility Name2:
                              Not reportedSource:
                              Not reportedSource Type:
                              Not reportedLongitude:
                              Not reportedLatitude:
                              Not reportedIncident Category:
                              Not reportedIncident Category Type:
                              Not reportedIncident Date:
                              Not reportedContact Name:
                              12/09/2011Date Received:
                              OTHERMaterial Units:
                              1Material Qty:
                              OTHER - SEE NOTEMaterial Desc:
                              OTHERMedium:
                              630869Facility ID:
                              SHELTON, WACity,State,Zip:
                              2278 E BROCKDALEAddress:
                              DAVID BAKERName:

                              Not reportedResp Party Name:
                              Not reportedCause Type:
                              Not reportedCause:
                              Not reportedResp Party Contact:
                              Not reportedRecovered Quantity:
                              Not reportedVessel Facility Name2:
                              Not reportedSource:
                              Not reportedSource Type:
                              Not reportedLongitude:
                              Not reportedLatitude:
                              Not reportedIncident Category:
                              Not reportedIncident Category Type:
                              Not reportedIncident Date:
                              UnknownContact Name:
                              Not reportedDate Received:
                              EACHMaterial Units:
                              3Material Qty:
                              RADIOACTIVEMaterial Desc:
                              SOILMedium:
                              646714Facility ID:
                              SHELTON, WACity,State,Zip:
                              2278 E BROCKDALE RDAddress:
                              Not reportedName:

SPILLS:

                                             -123.105152069Longitude:
                                             47.251055485000002Latitude:
                                             Revised Site Visit PrograDate Interaction 3:
                                             2015-03-12 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             Not reportedProgram ID:
                                             Wilson RecyclingFacility Alt.:
                                             RSVPProgram Data:
                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             RSVPInteraction 2:
                                             AInteraction 1:

PAY MORE RECYCLE & SALVAGE  (Continued) S110275820

TC5712009.2s   Page 26



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    -259Days to Expiration:
                    10/13/2015Effective Date:
                    12/31/2019Permit Expiration Date:
                    Not reportedWRIA:
                    Not reportedEcology Contact:
                    Not reportedPermit SubStatus:
                    ActivePermit Status:
                    Not reportedPermit Version:
                    WAR303433Permit ID:
                    Not reportedLongitude:
                    Not reportedLatitude:
                    12/03/2014Date Issued:
                    HeadqartersAdmin Region:
                    Industrial SW GPFacility Type:
                    Not reportedFacility Status:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    2278 E BROCKDALE RDAddress:
                    PAY MORE RECYCLE & SALVAGEName:

NPDES:

                              Not reportedResp Party Name:
                              Not reportedCause Type:
                              Not reportedCause:

PAY MORE RECYCLE & SALVAGE  (Continued) S110275820

2009     WILSON RECYCLING     2278 E. BROCKDALE RD
2010     WILSON RECYCLING     2278 E. BROCKDALE RD
2011     WILSON RECYCLING     2278 E. BROCKDALE RD
2012     WILSON RECYCLING     2278 E. BROCKDALE RD

RGA LF:

3798 ft. Site 2 of 5 in cluster B
0.719 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
238 ft.

 

1/2-1 SHELTON, WA  
East 2278 E. BROCKDALE RD    N/A
B11 WA RGA LFWILSON RECYCLING S115352809

                    (360) 462-4444Contact Phone:
                    wilsonrecycling@gmail.comContact EMail:
                    98584Contact Postal:
                    WAContact State:
                    SheltonContact City:
                    Facility - 2278 E Brockdale RdContact Address2:
                    Mailing - 573 W Lakeside DrContact Address1:
                    Wilson Recycling LLCContact Organization:
                    ExemptPermit Status:
                    STATERegion:
                    3207Facility ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    2278 E BROCKDALE RDAddress:
                    WILSON RECYCLINGName:

SWF/LF:

3798 ft. Site 3 of 5 in cluster B
0.719 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
238 ft.

 

1/2-1 SHELTON, WA  98584
East 2278 E BROCKDALE RD    N/A
B12 WA SWF/LFWILSON RECYCLING S110335951

TC5712009.2s   Page 27



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    Not reportedLongitude:
                    Not reportedLatitude:
                    Not reportedWebsite:
                    NoOpen to Public Flag:
                    2014Year Closed:
                    Owner/OperatorContact Title:
                    Scott WilsonContact Name:
                    Material Recovery Facility (exempt)Facility Type:
                    PRIVATEOwnership:
                    7329Recycle Survey Code:
                    Not reportedOperator Title:
                    Not reportedOperator EMail:
                    Wilson Recycling LLCOperator Organization:
                    Not reportedOperator Name:
                    360-462-4444Phone:
                    Not reportedPermit No:
                    Not reportedContact Phone Ext:

WILSON RECYCLING  (Continued) S110335951

issued under the Clean Water Act. Under NPDES, all facilities that
the Compliance Information System (ICIS) tracks surface water permits
US National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) module of

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110064831491Registry ID:

discharge does not adversely affect water quality.
requirements, and include other provisions to ensure that the
limits on what can be discharged, impose monitoring and reporting
States are required to obtain a permit. The permit will likely contain
discharge pollutants from any point source into waters of the United
issued under the Clean Water Act. Under NPDES, all facilities that
the Compliance Information System (ICIS) tracks surface water permits
US National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) module of

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110040599046Registry ID:

FINDS:

3798 ft. Site 4 of 5 in cluster B
0.719 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
238 ft.

 

1/2-1 SHELTON, WA  98584
East ECHO2278 E BROCKDALE RD    N/A
B13 FINDSWILSON RECYCLING 1012222278

TC5712009.2s   Page 28



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                   http://echo.epa.gov/detailed-facility-report?fid=110040599046DFR URL:
                                   110040599046Registry ID:
                                   1012222278Envid:

ECHO:

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

discharge does not adversely affect water quality.
requirements, and include other provisions to ensure that the
limits on what can be discharged, impose monitoring and reporting
States are required to obtain a permit. The permit will likely contain
discharge pollutants from any point source into waters of the United

WILSON RECYCLING  (Continued) 1012222278

                                   http://echo.epa.gov/detailed-facility-report?fid=110064831491DFR URL:
                                   110064831491Registry ID:
                                   1018353432Envid:

ECHO:

3798 ft. Site 5 of 5 in cluster B
0.719 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
238 ft.

 

1/2-1 SHELTON, WA  98584
East 2278 E BROCKDALE RD    N/A
B14 ECHOWILSON RECYCLING 1018353432

     12/07/95Remediation Date:
     11/25/1993Contamination Date:
     42001-50-00006Tax ID Number:
     93010Facility ID:

HIST CDL:

4182 ft.
0.792 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
283 ft.

 

1/2-1 SHELTON, WA  98584
West 310 E. BLEVINS RD.    N/A
15 WA HIST CDL S107566069

                         RCRAINFOProgram System Acronym:
                         MASONFacility County:
                         RCRA 9006 AO For Comp And/Or Pen (UST) - UST Expedited Settlement ProgramEnforcement Action Type:
                         SHELTON, WA 98584
                         3740 SHELTON SPGS RDFacility Address:
                         MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPFacility Name:
                         MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPERATIVEAction Name:
                         110005378457FRS ID:
                         10-2010-0141Enforcement Action ID:

ICIS:

4767 ft. Site 1 of 7 in cluster C
0.903 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
234 ft.

 

1/2-1 ECHOSHELTON, WA  98584
South FINDS3740 SHELTON SPGS RD    N/A
C16 ICISMASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOP 1016206245

TC5712009.2s   Page 29

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=4Bj4wcBBljBK2Z5wUucLl99SBpqllU3cOBApK7R2EsZ2552V3sQUhBuU.3QZLwDlrIA8a9rVSKa2ccpVAqHV2AIlQXUGP4oJBNVjW.2rowo.c3e8cUBxZlu02HrB6nK2o9VwZ6f5zT3HwUBOuIn3W2LuHly53sh9ZCSbgBJGp4Iq2R4VbBbUj2t38AwD6cRX2DiBiClbn7EWBZlKsd97jZid5a839SU0cuQC42RLXal4826J9LLS3K2BDp3FqDoB92ltwUSJ1nEcbDOQp43sAmqpG8u5h7MYRvn4vLB98jcP3U0wy3c5s25kBhXlT63w7BG4KxJ2IIZMl50k3iNUa5uLb4jSL95lFL4fv9iYSr74Gyp.7qQ04JblYwUke4dgc2QOlu9txANUpxLAM67usRGe2
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=4Bj4wcBBljBK2Z5wUucLl99SBpqllU3cOBApK7R2EsZ2552V3sQUhBuU.3QZLwDlrIA8a9rVSKa2ccpVAqHV2AIlQXUGP4oJBNVjW.2rowo.c3e8cUBxZlu02HrB6nK2o9VwZ6f5zT3HwUBOuIn3W2LuHly53sh9ZCSbgBJGp4Iq2R4VbBbUj2t38AwD6cRX2DiBiClbn7EWBZlKsd97jZid5a839SU0cuQC42RLXal4826J9LLS3K2BDp3FqDoB92ltwUSJ1nEcbDOQp43sAmqpG8u5h7MYRvn4vLB98jcP3U0wy3c5s25kBhXlT63w7BG4KxJ2IIZMl50k3iNUa5uLb4jSL95lFL4fv9iYSr74Gyp.7qQ04JblYwUke4dgc2QOlu9txANUpxLAM67usRGe2


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

program staff to track the notification, permit, compliance, and
and treat, store, or dispose of hazardous waste. RCRAInfo allows RCRA
events and activities related to facilities that generate, transport,
Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) program through the tracking of
RCRAInfo is a national information system that supports the Resource

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110005378457Registry ID:

FINDS:

                         Not reportedSIC Code:
                         Not reportedNAIC Code:
                         NoFed Facility:
                         NTribal Indicator:
                         3740 SHELTON SPGS RDAddress:
                         MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPFacility Name:

                         Not reportedSIC Code:
                         Not reportedNAIC Code:
                         NoFed Facility:
                         NTribal Indicator:
                         3740 SHELTON SPGS RDAddress:
                         MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPFacility Name:

                         Not reportedSIC Code:
                         Not reportedNAIC Code:
                         NoFed Facility:
                         NTribal Indicator:
                         3740 SHELTON SPGS RDAddress:
                         MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPFacility Name:

                         Not reportedSIC Code:
                         Not reportedNAIC Code:
                         NoFed Facility:
                         NTribal Indicator:
                         3740 SHELTON SPGS RDAddress:
                         MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPFacility Name:

                         Not reportedTribal Land Code:
                         Not reportedFacility NAICS Code:
                         WAD988510756Program System Acronym:
                         Not reportedPermit Type Desc:
                         -123.124335Longitude in Decimal Degrees:
                         47.238607Latitude in Decimal Degrees:
                         Not reportedFederal Facility ID:
                         Not reportedFacility SIC Code:
                         9006EEA Type Code:
                         Administrative - FormalEnforcement Action Forum Desc:

MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOP  (Continued) 1016206245

TC5712009.2s   Page 30



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                   http://echo.epa.gov/detailed-facility-report?fid=110005378457DFR URL:
                                   110005378457Registry ID:
                                   1016206245Envid:

ECHO:

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

HAZARDOUS WASTE BIENNIAL REPORTER

corrective action activities required under RCRA.

MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOP  (Continued) 1016206245

2011     MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOP     3740 SHELTON SPRINGS RD
2012     MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOP     3740 SHELTON SPRINGS RD

RGA LUST:

4767 ft. Site 2 of 7 in cluster C
0.903 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
234 ft.

 

1/2-1 SHELTON, WA  
South 3740 SHELTON SPRINGS RD    N/A
C17 WA RGA LUSTMASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOP S115438728

1997     MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPERATIV     3740 SHELTON
SPRINGS RD
1998     MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPERATIV     3740 SHELTON
SPRINGS RD
1999     MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPERATIV     3740 SHELTON
SPRINGS RD
2000     MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPERATIV     3740 SHELTON
SPRINGS RD
2001     MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPERATIV     3740 SHELTON
SPRINGS RD
2002     MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPERATIV     3740 SHELTON
SPRINGS RD
2003     MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPERATIV     3740 SHELTON
SPRINGS RD
2004     MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPERATIV     3740 SHELTON
SPRINGS RD
2005     MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPERATIV     3740 SHELTON
SPRINGS RD
2006     MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPERATIV     3740 SHELTON
SPRINGS RD
2007     MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPERATIV     3740 SHELTON
SPRINGS RD
2008     MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPERATIV     3740 SHELTON
SPRINGS RD
2009     MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPERATIV     3740 SHELTON
SPRINGS RD
2010     MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPERATIV     3740 SHELTON

RGA LUST:

4767 ft. Site 3 of 7 in cluster C
0.903 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
234 ft.

 

1/2-1 SHELTON, WA  
South 3740 SHELTON SPRINGS RD    N/A
C18 WA RGA LUSTMASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPERATIV S115438729

TC5712009.2s   Page 31

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=4Jl4i0JR6lRI2pfi580TP9l3ROP6Gr3mxRRTIzh2qWpIbfCB3cs58b8OK34CTkHPcVA9VlLb3zW2iBOg3PfX2pJGaJrjX4XAJrBlmG2qBiAU0HR8yjRSt6PL2zSRPUIob9Wyp..fXs3yF5OR8PK3taTdpPhc39OlWM3VwBZrONMPHC4y7JZRlZB3ayiLC0g92JvRgw6Te7qVRjnIgo9Gjp5JfCL3Hc5lG83B4gFT76PV32bxleY3ny2tcO.CPSGBpkGa.rWQ19NmLnxgN4ZSRZUTx6uR7zYZhA74veJoQlKB3ujiG809g2AuRzr6r63aURs6Ie52U6p0wfen3CX5EH8VP8F6TkePNk4.LlU536A2lgOemPwT8NDG2.r.e4ntmh5xKL6cdRpaTIt7SfzXjhFH2
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=4Jl4i0JR6lRI2pfi580TP9l3ROP6Gr3mxRRTIzh2qWpIbfCB3cs58b8OK34CTkHPcVA9VlLb3zW2iBOg3PfX2pJGaJrjX4XAJrBlmG2qBiAU0HR8yjRSt6PL2zSRPUIob9Wyp..fXs3yF5OR8PK3taTdpPhc39OlWM3VwBZrONMPHC4y7JZRlZB3ayiLC0g92JvRgw6Te7qVRjnIgo9Gjp5JfCL3Hc5lG83B4gFT76PV32bxleY3ny2tcO.CPSGBpkGa.rWQ19NmLnxgN4ZSRZUTx6uR7zYZhA74veJoQlKB3ujiG809g2AuRzr6r63aURs6Ie52U6p0wfen3CX5EH8VP8F6TkePNk4.LlU536A2lgOemPwT8NDG2.r.e4ntmh5xKL6cdRpaTIt7SfzXjhFH2


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

SPRINGS RD

MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPERATIV  (Continued) S115438729

                                             HWOTHERInteraction 2:
                                             AInteraction 1:
                                             33322Interaction:

                              23634752Facility Id:
                              MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPFacility Name:

ALLSITES:

                    47.2370292 / -123.12045Lat/Long:
                    Not reportedBedrock:
                    Not reportedAir:
                    Not reportedSediment:
                    Confirmed Above Cleanup LevelsSoil:
                    Not reportedSurface Water:
                    Below Cleanup LevelsGround Water:
                    Petroleum-OtherContaminant Name:
                    331UST ID:
                    3441Lust ID:
                    SouthwestRegion:
                    06/15/1994Lust Date:
                    06/15/1994Release Date:
                    SouthwestResponse Section:
                    Mason Cnty Transp Coop,MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPERATIVCleanup Unit Name:
                    Independent ActionProcess Type:
                    UplandCleanup Unit Type:
                    5731Cleanup Site ID:
                    LUST - Cleanup StartedLust Status Type:
                    23634752Facility ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    3740 SHELTON SPRINGS RDAddress:
                    MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPName:

LUST:

          SouthwestResponsible Unit:
          Not reportedBedrock:
          Not reportedAir:
          Not reportedSediment:
          Confirmed Above Cleanup LevelSoil:
          Not reportedSurface Water:
          Below MTCA Cleanup Level After AssessmentGround Water:
          Petroleum-OtherContaminant Name:
          Not reportedPSI?:
          Cleanup StartedSite Status:
          5731Clean Up Siteid:
          NRank Status:
          Not reportedBrownfield Status:
          47.237029282 / -123.12045616Lat/Long:
          SouthwestRegion:
          23634752Facility ID:

CSCSL:

4767 ft. WA MANIFESTSite 4 of 7 in cluster C
0.903 mi. RCRA NonGen / NLR

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
234 ft.

 

1/2-1 WA ALLSITESSHELTON, WA  98584
South WA LUST3740 SHELTON SPRINGS RD WAD988510756
C19 WA CSCSLMASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOP 1000838308

TC5712009.2s   Page 32



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                             2004-05-14 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             SW0579Program ID:
                                             MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPFacility Alt.:
                                             ISISProgram Data:
                                             TOXICSEcology Program:
                                             VOLCLNSTInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             33323Interaction:

                                             -123.120443221Longitude:
                                             47.237024791000003Latitude:
                                             Hazardous Waste GeneratorDate Interaction 3:
                                             1992-08-19 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             WAD988510756Program ID:
                                             Not reportedFacility Alt.:
                                             TURBOWASTEProgram Data:
                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             HWGInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             33320Interaction:

                                             -123.120443221Longitude:
                                             47.237024791000003Latitude:
                                             Underground Storage TankDate Interaction 3:
                                             1985-01-01 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             331Program ID:
                                             Not reportedFacility Alt.:
                                             USTProgram Data:
                                             TOXICSEcology Program:
                                             USTInteraction 2:
                                             AInteraction 1:
                                             33319Interaction:

                                             -123.120443221Longitude:
                                             47.237024791000003Latitude:
                                             State Cleanup SiteDate Interaction 3:
                                             1994-06-05 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             Not reportedProgram ID:
                                             MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPFacility Alt.:
                                             ISISProgram Data:
                                             TOXICSEcology Program:
                                             SCSInteraction 2:
                                             AInteraction 1:
                                             117539Interaction:

                                             -123.120443221Longitude:
                                             47.237024791000003Latitude:
                                             Haz Waste Management ActiDate Interaction 3:
                                             2003-12-31 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             WAD988510756Program ID:
                                             MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPFacility Alt.:
                                             TURBOWASTEProgram Data:
                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:

MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOP  (Continued) 1000838308

TC5712009.2s   Page 33



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    360-426-3182Owner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    3740 SHELTON SPGS RDOwner/operator address:
                    MASON CNTYOwner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OperatorOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    360-426-3182Owner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    700 SOUTH FIRST STREETOwner/operator address:
                    MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPERATIVEOwner/operator name:

Owner/Operator Summary:

                    Handler: Non-Generators do not presently generate hazardous wasteDescription:
                    Non-GeneratorClassification:
                    Other land typeLand type:
                    10EPA Region:
                    HTUCKER@SHELTONSCHOOLS.ORGContact email:
                    360-426-3182Contact telephone:
                    USContact country:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    700 1ST STContact address:
                    HOLLY  TUCKERContact:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    700 1ST STMailing address:
                    WAD988510756EPA ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    3740 SHELTON SPRINGS RDFacility address:
                    MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPFacility name:
                    02/12/2018Date form received by agency:

RCRA NonGen / NLR:

                                             -123.120443221Longitude:
                                             47.237024791000003Latitude:
                                             LUST FacilityDate Interaction 3:
                                             1994-06-15 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             331Program ID:
                                             Not reportedFacility Alt.:
                                             ISISProgram Data:
                                             TOXICSEcology Program:
                                             LUSTInteraction 2:
                                             AInteraction 1:
                                             33321Interaction:

                                             -123.120443221Longitude:
                                             47.237024791000003Latitude:
                                             Voluntary Cleanup SitesDate Interaction 3:

MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOP  (Continued) 1000838308

TC5712009.2s   Page 34



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    01/08/2013Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPSite name:
                    01/27/2014Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPSite name:
                    01/05/2015Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPSite name:
                    01/07/2016Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPSite name:
                    02/24/2017Date form received by agency:

Historical Generators:

                              NoUsed oil transporter:
                              NoUsed oil transfer facility:
                              NoUsed oil Specification marketer:
                              NoUsed oil fuel marketer to burner:
                              NoUser oil refiner:
                              NoUsed oil processor:
                              NoUsed oil fuel burner:
                              NoFurnace exemption:
                              NoOn-site burner exemption:
                              NoUnderground injection activity:
                              NoTreater, storer or disposer of HW:
                              NoTransporter of hazardous waste:
                              NoRecycler of hazardous waste:
                              NoMixed waste (haz. and radioactive):
                              NoU.S. importer of hazardous waste:

Handler Activities Summary:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    360-426-1687Owner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    700 1ST STOwner/operator address:
                    SHELTON SCH DIST 309Owner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    05/03/1996Owner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:

MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOP  (Continued) 1000838308

TC5712009.2s   Page 35



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPSite name:
                    04/11/2007Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPSite name:
                    02/22/2008Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPSite name:
                    12/31/2008Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPSite name:
                    02/02/2009Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPSite name:
                    01/08/2010Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPSite name:
                    01/08/2010Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPSite name:
                    01/28/2011Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPSite name:
                    01/28/2011Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPSite name:
                    02/01/2012Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPSite name:
                    02/01/2012Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPSite name:
                    02/01/2012Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPSite name:
                    02/01/2012Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPSite name:
                    03/09/2012Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPSite name:
                    03/09/2012Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPSite name:

MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOP  (Continued) 1000838308

TC5712009.2s   Page 36



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPSite name:
                    12/31/1994Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPSite name:
                    06/04/1997Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPSite name:
                    10/05/1998Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPSite name:
                    02/16/1999Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPSite name:
                    02/16/2000Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPSite name:
                    02/23/2001Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPSite name:
                    02/25/2002Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPSite name:
                    01/17/2003Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPSite name:
                    03/02/2004Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPSite name:
                    12/31/2004Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPSite name:
                    02/25/2005Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPSite name:
                    12/31/2005Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPSite name:
                    02/27/2006Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPSite name:
                    04/11/2007Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:

MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOP  (Continued) 1000838308

TC5712009.2s   Page 37



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Shelton Sch Dist 309Land Organization Name:
                                                        05/03/1996Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (360) 426-3182Legal Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        3740 SHELTON SPGS RDLegal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        OtherLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Mason CntyLegal Organization Name:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        700 1st StMailing Address:
                                                        Mason County Transportation Co-opMail Name:
                                                        School Bus TransportationBusiness Type:
                                                        232002116Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2017Data Year:
                                                        County Transportation
                                                        we are a cooperative of three school districts which operate as MasonForm Comm:
                                                        Not reportedFederal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        485410NAICS:
                                                        WAD988510756EPA ID:
                                                        23634752Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584-9105City,State,Zip:
                                                        3740 SHELTON SPRINGS RDAddress:
                                                        MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPName:

WA MANIFEST:

                    StateEvaluation lead agency:
                    Not reportedDate achieved compliance:
                    Not reportedArea of violation:
                    COMPLIANCE EVALUATION INSPECTION ON-SITEEvaluation:
                    05/28/1997Evaluation date:

Evaluation Action Summary:

                    No violations foundViolation Status:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPSite name:
                    01/01/1994Date form received by agency:

MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOP  (Continued) 1000838308

TC5712009.2s   Page 38



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2017Data Year:
                                                        County Transportation
                                                        we area cooperative of three school district which operates as MasonForm Comm:
                                                        Not reportedFederal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        485410NAICS:
                                                        WAD988510756EPA ID:
                                                        23634752Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        3740 SHELTON SPRINGS RDAddress:
                                                        MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPName:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        FalseBatch Generation:
                                                        FalseMonthly Generation:
                                                        XQGGen Status Code:
                                                        HTucker@sheltonSchools.orgSite Contact Email:
                                                        (360)426-3182Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        700 1st StSite Contact Address:
                                                        Holly  TuckerSite Contact:
                                                        12/31/1993Operator Effective Date:
                                                        360-426-3182Operator Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        700 South First StreetOperator Address:
                                                        Not reportedOperator:
                                                        OtherOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Mason County Transportation CooperativeOperator Organization Name:
                                                        (360)426-1687Land Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        700 1st StLand Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        OtherLand Organization Type:

MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOP  (Continued) 1000838308

TC5712009.2s   Page 39



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        FalseBatch Generation:
                                                        FalseMonthly Generation:
                                                        XQGGen Status Code:
                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Email:
                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Phone Number:
                                                        Not reportedContact City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address:
                                                        Not reportedSite Contact:
                                                        12/31/1993Operator Effective Date:
                                                        (360)426-3182Operator Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        700 South First StreetOperator Address:
                                                        Not reportedOperator:
                                                        OtherOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Mason County Transportation CooperativeOperator Organization Name:
                                                        (360)426-1687Land Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        700 1st StLand Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        OtherLand Organization Type:
                                                        Shelton Sch Dist 309Land Organization Name:
                                                        05/03/1996Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (360)426-3182Legal Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        3740 SHELTON SPGS RDLegal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        OtherLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Mason CntyLegal Organization Name:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        700 1st StMailing Address:
                                                        Not reportedMail Name:
                                                        Not reportedBusiness Type:
                                                        232002116Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):

MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOP  (Continued) 1000838308

TC5712009.2s   Page 40



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Sandi  ThompsonSite Contact:
                                                        12/31/1993Operator Effective Date:
                                                        360-426-3182Operator Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        700 South First StreetOperator Address:
                                                        Not reportedOperator:
                                                        OtherOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Mason County Transportation CooperativeOperator Organization Name:
                                                        (360)426-1687Land Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        700 1st StLand Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        OtherLand Organization Type:
                                                        Shelton Sch Dist 309Land Organization Name:
                                                        05/03/1996Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (360) 426-3182Legal Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        3740 SHELTON SPGS RDLegal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        OtherLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Mason CntyLegal Organization Name:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        700 1st StMailing Address:
                                                        Mason County Transportation Co-opMail Name:
                                                        School Bus TransportationBusiness Type:
                                                        232002116Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2016Data Year:
                                                        County Transportation
                                                        we are a cooperative of three school districts which operates as MasonForm Comm:
                                                        Not reportedFederal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        485410NAICS:
                                                        WAD988510756EPA ID:
                                                        23634752Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584-9105City,State,Zip:
                                                        3740 SHELTON SPRINGS RDAddress:
                                                        MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPName:

MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOP  (Continued) 1000838308

TC5712009.2s   Page 41



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Mason CntyLegal Organization Name:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        700 1st StMailing Address:
                                                        Mason County Transportation Co-opMail Name:
                                                        School Bus TransportationBusiness Type:
                                                        232002116Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2015Data Year:
                                                        County
                                                        we are a cooperative of three school districts which operates in MasonForm Comm:
                                                        Not reportedFederal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        485410NAICS:
                                                        WAD988510756EPA ID:
                                                        23634752Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584-9105City,State,Zip:
                                                        3740 SHELTON SPRINGS RDAddress:
                                                        MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPName:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        FalseBatch Generation:
                                                        FalseMonthly Generation:
                                                        XQGGen Status Code:
                                                        SThompson@sheltonSchools.orgSite Contact Email:
                                                        (360)426-3182Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        700 1st StSite Contact Address:

MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOP  (Continued) 1000838308

TC5712009.2s   Page 42



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2014Data Year:
                                                        County
                                                        We are a cooperative of three school districts which operates in MasonForm Comm:
                                                        Not reportedFederal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        485410NAICS:
                                                        WAD988510756EPA ID:
                                                        23634752Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584-9105City,State,Zip:
                                                        3740 SHELTON SPRINGS RDAddress:
                                                        MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPName:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        FalseBatch Generation:
                                                        FalseMonthly Generation:
                                                        XQGGen Status Code:
                                                        SThompson@sheltonSchools.orgSite Contact Email:
                                                        (360)426-3182Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        700 1st StSite Contact Address:
                                                        Sandi  ThompsonSite Contact:
                                                        12/31/1993Operator Effective Date:
                                                        360-426-3182Operator Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        700 South First StreetOperator Address:
                                                        Not reportedOperator:
                                                        OtherOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Mason County Transportation CooperativeOperator Organization Name:
                                                        (360)426-1687Land Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        700 1st StLand Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        OtherLand Organization Type:
                                                        Shelton Sch Dist 309Land Organization Name:
                                                        05/03/1996Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (360) 426-3182Legal Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        3740 SHELTON SPGS RDLegal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        OtherLegal Organization Type:

MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOP  (Continued) 1000838308

TC5712009.2s   Page 43



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        FalseBatch Generation:
                                                        FalseMonthly Generation:
                                                        XQGGen Status Code:
                                                        SThompson@sheltonSchools.orgSite Contact Email:
                                                        (360)426-3182Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        700 1st StSite Contact Address:
                                                        Sandi  ThompsonSite Contact:
                                                        12/31/1993Operator Effective Date:
                                                        360-426-3182Operator Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        700 South First StreetOperator Address:
                                                        Not reportedOperator:
                                                        OtherOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Mason County Transportation CooperativeOperator Organization Name:
                                                        (360)426-1687Land Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        700 1st StLand Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        OtherLand Organization Type:
                                                        Shelton Sch Dist 309Land Organization Name:
                                                        05/03/1996Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (360) 426-3182Legal Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        3740 SHELTON SPGS RDLegal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        OtherLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Mason CntyLegal Organization Name:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        700 1st StMailing Address:
                                                        Mason County Transportation Co-opMail Name:
                                                        School Bus TransportationBusiness Type:
                                                        232002116Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:

MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOP  (Continued) 1000838308

TC5712009.2s   Page 44



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        (360)426-1687Land Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        700 1st StLand Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        OtherLand Organization Type:
                                                        Shelton Sch Dist 309Land Organization Name:
                                                        05/03/1996Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (360) 426-3182Legal Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        3740 SHELTON SPGS RDLegal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        OtherLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Mason CntyLegal Organization Name:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        700 1st StMailing Address:
                                                        Mason County Transportation Co-opMail Name:
                                                        School Bus TransportationBusiness Type:
                                                        232002116Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2013Data Year:
                                                        County
                                                        We are a Cooperative of three school districts which operates in MasonForm Comm:
                                                        Not reportedFederal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        485410NAICS:
                                                        WAD988510756EPA ID:
                                                        23634752Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584-9105City,State,Zip:
                                                        3740 SHELTON SPRINGS RDAddress:
                                                        MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPName:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:

MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOP  (Continued) 1000838308

TC5712009.2s   Page 45



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2012Data Year:
                                                        County
                                                        We are a Cooperative of three school districts which operates in MasonForm Comm:
                                                        Not reportedFederal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        485410NAICS:
                                                        WAD988510756EPA ID:
                                                        23634752Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584-9105City,State,Zip:
                                                        3740 SHELTON SPRINGS RDAddress:
                                                        MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPName:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        FalseBatch Generation:
                                                        FalseMonthly Generation:
                                                        XQGGen Status Code:
                                                        SThompson@sheltonSchools.orgSite Contact Email:
                                                        (360)426-3182Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        700 1st StSite Contact Address:
                                                        Sandi  ThompsonSite Contact:
                                                        12/31/1993Operator Effective Date:
                                                        360-426-3182Operator Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        700 South First StreetOperator Address:
                                                        Not reportedOperator:
                                                        OtherOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Mason County Transportation CooperativeOperator Organization Name:

MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOP  (Continued) 1000838308

TC5712009.2s   Page 46



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584-9105City,State,Zip:
                                                        3740 SHELTON SPRINGS RDAddress:
                                                        MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPName:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        FalseBatch Generation:
                                                        FalseMonthly Generation:
                                                        XQGGen Status Code:
                                                        SThompson@sheltonSchools.orgSite Contact Email:
                                                        (360)426-3182Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        700 1st StSite Contact Address:
                                                        Sandi  ThompsonSite Contact:
                                                        12/31/1993Operator Effective Date:
                                                        360-426-3182Operator Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        700 South First StreetOperator Address:
                                                        Not reportedOperator:
                                                        OtherOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Mason County Transportation CooperativeOperator Organization Name:
                                                        (360)426-1687Land Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        700 1st StLand Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        OtherLand Organization Type:
                                                        Shelton Sch Dist 309Land Organization Name:
                                                        05/03/1996Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (360) 426-3182Legal Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        3740 SHELTON SPGS RDLegal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        OtherLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Mason CntyLegal Organization Name:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        700 1st StMailing Address:
                                                        Mason County Transportation Co-opMail Name:
                                                        School Bus TransportationBusiness Type:
                                                        232002116Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:

MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOP  (Continued) 1000838308

TC5712009.2s   Page 47



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        SThompson@sheltonSchools.orgSite Contact Email:
                                                        (360)426-3182Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        700 1st StSite Contact Address:
                                                        Sandi  ThompsonSite Contact:
                                                        12/31/1993Operator Effective Date:
                                                        360-426-3182Operator Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        700 South First StreetOperator Address:
                                                        Not reportedOperator:
                                                        OtherOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Mason County Transportation CooperativeOperator Organization Name:
                                                        (360)426-1687Land Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        700 1st StLand Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        OtherLand Organization Type:
                                                        Shelton Sch Dist 309Land Organization Name:
                                                        05/03/1996Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (360) 426-3182Legal Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        3740 SHELTON SPGS RDLegal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        OtherLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Mason CntyLegal Organization Name:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        700 1st StMailing Address:
                                                        Mason County Transportation Co-opMail Name:
                                                        School Bus TransportationBusiness Type:
                                                        232002116Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2010Data Year:
                                                        County
                                                        we are a cooperative of three school districts which operates in MasonForm Comm:
                                                        Not reportedFederal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        485410NAICS:
                                                        WAD988510756EPA ID:
                                                        23634752Facility ID:

MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOP  (Continued) 1000838308

TC5712009.2s   Page 48



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        3740 SHELTON SPGS RDLegal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        OtherLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Mason CntyLegal Organization Name:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        700 1st StMailing Address:
                                                        Mason County Transportation Co-opMail Name:
                                                        School Bus TransportationBusiness Type:
                                                        232002116Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2009Data Year:
                                                        County
                                                        we are a cooperative of four school district which operates in MasonForm Comm:
                                                        Not reportedFederal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        485410NAICS:
                                                        WAD988510756EPA ID:
                                                        23634752Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584-9105City,State,Zip:
                                                        3740 SHELTON SPRINGS RDAddress:
                                                        MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPName:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        FalseBatch Generation:
                                                        FalseMonthly Generation:
                                                        XQGGen Status Code:

MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOP  (Continued) 1000838308

TC5712009.2s   Page 49



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2008Data Year:
                                                        County
                                                        we are a cooperative of five school distrcits which opeartes in MasonForm Comm:
                                                        Not reportedFederal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        48541NAICS:
                                                        WAD988510756EPA ID:
                                                        23634752Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584-9105City,State,Zip:
                                                        3740 SHELTON SPRINGS RDAddress:
                                                        MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPName:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        FalseBatch Generation:
                                                        FalseMonthly Generation:
                                                        XQGGen Status Code:
                                                        SThompson@sheltonSchools.orgSite Contact Email:
                                                        (360)426-3182Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        700 1st StSite Contact Address:
                                                        Sandi  ThompsonSite Contact:
                                                        12/31/1993Operator Effective Date:
                                                        360-426-3182Operator Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        700 South First StreetOperator Address:
                                                        Not reportedOperator:
                                                        OtherOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Mason County Transportation CooperativeOperator Organization Name:
                                                        (360)426-1687Land Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        700 1st StLand Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        OtherLand Organization Type:
                                                        Shelton Sch Dist 309Land Organization Name:
                                                        05/03/1996Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (360) 426-3182Legal Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Legal City,State,Zip:

MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOP  (Continued) 1000838308

TC5712009.2s   Page 50



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        FalseBatch Generation:
                                                        FalseMonthly Generation:
                                                        XQGGen Status Code:
                                                        SThompson@sheltonSchools.orgSite Contact Email:
                                                        (360)426-3182Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        700 1st StSite Contact Address:
                                                        Sandi  ThompsonSite Contact:
                                                        12/31/1993Operator Effective Date:
                                                        360-426-3182Operator Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        700 South First StreetOperator Address:
                                                        Not reportedOperator:
                                                        OtherOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Mason County Transportation CooperativeOperator Organization Name:
                                                        (360)426-1687Land Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        700 1st StLand Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        OtherLand Organization Type:
                                                        Shelton Sch Dist 309Land Organization Name:
                                                        05/03/1996Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (360) 426-3182Legal Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        3740 SHELTON SPGS RDLegal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        OtherLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Mason CntyLegal Organization Name:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        700 1st StMailing Address:
                                                        Mason Co Transp CoopMail Name:
                                                        School Bus TransportationBusiness Type:
                                                        232002116Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:

MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOP  (Continued) 1000838308

TC5712009.2s   Page 51



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

1 additional WA MANIFEST: record(s) in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:

MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOP  (Continued) 1000838308

SPRINGS ROAD
1995     MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPERATIV     3740 SHELTON

RGA LUST:

4767 ft. Site 5 of 7 in cluster C
0.903 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
234 ft.

 

1/2-1 SHELTON, WA  
South 3740 SHELTON SPRINGS ROAD    N/A
C20 WA RGA LUSTMASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPERATIV S115438730

2004     MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOP     3740 SHELTON SPRINGS RD
2005     MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOP     3740 SHELTON SPRINGS RD
2006     MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOP     3740 SHELTON SPRINGS RD
2007     MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOP     3740 SHELTON SPRINGS RD
2008     MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOP     3740 SHELTON SPRINGS RD
2009     MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOP     3740 SHELTON SPRINGS RD
2010     MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOP     3740 SHELTON SPRINGS RD
2011     MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOP     3740 SHELTON SPRINGS RD
2012     MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOP     3740 SHELTON SPRINGS RD

RGA HWS:

4767 ft. Site 6 of 7 in cluster C
0.903 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
234 ft.

 

1/2-1 SHELTON, WA  
South 3740 SHELTON SPRINGS RD    N/A
C21 WA RGA HWSMASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOP S115343966

                         07/01/1995Tank Permit Expiration Date:
                         Not reportedCapacity Range:
                         Not reportedTank Closure Date:
                         00/01/1985Tank Install Date:
                         8/6/1996Tank Status Date:
                         RemovedTank Status:
                         A4620, A8968Tag Number:
                         1Tank Name:

                         -123.12045616136Decimal Longitude:
                         47.237029281763903Decimal Latitude:
                         Not reportedPhone Number:
                         Not reportedUBI:
                         331Site Id:
                         23634752Facility ID:

UST:

4767 ft. Site 7 of 7 in cluster C
0.903 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
234 ft.

 

1/2-1 WA MANIFESTSHELTON, WA  98584
South WA Financial Assurance3740 SHELTON SPRINGS RD    N/A
C22 WA USTMASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPERATIV U004040724

TC5712009.2s   Page 52

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2v2mvU1umB8QUg2Fu41EBB2MQa22gt9eFv1T4k1CEw2UvA1cmJ7xUR1euY85BL2qQL2qgY2WFGAc4h2HvY2Jms1iUe6uuJ8hBd2RQn3Fgq1PF31Z4zAJEj0aBe3eMEtUao2qv22Wmp1.UW2yu11DBI1xQv1Bgt9dFC414B99E54NBW1TMt9oaZ1
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2v2mvU1umB8QUg2Fu41EBB2MQa22gt9eFv1T4k1CEw2UvA1cmJ7xUR1euY85BL2qQL2qgY2WFGAc4h2HvY2Jms1iUe6uuJ8hBd2RQn3Fgq1PF31Z4zAJEj0aBe3eMEtUao2qv22Wmp1.UW2yu11DBI1xQv1Bgt9dFC414B99E54NBW1TMt9oaZ1


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                         Not reportedTank Upgrade Date:
                         07/01/1995Tank Permit Expiration Date:
                         Not reportedCapacity Range:
                         Not reportedTank Closure Date:
                         00/01/1985Tank Install Date:
                         8/6/1996Tank Status Date:
                         RemovedTank Status:
                         A4620, A8968Tag Number:
                         3Tank Name:

                         Not reportedDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Not reportedPipe Pumping System:
                         Not reportedPipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedPipe Second Release Detection:
                         Safe Suction (No Leak Detection)Pipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Not reportedPipe Construction:
                         SteelPipe Material:
                         Not reportedTank SFC Type:
                         Manual Inventory Control (daily)Tank Release Detection:
                         Not reportedTank Manifold:
                         Not reportedTank Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedTank Tightness Test:
                         Not reportedTank Construction:
                         SteelTank Material:
                         Not reportedTank Overfill Prevention:
                         Not reportedTank Spill Prevention:
                         Not reportedTank Upgrade Date:
                         07/01/1995Tank Permit Expiration Date:
                         Not reportedCapacity Range:
                         Not reportedTank Closure Date:
                         00/01/1985Tank Install Date:
                         8/6/1996Tank Status Date:
                         RemovedTank Status:
                         A4620, A8968Tag Number:
                         2Tank Name:

                         Not reportedDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Not reportedPipe Pumping System:
                         Not reportedPipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedPipe Second Release Detection:
                         Safe Suction (No Leak Detection)Pipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Not reportedPipe Construction:
                         SteelPipe Material:
                         Not reportedTank SFC Type:
                         Manual Inventory Control (daily)Tank Release Detection:
                         Not reportedTank Manifold:
                         Not reportedTank Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedTank Tightness Test:
                         Not reportedTank Construction:
                         SteelTank Material:
                         Not reportedTank Overfill Prevention:
                         Not reportedTank Spill Prevention:
                         Not reportedTank Upgrade Date:

MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPERATIV  (Continued) U004040724

TC5712009.2s   Page 53



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                         Not reportedTank Spill Prevention:
                         Not reportedTank Upgrade Date:
                         08/07/1996Tank Permit Expiration Date:
                         111 TO 1,100 GallonsCapacity Range:
                         Not reportedTank Closure Date:
                         00/01/1985Tank Install Date:
                         8/6/1996Tank Status Date:
                         ExemptTank Status:
                         A4620, A8968Tag Number:
                         5Tank Name:

                         Not reportedDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Product Removed by ReclaimerPipe Pumping System:
                         Corrosion ResistantPipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedPipe Second Release Detection:
                         OtherPipe Primary Release Detection:
                         No Piping Attached to TankPipe Construction:
                         Not reportedPipe Material:
                         Not reportedTank SFC Type:
                         Manual Inventory Control (daily)Tank Release Detection:
                         Not reportedTank Manifold:
                         NoneTank Corrosion Protection:
                         AnnualTank Tightness Test:
                         Single Wall TankTank Construction:
                         Not reportedTank Material:
                         NoneTank Overfill Prevention:
                         NoneTank Spill Prevention:
                         Not reportedTank Upgrade Date:
                         06/30/1999Tank Permit Expiration Date:
                         2,001 to 4,999 GallonsCapacity Range:
                         Not reportedTank Closure Date:
                         00/01/1985Tank Install Date:
                         8/6/1996Tank Status Date:
                         RemovedTank Status:
                         A4620, A8968Tag Number:
                         4Tank Name:

                         Not reportedDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Not reportedPipe Pumping System:
                         Not reportedPipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedPipe Second Release Detection:
                         Safe Suction (No Leak Detection)Pipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Not reportedPipe Construction:
                         SteelPipe Material:
                         Not reportedTank SFC Type:
                         Manual Inventory Control (daily)Tank Release Detection:
                         Not reportedTank Manifold:
                         Not reportedTank Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedTank Tightness Test:
                         Not reportedTank Construction:
                         SteelTank Material:
                         Not reportedTank Overfill Prevention:
                         Not reportedTank Spill Prevention:

MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPERATIV  (Continued) U004040724

TC5712009.2s   Page 54



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                         Automatic Shutoff (fill pipe)Tank Overfill Prevention:
                         Spill Bucket/Spill BoxTank Spill Prevention:
                         04/12/1998Tank Upgrade Date:
                         06/30/2018Tank Permit Expiration Date:
                         5,000 to 9,999 GallonsCapacity Range:
                         Not reportedTank Closure Date:
                         00/01/1994Tank Install Date:
                         8/6/1996Tank Status Date:
                         OperationalTank Status:
                         A4620, A8968Tag Number:
                         7Tank Name:

                         Not reportedDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Safe SuctionPipe Pumping System:
                         Corrosion ResistantPipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedPipe Second Release Detection:
                         Safe Suction (No Leak Detection)Pipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Double Wall PipePipe Construction:
                         FiberglassPipe Material:
                         Not reportedTank SFC Type:
                         Interstitial MonitoringTank Release Detection:
                         Not reportedTank Manifold:
                         Corrosion ResistantTank Corrosion Protection:
                         Every 5 YearsTank Tightness Test:
                         Double Wall TankTank Construction:
                         Fiberglass Reinforced PlasticTank Material:
                         Automatic Shutoff (fill pipe)Tank Overfill Prevention:
                         Spill Bucket/Spill BoxTank Spill Prevention:
                         04/12/1998Tank Upgrade Date:
                         06/30/2018Tank Permit Expiration Date:
                         10,000 to 19,999 GallonsCapacity Range:
                         Not reportedTank Closure Date:
                         00/01/1994Tank Install Date:
                         8/6/1996Tank Status Date:
                         OperationalTank Status:
                         A4620, A8968Tag Number:
                         6Tank Name:

                         Not reportedDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Not reportedPipe Pumping System:
                         Not reportedPipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedPipe Second Release Detection:
                         Not reportedPipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Not reportedPipe Construction:
                         FiberglassPipe Material:
                         Not reportedTank SFC Type:
                         Manual Inventory Control (daily)Tank Release Detection:
                         Not reportedTank Manifold:
                         Not reportedTank Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedTank Tightness Test:
                         Not reportedTank Construction:
                         ConcreteTank Material:
                         Not reportedTank Overfill Prevention:

MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPERATIV  (Continued) U004040724

TC5712009.2s   Page 55



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                  07/11/2018Inception Date:
                                                  GREAT AMERICAN E&S INSURANCE COFinancial Resp Type:
                                                  331DOE Site ID:
                                                  SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                  3740 SHELTON SPRINGS RDAddress:
                                                  MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPERATIVName:

                                                  -123.12045616Longitude:
                                                  47.237029282Latitude:
                                                  Not reportedRetroactive Date:
                                                  Not reportedProof of Responsibility Document Flag:
                                                  Not reportedCompliance Method:
                                                  Not reportedLiability Limit Type:
                                                  06/01/2017Effective Date:
                                                  BTA 9989740-05Policy Number:
                                                  Not reportedAddress 2:
                                                  07/12/2018Expiration Date:
                                                  06/01/2017Inception Date:
                                                  GREAT AMERICAN E&S INSURANCE COFinancial Resp Type:
                                                  331DOE Site ID:
                                                  SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                  3740 SHELTON SPRINGS RDAddress:
                                                  MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPERATIVName:

                                                  -123.12045616Longitude:
                                                  47.237029282Latitude:
                                                  Not reportedRetroactive Date:
                                                  Not reportedProof of Responsibility Document Flag:
                                                  Not reportedCompliance Method:
                                                  Not reportedLiability Limit Type:
                                                  05/31/2016Effective Date:
                                                  BTA 9989740-04Policy Number:
                                                  Not reportedAddress 2:
                                                  07/12/2017Expiration Date:
                                                  05/31/2016Inception Date:
                                                  GREAT AMERICAN E&S INSURANCE COFinancial Resp Type:
                                                  331DOE Site ID:
                                                  SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                  3740 SHELTON SPRINGS RDAddress:
                                                  MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPERATIVName:

WA Financial Assurance 1:

                         Not reportedDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Safe SuctionPipe Pumping System:
                         Corrosion ResistantPipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedPipe Second Release Detection:
                         Safe Suction (No Leak Detection)Pipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Double Wall PipePipe Construction:
                         FiberglassPipe Material:
                         Not reportedTank SFC Type:
                         Interstitial MonitoringTank Release Detection:
                         Not reportedTank Manifold:
                         Corrosion ResistantTank Corrosion Protection:
                         Every 5 YearsTank Tightness Test:
                         Double Wall TankTank Construction:
                         Fiberglass Reinforced PlasticTank Material:

MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPERATIV  (Continued) U004040724

TC5712009.2s   Page 56



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        OtherLand Organization Type:
                                                        Shelton Sch Dist 309Land Organization Name:
                                                        05/03/1996Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (360) 426-3182Legal Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        3740 SHELTON SPGS RDLegal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        OtherLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Mason CntyLegal Organization Name:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        700 1st StMailing Address:
                                                        Mason County Transportation Co-opMail Name:
                                                        School Bus TransportationBusiness Type:
                                                        232002116Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2011Data Year:
                                                        county
                                                        We are a cooperative of Three School Districts which Opearte in MasonForm Comm:
                                                        Not reportedFederal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        485410NAICS:
                                                        WAD988510756EPA ID:
                                                        23634752Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        3740 SHELTON SPRINGS RDAddress:
                                                        MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPName:

WA MANIFEST:

                                                  -123.12045616Longitude:
                                                  47.237029282Latitude:
                                                  Not reportedRetroactive Date:
                                                  Not reportedProof of Responsibility Document Flag:
                                                  Not reportedCompliance Method:
                                                  Not reportedLiability Limit Type:
                                                  07/11/2018Effective Date:
                                                  BTA 9989740-06Policy Number:
                                                  Not reportedAddress 2:
                                                  07/12/2019Expiration Date:

MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPERATIV  (Continued) U004040724

TC5712009.2s   Page 57



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        FalseBatch Generation:
                                                        FalseMonthly Generation:
                                                        XQGGen Status Code:
                                                        SThompson@sheltonSchools.orgSite Contact Email:
                                                        (360)426-3182Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        700 1st StSite Contact Address:
                                                        Sandi  ThompsonSite Contact:
                                                        12/31/1993Operator Effective Date:
                                                        360-426-3182Operator Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        700 South First StreetOperator Address:
                                                        Not reportedOperator:
                                                        OtherOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Mason County Transportation CooperativeOperator Organization Name:
                                                        (360)426-1687Land Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        700 1st StLand Address:

MASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COOPERATIV  (Continued) U004040724

                                   http://echo.epa.gov/detailed-facility-report?fid=110013033822DFR URL:
                                   110013033822Registry ID:
                                   1008031946Envid:

ECHO:

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

COMMUNITY WATER SYSTEM
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110013033822Registry ID:

FINDS:

4926 ft.
0.933 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
285 ft.

 

1/2-1 SHELTON, WA  98584
WSW ECHO1700 E SHELTON SPRINGS RD    N/A
23 FINDSHIDDEN HAVEN MOBILE HOME PARK WATER SYSTEM 1008031946

TC5712009.2s   Page 58

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=44o4Ho4wnoTi2MLHnbokB9Wmw0Znk3384TwoiCF24IMLcLW336Jn0xbBw3MPkNOBASAgpWJpmJO2Qp0XJZTc2eMkuM3cI4yq4mXoJH2pNHtxoGU8ADwxWnQR2v8TVrish9Y.MoeL8h3MpnKYbeO39fkaxB9B3hIWSDmpTBZ30..ZGi4tB4UKoel3U4H6roCN2SMw5Rngp730TYvipA9aEMKhLwF32RnGYbL84wNkk8BMq27BWixmjk2nP0O6ZRdB7fkUd3ed1Kd8oR4Dw467wAloMVu6UCwcFcG4QJ47Tonj3ieHrnolJ2Lkw2Wn943sjTZgi292OCMroLQM29Mnz8bK3AHukxoBc32dAW2dmbG5F80Q5ZRt3WRkTe34fBcq80v4xE6YUwDloUy8bpCJwFF22
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=44o4Ho4wnoTi2MLHnbokB9Wmw0Znk3384TwoiCF24IMLcLW336Jn0xbBw3MPkNOBASAgpWJpmJO2Qp0XJZTc2eMkuM3cI4yq4mXoJH2pNHtxoGU8ADwxWnQR2v8TVrish9Y.MoeL8h3MpnKYbeO39fkaxB9B3hIWSDmpTBZ30..ZGi4tB4UKoel3U4H6roCN2SMw5Rngp730TYvipA9aEMKhLwF32RnGYbL84wNkk8BMq27BWixmjk2nP0O6ZRdB7fkUd3ed1Kd8oR4Dw467wAloMVu6UCwcFcG4QJ47Tonj3ieHrnolJ2Lkw2Wn943sjTZgi292OCMroLQM29Mnz8bK3AHukxoBc32dAW2dmbG5F80Q5ZRt3WRkTe34fBcq80v4xE6YUwDloUy8bpCJwFF22


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

1996     AIRPORT GROCERY &     11900 HWY 101
RGA LUST:

5010 ft. Site 1 of 8 in cluster D
0.949 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
295 ft.

 

1/2-1 SHELTON, WA  
SW 11900 HWY 101    N/A
D24 WA RGA LUSTAIRPORT GROCERY & S115429149

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110015427144Registry ID:

FINDS:

5010 ft. Site 2 of 8 in cluster D
0.949 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
295 ft.

 

1/2-1 SHELTON, WA  98584
SW 11900 HWY 101    N/A
D25 FINDSAIRPORT GROCERY STORE 1007066135

2004     AIRPORT GROCERY STORE     11900 HWY 101
2005     AIRPORT GROCERY STORE     11900 HWY 101

RGA HWS:

5010 ft. Site 3 of 8 in cluster D
0.949 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
295 ft.

 

1/2-1 SHELTON, WA  
SW 11900 HWY 101    N/A
D26 WA RGA HWSAIRPORT GROCERY STORE S115340150

                    6577Cleanup Site ID:
                    LUST - NFALust Status Type:
                    72961678Facility ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    11900 HWY 101Address:
                    AIRPORT GROCERY STOREName:

LUST:

WA Financial Assurance
WA CSCSL NFA

5010 ft. WA ALLSITESSite 4 of 8 in cluster D
0.949 mi. WA ICR

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
295 ft.

 

1/2-1 WA VCPSHELTON, WA  98584
SW WA UST11900 HWY 101    N/A
D27 WA LUSTAIRPORT GROCERY U003352284

TC5712009.2s   Page 59

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=44o4Ho4wnoTi2MLHnbokB9Wmw0Znk3384TwoiCF24IMLcLW336Jn0xbBw3MPkNOBASAgpWJpmJO2Qp0XJZTc2eMkuM3cI4yq4mXoJH2pNHtxoGU8ADwxWnQR2v8TVrish9Y.MoeL8h3MpnKYbeO39fkaxB9B3hIWSDmpTBZ30..ZGi4tB4UKoel3U4H6roCN2SMw5Rngp730TYvipA9aEMKhLwF32RnGYbL84wNkk8BMq27BWixmjk2nP0O6ZRdB7fkUd3ed1Kd8oR4Dw467wAloMVu6UCwcFcG4QJ47Tonj3ieHrnolJ2Lkw2Wn943sjTZgi292OCMroLQM29Mnz8bK39HukxoBc32dAW2dmbG8F80Q5ZRt8WRkTe34f3cq80v4xE5YUwDloUy7bpCJwFF22
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=44o4Ho4wnoTi2MLHnbokB9Wmw0Znk3384TwoiCF24IMLcLW336Jn0xbBw3MPkNOBASAgpWJpmJO2Qp0XJZTc2eMkuM3cI4yq4mXoJH2pNHtxoGU8ADwxWnQR2v8TVrish9Y.MoeL8h3MpnKYbeO39fkaxB9B3hIWSDmpTBZ30..ZGi4tB4UKoel3U4H6roCN2SMw5Rngp730TYvipA9aEMKhLwF32RnGYbL84wNkk8BMq27BWixmjk2nP0O6ZRdB7fkUd3ed1Kd8oR4Dw467wAloMVu6UCwcFcG4QJ47Tonj3ieHrnolJ2Lkw2Wn943sjTZgi292OCMroLQM29Mnz8bK39HukxoBc32dAW2dmbG8F80Q5ZRt8WRkTe34f3cq80v4xE5YUwDloUy7bpCJwFF22


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                         OperationalTank Status:
                         A1449Tag Number:
                         2Tank Name:

                         Not reportedDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Pressurized SystemPipe Pumping System:
                         Corrosion ResistantPipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedPipe Second Release Detection:
                         Interstitial Monitoring (or Sump Sensor)Pipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Double Wall PipePipe Construction:
                         FiberglassPipe Material:
                         Not reportedTank SFC Type:
                         Automatic Tank GaugingTank Release Detection:
                         Not reportedTank Manifold:
                         Sacrificial Anode and Interior LiningTank Corrosion Protection:
                         AnnualTank Tightness Test:
                         Single Wall TankTank Construction:
                         Dielectric Coated SteelTank Material:
                         Overfill AlarmTank Overfill Prevention:
                         Spill Bucket/Spill BoxTank Spill Prevention:
                         08/04/1998Tank Upgrade Date:
                         02/29/2020Tank Permit Expiration Date:
                         5,000 to 9,999 GallonsCapacity Range:
                         Not reportedTank Closure Date:
                         00/30/1990Tank Install Date:
                         8/6/1996Tank Status Date:
                         OperationalTank Status:
                         A1449Tag Number:
                         1Tank Name:

                         -123.14018Decimal Longitude:
                         47.244680000000002Decimal Latitude:
                         Not reportedPhone Number:
                         Not reportedUBI:
                         100186Site Id:
                         72961678Facility ID:

UST:

                    47.24468 / -123.14018Lat/Long:
                    Not reportedBedrock:
                    Not reportedAir:
                    Not reportedSediment:
                    Confirmed Above Cleanup LevelsSoil:
                    Not reportedSurface Water:
                    Not reportedGround Water:
                    Petroleum-OtherContaminant Name:
                    100186UST ID:
                    3223Lust ID:
                    SouthwestRegion:
                    09/16/2003Lust Date:
                    01/03/1994Release Date:
                    SouthwestResponse Section:
                    AIRPORT GROCERY,Rosen Enterprises IncCleanup Unit Name:
                    Not reportedProcess Type:
                    Not reportedCleanup Unit Type:

AIRPORT GROCERY  (Continued) U003352284

TC5712009.2s   Page 60



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                         8/6/1996Tank Status Date:
                         OperationalTank Status:
                         A1449Tag Number:
                         4Tank Name:

                         Not reportedDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Pressurized SystemPipe Pumping System:
                         Corrosion ResistantPipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedPipe Second Release Detection:
                         Interstitial Monitoring (or Sump Sensor)Pipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Double Wall PipePipe Construction:
                         FiberglassPipe Material:
                         Not reportedTank SFC Type:
                         Automatic Tank GaugingTank Release Detection:
                         Not reportedTank Manifold:
                         Sacrificial Anode and Interior LiningTank Corrosion Protection:
                         AnnualTank Tightness Test:
                         Single Wall TankTank Construction:
                         Dielectric Coated SteelTank Material:
                         Ball Float Valve (vent line)Tank Overfill Prevention:
                         Spill Bucket/Spill BoxTank Spill Prevention:
                         08/04/1998Tank Upgrade Date:
                         02/29/2020Tank Permit Expiration Date:
                         5,000 to 9,999 GallonsCapacity Range:
                         Not reportedTank Closure Date:
                         00/30/1990Tank Install Date:
                         8/6/1996Tank Status Date:
                         OperationalTank Status:
                         A1449Tag Number:
                         3Tank Name:

                         Not reportedDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Pressurized SystemPipe Pumping System:
                         Corrosion ResistantPipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedPipe Second Release Detection:
                         Interstitial Monitoring (or Sump Sensor)Pipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Double Wall PipePipe Construction:
                         FiberglassPipe Material:
                         Not reportedTank SFC Type:
                         Automatic Tank GaugingTank Release Detection:
                         Not reportedTank Manifold:
                         Sacrificial Anode and Interior LiningTank Corrosion Protection:
                         AnnualTank Tightness Test:
                         Single Wall TankTank Construction:
                         Dielectric Coated SteelTank Material:
                         Ball Float Valve (vent line)Tank Overfill Prevention:
                         Spill Bucket/Spill BoxTank Spill Prevention:
                         08/04/1998Tank Upgrade Date:
                         02/29/2020Tank Permit Expiration Date:
                         5,000 to 9,999 GallonsCapacity Range:
                         Not reportedTank Closure Date:
                         00/30/1990Tank Install Date:
                         8/6/1996Tank Status Date:

AIRPORT GROCERY  (Continued) U003352284

TC5712009.2s   Page 61



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                             VOLCLNSTInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             61058Interaction:

                              72961678Facility Id:
                              AIRPORT GROCERY STOREFacility Name:

ALLSITES:

                              Not reportedReport Title:
                              Not reportedContact:
                              23County Code:
                              93-16Site Register Issue:
                              Interim cleanup reportType of Report Ecology Received:
                              South WesternRegion:
                              TankWaste Management:
                              SoilMedia Contaminated:
                              Petroleum productsContaminants Found at Site:
                              01/04/94Date Ecology Received Report:

ICR:

6577Cleanup Siteid:
Not reportedRank:
9/16/2003Date NFA:
Not reportedNFA Type:
Not reportedEcology Status:
YesVCP:
Not reportedVCP Status:
72961678Facility ID:
Not reportededr_zip:
MASONedr_fcnty:
98584edr_fzip:
WAedr_fstat:

VCP:

                         Not reportedDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Pressurized SystemPipe Pumping System:
                         Corrosion ResistantPipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedPipe Second Release Detection:
                         Interstitial Monitoring (or Sump Sensor)Pipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Double Wall PipePipe Construction:
                         FiberglassPipe Material:
                         Not reportedTank SFC Type:
                         Automatic Tank GaugingTank Release Detection:
                         Not reportedTank Manifold:
                         Sacrificial Anode and Interior LiningTank Corrosion Protection:
                         AnnualTank Tightness Test:
                         Single Wall TankTank Construction:
                         Dielectric Coated SteelTank Material:
                         Ball Float Valve (vent line)Tank Overfill Prevention:
                         Spill Bucket/Spill BoxTank Spill Prevention:
                         08/04/1998Tank Upgrade Date:
                         02/29/2020Tank Permit Expiration Date:
                         2,001 to 4,999 GallonsCapacity Range:
                         Not reportedTank Closure Date:
                         00/30/1990Tank Install Date:

AIRPORT GROCERY  (Continued) U003352284

TC5712009.2s   Page 62



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    AIRPORT GROCERY,Rosen Enterprises IncAlternate Site Names:
                    09/16/2003NFA Date:
                    6577CS Id:
                    72961678Facility/Site Id:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    11900 HWY 101Address:
                    AIRPORT GROCERY STOREName:

CSCSL NFA:

                                             -123.140165064Longitude:
                                             47.244674488999998Latitude:
                                             Underground Storage TankDate Interaction 3:
                                             1990-06-30 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             100186Program ID:
                                             Airport GroceryFacility Alt.:
                                             USTProgram Data:
                                             TOXICSEcology Program:
                                             USTInteraction 2:
                                             AInteraction 1:
                                             61057Interaction:

                                             -123.140165064Longitude:
                                             47.244674488999998Latitude:
                                             LUST FacilityDate Interaction 3:
                                             1994-01-03 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             100186Program ID:
                                             Not reportedFacility Alt.:
                                             ISISProgram Data:
                                             TOXICSEcology Program:
                                             LUSTInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             61059Interaction:

                                             -123.140165064Longitude:
                                             47.244674488999998Latitude:
                                             Enforcement FinalDate Interaction 3:
                                             2005-08-31 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             Not reportedProgram ID:
                                             Not reportedFacility Alt.:
                                             DMSProgram Data:
                                             TOXICSEcology Program:
                                             ENFORFNLInteraction 2:
                                             AInteraction 1:
                                             61060Interaction:

                                             -123.140165064Longitude:
                                             47.244674488999998Latitude:
                                             Voluntary Cleanup SitesDate Interaction 3:
                                             1993-12-15 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             Not reportedProgram ID:
                                             AIRPORT GROCERY STOREFacility Alt.:
                                             ISISProgram Data:
                                             TOXICSEcology Program:

AIRPORT GROCERY  (Continued) U003352284

TC5712009.2s   Page 63



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                  WA640200-11Policy Number:
                                                  Not reportedAddress 2:
                                                  04/21/2018Expiration Date:
                                                  04/21/2017Inception Date:
                                                  COLONY INSURANCE COMPANYFinancial Resp Type:
                                                  100186DOE Site ID:
                                                  SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                  11900 HWY 101Address:
                                                  AIRPORT GROCERYName:

                                                  -123.14018Longitude:
                                                  47.24468Latitude:
                                                  Not reportedRetroactive Date:
                                                  Not reportedProof of Responsibility Document Flag:
                                                  Not reportedCompliance Method:
                                                  Not reportedLiability Limit Type:
                                                  03/22/2016Effective Date:
                                                  WA640200-10Policy Number:
                                                  Not reportedAddress 2:
                                                  04/21/2017Expiration Date:
                                                  03/22/2016Inception Date:
                                                  COLONY INSURANCE COMPANYFinancial Resp Type:
                                                  100186DOE Site ID:
                                                  SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                  11900 HWY 101Address:
                                                  AIRPORT GROCERYName:

                                                  -123.14018Longitude:
                                                  47.24468Latitude:
                                                  Not reportedRetroactive Date:
                                                  Not reportedProof of Responsibility Document Flag:
                                                  Not reportedCompliance Method:
                                                  Not reportedLiability Limit Type:
                                                  04/21/2015Effective Date:
                                                  WA640200-9Policy Number:
                                                  Not reportedAddress 2:
                                                  04/21/2016Expiration Date:
                                                  04/21/2015Inception Date:
                                                  COLONY INSURANCE COMPANYFinancial Resp Type:
                                                  100186DOE Site ID:
                                                  SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                  11900 HWY 101Address:
                                                  AIRPORT GROCERYName:

WA Financial Assurance 1:

                    -123.14018Longitude:
                    47.24468Latitude:
                    Not reportedBedrock:
                    Not reportedAir:
                    Not reportedSediment:
                    Confirmed Above Cleanup LevelsSoil:
                    Not reportedSurface Water:
                    Not reportedGround Water:
                    Petroleum-OtherContaminant Name:
                    SouthwestRegion:
                    NFASite Status:
                    NFA-Voluntary Cleanup Program ReviewNFA Reason:

AIRPORT GROCERY  (Continued) U003352284

TC5712009.2s   Page 64



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                  -123.14018Longitude:
                                                  47.24468Latitude:
                                                  Not reportedRetroactive Date:
                                                  Not reportedProof of Responsibility Document Flag:
                                                  Not reportedCompliance Method:
                                                  Not reportedLiability Limit Type:
                                                  04/21/2018Effective Date:
                                                  WA640200-12Policy Number:
                                                  Not reportedAddress 2:
                                                  04/21/2019Expiration Date:
                                                  04/21/2018Inception Date:
                                                  COLONY INSURANCE COMPANYFinancial Resp Type:
                                                  100186DOE Site ID:
                                                  SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                  11900 HWY 101Address:
                                                  AIRPORT GROCERYName:

                                                  -123.14018Longitude:
                                                  47.24468Latitude:
                                                  Not reportedRetroactive Date:
                                                  Not reportedProof of Responsibility Document Flag:
                                                  Not reportedCompliance Method:
                                                  Not reportedLiability Limit Type:
                                                  04/21/2017Effective Date:

AIRPORT GROCERY  (Continued) U003352284

                                                            Grocery Stores, NEC2014     AIRPORT GROCERY
                                                            Type:Year:    Name:

EDR Hist Auto

5010 ft. Site 5 of 8 in cluster D
0.949 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
295 ft.

 

1/2-1 SHELTON, WA  98584
SW 11900 N US HIGHWAY 101    N/A
D28 EDR Hist AutoAIRPORT GROCERY 1021740143

1997     AIRPORT GROCERY & DELI     11900 HWY 101
1998     AIRPORT GROCERY & DELI     11900 HWY 101

RGA LUST:

5010 ft. Site 6 of 8 in cluster D
0.949 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
295 ft.

 

1/2-1 SHELTON, WA  
SW 11900 HWY 101    N/A
D29 WA RGA LUSTAIRPORT GROCERY & DELI S115429148

TC5712009.2s   Page 65



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

1999     AIRPORT GROCERY     11900 HWY 101
2000     AIRPORT GROCERY     11900 HWY 101
2001     AIRPORT GROCERY     11900 HWY 101
2002     AIRPORT GROCERY     11900 HWY 101
2003     AIRPORT GROCERY     11900 HWY 101

RGA LUST:

5010 ft. Site 7 of 8 in cluster D
0.949 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
295 ft.

 

1/2-1 SHELTON, WA  
SW 11900 HWY 101    N/A
D30 WA RGA LUSTAIRPORT GROCERY S115429151

1995     AIRPORT GROCERY DELI & GAS     11900 HIGHWAY 101
RGA LUST:

5010 ft. Site 8 of 8 in cluster D
0.949 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
295 ft.

 

1/2-1 SHELTON, WA  
SW 11900 HIGHWAY 101    N/A
D31 WA RGA LUSTAIRPORT GROCERY DELI & GAS S115429150

                              20142Facility Id:
                              TRACTOR SUPPLY SHELTONFacility Name:

ALLSITES:

5018 ft.
0.950 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
292 ft.

 

1/2-1 SHELTON, WA  98584
SW 12001 N US 101    N/A
32 WA ALLSITESTRACTOR SUPPLY SHELTON S119162413

                                        Not reportedSunday:
                                        3:30pmSite Hours End:
                                        10Site Hours Start:
                                        Not reportedEmergency:
                                        Not reportedOff Hold:
                                        Not reportedOn Hold:
                                        Not reportedAmended:
                                        1Initial:
                                        02/07/2014Completion Date:
                                        02/06/2014Start Date:
                                        02/05/2014Notice Date:
                                        81313##1317Advan772515Form ID:
                                        0Parent ID:
                                        CommercialFacility Type:
                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                        11840 HWY 101Address:
                                        Not reportedName:

ASBESTOS:

5034 ft.
0.953 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
295 ft.

 

1/2-1 SHELTON, WA  98584
SW 11840 HWY 101    N/A
33 WA ASBESTOS S119163997

TC5712009.2s   Page 66



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        Not reportedWrap And Cut:
                                        1Critical Barriers:
                                        Not reportedMini Enclosure:
                                        Not reportedGlove Bag:
                                        Not reportedNeg Pres Enclosure:
                                        Not reportedOutdoors:
                                        Not reportedIndoors:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other2 Text:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other2:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other1 Text:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other1:
                                        Not reportedDuct Tape:
                                        Not reportedMudded Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedCement Asbestos Pipe:
                                        Not reportedDucting Insulation:
                                        Not reportedAir Cell Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedMag Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedQuantity Lin Ft:
                                        Not reportedSq Ft Other Text:
                                        Not reportedSq Ft Other:
                                        Not reportedRoofing:
                                        Not reportedVAT:
                                        Not reportedDuct Paper:
                                        Not reportedBoiler Insulation:
                                        Not reportedAsbestos Paper:
                                        Not reportedSheet Vinyl:
                                        Not reportedCAB:
                                        1Popcorn Ceiling:
                                        Not reportedFireproofing:
                                        1000Quantity Sq Ft:
                                        1Encapsulated:
                                        1Removed:
                                        Not reportedFacility Maint:
                                        Not reportedFacility Repair:
                                        Not reportedFacility Demo:
                                        1Facility Remodel:
                                        Not reportedFacility Size:
                                        Not reportedFacility Age:
                                        all roomsJob Site Room:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner Phone:
                                        98584Property Owner Zip4:
                                        WaProperty Owner State:
                                        SheltonProperty Owner City:
                                        PO Box 2300Property Owner Address:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner Company:
                                        TraceyProperty Owner Agent:
                                        evergreen rural waterProperty Owner Name:
                                        advanceenvironmental@comcast.netProject Form Email:
                                        Genero maganaJob Site CAS:
                                        3603575666Phone:
                                        1317Contractor ID:
                                        Not reportedSaturday:
                                        1Friday:
                                        1Thursday:
                                        Not reportedWednesday:
                                        Not reportedTuesday:
                                        Not reportedMonday:

  (Continued) S119163997

TC5712009.2s   Page 67



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        Not reportedName:

                                        Not reportedContractor Memo:
                                        98512Contractor Mail Zip:
                                        WAContractor Mail State:
                                        OLYMPIAContractor Mail City:
                                        3620 49TH AVE SWContractor Mail Street Address:
                                        Not reportedContractor Web Address:
                                        advanceenvironmental@comcast.netContractor Email:
                                        3603575666Contractor Phone:
                                        98512Contractor Zip:
                                        WAContractor State:
                                        OLYMPIAContractor City:
                                        3620 49TH AVE SWContractor Street Address:
                                        34Contractor Cnty Code:
                                        Not reportedContractor Suspended Date:
                                        08/22/2017Contractor Exp Date:
                                        06/21/2016Contractor Renewal Letter Date:
                                        08/13/2009Contractor Effective Date:
                                        02/01/2001Contractor Original Date:
                                        2016-08-25 00:00:00Contractor Cert Prn Date:
                                        3603575665Contact Fax:
                                        3603575666Contact Phone:
                                        Dan VenableContact Name:
                                        ActiveContractor Status:
                                        Advance Environmental IncContractor Name:
                                        ADVANEI972MHContractor Cris Num:
                                        MContractor Priority:
                                        602306184Contractor UBI:
                                        1317Contractor ID:

Contractor:

                                        Not reportedCertificate Status:
                                        Not reportedSupervisor Phone:
                                        Not reportedSupervisor:
                                        Not reportedProject Type:
                                        Not reportedNotice type:
                                        Not reportedUBI:
                                        Not reportedRegion:
                                        24.22.203.177Submitter IP Address:
                                        2014-02-05 15:35:48Date Time Submitted:
                                        Ludwick
                                        Not an abatement only a post cleanup - 10 day waiver granted by MattComments:
                                        Not reportedOther Resp Pro Text:
                                        Not reportedOther Resp Pro:
                                        Not reportedType C Pressure:
                                        Not reportedType C Continuous:
                                        1PAPR:
                                        Not reportedFull Face APR:
                                        Not reportedHalf Mask APR:
                                        Not reportedOther CM2 Text:
                                        Not reportedOther CM2:
                                        Not reportedOther CM1 Text:
                                        Not reportedOther CM1:
                                        1MANUALMETHODS     :
                                        1HEPA Vacuum:
                                        1Wet Methods:

  (Continued) S119163997

TC5712009.2s   Page 68



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        Not reportedMag Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedQuantity Lin Ft:
                                        Not reportedSq Ft Other Text:
                                        Not reportedSq Ft Other:
                                        Not reportedRoofing:
                                        Not reportedVAT:
                                        Not reportedDuct Paper:
                                        Not reportedBoiler Insulation:
                                        Not reportedAsbestos Paper:
                                        Not reportedSheet Vinyl:
                                        Not reportedCAB:
                                        1Popcorn Ceiling:
                                        Not reportedFireproofing:
                                        1000Quantity Sq Ft:
                                        1Encapsulated:
                                        1Removed:
                                        Not reportedFacility Maint:
                                        Not reportedFacility Repair:
                                        Not reportedFacility Demo:
                                        1Facility Remodel:
                                        Not reportedFacility Size:
                                        Not reportedFacility Age:
                                        all roomsJob Site Room:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner Phone:
                                        98584Property Owner Zip4:
                                        WaProperty Owner State:
                                        SheltonProperty Owner City:
                                        PO Box 2300Property Owner Address:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner Company:
                                        TraceyProperty Owner Agent:
                                        evergreen rural waterProperty Owner Name:
                                        advanceenvironmental@comcast.netProject Form Email:
                                        Genero maganaJob Site CAS:
                                        3603575666Phone:
                                        1317Contractor ID:
                                        Not reportedSaturday:
                                        1Friday:
                                        1Thursday:
                                        Not reportedWednesday:
                                        Not reportedTuesday:
                                        Not reportedMonday:
                                        Not reportedSunday:
                                        3:30pmSite Hours End:
                                        10Site Hours Start:
                                        Not reportedEmergency:
                                        Not reportedOff Hold:
                                        Not reportedOn Hold:
                                        Not reportedAmended:
                                        1Initial:
                                        02/07/2014Completion Date:
                                        02/06/2014Start Date:
                                        02/05/2014Notice Date:
                                        81314##1317Advan772515Form ID:
                                        0Parent ID:
                                        CommercialFacility Type:
                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                        11840 HWY 101Address:

  (Continued) S119163997

TC5712009.2s   Page 69



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        Not reportedContractor Suspended Date:
                                        08/22/2017Contractor Exp Date:
                                        06/21/2016Contractor Renewal Letter Date:
                                        08/13/2009Contractor Effective Date:
                                        02/01/2001Contractor Original Date:
                                        2016-08-25 00:00:00Contractor Cert Prn Date:
                                        3603575665Contact Fax:
                                        3603575666Contact Phone:
                                        Dan VenableContact Name:
                                        ActiveContractor Status:
                                        Advance Environmental IncContractor Name:
                                        ADVANEI972MHContractor Cris Num:
                                        MContractor Priority:
                                        602306184Contractor UBI:
                                        1317Contractor ID:

Contractor:

                                        Not reportedCertificate Status:
                                        Not reportedSupervisor Phone:
                                        Not reportedSupervisor:
                                        Not reportedProject Type:
                                        Not reportedNotice type:
                                        Not reportedUBI:
                                        Not reportedRegion:
                                        24.22.203.177Submitter IP Address:
                                        2014-02-05 15:36:36Date Time Submitted:
                                        Ludwick
                                        Not an abatement only a post cleanup - 10 day waiver granted by MattComments:
                                        Not reportedOther Resp Pro Text:
                                        Not reportedOther Resp Pro:
                                        Not reportedType C Pressure:
                                        Not reportedType C Continuous:
                                        1PAPR:
                                        Not reportedFull Face APR:
                                        Not reportedHalf Mask APR:
                                        Not reportedOther CM2 Text:
                                        Not reportedOther CM2:
                                        Not reportedOther CM1 Text:
                                        Not reportedOther CM1:
                                        1MANUALMETHODS     :
                                        1HEPA Vacuum:
                                        1Wet Methods:
                                        Not reportedWrap And Cut:
                                        1Critical Barriers:
                                        Not reportedMini Enclosure:
                                        Not reportedGlove Bag:
                                        Not reportedNeg Pres Enclosure:
                                        Not reportedOutdoors:
                                        Not reportedIndoors:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other2 Text:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other2:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other1 Text:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other1:
                                        Not reportedDuct Tape:
                                        Not reportedMudded Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedCement Asbestos Pipe:
                                        Not reportedDucting Insulation:
                                        Not reportedAir Cell Pipe Insulation:

  (Continued) S119163997

TC5712009.2s   Page 70



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        Not reportedContractor Memo:
                                        98512Contractor Mail Zip:
                                        WAContractor Mail State:
                                        OLYMPIAContractor Mail City:
                                        3620 49TH AVE SWContractor Mail Street Address:
                                        Not reportedContractor Web Address:
                                        advanceenvironmental@comcast.netContractor Email:
                                        3603575666Contractor Phone:
                                        98512Contractor Zip:
                                        WAContractor State:
                                        OLYMPIAContractor City:
                                        3620 49TH AVE SWContractor Street Address:
                                        34Contractor Cnty Code:

  (Continued) S119163997

2011     HIAWATHA INC     681 E JOHNS PRAIRIE RD
2012     HIAWATHA INC     681 E JOHNS PRAIRIE RD

RGA LUST:

5085 ft. Site 1 of 2 in cluster E
0.963 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
240 ft.

 

1/2-1 SHELTON, WA  
SE 681 E JOHNS PRAIRIE RD    N/A
E34 WA RGA LUSTHIAWATHA INC S115436189

                    HIAWATHA INCName:

                    47.23862 / -123.10443Lat/Long:
                    Not reportedBedrock:
                    Not reportedAir:
                    Not reportedSediment:
                    SuspectedSoil:
                    Not reportedSurface Water:
                    Not reportedGround Water:
                    LeadContaminant Name:
                    689UST ID:
                    246Lust ID:
                    SouthwestRegion:
                    08/14/2012Lust Date:
                    06/26/1990Release Date:
                    SouthwestResponse Section:
                    Not reportedCleanup Unit Name:
                    Not reportedProcess Type:
                    Not reportedCleanup Unit Type:
                    10400Cleanup Site ID:
                    LUST - NFALust Status Type:
                    75267324Facility ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    681 E JOHNS PRAIRIE RDAddress:
                    HIAWATHA INCName:

LUST:

5085 ft. FINDSSite 2 of 2 in cluster E
0.963 mi. WA CSCSL NFA

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
240 ft.

 

1/2-1 WA ALLSITESSHELTON, WA  98584
SE WA UST681 E JOHNS PRAIRIE RD    N/A
E35 WA LUSTHIAWATHA INC 1007065688

TC5712009.2s   Page 71



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    SouthwestResponse Section:
                    Not reportedCleanup Unit Name:
                    Not reportedProcess Type:
                    Not reportedCleanup Unit Type:
                    10400Cleanup Site ID:
                    LUST - NFALust Status Type:
                    75267324Facility ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    681 E JOHNS PRAIRIE RDAddress:
                    HIAWATHA INCName:

                    47.23862 / -123.10443Lat/Long:
                    Not reportedBedrock:
                    Not reportedAir:
                    Not reportedSediment:
                    SuspectedSoil:
                    Not reportedSurface Water:
                    Not reportedGround Water:
                    BenzeneContaminant Name:
                    689UST ID:
                    246Lust ID:
                    SouthwestRegion:
                    08/14/2012Lust Date:
                    06/26/1990Release Date:
                    SouthwestResponse Section:
                    Not reportedCleanup Unit Name:
                    Not reportedProcess Type:
                    Not reportedCleanup Unit Type:
                    10400Cleanup Site ID:
                    LUST - NFALust Status Type:
                    75267324Facility ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    681 E JOHNS PRAIRIE RDAddress:
                    HIAWATHA INCName:

                    47.23862 / -123.10443Lat/Long:
                    Not reportedBedrock:
                    Not reportedAir:
                    Not reportedSediment:
                    SuspectedSoil:
                    Not reportedSurface Water:
                    Not reportedGround Water:
                    Other Non-Halogenated OrganicsContaminant Name:
                    689UST ID:
                    246Lust ID:
                    SouthwestRegion:
                    08/14/2012Lust Date:
                    06/26/1990Release Date:
                    SouthwestResponse Section:
                    Not reportedCleanup Unit Name:
                    Not reportedProcess Type:
                    Not reportedCleanup Unit Type:
                    10400Cleanup Site ID:
                    LUST - NFALust Status Type:
                    75267324Facility ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    681 E JOHNS PRAIRIE RDAddress:

HIAWATHA INC  (Continued) 1007065688

TC5712009.2s   Page 72



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                             LUSTInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             62629Interaction:

                              75267324Facility Id:
                              HIAWATHA INCFacility Name:

ALLSITES:

                         Not reportedDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Not reportedPipe Pumping System:
                         Not reportedPipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedPipe Second Release Detection:
                         Not reportedPipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Not reportedPipe Construction:
                         SteelPipe Material:
                         Not reportedTank SFC Type:
                         Not reportedTank Release Detection:
                         Not reportedTank Manifold:
                         Not reportedTank Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedTank Tightness Test:
                         Single Wall TankTank Construction:
                         SteelTank Material:
                         Not reportedTank Overfill Prevention:
                         Not reportedTank Spill Prevention:
                         Not reportedTank Upgrade Date:
                         Not reportedTank Permit Expiration Date:
                         Not reportedCapacity Range:
                         Not reportedTank Closure Date:
                         00/31/1964Tank Install Date:
                         8/6/1996Tank Status Date:
                         RemovedTank Status:
                         Not reportedTag Number:
                         1Tank Name:

                         -123.10442999999999Decimal Longitude:
                         47.238619999999997Decimal Latitude:
                         Not reportedPhone Number:
                         Not reportedUBI:
                         689Site Id:
                         75267324Facility ID:

UST:

                    47.23862 / -123.10443Lat/Long:
                    Not reportedBedrock:
                    Not reportedAir:
                    Not reportedSediment:
                    Remediated-BelowSoil:
                    Not reportedSurface Water:
                    Not reportedGround Water:
                    Petroleum-GasolineContaminant Name:
                    689UST ID:
                    246Lust ID:
                    SouthwestRegion:
                    08/14/2012Lust Date:
                    06/26/1990Release Date:

HIAWATHA INC  (Continued) 1007065688

TC5712009.2s   Page 73



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    Not reportedSurface Water:
                    Not reportedGround Water:
                    LeadContaminant Name:
                    SouthwestRegion:
                    NFASite Status:
                    NFA-Initial InvestigationNFA Reason:
                    Not reportedAlternate Site Names:
                    08/14/2012NFA Date:
                    10400CS Id:
                    75267324Facility/Site Id:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    681 E JOHNS PRAIRIE RDAddress:
                    HIAWATHA INCName:

                    -123.10443Longitude:
                    47.23862Latitude:
                    Not reportedBedrock:
                    Not reportedAir:
                    Not reportedSediment:
                    SuspectedSoil:
                    Not reportedSurface Water:
                    Not reportedGround Water:
                    BenzeneContaminant Name:
                    SouthwestRegion:
                    NFASite Status:
                    NFA-Initial InvestigationNFA Reason:
                    Not reportedAlternate Site Names:
                    08/14/2012NFA Date:
                    10400CS Id:
                    75267324Facility/Site Id:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    681 E JOHNS PRAIRIE RDAddress:
                    HIAWATHA INCName:

CSCSL NFA:

                                             -123.10441507199999Longitude:
                                             47.238614486000003Latitude:
                                             Underground Storage TankDate Interaction 3:
                                             2000-03-20 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             689Program ID:
                                             Not reportedFacility Alt.:
                                             USTProgram Data:
                                             TOXICSEcology Program:
                                             USTInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             62630Interaction:

                                             -123.10441507199999Longitude:
                                             47.238614486000003Latitude:
                                             LUST FacilityDate Interaction 3:
                                             1990-06-26 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             689Program ID:
                                             Not reportedFacility Alt.:
                                             ISISProgram Data:
                                             TOXICSEcology Program:

HIAWATHA INC  (Continued) 1007065688

TC5712009.2s   Page 74



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110015422639Registry ID:

FINDS:

                    -123.10443Longitude:
                    47.23862Latitude:
                    Not reportedBedrock:
                    Not reportedAir:
                    Not reportedSediment:
                    Remediated-BelowSoil:
                    Not reportedSurface Water:
                    Not reportedGround Water:
                    Petroleum-GasolineContaminant Name:
                    SouthwestRegion:
                    NFASite Status:
                    NFA-Initial InvestigationNFA Reason:
                    Not reportedAlternate Site Names:
                    08/14/2012NFA Date:
                    10400CS Id:
                    75267324Facility/Site Id:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    681 E JOHNS PRAIRIE RDAddress:
                    HIAWATHA INCName:

                    -123.10443Longitude:
                    47.23862Latitude:
                    Not reportedBedrock:
                    Not reportedAir:
                    Not reportedSediment:
                    SuspectedSoil:
                    Not reportedSurface Water:
                    Not reportedGround Water:
                    Other Non-Halogenated OrganicsContaminant Name:
                    SouthwestRegion:
                    NFASite Status:
                    NFA-Initial InvestigationNFA Reason:
                    Not reportedAlternate Site Names:
                    08/14/2012NFA Date:
                    10400CS Id:
                    75267324Facility/Site Id:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    681 E JOHNS PRAIRIE RDAddress:
                    HIAWATHA INCName:

                    -123.10443Longitude:
                    47.23862Latitude:
                    Not reportedBedrock:
                    Not reportedAir:
                    Not reportedSediment:
                    SuspectedSoil:

HIAWATHA INC  (Continued) 1007065688

TC5712009.2s   Page 75



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

Quality Programs.

HIAWATHA INC  (Continued) 1007065688

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110015383244Registry ID:

FINDS:

5110 ft. Site 1 of 2 in cluster F
0.968 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
280 ft.

 

1/2-1 SHELTON, WA  98584
SW 11771 N HWY 101    N/A
F36 FINDSOLYMPIC AIR INC 1007061815

                         AnnualTank Tightness Test:
                         Single Wall TankTank Construction:
                         Dielectric Coated SteelTank Material:
                         NoneTank Overfill Prevention:
                         NoneTank Spill Prevention:
                         Not reportedTank Upgrade Date:
                         01/31/1999Tank Permit Expiration Date:
                         10,000 to 19,999 GallonsCapacity Range:
                         Not reportedTank Closure Date:
                         00/10/1985Tank Install Date:
                         8/6/1996Tank Status Date:
                         RemovedTank Status:
                         Not reportedTag Number:
                         1 JETTank Name:

                         -123.117232Decimal Longitude:
                         47.191096000000002Decimal Latitude:
                         Not reportedPhone Number:
                         Not reportedUBI:
                         10307Site Id:
                         99574416Facility ID:

UST:

5110 ft. Site 2 of 2 in cluster F
0.968 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
280 ft.

 

1/2-1 SHELTON, WA  98584
SW WA ALLSITES11771 N HWY 101    N/A
F37 WA USTOLYMPIC AIR INC U003352930

TC5712009.2s   Page 76

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2p2rpL1arw8wLy2das1UwV2Xwz2Syk9xd71Bsj1lUy2Apv1crs7lLn1YaN8cwJ2OwZ2iys2mdyAXs727pT2VrB1rLh69aF8Vwc2Fw73Rys15dj1CszANUE0PVU31XNt1zD2spL2nrn1ZL52vaE13wq1gwv88yt1Xdp7Isa6hUv7GVa9XX59mzE1
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2p2rpL1arw8wLy2das1UwV2Xwz2Syk9xd71Bsj1lUy2Apv1crs7lLn1YaN8cwJ2OwZ2iys2mdyAXs727pT2VrB1rLh69aF8Vwc2Fw73Rys15dj1CszANUE0PVU31XNt1zD2spL2nrn1ZL52vaE13wq1gwv88yt1Xdp7Isa6hUv7GVa9XX59mzE1
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2R2tR81Ttg8I8j2bT814gc2mI72ajt9Zbf1G8E17492jRC1Gtk7W8P1CTe88gT24In2hjK2DbNAr8l2ERH2ZtS148D63Tk8bgH2BID3Wj41yb81F8dAO4O0AcR3AmctM7A2YRc2Xtn1P8R2PTz1qgB1vIv8wjO1qb37O8u2O4i93cb23mz6b7n1
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2R2tR81Ttg8I8j2bT814gc2mI72ajt9Zbf1G8E17492jRC1Gtk7W8P1CTe88gT24In2hjK2DbNAr8l2ERH2ZtS148D63Tk8bgH2BID3Wj41yb81F8dAO4O0AcR3AmctM7A2YRc2Xtn1P8R2PTz1qgB1vIv8wjO1qb37O8u2O4i93cb23mz6b7n1


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                         NoneTank Corrosion Protection:
                         AnnualTank Tightness Test:
                         Single Wall TankTank Construction:
                         Not reportedTank Material:
                         NoneTank Overfill Prevention:
                         NoneTank Spill Prevention:
                         Not reportedTank Upgrade Date:
                         01/31/1999Tank Permit Expiration Date:
                         5,000 to 9,999 GallonsCapacity Range:
                         Not reportedTank Closure Date:
                         00/01/1965Tank Install Date:
                         8/6/1996Tank Status Date:
                         RemovedTank Status:
                         Not reportedTag Number:
                         3 80Tank Name:

                         Not reportedDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Not reportedPipe Pumping System:
                         NonePipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedPipe Second Release Detection:
                         Safe Suction (No Leak Detection)Pipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Single Wall PipePipe Construction:
                         Not reportedPipe Material:
                         Not reportedTank SFC Type:
                         Manual Inventory Control (daily)Tank Release Detection:
                         Not reportedTank Manifold:
                         NoneTank Corrosion Protection:
                         AnnualTank Tightness Test:
                         Single Wall TankTank Construction:
                         Not reportedTank Material:
                         NoneTank Overfill Prevention:
                         NoneTank Spill Prevention:
                         Not reportedTank Upgrade Date:
                         01/31/1999Tank Permit Expiration Date:
                         5,000 to 9,999 GallonsCapacity Range:
                         Not reportedTank Closure Date:
                         00/01/1965Tank Install Date:
                         8/6/1996Tank Status Date:
                         RemovedTank Status:
                         Not reportedTag Number:
                         2 100Tank Name:

                         Not reportedDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Pressurized SystemPipe Pumping System:
                         Sacrificial AnodePipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedPipe Second Release Detection:
                         Automatic Line Leak Detector (ALLD)Pipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Above Ground PipingPipe Construction:
                         Coated SteelPipe Material:
                         Not reportedTank SFC Type:
                         Manual Inventory Control (daily)Tank Release Detection:
                         Not reportedTank Manifold:
                         Sacrificial AnodeTank Corrosion Protection:

OLYMPIC AIR INC  (Continued) U003352930

TC5712009.2s   Page 77



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                             -123.11721708100001Longitude:
                                             47.191090490000001Latitude:
                                             Underground Storage TankDate Interaction 3:
                                             1965-01-01 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             10307Program ID:
                                             Not reportedFacility Alt.:
                                             USTProgram Data:
                                             TOXICSEcology Program:
                                             USTInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             76563Interaction:

                              99574416Facility Id:
                              OLYMPIC AIR INCFacility Name:

ALLSITES:

                         Not reportedDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Not reportedPipe Pumping System:
                         NonePipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedPipe Second Release Detection:
                         Safe Suction (No Leak Detection)Pipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Single Wall PipePipe Construction:
                         Not reportedPipe Material:
                         Not reportedTank SFC Type:
                         Manual Inventory Control (daily)Tank Release Detection:
                         Not reportedTank Manifold:
                         NoneTank Corrosion Protection:
                         AnnualTank Tightness Test:
                         Single Wall TankTank Construction:
                         Not reportedTank Material:
                         NoneTank Overfill Prevention:
                         NoneTank Spill Prevention:
                         Not reportedTank Upgrade Date:
                         01/31/1999Tank Permit Expiration Date:
                         1,101 to 2,000 GallonsCapacity Range:
                         Not reportedTank Closure Date:
                         00/01/1965Tank Install Date:
                         8/6/1996Tank Status Date:
                         RemovedTank Status:
                         Not reportedTag Number:
                         4 AUTOTank Name:

                         Not reportedDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Not reportedPipe Pumping System:
                         NonePipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedPipe Second Release Detection:
                         Safe Suction (No Leak Detection)Pipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Single Wall PipePipe Construction:
                         Not reportedPipe Material:
                         Not reportedTank SFC Type:
                         Manual Inventory Control (daily)Tank Release Detection:
                         Not reportedTank Manifold:

OLYMPIC AIR INC  (Continued) U003352930

TC5712009.2s   Page 78



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    Not reportedLongitude:
                    Not reportedLatitude:
                    Not reportedWebsite:
                    NoOpen to Public Flag:
                    Not reportedYear Closed:
                    Corporate SecretaryContact Title:
                    M MccabeContact Name:
                    Recycling (non-regulated)Facility Type:
                    Not reportedOwnership:
                    6867Recycle Survey Code:
                    Not reportedOperator Title:
                    Not reportedOperator EMail:
                    Jim’s Automotive, Inc.Operator Organization:
                    Not reportedOperator Name:
                    (360) 426-7167Phone:
                    Not reportedPermit No:
                    Not reportedContact Phone Ext:
                    (360) 426-7167Contact Phone:
                    info@jimsautomotiveincwa.comContact EMail:
                    98584Contact Postal:
                    WAContact State:
                    SheltonContact City:
                    Not reportedContact Address2:
                    Po Box 869Contact Address1:
                    Jim’s Automotive, Inc.Contact Organization:
                    Recycle SurveyPermit Status:
                    STATERegion:
                    1771Facility ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    2911 E BROCKDALE RDAddress:
                    JIM’S AUTOMOTIVE, INC.Name:

SWF/LF:

5257 ft.
0.996 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
227 ft.

 

1/2-1 SHELTON, WA  98584
NE 2911 E BROCKDALE RD    N/A
38 WA SWF/LFJIM’S AUTOMOTIVE, INC. S118401802

                                   110013013069Registry ID:
                                   1024010336Envid:

ECHO:

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

COMMUNITY WATER SYSTEM
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110013013069Registry ID:

FINDS:

5376 ft.
1.018 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
222 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
ENE ECHOE OAK PARK WAY    N/A
39 FINDSOAK PARK WATER SYSTEM 1024010336

TC5712009.2s   Page 79

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2R2tR81Ttg8I8j2bT814gc2mI72ajt9Zbf1G8E17492jRC1Gtk7W8P1CTe88gT24In2hjK2DbNAr8l2ERH2ZtS148D63Tk8bgH2BID3Wj41yb81F8dAO4O0AcR3AmctM7A2YRc2Xtn1P8R2PTz1qgB3vIv5wjO1qb32O8u1O4i43cb43mz7b7n1
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2R2tR81Ttg8I8j2bT814gc2mI72ajt9Zbf1G8E17492jRC1Gtk7W8P1CTe88gT24In2hjK2DbNAr8l2ERH2ZtS148D63Tk8bgH2BID3Wj41yb81F8dAO4O0AcR3AmctM7A2YRc2Xtn1P8R2PTz1qgB3vIv5wjO1qb32O8u1O4i43cb43mz7b7n1


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                   http://echo.epa.gov/detailed-facility-report?fid=110013013069DFR URL:

OAK PARK WATER SYSTEM  (Continued) 1024010336

a single repository for that information. Currently, ICIS contains all
replace EPA’s independent databases that contain Enforcement data with
information across most of EPA’s programs. The vision for ICIS is to
complete, will contain integrated Enforcement and Compliance
Compliance Information System and provides a database that, when
ICIS (Integrated Compliance Information System) is the Integrated

HAZARDOUS WASTE BIENNIAL REPORTER

corrective action activities required under RCRA.
program staff to track the notification, permit, compliance, and
and treat, store, or dispose of hazardous waste. RCRAInfo allows RCRA
events and activities related to facilities that generate, transport,
Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) program through the tracking of
RCRAInfo is a national information system that supports the Resource

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110056487626Registry ID:

FINDS:

                         Not reportedTribal Land Code:
                         Not reportedFacility NAICS Code:
                         600019160Program System Acronym:
                         Not reportedPermit Type Desc:
                         -123.144Longitude in Decimal Degrees:
                         47.2435Latitude in Decimal Degrees:
                         Not reportedFederal Facility ID:
                         Not reportedFacility SIC Code:
                         16EA Type Code:
                         Administrative - FormalEnforcement Action Forum Desc:
                         ICISProgram System Acronym:
                         MASONFacility County:
                         TSCA 16 Action For PenaltyEnforcement Action Type:
                         SHELTON, WA 98584
                         21 W SANDERSON WAYFacility Address:
                         PORT OF SHELTON ALL STAR AEROFacility Name:
                         PORT OF SHELTONAction Name:
                         110056487626FRS ID:
                         10-2007-0075Enforcement Action ID:

ICIS:

5383 ft. Site 1 of 3 in cluster G
1.020 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
288 ft.

 

> 1 ECHOSHELTON, WA  98584
West FINDS21 W SANDERSON WAY    N/A
G40 ICISPORT OF SHELTON ALL STAR AERO 1016706940

TC5712009.2s   Page 80



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                   http://echo.epa.gov/detailed-facility-report?fid=110056487626DFR URL:
                                   110056487626Registry ID:
                                   1016706940Envid:

ECHO:

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

Incident Tracking, Compliance Assistance, and Compliance Monitoring.
that support Compliance and Enforcement programs. These include;
has the capability to track other activities occurring in the Region
that information with Federal actions already in the system. ICIS also
Compliance System (PCS) which supports the NPDES and will integrate
it Headquarters. A future release of ICIS will replace the Permit
information is maintained in ICIS by EPA in the Regional offices and
Federal Administrative and Judicial enforcement actions. This

PORT OF SHELTON ALL STAR AERO  (Continued) 1016706940

                                             -123.142569064Longitude:
                                             47.246372489999999Latitude:
                                             Enforcement FinalDate Interaction 3:
                                             2010-12-16 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             Not reportedProgram ID:
                                             Not reportedFacility Alt.:
                                             DMSProgram Data:
                                             WATRESEcology Program:
                                             ENFORFNLInteraction 2:
                                             AInteraction 1:
                                             94969Interaction:

                              9251Facility Id:
                              PORT OF SHELTONFacility Name:

ALLSITES:

5383 ft. Site 2 of 3 in cluster G
1.020 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
288 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
West 21 W SANDERSON WAY    N/A
G41 WA ALLSITESPORT OF SHELTON S110700780

                              GalsMaterial Units:
                              6Material Qty:
                              MINERAL OIL/TRANSFORMER OILMaterial Desc:
                              SoilMedium:
                              102939Facility ID:
                              SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                              855 E JOHNS PRAIRIE RDAddress:
                              PRIVATE RESIDENCEName:

SPILLS:

5408 ft.
1.024 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
239 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
ESE 855 E JOHNS PRAIRIE RD    N/A
42 WA SPILLSPRIVATE RESIDENCE S123248711

TC5712009.2s   Page 81

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2R2tR81Ttg8I8j2bT814gc2mI72ajt9Zbf1G8E17492jRC1Gtk7W8P1CTe88gT24In2hjK2DbNAr8l2ERH2ZtS148D63Tk8bgH2BID3Wj41yb81F8dAO4O0AcR3AmctM7A2YRc2Xtn1P8R2PTz1qgB2vIv7wjO8qb31O8u7O4iA3cb53mz1b7n1
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2R2tR81Ttg8I8j2bT814gc2mI72ajt9Zbf1G8E17492jRC1Gtk7W8P1CTe88gT24In2hjK2DbNAr8l2ERH2ZtS148D63Tk8bgH2BID3Wj41yb81F8dAO4O0AcR3AmctM7A2YRc2Xtn1P8R2PTz1qgB2vIv7wjO8qb31O8u7O4iA3cb53mz1b7n1


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              Mason County PUDResp Party Name:
                              Not reportedCause Type:
                              Not reportedCause:
                              Not reportedResp Party Contact:
                              0Recovered Quantity:
                              Not reportedVessel Facility Name2:
                              Power Generation UtilitySource:
                              FacilitySource Type:
                              -123.10189Longitude:
                              47.24198Latitude:
                              Oil SpillIncident Category:
                              Oil SpillIncident Category Type:
                              10/01/2018Incident Date:
                              Not reportedContact Name:
                              Not reportedDate Received:

PRIVATE RESIDENCE  (Continued) S123248711

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

OSHA ESTABLISHMENT
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110070296325Registry ID:

FINDS:

5448 ft. Site 3 of 3 in cluster G
1.032 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
288 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
West 43 W. SANDERSON WAY    N/A
G43 FINDSWA317943733 - P U D #3 OF MASON COUNTY 1024390078

                         Not reportedTank Upgrade Date:
                         Not reportedTank Permit Expiration Date:
                         Not reportedCapacity Range:
                         Not reportedTank Closure Date:
                         00/31/1964Tank Install Date:
                         8/6/1996Tank Status Date:
                         RemovedTank Status:
                         Not reportedTag Number:
                         1Tank Name:

                         -123.133402Decimal Longitude:
                         47.236342999999998Decimal Latitude:
                         Not reportedPhone Number:
                         Not reportedUBI:
                         4843Site Id:
                         95688881Facility ID:

UST:

5460 ft.
1.034 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
267 ft.

 

> 1 FINDSSHELTON, WA  98584
SSW WA ALLSITESHWY 101 SANDERSON FIELD    N/A
44 WA USTSHELTON FLIGHT INC 1007062414

TC5712009.2s   Page 82

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2a2uau1suw8duz2Zsu1AwD2.dG2EzV9gZE1LuD1UAK2Iaw1Ru57nuX1psu8dwd2kdY29zl2dZHAAuP2Ka52cuj1HuE6Tsj8iww2bdI35zF1LZW1IuoAPAY0wDt3m.KtDGe2Eas2num1Guo2OsD17w23gdQ5Gzt4dZlAzuh14A.1qDc85.t9wGL1
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2a2uau1suw8duz2Zsu1AwD2.dG2EzV9gZE1LuD1UAK2Iaw1Ru57nuX1psu8dwd2kdY29zl2dZHAAuP2Ka52cuj1HuE6Tsj8iww2bdI35zF1LZW1IuoAPAY0wDt3m.KtDGe2Eas2num1Guo2OsD17w23gdQ5Gzt4dZlAzuh14A.1qDc85.t9wGL1


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                         Not reportedTank Spill Prevention:
                         Not reportedTank Upgrade Date:
                         Not reportedTank Permit Expiration Date:
                         Not reportedCapacity Range:
                         Not reportedTank Closure Date:
                         00/31/1964Tank Install Date:
                         8/6/1996Tank Status Date:
                         RemovedTank Status:
                         Not reportedTag Number:
                         3Tank Name:

                         Not reportedDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Not reportedPipe Pumping System:
                         Not reportedPipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedPipe Second Release Detection:
                         Not reportedPipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Not reportedPipe Construction:
                         SteelPipe Material:
                         Not reportedTank SFC Type:
                         Not reportedTank Release Detection:
                         Not reportedTank Manifold:
                         Not reportedTank Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedTank Tightness Test:
                         Single Wall TankTank Construction:
                         SteelTank Material:
                         Not reportedTank Overfill Prevention:
                         Not reportedTank Spill Prevention:
                         Not reportedTank Upgrade Date:
                         Not reportedTank Permit Expiration Date:
                         Not reportedCapacity Range:
                         Not reportedTank Closure Date:
                         00/31/1964Tank Install Date:
                         8/6/1996Tank Status Date:
                         RemovedTank Status:
                         Not reportedTag Number:
                         2Tank Name:

                         Not reportedDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Not reportedPipe Pumping System:
                         Not reportedPipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedPipe Second Release Detection:
                         Not reportedPipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Not reportedPipe Construction:
                         SteelPipe Material:
                         Not reportedTank SFC Type:
                         Not reportedTank Release Detection:
                         Not reportedTank Manifold:
                         Not reportedTank Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedTank Tightness Test:
                         Single Wall TankTank Construction:
                         SteelTank Material:
                         Not reportedTank Overfill Prevention:
                         Not reportedTank Spill Prevention:

SHELTON FLIGHT INC  (Continued) 1007062414

TC5712009.2s   Page 83



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                             1998-06-08 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             4843Program ID:
                                             Not reportedFacility Alt.:
                                             USTProgram Data:
                                             TOXICSEcology Program:
                                             USTInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             74354Interaction:

                              95688881Facility Id:
                              SHELTON FLIGHT INCFacility Name:

ALLSITES:

                         Not reportedDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Not reportedPipe Pumping System:
                         Not reportedPipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedPipe Second Release Detection:
                         Not reportedPipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Not reportedPipe Construction:
                         SteelPipe Material:
                         Not reportedTank SFC Type:
                         Not reportedTank Release Detection:
                         Not reportedTank Manifold:
                         Not reportedTank Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedTank Tightness Test:
                         Single Wall TankTank Construction:
                         SteelTank Material:
                         Not reportedTank Overfill Prevention:
                         Not reportedTank Spill Prevention:
                         Not reportedTank Upgrade Date:
                         08/19/1992Tank Permit Expiration Date:
                         Not reportedCapacity Range:
                         Not reportedTank Closure Date:
                         00/31/1964Tank Install Date:
                         8/6/1996Tank Status Date:
                         RemovedTank Status:
                         Not reportedTag Number:
                         4Tank Name:

                         Not reportedDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Not reportedPipe Pumping System:
                         Not reportedPipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedPipe Second Release Detection:
                         Not reportedPipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Not reportedPipe Construction:
                         SteelPipe Material:
                         Not reportedTank SFC Type:
                         Not reportedTank Release Detection:
                         Not reportedTank Manifold:
                         Not reportedTank Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedTank Tightness Test:
                         Single Wall TankTank Construction:
                         SteelTank Material:
                         Not reportedTank Overfill Prevention:

SHELTON FLIGHT INC  (Continued) 1007062414

TC5712009.2s   Page 84



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110015389523Registry ID:

FINDS:

                                             -123.133387068Longitude:
                                             47.236337489Latitude:
                                             Underground Storage TankDate Interaction 3:

SHELTON FLIGHT INC  (Continued) 1007062414

                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    000-000-0000Owner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    200 YDS NW OF E 1892 JOHNS PRAIRIE RDOwner/operator address:
                    BPA RIGHT OF WAY PAINT DUMPOwner/operator name:

Owner/Operator Summary:

                    Handler: Non-Generators do not presently generate hazardous wasteDescription:
                    Non-GeneratorClassification:
                    10EPA Region:
                    Not reportedContact email:
                    360-664-0283Contact telephone:
                    USContact country:
                    OYMPIA, WA 98504
                    PO BOX 47775Contact address:
                    SHARI  HARRIS DUNNINGContact:
                    OLYMPIA, WA 98504-7775
                    PO BOX 47775Mailing address:
                    WAD988504973EPA ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    PRAIRIE RD
                    200 YDS NW OF E 1892 JOHNSFacility address:
                    BPA RIGHT OF WAY PAINT DUMPFacility name:
                    04/12/1995Date form received by agency:

RCRA NonGen / NLR:

5482 ft.
1.038 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
236 ft.

 

> 1 ECHOSHELTON, WA  98584
SE FINDS200 YDS NW OF E 1892 JOHNS PRA WAD988504973
45 RCRA NonGen / NLRBPA RIGHT OF WAY PAINT DUMP 1001490821

TC5712009.2s   Page 85

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2a2uau1suw8duz2Zsu1AwD2.dG2EzV9gZE1LuD1UAK2Iaw1Ru57nuX1psu8dwd2kdY29zl2dZHAAuP2Ka52cuj1HuE6Tsj8iww2bdI35zF1LZW1IuoAPAY0wDt3m.KtDGe2Eas2num1Guo2OsD17w21gdQ8Gzt1dZl7zuh34A.5qDc25.t5wGL1
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2a2uau1suw8duz2Zsu1AwD2.dG2EzV9gZE1LuD1UAK2Iaw1Ru57nuX1psu8dwd2kdY29zl2dZHAAuP2Ka52cuj1HuE6Tsj8iww2bdI35zF1LZW1IuoAPAY0wDt3m.KtDGe2Eas2num1Guo2OsD17w21gdQ8Gzt1dZl7zuh34A.5qDc25.t5wGL1


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              NoUsed oil transfer facility:
                              NoUsed oil Specification marketer:
                              NoUsed oil fuel marketer to burner:
                              NoUser oil refiner:
                              NoUsed oil processor:
                              NoUsed oil fuel burner:
                              NoFurnace exemption:
                              NoOn-site burner exemption:
                              NoUnderground injection activity:
                              NoTreater, storer or disposer of HW:
                              NoTransporter of hazardous waste:
                              NoRecycler of hazardous waste:
                              NoMixed waste (haz. and radioactive):
                              NoU.S. importer of hazardous waste:

Handler Activities Summary:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OperatorOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    000-000-0000Owner/operator telephone:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator country:
                    Not reported
                    UNKNOWNOwner/operator address:
                    WA STATEOwner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OperatorOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    000-000-0000Owner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    200 YDS NW OF E 1892 JOHNS PRAIRIE RDOwner/operator address:
                    BPA RIGHT OF WAY PAINT DUMPOwner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    000-000-0000Owner/operator telephone:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator country:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    200 YDS NW OF E 1892 JOHNS PRAIRIE RDOwner/operator address:
                    SEE PAPER COPYOwner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:

BPA RIGHT OF WAY PAINT DUMP  (Continued) 1001490821

TC5712009.2s   Page 86



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                   http://echo.epa.gov/detailed-facility-report?fid=110008224625DFR URL:
                                   110008224625Registry ID:
                                   1001490821Envid:

ECHO:

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

corrective action activities required under RCRA.
program staff to track the notification, permit, compliance, and
and treat, store, or dispose of hazardous waste. RCRAInfo allows RCRA
events and activities related to facilities that generate, transport,
Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) program through the tracking of
RCRAInfo is a national information system that supports the Resource

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110008224625Registry ID:

FINDS:

                    No violations foundViolation Status:

                    Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    BPA RIGHT OF WAY PAINT DUMPSite name:
                    12/31/1994Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    BPA RIGHT OF WAY PAINT DUMPSite name:
                    04/12/1995Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    BPA RIGHT OF WAY PAINT DUMPSite name:
                    04/12/1995Date form received by agency:

Historical Generators:

                              NoUsed oil transporter:

BPA RIGHT OF WAY PAINT DUMP  (Continued) 1001490821

Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110000739130Registry ID:

FINDS:

5508 ft. Site 1 of 4 in cluster H
1.043 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
281 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
WSW ECHO400 W ENTERPRISE RD    N/A
H46 FINDSSHELTON PORT 1018319260

TC5712009.2s   Page 87

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2a2uau1suw8duz2Zsu1AwD2.dG2EzV9gZE1LuD1UAK2Iaw1Ru57nuX1psu8dwd2kdY29zl2dZHAAuP2Ka52cuj1HuE6Tsj8iww2bdI35zF1LZW1IuoAPAY0wDt3m.KtDGe2Eas2num1Guo2OsD17w21gdQ2Gzt5dZlAzuh14A.9qDc35.t2wGL1
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2a2uau1suw8duz2Zsu1AwD2.dG2EzV9gZE1LuD1UAK2Iaw1Ru57nuX1psu8dwd2kdY29zl2dZHAAuP2Ka52cuj1HuE6Tsj8iww2bdI35zF1LZW1IuoAPAY0wDt3m.KtDGe2Eas2num1Guo2OsD17w21gdQ2Gzt5dZlAzuh14A.9qDc35.t2wGL1


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                   http://echo.epa.gov/detailed-facility-report?fid=110000739130DFR URL:
                                   110000739130Registry ID:
                                   1018319260Envid:

ECHO:

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

HAZARDOUS WASTE BIENNIAL REPORTER

corrective action activities required under RCRA.
program staff to track the notification, permit, compliance, and
and treat, store, or dispose of hazardous waste. RCRAInfo allows RCRA
events and activities related to facilities that generate, transport,
Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) program through the tracking of
RCRAInfo is a national information system that supports the Resource

transported off-site.
these facilities release directly to air, water, land, or that are
from facilities on the amounts of over 300 listed toxic chemicals that
US EPA TRIS (Toxics Release Inventory System) contains information

and settlements.
regions and states with cooperative agreements, enforcement actions,
Toxic Substances Control Act (TSCA). The system tracks inspections in
Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act (FIFRA) and the
NCDB (National Compliance Data Base) supports implementation of the

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington

SHELTON PORT  (Continued) 1018319260

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110045002894Registry ID:

OSHA ESTABLISHMENT
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110070345994Registry ID:

FINDS:

5525 ft. Site 2 of 4 in cluster H
1.046 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
281 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
WSW ECHO410 W ENTERPRISE RD    N/A
H47 FINDSWA317947476 - TRUFAB LLC 1015921922

TC5712009.2s   Page 88

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2a2uau1suw8duz2Zsu1AwD2.dG2EzV9gZE1LuD1UAK2Iaw1Ru57nuX1psu8dwd2kdY29zl2dZHAAuP2Ka52cuj1HuE6Tsj8iww2bdI35zF1LZW1IuoAPAY0wDt3m.KtDGe2Eas2num1Guo2OsD17w22gdQ9Gzt4dZl2zuhA4A.3qDc75.t1wGL1
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2a2uau1suw8duz2Zsu1AwD2.dG2EzV9gZE1LuD1UAK2Iaw1Ru57nuX1psu8dwd2kdY29zl2dZHAAuP2Ka52cuj1HuE6Tsj8iww2bdI35zF1LZW1IuoAPAY0wDt3m.KtDGe2Eas2num1Guo2OsD17w22gdQ9Gzt4dZl2zuhA4A.3qDc75.t1wGL1


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                   http://echo.epa.gov/detailed-facility-report?fid=110045002894DFR URL:
                                   110045002894Registry ID:
                                   1015921922Envid:

ECHO:

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

corrective action activities required under RCRA.
program staff to track the notification, permit, compliance, and
and treat, store, or dispose of hazardous waste. RCRAInfo allows RCRA
events and activities related to facilities that generate, transport,
Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) program through the tracking of
RCRAInfo is a national information system that supports the Resource

WA317947476 - TRUFAB LLC  (Continued) 1015921922

                    JUNEAU, AK 99801
                    ONE SEALASKA PLAZA STE 400Owner/operator address:
                    SEALASKAOwner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OperatorOwner/Operator Type:
                    IndianLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    907-586-9135Owner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    JUNEAU, AK 99801
                    ONE SEALASKA PLAZA STE 400Owner/operator address:
                    SEALASKAOwner/operator name:

Owner/Operator Summary:

                    Handler: Non-Generators do not presently generate hazardous wasteDescription:
                    Non-GeneratorClassification:
                    10EPA Region:
                    MIKE.RUSSELL@OLYFAB.COMContact email:
                    360-426-7878Contact telephone:
                    USContact country:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    410 W ENTERPRISE RDContact address:
                    MIKE  RUSSELLContact:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    410 W ENTERPRISES RDMailing address:
                    WAH000038030EPA ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    410 W ENTERPRISE RDFacility address:
                    OLYMPIC FABRICATION LLCFacility name:
                    02/28/2013Date form received by agency:

RCRA NonGen / NLR:

5525 ft. Site 3 of 4 in cluster H
1.046 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
281 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
WSW 410 W ENTERPRISE RD WAH000038030
H48 RCRA NonGen / NLROLYMPIC FABRICATION LLC 1014928157

TC5712009.2s   Page 89

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6Eyj6nj.EnaDymqGjQuA3JownkMXjsjd.z6CAUjBnpSKa9E5DDV54zwimXXHqQjLGdZw3CSGQRMVuTkGAsw54aewJAZooeCuw.wQ4xwckQy0M71nXoefBeJnswGpjpOLdHaZ3PiGzHL66nn5CuKp346NUUXijJL5BNDk6aFpEyvOyxrBjT.c3XOjnQ.ujlCB.YGD9G1pn5WfaSckDVqe3qeWmNVKqQduGgJvAi.yQUgZuI.pAU8g40BRJQHJo8yEwHMu4Rwtkx9lMDNFX4sH4cuesc4aj6bud3bQChhGzcYZ6gf4CdBu6CTCElakyktHjO1D4m7NnUhOjWLV.SCx3SKFnmw9aMSDDFeW8jVjmkCpqJrEGe.8AgqvQI9gulWNAx.k4bxRJj5To6yewZKT5d9vkZk5MtWNX96K3cHcs0NqjQaZdLDY3wh7zMnW6rO6CmzmC4anUo0ZjSvqBwop2tzfpeKNSuv9KwRu56B59QJDE8Kw5fJJvaRVDTE9VE1T5tyl6OyYETIIyPgVjg4E4Gygny65jwWJ.5Ol3Gi9nJSbaAfjDG134itvmiOUqj7dGB3v3FPVQ7bxuK1HAieb4SjiJTmFo88Twu4R8AnMkbMRMinbX0DwCgyhsUhWjjSkdRBI50gzzSNa6wFDCfcI46vJUbq5j7ywB9S8CLnhpbsuSkcLKd4J5SBs9QrPEWWJ5r3o593cDQ1WVf0d5amx3
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6Eyj6nj.EnaDymqGjQuA3JownkMXjsjd.z6CAUjBnpSKa9E5DDV54zwimXXHqQjLGdZw3CSGQRMVuTkGAsw54aewJAZooeCuw.wQ4xwckQy0M71nXoefBeJnswGpjpOLdHaZ3PiGzHL66nn5CuKp346NUUXijJL5BNDk6aFpEyvOyxrBjT.c3XOjnQ.ujlCB.YGD9G1pn5WfaSckDVqe3qeWmNVKqQduGgJvAi.yQUgZuI.pAU8g40BRJQHJo8yEwHMu4Rwtkx9lMDNFX4sH4cuesc4aj6bud3bQChhGzcYZ6gf4CdBu6CTCElakyktHjO1D4m7NnUhOjWLV.SCx3SKFnmw9aMSDDFeW8jVjmkCpqJrEGe.8AgqvQI9gulWNAx.k4bxRJj5To6yewZKT5d9vkZk5MtWNX96K3cHcs0NqjQaZdLDY3wh7zMnW6rO6CmzmC4anUo0ZjSvqBwop2tzfpeKNSuv9KwRu56B59QJDE8Kw5fJJvaRVDTE9VE1T5tyl6OyYETIIyPgVjg4E4Gygny65jwWJ.5Ol3Gi9nJSbaAfjDG134itvmiOUqj7dGB3v3FPVQ7bxuK1HAieb4SjiJTmFo88Twu4R8AnMkbMRMinbX0DwCgyhsUhWjjSkdRBI50gzzSNa6wFDCfcI46vJUbq5j7ywB9S8CLnhpbsuSkcLKd4J5SBs9QrPEWWJ5r3o593cDQ1WVf0d5amx3


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              NoOn-site burner exemption:
                              NoUnderground injection activity:
                              NoTreater, storer or disposer of HW:
                              NoTransporter of hazardous waste:
                              NoRecycler of hazardous waste:
                              NoMixed waste (haz. and radioactive):
                              NoU.S. importer of hazardous waste:

Handler Activities Summary:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    360-426-1151Owner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    21 W SANDERSON WAYOwner/operator address:
                    PORT OF SHELTONOwner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    CountyLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    360-426-1151Owner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    21 W SANDERSON WAYOwner/operator address:
                    PORT OF SHELTONOwner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OperatorOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    360-426-7878Owner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    410 W ENTERPRISE RDOwner/operator address:
                    OLYMPIC FABRICATION LLCOwner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    12/23/2006Owner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    907-586-9135Owner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:

OLYMPIC FABRICATION LLC  (Continued) 1014928157

TC5712009.2s   Page 90



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    No violations foundViolation Status:

                    CORROSIVE WASTE.   Waste name:
                    D002.   Waste code:

                    IGNITABLE WASTE.   Waste name:
                    D001.   Waste code:

Hazardous Waste Summary:

                    Large Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    OLYMPIC FABRICATION LLCSite name:
                    02/16/2011Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    OLYMPIC FABRICATION LLCSite name:
                    02/28/2013Date form received by agency:

Historical Generators:

                              NoUsed oil transporter:
                              NoUsed oil transfer facility:
                              NoUsed oil Specification marketer:
                              NoUsed oil fuel marketer to burner:
                              NoUser oil refiner:
                              NoUsed oil processor:
                              NoUsed oil fuel burner:
                              NoFurnace exemption:

OLYMPIC FABRICATION LLC  (Continued) 1014928157

                                             WAH000038030Program ID:
                                             Olympic Fabrication LLCFacility Alt.:
                                             TURBOWASTEProgram Data:
                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             HWGInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             95903Interaction:

                                             -123.13887006500001Longitude:
                                             47.24044249Latitude:
                                             Revised Site Visit PrograDate Interaction 3:
                                             2012-08-07 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             Not reportedProgram ID:
                                             TruFabFacility Alt.:
                                             RSVPProgram Data:
                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             RSVPInteraction 2:
                                             AInteraction 1:
                                             115322Interaction:

                              16049Facility Id:
                              OLYMPIC FABRICATION LLCFacility Name:

ALLSITES:

5525 ft. Site 4 of 4 in cluster H
1.046 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
281 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
WSW 410 W ENTERPRISE RD    N/A
H49 WA ALLSITESOLYMPIC FABRICATION LLC S110993430

TC5712009.2s   Page 91



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                             -123.13887006500001Longitude:
                                             47.24044249Latitude:
                                             Hazardous Waste GeneratorDate Interaction 3:
                                             2011-02-16 00:00:00Date Interaction:

OLYMPIC FABRICATION LLC  (Continued) S110993430

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110015548380Registry ID:

FINDS:

5528 ft.
1.047 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
286 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
West 12721 US HWY 101    N/A
50 FINDSGREEN CROW SHELTON LOG YARD 1007078154

                                             TURBOWASTEProgram Data:
                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             HWOTHERInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             52072Interaction:

                                             -123.147443102Longitude:
                                             47.245309452000001Latitude:
                                             Hazardous Waste GeneratorDate Interaction 3:
                                             2005-12-31 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             WAH000015958Program ID:
                                             Not reportedFacility Alt.:
                                             TURBOWASTEProgram Data:
                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             HWGInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             52073Interaction:

                              56493627Facility Id:
                              SANDERSON INDUSTRIAL PARK BLDG 3Facility Name:

ALLSITES:

5682 ft. WA MANIFESTSite 1 of 3 in cluster I
1.076 mi. ECHO

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
280 ft.

 

> 1 FINDSSHELTON, WA  98584
WSW RCRA NonGen / NLR430 W ENTERPRISE RD WAH000015958
I51 WA ALLSITESSANDERSON INDUSTRIAL PARK BLDG 3 1005445326

TC5712009.2s   Page 92

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6Eyj6nj.EnaDymqGjQuA3JownkMXjsjd.z6CAUjBnpSKa9E5DDV54zwimXXHqQjLGdZw3CSGQRMVuTkGAsw54aewJAZooeCuw.wQ4xwckQy0M71nXoefBeJnswGpjpOLdHaZ3PiGzHL66nn5CuKp346NUUXijJL5BNDk6aFpEyvOyxrBjT.c3XOjnQ.ujlCB.YGD9G1pn5WfaSckDVqe3qeWmNVKqQduGgJvAi.yQUgZuI.pAU8g40BRJQHJo8yEwHMu4Rwtkx9lMDNFX4sH4cuesc4aj6bud3bQChhGzcYZ6gf4CdBu6CTCElakyktHjO1D4m7NnUhOjWLV.SCx3SKFnmw9aMSDDFeW8jVjmkCpqJrEGe.8AgqvQI9gulWNAx.k4bxRJj5To6yewZKT5d9vkZk5MtWNX96K3cHcs0NqjQaZdLDY3wh7zMnW6rO6CmzmC4anUo0ZjSvqBwop2tzfpeKNSuv9KwRu56B59QJDE8Kw5fJJvaRVDTE9VE1T5tyl6OyYETIIyPgVjg4E4Gygny65jwWJ.5Ol3Gi9nJSbaAfjDG134itvmiOUqj7dGB3v3FPVQ7bxuK1HAieb3SjiJTmFo88Twu4RAAnMkbMRMinbX0Dw3gyhsUhWjjSkdRBIA0gzzSNa6wFDCfcIB6vJUbq5j7ywB9S84LnhpbsuSkcLKd4J8SBs9QrPEWWJ5r3o793cDQ1WVf0d5amx3
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6Eyj6nj.EnaDymqGjQuA3JownkMXjsjd.z6CAUjBnpSKa9E5DDV54zwimXXHqQjLGdZw3CSGQRMVuTkGAsw54aewJAZooeCuw.wQ4xwckQy0M71nXoefBeJnswGpjpOLdHaZ3PiGzHL66nn5CuKp346NUUXijJL5BNDk6aFpEyvOyxrBjT.c3XOjnQ.ujlCB.YGD9G1pn5WfaSckDVqe3qeWmNVKqQduGgJvAi.yQUgZuI.pAU8g40BRJQHJo8yEwHMu4Rwtkx9lMDNFX4sH4cuesc4aj6bud3bQChhGzcYZ6gf4CdBu6CTCElakyktHjO1D4m7NnUhOjWLV.SCx3SKFnmw9aMSDDFeW8jVjmkCpqJrEGe.8AgqvQI9gulWNAx.k4bxRJj5To6yewZKT5d9vkZk5MtWNX96K3cHcs0NqjQaZdLDY3wh7zMnW6rO6CmzmC4anUo0ZjSvqBwop2tzfpeKNSuv9KwRu56B59QJDE8Kw5fJJvaRVDTE9VE1T5tyl6OyYETIIyPgVjg4E4Gygny65jwWJ.5Ol3Gi9nJSbaAfjDG134itvmiOUqj7dGB3v3FPVQ7bxuK1HAieb3SjiJTmFo88Twu4RAAnMkbMRMinbX0Dw3gyhsUhWjjSkdRBIA0gzzSNa6wFDCfcIB6vJUbq5j7ywB9S84LnhpbsuSkcLKd4J8SBs9QrPEWWJ5r3o793cDQ1WVf0d5amx3


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    W 21 SANDERSON WAYOwner/operator address:
                    PORT OF SHELTONOwner/operator name:

Owner/Operator Summary:

                    Handler: Non-Generators do not presently generate hazardous wasteDescription:
                    Non-GeneratorClassification:
                    10EPA Region:
                    ALF@PORTOFSHELTON.COMContact email:
                    360-426-1151Contact telephone:
                    USContact country:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    W 21 SANDERSON WAYContact address:
                    AL  FREYContact:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    W 21 SANDERSON WAYMailing address:
                    WAH000015958EPA ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    430 W ENTERPRISE RDFacility address:
                    SANDERSON INDUSTRIAL PARK BLDG 3Facility name:
                    02/27/2010Date form received by agency:

RCRA NonGen / NLR:

                                             -123.147443102Longitude:
                                             47.245309452000001Latitude:
                                             Haz Waste Management ActiDate Interaction 3:
                                             2007-12-31 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             WAH000015958Program ID:
                                             Not reportedFacility Alt.:
                                             TURBOWASTEProgram Data:
                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             HWOTHERInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             52074Interaction:

                                             -123.147443102Longitude:
                                             47.245309452000001Latitude:
                                             Hazardous Waste GeneratorDate Interaction 3:
                                             2001-08-29 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             WAH000015958Program ID:
                                             Not reportedFacility Alt.:
                                             TURBOWASTEProgram Data:
                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             HWGInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             52071Interaction:

                                             -123.147443102Longitude:
                                             47.245309452000001Latitude:
                                             Haz Waste Management ActiDate Interaction 3:
                                             2003-12-31 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             WAH000015958Program ID:
                                             Not reportedFacility Alt.:

SANDERSON INDUSTRIAL PARK BLDG 3  (Continued) 1005445326

TC5712009.2s   Page 93



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    SANDERSON INDUSTRIAL PARK BLDG 3Site name:
                    02/26/2010Date form received by agency:

Historical Generators:

                              NoUsed oil transporter:
                              NoUsed oil transfer facility:
                              NoUsed oil Specification marketer:
                              NoUsed oil fuel marketer to burner:
                              NoUser oil refiner:
                              NoUsed oil processor:
                              NoUsed oil fuel burner:
                              NoFurnace exemption:
                              NoOn-site burner exemption:
                              NoUnderground injection activity:
                              NoTreater, storer or disposer of HW:
                              NoTransporter of hazardous waste:
                              NoRecycler of hazardous waste:
                              NoMixed waste (haz. and radioactive):
                              NoU.S. importer of hazardous waste:

Handler Activities Summary:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    12/31/2010Owner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    360-426-1151Owner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    W 21 SANDERSON WAYOwner/operator address:
                    PORT OF SHELTONOwner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OperatorOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    360-426-1151Owner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    W 21 SANDERSON WAYOwner/operator address:
                    FREY, ALOwner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    08/29/2001Owner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    360-426-1151Owner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:

SANDERSON INDUSTRIAL PARK BLDG 3  (Continued) 1005445326

TC5712009.2s   Page 94



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    Large Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    SANDERSON INDUSTRIAL PARK BLDG 3Site name:
                    03/14/2002Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    SANDERSON INDUSTRIAL PARK BLDG 3Site name:
                    01/17/2003Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    SANDERSON INDUSTRIAL PARK BLDG 3Site name:
                    01/17/2003Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    SANDERSON INDUSTRIAL PARK BLDG 3Site name:
                    01/09/2004Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    SANDERSON INDUSTRIAL PARK BLDG 3Site name:
                    12/31/2004Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    SANDERSON INDUSTRIAL PARK BLDG 3Site name:
                    04/21/2005Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    SANDERSON INDUSTRIAL PARK BLDG 3Site name:
                    12/31/2005Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    SANDERSON INDUSTRIAL PARK BLDG 3Site name:
                    02/16/2006Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    SANDERSON INDUSTRIAL PARK BLDG 3Site name:
                    02/17/2007Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    SANDERSON INDUSTRIAL PARK BLDG 3Site name:
                    02/01/2008Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    SANDERSON INDUSTRIAL PARK BLDG 3Site name:
                    12/31/2008Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    SANDERSON INDUSTRIAL PARK BLDG 3Site name:
                    01/27/2009Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    SANDERSON INDUSTRIAL PARK BLDG 3Site name:
                    02/26/2010Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    SANDERSON INDUSTRIAL PARK BLDG 3Site name:
                    02/26/2010Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:

SANDERSON INDUSTRIAL PARK BLDG 3  (Continued) 1005445326

TC5712009.2s   Page 95



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2009Data Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:
                                                        Not reportedFederal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        333999NAICS:
                                                        WAH000015958EPA ID:
                                                        56493627Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        430 W ENTERPRISE RDAddress:
                                                        SANDERSON INDUSTRIAL PARK BLDG 3Name:

WA MANIFEST:

                                   http://echo.epa.gov/detailed-facility-report?fid=110012561076DFR URL:
                                   110012561076Registry ID:
                                   1005445326Envid:

ECHO:

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

HAZARDOUS WASTE BIENNIAL REPORTER

corrective action activities required under RCRA.
program staff to track the notification, permit, compliance, and
and treat, store, or dispose of hazardous waste. RCRAInfo allows RCRA
events and activities related to facilities that generate, transport,
Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) program through the tracking of
RCRAInfo is a national information system that supports the Resource

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110012561076Registry ID:

FINDS:

                    No violations foundViolation Status:

Hazardous Waste Summary:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    SANDERSON INDUSTRIAL PARK BLDG 3Site name:
                    08/29/2001Date form received by agency:

                    Large Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    SANDERSON INDUSTRIAL PARK BLDG 3Site name:
                    03/14/2002Date form received by agency:

SANDERSON INDUSTRIAL PARK BLDG 3  (Continued) 1005445326

TC5712009.2s   Page 96

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2L2yLT1fyR8oT12WfR1KRv2ToW2.1k9sWr1zRC1gKg2PLx1FyI7KTm1cfx8ARy2co22Z1e2TW5AmRh23Li2kym1ETG6Ifg8PRG2To.3j1c17Wo1NRdAyKO0.vn3XTlttWZ2aLP2oyl1TTX2Nfj1hRj1Bov6t1O5FWh5fRJ6RK44Pvf3eTB7aWS1
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2L2yLT1fyR8oT12WfR1KRv2ToW2.1k9sWr1zRC1gKg2PLx1FyI7KTm1cfx8ARy2co22Z1e2TW5AmRh23Li2kym1ETG6Ifg8PRG2To.3j1c17Wo1NRdAyKO0.vn3XTlttWZ2aLP2oyl1TTX2Nfj1hRj1Bov6t1O5FWh5fRJ6RK44Pvf3eTB7aWS1


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        FalseBatch Generation:
                                                        FalseMonthly Generation:
                                                        XQGGen Status Code:
                                                        alf@portofshelton.comSite Contact Email:
                                                        360426-1151Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584-1284Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        W 21 Sanderson WaySite Contact Address:
                                                        Al  FreySite Contact:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Effective Date:
                                                        360426-1151Operator Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584-1284Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        W 21 Sanderson WayOperator Address:
                                                        Al  FreyOperator:
                                                        CountyOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Organization Name:
                                                        (360)426-1151Land Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584-1284Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        W 21 Sanderson WayLand Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        CountyLand Organization Type:
                                                        Port of SheltonLand Organization Name:
                                                        08/29/2001Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (360)426-1151Legal Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584-1284Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        W 21 Sanderson WayLegal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        CountyLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Port of SheltonLegal Organization Name:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584-1284Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        W 21 Sanderson WayMailing Address:
                                                        Port of SheltonMail Name:
                                                        Not reportedBusiness Type:
                                                        600200034Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:

SANDERSON INDUSTRIAL PARK BLDG 3  (Continued) 1005445326

TC5712009.2s   Page 97



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Not reportedOperator Organization Name:
                                                        (360)426-1151Land Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584-1284Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        W 21 Sanderson WayLand Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        CountyLand Organization Type:
                                                        Port of SheltonLand Organization Name:
                                                        08/29/2001Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (360)426-1151Legal Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584-1284Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        W 21 Sanderson WayLegal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        CountyLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Port of SheltonLegal Organization Name:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584-1284Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        W 21 Sanderson WayMailing Address:
                                                        Port of SheltonMail Name:
                                                        Not reportedBusiness Type:
                                                        600200034Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2008Data Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:
                                                        Not reportedFederal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        333999NAICS:
                                                        WAH000015958EPA ID:
                                                        56493627Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        430 W ENTERPRISE RDAddress:
                                                        SANDERSON INDUSTRIAL PARK BLDG 3Name:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:

SANDERSON INDUSTRIAL PARK BLDG 3  (Continued) 1005445326

TC5712009.2s   Page 98



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FPermit by Rule:
                                                        Not reportedData Year:
                                                        State manifest document # 35387Form Comm:
                                                        UN2610Federal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        WP01State Waste Code Desc:
                                                        333999NAICS:
                                                        WAH000015958EPA ID:
                                                        56493627Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        430 W ENTERPRISE RDAddress:
                                                        SANDERSON INDUSTRIAL PARK BLDG 3Name:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        FalseBatch Generation:
                                                        FalseMonthly Generation:
                                                        XQGGen Status Code:
                                                        alf@portofshelton.comSite Contact Email:
                                                        360426-1151Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584-1284Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        W 21 Sanderson WaySite Contact Address:
                                                        Al  FreySite Contact:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Effective Date:
                                                        360426-1151Operator Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584-1284Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        W 21 Sanderson WayOperator Address:
                                                        Al  FreyOperator:
                                                        CountyOperator Organization Type:

SANDERSON INDUSTRIAL PARK BLDG 3  (Continued) 1005445326

TC5712009.2s   Page 99



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        WAH000015958EPA ID:
                                                        56493627Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        430 W ENTERPRISE RDAddress:
                                                        SANDERSON INDUSTRIAL PARK BLDG 3Name:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FTransfer Facility:
                                                        FRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FOne Time Generation:
                                                        TBatch Generation:
                                                        FMonthly Generation:
                                                        XQGGen Status Code:
                                                        alf@portofshelton.comSite Contact Email:
                                                        360426-1151Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584-1284Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        W 21 Sanderson WaySite Contact Address:
                                                        Al  FreySite Contact:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Effective Date:
                                                        360426-1151Operator Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584-1284Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        W 21 Sanderson WayOperator Address:
                                                        Al  FreyOperator:
                                                        CountyOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Organization Name:
                                                        (360)426-1151Land Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584-1284Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        W 21 Sanderson WayLand Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        CountyLand Organization Type:
                                                        Port of SheltonLand Organization Name:
                                                        08/29/2001Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (360)426-1151Legal Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584-1284Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        W 21 Sanderson WayLegal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        CountyLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Port of SheltonLegal Organization Name:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584-1284Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        W 21 Sanderson WayMailing Address:
                                                        Port of SheltonMail Name:
                                                        Not reportedBusiness Type:
                                                        600200034Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:

SANDERSON INDUSTRIAL PARK BLDG 3  (Continued) 1005445326

TC5712009.2s   Page 100



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        NoBatch Generation:
                                                        NoMonthly Generation:
                                                        SQGGen Status Code:
                                                        alf@portofshelton.comSite Contact Email:
                                                        360426-1151Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584-1284Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        W 21 Sanderson WaySite Contact Address:
                                                        Al  FreySite Contact:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Effective Date:
                                                        360426-1151Operator Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584-1284Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        W 21 Sanderson WayOperator Address:
                                                        Al  FreyOperator:
                                                        CountyOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Organization Name:
                                                        (360)426-1151Land Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584-1284Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        W 21 Sanderson WayLand Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        CountyLand Organization Type:
                                                        Port of SheltonLand Organization Name:
                                                        08/29/2001Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (360)426-1151Legal Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584-1284Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        W 21 Sanderson WayLegal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        CountyLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Port of SheltonLegal Organization Name:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584-1284Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        W 21 Sanderson WayMailing Address:
                                                        Port of SheltonMail Name:
                                                        Not reportedBusiness Type:
                                                        600200034Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        NoSmelter Defferal:
                                                        NoIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        NoIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        NoUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        NoOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        NoGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        NoGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        NoTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        NoImmediate Recycler:
                                                        NoImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        NoMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        NoTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        NoPermit by Rule:
                                                        Not reportedData Year:
                                                        State manifest document # 35387Form Comm:
                                                        UN2610Federal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        WP01State Waste Code Desc:
                                                        333999NAICS:

SANDERSON INDUSTRIAL PARK BLDG 3  (Continued) 1005445326

TC5712009.2s   Page 101



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Port of SheltonLand Organization Name:
                                                        08/29/2001Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (360)426-1151Legal Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584-1284Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        W 21 Sanderson WayLegal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        CountyLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Port of SheltonLegal Organization Name:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584-1284Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        W 21 Sanderson WayMailing Address:
                                                        Port of SheltonMail Name:
                                                        Not reportedBusiness Type:
                                                        600200034Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FALSESmelter Defferal:
                                                        FALSEIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FALSEIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FALSEUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FALSEOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FALSEGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FALSEGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FALSETreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FALSEImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FALSEImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FALSEMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FALSETreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FALSEPermit by Rule:
                                                        Not reportedData Year:
                                                        State manifest document # 35387Form Comm:
                                                        UN2610Federal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        WP01State Waste Code Desc:
                                                        333999NAICS:
                                                        WAH000015958EPA ID:
                                                        56493627Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        430 W ENTERPRISE RDAddress:
                                                        SANDERSON INDUSTRIAL PARK BLDG 3Name:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        NoUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        NoUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        NoUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        NoUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        NoUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        NoUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        NoUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        NoTransfer Facility:
                                                        NoRecycler Onsite:
                                                        NoTranports Other Waste:
                                                        NoTransport Own Waste:
                                                        YesOne Time Generation:

SANDERSON INDUSTRIAL PARK BLDG 3  (Continued) 1005445326

TC5712009.2s   Page 102



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FALSEUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FALSEUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FALSEUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FALSEUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FALSEUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FALSEUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FALSEUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FALSETransfer Facility:
                                                        FALSERecycler Onsite:
                                                        FALSETranports Other Waste:
                                                        FALSETransport Own Waste:
                                                        TRUEOne Time Generation:
                                                        FALSEBatch Generation:
                                                        FALSEMonthly Generation:
                                                        SQGGen Status Code:
                                                        alf@portofshelton.comSite Contact Email:
                                                        360426-1151Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584-1284Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        W 21 Sanderson WaySite Contact Address:
                                                        Al  FreySite Contact:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Effective Date:
                                                        360426-1151Operator Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584-1284Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        W 21 Sanderson WayOperator Address:
                                                        Al  FreyOperator:
                                                        CountyOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Organization Name:
                                                        (360)426-1151Land Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584-1284Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        W 21 Sanderson WayLand Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        CountyLand Organization Type:

SANDERSON INDUSTRIAL PARK BLDG 3  (Continued) 1005445326

          360-426-1151Contact tel:
          AL FREYContact name:
          Not reportedContact title:
          PORT OF SHELTONFacility owner name:
          NoSmelter:
          NoResearch facility:
          NoDisposer:
          NoTransporter:
          NoStorer:
          YesGenerator:
          USFacility country:
          SHELTON, WA 98584
          430 W. ENTERPRISE RD.Facility Address:
          PORT OF SHELTONFacility name:
          WAW000000590EPAID:

PADS:

5682 ft. Site 2 of 3 in cluster I
1.076 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
280 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
WSW 430 W. ENTERPRISE RD. WAW000000590
I52 PADSPORT OF SHELTON 1008982838

TC5712009.2s   Page 103



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

          10/19/2005Cert. date:
          USMailing country:
          SHELTON, WA 98584
          21 W. SANDERSON WAYMailing address:
          Not reportedContact Email:
          Not reportedContact extension:

PORT OF SHELTON  (Continued) 1008982838

                                             -123.09999807200001Longitude:
                                             47.240494484999999Latitude:
                                             Revised Site Visit PrograDate Interaction 3:
                                             2011-02-03 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             Not reportedProgram ID:
                                             Mason County Transport AuthorityFacility Alt.:
                                             RSVPProgram Data:
                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             RSVPInteraction 2:
                                             AInteraction 1:
                                             97584Interaction:

                                             -123.09999807200001Longitude:
                                             47.240494484999999Latitude:
                                             Emergency/Haz Chem Rpt TIDate Interaction 3:
                                             2013-01-22 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             CRK000080500Program ID:
                                             Mason County Transport AuthorityFacility Alt.:
                                             EPCRAProgram Data:
                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             TIER2Interaction 2:
                                             AInteraction 1:
                                             103500Interaction:

                              9519Facility Id:
                              MASON COUNTY TRANSPORT AUTHORITYFacility Name:

ALLSITES:

1715Cleanup Siteid:
Not reportedRank:
8/27/2003Date NFA:
Not reportedNFA Type:
Not reportedEcology Status:
YesVCP:
Not reportedVCP Status:
53878546Facility ID:
Not reportededr_zip:
MASONedr_fcnty:
98584edr_fzip:
WAedr_fstat:

VCP:

ECHO
5788 ft. FINDSSite 1 of 2 in cluster J
1.096 mi. RCRA NonGen / NLR

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
237 ft.

 

> 1 WA CSCSL NFASHELTON, WA  98584
ESE WA ALLSITES790 E JOHNS PRAIRIE RD WAH000012211
J53 WA VCPBARNES MACHINE INC 1004794932

TC5712009.2s   Page 104



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    RemediatedSoil:
                    Not reportedSurface Water:
                    Not reportedGround Water:
                    Metals Priority PollutantsContaminant Name:
                    SouthwestRegion:
                    NFASite Status:
                    NFA-Voluntary Cleanup Program ReviewNFA Reason:
                    Not reportedAlternate Site Names:
                    08/27/2003NFA Date:
                    1715CS Id:
                    53878546Facility/Site Id:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    790 E JOHNS PRAIRIE RDAddress:
                    BARNES MACHINE INCName:

CSCSL NFA:

                                             -123.091330794Longitude:
                                             47.250561003999998Latitude:
                                             Voluntary Cleanup SitesDate Interaction 3:
                                             2003-07-08 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             SW0503Program ID:
                                             Barnes Machine IncFacility Alt.:
                                             ISISProgram Data:
                                             TOXICSEcology Program:
                                             VOLCLNSTInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             50431Interaction:

                                             -123.091330794Longitude:
                                             47.250561003999998Latitude:
                                             Hazardous Waste GeneratorDate Interaction 3:
                                             2000-07-14 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             WAH000012211Program ID:
                                             Not reportedFacility Alt.:
                                             TURBOWASTEProgram Data:
                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             HWGInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             50430Interaction:

                              53878546Facility Id:
                              BARNES MACHINE INCFacility Name:

                                             -123.09999807200001Longitude:
                                             47.240494484999999Latitude:
                                             Industrial SW GPDate Interaction 3:
                                             2011-08-25 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             Not reportedProgram ID:
                                             Mason County Transport AuthorityFacility Alt.:
                                             PARISProgram Data:
                                             WATQUALEcology Program:
                                             INDSWGPInteraction 2:
                                             AInteraction 1:
                                             98097Interaction:

BARNES MACHINE INC  (Continued) 1004794932

TC5712009.2s   Page 105



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    360-426-5264Owner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    790 E JOHNS PRAIRIE RDOwner/operator address:
                    BARNES MACHINE INCOwner/operator name:

Owner/Operator Summary:

                    Handler: Non-Generators do not presently generate hazardous wasteDescription:
                    Non-GeneratorClassification:
                    Other land typeLand type:
                    10EPA Region:
                    Not reportedContact email:
                    360-426-5264Contact telephone:
                    USContact country:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    790 E JOHNS PRAIRIE RDContact address:
                    KEN  DOWNERContact:
                    WAH000012211EPA ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    790 E JOHNS PRAIRIE RDFacility address:
                    BARNES MACHINE INCFacility name:
                    02/20/2003Date form received by agency:

RCRA NonGen / NLR:

                    -123.09134572Longitude:
                    47.25056652Latitude:
                    Not reportedBedrock:
                    Not reportedAir:
                    Not reportedSediment:
                    RemediatedSoil:
                    Not reportedSurface Water:
                    Not reportedGround Water:
                    Petroleum Products-UnspecifiedContaminant Name:
                    SouthwestRegion:
                    NFASite Status:
                    NFA-Voluntary Cleanup Program ReviewNFA Reason:
                    Not reportedAlternate Site Names:
                    08/27/2003NFA Date:
                    1715CS Id:
                    53878546Facility/Site Id:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    790 E JOHNS PRAIRIE RDAddress:
                    BARNES MACHINE INCName:

                    -123.09134572Longitude:
                    47.25056652Latitude:
                    Not reportedBedrock:
                    Not reportedAir:
                    Not reportedSediment:

BARNES MACHINE INC  (Continued) 1004794932

TC5712009.2s   Page 106



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    BARNES MACHINE INCSite name:
                    02/19/2003Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    BARNES MACHINE INCSite name:
                    02/19/2003Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    BARNES MACHINE INCSite name:
                    02/19/2003Date form received by agency:

Historical Generators:

                              NoUsed oil transporter:
                              NoUsed oil transfer facility:
                              NoUsed oil Specification marketer:
                              NoUsed oil fuel marketer to burner:
                              NoUser oil refiner:
                              NoUsed oil processor:
                              NoUsed oil fuel burner:
                              NoFurnace exemption:
                              NoOn-site burner exemption:
                              NoUnderground injection activity:
                              NoTreater, storer or disposer of HW:
                              NoTransporter of hazardous waste:
                              NoRecycler of hazardous waste:
                              NoMixed waste (haz. and radioactive):
                              NoU.S. importer of hazardous waste:

Handler Activities Summary:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OperatorOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    360-426-5264Owner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    790 E JOHNS PRAIRIE RDOwner/operator address:
                    BARNES MACHINE INCOwner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    07/14/2000Owner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    360-426-5264Owner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    790 E JOHNS PRAIRIE RDOwner/operator address:
                    BARNES MACHINE INCOwner/operator name:

BARNES MACHINE INC  (Continued) 1004794932

TC5712009.2s   Page 107



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110005398104Registry ID:

FINDS:

                    StateEvaluation lead agency:
                    08/14/2001Date achieved compliance:
                    Generators - GeneralArea of violation:
                    COMPLIANCE EVALUATION INSPECTION ON-SITEEvaluation:
                    06/06/2001Evaluation date:

Evaluation Action Summary:

                    Not reported    Paid penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Final penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Proposed penalty amount:
                    State    Enforcement lead agency:
                    Not reported    Enf. disp. status date:
                    Not reported    Enf. disposition status:
                    06/06/2001    Enforcement action date:
                    VERBAL INFORMAL    Enforcement action:
                    StateViolation lead agency:
                    08/14/2001Date achieved compliance:
                    06/06/2001Date violation determined:
                    Generators - GeneralArea of violation:
                    SR - WAC 173-303-200(1)(b)Regulation violated:

                    Not reported    Paid penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Final penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Proposed penalty amount:
                    State    Enforcement lead agency:
                    Not reported    Enf. disp. status date:
                    Not reported    Enf. disposition status:
                    06/06/2001    Enforcement action date:
                    VERBAL INFORMAL    Enforcement action:
                    StateViolation lead agency:
                    08/14/2001Date achieved compliance:
                    06/06/2001Date violation determined:
                    Generators - GeneralArea of violation:
                    SR - -630(7)Regulation violated:

Facility Has Received Notices of Violations:

                    Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    BARNES MACHINE INCSite name:
                    07/14/2000Date form received by agency:

                    Large Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    BARNES MACHINE INCSite name:
                    08/15/2001Date form received by agency:

                    Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    BARNES MACHINE INCSite name:
                    02/27/2002Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    BARNES MACHINE INCSite name:
                    02/19/2003Date form received by agency:

BARNES MACHINE INC  (Continued) 1004794932

TC5712009.2s   Page 108



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                   http://echo.epa.gov/detailed-facility-report?fid=110005398104DFR URL:
                                   110005398104Registry ID:
                                   1004794932Envid:

ECHO:

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

corrective action activities required under RCRA.
program staff to track the notification, permit, compliance, and
and treat, store, or dispose of hazardous waste. RCRAInfo allows RCRA
events and activities related to facilities that generate, transport,
Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) program through the tracking of
RCRAInfo is a national information system that supports the Resource

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a

BARNES MACHINE INC  (Continued) 1004794932

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110054937431Registry ID:

FINDS:

5788 ft. Site 2 of 2 in cluster J
1.096 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
237 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
ESE 790 E JOHNS PRAIRIE RD    N/A
J54 FINDSMASON COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 1015974742

                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    N 21451 HWY 101Facility address:
                    TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAMFacility name:
                    02/15/2018Date form received by agency:

RCRA-CESQG:

5813 ft.
1.101 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
287 ft.

 

> 1 WA MANIFESTSHELTON, WA  98584
West WA ALLSITESN 21451 HWY 101 WAD988502340
55 RCRA-CESQGTACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAM 1001806862

TC5712009.2s   Page 109

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6.0I6ajB.JWj0SZjIAgv3WR6aj4sjzjSBgdwAHGiJAKoWa7Rj08r4C1qS5ToZkhYjRR83qJ1AFRqg0bJvlhV4mZIWh6nRrvt6zz64SRFjv5w4I8AsskiBC7xz15DjtKRSWep3UfNgjQedBjwwErp3GkUHTYcGrHyiTGe6gUV.yf30NGgIgBK31ELaYqDjGRZBm9T95X7JNTwWaGmjM9A35iRSKHlZj0ojfAjAdt6Actlg4zyv.iD4AmhWqCURyNH6EVP4ZFSjQhZ4cxPsgUS4SxnzuYsjLJySxfKCo0cgO8WdVRvwxox6.gp.0uN0avpIt8h4iNgaV70jGm8BVhn3Pe4JOp5WhqtjvjB8tlwSEwgZ4qVjgtNA9kWAlpNgIQEvNcn4ql3W5NPRQnK6.CQ58DPjvZP48M4scfu3Y1yzz4cjlhgSXEV3qwngGkBdsHWwy7yCf0VH9gBGCLjimKx2JxNAEdtKch1oQS.5op4aR9d7QB9RzejveFL0oGK8tYarBWY69iZ.Z4z0GXjIsIJ4O3maDy9j9x.BI4X3ELhJOVhWYrjjJvJ4NwFSMQfZ5bUjFOI3kI5Asdwg3tHvPmI3xd0WwVwRzQn6jEZ7KVRjJVP4hC8sb1PAJSiz9iUj5xDSHCYCFk7gCW.dlIYwaNl7SOpHlRiGZj6ipDGCuVeAHSYKf5loKaD63YbaCl17r4dRlhs55fg0p0j8yBsrJv13
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6.0I6ajB.JWj0SZjIAgv3WR6aj4sjzjSBgdwAHGiJAKoWa7Rj08r4C1qS5ToZkhYjRR83qJ1AFRqg0bJvlhV4mZIWh6nRrvt6zz64SRFjv5w4I8AsskiBC7xz15DjtKRSWep3UfNgjQedBjwwErp3GkUHTYcGrHyiTGe6gUV.yf30NGgIgBK31ELaYqDjGRZBm9T95X7JNTwWaGmjM9A35iRSKHlZj0ojfAjAdt6Actlg4zyv.iD4AmhWqCURyNH6EVP4ZFSjQhZ4cxPsgUS4SxnzuYsjLJySxfKCo0cgO8WdVRvwxox6.gp.0uN0avpIt8h4iNgaV70jGm8BVhn3Pe4JOp5WhqtjvjB8tlwSEwgZ4qVjgtNA9kWAlpNgIQEvNcn4ql3W5NPRQnK6.CQ58DPjvZP48M4scfu3Y1yzz4cjlhgSXEV3qwngGkBdsHWwy7yCf0VH9gBGCLjimKx2JxNAEdtKch1oQS.5op4aR9d7QB9RzejveFL0oGK8tYarBWY69iZ.Z4z0GXjIsIJ4O3maDy9j9x.BI4X3ELhJOVhWYrjjJvJ4NwFSMQfZ5bUjFOI3kI5Asdwg3tHvPmI3xd0WwVwRzQn6jEZ7KVRjJVP4hC8sb1PAJSiz9iUj5xDSHCYCFk7gCW.dlIYwaNl7SOpHlRiGZj6ipDGCuVeAHSYKf5loKaD63YbaCl17r4dRlhs55fg0p0j8yBsrJv13
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6.0I6ajB.JWj0SZjIAgv3WR6aj4sjzjSBgdwAHGiJAKoWa7Rj08r4C1qS5ToZkhYjRR83qJ1AFRqg0bJvlhV4mZIWh6nRrvt6zz64SRFjv5w4I8AsskiBC7xz15DjtKRSWep3UfNgjQedBjwwErp3GkUHTYcGrHyiTGe6gUV.yf30NGgIgBK31ELaYqDjGRZBm9T95X7JNTwWaGmjM9A35iRSKHlZj0ojfAjAdt6Actlg4zyv.iD4AmhWqCURyNH6EVP4ZFSjQhZ4cxPsgUS4SxnzuYsjLJySxfKCo0cgO8WdVRvwxox6.gp.0uN0avpIt8h4iNgaV70jGm8BVhn3Pe4JOp5WhqtjvjB8tlwSEwgZ4qVjgtNA9kWAlpNgIQEvNcn4ql3W5NPRQnK6.CQ58DPjvZP48M4scfu3Y1yzz4cjlhgSXEV3qwngGkBdsHWwy7yCf0VH9gBGCLjimKx2JxNAEdtKch1oQS.5op4aR9d7QB9RzejveFL0oGK8tYarBWY69iZ.Z4z0GXjIsIJ4O3maDy9j9x.BI4X3ELhJOVhWYrjjJvJ4NwFSMQfZ5bUjFOI3kI5Asdwg3tHvPmI4xd0WwVwRzQn6jEZ8KVRjJVP4hC8sb1PCJSiz9iUj5xDSHCYAFk7gCW.dlIYwaNl7SOpHlRiGZj6ipDGAuVeAHSYKf5loKaD73YbaCl17r4dRlhs55fg0p0j8yBsrJv13
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6.0I6ajB.JWj0SZjIAgv3WR6aj4sjzjSBgdwAHGiJAKoWa7Rj08r4C1qS5ToZkhYjRR83qJ1AFRqg0bJvlhV4mZIWh6nRrvt6zz64SRFjv5w4I8AsskiBC7xz15DjtKRSWep3UfNgjQedBjwwErp3GkUHTYcGrHyiTGe6gUV.yf30NGgIgBK31ELaYqDjGRZBm9T95X7JNTwWaGmjM9A35iRSKHlZj0ojfAjAdt6Actlg4zyv.iD4AmhWqCURyNH6EVP4ZFSjQhZ4cxPsgUS4SxnzuYsjLJySxfKCo0cgO8WdVRvwxox6.gp.0uN0avpIt8h4iNgaV70jGm8BVhn3Pe4JOp5WhqtjvjB8tlwSEwgZ4qVjgtNA9kWAlpNgIQEvNcn4ql3W5NPRQnK6.CQ58DPjvZP48M4scfu3Y1yzz4cjlhgSXEV3qwngGkBdsHWwy7yCf0VH9gBGCLjimKx2JxNAEdtKch1oQS.5op4aR9d7QB9RzejveFL0oGK8tYarBWY69iZ.Z4z0GXjIsIJ4O3maDy9j9x.BI4X3ELhJOVhWYrjjJvJ4NwFSMQfZ5bUjFOI3kI5Asdwg3tHvPmI4xd0WwVwRzQn6jEZ8KVRjJVP4hC8sb1PCJSiz9iUj5xDSHCYAFk7gCW.dlIYwaNl7SOpHlRiGZj6ipDGAuVeAHSYKf5loKaD73YbaCl17r4dRlhs55fg0p0j8yBsrJv13


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              NoU.S. importer of hazardous waste:
Handler Activities Summary:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OperatorOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    253-502-8000Owner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    TACOMA, WA 98409
                    3628 S 35TH STOwner/operator address:
                    TACOMA POWEROwner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    253-502-8000Owner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    TACOMA, WA 98409
                    3628 S 35TH STOwner/operator address:
                    TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIESOwner/operator name:

Owner/Operator Summary:

                    hazardous waste
                    the cleanup of a spill, into or on any land or water, of acutely
                    any residue or contaminated soil, waste or other debris resulting from
                    time: 1 kg or less of acutely hazardous waste; or 100 kg or less of
                    hazardous waste during any calendar month, and accumulates at any
                    from the cleanup of a spill, into or on any land or water, of acutely
                    of any residue or contaminated soil, waste or other debris resulting
                    land or water, of acutely hazardous waste; or generates 100 kg or less
                    other debris resulting from the cleanup of a spill, into or on any
                    waste; or 100 kg or less of any residue or contaminated soil, waste or
                    month, and accumulates at any time: 1 kg or less of acutely hazardous
                    or generates 1 kg or less of acutely hazardous waste per calendar
                    month, and accumulates 1000 kg or less of hazardous waste at any time;
                    Handler: generates 100 kg or less of hazardous waste per calendarDescription:
                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    MunicipalLand type:
                    10EPA Region:
                    JBOZIC@CITYOFTACOMA.ORGContact email:
                    253-502-8767Contact telephone:
                    USContact country:
                    TACOMA, WA 98409
                    3628 S 35TH STContact address:
                    JAMES  BOZICContact:
                    TACOMA, WA 98409
                    3628 S 35TH STMailing address:
                    WAD988502340EPA ID:

TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAM  (Continued) 1001806862

TC5712009.2s   Page 110



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    02/24/2010Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAMSite name:
                    01/25/2011Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAMSite name:
                    01/25/2011Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAMSite name:
                    02/24/2012Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAMSite name:
                    02/24/2012Date form received by agency:

                    Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAMSite name:
                    02/21/2013Date form received by agency:

                    Large Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAMSite name:
                    02/19/2014Date form received by agency:

                    Large Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAMSite name:
                    02/19/2014Date form received by agency:

                    Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAMSite name:
                    02/24/2015Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAMSite name:
                    02/22/2016Date form received by agency:

                    Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAMSite name:
                    02/13/2017Date form received by agency:

Historical Generators:

                              NoUsed oil transporter:
                              NoUsed oil transfer facility:
                              NoUsed oil Specification marketer:
                              NoUsed oil fuel marketer to burner:
                              NoUser oil refiner:
                              NoUsed oil processor:
                              NoUsed oil fuel burner:
                              NoFurnace exemption:
                              NoOn-site burner exemption:
                              NoUnderground injection activity:
                              NoTreater, storer or disposer of HW:
                              NoTransporter of hazardous waste:
                              NoRecycler of hazardous waste:
                              NoMixed waste (haz. and radioactive):

TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAM  (Continued) 1001806862

TC5712009.2s   Page 111



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAMSite name:
                    02/28/2001Date form received by agency:

                    Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAMSite name:
                    02/22/2002Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAMSite name:
                    02/11/2003Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAMSite name:
                    02/11/2003Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAMSite name:
                    02/27/2004Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAMSite name:
                    12/31/2004Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAMSite name:
                    02/01/2005Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAMSite name:
                    12/31/2005Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAMSite name:
                    02/10/2006Date form received by agency:

                    Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAMSite name:
                    01/30/2007Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAMSite name:
                    02/12/2008Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAMSite name:
                    12/31/2008Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAMSite name:
                    02/17/2009Date form received by agency:

                    Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAMSite name:
                    02/24/2010Date form received by agency:

                    Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAMSite name:

TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAM  (Continued) 1001806862

TC5712009.2s   Page 112



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    TETRACHLOROETHYLENE, TRICHLORETHYLENE, METHYLENE CHLORIDE,
                    THE FOLLOWING SPENT HALOGENATED SOLVENTS USED IN DEGREASING:.   Waste name:
                    F001.   Waste code:

                    TETRACHLOROETHYLENE.   Waste name:
                    D039.   Waste code:

                    METHYL ETHYL KETONE.   Waste name:
                    D035.   Waste code:

                    BENZENE.   Waste name:
                    D018.   Waste code:

                    LEAD.   Waste name:
                    D008.   Waste code:

                    CORROSIVE WASTE.   Waste name:
                    D002.   Waste code:

                    IGNITABLE WASTE.   Waste name:
                    D001.   Waste code:

Hazardous Waste Summary:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAMSite name:
                    01/01/1994Date form received by agency:

                    Large Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES - CUSHMAN DAMSite name:
                    02/22/1994Date form received by agency:

                    Large Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAMSite name:
                    02/23/1996Date form received by agency:

                    Large Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    TACOMA PUB UTILITIES-CUSHMAN DAMSite name:
                    03/01/1996Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAMSite name:
                    02/28/1997Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAMSite name:
                    02/25/1998Date form received by agency:

                    Large Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAMSite name:
                    02/22/1999Date form received by agency:

                    Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAMSite name:
                    02/08/2000Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:

TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAM  (Continued) 1001806862

TC5712009.2s   Page 113



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    Not reported    Enf. disposition status:
                    10/22/2007    Enforcement action date:
                    WRITTEN INFORMAL    Enforcement action:
                    EPAViolation lead agency:
                    11/20/2007Date achieved compliance:
                    10/22/2007Date violation determined:
                    Listing - GeneralArea of violation:
                    Not reportedRegulation violated:

                    Not reported    Paid penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Final penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Proposed penalty amount:
                    State    Enforcement lead agency:
                    Not reported    Enf. disp. status date:
                    Not reported    Enf. disposition status:
                    04/15/2014    Enforcement action date:
                    WRITTEN INFORMAL    Enforcement action:
                    StateViolation lead agency:
                    05/12/2014Date achieved compliance:
                    02/24/2014Date violation determined:
                    Universal Waste - Small Quantity HandlersArea of violation:
                    Not reportedRegulation violated:

Facility Has Received Notices of Violations:

                    THESE SPENT SOLVENTS AND SPENT SOLVENT MIXTURES.
                    LISTED IN F001, F002, OR F004; AND STILL BOTTOMS FROM THE RECOVERY OF
                    ONE OR MORE OF THE ABOVE NONHALOGENATED SOLVENTS OR THOSE SOLVENTS
                    CONTAINING, BEFORE USE, A TOTAL OF TEN PERCENT OR MORE (BY VOLUME) OF
                    2-ETHOXYETHANOL, AND 2-NITROPROPANE; ALL SPENT SOLVENT MIXTURES/BLENDS
                    KETONE, CARBON DISULFIDE, ISOBUTANOL, PYRIDINE, BENZENE,
                    THE FOLLOWING SPENT NONHALOGENATED SOLVENTS: TOLUENE, METHYL ETHYL.   Waste name:
                    F005.   Waste code:

                    MIXTURES.
                    BOTTOMS FROM THE RECOVERY OF THESE SPENT SOLVENTS AND SPENT SOLVENT
                    MORE OF THOSE SOLVENTS LISTED IN F001, F002, F004, AND F005; AND STILL
                    SOLVENTS, AND A TOTAL OF TEN PERCENT OR MORE (BY VOLUME) OF ONE OR
                    CONTAINING, BEFORE USE, ONE OR MORE OF THE ABOVE NONHALOGENATED
                    NONHALOGENATED SOLVENTS; AND ALL SPENT SOLVENT MIXTURES/BLENDS
                    MIXTURES/BLENDS CONTAINING, BEFORE USE, ONLY THE ABOVE SPENT
                    ALCOHOL, CYCLOHEXANONE, AND METHANOL; ALL SPENT SOLVENT
                    ACETATE, ETHYL BENZENE, ETHYL ETHER, METHYL ISOBUTYL KETONE, N-BUTYL
                    THE FOLLOWING SPENT NONHALOGENATED SOLVENTS: XYLENE, ACETONE, ETHYL.   Waste name:
                    F003.   Waste code:

                    SPENT SOLVENTS AND SPENT SOLVENT MIXTURES.
                    IN F002, F004, AND F005; AND STILL BOTTOMS FROM THE RECOVERY OF THESE
                    ONE OR MORE OF THE ABOVE HALOGENATED SOLVENTS OR THOSE SOLVENTS LISTED
                    CONTAINING, BEFORE USE, A TOTAL OF TEN PERCENT OR MORE (BY VOLUME) OF
                    FLUOROCARBONS; ALL SPENT SOLVENT MIXTURES/BLENDS USED IN DEGREASING
                    1,1,1-TRICHLOROETHANE, CARBON TETRACHLORIDE AND CHLORINATED

TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAM  (Continued) 1001806862

TC5712009.2s   Page 114



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    11/20/2007Date achieved compliance:
                    Universal Waste - Small Quantity HandlersArea of violation:
                    COMPLIANCE EVALUATION INSPECTION ON-SITEEvaluation:
                    05/15/2007Evaluation date:

                    EPAEvaluation lead agency:
                    11/20/2007Date achieved compliance:
                    Used Oil - GeneratorsArea of violation:
                    COMPLIANCE EVALUATION INSPECTION ON-SITEEvaluation:
                    05/15/2007Evaluation date:

                    EPAEvaluation lead agency:
                    11/20/2007Date achieved compliance:
                    Listing - GeneralArea of violation:
                    COMPLIANCE EVALUATION INSPECTION ON-SITEEvaluation:
                    05/15/2007Evaluation date:

                    StateEvaluation lead agency:
                    05/12/2014Date achieved compliance:
                    Universal Waste - Small Quantity HandlersArea of violation:
                    COMPLIANCE EVALUATION INSPECTION ON-SITEEvaluation:
                    02/24/2014Evaluation date:

Evaluation Action Summary:

                    Not reported    Paid penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Final penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Proposed penalty amount:
                    EPA    Enforcement lead agency:
                    Not reported    Enf. disp. status date:
                    Not reported    Enf. disposition status:
                    10/22/2007    Enforcement action date:
                    WRITTEN INFORMAL    Enforcement action:
                    EPAViolation lead agency:
                    11/20/2007Date achieved compliance:
                    10/22/2007Date violation determined:
                    Used Oil - GeneratorsArea of violation:
                    Not reportedRegulation violated:

                    Not reported    Paid penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Final penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Proposed penalty amount:
                    EPA    Enforcement lead agency:
                    Not reported    Enf. disp. status date:
                    Not reported    Enf. disposition status:
                    10/22/2007    Enforcement action date:
                    WRITTEN INFORMAL    Enforcement action:
                    EPAViolation lead agency:
                    11/20/2007Date achieved compliance:
                    10/22/2007Date violation determined:
                    Universal Waste - Small Quantity HandlersArea of violation:
                    Not reportedRegulation violated:

                    Not reported    Paid penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Final penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Proposed penalty amount:
                    EPA    Enforcement lead agency:
                    Not reported    Enf. disp. status date:

TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAM  (Continued) 1001806862

TC5712009.2s   Page 115



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2017Data Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:
                                                        D001Federal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        221111NAICS:
                                                        WAD988502340EPA ID:
                                                        36292444Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        N 21451 HWY 101Address:
                                                        TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAMName:

WA MANIFEST:

                                             -123.144595063Longitude:
                                             47.248014490000003Latitude:
                                             Emergency/Haz Chem Rpt TIDate Interaction 3:
                                             1988-01-01 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             WAD988502340Program ID:
                                             Not reportedFacility Alt.:
                                             EPCRAProgram Data:
                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             TIER2Interaction 2:
                                             AInteraction 1:
                                             40502Interaction:

                                             -123.144595063Longitude:
                                             47.248014490000003Latitude:
                                             Hazardous Waste GeneratorDate Interaction 3:
                                             1992-03-05 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             WAD988502340Program ID:
                                             Tacoma Public Utilities Cushman DamFacility Alt.:
                                             TURBOWASTEProgram Data:
                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             HWGInteraction 2:
                                             AInteraction 1:
                                             40503Interaction:

                              36292444Facility Id:
                              TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAMFacility Name:

ALLSITES:

                    StateEvaluation lead agency:
                    Not reportedDate achieved compliance:
                    Not reportedArea of violation:
                    COMPLIANCE EVALUATION INSPECTION ON-SITEEvaluation:
                    02/16/2000Evaluation date:

                    EPAEvaluation lead agency:

TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAM  (Continued) 1001806862

TC5712009.2s   Page 116



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        TrueBatch Generation:
                                                        FalseMonthly Generation:
                                                        SQGGen Status Code:
                                                        Jadams2@cityoftacoma.orgSite Contact Email:
                                                        (253)502-8300Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        TACOMA, WA 98409-3192Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        3628 S 35TH STSite Contact Address:
                                                        Jeromy  AdamsSite Contact:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Effective Date:
                                                        253-502-8000Operator Phone Number:
                                                        TACOMA, WA 98409-3192Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        3628 S 35TH STOperator Address:
                                                        Not reportedOperator:
                                                        MunicipalOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Tacoma PowerOperator Organization Name:
                                                        (253)502-8000Land Phone Number:
                                                        TACOMA, WA 98409-3192Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        3628 S 35TH STLand Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        MunicipalLand Organization Type:
                                                        Tacoma Public UtilitiesLand Organization Name:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Effective Date:
                                                        (253)502-8000Legal Phone Number:
                                                        TACOMA, WA 98409-3192Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        3628 S 35TH STLegal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        MunicipalLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Tacoma Public UtilitiesLegal Organization Name:
                                                        TACOMA, WA 98409-3192Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        3628 S 35TH STMailing Address:
                                                        Tacoma Public Utilities Env. ComplianceMail Name:
                                                        Hydro Electric GenerationBusiness Type:
                                                        278012340Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:

TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAM  (Continued) 1001806862

TC5712009.2s   Page 117



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        (253)502-8000Operator Phone Number:
                                                        TACOMA, WA 98409Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        3628 S 35TH STOperator Address:
                                                        Not reportedOperator:
                                                        MunicipalOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Tacoma PowerOperator Organization Name:
                                                        (253)502-8000Land Phone Number:
                                                        TACOMA, WA 98409Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        3628 S 35TH STLand Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        MunicipalLand Organization Type:
                                                        Tacoma Public UtilitiesLand Organization Name:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Effective Date:
                                                        (253)502-8000Legal Phone Number:
                                                        TACOMA, WA 98409Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        3628 S 35TH STLegal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        MunicipalLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Tacoma Public UtilitiesLegal Organization Name:
                                                        TACOMA, WA 98409Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        3628 S 35TH STMailing Address:
                                                        Not reportedMail Name:
                                                        Not reportedBusiness Type:
                                                        278012340Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2017Data Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:
                                                        D001,D005,D006,D007,D008,D035Federal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        221111NAICS:
                                                        WAD988502340EPA ID:
                                                        36292444Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        N 21451 HWY 101Address:
                                                        TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAMName:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:

TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAM  (Continued) 1001806862

TC5712009.2s   Page 118



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        TACOMA, WA 98409-3192Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        3628 S 35TH STMailing Address:
                                                        Tacoma Public Utilities Env. ComplianceMail Name:
                                                        Hydro Electric GenerationBusiness Type:
                                                        278012340Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2016Data Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:
                                                        D001,D008,F001,D035,F003Federal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        221111NAICS:
                                                        WAD988502340EPA ID:
                                                        36292444Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        N 21451 HWY 101Address:
                                                        TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAMName:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        TrueBatch Generation:
                                                        FalseMonthly Generation:
                                                        SQGGen Status Code:
                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Email:
                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Phone Number:
                                                        Not reportedContact City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address:
                                                        Not reportedSite Contact:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Effective Date:

TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAM  (Continued) 1001806862

TC5712009.2s   Page 119



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Waste Aerosol CansDescription:
                                                        W209WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

Waste Stream Generated:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        TrueBatch Generation:
                                                        FalseMonthly Generation:
                                                        MQGGen Status Code:
                                                        Jadams2@cityoftacoma.orgSite Contact Email:
                                                        (253)502-8300Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        TACOMA, WA 98409-3192Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        3628 S 35TH STSite Contact Address:
                                                        Jeromy  AdamsSite Contact:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Effective Date:
                                                        253-502-8000Operator Phone Number:
                                                        TACOMA, WA 98409-3192Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        3628 S 35TH STOperator Address:
                                                        Not reportedOperator:
                                                        MunicipalOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Tacoma PowerOperator Organization Name:
                                                        (253)502-8000Land Phone Number:
                                                        TACOMA, WA 98409-3192Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        3628 S 35TH STLand Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        MunicipalLand Organization Type:
                                                        Tacoma Public UtilitiesLand Organization Name:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Effective Date:
                                                        (253)502-8000Legal Phone Number:
                                                        TACOMA, WA 98409-3192Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        3628 S 35TH STLegal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        MunicipalLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Tacoma Public UtilitiesLegal Organization Name:

TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAM  (Continued) 1001806862

TC5712009.2s   Page 120



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        181.440003Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        400Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3413775Sequence Number:
                                                        158632CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Waste Paint and Related MaterialsDescription:
                                                        W209WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        56.7000009Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        125Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3413773Sequence Number:
                                                        158632CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Waste Loosepack Solvents (Methyl Isobutyl Ketone and PCE)Description:
                                                        W219WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        22.6800003Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        50Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3413767Sequence Number:
                                                        158632CORb Sequence Number:

TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAM  (Continued) 1001806862

TC5712009.2s   Page 121



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        400Reported Quanity:
                                                        015121398JJKMainfest Document ID:
                                                        2016-12-09 00:00:00Shipment Date:
                                                        1997603Sequence Number:
                                                        3413776Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        ORD089452353Receiving EPAID:
                                                        181.440003Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBUnit of Measure:
                                                        400Reported Quanity:
                                                        015121398JJKMainfest Document ID:
                                                        2016-12-09 00:00:00Shipment Date:
                                                        1997598Sequence Number:
                                                        3413775Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        158632CORB Waste Sequence Number:

Shipments Send:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        34.0200005Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        75Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3413764Sequence Number:
                                                        158632CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Loosepack Paint Related MaterialsDescription:
                                                        W209WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        181.440003Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        400Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3413776Sequence Number:
                                                        158632CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Lead Paint ChipsDescription:
                                                        W406WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:

TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAM  (Continued) 1001806862

TC5712009.2s   Page 122



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        H132Waste Management System Code:
                                                        0Recycled Percentage:
                                                        181.440003Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        400Managed Quanity:
                                                        ORD089452353Received EPAID:
                                                        908347Sequence Number:
                                                        3413776Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H040Waste Management System Code:
                                                        0Recycled Percentage:
                                                        22.6800003Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        50Managed Quanity:
                                                        ORD089452353Received EPAID:
                                                        908333Sequence Number:
                                                        3413767Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H040Waste Management System Code:
                                                        0Recycled Percentage:
                                                        34.0200005Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        75Managed Quanity:
                                                        ORD089452353Received EPAID:
                                                        908331Sequence Number:
                                                        3413764Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        158632Waste CORB Sequence Number:

Waste Stream Off Site Mgmt:

                                                        ORD089452353Receiving EPAID:
                                                        34.0200005Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBUnit of Measure:
                                                        75Reported Quanity:
                                                        015121370JJKMainfest Document ID:
                                                        2016-10-20 00:00:00Shipment Date:
                                                        1997589Sequence Number:
                                                        3413764Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        ORD089452353Receiving EPAID:
                                                        22.6800003Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBUnit of Measure:
                                                        50Reported Quanity:
                                                        015121398JJKMainfest Document ID:
                                                        2016-12-09 00:00:00Shipment Date:
                                                        1997591Sequence Number:
                                                        3413767Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        ORD089452353Receiving EPAID:
                                                        56.7000009Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBUnit of Measure:
                                                        125Reported Quanity:
                                                        015121398JJKMainfest Document ID:
                                                        2016-12-09 00:00:00Shipment Date:
                                                        1997593Sequence Number:
                                                        3413773Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        ORD089452353Receiving EPAID:
                                                        181.440003Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBUnit of Measure:

TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAM  (Continued) 1001806862

TC5712009.2s   Page 123



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        D001WCDA Code:
                                                        7918492Sequence Number:
                                                        3413764Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        F003WCDA Code:
                                                        7919006Sequence Number:
                                                        3413775Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D035WCDA Code:
                                                        7919005Sequence Number:
                                                        3413775Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D001WCDA Code:
                                                        7919004Sequence Number:
                                                        3413775Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        F003WCDA Code:
                                                        7918966Sequence Number:
                                                        3413773Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        F001WCDA Code:
                                                        7918965Sequence Number:
                                                        3413773Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D001WCDA Code:
                                                        7918964Sequence Number:
                                                        3413773Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D008WCDA Code:
                                                        7919029Sequence Number:
                                                        3413776Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        158632CORB Waste Sequence Number:

Waste Stream EPA Code:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3413773Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        A-8: Methyl Isobutyl Ketone and PCEComments:
                                                        158632CORB Waste Sequence Number:

Waste Stream Comments:

                                                        H040Waste Management System Code:
                                                        0Recycled Percentage:
                                                        181.440003Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        400Managed Quanity:
                                                        ORD089452353Received EPAID:
                                                        908341Sequence Number:
                                                        3413775Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H040Waste Management System Code:
                                                        0Recycled Percentage:
                                                        56.7000009Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        125Managed Quanity:
                                                        ORD089452353Received EPAID:
                                                        908337Sequence Number:
                                                        3413773Waste Sequence Number:

TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAM  (Continued) 1001806862

TC5712009.2s   Page 124



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2015Data Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:
                                                        D001,D039,F001Federal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        WP01,WP02,WSC2,WT01,WT02State Waste Code Desc:
                                                        221111NAICS:
                                                        WAD988502340EPA ID:
                                                        36292444Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        N 21451 HWY 101Address:
                                                        TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAMName:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3413773Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3413767Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G06WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3413776Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G06WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3413775Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G06WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3413764Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        158632CORB Waste Sequence Number:

Waste Stream Source Code:

                                                        D001WCDA Code:
                                                        7894701Sequence Number:
                                                        3413767Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        F003WCDA Code:
                                                        7918494Sequence Number:
                                                        3413764Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D035WCDA Code:
                                                        7918493Sequence Number:
                                                        3413764Waste Sequence Number:

TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAM  (Continued) 1001806862

TC5712009.2s   Page 125



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:
Waste Stream Generated:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        TrueBatch Generation:
                                                        FalseMonthly Generation:
                                                        SQGGen Status Code:
                                                        Jadams2@cityoftacoma.orgSite Contact Email:
                                                        (253)502-8300Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        TACOMA, WA 98409-3192Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        3628 S 35TH STSite Contact Address:
                                                        Jeromy  AdamsSite Contact:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Effective Date:
                                                        253-502-8000Operator Phone Number:
                                                        TACOMA, WA 98409-3192Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        3628 S 35TH STOperator Address:
                                                        Not reportedOperator:
                                                        MunicipalOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Tacoma PowerOperator Organization Name:
                                                        (253)502-8000Land Phone Number:
                                                        TACOMA, WA 98409-3192Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        3628 S 35TH STLand Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        MunicipalLand Organization Type:
                                                        Tacoma Public UtilitiesLand Organization Name:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Effective Date:
                                                        (253)502-8000Legal Phone Number:
                                                        TACOMA, WA 98409-3192Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        3628 S 35TH STLegal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        MunicipalLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Tacoma Public UtilitiesLegal Organization Name:
                                                        TACOMA, WA 98409-3192Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        3628 S 35TH STMailing Address:
                                                        Tacoma Public Utilities Env. ComplianceMail Name:
                                                        Hydro Electric GenerationBusiness Type:
                                                        278012340Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:

TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAM  (Continued) 1001806862

TC5712009.2s   Page 126



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        3364613Sequence Number:
                                                        153851CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        F Listed SolventDescription:
                                                        W211WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        56.7000009Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        125Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3364612Sequence Number:
                                                        153851CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Falmmable Liquid Class 3Description:
                                                        W001WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        13.6080002Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        30Reported Quanity:
                                                        EDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3364616Sequence Number:
                                                        153851CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Non-RCRA Toxic LabpackDescription:
                                                        W001WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        WT01State Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        WP01State Only Waste Code 1:

TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAM  (Continued) 1001806862

TC5712009.2s   Page 127



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        3364613Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H040Waste Management System Code:
                                                        0Recycled Percentage:
                                                        13.6080002Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        30Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD991281767Received EPAID:
                                                        878299Sequence Number:
                                                        3364616Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H050Waste Management System Code:
                                                        0Recycled Percentage:
                                                        56.7000009Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        125Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD991281767Received EPAID:
                                                        878290Sequence Number:
                                                        3364612Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        153851Waste CORB Sequence Number:

Waste Stream Off Site Mgmt:

                                                        WAD991281767Receiving EPAID:
                                                        13.6080002Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBUnit of Measure:
                                                        30Reported Quanity:
                                                        012247137JJKMainfest Document ID:
                                                        2015-06-30 00:00:00Shipment Date:
                                                        1929223Sequence Number:
                                                        3364616Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        WAD991281767Receiving EPAID:
                                                        56.7000009Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBUnit of Measure:
                                                        125Reported Quanity:
                                                        012247137JJKMainfest Document ID:
                                                        2015-06-30 00:00:00Shipment Date:
                                                        1929213Sequence Number:
                                                        3364612Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        WAD991281767Receiving EPAID:
                                                        27.2160004Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBUnit of Measure:
                                                        60Reported Quanity:
                                                        012247137JJKMainfest Document ID:
                                                        2015-06-30 00:00:00Shipment Date:
                                                        1929215Sequence Number:
                                                        3364613Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        153851CORB Waste Sequence Number:

Shipments Send:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        27.2160004Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        60Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:

TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAM  (Continued) 1001806862

TC5712009.2s   Page 128



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2014Data Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:
                                                        D001,D018Federal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        221111NAICS:
                                                        WAD988502340EPA ID:
                                                        36292444Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        N 21451 HWY 101Address:
                                                        TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAMName:

                                                        G08WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3364613Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3364616Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3364612Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        153851CORB Waste Sequence Number:

Waste Stream Source Code:

                                                        F001WCDA Code:
                                                        7681670Sequence Number:
                                                        3364613Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D001WCDA Code:
                                                        7681669Sequence Number:
                                                        3364613Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D039WCDA Code:
                                                        7681647Sequence Number:
                                                        3364612Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D001WCDA Code:
                                                        7681646Sequence Number:
                                                        3364612Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        153851CORB Waste Sequence Number:

Waste Stream EPA Code:

                                                        H050Waste Management System Code:
                                                        0Recycled Percentage:
                                                        27.2160004Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        60Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD991281767Received EPAID:
                                                        878293Sequence Number:

TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAM  (Continued) 1001806862

TC5712009.2s   Page 129



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        TrueBatch Generation:
                                                        FalseMonthly Generation:
                                                        MQGGen Status Code:
                                                        jadams@cityoftacoma.orgSite Contact Email:
                                                        (253)502-8300Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        TACOMA, WA 98409-3192Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        3628 S 35TH STSite Contact Address:
                                                        Jeromy  AdamsSite Contact:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Effective Date:
                                                        253-502-8000Operator Phone Number:
                                                        TACOMA, WA 98409-3192Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        3628 S 35TH STOperator Address:
                                                        Not reportedOperator:
                                                        MunicipalOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Tacoma PowerOperator Organization Name:
                                                        (253)502-8000Land Phone Number:
                                                        TACOMA, WA 98409-3192Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        3628 S 35TH STLand Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        MunicipalLand Organization Type:
                                                        Tacoma Public UtilitiesLand Organization Name:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Effective Date:
                                                        (253)502-8000Legal Phone Number:
                                                        TACOMA, WA 98409-3192Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        3628 S 35TH STLegal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        MunicipalLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Tacoma Public UtilitiesLegal Organization Name:
                                                        TACOMA, WA 98409-3192Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        3628 S 35TH STMailing Address:
                                                        Tacoma Public Utilities Env. ComplianceMail Name:
                                                        Hydro Electric GenerationBusiness Type:
                                                        278012340Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:

TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAM  (Continued) 1001806862

TC5712009.2s   Page 130



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        150Reported Quanity:
                                                        006765991FLEMainfest Document ID:
                                                        2014-08-18 00:00:00Shipment Date:
                                                        1804622Sequence Number:
                                                        3310482Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        148629CORB Waste Sequence Number:

Shipments Send:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        68.0400011Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        150Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3310482Sequence Number:
                                                        148629CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Spent Voltz Solvent with Oil, Grease, and Mixed FuelsDescription:
                                                        W203WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        832.809614Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        1836Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3334836Sequence Number:
                                                        148629CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Used Paint SolventsDescription:
                                                        W219WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

Waste Stream Generated:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:

TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAM  (Continued) 1001806862

TC5712009.2s   Page 131



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        3334836Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D035WCDA Code:
                                                        7531950Sequence Number:
                                                        3334836Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D001WCDA Code:
                                                        7531949Sequence Number:
                                                        3334836Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        148629CORB Waste Sequence Number:

Waste Stream EPA Code:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3334836Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        solvents included in the F005 list.
                                                        related materials. Paint sludge, and paint solids with other light
                                                        W-219. - "Other organic Liquids" - Methyl ethyl ketone and other paintComments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3310482Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        equipment maintence as well. Degreasing activities.
                                                        parts washers and general plant maintenance.  Used for auto and
                                                        G-09. - Other production or service related processes - Cleanout ofComments:
                                                        148629CORB Waste Sequence Number:

Waste Stream Comments:

                                                        H061Waste Management System Code:
                                                        0Recycled Percentage:
                                                        832.809614Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        1836Managed Quanity:
                                                        ARD981057870Received EPAID:
                                                        847644Sequence Number:
                                                        3334836Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H061Waste Management System Code:
                                                        0Recycled Percentage:
                                                        68.0400011Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        150Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD981769110Received EPAID:
                                                        840901Sequence Number:
                                                        3310482Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        148629Waste CORB Sequence Number:

Waste Stream Off Site Mgmt:

                                                        ARD981057870Receiving EPAID:
                                                        832.809614Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBUnit of Measure:
                                                        1836Reported Quanity:
                                                        007706544FLEMainfest Document ID:
                                                        2014-09-18 00:00:00Shipment Date:
                                                        1821237Sequence Number:
                                                        3334836Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        WAD981769110Receiving EPAID:
                                                        68.0400011Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBUnit of Measure:

TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAM  (Continued) 1001806862

TC5712009.2s   Page 132



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        MunicipalLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Tacoma Public UtilitiesLegal Organization Name:
                                                        TACOMA, WA 98409-3192Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        3628 S 35TH STMailing Address:
                                                        Tacoma Public Utilities Env. ComplianceMail Name:
                                                        Hydro Electric GenerationBusiness Type:
                                                        278012340Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2013Data Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:
                                                        D001, D018, F005Federal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        221111NAICS:
                                                        WAD988502340EPA ID:
                                                        36292444Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        N 21451 HWY 101Address:
                                                        TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAMName:

                                                        G06WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3334836Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G09WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3310482Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        148629CORB Waste Sequence Number:

Waste Stream Source Code:

                                                        D018WCDA Code:
                                                        7451632Sequence Number:
                                                        3310482Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D001WCDA Code:
                                                        7451631Sequence Number:
                                                        3310482Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        F005WCDA Code:
                                                        7531951Sequence Number:

TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAM  (Continued) 1001806862

TC5712009.2s   Page 133



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        3254504Sequence Number:
                                                        143624CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Mixed Paint Related Solvents and SludgeDescription:
                                                        W219WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

Waste Stream Generated:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        TrueBatch Generation:
                                                        FalseMonthly Generation:
                                                        LQGGen Status Code:
                                                        rpost@cityoftacoma.orgSite Contact Email:
                                                        (253)502-8300Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        TACOMA, WA 98409-3192Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        3628 S 35TH STSite Contact Address:
                                                        Russell S PostSite Contact:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Effective Date:
                                                        253-502-8000Operator Phone Number:
                                                        TACOMA, WA 98409-3192Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        3628 S 35TH STOperator Address:
                                                        Not reportedOperator:
                                                        MunicipalOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Tacoma PowerOperator Organization Name:
                                                        (253)502-8000Land Phone Number:
                                                        TACOMA, WA 98409-3192Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        3628 S 35TH STLand Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        MunicipalLand Organization Type:
                                                        Tacoma Public UtilitiesLand Organization Name:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Effective Date:
                                                        (253)502-8000Legal Phone Number:
                                                        TACOMA, WA 98409-3192Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        3628 S 35TH STLegal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:

TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAM  (Continued) 1001806862

TC5712009.2s   Page 134



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        113Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD981769110Received EPAID:
                                                        810725Sequence Number:
                                                        3254498Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        143624Waste CORB Sequence Number:

Waste Stream Off Site Mgmt:

                                                        WAD981769110Receiving EPAID:
                                                        51.2568008Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBUnit of Measure:
                                                        113Reported Quanity:
                                                        005225300FLEMainfest Document ID:
                                                        2013-10-17 00:00:00Shipment Date:
                                                        1718369Sequence Number:
                                                        3254498Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        ARD981057870Receiving EPAID:
                                                        1692.38162Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBUnit of Measure:
                                                        3731Reported Quanity:
                                                        006725127FLEMainfest Document ID:
                                                        2013-12-12 00:00:00Shipment Date:
                                                        1718387Sequence Number:
                                                        3254504Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        143624CORB Waste Sequence Number:

Shipments Send:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        51.2568008Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        113Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3254498Sequence Number:
                                                        143624CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Spent Voltz Parts CleanerDescription:
                                                        W203WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        1692.38162Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        3731Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:

TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAM  (Continued) 1001806862

TC5712009.2s   Page 135



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        N 21451 HWY 101Address:
                                                        TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAMName:

                                                        G09WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3254498Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G06WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3254504Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        143624CORB Waste Sequence Number:

Waste Stream Source Code:

                                                        F005WCDA Code:
                                                        7236758Sequence Number:
                                                        3254504Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D001WCDA Code:
                                                        7236757Sequence Number:
                                                        3254504Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D018WCDA Code:
                                                        7236437Sequence Number:
                                                        3254498Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D001WCDA Code:
                                                        7236436Sequence Number:
                                                        3254498Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        143624CORB Waste Sequence Number:

Waste Stream EPA Code:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3254504Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        Ethyl Ketone with inorganic paint sludge.
                                                        no more of this waste will be produced. A-8. Mixture contains Methyl
                                                        A-7 - Internal recoating of Cushman Penstocks.  When they are finishedComments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3254498Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        used during routine maintenance.
                                                        G-09.  Change out of parts sovent from parts washer.  Parts washerComments:
                                                        143624CORB Waste Sequence Number:

Waste Stream Comments:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        0Recycled Percentage:
                                                        1692.38162Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        3731Managed Quanity:
                                                        ARD981057870Received EPAID:
                                                        810751Sequence Number:
                                                        3254504Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H061Waste Management System Code:
                                                        0Recycled Percentage:
                                                        51.2568008Kilogram Quanity:

TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAM  (Continued) 1001806862

TC5712009.2s   Page 136



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        (253)502-8300Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        TACOMA, WA 98409-3192Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        3628 S 35TH STSite Contact Address:
                                                        Russell S PostSite Contact:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Effective Date:
                                                        253-502-8000Operator Phone Number:
                                                        TACOMA, WA 98409-3192Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        3628 S 35TH STOperator Address:
                                                        Not reportedOperator:
                                                        MunicipalOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Tacoma PowerOperator Organization Name:
                                                        (253)502-8000Land Phone Number:
                                                        TACOMA, WA 98409-3192Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        3628 S 35TH STLand Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        MunicipalLand Organization Type:
                                                        Tacoma Public UtilitiesLand Organization Name:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Effective Date:
                                                        (253)502-8000Legal Phone Number:
                                                        TACOMA, WA 98409-3192Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        3628 S 35TH STLegal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        MunicipalLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Tacoma Public UtilitiesLegal Organization Name:
                                                        TACOMA, WA 98409-3192Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        3628 S 35TH STMailing Address:
                                                        Tacoma Public Utilities Env. ComplianceMail Name:
                                                        Hydro Electric GenerationBusiness Type:
                                                        278012340Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2012Data Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:
                                                        D001, D035, F005Federal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        221111NAICS:
                                                        WAD988502340EPA ID:
                                                        36292444Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:

TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAM  (Continued) 1001806862

TC5712009.2s   Page 137



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        681286Sequence Number:
                                                        2688654Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        138321Waste CORB Sequence Number:

Waste Stream Off Site Mgmt:

                                                        ARD981057870Receiving EPAID:
                                                        416.404807Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBUnit of Measure:
                                                        918Reported Quanity:
                                                        005122404FLEMainfest Document ID:
                                                        2012-06-26 00:00:00Shipment Date:
                                                        1403620Sequence Number:
                                                        2688654Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        138321CORB Waste Sequence Number:

Shipments Send:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        416.404807Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        918Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        2688654Sequence Number:
                                                        138321CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Used Paint Thinner and SludgeDescription:
                                                        W219WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

Waste Stream Generated:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        TrueBatch Generation:
                                                        FalseMonthly Generation:
                                                        MQGGen Status Code:
                                                        rpost@cityoftacoma.orgSite Contact Email:

TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAM  (Continued) 1001806862

TC5712009.2s   Page 138



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2011Data Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:
                                                        D001, D018Federal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        221111NAICS:
                                                        WAD988502340EPA ID:
                                                        36292444Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        N 21451 HWY 101Address:
                                                        TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAMName:

                                                        G06WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2688654Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        138321CORB Waste Sequence Number:

Waste Stream Source Code:

                                                        F005WCDA Code:
                                                        6008996Sequence Number:
                                                        2688654Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D035WCDA Code:
                                                        6008995Sequence Number:
                                                        2688654Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D001WCDA Code:
                                                        6008994Sequence Number:
                                                        2688654Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        138321CORB Waste Sequence Number:

Waste Stream EPA Code:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2688654Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        equipment cleanup.
                                                        A-8. W219 - Spent paint thinner used for surface preparation and paintComments:
                                                        138321CORB Waste Sequence Number:

Waste Stream Comments:

                                                        H061Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        416.404807Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        918Managed Quanity:
                                                        ARD981057870Received EPAID:

TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAM  (Continued) 1001806862

TC5712009.2s   Page 139



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:
Waste Stream Generated:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        TrueBatch Generation:
                                                        FalseMonthly Generation:
                                                        SQGGen Status Code:
                                                        rpost@cityoftacoma.orgSite Contact Email:
                                                        (253)502-8300Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        TACOMA, WA 98409-3192Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        3628 S 35TH STSite Contact Address:
                                                        Russell S PostSite Contact:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Effective Date:
                                                        253-502-8000Operator Phone Number:
                                                        TACOMA, WA 98409-3192Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        3628 S 35TH STOperator Address:
                                                        Not reportedOperator:
                                                        MunicipalOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Tacoma PowerOperator Organization Name:
                                                        (253)502-8000Land Phone Number:
                                                        TACOMA, WA 98409-3192Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        3628 S 35TH STLand Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        MunicipalLand Organization Type:
                                                        Tacoma Public UtilitiesLand Organization Name:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Effective Date:
                                                        (253)502-8000Legal Phone Number:
                                                        TACOMA, WA 98409-3192Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        3628 S 35TH STLegal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        MunicipalLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Tacoma Public UtilitiesLegal Organization Name:
                                                        TACOMA, WA 98409-3192Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        3628 S 35TH STMailing Address:
                                                        Tacoma Public Utilities Env. ComplianceMail Name:
                                                        Hydro Electric GenerationBusiness Type:
                                                        278012340Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:

TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAM  (Continued) 1001806862

TC5712009.2s   Page 140



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        D001WCDA Code:
                                                        5833404Sequence Number:
                                                        2651660Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        133560CORB Waste Sequence Number:

Waste Stream EPA Code:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2651660Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        contains grease, grit, and gas (benzene).
                                                        G09.  Clean out of parts washers.  Contaminated parts washer solventComments:
                                                        133560CORB Waste Sequence Number:

Waste Stream Comments:

                                                        H061Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        51.2568008Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        113Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD981769110Received EPAID:
                                                        647689Sequence Number:
                                                        2651660Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        133560Waste CORB Sequence Number:

Waste Stream Off Site Mgmt:

                                                        WAD981769110Receiving EPAID:
                                                        51.2568008Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBUnit of Measure:
                                                        113Reported Quanity:
                                                        004448533FLEMainfest Document ID:
                                                        2011-07-19 00:00:00Shipment Date:
                                                        1310635Sequence Number:
                                                        2651660Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        133560CORB Waste Sequence Number:

Shipments Send:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        51.2568008Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        113Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        2651660Sequence Number:
                                                        133560CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Waste Solvent and FuelsDescription:
                                                        W203WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:

TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAM  (Continued) 1001806862

TC5712009.2s   Page 141



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        3628 S 35TH STOperator Address:
                                                        Not reportedOperator:
                                                        MunicipalOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Tacoma PowerOperator Organization Name:
                                                        (253)502-8000Land Phone Number:
                                                        TACOMA, WA 98409-3192Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        3628 S 35TH STLand Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        MunicipalLand Organization Type:
                                                        Tacoma Public UtilitiesLand Organization Name:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Effective Date:
                                                        (253)502-8000Legal Phone Number:
                                                        TACOMA, WA 98409-3192Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        3628 S 35TH STLegal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        MunicipalLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Tacoma Public UtilitiesLegal Organization Name:
                                                        TACOMA, WA 98409-3192Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        3628 S 35TH STMailing Address:
                                                        Tacoma Power Environ. ComplianceMail Name:
                                                        Hydro Electric GenerationBusiness Type:
                                                        278012340Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2010Data Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:
                                                        Not reportedFederal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        221111NAICS:
                                                        WAD988502340EPA ID:
                                                        36292444Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        N 21451 HWY 101Address:
                                                        TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAMName:

                                                        D018WCDA Code:
                                                        5833405Sequence Number:
                                                        2651660Waste Sequence Number:

TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAM  (Continued) 1001806862

TC5712009.2s   Page 142



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Tacoma Power Environ. ComplianceMail Name:
                                                        Hydro Electric GenerationBusiness Type:
                                                        278012340Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2009Data Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:
                                                        Not reportedFederal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        221111NAICS:
                                                        WAD988502340EPA ID:
                                                        36292444Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        N 21451 HWY 101Address:
                                                        TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAMName:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        FalseBatch Generation:
                                                        TrueMonthly Generation:
                                                        SQGGen Status Code:
                                                        rpost@cityoftacoma.orgSite Contact Email:
                                                        (253)502-8300Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        TACOMA, WA 98409-3192Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        3628 S 35TH STSite Contact Address:
                                                        Russell S PostSite Contact:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Effective Date:
                                                        253-502-8000Operator Phone Number:
                                                        TACOMA, WA 98409-3192Operator City,State,Zip:

TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAM  (Continued) 1001806862

TC5712009.2s   Page 143



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        2WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

Waste Stream Generated:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        TrueBatch Generation:
                                                        FalseMonthly Generation:
                                                        MQGGen Status Code:
                                                        rpost@cityoftacoma.orgSite Contact Email:
                                                        (253)502-8300Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        TACOMA, WA 98409-3192Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        3628 S 35TH STSite Contact Address:
                                                        Russell S PostSite Contact:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Effective Date:
                                                        253-502-8000Operator Phone Number:
                                                        TACOMA, WA 98409-3192Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        3628 S 35TH STOperator Address:
                                                        Not reportedOperator:
                                                        MunicipalOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Tacoma PowerOperator Organization Name:
                                                        (253)502-8000Land Phone Number:
                                                        TACOMA, WA 98409-3192Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        3628 S 35TH STLand Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        MunicipalLand Organization Type:
                                                        Tacoma Public UtilitiesLand Organization Name:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Effective Date:
                                                        (253)502-8000Legal Phone Number:
                                                        TACOMA, WA 98409-3192Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        3628 S 35TH STLegal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        MunicipalLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Tacoma Public UtilitiesLegal Organization Name:
                                                        TACOMA, WA 98409-3192Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        3628 S 35TH STMailing Address:

TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAM  (Continued) 1001806862

TC5712009.2s   Page 144



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        68.040001170288022Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        150Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        2138872Sequence Number:
                                                        122789CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Lead Paint Chips and RagsDescription:
                                                        W002WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        2WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        4.5360000780192014Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        10Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        2138945Sequence Number:
                                                        122789CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Flammable liquid labpackDescription:
                                                        W001WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        2WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        22.680000390096009Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        50Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        2138954Sequence Number:
                                                        122789CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Corrosive labpack - off spec chemicalsDescription:
                                                        W001WCDB Code:

TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAM  (Continued) 1001806862

TC5712009.2s   Page 145



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        2138965Sequence Number:
                                                        122789CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Caustic LabpackDescription:
                                                        W001WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        2WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        362.88000624153614Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        800Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        2138859Sequence Number:
                                                        122789CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Loose pack paints solvents and coatingsDescription:
                                                        W209WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        9.0720001560384027Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        20Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        2138906Sequence Number:
                                                        122789CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Loospack aerosol consolodationDescription:
                                                        W211WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:

TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAM  (Continued) 1001806862

TC5712009.2s   Page 146



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        1025973Sequence Number:
                                                        2138954Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        WAD991281767Receiving EPAID:
                                                        362.880006241536Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBUnit of Measure:
                                                        800Reported Quanity:
                                                        186168Mainfest Document ID:
                                                        12/22/2009Shipment Date:
                                                        1025759Sequence Number:
                                                        2138859Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        WAD991281767Receiving EPAID:
                                                        68.040001170288Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBUnit of Measure:
                                                        150Reported Quanity:
                                                        186168Mainfest Document ID:
                                                        12/22/2009Shipment Date:
                                                        1025777Sequence Number:
                                                        2138872Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        WAD991281767Receiving EPAID:
                                                        34.020000585144Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBUnit of Measure:
                                                        75Reported Quanity:
                                                        186168Mainfest Document ID:
                                                        12/22/2009Shipment Date:
                                                        1026006Sequence Number:
                                                        2138965Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        WAD991281767Receiving EPAID:
                                                        9.0720001560384Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBUnit of Measure:
                                                        20Reported Quanity:
                                                        186168Mainfest Document ID:
                                                        12/22/2009Shipment Date:
                                                        1025835Sequence Number:
                                                        2138906Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        WAD991281767Receiving EPAID:
                                                        4.5360000780192Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBUnit of Measure:
                                                        10Reported Quanity:
                                                        186168Mainfest Document ID:
                                                        12/22/2009Shipment Date:
                                                        1025942Sequence Number:
                                                        2138945Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        122789CORB Waste Sequence Number:

Shipments Send:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        34.020000585144011Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        75Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:

TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAM  (Continued) 1001806862

TC5712009.2s   Page 147



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        34.020000585144011Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        75Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD991281767Received EPAID:
                                                        528285Sequence Number:
                                                        2138965Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        9.0720001560384027Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        20Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD991281767Received EPAID:
                                                        528208Sequence Number:
                                                        2138906Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        22.680000390096009Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        50Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD991281767Received EPAID:
                                                        528281Sequence Number:
                                                        2138954Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H061Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        362.88000624153614Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        800Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD991281767Received EPAID:
                                                        528148Sequence Number:
                                                        2138859Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        4.5360000780192014Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        10Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD991281767Received EPAID:
                                                        528271Sequence Number:
                                                        2138945Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H111Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        68.040001170288022Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        150Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD991281767Received EPAID:
                                                        528167Sequence Number:
                                                        2138872Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        122789Waste CORB Sequence Number:

Waste Stream Off Site Mgmt:

                                                        WAD991281767Receiving EPAID:
                                                        22.680000390096Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBUnit of Measure:
                                                        50Reported Quanity:
                                                        186168Mainfest Document ID:
                                                        12/22/2009Shipment Date:

TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAM  (Continued) 1001806862

TC5712009.2s   Page 148



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        D001WCDA Code:
                                                        4638853Sequence Number:
                                                        2138906Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D035WCDA Code:
                                                        4639542Sequence Number:
                                                        2138859Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D001WCDA Code:
                                                        4639540Sequence Number:
                                                        2138859Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D001WCDA Code:
                                                        4639139Sequence Number:
                                                        2138945Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D002WCDA Code:
                                                        4639305Sequence Number:
                                                        2138954Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D008WCDA Code:
                                                        4639541Sequence Number:
                                                        2138859Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        122789CORB Waste Sequence Number:

Waste Stream EPA Code:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2138906Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        petroleum distillates.
                                                        from hydro projuct maintenance activities. Aerosol paints and
                                                        G09. Other production or service related processes - Cans accumulatedComments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2138859Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        electric plant maintenance.
                                                        packing of out dated unused paints and coatings left over from hydro
                                                        G19. Other one time or intermittent processes - Clean out and looseComments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2138954Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        date and surplus chemicals no longer used at the hydroproject.
                                                        G19. Other one time or intermittant processes - Labpacking of out ofComments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2138965Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        outdated chemicals no longer used at the hydro electric project.
                                                        G19. Other one time or intermittent processes - General clean out ofComments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2138945Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        from old stock no longer used.
                                                        accumulated materials for transport and disposal. Flammable materials
                                                        G19. Other one time and intermittant processes - Pack up ofComments:
                                                        122789CORB Waste Sequence Number:

Waste Stream Comments:

TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAM  (Continued) 1001806862

TC5712009.2s   Page 149



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

1 additional WA MANIFEST: record(s) in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

                                                        G19WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2138954Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G19WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2138965Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G19WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2138945Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G19WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2138859Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G06WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2138872Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G09WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2138906Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        122789CORB Waste Sequence Number:

Waste Stream Source Code:

                                                        D008WCDA Code:
                                                        4638892Sequence Number:
                                                        2138872Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D002WCDA Code:
                                                        4639366Sequence Number:
                                                        2138965Waste Sequence Number:

TACOMA PUBLIC UTILITIES CUSHMAN DAM  (Continued) 1001806862

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

OSHA ESTABLISHMENT
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110070325103Registry ID:

FINDS:

5841 ft.
1.106 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
285 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
WSW 121 W ENTERPISE RD ATTN: PAUL BOUSKA    N/A
56 FINDSTECHWOOD 1024409130

TC5712009.2s   Page 150

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6l5N6NEslLwG5cHCNRSA3EYjNDnEE7kHstBAAYJjLUgIw..IGok94vfxc7tqH5AlClIq3TgJR1XfS3vrAeSw4S.eEk7lY4eMjyZJ4wwtDvBsnyE0ExKkBkPa79tbkUk4HlD53acVtCzgBaAnAYup3Sr8YSZ3JvDrjYq16mFAlTsD5ofBNOMY303SNBBXEHBSsX3E9P1PLfQDwiupGDwg3qmrcG3fHWPjCfX1AYnjRE7wSKSdA.Hj4qNyEjbfYLHojg8t4iZVDNltnXYaEIcd4I.R7hWAkaWZHqjFCurVtfhyBKCnAmwV6oNTlHDW5tyNNODg4A9zN.WAEUEmsYDc3LyuLVhWwYE4G7IK83YAcFC4HMqICFn6AdBaREy4SKp6AIkJ444AESfsYFcVjQYq57IPDktEnNfmEYix30Hr7xmsk7nnHFjS3FAyt9iqBNBwABGgClTkYTrmJxFdjcNY2jRZUnRtgKzwItU65.T1.SzZ.h1qIoUgvi4iocHVkY5D9T5L6tSalfqg56tyN3.s4WcsNRMDEMtis.lK3BUlLT0owvaEGMoa43z3cVSrHw4KCJEe3jfBRdBPSHDHA6O.3v3oEtE8YNh8j3Oh4UEXDXBsn97eEgsNBwvj7KjSkRSCH7jJ3SpFtR9QBZLsAVel9oOKYRXrJWyHjWUOBTCbUS0ggb0gIX5d9ewr.yee.CbxIBqv51mkokzPklp791573
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6l5N6NEslLwG5cHCNRSA3EYjNDnEE7kHstBAAYJjLUgIw..IGok94vfxc7tqH5AlClIq3TgJR1XfS3vrAeSw4S.eEk7lY4eMjyZJ4wwtDvBsnyE0ExKkBkPa79tbkUk4HlD53acVtCzgBaAnAYup3Sr8YSZ3JvDrjYq16mFAlTsD5ofBNOMY303SNBBXEHBSsX3E9P1PLfQDwiupGDwg3qmrcG3fHWPjCfX1AYnjRE7wSKSdA.Hj4qNyEjbfYLHojg8t4iZVDNltnXYaEIcd4I.R7hWAkaWZHqjFCurVtfhyBKCnAmwV6oNTlHDW5tyNNODg4A9zN.WAEUEmsYDc3LyuLVhWwYE4G7IK83YAcFC4HMqICFn6AdBaREy4SKp6AIkJ444AESfsYFcVjQYq57IPDktEnNfmEYix30Hr7xmsk7nnHFjS3FAyt9iqBNBwABGgClTkYTrmJxFdjcNY2jRZUnRtgKzwItU65.T1.SzZ.h1qIoUgvi4iocHVkY5D9T5L6tSalfqg56tyN3.s4WcsNRMDEMtis.lK3BUlLT0owvaEGMoa43z3cVSrHw4KCJEe3jfBRdBPSHDHA6O.3v3oEtE8YNh8j3Oh4UEXDXBsn97eEgsNBwvj7KjSkRSCH7jJ3SpFtR9QBZLsAVel9oOKYRXrJWyHjWUOBTCbUS0ggb0gIX5d9ewr.yee.CbxIBqv51mkokzPklp791573
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6N796GUDNbuX7COv9Z6n3p7oGidPUBVRDlRIAB5EbeM1uSRiXi3n41T0CO6rOz9MvQES31rCZvZK6458nb4f4KyJp0Nl7u.qojMe4BRgiuUadYXiPj7lBGJPBiJIVnx7RtkS37L4lv0xRH8TISAZ33gCBDp.5RBoE68z6aNGNjzI706v9FgA3XD0G.qgUlYeD9GM9Zn4botqu1xLXdqB3xY3CTiNOvqgvuzhAGUmZIDI6xCCnHpF4QBcpw3V7lUpovxt4XDnibXndFrgPqQj4SHGBZXIVxcbR10RCiWglnkRRTKzIwl06yyYNP6L7JFu9dGB4sneGVyEU6hqDLCm3YcYbZdjuEg9XSpQ88B0CEpkOFqfvlzUArsNZE3B6LXXnGJ54gyUp8357AHLofza5rK8ifJPdz5tP3.E3UQXBh8.V1cLR5kx3x1ol5RCR8dtI14WCoQ6BORa5KhKEXdN2BuBebL9MB9t1NEA57olSCeHRLxhij9tvlkOinnb3O7GnrrE6WKrNDjX7W359e7f4aQuGI3FUxbpDcsT3fJXb.I7uNviXtFD4dlSC5DSOMJ0vaPZ3T7iZWSe69NmnSB65vGCpspj7J6YoEzG7K5aiPVrddYfPUYc7kBkBPVxVsRfRnzR3orolJitRELIITmlCyc5BlLA5UrbEMND4lJ4e3JVMYFA1s5M6D8USM5jRrdci8PS3la0ihiG3v9.neAu3
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6N796GUDNbuX7COv9Z6n3p7oGidPUBVRDlRIAB5EbeM1uSRiXi3n41T0CO6rOz9MvQES31rCZvZK6458nb4f4KyJp0Nl7u.qojMe4BRgiuUadYXiPj7lBGJPBiJIVnx7RtkS37L4lv0xRH8TISAZ33gCBDp.5RBoE68z6aNGNjzI706v9FgA3XD0G.qgUlYeD9GM9Zn4botqu1xLXdqB3xY3CTiNOvqgvuzhAGUmZIDI6xCCnHpF4QBcpw3V7lUpovxt4XDnibXndFrgPqQj4SHGBZXIVxcbR10RCiWglnkRRTKzIwl06yyYNP6L7JFu9dGB4sneGVyEU6hqDLCm3YcYbZdjuEg9XSpQ88B0CEpkOFqfvlzUArsNZE3B6LXXnGJ54gyUp8357AHLofza5rK8ifJPdz5tP3.E3UQXBh8.V1cLR5kx3x1ol5RCR8dtI14WCoQ6BORa5KhKEXdN2BuBebL9MB9t1NEA57olSCeHRLxhij9tvlkOinnb3O7GnrrE6WKrNDjX7W359e7f4aQuGI3FUxbpDcsT3fJXb.I7uNviXtFD4dlSC5DSOMJ0vaPZ3T7iZWSe69NmnSB65vGCpspj7J6YoEzG7K5aiPVrddYfPUYc7kBkBPVxVsRfRnzR3orolJitRELIITmlCyc5BlLA5UrbEMND4lJ4e3JVMYFA1s5M6D8USM5jRrdci8PS3la0ihiG3v9.neAu3


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                             -123.09810706899999Longitude:
                                             47.251844484999999Latitude:
                                             Dam SiteDate Interaction 3:
                                             1999-05-26 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             Not reportedProgram ID:
                                             Not reportedFacility Alt.:
                                             DSSProgram Data:
                                             WATRESEcology Program:
                                             DAMInteraction 2:
                                             AInteraction 1:
                                             51414Interaction:

                              55386655Facility Id:
                              ROSAND DAMFacility Name:

ALLSITES:

5842 ft. Site 1 of 2 in cluster K
1.106 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
216 ft.

 

> 1 , WA  
East    N/A
K57 WA ALLSITESROSAND DAM S110626749

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110015453953Registry ID:

FINDS:

5868 ft. Site 2 of 2 in cluster K
1.111 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
216 ft.

 

> 1 MASON (County), WA  
East    N/A
K58 FINDSROSAND DAM 1007068795

          YesGenerator:
          USFacility country:
          SHELTON, WA 98584
          450 W. ENTERPRISE RD.Facility Address:
          VACANTFacility name:
          WAW000000178EPAID:

PADS:

5872 ft. Site 3 of 3 in cluster I
1.112 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
279 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
SW 450 W. ENTERPRISE RD. WAW000000178
I59 PADSVACANT 1005481603

TC5712009.2s   Page 151

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6N796GUDNbuX7COv9Z6n3p7oGidPUBVRDlRIAB5EbeM1uSRiXi3n41T0CO6rOz9MvQES31rCZvZK6458nb4f4KyJp0Nl7u.qojMe4BRgiuUadYXiPj7lBGJPBiJIVnx7RtkS37L4lv0xRH8TISAZ33gCBDp.5RBoE68z6aNGNjzI706v9FgA3XD0G.qgUlYeD9GM9Zn4botqu1xLXdqB3xY3CTiNOvqgvuzhAGUmZIDI6xCCnHpF4QBcpw3V7lUpovxt4XDnibXndFrgPqQj4SHGBZXIVxcbR10RCiWglnkRRTKzIwl06yyYNP6L7JFu9dGB4sneGVyEU6hqDLCm3YcYbZdjuEg9XSpQ88B0CEpkOFqfvlzUArsNZE3B6LXXnGJ54gyUp8357AHLofza5rK8ifJPdz5tP3.E3UQXBh8.V1cLR5kx3x1ol5RCR8dtI14WCoQ6BORa5KhKEXdN2BuBebL9MB9t1NEA57olSCeHRLxhij9tvlkOinnb3O7GnrrE6WKrNDjX7W359e7f4aQuGI3FUxbpDcsT3fJXb.I7uNviXtFD4dlSC5DSOMJ0vaPZ3T7iZWSe69NmnSB63vGCpspj7J6YoEzGAK5aiPVrddYfPUYc3kBkBPVxVsRfRnzR9orolJitRELIITmlByc5BlLA5UrbEMNDAlJ4e3JVMYFA1s5MCD8USM5jRrdci8PS8la0ihiG3v9.neAu3
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6N796GUDNbuX7COv9Z6n3p7oGidPUBVRDlRIAB5EbeM1uSRiXi3n41T0CO6rOz9MvQES31rCZvZK6458nb4f4KyJp0Nl7u.qojMe4BRgiuUadYXiPj7lBGJPBiJIVnx7RtkS37L4lv0xRH8TISAZ33gCBDp.5RBoE68z6aNGNjzI706v9FgA3XD0G.qgUlYeD9GM9Zn4botqu1xLXdqB3xY3CTiNOvqgvuzhAGUmZIDI6xCCnHpF4QBcpw3V7lUpovxt4XDnibXndFrgPqQj4SHGBZXIVxcbR10RCiWglnkRRTKzIwl06yyYNP6L7JFu9dGB4sneGVyEU6hqDLCm3YcYbZdjuEg9XSpQ88B0CEpkOFqfvlzUArsNZE3B6LXXnGJ54gyUp8357AHLofza5rK8ifJPdz5tP3.E3UQXBh8.V1cLR5kx3x1ol5RCR8dtI14WCoQ6BORa5KhKEXdN2BuBebL9MB9t1NEA57olSCeHRLxhij9tvlkOinnb3O7GnrrE6WKrNDjX7W359e7f4aQuGI3FUxbpDcsT3fJXb.I7uNviXtFD4dlSC5DSOMJ0vaPZ3T7iZWSe69NmnSB63vGCpspj7J6YoEzGAK5aiPVrddYfPUYc3kBkBPVxVsRfRnzR9orolJitRELIITmlByc5BlLA5UrbEMNDAlJ4e3JVMYFA1s5MCD8USM5jRrdci8PS8la0ihiG3v9.neAu3


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

          03/26/2002Cert. date:
          USMailing country:
          SHELTON, WA 98584
          450 W. BUSINESS PARK RD.Mailing address:
          Not reportedContact Email:
          Not reportedContact extension:
          000-000-0000Contact tel:
          BOB ROBINSONContact name:
          Not reportedContact title:
          PORT OF SHELTONFacility owner name:
          NoSmelter:
          NoResearch facility:
          NoDisposer:
          NoTransporter:
          NoStorer:

VACANT  (Continued) 1005481603

          1187Facility ID:

          SouthwestResponsible Unit:
          Not reportedBedrock:
          Not reportedAir:
          Not reportedSediment:
          Not reportedSoil:
          Not reportedSurface Water:
          Confirmed Above Cleanup LevelGround Water:
          Halogenated OrganicsContaminant Name:
          Not reportedPSI?:
          Cleanup StartedSite Status:
          2411Clean Up Siteid:
          4Rank Status:
          Not reportedBrownfield Status:
          47.24349 / -123.14355Lat/Long:
          SouthwestRegion:
          1187Facility ID:

CSCSL:

SOUTHWEST REGIONAL OFFICERegion Decode:
1187EDR Link ID:
SWRegion:
4Rank:
1187FSID Number:
Cleanup StartedFacility Status:
Hazardous Sites ListFacility Type:
Not reportededr_zip:
MASONedr_fcnty:
Not reportededr_fzip:
WAedr_fstat:
SHELTON, WACity,State,Zip:
Not reportedAddress:
SHELTON PORT OF ALL STAR AEROName:

HSL:

5873 ft.
1.112 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
284 ft.

 

> 1 WA ALLSITESSHELTON, WA  98584
WSW WA CSCSLSANDERSON FIELD    N/A
60 WA HSLPORT OF SHELTON ALL STAR AERO S100836275

TC5712009.2s   Page 152



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                             -123.14353506400001Longitude:
                                             47.24348449Latitude:
                                             State Cleanup SiteDate Interaction 3:
                                             1900-01-01 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             Not reportedProgram ID:
                                             PORT OF SHELTON ALL STAR AEROFacility Alt.:
                                             ISISProgram Data:
                                             TOXICSEcology Program:
                                             SCSInteraction 2:
                                             AInteraction 1:
                                             2322Interaction:

                              1187Facility Id:
                              PORT OF SHELTON ALL STAR AEROFacility Name:

ALLSITES:

          SouthwestResponsible Unit:
          Not reportedBedrock:
          Not reportedAir:
          Not reportedSediment:
          Confirmed Above Cleanup LevelSoil:
          SuspectedSurface Water:
          SuspectedGround Water:
          Petroleum Products-UnspecifiedContaminant Name:
          Not reportedPSI?:
          Cleanup StartedSite Status:
          2411Clean Up Siteid:
          4Rank Status:
          Not reportedBrownfield Status:
          47.24349 / -123.14355Lat/Long:
          SouthwestRegion:
          1187Facility ID:

          SouthwestResponsible Unit:
          Not reportedBedrock:
          SuspectedAir:
          Not reportedSediment:
          Confirmed Above Cleanup LevelSoil:
          SuspectedSurface Water:
          Confirmed Above Cleanup LevelGround Water:
          Metals Priority PollutantsContaminant Name:
          Not reportedPSI?:
          Cleanup StartedSite Status:
          2411Clean Up Siteid:
          4Rank Status:
          Not reportedBrownfield Status:
          47.24349 / -123.14355Lat/Long:
          SouthwestRegion:

PORT OF SHELTON ALL STAR AERO  (Continued) S100836275

TC5712009.2s   Page 153



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    -837Days to Expiration:
                    08/01/2016Effective Date:
                    07/31/2021Permit Expiration Date:
                    Not reportedWRIA:
                    Not reportedEcology Contact:
                    Not reportedPermit SubStatus:
                    ActivePermit Status:
                    Not reportedPermit Version:
                    ST0006216Permit ID:
                    Not reportedLongitude:
                    Not reportedLatitude:
                    07/15/2016Date Issued:
                    SouthwestAdmin Region:
                    Municipal to ground SWDP IPFacility Type:
                    Not reportedFacility Status:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    10891 SR101Address:
                    SHELTON WATER RECLAMATION FACILITYName:

NPDES:

                                             -123.133985068Longitude:
                                             47.234994489999998Latitude:
                                             Municipal to ground SWDPDate Interaction 3:
                                             2009-11-01 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             ST0006216Program ID:
                                             SHELTON WATER RECLAMATION FACILITYFacility Alt.:
                                             PARISProgram Data:
                                             WATQUALEcology Program:
                                             MUNI2GROUNDSWDPInteraction 2:
                                             AInteraction 1:
                                             88809Interaction:

                                             -123.133985068Longitude:
                                             47.234994489999998Latitude:
                                             Emergency/Haz Chem Rpt TIDate Interaction 3:
                                             2012-05-30 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             CRK000079820Program ID:
                                             CITY OF SHELTON WWTP CLASS A RECLAIM PLANTFacility Alt.:
                                             EPCRAProgram Data:
                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             TIER2Interaction 2:
                                             AInteraction 1:
                                             103018Interaction:

                              9737Facility Id:
                              SHELTON WATER RECLAMATION FACILITYFacility Name:

ALLSITES:

5952 ft. Site 1 of 2 in cluster L
1.127 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
266 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
SSW WA NPDES10891 SR101    N/A
L61 WA ALLSITESSHELTON WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY S110123786

TC5712009.2s   Page 154



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110040164309Registry ID:

FINDS:

5952 ft. Site 2 of 2 in cluster L
1.127 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
266 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
SSW 10891 SR101    N/A
L62 FINDSSHELTON WATER RECLAMATION FACILITY 1012281354

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110056478547Registry ID:

FINDS:

5965 ft. Site 1 of 2 in cluster M
1.130 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
238 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
ESE 31 E VANCE CT    N/A
M63 FINDSTRANSMISSIONS PLUS AUTOMOTIVE 1016706238

                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             LSCInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             91308Interaction:

                              4542Facility Id:
                              TRANSMISSIONS PLUS AUTOMOTIVEFacility Name:

ALLSITES:

5965 ft. Site 2 of 2 in cluster M
1.130 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
238 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
ESE 31 E VANCE CT    N/A
M64 WA ALLSITESTRANSMISSIONS PLUS AUTOMOTIVE S110275923

TC5712009.2s   Page 155

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6N796GUDNbuX7COv9Z6n3p7oGidPUBVRDlRIAB5EbeM1uSRiXi3n41T0CO6rOz9MvQES31rCZvZK6458nb4f4KyJp0Nl7u.qojMe4BRgiuUadYXiPj7lBGJPBiJIVnx7RtkS37L4lv0xRH8TISAZ33gCBDp.5RBoE68z6aNGNjzI706v9FgA3XD0G.qgUlYeD9GM9Zn4botqu1xLXdqB3xY3CTiNOvqgvuzhAGUmZIDI6xCCnHpF4QBcpw3V7lUpovxt4XDnibXndFrgPqQj4SHGBZXIVxcbR10RCiWglnkRRTKzIwl06yyYNP6L7JFu9dGB4sneGVyEU6hqDLCm3YcYbZdjuEg9XSpQ88B0CEpkOFqfvlzUArsNZE3B6LXXnGJ54gyUp8357AHLofza5rK8ifJPdz5tP3.E3UQXBh8.V1cLR5kx3x1ol5RCR8dtI14WCoQ6BORa5KhKEXdN2BuBebL9MB9t1NEA57olSCeHRLxhij9tvlkOinnb3O7GnrrE6WKrNDjX7W359e7f4aQuGI3FUxbpDcsT3fJXb.I7uNviXtFD4dlSC5DSOMJ0vaPZ3T7iZWSe69NmnSB64vGCpspj7J6YoEzG5K5aiPVrddYfPUYc5kBkBPVxVsRfRnzRBorolJitRELIITml4yc5BlLA5UrbEMND6lJ4e3JVMYFA1s5M8D8USM5jRrdci8PS7la0ihiG3v9.neAu3
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6N796GUDNbuX7COv9Z6n3p7oGidPUBVRDlRIAB5EbeM1uSRiXi3n41T0CO6rOz9MvQES31rCZvZK6458nb4f4KyJp0Nl7u.qojMe4BRgiuUadYXiPj7lBGJPBiJIVnx7RtkS37L4lv0xRH8TISAZ33gCBDp.5RBoE68z6aNGNjzI706v9FgA3XD0G.qgUlYeD9GM9Zn4botqu1xLXdqB3xY3CTiNOvqgvuzhAGUmZIDI6xCCnHpF4QBcpw3V7lUpovxt4XDnibXndFrgPqQj4SHGBZXIVxcbR10RCiWglnkRRTKzIwl06yyYNP6L7JFu9dGB4sneGVyEU6hqDLCm3YcYbZdjuEg9XSpQ88B0CEpkOFqfvlzUArsNZE3B6LXXnGJ54gyUp8357AHLofza5rK8ifJPdz5tP3.E3UQXBh8.V1cLR5kx3x1ol5RCR8dtI14WCoQ6BORa5KhKEXdN2BuBebL9MB9t1NEA57olSCeHRLxhij9tvlkOinnb3O7GnrrE6WKrNDjX7W359e7f4aQuGI3FUxbpDcsT3fJXb.I7uNviXtFD4dlSC5DSOMJ0vaPZ3T7iZWSe69NmnSB64vGCpspj7J6YoEzG5K5aiPVrddYfPUYc5kBkBPVxVsRfRnzRBorolJitRELIITml4yc5BlLA5UrbEMND6lJ4e3JVMYFA1s5M8D8USM5jRrdci8PS7la0ihiG3v9.neAu3
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=4V74veVE07Lr2mHvy8egj9uQEfs0Cz3ZjLkar5h2tomKjHn03lPys78bL3QdgH4jeIAMsu7RQ492X6f04sIb2U5CEtz3B4MeVRy7G62jjvMJewc8UPEuz0OH2neLpNrUt9mlmCjHFD3yYye98.G3pegY5jdX3Dxu5cQrQBndfylsR34wSV8k7cO3vrvULey52rjE2e0aV7FWLsZrJ.9pkmupHkw3UiyWh8wq4SpgWqj3D2B3uplQCL24nfmcsdtBqSCfpzLJ175ZPGjWq4FykxEa8zuqA5BqhcG4rqVr37pI3gvveketE2n7E2Z0x.3voLD8rjm2czmArHQF3u8yRd84Z8WbgZ6jVz9eiuzuQsI295funsUv8mhCetzah4QGZGCj735RskbEaILAzg5nqhiS2
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=4V74veVE07Lr2mHvy8egj9uQEfs0Cz3ZjLkar5h2tomKjHn03lPys78bL3QdgH4jeIAMsu7RQ492X6f04sIb2U5CEtz3B4MeVRy7G62jjvMJewc8UPEuz0OH2neLpNrUt9mlmCjHFD3yYye98.G3pegY5jdX3Dxu5cQrQBndfylsR34wSV8k7cO3vrvULey52rjE2e0aV7FWLsZrJ.9pkmupHkw3UiyWh8wq4SpgWqj3D2B3uplQCL24nfmcsdtBqSCfpzLJ175ZPGjWq4FykxEa8zuqA5BqhcG4rqVr37pI3gvveketE2n7E2Z0x.3voLD8rjm2czmArHQF3u8yRd84Z8WbgZ6jVz9eiuzuQsI295funsUv8mhCetzah4QGZGCj735RskbEaILAzg5nqhiS2


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                             -123.10056507199999Longitude:
                                             47.240872484999997Latitude:
                                             Local Source Cntrl 7/09-3Date Interaction 3:
                                             2009-07-22 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             Not reportedProgram ID:
                                             Transmissions Plus AutomotiveFacility Alt.:
                                             LSCProgram Data:

TRANSMISSIONS PLUS AUTOMOTIVE  (Continued) S110275923

                    06/05/1996Owner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    253-735-3350Owner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    AUBURN, WA 98001
                    PO BOX 837Owner/operator address:
                    AERO CONTROLS INCOwner/operator name:

Owner/Operator Summary:

                    100 kg of that material at any time
                    hazardous waste during any calendar month, and accumulates more than
                    from the cleanup of a spill, into or on any land or water, of acutely
                    of any residue or contaminated soil, waste or other debris resulting
                    kg of acutely hazardous waste at any time; or generates 100 kg or less
                    hazardous waste during any calendar month, and accumulates more than 1
                    waste during any calendar month; or generates 1 kg or less of acutely
                    cleanup of a spill, into or on any land or water, of acutely hazardous
                    residue or contaminated soil, waste or other debris resulting from the
                    during any calendar month; or generates more than 100 kg of any
                    calendar month; or generates more than 1 kg of acutely hazardous waste
                    Handler: generates 1,000 kg or more of hazardous waste during anyDescription:
                    Large Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    Other land typeLand type:
                    10EPA Region:
                    Not reportedContact email:
                    253-735-3350Contact telephone:
                    USContact country:
                    AUBURN, WA 98001
                    PO BOX 837Contact address:
                    BRIAN  THOMASContact:
                    AUBURN, WA 98001
                    PO BOX 837Mailing address:
                    WAD988504288EPA ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    W 231 SANDERSON WAYFacility address:
                    AERO CONTROLS INC SANDERSON WAYFacility name:
                    03/03/1999Date form received by agency:

RCRA-LQG:

5990 ft. Site 1 of 3 in cluster N
1.134 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
289 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
West WA ALLSITESW 231 SANDERSON WAY WAD988504288
N65 RCRA-LQGAERO CONTROLS INC SANDERSON WAY 1000696805

TC5712009.2s   Page 156



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    AERO CONTROLS INC SANDERSON WAYSite name:
                    03/04/1996Date form received by agency:

                    Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    AERO CONTROLS INC SANDERSON WAYSite name:
                    03/06/1997Date form received by agency:

                    Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    AERO CONTROLS INC SANDERSON WAYSite name:
                    02/27/1998Date form received by agency:

Historical Generators:

                              NoUsed oil transporter:
                              NoUsed oil transfer facility:
                              NoUsed oil Specification marketer:
                              NoUsed oil fuel marketer to burner:
                              NoUser oil refiner:
                              NoUsed oil processor:
                              NoUsed oil fuel burner:
                              NoFurnace exemption:
                              NoOn-site burner exemption:
                              NoUnderground injection activity:
                              NoTreater, storer or disposer of HW:
                              NoTransporter of hazardous waste:
                              NoRecycler of hazardous waste:
                              NoMixed waste (haz. and radioactive):
                              NoU.S. importer of hazardous waste:

Handler Activities Summary:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OperatorOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    253-630-5948Owner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    AUBURN, WA 98001
                    PO BOX 837Owner/operator address:
                    TITUS, JOHNOwner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    360-426-1151Owner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    450 W BUSINESS PARK RDOwner/operator address:
                    PORT OF SHELTONOwner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:

AERO CONTROLS INC SANDERSON WAY  (Continued) 1000696805

TC5712009.2s   Page 157



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    State    Enforcement lead agency:
                    Not reported    Enf. disp. status date:
                    Not reported    Enf. disposition status:
                    09/13/2012    Enforcement action date:
                    WRITTEN INFORMAL    Enforcement action:
                    StateViolation lead agency:
                    05/05/2012Date achieved compliance:
                    06/26/2012Date violation determined:
                    Generators - Pre-transportArea of violation:
                    Not reportedRegulation violated:

                    Not reported    Paid penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Final penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Proposed penalty amount:
                    State    Enforcement lead agency:
                    Not reported    Enf. disp. status date:
                    Not reported    Enf. disposition status:
                    09/13/2012    Enforcement action date:
                    WRITTEN INFORMAL    Enforcement action:
                    StateViolation lead agency:
                    05/05/2012Date achieved compliance:
                    06/26/2012Date violation determined:
                    Universal Waste - Small Quantity HandlersArea of violation:
                    Not reportedRegulation violated:

                    Not reported    Paid penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Final penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Proposed penalty amount:
                    State    Enforcement lead agency:
                    Not reported    Enf. disp. status date:
                    Not reported    Enf. disposition status:
                    09/13/2012    Enforcement action date:
                    WRITTEN INFORMAL    Enforcement action:
                    StateViolation lead agency:
                    05/05/2012Date achieved compliance:
                    06/26/2012Date violation determined:
                    Listing - GeneralArea of violation:
                    Not reportedRegulation violated:

Facility Has Received Notices of Violations:

Hazardous Waste Summary:

                    Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    AERO CONTROLS INC SANDERSON WAYSite name:
                    12/31/1994Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    AERO CONTROLS INC SANDERSON WAYSite name:
                    01/01/1995Date form received by agency:

                    Large Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    AERO CONTROLS INC SHELTON-SANDERSON WAYSite name:
                    03/01/1996Date form received by agency:

                    Large Quantity GeneratorClassification:

AERO CONTROLS INC SANDERSON WAY  (Continued) 1000696805

TC5712009.2s   Page 158



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             HWGInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             55010Interaction:

                              62294393Facility Id:
                              AERO CONTROLS INC SANDERSON WAYFacility Name:

ALLSITES:

                    StateEvaluation lead agency:
                    Not reportedDate achieved compliance:
                    Not reportedArea of violation:
                    COMPLIANCE ASSISTANCE VISITEvaluation:
                    11/09/1992Evaluation date:

                    StateEvaluation lead agency:
                    05/05/2012Date achieved compliance:
                    Generators - Pre-transportArea of violation:
                    COMPLIANCE EVALUATION INSPECTION ON-SITEEvaluation:
                    06/26/2012Evaluation date:

                    StateEvaluation lead agency:
                    05/05/2012Date achieved compliance:
                    Universal Waste - Small Quantity HandlersArea of violation:
                    COMPLIANCE EVALUATION INSPECTION ON-SITEEvaluation:
                    06/26/2012Evaluation date:

                    StateEvaluation lead agency:
                    05/05/2012Date achieved compliance:
                    Listing - GeneralArea of violation:
                    COMPLIANCE EVALUATION INSPECTION ON-SITEEvaluation:
                    06/26/2012Evaluation date:

                    StateEvaluation lead agency:
                    05/05/2012Date achieved compliance:
                    Used Oil - GeneratorsArea of violation:
                    COMPLIANCE EVALUATION INSPECTION ON-SITEEvaluation:
                    06/26/2012Evaluation date:

Evaluation Action Summary:

                    Not reported    Paid penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Final penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Proposed penalty amount:
                    State    Enforcement lead agency:
                    Not reported    Enf. disp. status date:
                    Not reported    Enf. disposition status:
                    09/13/2012    Enforcement action date:
                    WRITTEN INFORMAL    Enforcement action:
                    StateViolation lead agency:
                    05/05/2012Date achieved compliance:
                    06/26/2012Date violation determined:
                    Used Oil - GeneratorsArea of violation:
                    Not reportedRegulation violated:

                    Not reported    Paid penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Final penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Proposed penalty amount:

AERO CONTROLS INC SANDERSON WAY  (Continued) 1000696805

TC5712009.2s   Page 159



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                             -123.145135063Longitude:
                                             47.246674489999997Latitude:
                                             Hazardous Waste PlannerDate Interaction 3:
                                             1996-01-01 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             WAD988504288Program ID:
                                             Not reportedFacility Alt.:
                                             HWPPRTProgram Data:
                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             HWPInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             55011Interaction:

                                             -123.145135063Longitude:
                                             47.246674489999997Latitude:
                                             Hazardous Waste GeneratorDate Interaction 3:
                                             1992-03-20 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             WAD988504288Program ID:
                                             Not reportedFacility Alt.:
                                             TURBOWASTEProgram Data:

AERO CONTROLS INC SANDERSON WAY  (Continued) 1000696805

                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    479-277-8972Owner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    BENTONVILLE, AR 72712
                    P.O. BOX 8041Owner/operator address:
                    WAL MART STORES INCOwner/operator name:

Owner/Operator Summary:

                    hazardous waste at any time
                    waste during any calendar month, and accumulates more than 1000 kg of
                    hazardous waste at any time; or generates 100 kg or less of hazardous
                    waste during any calendar month and accumulates less than 6000 kg of
                    Handler: generates more than 100 and less than 1000 kg of hazardousDescription:
                    Small Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    10EPA Region:
                    ROSE.ARNOLD@WALMART.COMContact email:
                    479-277-8972Contact telephone:
                    USContact country:
                    BENTONVILLE, AR 72712
                    P.O. BOX 8041Contact address:
                    ROSE  ARNOLDContact:
                    BENTONVILLE, AR 72712
                    P.O. BOX 8041Mailing address:
                    WAR000002113EPA ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    100 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVDFacility address:
                    WAL MART STORE 2121Facility name:
                    02/25/2019Date form received by agency:

RCRA-SQG:

6018 ft. WA MANIFESTSite 1 of 3 in cluster O
1.140 mi. ECHO

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
230 ft.

 

> 1 FINDSSHELTON, WA  98584
South WA ALLSITES100 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVD WAR000002113
O66 RCRA-SQGWAL MART STORE 2121 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 160



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    02/23/2017Date form received by agency:

                    Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    WAL MART STORE 2121Site name:
                    02/22/2018Date form received by agency:

Historical Generators:

                              NoUsed oil transporter:
                              NoUsed oil transfer facility:
                              NoUsed oil Specification marketer:
                              NoUsed oil fuel marketer to burner:
                              NoUser oil refiner:
                              NoUsed oil processor:
                              NoUsed oil fuel burner:
                              NoFurnace exemption:
                              NoOn-site burner exemption:
                              NoUnderground injection activity:
                              NoTreater, storer or disposer of HW:
                              NoTransporter of hazardous waste:
                              NoRecycler of hazardous waste:
                              NoMixed waste (haz. and radioactive):
                              NoU.S. importer of hazardous waste:

Handler Activities Summary:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    10/18/1994Owner/Op start date:
                    OperatorOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    479-277-8972Owner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    BENTONVILLE, AR 72712
                    P.O. BOX 8041Owner/operator address:
                    WALMART INC.Owner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    10/18/1994Owner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    479-277-8972Owner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    BENTONVILLE, AR 72712
                    P.O. BOX 8041Owner/operator address:
                    WALMART INC.Owner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    10/18/1994Owner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 161



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    WAL MART STORE 2121Site name:
                    12/31/2008Date form received by agency:

                    Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    WAL MART STORE 2121Site name:
                    03/06/2009Date form received by agency:

                    Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    WAL MART STORE 2121Site name:
                    02/25/2010Date form received by agency:

                    Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    WAL MART STORE 2121Site name:
                    02/25/2010Date form received by agency:

                    Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    WAL MART STORE 2121Site name:
                    01/03/2011Date form received by agency:

                    Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    WAL MART STORE 2121Site name:
                    02/24/2011Date form received by agency:

                    Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    WAL MART STORE 2121Site name:
                    02/17/2012Date form received by agency:

                    Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    WAL MART STORE 2121Site name:
                    02/17/2012Date form received by agency:

                    Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    WAL MART STORE 2121Site name:
                    02/26/2013Date form received by agency:

                    Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    WAL MART STORE 2121Site name:
                    02/26/2014Date form received by agency:

                    Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    WAL MART STORE 2121Site name:
                    10/24/2014Date form received by agency:

                    Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    WAL MART STORE 2121Site name:
                    02/24/2015Date form received by agency:

                    Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    WAL MART STORE 2121Site name:
                    02/23/2016Date form received by agency:

                    Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    WAL MART STORE 2121Site name:
                    06/27/2016Date form received by agency:

                    Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    WAL MART STORE 2121Site name:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 162



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    WAL MART STORE 2121Site name:
                    06/05/2000Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    WAL MART STORE 2121Site name:
                    06/05/2000Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    WAL MART STORE 2121Site name:
                    05/25/2001Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    WAL MART STORE 2121Site name:
                    03/15/2002Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    WAL MART STORE 2121Site name:
                    02/24/2003Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    WAL MART STORE 2121Site name:
                    02/18/2004Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    WAL MART STORE 2121Site name:
                    12/31/2004Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    WAL MART STORE 2121Site name:
                    06/17/2005Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    WAL MART STORE 2121Site name:
                    12/31/2005Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    WAL MART STORE 2121Site name:
                    04/12/2006Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    WAL MART STORE 2121Site name:
                    04/12/2006Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    WAL MART STORE 2121Site name:
                    02/25/2007Date form received by agency:

                    Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    WAL MART STORE 2121Site name:
                    12/07/2007Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    WAL MART STORE 2121Site name:
                    02/22/2008Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 163



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    BENZENE.   Waste name:
                    D018.   Waste code:

                    2,4-D (2,4-DICHLOROPHENOXYACETIC ACID).   Waste name:
                    D016.   Waste code:

                    SILVER.   Waste name:
                    D011.   Waste code:

                    SELENIUM.   Waste name:
                    D010.   Waste code:

                    MERCURY.   Waste name:
                    D009.   Waste code:

                    LEAD.   Waste name:
                    D008.   Waste code:

                    CHROMIUM.   Waste name:
                    D007.   Waste code:

                    CADMIUM.   Waste name:
                    D006.   Waste code:

                    BARIUM.   Waste name:
                    D005.   Waste code:

                    ARSENIC.   Waste name:
                    D004.   Waste code:

                    REACTIVE WASTE.   Waste name:
                    D003.   Waste code:

                    CORROSIVE WASTE.   Waste name:
                    D002.   Waste code:

                    IGNITABLE WASTE.   Waste name:
                    D001.   Waste code:

Hazardous Waste Summary:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    WAL MART STORE 2121Site name:
                    12/31/1994Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    WAL MART STORE 2121Site name:
                    06/11/1997Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    WAL MART STORE 2121Site name:
                    06/12/1997Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    WAL MART STORE 2121Site name:
                    01/08/1998Date form received by agency:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 164



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    CYCLOHEXANE, 1,2,3,4,5,6-HEXACHLORO-, (1ALPHA, 2ALPHA, 3BETA, 4ALPHA,.   Waste name:
                    U129.   Waste code:

                    FORMALDEHYDE.   Waste name:
                    U122.   Waste code:

                    ACETIC ACID, ETHYL ESTER (I) (OR) ETHYL ACETATE (I).   Waste name:
                    U112.   Waste code:

                    METHANE, DICHLORO- (OR) METHYLENE CHLORIDE.   Waste name:
                    U080.   Waste code:

                    BENZENE, 1,4-DICHLORO- (OR) P-DICHLOROBENZENE.   Waste name:
                    U072.   Waste code:

                    2-OXIDE (OR) CYCLOPHOSPHAMIDE
                    2H-1,3,2-OXAZAPHOSPHORIN-2-AMINE, N,N-BIS(2-CHLOROETHYL)TETRAHYDRO-,.   Waste name:
                    U058.   Waste code:

                    BENZENEBUTANOIC ACID, 4-[BIS(2-CHLOROETHYL)AMINO]- (OR) CHLORAMBUCIL.   Waste name:
                    U035.   Waste code:

                    ACETALDEHYDE, TRICHLORO- (OR) CHLORAL.   Waste name:
                    U034.   Waste code:

                    2-PROPANONE (I) (OR) ACETONE (I).   Waste name:
                    U002.   Waste code:

                    SALTS
                    NICOTINE, & SALTS (OR) PYRIDINE, 3-(1-METHYL-2-PYRROLIDINYL)-,(S)-, &.   Waste name:
                    P075.   Waste code:

                    SALTS, WHEN PRESENT AT CONCENTRATIONS GREATER THAN 0.3%
                    WHEN PRESENT AT CONCENTRATIONS GREATER THAN 0.3% (OR) WARFARIN, &
                    2H-1-BENZOPYRAN-2-ONE, 4-HYDROXY-3-(3-OXO-1-PHENYLBUTYL)-, & SALTS,.   Waste name:
                    P001.   Waste code:

                    VINYL CHLORIDE.   Waste name:
                    D043.   Waste code:

                    TETRACHLOROETHYLENE.   Waste name:
                    D039.   Waste code:

                    METHYL ETHYL KETONE.   Waste name:
                    D035.   Waste code:

                    1,4-DICHLOROBENZENE.   Waste name:
                    D027.   Waste code:

                    CRESOL.   Waste name:
                    D026.   Waste code:

                    M-CRESOL.   Waste name:
                    D024.   Waste code:

                    CHLOROFORM.   Waste name:
                    D022.   Waste code:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 165



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    U411.   Waste code:

                    ESTER (OR) THIOPHANATE-METHYL
                    CARBAMIC ACID, [1,2-PHENYLENEBIS (IMINOCARBONOTHIOYL)]BIS-, DIMETHYL.   Waste name:
                    U409.   Waste code:

                    CARBARYL (OR) 1-NAPHTHALENOL, METHYLCARBAMATE.   Waste name:
                    U279.   Waste code:

                    ZINC PHOSPHIDE ZN3P2, WHEN PRESENT AT CONCENTRATIONS OF 10% OR LESS.   Waste name:
                    U249.   Waste code:

                    WHEN PRESENT AT CONCENTRATIONS OF 0.3% OR LESS
                    WHEN PRESENT AT CONCENTRATIONS OF 0.3% OR LESS (OR) WARFARIN, & SALTS,
                    2H-1-BENZOPYRAN-2-ONE, 4-HYDROXY-3-(3-OXO-1-PHENYL-BUTYL)-, & SALTS,.   Waste name:
                    U248.   Waste code:

                    & ESTERS (OR) DICHLOROPHENOXYACETIC ACID 2,4-D
                    2,4-D, SALTS & ESTERS (OR) ACETIC ACID, (2,4-DICHLOROPHENOXY)-, SALTS.   Waste name:
                    U240.   Waste code:

                    ETHENE, TETRACHLORO- (OR) TETRACHLOROETHYLENE.   Waste name:
                    U210.   Waste code:

                    SELENIUM SULFIDE (OR) SELENIUM SULFIDE SES2 (R,T).   Waste name:
                    U205.   Waste code:

                    (3BETA, 16BETA, 17ALPHA, 18BETA, 20ALPHA)-
                    11,17-DIMETHOXY-18-[(3,4,5-TRIMETHOXYBENZOYL)OXY]-, METHYL ESTER,
                    RESERPINE (OR) YOHIMBAN-16-CARBOXYLIC ACID,.   Waste name:
                    U200.   Waste code:

                    PHENOL.   Waste name:
                    U188.   Waste code:

                    1,3,5-TRIOXANE, 2,4,6-TRIMETHYL- (OR) PARALDEHYDE.   Waste name:
                    U182.   Waste code:

                    NAPHTHALENE.   Waste name:
                    U165.   Waste code:

                    2-BUTANONE (I,T) (OR) METHYL ETHYL KETONE (MEK) (I,T).   Waste name:
                    U159.   Waste code:

                    METHANOL (I) (OR) METHYL ALCOHOL (I).   Waste name:
                    U154.   Waste code:

                    L-PHENYLALANINE, 4-[BIS(2-CHLOROETHYL)AMINO]- (OR) MELPHALAN.   Waste name:
                    U150.   Waste code:

                    HYDROFLUORIC ACID (C,T) (OR) HYDROGEN FLUORIDE (C,T).   Waste name:
                    U134.   Waste code:

                    HEXACHLOROPHENE (OR) PHENOL, 2,2’-METHYLENEBIS[3,4,6-TRICHLORO-.   Waste name:
                    U132.   Waste code:

                    5ALPHA, 6BETA)- (OR) LINDANE

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 166



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110005399764Registry ID:

FINDS:

                                             -123.147435061Longitude:
                                             47.258454489999998Latitude:
                                             Hazardous Waste PlannerDate Interaction 3:
                                             2014-05-19 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             WAR000002113Program ID:
                                             Wal Mart Store 2121Facility Alt.:
                                             HWPPRTProgram Data:
                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             HWPInteraction 2:
                                             AInteraction 1:
                                             108986Interaction:

                                             -123.147435061Longitude:
                                             47.258454489999998Latitude:
                                             Hazardous Waste GeneratorDate Interaction 3:
                                             1995-04-28 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             WAR000002113Program ID:
                                             Wal Mart Store 2121Facility Alt.:
                                             TURBOWASTEProgram Data:
                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             HWGInteraction 2:
                                             AInteraction 1:
                                             27867Interaction:

                              13975422Facility Id:
                              WAL MART STORE 2121Facility Name:

                                             -123.126000069Longitude:
                                             47.232507489Latitude:
                                             Local Source Cntrl 7/09-3Date Interaction 3:
                                             2009-05-19 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             Not reportedProgram ID:
                                             WalMart Tire & Lube Express #12121Facility Alt.:
                                             LSCProgram Data:
                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             LSCInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             89777Interaction:

                              19299Facility Id:
                              WAL MART TIRE & LUBE EXPRESS 12121Facility Name:

ALLSITES:

                    No violations foundViolation Status:

                    PHENOL, 2-(1-METHYLETHOXY)-, METHYLCARBAMATE (OR) PROPOXUR.   Waste name:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 167



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2017Data Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:
                                                        U279,U409
                                                        D026,D027,D035,D039,D043,P075,U002,U072,U134,U154,U165,U205,U210,U249,
                                                        D001,D002,D003,D004,D005,D006,D007,D008,D009,D010,D011,D016,D018,D022,Federal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        WT02,WSC2State Waste Code Desc:
                                                        452311NAICS:
                                                        WAR000002113EPA ID:
                                                        13975422Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        100 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVDAddress:
                                                        WAL MART STORE 2121Name:

WA MANIFEST:

                                   http://echo.epa.gov/detailed-facility-report?fid=110005399764DFR URL:
                                   110005399764Registry ID:
                                   1004794987Envid:

ECHO:

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

HAZARDOUS WASTE BIENNIAL REPORTER

corrective action activities required under RCRA.
program staff to track the notification, permit, compliance, and
and treat, store, or dispose of hazardous waste. RCRAInfo allows RCRA
events and activities related to facilities that generate, transport,
Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) program through the tracking of
RCRAInfo is a national information system that supports the Resource

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 168

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=4V74veVE07Lr2mHvy8egj9uQEfs0Cz3ZjLkar5h2tomKjHn03lPys78bL3QdgH4jeIAMsu7RQ492X6f04sIb2U5CEtz3B4MeVRy7G62jjvMJewc8UPEuz0OH2neLpNrUt9mlmCjHFD3yYye98.G3pegY5jdX3Dxu5cQrQBndfylsR34wSV8k7cO3vrvULey52rjE2e0aV7FWLsZrJ.9pkmupHkw3UiyWh8wq4SpgWqj3D2B3uplQCL24nfmcsdtBqSCfpzLJ175ZPGjWq4FykxEa8zuqA5BqhcG4rqVr37pI3gvveketE2n7E2Z0x.3voLD8rjm2czmArHQF2u8yRd84Z6WbgZ6jVz9eiuzuQsIB95funsUv6mhCetzahBQGZGCj73ARskbEaIL9zg5nqhiS2
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=4V74veVE07Lr2mHvy8egj9uQEfs0Cz3ZjLkar5h2tomKjHn03lPys78bL3QdgH4jeIAMsu7RQ492X6f04sIb2U5CEtz3B4MeVRy7G62jjvMJewc8UPEuz0OH2neLpNrUt9mlmCjHFD3yYye98.G3pegY5jdX3Dxu5cQrQBndfylsR34wSV8k7cO3vrvULey52rjE2e0aV7FWLsZrJ.9pkmupHkw3UiyWh8wq4SpgWqj3D2B3uplQCL24nfmcsdtBqSCfpzLJ175ZPGjWq4FykxEa8zuqA5BqhcG4rqVr37pI3gvveketE2n7E2Z0x.3voLD8rjm2czmArHQF2u8yRd84Z6WbgZ6jVz9eiuzuQsIB95funsUv6mhCetzahBQGZGCj73ARskbEaIL9zg5nqhiS2


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

Waste Stream Generated:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        FalseBatch Generation:
                                                        TrueMonthly Generation:
                                                        MQGGen Status Code:
                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Email:
                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Phone Number:
                                                        Not reportedContact City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address:
                                                        Not reportedSite Contact:
                                                        10/18/1994Operator Effective Date:
                                                        (479)277-8972Operator Phone Number:
                                                        Bentonville, AR 72712Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        P.O. Box 8041Operator Address:
                                                        Not reportedOperator:
                                                        PrivateOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Walmart Inc.Operator Organization Name:
                                                        (479)277-8972Land Phone Number:
                                                        Bentonville, AR 72712Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        P.O. Box 8041Land Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        PrivateLand Organization Type:
                                                        Walmart Inc.Land Organization Name:
                                                        10/18/1994Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (479)277-8972Legal Phone Number:
                                                        Bentonville, AR 72712Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        P.O. Box 8041Legal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        PrivateLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Wal Mart Stores IncLegal Organization Name:
                                                        Bentonville, AR 72712Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        P.O. Box 8041Mailing Address:
                                                        Not reportedMail Name:
                                                        Not reportedBusiness Type:
                                                        601336273Tax Reg #:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 169



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        167.378402Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        369Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3495545Sequence Number:
                                                        165330CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Flammable LiquidsDescription:
                                                        W219WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        18.5976003Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        41Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3495544Sequence Number:
                                                        165330CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Corrosive LiquidsDescription:
                                                        W110WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        2WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        0.45360000Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        1Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3495543Sequence Number:
                                                        165330CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Corrosive LiquidsDescription:
                                                        W105WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        2WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 170



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        W219WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        1.81440003Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        4Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3495547Sequence Number:
                                                        165330CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Oxidizing LiquidsDescription:
                                                        W119WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        8.61840014Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        19Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3495546Sequence Number:
                                                        165330CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        LightersDescription:
                                                        W801WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 171



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        1565.82722Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        3452Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3495550Sequence Number:
                                                        165330CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Toxic SolidsDescription:
                                                        W409WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        54.8856009Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        121Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3495549Sequence Number:
                                                        165330CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Toxic SolidsDescription:
                                                        W401WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        674.956811Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        1488Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3495548Sequence Number:
                                                        165330CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Toxic LiquidsDescription:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 172



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3495554Sequence Number:
                                                        165330CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        WA State Regulated SolidsDescription:
                                                        W319WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        2WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        WSC2State Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        40.3704006Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        89Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3495552Sequence Number:
                                                        165330CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        WA State Regulated SolidsDescription:
                                                        W409WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        WT02State Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        269.438404Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        594Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3495551Sequence Number:
                                                        165330CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Waste AerosolsDescription:
                                                        W801WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 173



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        1.36080002Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        3Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD020257945Received EPAID:
                                                        958469Sequence Number:
                                                        3495563Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        18.1440003Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        40Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD020257945Received EPAID:
                                                        958476Sequence Number:
                                                        3495555Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        1565.82722Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        3452Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD020257945Received EPAID:
                                                        958472Sequence Number:
                                                        3495550Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        54.8856009Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        121Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD020257945Received EPAID:
                                                        958473Sequence Number:
                                                        3495549Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        674.956811Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        1488Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD020257945Received EPAID:
                                                        958470Sequence Number:
                                                        3495548Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        1.81440003Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        4Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD020257945Received EPAID:
                                                        958467Sequence Number:
                                                        3495547Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        165330Waste CORB Sequence Number:

Waste Stream Off Site Mgmt:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        24.4944004Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        54Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 174



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        customer returned product
                                                        A-3: Additional Waste Codes: D027, D035 A-8: Damaged product,Comments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3495548Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        Damaged product, customer returned product
                                                        A-3: Additional Waste Codes: D018, D026, D039, D043, U210, U279 A-8:Comments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3495547Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        A-8: Damaged product, customer returned productComments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3495545Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        A-8: Damaged product, customer returned productComments:
                                                        165330CORB Waste Sequence Number:

Waste Stream Comments:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        269.438404Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        594Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD020257945Received EPAID:
                                                        958481Sequence Number:
                                                        3495551Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        8.61840014Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        19Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD020257945Received EPAID:
                                                        958466Sequence Number:
                                                        3495546Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        167.378402Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        369Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD020257945Received EPAID:
                                                        958463Sequence Number:
                                                        3495545Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        18.5976003Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        41Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD020257945Received EPAID:
                                                        958460Sequence Number:
                                                        3495544Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        0.45360000Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        1Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD020257945Received EPAID:
                                                        958462Sequence Number:
                                                        3495543Waste Sequence Number:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 175



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        U002WCDA Code:
                                                        8228803Sequence Number:
                                                        3495545Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D035WCDA Code:
                                                        8228802Sequence Number:
                                                        3495545Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D018WCDA Code:
                                                        8228801Sequence Number:
                                                        3495545Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D001WCDA Code:
                                                        8228800Sequence Number:
                                                        3495545Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D002WCDA Code:
                                                        8228782Sequence Number:
                                                        3495544Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D010WCDA Code:
                                                        8228792Sequence Number:
                                                        3495543Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D008WCDA Code:
                                                        8228791Sequence Number:
                                                        3495543Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D007WCDA Code:
                                                        8228790Sequence Number:
                                                        3495543Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D002WCDA Code:
                                                        8228789Sequence Number:
                                                        3495543Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        165330CORB Waste Sequence Number:

Waste Stream EPA Code:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3495555Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        A-8: Damaged product, customer returned productComments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3495554Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        A-8: Damaged product, customer returned productComments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3495552Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        A-8: Damaged product, customer returned productComments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3495551Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        A-3: Additional Waste Codes:  D022, D035, D039, U210Comments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3495550Waste Sequence Number:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 176



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        100 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVDAddress:
                                                        WAL MART STORE 2121Name:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3495545Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3495563Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3495552Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3495551Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3495550Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3495549Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3495548Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G32WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3495555Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G32WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3495554Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G32WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3495544Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G32WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3495543Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        165330CORB Waste Sequence Number:

Waste Stream Source Code:

                                                        D001WCDA Code:
                                                        8228829Sequence Number:
                                                        3495546Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        U154WCDA Code:
                                                        8228804Sequence Number:
                                                        3495545Waste Sequence Number:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 177



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        P.O. Box 8041Site Contact Address:
                                                        Rose  ArnoldSite Contact:
                                                        10/18/1994Operator Effective Date:
                                                        479-277-8972Operator Phone Number:
                                                        Bentonville, AR 72712-8041Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        P.O. Box 8041Operator Address:
                                                        Rose  ArnoldOperator:
                                                        PrivateOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Walmart Inc.Operator Organization Name:
                                                        479-277-8972Land Phone Number:
                                                        Bentonville, AR 72712-8041Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        P.O. Box 8041Land Address:
                                                        Rose  ArnoldLand Contact:
                                                        PrivateLand Organization Type:
                                                        Walmart Inc.Land Organization Name:
                                                        10/18/1994Legal Effective Date:
                                                        479-277-8972Legal Phone Number:
                                                        Bentonville, AR 72712-8041Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        P.O. Box 8041Legal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        PrivateLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Wal Mart Stores IncLegal Organization Name:
                                                        Bentonville, AR 72712-8041Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        P.O. Box 8041Mailing Address:
                                                        Walmart Inc.Mail Name:
                                                        Clubs and SupercentersBusiness Type:
                                                        601336273Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2017Data Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:
                                                        U279,U409
                                                        D026,D027,D035,D039,D043,P075,U002,U072,U134,U154,U165,U205,U210,U249,
                                                        D001,D002,D003,D004,D005,D006,D007,D008,D009,D010,D011,D016,D018,D022,Federal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        WT02,WSC2State Waste Code Desc:
                                                        452311NAICS:
                                                        WAR000002113EPA ID:
                                                        13975422Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 178



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        3495544Sequence Number:
                                                        165330CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Corrosive LiquidsDescription:
                                                        W110WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        2WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        0.45360000Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        1Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3495543Sequence Number:
                                                        165330CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Corrosive LiquidsDescription:
                                                        W105WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        2WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

Waste Stream Generated:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        FalseBatch Generation:
                                                        TrueMonthly Generation:
                                                        MQGGen Status Code:
                                                        rose.arnold@walmart.comSite Contact Email:
                                                        479-277-8972Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        Bentonville, AR 72712-8041Contact City,State,Zip:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 179



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        8.61840014Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        19Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3495546Sequence Number:
                                                        165330CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        LightersDescription:
                                                        W801WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        167.378402Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        369Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3495545Sequence Number:
                                                        165330CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Flammable LiquidsDescription:
                                                        W219WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        18.5976003Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        41Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 180



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        121Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3495549Sequence Number:
                                                        165330CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Toxic SolidsDescription:
                                                        W401WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        674.956811Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        1488Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3495548Sequence Number:
                                                        165330CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Toxic LiquidsDescription:
                                                        W219WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        1.81440003Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        4Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3495547Sequence Number:
                                                        165330CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Oxidizing LiquidsDescription:
                                                        W119WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 181



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        WT02State Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        269.438404Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        594Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3495551Sequence Number:
                                                        165330CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Waste AerosolsDescription:
                                                        W801WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        1565.82722Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        3452Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3495550Sequence Number:
                                                        165330CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Toxic SolidsDescription:
                                                        W409WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        54.8856009Kilograms Quanity:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 182



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        121Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD020257945Received EPAID:
                                                        958473Sequence Number:
                                                        3495549Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        674.956811Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        1488Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD020257945Received EPAID:
                                                        958470Sequence Number:
                                                        3495548Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        1.81440003Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        4Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD020257945Received EPAID:
                                                        958467Sequence Number:
                                                        3495547Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        165330Waste CORB Sequence Number:

Waste Stream Off Site Mgmt:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        24.4944004Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        54Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3495554Sequence Number:
                                                        165330CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        WA State Regulated SolidsDescription:
                                                        W319WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        2WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        WSC2State Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        40.3704006Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        89Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3495552Sequence Number:
                                                        165330CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        WA State Regulated SolidsDescription:
                                                        W409WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 183



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        8.61840014Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        19Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD020257945Received EPAID:
                                                        958466Sequence Number:
                                                        3495546Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        167.378402Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        369Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD020257945Received EPAID:
                                                        958463Sequence Number:
                                                        3495545Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        18.5976003Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        41Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD020257945Received EPAID:
                                                        958460Sequence Number:
                                                        3495544Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        0.45360000Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        1Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD020257945Received EPAID:
                                                        958462Sequence Number:
                                                        3495543Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        1.36080002Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        3Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD020257945Received EPAID:
                                                        958469Sequence Number:
                                                        3495563Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        18.1440003Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        40Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD020257945Received EPAID:
                                                        958476Sequence Number:
                                                        3495555Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        1565.82722Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        3452Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD020257945Received EPAID:
                                                        958472Sequence Number:
                                                        3495550Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        54.8856009Kilogram Quanity:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 184



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        D007WCDA Code:
                                                        8228790Sequence Number:
                                                        3495543Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D002WCDA Code:
                                                        8228789Sequence Number:
                                                        3495543Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        165330CORB Waste Sequence Number:

Waste Stream EPA Code:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3495555Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        A-8: Damaged product, customer returned productComments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3495554Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        A-8: Damaged product, customer returned productComments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3495552Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        A-8: Damaged product, customer returned productComments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3495551Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        A-3: Additional Waste Codes:  D022, D035, D039, U210Comments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3495550Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        customer returned product
                                                        A-3: Additional Waste Codes: D027, D035 A-8: Damaged product,Comments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3495548Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        Damaged product, customer returned product
                                                        A-3: Additional Waste Codes: D018, D026, D039, D043, U210, U279 A-8:Comments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3495547Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        A-8: Damaged product, customer returned productComments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3495545Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        A-8: Damaged product, customer returned productComments:
                                                        165330CORB Waste Sequence Number:

Waste Stream Comments:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        269.438404Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        594Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD020257945Received EPAID:
                                                        958481Sequence Number:
                                                        3495551Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 185



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3495548Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G32WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3495555Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G32WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3495554Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G32WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3495544Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G32WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3495543Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        165330CORB Waste Sequence Number:

Waste Stream Source Code:

                                                        D001WCDA Code:
                                                        8228829Sequence Number:
                                                        3495546Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        U154WCDA Code:
                                                        8228804Sequence Number:
                                                        3495545Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        U002WCDA Code:
                                                        8228803Sequence Number:
                                                        3495545Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D035WCDA Code:
                                                        8228802Sequence Number:
                                                        3495545Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D018WCDA Code:
                                                        8228801Sequence Number:
                                                        3495545Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D001WCDA Code:
                                                        8228800Sequence Number:
                                                        3495545Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D002WCDA Code:
                                                        8228782Sequence Number:
                                                        3495544Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D010WCDA Code:
                                                        8228792Sequence Number:
                                                        3495543Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D008WCDA Code:
                                                        8228791Sequence Number:
                                                        3495543Waste Sequence Number:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 186



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Clubs and SupercentersBusiness Type:
                                                        601336273Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2016Data Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:
                                                        U409,D026,D039
                                                        D027,D035,D043,P075,U002,U072,U134,U154,U159,U165,U205,U210,U249,U279,
                                                        D001,D002,D003,D004,D005,D006,D007,D008,D009,D010,D011,D016,D018,D022,Federal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        WT02,WSC2State Waste Code Desc:
                                                        452910NAICS:
                                                        WAR000002113EPA ID:
                                                        13975422Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        100 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVDAddress:
                                                        WAL MART STORE 2121Name:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3495545Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3495563Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3495552Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3495551Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3495550Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3495549Waste Sequence Number:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 187



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

Waste Stream Generated:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        FalseBatch Generation:
                                                        TrueMonthly Generation:
                                                        MQGGen Status Code:
                                                        rose.arnold@walmart.comSite Contact Email:
                                                        479-277-8972Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        Bentonville, AR 72712-8041Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        P.O. Box 8041Site Contact Address:
                                                        Rose  ArnoldSite Contact:
                                                        10/18/1994Operator Effective Date:
                                                        479-277-8972Operator Phone Number:
                                                        Bentonville, AR 72712-8041Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        P.O. Box 8041Operator Address:
                                                        Rose  ArnoldOperator:
                                                        PrivateOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.Operator Organization Name:
                                                        479-277-8972Land Phone Number:
                                                        Bentonville, AR 72712-8041Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        P.O. Box 8041Land Address:
                                                        Rose  ArnoldLand Contact:
                                                        PrivateLand Organization Type:
                                                        Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.Land Organization Name:
                                                        10/18/1994Legal Effective Date:
                                                        479-277-8972Legal Phone Number:
                                                        Bentonville, AR 72712-8041Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        P.O. Box 8041Legal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        PrivateLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Wal Mart Stores IncLegal Organization Name:
                                                        Bentonville, AR 72712-8041Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        P.O. Box 8041Mailing Address:
                                                        Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.Mail Name:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 188



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        1.81440003Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        4Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3418801Sequence Number:
                                                        159301CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Corrosive LiquidsDescription:
                                                        W105WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        2WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        68.0400011Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        150Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3418810Sequence Number:
                                                        159301CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        WA State Regulated SolidsDescription:
                                                        W409WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        WT02State Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        252.655204Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        557Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3418809Sequence Number:
                                                        159301CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Waste AerosolsDescription:
                                                        W801WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 189



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        159301CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Toxic SolidsDescription:
                                                        W401WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        1.81440003Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        4Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3418818Sequence Number:
                                                        159301CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        EXPLOSIVESDescription:
                                                        W405WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        1.81440003Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        4Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3418816Sequence Number:
                                                        159301CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        P-Listed Waste NicotineDescription:
                                                        W004WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 190



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        WT02State Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        731.203212Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        1612Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3418806Sequence Number:
                                                        159301CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Toxic LiquidsDescription:
                                                        W219WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        1603.02242Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        3534Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3418808Sequence Number:
                                                        159301CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Toxic SolidsDescription:
                                                        W409WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        50.3496008Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        111Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3418807Sequence Number:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 191



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        408Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3418803Sequence Number:
                                                        159301CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Flammable LiquidsDescription:
                                                        W219WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        82.5552014Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        182Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3418802Sequence Number:
                                                        159301CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Corrosive LiquidsDescription:
                                                        W110WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        2WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        59.4216010Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        131Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3418820Sequence Number:
                                                        159301CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        WA State Regulated LiquidsDescription:
                                                        W219WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 192



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        912063Sequence Number:
                                                        3418808Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        50.3496008Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        111Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD020257945Received EPAID:
                                                        912062Sequence Number:
                                                        3418807Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        1.81440003Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        4Managed Quanity:
                                                        RID040098352Received EPAID:
                                                        912054Sequence Number:
                                                        3418818Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        1.81440003Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        4Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD020257945Received EPAID:
                                                        912059Sequence Number:
                                                        3418816Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        1.81440003Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        4Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD020257945Received EPAID:
                                                        912050Sequence Number:
                                                        3418801Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        14.9688002Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        33Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD020257945Received EPAID:
                                                        912067Sequence Number:
                                                        3418815Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        11.3400001Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        25Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD020257945Received EPAID:
                                                        912056Sequence Number:
                                                        3418804Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        159301Waste CORB Sequence Number:

Waste Stream Off Site Mgmt:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        185.068803Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 193



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3418808Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        customer returned product
                                                        A-3: Additional Waste Codes: D027, D035, U159 A-8: Damaged product,Comments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3418806Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        Damaged product, customer returned product
                                                        A-3: Additional Waste Codes: D018, D026, D039, D043, U210, U279 A-8:Comments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3418805Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        A-8: Damaged product, customer returned productComments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3418803Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        A-8: Damaged product, customer returned productComments:
                                                        159301CORB Waste Sequence Number:

Waste Stream Comments:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        48.0816008Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        106Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD020257945Received EPAID:
                                                        912057Sequence Number:
                                                        3418812Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        9.07200015Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        20Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD020257945Received EPAID:
                                                        912058Sequence Number:
                                                        3418805Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        185.068803Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        408Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD020257945Received EPAID:
                                                        912055Sequence Number:
                                                        3418803Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        82.5552014Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        182Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD020257945Received EPAID:
                                                        912053Sequence Number:
                                                        3418802Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        1603.02242Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        3534Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD020257945Received EPAID:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 194



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        U159WCDA Code:
                                                        7928236Sequence Number:
                                                        3418803Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        U154WCDA Code:
                                                        7928235Sequence Number:
                                                        3418803Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        U002WCDA Code:
                                                        7928234Sequence Number:
                                                        3418803Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D035WCDA Code:
                                                        7928233Sequence Number:
                                                        3418803Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D018WCDA Code:
                                                        7928232Sequence Number:
                                                        3418803Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D001WCDA Code:
                                                        7928231Sequence Number:
                                                        3418803Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D001WCDA Code:
                                                        7928251Sequence Number:
                                                        3418804Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D002WCDA Code:
                                                        7928183Sequence Number:
                                                        3418802Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        159301CORB Waste Sequence Number:

Waste Stream EPA Code:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3418820Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        A-8: Damaged product, customer returned productComments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3418815Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        A-8: Damaged product, customer returned productComments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3418814Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        A-8: Damaged product, customer returned productComments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3418812Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        A-8: Damaged product, customer returned productComments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3418810Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        A-8: Damaged product, customer returned productComments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3418809Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        A-3: Additional Waste Codes:  D022, D035, D039, U210Comments:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 195



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3418818Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3418816Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3418812Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3418810Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3418809Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3418808Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3418807Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3418806Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3418805Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3418804Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3418803Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        159301CORB Waste Sequence Number:

Waste Stream Source Code:

                                                        D005WCDA Code:
                                                        7928298Sequence Number:
                                                        3418806Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D001WCDA Code:
                                                        7928267Sequence Number:
                                                        3418812Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D001WCDA Code:
                                                        7928276Sequence Number:
                                                        3418805Waste Sequence Number:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 196



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        10/18/1994Operator Effective Date:
                                                        (479)204-3517Operator Phone Number:
                                                        Bentonville, AR 72712-8041Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        P.O. Box 8041Operator Address:
                                                        Not reportedOperator:
                                                        PrivateOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.Operator Organization Name:
                                                        (479)204-3517Land Phone Number:
                                                        Bentonville, AR 72712-8041Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        P.O. Box 8041Land Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        PrivateLand Organization Type:
                                                        Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.Land Organization Name:
                                                        10/18/1994Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (479)204-3517Legal Phone Number:
                                                        Bentonville, AR 72712-8041Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        P.O. Box 8041Legal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        PrivateLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Wal Mart Stores IncLegal Organization Name:
                                                        Bentonville, AR 72712-8041Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        P.O. Box 8041Mailing Address:
                                                        Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.Mail Name:
                                                        retail salesBusiness Type:
                                                        601336273Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2015Data Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:
                                                        U132,U134,U150,U154,U159,U188,U200,U205,U210,U249,U279,U409,U165
                                                        D024,D026,D027,D035,D039,D043,P075,U002,U034,U035,U058,U072,U122,U129,
                                                        D001,D002,D003,D004,D005,D006,D007,D008,D009,D010,D011,D016,D018,D022,Federal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        WT02,WSC2State Waste Code Desc:
                                                        452910NAICS:
                                                        WAR000002113EPA ID:
                                                        13975422Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        100 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVDAddress:
                                                        WAL MART STORE 2121Name:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 197



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Toxic SolidsDescription:
                                                        W409WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        56.7000009Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        125Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3367430Sequence Number:
                                                        154198CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Corrosive LiquidsDescription:
                                                        W110WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        2WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

Waste Stream Generated:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        FalseBatch Generation:
                                                        TrueMonthly Generation:
                                                        MQGGen Status Code:
                                                        Justin.P.Wilson@walmart.comSite Contact Email:
                                                        (479)204-3517Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        Bentonville, AR 72712-8041Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        P.O. Box 8041Site Contact Address:
                                                        Justin  WilsonSite Contact:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 198



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        205.934403Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        454Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3367431Sequence Number:
                                                        154198CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Flammable LiquidsDescription:
                                                        W219WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        0.90720001Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        2Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3367429Sequence Number:
                                                        154198CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Corrosive LiquidsDescription:
                                                        W105WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        2WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        1627.97042Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        3589Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3367437Sequence Number:
                                                        154198CORb Sequence Number:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 199



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3367433Sequence Number:
                                                        154198CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        LightersDescription:
                                                        W801WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        0.45360000Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        1Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3367440Sequence Number:
                                                        154198CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Flammable Reactive SolidsDescription:
                                                        W401WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        395.992806Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        873Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3367438Sequence Number:
                                                        154198CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Waste AerosolsDescription:
                                                        W801WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 200



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        2.26800003Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        5Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3367470Sequence Number:
                                                        154198CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        CORROSIVE LIQUIDSDescription:
                                                        W105WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        16.3296002Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        36Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3367434Sequence Number:
                                                        154198CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Oxidizing SolidsDescription:
                                                        W319WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        8.16480014Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        18Reported Quanity:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 201



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        881073Sequence Number:
                                                        3367436Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        265.356004Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        585Managed Quanity:
                                                        NVD980895338Received EPAID:
                                                        881062Sequence Number:
                                                        3367435Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        973.879216Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        2147Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD020257945Received EPAID:
                                                        881063Sequence Number:
                                                        3367435Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        154198Waste CORB Sequence Number:

Waste Stream Off Site Mgmt:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        19.0512003Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        42Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3367445Sequence Number:
                                                        154198CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        WA State Regulated SolidsDescription:
                                                        W409WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        2WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        WT02State Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        2.26800003Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        5Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3367443Sequence Number:
                                                        154198CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Toxic SolidsDescription:
                                                        W005WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 202



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        NVD980895338Received EPAID:
                                                        881074Sequence Number:
                                                        3367437Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        37.1952006Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        82Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD020257945Received EPAID:
                                                        881004Sequence Number:
                                                        3367430Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        19.5048003Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        43Managed Quanity:
                                                        NVD980895338Received EPAID:
                                                        881003Sequence Number:
                                                        3367430Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        18.5976003Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        41Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD020257945Received EPAID:
                                                        881086Sequence Number:
                                                        3367445Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        0.45360000Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        1Managed Quanity:
                                                        NVD980895338Received EPAID:
                                                        881085Sequence Number:
                                                        3367445Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        2.26800003Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        5Managed Quanity:
                                                        NVD980895338Received EPAID:
                                                        881077Sequence Number:
                                                        3367443Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        0.45360000Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        1Managed Quanity:
                                                        NVD980895338Received EPAID:
                                                        881072Sequence Number:
                                                        3367436Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        85.7304014Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        189Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD020257945Received EPAID:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 203



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3367444Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        A-8: Damaged product, customer returned productComments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3367443Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        U188, U200, U205
                                                        A3 Additional Waste Codes:U034, U035, U058, U122, U129, U132, U150,Comments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3367442Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        A-8: Damaged product, customer returned productComments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3367440Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        A-8: Damaged product, customer returned productComments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3367439Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        A-8: Damaged product, customer returned productComments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3367438Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        A-3: Additional Waste Codes:  D022, D035, D039, U210Comments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3367437Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        customer returned product
                                                        A-3: Additional Waste Codes: D027, D035, U159 A-8: Damaged product,Comments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3367435Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        U279 A-8: Damaged product, customer returned product
                                                        A-3: Additional Waste Codes: D016,D018, D026, D039, D043,  U210,Comments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3367434Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        A-8: Damaged product, customer returned productComments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3367431Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        A-8: Damaged product, customer returned productComments:
                                                        154198CORB Waste Sequence Number:

Waste Stream Comments:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        1074.57841Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        2369Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD020257945Received EPAID:
                                                        881075Sequence Number:
                                                        3367437Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        553.392009Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        1220Managed Quanity:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 204



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3367431Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        154198CORB Waste Sequence Number:

Waste Stream Source Code:

                                                        D011WCDA Code:
                                                        7699169Sequence Number:
                                                        3367437Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D008WCDA Code:
                                                        7699168Sequence Number:
                                                        3367437Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D007WCDA Code:
                                                        7699167Sequence Number:
                                                        3367437Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D006WCDA Code:
                                                        7699166Sequence Number:
                                                        3367437Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D005WCDA Code:
                                                        7699165Sequence Number:
                                                        3367437Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D002WCDA Code:
                                                        7698782Sequence Number:
                                                        3367430Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D001WCDA Code:
                                                        7699036Sequence Number:
                                                        3367442Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        U134WCDA Code:
                                                        7698869Sequence Number:
                                                        3367470Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D002WCDA Code:
                                                        7698868Sequence Number:
                                                        3367470Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D001WCDA Code:
                                                        7698924Sequence Number:
                                                        3367434Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D001WCDA Code:
                                                        7698917Sequence Number:
                                                        3367433Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        154198CORB Waste Sequence Number:

Waste Stream EPA Code:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3367445Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        A-8: Damaged product, customer returned productComments:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 205



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2014Data Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:
                                                        U132,U134,U150,U154,U159,U165,U188,U200,U205,U210,U249,U279,U409
                                                        D024,D026,D027,D035,D039,D043,P075,U002,U034,U058,U072,U112,U122,U129,
                                                        D001,D002,D003,D004,D005,D006,D007,D008,D009,D010,D011,D016,D018,D022,Federal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        WT02,WSC2State Waste Code Desc:
                                                        452910NAICS:
                                                        WAR000002113EPA ID:
                                                        13975422Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        100 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVDAddress:
                                                        WAL MART STORE 2121Name:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3367443Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3367442Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3367440Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3367439Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3367438Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3367437Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3367436Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3367435Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3367434Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3367433Waste Sequence Number:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 206



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        FalseBatch Generation:
                                                        TrueMonthly Generation:
                                                        MQGGen Status Code:
                                                        Justin.P.Wilson@walmart.comSite Contact Email:
                                                        (479)204-3517Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        Bentonville, AR 72712-8041Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        P.O. Box 8041Site Contact Address:
                                                        Justin  WilsonSite Contact:
                                                        10/18/1994Operator Effective Date:
                                                        (479)204-3517Operator Phone Number:
                                                        Bentonville, AR 72712-8041Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        P.O. Box 8041Operator Address:
                                                        Not reportedOperator:
                                                        PrivateOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.Operator Organization Name:
                                                        (479)204-3517Land Phone Number:
                                                        Bentonville, AR 72712-8041Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        P.O. Box 8041Land Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        PrivateLand Organization Type:
                                                        Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.Land Organization Name:
                                                        10/18/1994Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (479)204-3517Legal Phone Number:
                                                        Bentonville, AR 72712-8041Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        P.O. Box 8041Legal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        PrivateLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Wal Mart Stores IncLegal Organization Name:
                                                        Bentonville, AR 72712-8041Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        P.O. Box 8041Mailing Address:
                                                        Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.Mail Name:
                                                        retail salesBusiness Type:
                                                        601336273Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 207



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        436.816807Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        963Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3309892Sequence Number:
                                                        148530CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Waste AerosolsDescription:
                                                        W801WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        6.80400011Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        15Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3309893Sequence Number:
                                                        148530CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        WA State Regulated SolidsDescription:
                                                        W409WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        WT02State Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

Waste Stream Generated:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 208



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        249.026404Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        549Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3309885Sequence Number:
                                                        148530CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Flammable LiquidsDescription:
                                                        W219WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        0.90720001Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        2Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3309913Sequence Number:
                                                        148530CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Toxic SolidsDescription:
                                                        W005WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        4.53600007Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        10Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3309888Sequence Number:
                                                        148530CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Oxidizing SolidsDescription:
                                                        W319WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 209



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        0.90720001Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        2Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3313729Sequence Number:
                                                        148530CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        P-Listed Waste NicotineDescription:
                                                        W004WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        23.5872004Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        52Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3309887Sequence Number:
                                                        148530CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        LightersDescription:
                                                        W801WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 210



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        9.97920017Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        22Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3309898Sequence Number:
                                                        148530CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Flammable SolidsDescription:
                                                        W409WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        1674.23762Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        3691Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3309891Sequence Number:
                                                        148530CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Toxic SolidsDescription:
                                                        W409WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        714.420012Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        1575Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3309889Sequence Number:
                                                        148530CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Toxic LiquidsDescription:
                                                        W219WCDB Code:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 211



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        839771Sequence Number:
                                                        3309885Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        0Recycled Percentage:
                                                        146.059202Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        322Managed Quanity:
                                                        INR000110197Received EPAID:
                                                        839769Sequence Number:
                                                        3309885Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        0Recycled Percentage:
                                                        72.5760012Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        160Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD991281767Received EPAID:
                                                        839772Sequence Number:
                                                        3309885Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        0Recycled Percentage:
                                                        4.98960008Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        11Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD991281767Received EPAID:
                                                        839820Sequence Number:
                                                        3309893Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        0Recycled Percentage:
                                                        1.81440003Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        4Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD020257945Received EPAID:
                                                        839819Sequence Number:
                                                        3309893Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        148530Waste CORB Sequence Number:

Waste Stream Off Site Mgmt:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        67.5864011Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        149Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3309884Sequence Number:
                                                        148530CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Corrosive LiquidsDescription:
                                                        W110WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        2WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 212



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        A-8: Damaged product, customer returned productComments:
                                                        148530CORB Waste Sequence Number:

Waste Stream Comments:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        0Recycled Percentage:
                                                        0.45360000Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        1Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD020257945Received EPAID:
                                                        842752Sequence Number:
                                                        3313729Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        0Recycled Percentage:
                                                        4.53600007Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        10Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD991281767Received EPAID:
                                                        839782Sequence Number:
                                                        3309887Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        0Recycled Percentage:
                                                        0.90720001Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        2Managed Quanity:
                                                        NVD980895338Received EPAID:
                                                        839780Sequence Number:
                                                        3309887Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        0Recycled Percentage:
                                                        3.62880006Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        8Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD020257945Received EPAID:
                                                        839781Sequence Number:
                                                        3309887Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        0Recycled Percentage:
                                                        14.5152002Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        32Managed Quanity:
                                                        INR000110197Received EPAID:
                                                        839779Sequence Number:
                                                        3309887Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        0Recycled Percentage:
                                                        4.53600007Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        10Managed Quanity:
                                                        NVD980895338Received EPAID:
                                                        839770Sequence Number:
                                                        3309885Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        0Recycled Percentage:
                                                        25.8552004Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        57Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD020257945Received EPAID:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 213



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        3309889Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D005WCDA Code:
                                                        7467835Sequence Number:
                                                        3309889Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D001WCDA Code:
                                                        7467741Sequence Number:
                                                        3309905Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        148530CORB Waste Sequence Number:

Waste Stream EPA Code:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3309916Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        A-8: Damaged product, customer returned productComments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3309913Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        U188, U200, U205
                                                        A3 Additional Waste Codes:U034, U035, U058, U122, U129, U132, U150,Comments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3309905Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        A-8: Damaged product, customer returned productComments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3309898Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        A-8: Damaged product, customer returned productComments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3309893Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        A-8: Damaged product, customer returned productComments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3309892Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        A-3: Additional Waste Codes:  D022, D035, D039, U210Comments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3309891Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        customer returned product
                                                        A-3: Additional Waste Codes: D027, D035, U159 A-8: Damaged product,Comments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3309889Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        U279 A-8: Damaged product, customer returned product
                                                        A-3: Additional Waste Codes: D016,D018, D026, D039, D043, U080, U210,Comments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3309888Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        A-8: Damaged product, customer returned productComments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3309886Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        A-8: Damaged product, customer returned productComments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3309885Waste Sequence Number:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 214



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3309890Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3309889Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3309888Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3309887Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3309885Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        148530CORB Waste Sequence Number:

Waste Stream Source Code:

                                                        D008WCDA Code:
                                                        7467858Sequence Number:
                                                        3309891Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D007WCDA Code:
                                                        7467857Sequence Number:
                                                        3309891Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D006WCDA Code:
                                                        7467856Sequence Number:
                                                        3309891Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D005WCDA Code:
                                                        7467855Sequence Number:
                                                        3309891Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D011WCDA Code:
                                                        7467839Sequence Number:
                                                        3309889Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D010WCDA Code:
                                                        7467840Sequence Number:
                                                        3309889Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D008WCDA Code:
                                                        7467838Sequence Number:
                                                        3309889Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D007WCDA Code:
                                                        7467837Sequence Number:
                                                        3309889Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D006WCDA Code:
                                                        7467836Sequence Number:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 215



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        601336273Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2013Data Year:
                                                        Supercenter 2121
                                                        Updating list of waste codesThis facilitys correct name is WalmartForm Comm:
                                                        U154, U159, U165, U205, U210, U249, U279, U409
                                                        D018, D022, D026, D027, D035, D039, D043, P075, U002, U072, U134,
                                                        D001, D002, D003, D004 D005, D006, D007, D008, D009, D010, D011, D016,Federal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        452910NAICS:
                                                        WAR000002113EPA ID:
                                                        13975422Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        100 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVDAddress:
                                                        WAL MART STORE 2121Name:

                                                        G32WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3309918Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G32WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3309916Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G32WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3309886Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G32WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3309884Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G32WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3309883Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3309891Waste Sequence Number:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 216



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

Waste Stream Generated:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        FalseBatch Generation:
                                                        TrueMonthly Generation:
                                                        MQGGen Status Code:
                                                        Justin.P.Wilson@wal-mart.comSite Contact Email:
                                                        (479)204-3517Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        Bentonville, AR 72712-8041Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        P.O. Box 8041Site Contact Address:
                                                        Justin  WilsonSite Contact:
                                                        10/18/1994Operator Effective Date:
                                                        (479)204-3517Operator Phone Number:
                                                        Bentonville, AR 72712-8041Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        P.O. Box 8041Operator Address:
                                                        Not reportedOperator:
                                                        PrivateOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.Operator Organization Name:
                                                        (479)204-3517Land Phone Number:
                                                        Bentonville, AR 72712-8041Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        P.O. Box 8041Land Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        PrivateLand Organization Type:
                                                        Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.Land Organization Name:
                                                        10/18/1994Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (479)204-3517Legal Phone Number:
                                                        Bentonville, AR 72712-8041Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        P.O. Box 8041Legal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        PrivateLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Wal Mart Stores IncLegal Organization Name:
                                                        Bentonville, AR 72712-8041Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        P.O. Box 8041Mailing Address:
                                                        Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.Mail Name:
                                                        retail salesBusiness Type:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 217



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        425.930407Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        939Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3251580Sequence Number:
                                                        143512CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Waste AerosolsDescription:
                                                        W801WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        1189.33922Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        2622Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3251571Sequence Number:
                                                        143512CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Toxic LiquidsDescription:
                                                        W219WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        1.81440003Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        4Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3251564Sequence Number:
                                                        143512CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Corrosive LiquidsDescription:
                                                        W105WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        2WCDH Origin Code:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 218



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        143512CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Flammable SolidsDescription:
                                                        W409WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        2WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        366.055206Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        807Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3251566Sequence Number:
                                                        143512CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Flammable LiquidsDescription:
                                                        W219WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        105.235201Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        232Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3251565Sequence Number:
                                                        143512CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Corrosive LiquidsDescription:
                                                        W110WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        2WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 219



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        WP01State Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        6.80400011Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        15Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3251569Sequence Number:
                                                        143512CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Oxidizing SolidsDescription:
                                                        W319WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        13.6080002Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        30Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3251568Sequence Number:
                                                        143512CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        LightersDescription:
                                                        W801WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        16.7832002Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        37Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3251567Sequence Number:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 220



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        2665Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3251575Sequence Number:
                                                        143512CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Toxic SolidsDescription:
                                                        W409WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        49.8960008Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        110Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3251574Sequence Number:
                                                        143512CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Toxic SolidsDescription:
                                                        W401WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        5.44320009Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        12Reported Quanity:
                                                        EDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        3278341Sequence Number:
                                                        143512CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        WA State OnlyDescription:
                                                        W801WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 221



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        814660Sequence Number:
                                                        3278341Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        6.80400011Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        15Managed Quanity:
                                                        INR000110197Received EPAID:
                                                        809666Sequence Number:
                                                        3251569Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        13.6080002Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        30Managed Quanity:
                                                        INR000110197Received EPAID:
                                                        809661Sequence Number:
                                                        3251568Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        16.7832002Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        37Managed Quanity:
                                                        INR000110197Received EPAID:
                                                        809660Sequence Number:
                                                        3251567Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        366.055206Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        807Managed Quanity:
                                                        INR000110197Received EPAID:
                                                        809659Sequence Number:
                                                        3251566Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        1208.84402Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        2665Managed Quanity:
                                                        INR000110197Received EPAID:
                                                        809671Sequence Number:
                                                        3251575Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        49.8960008Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        110Managed Quanity:
                                                        INR000110197Received EPAID:
                                                        809669Sequence Number:
                                                        3251574Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        143512Waste CORB Sequence Number:

Waste Stream Off Site Mgmt:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        1208.84402Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 222



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3251571Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        U279 A-8: Damaged product, customer returned product
                                                        A-3: Additional Waste Codes: D016, D026, D039, D043, U080, U210,Comments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3251569Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        A-8: Damaged product, customer returned productComments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3251567Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        A-8: Damaged product, customer returned productComments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3251566Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        A-8: Damaged product, customer returned productComments:
                                                        143512CORB Waste Sequence Number:

Waste Stream Comments:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        425.930407Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        939Managed Quanity:
                                                        INR000110197Received EPAID:
                                                        809673Sequence Number:
                                                        3251580Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        1189.33922Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        2622Managed Quanity:
                                                        INR000110197Received EPAID:
                                                        809667Sequence Number:
                                                        3251571Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        1.81440003Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        4Managed Quanity:
                                                        INR000110197Received EPAID:
                                                        809657Sequence Number:
                                                        3251564Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        105.235201Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        232Managed Quanity:
                                                        INR000110197Received EPAID:
                                                        809658Sequence Number:
                                                        3251565Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        5.44320009Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        12Managed Quanity:
                                                        INR000110197Received EPAID:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 223



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

Waste Stream Source Code:

                                                        D035WCDA Code:
                                                        7223946Sequence Number:
                                                        3251567Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D018WCDA Code:
                                                        7223945Sequence Number:
                                                        3251567Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D007WCDA Code:
                                                        7223944Sequence Number:
                                                        3251567Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D005WCDA Code:
                                                        7223947Sequence Number:
                                                        3251567Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D001WCDA Code:
                                                        7223943Sequence Number:
                                                        3251567Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        U159WCDA Code:
                                                        7223929Sequence Number:
                                                        3251566Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        U154WCDA Code:
                                                        7223928Sequence Number:
                                                        3251566Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        U002WCDA Code:
                                                        7223927Sequence Number:
                                                        3251566Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D035WCDA Code:
                                                        7223926Sequence Number:
                                                        3251566Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D018WCDA Code:
                                                        7223925Sequence Number:
                                                        3251566Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D001WCDA Code:
                                                        7223924Sequence Number:
                                                        3251566Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        143512CORB Waste Sequence Number:

Waste Stream EPA Code:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3251580Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        A-3: Additional Waste Codes:  D022, D035, D039, U210Comments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3251575Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        Damaged product, customer returned product
                                                        A-3: Additional Waste Codes: D026, D027, D035, U080, U159 A-8:Comments:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 224



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        U034, U035, U058, U072, U080, U122, U129, U132, U150, U154, U159,
                                                        D016, D018, D022, D024, D026, D027, D035, D039, P001, P075, U002,
                                                        D001, D002, D003, D004, D005, D006, D007, D008, D009, D010, D011,Federal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        452910NAICS:
                                                        WAR000002113EPA ID:
                                                        13975422Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        100 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVDAddress:
                                                        WAL MART STORE 2121Name:

                                                        G32WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3251567Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G32WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3251565Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G32WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3251564Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3278341Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3251580Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3251575Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3251574Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3251571Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3251569Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3251568Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        3251566Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        143512CORB Waste Sequence Number:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 225



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        FalseBatch Generation:
                                                        TrueMonthly Generation:
                                                        MQGGen Status Code:
                                                        Justin.P.Wilson@wal-mart.comSite Contact Email:
                                                        (479)204-3517Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        Bentonville, AR 72712-8041Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        P.O. Box 8041Site Contact Address:
                                                        Justin  WilsonSite Contact:
                                                        10/18/1994Operator Effective Date:
                                                        (479)204-3517Operator Phone Number:
                                                        Bentonville, AR 72712-8041Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        P.O. Box 8041Operator Address:
                                                        Not reportedOperator:
                                                        PrivateOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.Operator Organization Name:
                                                        (479)204-3517Land Phone Number:
                                                        Bentonville, AR 72712-8041Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        P.O. Box 8041Land Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        PrivateLand Organization Type:
                                                        Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.Land Organization Name:
                                                        10/18/1994Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (479)204-3517Legal Phone Number:
                                                        Bentonville, AR 72712-8041Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        P.O. Box 8041Legal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        PrivateLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Wal Mart Stores IncLegal Organization Name:
                                                        Bentonville, AR 72712-8041Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        P.O. Box 8041Mailing Address:
                                                        Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.Mail Name:
                                                        retail salesBusiness Type:
                                                        601336273Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2012Data Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:
                                                        U165, U182, U188, U200, U205, U210, U240, U249, U279, U409, U411

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 226



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        12.7008002Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        28Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        2673541Sequence Number:
                                                        137978CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Corrosive LiquidsDescription:
                                                        W105WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        2WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        221.810403Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        489Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        2673540Sequence Number:
                                                        137978CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Corrosive LiquidsDescription:
                                                        W110WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        2WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

Waste Stream Generated:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 227



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        137978CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Flammable SolidsDescription:
                                                        W409WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        2WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        699.451212Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        1542Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        2673559Sequence Number:
                                                        137978CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Toxic SolidsDescription:
                                                        W409WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        331.581605Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        731Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        2673543Sequence Number:
                                                        137978CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Flammable LiquidsDescription:
                                                        W219WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 228



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        1.81440003Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        4Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        2673556Sequence Number:
                                                        137978CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Toxic SolidsDescription:
                                                        W401WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        1822.56483Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        4018Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        2673554Sequence Number:
                                                        137978CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Toxic LiquidsDescription:
                                                        W219WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        19.0512003Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        42Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        2673547Sequence Number:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 229



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        108Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        2673550Sequence Number:
                                                        137978CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Oxidizing LiquidsDescription:
                                                        W119WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        3.62880006Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        8Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        2673549Sequence Number:
                                                        137978CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        LightersDescription:
                                                        W801WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        438.177607Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        966Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        2673561Sequence Number:
                                                        137978CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Waste AerosolsDescription:
                                                        W801WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 230



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        731Managed Quanity:
                                                        INR000110197Received EPAID:
                                                        673552Sequence Number:
                                                        2673543Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        12.7008002Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        28Managed Quanity:
                                                        INR000110197Received EPAID:
                                                        673549Sequence Number:
                                                        2673541Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        221.810403Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        489Managed Quanity:
                                                        INR000110197Received EPAID:
                                                        673547Sequence Number:
                                                        2673540Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        0.90720001Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        2Managed Quanity:
                                                        INR000110197Received EPAID:
                                                        673556Sequence Number:
                                                        2673546Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        137978Waste CORB Sequence Number:

Waste Stream Off Site Mgmt:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        4.98960008Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        11Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        2673551Sequence Number:
                                                        137978CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Oxidizing SolidsDescription:
                                                        W319WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        48.9888008Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 231



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        1.81440003Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        4Managed Quanity:
                                                        INR000110197Received EPAID:
                                                        673568Sequence Number:
                                                        2673556Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        1822.56483Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        4018Managed Quanity:
                                                        INR000110197Received EPAID:
                                                        673566Sequence Number:
                                                        2673554Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        19.0512003Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        42Managed Quanity:
                                                        INR000110197Received EPAID:
                                                        673558Sequence Number:
                                                        2673547Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        4.98960008Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        11Managed Quanity:
                                                        INR000110197Received EPAID:
                                                        673563Sequence Number:
                                                        2673551Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        48.9888008Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        108Managed Quanity:
                                                        INR000110197Received EPAID:
                                                        673561Sequence Number:
                                                        2673550Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        3.62880006Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        8Managed Quanity:
                                                        INR000110197Received EPAID:
                                                        673559Sequence Number:
                                                        2673549Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        699.451212Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        1542Managed Quanity:
                                                        INR000110197Received EPAID:
                                                        673572Sequence Number:
                                                        2673559Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        331.581605Kilogram Quanity:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 232



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        D008WCDA Code:
                                                        6015100Sequence Number:
                                                        2673541Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D002WCDA Code:
                                                        6015099Sequence Number:
                                                        2673541Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D002WCDA Code:
                                                        6015096Sequence Number:
                                                        2673540Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        137978CORB Waste Sequence Number:

Waste Stream EPA Code:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2673561Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        A-3: D022, D035, D039, U210Comments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2673559Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        returned product
                                                        A-3: D026, D027, D035, U080, U159 A-8: Damaged product, customerComments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2673556Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        A-3: U-411Comments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2673554Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        product
                                                        A-3: D016, D026, U080, U279 A-8: Damaged product, customer returnedComments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2673551Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        A-8: Damaged product; customer returned product.Comments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2673550Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        Damaged product, customer returned productComments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2673547Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        Damaged product, customer returned productComments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2673546Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        Damaged product, customer returned productComments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2673543Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        Damaged product, customer returned productComments:
                                                        137978CORB Waste Sequence Number:

Waste Stream Comments:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 233



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2673554Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2673551Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2673550Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2673549Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2673546Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2673543Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        137978CORB Waste Sequence Number:

Waste Stream Source Code:

                                                        D006WCDA Code:
                                                        6015210Sequence Number:
                                                        2673559Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D005WCDA Code:
                                                        6015209Sequence Number:
                                                        2673559Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        U159WCDA Code:
                                                        6015119Sequence Number:
                                                        2673543Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        U154WCDA Code:
                                                        6015118Sequence Number:
                                                        2673543Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        U002WCDA Code:
                                                        6015117Sequence Number:
                                                        2673543Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D035WCDA Code:
                                                        6015116Sequence Number:
                                                        2673543Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D018WCDA Code:
                                                        6015115Sequence Number:
                                                        2673543Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D001WCDA Code:
                                                        6015114Sequence Number:
                                                        2673543Waste Sequence Number:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 234



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Wal Mart Stores IncLegal Organization Name:
                                                        Bentonville, AR 72712-8041Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        P.O. Box 8041Mailing Address:
                                                        Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.Mail Name:
                                                        retail salesBusiness Type:
                                                        601336273Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2011Data Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:
                                                        U154, U159, U165, U248, U249, U279, U409, U411
                                                        D016, D018, D022, D026, D027, D035, D039, U002, U034, U072, U080,
                                                        D001, D002, D003, D004, D005, D006, D007, D008, D009, D010, D011,Federal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        452910NAICS:
                                                        WAR000002113EPA ID:
                                                        13975422Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        100 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVDAddress:
                                                        WAL MART STORE 2121Name:

                                                        G32WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2673541Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G32WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2673540Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2673561Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2673559Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G11WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2673556Waste Sequence Number:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 235



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        132212CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Flammable SolidsDescription:
                                                        W409WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

Waste Stream Generated:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        FalseBatch Generation:
                                                        TrueMonthly Generation:
                                                        MQGGen Status Code:
                                                        christopher.stewart@wal-mart.comSite Contact Email:
                                                        (479)204-0402Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        Bentonville, AR 72712-8041Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        P.O. Box 8041Site Contact Address:
                                                        Chris  StewartSite Contact:
                                                        10/18/1994Operator Effective Date:
                                                        (479)204-0402Operator Phone Number:
                                                        Bentonville, AR 72712-8041Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        P.O. Box 8041Operator Address:
                                                        Not reportedOperator:
                                                        PrivateOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.Operator Organization Name:
                                                        (479)204-0402Land Phone Number:
                                                        Bentonville, AR 72712-8041Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        P.O. Box 8041Land Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        PrivateLand Organization Type:
                                                        Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.Land Organization Name:
                                                        10/18/1994Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (479)204-0402Legal Phone Number:
                                                        Bentonville, AR 72712-8041Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        P.O. Box 8041Legal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        PrivateLegal Organization Type:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 236



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        136.080002Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        300Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        2644862Sequence Number:
                                                        132212CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Toxic LiquidsDescription:
                                                        W219WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        48.9888008Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        108Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        2644865Sequence Number:
                                                        132212CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Toxic SolidsDescription:
                                                        W409WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        0.90720001Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        2Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        2644840Sequence Number:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 237



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        2Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        2644838Sequence Number:
                                                        132212CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Corrosive LiquidsDescription:
                                                        W105WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        2WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        210.924003Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        465Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        2644836Sequence Number:
                                                        132212CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Corrosive LiquidsDescription:
                                                        W110WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        2WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        7.71120013Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        17Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        2644863Sequence Number:
                                                        132212CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Toxic SolidsDescription:
                                                        W401WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 238



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        7.71120013Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        17Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        2644856Sequence Number:
                                                        132212CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        LightersDescription:
                                                        W801WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        101.152801Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        223Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        2644839Sequence Number:
                                                        132212CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Flammable LiquidsDescription:
                                                        W219WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        0.90720001Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 239



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        1.81440003Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        4Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        2644859Sequence Number:
                                                        132212CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Toxic LiquidsDescription:
                                                        W219WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        31.7520005Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        70Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        2644857Sequence Number:
                                                        132212CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Oxidizing SolidsDescription:
                                                        W319WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        196.862403Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        434Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        2644841Sequence Number:
                                                        132212CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Flammable SolidsDescription:
                                                        W409WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        2WCDH Origin Code:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 240



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        0.90720001Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        2Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD991281767Received EPAID:
                                                        641331Sequence Number:
                                                        2644840Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        7.71120013Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        17Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD991281767Received EPAID:
                                                        641334Sequence Number:
                                                        2644856Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H061Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        101.152801Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        223Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD991281767Received EPAID:
                                                        641330Sequence Number:
                                                        2644839Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        0.90720001Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        2Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD991281767Received EPAID:
                                                        641329Sequence Number:
                                                        2644838Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        210.924003Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        465Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD991281767Received EPAID:
                                                        641326Sequence Number:
                                                        2644836Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        7.71120013Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        17Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD991281767Received EPAID:
                                                        641342Sequence Number:
                                                        2644863Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        136.080002Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        300Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD991281767Received EPAID:
                                                        641340Sequence Number:
                                                        2644862Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        132212Waste CORB Sequence Number:

Waste Stream Off Site Mgmt:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 241



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        A-8: W219 - Damaged product, customer returned product.Comments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2644857Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        Damaged product, customer returned product.
                                                        A-7: G19 - Damaged product, customer returned product. A-8: W319 -Comments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2644856Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        A-7: G19 - Damaged product, customer returned product.Comments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2644841Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        A-8: W409 - Damaged product, customer returned product.Comments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2644840Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        Damaged product, customer returned product.
                                                        A-7: G19 - Damaged product, customer returned product. A-8: W409 -Comments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2644839Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        A-8: W219 - Damaged product, customer returned product.Comments:
                                                        132212CORB Waste Sequence Number:

Waste Stream Comments:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        1.81440003Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        4Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD991281767Received EPAID:
                                                        641337Sequence Number:
                                                        2644859Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        31.7520005Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        70Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD991281767Received EPAID:
                                                        641335Sequence Number:
                                                        2644857Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        196.862403Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        434Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD991281767Received EPAID:
                                                        641332Sequence Number:
                                                        2644841Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        48.9888008Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        108Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD991281767Received EPAID:
                                                        641343Sequence Number:
                                                        2644865Waste Sequence Number:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 242



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        5800352Sequence Number:
                                                        2644859Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D016WCDA Code:
                                                        5800351Sequence Number:
                                                        2644859Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D004WCDA Code:
                                                        5800350Sequence Number:
                                                        2644859Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D001WCDA Code:
                                                        5800349Sequence Number:
                                                        2644857Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D035WCDA Code:
                                                        5800325Sequence Number:
                                                        2644841Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D018WCDA Code:
                                                        5800324Sequence Number:
                                                        2644841Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D007WCDA Code:
                                                        5800323Sequence Number:
                                                        2644841Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D001WCDA Code:
                                                        5800322Sequence Number:
                                                        2644841Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D006WCDA Code:
                                                        5800366Sequence Number:
                                                        2644862Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D005WCDA Code:
                                                        5800365Sequence Number:
                                                        2644862Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        132212CORB Waste Sequence Number:

Waste Stream EPA Code:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2644868Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        A-7: G19 - Damaged product, customer returned product.Comments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2644865Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        Damaged product, customer returned product.
                                                        A-3: Additional waste codes D011, D026, D027, D035, U159. A-8: W409 -Comments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2644862Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        customer returned product.
                                                        A-3: Additional waste code D026. A-8: W219 - Damaged product,Comments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2644859Waste Sequence Number:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 243



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        (479)204-0402Land Phone Number:
                                                        Bentonville, AR 72712-8041Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        P.O. Box 8041Land Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        PrivateLand Organization Type:
                                                        Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.Land Organization Name:
                                                        10/18/1994Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (479)204-0402Legal Phone Number:
                                                        Bentonville, AR 72712-8041Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        P.O. Box 8041Legal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        PrivateLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Wal Mart Stores IncLegal Organization Name:
                                                        Bentonville, AR 72712-8041Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        P.O. Box 8041Mailing Address:
                                                        Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.Mail Name:
                                                        retail salesBusiness Type:
                                                        601336273Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2010Data Year:
                                                        Updating site contact and waste codes.Form Comm:
                                                        U165, U182, U188, U200, U205, U248, U249, U279, U409, U411
                                                        U034, U035, U058, U072, U080, U122, U129, U132, U150, U154, U159,
                                                        D016, D018, D022, D024, D026, D027, D035, D039, P001, P075, U002,
                                                        D001, D002, D003, D004, D005, D006, D007, D008, D009, D010, D011,Federal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        WSC2State Waste Code Desc:
                                                        452910NAICS:
                                                        WAR000002113EPA ID:
                                                        13975422Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        100 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVDAddress:
                                                        WAL MART STORE 2121Name:

                                                        D001WCDA Code:
                                                        5800396Sequence Number:
                                                        2644868Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        U279WCDA Code:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 244



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        2.2680000390096007Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        5Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        2494120Sequence Number:
                                                        127291CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Oxidizing SolidsDescription:
                                                        W319WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

Waste Stream Generated:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        FalseBatch Generation:
                                                        TrueMonthly Generation:
                                                        MQGGen Status Code:
                                                        christopher.stewart@wal-mart.comSite Contact Email:
                                                        (479)204-0402Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        Bentonville, AR 72712-8041Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        P.O. Box 8041Site Contact Address:
                                                        Chris  StewartSite Contact:
                                                        10/18/1994Operator Effective Date:
                                                        (479)204-0402Operator Phone Number:
                                                        Bentonville, AR 72712-8041Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        P.O. Box 8041Operator Address:
                                                        Not reportedOperator:
                                                        PrivateOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.Operator Organization Name:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 245



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        211Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        2494113Sequence Number:
                                                        127291CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Flammable LiquidsDescription:
                                                        W219WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        450.87840775510864Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        994Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        2494111Sequence Number:
                                                        127291CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Corrosive LiquidsDescription:
                                                        W110WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        2WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        WSC2State Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        468.11520805158159Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        1032Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        2494136Sequence Number:
                                                        127291CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Toxic SolidsDescription:
                                                        W401WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 246



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        708.06961217879734Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        1561Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        2494146Sequence Number:
                                                        127291CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Waste AerosolsDescription:
                                                        W801WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        10.432800179444163Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        23Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        2494119Sequence Number:
                                                        127291CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        LightersDescription:
                                                        W801WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        95.709601646205158Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 247



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        0.45360000780192017Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        1Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        2494150Sequence Number:
                                                        127291CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Waste Organic PeroxideDescription:
                                                        W219WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        2.2680000390096007Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        5Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        2494118Sequence Number:
                                                        127291CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Flammable SolidsDescription:
                                                        W409WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        381.93120656921678Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        842Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        2494116Sequence Number:
                                                        127291CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Flammable SolidsDescription:
                                                        W409WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        2WCDH Origin Code:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 248



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        2494136Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H061Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        95.709601646205158Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        211Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD991281767Received EPAID:
                                                        586976Sequence Number:
                                                        2494113Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        450.87840775510864Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        994Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD991281767Received EPAID:
                                                        586971Sequence Number:
                                                        2494111Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        381.93120656921678Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        842Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD991281767Received EPAID:
                                                        586981Sequence Number:
                                                        2494116Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        2.2680000390096007Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        5Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD991281767Received EPAID:
                                                        586992Sequence Number:
                                                        2494120Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        127291Waste CORB Sequence Number:

Waste Stream Off Site Mgmt:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        33.11280056954017Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        73Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        2494123Sequence Number:
                                                        127291CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Toxic LiquidsDescription:
                                                        W219WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 249



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2494116Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        A-8:W409 Damaged product, customer returned product.Comments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2494136Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        A-7:G19 Damaged product, customer returned product.Comments:
                                                        127291CORB Waste Sequence Number:

Waste Stream Comments:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        708.06961217879734Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        1561Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD991281767Received EPAID:
                                                        587028Sequence Number:
                                                        2494146Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        10.432800179444163Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        23Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD991281767Received EPAID:
                                                        586988Sequence Number:
                                                        2494119Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        0.45360000780192017Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        1Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD991281767Received EPAID:
                                                        587032Sequence Number:
                                                        2494150Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        2.2680000390096007Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        5Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD991281767Received EPAID:
                                                        586985Sequence Number:
                                                        2494118Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        33.11280056954017Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        73Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD991281767Received EPAID:
                                                        586995Sequence Number:
                                                        2494123Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        468.11520805158159Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        1032Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD991281767Received EPAID:
                                                        587009Sequence Number:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 250



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        5408954Sequence Number:
                                                        2494146Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D001WCDA Code:
                                                        5408953Sequence Number:
                                                        2494146Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D004WCDA Code:
                                                        5422820Sequence Number:
                                                        2494123Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D035WCDA Code:
                                                        5408955Sequence Number:
                                                        2494146Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D016WCDA Code:
                                                        5422821Sequence Number:
                                                        2494123Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D001WCDA Code:
                                                        5408664Sequence Number:
                                                        2494119Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        127291CORB Waste Sequence Number:

Waste Stream EPA Code:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2494120Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        product, customer returned product.
                                                        A-7:G19 Damaged product, customer returned product. A-8:W319 DamagedComments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2494118Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        product, customer returned product.
                                                        A-7:G19 Damaged product, customer returned product. A-8:W409 DamagedComments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2494123Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        product, customer returned product.
                                                        A-7:G19 Damaged product, customer returned product. A-8:W219 DamagedComments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2494119Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        A-7:G19 Damaged product, customer returned product.Comments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2494113Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        product, customer returned product.
                                                        A-7:G19 Damaged product, customer returned product. A-8:W219 DamagedComments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2494150Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        product, customer returned product.
                                                        A-7:G19 Damaged product, customer returned product. A-8:W219 DamagedComments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2494146Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        A-7:G19 Damaged product, customer returned product.Comments:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 251



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        2494146Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G19WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2494136Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G19WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2494123Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G19WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2494120Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G19WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2494119Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G19WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2494118Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G19WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2494113Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G32WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2494116Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G32WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2494111Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        127291CORB Waste Sequence Number:

Waste Stream Source Code:

                                                        U411WCDA Code:
                                                        5408897Sequence Number:
                                                        2494136Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D004WCDA Code:
                                                        5408892Sequence Number:
                                                        2494136Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D001WCDA Code:
                                                        5408675Sequence Number:
                                                        2494120Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D035WCDA Code:
                                                        5408591Sequence Number:
                                                        2494113Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D039WCDA Code:
                                                        5408956Sequence Number:
                                                        2494146Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D022WCDA Code:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 252



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        (479)204-2231Land Phone Number:
                                                        Bentonville, AR 72712-8041Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        P.O. Box 8041Land Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        PrivateLand Organization Type:
                                                        Wal Mart Stores IncLand Organization Name:
                                                        05/03/1996Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (479)204-2231Legal Phone Number:
                                                        Bentonville, AR 72712-8041Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        P.O. Box 8041Legal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        PrivateLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Wal Mart Stores IncLegal Organization Name:
                                                        Bentonville, AR 72712-8041Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        P.O. Box 8041Mailing Address:
                                                        Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.Mail Name:
                                                        retail salesBusiness Type:
                                                        601336273Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2009Data Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:
                                                        U165, U249, U279, U409, U411
                                                        D018, D022, D026, D027, D035, D039, U002, U072, U080, U154, U159,
                                                        D001, D002, D003, D004, D005, D006, D007, D008, D009, D011, D016,Federal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        WSC2State Waste Code Desc:
                                                        452910NAICS:
                                                        WAR000002113EPA ID:
                                                        13975422Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        100 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVDAddress:
                                                        WAL MART STORE 2121Name:

                                                        G19WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2494150Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G19WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 253



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        644.56561108652852Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        1421Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        2018384Sequence Number:
                                                        121009CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Waste AerosolsDescription:
                                                        W801WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

Waste Stream Generated:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        FalseBatch Generation:
                                                        TrueMonthly Generation:
                                                        MQGGen Status Code:
                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Email:
                                                        (360) 427-6226Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        100 E Wallace Kneeland BlvdSite Contact Address:
                                                        Kevin  JohnstonSite Contact:
                                                        05/03/1996Operator Effective Date:
                                                        479-204-2231Operator Phone Number:
                                                        Bentonville, AR 72712-8041Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        P.O. Box 8041Operator Address:
                                                        Not reportedOperator:
                                                        PrivateOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Wal-Mart Stores, Inc.Operator Organization Name:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 254



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        553Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        2018355Sequence Number:
                                                        121009CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Corrosive LiquidsDescription:
                                                        W110WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        2WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        356.07600612450733Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        785Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        2018357Sequence Number:
                                                        121009CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Flammable LiquidsDescription:
                                                        W219WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        9.0720001560384027Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        20Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        2018360Sequence Number:
                                                        121009CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Flammable SolidsDescription:
                                                        W409WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 255



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        40.824000702172818Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        90Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        2018364Sequence Number:
                                                        121009CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Oxidizing LiquidsDescription:
                                                        W119WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        36.741600631955535Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        81Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        2018362Sequence Number:
                                                        121009CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        LightersDescription:
                                                        W801WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        250.84080431446185Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 256



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        225.89280388535624Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        498Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        2018361Sequence Number:
                                                        121009CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Flammable SolidsDescription:
                                                        W409WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        2WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        75.751201302920663Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        167Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        2018381Sequence Number:
                                                        121009CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Toxic SolidsDescription:
                                                        W310WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        25.401600436907529Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        56Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        2018379Sequence Number:
                                                        121009CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Toxic LiquidsDescription:
                                                        W219WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 257



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        2018360Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        25.401600436907529Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        56Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD991281767Received EPAID:
                                                        502108Sequence Number:
                                                        2018379Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H111Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        6.804000117028802Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        15Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD991281767Received EPAID:
                                                        502086Sequence Number:
                                                        2018355Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        40.824000702172818Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        90Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD991281767Received EPAID:
                                                        502098Sequence Number:
                                                        2018364Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H061Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        356.07600612450733Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        785Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD991281767Received EPAID:
                                                        502090Sequence Number:
                                                        2018357Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        121009Waste CORB Sequence Number:

Waste Stream Off Site Mgmt:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        2.2680000390096007Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        5Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        2018367Sequence Number:
                                                        121009CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Oxidizing SolidsDescription:
                                                        W319WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 258



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        121009CORB Waste Sequence Number:
Waste Stream Comments:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        36.741600631955535Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        81Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD991281767Received EPAID:
                                                        502095Sequence Number:
                                                        2018362Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        75.751201302920663Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        167Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD991281767Received EPAID:
                                                        502112Sequence Number:
                                                        2018381Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        225.89280388535624Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        498Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD991281767Received EPAID:
                                                        502094Sequence Number:
                                                        2018361Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        2.2680000390096007Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        5Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD991281767Received EPAID:
                                                        502101Sequence Number:
                                                        2018367Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        644.56561108652852Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        1421Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD991281767Received EPAID:
                                                        502114Sequence Number:
                                                        2018384Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        244.03680419743304Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        538Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD991281767Received EPAID:
                                                        502087Sequence Number:
                                                        2018355Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        9.0720001560384027Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        20Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD991281767Received EPAID:
                                                        502093Sequence Number:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 259



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        D018WCDA Code:
                                                        4624195Sequence Number:
                                                        2018361Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D007WCDA Code:
                                                        4624194Sequence Number:
                                                        2018361Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D035WCDA Code:
                                                        4624217Sequence Number:
                                                        2018384Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        121009CORB Waste Sequence Number:

Waste Stream EPA Code:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2018360Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        damaged product, customer returned product.
                                                        A-7. G-19, damaged product, customer returned product. A-8, W409,Comments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2018379Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        returned product.
                                                        customer returned product. A-8, W219, damaged product, customer
                                                        A-3: D026, D027, D039, U080, U279. A-7. G-19, damaged product,Comments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2018357Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        damaged product, customer returned product.
                                                        A-7. G-19, damaged product, customer returned product. A-8, W219,Comments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2018384Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        A-7: G-19, damaged product, customer returned product.Comments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2018367Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        damaged product, customer returned product.
                                                        A-7. G-19, damaged product, customer returned product. A-8, W319,Comments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2018381Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        customer returned product.
                                                        A-3: D026, D027, D039, U080, U249, U279. A-7: G-19, damaged product,Comments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2018361Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        A-8, W409, damaged product, customer returned product.Comments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2018364Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        damaged product, customer returned product.
                                                        A-7. G-19, damaged product, customer returned product. A-8, W119,Comments:

                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2018362Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        A-7. G-19, damaged product, customer returned product.Comments:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 260



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        G19WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2018379Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G19WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2018357Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G32WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2018355Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G19WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2018384Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G19WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2018364Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G32WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2018361Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        121009CORB Waste Sequence Number:

Waste Stream Source Code:

                                                        D006WCDA Code:
                                                        4624202Sequence Number:
                                                        2018379Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D004WCDA Code:
                                                        4624201Sequence Number:
                                                        2018379Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D002WCDA Code:
                                                        4624199Sequence Number:
                                                        2018364Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D001WCDA Code:
                                                        4624198Sequence Number:
                                                        2018364Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D001WCDA Code:
                                                        4624197Sequence Number:
                                                        2018362Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D005WCDA Code:
                                                        4624214Sequence Number:
                                                        2018384Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D001WCDA Code:
                                                        4624193Sequence Number:
                                                        2018361Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D039WCDA Code:
                                                        4624218Sequence Number:
                                                        2018384Waste Sequence Number:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

TC5712009.2s   Page 261



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

1 additional WA MANIFEST: record(s) in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

                                                        G19WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2018367Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G19WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2018360Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G19WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2018381Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G19WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2018362Waste Sequence Number:

WAL MART STORE 2121  (Continued) 1004794987

                              Not reportedResp Party Name:
                              Not reportedCause Type:
                              Not reportedCause:
                              Not reportedResp Party Contact:
                              Not reportedRecovered Quantity:
                              Not reportedVessel Facility Name2:
                              Not reportedSource:
                              Not reportedSource Type:
                              Not reportedLongitude:
                              Not reportedLatitude:
                              Not reportedIncident Category:
                              Not reportedIncident Category Type:
                              Not reportedIncident Date:
                              UNKNOWNContact Name:
                              05/02/2006Date Received:
                              CYLINDERMaterial Units:
                              1Material Qty:
                              CHEMICALMaterial Desc:
                              Not reportedMedium:
                              554855Facility ID:
                              SHELTON, WACity,State,Zip:
                              100 WALLACE KNEELANDAddress:
                              Not reportedName:

SPILLS:

6018 ft. Site 2 of 3 in cluster O
1.140 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
230 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  
South 100 WALLACE KNEELAND    N/A
O67 WA SPILLS S108009786

TC5712009.2s   Page 262

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=212D1Y1CDi8OYs2iCK16iO23OC2Hst9KiO18Kf1t6l2w1F1DDV7lYr1qCP8kiu2EOi2Fsc2JiBAZKT2Z1z2IDi1eYu6WCW8Lii2sOP3MsE16iM1kK7A86s0TOo3g3DtVCm2f1p2cDC18Ym2kCQ1EiM1MOt5Fss8yidAUK1576cAYOp9q3I8VCS1
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=212D1Y1CDi8OYs2iCK16iO23OC2Hst9KiO18Kf1t6l2w1F1DDV7lYr1qCP8kiu2EOi2Fsc2JiBAZKT2Z1z2IDi1eYu6WCW8Lii2sOP3MsE16iM1kK7A86s0TOo3g3DtVCm2f1p2cDC18Ym2kCQ1EiM1MOt5Fss8yidAUK1576cAYOp9q3I8VCS1


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110040341895Registry ID:

FINDS:

6018 ft. Site 3 of 3 in cluster O
1.140 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
230 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
South 100 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVD    N/A
O68 FINDSWAL MART TIRE & LUBE EXPRESS  12121 1012309012

                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             9189Interaction:

                                             -123.145305063Longitude:
                                             47.24648449Latitude:
                                             Hazardous Waste PlannerDate Interaction 3:
                                             1992-01-01 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             WAD103362448Program ID:
                                             Not reportedFacility Alt.:
                                             HWPPRTProgram Data:
                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             HWPInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             9190Interaction:

                                             -123.145305063Longitude:
                                             47.24648449Latitude:
                                             Hazardous Waste GeneratorDate Interaction 3:
                                             1987-05-18 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             WAD103362448Program ID:
                                             Not reportedFacility Alt.:
                                             TURBOWASTEProgram Data:
                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             HWGInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             9188Interaction:

                              1744198Facility Id:
                              SUNRISE FIBERGLASS ENGINEERINGFacility Name:

ALLSITES:

6042 ft. Site 2 of 3 in cluster N
1.144 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
288 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
West RCRA NonGen / NLRW 171 SANDERSON WAY WAD103362448
N69 WA ALLSITESSUNRISE FIBERGLASS ENGINEERING 1000362766

TC5712009.2s   Page 263

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=212D1Y1CDi8OYs2iCK16iO23OC2Hst9KiO18Kf1t6l2w1F1DDV7lYr1qCP8kiu2EOi2Fsc2JiBAZKT2Z1z2IDi1eYu6WCW8Lii2sOP3MsE16iM1kK7A86s0TOo3g3DtVCm2f1p2cDC18Ym2kCQ1EiM2MOt3Fss4yid1UK1A76c1YOp2q3I3VCS1
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=212D1Y1CDi8OYs2iCK16iO23OC2Hst9KiO18Kf1t6l2w1F1DDV7lYr1qCP8kiu2EOi2Fsc2JiBAZKT2Z1z2IDi1eYu6WCW8Lii2sOP3MsE16iM1kK7A86s0TOo3g3DtVCm2f1p2cDC18Ym2kCQ1EiM2MOt3Fss4yid1UK1A76c1YOp2q3I3VCS1


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OperatorOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    000-000-0000Owner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    W 171 SANDERSON WAYOwner/operator address:
                    SUNRISE FIBERGLASS ENGINEERINGOwner/operator name:

Owner/Operator Summary:

                    Handler: Non-Generators do not presently generate hazardous wasteDescription:
                    Non-GeneratorClassification:
                    Other land typeLand type:
                    10EPA Region:
                    Not reportedContact email:
                    Not reportedContact telephone:
                    Not reportedContact country:
                    Not reported
                    Not reportedContact address:
                    Not reportedContact:
                    MCMINNVILLE, WA 97128
                    PO BOX 29Mailing address:
                    WAD103362448EPA ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    W 171 SANDERSON WAYFacility address:
                    SUNRISE FIBERGLASS ENGINEERINGFacility name:
                    05/11/1993Date form received by agency:

RCRA NonGen / NLR:

                                             -123.145305063Longitude:
                                             47.24648449Latitude:
                                             Toxics Release InventoryDate Interaction 3:
                                             1987-01-01 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             WAD103362448Program ID:
                                             Not reportedFacility Alt.:
                                             EPCRAProgram Data:
                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             TRIInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             9187Interaction:

                                             -123.145305063Longitude:
                                             47.24648449Latitude:
                                             Toxics Release InventoryDate Interaction 3:
                                             1989-01-01 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             WAD103362448Program ID:
                                             Not reportedFacility Alt.:
                                             EPCRAProgram Data:
                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             TRIInteraction 2:

SUNRISE FIBERGLASS ENGINEERING  (Continued) 1000362766

TC5712009.2s   Page 264



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    04/08/1992Date violation determined:
                    Generators - GeneralArea of violation:
                    SR - -210(1)Regulation violated:

Facility Has Received Notices of Violations:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    SUNRISE FIBERGLASS ENGINEERINGSite name:
                    05/10/1993Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    SUNRISE FIBERGLASS ENGINEERINGSite name:
                    05/10/1993Date form received by agency:

Historical Generators:

                              NoUsed oil transporter:
                              NoUsed oil transfer facility:
                              NoUsed oil Specification marketer:
                              NoUsed oil fuel marketer to burner:
                              NoUser oil refiner:
                              NoUsed oil processor:
                              NoUsed oil fuel burner:
                              NoFurnace exemption:
                              NoOn-site burner exemption:
                              NoUnderground injection activity:
                              NoTreater, storer or disposer of HW:
                              NoTransporter of hazardous waste:
                              NoRecycler of hazardous waste:
                              NoMixed waste (haz. and radioactive):
                              NoU.S. importer of hazardous waste:

Handler Activities Summary:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    000-000-0000Owner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    W 171 SANDERSON WAYOwner/operator address:
                    SUNRISE FIBERGLASS ENGINEERINGOwner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    05/02/1996Owner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    000-000-0000Owner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    171 W SANDERSON WAYOwner/operator address:
                    SUNRISE FIBERGLASS ENGINEERINGOwner/operator name:

SUNRISE FIBERGLASS ENGINEERING  (Continued) 1000362766

TC5712009.2s   Page 265



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    05/08/1992Date achieved compliance:
                    04/08/1992Date violation determined:
                    Generators - GeneralArea of violation:
                    SR - -340(1)Regulation violated:

                    Not reported    Paid penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Final penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Proposed penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Enforcement lead agency:
                    Not reported    Enf. disp. status date:
                    Not reported    Enf. disposition status:
                    Not reported    Enforcement action date:
                    Not reported    Enforcement action:
                    StateViolation lead agency:
                    05/08/1992Date achieved compliance:
                    04/08/1992Date violation determined:
                    Generators - GeneralArea of violation:
                    SR - 173-303-630(5)(c)Regulation violated:

                    Not reported    Paid penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Final penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Proposed penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Enforcement lead agency:
                    Not reported    Enf. disp. status date:
                    Not reported    Enf. disposition status:
                    Not reported    Enforcement action date:
                    Not reported    Enforcement action:
                    StateViolation lead agency:
                    05/08/1992Date achieved compliance:
                    04/08/1992Date violation determined:
                    Generators - GeneralArea of violation:
                    SR - -220(1)Regulation violated:

                    Not reported    Paid penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Final penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Proposed penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Enforcement lead agency:
                    Not reported    Enf. disp. status date:
                    Not reported    Enf. disposition status:
                    Not reported    Enforcement action date:
                    Not reported    Enforcement action:
                    StateViolation lead agency:
                    05/08/1992Date achieved compliance:
                    04/08/1992Date violation determined:
                    Generators - GeneralArea of violation:
                    SR - 173-303-200 (1)(a)Regulation violated:

                    Not reported    Paid penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Final penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Proposed penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Enforcement lead agency:
                    Not reported    Enf. disp. status date:
                    Not reported    Enf. disposition status:
                    Not reported    Enforcement action date:
                    Not reported    Enforcement action:
                    StateViolation lead agency:
                    05/08/1992Date achieved compliance:

SUNRISE FIBERGLASS ENGINEERING  (Continued) 1000362766

TC5712009.2s   Page 266



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    StateViolation lead agency:
                    07/04/1994Date achieved compliance:
                    03/29/1989Date violation determined:
                    Generators - GeneralArea of violation:
                    Not reportedRegulation violated:

                    Not reported    Paid penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Final penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Proposed penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Enforcement lead agency:
                    Not reported    Enf. disp. status date:
                    Not reported    Enf. disposition status:
                    Not reported    Enforcement action date:
                    Not reported    Enforcement action:
                    StateViolation lead agency:
                    05/08/1992Date achieved compliance:
                    04/08/1992Date violation determined:
                    Generators - GeneralArea of violation:
                    SR - 173-303-200(1)(d)Regulation violated:

                    Not reported    Paid penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Final penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Proposed penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Enforcement lead agency:
                    Not reported    Enf. disp. status date:
                    Not reported    Enf. disposition status:
                    Not reported    Enforcement action date:
                    Not reported    Enforcement action:
                    StateViolation lead agency:
                    05/08/1992Date achieved compliance:
                    04/08/1992Date violation determined:
                    Generators - GeneralArea of violation:
                    SR - 173-303-200(1)(c)Regulation violated:

                    Not reported    Paid penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Final penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Proposed penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Enforcement lead agency:
                    Not reported    Enf. disp. status date:
                    Not reported    Enf. disposition status:
                    Not reported    Enforcement action date:
                    Not reported    Enforcement action:
                    StateViolation lead agency:
                    05/08/1992Date achieved compliance:
                    04/08/1992Date violation determined:
                    Generators - GeneralArea of violation:
                    SR - -220(2)Regulation violated:

                    Not reported    Paid penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Final penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Proposed penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Enforcement lead agency:
                    Not reported    Enf. disp. status date:
                    Not reported    Enf. disposition status:
                    Not reported    Enforcement action date:
                    Not reported    Enforcement action:
                    StateViolation lead agency:

SUNRISE FIBERGLASS ENGINEERING  (Continued) 1000362766

TC5712009.2s   Page 267



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    StateEvaluation lead agency:
                    07/04/1994Date achieved compliance:
                    Generators - GeneralArea of violation:
                    COMPLIANCE EVALUATION INSPECTION ON-SITEEvaluation:
                    03/29/1989Evaluation date:

                    StateEvaluation lead agency:
                    05/08/1992Date achieved compliance:
                    Generators - GeneralArea of violation:
                    COMPLIANCE EVALUATION INSPECTION ON-SITEEvaluation:
                    04/08/1992Evaluation date:

                    StateEvaluation lead agency:
                    Not reportedDate achieved compliance:
                    Not reportedArea of violation:
                    COMPLIANCE SCHEDULE EVALUATIONEvaluation:
                    09/11/1992Evaluation date:

Evaluation Action Summary:

                    Not reported    Paid penalty amount:
                    16000    Final penalty amount:
                    16000    Proposed penalty amount:
                    State    Enforcement lead agency:
                    Not reported    Enf. disp. status date:
                    Not reported    Enf. disposition status:
                    10/13/1989    Enforcement action date:
                    FINAL 3008(A) COMPLIANCE ORDER    Enforcement action:

SUNRISE FIBERGLASS ENGINEERING  (Continued) 1000362766

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

HAZARDOUS WASTE BIENNIAL REPORTER

corrective action activities required under RCRA.
program staff to track the notification, permit, compliance, and
and treat, store, or dispose of hazardous waste. RCRAInfo allows RCRA
events and activities related to facilities that generate, transport,
Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) program through the tracking of
RCRAInfo is a national information system that supports the Resource

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110005386670Registry ID:

FINDS:

6053 ft. Site 1 of 3 in cluster P
1.146 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
244 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
ESE ECHOE 1022 JOHNS PRAIRIE RD    N/A
P70 FINDSREPAIRS PLUS 1016206297

TC5712009.2s   Page 268

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=212D1Y1CDi8OYs2iCK16iO23OC2Hst9KiO18Kf1t6l2w1F1DDV7lYr1qCP8kiu2EOi2Fsc2JiBAZKT2Z1z2IDi1eYu6WCW8Lii2sOP3MsE16iM1kK7A86s0TOo3g3DtVCm2f1p2cDC18Ym2kCQ1EiM2MOt7Fss3yid1UK1776c3YOpAq3I8VCS1
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=212D1Y1CDi8OYs2iCK16iO23OC2Hst9KiO18Kf1t6l2w1F1DDV7lYr1qCP8kiu2EOi2Fsc2JiBAZKT2Z1z2IDi1eYu6WCW8Lii2sOP3MsE16iM1kK7A86s0TOo3g3DtVCm2f1p2cDC18Ym2kCQ1EiM2MOt7Fss3yid1UK1776c3YOpAq3I8VCS1


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                   http://echo.epa.gov/detailed-facility-report?fid=110005386670DFR URL:
                                   110005386670Registry ID:
                                   1016206297Envid:

ECHO:

REPAIRS PLUS  (Continued) 1016206297

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    360-426-2442Owner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    100 E BOURGAULT RDOwner/operator address:
                    BOURGAULT, JOEOwner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OperatorOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    360-426-0403Owner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    1022 E JOHNS PRAIRIE RDOwner/operator address:
                    FYE, DALEOwner/operator name:

Owner/Operator Summary:

                    Handler: Non-Generators do not presently generate hazardous wasteDescription:
                    Non-GeneratorClassification:
                    PrivateLand type:
                    10EPA Region:
                    TRUSTYTRACTOR@AOL.COMContact email:
                    360-426-0403Contact telephone:
                    USContact country:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    1022 E JOHNS PRAIRIE RDContact address:
                    DALE  FYEContact:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    1022 E JOHNS PRAIRIE RDMailing address:
                    WAD988521217EPA ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    E 1022 JOHNS PRAIRIE RDFacility address:
                    REPAIRS PLUSFacility name:
                    03/08/2006Date form received by agency:

RCRA NonGen / NLR:

6058 ft. Site 2 of 3 in cluster P
1.147 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
244 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
ESE WA MANIFESTE 1022 JOHNS PRAIRIE RD WAD988521217
P71 RCRA NonGen / NLRREPAIRS PLUS 1000878796

TC5712009.2s   Page 269



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    02/26/2003Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    REPAIRS PLUSSite name:
                    03/16/2004Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    REPAIRS PLUSSite name:
                    12/31/2004Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    REPAIRS PLUSSite name:
                    12/31/2005Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    REPAIRS PLUSSite name:
                    03/07/2006Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    REPAIRS PLUSSite name:
                    03/07/2006Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    REPAIRS PLUSSite name:
                    03/07/2006Date form received by agency:

Historical Generators:

                              NoUsed oil transporter:
                              NoUsed oil transfer facility:
                              NoUsed oil Specification marketer:
                              NoUsed oil fuel marketer to burner:
                              NoUser oil refiner:
                              NoUsed oil processor:
                              NoUsed oil fuel burner:
                              NoFurnace exemption:
                              NoOn-site burner exemption:
                              NoUnderground injection activity:
                              NoTreater, storer or disposer of HW:
                              NoTransporter of hazardous waste:
                              NoRecycler of hazardous waste:
                              NoMixed waste (haz. and radioactive):
                              NoU.S. importer of hazardous waste:

Handler Activities Summary:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    04/05/1993Owner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    360-426-0403Owner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    1022 E JOHNS PRAIRIE RDOwner/operator address:
                    REPAIRS PLUS DBA TRUSTY TRACTOROwner/operator name:

REPAIRS PLUS  (Continued) 1000878796

TC5712009.2s   Page 270



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        WAD988521217EPA ID:
                                                        89922321Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        E 1022 JOHNS PRAIRIE RDAddress:
                                                        REPAIRS PLUSName:

WA MANIFEST:

                    StateEvaluation lead agency:
                    Not reportedDate achieved compliance:
                    Not reportedArea of violation:
                    COMPLIANCE ASSISTANCE VISITEvaluation:
                    10/07/1993Evaluation date:

                    StateEvaluation lead agency:
                    Not reportedDate achieved compliance:
                    Not reportedArea of violation:
                    COMPLIANCE ASSISTANCE VISITEvaluation:
                    03/30/1995Evaluation date:

Evaluation Action Summary:

                    No violations foundViolation Status:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    REPAIRS PLUSSite name:
                    12/31/1994Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    REPAIRS PLUSSite name:
                    02/22/1996Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    REPAIRS PLUSSite name:
                    01/22/1997Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    REPAIRS PLUSSite name:
                    02/11/1998Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    REPAIRS PLUSSite name:
                    02/12/1999Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    REPAIRS PLUSSite name:
                    12/08/2000Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    REPAIRS PLUSSite name:
                    12/28/2000Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    REPAIRS PLUSSite name:
                    02/20/2002Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    REPAIRS PLUSSite name:

REPAIRS PLUS  (Continued) 1000878796

TC5712009.2s   Page 271



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        NoBatch Generation:
                                                        NoMonthly Generation:
                                                        XQGGen Status Code:
                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Email:
                                                        (360)426-0403Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584-1271Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        1022 E JOHNS PRAIRIE RDSite Contact Address:
                                                        Dale  FyeSite Contact:
                                                        05/30/1996Operator Effective Date:
                                                        (360) 426-0403Operator Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584-1271Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        1022 E JOHNS PRAIRIE RDOperator Address:
                                                        Dale  FyeOperator:
                                                        PrivateOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Organization Name:
                                                        (360)426-2442Land Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584-7409Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        100 E BOURGAULT RDLand Address:
                                                        Joe  BourgaultLand Contact:
                                                        PrivateLand Organization Type:
                                                        Not reportedLand Organization Name:
                                                        04/05/1993Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (360)426-0403Legal Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584-1271Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        1022 E JOHNS PRAIRIE RDLegal Address:
                                                        Dale  FyeLegal Contact:
                                                        PrivateLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Repairs Plus DBA Trusty TractorLegal Organization Name:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584-1271Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        1022 E JOHNS PRAIRIE RDMailing Address:
                                                        Repairs Plus DBA Trusty TractorMail Name:
                                                        Auto/Tractor RepairBusiness Type:
                                                        600643287Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        NoSmelter Defferal:
                                                        NoIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        NoIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        NoUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        NoOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        NoGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        NoGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        NoTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        NoImmediate Recycler:
                                                        NoImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        NoMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        NoTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        NoPermit by Rule:
                                                        Not reportedData Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:
                                                        Not reportedFederal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        811111NAICS:

REPAIRS PLUS  (Continued) 1000878796

TC5712009.2s   Page 272



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        NoUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        NoUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        NoUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        NoUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        NoUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        NoUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        NoUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        NoTransfer Facility:
                                                        NoRecycler Onsite:
                                                        NoTranports Other Waste:
                                                        NoTransport Own Waste:
                                                        NoOne Time Generation:

REPAIRS PLUS  (Continued) 1000878796

                                             -123.080015074Longitude:
                                             47.248414482999998Latitude:
                                             Hazardous Waste GeneratorDate Interaction 3:
                                             1993-05-19 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             WAD988521217Program ID:
                                             Not reportedFacility Alt.:
                                             TURBOWASTEProgram Data:
                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             HWGInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             71104Interaction:

                              89922321Facility Id:
                              REPAIRS PLUSFacility Name:

ALLSITES:

6090 ft. Site 3 of 3 in cluster P
1.153 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
244 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
ESE 1022 E JOHNS PRAIRIE RD    N/A
P72 WA ALLSITESREPAIRS PLUS S109556532

                                             2000-01-01 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             WAD988498499Program ID:
                                             Not reportedFacility Alt.:
                                             HWPPRTProgram Data:
                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             HWPInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             40090Interaction:

                              35651653Facility Id:
                              OLYMPIC TOOL ENGINEERING INCFacility Name:

ALLSITES:

6103 ft. Site 3 of 3 in cluster N
1.156 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
287 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
West RCRA NonGen / NLRW 21 SANDERSON WAY WAD988498499
N73 WA ALLSITESOLYMPIC TOOL ENGINEERING INC 1000660168

TC5712009.2s   Page 273



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    000-000-0000Owner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    W 21 SANDERSON WAYOwner/operator address:
                    OLYMPIC TOOL ENGINEERING INCOwner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    09/16/1996Owner/Op start date:
                    OperatorOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    21 W SANDERSON WAYOwner/operator address:
                    OLYMPIC TOOL & ENGINEERING, INC.Owner/operator name:

Owner/Operator Summary:

                    Handler: Non-Generators do not presently generate hazardous wasteDescription:
                    Non-GeneratorClassification:
                    PrivateLand type:
                    10EPA Region:
                    gorud@olympictool.comContact email:
                    360-426-7878Contact telephone:
                    USContact country:
                    Not reported
                    Not reportedContact address:
                    GARY  ORUDContact:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584-1279
                    21 W SANDERSON WAYMailing address:
                    WAD988498499EPA ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584-1279
                    W 21 SANDERSON WAYFacility address:
                    OLYMPIC TOOL ENGINEERING INCFacility name:
                    12/31/2004Date form received by agency:

RCRA NonGen / NLR:

                                             -123.145495064Longitude:
                                             47.246204489999997Latitude:
                                             Hazardous Waste GeneratorDate Interaction 3:
                                             1991-12-13 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             WAD988498499Program ID:
                                             Not reportedFacility Alt.:
                                             TURBOWASTEProgram Data:
                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             HWGInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             40089Interaction:

                                             -123.145495064Longitude:
                                             47.246204489999997Latitude:
                                             Hazardous Waste PlannerDate Interaction 3:

OLYMPIC TOOL ENGINEERING INC  (Continued) 1000660168

TC5712009.2s   Page 274



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    21 W SANDERSON WAYOwner/operator address:
                    OLYMPIC TOOL ENGINEERING INCOwner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OperatorOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    360-426-7878Owner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    21 W SANDERSON WAYOwner/operator address:
                    OLYMPIC TOOL ENGINEERING INCOwner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    360-426-1151Owner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    450 W BUSINESS PARK RDOwner/operator address:
                    PORT OF SHELTONOwner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OperatorOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    000-000-0000Owner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    W 21 SANDERSON WAYOwner/operator address:
                    OLYMPIC TOOL ENGINEERING INCOwner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:

OLYMPIC TOOL ENGINEERING INC  (Continued) 1000660168

TC5712009.2s   Page 275



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    OLYMPIC TOOL ENGINEERING INCSite name:
                    02/13/1998Date form received by agency:

                    Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    OLYMPIC TOOL ENGINEERING INCSite name:
                    02/18/1999Date form received by agency:

                    Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    OLYMPIC TOOL ENGINEERING INCSite name:
                    02/29/2000Date form received by agency:

                    Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    OLYMPIC TOOL ENGINEERING INCSite name:
                    05/11/2001Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    OLYMPIC TOOL ENGINEERING INCSite name:
                    05/31/2002Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    OLYMPIC TOOL ENGINEERING INCSite name:
                    02/25/2003Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    OLYMPIC TOOL ENGINEERING INCSite name:
                    03/17/2004Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    OLYMPIC TOOL ENGINEERING INCSite name:
                    03/17/2004Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    OLYMPIC TOOL ENGINEERING INCSite name:
                    03/18/2004Date form received by agency:

Historical Generators:

                              NoUsed oil transporter:
                              NoUsed oil transfer facility:
                              NoUsed oil Specification marketer:
                              NoUsed oil fuel marketer to burner:
                              NoUser oil refiner:
                              NoUsed oil processor:
                              NoUsed oil fuel burner:
                              NoFurnace exemption:
                              NoOn-site burner exemption:
                              NoUnderground injection activity:
                              NoTreater, storer or disposer of HW:
                              NoTransporter of hazardous waste:
                              NoRecycler of hazardous waste:
                              NoMixed waste (haz. and radioactive):
                              NoU.S. importer of hazardous waste:

Handler Activities Summary:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    09/16/1996Owner/Op start date:

OLYMPIC TOOL ENGINEERING INC  (Continued) 1000660168

TC5712009.2s   Page 276



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    Not reported    Enf. disposition status:
                    10/10/2002    Enforcement action date:
                    WRITTEN INFORMAL    Enforcement action:
                    StateViolation lead agency:
                    10/31/2002Date achieved compliance:
                    10/10/2002Date violation determined:
                    Generators - GeneralArea of violation:
                    SR - -630(5)Regulation violated:

                    Not reported    Paid penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Final penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Proposed penalty amount:
                    State    Enforcement lead agency:
                    Not reported    Enf. disp. status date:
                    Not reported    Enf. disposition status:
                    10/10/2002    Enforcement action date:
                    WRITTEN INFORMAL    Enforcement action:
                    StateViolation lead agency:
                    10/31/2002Date achieved compliance:
                    10/10/2002Date violation determined:
                    Generators - GeneralArea of violation:
                    SR - -630(7)Regulation violated:

                    Not reported    Paid penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Final penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Proposed penalty amount:
                    State    Enforcement lead agency:
                    Not reported    Enf. disp. status date:
                    Not reported    Enf. disposition status:
                    10/10/2002    Enforcement action date:
                    WRITTEN INFORMAL    Enforcement action:
                    StateViolation lead agency:
                    12/10/2002Date achieved compliance:
                    10/10/2002Date violation determined:
                    Generators - GeneralArea of violation:
                    SR - -071(3)(n)Regulation violated:

Facility Has Received Notices of Violations:

                    Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    OLYMPIC TOOL ENGINEERING INCSite name:
                    12/31/1994Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    OLYMPIC TOOL ENGINEERING INCSite name:
                    02/29/1996Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    OLYMPIC TOOL ENGINEERING INCSite name:
                    06/16/1997Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    OLYMPIC TOOL ENGINEERING INCSite name:
                    02/12/1998Date form received by agency:

                    Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    OLYMPIC TOOL ENGINEERING INCSite name:
                    02/13/1998Date form received by agency:

OLYMPIC TOOL ENGINEERING INC  (Continued) 1000660168

TC5712009.2s   Page 277



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    Not reported    Enf. disp. status date:
                    Not reported    Enf. disposition status:
                    03/20/2000    Enforcement action date:
                    WRITTEN INFORMAL    Enforcement action:
                    StateViolation lead agency:
                    02/17/2000Date achieved compliance:
                    02/17/2000Date violation determined:
                    Generators - GeneralArea of violation:
                    PC - -200(1)(d)Regulation violated:

                    Not reported    Paid penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Final penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Proposed penalty amount:
                    State    Enforcement lead agency:
                    Not reported    Enf. disp. status date:
                    Not reported    Enf. disposition status:
                    03/20/2000    Enforcement action date:
                    WRITTEN INFORMAL    Enforcement action:
                    StateViolation lead agency:
                    04/20/2000Date achieved compliance:
                    02/17/2000Date violation determined:
                    Generators - GeneralArea of violation:
                    SR - WAC 173-303-201(2)(a)Regulation violated:

                    Not reported    Paid penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Final penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Proposed penalty amount:
                    State    Enforcement lead agency:
                    Not reported    Enf. disp. status date:
                    Not reported    Enf. disposition status:
                    03/20/2000    Enforcement action date:
                    WRITTEN INFORMAL    Enforcement action:
                    StateViolation lead agency:
                    02/17/2000Date achieved compliance:
                    02/17/2000Date violation determined:
                    Generators - GeneralArea of violation:
                    SR - -201(2)(A)Regulation violated:

                    Not reported    Paid penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Final penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Proposed penalty amount:
                    State    Enforcement lead agency:
                    Not reported    Enf. disp. status date:
                    Not reported    Enf. disposition status:
                    10/10/2002    Enforcement action date:
                    WRITTEN INFORMAL    Enforcement action:
                    StateViolation lead agency:
                    10/31/2002Date achieved compliance:
                    10/10/2002Date violation determined:
                    Generators - GeneralArea of violation:
                    SR - -200(1)(c)Regulation violated:

                    Not reported    Paid penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Final penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Proposed penalty amount:
                    State    Enforcement lead agency:
                    Not reported    Enf. disp. status date:

OLYMPIC TOOL ENGINEERING INC  (Continued) 1000660168

TC5712009.2s   Page 278



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    StateEvaluation lead agency:
                    Not reportedDate achieved compliance:
                    Not reportedArea of violation:
                    COMPLIANCE ASSISTANCE VISITEvaluation:
                    07/22/1997Evaluation date:

                    StateEvaluation lead agency:
                    04/20/2000Date achieved compliance:
                    Generators - GeneralArea of violation:
                    COMPLIANCE EVALUATION INSPECTION ON-SITEEvaluation:
                    02/17/2000Evaluation date:

                    StateEvaluation lead agency:
                    02/17/2000Date achieved compliance:
                    Generators - GeneralArea of violation:
                    COMPLIANCE EVALUATION INSPECTION ON-SITEEvaluation:
                    02/17/2000Evaluation date:

                    StateEvaluation lead agency:
                    10/31/2002Date achieved compliance:
                    Generators - GeneralArea of violation:
                    COMPLIANCE EVALUATION INSPECTION ON-SITEEvaluation:
                    10/10/2002Evaluation date:

                    StateEvaluation lead agency:
                    12/10/2002Date achieved compliance:
                    Generators - GeneralArea of violation:
                    COMPLIANCE EVALUATION INSPECTION ON-SITEEvaluation:
                    10/10/2002Evaluation date:

Evaluation Action Summary:

                    Not reported    Paid penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Final penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Proposed penalty amount:
                    State    Enforcement lead agency:

OLYMPIC TOOL ENGINEERING INC  (Continued) 1000660168

                                             -123.145583911Longitude:
                                             47.251894520999997Latitude:
                                             Construction SW GPDate Interaction 3:
                                             2012-07-31 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             WAR126187Program ID:
                                             Dayton Airport Rd Water ExpansionFacility Alt.:
                                             PARISProgram Data:
                                             WATQUALEcology Program:
                                             CONSTSWGPInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             102404Interaction:

                              19491Facility Id:
                              DAYTON AIRPORT RD WATER EXPANSIONFacility Name:

ALLSITES:

6155 ft. Site 1 of 4 in cluster Q
1.166 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
302 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
West DAYTON AIRPORT SHELTON SPRINGS US 101    N/A
Q74 WA ALLSITESDAYTON AIRPORT RD WATER EXPANSION S112088306

TC5712009.2s   Page 279



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110015486277Registry ID:

FINDS:

                                             -123.079704079Longitude:
                                             47.219716484000003Latitude:
                                             Emergency/Haz Chem Rpt TIDate Interaction 3:
                                             1995-01-01 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             CRK000042470Program ID:
                                             Not reportedFacility Alt.:
                                             EPCRAProgram Data:
                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             TIER2Interaction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             40415Interaction:

                              36168529Facility Id:
                              GRADENS SHELTON CHEVRONFacility Name:

ALLSITES:

6195 ft.
1.173 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
232 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
South FINDS701 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVD    N/A
75 WA ALLSITESGRADENS SHELTON CHEVRON 1007072006

                              Other Non-OilIncident Category:
                              Non OilIncident Category Type:
                              11/08/2017Incident Date:
                              Not reportedContact Name:
                              Not reportedDate Received:
                              Not reportedMaterial Units:
                              0Material Qty:
                              Gas FlammableMaterial Desc:
                              Public Road Right-of-WayMedium:
                              96870Facility ID:
                              SHELTON, WACity,State,Zip:
                              HWY 102Address:
                              Not reportedName:

SPILLS:

6218 ft. Site 2 of 4 in cluster Q
1.178 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
303 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  
WNW HWY 102    N/A
Q76 WA SPILLS S121367252

TC5712009.2s   Page 280

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=4eG4L7ezEGfB2chL.I7Mw9XwzxEEeG3wWfWPBr32UVchGh5v3xj.4kI6u38gMpNw.sAwSXWSwOp22SxQ.EmK2JAe3mGlJ4SNelMG7O2DVLAF7f28jczPaEOn2MbfLoBPM9sNcDLh2F3RW.DwIcR3iMMBtwGg3axXPUwPGB3cxY7Eer4kaeyzGop3AsLcm7j82mnzoOEMC7m.fgqBtL9cGcGIhLw3d0.lSI9j4APMNxwBD2hhXkJwo42aIxzPErZBc.eA9G9L1LjwbdWIW4orWTtPAlu2nrgx3GL4qSefSGTg3hTL9f7Bm2jyzthEQy39ffEpBjD2dzcVHhbQ2Jv.cYINf99sM4ywd02FHXLXw7X96ixa4EWC4cHe0EGxD2EMwZWWvk20kWpfPW08s5rx83i52
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=4eG4L7ezEGfB2chL.I7Mw9XwzxEEeG3wWfWPBr32UVchGh5v3xj.4kI6u38gMpNw.sAwSXWSwOp22SxQ.EmK2JAe3mGlJ4SNelMG7O2DVLAF7f28jczPaEOn2MbfLoBPM9sNcDLh2F3RW.DwIcR3iMMBtwGg3axXPUwPGB3cxY7Eer4kaeyzGop3AsLcm7j82mnzoOEMC7m.fgqBtL9cGcGIhLw3d0.lSI9j4APMNxwBD2hhXkJwo42aIxzPErZBc.eA9G9L1LjwbdWIW4orWTtPAlu2nrgx3GL4qSefSGTg3hTL9f7Bm2jyzthEQy39ffEpBjD2dzcVHhbQ2Jv.cYINf99sM4ywd02FHXLXw7X96ixa4EWC4cHe0EGxD2EMwZWWvk20kWpfPW08s5rx83i52


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              UnknownResp Party Name:
                              Not reportedCause Type:
                              Not reportedCause:
                              Not reportedResp Party Contact:
                              0Recovered Quantity:
                              Not reportedVessel Facility Name2:
                              Drum or containerSource:
                              Public LandsSource Type:
                              -123.1458Longitude:
                              47.2521Latitude:

  (Continued) S121367252

                                   http://echo.epa.gov/detailed-facility-report?fid=110046454047DFR URL:
                                   110046454047Registry ID:
                                   1015954380Envid:

ECHO:

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

discharge does not adversely affect water quality.
requirements, and include other provisions to ensure that the
limits on what can be discharged, impose monitoring and reporting
States are required to obtain a permit. The permit will likely contain
discharge pollutants from any point source into waters of the United
issued under the Clean Water Act. Under NPDES, all facilities that
the Compliance Information System (ICIS) tracks surface water permits
US National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) module of

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110046454047Registry ID:

FINDS:

6253 ft. Site 3 of 4 in cluster Q
1.184 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
303 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
West ECHODAYTON AIRPORT, SHELTON SPRINGS, US 101    N/A
Q77 FINDSDAYTON AIRPORT RD WATER EXPANSION 1015954380

TC5712009.2s   Page 281

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2m2Hm71VHj8Y7u28Vr1Gj62WYT2Zu89W8V1Ir81cG624mG12Hi7m7b17Vw8ljE26Yg2guV298yACrl2mmc2QHG1a7w6rVU8Yj22kY73.ua1M891LrTABGi0W6D3QWAthTi21mM2dHB1L7V2DVP1oj32rYs6susA58Z6Br75UGg476M9OW61fT31
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2m2Hm71VHj8Y7u28Vr1Gj62WYT2Zu89W8V1Ir81cG624mG12Hi7m7b17Vw8ljE26Yg2guV298yACrl2mmc2QHG1a7w6rVU8Yj22kY73.ua1M891LrTABGi0W6D3QWAthTi21mM2dHB1L7V2DVP1oj32rYs6susA58Z6Br75UGg476M9OW61fT31


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              Lakeside IndustrisResp Party Name:
                              Not reportedCause Type:
                              Not reportedCause:
                              Not reportedResp Party Contact:
                              10Recovered Quantity:
                              Not reportedVessel Facility Name2:
                              Commercial TruckSource:
                              VehicleSource Type:
                              123.14600Longitude:
                              47.25200Latitude:
                              Oil SpillIncident Category:
                              Oil SpillIncident Category Type:
                              09/26/2016Incident Date:
                              Not reportedContact Name:
                              Not reportedDate Received:
                              Not reportedMaterial Units:
                              10Material Qty:
                              DIESEL/MARINE GAS OILMaterial Desc:
                              Roadway - PavedMedium:
                              90713Facility ID:
                              SHELTON, WACity,State,Zip:
                              OFF HIGH 101Address:
                              Not reportedName:

SPILLS:

6259 ft. Site 4 of 4 in cluster Q
1.185 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
303 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  
West OFF HIGH 101    N/A
Q78 WA SPILLS S118949177

                                                  COLONY INSURANCE COMPANYFinancial Resp Type:
                                                  8372DOE Site ID:
                                                  SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                  150 W SANDERSON WAYAddress:
                                                  SHELTON BULK PLANTName:

                                                  -123.14552Longitude:
                                                  47.2461Latitude:
                                                  Not reportedRetroactive Date:
                                                  Not reportedProof of Responsibility Document Flag:
                                                  Not reportedCompliance Method:
                                                  Not reportedLiability Limit Type:
                                                  04/01/2015Effective Date:
                                                  WA641507-5Policy Number:
                                                  Not reportedAddress 2:
                                                  04/01/2016Expiration Date:
                                                  03/31/2015Inception Date:
                                                  COLONY INSURANCE COMPANYFinancial Resp Type:
                                                  8372DOE Site ID:
                                                  SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                  150 W SANDERSON WAYAddress:
                                                  SHELTON BULK PLANTName:

WA Financial Assurance 1:

6282 ft. Site 1 of 9 in cluster R
1.190 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
285 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
West 150 W SANDERSON WAY    N/A
R79 WA Financial AssuranceSHELTON BULK PLANT S121603564

TC5712009.2s   Page 282



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                  -123.14552Longitude:
                                                  47.2461Latitude:
                                                  Not reportedRetroactive Date:
                                                  Not reportedProof of Responsibility Document Flag:
                                                  Not reportedCompliance Method:
                                                  Not reportedLiability Limit Type:
                                                  03/29/2018Effective Date:
                                                  WA641507-8Policy Number:
                                                  Not reportedAddress 2:
                                                  04/01/2019Expiration Date:
                                                  03/29/2018Inception Date:
                                                  COLONY INSURANCE COMPANYFinancial Resp Type:
                                                  8372DOE Site ID:
                                                  SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                  150 W SANDERSON WAYAddress:
                                                  SHELTON BULK PLANTName:

                                                  -123.14552Longitude:
                                                  47.2461Latitude:
                                                  Not reportedRetroactive Date:
                                                  Not reportedProof of Responsibility Document Flag:
                                                  Not reportedCompliance Method:
                                                  Not reportedLiability Limit Type:
                                                  04/01/2017Effective Date:
                                                  WA641507-7Policy Number:
                                                  Not reportedAddress 2:
                                                  04/01/2018Expiration Date:
                                                  04/01/2017Inception Date:
                                                  COLONY INSURANCE COMPANYFinancial Resp Type:
                                                  8372DOE Site ID:
                                                  SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                  150 W SANDERSON WAYAddress:
                                                  SHELTON BULK PLANTName:

                                                  -123.14552Longitude:
                                                  47.2461Latitude:
                                                  Not reportedRetroactive Date:
                                                  Not reportedProof of Responsibility Document Flag:
                                                  Not reportedCompliance Method:
                                                  Not reportedLiability Limit Type:
                                                  04/01/2016Effective Date:
                                                  WA641507-6Policy Number:
                                                  Not reportedAddress 2:
                                                  04/01/2017Expiration Date:
                                                  04/01/2016Inception Date:

SHELTON BULK PLANT  (Continued) S121603564

1999     TOSCO CORPORATION     150 W SANDERSON
RGA LUST:

6282 ft. Site 2 of 9 in cluster R
1.190 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
285 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  
West 150 W SANDERSON    N/A
R80 WA RGA LUSTTOSCO CORPORATION S115445570

TC5712009.2s   Page 283



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              Not reportedReport Title:
                              Not reportedContact:
                              23County Code:
                              98-03Site Register Issue:
                              Interim cleanup reportType of Report Ecology Received:
                              South WesternRegion:
                              TankWaste Management:
                              Groundwater, SoilMedia Contaminated:
                              Petroleum productsContaminants Found at Site:
                              03/04/98Date Ecology Received Report:

ICR:

6282 ft. Site 3 of 9 in cluster R
1.190 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
285 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
West 150 W. SANDERSON    N/A
R81 WA ICRTOSCO #0731 U003402771

                         Not reportedDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Pressurized SystemPipe Pumping System:
                         Coated OnlyPipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedPipe Second Release Detection:
                         Not reportedPipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Above Ground PipingPipe Construction:
                         Coated SteelPipe Material:
                         Not reportedTank SFC Type:
                         Automatic Tank GaugingTank Release Detection:
                         Not reportedTank Manifold:
                         Corrosion ResistantTank Corrosion Protection:
                         AnnualTank Tightness Test:
                         Single Wall TankTank Construction:
                         Fiberglass Reinforced PlasticTank Material:
                         Overfill AlarmTank Overfill Prevention:
                         Spill Bucket/Spill BoxTank Spill Prevention:
                         12/21/1998Tank Upgrade Date:
                         07/31/2019Tank Permit Expiration Date:
                         10,000 to 19,999 GallonsCapacity Range:
                         Not reportedTank Closure Date:
                         00/06/1982Tank Install Date:
                         8/6/1996Tank Status Date:
                         OperationalTank Status:
                         A8934Tag Number:
                         H691Tank Name:

                         -123.14552Decimal Longitude:
                         47.246099999999998Decimal Latitude:
                         Not reportedPhone Number:
                         Not reportedUBI:
                         8372Site Id:
                         69261716Facility ID:

UST:

6282 ft. Site 4 of 9 in cluster R
1.190 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
285 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
West FINDS150 W SANDERSON WAY    N/A
R82 WA USTDON SMALL & SONS OIL DISTRIBUTION CO SHELTON 1007066573

TC5712009.2s   Page 284



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                         H694Tank Name:

                         Not reportedDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Pressurized SystemPipe Pumping System:
                         Corrosion ResistantPipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Interstitial Monitoring (or Sump Sensor)Pipe Second Release Detection:
                         Automatic Line Leak Detector (ALLD)Pipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Double Wall PipePipe Construction:
                         FiberglassPipe Material:
                         Not reportedTank SFC Type:
                         Automatic Tank GaugingTank Release Detection:
                         Not reportedTank Manifold:
                         Corrosion ResistantTank Corrosion Protection:
                         AnnualTank Tightness Test:
                         Single Wall TankTank Construction:
                         Fiberglass Reinforced PlasticTank Material:
                         Overfill AlarmTank Overfill Prevention:
                         Spill Bucket/Spill BoxTank Spill Prevention:
                         12/21/1998Tank Upgrade Date:
                         07/31/2019Tank Permit Expiration Date:
                         10,000 to 19,999 GallonsCapacity Range:
                         Not reportedTank Closure Date:
                         00/06/1982Tank Install Date:
                         8/6/1996Tank Status Date:
                         OperationalTank Status:
                         A8934Tag Number:
                         H693Tank Name:

                         Not reportedDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Pressurized SystemPipe Pumping System:
                         Coated OnlyPipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedPipe Second Release Detection:
                         Not reportedPipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Above Ground PipingPipe Construction:
                         Coated SteelPipe Material:
                         Not reportedTank SFC Type:
                         Automatic Tank GaugingTank Release Detection:
                         Not reportedTank Manifold:
                         Corrosion ResistantTank Corrosion Protection:
                         AnnualTank Tightness Test:
                         Single Wall TankTank Construction:
                         Fiberglass Reinforced PlasticTank Material:
                         Overfill AlarmTank Overfill Prevention:
                         Spill Bucket/Spill BoxTank Spill Prevention:
                         12/21/1998Tank Upgrade Date:
                         07/31/2019Tank Permit Expiration Date:
                         10,000 to 19,999 GallonsCapacity Range:
                         Not reportedTank Closure Date:
                         00/06/1982Tank Install Date:
                         8/6/1996Tank Status Date:
                         OperationalTank Status:
                         A8934Tag Number:
                         H692Tank Name:

DON SMALL & SONS OIL DISTRIBUTION CO SHELTON  (Continued) 1007066573

TC5712009.2s   Page 285



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    110015431601Registry ID:

FINDS:

                         Not reportedDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Pressurized SystemPipe Pumping System:
                         Corrosion ResistantPipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Interstitial Monitoring (or Sump Sensor)Pipe Second Release Detection:
                         Automatic Line Leak Detector (ALLD)Pipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Double Wall PipePipe Construction:
                         FiberglassPipe Material:
                         Not reportedTank SFC Type:
                         Automatic Tank GaugingTank Release Detection:
                         Not reportedTank Manifold:
                         Corrosion ResistantTank Corrosion Protection:
                         AnnualTank Tightness Test:
                         Single Wall TankTank Construction:
                         Fiberglass Reinforced PlasticTank Material:
                         Overfill AlarmTank Overfill Prevention:
                         Spill Bucket/Spill BoxTank Spill Prevention:
                         12/21/1998Tank Upgrade Date:
                         07/31/2019Tank Permit Expiration Date:
                         10,000 to 19,999 GallonsCapacity Range:
                         Not reportedTank Closure Date:
                         00/06/1982Tank Install Date:
                         8/6/1996Tank Status Date:
                         OperationalTank Status:
                         A8934Tag Number:
                         H695Tank Name:

                         Not reportedDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Pressurized SystemPipe Pumping System:
                         Corrosion ResistantPipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Interstitial Monitoring (or Sump Sensor)Pipe Second Release Detection:
                         Automatic Line Leak Detector (ALLD)Pipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Double Wall PipePipe Construction:
                         FiberglassPipe Material:
                         Not reportedTank SFC Type:
                         Automatic Tank GaugingTank Release Detection:
                         Not reportedTank Manifold:
                         Corrosion ResistantTank Corrosion Protection:
                         AnnualTank Tightness Test:
                         Single Wall TankTank Construction:
                         Fiberglass Reinforced PlasticTank Material:
                         Overfill AlarmTank Overfill Prevention:
                         Spill Bucket/Spill BoxTank Spill Prevention:
                         12/21/1998Tank Upgrade Date:
                         07/31/2019Tank Permit Expiration Date:
                         10,000 to 19,999 GallonsCapacity Range:
                         Not reportedTank Closure Date:
                         00/06/1982Tank Install Date:
                         8/6/1996Tank Status Date:
                         OperationalTank Status:
                         A8934Tag Number:

DON SMALL & SONS OIL DISTRIBUTION CO SHELTON  (Continued) 1007066573

TC5712009.2s   Page 286



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

Incident Tracking, Compliance Assistance, and Compliance Monitoring.
that support Compliance and Enforcement programs. These include;
has the capability to track other activities occurring in the Region
that information with Federal actions already in the system. ICIS also
Compliance System (PCS) which supports the NPDES and will integrate
it Headquarters. A future release of ICIS will replace the Permit
information is maintained in ICIS by EPA in the Regional offices and
Federal Administrative and Judicial enforcement actions. This
a single repository for that information. Currently, ICIS contains all
replace EPA’s independent databases that contain Enforcement data with
information across most of EPA’s programs. The vision for ICIS is to
complete, will contain integrated Enforcement and Compliance
Compliance Information System and provides a database that, when
ICIS (Integrated Compliance Information System) is the Integrated

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

DON SMALL & SONS OIL DISTRIBUTION CO SHELTON  (Continued) 1007066573

                    47.2461 / -123.14552Lat/Long:
                    Not reportedBedrock:
                    Not reportedAir:
                    Not reportedSediment:
                    Confirmed Above Cleanup LevelsSoil:
                    Not reportedSurface Water:
                    Confirmed Above Cleanup LevelsGround Water:
                    Petroleum-OtherContaminant Name:
                    8372UST ID:
                    4815Lust ID:
                    SouthwestRegion:
                    06/01/2000Lust Date:
                    03/04/1998Release Date:
                    SouthwestResponse Section:
                    SHELTON BULK PLANT,TOSCO BULK PLANT 0731,TOSCO CORPORATIONCleanup Unit Name:
                    Not reportedProcess Type:
                    Not reportedCleanup Unit Type:
                    6523Cleanup Site ID:
                    LUST - NFALust Status Type:
                    69261716Facility ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    150 W SANDERSON WYAddress:
                    DON SMALL & SONS OIL DIST CO SHELTONName:

LUST:

6282 ft. Site 5 of 9 in cluster R
1.190 mi. WA CSCSL NFA

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
285 ft.

 

> 1 WA ALLSITESSHELTON, WA  98584
West WA VCP150 W SANDERSON WY    N/A
R83 WA LUSTDON SMALL & SONS OIL DIST CO SHELTON S104971914

TC5712009.2s   Page 287

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2m2Hm71VHj8Y7u28Vr1Gj62WYT2Zu89W8V1Ir81cG624mG12Hi7m7b17Vw8ljE26Yg2guV298yACrl2mmc2QHG1a7w6rVU8Yj22kY73.ua1M891LrTABGi0W6D3QWAthTi21mM2dHB1L7V2DVP1oj31rYs8sus158Z7Br77UGg676M8OW64fT31
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2m2Hm71VHj8Y7u28Vr1Gj62WYT2Zu89W8V1Ir81cG624mG12Hi7m7b17Vw8ljE26Yg2guV298yACrl2mmc2QHG1a7w6rVU8Yj22kY73.ua1M891LrTABGi0W6D3QWAthTi21mM2dHB1L7V2DVP1oj31rYs8sus158Z7Br77UGg676M8OW64fT31


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                             59332Interaction:

                                             -123.14550506400001Longitude:
                                             47.246094489999997Latitude:
                                             Emergency/Haz Chem Rpt TIDate Interaction 3:
                                             1988-01-01 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             CRK000015990Program ID:
                                             Not reportedFacility Alt.:
                                             EPCRAProgram Data:
                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             TIER2Interaction 2:
                                             AInteraction 1:
                                             59331Interaction:

                              69261716Facility Id:
                              DON SMALL & SONS OIL DIST CO SHELTONFacility Name:

ALLSITES:

6523Cleanup Siteid:
Not reportedRank:
6/5/2000Date NFA:
Not reportedNFA Type:
Not reportedEcology Status:
YesVCP:
Not reportedVCP Status:
69261716Facility ID:
Not reportededr_zip:
MASONedr_fcnty:
98584edr_fzip:
WAedr_fstat:

VCP:

                    47.2461 / -123.14552Lat/Long:
                    Not reportedBedrock:
                    Not reportedAir:
                    Not reportedSediment:
                    Not reportedSoil:
                    RemediatedSurface Water:
                    Not reportedGround Water:
                    Petroleum Products-UnspecifiedContaminant Name:
                    8372UST ID:
                    4815Lust ID:
                    SouthwestRegion:
                    06/01/2000Lust Date:
                    03/04/1998Release Date:
                    SouthwestResponse Section:
                    SHELTON BULK PLANT,TOSCO BULK PLANT 0731,TOSCO CORPORATIONCleanup Unit Name:
                    Not reportedProcess Type:
                    Not reportedCleanup Unit Type:
                    6523Cleanup Site ID:
                    LUST - NFALust Status Type:
                    69261716Facility ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    150 W SANDERSON WYAddress:
                    DON SMALL & SONS OIL DIST CO SHELTONName:

DON SMALL & SONS OIL DIST CO SHELTON  (Continued) S104971914

TC5712009.2s   Page 288



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    47.2461Latitude:
                    Not reportedBedrock:
                    Not reportedAir:
                    Not reportedSediment:
                    Not reportedSoil:
                    RemediatedSurface Water:
                    Not reportedGround Water:
                    Petroleum Products-UnspecifiedContaminant Name:
                    SouthwestRegion:
                    NFASite Status:
                    NFA-Voluntary Cleanup Program ReviewNFA Reason:
                    SHELTON BULK PLANT,TOSCO BULK PLANT 0731,TOSCO CORPORATIONAlternate Site Names:
                    06/05/2000NFA Date:
                    6523CS Id:
                    69261716Facility/Site Id:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    150 W SANDERSON WYAddress:
                    DON SMALL & SONS OIL DIST CO SHELTONName:

CSCSL NFA:

                                             -123.14550506400001Longitude:
                                             47.246094489999997Latitude:
                                             Voluntary Cleanup SitesDate Interaction 3:
                                             1999-06-11 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             Not reportedProgram ID:
                                             DON SMALL & SONS OIL DIST CO SHELTONFacility Alt.:
                                             ISISProgram Data:
                                             TOXICSEcology Program:
                                             VOLCLNSTInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             59333Interaction:

                                             -123.14550506400001Longitude:
                                             47.246094489999997Latitude:
                                             Underground Storage TankDate Interaction 3:
                                             1982-05-06 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             8372Program ID:
                                             SHELTON BULK PLANTFacility Alt.:
                                             USTProgram Data:
                                             TOXICSEcology Program:
                                             USTInteraction 2:
                                             AInteraction 1:
                                             59330Interaction:

                                             -123.14550506400001Longitude:
                                             47.246094489999997Latitude:
                                             LUST FacilityDate Interaction 3:
                                             1998-03-04 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             8372Program ID:
                                             Not reportedFacility Alt.:
                                             ISISProgram Data:
                                             TOXICSEcology Program:
                                             LUSTInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:

DON SMALL & SONS OIL DIST CO SHELTON  (Continued) S104971914

TC5712009.2s   Page 289



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    -123.14552Longitude:
                    47.2461Latitude:
                    Not reportedBedrock:
                    Not reportedAir:
                    Not reportedSediment:
                    Confirmed Above Cleanup LevelsSoil:
                    Not reportedSurface Water:
                    Confirmed Above Cleanup LevelsGround Water:
                    Petroleum-OtherContaminant Name:
                    SouthwestRegion:
                    NFASite Status:
                    NFA-Voluntary Cleanup Program ReviewNFA Reason:
                    SHELTON BULK PLANT,TOSCO BULK PLANT 0731,TOSCO CORPORATIONAlternate Site Names:
                    06/05/2000NFA Date:
                    6523CS Id:
                    69261716Facility/Site Id:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    150 W SANDERSON WYAddress:
                    DON SMALL & SONS OIL DIST CO SHELTONName:

                    -123.14552Longitude:

DON SMALL & SONS OIL DIST CO SHELTON  (Continued) S104971914

1998     SANDERSON FIELD/INDUST PARK     150 W SANDERSON
RGA LUST:

6282 ft. Site 6 of 9 in cluster R
1.190 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
285 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  
West 150 W SANDERSON    N/A
R84 WA RGA LUSTSANDERSON FIELD/INDUST PARK S115442486

          GOULDInspector:
          Not reportedInspection Date:
          08Region:
          20001027009   3Inspection Number:

HIST FTTS INSP:

          UserFacility Function:
          TSCALegislation Code:
          Neutral Scheme, RegionInvestigation Reason:
          AHERA, Enforcement, SEE ConductedInvestigation Type:
          YesViolation occurred:
          GOULDInspector:
          10/27/00Inspection Date:
          08Region:
          20001027009   3Inspection Number:

FTTS INSP:

6404 ft. Site 7 of 9 in cluster R
1.213 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
283 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98504
West HIST FTTSW 171 SANDERSON WAY    N/A
R85 FTTSSUNRISE FIBERGLASS ENGINEERING INC 1007564557

TC5712009.2s   Page 290



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

          UserFacility Function:
          TSCALegislation Code:
          Neutral Scheme, RegionInvestigation Reason:
          AHERA, Enforcement, SEE ConductedInvestigation Type:
          YesViolation occurred:

SUNRISE FIBERGLASS ENGINEERING INC  (Continued) 1007564557

Incident Tracking, Compliance Assistance, and Compliance Monitoring.
that support Compliance and Enforcement programs. These include;
has the capability to track other activities occurring in the Region
that information with Federal actions already in the system. ICIS also
Compliance System (PCS) which supports the NPDES and will integrate
it Headquarters. A future release of ICIS will replace the Permit
information is maintained in ICIS by EPA in the Regional offices and
Federal Administrative and Judicial enforcement actions. This
a single repository for that information. Currently, ICIS contains all
replace EPA’s independent databases that contain Enforcement data with
information across most of EPA’s programs. The vision for ICIS is to
complete, will contain integrated Enforcement and Compliance
Compliance Information System and provides a database that, when
ICIS (Integrated Compliance Information System) is the Integrated

corrective action activities required under RCRA.
program staff to track the notification, permit, compliance, and
and treat, store, or dispose of hazardous waste. RCRAInfo allows RCRA
events and activities related to facilities that generate, transport,
Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) program through the tracking of
RCRAInfo is a national information system that supports the Resource

transported off-site.
these facilities release directly to air, water, land, or that are
from facilities on the amounts of over 300 listed toxic chemicals that
US EPA TRIS (Toxics Release Inventory System) contains information

and settlements.
regions and states with cooperative agreements, enforcement actions,
Toxic Substances Control Act (TSCA). The system tracks inspections in
Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act (FIFRA) and the
NCDB (National Compliance Data Base) supports implementation of the

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110002150813Registry ID:

FINDS:

6417 ft. Site 8 of 9 in cluster R
1.215 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
282 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
West ECHO171 W SANDERSON WAY    N/A
R86 FINDSSUNRISE FIBERGLASS ENG INC 1018319770

TC5712009.2s   Page 291



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                   http://echo.epa.gov/detailed-facility-report?fid=110002150813DFR URL:
                                   110002150813Registry ID:
                                   1018319770Envid:

ECHO:

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

SUNRISE FIBERGLASS ENG INC  (Continued) 1018319770

                         Not reportedTribal Land Code:
                         Not reportedFacility NAICS Code:
                         45663Program System Acronym:
                         Not reportedPermit Type Desc:
                         -123.150538Longitude in Decimal Degrees:
                         47.244779Latitude in Decimal Degrees:
                         Not reportedFederal Facility ID:
                         Not reportedFacility SIC Code:
                         325EA Type Code:
                         Administrative - FormalEnforcement Action Forum Desc:
                         ICISProgram System Acronym:
                         MASONFacility County:
                         EPCRA 325 Action For PenaltyEnforcement Action Type:
                         SHELTON, WA 98584
                         171 W SANDERSON WAYFacility Address:
                         SUNRISE FIBERGLASS ENGINEERING INCFacility Name:
                         SUNRISE FIBERGLASS ENGINEERINGAction Name:
                         110002150813FRS ID:
                         10-1991-0168Enforcement Action ID:

                         Not reportedTribal Land Code:
                         Not reportedFacility NAICS Code:
                         45663Program System Acronym:
                         Not reportedPermit Type Desc:
                         -123.150538Longitude in Decimal Degrees:
                         47.244779Latitude in Decimal Degrees:
                         Not reportedFederal Facility ID:
                         Not reportedFacility SIC Code:
                         COLEA Type Code:
                         JudicialEnforcement Action Forum Desc:
                         ICISProgram System Acronym:
                         MASONFacility County:
                         Collection ActionEnforcement Action Type:
                         SHELTON, WA 98584
                         171 W SANDERSON WAYFacility Address:
                         SUNRISE FIBERGLASS ENGINEERING INCFacility Name:
                         SUNRISE FIBERGLASS ENGINEERING INC.Action Name:
                         110002150813FRS ID:
                         10-1993-0225Enforcement Action ID:

ICIS:

6417 ft. Site 9 of 9 in cluster R
1.215 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
282 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
West 171 W SANDERSON WAY    N/A
R87 ICISSUNRISE FIBERGLASS ENGINEERING INC 1018288859

TC5712009.2s   Page 292

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2O2JOt1OJT8utA26O71MTi2kub2hAl9e631r7d1yMH2cOW1CJ373tD1kOj8mTP2muQ28Aw2Z6sAV7t2POQ2UJ11ntx6lOz89Th2guD35Am1F6Y1O77ACMs0IiA33kst2bB2hOd2tJB1hts2hOd1bTO26uN9gAs4O6H2l7QAeMS8uiN8ukU1Ubc1
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2O2JOt1OJT8utA26O71MTi2kub2hAl9e631r7d1yMH2cOW1CJ373tD1kOj8mTP2muQ28Aw2Z6sAV7t2POQ2UJ11ntx6lOz89Th2guD35Am1F6Y1O77ACMs0IiA33kst2bB2hOd2tJB1hts2hOd1bTO26uN9gAs4O6H2l7QAeMS8uiN8ukU1Ubc1


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                         SUNRISE FIBERGLASS ENG. INC.Facility Name:

                         Not reportedSIC Code:
                         Not reportedNAIC Code:
                         NoFed Facility:
                         NTribal Indicator:
                         W. 171 SANDERSON WAYAddress:
                         SUNRISE FIBERGLASS ENG. INC.Facility Name:

                         Not reportedSIC Code:
                         Not reportedNAIC Code:
                         NoFed Facility:
                         NTribal Indicator:
                         W. 171 SANDERSON WAYAddress:
                         SUNRISE FIBERGLASS ENG. INC.Facility Name:

                         Not reportedSIC Code:
                         Not reportedNAIC Code:
                         NoFed Facility:
                         NTribal Indicator:
                         W. 171 SANDERSON WAYAddress:
                         SUNRISE FIBERGLASS ENG. INC.Facility Name:

                         Not reportedSIC Code:
                         Not reportedNAIC Code:
                         NoFed Facility:
                         NTribal Indicator:
                         W. 171 SANDERSON WAYAddress:
                         SUNRISE FIBERGLASS ENG. INC.Facility Name:

                         Not reportedSIC Code:
                         Not reportedNAIC Code:
                         NoFed Facility:
                         NTribal Indicator:
                         W. 171 SANDERSON WAYAddress:
                         SUNRISE FIBERGLASS ENG. INC.Facility Name:

                         Not reportedSIC Code:
                         Not reportedNAIC Code:
                         NoFed Facility:
                         NTribal Indicator:
                         W. 171 SANDERSON WAYAddress:
                         SUNRISE FIBERGLASS ENG. INC.Facility Name:

                         Not reportedSIC Code:
                         Not reportedNAIC Code:
                         NoFed Facility:
                         NTribal Indicator:
                         W. 171 SANDERSON WAYAddress:
                         SUNRISE FIBERGLASS ENG. INC.Facility Name:

                         Not reportedSIC Code:
                         Not reportedNAIC Code:
                         NoFed Facility:
                         NTribal Indicator:
                         W. 171 SANDERSON WAYAddress:
                         SUNRISE FIBERGLASS ENG. INC.Facility Name:

SUNRISE FIBERGLASS ENGINEERING INC  (Continued) 1018288859

TC5712009.2s   Page 293



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                         Not reportedSIC Code:
                         Not reportedNAIC Code:
                         NoFed Facility:
                         NTribal Indicator:
                         W. 171 SANDERSON WAYAddress:
                         SUNRISE FIBERGLASS ENG. INC.Facility Name:

                         Not reportedSIC Code:
                         Not reportedNAIC Code:
                         NoFed Facility:
                         NTribal Indicator:
                         W. 171 SANDERSON WAYAddress:
                         SUNRISE FIBERGLASS ENG. INC.Facility Name:

                         Not reportedSIC Code:
                         Not reportedNAIC Code:
                         NoFed Facility:
                         NTribal Indicator:
                         W. 171 SANDERSON WAYAddress:
                         SUNRISE FIBERGLASS ENG. INC.Facility Name:

                         Not reportedSIC Code:
                         Not reportedNAIC Code:
                         NoFed Facility:
                         NTribal Indicator:
                         W. 171 SANDERSON WAYAddress:

SUNRISE FIBERGLASS ENGINEERING INC  (Continued) 1018288859

                              Not reportedResp Party Name:
                              Not reportedCause Type:
                              Not reportedCause:
                              Not reportedResp Party Contact:
                              Not reportedRecovered Quantity:
                              Not reportedVessel Facility Name2:
                              Not reportedSource:
                              Not reportedSource Type:
                              Not reportedLongitude:
                              Not reportedLatitude:
                              Not reportedIncident Category:
                              Not reportedIncident Category Type:
                              Not reportedIncident Date:
                              Not reportedContact Name:
                              05/11/2002Date Received:
                              GALLONMaterial Units:
                              30Material Qty:
                              PETROLEUM - WASTE/USED OILMaterial Desc:
                              Not reportedMedium:
                              526368Facility ID:
                              SHELTON, WACity,State,Zip:
                              HIAWATHA BOULEVARD AND ADONAI COURTAddress:
                              Not reportedName:

SPILLS:

6500 ft. Site 1 of 2 in cluster S
1.231 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
244 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  
ESE HIAWATHA BOULEVARD AND ADONAI COURT    N/A
S88 WA SPILLS S109883440

TC5712009.2s   Page 294



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                         Interstitial MonitoringTank Release Detection:
                         Not reportedTank Manifold:
                         Corrosion ResistantTank Corrosion Protection:
                         Not PerformedTank Tightness Test:
                         Double Wall TankTank Construction:
                         Fiberglass Reinforced PlasticTank Material:
                         Automatic Shutoff (fill pipe)Tank Overfill Prevention:
                         Spill Bucket/Spill BoxTank Spill Prevention:
                         04/17/1998Tank Upgrade Date:
                         07/31/2019Tank Permit Expiration Date:
                         10,000 to 19,999 GallonsCapacity Range:
                         Not reportedTank Closure Date:
                         00/17/1995Tank Install Date:
                         8/6/1996Tank Status Date:
                         OperationalTank Status:
                         A0246Tag Number:
                         2 UNL #1Tank Name:

                         Not reportedDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Pressurized SystemPipe Pumping System:
                         Corrosion ResistantPipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedPipe Second Release Detection:
                         Interstitial Monitoring (or Sump Sensor)Pipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Double Wall PipePipe Construction:
                         FiberglassPipe Material:
                         Not reportedTank SFC Type:
                         Interstitial MonitoringTank Release Detection:
                         Not reportedTank Manifold:
                         Corrosion ResistantTank Corrosion Protection:
                         Not PerformedTank Tightness Test:
                         Double Wall TankTank Construction:
                         Fiberglass Reinforced PlasticTank Material:
                         Automatic Shutoff (fill pipe)Tank Overfill Prevention:
                         Spill Bucket/Spill BoxTank Spill Prevention:
                         04/17/1998Tank Upgrade Date:
                         07/31/2019Tank Permit Expiration Date:
                         10,000 to 19,999 GallonsCapacity Range:
                         Not reportedTank Closure Date:
                         00/17/1995Tank Install Date:
                         8/6/1996Tank Status Date:
                         OperationalTank Status:
                         A0246Tag Number:
                         1 SUPTank Name:

                         -123.127225744908Decimal Longitude:
                         47.2317109105866Decimal Latitude:
                         Not reportedPhone Number:
                         Not reportedUBI:
                         341849Site Id:
                         64487875Facility ID:

UST:

6520 ft. Site 1 of 10 in cluster T
1.235 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
228 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
SSW WA MANIFEST106 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVD    N/A
T89 WA USTAM/PM GAS STATION U003354145

TC5712009.2s   Page 295



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                         Not reportedTank SFC Type:
                         Interstitial MonitoringTank Release Detection:
                         Not reportedTank Manifold:
                         Corrosion ResistantTank Corrosion Protection:
                         Not PerformedTank Tightness Test:
                         Double Wall TankTank Construction:
                         Fiberglass Reinforced PlasticTank Material:
                         Automatic Shutoff (fill pipe)Tank Overfill Prevention:
                         Spill Bucket/Spill BoxTank Spill Prevention:
                         04/17/1998Tank Upgrade Date:
                         07/31/2019Tank Permit Expiration Date:
                         10,000 to 19,999 GallonsCapacity Range:
                         Not reportedTank Closure Date:
                         00/17/1995Tank Install Date:
                         8/6/1996Tank Status Date:
                         OperationalTank Status:
                         A0246Tag Number:
                         4REG/MIDTank Name:

                         Not reportedDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Pressurized SystemPipe Pumping System:
                         Corrosion ResistantPipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedPipe Second Release Detection:
                         Interstitial Monitoring (or Sump Sensor)Pipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Double Wall PipePipe Construction:
                         FiberglassPipe Material:
                         Not reportedTank SFC Type:
                         Interstitial MonitoringTank Release Detection:
                         Not reportedTank Manifold:
                         Corrosion ResistantTank Corrosion Protection:
                         Not PerformedTank Tightness Test:
                         Double Wall TankTank Construction:
                         Fiberglass Reinforced PlasticTank Material:
                         Automatic Shutoff (fill pipe)Tank Overfill Prevention:
                         Spill Bucket/Spill BoxTank Spill Prevention:
                         04/17/1998Tank Upgrade Date:
                         07/31/2019Tank Permit Expiration Date:
                         10,000 to 19,999 GallonsCapacity Range:
                         Not reportedTank Closure Date:
                         00/17/1995Tank Install Date:
                         8/6/1996Tank Status Date:
                         OperationalTank Status:
                         A0246Tag Number:
                         3 UNL #2Tank Name:

                         Not reportedDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Pressurized SystemPipe Pumping System:
                         Corrosion ResistantPipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedPipe Second Release Detection:
                         Interstitial Monitoring (or Sump Sensor)Pipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Double Wall PipePipe Construction:
                         FiberglassPipe Material:
                         Not reportedTank SFC Type:

AM/PM GAS STATION  (Continued) U003354145

TC5712009.2s   Page 296



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        (360)426-2699Land Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        106 E Wallace Kneeland BlvdLand Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        PrivateLand Organization Type:
                                                        Mahoney Investments LLCLand Organization Name:
                                                        02/07/2007Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (360)426-2699Legal Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        106 E Wallace Kneeland BlvdLegal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        PrivateLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Opulent Sales LLCLegal Organization Name:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        106 E Wallace Kneeland BlvdMailing Address:
                                                        Opulent Sales LLCMail Name:
                                                        Gas station with storeBusiness Type:
                                                        602629865Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2017Data Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:
                                                        Not reportedFederal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        447110NAICS:
                                                        WAR000007260EPA ID:
                                                        64487875Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        106 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVDAddress:
                                                        ARCO 82609Name:

WA MANIFEST:

                         Not reportedDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Pressurized SystemPipe Pumping System:
                         Corrosion ResistantPipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedPipe Second Release Detection:
                         Interstitial Monitoring (or Sump Sensor)Pipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Double Wall PipePipe Construction:
                         FiberglassPipe Material:

AM/PM GAS STATION  (Continued) U003354145

TC5712009.2s   Page 297



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2017Data Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:
                                                        Not reportedFederal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        447110NAICS:
                                                        WAR000007260EPA ID:
                                                        64487875Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        106 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVDAddress:
                                                        ARCO 82609Name:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        FalseBatch Generation:
                                                        FalseMonthly Generation:
                                                        XQGGen Status Code:
                                                        mrmahoneyjr@yahoo.comSite Contact Email:
                                                        (360)426-2699Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        106 E Wallace Kneeland BlvdSite Contact Address:
                                                        John  MahoneySite Contact:
                                                        02/02/2007Operator Effective Date:
                                                        (360)426-2699Operator Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        106 E Wallace Kneeland BlvdOperator Address:
                                                        John  MahoneyOperator:
                                                        PrivateOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Opulent Sales LLCOperator Organization Name:

AM/PM GAS STATION  (Continued) U003354145

TC5712009.2s   Page 298



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        64487875Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        106 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVDAddress:
                                                        ARCO 82609Name:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        FalseBatch Generation:
                                                        FalseMonthly Generation:
                                                        XQGGen Status Code:
                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Email:
                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Phone Number:
                                                        Not reportedContact City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address:
                                                        Not reportedSite Contact:
                                                        02/02/2007Operator Effective Date:
                                                        (360)426-2699Operator Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        106 E Wallace Kneeland BlvdOperator Address:
                                                        Not reportedOperator:
                                                        PrivateOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Opulent Sales LLCOperator Organization Name:
                                                        (360)426-2699Land Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        106 E Wallace Kneeland BlvdLand Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        PrivateLand Organization Type:
                                                        Mahoney Investments LLCLand Organization Name:
                                                        02/07/2007Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (360)426-2699Legal Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        106 E Wallace Kneeland BlvdLegal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        PrivateLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Opulent Sales LLCLegal Organization Name:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        106 E Wallace Kneeland BlvdMailing Address:
                                                        Not reportedMail Name:
                                                        Not reportedBusiness Type:
                                                        602629865Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:

AM/PM GAS STATION  (Continued) U003354145

TC5712009.2s   Page 299



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        FalseMonthly Generation:
                                                        XQGGen Status Code:
                                                        mrmahoneyjr@yahoo.comSite Contact Email:
                                                        (360)426-2699Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        106 E Wallace Kneeland BlvdSite Contact Address:
                                                        John  MahoneySite Contact:
                                                        02/02/2007Operator Effective Date:
                                                        (360)426-2699Operator Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        106 E Wallace Kneeland BlvdOperator Address:
                                                        John  MahoneyOperator:
                                                        PrivateOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Opulent Sales LLCOperator Organization Name:
                                                        (360)426-2699Land Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        106 E Wallace Kneeland BlvdLand Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        PrivateLand Organization Type:
                                                        Mahoney Investments LLCLand Organization Name:
                                                        02/07/2007Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (360)426-2699Legal Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        106 E Wallace Kneeland BlvdLegal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        PrivateLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Opulent Sales LLCLegal Organization Name:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        106 E Wallace Kneeland BlvdMailing Address:
                                                        Opulent Sales LLCMail Name:
                                                        Gas station with storeBusiness Type:
                                                        602629865Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2016Data Year:
                                                        none generatedForm Comm:
                                                        Not reportedFederal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        447110NAICS:
                                                        WAR000007260EPA ID:

AM/PM GAS STATION  (Continued) U003354145

TC5712009.2s   Page 300



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        02/07/2007Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (360)426-2699Legal Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        106 E Wallace Kneeland BlvdLegal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        PrivateLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Opulent Sales LLCLegal Organization Name:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        106 E Wallace Kneeland BlvdMailing Address:
                                                        Opulent Sales LLCMail Name:
                                                        Gas station with storeBusiness Type:
                                                        602629865Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2015Data Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:
                                                        Not reportedFederal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        447110NAICS:
                                                        WAR000007260EPA ID:
                                                        64487875Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        106 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVDAddress:
                                                        ARCO 82609Name:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        FalseBatch Generation:

AM/PM GAS STATION  (Continued) U003354145

TC5712009.2s   Page 301



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2014Data Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:
                                                        Not reportedFederal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        447110NAICS:
                                                        WAR000007260EPA ID:
                                                        64487875Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        106 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVDAddress:
                                                        ARCO 82609Name:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        FalseBatch Generation:
                                                        FalseMonthly Generation:
                                                        XQGGen Status Code:
                                                        mrmahoneyjr@yahoo.comSite Contact Email:
                                                        (360)426-2699Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        106 E Wallace Kneeland BlvdSite Contact Address:
                                                        John  MahoneySite Contact:
                                                        02/02/2007Operator Effective Date:
                                                        (360)426-2699Operator Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        106 E Wallace Kneeland BlvdOperator Address:
                                                        John  MahoneyOperator:
                                                        PrivateOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Opulent Sales LLCOperator Organization Name:
                                                        (360)426-2699Land Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        106 E Wallace Kneeland BlvdLand Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        PrivateLand Organization Type:
                                                        Mahoney Investments LLCLand Organization Name:

AM/PM GAS STATION  (Continued) U003354145

TC5712009.2s   Page 302



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        FalseBatch Generation:
                                                        FalseMonthly Generation:
                                                        XQGGen Status Code:
                                                        mrmahoneyjr@yahoo.comSite Contact Email:
                                                        (360)426-2699Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        106 E Wallace Kneeland BlvdSite Contact Address:
                                                        John  MahoneySite Contact:
                                                        02/02/2007Operator Effective Date:
                                                        (360)426-2699Operator Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        106 E Wallace Kneeland BlvdOperator Address:
                                                        John  MahoneyOperator:
                                                        PrivateOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Opulent Sales LLCOperator Organization Name:
                                                        (360)426-2699Land Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        106 E Wallace Kneeland BlvdLand Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        PrivateLand Organization Type:
                                                        Mahoney Investments LLCLand Organization Name:
                                                        02/07/2007Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (360)426-2699Legal Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        106 E Wallace Kneeland BlvdLegal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        PrivateLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Opulent Sales LLCLegal Organization Name:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        106 E Wallace Kneeland BlvdMailing Address:
                                                        Opulent Sales LLCMail Name:
                                                        Gas station with storeBusiness Type:
                                                        602629865Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):

AM/PM GAS STATION  (Continued) U003354145

TC5712009.2s   Page 303



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        106 E Wallace Kneeland BlvdSite Contact Address:
                                                        John  MahoneySite Contact:
                                                        02/02/2007Operator Effective Date:
                                                        (360)426-2699Operator Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        106 E Wallace Kneeland BlvdOperator Address:
                                                        John  MahoneyOperator:
                                                        PrivateOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Opulent Sales LLCOperator Organization Name:
                                                        (360)426-2699Land Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        106 E Wallace Kneeland BlvdLand Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        PrivateLand Organization Type:
                                                        Mahoney Investments LLCLand Organization Name:
                                                        02/07/2007Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (360)426-2699Legal Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        106 E Wallace Kneeland BlvdLegal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        PrivateLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Opulent Sales LLCLegal Organization Name:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        106 E Wallace Kneeland BlvdMailing Address:
                                                        Opulent Sales LLCMail Name:
                                                        Gas station with storeBusiness Type:
                                                        602629865Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2013Data Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:
                                                        Not reportedFederal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        447110NAICS:
                                                        WAR000007260EPA ID:
                                                        64487875Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        106 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVDAddress:
                                                        ARCO 82609Name:

AM/PM GAS STATION  (Continued) U003354145

TC5712009.2s   Page 304



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        PrivateLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Opulent Sales LLCLegal Organization Name:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        106 E Wallace Kneeland BlvdMailing Address:
                                                        Opulent Sales LLCMail Name:
                                                        Gas station with storeBusiness Type:
                                                        602629865Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2012Data Year:
                                                        gas station and we use emerald recycling company to recycle our waste.Form Comm:
                                                        Not reportedFederal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        447110NAICS:
                                                        WAR000007260EPA ID:
                                                        64487875Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        106 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVDAddress:
                                                        ARCO 82609Name:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        FalseBatch Generation:
                                                        FalseMonthly Generation:
                                                        XQGGen Status Code:
                                                        mrmahoneyjr@yahoo.comSite Contact Email:
                                                        (360)426-2699Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Contact City,State,Zip:

AM/PM GAS STATION  (Continued) U003354145

TC5712009.2s   Page 305



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2010Data Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:
                                                        Not reportedFederal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        447110NAICS:
                                                        WAR000007260EPA ID:
                                                        64487875Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        106 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVDAddress:
                                                        ARCO 82609Name:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        FalseBatch Generation:
                                                        FalseMonthly Generation:
                                                        XQGGen Status Code:
                                                        mrmahoneyjr@yahoo.comSite Contact Email:
                                                        (360)426-2699Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        106 E Wallace Kneeland BlvdSite Contact Address:
                                                        John  MahoneySite Contact:
                                                        02/02/2007Operator Effective Date:
                                                        (360)426-2699Operator Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        106 E Wallace Kneeland BlvdOperator Address:
                                                        John  MahoneyOperator:
                                                        PrivateOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Opulent Sales LLCOperator Organization Name:
                                                        (360)426-2699Land Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        106 E Wallace Kneeland BlvdLand Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        PrivateLand Organization Type:
                                                        Mahoney Investments LLCLand Organization Name:
                                                        02/07/2007Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (360)426-2699Legal Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        106 E Wallace Kneeland BlvdLegal Address:

AM/PM GAS STATION  (Continued) U003354145

TC5712009.2s   Page 306



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        FalseBatch Generation:
                                                        FalseMonthly Generation:
                                                        XQGGen Status Code:
                                                        mrmahoneyjr@yahoo.comSite Contact Email:
                                                        (360)426-2699Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        106 E Wallace Kneeland BlvdSite Contact Address:
                                                        John  MahoneySite Contact:
                                                        02/02/2007Operator Effective Date:
                                                        (360)426-2699Operator Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        106 E Wallace Kneeland BlvdOperator Address:
                                                        John  MahoneyOperator:
                                                        PrivateOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Opulent Sales LLCOperator Organization Name:
                                                        (360)426-2699Land Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        106 E Wallace Kneeland BlvdLand Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        PrivateLand Organization Type:
                                                        Mahoney Investments LLCLand Organization Name:
                                                        02/07/2007Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (360)426-2699Legal Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        106 E Wallace Kneeland BlvdLegal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        PrivateLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Opulent Sales LLCLegal Organization Name:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        106 E Wallace Kneeland BlvdMailing Address:
                                                        Opulent Sales LLCMail Name:
                                                        Gas station with storeBusiness Type:
                                                        602629865Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:

AM/PM GAS STATION  (Continued) U003354145

TC5712009.2s   Page 307



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        106 E Wallace Kneeland BlvdOperator Address:
                                                        John  MahoneyOperator:
                                                        PrivateOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Opulent Sales LLCOperator Organization Name:
                                                        (360)426-2699Land Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        106 E Wallace Kneeland BlvdLand Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        PrivateLand Organization Type:
                                                        Mahoney Investments LLCLand Organization Name:
                                                        02/07/2007Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (360)426-2699Legal Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        106 E Wallace Kneeland BlvdLegal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        PrivateLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Opulent Sales LLCLegal Organization Name:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        106 E Wallace Kneeland BlvdMailing Address:
                                                        Opulent Sales LLCMail Name:
                                                        Gas station with storeBusiness Type:
                                                        602629865Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2009Data Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:
                                                        Not reportedFederal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        447110NAICS:
                                                        WAR000007260EPA ID:
                                                        64487875Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        106 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVDAddress:
                                                        ARCO 82609Name:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:

AM/PM GAS STATION  (Continued) U003354145

TC5712009.2s   Page 308



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Gas station with storeBusiness Type:
                                                        602629865Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2008Data Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:
                                                        Not reportedFederal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        44711NAICS:
                                                        WAR000007260EPA ID:
                                                        64487875Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        106 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVDAddress:
                                                        ARCO 82609Name:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        FalseBatch Generation:
                                                        FalseMonthly Generation:
                                                        XQGGen Status Code:
                                                        mrmahoneyjr@yahoo.comSite Contact Email:
                                                        (360)426-2699Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        106 E Wallace Kneeland BlvdSite Contact Address:
                                                        John  MahoneySite Contact:
                                                        02/02/2007Operator Effective Date:
                                                        (360)426-2699Operator Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:

AM/PM GAS STATION  (Continued) U003354145

TC5712009.2s   Page 309



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

1 additional WA MANIFEST: record(s) in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        FalseBatch Generation:
                                                        FalseMonthly Generation:
                                                        XQGGen Status Code:
                                                        mrmahoneyjr@yahoo.comSite Contact Email:
                                                        (360)426-2699Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        106 E Wallace Kneeland BlvdSite Contact Address:
                                                        John  MahoneySite Contact:
                                                        02/02/2007Operator Effective Date:
                                                        (360)426-2699Operator Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        106 E Wallace Kneeland BlvdOperator Address:
                                                        John  MahoneyOperator:
                                                        PrivateOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Opulent Sales LLCOperator Organization Name:
                                                        (360)426-2699Land Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        106 E Wallace Kneeland BlvdLand Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        PrivateLand Organization Type:
                                                        Mahoney Investments LLCLand Organization Name:
                                                        02/07/2007Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (360)426-2699Legal Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        106 E Wallace Kneeland BlvdLegal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        PrivateLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Opulent Sales LLCLegal Organization Name:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        106 E Wallace Kneeland BlvdMailing Address:
                                                        Opulent Sales LLCMail Name:

AM/PM GAS STATION  (Continued) U003354145

TC5712009.2s   Page 310

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2X2KXg1HKj8Fgv24Hu1wjJ2zFj2Lvt9F481vu81KwS2BXG1NKP7Kgp1OHz8IjZ2SFA26vN2z4mAouX2VXF2XKI11gT6BHx8FjM2cFp3dvx184R1QuIADw30aJ63Bzattj92NXt2eKA1XgEVCHO1sjG1LFN4.vN4B4V6ruD5Lwk2DJO5QzO6JjA1
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2X2KXg1HKj8Fgv24Hu1wjJ2zFj2Lvt9F481vu81KwS2BXG1NKP7Kgp1OHz8IjZ2SFA26vN2z4mAouX2VXF2XKI11gT6BHx8FjM2cFp3dvx184R1QuIADw30aJ63Bzattj92NXt2eKA1XgEVCHO1sjG1LFN4.vN4B4V6ruD5Lwk2DJO5QzO6JjA1


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

2007     ARCO 82609     106 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVD
2008     ARCO 82609     106 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVD
2009     ARCO 82609     106 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVD
2010     ARCO 82609     106 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVD
2011     ARCO 82609     106 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVD
2012     ARCO 82609     106 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVD

RGA HWS:

6520 ft. Site 2 of 10 in cluster T
1.235 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
228 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  
SSW 106 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVD    N/A
T90 WA RGA HWSARCO 82609 S115340354

2006     ARCO AM/PM MINI MARKET     106 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVD
RGA LUST:

6520 ft. Site 3 of 10 in cluster T
1.235 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
228 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  
SSW 106 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVD    N/A
T91 WA RGA LUSTARCO AM/PM MINI MARKET S115429672

                                                            Gasoline Service Stations, NEC2014     PRESTIGE STATIONS INC
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations, NEC2013     PRESTIGE STATIONS INC
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations, NEC2012     PRESTIGE STATIONS INC
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations, NEC2012     ARCO AM PM 5958
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations, NEC2011     BP NORTH AMERICA
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations, NEC2011     ARCO AM PM 5958
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations, NEC2011     PRESTIGE STATIONS INC
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations, NEC2010     ARCO AM PM 5958
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations, NEC2010     PRESTIGE STATIONS INC
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations, NEC2009     PRESTIGE STATIONS INC
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations, NEC2008     PRESTIGE STATIONS INC
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations, NEC2007     PRESTIGE STATIONS INC
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations, NEC2006     PRESTIGE STATIONS INC
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations, NEC2005     PRESTIGE STATIONS INC
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations, NEC2004     PRESTIGE STATIONS INC
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations, NEC2003     PRESTIGE STATIONS INC
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations, NEC2002     PRESTIGE STATIONS INC
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations2001     PRESTIGE STATIONS INC
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations2000     PRESTIGE STATIONS INC
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations1999     PRESTIGE STATIONS INC
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations1998     PRESTIGE STATIONS INC
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations1997     PRESTIGE STATIONS INC
                                                            Type:Year:    Name:

EDR Hist Auto

6520 ft. Site 4 of 10 in cluster T
1.235 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
228 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
SSW 106 E WALLACE KNEELAND BL    N/A
T92 EDR Hist AutoPRESTIGE STATIONS INC 1021535398

TC5712009.2s   Page 311



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                  -123.12722574Longitude:
                                                  47.231710911Latitude:
                                                  Not reportedRetroactive Date:
                                                  Not reportedProof of Responsibility Document Flag:
                                                  Not reportedCompliance Method:
                                                  Not reportedLiability Limit Type:
                                                  11/14/2017Effective Date:
                                                  STP-119850Policy Number:
                                                  Not reportedAddress 2:
                                                  11/16/2019Expiration Date:
                                                  11/14/2017Inception Date:
                                                  CRUM & FORSTER SPECIALTY INS COFinancial Resp Type:
                                                  341849DOE Site ID:
                                                  SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                  106 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVDAddress:
                                                  AM/PM GAS STATIONName:

                                                  -123.12722574Longitude:
                                                  47.231710911Latitude:
                                                  Not reportedRetroactive Date:
                                                  Not reportedProof of Responsibility Document Flag:
                                                  Not reportedCompliance Method:
                                                  Not reportedLiability Limit Type:
                                                  11/16/2015Effective Date:
                                                  STP-109783Policy Number:
                                                  Not reportedAddress 2:
                                                  11/16/2016Expiration Date:
                                                  11/16/2015Inception Date:
                                                  CRUM & FORSTER SPECIALTY INS COFinancial Resp Type:
                                                  341849DOE Site ID:
                                                  SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                  106 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVDAddress:
                                                  AM/PM GAS STATIONName:

                                                  -123.12722574Longitude:
                                                  47.231710911Latitude:
                                                  Not reportedRetroactive Date:
                                                  Not reportedProof of Responsibility Document Flag:
                                                  Not reportedCompliance Method:
                                                  Not reportedLiability Limit Type:
                                                  11/16/2014Effective Date:
                                                  WA640390-8Policy Number:
                                                  Not reportedAddress 2:
                                                  11/16/2015Expiration Date:
                                                  11/16/2014Inception Date:
                                                  COLONY INSURANCE COMPANYFinancial Resp Type:
                                                  341849DOE Site ID:
                                                  SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                  106 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVDAddress:
                                                  AM/PM GAS STATIONName:

WA Financial Assurance 1:

6520 ft. Site 5 of 10 in cluster T
1.235 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
228 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
SSW 106 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVD    N/A
T93 WA Financial AssuranceAM/PM GAS STATION S121602823

TC5712009.2s   Page 312



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

98584edr_fzip:
WAedr_fstat:

VCP:

                    47.2317109 / -123.12722Lat/Long:
                    Not reportedBedrock:
                    Not reportedAir:
                    Not reportedSediment:
                    Remediated-BelowSoil:
                    Not reportedSurface Water:
                    Not reportedGround Water:
                    Petroleum-GasolineContaminant Name:
                    341849UST ID:
                    6111Lust ID:
                    SouthwestRegion:
                    01/08/2015Lust Date:
                    09/07/2005Release Date:
                    SouthwestResponse Section:
                    AM/PM GAS STATION,ARCO 05958,ARCO 5958,ARCO 5958 PSI 5492,ARCO FAC 5958 PSI 5492Cleanup Unit Name:
                    Not reportedProcess Type:
                    Not reportedCleanup Unit Type:
                    6444Cleanup Site ID:
                    LUST - NFALust Status Type:
                    64487875Facility ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    106 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVDAddress:
                    ARCO 82609Name:

                    47.2317109 / -123.12722Lat/Long:
                    Not reportedBedrock:
                    Not reportedAir:
                    Not reportedSediment:
                    Not reportedSoil:
                    Not reportedSurface Water:
                    Below Cleanup LevelsGround Water:
                    Petroleum Products-UnspecifiedContaminant Name:
                    341849UST ID:
                    6111Lust ID:
                    SouthwestRegion:
                    01/08/2015Lust Date:
                    09/07/2005Release Date:
                    SouthwestResponse Section:
                    AM/PM GAS STATION,ARCO 05958,ARCO 5958,ARCO 5958 PSI 5492,ARCO FAC 5958 PSI 5492Cleanup Unit Name:
                    Not reportedProcess Type:
                    Not reportedCleanup Unit Type:
                    6444Cleanup Site ID:
                    LUST - NFALust Status Type:
                    64487875Facility ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    106 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVDAddress:
                    ARCO 82609Name:

LUST:

WA MANIFEST
6520 ft. WA AIRSSite 6 of 10 in cluster T
1.235 mi. WA CSCSL NFA

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
228 ft.

 

> 1 WA ALLSITESSHELTON, WA  98584
SSW WA VCP106 E WALLACE KNEELAND    N/A
T94 WA LUSTARCO AMPM - SHELTON S109394709

TC5712009.2s   Page 313



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                             AQLAInteraction 2:
                                             AInteraction 1:
                                             80412Interaction:

                                             -123.127211397Longitude:
                                             47.231705951999999Latitude:
                                             Haz Waste Management ActiDate Interaction 3:
                                             2008-12-31 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             WAR000007260Program ID:
                                             Arco 82609Facility Alt.:
                                             TURBOWASTEProgram Data:
                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             HWOTHERInteraction 2:
                                             AInteraction 1:
                                             56567Interaction:

                                             -123.127211397Longitude:
                                             47.231705951999999Latitude:
                                             LUST FacilityDate Interaction 3:
                                             2005-09-07 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             Not reportedProgram ID:
                                             Arco 82609Facility Alt.:
                                             ISISProgram Data:
                                             TOXICSEcology Program:
                                             LUSTInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             108267Interaction:

                                             -123.127211397Longitude:
                                             47.231705951999999Latitude:
                                             Hazardous Waste GeneratorDate Interaction 3:
                                             1996-01-22 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             WAR000007260Program ID:
                                             Not reportedFacility Alt.:
                                             TURBOWASTEProgram Data:
                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             HWGInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             56565Interaction:

                              64487875Facility Id:
                              ARCO 82609Facility Name:

ALLSITES:

6444Cleanup Siteid:
Not reportedRank:
1/8/2015Date NFA:
Not reportedNFA Type:
Not reportedEcology Status:
YesVCP:
Not reportedVCP Status:
64487875Facility ID:
Not reportededr_zip:
MASONedr_fcnty:

ARCO AMPM - SHELTON  (Continued) S109394709

TC5712009.2s   Page 314



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                             1995-01-01 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             WAR000007260Program ID:
                                             Not reportedFacility Alt.:
                                             EPCRAProgram Data:
                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             TIER2Interaction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             56563Interaction:

                                             -123.127211397Longitude:
                                             47.231705951999999Latitude:
                                             State Cleanup SiteDate Interaction 3:
                                             2006-03-31 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             Not reportedProgram ID:
                                             Arco 82609Facility Alt.:
                                             ISISProgram Data:
                                             TOXICSEcology Program:
                                             SCSInteraction 2:
                                             AInteraction 1:
                                             56566Interaction:

                                             -123.127211397Longitude:
                                             47.231705951999999Latitude:
                                             Voluntary Cleanup SitesDate Interaction 3:
                                             2010-07-27 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             SW1124Program ID:
                                             Arco 82609Facility Alt.:
                                             ISISProgram Data:
                                             TOXICSEcology Program:
                                             VOLCLNSTInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             93523Interaction:

                                             -123.127211397Longitude:
                                             47.231705951999999Latitude:
                                             Underground Storage TankDate Interaction 3:
                                             1995-07-17 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             341849Program ID:
                                             AM/PM GAS STATIONFacility Alt.:
                                             USTProgram Data:
                                             TOXICSEcology Program:
                                             USTInteraction 2:
                                             AInteraction 1:
                                             56564Interaction:

                                             -123.127211397Longitude:
                                             47.231705951999999Latitude:
                                             Air Qual Local AuthorityDate Interaction 3:
                                             2007-01-01 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             F_045_2392Program ID:
                                             Arco 82609Facility Alt.:
                                             AIRSISProgram Data:
                                             AIRQUALEcology Program:

ARCO AMPM - SHELTON  (Continued) S109394709

TC5712009.2s   Page 315



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                                 Not reportedPlant Name:
                                                                 Not reportedEcolgy Fac ID:
                                                                 Not reportedFacility Site Status Description:
                                                                 Not reportedFacility Category Short Name:
                                                                 Not reportedFacility Type:
                                                                 Not reportedFacility ID:
                                                                 2007Year Of Info:

AIRS (EMI):

                    -123.12722574Longitude:
                    47.231710911Latitude:
                    Not reportedBedrock:
                    Not reportedAir:
                    Not reportedSediment:
                    Remediated-BelowSoil:
                    Not reportedSurface Water:
                    Not reportedGround Water:
                    Petroleum-GasolineContaminant Name:
                    SouthwestRegion:
                    NFASite Status:
                    NFA-Voluntary Cleanup Program ReviewNFA Reason:
                    5958 PSI 5492
                    AM/PM GAS STATION,ARCO 05958,ARCO 5958,ARCO 5958 PSI 5492,ARCO FACAlternate Site Names:
                    01/08/2015NFA Date:
                    6444CS Id:
                    64487875Facility/Site Id:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    106 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVDAddress:
                    ARCO 82609Name:

                    -123.12722574Longitude:
                    47.231710911Latitude:
                    Not reportedBedrock:
                    Not reportedAir:
                    Not reportedSediment:
                    Not reportedSoil:
                    Not reportedSurface Water:
                    Below Cleanup LevelsGround Water:
                    Petroleum Products-UnspecifiedContaminant Name:
                    SouthwestRegion:
                    NFASite Status:
                    NFA-Voluntary Cleanup Program ReviewNFA Reason:
                    5958 PSI 5492
                    AM/PM GAS STATION,ARCO 05958,ARCO 5958,ARCO 5958 PSI 5492,ARCO FACAlternate Site Names:
                    01/08/2015NFA Date:
                    6444CS Id:
                    64487875Facility/Site Id:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    106 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVDAddress:
                    ARCO 82609Name:

CSCSL NFA:

                                             -123.127211397Longitude:
                                             47.231705951999999Latitude:
                                             Emergency/Haz Chem Rpt TIDate Interaction 3:

ARCO AMPM - SHELTON  (Continued) S109394709

TC5712009.2s   Page 316



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                                 7# Of Days Facility Operates Each Week:
                                                                 24# Of Hours Facility Operates Each Day:
                                                                 25% Of Ops Occuring During Qtr Oct-Dec:
                                                                 Not reported% Of Ops Occuring During Qtr Sep-Nov:
                                                                 25% Of Ops Occuring During Qtr Jul-Sep:
                                                                 Not reported% Of Ops Occuring During Qtr Jun-Aug:
                                                                 Not reported% Of Ops Occuring During Qtr Mar-May:
                                                                 25% Of Ops Occuring During Qtr Apr-Jun:
                                                                 Not reported% Of Ops Occuring During Qtr Dec-Feb:
                                                                 25% Of Ops Occuring During Qtr Jan-Mar:
                                                                 Not reportedBoilers Design Capacity At A Point:
                                                                 Not reportedUnivsl Business ID:
                                                                 Not reportedCO Nonattainment Area:
                                                                 Not reported% Cntrl Of Volatile Organic Compound Emissions:
                                                                 Not reportedNO2 Chemical:
                                                                 Not reported% Control Of Sulfur Dioxide Emissions:
                                                                 Not reportedPM10 Nonattainment Area:
                                                                 Not reportedTot Suspended Partclte Emissions Estmn Code:
                                                                 Not reportedPM-CON:
                                                                 Not reportedHeat Content Denominator UOM Code:
                                                                 Not reportedHeat Content Numerator UOM Code:
                                                                 Not reportedHeat Content:
                                                                 Not reported% Ash Content:
                                                                 Not reported% Sulfur Content:
                                                                 Not reportedCalculation Parameter UOM Code:
                                                                 Not reportedCalculation Parameter Quantity:
                                                                 Not reportedCalculation Material Code Description:
                                                                 Not reportedInsignificant Emissions Unit Flag:
                                                                 Not reportedEmissions Unit Process Id:
                                                                 Not reportedEmissions Unit Design Capacity UOM Code:
                                                                 Not reportedEmissions Unit Design Capacity Quantity:
                                                                 Not reportedEmissions Unit Id:
                                                                 Not reportedRelease Point Description:
                                                                 Not reportedRelease Point Id:
                                                                 1Process ID:
                                                                 2392Source Number:
                                                                 Not reportedFed County Code:
                                                                 FLocal Air Agency ID:
                                                                 Not reportedLocal ID:
                                                                 Not reportedPoint Comments:
                                             GASOLINE DISPENSING FACILITYPoint Desc:
                                                                 Not reportedPoint UTM Zone:
                                                                 Not reportedPoint UTM North:
                                                                 Not reportedPoint UTM East:
                                                                 Not reportedLat/Long (dms):
                                                                 Not reportedLat/Long:
                                                                 Not reportedPoint NAICS:
                                                                 1Point Num:
                                                                 Not reportedPoint Process SIC:
                                                                 Not reportedPlant UTM Zone:
                                                                 Not reportedPlant UTM North:
                                                                 Not reportedPlant UTM East:
                                                                 Not reportedPlant Lat/Long (dms):
                                                                 Not reportedPlant Lat/Long:
                                                                 Not reportedNAICS Code:
                                                                 Not reportedPlant NAICS:
                                                                 Not reportedPlant SIC Code:

ARCO AMPM - SHELTON  (Continued) S109394709

TC5712009.2s   Page 317



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                                 Not reported% Cntrl Of Carbon Monoxide Emissions:
                                                                 Not reportedSec Carbon Monoxide Cntrl Tech Code At Pt/Seg:
                                                                 Not reportedPri Carbon Monoxide Cntrl Tech Code At Pt/Seg:
                                                                 Not reportedCarbon Monoxide Emission Est Code:
                                                                 Not reportedCarbon Monoxide Emissions In Tons/Year:
                                                                 Not reported% Cntrl Of Volatile Organic Compound Emissions:
                                                                 Not reportedSec Voltle Organic Compound Cntl Tech Code At Pt/Seg:
                                                                 Not reportedPri Voltl Organic Compound Cntl Tech Code At Pt/seg:
                                                                 Not reportedVoltl Organic Compound Emissions Est Code:
                                                                 22Volatile Organic Compound Emissions In Tons/Year:
                                                                 Not reportedVolatile Organic Compound Emitted Desc:
                                                                 Not reported% Control Of Nitrous Oxides Emissions:
                                                                 Not reportedSec Nitrous Oxide Control Tech Code At Point Segment:
                                                                 Not reportedPri Nitrous Oxides Cntrl Tech Code At Point/Segment:
                                                                 Not reportedNitrous Oxides Emission Estimation Code:
                                                                 Not reportedNitrous Oxides Emissions In Tons/Yr:
                                                                 Not reported% Control Of Sulfur Dioxide Emissions:
                                                                 Not reportedSecondary Sulfur Dioxide Cntrl Tech Code At Pt/Seg:
                                                                 Not reportedPri Sulfur Dioxide Cntrl Tech Code At Pt/Seg:
                                                                 Not reportedSulfur Dioxide Emission Estimation Code:
                                                                 Not reportedSulfur Dioxide Emissions  Tons/Year:
                                                                 Not reported% Cntrl Of Particulate Matter (?2.5microns) Emissions:
                                                                 Not reportedSec Prticlte Matter (?2.5microns) Ctl Tech Code At Pt/Seg:
                                                                 Not reportedPri Ptculate Matter (?2.5microns) Ctl Tech Code At Pt/Seg:
                                                                 Not reportedPrticlte Matter Emisn (?2.5microns) Est Code:
                                                                 Not reportedPrticlte Matter (?2.5microns)emisins In Tons/Yr:
                                                                 Not reported% Cntrl Of Prtclte Matter (? 10microns) Emisns:
                                                                 Not reportedSec Prtclte Matter (?10microns) Cntl Tech Code At Pt/Seg:
                                                                 Not reportedPri Prtclte Matter (?10microns) Cntrl Tech Code At Pt/Seg:
                                                                 Not reportedPartclte Matter Emission (?10microns) Est Code:
                                                                 Not reportedParticulate Matter Emission (?10microns) Tons/Year:
                                                                 Not reported% Control Of Particulate Matter Emissions:
                                                                 Not reportedSec Partciulate Matter Cntrl Tech Code At Point/segment:
                                                                 Not reportedPri Particulate Matter Cntrl Tech Code At Point/Segment:
                                                                 Not reportedTot Suspended Partclte Emissions Estmn Code:
                                                                 Not reportedTot Suspended Partclt Emissn Tons/Year:
                                                                 Not reportedFacility’s Throughput Data Confidential:
                                                                 Not reportedEmission Unit Output Threshhold:
                                                                 Not reported% Of Ash In Fuels:
                                                                 Not reported% Of Sulfur In Fuels:
                                                                 Not reportedMaximum Rate/Amount Of Annual Throughput:
                                                                 Not reportedAnnual Qty Of Throughput Mat:
                                                                 Not reportedDescription Of Material:
                                                                 Not reportedEPA Code For Mat Thruput Fate Desc/input/output/existing:
                                                                 Not reportedEPA Mat Code For Throughput At Each Process:
                                                                 Not reportedEPA Code For Throughput Unit Of Measure:
                                                                 79900101SCC Process Desc:
                                                                 Not reportedVertical Dist Exhaust Travels From Stack/vent Outlet:
                                                                 Not reportedFlow Unit:
                                                                 Not reportedFlow Rate:
                                                                 Not reported% Oxygen In Stack / Vent Exhaust:
                                                                 Not reportedAir Flow From A Vent Or Stack:
                                                                 Not reportedDiameter Of Stack:
                                                                 Not reportedHeight Of Stack:
                                                                 Not reported% Wtr In Stack / Vent Exhaust:
                                                                 Not reportedExit Temp Of A Stack Or Vent:
                                                                 52# Of Weeks Facility Operates Each Year:

ARCO AMPM - SHELTON  (Continued) S109394709

TC5712009.2s   Page 318



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                                 Not reportedFacility Type:
                                                                 Not reportedFacility ID:
                                                                 2008Year Of Info:

                                                                 SHELTON, WA 98584Mailing City,St,Zip:
                                                                 106 E WALLACE KNEELANDMailing Address:
                                                                 Not reportedMailing Name:
                                                                 Not reportedEmissions Unit Process Status Code:
                                                                 Not reportedContact E-mail:
                                                                 Not reportedContact Fax:
                                                                 Not reportedContact Phone:
                                                                 JOHN  MAHONEYContact Name:
                                                                 Not reportedAverage % Emissions Quantity:
                                                                 Not reportedPollutant Type Code:
                                                                 Not reportedActual Hours Per Period Quantity:
                                                                 Not reportedShort Name Description:
                                                                 Not reportedEmission Unit Process Description:
                                                                 Not reportedUser Defined Process Identifier Code:
                                                                 Not reportedUnit Status Code Description:
                                                                 Not reportedEmissions Unit Description:
                                                                 Not reportedUser Defined Unit Identifier Code:
                                                                 Not reportedOxygen % Quantity:
                                                                 Not reportedWater Vapor % Quantity:
                                                                 Not reportedRelease Point Exit Gas Temperature Measure Quantity:
                                                                 Not reportedRelease Point Gas Flow Rate UOM Code:
                                                                 Not reportedRelease Point Exit Gas Flow Rate Measure Quantity:
                                                                 Not reportedRelease Point Gas Velocity UOMCode:
                                                                 Not reportedRelease Point Exit Gas Velocity Measure Quantity:
                                                                 Not reportedRelease Point Status Code Description:
                                                                 Not reportedUser Defined RP Identifier Code:
                                                                 Not reportedUser Defined Site Code:
                                                                 Not reportedFacility Site Supplemental Address:
                                                                 Not reportedControl Code6:
                                                                 Not reportedControl Code5:
                                                                 Not reportedControl Code4:
                                                                 Not reportedControl Code3:
                                                                 Not reportedControl Code2:
                                                                 Not reportedControl Code1:
                                                                 FalseWhether Source Is An AOP(Title V) Source:
                                                                 Not reportedLatitude/Longitude:
                                                                 FalseInsignificant Emissions Unit:
                                                                 Not reportedSecondary Control Device Code for SO2:
                                                                 Not reportedPrimary Control Device Code for SO2:
                                                                 Not reportedSCC Process Desc:
                                                                 Not reportedSTK ACFS:
                                                                 Not reportedNH3 % ctrl:
                                                                 Not reportedS NH3 ctrl:
                                                                 Not reportedNH3 tpy:
                                                                 Not reportedP NH3 Control:
                                                                 Not reportedUTM Zone:
                                                                 Not reportedUTM North:
                                                                 Not reportedUTM East:
                                                                 Not reportedCO Nonattainment Area:
                                                                 Not reportedOzone Nonattainment Area:
                                                                 Not reportedPM10 Nonattainment Area:
                                                                 Not reportedLead Emission Estimation Code:
                                                                 Not reportedLead Emissions In Tons/Year:

ARCO AMPM - SHELTON  (Continued) S109394709

TC5712009.2s   Page 319



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                                 25% Of Ops Occuring During Qtr Jul-Sep:
                                                                 Not reported% Of Ops Occuring During Qtr Jun-Aug:
                                                                 Not reported% Of Ops Occuring During Qtr Mar-May:
                                                                 25% Of Ops Occuring During Qtr Apr-Jun:
                                                                 Not reported% Of Ops Occuring During Qtr Dec-Feb:
                                                                 25% Of Ops Occuring During Qtr Jan-Mar:
                                                                 Not reportedBoilers Design Capacity At A Point:
                                                                 Not reportedUnivsl Business ID:
                                                                 Not reportedCO Nonattainment Area:
                                                                 Not reported% Cntrl Of Volatile Organic Compound Emissions:
                                                                 Not reportedNO2 Chemical:
                                                                 Not reported% Control Of Sulfur Dioxide Emissions:
                                                                 Not reportedPM10 Nonattainment Area:
                                                                 Not reportedTot Suspended Partclte Emissions Estmn Code:
                                                                 Not reportedPM-CON:
                                                                 Not reportedHeat Content Denominator UOM Code:
                                                                 Not reportedHeat Content Numerator UOM Code:
                                                                 Not reportedHeat Content:
                                                                 Not reported% Ash Content:
                                                                 Not reported% Sulfur Content:
                                                                 Not reportedCalculation Parameter UOM Code:
                                                                 Not reportedCalculation Parameter Quantity:
                                                                 Not reportedCalculation Material Code Description:
                                                                 Not reportedInsignificant Emissions Unit Flag:
                                                                 Not reportedEmissions Unit Process Id:
                                                                 Not reportedEmissions Unit Design Capacity UOM Code:
                                                                 Not reportedEmissions Unit Design Capacity Quantity:
                                                                 Not reportedEmissions Unit Id:
                                                                 Not reportedRelease Point Description:
                                                                 Not reportedRelease Point Id:
                                                                 2621255Process ID:
                                                                 2392Source Number:
                                                                 Not reportedFed County Code:
                                                                 FLocal Air Agency ID:
                                                                 Not reportedLocal ID:
                                                                 Not reportedPoint Comments:
                                             GASOLINE DISPENSING FACILITYPoint Desc:
                                                                 Not reportedPoint UTM Zone:
                                                                 Not reportedPoint UTM North:
                                                                 Not reportedPoint UTM East:
                                                                 Not reportedLat/Long (dms):
                                                                 Not reportedLat/Long:
                                                                 Not reportedPoint NAICS:
                                                                 1Point Num:
                                                                 Not reportedPoint Process SIC:
                                                                 Not reportedPlant UTM Zone:
                                                                 Not reportedPlant UTM North:
                                                                 Not reportedPlant UTM East:
                                                                 Not reportedPlant Lat/Long (dms):
                                                                 Not reportedPlant Lat/Long:
                                                                 Not reportedNAICS Code:
                                                                 Not reportedPlant NAICS:
                                                                 Not reportedPlant SIC Code:
                                                                 Not reportedPlant Name:
                                                                 Not reportedEcolgy Fac ID:
                                                                 Not reportedFacility Site Status Description:
                                                                 Not reportedFacility Category Short Name:

ARCO AMPM - SHELTON  (Continued) S109394709

TC5712009.2s   Page 320



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                                 Not reportedCarbon Monoxide Emissions In Tons/Year:
                                                                 Not reported% Cntrl Of Volatile Organic Compound Emissions:
                                                                 Not reportedSec Voltle Organic Compound Cntl Tech Code At Pt/Seg:
                                                                 Not reportedPri Voltl Organic Compound Cntl Tech Code At Pt/seg:
                                                                 Not reportedVoltl Organic Compound Emissions Est Code:
                                                                 25Volatile Organic Compound Emissions In Tons/Year:
                                                                 Not reportedVolatile Organic Compound Emitted Desc:
                                                                 Not reported% Control Of Nitrous Oxides Emissions:
                                                                 Not reportedSec Nitrous Oxide Control Tech Code At Point Segment:
                                                                 Not reportedPri Nitrous Oxides Cntrl Tech Code At Point/Segment:
                                                                 Not reportedNitrous Oxides Emission Estimation Code:
                                                                 Not reportedNitrous Oxides Emissions In Tons/Yr:
                                                                 Not reported% Control Of Sulfur Dioxide Emissions:
                                                                 Not reportedSecondary Sulfur Dioxide Cntrl Tech Code At Pt/Seg:
                                                                 Not reportedPri Sulfur Dioxide Cntrl Tech Code At Pt/Seg:
                                                                 Not reportedSulfur Dioxide Emission Estimation Code:
                                                                 Not reportedSulfur Dioxide Emissions  Tons/Year:
                                                                 Not reported% Cntrl Of Particulate Matter (?2.5microns) Emissions:
                                                                 Not reportedSec Prticlte Matter (?2.5microns) Ctl Tech Code At Pt/Seg:
                                                                 Not reportedPri Ptculate Matter (?2.5microns) Ctl Tech Code At Pt/Seg:
                                                                 Not reportedPrticlte Matter Emisn (?2.5microns) Est Code:
                                                                 Not reportedPrticlte Matter (?2.5microns)emisins In Tons/Yr:
                                                                 Not reported% Cntrl Of Prtclte Matter (? 10microns) Emisns:
                                                                 Not reportedSec Prtclte Matter (?10microns) Cntl Tech Code At Pt/Seg:
                                                                 Not reportedPri Prtclte Matter (?10microns) Cntrl Tech Code At Pt/Seg:
                                                                 Not reportedPartclte Matter Emission (?10microns) Est Code:
                                                                 Not reportedParticulate Matter Emission (?10microns) Tons/Year:
                                                                 Not reported% Control Of Particulate Matter Emissions:
                                                                 Not reportedSec Partciulate Matter Cntrl Tech Code At Point/segment:
                                                                 Not reportedPri Particulate Matter Cntrl Tech Code At Point/Segment:
                                                                 Not reportedTot Suspended Partclte Emissions Estmn Code:
                                                                 Not reportedTot Suspended Partclt Emissn Tons/Year:
                                                                 Not reportedFacility’s Throughput Data Confidential:
                                                                 Not reportedEmission Unit Output Threshhold:
                                                                 Not reported% Of Ash In Fuels:
                                                                 Not reported% Of Sulfur In Fuels:
                                                                 Not reportedMaximum Rate/Amount Of Annual Throughput:
                                                                 Not reportedAnnual Qty Of Throughput Mat:
                                                                 Not reportedDescription Of Material:
                                                                 Not reportedEPA Code For Mat Thruput Fate Desc/input/output/existing:
                                                                 Not reportedEPA Mat Code For Throughput At Each Process:
                                                                 Not reportedEPA Code For Throughput Unit Of Measure:
                                                                 79900101SCC Process Desc:
                                                                 Not reportedVertical Dist Exhaust Travels From Stack/vent Outlet:
                                                                 Not reportedFlow Unit:
                                                                 Not reportedFlow Rate:
                                                                 Not reported% Oxygen In Stack / Vent Exhaust:
                                                                 Not reportedAir Flow From A Vent Or Stack:
                                                                 Not reportedDiameter Of Stack:
                                                                 Not reportedHeight Of Stack:
                                                                 Not reported% Wtr In Stack / Vent Exhaust:
                                                                 Not reportedExit Temp Of A Stack Or Vent:
                                                                 52# Of Weeks Facility Operates Each Year:
                                                                 7# Of Days Facility Operates Each Week:
                                                                 24# Of Hours Facility Operates Each Day:
                                                                 25% Of Ops Occuring During Qtr Oct-Dec:
                                                                 Not reported% Of Ops Occuring During Qtr Sep-Nov:

ARCO AMPM - SHELTON  (Continued) S109394709

TC5712009.2s   Page 321



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                                 SHELTON, WA 98584Mailing City,St,Zip:
                                                                 106 E WALLACE KNEELANDMailing Address:
                                                                 Not reportedMailing Name:
                                                                 Not reportedEmissions Unit Process Status Code:
                                                                 Not reportedContact E-mail:
                                                                 Not reportedContact Fax:
                                                                 Not reportedContact Phone:
                                                                 JOHN  MAHONEYContact Name:
                                                                 Not reportedAverage % Emissions Quantity:
                                                                 Not reportedPollutant Type Code:
                                                                 Not reportedActual Hours Per Period Quantity:
                                                                 Not reportedShort Name Description:
                                                                 Not reportedEmission Unit Process Description:
                                                                 Not reportedUser Defined Process Identifier Code:
                                                                 Not reportedUnit Status Code Description:
                                                                 Not reportedEmissions Unit Description:
                                                                 Not reportedUser Defined Unit Identifier Code:
                                                                 Not reportedOxygen % Quantity:
                                                                 Not reportedWater Vapor % Quantity:
                                                                 Not reportedRelease Point Exit Gas Temperature Measure Quantity:
                                                                 Not reportedRelease Point Gas Flow Rate UOM Code:
                                                                 Not reportedRelease Point Exit Gas Flow Rate Measure Quantity:
                                                                 Not reportedRelease Point Gas Velocity UOMCode:
                                                                 Not reportedRelease Point Exit Gas Velocity Measure Quantity:
                                                                 Not reportedRelease Point Status Code Description:
                                                                 Not reportedUser Defined RP Identifier Code:
                                                                 Not reportedUser Defined Site Code:
                                                                 Not reportedFacility Site Supplemental Address:
                                                                 Not reportedControl Code6:
                                                                 Not reportedControl Code5:
                                                                 Not reportedControl Code4:
                                                                 Not reportedControl Code3:
                                                                 Not reportedControl Code2:
                                                                 Not reportedControl Code1:
                                                                 FalseWhether Source Is An AOP(Title V) Source:
                                                                 47.227069999999998 / 123.12773Latitude/Longitude:
                                                                 Not reportedInsignificant Emissions Unit:
                                                                 Not reportedSecondary Control Device Code for SO2:
                                                                 Not reportedPrimary Control Device Code for SO2:
                                                                 Not reportedSCC Process Desc:
                                                                 Not reportedSTK ACFS:
                                                                 Not reportedNH3 % ctrl:
                                                                 Not reportedS NH3 ctrl:
                                                                 Not reportedNH3 tpy:
                                                                 Not reportedP NH3 Control:
                                                                 Not reportedUTM Zone:
                                                                 Not reportedUTM North:
                                                                 Not reportedUTM East:
                                                                 Not reportedCO Nonattainment Area:
                                                                 Not reportedOzone Nonattainment Area:
                                                                 Not reportedPM10 Nonattainment Area:
                                                                 Not reportedLead Emission Estimation Code:
                                                                 Not reportedLead Emissions In Tons/Year:
                                                                 Not reported% Cntrl Of Carbon Monoxide Emissions:
                                                                 Not reportedSec Carbon Monoxide Cntrl Tech Code At Pt/Seg:
                                                                 Not reportedPri Carbon Monoxide Cntrl Tech Code At Pt/Seg:
                                                                 Not reportedCarbon Monoxide Emission Est Code:

ARCO AMPM - SHELTON  (Continued) S109394709

TC5712009.2s   Page 322



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        John  MahoneySite Contact:
                                                        02/02/2007Operator Effective Date:
                                                        (360)426-2699Operator Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        106 E Wallace Kneeland BlvdOperator Address:
                                                        John  MahoneyOperator:
                                                        PrivateOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Opulent Sales LLCOperator Organization Name:
                                                        (360)426-2699Land Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        106 E Wallace Kneeland BlvdLand Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        PrivateLand Organization Type:
                                                        Mahoney Investments LLCLand Organization Name:
                                                        02/07/2007Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (360)426-2699Legal Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        106 E Wallace Kneeland BlvdLegal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        PrivateLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Opulent Sales LLCLegal Organization Name:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        106 E Wallace Kneeland BlvdMailing Address:
                                                        Opulent Sales LLCMail Name:
                                                        Gas station with storeBusiness Type:
                                                        602629865Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2011Data Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:
                                                        Not reportedFederal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        447110NAICS:
                                                        WAR000007260EPA ID:
                                                        64487875Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        106 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVDAddress:
                                                        ARCO 82609Name:

WA MANIFEST:

ARCO AMPM - SHELTON  (Continued) S109394709

TC5712009.2s   Page 323



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        FalseBatch Generation:
                                                        FalseMonthly Generation:
                                                        XQGGen Status Code:
                                                        mrmahoneyjr@yahoo.comSite Contact Email:
                                                        (360)426-2699Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        106 E Wallace Kneeland BlvdSite Contact Address:

ARCO AMPM - SHELTON  (Continued) S109394709

2007     AM/PM GAS STATION     106 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVD
2008     AM/PM GAS STATION     106 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVD
2009     AM/PM GAS STATION     106 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVD
2010     AM/PM GAS STATION     106 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVD

RGA LUST:

6520 ft. Site 7 of 10 in cluster T
1.235 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
228 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  
SSW 106 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVD    N/A
T95 WA RGA LUSTAM/PM GAS STATION S115429303

2011     ARCO 82609     106 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVD
2012     ARCO 82609     106 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVD

RGA LUST:

6520 ft. Site 8 of 10 in cluster T
1.235 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
228 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  
SSW 106 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVD    N/A
T96 WA RGA LUSTARCO 82609 S115429650

                    JOHN  MAHONEYContact:
                    WAR000007260EPA ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    106 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVDFacility address:
                    ARCO 82609Facility name:
                    03/14/2018Date form received by agency:

RCRA NonGen / NLR:

6520 ft. Site 9 of 10 in cluster T
1.235 mi. WA MANIFEST

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
228 ft.

 

> 1 ECHOSHELTON, WA  98584
SSW FINDS106 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVD WAR000007260
T97 RCRA NonGen / NLRARCO 82609 1004795070

TC5712009.2s   Page 324



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    ARCO 82609Site name:
                    03/14/2018Date form received by agency:

Historical Generators:

                              NoUsed oil transporter:
                              NoUsed oil transfer facility:
                              NoUsed oil Specification marketer:
                              NoUsed oil fuel marketer to burner:
                              NoUser oil refiner:
                              NoUsed oil processor:
                              NoUsed oil fuel burner:
                              NoFurnace exemption:
                              NoOn-site burner exemption:
                              NoUnderground injection activity:
                              NoTreater, storer or disposer of HW:
                              NoTransporter of hazardous waste:
                              NoRecycler of hazardous waste:
                              NoMixed waste (haz. and radioactive):
                              NoU.S. importer of hazardous waste:

Handler Activities Summary:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    360-426-2699Owner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    106 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVDOwner/operator address:
                    MAHONEY INVESTMENTS LLCOwner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    02/07/2007Owner/Op start date:
                    OperatorOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    360-426-2699Owner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    106 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVDOwner/operator address:
                    ARCO 82609Owner/operator name:

Owner/Operator Summary:

                    Handler: Non-Generators do not presently generate hazardous wasteDescription:
                    Non-GeneratorClassification:
                    10EPA Region:
                    MRMAHONEYJR@YAHOO.COMContact email:
                    360-426-2699Contact telephone:
                    USContact country:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    106 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVDContact address:

ARCO 82609  (Continued) 1004795070

TC5712009.2s   Page 325



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    ARCO 82609Site name:
                    02/29/2008Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    ARCO 82609Site name:
                    12/31/2008Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    ARCO 82609Site name:
                    03/02/2009Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    ARCO 82609Site name:
                    03/01/2010Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    ARCO 82609Site name:
                    03/01/2010Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    ARCO 82609Site name:
                    03/03/2011Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    ARCO 82609Site name:
                    03/03/2011Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    ARCO 82609Site name:
                    02/29/2012Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    ARCO 82609Site name:
                    02/29/2012Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    ARCO 82609Site name:
                    03/03/2013Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    ARCO 82609Site name:
                    03/01/2014Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    ARCO 82609Site name:
                    03/23/2015Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    ARCO 82609Site name:
                    03/01/2016Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    ARCO 82609Site name:
                    03/02/2017Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:

ARCO 82609  (Continued) 1004795070

TC5712009.2s   Page 326



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    03/19/1997Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    ARCO 5958 PSI 5492Site name:
                    02/13/1998Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    ARCO 5958 PSI 5492Site name:
                    01/22/1999Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    ARCO 5958 PSI 5492Site name:
                    03/02/2000Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    ARCO 5958 PSI 5492Site name:
                    03/28/2001Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    ARCO 5958 PSI 5492Site name:
                    03/29/2002Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    ARCO 5958 PSI 5492Site name:
                    02/10/2003Date form received by agency:

                    Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    ARCO 5958Site name:
                    03/30/2004Date form received by agency:

                    Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    ARCO 5958Site name:
                    12/31/2004Date form received by agency:

                    Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    ARCO 5958Site name:
                    02/22/2005Date form received by agency:

                    Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    ARCO 5958Site name:
                    12/31/2005Date form received by agency:

                    Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    ARCO 5958Site name:
                    02/27/2006Date form received by agency:

                    Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    ARCO 5958Site name:
                    02/23/2007Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    ARCO 82609Site name:
                    05/21/2007Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    ARCO 82609Site name:
                    05/21/2007Date form received by agency:

ARCO 82609  (Continued) 1004795070

TC5712009.2s   Page 327



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        106 E WALLACE NEELAND STAddress:
                                                        ARCO 5958Name:

WA MANIFEST:

                                   http://echo.epa.gov/detailed-facility-report?fid=110006461006DFR URL:
                                   110006461006Registry ID:
                                   1004795070Envid:

ECHO:

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

HAZARDOUS WASTE BIENNIAL REPORTER

corrective action activities required under RCRA.
program staff to track the notification, permit, compliance, and
and treat, store, or dispose of hazardous waste. RCRAInfo allows RCRA
events and activities related to facilities that generate, transport,
Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) program through the tracking of
RCRAInfo is a national information system that supports the Resource

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110006461006Registry ID:

FINDS:

                    No violations foundViolation Status:

                    BENZENE.   Waste name:
                    D018.   Waste code:

                    IGNITABLE WASTE.   Waste name:
                    D001.   Waste code:

Hazardous Waste Summary:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    ARCO 5958 PSI 5492Site name:
                    12/31/1994Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    ARCO 5958 PSI 5492Site name:
                    04/09/1996Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    ARCO 5958 PSI 5492Site name:

ARCO 82609  (Continued) 1004795070

TC5712009.2s   Page 328

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=232R3K1NRF86KT2xNx1mFk2P6k2PTt9AxM1jxc1Gmf2v3I11Rp7PKK1RN58KFD2h682RTd2CxNAXxb2S3y2nRt1NK16KNO8AF.2q6i3vTB1Bx11bxxAImh0BkP3hPStlkW253T2BR81xKA2dNM1VF91J6r5HTr8OxMAjxw65mN1NkT8WPU1ckO1
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=232R3K1NRF86KT2xNx1mFk2P6k2PTt9AxM1jxc1Gmf2v3I11Rp7PKK1RN58KFD2h682RTd2CxNAXxb2S3y2nRt1NK16KNO8AF.2q6i3vTB1Bx11bxxAImh0BkP3hPStlkW253T2BR81xKA2dNM1VF91J6r5HTr8OxMAjxw65mN1NkT8WPU1ckO1


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        MQGGen Status Code:
                                                        santanta@bp.comSite Contact Email:
                                                        (714) 670-3958Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        ARTESIA, CA 90702Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        PO BOX 6038Site Contact Address:
                                                        Teresa  SantanaSite Contact:
                                                        07/09/1996Operator Effective Date:
                                                        (714)670-3958Operator Phone Number:
                                                        ARTESIA, CA 90702-6038Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        PO BOX 6038Operator Address:
                                                        Teresa  SantanaOperator:
                                                        PrivateOperator Organization Type:
                                                        BP West Coast Products LLCOperator Organization Name:
                                                        (714) 670-3958Land Phone Number:
                                                        ARTESIA, CA 90702-6038Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        PO BOX 6038Land Address:
                                                        Teresa  SantanaLand Contact:
                                                        PrivateLand Organization Type:
                                                        BP West Coast Products LLCLand Organization Name:
                                                        07/09/1996Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (714)670-3958Legal Phone Number:
                                                        ARTESIA, CA 90702-6038Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        PO BOX 6038Legal Address:
                                                        Teresa  SantanaLegal Contact:
                                                        PrivateLegal Organization Type:
                                                        BP West Coast Products LLCLegal Organization Name:
                                                        ARTESIA, CA 90702-6038Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        PO Box 6038Mailing Address:
                                                        BP West Coast Products LLCMail Name:
                                                        Gas station with storeBusiness Type:
                                                        409018414Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FALSESmelter Defferal:
                                                        FALSEIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FALSEIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FALSEUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FALSEOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FALSEGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FALSEGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FALSETreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FALSEImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FALSEImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FALSEMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FALSETreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FALSEPermit by Rule:
                                                        Not reportedData Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:
                                                        D001 & D018Federal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        44711NAICS:
                                                        WAR000007260EPA ID:
                                                        64487875Facility ID:

ARCO 82609  (Continued) 1004795070

TC5712009.2s   Page 329



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        (714)670-3958Legal Phone Number:
                                                        ARTESIA, CA 90702-6038Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        PO BOX 6038Legal Address:
                                                        Teresa  SantanaLegal Contact:
                                                        PrivateLegal Organization Type:
                                                        BP West Coast Products LLCLegal Organization Name:
                                                        ARTESIA, CA 90702-6038Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        PO Box 6038Mailing Address:
                                                        BP West Coast Products LLCMail Name:
                                                        Gas station with storeBusiness Type:
                                                        409018414Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        NoSmelter Defferal:
                                                        NoIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        NoIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        NoUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        NoOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        NoGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        NoGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        NoTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        NoImmediate Recycler:
                                                        NoImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        NoMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        NoTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        NoPermit by Rule:
                                                        Not reportedData Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:
                                                        D001 & D018Federal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        44711NAICS:
                                                        WAR000007260EPA ID:
                                                        64487875Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        106 E WALLACE NEELAND STAddress:
                                                        ARCO 5958Name:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FALSEUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FALSEUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FALSEUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FALSEUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FALSEUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FALSEUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FALSEUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FALSETransfer Facility:
                                                        FALSERecycler Onsite:
                                                        FALSETranports Other Waste:
                                                        FALSETransport Own Waste:
                                                        FALSEOne Time Generation:
                                                        TRUEBatch Generation:
                                                        FALSEMonthly Generation:

ARCO 82609  (Continued) 1004795070

TC5712009.2s   Page 330



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        NoUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        NoUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        NoUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        NoUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        NoUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        NoUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        NoUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        NoTransfer Facility:
                                                        NoRecycler Onsite:
                                                        NoTranports Other Waste:
                                                        NoTransport Own Waste:
                                                        NoOne Time Generation:
                                                        YesBatch Generation:
                                                        NoMonthly Generation:
                                                        MQGGen Status Code:
                                                        santanta@bp.comSite Contact Email:
                                                        (714) 670-3958Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        ARTESIA, CA 90702Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        PO BOX 6038Site Contact Address:
                                                        Teresa  SantanaSite Contact:
                                                        07/09/1996Operator Effective Date:
                                                        (714)670-3958Operator Phone Number:
                                                        ARTESIA, CA 90702-6038Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        PO BOX 6038Operator Address:
                                                        Teresa  SantanaOperator:
                                                        PrivateOperator Organization Type:
                                                        BP West Coast Products LLCOperator Organization Name:
                                                        (714) 670-3958Land Phone Number:
                                                        ARTESIA, CA 90702-6038Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        PO BOX 6038Land Address:
                                                        Teresa  SantanaLand Contact:
                                                        PrivateLand Organization Type:
                                                        BP West Coast Products LLCLand Organization Name:
                                                        07/09/1996Legal Effective Date:

ARCO 82609  (Continued) 1004795070

                              Not reportedIncident Category:
                              Not reportedIncident Category Type:
                              Not reportedIncident Date:
                              ZAFRAContact Name:
                              08/23/2002Date Received:
                              GALLONMaterial Units:
                              2Material Qty:
                              PETROLEUM - GASOLINEMaterial Desc:
                              Not reportedMedium:
                              528614Facility ID:
                              SHELTON, WACity,State,Zip:
                              106 EAST WALLACE KNEELAND ROADAddress:
                              ARCOName:

SPILLS:

6520 ft. Site 10 of 10 in cluster T
1.235 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
228 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  
SSW 106 EAST WALLACE KNEELAND ROAD    N/A
T98 WA SPILLSARCO S105554964

TC5712009.2s   Page 331



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              Not reportedResp Party Name:
                              Not reportedCause Type:
                              Not reportedCause:
                              Not reportedResp Party Contact:
                              Not reportedRecovered Quantity:
                              Not reportedVessel Facility Name2:
                              Not reportedSource:
                              Not reportedSource Type:
                              Not reportedLongitude:
                              Not reportedLatitude:

ARCO  (Continued) S105554964

2006     BRADYS NURSERY     920 E JOHNS PRAIRIE RD
2007     BRADYS NURSERY     920 E JOHNS PRAIRIE RD
2008     BRADYS NURSERY     920 E JOHNS PRAIRIE RD
2009     BRADYS NURSERY     920 E JOHNS PRAIRIE RD

RGA LF:

6530 ft. Site 1 of 2 in cluster U
1.237 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
238 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  
ESE 920 E JOHNS PRAIRIE RD    N/A
U99 WA RGA LFBRADYS NURSERY S115349831

                    2010Year Closed:
                    Not reportedContact Title:
                    Sharon TibbitsContact Name:
                    Recycling (non-regulated)Facility Type:
                    PRIVATEOwnership:
                    7139Recycle Survey Code:
                    Not reportedOperator Title:
                    Not reportedOperator EMail:
                    Bradys NurseryOperator Organization:
                    Not reportedOperator Name:
                    Not reportedPhone:
                    Not reportedPermit No:
                    Not reportedContact Phone Ext:
                    (360) 426-3747Contact Phone:
                    Not reportedContact EMail:
                    98584Contact Postal:
                    WAContact State:
                    SheltonContact City:
                    Not reportedContact Address2:
                    920 E Johns Prairie RdContact Address1:
                    Bradys NurseryContact Organization:
                    UnregulatedPermit Status:
                    STATERegion:
                    845Facility ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    920 E JOHNS PRAIRIE RDAddress:
                    BRADY’S NURSERYName:

SWF/LF:

6530 ft. Site 2 of 2 in cluster U
1.237 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
238 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
ESE 920 E JOHNS PRAIRIE RD    N/A
U100 WA SWF/LFBRADY’S NURSERY S118401530

TC5712009.2s   Page 332



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    Not reportedLongitude:
                    Not reportedLatitude:
                    Not reportedWebsite:
                    NoOpen to Public Flag:

BRADY’S NURSERY  (Continued) S118401530

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

OSHA ESTABLISHMENT
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110070345073Registry ID:

FINDS:

6598 ft. Site 2 of 2 in cluster S
1.250 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
244 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
ESE 21 ADONAI CT    N/A
S101 FINDSWA317947269 - WHISKEY RIDGE MANUFACTURING LLC 1024425153

                              Mason County PUDResp Party Name:
                              Not reportedCause Type:
                              Not reportedCause:
                              Not reportedResp Party Contact:
                              0Recovered Quantity:
                              Not reportedVessel Facility Name2:
                              Power Generation UtilitySource:
                              FacilitySource Type:
                              -123.0959Longitude:
                              47.2544Latitude:
                              Oil SpillIncident Category:
                              Oil SpillIncident Category Type:
                              08/23/2017Incident Date:
                              Not reportedContact Name:
                              Not reportedDate Received:
                              Not reportedMaterial Units:
                              1Material Qty:
                              MINERAL OIL/TRANSFORMER OILMaterial Desc:
                              Roadway - UnpavedMedium:
                              94989Facility ID:
                              SHELTON, WACity,State,Zip:
                              Not reportedAddress:
                              Not reportedName:

SPILLS:

6610 ft.
1.252 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
218 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  
ENE    N/A
102 WA SPILLS S120917507

TC5712009.2s   Page 333

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=232R3K1NRF86KT2xNx1mFk2P6k2PTt9AxM1jxc1Gmf2v3I11Rp7PKK1RN58KFD2h682RTd2CxNAXxb2S3y2nRt1NK16KNO8AF.2q6i3vTB1Bx11bxxAImh0BkP3hPStlkW253T2BR81xKA2dNM1VF93J6r5HTr5OxM3jxw65mN2NkT6WPU4ckO1
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=232R3K1NRF86KT2xNx1mFk2P6k2PTt9AxM1jxc1Gmf2v3I11Rp7PKK1RN58KFD2h682RTd2CxNAXxb2S3y2nRt1NK16KNO8AF.2q6i3vTB1Bx11bxxAImh0BkP3hPStlkW253T2BR81xKA2dNM1VF93J6r5HTr5OxM3jxw65mN2NkT6WPU4ckO1


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110040598939Registry ID:

FINDS:

6653 ft. Site 1 of 5 in cluster V
1.260 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
242 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
East 1341 E JOHNS PRAIRIE RD    N/A
V103 FINDSDAVES PERFORMANCE MACHINE 1012222252

                                             -123.095961071Longitude:
                                             47.245956485000001Latitude:
                                             Local Source Cntrl 7/09-3Date Interaction 3:
                                             2009-05-20 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             Not reportedProgram ID:
                                             Daves Performance MachineFacility Alt.:
                                             LSCProgram Data:
                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             LSCInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             91180Interaction:

                              10369Facility Id:
                              DAVES PERFORMANCE MACHINEFacility Name:

ALLSITES:

6653 ft. Site 2 of 5 in cluster V
1.260 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
242 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
East 1341 E JOHNS PRAIRIE RD    N/A
V104 WA ALLSITESDAVES PERFORMANCE MACHINE S110275896

means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110056461975Registry ID:

FINDS:

6666 ft. Site 3 of 5 in cluster V
1.263 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
241 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
East 1347 E JOHNS PRAIRIE RD    N/A
V105 FINDSAPEX COLLISION SERVICES INC 1016704968

TC5712009.2s   Page 334

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6iV86I0UiHRGVOtf8vZY3nwqI9es0W4DUDiyA7OrHPPuRR6eGJsH4aosOCc5tHPIfBoM31O6vwf9ZLtUYNLC480nnlxAwpYAq9KW4aOd9Pj6erloshCWB4QTWy3.4PQtDbkm3jztDZTHiXetyEv33Qaf7bRROIjZrAdH6mdVilXRV1QN8EOB3XVpIRCP0njMUJ3h9pmfHK3mRvT7GcPG3hWzOcijtVZ4fKYsAgHfvAicZoUFYMpv4.tTnKuFwEJdq6Qp4YwD9KQSe9YNsemS4q6IWZQn4AZfDp.lCPqmDCFdiDBXyfFL67OYifkKV6WG88v34WhJIZsh0inJUBlZ38NKHPmHR9utGoJW8iYzOCdJtfl5feEeACpuvVD3ZcNbYCEK4KconAagwRZbqe195KP091cDeAtoslve3eCbW.4L4xtaDzo83lAZDI9LiAOMyTYuCWUd7CenO636rPn72egaP7TCPd99ugps5VM0RKSn6KSceT0svjTtJduqs.p8HtDD6lWWiweMVRWG8RfC4yt0IPCk0v5IUXmy3uGQH1UqR1OCGFTa4HabOcvGtNaUfVna3OlnvoFyZjjlYpSW4p9GnYrdwqWLqy985RXj9zf7eRuKsasv59WLWfAE4sRyDg9i5LOFDXCLiu78yQ7C5QTB7w1dOefFrAFf59fCPnPzP0P8uFdI8RJlRHKa6FwoezPn5QtTJbzZs4EDHlnx3
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6iV86I0UiHRGVOtf8vZY3nwqI9es0W4DUDiyA7OrHPPuRR6eGJsH4aosOCc5tHPIfBoM31O6vwf9ZLtUYNLC480nnlxAwpYAq9KW4aOd9Pj6erloshCWB4QTWy3.4PQtDbkm3jztDZTHiXetyEv33Qaf7bRROIjZrAdH6mdVilXRV1QN8EOB3XVpIRCP0njMUJ3h9pmfHK3mRvT7GcPG3hWzOcijtVZ4fKYsAgHfvAicZoUFYMpv4.tTnKuFwEJdq6Qp4YwD9KQSe9YNsemS4q6IWZQn4AZfDp.lCPqmDCFdiDBXyfFL67OYifkKV6WG88v34WhJIZsh0inJUBlZ38NKHPmHR9utGoJW8iYzOCdJtfl5feEeACpuvVD3ZcNbYCEK4KconAagwRZbqe195KP091cDeAtoslve3eCbW.4L4xtaDzo83lAZDI9LiAOMyTYuCWUd7CenO636rPn72egaP7TCPd99ugps5VM0RKSn6KSceT0svjTtJduqs.p8HtDD6lWWiweMVRWG8RfC4yt0IPCk0v5IUXmy3uGQH1UqR1OCGFTa4HabOcvGtNaUfVna3OlnvoFyZjjlYpSW4p9GnYrdwqWLqy985RXj9zf7eRuKsasv59WLWfAE4sRyDg9i5LOFDXCLiu78yQ7C5QTB7w1dOefFrAFf59fCPnPzP0P8uFdI8RJlRHKa6FwoezPn5QtTJbzZs4EDHlnx3


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each

APEX COLLISION SERVICES INC  (Continued) 1016704968

                                             -123.09588707100001Longitude:
                                             47.246016484999998Latitude:
                                             Local Source Cntrl 7/09-3Date Interaction 3:
                                             2010-07-20 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             Not reportedProgram ID:
                                             Apex Collision Services IncFacility Alt.:
                                             LSCProgram Data:
                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             LSCInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             95001Interaction:

                              18143Facility Id:
                              APEX COLLISION SERVICES INCFacility Name:

ALLSITES:

6666 ft. Site 4 of 5 in cluster V
1.263 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
241 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
East 1347 E JOHNS PRAIRIE RD    N/A
V106 WA ALLSITESAPEX COLLISION SERVICES INC S110700520

                              Commercial TruckSource:
                              VehicleSource Type:
                              -123.09354Longitude:
                              47.2485Latitude:
                              Vehicular Accident-Oil SpillIncident Category:
                              Oil SpillIncident Category Type:
                              10/24/2018Incident Date:
                              Not reportedContact Name:
                              Not reportedDate Received:
                              GalsMaterial Units:
                              300Material Qty:
                              LUBE OIL/MOTOR OILMaterial Desc:
                              Roadway - PavedMedium:
                              103387Facility ID:
                              SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                              1347 E JOHNS PRAIRIE RDAddress:
                              NEAR:Name:

SPILLS:

6666 ft. Site 5 of 5 in cluster V
1.263 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
241 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
East 1347 E JOHNS PRAIRIE RD    N/A
V107 WA SPILLSNEAR: S123248963

TC5712009.2s   Page 335

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6iV86I0UiHRGVOtf8vZY3nwqI9es0W4DUDiyA7OrHPPuRR6eGJsH4aosOCc5tHPIfBoM31O6vwf9ZLtUYNLC480nnlxAwpYAq9KW4aOd9Pj6erloshCWB4QTWy3.4PQtDbkm3jztDZTHiXetyEv33Qaf7bRROIjZrAdH6mdVilXRV1QN8EOB3XVpIRCP0njMUJ3h9pmfHK3mRvT7GcPG3hWzOcijtVZ4fKYsAgHfvAicZoUFYMpv4.tTnKuFwEJdq6Qp4YwD9KQSe9YNsemS4q6IWZQn4AZfDp.lCPqmDCFdiDBXyfFL67OYifkKV6WG88v34WhJIZsh0inJUBlZ38NKHPmHR9utGoJW8iYzOCdJtfl5feEeACpuvVD3ZcNbYCEK4KconAagwRZbqe195KP091cDeAtoslve3eCbW.4L4xtaDzo83lAZDI9LiAOMyTYuCWUd7CenO636rPn72egaP7TCPd99ugps5VM0RKSn6KSceT0svjTtJduqs.p8HtDD6lWWiweMVRWG8RfC4yt0IPCk0v5IUXmy3uGQH1UqR1OCGFTa4HabOcvGtNaUfVna3OlnvoFyZjjlYpSW4p9GnYrdwqWLqy989RXj9zf7eRuKsasvA9WLWfAE4sRyDg9i3LOFDXCLiu78yQ7C7QTB7w1dOefFrAFfC9fCPnPzP0P8uFdI9RJlRHKa6FwoezPnBQtTJbzZs4EDHlnx3
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6iV86I0UiHRGVOtf8vZY3nwqI9es0W4DUDiyA7OrHPPuRR6eGJsH4aosOCc5tHPIfBoM31O6vwf9ZLtUYNLC480nnlxAwpYAq9KW4aOd9Pj6erloshCWB4QTWy3.4PQtDbkm3jztDZTHiXetyEv33Qaf7bRROIjZrAdH6mdVilXRV1QN8EOB3XVpIRCP0njMUJ3h9pmfHK3mRvT7GcPG3hWzOcijtVZ4fKYsAgHfvAicZoUFYMpv4.tTnKuFwEJdq6Qp4YwD9KQSe9YNsemS4q6IWZQn4AZfDp.lCPqmDCFdiDBXyfFL67OYifkKV6WG88v34WhJIZsh0inJUBlZ38NKHPmHR9utGoJW8iYzOCdJtfl5feEeACpuvVD3ZcNbYCEK4KconAagwRZbqe195KP091cDeAtoslve3eCbW.4L4xtaDzo83lAZDI9LiAOMyTYuCWUd7CenO636rPn72egaP7TCPd99ugps5VM0RKSn6KSceT0svjTtJduqs.p8HtDD6lWWiweMVRWG8RfC4yt0IPCk0v5IUXmy3uGQH1UqR1OCGFTa4HabOcvGtNaUfVna3OlnvoFyZjjlYpSW4p9GnYrdwqWLqy989RXj9zf7eRuKsasvA9WLWfAE4sRyDg9i3LOFDXCLiu78yQ7C7QTB7w1dOefFrAFfC9fCPnPzP0P8uFdI9RJlRHKa6FwoezPnBQtTJbzZs4EDHlnx3


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              Masco PetroleumResp Party Name:
                              Not reportedCause Type:
                              Not reportedCause:
                              Not reportedResp Party Contact:
                              Not reportedRecovered Quantity:
                              Not reportedVessel Facility Name2:

NEAR:  (Continued) S123248963

                                                            Gasoline Service Stations, NEC2014     INGRAHAM OIL COMPANY INC
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations, NEC2013     INGRAHAM OIL COMPANY INC
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations, NEC2012     INGRAHAM OIL COMPANY INC
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations, NEC1998     INGRAHAM OIL COMPANY INC
                                                            Type:Year:    Name:

EDR Hist Auto

6757 ft.
1.280 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
224 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
SSE 6 COMET LN    N/A
108 EDR Hist AutoINGRAHAM OIL COMPANY INC 1021850563

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

OSHA ESTABLISHMENT
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110070306044Registry ID:

FINDS:

6814 ft.
1.291 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
246 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
ESE 820 E HIAWATHA BLVD    N/A
109 FINDSWA317946698 - SSI CABLE CORPORATION 1024393580

                         RemovedTank Status:
                         Not reportedTag Number:
                         1AUTOMOTIVETank Name:

                         -123.122499Decimal Longitude:
                         47.230277000000001Decimal Latitude:
                         Not reportedPhone Number:
                         Not reportedUBI:
                         10463Site Id:
                         45763147Facility ID:

UST:

6872 ft. Site 1 of 5 in cluster W
1.302 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
226 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
South 140 BELL LN    N/A
W110 WA USTSHELTON SOC 070821 U003352994

TC5712009.2s   Page 336

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6iV86I0UiHRGVOtf8vZY3nwqI9es0W4DUDiyA7OrHPPuRR6eGJsH4aosOCc5tHPIfBoM31O6vwf9ZLtUYNLC480nnlxAwpYAq9KW4aOd9Pj6erloshCWB4QTWy3.4PQtDbkm3jztDZTHiXetyEv33Qaf7bRROIjZrAdH6mdVilXRV1QN8EOB3XVpIRCP0njMUJ3h9pmfHK3mRvT7GcPG3hWzOcijtVZ4fKYsAgHfvAicZoUFYMpv4.tTnKuFwEJdq6Qp4YwD9KQSe9YNsemS4q6IWZQn4AZfDp.lCPqmDCFdiDBXyfFL67OYifkKV6WG88v34WhJIZsh0inJUBlZ38NKHPmHR9utGoJW8iYzOCdJtfl5feEeACpuvVD3ZcNbYCEK4KconAagwRZbqe195KP091cDeAtoslve3eCbW.4L4xtaDzo83lAZDI9LiAOMyTYuCWUd7CenO636rPn72egaP7TCPd99ugps5VM0RKSn6KSceT0svjTtJduqs.p8HtDD6lWWiweMVRWG8RfC4yt0IPCk0v5IUXmy3uGQH1UqR1OCGFTa4HabOcvGtNaUfVna3OlnvoFyZjjlYpSW5p9GnYrdwqWLqy987RXj9zf7eRuKsasv69WLWfAE4sRyDg9iCLOFDXCLiu78yQ7C6QTB7w1dOefFrAFf89fCPnPzP0P8uFdIBRJlRHKa6FwoezPn3QtTJbzZs4EDHlnx3
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6iV86I0UiHRGVOtf8vZY3nwqI9es0W4DUDiyA7OrHPPuRR6eGJsH4aosOCc5tHPIfBoM31O6vwf9ZLtUYNLC480nnlxAwpYAq9KW4aOd9Pj6erloshCWB4QTWy3.4PQtDbkm3jztDZTHiXetyEv33Qaf7bRROIjZrAdH6mdVilXRV1QN8EOB3XVpIRCP0njMUJ3h9pmfHK3mRvT7GcPG3hWzOcijtVZ4fKYsAgHfvAicZoUFYMpv4.tTnKuFwEJdq6Qp4YwD9KQSe9YNsemS4q6IWZQn4AZfDp.lCPqmDCFdiDBXyfFL67OYifkKV6WG88v34WhJIZsh0inJUBlZ38NKHPmHR9utGoJW8iYzOCdJtfl5feEeACpuvVD3ZcNbYCEK4KconAagwRZbqe195KP091cDeAtoslve3eCbW.4L4xtaDzo83lAZDI9LiAOMyTYuCWUd7CenO636rPn72egaP7TCPd99ugps5VM0RKSn6KSceT0svjTtJduqs.p8HtDD6lWWiweMVRWG8RfC4yt0IPCk0v5IUXmy3uGQH1UqR1OCGFTa4HabOcvGtNaUfVna3OlnvoFyZjjlYpSW5p9GnYrdwqWLqy987RXj9zf7eRuKsasv69WLWfAE4sRyDg9iCLOFDXCLiu78yQ7C6QTB7w1dOefFrAFf89fCPnPzP0P8uFdIBRJlRHKa6FwoezPn3QtTJbzZs4EDHlnx3


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                         Not reportedDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Not reportedPipe Pumping System:
                         Not reportedPipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedPipe Second Release Detection:
                         Not reportedPipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Not reportedPipe Construction:
                         Not reportedPipe Material:
                         Not reportedTank SFC Type:
                         Not reportedTank Release Detection:
                         Not reportedTank Manifold:
                         Sacrificial AnodeTank Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedTank Tightness Test:
                         Single Wall TankTank Construction:
                         SteelTank Material:
                         Not reportedTank Overfill Prevention:
                         Not reportedTank Spill Prevention:
                         Not reportedTank Upgrade Date:
                         07/10/1992Tank Permit Expiration Date:
                         Not reportedCapacity Range:
                         Not reportedTank Closure Date:
                         00/01/1975Tank Install Date:
                         8/6/1996Tank Status Date:

SHELTON SOC 070821  (Continued) U003352994

                              03/05/92Date Ecology Received Report:
ICR:

                    47.230277 / -123.12249Lat/Long:
                    Not reportedBedrock:
                    Not reportedAir:
                    Not reportedSediment:
                    Confirmed Above Cleanup LevelsSoil:
                    Not reportedSurface Water:
                    Confirmed Above Cleanup LevelsGround Water:
                    Petroleum-OtherContaminant Name:
                    10463UST ID:
                    1524Lust ID:
                    SouthwestRegion:
                    12/18/1996Lust Date:
                    09/26/1991Release Date:
                    SouthwestResponse Section:
                    SHELTON SOC 070821Cleanup Unit Name:
                    Not reportedProcess Type:
                    Not reportedCleanup Unit Type:
                    6117Cleanup Site ID:
                    LUST - NFALust Status Type:
                    45763147Facility ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    140 BELL LNAddress:
                    US WEST SOCName:

LUST:

6872 ft. Site 2 of 5 in cluster W
1.302 mi. WA CSCSL NFA

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
226 ft.

 

> 1 WA ALLSITESSHELTON, WA  98584
South WA ICR140 BELL LN    N/A
W111 WA LUSTUS WEST SOC S104487811

TC5712009.2s   Page 337



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                             US WEST SOCFacility Alt.:
                                             ISISProgram Data:
                                             TOXICSEcology Program:
                                             IRAPInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             46017Interaction:

                                             -123.122484071Longitude:
                                             47.230271489000003Latitude:
                                             Underground Storage TankDate Interaction 3:
                                             1975-01-01 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             10463Program ID:
                                             Not reportedFacility Alt.:
                                             USTProgram Data:
                                             TOXICSEcology Program:
                                             USTInteraction 2:
                                             AInteraction 1:
                                             46015Interaction:

                                             -123.122484071Longitude:
                                             47.230271489000003Latitude:
                                             LUST FacilityDate Interaction 3:
                                             1991-09-26 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             10463Program ID:
                                             Not reportedFacility Alt.:
                                             ISISProgram Data:
                                             TOXICSEcology Program:
                                             LUSTInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             46016Interaction:

                              45763147Facility Id:
                              US WEST SOCFacility Name:

ALLSITES:

                              Not reportedReport Title:
                              Not reportedContact:
                              23County Code:
                              94-39Site Register Issue:
                              Final cleanup reportType of Report Ecology Received:
                              South WesternRegion:
                              TankWaste Management:
                              Groundwater, SoilMedia Contaminated:
                              Petroleum productsContaminants Found at Site:
                              11/01/96Date Ecology Received Report:

                              Not reportedReport Title:
                              Not reportedContact:
                              23County Code:
                              92-19Site Register Issue:
                              Final cleanup reportType of Report Ecology Received:
                              South WesternRegion:
                              TankWaste Management:
                              SoilMedia Contaminated:
                              Petroleum productsContaminants Found at Site:

US WEST SOC  (Continued) S104487811

TC5712009.2s   Page 338



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    -123.122499Longitude:
                    47.230277Latitude:
                    Not reportedBedrock:
                    Not reportedAir:
                    Not reportedSediment:
                    Confirmed Above Cleanup LevelsSoil:
                    Not reportedSurface Water:
                    Confirmed Above Cleanup LevelsGround Water:
                    Petroleum-OtherContaminant Name:
                    SouthwestRegion:
                    NFASite Status:
                    NFA-Independent Remedial Action Program ReviewNFA Reason:
                    SHELTON SOC 070821Alternate Site Names:
                    12/18/1996NFA Date:
                    6117CS Id:
                    45763147Facility/Site Id:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    140 BELL LNAddress:
                    US WEST SOCName:

CSCSL NFA:

                                             -123.122484071Longitude:
                                             47.230271489000003Latitude:
                                             Independent Remedial ActnDate Interaction 3:
                                             1996-12-17 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             Not reportedProgram ID:

US WEST SOC  (Continued) S104487811

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110015469660Registry ID:

FINDS:

6872 ft. Site 3 of 5 in cluster W
1.302 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
226 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
South 140 BELL LN    N/A
W112 FINDSUS WEST SOC 1007070356

TC5712009.2s   Page 339

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6rXv6BIJrXPWXUUtv3DA3OVOB7.1I5prJ4yaAkeNX35ePuY4WDCv4DdwUxp6UhOPtqkS3aZz3LioDs4GAKTv4zzTO1D9VCu8ON7r4pOQ7u3K.R4V1TVXB6KI5XShphdwrjHA3HjR4IUYykb3a8BJ30PFkqDOeKhWNiuE6aH5r0eWXFO8vZin3XfOBFNZIn6ZJvGq9zXJXx1QPjXeW1Kk3poCUpNRUP.0t4.XAtzF3EpRDRFpAcrR4ag7OXr5VeV9OLjo4saV71CM.MqS1iaX4WNc5SRRpXAhr0mTChVy4qH7yNJiap4r6I.drnA8XWnnvOy14kpyB4qlIKlMJSlE3r0VXTD.PLqyWfrc8nCMUhGVUYFytAQ0ARWh3UIeDd51AAn54w0bOMUPVrExOMTM54Rl7x1s.mJv1jCw3dLH5EPTpsB9rLp73TYP4ksAyuqpaoMkC3S.k7EbeUUJNK3w26Ag3PNS5UI6eA6Q56BGua7WYyOT4Og5vG8aDnQvCqrBvnza6uOGrVXDXrhNv1mT41B4BHtmIXntJ8M73N4CX4kfPUFgWluD4sL.UCgrUnpetmyV38Dq3BViDbtHAAGc3pNeOXTiVmPkOcEhAlOm7Lzc.vsp1N0A3ymM5lwjpJRyrqPqADQp4PmnyZdYaOGC3biSkGpxec05N.8U6Rmg3Oho5zebeb9.8.VOufm9YvST4wUK98DGDXiuCE36vNsE3
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6rXv6BIJrXPWXUUtv3DA3OVOB7.1I5prJ4yaAkeNX35ePuY4WDCv4DdwUxp6UhOPtqkS3aZz3LioDs4GAKTv4zzTO1D9VCu8ON7r4pOQ7u3K.R4V1TVXB6KI5XShphdwrjHA3HjR4IUYykb3a8BJ30PFkqDOeKhWNiuE6aH5r0eWXFO8vZin3XfOBFNZIn6ZJvGq9zXJXx1QPjXeW1Kk3poCUpNRUP.0t4.XAtzF3EpRDRFpAcrR4ag7OXr5VeV9OLjo4saV71CM.MqS1iaX4WNc5SRRpXAhr0mTChVy4qH7yNJiap4r6I.drnA8XWnnvOy14kpyB4qlIKlMJSlE3r0VXTD.PLqyWfrc8nCMUhGVUYFytAQ0ARWh3UIeDd51AAn54w0bOMUPVrExOMTM54Rl7x1s.mJv1jCw3dLH5EPTpsB9rLp73TYP4ksAyuqpaoMkC3S.k7EbeUUJNK3w26Ag3PNS5UI6eA6Q56BGua7WYyOT4Og5vG8aDnQvCqrBvnza6uOGrVXDXrhNv1mT41B4BHtmIXntJ8M73N4CX4kfPUFgWluD4sL.UCgrUnpetmyV38Dq3BViDbtHAAGc3pNeOXTiVmPkOcEhAlOm7Lzc.vsp1N0A3ymM5lwjpJRyrqPqADQp4PmnyZdYaOGC3biSkGpxec05N.8U6Rmg3Oho5zebeb9.8.VOufm9YvST4wUK98DGDXiuCE36vNsE3


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

1995     SHELTON SOC 070821     140 BELL LN
1996     SHELTON SOC 070821     140 BELL LN

RGA LUST:

6872 ft. Site 4 of 5 in cluster W
1.302 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
226 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  
South 140 BELL LN    N/A
W113 WA RGA LUSTSHELTON SOC 070821 S115443174

                              Not reportedResp Party Contact:
                              Not reportedRecovered Quantity:
                              Not reportedVessel Facility Name2:
                              Not reportedSource:
                              Not reportedSource Type:
                              Not reportedLongitude:
                              Not reportedLatitude:
                              Not reportedIncident Category:
                              Not reportedIncident Category Type:
                              Not reportedIncident Date:
                              UnknownContact Name:
                              Not reportedDate Received:
                              GALLONMaterial Units:
                              7Material Qty:
                              PETROLEUM - MINERAL OILMaterial Desc:
                              IMPERMEABLE CONTAINMENTMedium:
                              647431Facility ID:
                              SHELTON, WACity,State,Zip:
                              301 WALLACE KNEELAND BLVDAddress:
                              Not reportedName:

                              Not reportedResp Party Name:
                              Not reportedCause Type:
                              Not reportedCause:
                              Not reportedResp Party Contact:
                              Not reportedRecovered Quantity:
                              Not reportedVessel Facility Name2:
                              Not reportedSource:
                              Not reportedSource Type:
                              Not reportedLongitude:
                              Not reportedLatitude:
                              Not reportedIncident Category:
                              Not reportedIncident Category Type:
                              Not reportedIncident Date:
                              DEMMONContact Name:
                              01/24/2004Date Received:
                              GALLONMaterial Units:
                              20Material Qty:
                              PETROLEUM - OIL OTHERMaterial Desc:
                              Not reportedMedium:
                              538614Facility ID:
                              SHELTON, WACity,State,Zip:
                              301 EAST WALLACE KNEELAND BOULEVARDAddress:
                              VEHICLE OWNERName:

SPILLS:

6876 ft. Site 1 of 7 in cluster X
1.302 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
228 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  
South 301 EAST WALLACE KNEELAND BOULEVARD    N/A
X114 WA SPILLSVEHICLE OWNER S106238382

TC5712009.2s   Page 340



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              Not reportedResp Party Name:
                              Not reportedCause Type:
                              Not reportedCause:
                              Not reportedResp Party Contact:
                              Not reportedRecovered Quantity:
                              Not reportedVessel Facility Name2:
                              Not reportedSource:
                              Not reportedSource Type:
                              Not reportedLongitude:
                              Not reportedLatitude:
                              Not reportedIncident Category:
                              Not reportedIncident Category Type:
                              Not reportedIncident Date:
                              UnknownContact Name:
                              03/12/2014Date Received:
                              GALLONMaterial Units:
                              7Material Qty:
                              PETROLEUM - MINERAL OILMaterial Desc:
                              IMPERMEABLE CONTAINMENTMedium:
                              647431Facility ID:
                              SHELTON, WACity,State,Zip:
                              301 WALLACE KNEELAND BLVDAddress:
                              Not reportedName:

                              Not reportedResp Party Name:
                              Not reportedCause Type:
                              Not reportedCause:

VEHICLE OWNER  (Continued) S106238382

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110056469325Registry ID:

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110015429767Registry ID:

FINDS:

6876 ft. Site 2 of 7 in cluster X
1.302 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
228 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
South 301 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVD    N/A
X115 FINDSJAMES FOOD MART 1007066393

TC5712009.2s   Page 341



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

JAMES FOOD MART  (Continued) 1007066393

                                                            Drycleaning Plants, Except Rugs2008     KNEELAND PLAZA CLEANERS
                                                            Drycleaning Plants, Except Rugs2007     KNEELAND PLAZA CLEANERS
                                                            Drycleaning Plants, Except Rugs2006     KNEELAND PLAZA CLEANERS
                                                            Drycleaning Plants, Except Rugs2005     KNEELAND PLAZA CLEANERS
                                                            Drycleaning Plants, Except Rugs2004     KNEELAND PLAZA CLEANERS
                                                            Drycleaning Plants, Except Rugs2003     KNEELAND PLAZA CLEANERS
                                                            Drycleaning Plants, Except Rugs2002     KNEELAND PLAZA CLEANERS
                                                            Drycleaning Plants, Except Rugs2001     KNEELAND PLAZA CLEANERS
                                                            Drycleaning Plants, Except Rugs2000     KNEELAND PLAZA CLEANERS
                                                            Drycleaning Plants, Except Rugs1999     KNEELAND PLAZA CLEANERS
                                                            Drycleaning Plants, Except Rugs1998     KNEELAND PLAZA CLEANERS
                                                            Drycleaning Plants, Except Rugs1997     KNEELAND PLAZA CLEANERS
                                                            Type:Year:    Name:

EDR Hist Cleaner

6876 ft. Site 3 of 7 in cluster X
1.302 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
228 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
South 301 E WALLACE KNEELAND BL    N/A
X116 EDR Hist CleanerKNEELAND PLAZA CLEANERS 1018719227

                         Not reportedTank Manifold:
                         Corrosion ResistantTank Corrosion Protection:
                         Not PerformedTank Tightness Test:
                         Double Wall TankTank Construction:
                         Steel Clad with Corrosion Resistant CompositeTank Material:
                         Ball Float Valve (vent line)Tank Overfill Prevention:
                         Spill Bucket/Spill BoxTank Spill Prevention:
                         05/29/1998Tank Upgrade Date:
                         02/29/2020Tank Permit Expiration Date:
                         10,000 to 19,999 GallonsCapacity Range:
                         Not reportedTank Closure Date:
                         00/06/1995Tank Install Date:
                         8/6/1996Tank Status Date:
                         OperationalTank Status:
                         A4435Tag Number:
                         1Tank Name:

                         -123.124287616489Decimal Longitude:
                         47.231228882247798Decimal Latitude:
                         Not reportedPhone Number:
                         Not reportedUBI:
                         341193Site Id:
                         71359371Facility ID:

UST:

6876 ft. Site 4 of 7 in cluster X
1.302 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
228 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
South WA ALLSITES301 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVD    N/A
X117 WA USTFRED MEYER #603 FUEL CENTER U003354142

TC5712009.2s   Page 342

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6TYh641eTJNmY4b8hBrn3.ZT4crD1d51eQFCAOQsJDlONszUm6VZ4Jv.4E37bbMW8VgY3flMBjlzrtE1nG6d4Kx9.IU9Z1HcT8uj44tkctq1r1NBDFIYBcidd5ru5Uqz1qo13owUQ00pFRZjCYR13cEJObSMQMfTsFCB6sPATGk6YSpshv3t3XLw44Yi1ITFeXxS9fHxJ5U3NX6AmTil3SbP4Y09boxy8JvgAbAIBmwnr4TOnMPx4AUk.kJuZ4DAT33J4hFGcHymr49YDGO74g9wdqv55PGF1j4fCVA9QyobF1xOCUtN6w5iTv4xYwYoh90X4Sxc44Hq1wFweEGO34g9J1fDN.I4m0sB8tpD4gNAbxEs8gctA9kUBUNkrfmTncMN41vu.1scZmOnT5u55IU0cNw3rPCWDiyh37yTdylb5n.h1hJ63APFQg6.FfImCfg6C7vsO0oPQrw.sEJF24AlDgHilLS3OAqy5h..sLmEzcJKUJsIvnIG6xw0VfMFZBlT6WGXT3Q3YHsUhctl46S64e3o18V.ejSG3rtyJ7.xNP6hmIMr4TdP4mxSbD3K8Z9x3sfNBYHRrT3mnWaE3Ka3.0aJZhngTHpGAbFochpbrPJrDfht3mVNdqhi5Ewx1Wgx9ZSOQHLmFjAzCLsC9lxDO6cGQ6uQsqWJ6iMfDUz8lwsZOwfiC3h0s3DDzaU8UtZq6M0X6.xlVNsyZUx13
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6TYh641eTJNmY4b8hBrn3.ZT4crD1d51eQFCAOQsJDlONszUm6VZ4Jv.4E37bbMW8VgY3flMBjlzrtE1nG6d4Kx9.IU9Z1HcT8uj44tkctq1r1NBDFIYBcidd5ru5Uqz1qo13owUQ00pFRZjCYR13cEJObSMQMfTsFCB6sPATGk6YSpshv3t3XLw44Yi1ITFeXxS9fHxJ5U3NX6AmTil3SbP4Y09boxy8JvgAbAIBmwnr4TOnMPx4AUk.kJuZ4DAT33J4hFGcHymr49YDGO74g9wdqv55PGF1j4fCVA9QyobF1xOCUtN6w5iTv4xYwYoh90X4Sxc44Hq1wFweEGO34g9J1fDN.I4m0sB8tpD4gNAbxEs8gctA9kUBUNkrfmTncMN41vu.1scZmOnT5u55IU0cNw3rPCWDiyh37yTdylb5n.h1hJ63APFQg6.FfImCfg6C7vsO0oPQrw.sEJF24AlDgHilLS3OAqy5h..sLmEzcJKUJsIvnIG6xw0VfMFZBlT6WGXT3Q3YHsUhctl46S64e3o18V.ejSG3rtyJ7.xNP6hmIMr4TdP4mxSbD3K8Z9x3sfNBYHRrT3mnWaE3Ka3.0aJZhngTHpGAbFochpbrPJrDfht3mVNdqhi5Ewx1Wgx9ZSOQHLmFjAzCLsC9lxDO6cGQ6uQsqWJ6iMfDUz8lwsZOwfiC3h0s3DDzaU8UtZq6M0X6.xlVNsyZUx13


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                         Automatic Tank GaugingTank Release Detection:
                         Not reportedTank Manifold:
                         Corrosion ResistantTank Corrosion Protection:
                         Not PerformedTank Tightness Test:
                         Double Wall TankTank Construction:
                         Steel Clad with Corrosion Resistant CompositeTank Material:
                         Ball Float Valve (vent line)Tank Overfill Prevention:
                         Spill Bucket/Spill BoxTank Spill Prevention:
                         05/29/1998Tank Upgrade Date:
                         02/29/2020Tank Permit Expiration Date:
                         5,000 to 9,999 GallonsCapacity Range:
                         Not reportedTank Closure Date:
                         00/06/1995Tank Install Date:
                         8/6/1996Tank Status Date:
                         OperationalTank Status:
                         A4435Tag Number:
                         3Tank Name:

                         Not reportedDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Pressurized SystemPipe Pumping System:
                         Corrosion ResistantPipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedPipe Second Release Detection:
                         Interstitial Monitoring (or Sump Sensor)Pipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Double Wall PipePipe Construction:
                         Flexible PipingPipe Material:
                         Not reportedTank SFC Type:
                         Automatic Tank GaugingTank Release Detection:
                         Not reportedTank Manifold:
                         Corrosion ResistantTank Corrosion Protection:
                         Not PerformedTank Tightness Test:
                         Double Wall TankTank Construction:
                         Steel Clad with Corrosion Resistant CompositeTank Material:
                         Ball Float Valve (vent line)Tank Overfill Prevention:
                         Spill Bucket/Spill BoxTank Spill Prevention:
                         05/29/1998Tank Upgrade Date:
                         02/29/2020Tank Permit Expiration Date:
                         10,000 to 19,999 GallonsCapacity Range:
                         Not reportedTank Closure Date:
                         00/06/1995Tank Install Date:
                         8/6/1996Tank Status Date:
                         OperationalTank Status:
                         A4435Tag Number:
                         2Tank Name:

                         Not reportedDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Pressurized SystemPipe Pumping System:
                         Corrosion ResistantPipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedPipe Second Release Detection:
                         Interstitial Monitoring (or Sump Sensor)Pipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Double Wall PipePipe Construction:
                         Flexible PipingPipe Material:
                         Not reportedTank SFC Type:
                         Automatic Tank GaugingTank Release Detection:

FRED MEYER #603 FUEL CENTER  (Continued) U003354142

TC5712009.2s   Page 343



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                         SumpTank SFC Type:
                         Interstitial MonitoringTank Release Detection:
                         Non-Manifolded TankTank Manifold:
                         Corrosion ResistantTank Corrosion Protection:
                         OtherTank Tightness Test:
                         Double Wall TankTank Construction:
                         Fiberglass Reinforced PlasticTank Material:
                         Overfill AlarmTank Overfill Prevention:
                         Spill Bucket/Spill BoxTank Spill Prevention:
                         Not reportedTank Upgrade Date:
                         12/31/2018Tank Permit Expiration Date:
                         20,000 to 29,999 GallonsCapacity Range:
                         Not reportedTank Closure Date:
                         00/25/2016Tank Install Date:
                         10/10/2016Tank Status Date:
                         OperationalTank Status:
                         A5733Tag Number:
                         T1Tank Name:

                         Not reportedDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Pressurized SystemPipe Pumping System:
                         Corrosion ResistantPipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedPipe Second Release Detection:
                         Interstitial Monitoring (or Sump Sensor)Pipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Double Wall PipePipe Construction:
                         Flexible PipingPipe Material:
                         Not reportedTank SFC Type:
                         Automatic Tank GaugingTank Release Detection:
                         Not reportedTank Manifold:
                         Corrosion ResistantTank Corrosion Protection:
                         Not PerformedTank Tightness Test:
                         Double Wall TankTank Construction:
                         Dielectric Coated SteelTank Material:
                         Ball Float Valve (vent line)Tank Overfill Prevention:
                         Spill Bucket/Spill BoxTank Spill Prevention:
                         06/29/1998Tank Upgrade Date:
                         02/29/2020Tank Permit Expiration Date:
                         5,000 to 9,999 GallonsCapacity Range:
                         Not reportedTank Closure Date:
                         00/06/1995Tank Install Date:
                         8/6/1996Tank Status Date:
                         OperationalTank Status:
                         A4435Tag Number:
                         4Tank Name:

                         Not reportedDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Pressurized SystemPipe Pumping System:
                         Corrosion ResistantPipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedPipe Second Release Detection:
                         Interstitial Monitoring (or Sump Sensor)Pipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Double Wall PipePipe Construction:
                         Flexible PipingPipe Material:
                         Not reportedTank SFC Type:

FRED MEYER #603 FUEL CENTER  (Continued) U003354142

TC5712009.2s   Page 344



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              23424Facility Id:
                              KNEELAND PLAZA CLEANERSFacility Name:

                                             -123.125357178Longitude:
                                             47.230683659Latitude:
                                             Underground Storage TankDate Interaction 3:
                                             2016-10-10 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             620312Program ID:
                                             Fred Meyer Fuel 603Facility Alt.:
                                             USTProgram Data:
                                             TOXICSEcology Program:
                                             USTInteraction 2:
                                             AInteraction 1:
                                             119762Interaction:

                              21924Facility Id:
                              FRED MEYER FUEL 603Facility Name:

ALLSITES:

                         SumpDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Pressurized SystemPipe Pumping System:
                         Corrosion ResistantPipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Automatic Line Leak Detector (ALLD)Pipe Second Release Detection:
                         Interstitial Monitoring (or Sump Sensor)Pipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Double Wall PipePipe Construction:
                         Flexible PipingPipe Material:
                         SumpTank SFC Type:
                         Interstitial MonitoringTank Release Detection:
                         Non-Manifolded TankTank Manifold:
                         Corrosion ResistantTank Corrosion Protection:
                         OtherTank Tightness Test:
                         Double Wall TankTank Construction:
                         Fiberglass Reinforced PlasticTank Material:
                         Overfill AlarmTank Overfill Prevention:
                         Spill Bucket/Spill BoxTank Spill Prevention:
                         Not reportedTank Upgrade Date:
                         12/31/2018Tank Permit Expiration Date:
                         10,000 to 19,999 GallonsCapacity Range:
                         Not reportedTank Closure Date:
                         00/25/2016Tank Install Date:
                         10/10/2016Tank Status Date:
                         OperationalTank Status:
                         A5733Tag Number:
                         T2Tank Name:

                         SumpDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Pressurized SystemPipe Pumping System:
                         Corrosion ResistantPipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Automatic Line Leak Detector (ALLD)Pipe Second Release Detection:
                         Interstitial Monitoring (or Sump Sensor)Pipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Double Wall PipePipe Construction:
                         Flexible PipingPipe Material:

FRED MEYER #603 FUEL CENTER  (Continued) U003354142

TC5712009.2s   Page 345



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                             -123.124272058Longitude:
                                             47.231223986000003Latitude:
                                             Underground Storage TankDate Interaction 3:
                                             1995-06-06 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             341193Program ID:
                                             Not reportedFacility Alt.:
                                             USTProgram Data:
                                             TOXICSEcology Program:
                                             USTInteraction 2:
                                             AInteraction 1:
                                             60012Interaction:

                              71359371Facility Id:
                              JAMES FOOD MARTFacility Name:

                                             -123.122643071Longitude:
                                             47.230221487999998Latitude:
                                             Local Source Cntrl 7/09-3Date Interaction 3:
                                             2009-08-25 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             Not reportedProgram ID:
                                             Kneeland Plaza CleanersFacility Alt.:
                                             LSCProgram Data:
                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             LSCInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             91324Interaction:

FRED MEYER #603 FUEL CENTER  (Continued) U003354142

                                                  COLONY INSURANCE COMPANYFinancial Resp Type:
                                                  341193DOE Site ID:
                                                  SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                  301 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVD #Address:
                                                  JAMES FOOD MARTName:

                                                  -123.12428762Longitude:
                                                  47.231228882Latitude:
                                                  Not reportedRetroactive Date:
                                                  Not reportedProof of Responsibility Document Flag:
                                                  Not reportedCompliance Method:
                                                  Not reportedLiability Limit Type:
                                                  04/07/2015Effective Date:
                                                  WA640188-9Policy Number:
                                                  #135Address 2:
                                                  04/07/2016Expiration Date:
                                                  04/21/2015Inception Date:
                                                  COLONY INSURANCE COMPANYFinancial Resp Type:
                                                  341193DOE Site ID:
                                                  SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                  301 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVD #Address:
                                                  JAMES FOOD MARTName:

WA Financial Assurance 1:

6876 ft. Site 5 of 7 in cluster X
1.302 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
228 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
South 301 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVD #    N/A
X118 WA Financial AssuranceJAMES FOOD MART S121602821

TC5712009.2s   Page 346



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                  -123.12428762Longitude:
                                                  47.231228882Latitude:
                                                  Not reportedRetroactive Date:
                                                  Not reportedProof of Responsibility Document Flag:
                                                  Not reportedCompliance Method:
                                                  Not reportedLiability Limit Type:
                                                  04/07/2018Effective Date:
                                                  WA640188-11Policy Number:
                                                  #135Address 2:
                                                  04/07/2019Expiration Date:
                                                  04/07/2018Inception Date:
                                                  COLONY INSURANCE COMPANYFinancial Resp Type:
                                                  341193DOE Site ID:
                                                  SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                  301 E WALLACE KNEELAND BLVD #Address:
                                                  JAMES FOOD MARTName:

                                                  -123.12428762Longitude:
                                                  47.231228882Latitude:
                                                  Not reportedRetroactive Date:
                                                  Not reportedProof of Responsibility Document Flag:
                                                  Not reportedCompliance Method:
                                                  Not reportedLiability Limit Type:
                                                  03/22/2016Effective Date:
                                                  WA640188-10Policy Number:
                                                  #135Address 2:
                                                  04/07/2017Expiration Date:
                                                  03/22/2016Inception Date:

JAMES FOOD MART  (Continued) S121602821

                                                            Gasoline Service Stations, NEC2014     GRADENS SHELTON CHEVRON
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations, NEC2013     GRADENS SHELTON CHEVRON
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations, NEC2012     GRADENS SHELTON CHEVRON
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations, NEC2011     GRADENS SHELTON CHEVRON
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations, NEC2010     GRADENS SHELTON CHEVRON
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations, NEC2009     GRADENS SHELTON CHEVRON
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations, NEC2008     GRADENS SHELTON CHEVRON
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations, NEC2007     GRADENS SHELTON CHEVRON
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations, NEC2006     GRADENS SHELTON CHEVRON
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations, NEC2005     GRADENS SHELTON CHEVRON
                                                            Convenience Stores2004     GRADENS SHELTON CHEVRON
                                                            Convenience Stores2003     GRADENS SHELTON CHEVRON
                                                            Convenience Stores2002     GRADENS SHELTON CHEVRON
                                                            Convenience Stores2001     GRADENS SHELTON CHEVRON
                                                            Convenience Stores2000     GRADENS SHELTON CHEVRON
                                                            Convenience Stores1996     GRADENS SHELTON CHEVRON
                                                            Type:Year:    Name:

EDR Hist Auto

6876 ft. Site 6 of 7 in cluster X
1.302 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
228 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
South 301 E WALLCE KNEELND 13    N/A
X119 EDR Hist AutoGRADENS SHELTON CHEVRON 1020822029

TC5712009.2s   Page 347



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    DropoffService Type:
                    ResidentialType:
                    Operations ManagerContact Name:
                    Televisions (TVs)Material Accepted:
                    ElectronicsMaterial Category:
                    colleenw@goodwillwa.orgEmail:
                    https://www.goodwillwa.org/Website:
                    Not reportedExtension:
                    360-426-0838Phone:
                    Goodwill Shelton StoreService:
                    1533Facility ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    301 WALLACE KNEELAND PLAZA BLVD STE. 210Address:
                    GOODWILL OF THE OLYMPICS AND RAINIER REGIONName:

                    Accept non-reusable textiles as well as reusable items.Comments:
                    Mon-Sat, 9am-9pm; Sun, 10am-7pmHours:
                    YesE-Cycle:
                    NoLight Recycle Participant:
                    DropoffService Type:
                    ResidentialType:
                    Operations ManagerContact Name:
                    Computers & laptopsMaterial Accepted:
                    ElectronicsMaterial Category:
                    colleenw@goodwillwa.orgEmail:
                    https://www.goodwillwa.org/Website:
                    Not reportedExtension:
                    360-426-0838Phone:
                    Goodwill Shelton StoreService:
                    1533Facility ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    301 WALLACE KNEELAND PLAZA BLVD STE. 210Address:
                    GOODWILL OF THE OLYMPICS AND RAINIER REGIONName:

                    Accept non-reusable textiles as well as reusable items.Comments:
                    Mon-Sat, 9am-9pm; Sun, 10am-7pmHours:
                    YesE-Cycle:
                    NoLight Recycle Participant:
                    DropoffService Type:
                    ResidentialType:
                    Operations ManagerContact Name:
                    Clothing, accessoriesMaterial Accepted:
                    Home & gardenMaterial Category:
                    colleenw@goodwillwa.orgEmail:
                    https://www.goodwillwa.org/Website:
                    Not reportedExtension:
                    360-426-0838Phone:
                    Goodwill Shelton StoreService:
                    1533Facility ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    301 WALLACE KNEELAND PLAZA BLVD STE. 210Address:
                    GOODWILL OF THE OLYMPICS AND RAINIER REGIONName:

SWRCY:

6876 ft. Site 7 of 7 in cluster X
1.302 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
228 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
South 301 WALLACE KNEELAND PLAZA BLVD STE. 210    N/A
X120 WA SWRCYGOODWILL OF THE OLYMPICS AND RAINIER REGION S123795248

TC5712009.2s   Page 348



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    DropoffService Type:
                    ResidentialType:
                    Operations ManagerContact Name:
                    TabletsMaterial Accepted:
                    ElectronicsMaterial Category:
                    colleenw@goodwillwa.orgEmail:
                    https://www.goodwillwa.org/Website:
                    Not reportedExtension:
                    360-426-0838Phone:
                    Goodwill Shelton StoreService:
                    1533Facility ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    301 WALLACE KNEELAND PLAZA BLVD STE. 210Address:
                    GOODWILL OF THE OLYMPICS AND RAINIER REGIONName:

                    Accept non-reusable textiles as well as reusable items.Comments:
                    Mon-Sat, 9am-9pm; Sun, 10am-7pmHours:
                    YesE-Cycle:
                    NoLight Recycle Participant:
                    DropoffService Type:
                    ResidentialType:
                    Operations ManagerContact Name:
                    MonitorsMaterial Accepted:
                    ElectronicsMaterial Category:
                    colleenw@goodwillwa.orgEmail:
                    https://www.goodwillwa.org/Website:
                    Not reportedExtension:
                    360-426-0838Phone:
                    Goodwill Shelton StoreService:
                    1533Facility ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    301 WALLACE KNEELAND PLAZA BLVD STE. 210Address:
                    GOODWILL OF THE OLYMPICS AND RAINIER REGIONName:

                    Accept non-reusable textiles as well as reusable items.Comments:
                    Mon-Sat, 9am-9pm; Sun, 10am-7pmHours:
                    YesE-Cycle:
                    NoLight Recycle Participant:
                    DropoffService Type:
                    ResidentialType:
                    Operations ManagerContact Name:
                    Portable DVD playersMaterial Accepted:
                    ElectronicsMaterial Category:
                    colleenw@goodwillwa.orgEmail:
                    https://www.goodwillwa.org/Website:
                    Not reportedExtension:
                    360-426-0838Phone:
                    Goodwill Shelton StoreService:
                    1533Facility ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    301 WALLACE KNEELAND PLAZA BLVD STE. 210Address:
                    GOODWILL OF THE OLYMPICS AND RAINIER REGIONName:

                    Accept non-reusable textiles as well as reusable items.Comments:
                    Mon-Sat, 9am-9pm; Sun, 10am-7pmHours:
                    YesE-Cycle:
                    NoLight Recycle Participant:

GOODWILL OF THE OLYMPICS AND RAINIER REGION  (Continued) S123795248

TC5712009.2s   Page 349



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    Operations ManagerContact Name:
                    Portable DVD playersMaterial Accepted:
                    ElectronicsMaterial Category:
                    colleenw@goodwillwa.orgEmail:
                    https://www.goodwillwa.org/Website:
                    Not reportedExtension:
                    360-426-0838Phone:
                    Goodwill Shelton StoreService:
                    1533Facility ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    301 WALLACE KNEELAND PLAZA BLVD STE. 210Address:
                    GOODWILL OF THE OLYMPICS AND RAINIER REGIONName:

                    program.
                    Small businesses with less than 50 employees can use the E-Cycle WAComments:
                    Mon-Sat, 9am-9pm; Sun, 10am-7pmHours:
                    YesE-Cycle:
                    NoLight Recycle Participant:
                    DropoffService Type:
                    CommercialType:
                    Operations ManagerContact Name:
                    Televisions (TVs)Material Accepted:
                    ElectronicsMaterial Category:
                    colleenw@goodwillwa.orgEmail:
                    https://www.goodwillwa.org/Website:
                    Not reportedExtension:
                    360-426-0838Phone:
                    Goodwill Shelton StoreService:
                    1533Facility ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    301 WALLACE KNEELAND PLAZA BLVD STE. 210Address:
                    GOODWILL OF THE OLYMPICS AND RAINIER REGIONName:

                    program.
                    Small businesses with less than 50 employees can use the E-Cycle WAComments:
                    Mon-Sat, 9am-9pm; Sun, 10am-7pmHours:
                    YesE-Cycle:
                    NoLight Recycle Participant:
                    DropoffService Type:
                    CommercialType:
                    Operations ManagerContact Name:
                    Computers & laptopsMaterial Accepted:
                    ElectronicsMaterial Category:
                    colleenw@goodwillwa.orgEmail:
                    https://www.goodwillwa.org/Website:
                    Not reportedExtension:
                    360-426-0838Phone:
                    Goodwill Shelton StoreService:
                    1533Facility ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    301 WALLACE KNEELAND PLAZA BLVD STE. 210Address:
                    GOODWILL OF THE OLYMPICS AND RAINIER REGIONName:

                    Accept non-reusable textiles as well as reusable items.Comments:
                    Mon-Sat, 9am-9pm; Sun, 10am-7pmHours:
                    YesE-Cycle:
                    NoLight Recycle Participant:

GOODWILL OF THE OLYMPICS AND RAINIER REGION  (Continued) S123795248

TC5712009.2s   Page 350



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    program.
                    Small businesses with less than 50 employees can use the E-Cycle WAComments:
                    Mon-Sat, 9am-9pm; Sun, 10am-7pmHours:
                    YesE-Cycle:
                    NoLight Recycle Participant:
                    DropoffService Type:
                    CommercialType:
                    Operations ManagerContact Name:
                    TabletsMaterial Accepted:
                    ElectronicsMaterial Category:
                    colleenw@goodwillwa.orgEmail:
                    https://www.goodwillwa.org/Website:
                    Not reportedExtension:
                    360-426-0838Phone:
                    Goodwill Shelton StoreService:
                    1533Facility ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    301 WALLACE KNEELAND PLAZA BLVD STE. 210Address:
                    GOODWILL OF THE OLYMPICS AND RAINIER REGIONName:

                    program.
                    Small businesses with less than 50 employees can use the E-Cycle WAComments:
                    Mon-Sat, 9am-9pm; Sun, 10am-7pmHours:
                    YesE-Cycle:
                    NoLight Recycle Participant:
                    DropoffService Type:
                    CommercialType:
                    Operations ManagerContact Name:
                    MonitorsMaterial Accepted:
                    ElectronicsMaterial Category:
                    colleenw@goodwillwa.orgEmail:
                    https://www.goodwillwa.org/Website:
                    Not reportedExtension:
                    360-426-0838Phone:
                    Goodwill Shelton StoreService:
                    1533Facility ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    301 WALLACE KNEELAND PLAZA BLVD STE. 210Address:
                    GOODWILL OF THE OLYMPICS AND RAINIER REGIONName:

                    program.
                    Small businesses with less than 50 employees can use the E-Cycle WAComments:
                    Mon-Sat, 9am-9pm; Sun, 10am-7pmHours:
                    YesE-Cycle:
                    NoLight Recycle Participant:
                    DropoffService Type:
                    CommercialType:

GOODWILL OF THE OLYMPICS AND RAINIER REGION  (Continued) S123795248

TC5712009.2s   Page 351



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                         Not reportedTank Release Detection:
                         Not reportedTank Manifold:
                         Not reportedTank Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedTank Tightness Test:
                         Not reportedTank Construction:
                         SteelTank Material:
                         Not reportedTank Overfill Prevention:
                         Not reportedTank Spill Prevention:
                         Not reportedTank Upgrade Date:
                         Not reportedTank Permit Expiration Date:
                         111 TO 1,100 GallonsCapacity Range:
                         Not reportedTank Closure Date:
                         00/31/1964Tank Install Date:
                         8/6/1996Tank Status Date:
                         RemovedTank Status:
                         Not reportedTag Number:
                         2Tank Name:

                         Not reportedDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Not reportedPipe Pumping System:
                         Not reportedPipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedPipe Second Release Detection:
                         Not reportedPipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Above Ground PipingPipe Construction:
                         Not reportedPipe Material:
                         Not reportedTank SFC Type:
                         Not reportedTank Release Detection:
                         Not reportedTank Manifold:
                         Not reportedTank Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedTank Tightness Test:
                         Not reportedTank Construction:
                         SteelTank Material:
                         Not reportedTank Overfill Prevention:
                         Not reportedTank Spill Prevention:
                         Not reportedTank Upgrade Date:
                         Not reportedTank Permit Expiration Date:
                         111 TO 1,100 GallonsCapacity Range:
                         Not reportedTank Closure Date:
                         00/31/1964Tank Install Date:
                         8/6/1996Tank Status Date:
                         RemovedTank Status:
                         Not reportedTag Number:
                         1Tank Name:

                         -123.12420299999999Decimal Longitude:
                         47.230186000000003Decimal Latitude:
                         Not reportedPhone Number:
                         Not reportedUBI:
                         3119Site Id:
                         37339798Facility ID:

UST:

6890 ft. Site 5 of 5 in cluster W
1.305 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
225 ft.

 

> 1 FINDSSHELTON, WA  98584
South WA ALLSITES211 BELL LN    N/A
W121 WA USTL & R DIESEL SERVICE 1007071793

TC5712009.2s   Page 352



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110015484117Registry ID:

FINDS:

                                             -123.12418807100001Longitude:
                                             47.230180488000002Latitude:
                                             Underground Storage TankDate Interaction 3:
                                             1998-06-08 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             3119Program ID:
                                             Not reportedFacility Alt.:
                                             USTProgram Data:
                                             TOXICSEcology Program:
                                             USTInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             41225Interaction:

                              37339798Facility Id:
                              L & R DIESEL SERVICEFacility Name:

ALLSITES:

                         Not reportedDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Not reportedPipe Pumping System:
                         Not reportedPipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedPipe Second Release Detection:
                         Not reportedPipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Above Ground PipingPipe Construction:
                         Not reportedPipe Material:
                         Not reportedTank SFC Type:

L & R DIESEL SERVICE  (Continued) 1007071793

Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110037068936Registry ID:

FINDS:

6959 ft. Site 1 of 3 in cluster Y
1.318 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
251 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
East 81 WILBUR WAY    N/A
Y122 FINDSMASON COUNTY GARBAGE & RECYCLING 1011848022

TC5712009.2s   Page 353

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6NeZ6GngNaH6eKvpZaHA3JFCGbvknJq0gz3YAokPahJ6HlJl6KQz49MBKXCfvqoKpUTs3sn1aPszHxErA6zJ4rMBJ6F7F5M6Cskk4KshbOGBvpHjkcfcBgQbJl5zqNz90Dvf3RcAzD8e3XykYmlI3PB0ooFjkwYJPs4W6mHwNWbLecB7Z.4j31KdG0YCnJZpgu3r98XuaWQyHzoi6kPm3KRXKiRlv.nMpXEeAimzaylKHSgcA9.U4PseJrfRFrKECkVo4fD7bSoUvh1okwKN4hTPJWtVq0as0ovmCtfDzNQ130qRYxMR6OtRNnGueBstZug049NaGbfXnneegYHt3kfeaDTsH08K6YzQ88FHKgGEvbEWplizAssMaQcYHiulAV4A4t8LJ54IFWsoCDhj5YbFb8BYvGSLk9JY33L1JgpVq4PM0Fp03lVGz0n.3udfYjdeCGKwomZokzo6Pz5f2wcZh4UxJuNt67cc5z.hlcHsJX6OlXNSvOmnKTTIQAvwzNa96tsJND55eXuqZPi74IpjGk8unSdJgXGC3oqIainNHEAB6Ogk4CR8KzkEv.GLpuAE3cT.ah5fHY4HAZ.13IhkJxu7FUxuCl4wA5oxbIp3vMgOkXCb3EiOJ7yfq0xQ01xqAeY5zOXe3CjjYEmC4IfUo6Wjk01QPNgkAZA5hFrbJp3x6UAKCDGtlj1uJbX7lkHu61wOKsenQKN6zpCO3
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6NeZ6GngNaH6eKvpZaHA3JFCGbvknJq0gz3YAokPahJ6HlJl6KQz49MBKXCfvqoKpUTs3sn1aPszHxErA6zJ4rMBJ6F7F5M6Cskk4KshbOGBvpHjkcfcBgQbJl5zqNz90Dvf3RcAzD8e3XykYmlI3PB0ooFjkwYJPs4W6mHwNWbLecB7Z.4j31KdG0YCnJZpgu3r98XuaWQyHzoi6kPm3KRXKiRlv.nMpXEeAimzaylKHSgcA9.U4PseJrfRFrKECkVo4fD7bSoUvh1okwKN4hTPJWtVq0as0ovmCtfDzNQ130qRYxMR6OtRNnGueBstZug049NaGbfXnneegYHt3kfeaDTsH08K6YzQ88FHKgGEvbEWplizAssMaQcYHiulAV4A4t8LJ54IFWsoCDhj5YbFb8BYvGSLk9JY33L1JgpVq4PM0Fp03lVGz0n.3udfYjdeCGKwomZokzo6Pz5f2wcZh4UxJuNt67cc5z.hlcHsJX6OlXNSvOmnKTTIQAvwzNa96tsJND55eXuqZPi74IpjGk8unSdJgXGC3oqIainNHEAB6Ogk4CR8KzkEv.GLpuAE3cT.ah5fHY4HAZ.13IhkJxu7FUxuCl4wA5oxbIp3vMgOkXCb3EiOJ7yfq0xQ01xqAeY5zOXe3CjjYEmC4IfUo6Wjk01QPNgkAZA5hFrbJp3x6UAKCDGtlj1uJbX7lkHu61wOKsenQKN6zpCO3


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air

MASON COUNTY GARBAGE & RECYCLING  (Continued) 1011848022

2006     MASON COUNTY GARBAGE & RECYCLING     81 WILBUR WAY
2007     MASON COUNTY GARBAGE & RECYCLING     81 WILBUR WAY
2008     MASON COUNTY GARBAGE & RECYCLING     81 WILBUR WAY
2009     MASON COUNTY GARBAGE & RECYCLING     81 WILBUR WAY
2010     MASON COUNTY GARBAGE & RECYCLING     81 WILBUR WAY
2011     MASON COUNTY GARBAGE & RECYCLING     81 WILBUR WAY
2012     MASON COUNTY GARBAGE & RECYCLING     81 WILBUR WAY

RGA LF:

6959 ft. Site 2 of 3 in cluster Y
1.318 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
251 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  
East 81 WILBUR WAY    N/A
Y123 WA RGA LFMASON COUNTY GARBAGE & RECYCLING S115351305

                    Not reportedYear Closed:
                    District ManagerContact Title:
                    Rik FredricksonContact Name:
                    Material Recovery Facility (exempt)Facility Type:
                    Not reportedOwnership:
                    5390Recycle Survey Code:
                    Not reportedOperator Title:
                    Not reportedOperator EMail:
                    Mason County Garbage & RecyclingOperator Organization:
                    Not reportedOperator Name:
                    (360) 426-8729Phone:
                    Not reportedPermit No:
                    Not reportedContact Phone Ext:
                    (360) 426-8729Contact Phone:
                    rickf@wasteconnections.comContact EMail:
                    98584Contact Postal:
                    WAContact State:
                    SheltonContact City:
                    Not reportedContact Address2:
                    Po Box 787Contact Address1:
                    Mason County Garbage & RecyclingContact Organization:
                    ExemptPermit Status:
                    STATERegion:
                    1984Facility ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    81 WILBUR WAYAddress:
                    MASON COUNTY GARBAGE & RECYCLINGName:

SWF/LF:

6959 ft. Site 3 of 3 in cluster Y
1.318 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
251 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
East WA ALLSITES81 WILBUR WAY    N/A
Y124 WA SWF/LFMASON COUNTY GARBAGE & RECYCLING S108108173

TC5712009.2s   Page 354

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6NeZ6GngNaH6eKvpZaHA3JFCGbvknJq0gz3YAokPahJ6HlJl6KQz49MBKXCfvqoKpUTs3sn1aPszHxErA6zJ4rMBJ6F7F5M6Cskk4KshbOGBvpHjkcfcBgQbJl5zqNz90Dvf3RcAzD8e3XykYmlI3PB0ooFjkwYJPs4W6mHwNWbLecB7Z.4j31KdG0YCnJZpgu3r98XuaWQyHzoi6kPm3KRXKiRlv.nMpXEeAimzaylKHSgcA9.U4PseJrfRFrKECkVo4fD7bSoUvh1okwKN4hTPJWtVq0as0ovmCtfDzNQ130qRYxMR6OtRNnGueBstZug049NaGbfXnneegYHt3kfeaDTsH08K6YzQ88FHKgGEvbEWplizAssMaQcYHiulAV4A4t8LJ54IFWsoCDhj5YbFb8BYvGSLk9JY33L1JgpVq4PM0Fp03lVGz0n.3udfYjdeCGKwomZokzo6Pz5f2wcZh4UxJuNt67cc5z.hlcHsJX6OlXNSvOmnKTTIQAvwzNa96tsJND55eXuqZPi74IpjGk8unSdJgXGC3oqIainNHEAB6Ogk4CR8KzkEv.GLpuAE3cT.ah5fHY4HAZ.14IhkJxu7FUxuCl4w45oxbIp3vMgOkXCbBEiOJ7yfq0xQ01xq7eY5zOXe3CjjYEmCBIfUo6Wjk01QPNgk3ZA5hFrbJp3x6UAK5DGtlj1uJbX7lkHu51wOKsenQKN6zpCO3
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6NeZ6GngNaH6eKvpZaHA3JFCGbvknJq0gz3YAokPahJ6HlJl6KQz49MBKXCfvqoKpUTs3sn1aPszHxErA6zJ4rMBJ6F7F5M6Cskk4KshbOGBvpHjkcfcBgQbJl5zqNz90Dvf3RcAzD8e3XykYmlI3PB0ooFjkwYJPs4W6mHwNWbLecB7Z.4j31KdG0YCnJZpgu3r98XuaWQyHzoi6kPm3KRXKiRlv.nMpXEeAimzaylKHSgcA9.U4PseJrfRFrKECkVo4fD7bSoUvh1okwKN4hTPJWtVq0as0ovmCtfDzNQ130qRYxMR6OtRNnGueBstZug049NaGbfXnneegYHt3kfeaDTsH08K6YzQ88FHKgGEvbEWplizAssMaQcYHiulAV4A4t8LJ54IFWsoCDhj5YbFb8BYvGSLk9JY33L1JgpVq4PM0Fp03lVGz0n.3udfYjdeCGKwomZokzo6Pz5f2wcZh4UxJuNt67cc5z.hlcHsJX6OlXNSvOmnKTTIQAvwzNa96tsJND55eXuqZPi74IpjGk8unSdJgXGC3oqIainNHEAB6Ogk4CR8KzkEv.GLpuAE3cT.ah5fHY4HAZ.14IhkJxu7FUxuCl4w45oxbIp3vMgOkXCbBEiOJ7yfq0xQ01xq7eY5zOXe3CjjYEmCBIfUo6Wjk01QPNgk3ZA5hFrbJp3x6UAK5DGtlj1uJbX7lkHu51wOKsenQKN6zpCO3


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                             -123.095815116Longitude:
                                             47.245547635999998Latitude:
                                             Construction SW GPDate Interaction 3:
                                             2010-08-03 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             Not reportedProgram ID:
                                             Mason County Garbage & RecyclingFacility Alt.:
                                             PARISProgram Data:
                                             WATQUALEcology Program:
                                             CONSTSWGPInteraction 2:
                                             AInteraction 1:
                                             93945Interaction:

                                             -123.095815116Longitude:
                                             47.245547635999998Latitude:
                                             Energy RecoveryDate Interaction 3:
                                             1900-01-01 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             Not reportedProgram ID:
                                             Mason County Garbage & RecyclingFacility Alt.:
                                             SWFDProgram Data:
                                             SOLIDWASTEEcology Program:
                                             RECOVERYInteraction 2:
                                             AInteraction 1:
                                             15626Interaction:

                              4865154Facility Id:
                              MASON COUNTY GARBAGE & RECYCLINGFacility Name:

ALLSITES:

                    -123.09583Longitude:
                    47.2455532Latitude:
                    Not reportedWebsite:
                    NoOpen to Public Flag:

MASON COUNTY GARBAGE & RECYCLING  (Continued) S108108173

SOUTHWEST REGIONAL OFFICERegion Decode:
1185EDR Link ID:
SWRegion:
2Rank:
1185FSID Number:
Cleanup StartedFacility Status:
Hazardous Sites ListFacility Type:
Not reportededr_zip:
MASONedr_fcnty:
Not reportededr_fzip:
WAedr_fstat:
SHELTON, WACity,State,Zip:
Not reportedAddress:
GOOSE LAKEName:

HSL:

7046 ft. Site 1 of 3 in cluster Z
1.334 mi. WA ALLSITES

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
238 ft.

 

> 1 WA BROWNFIELDSSHELTON, WA  98584
SSW WA CSCSLNW OF SR 101    N/A
Z125 WA HSLGOOSE LAKE 1007080849

TC5712009.2s   Page 355



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

          2Rank Status:
          Not reportedBrownfield Status:
          47.23176 / -123.13458Lat/Long:
          SouthwestRegion:
          1185Facility ID:

          SouthwestResponsible Unit:
          Not reportedBedrock:
          Not reportedAir:
          Confirmed Above Cleanup LevelSediment:
          SuspectedSoil:
          SuspectedSurface Water:
          Confirmed Above Cleanup LevelGround Water:
          Metals Priority PollutantsContaminant Name:
          Not reportedPSI?:
          Cleanup StartedSite Status:
          2537Clean Up Siteid:
          2Rank Status:
          Not reportedBrownfield Status:
          47.23176 / -123.13458Lat/Long:
          SouthwestRegion:
          1185Facility ID:

          SouthwestResponsible Unit:
          Not reportedBedrock:
          Not reportedAir:
          Confirmed Above Cleanup LevelSediment:
          Confirmed Above Cleanup LevelSoil:
          Not reportedSurface Water:
          Not reportedGround Water:
          Dioxin/Dibenzofuran CompoundsContaminant Name:
          Not reportedPSI?:
          Cleanup StartedSite Status:
          2537Clean Up Siteid:
          2Rank Status:
          Not reportedBrownfield Status:
          47.23176 / -123.13458Lat/Long:
          SouthwestRegion:
          1185Facility ID:

          SouthwestResponsible Unit:
          Not reportedBedrock:
          Not reportedAir:
          Confirmed Above Cleanup LevelSediment:
          Not reportedSoil:
          Not reportedSurface Water:
          Not reportedGround Water:
          Conventional Contaminants, InorganicContaminant Name:
          Not reportedPSI?:
          Cleanup StartedSite Status:
          2537Clean Up Siteid:
          2Rank Status:
          Not reportedBrownfield Status:
          47.23176 / -123.13458Lat/Long:
          SouthwestRegion:
          1185Facility ID:

CSCSL:

GOOSE LAKE  (Continued) 1007080849

TC5712009.2s   Page 356



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    Not reportedBedrock:
                    Not reportedAir:
                    Confirmed Above Cleanup LevelsSediment:
                    Confirmed Above Cleanup LevelsSoil:
                    Not reportedSurface Water:
                    Not reportedGround Water:
                    -123.13458Longitude:
                    47.23176Latitude:
                    NoHabitat Restoration:
                    $200,000.00Public Funding Amt:
                    Dioxin/Dibenzofuran CompoundsContaminant Type:
                    69Acreage:
                    SouthwestResponsible Section:
                    Groven, ConnieISIS User Display Name:
                    Cleanup StartedFacility Status:
                    2537Cleanup Site Id:
                    2Rank:
                    1185Facilty ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    NW OF SR 101Address:
                    GOOSE LAKEName:

                    Not reportedBedrock:
                    Not reportedAir:
                    Confirmed Above Cleanup LevelsSediment:
                    Not reportedSoil:
                    Not reportedSurface Water:
                    Not reportedGround Water:
                    -123.13458Longitude:
                    47.23176Latitude:
                    NoHabitat Restoration:
                    $200,000.00Public Funding Amt:
                    Conventional Contaminants, InorganicContaminant Type:
                    69Acreage:
                    SouthwestResponsible Section:
                    Groven, ConnieISIS User Display Name:
                    Cleanup StartedFacility Status:
                    2537Cleanup Site Id:
                    2Rank:
                    1185Facilty ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    NW OF SR 101Address:
                    GOOSE LAKEName:

BROWNFIELDS:

          SouthwestResponsible Unit:
          Not reportedBedrock:
          Not reportedAir:
          Confirmed Above Cleanup LevelSediment:
          Not reportedSoil:
          Not reportedSurface Water:
          SuspectedGround Water:
          Polychlorinated biPhenyls (PCB)Contaminant Name:
          Not reportedPSI?:
          Cleanup StartedSite Status:
          2537Clean Up Siteid:

GOOSE LAKE  (Continued) 1007080849

TC5712009.2s   Page 357



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                             SedimentsDate Interaction 3:
                                             1900-01-01 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             Not reportedProgram ID:
                                             GOOSE LAKEFacility Alt.:
                                             ISISProgram Data:
                                             TOXICSEcology Program:
                                             SEDIMENTInteraction 2:
                                             AInteraction 1:
                                             2320Interaction:

                              1185Facility Id:
                              GOOSE LAKEFacility Name:

ALLSITES:

                    Not reportedBedrock:
                    Not reportedAir:
                    Confirmed Above Cleanup LevelsSediment:
                    Not reportedSoil:
                    Not reportedSurface Water:
                    SuspectedGround Water:
                    -123.13458Longitude:
                    47.23176Latitude:
                    NoHabitat Restoration:
                    $200,000.00Public Funding Amt:
                    Polychlorinated biPhenyls (PCB)Contaminant Type:
                    69Acreage:
                    SouthwestResponsible Section:
                    Groven, ConnieISIS User Display Name:
                    Cleanup StartedFacility Status:
                    2537Cleanup Site Id:
                    2Rank:
                    1185Facilty ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    NW OF SR 101Address:
                    GOOSE LAKEName:

                    Not reportedBedrock:
                    Not reportedAir:
                    Confirmed Above Cleanup LevelsSediment:
                    SuspectedSoil:
                    SuspectedSurface Water:
                    Confirmed Above Cleanup LevelsGround Water:
                    -123.13458Longitude:
                    47.23176Latitude:
                    NoHabitat Restoration:
                    $200,000.00Public Funding Amt:
                    Metals Priority PollutantsContaminant Type:
                    69Acreage:
                    SouthwestResponsible Section:
                    Groven, ConnieISIS User Display Name:
                    Cleanup StartedFacility Status:
                    2537Cleanup Site Id:
                    2Rank:
                    1185Facilty ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    NW OF SR 101Address:
                    GOOSE LAKEName:

GOOSE LAKE  (Continued) 1007080849

TC5712009.2s   Page 358



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                             -123.134565069Longitude:
                                             47.23175449Latitude:
                                             State Cleanup SiteDate Interaction 3:
                                             1900-01-01 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             Not reportedProgram ID:
                                             GOOSE LAKEFacility Alt.:
                                             ISISProgram Data:
                                             TOXICSEcology Program:
                                             SCSInteraction 2:
                                             AInteraction 1:
                                             2319Interaction:

                                             -123.134565069Longitude:
                                             47.23175449Latitude:

GOOSE LAKE  (Continued) 1007080849

                              Not reportedResp Party Name:
                              Not reportedCause Type:
                              Not reportedCause:
                              Not reportedResp Party Contact:
                              Not reportedRecovered Quantity:
                              Not reportedVessel Facility Name2:
                              Not reportedSource:
                              Not reportedSource Type:
                              Not reportedLongitude:
                              Not reportedLatitude:
                              Not reportedIncident Category:
                              Not reportedIncident Category Type:
                              Not reportedIncident Date:
                              Not reportedContact Name:
                              09/28/2011Date Received:
                              GALLONMaterial Units:
                              Not reportedMaterial Qty:
                              PETROLEUM - MINERAL OILMaterial Desc:
                              SOILMedium:
                              629484Facility ID:
                              SHELTON, WACity,State,Zip:
                              E 250 HIAWATHA BLVDAddress:
                              Not reportedName:

SPILLS:

7066 ft.
1.338 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
241 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  
SE E 250 HIAWATHA BLVD    N/A
126 WA SPILLS S111414380

TC5712009.2s   Page 359



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        4/1/1980 5:00:00 AMFinish Date:
                                        1980-04-01 05:00:00Start Date:
                                        1SEQ:
                                        SIAction Name:
                                        SIAction Code:
                                        00OU:
                                        NFF:
                                        NNPL:
                                        GOOSE LAKESite Name:
                                        WAD980723159EPA ID:
                                        1000957Site ID:
                                        10Region:

                                        EPA PerfCurrent Action Lead:
                                        LQual:
                                        9/18/2000 4:00:00 AMFinish Date:
                                        1999-06-30 04:00:00Start Date:
                                        1SEQ:
                                        SITE REASSAction Name:
                                        OOAction Code:
                                        00OU:
                                        NFF:
                                        NNPL:
                                        GOOSE LAKESite Name:
                                        WAD980723159EPA ID:
                                        1000957Site ID:
                                        10Region:

                                        EPA PerfCurrent Action Lead:
                                        Not reportedQual:
                                        10/1/1979 4:00:00 AMFinish Date:
                                        1979-10-01 04:00:00Start Date:
                                        1SEQ:
                                        DISCVRYAction Name:
                                        DSAction Code:
                                        00OU:
                                        NFF:
                                        NNPL:
                                        GOOSE LAKESite Name:
                                        WAD980723159EPA ID:
                                        1000957Site ID:
                                        10Region:

SEMS Detail:

                         Other Cleanup Activity: State-Lead CleanupNon NPL Status:
                         Not on the NPLNPL:
                         NFF:
                         Not reportedLongitude:
                         Not reportedLatitude:
                         53045FIPS Code:
                         02Cong District:
                         WAD980723159EPA ID:
                         1000957Site ID:

SEMS:

7082 ft. Site 2 of 3 in cluster Z
1.341 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
237 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
SSW NW OF SHELTON OFF HWY 101 WAD980723159
Z127 SEMSGOOSE LAKE 1000379076

TC5712009.2s   Page 360



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        St PerfCurrent Action Lead:
                                        LQual:
                                        9/30/1988 4:00:00 AMFinish Date:
                                        1987-10-27 05:00:00Start Date:
                                        2SEQ:
                                        SIAction Name:
                                        SIAction Code:
                                        00OU:
                                        NFF:
                                        NNPL:
                                        GOOSE LAKESite Name:
                                        WAD980723159EPA ID:
                                        1000957Site ID:
                                        10Region:

                                        St PerfCurrent Action Lead:
                                        LQual:
                                        Not reportedFinish Date:
                                        2000-12-13 05:00:00Start Date:
                                        1SEQ:
                                        OTHR CLEANUPAction Name:
                                        VAAction Code:
                                        00OU:
                                        NFF:
                                        NNPL:
                                        GOOSE LAKESite Name:
                                        WAD980723159EPA ID:
                                        1000957Site ID:
                                        10Region:

                                        St PerfCurrent Action Lead:
                                        LQual:
                                        8/11/1986 4:00:00 AMFinish Date:
                                        1985-08-26 05:00:00Start Date:
                                        1SEQ:
                                        PAAction Name:
                                        PAAction Code:
                                        00OU:
                                        NFF:
                                        NNPL:
                                        GOOSE LAKESite Name:
                                        WAD980723159EPA ID:
                                        1000957Site ID:
                                        10Region:

                                        St PerfCurrent Action Lead:
                                        HQual:

GOOSE LAKE  (Continued) 1000379076

TC5712009.2s   Page 361



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

SUPERFUND (NON-NPL)

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110009314410Registry ID:

FINDS:

7083 ft. Site 3 of 3 in cluster Z
1.341 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
237 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
SSW NW OF SHELTON OFF HWY 101    N/A
Z128 FINDSGOOSE LAKE 1016278734

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

OSHA ESTABLISHMENT
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110070309097Registry ID:

FINDS:

7090 ft.
1.343 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
247 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
ESE 822 E HIAWATHA BLVD    N/A
129 FINDSWA317948377 - OLYMPIC MOUNTAIN MILLWORK LLC 1024395989

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110015485795Registry ID:

FINDS:

7118 ft. Site 1 of 3 in cluster AA
1.348 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
224 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
South 3001 OLYMPIC HWY N    N/A
AA130 FINDSBURGERMASTER SHELL FOOD MART 1007071959

TC5712009.2s   Page 362

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=4ze4K8z2UepE2LtKVX8hO9mu2mGU5H3trpaBEpn2fQLzPtqy3piVjAXDj3cFh9EOnOAfFmmPu8O2wwmxOGnu28x5N8HYa4.BzIqerU25RKh385W8bY2M.Ut22sOpZOENQ9chLnPtIT3feVBBXKR32yhpiOv83uDmvuuB.BX.mT4GYU4fRzVEePK3S3KO.8lg2uo2cqUKN7K0pzeEoC9LmLR0tVF3yHVGXXeO4amhNDOAm2GRmijuQ52SOmjIGHeBmQ5S2H2r194ttArsX4zyafHB2cuGGpVFnSn4mxzNNegZ3NNKKM8T72SM2EjUus37spAtEzC2TgLpNt.S3UfVTcX698wXhUzOuf4iam8tu8i9VqmUEGZ6AbO5ahHKG90StJHrkt5ZBa3OBsV6zgpr7nAs2
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=4ze4K8z2UepE2LtKVX8hO9mu2mGU5H3trpaBEpn2fQLzPtqy3piVjAXDj3cFh9EOnOAfFmmPu8O2wwmxOGnu28x5N8HYa4.BzIqerU25RKh385W8bY2M.Ut22sOpZOENQ9chLnPtIT3feVBBXKR32yhpiOv83uDmvuuB.BX.mT4GYU4fRzVEePK3S3KO.8lg2uo2cqUKN7K0pzeEoC9LmLR0tVF3yHVGXXeO4amhNDOAm2GRmijuQ52SOmjIGHeBmQ5S2H2r194ttArsX4zyafHB2cuGGpVFnSn4mxzNNegZ3NNKKM8T72SM2EjUus37spAtEzC2TgLpNt.S3UfVTcX698wXhUzOuf4iam8tu8i9VqmUEGZ6AbO5ahHKG90StJHrkt5ZBa3OBsV6zgpr7nAs2
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=4ze4K8z2UepE2LtKVX8hO9mu2mGU5H3trpaBEpn2fQLzPtqy3piVjAXDj3cFh9EOnOAfFmmPu8O2wwmxOGnu28x5N8HYa4.BzIqerU25RKh385W8bY2M.Ut22sOpZOENQ9chLnPtIT3feVBBXKR32yhpiOv83uDmvuuB.BX.mT4GYU4fRzVEePK3S3KO.8lg2uo2cqUKN7K0pzeEoC9LmLR0tVF3yHVGXXeO4amhNDOAm2GRmijuQ52SOmjIGHeBmQ5S2H2r194ttArsX4zyafHB2cuGGpVFnSn4mxzNNegZ3NNKKM8T72SM2EjUus37spAtEzC2TgLpNt.S4UfVTcX696wXhUzOuf5iam8tu8iBVqmUEGZ67bO5ahHKGB0StJHrktAZBa3OBsVBzgpr7nAs2
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=4ze4K8z2UepE2LtKVX8hO9mu2mGU5H3trpaBEpn2fQLzPtqy3piVjAXDj3cFh9EOnOAfFmmPu8O2wwmxOGnu28x5N8HYa4.BzIqerU25RKh385W8bY2M.Ut22sOpZOENQ9chLnPtIT3feVBBXKR32yhpiOv83uDmvuuB.BX.mT4GYU4fRzVEePK3S3KO.8lg2uo2cqUKN7K0pzeEoC9LmLR0tVF3yHVGXXeO4amhNDOAm2GRmijuQ52SOmjIGHeBmQ5S2H2r194ttArsX4zyafHB2cuGGpVFnSn4mxzNNegZ3NNKKM8T72SM2EjUus37spAtEzC2TgLpNt.S4UfVTcX696wXhUzOuf5iam8tu8iBVqmUEGZ67bO5ahHKGB0StJHrktAZBa3OBsVBzgpr7nAs2


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

BURGERMASTER SHELL FOOD MART  (Continued) 1007071959

                                                  476293DOE Site ID:
                                                  SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                  3001 OLYMPIC HWY NAddress:
                                                  DAVID M BLAINName:

WA Financial Assurance 1:

                              Not reportedResp Party Name:
                              Not reportedCause Type:
                              Not reportedCause:
                              Not reportedResp Party Contact:
                              Not reportedRecovered Quantity:
                              Not reportedVessel Facility Name2:
                              Not reportedSource:
                              Not reportedSource Type:
                              Not reportedLongitude:
                              Not reportedLatitude:
                              Not reportedIncident Category:
                              Not reportedIncident Category Type:
                              Not reportedIncident Date:
                              Not reportedContact Name:
                              10/21/2009Date Received:
                              Not reportedMaterial Units:
                              Not reportedMaterial Qty:
                              PETROLEUM - MINERAL OILMaterial Desc:
                              SOILMedium:
                              616062Facility ID:
                              SHELTON, WACity,State,Zip:
                              3001 OLYMPIC HWY NAddress:
                              Not reportedName:

SPILLS:

                                             -123.121673508Longitude:
                                             47.224109403Latitude:
                                             Underground Storage TankDate Interaction 3:
                                             1998-10-16 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             476293Program ID:
                                             DAVID M BLAINFacility Alt.:
                                             USTProgram Data:
                                             TOXICSEcology Program:
                                             USTInteraction 2:
                                             AInteraction 1:
                                             40649Interaction:

                              36446543Facility Id:
                              BURGERMASTER SHELL FOOD MARTFacility Name:

ALLSITES:

7118 ft. Site 2 of 3 in cluster AA
1.348 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
224 ft.

 

> 1 WA Financial AssuranceSHELTON, WA  98584
South WA SPILLS3001 OLYMPIC HWY N    N/A
AA131 WA ALLSITESBURGERMASTER SHELL FOOD MART S108022203

TC5712009.2s   Page 363

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=4ze4K8z2UepE2LtKVX8hO9mu2mGU5H3trpaBEpn2fQLzPtqy3piVjAXDj3cFh9EOnOAfFmmPu8O2wwmxOGnu28x5N8HYa4.BzIqerU25RKh385W8bY2M.Ut22sOpZOENQ9chLnPtIT3feVBBXKR32yhpiOv83uDmvuuB.BX.mT4GYU4fRzVEePK3S3KO.8lg2uo2cqUKN7K0pzeEoC9LmLR0tVF3yHVGXXeO4amhNDOAm2GRmijuQ52SOmjIGHeBmQ5S2H2r194ttArsX4zyafHB2cuGGpVFnSn4mxzNNegZ3NNKKM8T72SM2EjUus37spAtEzC2TgLpNt.S2UfVTcX699wXhUzOuf2iam8tu8i9VqmUEGZ63bO5ahHKGB0StJHrkt7ZBa3OBsVBzgpr7nAs2
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=4ze4K8z2UepE2LtKVX8hO9mu2mGU5H3trpaBEpn2fQLzPtqy3piVjAXDj3cFh9EOnOAfFmmPu8O2wwmxOGnu28x5N8HYa4.BzIqerU25RKh385W8bY2M.Ut22sOpZOENQ9chLnPtIT3feVBBXKR32yhpiOv83uDmvuuB.BX.mT4GYU4fRzVEePK3S3KO.8lg2uo2cqUKN7K0pzeEoC9LmLR0tVF3yHVGXXeO4amhNDOAm2GRmijuQ52SOmjIGHeBmQ5S2H2r194ttArsX4zyafHB2cuGGpVFnSn4mxzNNegZ3NNKKM8T72SM2EjUus37spAtEzC2TgLpNt.S2UfVTcX699wXhUzOuf2iam8tu8i9VqmUEGZ63bO5ahHKGB0StJHrkt7ZBa3OBsVBzgpr7nAs2


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                  -123.12168714Longitude:
                                                  47.224115885Latitude:
                                                  Not reportedRetroactive Date:
                                                  Not reportedProof of Responsibility Document Flag:
                                                  Not reportedCompliance Method:
                                                  Not reportedLiability Limit Type:
                                                  10/28/2016Effective Date:
                                                  WA629405-12Policy Number:
                                                  Not reportedAddress 2:
                                                  10/28/2017Expiration Date:
                                                  11/04/2016Inception Date:
                                                  COLONY INSURANCE COMPANYFinancial Resp Type:
                                                  476293DOE Site ID:
                                                  SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                  3001 OLYMPIC HWY NAddress:
                                                  DAVID M BLAINName:

                                                  -123.12168714Longitude:
                                                  47.224115885Latitude:
                                                  Not reportedRetroactive Date:
                                                  Not reportedProof of Responsibility Document Flag:
                                                  Not reportedCompliance Method:
                                                  Not reportedLiability Limit Type:
                                                  09/27/2015Effective Date:
                                                  WA629405-16Policy Number:
                                                  Not reportedAddress 2:
                                                  10/28/2016Expiration Date:
                                                  09/23/2015Inception Date:
                                                  COLONY INSURANCE COMPANYFinancial Resp Type:

BURGERMASTER SHELL FOOD MART  (Continued) S108022203

                         Not PerformedTank Tightness Test:
                         Double Wall TankTank Construction:
                         Steel Clad with Corrosion Resistant CompositeTank Material:
                         Ball Float Valve (vent line)Tank Overfill Prevention:
                         Spill Bucket/Spill BoxTank Spill Prevention:
                         10/16/1998Tank Upgrade Date:
                         04/30/2017Tank Permit Expiration Date:
                         20,000 to 29,999 GallonsCapacity Range:
                         Not reportedTank Closure Date:
                         00/16/1998Tank Install Date:
                         12/10/1999Tank Status Date:
                         OperationalTank Status:
                         A4519Tag Number:
                         1Tank Name:

                         -123.12168714173799Decimal Longitude:
                         47.224115884980598Decimal Latitude:
                         Not reportedPhone Number:
                         Not reportedUBI:
                         476293Site Id:
                         36446543Facility ID:

UST:

7118 ft. Site 3 of 3 in cluster AA
1.348 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
224 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
South 3001 OLYMPIC HWY N    N/A
AA132 WA USTDAVID M BLAIN U003402701

TC5712009.2s   Page 364



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                         Not reportedDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Pressurized SystemPipe Pumping System:
                         Corrosion ResistantPipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedPipe Second Release Detection:
                         Automatic Line Leak Detector (ALLD)Pipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Double Wall PipePipe Construction:
                         Flexible PipingPipe Material:
                         Not reportedTank SFC Type:
                         Automatic Tank GaugingTank Release Detection:
                         Not reportedTank Manifold:
                         Corrosion ResistantTank Corrosion Protection:

DAVID M BLAIN  (Continued) U003402701

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110067121126Registry ID:

FINDS:

7173 ft. Site 1 of 9 in cluster AB
1.359 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
301 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
West 410 W BUSINESS PARK RD    N/A
AB133 FINDSSHELTON MUNICIPAL AIRPORT 1023392332

          Not reportedAir:
          Not reportedSediment:
          SuspectedSoil:
          Not reportedSurface Water:
          Not reportedGround Water:
          Petroleum-OtherContaminant Name:
          Not reportedPSI?:
          Construction Complete-Performance MonitoringSite Status:
          12954Clean Up Siteid:
          NRank Status:
          Not reportedBrownfield Status:
          47.25026 / -123.15105Lat/Long:
          SouthwestRegion:
          3018Facility ID:

CSCSL:

7173 ft. Site 2 of 9 in cluster AB
1.359 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
301 ft.

 

> 1 WA ASBESTOSSHELTON, WA  98584
West WA ALLSITES410 W BUSINESS PARK RD    N/A
AB134 WA CSCSLSHELTON MUNICIPAL AIRPORT S118493971

TC5712009.2s   Page 365

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=47g4727nqg5C2bz7cl2p39u0nLoqa734P5qpCB42I4bmvz0e3ZAcB6l623GrpyI34bAAAul.0oK22UL8HoCT2nyaYt7Ui4i27mWg8k25H74X2qn8wnnMKqsL26y5s5C9j9dDbhEzrP3MRcOElRy3QWpYH3eg3Buuta05HBHbLIeonF49T7TBgQc3Pr7W62.n2.2nZbqCi7QW59DC9M9.nboDz7w3bRc0BlnM4E6pxk3ah2HYuUv0eD2eILAFoWaBScae57ax1UD4eGP8Z4.XqSupF3u5gBhG4gd4mn72fguL3nb7cS2Xv2XWnz3qIM3lF5GvChy2fybTYz8y4yocaIlmy5TBp5432Y52UutQ0OkBU4Lcso544fWa4l7al5hf4ySPpK5mrqVUpj244lBUU4fV2
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=47g4727nqg5C2bz7cl2p39u0nLoqa734P5qpCB42I4bmvz0e3ZAcB6l623GrpyI34bAAAul.0oK22UL8HoCT2nyaYt7Ui4i27mWg8k25H74X2qn8wnnMKqsL26y5s5C9j9dDbhEzrP3MRcOElRy3QWpYH3eg3Buuta05HBHbLIeonF49T7TBgQc3Pr7W62.n2.2nZbqCi7QW59DC9M9.nboDz7w3bRc0BlnM4E6pxk3ah2HYuUv0eD2eILAFoWaBScae57ax1UD4eGP8Z4.XqSupF3u5gBhG4gd4mn72fguL3nb7cS2Xv2XWnz3qIM3lF5GvChy2fybTYz8y4yocaIlmy5TBp5432Y52UutQ0OkBU4Lcso544fWa4l7al5hf4ySPpK5mrqVUpj244lBUU4fV2


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        360-426-1151Property Owner Phone:
                                        98584Property Owner Zip4:
                                        WAProperty Owner State:
                                        SheltonProperty Owner City:
                                        21 W Sanderson WayProperty Owner Address:
                                        Port of SheltonProperty Owner Company:
                                        Brandon PalmerProperty Owner Agent:
                                        John Dobson, Exec DirProperty Owner Name:
                                        brandonp@portofshelton.comProject Form Email:
                                        Not reportedJob Site CAS:
                                        360-426-1151Phone:
                                        1359Contractor ID:
                                        Not reportedSaturday:
                                        1Friday:
                                        1Thursday:
                                        1Wednesday:
                                        1Tuesday:
                                        1Monday:
                                        Not reportedSunday:
                                        5:00 PMSite Hours End:
                                        8:00 AMSite Hours Start:
                                        Not reportedEmergency:
                                        Not reportedOff Hold:
                                        Not reportedOn Hold:
                                        Not reportedAmended:
                                        1Initial:
                                        09/01/2014Completion Date:
                                        03/29/2014Start Date:
                                        03/19/2014Notice Date:
                                        82858##1359InHou989683Form ID:
                                        0Parent ID:
                                        Office SpaceFacility Type:
                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                        410 W BUSINESS PARK RDAddress:
                                        BUILDING #92Name:

ASBESTOS:

                                             -123.151034643Longitude:
                                             47.250255615Latitude:
                                             Formerly Used Defense SitDate Interaction 3:
                                             1996-02-23 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             Not reportedProgram ID:
                                             Shelton Municipal AirportFacility Alt.:
                                             ISISProgram Data:
                                             TOXICSEcology Program:
                                             FUDSInteraction 2:
                                             AInteraction 1:
                                             116112Interaction:

                              3018Facility Id:
                              SHELTON MUNICIPAL AIRPORTFacility Name:

ALLSITES:

          HeadquartersResponsible Unit:
          Not reportedBedrock:

SHELTON MUNICIPAL AIRPORT  (Continued) S118493971

TC5712009.2s   Page 366



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        64.95.183.202Submitter IP Address:
                                        2014-03-19 14:42:25Date Time Submitted:
                                        Contractor will update form at that time.
                                        Contractor to be selected after bid opening on 3/27/14. Port orComments:
                                        determined by contractorOther Resp Pro Text:
                                        1Other Resp Pro:
                                        Not reportedType C Pressure:
                                        Not reportedType C Continuous:
                                        Not reportedPAPR:
                                        Not reportedFull Face APR:
                                        Not reportedHalf Mask APR:
                                        Not reportedOther CM2 Text:
                                        Not reportedOther CM2:
                                        determined by contractorOther CM1 Text:
                                        1Other CM1:
                                        Not reportedMANUALMETHODS     :
                                        Not reportedHEPA Vacuum:
                                        Not reportedWet Methods:
                                        Not reportedWrap And Cut:
                                        Not reportedCritical Barriers:
                                        Not reportedMini Enclosure:
                                        Not reportedGlove Bag:
                                        Not reportedNeg Pres Enclosure:
                                        Not reportedOutdoors:
                                        1Indoors:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other2 Text:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other2:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other1 Text:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other1:
                                        Not reportedDuct Tape:
                                        Not reportedMudded Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedCement Asbestos Pipe:
                                        Not reportedDucting Insulation:
                                        Not reportedAir Cell Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedMag Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedQuantity Lin Ft:
                                        joint compoundSq Ft Other Text:
                                        Not reportedSq Ft Other:
                                        Not reportedRoofing:
                                        Not reportedVAT:
                                        Not reportedDuct Paper:
                                        Not reportedBoiler Insulation:
                                        Not reportedAsbestos Paper:
                                        1Sheet Vinyl:
                                        Not reportedCAB:
                                        Not reportedPopcorn Ceiling:
                                        Not reportedFireproofing:
                                        1000Quantity Sq Ft:
                                        Not reportedEncapsulated:
                                        1Removed:
                                        Not reportedFacility Maint:
                                        Not reportedFacility Repair:
                                        1Facility Demo:
                                        1Facility Remodel:
                                        1800 sq ftFacility Size:
                                        1940’sFacility Age:
                                        WWII OfficesJob Site Room:

SHELTON MUNICIPAL AIRPORT  (Continued) S118493971

TC5712009.2s   Page 367



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        1Tuesday:
                                        1Monday:
                                        Not reportedSunday:
                                        3:30 PMSite Hours End:
                                        8:30 AMSite Hours Start:
                                        Not reportedEmergency:
                                        Not reportedOff Hold:
                                        Not reportedOn Hold:
                                        Not reportedAmended:
                                        1Initial:
                                        04/30/2014Completion Date:
                                        04/14/2014Start Date:
                                        04/04/2014Notice Date:
                                        83432##1532TACOM643230Form ID:
                                        0Parent ID:
                                        Commercial buildingFacility Type:
                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                        410 W BUSINESS PARK RDAddress:
                                        Not reportedName:

                                        Added record for tracking projects conducted by facility staffContractor Memo:
                                        Not reportedContractor Mail Zip:
                                        WAContractor Mail State:
                                        Not reportedContractor Mail City:
                                        See facility ownerContractor Mail Street Address:
                                        Not reportedContractor Web Address:
                                        Not reportedContractor Email:
                                        Not reportedContractor Phone:
                                        Not reportedContractor Zip:
                                        WAContractor State:
                                        Not reportedContractor City:
                                        See facility ownerContractor Street Address:
                                        Not reportedContractor Cnty Code:
                                        Not reportedContractor Suspended Date:
                                        05/06/2007Contractor Exp Date:
                                        02/21/2007Contractor Renewal Letter Date:
                                        05/07/2006Contractor Effective Date:
                                        05/07/2002Contractor Original Date:
                                        Not reportedContractor Cert Prn Date:
                                        Not reportedContact Fax:
                                        0Contact Phone:
                                        See facility ownerContact Name:
                                        InactiveContractor Status:
                                        In House WorkContractor Name:
                                        0Contractor Cris Num:
                                        MContractor Priority:
                                        0Contractor UBI:
                                        1359Contractor ID:

Contractor:

                                        Not reportedCertificate Status:
                                        Not reportedSupervisor Phone:
                                        Not reportedSupervisor:
                                        Not reportedProject Type:
                                        Not reportedNotice type:
                                        Not reportedUBI:
                                        Not reportedRegion:

SHELTON MUNICIPAL AIRPORT  (Continued) S118493971

TC5712009.2s   Page 368



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        1HEPA Vacuum:
                                        1Wet Methods:
                                        Not reportedWrap And Cut:
                                        1Critical Barriers:
                                        Not reportedMini Enclosure:
                                        Not reportedGlove Bag:
                                        1Neg Pres Enclosure:
                                        Not reportedOutdoors:
                                        1Indoors:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other2 Text:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other2:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other1 Text:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other1:
                                        Not reportedDuct Tape:
                                        Not reportedMudded Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedCement Asbestos Pipe:
                                        Not reportedDucting Insulation:
                                        Not reportedAir Cell Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedMag Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedQuantity Lin Ft:
                                        drywallSq Ft Other Text:
                                        1Sq Ft Other:
                                        Not reportedRoofing:
                                        Not reportedVAT:
                                        Not reportedDuct Paper:
                                        Not reportedBoiler Insulation:
                                        Not reportedAsbestos Paper:
                                        1Sheet Vinyl:
                                        Not reportedCAB:
                                        Not reportedPopcorn Ceiling:
                                        Not reportedFireproofing:
                                        380Quantity Sq Ft:
                                        Not reportedEncapsulated:
                                        1Removed:
                                        Not reportedFacility Maint:
                                        1Facility Repair:
                                        Not reportedFacility Demo:
                                        Not reportedFacility Remodel:
                                        1800Facility Size:
                                        1970Facility Age:
                                        Not reportedJob Site Room:
                                        360-426-1151Property Owner Phone:
                                        98584Property Owner Zip4:
                                        WAProperty Owner State:
                                        SheltonProperty Owner City:
                                        21 W Sanderson WAyProperty Owner Address:
                                        Tacoma Abatement Company,LLCProperty Owner Company:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner Agent:
                                        Port of SheltonProperty Owner Name:
                                        pculver@tacomaabatement.comProject Form Email:
                                        Ivan GuzmanJob Site CAS:
                                        2538305945Phone:
                                        1532Contractor ID:
                                        Not reportedSaturday:
                                        1Friday:
                                        1Thursday:
                                        1Wednesday:

SHELTON MUNICIPAL AIRPORT  (Continued) S118493971

TC5712009.2s   Page 369



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        Commercial buildingFacility Type:
                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                        410 W BUSINESS PARK RDAddress:
                                        Not reportedName:

                                        Not reportedContractor Memo:
                                        98409Contractor Mail Zip:
                                        WAContractor Mail State:
                                        TACOMAContractor Mail City:
                                        5111 S BURLINGTON WAYContractor Mail Street Address:
                                        www.tacomaabatement.comContractor Web Address:
                                        info@tacomaabatement.comContractor Email:
                                        2538305945Contractor Phone:
                                        98409Contractor Zip:
                                        WAContractor State:
                                        TACOMAContractor City:
                                        5111 S BURLINGTON WAYContractor Street Address:
                                        27Contractor Cnty Code:
                                        Not reportedContractor Suspended Date:
                                        10/05/2017Contractor Exp Date:
                                        07/19/2016Contractor Renewal Letter Date:
                                        10/17/2011Contractor Effective Date:
                                        10/17/2011Contractor Original Date:
                                        2016-10-06 00:00:00Contractor Cert Prn Date:
                                        2532760267Contact Fax:
                                        2538305945Contact Phone:
                                        Adriana HeadContact Name:
                                        ActiveContractor Status:
                                        TACOMA ABATEMENT CO LLCContractor Name:
                                        TACOMAC894PEContractor Cris Num:
                                        MContractor Priority:
                                        603144219Contractor UBI:
                                        1532Contractor ID:

Contractor:

                                        Not reportedCertificate Status:
                                        Not reportedSupervisor Phone:
                                        Not reportedSupervisor:
                                        Not reportedProject Type:
                                        Not reportedNotice type:
                                        Not reportedUBI:
                                        Not reportedRegion:
                                        69.10.218.22Submitter IP Address:
                                        2014-04-04 08:36:59Date Time Submitted:
                                        Not reportedComments:
                                        Not reportedOther Resp Pro Text:
                                        Not reportedOther Resp Pro:
                                        Not reportedType C Pressure:
                                        Not reportedType C Continuous:
                                        Not reportedPAPR:
                                        Not reportedFull Face APR:
                                        1Half Mask APR:
                                        Not reportedOther CM2 Text:
                                        Not reportedOther CM2:
                                        Not reportedOther CM1 Text:
                                        Not reportedOther CM1:
                                        1MANUALMETHODS     :

SHELTON MUNICIPAL AIRPORT  (Continued) S118493971

TC5712009.2s   Page 370



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        Not reportedCement Asbestos Pipe:
                                        Not reportedDucting Insulation:
                                        Not reportedAir Cell Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedMag Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedQuantity Lin Ft:
                                        drywallSq Ft Other Text:
                                        1Sq Ft Other:
                                        Not reportedRoofing:
                                        Not reportedVAT:
                                        Not reportedDuct Paper:
                                        Not reportedBoiler Insulation:
                                        Not reportedAsbestos Paper:
                                        1Sheet Vinyl:
                                        Not reportedCAB:
                                        Not reportedPopcorn Ceiling:
                                        Not reportedFireproofing:
                                        380Quantity Sq Ft:
                                        Not reportedEncapsulated:
                                        1Removed:
                                        Not reportedFacility Maint:
                                        1Facility Repair:
                                        Not reportedFacility Demo:
                                        Not reportedFacility Remodel:
                                        1800Facility Size:
                                        1970Facility Age:
                                        Not reportedJob Site Room:
                                        360-426-1151Property Owner Phone:
                                        98584Property Owner Zip4:
                                        WAProperty Owner State:
                                        SheltonProperty Owner City:
                                        21 W Sanderson WAyProperty Owner Address:
                                        Tacoma Abatement Company,LLCProperty Owner Company:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner Agent:
                                        Port of SheltonProperty Owner Name:
                                        pculver@tacomaabatement.comProject Form Email:
                                        Ivan GuzmanJob Site CAS:
                                        2538305945Phone:
                                        1532Contractor ID:
                                        Not reportedSaturday:
                                        Not reportedFriday:
                                        Not reportedThursday:
                                        Not reportedWednesday:
                                        Not reportedTuesday:
                                        1Monday:
                                        Not reportedSunday:
                                        3:30 PMSite Hours End:
                                        8:30 AMSite Hours Start:
                                        Not reportedEmergency:
                                        Not reportedOff Hold:
                                        Not reportedOn Hold:
                                        1Amended:
                                        Not reportedInitial:
                                        04/21/2014Completion Date:
                                        04/14/2014Start Date:
                                        04/04/2014Notice Date:
                                        83837##1532TACOM615592Form ID:
                                        83432Parent ID:

SHELTON MUNICIPAL AIRPORT  (Continued) S118493971

TC5712009.2s   Page 371



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        WAContractor State:
                                        TACOMAContractor City:
                                        5111 S BURLINGTON WAYContractor Street Address:
                                        27Contractor Cnty Code:
                                        Not reportedContractor Suspended Date:
                                        10/05/2017Contractor Exp Date:
                                        07/19/2016Contractor Renewal Letter Date:
                                        10/17/2011Contractor Effective Date:
                                        10/17/2011Contractor Original Date:
                                        2016-10-06 00:00:00Contractor Cert Prn Date:
                                        2532760267Contact Fax:
                                        2538305945Contact Phone:
                                        Adriana HeadContact Name:
                                        ActiveContractor Status:
                                        TACOMA ABATEMENT CO LLCContractor Name:
                                        TACOMAC894PEContractor Cris Num:
                                        MContractor Priority:
                                        603144219Contractor UBI:
                                        1532Contractor ID:

Contractor:

                                        Not reportedCertificate Status:
                                        Not reportedSupervisor Phone:
                                        Not reportedSupervisor:
                                        Not reportedProject Type:
                                        Not reportedNotice type:
                                        Not reportedUBI:
                                        Not reportedRegion:
                                        69.10.218.22Submitter IP Address:
                                        2014-04-15 10:58:54Date Time Submitted:
                                        Not reportedComments:
                                        Not reportedOther Resp Pro Text:
                                        Not reportedOther Resp Pro:
                                        Not reportedType C Pressure:
                                        Not reportedType C Continuous:
                                        Not reportedPAPR:
                                        Not reportedFull Face APR:
                                        1Half Mask APR:
                                        Not reportedOther CM2 Text:
                                        Not reportedOther CM2:
                                        Not reportedOther CM1 Text:
                                        Not reportedOther CM1:
                                        1MANUALMETHODS     :
                                        1HEPA Vacuum:
                                        1Wet Methods:
                                        Not reportedWrap And Cut:
                                        1Critical Barriers:
                                        Not reportedMini Enclosure:
                                        Not reportedGlove Bag:
                                        1Neg Pres Enclosure:
                                        Not reportedOutdoors:
                                        1Indoors:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other2 Text:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other2:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other1 Text:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other1:
                                        Not reportedDuct Tape:
                                        Not reportedMudded Pipe Insulation:

SHELTON MUNICIPAL AIRPORT  (Continued) S118493971

TC5712009.2s   Page 372



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        Not reportedContractor Memo:
                                        98409Contractor Mail Zip:
                                        WAContractor Mail State:
                                        TACOMAContractor Mail City:
                                        5111 S BURLINGTON WAYContractor Mail Street Address:
                                        www.tacomaabatement.comContractor Web Address:
                                        info@tacomaabatement.comContractor Email:
                                        2538305945Contractor Phone:
                                        98409Contractor Zip:

SHELTON MUNICIPAL AIRPORT  (Continued) S118493971

                                        1Facility Demo:
                                        Not reportedFacility Remodel:
                                        UnknownFacility Size:
                                        UnknownFacility Age:
                                        Not reportedJob Site Room:
                                        360-426-1151Property Owner Phone:
                                        98584Property Owner Zip4:
                                        WAProperty Owner State:
                                        SheltonProperty Owner City:
                                        21 W. Sanderson WayProperty Owner Address:
                                        Kamin ExcavationProperty Owner Company:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner Agent:
                                        Port of SheltonProperty Owner Name:
                                        sandie@kdsenv.comProject Form Email:
                                        Chris WilliamsJob Site CAS:
                                        360-249-5540Phone:
                                        1402Contractor ID:
                                        Not reportedSaturday:
                                        Not reportedFriday:
                                        Not reportedThursday:
                                        Not reportedWednesday:
                                        1Tuesday:
                                        1Monday:
                                        Not reportedSunday:
                                        5:00 PMSite Hours End:
                                        7:00 a.m.Site Hours Start:
                                        Not reportedEmergency:
                                        Not reportedOff Hold:
                                        Not reportedOn Hold:
                                        1Amended:
                                        Not reportedInitial:
                                        11/04/2014Completion Date:
                                        11/03/2014Start Date:
                                        10/20/2014Notice Date:
                                        92683##1402KDSEn810487Form ID:
                                        92073Parent ID:
                                        CommercialFacility Type:
                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                        430 W. BUSINESS PARK LOOPAddress:
                                        Not reportedName:

ASBESTOS:

7189 ft. Site 3 of 9 in cluster AB
1.362 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
301 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
West 430 W. BUSINESS PARK LOOP    N/A
AB135 WA ASBESTOS S119169723

TC5712009.2s   Page 373



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        Not reportedSupervisor Phone:
                                        Not reportedSupervisor:
                                        Not reportedProject Type:
                                        Not reportedNotice type:
                                        Not reportedUBI:
                                        Not reportedRegion:
                                        173.160.217.169Submitter IP Address:
                                        2014-11-03 11:04:43Date Time Submitted:
                                        This project is completed. Thank youComments:
                                        Not reportedOther Resp Pro Text:
                                        Not reportedOther Resp Pro:
                                        Not reportedType C Pressure:
                                        Not reportedType C Continuous:
                                        Not reportedPAPR:
                                        Not reportedFull Face APR:
                                        1Half Mask APR:
                                        Not reportedOther CM2 Text:
                                        Not reportedOther CM2:
                                        Not reportedOther CM1 Text:
                                        Not reportedOther CM1:
                                        1MANUALMETHODS     :
                                        1HEPA Vacuum:
                                        1Wet Methods:
                                        Not reportedWrap And Cut:
                                        Not reportedCritical Barriers:
                                        Not reportedMini Enclosure:
                                        Not reportedGlove Bag:
                                        Not reportedNeg Pres Enclosure:
                                        1Outdoors:
                                        Not reportedIndoors:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other2 Text:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other2:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other1 Text:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other1:
                                        Not reportedDuct Tape:
                                        Not reportedMudded Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedCement Asbestos Pipe:
                                        Not reportedDucting Insulation:
                                        Not reportedAir Cell Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedMag Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedQuantity Lin Ft:
                                        Not reportedSq Ft Other Text:
                                        Not reportedSq Ft Other:
                                        1Roofing:
                                        Not reportedVAT:
                                        Not reportedDuct Paper:
                                        Not reportedBoiler Insulation:
                                        Not reportedAsbestos Paper:
                                        Not reportedSheet Vinyl:
                                        Not reportedCAB:
                                        Not reportedPopcorn Ceiling:
                                        Not reportedFireproofing:
                                        2400Quantity Sq Ft:
                                        Not reportedEncapsulated:
                                        1Removed:
                                        Not reportedFacility Maint:
                                        Not reportedFacility Repair:

  (Continued) S119169723

TC5712009.2s   Page 374



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        360-249-5540Phone:
                                        1402Contractor ID:
                                        Not reportedSaturday:
                                        Not reportedFriday:
                                        Not reportedThursday:
                                        Not reportedWednesday:
                                        1Tuesday:
                                        1Monday:
                                        Not reportedSunday:
                                        5:00 PMSite Hours End:
                                        7:00 a.m.Site Hours Start:
                                        Not reportedEmergency:
                                        Not reportedOff Hold:
                                        Not reportedOn Hold:
                                        Not reportedAmended:
                                        1Initial:
                                        11/04/2014Completion Date:
                                        11/03/2014Start Date:
                                        10/20/2014Notice Date:
                                        92073##1402KDSEn692847Form ID:
                                        0Parent ID:
                                        CommercialFacility Type:
                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                        430 W. BUSINESS PARK LOOPAddress:
                                        Not reportedName:

                                        email a copy once processed.Contractor Memo:
                                        98563Contractor Mail Zip:
                                        WAContractor Mail State:
                                        MONTESANOContractor Mail City:
                                        PO BOX 312Contractor Mail Street Address:
                                        www.kdsenv.comContractor Web Address:
                                        sandie@kdsenv.comContractor Email:
                                        3602495540Contractor Phone:
                                        98563Contractor Zip:
                                        WAContractor State:
                                        MONTESANOContractor City:
                                        PO BOX 312Contractor Street Address:
                                        14Contractor Cnty Code:
                                        Not reportedContractor Suspended Date:
                                        01/13/2017Contractor Exp Date:
                                        10/20/2016Contractor Renewal Letter Date:
                                        01/14/2009Contractor Effective Date:
                                        01/13/2005Contractor Original Date:
                                        2016-01-11 00:00:00Contractor Cert Prn Date:
                                        3602493475Contact Fax:
                                        3602495540Contact Phone:
                                        SANDIE PENNANTContact Name:
                                        ActiveContractor Status:
                                        K D & S Environmental IncContractor Name:
                                        KDSENEI951BLContractor Cris Num:
                                        LContractor Priority:
                                        602458724Contractor UBI:
                                        1402Contractor ID:

Contractor:

                                        Not reportedCertificate Status:

  (Continued) S119169723

TC5712009.2s   Page 375



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        1Half Mask APR:
                                        Not reportedOther CM2 Text:
                                        Not reportedOther CM2:
                                        Not reportedOther CM1 Text:
                                        Not reportedOther CM1:
                                        1MANUALMETHODS     :
                                        1HEPA Vacuum:
                                        1Wet Methods:
                                        Not reportedWrap And Cut:
                                        Not reportedCritical Barriers:
                                        Not reportedMini Enclosure:
                                        Not reportedGlove Bag:
                                        Not reportedNeg Pres Enclosure:
                                        1Outdoors:
                                        Not reportedIndoors:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other2 Text:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other2:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other1 Text:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other1:
                                        Not reportedDuct Tape:
                                        Not reportedMudded Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedCement Asbestos Pipe:
                                        Not reportedDucting Insulation:
                                        Not reportedAir Cell Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedMag Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedQuantity Lin Ft:
                                        Not reportedSq Ft Other Text:
                                        Not reportedSq Ft Other:
                                        1Roofing:
                                        Not reportedVAT:
                                        Not reportedDuct Paper:
                                        Not reportedBoiler Insulation:
                                        Not reportedAsbestos Paper:
                                        Not reportedSheet Vinyl:
                                        Not reportedCAB:
                                        Not reportedPopcorn Ceiling:
                                        Not reportedFireproofing:
                                        2400Quantity Sq Ft:
                                        Not reportedEncapsulated:
                                        1Removed:
                                        Not reportedFacility Maint:
                                        Not reportedFacility Repair:
                                        1Facility Demo:
                                        Not reportedFacility Remodel:
                                        UnknownFacility Size:
                                        UnknownFacility Age:
                                        Not reportedJob Site Room:
                                        360-426-1151Property Owner Phone:
                                        98584Property Owner Zip4:
                                        WAProperty Owner State:
                                        SheltonProperty Owner City:
                                        21 W. Sanderson WayProperty Owner Address:
                                        Kamin ExcavationProperty Owner Company:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner Agent:
                                        Port of SheltonProperty Owner Name:
                                        sandie@kdsenv.comProject Form Email:
                                        Chris WilliamsJob Site CAS:

  (Continued) S119169723

TC5712009.2s   Page 376



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        email a copy once processed.Contractor Memo:
                                        98563Contractor Mail Zip:
                                        WAContractor Mail State:
                                        MONTESANOContractor Mail City:
                                        PO BOX 312Contractor Mail Street Address:
                                        www.kdsenv.comContractor Web Address:
                                        sandie@kdsenv.comContractor Email:
                                        3602495540Contractor Phone:
                                        98563Contractor Zip:
                                        WAContractor State:
                                        MONTESANOContractor City:
                                        PO BOX 312Contractor Street Address:
                                        14Contractor Cnty Code:
                                        Not reportedContractor Suspended Date:
                                        01/13/2017Contractor Exp Date:
                                        10/20/2016Contractor Renewal Letter Date:
                                        01/14/2009Contractor Effective Date:
                                        01/13/2005Contractor Original Date:
                                        2016-01-11 00:00:00Contractor Cert Prn Date:
                                        3602493475Contact Fax:
                                        3602495540Contact Phone:
                                        SANDIE PENNANTContact Name:
                                        ActiveContractor Status:
                                        K D & S Environmental IncContractor Name:
                                        KDSENEI951BLContractor Cris Num:
                                        LContractor Priority:
                                        602458724Contractor UBI:
                                        1402Contractor ID:

Contractor:

                                        Not reportedCertificate Status:
                                        Not reportedSupervisor Phone:
                                        Not reportedSupervisor:
                                        Not reportedProject Type:
                                        Not reportedNotice type:
                                        Not reportedUBI:
                                        Not reportedRegion:
                                        173.160.217.169Submitter IP Address:
                                        2014-10-20 13:27:10Date Time Submitted:
                                        Not reportedComments:
                                        Not reportedOther Resp Pro Text:
                                        Not reportedOther Resp Pro:
                                        Not reportedType C Pressure:
                                        Not reportedType C Continuous:
                                        Not reportedPAPR:
                                        Not reportedFull Face APR:

  (Continued) S119169723

                    110011620488Registry ID:

FINDS:

7203 ft. Site 4 of 9 in cluster AB
1.364 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
302 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
West 450 W BUSINESS PARK RD    N/A
AB136 FINDSPORT OF SHELTON 1016291608

TC5712009.2s   Page 377



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

and settlements.
regions and states with cooperative agreements, enforcement actions,
Toxic Substances Control Act (TSCA). The system tracks inspections in
Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act (FIFRA) and the
NCDB (National Compliance Data Base) supports implementation of the
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

PORT OF SHELTON  (Continued) 1016291608

          UserFacility Function:
          TSCALegislation Code:
          Neutral Scheme, RegionInvestigation Reason:
          Section 6 PCB Federal ConductedInvestigation Type:
          NoViolation occurred:
          HILEMANInspector:
          Not reportedInspection Date:
          10Region:
          2000091916131 1Inspection Number:

HIST FTTS INSP:

          UserFacility Function:
          TSCALegislation Code:
          Neutral Scheme, RegionInvestigation Reason:
          Section 6 PCB Federal ConductedInvestigation Type:
          NoViolation occurred:
          HILEMANInspector:
          09/19/00Inspection Date:
          10Region:
          2000091916131 1Inspection Number:

FTTS INSP:

7203 ft. Site 5 of 9 in cluster AB
1.364 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
302 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
West HIST FTTS450 W BUSINESS PARK RD    N/A
AB137 FTTSPORT OF SHELTON 1005777392

facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110005374086Registry ID:

FINDS:

7216 ft.
1.367 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
285 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
West W 231 SANDERSON WAY    N/A
138 FINDSAERO CONTROLS INC SANDERSON WAY 1016206202

TC5712009.2s   Page 378

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=4ki4tvkXBire2sZtD.vxh9XcXQtB5T3Fyrbze2L2uhs2QZBK3J8DcW..L3uyxGMhqoACaXk6cTG2eZQKAtaV2yz5iBTRL4RNkkCiOV24dtQ2v4a8H2Xr7BNe2o4rfmeRW9fjsb3ZPo33jD7n.ZV3I3xlqhNh3SbXqkcVXBXCQ6it0V46VkR8iyu3MAtdgvGu2aFX0LBYY72WrImexX9AnsBtZj83j7Dlp.wL4rux.Gh052mgXm8cNr2NBQ7DtH2BbL5MfTe41qqFspyO64W7bGXzS0uRc2uILPw4Hckgwi973hItvXv5j2dCXHrBBM3P7rsTetG2rms8GZm03SUDEU.vH8VLxAdh9y4ruXAxcdnBTIQGXtaV3E852LTNl8rOFd7yNm2VXbR5z4aAeq28KLec2
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=4ki4tvkXBire2sZtD.vxh9XcXQtB5T3Fyrbze2L2uhs2QZBK3J8DcW..L3uyxGMhqoACaXk6cTG2eZQKAtaV2yz5iBTRL4RNkkCiOV24dtQ2v4a8H2Xr7BNe2o4rfmeRW9fjsb3ZPo33jD7n.ZV3I3xlqhNh3SbXqkcVXBXCQ6it0V46VkR8iyu3MAtdgvGu2aFX0LBYY72WrImexX9AnsBtZj83j7Dlp.wL4rux.Gh052mgXm8cNr2NBQ7DtH2BbL5MfTe41qqFspyO64W7bGXzS0uRc2uILPw4Hckgwi973hItvXv5j2dCXHrBBM3P7rsTetG2rms8GZm03SUDEU.vH8VLxAdh9y4ruXAxcdnBTIQGXtaV3E852LTNl8rOFd7yNm2VXbR5z4aAeq28KLec2


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

corrective action activities required under RCRA.
program staff to track the notification, permit, compliance, and
and treat, store, or dispose of hazardous waste. RCRAInfo allows RCRA
events and activities related to facilities that generate, transport,
Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) program through the tracking of
RCRAInfo is a national information system that supports the Resource

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water

AERO CONTROLS INC SANDERSON WAY  (Continued) 1016206202

SOUTHWEST REGIONAL OFFICERegion Decode:
189457EDR Link ID:
SWRegion:
1Rank:
189457FSID Number:
Awaiting CleanupFacility Status:
Hazardous Sites ListFacility Type:
Not reportededr_zip:
MASONedr_fcnty:
Not reportededr_fzip:
WAedr_fstat:
UPDATE, WACity,State,Zip:
Not reportedAddress:
GREEN DIAMOND RESOURCE CO SHELTON GUN &Name:

HSL:

7222 ft. Site 6 of 9 in cluster AB
1.368 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
302 ft.

 

> 1 UPDATE, WA  
West    N/A
AB139 WA HSLGREEN DIAMOND RESOURCE CO SHELTON GUN & S106967137

2006     GREEN DIAMOND RESOURCE CO SHELTON GUN &     521 W BUSINESS
PARK RD
2007     GREEN DIAMOND RESOURCE CO SHELTON GUN &     521 W BUSINESS
PARK RD
2008     GREEN DIAMOND RESOURCE CO SHELTON GUN &     521 W BUSINESS
PARK RD
2009     GREEN DIAMOND RESOURCE CO SHELTON GUN &     521 W BUSINESS
PARK RD
2010     GREEN DIAMOND RESOURCE CO SHELTON GUN &     521 W BUSINESS
PARK RD
2011     GREEN DIAMOND RESOURCE CO SHELTON GUN &     521 W BUSINESS
PARK RD
2012     GREEN DIAMOND RESOURCE CO SHELTON GUN &     521 W BUSINESS

RGA HWS:

7222 ft. Site 7 of 9 in cluster AB
1.368 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
302 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  
West 521 W BUSINESS PARK RD    N/A
AB140 WA RGA HWSGREEN DIAMOND RESOURCE CO SHELTON GUN & S115342741

TC5712009.2s   Page 379

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=4ki4tvkXBire2sZtD.vxh9XcXQtB5T3Fyrbze2L2uhs2QZBK3J8DcW..L3uyxGMhqoACaXk6cTG2eZQKAtaV2yz5iBTRL4RNkkCiOV24dtQ2v4a8H2Xr7BNe2o4rfmeRW9fjsb3ZPo33jD7n.ZV3I3xlqhNh3SbXqkcVXBXCQ6it0V46VkR8iyu3MAtdgvGu2aFX0LBYY72WrImexX9AnsBtZj83j7Dlp.wL4rux.Gh052mgXm8cNr2NBQ7DtH2BbL5MfTe41qqFspyO64W7bGXzS0uRc2uILPw4Hckgwi973hItvXv5j2dCXHrBBM3P7rsTetG2rms8GZm03SUDEU.vH8VLxAdh9y4ruXAxcdn2TIQGXtaV8E852LTNl4rOFd7yNm2VXbR5z4a4eq28KLec2
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=4ki4tvkXBire2sZtD.vxh9XcXQtB5T3Fyrbze2L2uhs2QZBK3J8DcW..L3uyxGMhqoACaXk6cTG2eZQKAtaV2yz5iBTRL4RNkkCiOV24dtQ2v4a8H2Xr7BNe2o4rfmeRW9fjsb3ZPo33jD7n.ZV3I3xlqhNh3SbXqkcVXBXCQ6it0V46VkR8iyu3MAtdgvGu2aFX0LBYY72WrImexX9AnsBtZj83j7Dlp.wL4rux.Gh052mgXm8cNr2NBQ7DtH2BbL5MfTe41qqFspyO64W7bGXzS0uRc2uILPw4Hckgwi973hItvXv5j2dCXHrBBM3P7rsTetG2rms8GZm03SUDEU.vH8VLxAdh9y4ruXAxcdn2TIQGXtaV8E852LTNl4rOFd7yNm2VXbR5z4a4eq28KLec2


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

PARK RD

GREEN DIAMOND RESOURCE CO SHELTON GUN &  (Continued) S115342741

PARK RD
2005     GREEN DIAMOND RESOURCE CO/SHELTON GUN &     521 W BUSINESS

RGA HWS:

7222 ft. Site 8 of 9 in cluster AB
1.368 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
302 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  
West 521 W BUSINESS PARK RD    N/A
AB141 WA RGA HWSGREEN DIAMOND RESOURCE CO/SHELTON GUN & S115342742

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110022929205Registry ID:

FINDS:

7222 ft. Site 9 of 9 in cluster AB
1.368 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
302 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
West 521 W BUSINESS PARK RD    N/A
AB142 FINDSGREEN DIAMOND RESOURCE CO SHELTON GUN & 1008924647

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110015930340Registry ID:

FINDS:

7255 ft. Site 1 of 2 in cluster AC
1.374 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
222 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
South 2948 OLYMPIC HWY N    N/A
AC143 FINDSSIMPSON COMMUNITY CREDIT UNION 1007144543

TC5712009.2s   Page 380

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=4ki4tvkXBire2sZtD.vxh9XcXQtB5T3Fyrbze2L2uhs2QZBK3J8DcW..L3uyxGMhqoACaXk6cTG2eZQKAtaV2yz5iBTRL4RNkkCiOV24dtQ2v4a8H2Xr7BNe2o4rfmeRW9fjsb3ZPo33jD7n.ZV3I3xlqhNh3SbXqkcVXBXCQ6it0V46VkR8iyu3MAtdgvGu2aFX0LBYY72WrImexX9AnsBtZj83j7Dlp.wL4rux.Gh052mgXm8cNr2NBQ7DtH2BbL5MfTe41qqFspyO64W7bGXzS0uRc2uILPw4Hckgwi973hItvXv5j2dCXHrBBM3P7rsTetG2rms8GZm02SUDEU.vHAVLxAdh9yBruXAxcdn4TIQGXtaV6E852LTNl8rOFd7yNm6VXbR5z4a9eq28KLec2
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=4ki4tvkXBire2sZtD.vxh9XcXQtB5T3Fyrbze2L2uhs2QZBK3J8DcW..L3uyxGMhqoACaXk6cTG2eZQKAtaV2yz5iBTRL4RNkkCiOV24dtQ2v4a8H2Xr7BNe2o4rfmeRW9fjsb3ZPo33jD7n.ZV3I3xlqhNh3SbXqkcVXBXCQ6it0V46VkR8iyu3MAtdgvGu2aFX0LBYY72WrImexX9AnsBtZj83j7Dlp.wL4rux.Gh052mgXm8cNr2NBQ7DtH2BbL5MfTe41qqFspyO64W7bGXzS0uRc2uILPw4Hckgwi973hItvXv5j2dCXHrBBM3P7rsTetG2rms8GZm02SUDEU.vHAVLxAdh9yBruXAxcdn4TIQGXtaV6E852LTNl8rOFd7yNm6VXbR5z4a9eq28KLec2
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=4Mk4goMnWk7c289gKEo6p99DnyyW4q3wW7recOb22K8pw9L.33bK3xEue3Y564Qp72ADU9EDD8C2k8yV3yTY2c.4sxqNT49iMhskfl2aUgnWopN89HnLRWsR20f7yScDJ9gl8VO9yD3k2KKrEg23gb6VPp6E3jI9KRDPoBHnyPIymG430MP4kWC3nyglmoW029Sny5Wtt7dW7yLclC9KH8Y59LL3rHK..E5J4UE6ampRT2nJ9ZLD6V25ayYAyVxBkX4YjqiA1gTw6PWe84Whr4BefyuH2Ocnb8G4GvMLEkrP3a.gjco932iMn2BWZr33U7UWc5Y2Z58nR9QY2wdKM9E5690z6mhpHs3fK9vyDtq6yWyOByaT6Ik4WPqdH7WbwHHWvD6ECrtAePb5DvOlBb9G2
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=4Mk4goMnWk7c289gKEo6p99DnyyW4q3wW7recOb22K8pw9L.33bK3xEue3Y564Qp72ADU9EDD8C2k8yV3yTY2c.4sxqNT49iMhskfl2aUgnWopN89HnLRWsR20f7yScDJ9gl8VO9yD3k2KKrEg23gb6VPp6E3jI9KRDPoBHnyPIymG430MP4kWC3nyglmoW029Sny5Wtt7dW7yLclC9KH8Y59LL3rHK..E5J4UE6ampRT2nJ9ZLD6V25ayYAyVxBkX4YjqiA1gTw6PWe84Whr4BefyuH2Ocnb8G4GvMLEkrP3a.gjco932iMn2BWZr33U7UWc5Y2Z58nR9QY2wdKM9E5690z6mhpHs3fK9vyDtq6yWyOByaT6Ik4WPqdH7WbwHHWvD6ECrtAePb5DvOlBb9G2


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                         Not reportedTank Release Detection:
                         Not reportedTank Manifold:
                         Not reportedTank Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedTank Tightness Test:
                         Not reportedTank Construction:
                         Not reportedTank Material:
                         Not reportedTank Overfill Prevention:
                         Not reportedTank Spill Prevention:
                         Not reportedTank Upgrade Date:
                         Not reportedTank Permit Expiration Date:
                         111 TO 1,100 GallonsCapacity Range:
                         08/12/2003Tank Closure Date:
                         Not reportedTank Install Date:
                         6/18/2003Tank Status Date:
                         RemovedTank Status:
                         Not reportedTag Number:
                         2Tank Name:

                         Not reportedDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Not reportedPipe Pumping System:
                         Not reportedPipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedPipe Second Release Detection:
                         Not reportedPipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Not reportedPipe Construction:
                         Not reportedPipe Material:
                         Not reportedTank SFC Type:
                         Not reportedTank Release Detection:
                         Not reportedTank Manifold:
                         Not reportedTank Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedTank Tightness Test:
                         Not reportedTank Construction:
                         Not reportedTank Material:
                         Not reportedTank Overfill Prevention:
                         Not reportedTank Spill Prevention:
                         Not reportedTank Upgrade Date:
                         Not reportedTank Permit Expiration Date:
                         111 TO 1,100 GallonsCapacity Range:
                         08/12/2003Tank Closure Date:
                         Not reportedTank Install Date:
                         6/18/2003Tank Status Date:
                         RemovedTank Status:
                         Not reportedTag Number:
                         1Tank Name:

                         -123.12738899999999Decimal Longitude:
                         47.230944000948Decimal Latitude:
                         Not reportedPhone Number:
                         Not reportedUBI:
                         618947Site Id:
                         4324447Facility ID:

UST:

7255 ft. Site 2 of 2 in cluster AC
1.374 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
222 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
South WA ALLSITES2948 OLYMPIC HWY N    N/A
AC144 WA USTSIMPSON COMMUNITY CREDIT UNION U003933232

TC5712009.2s   Page 381



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                             -123.127374069Longitude:
                                             47.23093849Latitude:
                                             Underground Storage TankDate Interaction 3:
                                             2003-06-18 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             618947Program ID:
                                             Not reportedFacility Alt.:
                                             USTProgram Data:
                                             TOXICSEcology Program:
                                             USTInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             14452Interaction:

                              4324447Facility Id:
                              SIMPSON COMMUNITY CREDIT UNIONFacility Name:

ALLSITES:

                         Not reportedDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Not reportedPipe Pumping System:
                         Not reportedPipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedPipe Second Release Detection:
                         Not reportedPipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Not reportedPipe Construction:
                         Not reportedPipe Material:
                         Not reportedTank SFC Type:

SIMPSON COMMUNITY CREDIT UNION  (Continued) U003933232

                              Not reportedResp Party Name:
                              Not reportedCause Type:
                              Not reportedCause:
                              Not reportedResp Party Contact:
                              Not reportedRecovered Quantity:
                              Not reportedVessel Facility Name2:
                              Not reportedSource:
                              Not reportedSource Type:
                              Not reportedLongitude:
                              Not reportedLatitude:
                              Not reportedIncident Category:
                              Not reportedIncident Category Type:
                              Not reportedIncident Date:
                              UNKNOWNContact Name:
                              08/20/2010Date Received:
                              GALLONMaterial Units:
                              1Material Qty:
                              PETROLEUM - MINERAL OILMaterial Desc:
                              SOILMedium:
                              621906Facility ID:
                              SHELTON, WACity,State,Zip:
                              120 BRAMBLE LANEAddress:
                              PUD #3Name:

SPILLS:

7409 ft.
1.403 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
224 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  
NE 120 BRAMBLE LANE    N/A
145 WA SPILLSPUD #3 S110628362

TC5712009.2s   Page 382



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                   http://echo.epa.gov/detailed-facility-report?fid=110005382488DFR URL:
                                   110005382488Registry ID:
                                   1016206267Envid:

ECHO:

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

HAZARDOUS WASTE BIENNIAL REPORTER

corrective action activities required under RCRA.
program staff to track the notification, permit, compliance, and
and treat, store, or dispose of hazardous waste. RCRAInfo allows RCRA
events and activities related to facilities that generate, transport,
Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) program through the tracking of
RCRAInfo is a national information system that supports the Resource

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110005382488Registry ID:

FINDS:

7413 ft. Site 1 of 2 in cluster AD
1.404 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
303 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
West ECHOW 410 BUSINESS PARK RD    N/A
AD146 FINDSSHELTON PORT BUSINESS PARK RD 1016206267

                         Not reportedTank Upgrade Date:
                         06/30/2019Tank Permit Expiration Date:
                         Not reportedCapacity Range:
                         Not reportedTank Closure Date:
                         00/26/2009Tank Install Date:
                         8/12/2009Tank Status Date:
                         OperationalTank Status:
                         A5493Tag Number:
                         DIESEL #1Tank Name:

                         -123.1508367843Decimal Longitude:
                         47.256761665295699Decimal Latitude:
                         Not reportedPhone Number:
                         Not reportedUBI:
                         619610Site Id:
                         12001Facility ID:

UST:

7424 ft. Site 1 of 7 in cluster AE
1.406 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
313 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
WNW 100 PUBLIC WORKS DR    N/A
AE147 WA USTMASON COUNTY U004139722

TC5712009.2s   Page 383

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=4Mk4goMnWk7c289gKEo6p99DnyyW4q3wW7recOb22K8pw9L.33bK3xEue3Y564Qp72ADU9EDD8C2k8yV3yTY2c.4sxqNT49iMhskfl2aUgnWopN89HnLRWsR20f7yScDJ9gl8VO9yD3k2KKrEg23gb6VPp6E3jI9KRDPoBHnyPIymG430MP4kWC3nyglmoW029Sny5Wtt7dW7yLclC9KH8Y59LL3rHK..E5J4UE6ampRT2nJ9ZLD6V25ayYAyVxBkX4YjqiA1gTw6PWe84Whr4BefyuH2Ocnb8G4GvMLEkrP3a.gjco932iMn2BWZr33U7UWc5Y2Z58nR9QY3wdKM9E5680z6mhpHs4fK9vyDtq2yWyOByaT8Ik4WPqdH4WbwHHWvD8ECrtAePb9DvOlBb9G2
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=4Mk4goMnWk7c289gKEo6p99DnyyW4q3wW7recOb22K8pw9L.33bK3xEue3Y564Qp72ADU9EDD8C2k8yV3yTY2c.4sxqNT49iMhskfl2aUgnWopN89HnLRWsR20f7yScDJ9gl8VO9yD3k2KKrEg23gb6VPp6E3jI9KRDPoBHnyPIymG430MP4kWC3nyglmoW029Sny5Wtt7dW7yLclC9KH8Y59LL3rHK..E5J4UE6ampRT2nJ9ZLD6V25ayYAyVxBkX4YjqiA1gTw6PWe84Whr4BefyuH2Ocnb8G4GvMLEkrP3a.gjco932iMn2BWZr33U7UWc5Y2Z58nR9QY3wdKM9E5680z6mhpHs4fK9vyDtq2yWyOByaT8Ik4WPqdH4WbwHHWvD8ECrtAePb9DvOlBb9G2


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                         Not reportedDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Pressurized SystemPipe Pumping System:
                         Corrosion ResistantPipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Interstitial Monitoring (or Sump Sensor)Pipe Second Release Detection:
                         Automatic Line Leak Detector (ALLD)Pipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Double Wall PipePipe Construction:
                         FiberglassPipe Material:
                         Not reportedTank SFC Type:
                         Interstitial MonitoringTank Release Detection:
                         Not reportedTank Manifold:
                         Corrosion ResistantTank Corrosion Protection:
                         Part of Automatic Tank Gauging (ATG) SystemTank Tightness Test:
                         Double Wall TankTank Construction:
                         Fiberglass Reinforced PlasticTank Material:
                         Automatic Shutoff (fill pipe)Tank Overfill Prevention:
                         Spill Bucket/Spill BoxTank Spill Prevention:
                         Not reportedTank Upgrade Date:
                         06/30/2019Tank Permit Expiration Date:
                         Not reportedCapacity Range:
                         Not reportedTank Closure Date:
                         00/26/2009Tank Install Date:
                         8/11/2009Tank Status Date:
                         OperationalTank Status:
                         A5493Tag Number:
                         UNLEAD #1Tank Name:

                         Not reportedDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Pressurized SystemPipe Pumping System:
                         Corrosion ResistantPipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Interstitial Monitoring (or Sump Sensor)Pipe Second Release Detection:
                         Automatic Line Leak Detector (ALLD)Pipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Double Wall PipePipe Construction:
                         FiberglassPipe Material:
                         Not reportedTank SFC Type:
                         Interstitial MonitoringTank Release Detection:
                         Not reportedTank Manifold:
                         Corrosion ResistantTank Corrosion Protection:
                         Part of Automatic Tank Gauging (ATG) SystemTank Tightness Test:
                         Double Wall TankTank Construction:
                         Fiberglass Reinforced PlasticTank Material:
                         Automatic Shutoff (fill pipe)Tank Overfill Prevention:
                         Spill Bucket/Spill BoxTank Spill Prevention:

MASON COUNTY  (Continued) U004139722

                    WAH000034273EPA ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    100 W PUBLIC WORKS DRFacility address:
                    MASON CNTY CENTRAL SHOPFacility name:
                    01/17/2019Date form received by agency:

RCRA-CESQG:

7424 ft. Site 2 of 7 in cluster AE
1.406 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
313 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
WNW 100 W PUBLIC WORKS DR WAH000034273
AE148 RCRA-CESQGMASON CNTY CENTRAL SHOP 1014402190

TC5712009.2s   Page 384



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    360-427-9670Owner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    100 W PUBLIC WORKS DROwner/operator address:
                    MASON COUNTY PUBLIC WORKSOwner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    05/26/2006Owner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    360-427-9670Owner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    100 W PUBLIC WORKS DROwner/operator address:
                    MASON COUNTY PUBLIC WORKSOwner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    12/01/2008Owner/Op start date:
                    OperatorOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    360-427-9670Owner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    100 W PUBLIC WORKS DROwner/operator address:
                    MASON COUNTY PUBLIC WORKSOwner/operator name:

Owner/Operator Summary:

                    hazardous waste
                    the cleanup of a spill, into or on any land or water, of acutely
                    any residue or contaminated soil, waste or other debris resulting from
                    time: 1 kg or less of acutely hazardous waste; or 100 kg or less of
                    hazardous waste during any calendar month, and accumulates at any
                    from the cleanup of a spill, into or on any land or water, of acutely
                    of any residue or contaminated soil, waste or other debris resulting
                    land or water, of acutely hazardous waste; or generates 100 kg or less
                    other debris resulting from the cleanup of a spill, into or on any
                    waste; or 100 kg or less of any residue or contaminated soil, waste or
                    month, and accumulates at any time: 1 kg or less of acutely hazardous
                    or generates 1 kg or less of acutely hazardous waste per calendar
                    month, and accumulates 1000 kg or less of hazardous waste at any time;
                    Handler: generates 100 kg or less of hazardous waste per calendarDescription:
                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    CountyLand type:
                    10EPA Region:
                    AGARNER@CO.MASON.WA.USContact email:
                    455Telephone ext.:
                    360-427-9670Contact telephone:
                    USContact country:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    100 W PUBLIC WORKS DRContact address:
                    AISLYN  GARNERContact:

MASON CNTY CENTRAL SHOP  (Continued) 1014402190

TC5712009.2s   Page 385



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    MASON CNTY CENTRAL SHOPSite name:
                    01/13/2014Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    MASON CNTY CENTRAL SHOPSite name:
                    01/13/2014Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    MASON CNTY CENTRAL SHOPSite name:
                    01/13/2014Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    MASON CNTY CENTRAL SHOPSite name:
                    01/13/2014Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    MASON CNTY CENTRAL SHOPSite name:
                    02/18/2015Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    MASON CNTY CENTRAL SHOPSite name:
                    01/13/2016Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    MASON CNTY CENTRAL SHOPSite name:
                    01/24/2017Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    MASON CNTY CENTRAL SHOPSite name:
                    01/16/2018Date form received by agency:

Historical Generators:

                              NoUsed oil transporter:
                              NoUsed oil transfer facility:
                              NoUsed oil Specification marketer:
                              NoUsed oil fuel marketer to burner:
                              NoUser oil refiner:
                              NoUsed oil processor:
                              NoUsed oil fuel burner:
                              NoFurnace exemption:
                              NoOn-site burner exemption:
                              NoUnderground injection activity:
                              NoTreater, storer or disposer of HW:
                              NoTransporter of hazardous waste:
                              NoRecycler of hazardous waste:
                              NoMixed waste (haz. and radioactive):
                              NoU.S. importer of hazardous waste:

Handler Activities Summary:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    12/31/2018Owner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:

MASON CNTY CENTRAL SHOP  (Continued) 1014402190

TC5712009.2s   Page 386



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    SPENT SOLVENTS AND SPENT SOLVENT MIXTURES.
                    IN F002, F004, AND F005; AND STILL BOTTOMS FROM THE RECOVERY OF THESE
                    ONE OR MORE OF THE ABOVE HALOGENATED SOLVENTS OR THOSE SOLVENTS LISTED
                    CONTAINING, BEFORE USE, A TOTAL OF TEN PERCENT OR MORE (BY VOLUME) OF
                    FLUOROCARBONS; ALL SPENT SOLVENT MIXTURES/BLENDS USED IN DEGREASING
                    1,1,1-TRICHLOROETHANE, CARBON TETRACHLORIDE AND CHLORINATED
                    TETRACHLOROETHYLENE, TRICHLORETHYLENE, METHYLENE CHLORIDE,
                    THE FOLLOWING SPENT HALOGENATED SOLVENTS USED IN DEGREASING:.   Waste name:
                    F001.   Waste code:

                    TETRACHLOROETHYLENE.   Waste name:
                    D039.   Waste code:

                    METHYL ETHYL KETONE.   Waste name:
                    D035.   Waste code:

                    BENZENE.   Waste name:
                    D018.   Waste code:

                    LEAD.   Waste name:
                    D008.   Waste code:

                    IGNITABLE WASTE.   Waste name:
                    D001.   Waste code:

Hazardous Waste Summary:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    MASON CNTY CENTRAL SHOPSite name:
                    01/27/2009Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    MASON CNTY CENTRAL SHOPSite name:
                    01/27/2010Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    MASON CNTY CENTRAL SHOPSite name:
                    01/27/2010Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    MASON CNTY CENTRAL SHOPSite name:
                    02/23/2011Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    MASON CNTY CENTRAL SHOPSite name:
                    02/02/2012Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    MASON CNTY CENTRAL SHOPSite name:
                    02/02/2012Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    MASON CNTY CENTRAL SHOPSite name:
                    01/22/2013Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:

MASON CNTY CENTRAL SHOP  (Continued) 1014402190

TC5712009.2s   Page 387



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    StateEvaluation lead agency:
                    Not reportedDate achieved compliance:
                    Not reportedArea of violation:
                    COMPLIANCE ASSISTANCE VISITEvaluation:
                    03/26/2010Evaluation date:

                    StateEvaluation lead agency:
                    Not reportedDate achieved compliance:
                    Not reportedArea of violation:
                    COMPLIANCE EVALUATION INSPECTION ON-SITEEvaluation:
                    04/29/2016Evaluation date:

Evaluation Action Summary:

                    No violations foundViolation Status:

                    THESE SPENT SOLVENTS AND SPENT SOLVENT MIXTURES.
                    LISTED IN F001, F002, OR F004; AND STILL BOTTOMS FROM THE RECOVERY OF
                    ONE OR MORE OF THE ABOVE NONHALOGENATED SOLVENTS OR THOSE SOLVENTS
                    CONTAINING, BEFORE USE, A TOTAL OF TEN PERCENT OR MORE (BY VOLUME) OF
                    2-ETHOXYETHANOL, AND 2-NITROPROPANE; ALL SPENT SOLVENT MIXTURES/BLENDS
                    KETONE, CARBON DISULFIDE, ISOBUTANOL, PYRIDINE, BENZENE,
                    THE FOLLOWING SPENT NONHALOGENATED SOLVENTS: TOLUENE, METHYL ETHYL.   Waste name:
                    F005.   Waste code:

                    MIXTURES.
                    BOTTOMS FROM THE RECOVERY OF THESE SPENT SOLVENTS AND SPENT SOLVENT
                    MORE OF THOSE SOLVENTS LISTED IN F001, F002, F004, AND F005; AND STILL
                    SOLVENTS, AND A TOTAL OF TEN PERCENT OR MORE (BY VOLUME) OF ONE OR
                    CONTAINING, BEFORE USE, ONE OR MORE OF THE ABOVE NONHALOGENATED
                    NONHALOGENATED SOLVENTS; AND ALL SPENT SOLVENT MIXTURES/BLENDS
                    MIXTURES/BLENDS CONTAINING, BEFORE USE, ONLY THE ABOVE SPENT
                    ALCOHOL, CYCLOHEXANONE, AND METHANOL; ALL SPENT SOLVENT
                    ACETATE, ETHYL BENZENE, ETHYL ETHER, METHYL ISOBUTYL KETONE, N-BUTYL
                    THE FOLLOWING SPENT NONHALOGENATED SOLVENTS: XYLENE, ACETONE, ETHYL.   Waste name:
                    F003.   Waste code:

MASON CNTY CENTRAL SHOP  (Continued) 1014402190

events and activities related to facilities that generate, transport,
Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) program through the tracking of
RCRAInfo is a national information system that supports the Resource

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110038118266Registry ID:

FINDS:

7424 ft. Site 3 of 7 in cluster AE
1.406 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
313 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
WNW ECHO100 W PUBLIC WORKS DR    N/A
AE149 FINDSMASON CNTY CENTRAL SHOP 1011978136

TC5712009.2s   Page 388



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                   http://echo.epa.gov/detailed-facility-report?fid=110038118266DFR URL:
                                   110038118266Registry ID:
                                   1011978136Envid:

ECHO:

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

HAZARDOUS WASTE BIENNIAL REPORTER

corrective action activities required under RCRA.
program staff to track the notification, permit, compliance, and
and treat, store, or dispose of hazardous waste. RCRAInfo allows RCRA

MASON CNTY CENTRAL SHOP  (Continued) 1011978136

                                                        1049634Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        100 W PUBLIC WORKS DRAddress:
                                                        MASON CNTY CENTRAL SHOPName:

WA MANIFEST:

                                             -123.166001341Longitude:
                                             47.236004854999997Latitude:
                                             Emergency/Haz Chem Rpt TIDate Interaction 3:
                                             2009-04-28 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             WAH000034273Program ID:
                                             MASON COUNTY CENTRAL SHOP 2Facility Alt.:
                                             EPCRAProgram Data:
                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             TIER2Interaction 2:
                                             AInteraction 1:
                                             123069Interaction:

                                             -123.166001341Longitude:
                                             47.236004854999997Latitude:
                                             Hazardous Waste GeneratorDate Interaction 3:
                                             2009-01-27 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             WAH000034273Program ID:
                                             Mason Cnty Central ShopFacility Alt.:
                                             TURBOWASTEProgram Data:
                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             HWGInteraction 2:
                                             AInteraction 1:
                                             7694Interaction:

                              1049634Facility Id:
                              MASON CNTY CENTRAL SHOP SHELTONFacility Name:

ALLSITES:

7424 ft. Site 4 of 7 in cluster AE
1.406 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
313 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
WNW WA MANIFEST100 W PUBLIC WORKS DR    N/A
AE150 WA ALLSITESMASON CNTY CENTRAL SHOP SHELTON S109552326

TC5712009.2s   Page 389

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=4Mk4goMnWk7c289gKEo6p99DnyyW4q3wW7recOb22K8pw9L.33bK3xEue3Y564Qp72ADU9EDD8C2k8yV3yTY2c.4sxqNT49iMhskfl2aUgnWopN89HnLRWsR20f7yScDJ9gl8VO9yD3k2KKrEg23gb6VPp6E3jI9KRDPoBHnyPIymG430MP4kWC3nyglmoW029Sny5Wtt7dW7yLclC9KH8Y59LL3rHK..E5J4UE6ampRT2nJ9ZLD6V25ayYAyVxBkX4YjqiA1gTw6PWe84Whr4BefyuH2Ocnb8G4GvMLEkrP3a.gjco932iMn2BWZr33U7UWc5Y2Z58nR9QY3wdKM9E5630z6mhpHsBfK9vyDtq9yWyOByaTAIk4WPqdH3WbwHHWvD5ECrtAePb8DvOlBb9G2
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=4Mk4goMnWk7c289gKEo6p99DnyyW4q3wW7recOb22K8pw9L.33bK3xEue3Y564Qp72ADU9EDD8C2k8yV3yTY2c.4sxqNT49iMhskfl2aUgnWopN89HnLRWsR20f7yScDJ9gl8VO9yD3k2KKrEg23gb6VPp6E3jI9KRDPoBHnyPIymG430MP4kWC3nyglmoW029Sny5Wtt7dW7yLclC9KH8Y59LL3rHK..E5J4UE6ampRT2nJ9ZLD6V25ayYAyVxBkX4YjqiA1gTw6PWe84Whr4BefyuH2Ocnb8G4GvMLEkrP3a.gjco932iMn2BWZr33U7UWc5Y2Z58nR9QY3wdKM9E5630z6mhpHsBfK9vyDtq9yWyOByaTAIk4WPqdH3WbwHHWvD5ECrtAePb8DvOlBb9G2


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        FalseMonthly Generation:
                                                        SQGGen Status Code:
                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Email:
                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Phone Number:
                                                        Not reportedContact City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address:
                                                        Not reportedSite Contact:
                                                        12/01/2008Operator Effective Date:
                                                        (360)427-9670Operator Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        100 W Public Works DrOperator Address:
                                                        Not reportedOperator:
                                                        CountyOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Mason County Public WorksOperator Organization Name:
                                                        (360)427-9670Land Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        100 W Public Works DrLand Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        CountyLand Organization Type:
                                                        Mason County Public WorksLand Organization Name:
                                                        05/26/2006Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (360)427-9670Legal Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        100 W Public Works DrLegal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        CountyLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Mason County Public WorksLegal Organization Name:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        100 W Public Works DrMailing Address:
                                                        Not reportedMail Name:
                                                        Not reportedBusiness Type:
                                                        232002101Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2017Data Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:
                                                        D008,D018,D035,D039,F001,F003,F005Federal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        811111NAICS:
                                                        WAH000034273EPA ID:

MASON CNTY CENTRAL SHOP SHELTON  (Continued) S109552326

TC5712009.2s   Page 390



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        05/26/2006Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (360)427-9670 384Legal Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        100 W Public Works DrLegal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        CountyLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Mason County Public WorksLegal Organization Name:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        100 W Public Works DrMailing Address:
                                                        Mason County Public WorksMail Name:
                                                        Equipment RepairBusiness Type:
                                                        232002101Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2017Data Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:
                                                        F001,F003,F005,D035,D018,D008,D039Federal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        811111NAICS:
                                                        WAH000034273EPA ID:
                                                        1049634Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        100 W PUBLIC WORKS DRAddress:
                                                        MASON CNTY CENTRAL SHOPName:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        TrueRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        TrueBatch Generation:

MASON CNTY CENTRAL SHOP SHELTON  (Continued) S109552326

TC5712009.2s   Page 391



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2016Data Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:
                                                        D008,D018,D035,D039,F001,F003,F005Federal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        811111NAICS:
                                                        WAH000034273EPA ID:
                                                        1049634Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        100 W PUBLIC WORKS DRAddress:
                                                        MASON CNTY CENTRAL SHOPName:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        TrueRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        TrueBatch Generation:
                                                        FalseMonthly Generation:
                                                        SQGGen Status Code:
                                                        CyndiT@co.mason.wa.usSite Contact Email:
                                                        (360)427-9670, ext 453Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        100 W Public Works DrSite Contact Address:
                                                        Cyndi  TicknorSite Contact:
                                                        12/01/2008Operator Effective Date:
                                                        (360)427-9670 450Operator Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        100 W Public Works DrOperator Address:
                                                        Not reportedOperator:
                                                        CountyOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Mason County Public WorksOperator Organization Name:
                                                        (360)427-9670 450Land Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        100 W Public Works DrLand Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        CountyLand Organization Type:
                                                        Mason County Public WorksLand Organization Name:

MASON CNTY CENTRAL SHOP SHELTON  (Continued) S109552326

TC5712009.2s   Page 392



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        TrueRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        TrueBatch Generation:
                                                        FalseMonthly Generation:
                                                        SQGGen Status Code:
                                                        CyndiT@co.mason.wa.usSite Contact Email:
                                                        (360)427-9670, ext 453Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        100 W Public Works DrSite Contact Address:
                                                        Cyndi  TicknorSite Contact:
                                                        12/01/2008Operator Effective Date:
                                                        (360)427-9670 450Operator Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        100 W Public Works DrOperator Address:
                                                        Not reportedOperator:
                                                        CountyOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Mason County Public WorksOperator Organization Name:
                                                        (360)427-9670 450Land Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        100 W Public Works DrLand Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        CountyLand Organization Type:
                                                        Mason County Public WorksLand Organization Name:
                                                        05/26/2006Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (360)427-9670 384Legal Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        100 W Public Works DrLegal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        CountyLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Mason County Public WorksLegal Organization Name:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        100 W Public Works DrMailing Address:
                                                        Mason County Public WorksMail Name:
                                                        Equipment RepairBusiness Type:
                                                        232002101Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):

MASON CNTY CENTRAL SHOP SHELTON  (Continued) S109552326

TC5712009.2s   Page 393



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        100 W Public Works DrSite Contact Address:
                                                        Cyndi  TicknorSite Contact:
                                                        12/01/2008Operator Effective Date:
                                                        (360)427-9670 450Operator Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        100 W Public Works DrOperator Address:
                                                        Not reportedOperator:
                                                        CountyOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Mason County Public WorksOperator Organization Name:
                                                        (360)427-9670 450Land Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        100 W Public Works DrLand Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        CountyLand Organization Type:
                                                        Mason County Public WorksLand Organization Name:
                                                        05/26/2006Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (360)427-9670 384Legal Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        100 W Public Works DrLegal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        CountyLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Mason County Public WorksLegal Organization Name:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        100 W Public Works DrMailing Address:
                                                        Mason County Public WorksMail Name:
                                                        Equipment RepairBusiness Type:
                                                        232002101Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2015Data Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:
                                                        D008,D018,D035,D039,F001,F003,F005Federal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        811111NAICS:
                                                        WAH000034273EPA ID:
                                                        1049634Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        100 W PUBLIC WORKS DRAddress:
                                                        MASON CNTY CENTRAL SHOPName:

MASON CNTY CENTRAL SHOP SHELTON  (Continued) S109552326

TC5712009.2s   Page 394



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        CountyLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Mason County Public WorksLegal Organization Name:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        100 W Public Works DrMailing Address:
                                                        Mason County Public WorksMail Name:
                                                        Equipment RepairBusiness Type:
                                                        232002101Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2014Data Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:
                                                        D008,D018,D035,D039,F001,F003,F005Federal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        811111NAICS:
                                                        WAH000034273EPA ID:
                                                        1049634Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        100 W PUBLIC WORKS DRAddress:
                                                        MASON CNTY CENTRAL SHOPName:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        TrueBatch Generation:
                                                        FalseMonthly Generation:
                                                        SQGGen Status Code:
                                                        CyndiT@co.mason.wa.usSite Contact Email:
                                                        (360)427-9670, ext 453Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Contact City,State,Zip:

MASON CNTY CENTRAL SHOP SHELTON  (Continued) S109552326

TC5712009.2s   Page 395



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2013Data Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:
                                                        D008, D018, D035, D039, F001, F003, F005Federal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        811111NAICS:
                                                        WAH000034273EPA ID:
                                                        1049634Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        100 W PUBLIC WORKS DRAddress:
                                                        MASON CNTY CENTRAL SHOPName:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        TrueBatch Generation:
                                                        FalseMonthly Generation:
                                                        SQGGen Status Code:
                                                        BrianM@co.mason.wa.usSite Contact Email:
                                                        (360)427-9670, ext 453Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        100 W Public Works DrSite Contact Address:
                                                        Brian  MatthewsSite Contact:
                                                        12/01/2008Operator Effective Date:
                                                        (360)427-9670 450Operator Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        100 W Public Works DrOperator Address:
                                                        Not reportedOperator:
                                                        CountyOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Mason County Public WorksOperator Organization Name:
                                                        (360)427-9670 450Land Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        100 W Public Works DrLand Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        CountyLand Organization Type:
                                                        Mason County Public WorksLand Organization Name:
                                                        05/26/2006Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (360)427-9670 384Legal Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        100 W Public Works DrLegal Address:

MASON CNTY CENTRAL SHOP SHELTON  (Continued) S109552326

TC5712009.2s   Page 396



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        TrueBatch Generation:
                                                        FalseMonthly Generation:
                                                        SQGGen Status Code:
                                                        BrianM@co.mason.wa.usSite Contact Email:
                                                        (360)427-9670 450Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        100 W Public Works DrSite Contact Address:
                                                        Brian  MatthewsSite Contact:
                                                        12/01/2008Operator Effective Date:
                                                        (360)427-9670 450Operator Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        100 W Public Works DrOperator Address:
                                                        Not reportedOperator:
                                                        CountyOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Mason County Public WorksOperator Organization Name:
                                                        (360)427-9670 450Land Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        100 W Public Works DrLand Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        CountyLand Organization Type:
                                                        Mason County Public WorksLand Organization Name:
                                                        05/26/2006Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (360)427-9670 450Legal Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        100 W Public Works DrLegal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        CountyLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Mason County Public WorksLegal Organization Name:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        100 W Public Works DrMailing Address:
                                                        Mason County Public WorksMail Name:
                                                        Equipment RepairBusiness Type:
                                                        232002101Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:

MASON CNTY CENTRAL SHOP SHELTON  (Continued) S109552326

TC5712009.2s   Page 397



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        100 W Public Works DrOperator Address:
                                                        Not reportedOperator:
                                                        CountyOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Mason County Public WorksOperator Organization Name:
                                                        (360)427-9670 450Land Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        100 W Public Works DrLand Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        CountyLand Organization Type:
                                                        Mason County Public WorksLand Organization Name:
                                                        05/26/2006Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (360)427-9670 450Legal Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        100 W Public Works DrLegal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        CountyLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Mason County Public WorksLegal Organization Name:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        100 W Public Works DrMailing Address:
                                                        Mason County Public WorksMail Name:
                                                        Equipment RepairBusiness Type:
                                                        232002101Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2012Data Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:
                                                        D008, D018, D035, D039, F001, F003, F005Federal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        811111NAICS:
                                                        WAH000034273EPA ID:
                                                        1049634Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        100 W PUBLIC WORKS DRAddress:
                                                        MASON CNTY CENTRAL SHOPName:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:

MASON CNTY CENTRAL SHOP SHELTON  (Continued) S109552326

TC5712009.2s   Page 398



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Equipment RepairBusiness Type:
                                                        232002101Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2011Data Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:
                                                        D008, D018, D035, D039, F001, F003. F005Federal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        811111NAICS:
                                                        WAH000034273EPA ID:
                                                        1049634Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        100 W PUBLIC WORKS DRAddress:
                                                        MASON CNTY CENTRAL SHOPName:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        TrueBatch Generation:
                                                        FalseMonthly Generation:
                                                        SQGGen Status Code:
                                                        BrianM@co.mason.wa.usSite Contact Email:
                                                        (360)427-9670 450Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        100 W Public Works DrSite Contact Address:
                                                        Brian  MatthewsSite Contact:
                                                        12/01/2008Operator Effective Date:
                                                        (360)427-9670 450Operator Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:

MASON CNTY CENTRAL SHOP SHELTON  (Continued) S109552326

TC5712009.2s   Page 399



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Not reportedFederal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        811111NAICS:
                                                        WAH000034273EPA ID:
                                                        1049634Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        100 W PUBLIC WORKS DRAddress:
                                                        MASON CNTY CENTRAL SHOPName:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        TrueBatch Generation:
                                                        FalseMonthly Generation:
                                                        SQGGen Status Code:
                                                        charlesb@co.mason.wa.usSite Contact Email:
                                                        (360)427-9670 450Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        100 W Public Works DrSite Contact Address:
                                                        Charlie  ButrosSite Contact:
                                                        12/01/2008Operator Effective Date:
                                                        (360)427-9670 450Operator Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        100 W Public Works DrOperator Address:
                                                        Not reportedOperator:
                                                        CountyOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Mason County Public WorksOperator Organization Name:
                                                        (360)427-9670 450Land Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        100 W Public Works DrLand Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        CountyLand Organization Type:
                                                        Mason County Public WorksLand Organization Name:
                                                        05/26/2006Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (360)427-9670 450Legal Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        100 W Public Works DrLegal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        CountyLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Mason County Public WorksLegal Organization Name:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        100 W Public Works DrMailing Address:
                                                        Mason County Public WorksMail Name:

MASON CNTY CENTRAL SHOP SHELTON  (Continued) S109552326

TC5712009.2s   Page 400



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        TrueBatch Generation:
                                                        FalseMonthly Generation:
                                                        SQGGen Status Code:
                                                        charlesb@co.mason.wa.usSite Contact Email:
                                                        (360)427-9670 450Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        100 W Public Works DrSite Contact Address:
                                                        Charlie  ButrosSite Contact:
                                                        12/01/2008Operator Effective Date:
                                                        (360)427-9670 450Operator Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        100 W Public Works DrOperator Address:
                                                        Not reportedOperator:
                                                        CountyOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Mason County Public WorksOperator Organization Name:
                                                        (360)427-9670 450Land Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        100 W Public Works DrLand Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        CountyLand Organization Type:
                                                        Mason County Public WorksLand Organization Name:
                                                        05/26/2006Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (360)427-9670 450Legal Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        100 W Public Works DrLegal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        CountyLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Mason County Public WorksLegal Organization Name:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        100 W Public Works DrMailing Address:
                                                        Mason County Public WorksMail Name:
                                                        Equipment RepairBusiness Type:
                                                        232002101Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2010Data Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:

MASON CNTY CENTRAL SHOP SHELTON  (Continued) S109552326

TC5712009.2s   Page 401



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        100 W Public Works DrLand Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        CountyLand Organization Type:
                                                        Mason County Public WorksLand Organization Name:
                                                        05/26/2006Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (360)427-9670 450Legal Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        100 W Public Works DrLegal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        CountyLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Mason County Public WorksLegal Organization Name:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        100 W Public Works DrMailing Address:
                                                        Mason County Public WorksMail Name:
                                                        Equipment RepairBusiness Type:
                                                        232002101Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2009Data Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:
                                                        Not reportedFederal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        811111NAICS:
                                                        WAH000034273EPA ID:
                                                        1049634Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        100 W PUBLIC WORKS DRAddress:
                                                        MASON CNTY CENTRAL SHOPName:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:

MASON CNTY CENTRAL SHOP SHELTON  (Continued) S109552326

TC5712009.2s   Page 402



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

1 additional WA MANIFEST: record(s) in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        TrueBatch Generation:
                                                        FalseMonthly Generation:
                                                        SQGGen Status Code:
                                                        charlesb@co.mason.wa.usSite Contact Email:
                                                        (360)427-9670 450Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        100 W Public Works DrSite Contact Address:
                                                        Charlie  ButrosSite Contact:
                                                        12/01/2008Operator Effective Date:
                                                        (360)427-9670 450Operator Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        100 W Public Works DrOperator Address:
                                                        Not reportedOperator:
                                                        CountyOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Mason County Public WorksOperator Organization Name:
                                                        (360)427-9670 450Land Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Land City,State,Zip:

MASON CNTY CENTRAL SHOP SHELTON  (Continued) S109552326

                                             -123.150823821Longitude:
                                             47.256756351999996Latitude:
                                             Underground Storage TankDate Interaction 3:
                                             2009-08-11 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             619610Program ID:
                                             MASON COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS DRFacility Alt.:
                                             USTProgram Data:
                                             TOXICSEcology Program:
                                             USTInteraction 2:
                                             AInteraction 1:
                                             78736Interaction:

                              12001Facility Id:
                              MASON COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS DRFacility Name:

ALLSITES:

7424 ft. Site 5 of 7 in cluster AE
1.406 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
313 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  
WNW 100 PUBLIC WORKS DR    N/A
AE151 WA ALLSITESMASON COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS DR S109824256

TC5712009.2s   Page 403

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2U2kUR1hkX8LRs2ZhN1iXv2RLD2SsH9oZW12NY1Bi524Ub1nkE7rRd1xh48QXU2fLm2YsU2MZnAxNf2AUs2SkN1kRD6NhC8JXm27Lp3Csf1vZr1ZNmA1i10ivJ34RrtYDe2XUu2UkY1JR8TTh229XT1VLLAksM6kZi6ENk38iV45vg3GRO7CDV1
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2U2kUR1hkX8LRs2ZhN1iXv2RLD2SsH9oZW12NY1Bi524Ub1nkE7rRd1xh48QXU2fLm2YsU2MZnAxNf2AUs2SkN1kRD6NhC8JXm27Lp3Csf1vZr1ZNmA1i10ivJ34RrtYDe2XUu2UkY1JR8TTh229XT1VLLAksM6kZi6ENk38iV45vg3GRO7CDV1


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110039226129Registry ID:

FINDS:

7424 ft. Site 6 of 7 in cluster AE
1.406 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
313 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
WNW 100 PUBLIC WORKS DR    N/A
AE152 FINDSMASON COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS DR 1012137093

                                                  -123.15083678Longitude:
                                                  47.256761665Latitude:
                                                  Not reportedRetroactive Date:
                                                  Not reportedProof of Responsibility Document Flag:
                                                  Not reportedCompliance Method:
                                                  Not reportedLiability Limit Type:
                                                  03/27/2018Effective Date:
                                                  1926399Policy Number:
                                                  Not reportedAddress 2:
                                                  04/21/2019Expiration Date:
                                                  03/27/2018Inception Date:
                                                  COMMERCE AND INDUSTRY INSURANCEFinancial Resp Type:
                                                  619610DOE Site ID:
                                                  SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                  100 PUBLIC WORKS DRAddress:
                                                  MASON COUNTYName:

WA Financial Assurance 1:

7424 ft. Site 7 of 7 in cluster AE
1.406 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
313 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
WNW 100 PUBLIC WORKS DR    N/A
AE153 WA Financial AssuranceMASON COUNTY S121603322

Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110012561003Registry ID:

FINDS:

7467 ft.
1.414 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
272 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
SW ECHO751A WEST FAIRGROUNDS ROAD    N/A
154 FINDSWA AGR MASON 1 1016302466

TC5712009.2s   Page 404

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2U2kUR1hkX8LRs2ZhN1iXv2RLD2SsH9oZW12NY1Bi524Ub1nkE7rRd1xh48QXU2fLm2YsU2MZnAxNf2AUs2SkN1kRD6NhC8JXm27Lp3Csf1vZr1ZNmA1i10ivJ34RrtYDe2XUu2UkY1JR82Th219XT2VLL3ksM2kZi4ENk88iV15vgAGRO4CDV1
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2U2kUR1hkX8LRs2ZhN1iXv2RLD2SsH9oZW12NY1Bi524Ub1nkE7rRd1xh48QXU2fLm2YsU2MZnAxNf2AUs2SkN1kRD6NhC8JXm27Lp3Csf1vZr1ZNmA1i10ivJ34RrtYDe2XUu2UkY1JR82Th219XT2VLL3ksM2kZi4ENk88iV15vgAGRO4CDV1


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                   http://echo.epa.gov/detailed-facility-report?fid=110012561003DFR URL:
                                   110012561003Registry ID:
                                   1016302466Envid:

ECHO:

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

HAZARDOUS WASTE BIENNIAL REPORTER

corrective action activities required under RCRA.
program staff to track the notification, permit, compliance, and
and treat, store, or dispose of hazardous waste. RCRAInfo allows RCRA
events and activities related to facilities that generate, transport,
Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) program through the tracking of
RCRAInfo is a national information system that supports the Resource

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington

WA AGR MASON 1  (Continued) 1016302466

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110040598911Registry ID:

FINDS:

7494 ft. Site 1 of 5 in cluster AF
1.419 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
220 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
South 2919 OLYMPIC HWY N    N/A
AF155 FINDSOIL CAN HENRYS SHELTON 1012222246

TC5712009.2s   Page 405

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=272m7E1amH8gE72XaA1oHW2ggp267t9PX41bA21XoG297L1yma78EF1aaL8wHe2rgW2.7v2mXhAGAJ2n7g2Wme1xEi6oaB8PHR23gR3l7r1IXG1cAxA2oB0zWG3DgZttp82D7B2lmY1fEU2yan1PHo2kgp747L4XXw1KA33IoH5sWh7Igm71pY1
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=272m7E1amH8gE72XaA1oHW2ggp267t9PX41bA21XoG297L1yma78EF1aaL8wHe2rgW2.7v2mXhAGAJ2n7g2Wme1xEi6oaB8PHR23gR3l7r1IXG1cAxA2oB0zWG3DgZttp82D7B2lmY1fEU2yan1PHo2kgp747L4XXw1KA33IoH5sWh7Igm71pY1
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=272m7E1amH8gE72XaA1oHW2ggp267t9PX41bA21XoG297L1yma78EF1aaL8wHe2rgW2.7v2mXhAGAJ2n7g2Wme1xEi6oaB8PHR23gR3l7r1IXG1cAxA2oB0zWG3DgZttp82D7B2lmY1fEU2yan1PHo2kgp347L3XXw3KA33IoH3sWh5Igm71pY1
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=272m7E1amH8gE72XaA1oHW2ggp267t9PX41bA21XoG297L1yma78EF1aaL8wHe2rgW2.7v2mXhAGAJ2n7g2Wme1xEi6oaB8PHR23gR3l7r1IXG1cAxA2oB0zWG3DgZttp82D7B2lmY1fEU2yan1PHo2kgp347L3XXw3KA33IoH3sWh5Igm71pY1


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                             -123.125930071Longitude:
                                             47.228430488999997Latitude:
                                             Local Source Cntrl 7/09-3Date Interaction 3:
                                             2009-05-14 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             Not reportedProgram ID:
                                             Oil Can Henrys SheltonFacility Alt.:
                                             LSCProgram Data:
                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             LSCInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             91177Interaction:

                              10000Facility Id:
                              OIL CAN HENRYS SHELTONFacility Name:

ALLSITES:

7494 ft. Site 2 of 5 in cluster AF
1.419 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
220 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
South 2919 OLYMPIC HWY N    N/A
AF156 WA ALLSITESOIL CAN HENRYS SHELTON S110275910

                                             -123.15149506100001Longitude:
                                             47.249734490000002Latitude:
                                             Hazardous Waste GeneratorDate Interaction 3:
                                             1992-12-16 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             WAD988515805Program ID:
                                             Not reportedFacility Alt.:
                                             TURBOWASTEProgram Data:
                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             HWGInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             43411Interaction:

                                             -123.15149506100001Longitude:
                                             47.249734490000002Latitude:
                                             Haz Waste Management ActiDate Interaction 3:
                                             2003-12-31 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             WAD988515805Program ID:
                                             Not reportedFacility Alt.:
                                             TURBOWASTEProgram Data:
                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             HWOTHERInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             43412Interaction:

                              41855348Facility Id:
                              SHELTON PORT BUSINESS PARK RDFacility Name:

ALLSITES:

7526 ft. Site 2 of 2 in cluster AD
1.425 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
300 ft.

 

> 1 WA MANIFESTSHELTON, WA  98584
West RCRA NonGen / NLRW 410 BUSINESS PARK RD WAD988515805
AD157 WA ALLSITESSHELTON PORT BUSINESS PARK RD 1000838781

TC5712009.2s   Page 406



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    360-426-1151Owner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    W 21 SANDERSON WAYOwner/operator address:
                    PORT OF SHELTONOwner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    360-426-1151Owner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    W 21 SANDERON WAYOwner/operator address:
                    PORT OF SHELTONOwner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OperatorOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    360-426-1151Owner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    W 21 SANDERSON WAYOwner/operator address:
                    FREY, ALOwner/operator name:

Owner/Operator Summary:

                    Handler: Non-Generators do not presently generate hazardous wasteDescription:
                    Non-GeneratorClassification:
                    DistrictLand type:
                    10EPA Region:
                    ALF@PORTOFSHELTON.COMContact email:
                    360-426-1151Contact telephone:
                    USContact country:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    W 21 SANDERSON WAYContact address:
                    AL  FREYContact:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    W 21 SANDERSON WAYMailing address:
                    WAD988515805EPA ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    W 410 BUSINESS PARK RDFacility address:
                    SHELTON PORT BUSINESS PARK RDFacility name:
                    02/27/2010Date form received by agency:

RCRA NonGen / NLR:

SHELTON PORT BUSINESS PARK RD  (Continued) 1000838781

TC5712009.2s   Page 407



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    SHELTON PORT BUSINESS PARK RDSite name:
                    12/31/2005Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    SHELTON PORT BUSINESS PARK RDSite name:
                    02/16/2006Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    SHELTON PORT BUSINESS PARK RDSite name:
                    02/17/2007Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    SHELTON PORT BUSINESS PARK RDSite name:
                    02/01/2008Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    SHELTON PORT BUSINESS PARK RDSite name:
                    12/31/2008Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    SHELTON PORT BUSINESS PARK RDSite name:
                    01/27/2009Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    SHELTON PORT BUSINESS PARK RDSite name:
                    02/26/2010Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    SHELTON PORT BUSINESS PARK RDSite name:
                    02/26/2010Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    SHELTON PORT BUSINESS PARK RDSite name:
                    02/26/2010Date form received by agency:

Historical Generators:

                              NoUsed oil transporter:
                              NoUsed oil transfer facility:
                              NoUsed oil Specification marketer:
                              NoUsed oil fuel marketer to burner:
                              NoUser oil refiner:
                              NoUsed oil processor:
                              NoUsed oil fuel burner:
                              NoFurnace exemption:
                              NoOn-site burner exemption:
                              NoUnderground injection activity:
                              NoTreater, storer or disposer of HW:
                              NoTransporter of hazardous waste:
                              NoRecycler of hazardous waste:
                              NoMixed waste (haz. and radioactive):
                              NoU.S. importer of hazardous waste:

Handler Activities Summary:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    05/03/1996Owner/Op start date:

SHELTON PORT BUSINESS PARK RD  (Continued) 1000838781

TC5712009.2s   Page 408



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        333999NAICS:
                                                        WAD988515805EPA ID:
                                                        41855348Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        W 410 BUSINESS PARK RDAddress:
                                                        SHELTON PORT BUSINESS PARK RDName:

WA MANIFEST:

                    StateEvaluation lead agency:
                    Not reportedDate achieved compliance:
                    Not reportedArea of violation:
                    COMPLIANCE EVALUATION INSPECTION ON-SITEEvaluation:
                    04/29/1993Evaluation date:

Evaluation Action Summary:

                    No violations foundViolation Status:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    SHELTON PORT BUSINESS PARK RDSite name:
                    03/10/1998Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    SHELTON PORT BUSINESS PARK RDSite name:
                    02/22/1999Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    SHELTON PORT BUSINESS PARK RDSite name:
                    02/28/2000Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    SHELTON PORT BUSINESS PARK RDSite name:
                    01/10/2001Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    SHELTON PORT BUSINESS PARK RDSite name:
                    03/14/2002Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    SHELTON PORT BUSINESS PARK RDSite name:
                    01/17/2003Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    SHELTON PORT BUSINESS PARK RDSite name:
                    01/17/2003Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    SHELTON PORT BUSINESS PARK RDSite name:
                    01/09/2004Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    SHELTON PORT BUSINESS PARK RDSite name:
                    12/31/2004Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    SHELTON PORT BUSINESS PARK RDSite name:
                    04/21/2005Date form received by agency:

SHELTON PORT BUSINESS PARK RD  (Continued) 1000838781

TC5712009.2s   Page 409



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        FalseBatch Generation:
                                                        FalseMonthly Generation:
                                                        XQGGen Status Code:
                                                        alf@portofshelton.comSite Contact Email:
                                                        360426-1151Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584-1284Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        W 21 Sanderson WaySite Contact Address:
                                                        Al  FreySite Contact:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Effective Date:
                                                        360426-1151Operator Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584-1284Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        W 21 Sanderson WayOperator Address:
                                                        Al  FreyOperator:
                                                        DistrictOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Organization Name:
                                                        (360)426-1151Land Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        W 21 Sanderon WayLand Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        DistrictLand Organization Type:
                                                        Port of SheltonLand Organization Name:
                                                        05/03/1996Legal Effective Date:
                                                        360426-1151Legal Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        W 21 SANDERSON WAYLegal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        DistrictLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Port of SheltonLegal Organization Name:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        W 21 SANDERSON WAYMailing Address:
                                                        Port of SheltonMail Name:
                                                        Not reportedBusiness Type:
                                                        601770431Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2009Data Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:
                                                        Not reportedFederal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:

SHELTON PORT BUSINESS PARK RD  (Continued) 1000838781

TC5712009.2s   Page 410



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        CountyLand Organization Type:
                                                        Port of SheltonLand Organization Name:
                                                        05/03/1996Legal Effective Date:
                                                        360426-1151Legal Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        W 21 SANDERSON WAYLegal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        CountyLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Port of SheltonLegal Organization Name:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        W 21 SANDERSON WAYMailing Address:
                                                        Port of SheltonMail Name:
                                                        Not reportedBusiness Type:
                                                        601770431Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2008Data Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:
                                                        Not reportedFederal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        92612NAICS:
                                                        WAD988515805EPA ID:
                                                        41855348Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        W 410 BUSINESS PARK RDAddress:
                                                        SHELTON PORT BUSINESS PARK RDName:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:

SHELTON PORT BUSINESS PARK RD  (Continued) 1000838781

TC5712009.2s   Page 411



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        FALSEUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FALSEOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FALSEGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FALSEGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FALSETreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FALSEImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FALSEImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FALSEMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FALSETreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FALSEPermit by Rule:
                                                        Not reportedData Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:
                                                        Not reportedFederal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        92612NAICS:
                                                        WAD988515805EPA ID:
                                                        41855348Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        W 410 BUSINESS PARK RDAddress:
                                                        SHELTON PORT BUSINESS PARK RDName:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        FalseBatch Generation:
                                                        FalseMonthly Generation:
                                                        XQGGen Status Code:
                                                        alf@portofshelton.comSite Contact Email:
                                                        360426-1151Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584-1284Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        W 21 Sanderson WaySite Contact Address:
                                                        Al  FreySite Contact:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Effective Date:
                                                        360426-1151Operator Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584-1284Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        W 21 Sanderson WayOperator Address:
                                                        Al  FreyOperator:
                                                        CountyOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Organization Name:
                                                        (360)426-1151Land Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        W 21 Sanderon WayLand Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:

SHELTON PORT BUSINESS PARK RD  (Continued) 1000838781

TC5712009.2s   Page 412



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        SHELTON PORT BUSINESS PARK RDName:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FALSEUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FALSEUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FALSEUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FALSEUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FALSEUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FALSEUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FALSEUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FALSETransfer Facility:
                                                        FALSERecycler Onsite:
                                                        FALSETranports Other Waste:
                                                        FALSETransport Own Waste:
                                                        FALSEOne Time Generation:
                                                        TRUEBatch Generation:
                                                        FALSEMonthly Generation:
                                                        XQGGen Status Code:
                                                        alf@portofshelton.comSite Contact Email:
                                                        360426-1151Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584-1284Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        W 21 Sanderson WaySite Contact Address:
                                                        Al  FreySite Contact:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Effective Date:
                                                        360426-1151Operator Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584-1284Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        W 21 Sanderson WayOperator Address:
                                                        Al  FreyOperator:
                                                        CountyOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Organization Name:
                                                        (360)426-1151Land Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        W 21 Sanderon WayLand Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        CountyLand Organization Type:
                                                        Port of SheltonLand Organization Name:
                                                        05/03/1996Legal Effective Date:
                                                        360426-1151Legal Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        W 21 SANDERSON WAYLegal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        CountyLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Port of SheltonLegal Organization Name:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        W 21 SANDERSON WAYMailing Address:
                                                        Port of SheltonMail Name:
                                                        Not reportedBusiness Type:
                                                        601770431Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FALSESmelter Defferal:
                                                        FALSEIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FALSEIndustry Boiler Burner:

SHELTON PORT BUSINESS PARK RD  (Continued) 1000838781

TC5712009.2s   Page 413



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584-1284Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        W 21 Sanderson WaySite Contact Address:
                                                        Al  FreySite Contact:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Effective Date:
                                                        360426-1151Operator Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584-1284Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        W 21 Sanderson WayOperator Address:
                                                        Al  FreyOperator:
                                                        CountyOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Organization Name:
                                                        (360)426-1151Land Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        W 21 Sanderon WayLand Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        CountyLand Organization Type:
                                                        Port of SheltonLand Organization Name:
                                                        05/03/1996Legal Effective Date:
                                                        360426-1151Legal Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        W 21 SANDERSON WAYLegal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        CountyLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Port of SheltonLegal Organization Name:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        W 21 SANDERSON WAYMailing Address:
                                                        Port of SheltonMail Name:
                                                        Not reportedBusiness Type:
                                                        601770431Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FPermit by Rule:
                                                        Not reportedData Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:
                                                        Not reportedFederal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        92612NAICS:
                                                        WAD988515805EPA ID:
                                                        41855348Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        W 410 BUSINESS PARK RDAddress:

SHELTON PORT BUSINESS PARK RD  (Continued) 1000838781

TC5712009.2s   Page 414



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        W 21 SANDERSON WAYLegal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        CountyLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Port of SheltonLegal Organization Name:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        W 21 SANDERSON WAYMailing Address:
                                                        Port of SheltonMail Name:
                                                        Not reportedBusiness Type:
                                                        601770431Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        NoSmelter Defferal:
                                                        NoIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        NoIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        NoUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        NoOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        NoGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        NoGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        NoTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        NoImmediate Recycler:
                                                        NoImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        NoMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        NoTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        NoPermit by Rule:
                                                        Not reportedData Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:
                                                        Not reportedFederal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        92612NAICS:
                                                        WAD988515805EPA ID:
                                                        41855348Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        W 410 BUSINESS PARK RDAddress:
                                                        SHELTON PORT BUSINESS PARK RDName:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FTransfer Facility:
                                                        FRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FOne Time Generation:
                                                        TBatch Generation:
                                                        FMonthly Generation:
                                                        XQGGen Status Code:
                                                        alf@portofshelton.comSite Contact Email:
                                                        360426-1151Site Contact Phone Number:

SHELTON PORT BUSINESS PARK RD  (Continued) 1000838781

TC5712009.2s   Page 415



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        NoUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        NoUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        NoUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        NoUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        NoUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        NoUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        NoUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        NoTransfer Facility:
                                                        NoRecycler Onsite:
                                                        NoTranports Other Waste:
                                                        NoTransport Own Waste:
                                                        NoOne Time Generation:
                                                        NoBatch Generation:
                                                        NoMonthly Generation:
                                                        XQGGen Status Code:
                                                        alf@portofshelton.comSite Contact Email:
                                                        360426-1151Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584-1284Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        W 21 Sanderson WaySite Contact Address:
                                                        Al  FreySite Contact:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Effective Date:
                                                        360426-1151Operator Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584-1284Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        W 21 Sanderson WayOperator Address:
                                                        Al  FreyOperator:
                                                        CountyOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Organization Name:
                                                        (360)426-1151Land Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        W 21 Sanderon WayLand Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        CountyLand Organization Type:
                                                        Port of SheltonLand Organization Name:
                                                        05/03/1996Legal Effective Date:
                                                        360426-1151Legal Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:

SHELTON PORT BUSINESS PARK RD  (Continued) 1000838781

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110040341822Registry ID:

FINDS:

7681 ft. Site 3 of 5 in cluster AF
1.455 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
222 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
South 2921 NORTHVIEW CIR    N/A
AF158 FINDSADVANCED AUTOMOTIVE SERVICES INC 1012309448

TC5712009.2s   Page 416



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

ADVANCED AUTOMOTIVE SERVICES INC  (Continued) 1012309448

                              Not reportedResp Party Name:
                              Not reportedCause Type:
                              Not reportedCause:
                              Not reportedResp Party Contact:
                              Not reportedRecovered Quantity:
                              Not reportedVessel Facility Name2:
                              Not reportedSource:
                              Not reportedSource Type:
                              Not reportedLongitude:
                              Not reportedLatitude:
                              Not reportedIncident Category:
                              Not reportedIncident Category Type:
                              Not reportedIncident Date:
                              UNKNOWNContact Name:
                              01/14/2008Date Received:
                              GALLONMaterial Units:
                              15Material Qty:
                              PETROLEUM - MINERAL OILMaterial Desc:
                              Not reportedMedium:
                              603262Facility ID:
                              SHELTON, WACity,State,Zip:
                              2921 N VIEW CIRCLEAddress:
                              Not reportedName:

SPILLS:

7681 ft. Site 4 of 5 in cluster AF
1.455 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
222 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  
South 2921 N VIEW CIRCLE    N/A
AF159 WA SPILLS S109010675

                                             -123.12759106999999Longitude:
                                             47.231150489000001Latitude:
                                             Local Source Cntrl 7/09-3Date Interaction 3:
                                             2009-05-19 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             Not reportedProgram ID:
                                             advanced Automotive Services IncFacility Alt.:
                                             LSCProgram Data:
                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             LSCInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             89778Interaction:

                              15833Facility Id:
                              ADVANCED AUTOMOTIVE SERVICES INCFacility Name:

ALLSITES:

7681 ft. Site 5 of 5 in cluster AF
1.455 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
222 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
South 2921 NORTHVIEW CIR    N/A
AF160 WA ALLSITESADVANCED AUTOMOTIVE SERVICES INC S110124063

TC5712009.2s   Page 417

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2F2oFW1zoX81WN2VzQ1OXd2u1x2ENW9WVd1gQX1OOR2hFb1cow7PWN1jz78RXo2X1G2yNM2CVaAZQx2tFU24oP1AWk6iz98.X62z1X3qNW1CVe1fQbA3OL0ldi3LuHtEx62tFR21oX1WWr2SzX1CX92z1K3NNr4qVe1vQMAzO35fdi5oug9Lx61
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2F2oFW1zoX81WN2VzQ1OXd2u1x2ENW9WVd1gQX1OOR2hFb1cow7PWN1jz78RXo2X1G2yNM2CVaAZQx2tFU24oP1AWk6iz98.X62z1X3qNW1CVe1fQbA3OL0ldi3LuHtEx62tFR21oX1WWr2SzX1CX92z1K3NNr4qVe1vQMAzO35fdi5oug9Lx61


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                             -123.151785502Longitude:
                                             47.248573293Latitude:
                                             Emergency/Haz Chem Rpt TIDate Interaction 3:
                                             2016-02-23 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             CRK000089050Program ID:
                                             Sims Vibration Laboratory Inc SheltonFacility Alt.:
                                             EPCRAProgram Data:
                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             TIER2Interaction 2:
                                             AInteraction 1:
                                             117043Interaction:

                              8140Facility Id:
                              SIMS VIBRATION LABORATORY INC SHELTONFacility Name:

ALLSITES:

7685 ft.
1.455 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
299 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
West 121 W DEVELOPMENT RD    N/A
161 WA ALLSITESSIMS VIBRATION LABORATORY INC SHELTON S118640997

                                             -123.122238681Longitude:
                                             47.227355523Latitude:
                                             Emergency/Haz Chem Rpt TIDate Interaction 3:
                                             2016-02-04 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             CRK000088350Program ID:
                                             Mason Co PUD 3 Mt View SubstationFacility Alt.:
                                             EPCRAProgram Data:
                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             TIER2Interaction 2:
                                             AInteraction 1:
                                             116724Interaction:

                              3460Facility Id:
                              MASON CO PUD 3 MT VIEW SUBSTATIONFacility Name:

ALLSITES:

7824 ft. Site 1 of 2 in cluster AG
1.482 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
222 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
South 350 E L ST    N/A
AG162 WA ALLSITESMASON CO PUD 3 MT VIEW SUBSTATION S118640901

US EPA Air Quality System (AQS) contains ambient air pollution data
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110020791491Registry ID:

FINDS:

7824 ft.
1.482 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
217 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
SSE M.G. HOSP., 901 MTN. VIEW DR. SHELTON    N/A
163 FINDSMASON GENERAL HOSPITAL, 901 MTN. VIEW DRIVE, SHELT 1007994193

TC5712009.2s   Page 418



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

agencies from thousands of monitoring stations.
collected by EPA, State, Local, and Tribal air pollution control

MASON GENERAL HOSPITAL, 901 MTN. VIEW DRIVE, SHELTON, WA  (Continued) 1007994193

                                        Not reportedEncapsulated:
                                        Not reportedRemoved:
                                        Not reportedFacility Maint:
                                        Not reportedFacility Repair:
                                        Not reportedFacility Demo:
                                        Not reportedFacility Remodel:
                                        Not reportedFacility Size:
                                        Not reportedFacility Age:
                                        Not reportedJob Site Room:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner Phone:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner Zip4:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner State:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner City:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner Address:
                                        PACIFIC NORTHWEST ENVIRONMENTA (DAMASCUS)Property Owner Company:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner Agent:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner Name:
                                        Not reportedProject Form Email:
                                        Not reportedJob Site CAS:
                                        Not reportedPhone:
                                        ABCN00001515Contractor ID:
                                        Not reportedSaturday:
                                        Not reportedFriday:
                                        Not reportedThursday:
                                        Not reportedWednesday:
                                        Not reportedTuesday:
                                        Not reportedMonday:
                                        Not reportedSunday:
                                        Not reportedSite Hours End:
                                        Not reportedSite Hours Start:
                                        Not reportedEmergency:
                                        Not reportedOff Hold:
                                        Not reportedOn Hold:
                                        Not reportedAmended:
                                        Not reportedInitial:
                                        07/27/2018Completion Date:
                                        06/20/2018Start Date:
                                        07/18/2018Notice Date:
                                        125495#857247124Form ID:
                                        Not reportedParent ID:
                                        Not reportedFacility Type:
                                        SHELTON, WACity,State,Zip:
                                        534 EAST K STREETAddress:
                                        Not reportedName:

ASBESTOS:

7887 ft. Site 1 of 3 in cluster AH
1.494 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
221 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
South 534 EAST K STREET    N/A
AH164 WA ASBESTOS S119170533

TC5712009.2s   Page 419

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2F2oFW1zoX81WN2VzQ1OXd2u1x2ENW9WVd1gQX1OOR2hFb1cow7PWN1jz78RXo2X1G2yNM2CVaAZQx2tFU24oP1AWk6iz98.X62z1X3qNW1CVe1fQbA3OL0ldi3LuHtEx62tFR21oX1WWr2SzX1CX91z1K8NNrAqVeAvQM5zO32fdiAoug4Lx61
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2F2oFW1zoX81WN2VzQ1OXd2u1x2ENW9WVd1gQX1OOR2hFb1cow7PWN1jz78RXo2X1G2yNM2CVaAZQx2tFU24oP1AWk6iz98.X62z1X3qNW1CVe1fQbA3OL0ldi3LuHtEx62tFR21oX1WWr2SzX1CX91z1K8NNrAqVeAvQM5zO32fdiAoug4Lx61


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        534 EAST K STREETAddress:
                                        Not reportedName:

                                        Not reportedCertificate Status:
                                        Not reportedSupervisor Phone:
                                        Not reportedSupervisor:
                                        Not reportedProject Type:
                                        Not reportedNotice type:
                                        Not reportedUBI:
                                        Not reportedRegion:
                                        Not reportedSubmitter IP Address:
                                        Not reportedDate Time Submitted:
                                        Not reportedComments:
                                        Not reportedOther Resp Pro Text:
                                        Not reportedOther Resp Pro:
                                        Not reportedType C Pressure:
                                        Not reportedType C Continuous:
                                        Not reportedPAPR:
                                        Not reportedFull Face APR:
                                        Not reportedHalf Mask APR:
                                        Not reportedOther CM2 Text:
                                        Not reportedOther CM2:
                                        Not reportedOther CM1 Text:
                                        Not reportedOther CM1:
                                        Not reportedMANUALMETHODS     :
                                        Not reportedHEPA Vacuum:
                                        Not reportedWet Methods:
                                        Not reportedWrap And Cut:
                                        Not reportedCritical Barriers:
                                        Not reportedMini Enclosure:
                                        Not reportedGlove Bag:
                                        Not reportedNeg Pres Enclosure:
                                        Not reportedOutdoors:
                                        Not reportedIndoors:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other2 Text:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other2:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other1 Text:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other1:
                                        Not reportedDuct Tape:
                                        Not reportedMudded Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedCement Asbestos Pipe:
                                        Not reportedDucting Insulation:
                                        Not reportedAir Cell Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedMag Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedQuantity Lin Ft:
                                        Not reportedSq Ft Other Text:
                                        Not reportedSq Ft Other:
                                        Not reportedRoofing:
                                        Not reportedVAT:
                                        Not reportedDuct Paper:
                                        Not reportedBoiler Insulation:
                                        Not reportedAsbestos Paper:
                                        Not reportedSheet Vinyl:
                                        Not reportedCAB:
                                        Not reportedPopcorn Ceiling:
                                        Not reportedFireproofing:
                                        Not reportedQuantity Sq Ft:

  (Continued) S119170533

TC5712009.2s   Page 420



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        Not reportedAir Cell Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedMag Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedQuantity Lin Ft:
                                        Not reportedSq Ft Other Text:
                                        Not reportedSq Ft Other:
                                        Not reportedRoofing:
                                        Not reportedVAT:
                                        Not reportedDuct Paper:
                                        Not reportedBoiler Insulation:
                                        Not reportedAsbestos Paper:
                                        Not reportedSheet Vinyl:
                                        Not reportedCAB:
                                        Not reportedPopcorn Ceiling:
                                        Not reportedFireproofing:
                                        Not reportedQuantity Sq Ft:
                                        Not reportedEncapsulated:
                                        Not reportedRemoved:
                                        Not reportedFacility Maint:
                                        Not reportedFacility Repair:
                                        Not reportedFacility Demo:
                                        Not reportedFacility Remodel:
                                        Not reportedFacility Size:
                                        Not reportedFacility Age:
                                        Not reportedJob Site Room:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner Phone:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner Zip4:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner State:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner City:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner Address:
                                        ASCENDENT LLC (PACIFIC)Property Owner Company:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner Agent:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner Name:
                                        Not reportedProject Form Email:
                                        Not reportedJob Site CAS:
                                        Not reportedPhone:
                                        (ABCN00001499)Contractor ID:
                                        Not reportedSaturday:
                                        Not reportedFriday:
                                        Not reportedThursday:
                                        Not reportedWednesday:
                                        Not reportedTuesday:
                                        Not reportedMonday:
                                        Not reportedSunday:
                                        Not reportedSite Hours End:
                                        Not reportedSite Hours Start:
                                        Not reportedEmergency:
                                        Not reportedOff Hold:
                                        Not reportedOn Hold:
                                        Not reportedAmended:
                                        Not reportedInitial:
                                        07/12/2019Completion Date:
                                        06/17/2019Start Date:
                                        01/30/2019Notice Date:
                                        137145#109888211Form ID:
                                        Not reportedParent ID:
                                        Not reportedFacility Type:
                                        SHELTON, WACity,State,Zip:

  (Continued) S119170533

TC5712009.2s   Page 421



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        Not reportedSunday:
                                        4:00 PMSite Hours End:
                                        8:00 AMSite Hours Start:
                                        1Emergency:
                                        Not reportedOff Hold:
                                        Not reportedOn Hold:
                                        Not reportedAmended:
                                        1Initial:
                                        07/29/2016Completion Date:
                                        07/27/2016Start Date:
                                        07/26/2016Notice Date:
                                        119879##1317Advan996470Form ID:
                                        0Parent ID:
                                        CommercialFacility Type:
                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                        534 EAST K STREETAddress:
                                        Not reportedName:

                                        ACertificate Status:
                                        (ABAS00035030)Supervisor Phone:
                                        Ryan PeachSupervisor:
                                        Mag/mudded pipe Insulation, Mastic, Other Square FootageProject Type:
                                        InitialNotice type:
                                        602142311UBI:
                                        4Region:
                                        Not reportedSubmitter IP Address:
                                        Not reportedDate Time Submitted:
                                        Not reportedComments:
                                        Not reportedOther Resp Pro Text:
                                        Not reportedOther Resp Pro:
                                        Not reportedType C Pressure:
                                        Not reportedType C Continuous:
                                        Not reportedPAPR:
                                        Not reportedFull Face APR:
                                        Not reportedHalf Mask APR:
                                        Not reportedOther CM2 Text:
                                        Not reportedOther CM2:
                                        Not reportedOther CM1 Text:
                                        Not reportedOther CM1:
                                        Not reportedMANUALMETHODS     :
                                        Not reportedHEPA Vacuum:
                                        Not reportedWet Methods:
                                        Not reportedWrap And Cut:
                                        Not reportedCritical Barriers:
                                        Not reportedMini Enclosure:
                                        Not reportedGlove Bag:
                                        Not reportedNeg Pres Enclosure:
                                        Not reportedOutdoors:
                                        Not reportedIndoors:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other2 Text:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other2:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other1 Text:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other1:
                                        Not reportedDuct Tape:
                                        Not reportedMudded Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedCement Asbestos Pipe:
                                        Not reportedDucting Insulation:

  (Continued) S119170533

TC5712009.2s   Page 422



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        Not reportedWrap And Cut:
                                        1Critical Barriers:
                                        Not reportedMini Enclosure:
                                        Not reportedGlove Bag:
                                        1Neg Pres Enclosure:
                                        Not reportedOutdoors:
                                        Not reportedIndoors:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other2 Text:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other2:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other1 Text:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other1:
                                        Not reportedDuct Tape:
                                        Not reportedMudded Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedCement Asbestos Pipe:
                                        Not reportedDucting Insulation:
                                        Not reportedAir Cell Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedMag Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedQuantity Lin Ft:
                                        Not reportedSq Ft Other Text:
                                        Not reportedSq Ft Other:
                                        Not reportedRoofing:
                                        1VAT:
                                        Not reportedDuct Paper:
                                        Not reportedBoiler Insulation:
                                        Not reportedAsbestos Paper:
                                        Not reportedSheet Vinyl:
                                        Not reportedCAB:
                                        Not reportedPopcorn Ceiling:
                                        Not reportedFireproofing:
                                        100Quantity Sq Ft:
                                        Not reportedEncapsulated:
                                        1Removed:
                                        Not reportedFacility Maint:
                                        1Facility Repair:
                                        Not reportedFacility Demo:
                                        Not reportedFacility Remodel:
                                        Not reportedFacility Size:
                                        Not reportedFacility Age:
                                        Not reportedJob Site Room:
                                        360-426-6322Property Owner Phone:
                                        98584Property Owner Zip4:
                                        WAProperty Owner State:
                                        SheltonProperty Owner City:
                                        700 S 1st StreetProperty Owner Address:
                                        Shelton School DistrictProperty Owner Company:
                                        Robert HerronProperty Owner Agent:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner Name:
                                        advanceenvironmental@comcast.netProject Form Email:
                                        Genaro MaganaJob Site CAS:
                                        360-357-5666Phone:
                                        1317Contractor ID:
                                        Not reportedSaturday:
                                        1Friday:
                                        1Thursday:
                                        1Wednesday:
                                        Not reportedTuesday:
                                        Not reportedMonday:

  (Continued) S119170533

TC5712009.2s   Page 423



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        Not reportedContractor Memo:
                                        98512Contractor Mail Zip:
                                        WAContractor Mail State:
                                        OLYMPIAContractor Mail City:
                                        3620 49TH AVE SWContractor Mail Street Address:
                                        Not reportedContractor Web Address:
                                        advanceenvironmental@comcast.netContractor Email:
                                        3603575666Contractor Phone:
                                        98512Contractor Zip:
                                        WAContractor State:
                                        OLYMPIAContractor City:
                                        3620 49TH AVE SWContractor Street Address:
                                        34Contractor Cnty Code:
                                        Not reportedContractor Suspended Date:
                                        08/22/2017Contractor Exp Date:
                                        06/21/2016Contractor Renewal Letter Date:
                                        08/13/2009Contractor Effective Date:
                                        02/01/2001Contractor Original Date:
                                        2016-08-25 00:00:00Contractor Cert Prn Date:
                                        3603575665Contact Fax:
                                        3603575666Contact Phone:
                                        Dan VenableContact Name:
                                        ActiveContractor Status:
                                        Advance Environmental IncContractor Name:
                                        ADVANEI972MHContractor Cris Num:
                                        MContractor Priority:
                                        602306184Contractor UBI:
                                        1317Contractor ID:

Contractor:

                                        Not reportedCertificate Status:
                                        Not reportedSupervisor Phone:
                                        Not reportedSupervisor:
                                        Not reportedProject Type:
                                        Not reportedNotice type:
                                        Not reportedUBI:
                                        Not reportedRegion:
                                        73.221.74.245Submitter IP Address:
                                        2016-07-26 09:04:51Date Time Submitted:
                                        360-902-5409 on 7/25/2016 @ 4:23 pm. TMS
                                        10-Day waiver approved per my conversation with Ryan AllenComments:
                                        Not reportedOther Resp Pro Text:
                                        Not reportedOther Resp Pro:
                                        Not reportedType C Pressure:
                                        Not reportedType C Continuous:
                                        Not reportedPAPR:
                                        1Full Face APR:
                                        Not reportedHalf Mask APR:
                                        Not reportedOther CM2 Text:
                                        Not reportedOther CM2:
                                        Not reportedOther CM1 Text:
                                        Not reportedOther CM1:
                                        1MANUALMETHODS     :
                                        1HEPA Vacuum:
                                        1Wet Methods:

  (Continued) S119170533

TC5712009.2s   Page 424



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                   http://echo.epa.gov/detailed-facility-report?fid=110070254957DFR URL:
                                   110070254957Registry ID:
                                   1024365247Envid:

ECHO:

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

discharge does not adversely affect water quality.
requirements, and include other provisions to ensure that the
limits on what can be discharged, impose monitoring and reporting
States are required to obtain a permit. The permit will likely contain
discharge pollutants from any point source into waters of the United
issued under the Clean Water Act. Under NPDES, all facilities that
the Compliance Information System (ICIS) tracks surface water permits
US National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) module of
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110070254957Registry ID:

FINDS:

7901 ft. Site 2 of 3 in cluster AH
1.496 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
221 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
South ECHO402 E K ST    N/A
AH165 FINDSSHELTON ELEMENTARY 1024365247

                    -625Days to Expiration:
                    07/13/2018Effective Date:
                    12/31/2020Permit Expiration Date:
                    Not reportedWRIA:
                    Not reportedEcology Contact:
                    Not reportedPermit SubStatus:
                    ActivePermit Status:
                    Not reportedPermit Version:
                    WAR306764Permit ID:
                    Not reportedLongitude:
                    Not reportedLatitude:
                    11/18/2015Date Issued:
                    HeadqartersAdmin Region:
                    Construction SW GPFacility Type:
                    Not reportedFacility Status:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    402 E K STAddress:
                    SHELTON ELEMENTARYName:

NPDES:

                              51510Facility Id:
                              SHELTON ELEMENTARYFacility Name:

ALLSITES:

7901 ft. Site 3 of 3 in cluster AH
1.496 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
221 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
South WA NPDES402 E K ST    N/A
AH166 WA ALLSITESSHELTON ELEMENTARY S122493324

TC5712009.2s   Page 425

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2F2oFW1zoX81WN2VzQ1OXd2u1x2ENW9WVd1gQX1OOR2hFb1cow7PWN1jz78RXo2X1G2yNM2CVaAZQx2tFU24oP1AWk6iz98.X62z1X3qNW1CVe1fQbA3OL0ldi3LuHtEx62tFR21oX1WWr2SzX1CX93z1K5NNr4qVe7vQM6zO33fdi5oug8Lx61
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2F2oFW1zoX81WN2VzQ1OXd2u1x2ENW9WVd1gQX1OOR2hFb1cow7PWN1jz78RXo2X1G2yNM2CVaAZQx2tFU24oP1AWk6iz98.X62z1X3qNW1CVe1fQbA3OL0ldi3LuHtEx62tFR21oX1WWr2SzX1CX93z1K5NNr4qVe7vQM6zO33fdi5oug8Lx61


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110067357648Registry ID:

FINDS:

7937 ft. Site 2 of 2 in cluster AG
1.503 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
222 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
South 350 E L ST    N/A
AG167 FINDSMASON CO PUD 3 MT VIEW SUBSTATION 1023396741

                         Not reportedPipe Pumping System:
                         Not reportedPipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedPipe Second Release Detection:
                         Not reportedPipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Not reportedPipe Construction:
                         SteelPipe Material:
                         Not reportedTank SFC Type:
                         Not reportedTank Release Detection:
                         Not reportedTank Manifold:
                         Not reportedTank Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedTank Tightness Test:
                         Not reportedTank Construction:
                         SteelTank Material:
                         Not reportedTank Overfill Prevention:
                         Not reportedTank Spill Prevention:
                         Not reportedTank Upgrade Date:
                         Not reportedTank Permit Expiration Date:
                         Not reportedCapacity Range:
                         Not reportedTank Closure Date:
                         00/31/1964Tank Install Date:
                         8/6/1996Tank Status Date:
                         RemovedTank Status:
                         Not reportedTag Number:
                         1Tank Name:

                         -123.14773599999999Decimal Longitude:
                         47.232926999999997Decimal Latitude:
                         Not reportedPhone Number:
                         Not reportedUBI:
                         9205Site Id:
                         68491588Facility ID:

UST:

7990 ft.
1.513 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
271 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
WSW WA ALLSITESSANDERSON FIELD    N/A
168 WA USTCERTIFIED MFG CO INC U003355811

TC5712009.2s   Page 426

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2s2qsJ1sqI8NJ92Tsh1yIE29N62s9898TB1khW1kyc2GsM1mqn7fJz1NsO8xIS2DN.2Q9o2cTUAshb2.sJ28qg1NJl68s886Il2vNd3O9h15T31hhmA4yW0XEf3x9.t5632ZsD2lqX1sJD2xsm1zI13ENK4h9M4dTsA1hA7gyL8yEk5K9a2A6e1
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2s2qsJ1sqI8NJ92Tsh1yIE29N62s9898TB1khW1kyc2GsM1mqn7fJz1NsO8xIS2DN.2Q9o2cTUAshb2.sJ28qg1NJl68s886Il2vNd3O9h15T31hhmA4yW0XEf3x9.t5632ZsD2lqX1sJD2xsm1zI13ENK4h9M4dTsA1hA7gyL8yEk5K9a2A6e1


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                             -123.147721066Longitude:
                                             47.232921490999999Latitude:
                                             Underground Storage TankDate Interaction 3:
                                             1998-06-08 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             9205Program ID:
                                             Not reportedFacility Alt.:
                                             USTProgram Data:
                                             TOXICSEcology Program:
                                             USTInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             58873Interaction:

                              68491588Facility Id:
                              CERTIFIED MFG CO INCFacility Name:

ALLSITES:

                         Not reportedDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:

CERTIFIED MFG CO INC  (Continued) U003355811

                                        home ownerProperty Owner Company:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner Agent:
                                        Carl YatesProperty Owner Name:
                                        edenvirollc@gmail.comProject Form Email:
                                        blaine edwardsJob Site CAS:
                                        360-701-3562Phone:
                                        1612Contractor ID:
                                        Not reportedSaturday:
                                        Not reportedFriday:
                                        1Thursday:
                                        Not reportedWednesday:
                                        Not reportedTuesday:
                                        Not reportedMonday:
                                        Not reportedSunday:
                                        3:30 PMSite Hours End:
                                        7:00 AMSite Hours Start:
                                        1Emergency:
                                        Not reportedOff Hold:
                                        Not reportedOn Hold:
                                        Not reportedAmended:
                                        Not reportedInitial:
                                        08/24/2017Completion Date:
                                        08/24/2017Start Date:
                                        08/23/2017Notice Date:
                                        147931##1612EDWAR035900Form ID:
                                        0Parent ID:
                                        houseFacility Type:
                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                        2421 LAUREL STAddress:
                                        HOUSEName:

ASBESTOS:

8003 ft.
1.516 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
221 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
South 2421 LAUREL ST    N/A
169 WA ASBESTOSHOUSE S121366243

TC5712009.2s   Page 427



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        Not reportedOther Resp Pro:
                                        Not reportedType C Pressure:
                                        Not reportedType C Continuous:
                                        Not reportedPAPR:
                                        Not reportedFull Face APR:
                                        1Half Mask APR:
                                        Not reportedOther CM2 Text:
                                        Not reportedOther CM2:
                                        Not reportedOther CM1 Text:
                                        Not reportedOther CM1:
                                        1MANUALMETHODS     :
                                        1HEPA Vacuum:
                                        1Wet Methods:
                                        Not reportedWrap And Cut:
                                        1Critical Barriers:
                                        Not reportedMini Enclosure:
                                        Not reportedGlove Bag:
                                        Not reportedNeg Pres Enclosure:
                                        Not reportedOutdoors:
                                        1Indoors:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other2 Text:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other2:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other1 Text:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other1:
                                        Not reportedDuct Tape:
                                        Not reportedMudded Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedCement Asbestos Pipe:
                                        Not reportedDucting Insulation:
                                        Not reportedAir Cell Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedMag Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedQuantity Lin Ft:
                                        Not reportedSq Ft Other Text:
                                        Not reportedSq Ft Other:
                                        Not reportedRoofing:
                                        Not reportedVAT:
                                        Not reportedDuct Paper:
                                        Not reportedBoiler Insulation:
                                        Not reportedAsbestos Paper:
                                        1Sheet Vinyl:
                                        Not reportedCAB:
                                        Not reportedPopcorn Ceiling:
                                        Not reportedFireproofing:
                                        220Quantity Sq Ft:
                                        Not reportedEncapsulated:
                                        1Removed:
                                        Not reportedFacility Maint:
                                        1Facility Repair:
                                        Not reportedFacility Demo:
                                        Not reportedFacility Remodel:
                                        1200sfFacility Size:
                                        1961Facility Age:
                                        kitchenJob Site Room:
                                        360-898-2481Property Owner Phone:
                                        98584Property Owner Zip4:
                                        waProperty Owner State:
                                        ShetonProperty Owner City:
                                        2421 Laurel StProperty Owner Address:

HOUSE  (Continued) S121366243

TC5712009.2s   Page 428



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        Not reportedContractor Memo:
                                        98589Contractor Mail Zip:
                                        WAContractor Mail State:
                                        TENINOContractor Mail City:
                                        PO BOX 953Contractor Mail Street Address:
                                        Not reportedContractor Web Address:
                                        EDENVIROLLC@GMAIL.COMContractor Email:
                                        Not reportedContractor Phone:
                                        98589Contractor Zip:
                                        WAContractor State:
                                        TENINOContractor City:
                                        PO BOX 953Contractor Street Address:
                                        34Contractor Cnty Code:
                                        Not reportedContractor Suspended Date:
                                        03/23/2017Contractor Exp Date:
                                        Not reportedContractor Renewal Letter Date:
                                        04/26/2016Contractor Effective Date:
                                        04/26/2016Contractor Original Date:
                                        2016-04-26 00:00:00Contractor Cert Prn Date:
                                        Not reportedContact Fax:
                                        3607013562Contact Phone:
                                        BLAINE EDWARDSContact Name:
                                        ActiveContractor Status:
                                        EDWARDS ENVIRONMENTAL LLCContractor Name:
                                        EDWAREL848D3Contractor Cris Num:
                                        MContractor Priority:
                                        603594095Contractor UBI:
                                        1612Contractor ID:

Contractor:

                                        Not reportedCertificate Status:
                                        Not reportedSupervisor Phone:
                                        Not reportedSupervisor:
                                        Not reportedProject Type:
                                        Not reportedNotice type:
                                        Not reportedUBI:
                                        Not reportedRegion:
                                        216.128.110.38Submitter IP Address:
                                        2017-08-23 05:45:27Date Time Submitted:
                                        kitchen and she has granted the emergency permit
                                        I spoke with Lyndsey Banks about the broken pipe that flooded theComments:
                                        Not reportedOther Resp Pro Text:

HOUSE  (Continued) S121366243

                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             HWOTHERInteraction 2:
                                             AInteraction 1:
                                             65824Interaction:

                              81428124Facility Id:
                              WA AGR MASON 1Facility Name:

ALLSITES:

8021 ft.
1.519 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
271 ft.

 

> 1 WA MANIFESTSHELTON, WA  98584
SW RCRA NonGen / NLR751 A W FAIRGROUNDS RD WAH000015826
170 WA ALLSITESWA AGR MASON 1 1005445315

TC5712009.2s   Page 429



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    PO BOX 42589Owner/operator address:
                    WA AGROwner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OperatorOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    360-902-2050Owner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    OLYMPIA, WA 98504
                    PO BOX 42589Owner/operator address:
                    WA AGROwner/operator name:

Owner/Operator Summary:

                    Handler: Non-Generators do not presently generate hazardous wasteDescription:
                    Non-GeneratorClassification:
                    10EPA Region:
                    MDENSLEY@AGR.WA.GOVContact email:
                    360-902-2179Contact telephone:
                    USContact country:
                    OLYMPIA, WA 98504
                    PO BOX 42589Contact address:
                    MATT  DENSLEYContact:
                    OLYMPIA, WA 98504
                    PO BOX 42589Mailing address:
                    WAH000015826EPA ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    751 A W FAIRGROUNDS RDFacility address:
                    WA AGR MASON 1Facility name:
                    03/06/2018Date form received by agency:

RCRA NonGen / NLR:

                                             -123.14419279099999Longitude:
                                             47.233337615000003Latitude:
                                             Hazardous Waste GeneratorDate Interaction 3:
                                             2001-08-20 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             WAH000015826Program ID:
                                             Not reportedFacility Alt.:
                                             TURBOWASTEProgram Data:
                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             HWGInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             65823Interaction:

                                             -123.14419279099999Longitude:
                                             47.233337615000003Latitude:
                                             Haz Waste Management ActiDate Interaction 3:
                                             2002-12-31 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             WAH000015826Program ID:
                                             WA AGR Mason 1Facility Alt.:
                                             TURBOWASTEProgram Data:

WA AGR MASON 1  (Continued) 1005445315

TC5712009.2s   Page 430



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    WA AGR MASON 1Site name:
                    02/28/2014Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    WA AGR MASON 1Site name:
                    02/25/2015Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    WA AGR MASON 1Site name:
                    02/16/2016Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    WA AGR MASON 1Site name:
                    02/23/2017Date form received by agency:

Historical Generators:

                              NoUsed oil transporter:
                              NoUsed oil transfer facility:
                              NoUsed oil Specification marketer:
                              NoUsed oil fuel marketer to burner:
                              NoUser oil refiner:
                              NoUsed oil processor:
                              NoUsed oil fuel burner:
                              NoFurnace exemption:
                              NoOn-site burner exemption:
                              NoUnderground injection activity:
                              NoTreater, storer or disposer of HW:
                              NoTransporter of hazardous waste:
                              NoRecycler of hazardous waste:
                              NoMixed waste (haz. and radioactive):
                              NoU.S. importer of hazardous waste:

Handler Activities Summary:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    360-427-7789Owner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    P O BOX 2286Owner/operator address:
                    MASON COUNTY FAIRGROUNDSOwner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    08/20/2001Owner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    360-902-2050Owner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    OLYMPIA, WA 98504

WA AGR MASON 1  (Continued) 1005445315

TC5712009.2s   Page 431



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    WA AGR MASON 1Site name:
                    12/31/2005Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    WA AGR MASON 1Site name:
                    01/24/2006Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    WA AGR MASON 1Site name:
                    01/11/2007Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    WA AGR MASON 1Site name:
                    01/28/2008Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    WA AGR MASON 1Site name:
                    12/31/2008Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    WA AGR MASON 1Site name:
                    02/10/2009Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    WA AGR MASON 1Site name:
                    02/11/2010Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    WA AGR MASON 1Site name:
                    02/11/2010Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    WA AGR MASON 1Site name:
                    01/18/2011Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    WA AGR MASON 1Site name:
                    10/24/2011Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    WA AGR MASON 1Site name:
                    10/24/2011Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    WA AGR MASON 1Site name:
                    02/28/2012Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    WA AGR MASON 1Site name:
                    02/28/2012Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    WA AGR MASON 1Site name:
                    02/27/2013Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:

WA AGR MASON 1  (Continued) 1005445315

TC5712009.2s   Page 432



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2017Data Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:
                                                        Not reportedFederal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        926140NAICS:
                                                        WAH000015826EPA ID:
                                                        81428124Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        751 A W FAIRGROUNDS RDAddress:
                                                        WA AGR MASON 1Name:

WA MANIFEST:

                    No violations foundViolation Status:

                    Large Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    WA AGR MASON 1Site name:
                    08/20/2001Date form received by agency:

                    Large Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    WA AGR MASON 1Site name:
                    02/27/2002Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    WA AGR MASON 1Site name:
                    02/28/2003Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    WA AGR MASON 1Site name:
                    02/28/2003Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    WA AGR MASON 1Site name:
                    02/12/2004Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    WA AGR MASON 1Site name:
                    12/31/2004Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    WA AGR MASON 1Site name:
                    02/28/2005Date form received by agency:

WA AGR MASON 1  (Continued) 1005445315

TC5712009.2s   Page 433



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        WAH000015826EPA ID:
                                                        81428124Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        751 A W FAIRGROUNDS RDAddress:
                                                        WA AGR MASON 1Name:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        FalseBatch Generation:
                                                        FalseMonthly Generation:
                                                        XQGGen Status Code:
                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Email:
                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Phone Number:
                                                        Not reportedContact City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address:
                                                        Not reportedSite Contact:
                                                        08/20/2001Operator Effective Date:
                                                        (360)902-2050Operator Phone Number:
                                                        OLYMPIA, WA 98504Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        PO BOX 42589Operator Address:
                                                        Not reportedOperator:
                                                        StateOperator Organization Type:
                                                        WA AGROperator Organization Name:
                                                        (360)427-7789Land Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        P O Box 2286Land Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        StateLand Organization Type:
                                                        Mason County FairgroundsLand Organization Name:
                                                        08/20/2001Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (360)902-2050Legal Phone Number:
                                                        OLYMPIA, WA 98504Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        PO BOX 42589Legal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        StateLegal Organization Type:
                                                        WA AGRLegal Organization Name:
                                                        OLYMPIA, WA 98504Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        PO Box 42589Mailing Address:
                                                        Not reportedMail Name:
                                                        Not reportedBusiness Type:
                                                        342008829Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:

WA AGR MASON 1  (Continued) 1005445315

TC5712009.2s   Page 434



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        FalseBatch Generation:
                                                        FalseMonthly Generation:
                                                        XQGGen Status Code:
                                                        jhoffman@agr.wa.govSite Contact Email:
                                                        (360)902-2048Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        OLYMPIA, WA 98504-2589Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        PO BOX 42589Site Contact Address:
                                                        Joe  HoffmanSite Contact:
                                                        08/20/2001Operator Effective Date:
                                                        (360)902-2050Operator Phone Number:
                                                        OLYMPIA, WA 98504-2589Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        PO BOX 42589Operator Address:
                                                        Joe  HoffmanOperator:
                                                        StateOperator Organization Type:
                                                        WA AGROperator Organization Name:
                                                        (360)427-7789Land Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        P O Box 2286Land Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        CountyLand Organization Type:
                                                        Mason County FairgroundsLand Organization Name:
                                                        08/20/2001Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (360)902-2050Legal Phone Number:
                                                        OLYMPIA, WA 98504-2589Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        PO BOX 42589Legal Address:
                                                        Joe  HoffmanLegal Contact:
                                                        StateLegal Organization Type:
                                                        WA AGRLegal Organization Name:
                                                        OLYMPIA, WA 98504-2589Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        PO Box 42589Mailing Address:
                                                        WSDA Pesticide Disposal ProgramMail Name:
                                                        Pesticide Disposal EventBusiness Type:
                                                        342008829Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2017Data Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:
                                                        Not reportedFederal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        926140NAICS:

WA AGR MASON 1  (Continued) 1005445315

TC5712009.2s   Page 435



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Mason County FairgroundsLand Organization Name:
                                                        08/20/2001Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (360)902-2050Legal Phone Number:
                                                        OLYMPIA, WA 98504-2589Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        PO BOX 42589Legal Address:
                                                        Joe  HoffmanLegal Contact:
                                                        StateLegal Organization Type:
                                                        WA AGRLegal Organization Name:
                                                        OLYMPIA, WA 98504-2589Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        PO Box 42589Mailing Address:
                                                        WSDA Pesticide Disposal ProgramMail Name:
                                                        Pesticide Disposal EventBusiness Type:
                                                        342008829Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2016Data Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:
                                                        Not reportedFederal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        926140NAICS:
                                                        WAH000015826EPA ID:
                                                        81428124Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        751 A W FAIRGROUNDS RDAddress:
                                                        WA AGR MASON 1Name:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:

WA AGR MASON 1  (Continued) 1005445315

TC5712009.2s   Page 436



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2015Data Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:
                                                        Not reportedFederal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        926140NAICS:
                                                        WAH000015826EPA ID:
                                                        81428124Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        751 A W FAIRGROUNDS RDAddress:
                                                        WA AGR MASON 1Name:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        FalseBatch Generation:
                                                        FalseMonthly Generation:
                                                        XQGGen Status Code:
                                                        jhoffman@agr.wa.govSite Contact Email:
                                                        (360)902-2048Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        OLYMPIA, WA 98504-2589Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        PO BOX 42589Site Contact Address:
                                                        Joe  HoffmanSite Contact:
                                                        08/20/2001Operator Effective Date:
                                                        (360)902-2050Operator Phone Number:
                                                        OLYMPIA, WA 98504-2589Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        PO BOX 42589Operator Address:
                                                        Joe  HoffmanOperator:
                                                        StateOperator Organization Type:
                                                        WA AGROperator Organization Name:
                                                        (360)427-7789Land Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        P O Box 2286Land Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        CountyLand Organization Type:

WA AGR MASON 1  (Continued) 1005445315

TC5712009.2s   Page 437



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        FalseBatch Generation:
                                                        FalseMonthly Generation:
                                                        XQGGen Status Code:
                                                        jhoffman@agr.wa.govSite Contact Email:
                                                        (360)902-2048Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        OLYMPIA, WA 98504-2589Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        PO BOX 42589Site Contact Address:
                                                        Joe  HoffmanSite Contact:
                                                        08/20/2001Operator Effective Date:
                                                        (360)902-2050Operator Phone Number:
                                                        OLYMPIA, WA 98504-2589Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        PO BOX 42589Operator Address:
                                                        Joe  HoffmanOperator:
                                                        StateOperator Organization Type:
                                                        WA AGROperator Organization Name:
                                                        (360)427-7789Land Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        P O Box 2286Land Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        CountyLand Organization Type:
                                                        Mason County FairgroundsLand Organization Name:
                                                        08/20/2001Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (360)902-2050Legal Phone Number:
                                                        OLYMPIA, WA 98504-2589Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        PO BOX 42589Legal Address:
                                                        Joe  HoffmanLegal Contact:
                                                        StateLegal Organization Type:
                                                        WA AGRLegal Organization Name:
                                                        OLYMPIA, WA 98504-2589Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        PO Box 42589Mailing Address:
                                                        WSDA Pesticide Disposal ProgramMail Name:
                                                        Pesticide Disposal EventBusiness Type:
                                                        342008829Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:

WA AGR MASON 1  (Continued) 1005445315

TC5712009.2s   Page 438



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        PO BOX 42589Site Contact Address:
                                                        Joe  HoffmanSite Contact:
                                                        08/20/2001Operator Effective Date:
                                                        (360)902-2050Operator Phone Number:
                                                        OLYMPIA, WA 98504-2589Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        PO BOX 42589Operator Address:
                                                        Joe  HoffmanOperator:
                                                        StateOperator Organization Type:
                                                        WA AGROperator Organization Name:
                                                        (360)427-7789Land Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        P O Box 2286Land Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        CountyLand Organization Type:
                                                        Mason County FairgroundsLand Organization Name:
                                                        08/20/2001Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (360)902-2050Legal Phone Number:
                                                        OLYMPIA, WA 98504-2589Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        PO BOX 42589Legal Address:
                                                        Joe  HoffmanLegal Contact:
                                                        StateLegal Organization Type:
                                                        WA AGRLegal Organization Name:
                                                        OLYMPIA, WA 98504-2589Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        PO Box 42589Mailing Address:
                                                        WSDA Pesticide Disposal ProgramMail Name:
                                                        Pesticide Disposal EventBusiness Type:
                                                        342008829Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2014Data Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:
                                                        Not reportedFederal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        926140NAICS:
                                                        WAH000015826EPA ID:
                                                        81428124Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        751 A W FAIRGROUNDS RDAddress:
                                                        WA AGR MASON 1Name:

WA AGR MASON 1  (Continued) 1005445315

TC5712009.2s   Page 439



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Joe  HoffmanLegal Contact:
                                                        StateLegal Organization Type:
                                                        WA AGRLegal Organization Name:
                                                        OLYMPIA, WA 98504-2589Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        PO Box 42589Mailing Address:
                                                        WSDA Pesticide Disposal ProgramMail Name:
                                                        Pesticide Disposal EventBusiness Type:
                                                        342008829Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2013Data Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:
                                                        Not reportedFederal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        926140NAICS:
                                                        WAH000015826EPA ID:
                                                        81428124Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        751 A W FAIRGROUNDS RDAddress:
                                                        WA AGR MASON 1Name:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        FalseBatch Generation:
                                                        FalseMonthly Generation:
                                                        XQGGen Status Code:
                                                        jhoffman@agr.wa.govSite Contact Email:
                                                        (360)902-2048Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        OLYMPIA, WA 98504-2589Contact City,State,Zip:

WA AGR MASON 1  (Continued) 1005445315

TC5712009.2s   Page 440



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2012Data Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:
                                                        Not reportedFederal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        926140NAICS:
                                                        WAH000015826EPA ID:
                                                        81428124Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        751 A W FAIRGROUNDS RDAddress:
                                                        WA AGR MASON 1Name:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        FalseBatch Generation:
                                                        FalseMonthly Generation:
                                                        XQGGen Status Code:
                                                        jhoffman@agr.wa.govSite Contact Email:
                                                        (360)902-2048Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        OLYMPIA, WA 98504-2589Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        PO BOX 42589Site Contact Address:
                                                        Joe  HoffmanSite Contact:
                                                        08/20/2001Operator Effective Date:
                                                        (360)902-2050Operator Phone Number:
                                                        OLYMPIA, WA 98504-2589Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        PO BOX 42589Operator Address:
                                                        Joe  HoffmanOperator:
                                                        StateOperator Organization Type:
                                                        WA AGROperator Organization Name:
                                                        (360)427-7789Land Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        P O Box 2286Land Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        CountyLand Organization Type:
                                                        Mason County FairgroundsLand Organization Name:
                                                        08/20/2001Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (360)902-2050Legal Phone Number:
                                                        OLYMPIA, WA 98504-2589Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        PO BOX 42589Legal Address:

WA AGR MASON 1  (Continued) 1005445315

TC5712009.2s   Page 441



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        FalseBatch Generation:
                                                        FalseMonthly Generation:
                                                        XQGGen Status Code:
                                                        jhoffman@agr.wa.govSite Contact Email:
                                                        (360)902-2048Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        OLYMPIA, WA 98504-2589Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        PO BOX 42589Site Contact Address:
                                                        Joe  HoffmanSite Contact:
                                                        08/20/2001Operator Effective Date:
                                                        (360)902-2050Operator Phone Number:
                                                        OLYMPIA, WA 98504-2589Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        PO BOX 42589Operator Address:
                                                        Joe  HoffmanOperator:
                                                        StateOperator Organization Type:
                                                        WA AGROperator Organization Name:
                                                        (360)427-7789Land Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        P O Box 2286Land Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        CountyLand Organization Type:
                                                        Mason County FairgroundsLand Organization Name:
                                                        08/20/2001Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (360)902-2050Legal Phone Number:
                                                        OLYMPIA, WA 98504-2589Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        PO BOX 42589Legal Address:
                                                        Joe  HoffmanLegal Contact:
                                                        StateLegal Organization Type:
                                                        WA AGRLegal Organization Name:
                                                        OLYMPIA, WA 98504-2589Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        PO Box 42589Mailing Address:
                                                        WSDA Pesticide Disposal ProgramMail Name:
                                                        Pesticide Disposal EventBusiness Type:
                                                        342008829Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:

WA AGR MASON 1  (Continued) 1005445315

TC5712009.2s   Page 442



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        PO BOX 42589Operator Address:
                                                        Joe  HoffmanOperator:
                                                        StateOperator Organization Type:
                                                        WA AGROperator Organization Name:
                                                        (360)427-7789Land Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        P O Box 2286Land Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        CountyLand Organization Type:
                                                        Mason County FairgroundsLand Organization Name:
                                                        08/20/2001Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (360)902-2050Legal Phone Number:
                                                        OLYMPIA, WA 98504-2589Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        PO BOX 42589Legal Address:
                                                        Joe  HoffmanLegal Contact:
                                                        StateLegal Organization Type:
                                                        WA AGRLegal Organization Name:
                                                        OLYMPIA, WA 98504-2589Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        PO Box 42589Mailing Address:
                                                        WSDA Pesticide Disposal ProgramMail Name:
                                                        Pesticide Disposal EventBusiness Type:
                                                        342008829Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2011Data Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:
                                                        Not reportedFederal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        926140NAICS:
                                                        WAH000015826EPA ID:
                                                        81428124Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        751 A W FAIRGROUNDS RDAddress:
                                                        WA AGR MASON 1Name:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:

WA AGR MASON 1  (Continued) 1005445315

TC5712009.2s   Page 443



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Pesticide Disposal EventBusiness Type:
                                                        342008829Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2010Data Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:
                                                        Not reportedFederal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        926140NAICS:
                                                        WAH000015826EPA ID:
                                                        81428124Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        751 A W FAIRGROUNDS RDAddress:
                                                        WA AGR MASON 1Name:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        FalseBatch Generation:
                                                        FalseMonthly Generation:
                                                        XQGGen Status Code:
                                                        jhoffman@agr.wa.govSite Contact Email:
                                                        (360)902-2048Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        OLYMPIA, WA 98504-2589Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        PO BOX 42589Site Contact Address:
                                                        Joe  HoffmanSite Contact:
                                                        08/20/2001Operator Effective Date:
                                                        (360)902-2050Operator Phone Number:
                                                        OLYMPIA, WA 98504-2589Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:

WA AGR MASON 1  (Continued) 1005445315

TC5712009.2s   Page 444



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Not reportedFederal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        Not reportedState Waste Code Desc:
                                                        926140NAICS:
                                                        WAH000015826EPA ID:
                                                        81428124Facility ID:
                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        751 A W FAIRGROUNDS RDAddress:
                                                        WA AGR MASON 1Name:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        FalseBatch Generation:
                                                        FalseMonthly Generation:
                                                        XQGGen Status Code:
                                                        jhoffman@agr.wa.govSite Contact Email:
                                                        (360)902-2048Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        OLYMPIA, WA 98504-2589Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        PO BOX 42589Site Contact Address:
                                                        Joe  HoffmanSite Contact:
                                                        08/20/2001Operator Effective Date:
                                                        (360)902-2050Operator Phone Number:
                                                        OLYMPIA, WA 98504-2589Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        PO BOX 42589Operator Address:
                                                        Joe  HoffmanOperator:
                                                        StateOperator Organization Type:
                                                        WA AGROperator Organization Name:
                                                        (360)427-7789Land Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        P O Box 2286Land Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        CountyLand Organization Type:
                                                        Mason County FairgroundsLand Organization Name:
                                                        08/20/2001Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (360)902-2050Legal Phone Number:
                                                        OLYMPIA, WA 98504-2589Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        PO BOX 42589Legal Address:
                                                        Joe  HoffmanLegal Contact:
                                                        StateLegal Organization Type:
                                                        WA AGRLegal Organization Name:
                                                        OLYMPIA, WA 98504-2589Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        PO Box 42589Mailing Address:
                                                        WSDA Pesticide Disposal ProgramMail Name:

WA AGR MASON 1  (Continued) 1005445315

TC5712009.2s   Page 445



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        FalseBatch Generation:
                                                        FalseMonthly Generation:
                                                        XQGGen Status Code:
                                                        jhoffman@agr.wa.govSite Contact Email:
                                                        (360)902-2048Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        OLYMPIA, WA 98504-2589Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        PO BOX 42589Site Contact Address:
                                                        Joe  HoffmanSite Contact:
                                                        08/20/2001Operator Effective Date:
                                                        (360)902-2050Operator Phone Number:
                                                        OLYMPIA, WA 98504-2589Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        PO BOX 42589Operator Address:
                                                        Joe  HoffmanOperator:
                                                        StateOperator Organization Type:
                                                        WA AGROperator Organization Name:
                                                        (360)427-7789Land Phone Number:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        P O Box 2286Land Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        CountyLand Organization Type:
                                                        Mason County FairgroundsLand Organization Name:
                                                        08/20/2001Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (360)902-2050Legal Phone Number:
                                                        OLYMPIA, WA 98504-2589Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        PO BOX 42589Legal Address:
                                                        Joe  HoffmanLegal Contact:
                                                        StateLegal Organization Type:
                                                        WA AGRLegal Organization Name:
                                                        OLYMPIA, WA 98504-2589Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        PO Box 42589Mailing Address:
                                                        WSDA Pesticide Disposal ProgramMail Name:
                                                        Pesticide Disposal EventBusiness Type:
                                                        342008829Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2009Data Year:
                                                        Not reportedForm Comm:

WA AGR MASON 1  (Continued) 1005445315

TC5712009.2s   Page 446



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

1 additional WA MANIFEST: record(s) in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:

WA AGR MASON 1  (Continued) 1005445315

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110038118685Registry ID:

FINDS:

8026 ft. Site 1 of 4 in cluster AI
1.520 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
219 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
South 2508 OLYMPIC HWY N    N/A
AI171 FINDSBONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN SHELTON SUBSTATIO 1011975102

N
2009     BONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN SHELTON SUBSTATIO     2508 OLYMPIC HWY
N
2010     BONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN SHELTON SUBSTATIO     2508 OLYMPIC HWY
N
2011     BONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN SHELTON SUBSTATIO     2508 OLYMPIC HWY
N
2012     BONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN SHELTON SUBSTATIO     2508 OLYMPIC HWY

RGA HWS:

8026 ft. Site 2 of 4 in cluster AI
1.520 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
219 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  
South 2508 OLYMPIC HWY N    N/A
AI172 WA RGA HWSBONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN SHELTON SUBSTATIO S115340880

TC5712009.2s   Page 447

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=61t76o4k1RTzt6NP7GYJ3lmLo38p4rezkBydA1gURevmTRH4zQDH4f9E6zcoN5fFPStG3Vv.GymTY7iqJd8k4SZHlW3YmlcxLZoO4Wr33tzc8dVOp9nnBOW0rFHDe0u8zpEa3LdhBEPcyJAJdUfX3n081.ZsgfGpUF836TQk1I55t3kq7gaC3XodoMZ84ovZkxM195mGRphDTJSOzaUK3SUP6EjcN6IxPkeYA634GXEvY9JmJvq6474rlClUmg8vLnsk43e83WId8ZE4pS7f4ERKr3KmerVjz5TbC69sBckLyy15dOD86HI51wOntuIb7A6w4e5ToclA4pNlkXor3Eb6RkvpTb8czAo88pSU6AQsN6A.P.yJA0GxGIrwYNjfJe944Rl8li7ImjqrLA6i5GyQ3PP08pAFpTp43KVgrJzAesAMzssK35JpB.q.ygfpdPWmCDXh1VKWgNtOUGxO2byze9cFvbgQmzwZ5tvnRRHnHIxY4kNsvhCPQyYaDdY.HvZB6XDf1gYBtLzQ7ECC4sN7oXLj4tYFkS9z38CJR3gaThqAz7gx4SPl6Ad5NrsxPRhb3owtG5WnYp4HJhFw3FYJlkt.mOx8Lhq.83VM3ZIu8EHzpgCE71NTrvL1eOwHz4oT7tOhBkgIybtVdNSe8rKo1bD6gJwtUx8c64YLe3yTvU5cmdhE4BTXRD1SH8FX4qQ98YDvQykPDDJxHsQU3
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=61t76o4k1RTzt6NP7GYJ3lmLo38p4rezkBydA1gURevmTRH4zQDH4f9E6zcoN5fFPStG3Vv.GymTY7iqJd8k4SZHlW3YmlcxLZoO4Wr33tzc8dVOp9nnBOW0rFHDe0u8zpEa3LdhBEPcyJAJdUfX3n081.ZsgfGpUF836TQk1I55t3kq7gaC3XodoMZ84ovZkxM195mGRphDTJSOzaUK3SUP6EjcN6IxPkeYA634GXEvY9JmJvq6474rlClUmg8vLnsk43e83WId8ZE4pS7f4ERKr3KmerVjz5TbC69sBckLyy15dOD86HI51wOntuIb7A6w4e5ToclA4pNlkXor3Eb6RkvpTb8czAo88pSU6AQsN6A.P.yJA0GxGIrwYNjfJe944Rl8li7ImjqrLA6i5GyQ3PP08pAFpTp43KVgrJzAesAMzssK35JpB.q.ygfpdPWmCDXh1VKWgNtOUGxO2byze9cFvbgQmzwZ5tvnRRHnHIxY4kNsvhCPQyYaDdY.HvZB6XDf1gYBtLzQ7ECC4sN7oXLj4tYFkS9z38CJR3gaThqAz7gx4SPl6Ad5NrsxPRhb3owtG5WnYp4HJhFw3FYJlkt.mOx8Lhq.83VM3ZIu8EHzpgCE71NTrvL1eOwHz4oT7tOhBkgIybtVdNSe8rKo1bD6gJwtUx8c64YLe3yTvU5cmdhE4BTXRD1SH8FX4qQ98YDvQykPDDJxHsQU3
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=61t76o4k1RTzt6NP7GYJ3lmLo38p4rezkBydA1gURevmTRH4zQDH4f9E6zcoN5fFPStG3Vv.GymTY7iqJd8k4SZHlW3YmlcxLZoO4Wr33tzc8dVOp9nnBOW0rFHDe0u8zpEa3LdhBEPcyJAJdUfX3n081.ZsgfGpUF836TQk1I55t3kq7gaC3XodoMZ84ovZkxM195mGRphDTJSOzaUK3SUP6EjcN6IxPkeYA634GXEvY9JmJvq6474rlClUmg8vLnsk43e83WId8ZE4pS7f4ERKr3KmerVjz5TbC69sBckLyy15dOD86HI51wOntuIb7A6w4e5ToclA4pNlkXor3Eb6RkvpTb8czAo88pSU6AQsN6A.P.yJA0GxGIrwYNjfJe944Rl8li7ImjqrLA6i5GyQ3PP08pAFpTp43KVgrJzAesAMzssK35JpB.q.ygfpdPWmCDXh1VKWgNtOUGxO2byze9cFvbgQmzwZ5tvnRRHnHIxY4kNsvhCPQyYaDdY.HvZB6XDf1gYBtLzQ7ECC4sN7oXLj4tYFkS9z38CJR3gaThqAz7gx4SPl6Ad5NrsxPRhb3owtG5WnYp4HJhFw4FYJlkt.mOx8Lhq.43VM3ZIu8EHzpgCEC1NTrvL1eOwHz4oTAtOhBkgIybtVdNSe8rKo1bD6gJwtUx8c44YLe3yTvU5cmdhE3BTXRD1SH8FX4qQ95YDvQykPDDJxHsQU3
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=61t76o4k1RTzt6NP7GYJ3lmLo38p4rezkBydA1gURevmTRH4zQDH4f9E6zcoN5fFPStG3Vv.GymTY7iqJd8k4SZHlW3YmlcxLZoO4Wr33tzc8dVOp9nnBOW0rFHDe0u8zpEa3LdhBEPcyJAJdUfX3n081.ZsgfGpUF836TQk1I55t3kq7gaC3XodoMZ84ovZkxM195mGRphDTJSOzaUK3SUP6EjcN6IxPkeYA634GXEvY9JmJvq6474rlClUmg8vLnsk43e83WId8ZE4pS7f4ERKr3KmerVjz5TbC69sBckLyy15dOD86HI51wOntuIb7A6w4e5ToclA4pNlkXor3Eb6RkvpTb8czAo88pSU6AQsN6A.P.yJA0GxGIrwYNjfJe944Rl8li7ImjqrLA6i5GyQ3PP08pAFpTp43KVgrJzAesAMzssK35JpB.q.ygfpdPWmCDXh1VKWgNtOUGxO2byze9cFvbgQmzwZ5tvnRRHnHIxY4kNsvhCPQyYaDdY.HvZB6XDf1gYBtLzQ7ECC4sN7oXLj4tYFkS9z38CJR3gaThqAz7gx4SPl6Ad5NrsxPRhb3owtG5WnYp4HJhFw4FYJlkt.mOx8Lhq.43VM3ZIu8EHzpgCEC1NTrvL1eOwHz4oTAtOhBkgIybtVdNSe8rKo1bD6gJwtUx8c44YLe3yTvU5cmdhE3BTXRD1SH8FX4qQ95YDvQykPDDJxHsQU3


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                         ABOVEPipeline Above Ground:
                         UDOT Regulated:
                         UNKNOWNPipeline Type:
                         UNPDES Compliance:
                         Not reportedNPDES:
                         Not reportedType of Fuel:
                         Not reportedGenerating Capacity:
                         UPower Generating Facility:
                         UNKNOWNType of Fixed Object:
                         Not reportedBuilding ID:
                         Not reportedRoad Mile Marker:
                         Not reportedAircraft Runway Number:
                         Not reportedAircraft Hanger:
                         Not reportedAircraft Spot Number:
                         Not reportedAircraft Fuel on Board Units:
                         Not reportedAircraft Fuel on Board:
                         Not reportedAircraft Fuel Capacity Units:
                         Not reportedAircraft Fuel Capacity:
                         Not reportedAircraft ID:
                         Not reportedAircraft Model:
                         UNKNOWNAircraft Type:
                         53897NRC Report #:

Incidents:

                         Not reportedPotential Range:
                         Not reportedLocation range:
                         Not reportedLocation Township:
                         Not reportedLocation Section:
                         Not reportedLong Quad:
                         Not reportedLong Sec:
                         Not reportedLong Min:
                         Not reportedLong Deg:
                         Not reportedLat Quad:
                         Not reportedLat Sec:
                         Not reportedLat Min:
                         Not reportedLat Deg:
                         Not reportedDirection From City:
                         Not reportedDistance Units:
                         Not reportedDistance From City:
                         Not reportedLocation Zip:
                         MASONLocation County:
                         WALocation State:
                         SHELTONLocation Nearest City:
                         Not reportedLocation Street 2:
                         Not reportedLocation Street 1:
                         2508 OLYMPIC HWY NLoaction Address:
                         Not reportedIncident Location:
                         OCCURREDIncident DTG:
                         1991-01-07 06:37:00Incident Date Time:
                         EQUIPMENT FAILUREIncident Cause:
                         FIXEDType of Incident:
                         CAPACITOR RUPTUREDDescription of Incident:
                         53897NRC Report #:

Incident Commons:

8026 ft. Site 3 of 4 in cluster AI
1.520 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
219 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  
South 2508 OLYMPIC HWY N    N/A
AI173 ERNS 9153897

TC5712009.2s   Page 448



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                         Not reportedOther Employee Testing:
                         Not reportedSignalman Testing:
                         Not reportedTrain Dispatcher Testing:
                         Not reportedBrakeman Testing:
                         Not reportedRCL Operator Testing:
                         Not reportedYard Foreman Testing:
                         Not reportedTrainman Testing:
                         Not reportedEngineer Testing:
                         Not reportedConductor Testing:
                         XXXSub Part C Testing Req:
                         Not reportedFBI Contact Date Time:
                         Not reportedFBI Contact:
                         Not reportedCR Change Date:
                         Not reportedCR End Date:
                         Not reportedCR Begin Date:
                         Not reportedTransit Bus Flag:
                         Not reportedService Disruption Units:
                         Not reportedService Disruption Time:
                         Not reportedDate Tiem Normal Service:
                         Not reportedAirbag Deployed:
                         YStructure Operational:
                         Not reportedStructure Name:
                         Not reportedType of Structure:
                         NAllision:
                         Not reportedContinuous Release Permit:
                         Not reportedInitial Continuous Release No:
                         Not reportedContinuous Release Type:
                         Not reportedBerth Slip Number:
                         Not reportedPier Dock Number:
                         Not reportedState Lease Number:
                         Not reportedOCSP Number:
                         Not reportedOCSG Number:
                         Not reportedLocation Block ID:
                         Not reportedLocation Area ID:
                         Not reportedPlatform Letter:
                         Not reportedPlatform Rig Name:
                         Not reportedActual Amount Units:
                         Not reportedActual Amount:
                         Not reportedCapacity of Tank Units:
                         Not reportedCapacity of Tank:
                         Not reportedTank ID:
                         Not reportedTank Regulated By:
                         UTank Regulated:
                         UTransportable Container:
                         ABOVETank Above Ground:
                         Not reportedDescription of Tank:
                         NBrake Failure:
                         Not reportedDOT Crossing Number:
                         YDevice Operational:
                         Not reportedCrossing Device Type:
                         UNKNOWNType Vehicle Involved:
                         UNKNOWNRailroad Milepost:
                         Not reportedLocation Subdivision:
                         NGrade Crossing:
                         NRailroad Hotline:
                         UPipeline Covered:
                         UExposed Underwater:

  (Continued) 9153897

TC5712009.2s   Page 449



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                         Not reportedCurrent Speed:
                         Not reportedWave Condition:
                         Not reportedSheen Odor Description:
                         Not reportedDirection of Sheen Travel:
                         Not reportedSheen Color:
                         Not reportedSheen Size:
                         Not reportedWater Supply Contaminated:
                         Not reportedWind Direction:
                         Not reportedWind Speed:
                         Not reportedAir Temperature:
                         Not reportedWeather Conditions:
                         Not reportedOther Agency Notified:
                         Not reportedState Agency Report Number:
                         Not reportedState Agency on Scene:
                         USING SORBENTS AND EXCAVATING THE SOILDesc Remedial Action:
                         Not reportedRelease rate:
                         Not reportedEstimated Duration of Release:
                         Not reportedRelease Secured:
                         Not reportedTributary of:
                         Not reportedBody of Water:
                         SOILAdditional Medium Info:
                         LANDMedium Desc:
                         Not reportedMedia Interest:
                         Not reportedTrack Closure Time:
                         Not reportedTrack Desc:
                         Not reportedTrack Closed:
                         Not reportedMajor Artery:
                         Not reportedClosure Direction:
                         Not reportedRoad Closure Time:
                         Not reportedRoad Desc:
                         Not reportedRoad Closed:
                         Not reportedWaterway Closure Time:
                         Not reportedWaterway Desc:
                         Not reportedWaterway Closed:
                         Not reportedAir Closure Time:
                         Not reportedAir Corridor Desc:
                         Not reportedAir Corridor Closed:
                         Not reportedDamage Amount:
                         NAny Damages:
                         Not reportedNumber Fatalities:
                         UAny Fatalities:
                         Not reportedNumber Hospitalized:
                         Not reportedNumber Injured:
                         UAny Injuries:
                         Not reportedRadius of Evacuation:
                         Not reportedWho Evacuated:
                         Not reportedNumber Evacuated:
                         NAny Evacuations:
                         Not reportedFire Extinguished:
                         NFire Involved:
                         53897NRC Report #:

Incident Details:

                         XXXPassenger Delay:
                         XXXPassenger Route:
                         Not reportedPassenger Handling:
                         Not reportedUnknown Testing:

  (Continued) 9153897

TC5712009.2s   Page 450



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                         NONEUnit of Measure Reach Water:
                         0Amount in Water:
                         YESIf Reached Water:
                         POLYCHLORINATED BIPHENYLSName of Material:
                         GALLON(S)Unit of Measure:
                         1Amount of Material:
                         Not reportedUN Number:
                         Not reportedCase Number:
                         PCBChris Code:
                         53897NRC Report #:

Material Involved:

                         UNAVAILABLESource:
                         Not reportedOn Behalf:
                         98584Responsible Zip:
                         WAResponsible State:
                         SHELTONResponsible City:
                         PUBLIC UTILITYResponsible Org Type:
                         BONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN.Responsible Company:
                         INCCall Type:
                         1991-01-07 12:26:13Date Time Complete:
                         1991-01-07 12:23:37Date Time Received:
                         9153897Site ID:
                         53897NRC Report #:

Calls:

                         UNKPassengers Transferred:
                         Not reportedRelease Rate Rate:
                         Not reportedRelease Rate Unit:
                         Not reportedDuration Unit:
                         Not reportedOffshore:
                         Not reportedSheen Size Width Units:
                         Not reportedSheen Size Width:
                         Not reportedSheen Size Length Units:
                         Not reportedSheen Size Length:
                         Not reportednearest River Mile Marker:
                         Not reportedFederal Agency Notified:
                         Not reportedState Agency Notified:
                         Not reportedAdditional Info:
                         Not reportedSheen Size Units:
                         Not reportedTrack CLosure Units:
                         Not reportedRoad Closure Units:
                         Not reportedCurrent Speed Unit:
                         Not reportedOccupant Fatality:
                         Not reportedPassenger Injuries:
                         Not reportedEmployee Injuries:
                         Not reportedWind Speed Unit:
                         Not reportedCommunity Impact:
                         Not reportedPass Fatality:
                         Not reportedEmpl Fatality:
                         Not reportedTrack Close Dir:
                         Not reportedWater Temperature:
                         Not reportedCurrent Direction:

  (Continued) 9153897

TC5712009.2s   Page 451



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                             121124Interaction:

                                             -123.123763071Longitude:
                                             47.226716488000001Latitude:
                                             State Cleanup SiteDate Interaction 3:
                                             2007-12-03 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             Not reportedProgram ID:
                                             BONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN SHELTON SUBSTATIOFacility Alt.:
                                             ISISProgram Data:
                                             TOXICSEcology Program:
                                             SCSInteraction 2:
                                             AInteraction 1:
                                             24589Interaction:

                              9434357Facility Id:
                              BONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN SHELTON SUBSTATIOFacility Name:

ALLSITES:

          SouthwestResponsible Unit:
          Not reportedBedrock:
          Not reportedAir:
          Not reportedSediment:
          Confirmed Above Cleanup LevelSoil:
          Not reportedSurface Water:
          Not reportedGround Water:
          Polychlorinated biPhenyls (PCB)Contaminant Name:
          Not reportedPSI?:
          Awaiting CleanupSite Status:
          1636Clean Up Siteid:
          NRank Status:
          Not reportedBrownfield Status:
          47.226722 / -123.123778Lat/Long:
          SouthwestRegion:
          9434357Facility ID:

          SouthwestResponsible Unit:
          Not reportedBedrock:
          Not reportedAir:
          Not reportedSediment:
          Confirmed Above Cleanup LevelSoil:
          Not reportedSurface Water:
          Not reportedGround Water:
          Petroleum Products-UnspecifiedContaminant Name:
          Not reportedPSI?:
          Awaiting CleanupSite Status:
          1636Clean Up Siteid:
          NRank Status:
          Not reportedBrownfield Status:
          47.226722 / -123.123778Lat/Long:
          SouthwestRegion:
          9434357Facility ID:

CSCSL:

8026 ft. Site 4 of 4 in cluster AI
1.520 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
219 ft.

 

> 1 WA SPILLSSHELTON, WA  98584
South WA ALLSITES2508 OLYMPIC HWY N    N/A
AI174 WA CSCSLBONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN SHELTON SUBSTATIO S107154284

TC5712009.2s   Page 452



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              Not reportedResp Party Contact:
                              Not reportedRecovered Quantity:
                              Not reportedVessel Facility Name2:
                              Not reportedSource:
                              Not reportedSource Type:
                              Not reportedLongitude:
                              Not reportedLatitude:
                              Not reportedIncident Category:
                              Not reportedIncident Category Type:
                              Not reportedIncident Date:
                              Not reportedContact Name:
                              12/03/2007Date Received:
                              GALLONMaterial Units:
                              1400Material Qty:
                              PETROLEUM - MINERAL OILMaterial Desc:
                              Not reportedMedium:
                              602368Facility ID:
                              SHELTON, WACity,State,Zip:
                              2508 OLYMPIC HWY NAddress:
                              Not reportedName:

                              Not reportedResp Party Name:
                              Not reportedCause Type:
                              Not reportedCause:
                              Not reportedResp Party Contact:
                              Not reportedRecovered Quantity:
                              Not reportedVessel Facility Name2:
                              Not reportedSource:
                              Not reportedSource Type:
                              Not reportedLongitude:
                              Not reportedLatitude:
                              Not reportedIncident Category:
                              Not reportedIncident Category Type:
                              Not reportedIncident Date:
                              Not reportedContact Name:
                              11/21/1998Date Received:
                              GALLONMaterial Units:
                              30Material Qty:
                              TRANSFORMER OILMaterial Desc:
                              Not reportedMedium:
                              501139Facility ID:
                              SHELTON, WACity,State,Zip:
                              2508 OLYMPIC HWY NAddress:
                              BONNEVILLE POWERName:

SPILLS:

                                             -123.123763071Longitude:
                                             47.226716488000001Latitude:
                                             Emergency/Haz Chem Rpt TIDate Interaction 3:
                                             2017-02-21 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             CRK000090310Program ID:
                                             BPA SHELTON SUBSTATIONFacility Alt.:
                                             EPCRAProgram Data:
                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             TIER2Interaction 2:
                                             AInteraction 1:

BONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN SHELTON SUBSTATIO  (Continued) S107154284

TC5712009.2s   Page 453



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              Not reportedResp Party Name:
                              Not reportedCause Type:
                              Not reportedCause:

BONNEVILLE POWER ADMIN SHELTON SUBSTATIO  (Continued) S107154284

                                        DSAction Code:
                                        00OU:
                                        NFF:
                                        NNPL:
                                        SHELTON MUNICIPAL AIRPORTSite Name:
                                        WA0001101955EPA ID:
                                        1001835Site ID:
                                        10Region:

                                        EPA PerfCurrent Action Lead:
                                        NQual:
                                        1996-04-08 04:00:00Finish Date:
                                        1996-04-08 04:00:00Start Date:
                                        1SEQ:
                                        PAAction Name:
                                        PAAction Code:
                                        00OU:
                                        NFF:
                                        NNPL:
                                        SHELTON MUNICIPAL AIRPORTSite Name:
                                        WA0001101955EPA ID:
                                        1001835Site ID:
                                        10Region:

                                        EPA Perf In-HseCurrent Action Lead:
                                        Not reportedQual:
                                        1996-04-08 04:00:00Finish Date:
                                        Not reportedStart Date:
                                        1SEQ:
                                        ARCH SITEAction Name:
                                        VSAction Code:
                                        00OU:
                                        NFF:
                                        NNPL:
                                        SHELTON MUNICIPAL AIRPORTSite Name:
                                        WA0001101955EPA ID:
                                        1001835Site ID:
                                        10Region:

SEMS Archive Detail:

                         NFRAP-Site does not qualify for the NPL based on existing informationNon NPL Status:
                         Not on the NPLNPL:
                         NFF:
                         53045FIPS Code:
                         02Cong District:
                         WA0001101955EPA ID:
                         1001835Site ID:

SEMS Archive:

8056 ft.
1.526 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
269 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
SW APPROX 2.5 MILES NW OF CITY WA0001101955
175 SEMS-ARCHIVESHELTON MUNICIPAL AIRPORT 1003880732

TC5712009.2s   Page 454



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        Fed FacCurrent Action Lead:
                                        Not reportedQual:
                                        1995-05-23 04:00:00Finish Date:
                                        1995-05-23 04:00:00Start Date:
                                        1SEQ:
                                        DISCVRYAction Name:

SHELTON MUNICIPAL AIRPORT  (Continued) 1003880732

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110043378056Registry ID:

FINDS:

8230 ft. Site 1 of 2 in cluster AJ
1.559 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
216 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
South 901 MOUNTAIN VIEW DR    N/A
AJ176 FINDSMASON GENERAL HOSPITAL CAMPUS RENEWAL PROJECT 1014850275

                                             CONSTSWGPInteraction 2:
                                             AInteraction 1:
                                             128946Interaction:

                                             -123.114145073Longitude:
                                             47.226934487999998Latitude:
                                             Construction SW GPDate Interaction 3:
                                             2011-02-10 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             WAR124855Program ID:
                                             Mason General Hospital Campus Renewal ProjectFacility Alt.:
                                             PARISProgram Data:
                                             WATQUALEcology Program:
                                             CONSTSWGPInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             96411Interaction:

                              15678Facility Id:
                              MASON GENERAL HOSPITAL CAMPUS RENEWAL PROJECTFacility Name:

ALLSITES:

8230 ft. Site 2 of 2 in cluster AJ
1.559 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
216 ft.

 

> 1 WA NPDESSHELTON, WA  98584
South WA ASBESTOS901 MOUNTAIN VIEW DRIVE    N/A
AJ177 WA ALLSITESMASON GENERAL HOSPITAL S110764496

TC5712009.2s   Page 455

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6QzT6UpGQjsmzqhbTfyA35x4U1hLpWPyGjm.AwV0j8T.sJbrm79h4U4PqJmMhJb3bvh43iT9fAtTyBigATVt4zyJ5JKXxKhQ4mfw4FqU1sOlhuuSL.AKBSi.Wu0IPOXoyCKj3yJsjPVRmPZK.iSn3axqwEqkVFAB0rzu6OmVQYPKzhb5Tl5W33nJUJZbpK09GKxv940Cjkd7slAwmsBL3KL0quAEhI8pbywWAEfFfjYwyYW.AiR94qTl5p7UxxFT4TKF40cy1i9LhC8KLc3v4lFnWjpiPTJMyhqiC.ewj0MGmwv8.NgD6F6oQo7kz96gTuFP4LURUd9NpBITGrpq3NZ6jvjUsbSsmiuN84MYqAnvhH9eb53QAjOoflbjyRqyAXqr4IyY5lnxxTKt4JPs5V5d1feWhCQ4LuAO3ktEW034P9Z0yQOG3CPqjpXVmv0C.SyKCMwmwk5vVVkz00jo2zQm8.JVT9bG.xhD5CuzJimSbEk6ryt0vIgv7x5L976Ah7uL6uqwQKDjzbVmT.Y544kkUcuLphh4GFxu35edjByVsWufmg0r4hDUqNQrheaybmit3XlWfjK0yu5mAkek4DC05gDoxB7s4gbh734U19IMhBdXLYBQBU6VWC8VPBwjya6M8y0OjNsAm4SF.GMe3O14wb63VEau0UHa5uqH8pMRTNG..BDMAL3uJtN9b8JWrh8j8E8m7rxw9AH5hDfM3
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6QzT6UpGQjsmzqhbTfyA35x4U1hLpWPyGjm.AwV0j8T.sJbrm79h4U4PqJmMhJb3bvh43iT9fAtTyBigATVt4zyJ5JKXxKhQ4mfw4FqU1sOlhuuSL.AKBSi.Wu0IPOXoyCKj3yJsjPVRmPZK.iSn3axqwEqkVFAB0rzu6OmVQYPKzhb5Tl5W33nJUJZbpK09GKxv940Cjkd7slAwmsBL3KL0quAEhI8pbywWAEfFfjYwyYW.AiR94qTl5p7UxxFT4TKF40cy1i9LhC8KLc3v4lFnWjpiPTJMyhqiC.ewj0MGmwv8.NgD6F6oQo7kz96gTuFP4LURUd9NpBITGrpq3NZ6jvjUsbSsmiuN84MYqAnvhH9eb53QAjOoflbjyRqyAXqr4IyY5lnxxTKt4JPs5V5d1feWhCQ4LuAO3ktEW034P9Z0yQOG3CPqjpXVmv0C.SyKCMwmwk5vVVkz00jo2zQm8.JVT9bG.xhD5CuzJimSbEk6ryt0vIgv7x5L976Ah7uL6uqwQKDjzbVmT.Y544kkUcuLphh4GFxu35edjByVsWufmg0r4hDUqNQrheaybmit3XlWfjK0yu5mAkek4DC05gDoxB7s4gbh734U19IMhBdXLYBQBU6VWC8VPBwjya6M8y0OjNsAm4SF.GMe3O14wb63VEau0UHa5uqH8pMRTNG..BDMAL3uJtN9b8JWrh8j8E8m7rxw9AH5hDfM3


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        1Wednesday:
                                        1Tuesday:
                                        1Monday:
                                        Not reportedSunday:
                                        4:30 P.M.Site Hours End:
                                        8:00 a.m.Site Hours Start:
                                        Not reportedEmergency:
                                        1Off Hold:
                                        Not reportedOn Hold:
                                        1Amended:
                                        Not reportedInitial:
                                        07/30/2015Completion Date:
                                        05/01/2015Start Date:
                                        04/21/2015Notice Date:
                                        103559##1411Const760984Form ID:
                                        99340Parent ID:
                                        HospitalFacility Type:
                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                        901 MOUNTAIN VIEW DRIVEAddress:
                                        MASON GENERAL HOSPITALName:

ASBESTOS:

                                             -123.114145073Longitude:
                                             47.226934487999998Latitude:
                                             Revised Site Visit PrograDate Interaction 3:
                                             2013-06-25 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             Not reportedProgram ID:
                                             Mason General HospitalFacility Alt.:
                                             RSVPProgram Data:
                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             RSVPInteraction 2:
                                             AInteraction 1:
                                             115159Interaction:

                                             -123.114145073Longitude:
                                             47.226934487999998Latitude:
                                             Emergency/Haz Chem Rpt TIDate Interaction 3:
                                             2005-01-01 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             CRK000065360Program ID:
                                             MASON GENERAL HOSPITALFacility Alt.:
                                             EPCRAProgram Data:
                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             TIER2Interaction 2:
                                             AInteraction 1:
                                             130053Interaction:

                                             -123.114145073Longitude:
                                             47.226934487999998Latitude:
                                             Construction SW GPDate Interaction 3:
                                             2018-11-15 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             WAR307222Program ID:
                                             Mason General HospitalFacility Alt.:
                                             PARISProgram Data:
                                             WATQUALEcology Program:

MASON GENERAL HOSPITAL  (Continued) S110764496

TC5712009.2s   Page 456



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        1MANUALMETHODS     :
                                        1HEPA Vacuum:
                                        1Wet Methods:
                                        Not reportedWrap And Cut:
                                        1Critical Barriers:
                                        Not reportedMini Enclosure:
                                        Not reportedGlove Bag:
                                        Not reportedNeg Pres Enclosure:
                                        Not reportedOutdoors:
                                        1Indoors:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other2 Text:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other2:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other1 Text:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other1:
                                        Not reportedDuct Tape:
                                        Not reportedMudded Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedCement Asbestos Pipe:
                                        Not reportedDucting Insulation:
                                        Not reportedAir Cell Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedMag Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedQuantity Lin Ft:
                                        Not reportedSq Ft Other Text:
                                        Not reportedSq Ft Other:
                                        Not reportedRoofing:
                                        1VAT:
                                        Not reportedDuct Paper:
                                        Not reportedBoiler Insulation:
                                        Not reportedAsbestos Paper:
                                        Not reportedSheet Vinyl:
                                        Not reportedCAB:
                                        Not reportedPopcorn Ceiling:
                                        Not reportedFireproofing:
                                        200Quantity Sq Ft:
                                        Not reportedEncapsulated:
                                        1Removed:
                                        1Facility Maint:
                                        Not reportedFacility Repair:
                                        Not reportedFacility Demo:
                                        Not reportedFacility Remodel:
                                        65,000 SFFacility Size:
                                        1968Facility Age:
                                        Passage WayJob Site Room:
                                        360-427-3644Property Owner Phone:
                                        98584Property Owner Zip4:
                                        WAProperty Owner State:
                                        SheltonProperty Owner City:
                                        901 Mountain Veiw DriveProperty Owner Address:
                                        Mason General HospitalProperty Owner Company:
                                        Craig ChaseProperty Owner Agent:
                                        Mason General HospitalProperty Owner Name:
                                        debraz@cgius.netProject Form Email:
                                        Rigoberto Guillen-TorresJob Site CAS:
                                        425-487-2618Phone:
                                        1411Contractor ID:
                                        Not reportedSaturday:
                                        1Friday:
                                        1Thursday:

MASON GENERAL HOSPITAL  (Continued) S110764496

TC5712009.2s   Page 457



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                        901 MOUNTAIN VIEW DRIVEAddress:
                                        MASON GENERAL HOSPITALName:

                                        Not reportedContractor Memo:
                                        98072Contractor Mail Zip:
                                        WAContractor Mail State:
                                        WOODINVILLEContractor Mail City:
                                        19407 144TH AVE NE BLDG DContractor Mail Street Address:
                                        Not reportedContractor Web Address:
                                        debraz@cgius.comContractor Email:
                                        4254872618Contractor Phone:
                                        98072Contractor Zip:
                                        WAContractor State:
                                        WOODINVILLEContractor City:
                                        19407 144TH AVE NE BLDG DContractor Street Address:
                                        17Contractor Cnty Code:
                                        Not reportedContractor Suspended Date:
                                        08/10/2017Contractor Exp Date:
                                        05/16/2016Contractor Renewal Letter Date:
                                        08/07/2009Contractor Effective Date:
                                        08/23/2005Contractor Original Date:
                                        2016-07-19 00:00:00Contractor Cert Prn Date:
                                        4254872619Contact Fax:
                                        4254872618Contact Phone:
                                        Debra ZentnerContact Name:
                                        ActiveContractor Status:
                                        Construction Group International, LLCContractor Name:
                                        CONSTGI953NAContractor Cris Num:
                                        MContractor Priority:
                                        602516973Contractor UBI:
                                        1411Contractor ID:

Contractor:

                                        Not reportedCertificate Status:
                                        Not reportedSupervisor Phone:
                                        Not reportedSupervisor:
                                        Not reportedProject Type:
                                        Not reportedNotice type:
                                        Not reportedUBI:
                                        Not reportedRegion:
                                        173.10.108.181Submitter IP Address:
                                        2015-07-22 08:41:35Date Time Submitted:
                                        an emergency situation.
                                        temporarily. Will need to be abated at later date. This is no longer
                                        Vinyl asbestos tile edges covered with tape resulting in encapsulatingComments:
                                        Not reportedOther Resp Pro Text:
                                        Not reportedOther Resp Pro:
                                        Not reportedType C Pressure:
                                        Not reportedType C Continuous:
                                        Not reportedPAPR:
                                        Not reportedFull Face APR:
                                        1Half Mask APR:
                                        Not reportedOther CM2 Text:
                                        Not reportedOther CM2:
                                        Not reportedOther CM1 Text:
                                        Not reportedOther CM1:

MASON GENERAL HOSPITAL  (Continued) S110764496

TC5712009.2s   Page 458



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        Not reportedDucting Insulation:
                                        Not reportedAir Cell Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedMag Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedQuantity Lin Ft:
                                        Not reportedSq Ft Other Text:
                                        Not reportedSq Ft Other:
                                        Not reportedRoofing:
                                        1VAT:
                                        Not reportedDuct Paper:
                                        Not reportedBoiler Insulation:
                                        Not reportedAsbestos Paper:
                                        Not reportedSheet Vinyl:
                                        Not reportedCAB:
                                        Not reportedPopcorn Ceiling:
                                        Not reportedFireproofing:
                                        200Quantity Sq Ft:
                                        Not reportedEncapsulated:
                                        1Removed:
                                        1Facility Maint:
                                        Not reportedFacility Repair:
                                        Not reportedFacility Demo:
                                        Not reportedFacility Remodel:
                                        65,000 SFFacility Size:
                                        1968Facility Age:
                                        Passage WayJob Site Room:
                                        360-427-3644Property Owner Phone:
                                        98584Property Owner Zip4:
                                        WAProperty Owner State:
                                        SheltonProperty Owner City:
                                        901 Mountain Veiw DriveProperty Owner Address:
                                        Mason General HospitalProperty Owner Company:
                                        Craig ChaseProperty Owner Agent:
                                        Mason General HospitalProperty Owner Name:
                                        debraz@cgius.netProject Form Email:
                                        Rigoberto Guillen-TorresJob Site CAS:
                                        425-487-2618Phone:
                                        1411Contractor ID:
                                        Not reportedSaturday:
                                        1Friday:
                                        1Thursday:
                                        1Wednesday:
                                        1Tuesday:
                                        1Monday:
                                        Not reportedSunday:
                                        4:30 P.M.Site Hours End:
                                        8:00 a.m.Site Hours Start:
                                        Not reportedEmergency:
                                        Not reportedOff Hold:
                                        1On Hold:
                                        1Amended:
                                        Not reportedInitial:
                                        07/30/2015Completion Date:
                                        05/01/2015Start Date:
                                        04/21/2015Notice Date:
                                        103614##1411Const954482Form ID:
                                        99340Parent ID:
                                        HospitalFacility Type:

MASON GENERAL HOSPITAL  (Continued) S110764496

TC5712009.2s   Page 459



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        17Contractor Cnty Code:
                                        Not reportedContractor Suspended Date:
                                        08/10/2017Contractor Exp Date:
                                        05/16/2016Contractor Renewal Letter Date:
                                        08/07/2009Contractor Effective Date:
                                        08/23/2005Contractor Original Date:
                                        2016-07-19 00:00:00Contractor Cert Prn Date:
                                        4254872619Contact Fax:
                                        4254872618Contact Phone:
                                        Debra ZentnerContact Name:
                                        ActiveContractor Status:
                                        Construction Group International, LLCContractor Name:
                                        CONSTGI953NAContractor Cris Num:
                                        MContractor Priority:
                                        602516973Contractor UBI:
                                        1411Contractor ID:

Contractor:

                                        Not reportedCertificate Status:
                                        Not reportedSupervisor Phone:
                                        Not reportedSupervisor:
                                        Not reportedProject Type:
                                        Not reportedNotice type:
                                        Not reportedUBI:
                                        Not reportedRegion:
                                        173.10.108.181Submitter IP Address:
                                        2015-07-23 07:27:27Date Time Submitted:
                                        an emergency situation.
                                        temporarily. Will need to be abated at later date. This is no longer
                                        Vinyl asbestos tile edges covered with tape resulting in encapsulatingComments:
                                        Not reportedOther Resp Pro Text:
                                        Not reportedOther Resp Pro:
                                        Not reportedType C Pressure:
                                        Not reportedType C Continuous:
                                        Not reportedPAPR:
                                        Not reportedFull Face APR:
                                        1Half Mask APR:
                                        Not reportedOther CM2 Text:
                                        Not reportedOther CM2:
                                        Not reportedOther CM1 Text:
                                        Not reportedOther CM1:
                                        1MANUALMETHODS     :
                                        1HEPA Vacuum:
                                        1Wet Methods:
                                        Not reportedWrap And Cut:
                                        1Critical Barriers:
                                        Not reportedMini Enclosure:
                                        Not reportedGlove Bag:
                                        Not reportedNeg Pres Enclosure:
                                        Not reportedOutdoors:
                                        1Indoors:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other2 Text:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other2:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other1 Text:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other1:
                                        Not reportedDuct Tape:
                                        Not reportedMudded Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedCement Asbestos Pipe:

MASON GENERAL HOSPITAL  (Continued) S110764496

TC5712009.2s   Page 460



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        1Removed:
                                        1Facility Maint:
                                        Not reportedFacility Repair:
                                        Not reportedFacility Demo:
                                        Not reportedFacility Remodel:
                                        65,000 SFFacility Size:
                                        1968Facility Age:
                                        Passage WayJob Site Room:
                                        360-427-3644Property Owner Phone:
                                        98584Property Owner Zip4:
                                        WAProperty Owner State:
                                        SheltonProperty Owner City:
                                        901 Mountain Veiw DriveProperty Owner Address:
                                        Mason General HospitalProperty Owner Company:
                                        Craig ChaseProperty Owner Agent:
                                        Mason General HospitalProperty Owner Name:
                                        debraz@cgius.netProject Form Email:
                                        Jason YoungJob Site CAS:
                                        425-487-2618Phone:
                                        1411Contractor ID:
                                        Not reportedSaturday:
                                        Not reportedFriday:
                                        Not reportedThursday:
                                        1Wednesday:
                                        Not reportedTuesday:
                                        Not reportedMonday:
                                        Not reportedSunday:
                                        4:00 P.M.Site Hours End:
                                        8:00 a.m.Site Hours Start:
                                        1Emergency:
                                        Not reportedOff Hold:
                                        Not reportedOn Hold:
                                        Not reportedAmended:
                                        Not reportedInitial:
                                        04/22/2015Completion Date:
                                        04/22/2015Start Date:
                                        04/21/2015Notice Date:
                                        99340##1411Const778048Form ID:
                                        0Parent ID:
                                        HospitalFacility Type:
                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                        901 MOUNTAIN VIEW DRIVEAddress:
                                        MASON GENERAL HOSPITALName:

                                        Not reportedContractor Memo:
                                        98072Contractor Mail Zip:
                                        WAContractor Mail State:
                                        WOODINVILLEContractor Mail City:
                                        19407 144TH AVE NE BLDG DContractor Mail Street Address:
                                        Not reportedContractor Web Address:
                                        debraz@cgius.comContractor Email:
                                        4254872618Contractor Phone:
                                        98072Contractor Zip:
                                        WAContractor State:
                                        WOODINVILLEContractor City:
                                        19407 144TH AVE NE BLDG DContractor Street Address:

MASON GENERAL HOSPITAL  (Continued) S110764496

TC5712009.2s   Page 461



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        Not reportedCertificate Status:
                                        Not reportedSupervisor Phone:
                                        Not reportedSupervisor:
                                        Not reportedProject Type:
                                        Not reportedNotice type:
                                        Not reportedUBI:
                                        Not reportedRegion:
                                        173.10.108.181Submitter IP Address:
                                        2015-04-21 13:16:10Date Time Submitted:
                                        workers and patients.
                                        assumed to be ACM and need removal to eleviate potential exposure to
                                        In the course of plumbing upgrade workers disturbed 9" X 9" floor tileComments:
                                        Not reportedOther Resp Pro Text:
                                        Not reportedOther Resp Pro:
                                        Not reportedType C Pressure:
                                        Not reportedType C Continuous:
                                        Not reportedPAPR:
                                        Not reportedFull Face APR:
                                        1Half Mask APR:
                                        Not reportedOther CM2 Text:
                                        Not reportedOther CM2:
                                        Not reportedOther CM1 Text:
                                        Not reportedOther CM1:
                                        1MANUALMETHODS     :
                                        1HEPA Vacuum:
                                        1Wet Methods:
                                        Not reportedWrap And Cut:
                                        1Critical Barriers:
                                        Not reportedMini Enclosure:
                                        Not reportedGlove Bag:
                                        Not reportedNeg Pres Enclosure:
                                        Not reportedOutdoors:
                                        1Indoors:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other2 Text:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other2:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other1 Text:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other1:
                                        Not reportedDuct Tape:
                                        Not reportedMudded Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedCement Asbestos Pipe:
                                        Not reportedDucting Insulation:
                                        Not reportedAir Cell Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedMag Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedQuantity Lin Ft:
                                        Not reportedSq Ft Other Text:
                                        Not reportedSq Ft Other:
                                        Not reportedRoofing:
                                        1VAT:
                                        Not reportedDuct Paper:
                                        Not reportedBoiler Insulation:
                                        Not reportedAsbestos Paper:
                                        Not reportedSheet Vinyl:
                                        Not reportedCAB:
                                        Not reportedPopcorn Ceiling:
                                        Not reportedFireproofing:
                                        200Quantity Sq Ft:
                                        Not reportedEncapsulated:

MASON GENERAL HOSPITAL  (Continued) S110764496

TC5712009.2s   Page 462



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        Jason YoungJob Site CAS:
                                        425-487-2618Phone:
                                        1411Contractor ID:
                                        Not reportedSaturday:
                                        1Friday:
                                        1Thursday:
                                        1Wednesday:
                                        1Tuesday:
                                        1Monday:
                                        Not reportedSunday:
                                        4:00 P.M.Site Hours End:
                                        8:00 a.m.Site Hours Start:
                                        Not reportedEmergency:
                                        Not reportedOff Hold:
                                        1On Hold:
                                        1Amended:
                                        Not reportedInitial:
                                        07/30/2015Completion Date:
                                        05/01/2015Start Date:
                                        04/21/2015Notice Date:
                                        99644##1411Const829839Form ID:
                                        99340Parent ID:
                                        HospitalFacility Type:
                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                        901 MOUNTAIN VIEW DRIVEAddress:
                                        MASON GENERAL HOSPITALName:

                                        Not reportedContractor Memo:
                                        98072Contractor Mail Zip:
                                        WAContractor Mail State:
                                        WOODINVILLEContractor Mail City:
                                        19407 144TH AVE NE BLDG DContractor Mail Street Address:
                                        Not reportedContractor Web Address:
                                        debraz@cgius.comContractor Email:
                                        4254872618Contractor Phone:
                                        98072Contractor Zip:
                                        WAContractor State:
                                        WOODINVILLEContractor City:
                                        19407 144TH AVE NE BLDG DContractor Street Address:
                                        17Contractor Cnty Code:
                                        Not reportedContractor Suspended Date:
                                        08/10/2017Contractor Exp Date:
                                        05/16/2016Contractor Renewal Letter Date:
                                        08/07/2009Contractor Effective Date:
                                        08/23/2005Contractor Original Date:
                                        2016-07-19 00:00:00Contractor Cert Prn Date:
                                        4254872619Contact Fax:
                                        4254872618Contact Phone:
                                        Debra ZentnerContact Name:
                                        ActiveContractor Status:
                                        Construction Group International, LLCContractor Name:
                                        CONSTGI953NAContractor Cris Num:
                                        MContractor Priority:
                                        602516973Contractor UBI:
                                        1411Contractor ID:

Contractor:

MASON GENERAL HOSPITAL  (Continued) S110764496

TC5712009.2s   Page 463



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        Not reportedFull Face APR:
                                        1Half Mask APR:
                                        Not reportedOther CM2 Text:
                                        Not reportedOther CM2:
                                        Not reportedOther CM1 Text:
                                        Not reportedOther CM1:
                                        1MANUALMETHODS     :
                                        1HEPA Vacuum:
                                        1Wet Methods:
                                        Not reportedWrap And Cut:
                                        1Critical Barriers:
                                        Not reportedMini Enclosure:
                                        Not reportedGlove Bag:
                                        Not reportedNeg Pres Enclosure:
                                        Not reportedOutdoors:
                                        1Indoors:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other2 Text:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other2:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other1 Text:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other1:
                                        Not reportedDuct Tape:
                                        Not reportedMudded Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedCement Asbestos Pipe:
                                        Not reportedDucting Insulation:
                                        Not reportedAir Cell Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedMag Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedQuantity Lin Ft:
                                        Not reportedSq Ft Other Text:
                                        Not reportedSq Ft Other:
                                        Not reportedRoofing:
                                        1VAT:
                                        Not reportedDuct Paper:
                                        Not reportedBoiler Insulation:
                                        Not reportedAsbestos Paper:
                                        Not reportedSheet Vinyl:
                                        Not reportedCAB:
                                        Not reportedPopcorn Ceiling:
                                        Not reportedFireproofing:
                                        200Quantity Sq Ft:
                                        Not reportedEncapsulated:
                                        1Removed:
                                        1Facility Maint:
                                        Not reportedFacility Repair:
                                        Not reportedFacility Demo:
                                        Not reportedFacility Remodel:
                                        65,000 SFFacility Size:
                                        1968Facility Age:
                                        Passage WayJob Site Room:
                                        360-427-3644Property Owner Phone:
                                        98584Property Owner Zip4:
                                        WAProperty Owner State:
                                        SheltonProperty Owner City:
                                        901 Mountain Veiw DriveProperty Owner Address:
                                        Mason General HospitalProperty Owner Company:
                                        Craig ChaseProperty Owner Agent:
                                        Mason General HospitalProperty Owner Name:
                                        debraz@cgius.netProject Form Email:

MASON GENERAL HOSPITAL  (Continued) S110764496

TC5712009.2s   Page 464



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        11/30/2015Completion Date:
                                        11/06/2015Start Date:
                                        10/26/2015Notice Date:
                                        107524##1411Const858995Form ID:
                                        0Parent ID:
                                        HospitalFacility Type:
                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                        901 MOUNTAIN VIEW DR.Address:
                                        MASON GENERAL HOSPITALName:

                                        Not reportedContractor Memo:
                                        98072Contractor Mail Zip:
                                        WAContractor Mail State:
                                        WOODINVILLEContractor Mail City:
                                        19407 144TH AVE NE BLDG DContractor Mail Street Address:
                                        Not reportedContractor Web Address:
                                        debraz@cgius.comContractor Email:
                                        4254872618Contractor Phone:
                                        98072Contractor Zip:
                                        WAContractor State:
                                        WOODINVILLEContractor City:
                                        19407 144TH AVE NE BLDG DContractor Street Address:
                                        17Contractor Cnty Code:
                                        Not reportedContractor Suspended Date:
                                        08/10/2017Contractor Exp Date:
                                        05/16/2016Contractor Renewal Letter Date:
                                        08/07/2009Contractor Effective Date:
                                        08/23/2005Contractor Original Date:
                                        2016-07-19 00:00:00Contractor Cert Prn Date:
                                        4254872619Contact Fax:
                                        4254872618Contact Phone:
                                        Debra ZentnerContact Name:
                                        ActiveContractor Status:
                                        Construction Group International, LLCContractor Name:
                                        CONSTGI953NAContractor Cris Num:
                                        MContractor Priority:
                                        602516973Contractor UBI:
                                        1411Contractor ID:

Contractor:

                                        Not reportedCertificate Status:
                                        Not reportedSupervisor Phone:
                                        Not reportedSupervisor:
                                        Not reportedProject Type:
                                        Not reportedNotice type:
                                        Not reportedUBI:
                                        Not reportedRegion:
                                        173.10.108.181Submitter IP Address:
                                        2015-04-29 08:08:25Date Time Submitted:
                                        an emergency situation.
                                        temporarily. Will need to be abated at later date. This is no longer
                                        Vinyl asbestos tile edges covered with tape resulting in encapsulatingComments:
                                        Not reportedOther Resp Pro Text:
                                        Not reportedOther Resp Pro:
                                        Not reportedType C Pressure:
                                        Not reportedType C Continuous:
                                        Not reportedPAPR:

MASON GENERAL HOSPITAL  (Continued) S110764496

TC5712009.2s   Page 465



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other2:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other1 Text:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other1:
                                        Not reportedDuct Tape:
                                        1Mudded Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedCement Asbestos Pipe:
                                        Not reportedDucting Insulation:
                                        Not reportedAir Cell Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedMag Pipe Insulation:
                                        15Quantity Lin Ft:
                                        Not reportedSq Ft Other Text:
                                        Not reportedSq Ft Other:
                                        Not reportedRoofing:
                                        Not reportedVAT:
                                        Not reportedDuct Paper:
                                        Not reportedBoiler Insulation:
                                        Not reportedAsbestos Paper:
                                        Not reportedSheet Vinyl:
                                        Not reportedCAB:
                                        Not reportedPopcorn Ceiling:
                                        Not reportedFireproofing:
                                        Not reportedQuantity Sq Ft:
                                        Not reportedEncapsulated:
                                        1Removed:
                                        1Facility Maint:
                                        1Facility Repair:
                                        Not reportedFacility Demo:
                                        1Facility Remodel:
                                        Not reportedFacility Size:
                                        Not reportedFacility Age:
                                        Not reportedJob Site Room:
                                        360-427-3644Property Owner Phone:
                                        98584Property Owner Zip4:
                                        WAProperty Owner State:
                                        SheltonProperty Owner City:
                                        PO Box 1668Property Owner Address:
                                        Mason General HospitalProperty Owner Company:
                                        Konrad SchusterProperty Owner Agent:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner Name:
                                        debraz@cgius.netProject Form Email:
                                        Wendell BernadasJob Site CAS:
                                        425-487-2618Phone:
                                        1411Contractor ID:
                                        Not reportedSaturday:
                                        1Friday:
                                        Not reportedThursday:
                                        Not reportedWednesday:
                                        Not reportedTuesday:
                                        1Monday:
                                        Not reportedSunday:
                                        4:30 PMSite Hours End:
                                        8:00 AMSite Hours Start:
                                        Not reportedEmergency:
                                        Not reportedOff Hold:
                                        1On Hold:
                                        Not reportedAmended:
                                        1Initial:

MASON GENERAL HOSPITAL  (Continued) S110764496

TC5712009.2s   Page 466



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        19407 144TH AVE NE BLDG DContractor Mail Street Address:
                                        Not reportedContractor Web Address:
                                        debraz@cgius.comContractor Email:
                                        4254872618Contractor Phone:
                                        98072Contractor Zip:
                                        WAContractor State:
                                        WOODINVILLEContractor City:
                                        19407 144TH AVE NE BLDG DContractor Street Address:
                                        17Contractor Cnty Code:
                                        Not reportedContractor Suspended Date:
                                        08/10/2017Contractor Exp Date:
                                        05/16/2016Contractor Renewal Letter Date:
                                        08/07/2009Contractor Effective Date:
                                        08/23/2005Contractor Original Date:
                                        2016-07-19 00:00:00Contractor Cert Prn Date:
                                        4254872619Contact Fax:
                                        4254872618Contact Phone:
                                        Debra ZentnerContact Name:
                                        ActiveContractor Status:
                                        Construction Group International, LLCContractor Name:
                                        CONSTGI953NAContractor Cris Num:
                                        MContractor Priority:
                                        602516973Contractor UBI:
                                        1411Contractor ID:

Contractor:

                                        Not reportedCertificate Status:
                                        Not reportedSupervisor Phone:
                                        Not reportedSupervisor:
                                        Not reportedProject Type:
                                        Not reportedNotice type:
                                        Not reportedUBI:
                                        Not reportedRegion:
                                        173.10.108.181Submitter IP Address:
                                        2015-10-26 14:52:08Date Time Submitted:
                                        Not reportedComments:
                                        Not reportedOther Resp Pro Text:
                                        Not reportedOther Resp Pro:
                                        Not reportedType C Pressure:
                                        Not reportedType C Continuous:
                                        Not reportedPAPR:
                                        Not reportedFull Face APR:
                                        1Half Mask APR:
                                        Not reportedOther CM2 Text:
                                        Not reportedOther CM2:
                                        Not reportedOther CM1 Text:
                                        Not reportedOther CM1:
                                        1MANUALMETHODS     :
                                        1HEPA Vacuum:
                                        1Wet Methods:
                                        Not reportedWrap And Cut:
                                        Not reportedCritical Barriers:
                                        Not reportedMini Enclosure:
                                        1Glove Bag:
                                        Not reportedNeg Pres Enclosure:
                                        Not reportedOutdoors:
                                        1Indoors:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other2 Text:

MASON GENERAL HOSPITAL  (Continued) S110764496

TC5712009.2s   Page 467



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    -625Days to Expiration:
                    11/27/2018Effective Date:
                    12/31/2020Permit Expiration Date:
                    Not reportedWRIA:
                    Not reportedEcology Contact:
                    Not reportedPermit SubStatus:
                    ActivePermit Status:
                    Not reportedPermit Version:
                    WAR307222Permit ID:
                    Not reportedLongitude:
                    Not reportedLatitude:
                    11/18/2015Date Issued:
                    HeadqartersAdmin Region:
                    Construction SW GPFacility Type:
                    Not reportedFacility Status:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    901 MOUNTAIN VIEW DRAddress:
                    MASON GENERAL HOSPITALName:

NPDES:

                                        Not reportedContractor Memo:
                                        98072Contractor Mail Zip:
                                        WAContractor Mail State:
                                        WOODINVILLEContractor Mail City:

MASON GENERAL HOSPITAL  (Continued) S110764496

                              Not reportedResp Party Name:
                              Not reportedCause Type:
                              Not reportedCause:
                              Not reportedResp Party Contact:
                              Not reportedRecovered Quantity:
                              Not reportedVessel Facility Name2:
                              Not reportedSource:
                              Not reportedSource Type:
                              Not reportedLongitude:
                              Not reportedLatitude:
                              Not reportedIncident Category:
                              Not reportedIncident Category Type:
                              Not reportedIncident Date:
                              UNKNOWNContact Name:
                              11/24/2008Date Received:
                              GALLONMaterial Units:
                              11Material Qty:
                              PETROLEUM - MINERAL OILMaterial Desc:
                              Not reportedMedium:
                              609709Facility ID:
                              SHELTON, WACity,State,Zip:
                              1892 E JOHNS PRAIRIE RDAddress:
                              Not reportedName:

SPILLS:

8238 ft.
1.560 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
211 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  
East 1892 E JOHNS PRAIRIE RD    N/A
178 WA SPILLS S109395561

TC5712009.2s   Page 468



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        Not reportedFacility Address 2:
                                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                        1890 E JOHNS PRAIRIE RDAddress:
                                                        BELCO FOREST PRODUCTS INCName:

WA MANIFEST:

                                   http://echo.epa.gov/detailed-facility-report?fid=110037370109DFR URL:
                                   110037370109Registry ID:
                                   1011916675Envid:

ECHO:

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

OSHA ESTABLISHMENT

corrective action activities required under RCRA.
program staff to track the notification, permit, compliance, and
and treat, store, or dispose of hazardous waste. RCRAInfo allows RCRA
events and activities related to facilities that generate, transport,
Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) program through the tracking of
RCRAInfo is a national information system that supports the Resource

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110037370109Registry ID:

FINDS:

                                             -123.08627407199999Longitude:
                                             47.249160482999997Latitude:
                                             Hazardous Waste GeneratorDate Interaction 3:
                                             2008-09-24 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             WAH000033711Program ID:
                                             BELCO FOREST PRODUCTS INCFacility Alt.:
                                             TURBOWASTEProgram Data:
                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             HWGInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             20781Interaction:

                              7463982Facility Id:
                              BELCO FOREST PRODUCTS INCFacility Name:

ALLSITES:

8393 ft. Site 1 of 3 in cluster AK
1.590 mi. WA MANIFEST

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
206 ft.

 

> 1 ECHOSHELTON, WA  98584
East FINDS1890 E JOHNS PRAIRIE RD    N/A
AK179 WA ALLSITESBELCO FOREST PRODUCTS INC 1011916675

TC5712009.2s   Page 469

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6Z.F6t5bZUqY.wopFn6J3gW8tX4W55Adbb3cAam1UI9EqI3HY0SL4bsTw4zNoEaApa7A3me1nYwd6CsRJQd84Kwzga5WWA3P8XRH4ULoXOBT4Vh9WIwMBycK5TQzAhGrdKrb3VXQb81i36X.c8FW3BGQaycDml881PHr6gQ5Zn1u.uYpF7Q831Tst8kl5KOMbw939EmrUt6lqZjTYIaq3RdEw7owoh5mpjOfAwNonnAI6Ak6JSz94QHOg1ZqWtRV8Cek4qHGXwvl4tQQWgr04vX75bJLAMvOdtcuCIJ7b9Pk3bZKcXVj6tisZv0Z.ZNhFAHu43c5t9bw5nGXb8oW36ElUUAhqnuyYZRx89zPw9Qbo99YpbFoAybbnEgK6S1OJzP94usLgRhgWO.E80q55G7NXa4h4opeWtSg3j0u5FPCA4NZdmPE3OmgbHlK3CSfcJnACQueaAgjmsCf1wz72RtsIIjk9UlDEQSl5mjEITQA3sfxHt4Evpqc085RSxckL0gF6XiDZs6Z.1gtFb9M480ntUaN5pvAbr3Y3ZSPUDFoqyl9YDSU4IVtwxBSo5oepZto3IDYn76k6GFlJ6Sq4itPggptW6VI8qgG4NvXXV8L4f51WMrfCIqV5lOUA6wjdGMU4K3xbjS83jyfcEUd9YHpaRtsmixE1KAt9CwkIueG9LUyEWi4AOFXIHph3oKBHADF8SS30JgHSK6xLqje3
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6Z.F6t5bZUqY.wopFn6J3gW8tX4W55Adbb3cAam1UI9EqI3HY0SL4bsTw4zNoEaApa7A3me1nYwd6CsRJQd84Kwzga5WWA3P8XRH4ULoXOBT4Vh9WIwMBycK5TQzAhGrdKrb3VXQb81i36X.c8FW3BGQaycDml881PHr6gQ5Zn1u.uYpF7Q831Tst8kl5KOMbw939EmrUt6lqZjTYIaq3RdEw7owoh5mpjOfAwNonnAI6Ak6JSz94QHOg1ZqWtRV8Cek4qHGXwvl4tQQWgr04vX75bJLAMvOdtcuCIJ7b9Pk3bZKcXVj6tisZv0Z.ZNhFAHu43c5t9bw5nGXb8oW36ElUUAhqnuyYZRx89zPw9Qbo99YpbFoAybbnEgK6S1OJzP94usLgRhgWO.E80q55G7NXa4h4opeWtSg3j0u5FPCA4NZdmPE3OmgbHlK3CSfcJnACQueaAgjmsCf1wz72RtsIIjk9UlDEQSl5mjEITQA3sfxHt4Evpqc085RSxckL0gF6XiDZs6Z.1gtFb9M480ntUaN5pvAbr3Y3ZSPUDFoqyl9YDSU4IVtwxBSo5oepZto3IDYn76k6GFlJ6Sq4itPggptW6VI8qgG4NvXXV8L4f51WMrfCIqV5lOUA6wjdGMU4K3xbjS83jyfcEUd9YHpaRtsmixE1KAt9CwkIueG9LUyEWi4AOFXIHph3oKBHADF8SS30JgHSK6xLqje3


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        (360)426-8900Site Contact Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Contact City,State,Zip:
                                                        1890 E Johns Prairie RdSite Contact Address:
                                                        John  VogelSite Contact:
                                                        01/01/2004Operator Effective Date:
                                                        (360)426-8900Operator Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Operator City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedOperator Address 2:
                                                        1890 E Johns Prairie RdOperator Address:
                                                        Not reportedOperator:
                                                        PrivateOperator Organization Type:
                                                        Belco Forest Products IncOperator Organization Name:
                                                        (360)426-8900Land Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Land City,State,Zip:
                                                        1890 E Johns Prairie RdLand Address:
                                                        Not reportedLand Contact:
                                                        PrivateLand Organization Type:
                                                        Belco Forest Products IncLand Organization Name:
                                                        01/01/1978Legal Effective Date:
                                                        (360)426-8900Legal Phone Number:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Legal City,State,Zip:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Address 2:
                                                        1890 E Johns Prairie RdLegal Address:
                                                        Not reportedLegal Contact:
                                                        PrivateLegal Organization Type:
                                                        Belco Forest Products IncLegal Organization Name:
                                                        Shelton, WA 98584Mailing City,State,Zip:
                                                        1890 E Johns Prairie RdMailing Address:
                                                        Belco Forest Products IncMail Name:
                                                        Lumber Remfg & WholesaleBusiness Type:
                                                        600433318Tax Reg #:
                                                        Not reportedLN Address 2:
                                                        Not reportedOff-Specification:
                                                        Not reportedUniversal Waste:
                                                        FalseSmelter Defferal:
                                                        FalseIndustrial Furnace:
                                                        FalseIndustry Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseUtility Boiler Burner:
                                                        FalseOther Marketers (i.e., blender, distributor, etc.):
                                                        FalseGenerator Marketing to Burner:
                                                        FalseGenerator of Dangerous Fuel Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment/Storage/Disposal/Recycling Facility:
                                                        FalseImmediate Recycler:
                                                        FalseImporter of Hazardous Waste:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Waste:
                                                        FalseTreatment by Generator:
                                                        Not reportedMailing Address 2:
                                                        FalsePermit by Rule:
                                                        2008Data Year:
                                                        this site.
                                                        site reorginization and cleanup with consolidation of operations at
                                                        Lees then 2000 pounds were generated in the year. Most as a result ofForm Comm:
                                                        D0001,D035Federal Waste Code Desc:
                                                        W206,W209,W211State Waste Code Desc:
                                                        423310NAICS:
                                                        WAH000033711EPA ID:
                                                        7463982Facility ID:

BELCO FOREST PRODUCTS INC  (Continued) 1011916675

TC5712009.2s   Page 470



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        2004636Sequence Number:
                                                        118363CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Miscellaneous Waste Paint Related MaterialDescription:
                                                        W209WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        PPGDensity Quanity:
                                                        8.3399999999999999Density Number:
                                                        624.19897073622235Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        GALQuanity Unit:
                                                        165Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        2004635Sequence Number:
                                                        118363CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Latex PaintDescription:
                                                        W209WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

Waste Stream Generated:

                                                        Not reportedSite Contact Address 2:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Meets Specs:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Fuel Marketer Directs Shipments:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Refiner:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Processor:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transfer Facility:
                                                        FalseUsed Oil Transporter:
                                                        FalseUW Battery Gen:
                                                        Not reportedOther Exemption:
                                                        FalseTransfer Facility:
                                                        FalseRecycler Onsite:
                                                        FalseTranports Other Waste:
                                                        FalseTransport Own Waste:
                                                        FalseOne Time Generation:
                                                        TrueBatch Generation:
                                                        FalseMonthly Generation:
                                                        SQGGen Status Code:
                                                        jvogel@belcofp.comSite Contact Email:

BELCO FOREST PRODUCTS INC  (Continued) 1011916675

TC5712009.2s   Page 471



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        WAH000014944Receiving EPAID:
                                                        567.0000097524Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBUnit of Measure:
                                                        1250Reported Quanity:
                                                        000634981Mainfest Document ID:
                                                        10/14/2008Shipment Date:
                                                        956622Sequence Number:
                                                        2004636Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        WAH000014944Receiving EPAID:
                                                        624.198970736222Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        GALUnit of Measure:
                                                        165Reported Quanity:
                                                        000634981Mainfest Document ID:
                                                        10/14/2008Shipment Date:
                                                        956621Sequence Number:
                                                        2004635Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        WAD988519419Receiving EPAID:
                                                        662.029211386902Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        GALUnit of Measure:
                                                        175Reported Quanity:
                                                        205613Mainfest Document ID:
                                                        9/30/2008Shipment Date:
                                                        956620Sequence Number:
                                                        2004634Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        118363CORB Waste Sequence Number:

Shipments Send:

                                                        PPGDensity Quanity:
                                                        8.3399999999999999Density Number:
                                                        662.02921138690249Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        GALQuanity Unit:
                                                        175Reported Quanity:
                                                        DDesignation Code:
                                                        FalseMixed Radioactive Flag:
                                                        2004634Sequence Number:
                                                        118363CORb Sequence Number:
                                                        Waste OilDescription:
                                                        W206WCDB Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE On Site Code:
                                                        1WCDH Origin Code:
                                                        Not reportedWCDE Residence Code:
                                                        Not reportedPermit By Rule Code:
                                                        Not reportedGenerator Treatment Code:
                                                        0KG Managed On Site:
                                                        0Report Managed On Site:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 2:
                                                        Not reportedState Only Waste Code 1:
                                                        YWaste Managed Off Site:

                                                        Not reportedDensity Quanity:
                                                        0Density Number:
                                                        567.00000975240016Kilograms Quanity:
                                                        LBQuanity Unit:
                                                        1250Reported Quanity:

BELCO FOREST PRODUCTS INC  (Continued) 1011916675

TC5712009.2s   Page 472



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                        G16WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2004634Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G06WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2004635Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        G06WCDD Code:
                                                        1Sequence Number:
                                                        2004636Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        118363CORB Waste Sequence Number:

Waste Stream Source Code:

                                                        D001WCDA Code:
                                                        4292252Sequence Number:
                                                        2004634Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D001WCDA Code:
                                                        4292256Sequence Number:
                                                        2004636Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        D001WCDA Code:
                                                        4292253Sequence Number:
                                                        2004635Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        118363CORB Waste Sequence Number:

Waste Stream EPA Code:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        624.19897073622235Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        165Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAH000014944Received EPAID:
                                                        488648Sequence Number:
                                                        2004635Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        0Recycled Percentage:
                                                        662.02921138690249Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        175Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAD988519419Received EPAID:
                                                        488647Sequence Number:
                                                        2004634Waste Sequence Number:

                                                        H141Waste Management System Code:
                                                        Not reportedRecycled Percentage:
                                                        567.00000975240016Kilogram Quanity:
                                                        1250Managed Quanity:
                                                        WAH000014944Received EPAID:
                                                        488649Sequence Number:
                                                        2004636Waste Sequence Number:
                                                        118363Waste CORB Sequence Number:

Waste Stream Off Site Mgmt:

BELCO FOREST PRODUCTS INC  (Continued) 1011916675

TC5712009.2s   Page 473



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              Not reportedResp Party Name:
                              Not reportedCause Type:
                              Not reportedCause:
                              Not reportedResp Party Contact:
                              Not reportedRecovered Quantity:
                              Not reportedVessel Facility Name2:
                              Not reportedSource:
                              Not reportedSource Type:
                              Not reportedLongitude:
                              Not reportedLatitude:
                              Not reportedIncident Category:
                              Not reportedIncident Category Type:
                              Not reportedIncident Date:
                              Not reportedContact Name:
                              04/19/2012Date Received:
                              GALLONMaterial Units:
                              5Material Qty:
                              PETROLEUM - MINERAL OILMaterial Desc:
                              SOILMedium:
                              633378Facility ID:
                              SHELTON, WACity,State,Zip:
                              1890 E JOHN PRAIRIE RDAddress:
                              Not reportedName:

SPILLS:

8393 ft. Site 2 of 3 in cluster AK
1.590 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
206 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  
East 1890 E JOHN PRAIRIE RD    N/A
AK180 WA SPILLS S112075176

                    USOwner/operator country:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    1890 E JOHNS PRAIRIE RDOwner/operator address:
                    BELCO FOREST PRODUCTS INCOwner/operator name:

Owner/Operator Summary:

                    Handler: Non-Generators do not presently generate hazardous wasteDescription:
                    Non-GeneratorClassification:
                    PrivateLand type:
                    10EPA Region:
                    TMMADDOX@BELCOFP.COMContact email:
                    360-426-8900Contact telephone:
                    USContact country:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    1890 E JOHNS PRAIRIE RDContact address:
                    TONY  MADDOXContact:
                    WAH000033711EPA ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    1890 E JOHNS PRAIRIE RDFacility address:
                    BELCO FOREST PRODUCTS INCFacility name:
                    03/30/2009Date form received by agency:

RCRA NonGen / NLR:

8393 ft. Site 3 of 3 in cluster AK
1.590 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
206 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
East 1890 E JOHNS PRAIRIE RD WAH000033711
AK181 RCRA NonGen / NLRBELCO FOREST PRODUCTS INC 1011863912

TC5712009.2s   Page 474



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    Not reportedRegulation violated:
Facility Has Received Notices of Violations:

                    IGNITABLE WASTE.   Waste name:
                    D001.   Waste code:

Hazardous Waste Summary:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    BELCO FOREST PRODUCTS INCSite name:
                    09/24/2008Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    BELCO FOREST PRODUCTS INCSite name:
                    03/30/2009Date form received by agency:

Historical Generators:

                              NoUsed oil transporter:
                              NoUsed oil transfer facility:
                              NoUsed oil Specification marketer:
                              NoUsed oil fuel marketer to burner:
                              NoUser oil refiner:
                              NoUsed oil processor:
                              NoUsed oil fuel burner:
                              NoFurnace exemption:
                              NoOn-site burner exemption:
                              NoUnderground injection activity:
                              NoTreater, storer or disposer of HW:
                              NoTransporter of hazardous waste:
                              NoRecycler of hazardous waste:
                              NoMixed waste (haz. and radioactive):
                              NoU.S. importer of hazardous waste:

Handler Activities Summary:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    360-426-8900Owner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    1890 E JOHNS PRAIRIE RDOwner/operator address:
                    BELCO FOREST PRODUCTS INCOwner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OperatorOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    360-426-8900Owner/operator telephone:

BELCO FOREST PRODUCTS INC  (Continued) 1011863912

TC5712009.2s   Page 475



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    Generators - Records/ReportingArea of violation:
                    Not reportedRegulation violated:

                    Not reported    Paid penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Final penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Proposed penalty amount:
                    State    Enforcement lead agency:
                    Not reported    Enf. disp. status date:
                    Not reported    Enf. disposition status:
                    01/30/2009    Enforcement action date:
                    WRITTEN INFORMAL    Enforcement action:
                    StateViolation lead agency:
                    04/01/2009Date achieved compliance:
                    12/09/2008Date violation determined:
                    Generators - GeneralArea of violation:
                    Not reportedRegulation violated:

                    Not reported    Paid penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Final penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Proposed penalty amount:
                    State    Enforcement lead agency:
                    Not reported    Enf. disp. status date:
                    Not reported    Enf. disposition status:
                    01/30/2009    Enforcement action date:
                    WRITTEN INFORMAL    Enforcement action:
                    StateViolation lead agency:
                    04/01/2009Date achieved compliance:
                    12/09/2008Date violation determined:
                    TSD - General Facility StandardsArea of violation:
                    Not reportedRegulation violated:

                    Not reported    Paid penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Final penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Proposed penalty amount:
                    State    Enforcement lead agency:
                    Not reported    Enf. disp. status date:
                    Not reported    Enf. disposition status:
                    03/29/2012    Enforcement action date:
                    WRITTEN INFORMAL    Enforcement action:
                    StateViolation lead agency:
                    03/29/2012Date achieved compliance:
                    03/29/2012Date violation determined:
                    State Statute or RegulationArea of violation:
                    Not reportedRegulation violated:

                    Not reported    Paid penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Final penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Proposed penalty amount:
                    State    Enforcement lead agency:
                    Not reported    Enf. disp. status date:
                    Not reported    Enf. disposition status:
                    03/29/2012    Enforcement action date:
                    WRITTEN INFORMAL    Enforcement action:
                    StateViolation lead agency:
                    05/25/2012Date achieved compliance:
                    03/29/2012Date violation determined:
                    Universal Waste - Small Quantity HandlersArea of violation:

BELCO FOREST PRODUCTS INC  (Continued) 1011863912

TC5712009.2s   Page 476



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    04/01/2009Date achieved compliance:
                    Generators - GeneralArea of violation:
                    COMPLIANCE EVALUATION INSPECTION ON-SITEEvaluation:
                    12/09/2008Evaluation date:

                    StateEvaluation lead agency:
                    05/25/2012Date achieved compliance:
                    Universal Waste - Small Quantity HandlersArea of violation:
                    COMPLIANCE EVALUATION INSPECTION ON-SITEEvaluation:
                    03/29/2012Evaluation date:

                    StateEvaluation lead agency:
                    03/29/2012Date achieved compliance:
                    State Statute or RegulationArea of violation:
                    COMPLIANCE EVALUATION INSPECTION ON-SITEEvaluation:
                    03/29/2012Evaluation date:

Evaluation Action Summary:

                    Not reported    Paid penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Final penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Proposed penalty amount:
                    State    Enforcement lead agency:
                    Not reported    Enf. disp. status date:
                    Not reported    Enf. disposition status:
                    01/30/2009    Enforcement action date:
                    WRITTEN INFORMAL    Enforcement action:
                    StateViolation lead agency:
                    04/01/2009Date achieved compliance:
                    12/09/2008Date violation determined:
                    State Statute or RegulationArea of violation:
                    Not reportedRegulation violated:

                    Not reported    Paid penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Final penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Proposed penalty amount:
                    State    Enforcement lead agency:
                    Not reported    Enf. disp. status date:
                    Not reported    Enf. disposition status:
                    01/30/2009    Enforcement action date:
                    WRITTEN INFORMAL    Enforcement action:
                    StateViolation lead agency:
                    04/01/2009Date achieved compliance:
                    12/09/2008Date violation determined:
                    Used Oil - GeneratorsArea of violation:
                    Not reportedRegulation violated:

                    Not reported    Paid penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Final penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Proposed penalty amount:
                    State    Enforcement lead agency:
                    Not reported    Enf. disp. status date:
                    Not reported    Enf. disposition status:
                    01/30/2009    Enforcement action date:
                    WRITTEN INFORMAL    Enforcement action:
                    StateViolation lead agency:
                    04/01/2009Date achieved compliance:
                    12/09/2008Date violation determined:

BELCO FOREST PRODUCTS INC  (Continued) 1011863912

TC5712009.2s   Page 477



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    StateEvaluation lead agency:
                    04/01/2009Date achieved compliance:
                    Used Oil - GeneratorsArea of violation:
                    COMPLIANCE EVALUATION INSPECTION ON-SITEEvaluation:
                    12/09/2008Evaluation date:

                    StateEvaluation lead agency:
                    04/01/2009Date achieved compliance:
                    TSD - General Facility StandardsArea of violation:
                    COMPLIANCE EVALUATION INSPECTION ON-SITEEvaluation:
                    12/09/2008Evaluation date:

                    StateEvaluation lead agency:
                    04/01/2009Date achieved compliance:
                    Generators - Records/ReportingArea of violation:
                    COMPLIANCE EVALUATION INSPECTION ON-SITEEvaluation:
                    12/09/2008Evaluation date:

                    StateEvaluation lead agency:
                    04/01/2009Date achieved compliance:
                    State Statute or RegulationArea of violation:
                    COMPLIANCE EVALUATION INSPECTION ON-SITEEvaluation:
                    12/09/2008Evaluation date:

                    StateEvaluation lead agency:

BELCO FOREST PRODUCTS INC  (Continued) 1011863912

facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110015424183Registry ID:

FINDS:

                                             -123.15470906100001Longitude:
                                             47.251939491999998Latitude:
                                             Emergency/Haz Chem Rpt TIDate Interaction 3:
                                             1998-01-01 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             CRK000048380Program ID:
                                             Not reportedFacility Alt.:
                                             EPCRAProgram Data:
                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             TIER2Interaction 2:
                                             AInteraction 1:
                                             62141Interaction:

                              74566742Facility Id:
                              WA DOT SHELTON 633Facility Name:

ALLSITES:

8394 ft.
1.590 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
306 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
West FINDSW 633 DAYTON AIRPORT RD    N/A
182 WA ALLSITESWA DOT SHELTON 633 1007065841

TC5712009.2s   Page 478



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water

WA DOT SHELTON 633  (Continued) 1007065841

                                             -123.15359879099999Longitude:
                                             47.255428184000003Latitude:
                                             Construction SW GPDate Interaction 3:
                                             2014-02-26 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             WAR301928Program ID:
                                             Upper Mountain View Pressure ZoneFacility Alt.:
                                             PARISProgram Data:
                                             WATQUALEcology Program:
                                             CONSTSWGPInteraction 2:
                                             AInteraction 1:
                                             108682Interaction:

                              5194Facility Id:
                              MASON COUNTY PUBLIC WORKSFacility Name:

ALLSITES:

8395 ft. Site 1 of 2 in cluster AL
1.590 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
315 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
WNW S OF HWY 101    N/A
AL183 WA ALLSITESMASON COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS S116506002

                              Not reportedRecovered Quantity:
                              Not reportedVessel Facility Name2:
                              Not reportedSource:
                              Not reportedSource Type:
                              Not reportedLongitude:
                              Not reportedLatitude:
                              Not reportedIncident Category:
                              Not reportedIncident Category Type:
                              Not reportedIncident Date:
                              Not reportedContact Name:
                              04/01/2005Date Received:
                              GALLONMaterial Units:
                              10Material Qty:
                              PETROLEUM - MOTOR OILMaterial Desc:
                              Not reportedMedium:
                              547205Facility ID:
                              SHELTON, WACity,State,Zip:
                              116 K STAddress:
                              MASON COUNTY PUD #3Name:

SPILLS:

8409 ft. Site 1 of 2 in cluster AM
1.593 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
219 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  
South 116 K ST    N/A
AM184 WA SPILLSMASON COUNTY PUD #3 S107154889

TC5712009.2s   Page 479

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6B1Y6mqxBkop1WP4Yvkv3H4Dm1QDqeQnxxKkAD1YkTpyokUhpvmz4ihXWLCsPe4G4F3m3LJQvRzIkD3jvsFq4BtfHqLW4.utDlic4jL71NVhQb.pD4FNB..9e0pgQzTunROz33Gzxr4zKnUAkYVm3m5UDDrA1n64YxZo6UYBB39.1dWZYyGk31dRmSOuqol1xYMC9OWVk14OotJzpjUr35PxWqSePbWk4xJKA9YsvLHekJVfvi0g4.41HFWg4JdWDRxk4gvX1BhfQbjVDEf645IRe.nzQiWQn5ucC6yJxnvEKlhzkhKl63nRB3uN1z8EYPKt4HkkmeZ.qPkbxuKg3KtPkYcQoSM3puz18icmWe4nP19R4dxfACItvElQkTkpvRzu4WmfH75t4n94Djlo5.9d1VyMQQjFDNDy3DeaezlKQzg7n8tj35d.xiUAKwuckA7WCxs.D5G01FAsYrlP2PNyT6d.pLOAyuDK5tYxkj5sUWbnhnjRvMVIvIaWmmdnzPS869ayBQzQ1Sr0YCGe4CJpmrHPqQdlxSAh33nBkkV6otc9pjOd4NGIWXS3PVXo4qYF31e5vUsTk8QGvRGS3C6nH9wU41ODDVlpADma1sSJQ913D9.u37aWer9TQXRinwcc9C5Wxc0bKtVZkhdd8jWaDlhC1Cp4YB1iBxXETzw5pIjvyrin7xRAkfGmUzqqh7Hm4BGqvGQcmTvKzwoR3
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6B1Y6mqxBkop1WP4Yvkv3H4Dm1QDqeQnxxKkAD1YkTpyokUhpvmz4ihXWLCsPe4G4F3m3LJQvRzIkD3jvsFq4BtfHqLW4.utDlic4jL71NVhQb.pD4FNB..9e0pgQzTunROz33Gzxr4zKnUAkYVm3m5UDDrA1n64YxZo6UYBB39.1dWZYyGk31dRmSOuqol1xYMC9OWVk14OotJzpjUr35PxWqSePbWk4xJKA9YsvLHekJVfvi0g4.41HFWg4JdWDRxk4gvX1BhfQbjVDEf645IRe.nzQiWQn5ucC6yJxnvEKlhzkhKl63nRB3uN1z8EYPKt4HkkmeZ.qPkbxuKg3KtPkYcQoSM3puz18icmWe4nP19R4dxfACItvElQkTkpvRzu4WmfH75t4n94Djlo5.9d1VyMQQjFDNDy3DeaezlKQzg7n8tj35d.xiUAKwuckA7WCxs.D5G01FAsYrlP2PNyT6d.pLOAyuDK5tYxkj5sUWbnhnjRvMVIvIaWmmdnzPS869ayBQzQ1Sr0YCGe4CJpmrHPqQdlxSAh33nBkkV6otc9pjOd4NGIWXS3PVXo4qYF31e5vUsTk8QGvRGS3C6nH9wU41ODDVlpADma1sSJQ913D9.u37aWer9TQXRinwcc9C5Wxc0bKtVZkhdd8jWaDlhC1Cp4YB1iBxXETzw5pIjvyrin7xRAkfGmUzqqh7Hm4BGqvGQcmTvKzwoR3


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              Not reportedResp Party Name:
                              Not reportedCause Type:
                              Not reportedCause:
                              Not reportedResp Party Contact:

MASON COUNTY PUD #3  (Continued) S107154889

                                   http://echo.epa.gov/detailed-facility-report?fid=110067180339DFR URL:
                                   110067180339Registry ID:
                                   1018314181Envid:

ECHO:

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

discharge does not adversely affect water quality.
requirements, and include other provisions to ensure that the
limits on what can be discharged, impose monitoring and reporting
States are required to obtain a permit. The permit will likely contain
discharge pollutants from any point source into waters of the United
issued under the Clean Water Act. Under NPDES, all facilities that
the Compliance Information System (ICIS) tracks surface water permits
US National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) module of
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110067180339Registry ID:

FINDS:

8411 ft. Site 2 of 2 in cluster AL
1.593 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
315 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
WNW ECHOS OF HWY 101    N/A
AL185 FINDSUPPER MOUNTAIN VIEW PRESSURE ZONE 1018314181

                                             -123.122765071Longitude:
                                             47.225464488Latitude:
                                             Hazardous Waste GeneratorDate Interaction 3:
                                             1995-09-07 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             WAR000002923Program ID:
                                             Not reportedFacility Alt.:
                                             TURBOWASTEProgram Data:
                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             HWGInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             45823Interaction:

                              45521314Facility Id:
                              MASON CNTY PUD 3Facility Name:

ALLSITES:

8428 ft. Site 2 of 2 in cluster AM
1.596 mi. ECHO

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
219 ft.

 

> 1 FINDSSHELTON, WA  98584
South RCRA NonGen / NLR116 E K ST WAR000002923
AM186 WA ALLSITESMASON CNTY PUD 3 1001031586

TC5712009.2s   Page 480

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6B1Y6mqxBkop1WP4Yvkv3H4Dm1QDqeQnxxKkAD1YkTpyokUhpvmz4ihXWLCsPe4G4F3m3LJQvRzIkD3jvsFq4BtfHqLW4.utDlic4jL71NVhQb.pD4FNB..9e0pgQzTunROz33Gzxr4zKnUAkYVm3m5UDDrA1n64YxZo6UYBB39.1dWZYyGk31dRmSOuqol1xYMC9OWVk14OotJzpjUr35PxWqSePbWk4xJKA9YsvLHekJVfvi0g4.41HFWg4JdWDRxk4gvX1BhfQbjVDEf645IRe.nzQiWQn5ucC6yJxnvEKlhzkhKl63nRB3uN1z8EYPKt4HkkmeZ.qPkbxuKg3KtPkYcQoSM3puz18icmWe4nP19R4dxfACItvElQkTkpvRzu4WmfH75t4n94Djlo5.9d1VyMQQjFDNDy3DeaezlKQzg7n8tj35d.xiUAKwuckA7WCxs.D5G01FAsYrlP2PNyT6d.pLOAyuDK5tYxkj5sUWbnhnjRvMVIvIaWmmdnzPS869ayBQzQ1Sr0YCGe4CJpmrHPqQdlxSAh33nBkkV6otc9pjOd4NGIWXS3PVXo4qYF31e5vUsTk8QGvRGS4C6nH9wU41ODDVlpBDma1sSJQ913D9.u67aWer9TQXRinwcc4C5Wxc0bKtVZkhdd7jWaDlhC1Cp4YB1i4xXETzw5pIjvyrinBxRAkfGmUzqqh7Hm4BGqvGQcmTvKzwoR3
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6B1Y6mqxBkop1WP4Yvkv3H4Dm1QDqeQnxxKkAD1YkTpyokUhpvmz4ihXWLCsPe4G4F3m3LJQvRzIkD3jvsFq4BtfHqLW4.utDlic4jL71NVhQb.pD4FNB..9e0pgQzTunROz33Gzxr4zKnUAkYVm3m5UDDrA1n64YxZo6UYBB39.1dWZYyGk31dRmSOuqol1xYMC9OWVk14OotJzpjUr35PxWqSePbWk4xJKA9YsvLHekJVfvi0g4.41HFWg4JdWDRxk4gvX1BhfQbjVDEf645IRe.nzQiWQn5ucC6yJxnvEKlhzkhKl63nRB3uN1z8EYPKt4HkkmeZ.qPkbxuKg3KtPkYcQoSM3puz18icmWe4nP19R4dxfACItvElQkTkpvRzu4WmfH75t4n94Djlo5.9d1VyMQQjFDNDy3DeaezlKQzg7n8tj35d.xiUAKwuckA7WCxs.D5G01FAsYrlP2PNyT6d.pLOAyuDK5tYxkj5sUWbnhnjRvMVIvIaWmmdnzPS869ayBQzQ1Sr0YCGe4CJpmrHPqQdlxSAh33nBkkV6otc9pjOd4NGIWXS3PVXo4qYF31e5vUsTk8QGvRGS4C6nH9wU41ODDVlpBDma1sSJQ913D9.u67aWer9TQXRinwcc4C5Wxc0bKtVZkhdd7jWaDlhC1Cp4YB1i4xXETzw5pIjvyrinBxRAkfGmUzqqh7Hm4BGqvGQcmTvKzwoR3


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    360-426-8255Owner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    PO BOX 2148Owner/operator address:
                    MASON CNTY PUD 3Owner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    01/23/1998Owner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    360-426-8255Owner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    PO BOX 2148Owner/operator address:
                    MASON CNTY PUD 3Owner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OperatorOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    360-426-8255Owner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    PO BOX 2148Owner/operator address:
                    WOOD, WYLAOwner/operator name:

Owner/Operator Summary:

                    Handler: Non-Generators do not presently generate hazardous wasteDescription:
                    Non-GeneratorClassification:
                    CountyLand type:
                    10EPA Region:
                    MICHELEK@MASONPUD3.ORGContact email:
                    5201Telephone ext.:
                    360-426-8255Contact telephone:
                    USContact country:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    PO BOX 2148Contact address:
                    MICHELE  KNAUFContact:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    PO BOX 2148Mailing address:
                    WAR000002923EPA ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    116 E K STFacility address:
                    MASON CNTY PUD 3Facility name:
                    01/27/2005Date form received by agency:

RCRA NonGen / NLR:

MASON CNTY PUD 3  (Continued) 1001031586

TC5712009.2s   Page 481



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    MASON CNTY PUD 3Site name:
                    12/15/1999Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    MASON CNTY PUD 3Site name:
                    01/11/2001Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    MASON CNTY PUD 3Site name:
                    02/08/2002Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    MASON CNTY PUD 3Site name:
                    01/30/2003Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    MASON CNTY PUD 3Site name:
                    02/13/2004Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    MASON CNTY PUD 3Site name:
                    12/31/2004Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    MASON CNTY PUD 3Site name:
                    01/26/2005Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    MASON CNTY PUD 3Site name:
                    01/26/2005Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    MASON CNTY PUD 3Site name:
                    01/26/2005Date form received by agency:

Historical Generators:

                              NoUsed oil transporter:
                              NoUsed oil transfer facility:
                              NoUsed oil Specification marketer:
                              NoUsed oil fuel marketer to burner:
                              NoUser oil refiner:
                              NoUsed oil processor:
                              NoUsed oil fuel burner:
                              NoFurnace exemption:
                              NoOn-site burner exemption:
                              NoUnderground injection activity:
                              NoTreater, storer or disposer of HW:
                              NoTransporter of hazardous waste:
                              NoRecycler of hazardous waste:
                              NoMixed waste (haz. and radioactive):
                              NoU.S. importer of hazardous waste:

Handler Activities Summary:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:

MASON CNTY PUD 3  (Continued) 1001031586

TC5712009.2s   Page 482



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    State    Enforcement lead agency:
                    Not reported    Enf. disp. status date:
                    Not reported    Enf. disposition status:
                    05/02/1995    Enforcement action date:
                    WRITTEN INFORMAL    Enforcement action:
                    StateViolation lead agency:
                    06/30/2001Date achieved compliance:
                    05/02/1995Date violation determined:
                    Generators - GeneralArea of violation:
                    SR - WAC 173-303-210(1)Regulation violated:

                    Not reported    Paid penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Final penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Proposed penalty amount:
                    State    Enforcement lead agency:
                    Not reported    Enf. disp. status date:
                    Not reported    Enf. disposition status:
                    05/02/1995    Enforcement action date:
                    WRITTEN INFORMAL    Enforcement action:
                    StateViolation lead agency:
                    05/05/1995Date achieved compliance:
                    05/02/1995Date violation determined:
                    Generators - GeneralArea of violation:
                    SR - WAC 173-303-201(2)(A)Regulation violated:

                    Not reported    Paid penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Final penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Proposed penalty amount:
                    State    Enforcement lead agency:
                    Not reported    Enf. disp. status date:
                    Not reported    Enf. disposition status:
                    05/02/1995    Enforcement action date:
                    WRITTEN INFORMAL    Enforcement action:
                    StateViolation lead agency:
                    05/05/1995Date achieved compliance:
                    05/02/1995Date violation determined:
                    Generators - GeneralArea of violation:
                    SR - WAC 173-303-200(1)(D)Regulation violated:

Facility Has Received Notices of Violations:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    MASON CNTY PUD 3Site name:
                    02/26/1996Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    MASON CNTY PUD 3Site name:
                    02/20/1997Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    MASON CNTY PUD 3Site name:
                    01/23/1998Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    MASON CNTY PUD 3Site name:
                    01/08/1999Date form received by agency:

                    Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:

MASON CNTY PUD 3  (Continued) 1001031586

TC5712009.2s   Page 483



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                   http://echo.epa.gov/detailed-facility-report?fid=110005400299DFR URL:
                                   110005400299Registry ID:
                                   1001031586Envid:

ECHO:

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

HAZARDOUS WASTE BIENNIAL REPORTER

corrective action activities required under RCRA.
program staff to track the notification, permit, compliance, and
and treat, store, or dispose of hazardous waste. RCRAInfo allows RCRA
events and activities related to facilities that generate, transport,
Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) program through the tracking of
RCRAInfo is a national information system that supports the Resource

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110005400299Registry ID:

FINDS:

                    StateEvaluation lead agency:
                    06/30/2001Date achieved compliance:
                    Generators - GeneralArea of violation:
                    COMPLIANCE EVALUATION INSPECTION ON-SITEEvaluation:
                    05/02/1995Evaluation date:

                    StateEvaluation lead agency:
                    05/05/1995Date achieved compliance:
                    Generators - GeneralArea of violation:
                    COMPLIANCE EVALUATION INSPECTION ON-SITEEvaluation:
                    05/02/1995Evaluation date:

                    StateEvaluation lead agency:
                    Not reportedDate achieved compliance:
                    Not reportedArea of violation:
                    COMPLIANCE EVALUATION INSPECTION ON-SITEEvaluation:
                    06/07/2001Evaluation date:

Evaluation Action Summary:

                    Not reported    Paid penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Final penalty amount:
                    Not reported    Proposed penalty amount:

MASON CNTY PUD 3  (Continued) 1001031586

TC5712009.2s   Page 484

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=4J34JeJZl3zl245J.He2r9XrZcHlWl3MBzAQln32LM4o25cU3hh.u6Ho43cn2UZrbOAtXX2qrty2rPcUIHp.2SDWCUloN4YVJqK3ca2UMJFMeVU8TxZpQlrH2OAzmzlp09NV4tx5ZD3MG.fwHYu3Ma2SXrZa3FTXRqrRkB0NctXHxc47oJ3.3Tp3ElJeFeIE2YpZwJlJZ7LXzmylGY93o47D5923nX.G8HA24.g2MUr8r2LBXg8r362pzcSgHhEBTqWFvlOM1SvMiEBxX4fYAr8QQxuUjnKX39G4iyJ5I3sS3YnJ.4eHS2BkZZllNm36azbxlmB2nN4cT5Qx2gP.KAHp83Gg2NVrAJ2hNXPkreM5NUcNNHdz34.WgAlAJ7K2MXZB62A77AH8QEz8bmnFc38g2
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=4J34JeJZl3zl245J.He2r9XrZcHlWl3MBzAQln32LM4o25cU3hh.u6Ho43cn2UZrbOAtXX2qrty2rPcUIHp.2SDWCUloN4YVJqK3ca2UMJFMeVU8TxZpQlrH2OAzmzlp09NV4tx5ZD3MG.fwHYu3Ma2SXrZa3FTXRqrRkB0NctXHxc47oJ3.3Tp3ElJeFeIE2YpZwJlJZ7LXzmylGY93o47D5923nX.G8HA24.g2MUr8r2LBXg8r362pzcSgHhEBTqWFvlOM1SvMiEBxX4fYAr8QQxuUjnKX39G4iyJ5I3sS3YnJ.4eHS2BkZZllNm36azbxlmB2nN4cT5Qx2gP.KAHp83Gg2NVrAJ2hNXPkreM5NUcNNHdz34.WgAlAJ7K2MXZB62A77AH8QEz8bmnFc38g2


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        SHELTON, WACity,State,Zip:
                                        2505 OLYMPIC HIGHWAY NORTHAddress:
                                        Not reportedName:

ASBESTOS:

                              Not reportedResp Party Name:
                              Not reportedCause Type:
                              Not reportedCause:
                              Not reportedResp Party Contact:
                              Not reportedRecovered Quantity:
                              Not reportedVessel Facility Name2:
                              Not reportedSource:
                              Not reportedSource Type:
                              Not reportedLongitude:
                              Not reportedLatitude:
                              Not reportedIncident Category:
                              Not reportedIncident Category Type:
                              Not reportedIncident Date:
                              Not reportedContact Name:
                              01/27/2007Date Received:
                              Not reportedMaterial Units:
                              Not reportedMaterial Qty:
                              UNKNOWNMaterial Desc:
                              Not reportedMedium:
                              560081Facility ID:
                              SHELTON, WACity,State,Zip:
                              2505 OLYMPIC HIGHWAY NORTH #200Address:
                              UNKNOWNName:

                              Not reportedResp Party Name:
                              Not reportedCause Type:
                              Not reportedCause:
                              Not reportedResp Party Contact:
                              Not reportedRecovered Quantity:
                              Not reportedVessel Facility Name2:
                              Not reportedSource:
                              Not reportedSource Type:
                              Not reportedLongitude:
                              Not reportedLatitude:
                              Not reportedIncident Category:
                              Not reportedIncident Category Type:
                              Not reportedIncident Date:
                              Not reportedContact Name:
                              03/29/2012Date Received:
                              GALLONMaterial Units:
                              Not reportedMaterial Qty:
                              PETROLEUM - MINERAL OILMaterial Desc:
                              SOILMedium:
                              632953Facility ID:
                              SHELTON, WACity,State,Zip:
                              2505 OLYMPIC HWY #200Address:
                              Not reportedName:

SPILLS:

8509 ft. Site 1 of 2 in cluster AN
1.612 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
220 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  
South WA ASBESTOS2505 OLYMPIC HIGHWAY NORTH #200    N/A
AN187 WA SPILLSUNKNOWN S108277934

TC5712009.2s   Page 485



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        Not reportedDucting Insulation:
                                        Not reportedAir Cell Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedMag Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedQuantity Lin Ft:
                                        Not reportedSq Ft Other Text:
                                        Not reportedSq Ft Other:
                                        Not reportedRoofing:
                                        Not reportedVAT:
                                        Not reportedDuct Paper:
                                        Not reportedBoiler Insulation:
                                        Not reportedAsbestos Paper:
                                        Not reportedSheet Vinyl:
                                        Not reportedCAB:
                                        Not reportedPopcorn Ceiling:
                                        Not reportedFireproofing:
                                        Not reportedQuantity Sq Ft:
                                        Not reportedEncapsulated:
                                        Not reportedRemoved:
                                        Not reportedFacility Maint:
                                        Not reportedFacility Repair:
                                        Not reportedFacility Demo:
                                        Not reportedFacility Remodel:
                                        Not reportedFacility Size:
                                        Not reportedFacility Age:
                                        Not reportedJob Site Room:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner Phone:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner Zip4:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner State:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner City:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner Address:
                                        CONSTRUCTION GROUP INTERNATION (WOODINVILLE)Property Owner Company:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner Agent:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner Name:
                                        Not reportedProject Form Email:
                                        Not reportedJob Site CAS:
                                        Not reportedPhone:
                                        ABCN00001411Contractor ID:
                                        Not reportedSaturday:
                                        Not reportedFriday:
                                        Not reportedThursday:
                                        Not reportedWednesday:
                                        Not reportedTuesday:
                                        Not reportedMonday:
                                        Not reportedSunday:
                                        Not reportedSite Hours End:
                                        Not reportedSite Hours Start:
                                        Not reportedEmergency:
                                        Not reportedOff Hold:
                                        Not reportedOn Hold:
                                        Not reportedAmended:
                                        Not reportedInitial:
                                        08/31/2018Completion Date:
                                        05/17/2018Start Date:
                                        07/17/2018Notice Date:
                                        123646#569967933Form ID:
                                        Not reportedParent ID:
                                        Not reportedFacility Type:

UNKNOWN  (Continued) S108277934

TC5712009.2s   Page 486



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        Not reportedCertificate Status:
                                        Not reportedSupervisor Phone:
                                        Not reportedSupervisor:
                                        Not reportedProject Type:
                                        Not reportedNotice type:
                                        Not reportedUBI:
                                        Not reportedRegion:
                                        Not reportedSubmitter IP Address:
                                        Not reportedDate Time Submitted:
                                        Not reportedComments:
                                        Not reportedOther Resp Pro Text:
                                        Not reportedOther Resp Pro:
                                        Not reportedType C Pressure:
                                        Not reportedType C Continuous:
                                        Not reportedPAPR:
                                        Not reportedFull Face APR:
                                        Not reportedHalf Mask APR:
                                        Not reportedOther CM2 Text:
                                        Not reportedOther CM2:
                                        Not reportedOther CM1 Text:
                                        Not reportedOther CM1:
                                        Not reportedMANUALMETHODS     :
                                        Not reportedHEPA Vacuum:
                                        Not reportedWet Methods:
                                        Not reportedWrap And Cut:
                                        Not reportedCritical Barriers:
                                        Not reportedMini Enclosure:
                                        Not reportedGlove Bag:
                                        Not reportedNeg Pres Enclosure:
                                        Not reportedOutdoors:
                                        Not reportedIndoors:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other2 Text:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other2:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other1 Text:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other1:
                                        Not reportedDuct Tape:
                                        Not reportedMudded Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedCement Asbestos Pipe:

UNKNOWN  (Continued) S108277934

                              Not reportedIncident Category Type:
                              Not reportedIncident Date:
                              Not reportedContact Name:
                              01/12/2007Date Received:
                              Not reportedMaterial Units:
                              Not reportedMaterial Qty:
                              PETROLEUM - OIL OTHERMaterial Desc:
                              Not reportedMedium:
                              560081Facility ID:
                              SHELTON, WACity,State,Zip:
                              2505 OLYMPIC HWY #200Address:
                              Not reportedName:

SPILLS:

8509 ft. Site 2 of 2 in cluster AN
1.612 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
220 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  
South 2505 OLYMPIC HWY #200    N/A
AN188 WA SPILLS S108278114

TC5712009.2s   Page 487



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              Not reportedResp Party Name:
                              Not reportedCause Type:
                              Not reportedCause:
                              Not reportedResp Party Contact:
                              Not reportedRecovered Quantity:
                              Not reportedVessel Facility Name2:
                              Not reportedSource:
                              Not reportedSource Type:
                              Not reportedLongitude:
                              Not reportedLatitude:
                              Not reportedIncident Category:

  (Continued) S108278114

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

AIR EMISSIONS CLASSIFICATION UNKNOWN
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110037978025Registry ID:

FINDS:

8583 ft.
1.626 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
268 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  00000
SW UNKNOWN    N/A
189 FINDSSANDERSON FIELD 1011986227

                              Not reportedResp Party Contact:
                              Not reportedRecovered Quantity:
                              Not reportedVessel Facility Name2:
                              Not reportedSource:
                              Not reportedSource Type:
                              Not reportedLongitude:
                              Not reportedLatitude:
                              Not reportedIncident Category:
                              Not reportedIncident Category Type:
                              Not reportedIncident Date:
                              Not reportedContact Name:
                              04/19/2012Date Received:
                              GALLONMaterial Units:
                              15Material Qty:
                              PETROLEUM - MINERAL OILMaterial Desc:
                              SURFACE WATER-FRESHMedium:
                              633376Facility ID:
                              SHELTON, WACity,State,Zip:
                              116 W K STREETAddress:
                              MASON COUNTY PUD #3Name:

SPILLS:

8600 ft.
1.629 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
217 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  
South 116 W K STREET    N/A
190 WA SPILLSMASON COUNTY PUD #3 S112075174

TC5712009.2s   Page 488

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=4J34JeJZl3zl245J.He2r9XrZcHlWl3MBzAQln32LM4o25cU3hh.u6Ho43cn2UZrbOAtXX2qrty2rPcUIHp.2SDWCUloN4YVJqK3ca2UMJFMeVU8TxZpQlrH2OAzmzlp09NV4tx5ZD3MG.fwHYu3Ma2SXrZa3FTXRqrRkB0NctXHxc47oJ3.3Tp3ElJeFeIE2YpZwJlJZ7LXzmylGY93o47D5923nX.G8HA24.g2MUr8r2LBXg8r362pzcSgHhEBTqWFvlOM1SvMiEBxX4fYAr8QQxuUjnKX39G4iyJ5I3sS3YnJ.4eHS2BkZZllNm36azbxlmB2nN4cT5Qx3gP.KAHp83Gg2NVrAJBhNXPkreMANUcNNHdz84.WgAlAJ4K2MXZB62477AH8QEz9bmnFc38g2
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=4J34JeJZl3zl245J.He2r9XrZcHlWl3MBzAQln32LM4o25cU3hh.u6Ho43cn2UZrbOAtXX2qrty2rPcUIHp.2SDWCUloN4YVJqK3ca2UMJFMeVU8TxZpQlrH2OAzmzlp09NV4tx5ZD3MG.fwHYu3Ma2SXrZa3FTXRqrRkB0NctXHxc47oJ3.3Tp3ElJeFeIE2YpZwJlJZ7LXzmylGY93o47D5923nX.G8HA24.g2MUr8r2LBXg8r362pzcSgHhEBTqWFvlOM1SvMiEBxX4fYAr8QQxuUjnKX39G4iyJ5I3sS3YnJ.4eHS2BkZZllNm36azbxlmB2nN4cT5Qx3gP.KAHp83Gg2NVrAJBhNXPkreMANUcNNHdz84.WgAlAJ4K2MXZB62477AH8QEz9bmnFc38g2


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              Not reportedResp Party Name:
                              Not reportedCause Type:
                              Not reportedCause:

MASON COUNTY PUD #3  (Continued) S112075174

                    Not reportedLongitude:
                    Not reportedLatitude:
                    Not reportedWebsite:
                    NoOpen to Public Flag:
                    Not reportedYear Closed:
                    Not reportedContact Title:
                    Paul WindustContact Name:
                    Recycling (exempt)Facility Type:
                    PRIVATEOwnership:
                    6767Recycle Survey Code:
                    Not reportedOperator Title:
                    paulw@acepaving.comOperator EMail:
                    Ace Paving Company, IncOperator Organization:
                    Paul WindustOperator Name:
                    360-432-3037Phone:
                    Not reportedPermit No:
                    Not reportedContact Phone Ext:
                    Not reportedContact Phone:
                    paulw@acepaving.comContact EMail:
                    98312Contact Postal:
                    WAContact State:
                    BremertonContact City:
                    Not reportedContact Address2:
                    Po Box 4520Contact Address1:
                    Ace Paving Company, IncContact Organization:
                    ExemptPermit Status:
                    STATERegion:
                    624Facility ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    EAST 4801 BROCKDALEAddress:
                    ACE PAVING, PLANT 3Name:

SWF/LF:

8627 ft. Site 1 of 2 in cluster AO
1.634 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
238 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
North EAST 4801 BROCKDALE    N/A
AO191 WA SWF/LFACE PAVING, PLANT 3 S110629878

                                                                 Not reportedEcolgy Fac ID:
                                                                 Not reportedFacility Site Status Description:
                                                                 Not reportedFacility Category Short Name:
                                                                 Not reportedFacility Type:
                                                                 Not reportedFacility ID:
                                                                 Not reportedYear Of Info:

AIRS (EMI):

8627 ft. Site 2 of 2 in cluster AO
1.634 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
238 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
North E 4801 BROCKDALE RD    N/A
AO192 WA AIRSACE PAVING CO INC S103531842

TC5712009.2s   Page 489



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                                 Not reported# Of Hours Facility Operates Each Day:
                                                                 Not reported% Of Ops Occuring During Qtr Oct-Dec:
                                                                 Not reported% Of Ops Occuring During Qtr Sep-Nov:
                                                                 Not reported% Of Ops Occuring During Qtr Jul-Sep:
                                                                 Not reported% Of Ops Occuring During Qtr Jun-Aug:
                                                                 Not reported% Of Ops Occuring During Qtr Mar-May:
                                                                 Not reported% Of Ops Occuring During Qtr Apr-Jun:
                                                                 Not reported% Of Ops Occuring During Qtr Dec-Feb:
                                                                 Not reported% Of Ops Occuring During Qtr Jan-Mar:
                                                                 Not reportedBoilers Design Capacity At A Point:
                                                                 Not reportedUnivsl Business ID:
                                                                 Not reportedCO Nonattainment Area:
                                                                 Not reported% Cntrl Of Volatile Organic Compound Emissions:
                                                                 Not reportedNO2 Chemical:
                                                                 Not reported% Control Of Sulfur Dioxide Emissions:
                                                                 Not reportedPM10 Nonattainment Area:
                                                                 Not reportedTot Suspended Partclte Emissions Estmn Code:
                                                                 Not reportedPM-CON:
                                                                 Not reportedHeat Content Denominator UOM Code:
                                                                 Not reportedHeat Content Numerator UOM Code:
                                                                 Not reportedHeat Content:
                                                                 Not reported% Ash Content:
                                                                 Not reported% Sulfur Content:
                                                                 Not reportedCalculation Parameter UOM Code:
                                                                 Not reportedCalculation Parameter Quantity:
                                                                 Not reportedCalculation Material Code Description:
                                                                 Not reportedInsignificant Emissions Unit Flag:
                                                                 Not reportedEmissions Unit Process Id:
                                                                 Not reportedEmissions Unit Design Capacity UOM Code:
                                                                 Not reportedEmissions Unit Design Capacity Quantity:
                                                                 Not reportedEmissions Unit Id:
                                                                 Not reportedRelease Point Description:
                                                                 Not reportedRelease Point Id:
                                                                 Not reportedProcess ID:
                                                                 Not reportedSource Number:
                                                                 Not reportedFed County Code:
                                                                 Not reportedLocal Air Agency ID:
                                                                 Not reportedLocal ID:
                                                                 Not reportedPoint Comments:
                                             Not reportedPoint Desc:
                                                                 Not reportedPoint UTM Zone:
                                                                 Not reportedPoint UTM North:
                                                                 Not reportedPoint UTM East:
                                                                 Not reportedLat/Long (dms):
                                                                 Not reportedLat/Long:
                                                                 Not reportedPoint NAICS:
                                                                 Not reportedPoint Num:
                                                                 Not reportedPoint Process SIC:
                                                                 Not reportedPlant UTM Zone:
                                                                 Not reportedPlant UTM North:
                                                                 Not reportedPlant UTM East:
                                                                 Not reportedPlant Lat/Long (dms):
                                                                 Not reportedPlant Lat/Long:
                                                                 Not reportedNAICS Code:
                                                                 Not reportedPlant NAICS:
                                                                 Not reportedPlant SIC Code:
                                                                 Not reportedPlant Name:

ACE PAVING CO INC  (Continued) S103531842

TC5712009.2s   Page 490



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                                 Not reportedSec Carbon Monoxide Cntrl Tech Code At Pt/Seg:
                                                                 Not reportedPri Carbon Monoxide Cntrl Tech Code At Pt/Seg:
                                                                 Not reportedCarbon Monoxide Emission Est Code:
                                                                 Not reportedCarbon Monoxide Emissions In Tons/Year:
                                                                 Not reported% Cntrl Of Volatile Organic Compound Emissions:
                                                                 Not reportedSec Voltle Organic Compound Cntl Tech Code At Pt/Seg:
                                                                 Not reportedPri Voltl Organic Compound Cntl Tech Code At Pt/seg:
                                                                 Not reportedVoltl Organic Compound Emissions Est Code:
                                                                 Not reportedVolatile Organic Compound Emissions In Tons/Year:
                                                                 Not reportedVolatile Organic Compound Emitted Desc:
                                                                 Not reported% Control Of Nitrous Oxides Emissions:
                                                                 Not reportedSec Nitrous Oxide Control Tech Code At Point Segment:
                                                                 Not reportedPri Nitrous Oxides Cntrl Tech Code At Point/Segment:
                                                                 Not reportedNitrous Oxides Emission Estimation Code:
                                                                 Not reportedNitrous Oxides Emissions In Tons/Yr:
                                                                 Not reported% Control Of Sulfur Dioxide Emissions:
                                                                 Not reportedSecondary Sulfur Dioxide Cntrl Tech Code At Pt/Seg:
                                                                 Not reportedPri Sulfur Dioxide Cntrl Tech Code At Pt/Seg:
                                                                 Not reportedSulfur Dioxide Emission Estimation Code:
                                                                 Not reportedSulfur Dioxide Emissions  Tons/Year:
                                                                 Not reported% Cntrl Of Particulate Matter (?2.5microns) Emissions:
                                                                 Not reportedSec Prticlte Matter (?2.5microns) Ctl Tech Code At Pt/Seg:
                                                                 Not reportedPri Ptculate Matter (?2.5microns) Ctl Tech Code At Pt/Seg:
                                                                 Not reportedPrticlte Matter Emisn (?2.5microns) Est Code:
                                                                 Not reportedPrticlte Matter (?2.5microns)emisins In Tons/Yr:
                                                                 Not reported% Cntrl Of Prtclte Matter (? 10microns) Emisns:
                                                                 Not reportedSec Prtclte Matter (?10microns) Cntl Tech Code At Pt/Seg:
                                                                 Not reportedPri Prtclte Matter (?10microns) Cntrl Tech Code At Pt/Seg:
                                                                 Not reportedPartclte Matter Emission (?10microns) Est Code:
                                                                 Not reportedParticulate Matter Emission (?10microns) Tons/Year:
                                                                 Not reported% Control Of Particulate Matter Emissions:
                                                                 Not reportedSec Partciulate Matter Cntrl Tech Code At Point/segment:
                                                                 Not reportedPri Particulate Matter Cntrl Tech Code At Point/Segment:
                                                                 Not reportedTot Suspended Partclte Emissions Estmn Code:
                                                                 Not reportedTot Suspended Partclt Emissn Tons/Year:
                                                                 Not reportedFacility’s Throughput Data Confidential:
                                                                 Not reportedEmission Unit Output Threshhold:
                                                                 Not reported% Of Ash In Fuels:
                                                                 Not reported% Of Sulfur In Fuels:
                                                                 Not reportedMaximum Rate/Amount Of Annual Throughput:
                                                                 Not reportedAnnual Qty Of Throughput Mat:
                                                                 Not reportedDescription Of Material:
                                                                 Not reportedEPA Code For Mat Thruput Fate Desc/input/output/existing:
                                                                 Not reportedEPA Mat Code For Throughput At Each Process:
                                                                 Not reportedEPA Code For Throughput Unit Of Measure:
                                                                 Not reportedSCC Process Desc:
                                                                 Not reportedVertical Dist Exhaust Travels From Stack/vent Outlet:
                                                                 Not reportedFlow Unit:
                                                                 Not reportedFlow Rate:
                                                                 Not reported% Oxygen In Stack / Vent Exhaust:
                                                                 Not reportedAir Flow From A Vent Or Stack:
                                                                 Not reportedDiameter Of Stack:
                                                                 Not reportedHeight Of Stack:
                                                                 Not reported% Wtr In Stack / Vent Exhaust:
                                                                 Not reportedExit Temp Of A Stack Or Vent:
                                                                 Not reported# Of Weeks Facility Operates Each Year:
                                                                 Not reported# Of Days Facility Operates Each Week:

ACE PAVING CO INC  (Continued) S103531842

TC5712009.2s   Page 491



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                                 BREMERTON, WAMailing City,St,Zip:
                                                                 PO BOX 4520Mailing Address:
                                                                 Not reportedMailing Name:
                                                                 Not reportedEmissions Unit Process Status Code:
                                                                 Not reportedContact E-mail:
                                                                 Not reportedContact Fax:
                                                                 Not reportedContact Phone:
                                                                 Not reportedContact Name:
                                                                 Not reportedAverage % Emissions Quantity:
                                                                 Not reportedPollutant Type Code:
                                                                 Not reportedActual Hours Per Period Quantity:
                                                                 Not reportedShort Name Description:
                                                                 Not reportedEmission Unit Process Description:
                                                                 Not reportedUser Defined Process Identifier Code:
                                                                 Not reportedUnit Status Code Description:
                                                                 Not reportedEmissions Unit Description:
                                                                 Not reportedUser Defined Unit Identifier Code:
                                                                 Not reportedOxygen % Quantity:
                                                                 Not reportedWater Vapor % Quantity:
                                                                 Not reportedRelease Point Exit Gas Temperature Measure Quantity:
                                                                 Not reportedRelease Point Gas Flow Rate UOM Code:
                                                                 Not reportedRelease Point Exit Gas Flow Rate Measure Quantity:
                                                                 Not reportedRelease Point Gas Velocity UOMCode:
                                                                 Not reportedRelease Point Exit Gas Velocity Measure Quantity:
                                                                 Not reportedRelease Point Status Code Description:
                                                                 Not reportedUser Defined RP Identifier Code:
                                                                 Not reportedUser Defined Site Code:
                                                                 Not reportedFacility Site Supplemental Address:
                                                                 Not reportedControl Code6:
                                                                 Not reportedControl Code5:
                                                                 Not reportedControl Code4:
                                                                 Not reportedControl Code3:
                                                                 Not reportedControl Code2:
                                                                 Not reportedControl Code1:
                                                                 Not reportedWhether Source Is An AOP(Title V) Source:
                                                                 Not reportedLatitude/Longitude:
                                                                 Not reportedInsignificant Emissions Unit:
                                                                 Not reportedSecondary Control Device Code for SO2:
                                                                 Not reportedPrimary Control Device Code for SO2:
                                                                 Not reportedSCC Process Desc:
                                                                 Not reportedSTK ACFS:
                                                                 Not reportedNH3 % ctrl:
                                                                 Not reportedS NH3 ctrl:
                                                                 Not reportedNH3 tpy:
                                                                 Not reportedP NH3 Control:
                                                                 Not reportedUTM Zone:
                                                                 Not reportedUTM North:
                                                                 Not reportedUTM East:
                                                                 Not reportedCO Nonattainment Area:
                                                                 Not reportedOzone Nonattainment Area:
                                                                 Not reportedPM10 Nonattainment Area:
                                                                 Not reportedLead Emission Estimation Code:
                                                                 Not reportedLead Emissions In Tons/Year:
                                                                 Not reported% Cntrl Of Carbon Monoxide Emissions:

ACE PAVING CO INC  (Continued) S103531842

TC5712009.2s   Page 492



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110015535900Registry ID:

FINDS:

8644 ft.
1.637 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
204 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
East 1892 JOHNS PRAIRIE RD    N/A
193 FINDSGLENN CUSTOM MILLING 1007076923

                              Not reportedResp Party Name:
                              Not reportedCause Type:
                              Not reportedCause:
                              Not reportedResp Party Contact:
                              Not reportedRecovered Quantity:
                              Not reportedVessel Facility Name2:
                              Not reportedSource:
                              Not reportedSource Type:
                              Not reportedLongitude:
                              Not reportedLatitude:
                              Not reportedIncident Category:
                              Not reportedIncident Category Type:
                              Not reportedIncident Date:
                              CambellContact Name:
                              Not reportedDate Received:
                              OTHERMaterial Units:
                              1Material Qty:
                              OTHER - SEE NOTEMaterial Desc:
                              UNKNOWNMedium:
                              647341Facility ID:
                              SHELTON, WACity,State,Zip:
                              161 JOHNS CREEK DRIVEAddress:
                              Not reportedName:

SPILLS:

8665 ft. Site 1 of 2 in cluster AP
1.641 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
206 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  
East 161 JOHNS CREEK DRIVE    N/A
AP194 WA SPILLS S116363345

TC5712009.2s   Page 493

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6x576Zq7xmkL5C8W7CWA3.hrZV9Yqlvc7ALyA.5ZmnBSkANYLiOl4RneCtcv8y1xWZvy3zgCCE4dWlNGAm.H4rL0.tMUhDdsrGIp4DKlVNbd9I7gY8pPB1oJl8e4vat0cgyE38D7AJdXLBQ0ys1m3zj8.Ct55L1yZ18C6anqx3M954u47fRy3XSYZ5kkqpVQ7IGw9E0nmK0Bk0x0LaHq3KTMCnFY8tueWxgdA3SVCTUpWZxoAEaC4ffn.evrhAYZrt6E4olaV8FT9WKAYqnH4vLalnHlvxE0czyWCCofAYUBLaSryWyn6r.bxJEW5Ihm7uQN4jW3Z9y9qdBE7ypV3GDFmfULknkkL6YB8stTC8Ke8KciWgLuAgjTChv7WW9DAs7w4l5m.Tsph8yFrAdF5zk7VKoB9fZxYKn039PSlxSavLmEcKug3VshAcSLLRo1yMFiCZJi.PRc5.4mZhIX2prgnfR.B3g3SOEQ55ivAkvoNnS0Y7ZrvQKeidchORAulhVv6uKzxWmb5IjF7Nyi4KrvZZ9Tqd3T7AqT30Qjmp0DkHpeLmHu41J6CgUF8s.BWuuc300fCFuSWMkGA8Oe3gWa.c9hhtf1rovwANUfV68n98xaYEqs3kZXl1BRvtwBcmdNAP9eAMA0LCXQycO795.6.Rnp5dbFZrJqCWEAngWDBEfMS4Dh5YpQARAONKuAY0vp67rvifOoOn5ZlByW3
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6x576Zq7xmkL5C8W7CWA3.hrZV9Yqlvc7ALyA.5ZmnBSkANYLiOl4RneCtcv8y1xWZvy3zgCCE4dWlNGAm.H4rL0.tMUhDdsrGIp4DKlVNbd9I7gY8pPB1oJl8e4vat0cgyE38D7AJdXLBQ0ys1m3zj8.Ct55L1yZ18C6anqx3M954u47fRy3XSYZ5kkqpVQ7IGw9E0nmK0Bk0x0LaHq3KTMCnFY8tueWxgdA3SVCTUpWZxoAEaC4ffn.evrhAYZrt6E4olaV8FT9WKAYqnH4vLalnHlvxE0czyWCCofAYUBLaSryWyn6r.bxJEW5Ihm7uQN4jW3Z9y9qdBE7ypV3GDFmfULknkkL6YB8stTC8Ke8KciWgLuAgjTChv7WW9DAs7w4l5m.Tsph8yFrAdF5zk7VKoB9fZxYKn039PSlxSavLmEcKug3VshAcSLLRo1yMFiCZJi.PRc5.4mZhIX2prgnfR.B3g3SOEQ55ivAkvoNnS0Y7ZrvQKeidchORAulhVv6uKzxWmb5IjF7Nyi4KrvZZ9Tqd3T7AqT30Qjmp0DkHpeLmHu41J6CgUF8s.BWuuc300fCFuSWMkGA8Oe3gWa.c9hhtf1rovwANUfV68n98xaYEqs3kZXl1BRvtwBcmdNAP9eAMA0LCXQycO795.6.Rnp5dbFZrJqCWEAngWDBEfMS4Dh5YpQARAONKuAY0vp67rvifOoOn5ZlByW3


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                         ABOVEPipeline Above Ground:
                         UDOT Regulated:
                         Not reportedPipeline Type:
                         UNPDES Compliance:
                         Not reportedNPDES:
                         Not reportedType of Fuel:
                         Not reportedGenerating Capacity:
                         UPower Generating Facility:
                         PRIVATE RESIDENCEType of Fixed Object:
                         Not reportedBuilding ID:
                         Not reportedRoad Mile Marker:
                         Not reportedAircraft Runway Number:
                         Not reportedAircraft Hanger:
                         Not reportedAircraft Spot Number:
                         Not reportedAircraft Fuel on Board Units:
                         Not reportedAircraft Fuel on Board:
                         Not reportedAircraft Fuel Capacity Units:
                         Not reportedAircraft Fuel Capacity:
                         Not reportedAircraft ID:
                         Not reportedAircraft Model:
                         Not reportedAircraft Type:
                         1076113NRC Report #:

Incidents:

                         NPotential Range:
                         Not reportedLocation range:
                         Not reportedLocation Township:
                         Not reportedLocation Section:
                         Not reportedLong Quad:
                         Not reportedLong Sec:
                         Not reportedLong Min:
                         Not reportedLong Deg:
                         Not reportedLat Quad:
                         Not reportedLat Sec:
                         Not reportedLat Min:
                         Not reportedLat Deg:
                         Not reportedDirection From City:
                         Not reportedDistance Units:
                         Not reportedDistance From City:
                         Not reportedLocation Zip:
                         MASONLocation County:
                         WALocation State:
                         SHELTONLocation Nearest City:
                         Not reportedLocation Street 2:
                         Not reportedLocation Street 1:
                         161 JOHNS CREEK DRLoaction Address:
                         Not reportedIncident Location:
                         OCCURREDIncident DTG:
                         2014-03-07 12:00:00Incident Date Time:
                         OTHERIncident Cause:
                         FIXEDType of Incident:
                         CALLER IS REPORTING A NEIGHBOR THAT POURED PAINT DOWN A DRIVEWAY.Description of Incident:
                         1076113NRC Report #:

Incident Commons:

8665 ft. Site 2 of 2 in cluster AP
1.641 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
206 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  
East 161 JOHNS CREEK DR    N/A
AP195 ERNS 2014076113

TC5712009.2s   Page 494



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                         Not reportedOther Employee Testing:
                         Not reportedSignalman Testing:
                         Not reportedTrain Dispatcher Testing:
                         Not reportedBrakeman Testing:
                         Not reportedRCL Operator Testing:
                         Not reportedYard Foreman Testing:
                         Not reportedTrainman Testing:
                         Not reportedEngineer Testing:
                         Not reportedConductor Testing:
                         XXXSub Part C Testing Req:
                         Not reportedFBI Contact Date Time:
                         Not reportedFBI Contact:
                         Not reportedCR Change Date:
                         Not reportedCR End Date:
                         Not reportedCR Begin Date:
                         Not reportedTransit Bus Flag:
                         Not reportedService Disruption Units:
                         Not reportedService Disruption Time:
                         Not reportedDate Tiem Normal Service:
                         UAirbag Deployed:
                         UStructure Operational:
                         Not reportedStructure Name:
                         Not reportedType of Structure:
                         UAllision:
                         Not reportedContinuous Release Permit:
                         Not reportedInitial Continuous Release No:
                         Not reportedContinuous Release Type:
                         Not reportedBerth Slip Number:
                         Not reportedPier Dock Number:
                         Not reportedState Lease Number:
                         Not reportedOCSP Number:
                         Not reportedOCSG Number:
                         Not reportedLocation Block ID:
                         Not reportedLocation Area ID:
                         Not reportedPlatform Letter:
                         Not reportedPlatform Rig Name:
                         Not reportedActual Amount Units:
                         Not reportedActual Amount:
                         Not reportedCapacity of Tank Units:
                         Not reportedCapacity of Tank:
                         Not reportedTank ID:
                         Not reportedTank Regulated By:
                         UTank Regulated:
                         UTransportable Container:
                         ABOVETank Above Ground:
                         Not reportedDescription of Tank:
                         UBrake Failure:
                         Not reportedDOT Crossing Number:
                         UDevice Operational:
                         Not reportedCrossing Device Type:
                         Not reportedType Vehicle Involved:
                         Not reportedRailroad Milepost:
                         Not reportedLocation Subdivision:
                         UGrade Crossing:
                         Not reportedRailroad Hotline:
                         UPipeline Covered:
                         NExposed Underwater:

  (Continued) 2014076113

TC5712009.2s   Page 495



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                         Not reportedCurrent Speed:
                         Not reportedWave Condition:
                         Not reportedSheen Odor Description:
                         Not reportedDirection of Sheen Travel:
                         Not reportedSheen Color:
                         Not reportedSheen Size:
                         UWater Supply Contaminated:
                         Not reportedWind Direction:
                         Not reportedWind Speed:
                         Not reportedAir Temperature:
                         Not reportedWeather Conditions:
                         Not reportedOther Agency Notified:
                         Not reportedState Agency Report Number:
                         Not reportedState Agency on Scene:
                         Not reportedDesc Remedial Action:
                         Not reportedRelease rate:
                         Not reportedEstimated Duration of Release:
                         URelease Secured:
                         Not reportedTributary of:
                         Not reportedBody of Water:
                         CONCRETEAdditional Medium Info:
                         LANDMedium Desc:
                         UNKNOWNMedia Interest:
                         Not reportedTrack Closure Time:
                         Not reportedTrack Desc:
                         NTrack Closed:
                         NMajor Artery:
                         Not reportedClosure Direction:
                         Not reportedRoad Closure Time:
                         Not reportedRoad Desc:
                         NRoad Closed:
                         Not reportedWaterway Closure Time:
                         Not reportedWaterway Desc:
                         NWaterway Closed:
                         Not reportedAir Closure Time:
                         Not reportedAir Corridor Desc:
                         NAir Corridor Closed:
                         Not reportedDamage Amount:
                         NAny Damages:
                         Not reportedNumber Fatalities:
                         NAny Fatalities:
                         Not reportedNumber Hospitalized:
                         Not reportedNumber Injured:
                         NAny Injuries:
                         Not reportedRadius of Evacuation:
                         Not reportedWho Evacuated:
                         Not reportedNumber Evacuated:
                         NAny Evacuations:
                         UFire Extinguished:
                         NFire Involved:
                         1076113NRC Report #:

Incident Details:

                         XXXPassenger Delay:
                         XXXPassenger Route:
                         Not reportedPassenger Handling:
                         Not reportedUnknown Testing:

  (Continued) 2014076113

TC5712009.2s   Page 496



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                         Not reportedUnit of Measure Reach Water:
                         Not reportedAmount in Water:
                         NOIf Reached Water:
                         PAINTName of Material:
                         UNKNOWN AMOUNTUnit of Measure:
                         0Amount of Material:
                         Not reportedUN Number:
                         000000-00-0Case Number:
                         NCCChris Code:
                         1076113NRC Report #:

Material Involved:

                         TELEPHONESource:
                         Not reportedOn Behalf:
                         Not reportedResponsible Zip:
                         WAResponsible State:
                         SHELTONResponsible City:
                         PRIVATE CITIZENResponsible Org Type:
                         Not reportedResponsible Company:
                         INCCall Type:
                         2014-03-08 18:13:49Date Time Complete:
                         2014-03-08 18:10:22Date Time Received:
                         20141076113Site ID:
                         1076113NRC Report #:

Calls:

                         NOPassengers Transferred:
                         Not reportedRelease Rate Rate:
                         Not reportedRelease Rate Unit:
                         Not reportedDuration Unit:
                         NOffshore:
                         Not reportedSheen Size Width Units:
                         Not reportedSheen Size Width:
                         Not reportedSheen Size Length Units:
                         Not reportedSheen Size Length:
                         Not reportednearest River Mile Marker:
                         Not reportedFederal Agency Notified:
                         Not reportedState Agency Notified:
                         Not reportedAdditional Info:
                         Not reportedSheen Size Units:
                         Not reportedTrack CLosure Units:
                         Not reportedRoad Closure Units:
                         Not reportedCurrent Speed Unit:
                         Not reportedOccupant Fatality:
                         Not reportedPassenger Injuries:
                         Not reportedEmployee Injuries:
                         Not reportedWind Speed Unit:
                         Not reportedCommunity Impact:
                         Not reportedPass Fatality:
                         Not reportedEmpl Fatality:
                         Not reportedTrack Close Dir:
                         Not reportedWater Temperature:
                         Not reportedCurrent Direction:

  (Continued) 2014076113

TC5712009.2s   Page 497



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110015542386Registry ID:

FINDS:

8706 ft. Site 1 of 3 in cluster AQ
1.649 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
272 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
SSE SE1/4 S24 T21N RTW WM    N/A
AQ196 FINDSCANYON RIVER SHOP 1007077560

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110015506834Registry ID:

FINDS:

8706 ft. Site 2 of 3 in cluster AQ
1.649 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
272 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
SSE PACIFIC DIVISION UST 9455    N/A
AQ197 FINDSSHELTON PRINT482 11TH SUB LS425 MP25 1007074046

Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110015452561Registry ID:

FINDS:

8706 ft. Site 3 of 3 in cluster AQ
1.649 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
272 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
SSE NE1/4 S31 T22N RTW WM    N/A
AQ198 FINDSCAMP GRISDALE 1007068656

TC5712009.2s   Page 498

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6x576Zq7xmkL5C8W7CWA3.hrZV9Yqlvc7ALyA.5ZmnBSkANYLiOl4RneCtcv8y1xWZvy3zgCCE4dWlNGAm.H4rL0.tMUhDdsrGIp4DKlVNbd9I7gY8pPB1oJl8e4vat0cgyE38D7AJdXLBQ0ys1m3zj8.Ct55L1yZ18C6anqx3M954u47fRy3XSYZ5kkqpVQ7IGw9E0nmK0Bk0x0LaHq3KTMCnFY8tueWxgdA3SVCTUpWZxoAEaC4ffn.evrhAYZrt6E4olaV8FT9WKAYqnH4vLalnHlvxE0czyWCCofAYUBLaSryWyn6r.bxJEW5Ihm7uQN4jW3Z9y9qdBE7ypV3GDFmfULknkkL6YB8stTC8Ke8KciWgLuAgjTChv7WW9DAs7w4l5m.Tsph8yFrAdF5zk7VKoB9fZxYKn039PSlxSavLmEcKug3VshAcSLLRo1yMFiCZJi.PRc5.4mZhIX2prgnfR.B3g3SOEQ55ivAkvoNnS0Y7ZrvQKeidchORAulhVv6uKzxWmb5IjF7Nyi4KrvZZ9Tqd3T7AqT30Qjmp0DkHpeLmHu41J6CgUF8s.BWuuc300fCFuSWMkGA8Oe3gWa.c9hhtf1rovwANUfV68n98xaYEqs3kZXl1BRvtwBcmdNAP9eAMA0LCXQycO7A5.6.Rnp5dbFZrJq8WEAngWDBEfMS4Dh9YpQARAONKuAY0vp37rvifOoOn5ZlByW3
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=6x576Zq7xmkL5C8W7CWA3.hrZV9Yqlvc7ALyA.5ZmnBSkANYLiOl4RneCtcv8y1xWZvy3zgCCE4dWlNGAm.H4rL0.tMUhDdsrGIp4DKlVNbd9I7gY8pPB1oJl8e4vat0cgyE38D7AJdXLBQ0ys1m3zj8.Ct55L1yZ18C6anqx3M954u47fRy3XSYZ5kkqpVQ7IGw9E0nmK0Bk0x0LaHq3KTMCnFY8tueWxgdA3SVCTUpWZxoAEaC4ffn.evrhAYZrt6E4olaV8FT9WKAYqnH4vLalnHlvxE0czyWCCofAYUBLaSryWyn6r.bxJEW5Ihm7uQN4jW3Z9y9qdBE7ypV3GDFmfULknkkL6YB8stTC8Ke8KciWgLuAgjTChv7WW9DAs7w4l5m.Tsph8yFrAdF5zk7VKoB9fZxYKn039PSlxSavLmEcKug3VshAcSLLRo1yMFiCZJi.PRc5.4mZhIX2prgnfR.B3g3SOEQ55ivAkvoNnS0Y7ZrvQKeidchORAulhVv6uKzxWmb5IjF7Nyi4KrvZZ9Tqd3T7AqT30Qjmp0DkHpeLmHu41J6CgUF8s.BWuuc300fCFuSWMkGA8Oe3gWa.c9hhtf1rovwANUfV68n98xaYEqs3kZXl1BRvtwBcmdNAP9eAMA0LCXQycO7A5.6.Rnp5dbFZrJq8WEAngWDBEfMS4Dh9YpQARAONKuAY0vp37rvifOoOn5ZlByW3
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=4464sR4aS60h2blsikRJ99IaaFvSzy3iJ0AlhUb25cbr3lwM3B8inxkbg3OWJbh9dKAPsI.3aDp2Z3Fq4vcb2HmzWXyh74yh4Hg69b2TZsyLRU489RaK4Srt2Jr0PMhub9P3bh7lg23kLi53knU3bfJPf9093nsIsAalHB0ZF0Bvwd4XM4zt6YP38rsPvRIS2EGaLnSWk7ZW0bahsN9tJbNbluw34NilRkSz4noJ.W9zA2qQIkYazs2FmFqavBbBHlz9YyWZ1ABihsJxb4hEASPlqsuf5Ujab6P4D74Pr6LW3MDsbERtb2MaabtSfG3Op0p2hgF2iTbSMlBW2eEi52kfl9IVJa99Qc2KhIRIa9S9rQF9gveP6DEz8HyDK2AyirsJiv63yAfolQ48GwUVJbcQ2
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=4464sR4aS60h2blsikRJ99IaaFvSzy3iJ0AlhUb25cbr3lwM3B8inxkbg3OWJbh9dKAPsI.3aDp2Z3Fq4vcb2HmzWXyh74yh4Hg69b2TZsyLRU489RaK4Srt2Jr0PMhub9P3bh7lg23kLi53knU3bfJPf9093nsIsAalHB0ZF0Bvwd4XM4zt6YP38rsPvRIS2EGaLnSWk7ZW0bahsN9tJbNbluw34NilRkSz4noJ.W9zA2qQIkYazs2FmFqavBbBHlz9YyWZ1ABihsJxb4hEASPlqsuf5Ujab6P4D74Pr6LW3MDsbERtb2MaabtSfG3Op0p2hgF2iTbSMlBW2eEi52kfl9IVJa99Qc2KhIRIa9S9rQF9gveP6DEz8HyDK2AyirsJiv63yAfolQ48GwUVJbcQ2


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air

CAMP GRISDALE  (Continued) 1007068656

                                             -123.122209072Longitude:
                                             47.224872488000003Latitude:
                                             Local Source Cntrl 7/09-3Date Interaction 3:
                                             2009-08-25 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             Not reportedProgram ID:
                                             Shelton Veterinary HospitalFacility Alt.:
                                             LSCProgram Data:
                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             LSCInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             91323Interaction:

                              1960Facility Id:
                              SHELTON VETERINARY HOSPITALFacility Name:

ALLSITES:

8753 ft. Site 1 of 6 in cluster AR
1.658 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
219 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
South 104 E J ST    N/A
AR199 WA ALLSITESSHELTON VETERINARY HOSPITAL S110275846

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110056455991Registry ID:

FINDS:

8753 ft. Site 2 of 6 in cluster AR
1.658 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
219 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
South 104 E J ST    N/A
AR200 FINDSSHELTON VETERINARY HOSPITAL 1016704509

TC5712009.2s   Page 499

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=4464sR4aS60h2blsikRJ99IaaFvSzy3iJ0AlhUb25cbr3lwM3B8inxkbg3OWJbh9dKAPsI.3aDp2Z3Fq4vcb2HmzWXyh74yh4Hg69b2TZsyLRU489RaK4Srt2Jr0PMhub9P3bh7lg23kLi53knU3bfJPf9093nsIsAalHB0ZF0Bvwd4XM4zt6YP38rsPvRIS2EGaLnSWk7ZW0bahsN9tJbNbluw34NilRkSz4noJ.W9zA2qQIkYazs2FmFqavBbBHlz9YyWZ1ABihsJxb4hEASPlqsuf5Ujab6P4D74Pr6LW3MDsbERtb2MaabtSfG3Op0p2hgF2iTbSMlBW2eEi52kfl9IVJa99Qc2KhIRIa9S8rQF9gvePADEz8HyDK8AyirsJiv73yAfolQ48GwUVJbcQ2
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=4464sR4aS60h2blsikRJ99IaaFvSzy3iJ0AlhUb25cbr3lwM3B8inxkbg3OWJbh9dKAPsI.3aDp2Z3Fq4vcb2HmzWXyh74yh4Hg69b2TZsyLRU489RaK4Srt2Jr0PMhub9P3bh7lg23kLi53knU3bfJPf9093nsIsAalHB0ZF0Bvwd4XM4zt6YP38rsPvRIS2EGaLnSWk7ZW0bahsN9tJbNbluw34NilRkSz4noJ.W9zA2qQIkYazs2FmFqavBbBHlz9YyWZ1ABihsJxb4hEASPlqsuf5Ujab6P4D74Pr6LW3MDsbERtb2MaabtSfG3Op0p2hgF2iTbSMlBW2eEi52kfl9IVJa99Qc2KhIRIa9S8rQF9gvePADEz8HyDK8AyirsJiv73yAfolQ48GwUVJbcQ2
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=4464sR4aS60h2blsikRJ99IaaFvSzy3iJ0AlhUb25cbr3lwM3B8inxkbg3OWJbh9dKAPsI.3aDp2Z3Fq4vcb2HmzWXyh74yh4Hg69b2TZsyLRU489RaK4Srt2Jr0PMhub9P3bh7lg23kLi53knU3bfJPf9093nsIsAalHB0ZF0Bvwd4XM4zt6YP38rsPvRIS2EGaLnSWk7ZW0bahsN9tJbNbluw34NilRkSz4noJ.W9zA2qQIkYazs2FmFqavBbBHlz9YyWZ1ABihsJxb4hEASPlqsuf5Ujab6P4D74Pr6LW3MDsbERtb2MaabtSfG3Op0p2hgF2iTbSMlBW3eEi52kfl8IVJa99Qc9KhIRIa9S2rQF9gveP6DEz8HyDK7AyirsJiv23yAfolQ4BGwUVJbcQ2
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=4464sR4aS60h2blsikRJ99IaaFvSzy3iJ0AlhUb25cbr3lwM3B8inxkbg3OWJbh9dKAPsI.3aDp2Z3Fq4vcb2HmzWXyh74yh4Hg69b2TZsyLRU489RaK4Srt2Jr0PMhub9P3bh7lg23kLi53knU3bfJPf9093nsIsAalHB0ZF0Bvwd4XM4zt6YP38rsPvRIS2EGaLnSWk7ZW0bahsN9tJbNbluw34NilRkSz4noJ.W9zA2qQIkYazs2FmFqavBbBHlz9YyWZ1ABihsJxb4hEASPlqsuf5Ujab6P4D74Pr6LW3MDsbERtb2MaabtSfG3Op0p2hgF2iTbSMlBW3eEi52kfl8IVJa99Qc9KhIRIa9S2rQF9gveP6DEz8HyDK7AyirsJiv23yAfolQ4BGwUVJbcQ2


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        Not reportedDuct Paper:
                                        Not reportedBoiler Insulation:
                                        Not reportedAsbestos Paper:
                                        Not reportedSheet Vinyl:
                                        Not reportedCAB:
                                        Not reportedPopcorn Ceiling:
                                        Not reportedFireproofing:
                                        Not reportedQuantity Sq Ft:
                                        Not reportedEncapsulated:
                                        Not reportedRemoved:
                                        Not reportedFacility Maint:
                                        Not reportedFacility Repair:
                                        Not reportedFacility Demo:
                                        Not reportedFacility Remodel:
                                        Not reportedFacility Size:
                                        Not reportedFacility Age:
                                        Not reportedJob Site Room:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner Phone:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner Zip4:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner State:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner City:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner Address:
                                        ADVANCE ENVIRONMENTAL INC (OLYMPIA)Property Owner Company:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner Agent:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner Name:
                                        Not reportedProject Form Email:
                                        Not reportedJob Site CAS:
                                        Not reportedPhone:
                                        (ABCN00001317)Contractor ID:
                                        Not reportedSaturday:
                                        Not reportedFriday:
                                        Not reportedThursday:
                                        Not reportedWednesday:
                                        Not reportedTuesday:
                                        Not reportedMonday:
                                        Not reportedSunday:
                                        Not reportedSite Hours End:
                                        Not reportedSite Hours Start:
                                        Not reportedEmergency:
                                        Not reportedOff Hold:
                                        Not reportedOn Hold:
                                        Not reportedAmended:
                                        Not reportedInitial:
                                        02/21/2019Completion Date:
                                        02/20/2019Start Date:
                                        02/05/2019Notice Date:
                                        137377#632573185Form ID:
                                        Not reportedParent ID:
                                        Not reportedFacility Type:
                                        SHELTON, WACity,State,Zip:
                                        2136 LAUREL STAddress:
                                        Not reportedName:

ASBESTOS:

8803 ft.
1.667 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
215 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  
South 2136 LAUREL ST    N/A
201 WA ASBESTOS S123677647

TC5712009.2s   Page 500



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        ACertificate Status:
                                        -2018031245Supervisor Phone:
                                        Genaro MaganaSupervisor:
                                        Other linear footage, Sheet Vinyl, Vinyl Asbestos TileProject Type:
                                        InitialNotice type:
                                        602306184UBI:
                                        4Region:
                                        Not reportedSubmitter IP Address:
                                        Not reportedDate Time Submitted:
                                        Not reportedComments:
                                        Not reportedOther Resp Pro Text:
                                        Not reportedOther Resp Pro:
                                        Not reportedType C Pressure:
                                        Not reportedType C Continuous:
                                        Not reportedPAPR:
                                        Not reportedFull Face APR:
                                        Not reportedHalf Mask APR:
                                        Not reportedOther CM2 Text:
                                        Not reportedOther CM2:
                                        Not reportedOther CM1 Text:
                                        Not reportedOther CM1:
                                        Not reportedMANUALMETHODS     :
                                        Not reportedHEPA Vacuum:
                                        Not reportedWet Methods:
                                        Not reportedWrap And Cut:
                                        Not reportedCritical Barriers:
                                        Not reportedMini Enclosure:
                                        Not reportedGlove Bag:
                                        Not reportedNeg Pres Enclosure:
                                        Not reportedOutdoors:
                                        Not reportedIndoors:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other2 Text:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other2:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other1 Text:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other1:
                                        Not reportedDuct Tape:
                                        Not reportedMudded Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedCement Asbestos Pipe:
                                        Not reportedDucting Insulation:
                                        Not reportedAir Cell Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedMag Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedQuantity Lin Ft:
                                        Not reportedSq Ft Other Text:
                                        Not reportedSq Ft Other:
                                        Not reportedRoofing:
                                        Not reportedVAT:

  (Continued) S123677647

                                             61031Interaction:

                              72915915Facility Id:
                              WA DOT SKOKOMISH RIVER BR 101 418Facility Name:

ALLSITES:

8809 ft. Site 1 of 2 in cluster AS
1.668 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
225 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
SSW RCRA NonGen / NLRSR 101 MP 338.77 WAR000009720
AS202 WA ALLSITESWA DOT SKOKOMISH RIVER BR 101 418 1001121550

TC5712009.2s   Page 501



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    11/15/1996Owner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    360-705-7812Owner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    OLYMPIA, WA 98504
                    PO BOX 47352Owner/operator address:
                    WA DOT FACILITIES HAZMATOwner/operator name:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    360-705-7812Owner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    OLYMPIA, WA 98504
                    PO BOX 47352Owner/operator address:
                    WA DOT FACILITIES HAZMATOwner/operator name:

Owner/Operator Summary:

                    Handler: Non-Generators do not presently generate hazardous wasteDescription:
                    Non-GeneratorClassification:
                    10EPA Region:
                    Not reportedContact email:
                    360-705-7812Contact telephone:
                    USContact country:
                    OLYMPIA, WA 98504
                    PO BOX 47352Contact address:
                    DOUG  PIERCEContact:
                    OLYMPIA, WA 98504
                    PO BOX 47358Mailing address:
                    WAR000009720EPA ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    SR 101 MP 338.77Facility address:
                    WA DOT SKOKOMISH RIVER BR 101 418Facility name:
                    01/25/2000Date form received by agency:

RCRA NonGen / NLR:

                                             -123.12841507100001Longitude:
                                             47.225144489000002Latitude:
                                             Hazardous Waste GeneratorDate Interaction 3:
                                             1996-06-24 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             WAR000009720Program ID:
                                             Not reportedFacility Alt.:
                                             TURBOWASTEProgram Data:
                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             HWGInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:

WA DOT SKOKOMISH RIVER BR 101 418  (Continued) 1001121550

TC5712009.2s   Page 502



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    06/24/1996Date form received by agency:

                    Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    WA DOT SKOKOMISH RIVER BR 101 418Site name:
                    02/19/1997Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    WA DOT SKOKOMISH RIVER BR 101 418Site name:
                    03/06/1998Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    WA DOT SKOKOMISH RIVER BR 101 418Site name:
                    03/01/1999Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    WA DOT SKOKOMISH RIVER BR 101 418Site name:
                    01/24/2000Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    WA DOT SKOKOMISH RIVER BR 101 418Site name:
                    01/24/2000Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    WA DOT SKOKOMISH RIVER BR 101 418Site name:
                    01/24/2000Date form received by agency:

Historical Generators:

                              NoUsed oil transporter:
                              NoUsed oil transfer facility:
                              NoUsed oil Specification marketer:
                              NoUsed oil fuel marketer to burner:
                              NoUser oil refiner:
                              NoUsed oil processor:
                              NoUsed oil fuel burner:
                              NoFurnace exemption:
                              NoOn-site burner exemption:
                              NoUnderground injection activity:
                              NoTreater, storer or disposer of HW:
                              NoTransporter of hazardous waste:
                              NoRecycler of hazardous waste:
                              NoMixed waste (haz. and radioactive):
                              NoU.S. importer of hazardous waste:

Handler Activities Summary:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    Not reportedOwner/Op start date:
                    OperatorOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    360-357-2653Owner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    TUMWATER, WA 98504
                    5720 CAPITOL BLVDOwner/operator address:
                    LOZIER, GARY LOwner/operator name:

WA DOT SKOKOMISH RIVER BR 101 418  (Continued) 1001121550

TC5712009.2s   Page 503



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    No violations foundViolation Status:

                    Small Quantity GeneratorClassification:
                    WA DOT SKOKOMISH RIVER BR 101 418Site name:
                    06/24/1996Date form received by agency:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    WA DOT SKOKOMISH RIVER BR 101 418Site name:

WA DOT SKOKOMISH RIVER BR 101 418  (Continued) 1001121550

                                   http://echo.epa.gov/detailed-facility-report?fid=110006140791DFR URL:
                                   110006140791Registry ID:
                                   1016213121Envid:

ECHO:

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

corrective action activities required under RCRA.
program staff to track the notification, permit, compliance, and
and treat, store, or dispose of hazardous waste. RCRAInfo allows RCRA
events and activities related to facilities that generate, transport,
Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) program through the tracking of
RCRAInfo is a national information system that supports the Resource
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110006140791Registry ID:

FINDS:

8812 ft. Site 2 of 2 in cluster AS
1.669 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
225 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
SSW ECHOSR 101 MP 338.77    N/A
AS203 FINDSWA DOT SKOKOMISH RIVER BR 101 418 1016213121

          Not reportedAir:
          Not reportedSediment:
          Remediated-Below Cleanup LevelSoil:
          Not reportedSurface Water:
          Confirmed Above Cleanup LevelGround Water:
          BenzeneContaminant Name:
          Not reportedPSI?:
          Cleanup StartedSite Status:
          9575Clean Up Siteid:
          NRank Status:
          Not reportedBrownfield Status:
          47.22474 / -123.12553Lat/Long:
          SouthwestRegion:
          53171158Facility ID:

CSCSL:

8869 ft. FINDSSite 1 of 2 in cluster AT
1.680 mi. WA ALLSITES

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
217 ft.

 

> 1 WA USTSHELTON, WA  98584
South WA LUSTHWY 101 & K ST    N/A
AT204 WA CSCSLPUBLIC UTILITY DIST 3 MASON COUNTY 1007069235

TC5712009.2s   Page 504

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=4464sR4aS60h2blsikRJ99IaaFvSzy3iJ0AlhUb25cbr3lwM3B8inxkbg3OWJbh9dKAPsI.3aDp2Z3Fq4vcb2HmzWXyh74yh4Hg69b2TZsyLRU489RaK4Srt2Jr0PMhub9P3bh7lg23kLi53knU3bfJPf9093nsIsAalHB0ZF0Bvwd4XM4zt6YP38rsPvRIS2EGaLnSWk7ZW0bahsN9tJbNbluw34NilRkSz4noJ.W9zA2qQIkYazs2FmFqavBbBHlz9YyWZ1ABihsJxb4hEASPlqsuf5Ujab6P4D74Pr6LW3MDsbERtb2MaabtSfG3Op0p2hgF2iTbSMlBW3eEi52kfl8IVJa99Qc4KhIRIa9S3rQF9gveP5DEz8HyDK3AyirsJiv43yAfolQ43GwUVJbcQ2
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=4464sR4aS60h2blsikRJ99IaaFvSzy3iJ0AlhUb25cbr3lwM3B8inxkbg3OWJbh9dKAPsI.3aDp2Z3Fq4vcb2HmzWXyh74yh4Hg69b2TZsyLRU489RaK4Srt2Jr0PMhub9P3bh7lg23kLi53knU3bfJPf9093nsIsAalHB0ZF0Bvwd4XM4zt6YP38rsPvRIS2EGaLnSWk7ZW0bahsN9tJbNbluw34NilRkSz4noJ.W9zA2qQIkYazs2FmFqavBbBHlz9YyWZ1ABihsJxb4hEASPlqsuf5Ujab6P4D74Pr6LW3MDsbERtb2MaabtSfG3Op0p2hgF2iTbSMlBW3eEi52kfl8IVJa99Qc4KhIRIa9S3rQF9gveP5DEz8HyDK3AyirsJiv43yAfolQ43GwUVJbcQ2


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    HWY 101 & K STAddress:
                    MASON COUNTY PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT 3Name:

LUST:

          SouthwestResponsible Unit:
          Not reportedBedrock:
          Not reportedAir:
          Not reportedSediment:
          Remediated-Below Cleanup LevelSoil:
          Not reportedSurface Water:
          Confirmed Above Cleanup LevelGround Water:
          Petroleum-GasolineContaminant Name:
          Not reportedPSI?:
          Cleanup StartedSite Status:
          9575Clean Up Siteid:
          NRank Status:
          Not reportedBrownfield Status:
          47.22474 / -123.12553Lat/Long:
          SouthwestRegion:
          53171158Facility ID:

          SouthwestResponsible Unit:
          Not reportedBedrock:
          Not reportedAir:
          Not reportedSediment:
          Remediated-Below Cleanup LevelSoil:
          Not reportedSurface Water:
          Confirmed Above Cleanup LevelGround Water:
          Other Non-Halogenated OrganicsContaminant Name:
          Not reportedPSI?:
          Cleanup StartedSite Status:
          9575Clean Up Siteid:
          NRank Status:
          Not reportedBrownfield Status:
          47.22474 / -123.12553Lat/Long:
          SouthwestRegion:
          53171158Facility ID:

          SouthwestResponsible Unit:
          Not reportedBedrock:
          Not reportedAir:
          Not reportedSediment:
          Below MTCA Cleanup Level After AssessmentSoil:
          Not reportedSurface Water:
          Not reportedGround Water:
          LeadContaminant Name:
          Not reportedPSI?:
          Cleanup StartedSite Status:
          9575Clean Up Siteid:
          NRank Status:
          Not reportedBrownfield Status:
          47.22474 / -123.12553Lat/Long:
          SouthwestRegion:
          53171158Facility ID:

          SouthwestResponsible Unit:
          Not reportedBedrock:

PUBLIC UTILITY DIST 3 MASON COUNTY  (Continued) 1007069235

TC5712009.2s   Page 505



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    09/14/1995Release Date:
                    SouthwestResponse Section:
                    PUBLIC UTILITY DIST 3 MASON COUNTYCleanup Unit Name:
                    Independent ActionProcess Type:
                    UplandCleanup Unit Type:
                    9575Cleanup Site ID:
                    LUST - Cleanup StartedLust Status Type:
                    53171158Facility ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    HWY 101 & K STAddress:
                    MASON COUNTY PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT 3Name:

                    47.22474 / -123.12553Lat/Long:
                    Not reportedBedrock:
                    Not reportedAir:
                    Not reportedSediment:
                    Remediated-BelowSoil:
                    Not reportedSurface Water:
                    Confirmed Above Cleanup LevelsGround Water:
                    Other Non-Halogenated OrganicsContaminant Name:
                    12485UST ID:
                    3949Lust ID:
                    SouthwestRegion:
                    05/04/2015Lust Date:
                    09/14/1995Release Date:
                    SouthwestResponse Section:
                    PUBLIC UTILITY DIST 3 MASON COUNTYCleanup Unit Name:
                    Independent ActionProcess Type:
                    UplandCleanup Unit Type:
                    9575Cleanup Site ID:
                    LUST - Cleanup StartedLust Status Type:
                    53171158Facility ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    HWY 101 & K STAddress:
                    MASON COUNTY PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT 3Name:

                    47.22474 / -123.12553Lat/Long:
                    Not reportedBedrock:
                    Not reportedAir:
                    Not reportedSediment:
                    Remediated-BelowSoil:
                    Not reportedSurface Water:
                    Confirmed Above Cleanup LevelsGround Water:
                    Petroleum-GasolineContaminant Name:
                    12485UST ID:
                    3949Lust ID:
                    SouthwestRegion:
                    05/04/2015Lust Date:
                    09/14/1995Release Date:
                    SouthwestResponse Section:
                    PUBLIC UTILITY DIST 3 MASON COUNTYCleanup Unit Name:
                    Independent ActionProcess Type:
                    UplandCleanup Unit Type:
                    9575Cleanup Site ID:
                    LUST - Cleanup StartedLust Status Type:
                    53171158Facility ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:

PUBLIC UTILITY DIST 3 MASON COUNTY  (Continued) 1007069235

TC5712009.2s   Page 506



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                         Not reportedTank Material:
                         Not reportedTank Overfill Prevention:
                         Not reportedTank Spill Prevention:
                         Not reportedTank Upgrade Date:
                         07/01/1995Tank Permit Expiration Date:
                         Not reportedCapacity Range:
                         Not reportedTank Closure Date:
                         00/31/1971Tank Install Date:
                         8/6/1996Tank Status Date:
                         RemovedTank Status:
                         Not reportedTag Number:
                         SHELTON #1Tank Name:

                         -123.12553Decimal Longitude:
                         47.224739999999997Decimal Latitude:
                         Not reportedPhone Number:
                         Not reportedUBI:
                         12485Site Id:
                         53171158Facility ID:

UST:

                    47.22474 / -123.12553Lat/Long:
                    Not reportedBedrock:
                    Not reportedAir:
                    Not reportedSediment:
                    Below Cleanup LevelsSoil:
                    Not reportedSurface Water:
                    Not reportedGround Water:
                    LeadContaminant Name:
                    12485UST ID:
                    3949Lust ID:
                    SouthwestRegion:
                    05/04/2015Lust Date:
                    09/14/1995Release Date:
                    SouthwestResponse Section:
                    PUBLIC UTILITY DIST 3 MASON COUNTYCleanup Unit Name:
                    Independent ActionProcess Type:
                    UplandCleanup Unit Type:
                    9575Cleanup Site ID:
                    LUST - Cleanup StartedLust Status Type:
                    53171158Facility ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    HWY 101 & K STAddress:
                    MASON COUNTY PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT 3Name:

                    47.22474 / -123.12553Lat/Long:
                    Not reportedBedrock:
                    Not reportedAir:
                    Not reportedSediment:
                    Remediated-BelowSoil:
                    Not reportedSurface Water:
                    Confirmed Above Cleanup LevelsGround Water:
                    BenzeneContaminant Name:
                    12485UST ID:
                    3949Lust ID:
                    SouthwestRegion:
                    05/04/2015Lust Date:

PUBLIC UTILITY DIST 3 MASON COUNTY  (Continued) 1007069235

TC5712009.2s   Page 507



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                             47.224734488999999Latitude:
                                             LUST FacilityDate Interaction 3:
                                             1995-09-14 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             12485Program ID:
                                             Not reportedFacility Alt.:
                                             ISISProgram Data:
                                             TOXICSEcology Program:
                                             LUSTInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             49793Interaction:

                              53171158Facility Id:
                              PUBLIC UTILITY DIST 3 MASON COUNTYFacility Name:

ALLSITES:

                         Not reportedDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Not reportedPipe Pumping System:
                         Not reportedPipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedPipe Second Release Detection:
                         Not reportedPipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Not reportedPipe Construction:
                         Not reportedPipe Material:
                         Not reportedTank SFC Type:
                         Not reportedTank Release Detection:
                         Not reportedTank Manifold:
                         Not reportedTank Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedTank Tightness Test:
                         Not reportedTank Construction:
                         Not reportedTank Material:
                         Not reportedTank Overfill Prevention:
                         Not reportedTank Spill Prevention:
                         Not reportedTank Upgrade Date:
                         Not reportedTank Permit Expiration Date:
                         Not reportedCapacity Range:
                         Not reportedTank Closure Date:
                         00/31/1964Tank Install Date:
                         8/6/1996Tank Status Date:
                         RemovedTank Status:
                         Not reportedTag Number:
                         SHELTON #2Tank Name:

                         Not reportedDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Not reportedPipe Pumping System:
                         Not reportedPipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedPipe Second Release Detection:
                         Not reportedPipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Not reportedPipe Construction:
                         Not reportedPipe Material:
                         Not reportedTank SFC Type:
                         Not reportedTank Release Detection:
                         Not reportedTank Manifold:
                         Not reportedTank Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedTank Tightness Test:
                         Not reportedTank Construction:

PUBLIC UTILITY DIST 3 MASON COUNTY  (Continued) 1007069235

TC5712009.2s   Page 508



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110015458360Registry ID:

FINDS:

                                             -123.125515071Longitude:
                                             47.224734488999999Latitude:
                                             Underground Storage TankDate Interaction 3:
                                             2000-03-20 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             12485Program ID:
                                             Not reportedFacility Alt.:
                                             USTProgram Data:
                                             TOXICSEcology Program:
                                             USTInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             49794Interaction:

                                             -123.125515071Longitude:

PUBLIC UTILITY DIST 3 MASON COUNTY  (Continued) 1007069235

                              Not reportedVessel Facility Name2:
                              Not reportedSource:
                              Not reportedSource Type:
                              Not reportedLongitude:
                              Not reportedLatitude:
                              Not reportedIncident Category:
                              Not reportedIncident Category Type:
                              Not reportedIncident Date:
                              FERRIERContact Name:
                              05/05/2006Date Received:
                              Not reportedMaterial Units:
                              Not reportedMaterial Qty:
                              SEWAGE/SLUDGEMaterial Desc:
                              Not reportedMedium:
                              554953Facility ID:
                              SHELTON, WACity,State,Zip:
                              1707 NORTHCLIFF RDAddress:
                              Not reportedName:

SPILLS:

8948 ft.
1.695 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
211 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  
SSE 1707 NORTHCLIFF RD    N/A
205 WA SPILLS S108010220

TC5712009.2s   Page 509

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=4h84fKhKn8Hf2rLfpyKRH9uBKn.nUK3trHvQfMs2iGr7ZL623vapEtyV.33dRPlHuYAQmuyABsl2ecn2x.Ve2SnUgJKek4h2hFM8Pr2SPfKKKFL8VgKornqg2XRHC2fCO9RZr5wLER3RepIcyu03zDR9DHkA34ZuqrBBYBlAnqF.At4UOhxq86h35ffX0KYZ2oTKIYns57fWHH9fDY92JrjoLW93CXpW5ybx4R8RaZHQY2L4uXHBjW2RBnHY.v2BRxUqbKag1zKtvSrD84iovF2Q3JuVVMRbspi4Cwh388aI3GQfuKKxP2RkKNEn3k32BHu4fr02uIr7XLJZ28OpDDyoa9LfRCEHYW2e7uiJBOV8qenHL.9NBlqUcrK.J4JBtW3rHq5Gdv8uQl67p0M8gs732
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=4h84fKhKn8Hf2rLfpyKRH9uBKn.nUK3trHvQfMs2iGr7ZL623vapEtyV.33dRPlHuYAQmuyABsl2ecn2x.Ve2SnUgJKek4h2hFM8Pr2SPfKKKFL8VgKornqg2XRHC2fCO9RZr5wLER3RepIcyu03zDR9DHkA34ZuqrBBYBlAnqF.At4UOhxq86h35ffX0KYZ2oTKIYns57fWHH9fDY92JrjoLW93CXpW5ybx4R8RaZHQY2L4uXHBjW2RBnHY.v2BRxUqbKag1zKtvSrD84iovF2Q3JuVVMRbspi4Cwh388aI3GQfuKKxP2RkKNEn3k32BHu4fr02uIr7XLJZ28OpDDyoa9LfRCEHYW2e7uiJBOV8qenHL.9NBlqUcrK.J4JBtW3rHq5Gdv8uQl67p0M8gs732


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              Not reportedResp Party Name:
                              Not reportedCause Type:
                              Not reportedCause:
                              Not reportedResp Party Contact:
                              Not reportedRecovered Quantity:

  (Continued) S108010220

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110015387151Registry ID:

FINDS:

8961 ft. Site 1 of 5 in cluster AU
1.697 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
218 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
South 2218 OLYMPIC HWY N    N/A
AU206 FINDSHOOD CANAL COMMUNICATIONS 1007062182

                         Not reportedTank Tightness Test:
                         Not reportedTank Construction:
                         Not reportedTank Material:
                         Not reportedTank Overfill Prevention:
                         Not reportedTank Spill Prevention:
                         Not reportedTank Upgrade Date:
                         Not reportedTank Permit Expiration Date:
                         Not reportedCapacity Range:
                         Not reportedTank Closure Date:
                         00/01/1900Tank Install Date:
                         4/23/2001Tank Status Date:
                         RemovedTank Status:
                         Not reportedTag Number:
                         1Tank Name:

                         -123.12165400000001Decimal Longitude:
                         47.223892999999997Decimal Latitude:
                         Not reportedPhone Number:
                         Not reportedUBI:
                         566419Site Id:
                         97112556Facility ID:

UST:

8961 ft. Site 2 of 5 in cluster AU
1.697 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
218 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
South WA ALLSITES2218 OLYMPIC HWY N    N/A
AU207 WA USTHOOD CANAL COMMUNICATIONS U003765747

TC5712009.2s   Page 510

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=4h84fKhKn8Hf2rLfpyKRH9uBKn.nUK3trHvQfMs2iGr7ZL623vapEtyV.33dRPlHuYAQmuyABsl2ecn2x.Ve2SnUgJKek4h2hFM8Pr2SPfKKKFL8VgKornqg2XRHC2fCO9RZr5wLER3RepIcyu03zDR9DHkA34ZuqrBBYBlAnqF.At4UOhxq86h35ffX0KYZ2oTKIYns57fWHH9fDY92JrjoLW93CXpW5ybx4R8RaZHQY2L4uXHBjW2RBnHY.v2BRxUqbKag1zKtvSrD84iovF2Q3JuVVMRbspi4Cwh388aI3GQfuKKxP2RkKNEn3k32BHu4fr02uIr7XLJZ28OpDDyoa9LfRCEHYW2e7uiJBOV8qenHL.9N4lqUcrK.J3JBtW3rHqAGdv8uQl64p0M8gs732
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=4h84fKhKn8Hf2rLfpyKRH9uBKn.nUK3trHvQfMs2iGr7ZL623vapEtyV.33dRPlHuYAQmuyABsl2ecn2x.Ve2SnUgJKek4h2hFM8Pr2SPfKKKFL8VgKornqg2XRHC2fCO9RZr5wLER3RepIcyu03zDR9DHkA34ZuqrBBYBlAnqF.At4UOhxq86h35ffX0KYZ2oTKIYns57fWHH9fDY92JrjoLW93CXpW5ybx4R8RaZHQY2L4uXHBjW2RBnHY.v2BRxUqbKag1zKtvSrD84iovF2Q3JuVVMRbspi4Cwh388aI3GQfuKKxP2RkKNEn3k32BHu4fr02uIr7XLJZ28OpDDyoa9LfRCEHYW2e7uiJBOV8qenHL.9N4lqUcrK.J3JBtW3rHqAGdv8uQl64p0M8gs732


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                             -123.121639073Longitude:
                                             47.223887488999999Latitude:
                                             Underground Storage TankDate Interaction 3:
                                             2001-04-24 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             566419Program ID:
                                             Not reportedFacility Alt.:
                                             USTProgram Data:
                                             TOXICSEcology Program:
                                             USTInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             75159Interaction:

                              97112556Facility Id:
                              HOOD CANAL COMMUNICATIONSFacility Name:

ALLSITES:

                         Not reportedDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Not reportedPipe Pumping System:
                         Not reportedPipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedPipe Second Release Detection:
                         Not reportedPipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Not reportedPipe Construction:
                         Not reportedPipe Material:
                         Not reportedTank SFC Type:
                         Not reportedTank Release Detection:
                         Not reportedTank Manifold:
                         Not reportedTank Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedTank Tightness Test:
                         Not reportedTank Construction:
                         Not reportedTank Material:
                         Not reportedTank Overfill Prevention:
                         Not reportedTank Spill Prevention:
                         Not reportedTank Upgrade Date:
                         Not reportedTank Permit Expiration Date:
                         Not reportedCapacity Range:
                         Not reportedTank Closure Date:
                         00/01/1900Tank Install Date:
                         4/24/2001Tank Status Date:
                         RemovedTank Status:
                         Not reportedTag Number:
                         2Tank Name:

                         Not reportedDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Not reportedPipe Pumping System:
                         Not reportedPipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedPipe Second Release Detection:
                         Not reportedPipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Not reportedPipe Construction:
                         Not reportedPipe Material:
                         Not reportedTank SFC Type:
                         Not reportedTank Release Detection:
                         Not reportedTank Manifold:
                         Not reportedTank Corrosion Protection:

HOOD CANAL COMMUNICATIONS  (Continued) U003765747

TC5712009.2s   Page 511



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              10/10/02Date Ecology Received Report:
ICR:

8968 ft. Site 2 of 2 in cluster AT
1.698 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
220 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
South HWY 101 & K ST.    N/A
AT208 WA ICRPUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT 3 MASON COUNTY U003353490

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110015444740Registry ID:

FINDS:

8975 ft. Site 3 of 6 in cluster AR
1.700 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
219 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
South 2235 OLYMPIC HWY N    N/A
AR209 FINDSSHELTON TEXACO 1007067877

                         Overfill AlarmTank Overfill Prevention:
                         Spill Bucket/Spill BoxTank Spill Prevention:
                         08/04/1998Tank Upgrade Date:
                         06/30/2019Tank Permit Expiration Date:
                         5,000 to 9,999 GallonsCapacity Range:
                         Not reportedTank Closure Date:
                         00/30/1976Tank Install Date:
                         10/8/2003Tank Status Date:
                         OperationalTank Status:
                         A1442Tag Number:
                         1Tank Name:

                         -123.122528Decimal Longitude:
                         47.224209000000002Decimal Latitude:
                         Not reportedPhone Number:
                         Not reportedUBI:
                         3720Site Id:
                         61696173Facility ID:

UST:

8975 ft. Site 4 of 6 in cluster AR
1.700 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
219 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
South 2235 OLYMPIC HWY N    N/A
AR210 WA USTSHELTON TEXACO U003354235

TC5712009.2s   Page 512

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=4h84fKhKn8Hf2rLfpyKRH9uBKn.nUK3trHvQfMs2iGr7ZL623vapEtyV.33dRPlHuYAQmuyABsl2ecn2x.Ve2SnUgJKek4h2hFM8Pr2SPfKKKFL8VgKornqg2XRHC2fCO9RZr5wLER3RepIcyu03zDR9DHkA34ZuqrBBYBlAnqF.At4UOhxq86h35ffX0KYZ2oTKIYns57fWHH9fDY92JrjoLW93CXpW5ybx4R8RaZHQY2L4uXHBjW2RBnHY.v2BRxUqbKag1zKtvSrD84iovF2Q3JuVVMRbspi4Cwh388aI3GQfuKKxP2RkKNEn3k32BHu4fr02uIr7XLJZ28OpDDyoa9LfRCEHYW2e7uiJBOV8qenHL.9N9lqUcrK.JAJBtW3rHq9Gdv8uQl69p0M8gs732
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=4h84fKhKn8Hf2rLfpyKRH9uBKn.nUK3trHvQfMs2iGr7ZL623vapEtyV.33dRPlHuYAQmuyABsl2ecn2x.Ve2SnUgJKek4h2hFM8Pr2SPfKKKFL8VgKornqg2XRHC2fCO9RZr5wLER3RepIcyu03zDR9DHkA34ZuqrBBYBlAnqF.At4UOhxq86h35ffX0KYZ2oTKIYns57fWHH9fDY92JrjoLW93CXpW5ybx4R8RaZHQY2L4uXHBjW2RBnHY.v2BRxUqbKag1zKtvSrD84iovF2Q3JuVVMRbspi4Cwh388aI3GQfuKKxP2RkKNEn3k32BHu4fr02uIr7XLJZ28OpDDyoa9LfRCEHYW2e7uiJBOV8qenHL.9N9lqUcrK.JAJBtW3rHq9Gdv8uQl69p0M8gs732


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                         SteelTank Material:
                         Overfill AlarmTank Overfill Prevention:
                         Spill Bucket/Spill BoxTank Spill Prevention:
                         08/04/1998Tank Upgrade Date:
                         06/30/2019Tank Permit Expiration Date:
                         10,000 to 19,999 GallonsCapacity Range:
                         Not reportedTank Closure Date:
                         00/15/1981Tank Install Date:
                         10/8/2003Tank Status Date:
                         OperationalTank Status:
                         A1442Tag Number:
                         3Tank Name:

                         Not reportedDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Pressurized SystemPipe Pumping System:
                         Corrosion ResistantPipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedPipe Second Release Detection:
                         Automatic Line Leak Detector (ALLD)Pipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Single Wall PipePipe Construction:
                         FiberglassPipe Material:
                         Not reportedTank SFC Type:
                         Automatic Tank GaugingTank Release Detection:
                         Not reportedTank Manifold:
                         Impressed CurrentTank Corrosion Protection:
                         Every 5 YearsTank Tightness Test:
                         Single Wall TankTank Construction:
                         SteelTank Material:
                         Overfill AlarmTank Overfill Prevention:
                         Spill Bucket/Spill BoxTank Spill Prevention:
                         08/04/1998Tank Upgrade Date:
                         06/30/2019Tank Permit Expiration Date:
                         5,000 to 9,999 GallonsCapacity Range:
                         Not reportedTank Closure Date:
                         00/30/1976Tank Install Date:
                         10/8/2003Tank Status Date:
                         OperationalTank Status:
                         A1442Tag Number:
                         2Tank Name:

                         Not reportedDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Pressurized SystemPipe Pumping System:
                         Corrosion ResistantPipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedPipe Second Release Detection:
                         Automatic Line Leak Detector (ALLD)Pipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Single Wall PipePipe Construction:
                         FiberglassPipe Material:
                         Not reportedTank SFC Type:
                         Automatic Tank GaugingTank Release Detection:
                         Not reportedTank Manifold:
                         Impressed CurrentTank Corrosion Protection:
                         Every 5 YearsTank Tightness Test:
                         Single Wall TankTank Construction:
                         SteelTank Material:

SHELTON TEXACO  (Continued) U003354235

TC5712009.2s   Page 513



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                         Single Wall TankTank Construction:
                         SteelTank Material:
                         Overfill AlarmTank Overfill Prevention:
                         Spill Bucket/Spill BoxTank Spill Prevention:
                         08/04/1998Tank Upgrade Date:
                         06/30/2019Tank Permit Expiration Date:
                         10,000 to 19,999 GallonsCapacity Range:
                         Not reportedTank Closure Date:
                         00/30/1976Tank Install Date:
                         10/18/2006Tank Status Date:
                         Temporarily ClosedTank Status:
                         A1442Tag Number:
                         5Tank Name:

                         Not reportedDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Pressurized SystemPipe Pumping System:
                         Corrosion ResistantPipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedPipe Second Release Detection:
                         Automatic Line Leak Detector (ALLD)Pipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Single Wall PipePipe Construction:
                         FiberglassPipe Material:
                         Not reportedTank SFC Type:
                         Automatic Tank GaugingTank Release Detection:
                         Not reportedTank Manifold:
                         Impressed CurrentTank Corrosion Protection:
                         Every 5 YearsTank Tightness Test:
                         Single Wall TankTank Construction:
                         SteelTank Material:
                         Overfill AlarmTank Overfill Prevention:
                         Spill Bucket/Spill BoxTank Spill Prevention:
                         08/04/1998Tank Upgrade Date:
                         06/30/2019Tank Permit Expiration Date:
                         10,000 to 19,999 GallonsCapacity Range:
                         Not reportedTank Closure Date:
                         00/15/1981Tank Install Date:
                         10/8/2003Tank Status Date:
                         OperationalTank Status:
                         A1442Tag Number:
                         4Tank Name:

                         Not reportedDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Pressurized SystemPipe Pumping System:
                         Corrosion ResistantPipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedPipe Second Release Detection:
                         Automatic Line Leak Detector (ALLD)Pipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Single Wall PipePipe Construction:
                         FiberglassPipe Material:
                         Not reportedTank SFC Type:
                         Automatic Tank GaugingTank Release Detection:
                         Not reportedTank Manifold:
                         Impressed CurrentTank Corrosion Protection:
                         Every 5 YearsTank Tightness Test:
                         Single Wall TankTank Construction:

SHELTON TEXACO  (Continued) U003354235

TC5712009.2s   Page 514



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                         Not reportedDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Pressurized SystemPipe Pumping System:
                         Impressed CurrentPipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedPipe Second Release Detection:
                         Automatic Line Leak Detector (ALLD)Pipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Single Wall PipePipe Construction:
                         SteelPipe Material:
                         Not reportedTank SFC Type:
                         Automatic Tank GaugingTank Release Detection:
                         Not reportedTank Manifold:
                         Impressed CurrentTank Corrosion Protection:
                         Every 5 YearsTank Tightness Test:

SHELTON TEXACO  (Continued) U003354235

                                                            Gasoline Service Stations2010     SHELTON MOBIL
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations2009     SHELTON MOBIL
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations2008     SHELTON MOBIL
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations2007     SHELTON MOBIL
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations2007     OLYMPIC GASCO
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations2006     OLYMPIC GASCO
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations2006     SHELTON MOBIL
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations2005     B & N ENTERPRISES/B P
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations2005     OLYMPIC GASCO
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations2004     OLYMPIC GASCO
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations2004     B & N ENTERPRISES/B P
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations2003     B & N ENTERPRISES/B P
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations2003     OLYMPIC GASCO
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations2002     B & N ENTERPRISES/B P
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations2001     B & N ENTERPRISES/B P
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations2000     B & N ENTERPRISES/B P
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations1999     B & N ENTERPRISES/BP
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations1998     B & N ENTERPRISES/BP
                                                            Type:Year:    Name:

EDR Hist Auto

8975 ft. Site 5 of 6 in cluster AR
1.700 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
219 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
South 2235 OLYMPIC HWY N    N/A
AR211 EDR Hist AutoB & N ENTERPRISES/B P 1020302707

                                             TOXICSEcology Program:
                                             USTInteraction 2:
                                             AInteraction 1:
                                             54607Interaction:

                              61696173Facility Id:
                              SHELTON TEXACOFacility Name:

ALLSITES:

8975 ft. Site 6 of 6 in cluster AR
1.700 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
219 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
South WA Financial Assurance2235 OLYMPIC HWY N    N/A
AR212 WA ALLSITESSHELTON TEXACO S108024229

TC5712009.2s   Page 515



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                  0Proof of Responsibility Document Flag:
                                                  Approved pollution liability insuranceCompliance Method:
                                                  Non-mktg, > 100 tanks, < 10k gals; 500k per occurence, 2m aggregateLiability Limit Type:
                                                  06/08/2018Effective Date:
                                                  BTA 3744575-00Policy Number:
                                                  Not reportedAddress 2:
                                                  06/08/2019Expiration Date:
                                                  06/08/2018Inception Date:
                                                  GREAT AMERICAN INSURANCEFinancial Resp Type:
                                                  3720DOE Site ID:
                                                  SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                  2235 OLYMPIC HWY NAddress:
                                                  SHELTON TEXACOName:

                                                  -123.122528Longitude:
                                                  47.224209Latitude:
                                                  Not reportedRetroactive Date:
                                                  0Proof of Responsibility Document Flag:
                                                  Approved pollution liability insuranceCompliance Method:
                                                  Non-mktg, > 100 tanks, < 10k gals; 500k per occurence, 2m aggregateLiability Limit Type:
                                                  01/05/2017Effective Date:
                                                  BTA 9988857-06Policy Number:
                                                  Not reportedAddress 2:
                                                  01/11/2018Expiration Date:
                                                  01/05/2017Inception Date:
                                                  GREAT AMERICAN INSURANCEFinancial Resp Type:
                                                  3720DOE Site ID:
                                                  SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                  2235 OLYMPIC HWY NAddress:
                                                  SHELTON TEXACOName:

                                                  -123.122528Longitude:
                                                  47.224209Latitude:
                                                  Not reportedRetroactive Date:
                                                  0Proof of Responsibility Document Flag:
                                                  Approved pollution liability insuranceCompliance Method:
                                                  Non-mktg, > 100 tanks, < 10k gals; 500k per occurence, 2m aggregateLiability Limit Type:
                                                  01/11/2015Effective Date:
                                                  BTA 9988857-05Policy Number:
                                                  Not reportedAddress 2:
                                                  01/11/2017Expiration Date:
                                                  01/11/2015Inception Date:
                                                  GREAT AMERICAN INSURANCEFinancial Resp Type:
                                                  3720DOE Site ID:
                                                  SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                                  2235 OLYMPIC HWY NAddress:
                                                  SHELTON TEXACOName:

WA Financial Assurance 1:

                                             -123.122511612Longitude:
                                             47.224202886999997Latitude:
                                             Underground Storage TankDate Interaction 3:
                                             1976-05-30 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             3720Program ID:
                                             Not reportedFacility Alt.:
                                             USTProgram Data:

SHELTON TEXACO  (Continued) S108024229

TC5712009.2s   Page 516



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                  -123.122528Longitude:
                                                  47.224209Latitude:
                                                  Not reportedRetroactive Date:

SHELTON TEXACO  (Continued) S108024229

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110015475724Registry ID:

FINDS:

9015 ft. Site 3 of 5 in cluster AU
1.707 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
218 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
South 2210 OLYMPIC HWY N    N/A
AU213 FINDSJACKPOT FOOD MART 368 1007070958

                                                            Grocery Stores2007     JACK POT GAS STATION
                                                            Grocery Stores2006     JACK POT GAS STATION
                                                            Grocery Stores2005     JACK POT GAS STATION
                                                            Grocery Stores2004     JACK POT GAS STATION
                                                            Grocery Stores2003     JACK POT GAS STATION
                                                            Grocery Stores2002     JACK POT GAS STATION
                                                            Grocery Stores2001     JACK POT GAS STATION
                                                            Grocery Stores2000     JACK POT GAS STATION
                                                            Grocery Stores1995     JACK POT GAS STATION
                                                            Grocery Stores1994     JACK POT GAS STATION
                                                            Grocery Stores1993     JACK POT GAS STATION
                                                            Grocery Stores1992     JACK POT GAS STATION
                                                            Grocery Stores1991     JACK POT GAS STATION
                                                            Grocery Stores1990     JACK POT GAS STATION
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations1988     JACK POT GAS STATION
                                                            Grocery Stores1987     JACK POT GAS STATION
                                                            Type:Year:    Name:

EDR Hist Auto

9015 ft. Site 4 of 5 in cluster AU
1.707 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
218 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
South 2210 OLYMPIC HWY N    N/A
AU214 EDR Hist AutoJACK POT GAS STATION 1021278383

TC5712009.2s   Page 517

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=4SB4EdSLyBJ52O0EXvdCa99uLudyy33EUJwl5ZP2SXOAa0uO3P.X7jvIc3LMC2sawyAT79SruDd2MFuPDdIj2Hpy0M33V48ESgiBws2RcE3IdEu8hBLJVyrn2T8JIQ5kU9T7Ot50LG3pFXEjvA53FIC5pahj36x9lhuVbBlMuxtdAu4vwStjBfG3zlEmgd3I2TtLh2y5G7t0JaG5qO9MoOTg0k23xqX0Nvtv4ijCDbaHr2rI9bgufJ2rUufSdvtBFsykF3Ct1haEOaUki4ExwqJlxEugMZp8Pnr4h5SNhBXq3apEVVdZ02cbLQMyKF3KQJce5l52oOOxt0b825CXy5v8E9NxCssaop2Hw9lNuPb9Lbu3Aden2uay3z33pB97EpsUuj7izwW5lyAAVfZvNPcJ2
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=4SB4EdSLyBJ52O0EXvdCa99uLudyy33EUJwl5ZP2SXOAa0uO3P.X7jvIc3LMC2sawyAT79SruDd2MFuPDdIj2Hpy0M33V48ESgiBws2RcE3IdEu8hBLJVyrn2T8JIQ5kU9T7Ot50LG3pFXEjvA53FIC5pahj36x9lhuVbBlMuxtdAu4vwStjBfG3zlEmgd3I2TtLh2y5G7t0JaG5qO9MoOTg0k23xqX0Nvtv4ijCDbaHr2rI9bgufJ2rUufSdvtBFsykF3Ct1haEOaUki4ExwqJlxEugMZp8Pnr4h5SNhBXq3apEVVdZ02cbLQMyKF3KQJce5l52oOOxt0b825CXy5v8E9NxCssaop2Hw9lNuPb9Lbu3Aden2uay3z33pB97EpsUuj7izwW5lyAAVfZvNPcJ2


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                         Statistical Inventory ReconciliationTank Release Detection:
                         Not reportedTank Manifold:
                         Impressed CurrentTank Corrosion Protection:
                         AnnualTank Tightness Test:
                         Single Wall TankTank Construction:
                         SteelTank Material:
                         Automatic Shutoff (fill pipe)Tank Overfill Prevention:
                         Spill Bucket/Spill BoxTank Spill Prevention:
                         08/24/1998Tank Upgrade Date:
                         11/30/2003Tank Permit Expiration Date:
                         5,000 to 9,999 GallonsCapacity Range:
                         05/11/2004Tank Closure Date:
                         00/01/1970Tank Install Date:
                         2/18/2003Tank Status Date:
                         RemovedTank Status:
                         A0013Tag Number:
                         281Tank Name:

                         Not reportedDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Non-Safe SuctionPipe Pumping System:
                         Impressed CurrentPipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedPipe Second Release Detection:
                         Not reportedPipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Single Wall PipePipe Construction:
                         SteelPipe Material:
                         Not reportedTank SFC Type:
                         Statistical Inventory ReconciliationTank Release Detection:
                         Not reportedTank Manifold:
                         Impressed CurrentTank Corrosion Protection:
                         AnnualTank Tightness Test:
                         Single Wall TankTank Construction:
                         SteelTank Material:
                         Automatic Shutoff (fill pipe)Tank Overfill Prevention:
                         Spill Bucket/Spill BoxTank Spill Prevention:
                         08/24/1998Tank Upgrade Date:
                         11/30/2003Tank Permit Expiration Date:
                         10,000 to 19,999 GallonsCapacity Range:
                         05/11/2004Tank Closure Date:
                         00/01/1970Tank Install Date:
                         2/18/2003Tank Status Date:
                         RemovedTank Status:
                         A0013Tag Number:
                         272Tank Name:

                         -123.122962Decimal Longitude:
                         47.223605999999997Decimal Latitude:
                         Not reportedPhone Number:
                         Not reportedUBI:
                         4007Site Id:
                         42746522Facility ID:

UST:

9015 ft. Site 5 of 5 in cluster AU
1.707 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
218 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
South WA ALLSITES2210 OLYMPIC HWY N    N/A
AU215 WA USTJACKPOT FOOD MART 368 U003354357

TC5712009.2s   Page 518



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                             AInteraction 1:
                                             43977Interaction:

                                             -123.122947072Longitude:
                                             47.223600488000002Latitude:
                                             Emergency/Haz Chem Rpt TIDate Interaction 3:
                                             1991-01-01 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             CRK000014450Program ID:
                                             Not reportedFacility Alt.:
                                             EPCRAProgram Data:
                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             TIER2Interaction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             43978Interaction:

                              42746522Facility Id:
                              JACKPOT FOOD MART 368Facility Name:

ALLSITES:

                         Not reportedDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Non-Safe SuctionPipe Pumping System:
                         Impressed CurrentPipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedPipe Second Release Detection:
                         Not reportedPipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Single Wall PipePipe Construction:
                         SteelPipe Material:
                         Not reportedTank SFC Type:
                         Statistical Inventory ReconciliationTank Release Detection:
                         Not reportedTank Manifold:
                         Impressed CurrentTank Corrosion Protection:
                         AnnualTank Tightness Test:
                         Single Wall TankTank Construction:
                         SteelTank Material:
                         Automatic Shutoff (fill pipe)Tank Overfill Prevention:
                         Spill Bucket/Spill BoxTank Spill Prevention:
                         08/24/1998Tank Upgrade Date:
                         11/30/2003Tank Permit Expiration Date:
                         5,000 to 9,999 GallonsCapacity Range:
                         05/11/2004Tank Closure Date:
                         00/01/1974Tank Install Date:
                         2/18/2003Tank Status Date:
                         RemovedTank Status:
                         A0013Tag Number:
                         688Tank Name:

                         Not reportedDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Non-Safe SuctionPipe Pumping System:
                         Impressed CurrentPipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedPipe Second Release Detection:
                         Not reportedPipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Single Wall PipePipe Construction:
                         SteelPipe Material:
                         Not reportedTank SFC Type:

JACKPOT FOOD MART 368  (Continued) U003354357

TC5712009.2s   Page 519



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                             -123.122947072Longitude:
                                             47.223600488000002Latitude:
                                             Underground Storage TankDate Interaction 3:
                                             1970-01-01 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             4007Program ID:
                                             Not reportedFacility Alt.:
                                             USTProgram Data:
                                             TOXICSEcology Program:
                                             USTInteraction 2:

JACKPOT FOOD MART 368  (Continued) U003354357

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

AIR MINOR
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110041536255Registry ID:

FINDS:

9023 ft.
1.709 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
205 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  00000
SSE UNKNOWN    N/A
216 FINDSMASON GENERAL HOSPITAL 1014851105

                                        Not reportedThursday:
                                        Not reportedWednesday:
                                        Not reportedTuesday:
                                        Not reportedMonday:
                                        Not reportedSunday:
                                        NoonSite Hours End:
                                        9Site Hours Start:
                                        Not reportedEmergency:
                                        Not reportedOff Hold:
                                        Not reportedOn Hold:
                                        1Amended:
                                        Not reportedInitial:
                                        05/23/2014Completion Date:
                                        05/23/2014Start Date:
                                        04/28/2014Notice Date:
                                        85550##1402KDSEn212168Form ID:
                                        84378Parent ID:
                                        ResidentialFacility Type:
                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                        2125 WASHINGTON STREETAddress:
                                        Not reportedName:

ASBESTOS:

9028 ft.
1.710 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
216 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
South 2125 WASHINGTON STREET    N/A
217 WA ASBESTOS S119166857

TC5712009.2s   Page 520

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2a2CaV1VC48IV322V91a4829IJ2h3H9U2S1h9S1OaO22af1OCu7fV319VQ844323I82x3X282BAu9y2Sap2vCD1AVx6WVP8w4r2YIR3J33162g1l9RApaA078z3c9ptYJd2NaC2bCQ1RVP2mVR1g412PIn5o3L952A6D9a25a12G8T1c9m6tJt1
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2a2CaV1VC48IV322V91a4829IJ2h3H9U2S1h9S1OaO22af1OCu7fV319VQ844323I82x3X282BAu9y2Sap2vCD1AVx6WVP8w4r2YIR3J33162g1l9RApaA078z3c9ptYJd2NaC2bCQ1RVP2mVR1g412PIn5o3L952A6D9a25a12G8T1c9m6tJt1


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        Not reportedOther CM1:
                                        1MANUALMETHODS     :
                                        1HEPA Vacuum:
                                        1Wet Methods:
                                        Not reportedWrap And Cut:
                                        1Critical Barriers:
                                        Not reportedMini Enclosure:
                                        Not reportedGlove Bag:
                                        Not reportedNeg Pres Enclosure:
                                        Not reportedOutdoors:
                                        1Indoors:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other2 Text:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other2:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other1 Text:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other1:
                                        Not reportedDuct Tape:
                                        Not reportedMudded Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedCement Asbestos Pipe:
                                        Not reportedDucting Insulation:
                                        Not reportedAir Cell Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedMag Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedQuantity Lin Ft:
                                        Not reportedSq Ft Other Text:
                                        Not reportedSq Ft Other:
                                        Not reportedRoofing:
                                        1VAT:
                                        Not reportedDuct Paper:
                                        Not reportedBoiler Insulation:
                                        Not reportedAsbestos Paper:
                                        1Sheet Vinyl:
                                        Not reportedCAB:
                                        Not reportedPopcorn Ceiling:
                                        Not reportedFireproofing:
                                        200Quantity Sq Ft:
                                        Not reportedEncapsulated:
                                        1Removed:
                                        Not reportedFacility Maint:
                                        Not reportedFacility Repair:
                                        1Facility Demo:
                                        Not reportedFacility Remodel:
                                        UnknownFacility Size:
                                        UnknownFacility Age:
                                        Not reportedJob Site Room:
                                        360-432-5132Property Owner Phone:
                                        98584Property Owner Zip4:
                                        WAProperty Owner State:
                                        SheltonProperty Owner City:
                                        525 W. Cota StreetProperty Owner Address:
                                        City of SheltonProperty Owner Company:
                                        Erik BirkProperty Owner Agent:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner Name:
                                        sandie@kdsenv.comProject Form Email:
                                        Dean WilsonJob Site CAS:
                                        360-249-5540Phone:
                                        1402Contractor ID:
                                        Not reportedSaturday:
                                        1Friday:

  (Continued) S119166857

TC5712009.2s   Page 521



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        84378Parent ID:
                                        ResidentialFacility Type:
                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                        2125 WASHINGTON STREETAddress:
                                        Not reportedName:

                                        email a copy once processed.Contractor Memo:
                                        98563Contractor Mail Zip:
                                        WAContractor Mail State:
                                        MONTESANOContractor Mail City:
                                        PO BOX 312Contractor Mail Street Address:
                                        www.kdsenv.comContractor Web Address:
                                        sandie@kdsenv.comContractor Email:
                                        3602495540Contractor Phone:
                                        98563Contractor Zip:
                                        WAContractor State:
                                        MONTESANOContractor City:
                                        PO BOX 312Contractor Street Address:
                                        14Contractor Cnty Code:
                                        Not reportedContractor Suspended Date:
                                        01/13/2017Contractor Exp Date:
                                        10/20/2016Contractor Renewal Letter Date:
                                        01/14/2009Contractor Effective Date:
                                        01/13/2005Contractor Original Date:
                                        2016-01-11 00:00:00Contractor Cert Prn Date:
                                        3602493475Contact Fax:
                                        3602495540Contact Phone:
                                        SANDIE PENNANTContact Name:
                                        ActiveContractor Status:
                                        K D & S Environmental IncContractor Name:
                                        KDSENEI951BLContractor Cris Num:
                                        LContractor Priority:
                                        602458724Contractor UBI:
                                        1402Contractor ID:

Contractor:

                                        Not reportedCertificate Status:
                                        Not reportedSupervisor Phone:
                                        Not reportedSupervisor:
                                        Not reportedProject Type:
                                        Not reportedNotice type:
                                        Not reportedUBI:
                                        Not reportedRegion:
                                        173.160.217.169Submitter IP Address:
                                        2014-05-22 14:33:38Date Time Submitted:
                                        be doing this Friday instead of next Tuesday. Thank you
                                        Please note the date and work hours changed for this project. We willComments:
                                        Not reportedOther Resp Pro Text:
                                        Not reportedOther Resp Pro:
                                        Not reportedType C Pressure:
                                        Not reportedType C Continuous:
                                        Not reportedPAPR:
                                        Not reportedFull Face APR:
                                        1Half Mask APR:
                                        Not reportedOther CM2 Text:
                                        Not reportedOther CM2:
                                        Not reportedOther CM1 Text:

  (Continued) S119166857

TC5712009.2s   Page 522



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        Not reportedMudded Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedCement Asbestos Pipe:
                                        Not reportedDucting Insulation:
                                        Not reportedAir Cell Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedMag Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedQuantity Lin Ft:
                                        Not reportedSq Ft Other Text:
                                        Not reportedSq Ft Other:
                                        Not reportedRoofing:
                                        1VAT:
                                        Not reportedDuct Paper:
                                        Not reportedBoiler Insulation:
                                        Not reportedAsbestos Paper:
                                        1Sheet Vinyl:
                                        Not reportedCAB:
                                        Not reportedPopcorn Ceiling:
                                        Not reportedFireproofing:
                                        200Quantity Sq Ft:
                                        Not reportedEncapsulated:
                                        1Removed:
                                        Not reportedFacility Maint:
                                        Not reportedFacility Repair:
                                        1Facility Demo:
                                        Not reportedFacility Remodel:
                                        UnknownFacility Size:
                                        UnknownFacility Age:
                                        Not reportedJob Site Room:
                                        360-432-5132Property Owner Phone:
                                        98584Property Owner Zip4:
                                        WAProperty Owner State:
                                        SheltonProperty Owner City:
                                        525 W. Cota StreetProperty Owner Address:
                                        City of SheltonProperty Owner Company:
                                        Erik BirkProperty Owner Agent:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner Name:
                                        sandie@kdsenv.comProject Form Email:
                                        Dean WilsonJob Site CAS:
                                        360-249-5540Phone:
                                        1402Contractor ID:
                                        Not reportedSaturday:
                                        1Friday:
                                        Not reportedThursday:
                                        Not reportedWednesday:
                                        Not reportedTuesday:
                                        Not reportedMonday:
                                        Not reportedSunday:
                                        NoonSite Hours End:
                                        9Site Hours Start:
                                        Not reportedEmergency:
                                        Not reportedOff Hold:
                                        Not reportedOn Hold:
                                        1Amended:
                                        Not reportedInitial:
                                        06/06/2014Completion Date:
                                        06/06/2014Start Date:
                                        04/28/2014Notice Date:
                                        85560##1402KDSEn222756Form ID:

  (Continued) S119166857

TC5712009.2s   Page 523



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        WAContractor State:
                                        MONTESANOContractor City:
                                        PO BOX 312Contractor Street Address:
                                        14Contractor Cnty Code:
                                        Not reportedContractor Suspended Date:
                                        01/13/2017Contractor Exp Date:
                                        10/20/2016Contractor Renewal Letter Date:
                                        01/14/2009Contractor Effective Date:
                                        01/13/2005Contractor Original Date:
                                        2016-01-11 00:00:00Contractor Cert Prn Date:
                                        3602493475Contact Fax:
                                        3602495540Contact Phone:
                                        SANDIE PENNANTContact Name:
                                        ActiveContractor Status:
                                        K D & S Environmental IncContractor Name:
                                        KDSENEI951BLContractor Cris Num:
                                        LContractor Priority:
                                        602458724Contractor UBI:
                                        1402Contractor ID:

Contractor:

                                        Not reportedCertificate Status:
                                        Not reportedSupervisor Phone:
                                        Not reportedSupervisor:
                                        Not reportedProject Type:
                                        Not reportedNotice type:
                                        Not reportedUBI:
                                        Not reportedRegion:
                                        173.160.217.169Submitter IP Address:
                                        2014-05-22 16:26:46Date Time Submitted:
                                        emptied as planned. We have rescheduled it for June 6th. thank you
                                        The City of Shelton just called us to say that this house did not getComments:
                                        Not reportedOther Resp Pro Text:
                                        Not reportedOther Resp Pro:
                                        Not reportedType C Pressure:
                                        Not reportedType C Continuous:
                                        Not reportedPAPR:
                                        Not reportedFull Face APR:
                                        1Half Mask APR:
                                        Not reportedOther CM2 Text:
                                        Not reportedOther CM2:
                                        Not reportedOther CM1 Text:
                                        Not reportedOther CM1:
                                        1MANUALMETHODS     :
                                        1HEPA Vacuum:
                                        1Wet Methods:
                                        Not reportedWrap And Cut:
                                        1Critical Barriers:
                                        Not reportedMini Enclosure:
                                        Not reportedGlove Bag:
                                        Not reportedNeg Pres Enclosure:
                                        Not reportedOutdoors:
                                        1Indoors:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other2 Text:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other2:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other1 Text:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other1:
                                        Not reportedDuct Tape:

  (Continued) S119166857

TC5712009.2s   Page 524



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        Not reportedFireproofing:
                                        200Quantity Sq Ft:
                                        Not reportedEncapsulated:
                                        1Removed:
                                        Not reportedFacility Maint:
                                        Not reportedFacility Repair:
                                        1Facility Demo:
                                        Not reportedFacility Remodel:
                                        UnknownFacility Size:
                                        UnknownFacility Age:
                                        Not reportedJob Site Room:
                                        360-432-5132Property Owner Phone:
                                        98584Property Owner Zip4:
                                        WAProperty Owner State:
                                        SheltonProperty Owner City:
                                        525 W. Cota StreetProperty Owner Address:
                                        City of SheltonProperty Owner Company:
                                        Erik BirkProperty Owner Agent:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner Name:
                                        sandie@kdsenv.comProject Form Email:
                                        Dean WilsonJob Site CAS:
                                        360-249-5540Phone:
                                        1402Contractor ID:
                                        Not reportedSaturday:
                                        1Friday:
                                        Not reportedThursday:
                                        Not reportedWednesday:
                                        Not reportedTuesday:
                                        Not reportedMonday:
                                        Not reportedSunday:
                                        NoonSite Hours End:
                                        9Site Hours Start:
                                        Not reportedEmergency:
                                        Not reportedOff Hold:
                                        Not reportedOn Hold:
                                        1Amended:
                                        Not reportedInitial:
                                        06/06/2014Completion Date:
                                        06/06/2014Start Date:
                                        04/28/2014Notice Date:
                                        86183##1402KDSEn953103Form ID:
                                        84378Parent ID:
                                        ResidentialFacility Type:
                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                        2125 WASHINGTON STREETAddress:
                                        Not reportedName:

                                        email a copy once processed.Contractor Memo:
                                        98563Contractor Mail Zip:
                                        WAContractor Mail State:
                                        MONTESANOContractor Mail City:
                                        PO BOX 312Contractor Mail Street Address:
                                        www.kdsenv.comContractor Web Address:
                                        sandie@kdsenv.comContractor Email:
                                        3602495540Contractor Phone:
                                        98563Contractor Zip:

  (Continued) S119166857

TC5712009.2s   Page 525



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        KDSENEI951BLContractor Cris Num:
                                        LContractor Priority:
                                        602458724Contractor UBI:
                                        1402Contractor ID:

Contractor:

                                        Not reportedCertificate Status:
                                        Not reportedSupervisor Phone:
                                        Not reportedSupervisor:
                                        Not reportedProject Type:
                                        Not reportedNotice type:
                                        Not reportedUBI:
                                        Not reportedRegion:
                                        173.160.217.169Submitter IP Address:
                                        2014-06-06 11:07:24Date Time Submitted:
                                        This project is completed and all workers are off site. Thank youComments:
                                        Not reportedOther Resp Pro Text:
                                        Not reportedOther Resp Pro:
                                        Not reportedType C Pressure:
                                        Not reportedType C Continuous:
                                        Not reportedPAPR:
                                        Not reportedFull Face APR:
                                        1Half Mask APR:
                                        Not reportedOther CM2 Text:
                                        Not reportedOther CM2:
                                        Not reportedOther CM1 Text:
                                        Not reportedOther CM1:
                                        1MANUALMETHODS     :
                                        1HEPA Vacuum:
                                        1Wet Methods:
                                        Not reportedWrap And Cut:
                                        1Critical Barriers:
                                        Not reportedMini Enclosure:
                                        Not reportedGlove Bag:
                                        Not reportedNeg Pres Enclosure:
                                        Not reportedOutdoors:
                                        1Indoors:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other2 Text:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other2:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other1 Text:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other1:
                                        Not reportedDuct Tape:
                                        Not reportedMudded Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedCement Asbestos Pipe:
                                        Not reportedDucting Insulation:
                                        Not reportedAir Cell Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedMag Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedQuantity Lin Ft:
                                        Not reportedSq Ft Other Text:
                                        Not reportedSq Ft Other:
                                        Not reportedRoofing:
                                        1VAT:
                                        Not reportedDuct Paper:
                                        Not reportedBoiler Insulation:
                                        Not reportedAsbestos Paper:
                                        1Sheet Vinyl:
                                        Not reportedCAB:
                                        Not reportedPopcorn Ceiling:

  (Continued) S119166857

TC5712009.2s   Page 526



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        525 W. Cota StreetProperty Owner Address:
                                        City of SheltonProperty Owner Company:
                                        Erik BirkProperty Owner Agent:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner Name:
                                        sandie@kdsenv.comProject Form Email:
                                        Dean WilsonJob Site CAS:
                                        360-249-5540Phone:
                                        1402Contractor ID:
                                        Not reportedSaturday:
                                        Not reportedFriday:
                                        Not reportedThursday:
                                        Not reportedWednesday:
                                        1Tuesday:
                                        Not reportedMonday:
                                        Not reportedSunday:
                                        NoonSite Hours End:
                                        7:00Site Hours Start:
                                        Not reportedEmergency:
                                        Not reportedOff Hold:
                                        Not reportedOn Hold:
                                        Not reportedAmended:
                                        1Initial:
                                        05/27/2014Completion Date:
                                        05/27/2014Start Date:
                                        04/28/2014Notice Date:
                                        84378##1402KDSEn445104Form ID:
                                        0Parent ID:
                                        ResidentialFacility Type:
                                        SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                                        2125 WASHINGTON STREETAddress:
                                        Not reportedName:

                                        email a copy once processed.Contractor Memo:
                                        98563Contractor Mail Zip:
                                        WAContractor Mail State:
                                        MONTESANOContractor Mail City:
                                        PO BOX 312Contractor Mail Street Address:
                                        www.kdsenv.comContractor Web Address:
                                        sandie@kdsenv.comContractor Email:
                                        3602495540Contractor Phone:
                                        98563Contractor Zip:
                                        WAContractor State:
                                        MONTESANOContractor City:
                                        PO BOX 312Contractor Street Address:
                                        14Contractor Cnty Code:
                                        Not reportedContractor Suspended Date:
                                        01/13/2017Contractor Exp Date:
                                        10/20/2016Contractor Renewal Letter Date:
                                        01/14/2009Contractor Effective Date:
                                        01/13/2005Contractor Original Date:
                                        2016-01-11 00:00:00Contractor Cert Prn Date:
                                        3602493475Contact Fax:
                                        3602495540Contact Phone:
                                        SANDIE PENNANTContact Name:
                                        ActiveContractor Status:
                                        K D & S Environmental IncContractor Name:

  (Continued) S119166857

TC5712009.2s   Page 527



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        Not reportedOther Resp Pro Text:
                                        Not reportedOther Resp Pro:
                                        Not reportedType C Pressure:
                                        Not reportedType C Continuous:
                                        Not reportedPAPR:
                                        Not reportedFull Face APR:
                                        1Half Mask APR:
                                        Not reportedOther CM2 Text:
                                        Not reportedOther CM2:
                                        Not reportedOther CM1 Text:
                                        Not reportedOther CM1:
                                        1MANUALMETHODS     :
                                        1HEPA Vacuum:
                                        1Wet Methods:
                                        Not reportedWrap And Cut:
                                        1Critical Barriers:
                                        Not reportedMini Enclosure:
                                        Not reportedGlove Bag:
                                        Not reportedNeg Pres Enclosure:
                                        Not reportedOutdoors:
                                        1Indoors:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other2 Text:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other2:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other1 Text:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other1:
                                        Not reportedDuct Tape:
                                        Not reportedMudded Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedCement Asbestos Pipe:
                                        Not reportedDucting Insulation:
                                        Not reportedAir Cell Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedMag Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedQuantity Lin Ft:
                                        Not reportedSq Ft Other Text:
                                        Not reportedSq Ft Other:
                                        Not reportedRoofing:
                                        1VAT:
                                        Not reportedDuct Paper:
                                        Not reportedBoiler Insulation:
                                        Not reportedAsbestos Paper:
                                        1Sheet Vinyl:
                                        Not reportedCAB:
                                        Not reportedPopcorn Ceiling:
                                        Not reportedFireproofing:
                                        200Quantity Sq Ft:
                                        Not reportedEncapsulated:
                                        1Removed:
                                        Not reportedFacility Maint:
                                        Not reportedFacility Repair:
                                        1Facility Demo:
                                        Not reportedFacility Remodel:
                                        UnknownFacility Size:
                                        UnknownFacility Age:
                                        Not reportedJob Site Room:
                                        360-432-5132Property Owner Phone:
                                        98584Property Owner Zip4:
                                        WAProperty Owner State:
                                        SheltonProperty Owner City:

  (Continued) S119166857

TC5712009.2s   Page 528



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        email a copy once processed.Contractor Memo:
                                        98563Contractor Mail Zip:
                                        WAContractor Mail State:
                                        MONTESANOContractor Mail City:
                                        PO BOX 312Contractor Mail Street Address:
                                        www.kdsenv.comContractor Web Address:
                                        sandie@kdsenv.comContractor Email:
                                        3602495540Contractor Phone:
                                        98563Contractor Zip:
                                        WAContractor State:
                                        MONTESANOContractor City:
                                        PO BOX 312Contractor Street Address:
                                        14Contractor Cnty Code:
                                        Not reportedContractor Suspended Date:
                                        01/13/2017Contractor Exp Date:
                                        10/20/2016Contractor Renewal Letter Date:
                                        01/14/2009Contractor Effective Date:
                                        01/13/2005Contractor Original Date:
                                        2016-01-11 00:00:00Contractor Cert Prn Date:
                                        3602493475Contact Fax:
                                        3602495540Contact Phone:
                                        SANDIE PENNANTContact Name:
                                        ActiveContractor Status:
                                        K D & S Environmental IncContractor Name:
                                        KDSENEI951BLContractor Cris Num:
                                        LContractor Priority:
                                        602458724Contractor UBI:
                                        1402Contractor ID:

Contractor:

                                        Not reportedCertificate Status:
                                        Not reportedSupervisor Phone:
                                        Not reportedSupervisor:
                                        Not reportedProject Type:
                                        Not reportedNotice type:
                                        Not reportedUBI:
                                        Not reportedRegion:
                                        173.160.217.169Submitter IP Address:
                                        2014-04-28 13:40:59Date Time Submitted:
                                        Not reportedComments:

  (Continued) S119166857

                         Not reportedTag Number:
                         1Tank Name:

                         -123.10515100000001Decimal Longitude:
                         47.226483000000002Decimal Latitude:
                         Not reportedPhone Number:
                         Not reportedUBI:
                         4212Site Id:
                         3626955Facility ID:

UST:

9065 ft. Site 1 of 3 in cluster AV
1.717 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
247 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
SSE WA ALLSITESWEST 50 MATLOCK DECKERVILLE RD POB    N/A
AV218 WA USTMATLOCK SHOP U003354441

TC5712009.2s   Page 529



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              3626955Facility Id:
                              MATLOCK SHOPFacility Name:

ALLSITES:

                         Not reportedDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Not reportedPipe Pumping System:
                         Not reportedPipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedPipe Second Release Detection:
                         Not reportedPipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Not reportedPipe Construction:
                         Not reportedPipe Material:
                         Not reportedTank SFC Type:
                         Not reportedTank Release Detection:
                         Not reportedTank Manifold:
                         Not reportedTank Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedTank Tightness Test:
                         Not reportedTank Construction:
                         Not reportedTank Material:
                         Not reportedTank Overfill Prevention:
                         Not reportedTank Spill Prevention:
                         Not reportedTank Upgrade Date:
                         Not reportedTank Permit Expiration Date:
                         111 TO 1,100 GallonsCapacity Range:
                         Not reportedTank Closure Date:
                         00/31/1964Tank Install Date:
                         8/6/1996Tank Status Date:
                         RemovedTank Status:
                         Not reportedTag Number:
                         2Tank Name:

                         Not reportedDispencer/Pump SFC Type:
                         SOUTHWESTResponsible Unit:
                         Not reportedPipe Pumping System:
                         Not reportedPipe Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedPipe Second Release Detection:
                         Not reportedPipe Primary Release Detection:
                         Not reportedPipe Construction:
                         Not reportedPipe Material:
                         Not reportedTank SFC Type:
                         Not reportedTank Release Detection:
                         Not reportedTank Manifold:
                         Not reportedTank Corrosion Protection:
                         Not reportedTank Tightness Test:
                         Not reportedTank Construction:
                         Not reportedTank Material:
                         Not reportedTank Overfill Prevention:
                         Not reportedTank Spill Prevention:
                         Not reportedTank Upgrade Date:
                         Not reportedTank Permit Expiration Date:
                         111 TO 1,100 GallonsCapacity Range:
                         Not reportedTank Closure Date:
                         00/31/1964Tank Install Date:
                         8/6/1996Tank Status Date:
                         RemovedTank Status:

MATLOCK SHOP  (Continued) U003354441

TC5712009.2s   Page 530



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                             -123.105136075Longitude:
                                             47.226477486999997Latitude:
                                             Underground Storage TankDate Interaction 3:
                                             1999-06-28 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             4212Program ID:
                                             Not reportedFacility Alt.:
                                             USTProgram Data:
                                             TOXICSEcology Program:
                                             USTInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             13067Interaction:

MATLOCK SHOP  (Continued) U003354441

                                   http://echo.epa.gov/detailed-facility-report?fid=110005383548DFR URL:
                                   110005383548Registry ID:
                                   1024929149Envid:

ECHO:

9066 ft. Site 1 of 2 in cluster AW
1.717 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
307 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
West 520 W DAYTON AIRPORT RD    N/A
AW219 ECHOAERO CONTROLS INCORPORATED 1024929149

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110015554336Registry ID:

FINDS:

9077 ft. Site 2 of 3 in cluster AV
1.719 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
251 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
SSE 50 MATLOCK DECKERVILLE RD W    N/A
AV220 FINDSMATLOCK SHOP 1007078741

TC5712009.2s   Page 531

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2C2ECI1OEK8dIJ2.OQ1AKj2NdR2LJt95.11GQx1EAZ2bCw1YEl7wIf1IOg8aKD2jds2QJz2Z.bADQ624C72zEU1tIy6QOO83KW2Ud33sJE1z.41nQ5AqAq0tjv3ENYttR722Cy2rEP1nIl2kOC1xKN1AdH87JK1O.O8nQt9mAn83jU5eNA2ERR1
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2C2ECI1OEK8dIJ2.OQ1AKj2NdR2LJt95.11GQx1EAZ2bCw1YEl7wIf1IOg8aKD2jds2QJz2Z.bADQ624C72zEU1tIy6QOO83KW2Ud33sJE1z.41nQ5AqAq0tjv3ENYttR722Cy2rEP1nIl2kOC1xKN1AdH87JK1O.O8nQt9mAn83jU5eNA2ERR1


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110015490887Registry ID:

FINDS:

9077 ft. Site 3 of 3 in cluster AV
1.719 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
251 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
SSE S3 T21N R5W NW1/4    N/A
AV221 FINDSFIR CREEK WORK CENTER 1007072463

                              Not reportedResp Party Name:
                              Not reportedCause Type:
                              Not reportedCause:
                              Not reportedResp Party Contact:
                              Not reportedRecovered Quantity:
                              Not reportedVessel Facility Name2:
                              Not reportedSource:
                              Not reportedSource Type:
                              Not reportedLongitude:
                              Not reportedLatitude:
                              Not reportedIncident Category:
                              Not reportedIncident Category Type:
                              Not reportedIncident Date:
                              Not reportedContact Name:
                              10/12/2009Date Received:
                              GALLONMaterial Units:
                              Not reportedMaterial Qty:
                              PETROLEUM - MINERAL OILMaterial Desc:
                              SOILMedium:
                              615799Facility ID:
                              SHELTON, WACity,State,Zip:
                              237 PROFFESSIONAL AWAYAddress:
                              MASON CO PUD # 3Name:

SPILLS:

9107 ft.
1.725 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
203 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  
SSE 237 PROFFESSIONAL AWAY    N/A
222 WA SPILLSMASON CO PUD # 3 S110066434

TC5712009.2s   Page 532

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2C2ECI1OEK8dIJ2.OQ1AKj2NdR2LJt95.11GQx1EAZ2bCw1YEl7wIf1IOg8aKD2jds2QJz2Z.bADQ624C72zEU1tIy6QOO83KW2Ud33sJE1z.41nQ5AqAq0tjv3ENYttR722Cy2rEP1nIl2kOC1xKN1AdH87JK1O.O8nQt3mAn53jU7eNA4ERR1
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2C2ECI1OEK8dIJ2.OQ1AKj2NdR2LJt95.11GQx1EAZ2bCw1YEl7wIf1IOg8aKD2jds2QJz2Z.bADQ624C72zEU1tIy6QOO83KW2Ud33sJE1z.41nQ5AqAq0tjv3ENYttR722Cy2rEP1nIl2kOC1xKN1AdH87JK1O.O8nQt3mAn53jU7eNA4ERR1


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              NoMixed waste (haz. and radioactive):
                              NoU.S. importer of hazardous waste:

Handler Activities Summary:

                    Not reportedOwner/Op end date:
                    05/02/1996Owner/Op start date:
                    OwnerOwner/Operator Type:
                    PrivateLegal status:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator extension:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator fax:
                    Not reportedOwner/operator email:
                    000-000-0000Owner/operator telephone:
                    USOwner/operator country:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    PO BOX 1369Owner/operator address:
                    TRANSFORMER SVC TOwner/operator name:

Owner/Operator Summary:

                    Handler: Non-Generators do not presently generate hazardous wasteDescription:
                    Non-GeneratorClassification:
                    10EPA Region:
                    Not reportedContact email:
                    000-000-0000Contact telephone:
                    USContact country:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584-0916
                    PO BOX 1369Contact address:
                    TRANSFORMER SVC  TRANSFORMER SVCContact:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584-0916
                    PO BOX 1369Mailing address:
                    WAD980977854EPA ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584
                    PORT OF SHELTON SANDERSON FLDFacility address:
                    TRANSFORMER SVC COFacility name:
                    05/09/1985Date form received by agency:

RCRA NonGen / NLR:

                                             -123.150215066Longitude:
                                             47.233174491Latitude:
                                             Hazardous Waste GeneratorDate Interaction 3:
                                             1985-05-09 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             WAD980977854Program ID:
                                             Not reportedFacility Alt.:
                                             TURBOWASTEProgram Data:
                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             HWGInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             65433Interaction:

                              79875812Facility Id:
                              TRANSFORMER SVC COFacility Name:

ALLSITES:

9184 ft. Site 1 of 2 in cluster AX
1.739 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
264 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
SW RCRA NonGen / NLRPORT OF SHELTON SANDERSON FLD WAD980977854
AX223 WA ALLSITESTRANSFORMER SVC CO 1000320072

TC5712009.2s   Page 533



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    No violations foundViolation Status:

                    Not a generator, verifiedClassification:
                    TRANSFORMER SVC COSite name:
                    05/09/1985Date form received by agency:

Historical Generators:

                              NoUsed oil transporter:
                              NoUsed oil transfer facility:
                              NoUsed oil Specification marketer:
                              NoUsed oil fuel marketer to burner:
                              NoUser oil refiner:
                              NoUsed oil processor:
                              NoUsed oil fuel burner:
                              NoFurnace exemption:
                              NoOn-site burner exemption:
                              NoUnderground injection activity:
                              NoTreater, storer or disposer of HW:
                              NoTransporter of hazardous waste:
                              NoRecycler of hazardous waste:

TRANSFORMER SVC CO  (Continued) 1000320072

                                   http://echo.epa.gov/detailed-facility-report?fid=110011638692DFR URL:
                                   110011638692Registry ID:
                                   1016292536Envid:

ECHO:

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

corrective action activities required under RCRA.
program staff to track the notification, permit, compliance, and
and treat, store, or dispose of hazardous waste. RCRAInfo allows RCRA
events and activities related to facilities that generate, transport,
Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) program through the tracking of
RCRAInfo is a national information system that supports the Resource

and settlements.
regions and states with cooperative agreements, enforcement actions,
Toxic Substances Control Act (TSCA). The system tracks inspections in
Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act (FIFRA) and the
NCDB (National Compliance Data Base) supports implementation of the
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110011638692Registry ID:

FINDS:

9184 ft. Site 2 of 2 in cluster AX
1.739 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
264 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
SW ECHOSANDERSON INDUSTRIAL PARK P O BOX 1365    N/A
AX224 FINDSTRANSFORMER SVC CO 1016292536

TC5712009.2s   Page 534

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2L2GL41IG58z4Z2yIg1G5q2czZ2zZW9hy51LgS1bGk29Lg1DG77C4H1wIS855N2wzc2OZQ2zyVAXgk2BLw23Gl164.6KIN8A5B2Qz93xZQ1Myx1qgGAsG.0Aqs3NcGtEZ42iLF28GP1e472FIw1k5E2PzI7RZp3Cy5AOgg3SG66qqW4Ac473Zz1
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2L2GL41IG58z4Z2yIg1G5q2czZ2zZW9hy51LgS1bGk29Lg1DG77C4H1wIS855N2wzc2OZQ2zyVAXgk2BLw23Gl164.6KIN8A5B2Qz93xZQ1Myx1qgGAsG.0Aqs3NcGtEZ42iLF28GP1e472FIw1k5E2PzI7RZp3Cy5AOgg3SG66qqW4Ac473Zz1


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

HAZARDOUS WASTE BIENNIAL REPORTER

corrective action activities required under RCRA.
program staff to track the notification, permit, compliance, and
and treat, store, or dispose of hazardous waste. RCRAInfo allows RCRA
events and activities related to facilities that generate, transport,
Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) program through the tracking of
RCRAInfo is a national information system that supports the Resource

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110005383548Registry ID:

FINDS:

9189 ft. Site 2 of 2 in cluster AW
1.740 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
306 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
West W 520 DAYTON AIRPORT RD    N/A
AW225 FINDSAERO CONTROLS INC DAYTON AIRPORT RD 1016206276

2011     SHELTON SATELLITE WWTP     10891 HIGHWAY 101
2012     SHELTON SATELLITE WWTP     10891 HIGHWAY 101

RGA LF:

9216 ft. Site 1 of 2 in cluster AY
1.745 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
223 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  
South 10891 HIGHWAY 101    N/A
AY226 WA RGA LFSHELTON SATELLITE WWTP S115352172

                    WAContact State:
                    SheltonContact City:
                    Not reportedContact Address2:
                    1000 W PineContact Address1:
                    Shelton Satellite WWTPContact Organization:
                    Not reportedPermit Status:
                    STATERegion:
                    504Facility ID:
                    SHELTON, WA 98584City,State,Zip:
                    10891 HIGHWAY 101Address:
                    SHELTON SATELLITE WWTPName:

SWF/LF:

9216 ft. Site 2 of 2 in cluster AY
1.745 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
223 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
South 10891 HIGHWAY 101    N/A
AY227 WA SWF/LFSHELTON SATELLITE WWTP S111027544

TC5712009.2s   Page 535

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2L2GL41IG58z4Z2yIg1G5q2czZ2zZW9hy51LgS1bGk29Lg1DG77C4H1wIS855N2wzc2OZQ2zyVAXgk2BLw23Gl164.6KIN8A5B2Qz93xZQ1Myx1qgGAsG.0Aqs3NcGtEZ42iLF28GP1e472FIw1k5E2PzI7RZp3Cy51Ogg7SG63qqW8Ac473Zz1
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2L2GL41IG58z4Z2yIg1G5q2czZ2zZW9hy51LgS1bGk29Lg1DG77C4H1wIS855N2wzc2OZQ2zyVAXgk2BLw23Gl164.6KIN8A5B2Qz93xZQ1Myx1qgGAsG.0Aqs3NcGtEZ42iLF28GP1e472FIw1k5E2PzI7RZp3Cy51Ogg7SG63qqW8Ac473Zz1


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                    -123.12995Longitude:
                    47.23386Latitude:
                    Not reportedWebsite:
                    NoOpen to Public Flag:
                    Not reportedYear Closed:
                    Lead OperatorContact Title:
                    Brent ArmstrongContact Name:
                    Biosolids ManagementFacility Type:
                    PRIVATEOwnership:
                    Not reportedRecycle Survey Code:
                    Not reportedOperator Title:
                    Not reportedOperator EMail:
                    Shelton Satellite WWTPOperator Organization:
                    Not reportedOperator Name:
                    Not reportedPhone:
                    Not reportedPermit No:
                    Not reportedContact Phone Ext:
                    (360) 426-6521Contact Phone:
                    barmstrong@ci.shelton.wa.usContact EMail:
                    98584Contact Postal:

SHELTON SATELLITE WWTP  (Continued) S111027544

                              Not reportedResp Party Name:
                              Not reportedCause Type:
                              Not reportedCause:
                              Not reportedResp Party Contact:
                              Not reportedRecovered Quantity:
                              Not reportedVessel Facility Name2:
                              Not reportedSource:
                              Not reportedSource Type:
                              Not reportedLongitude:
                              Not reportedLatitude:
                              Not reportedIncident Category:
                              Not reportedIncident Category Type:
                              Not reportedIncident Date:
                              Not reportedContact Name:
                              05/16/2006Date Received:
                              GALLONMaterial Units:
                              1Material Qty:
                              PETROLEUM - MINERAL OILMaterial Desc:
                              Not reportedMedium:
                              555154Facility ID:
                              SHELTON, WACity,State,Zip:
                              809 TERRACE BLVDAddress:
                              Not reportedName:

SPILLS:

9236 ft. Site 1 of 2 in cluster AZ
1.749 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
220 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  
SSE 809 TERRACE BLVD    N/A
AZ228 WA SPILLS S108010331

TC5712009.2s   Page 536



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                              Not reportedResp Party Name:
                              Not reportedCause Type:
                              Not reportedCause:
                              Not reportedResp Party Contact:
                              Not reportedRecovered Quantity:
                              Not reportedVessel Facility Name2:
                              Not reportedSource:
                              Not reportedSource Type:
                              Not reportedLongitude:
                              Not reportedLatitude:
                              Not reportedIncident Category:
                              Not reportedIncident Category Type:
                              Not reportedIncident Date:
                              EDDINGZContact Name:
                              06/23/2010Date Received:
                              GALLONMaterial Units:
                              1Material Qty:
                              PETROLEUM - MINERAL OILMaterial Desc:
                              SOILMedium:
                              620758Facility ID:
                              SHELTON, WACity,State,Zip:
                              801 TERRACE BLVDAddress:
                              PUDName:

SPILLS:

9266 ft. Site 2 of 2 in cluster AZ
1.755 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
221 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  
SSE 801 TERRACE BLVD    N/A
AZ229 WA SPILLSPUD S110337052

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110040599536Registry ID:

FINDS:

9581 ft. Site 1 of 3 in cluster BA
1.815 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
215 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
South 2033 OLYMPIC HWY N    N/A
BA230 FINDSD & L AUTOMOTIVE & MARINE 1012222272

TC5712009.2s   Page 537

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2L2GL41IG58z4Z2yIg1G5q2czZ2zZW9hy51LgS1bGk29Lg1DG77C4H1wIS855N2wzc2OZQ2zyVAXgk2BLw23Gl164.6KIN8A5B2Qz93xZQ1Myx1qgGAsG.0Aqs3NcGtEZ42iLF28GP1e472FIw1k5E2PzI3RZp3Cy53Ogg3SG63qqW8Ac433Zz1
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2L2GL41IG58z4Z2yIg1G5q2czZ2zZW9hy51LgS1bGk29Lg1DG77C4H1wIS855N2wzc2OZQ2zyVAXgk2BLw23Gl164.6KIN8A5B2Qz93xZQ1Myx1qgGAsG.0Aqs3NcGtEZ42iLF28GP1e472FIw1k5E2PzI3RZp3Cy53Ogg3SG63qqW8Ac433Zz1


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                             -123.120586073Longitude:
                                             47.222193488999999Latitude:
                                             Local Source Cntrl 7/09-3Date Interaction 3:
                                             2009-05-20 00:00:00Date Interaction:
                                             Not reportedProgram ID:
                                             D & L Automotive & MarineFacility Alt.:
                                             LSCProgram Data:
                                             HAZWASTEEcology Program:
                                             LSCInteraction 2:
                                             IInteraction 1:
                                             91178Interaction:

                              8147Facility Id:
                              D & L AUTOMOTIVE & MARINEFacility Name:

ALLSITES:

9581 ft. Site 2 of 3 in cluster BA
1.815 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
215 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
South 2033 OLYMPIC HWY N    N/A
BA231 WA ALLSITESD & L AUTOMOTIVE & MARINE S110275975

                                   http://echo.epa.gov/detailed-facility-report?fid=110005372060DFR URL:
                                   110005372060Registry ID:
                                   1016206169Envid:

ECHO:

additional FINDS: detail in the EDR Site Report.
Click this hyperlink while viewing on your computer to access 

corrective action activities required under RCRA.
program staff to track the notification, permit, compliance, and
and treat, store, or dispose of hazardous waste. RCRAInfo allows RCRA
events and activities related to facilities that generate, transport,
Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) program through the tracking of
RCRAInfo is a national information system that supports the Resource

Quality Programs.
Quality, Dam Safety, Hazardous Waste, Toxics Cleanup, and Water
facility/site that is currently, or has been, of interest to the Air
Department of Ecology. This system contains key information for each
means to query and display data maintained by the Washington
Washington Facility / Site Identification System (WA-FSIS) provides a
                    Environmental Interest/Information System

                    110005372060Registry ID:

FINDS:

9635 ft.
1.825 mi.

Relative:
Higher

Actual:
303 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
West ECHOW 631 DAYTON AIRPORT RD WS05    N/A
232 FINDSWA WSP ACADEMY 1016206169

TC5712009.2s   Page 538

http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2L2GL41IG58z4Z2yIg1G5q2czZ2zZW9hy51LgS1bGk29Lg1DG77C4H1wIS855N2wzc2OZQ2zyVAXgk2BLw23Gl164.6KIN8A5B2Qz93xZQ1Myx1qgGAsG.0Aqs3NcGtEZ42iLF28GP1e472FIw1k5E2PzI7RZp3Cy51Ogg7SG62qqW7Ac4A3Zz1
http://www.edrnet.com/srf2/FinalSiteReport.aspx?ID=2L2GL41IG58z4Z2yIg1G5q2czZ2zZW9hy51LgS1bGk29Lg1DG77C4H1wIS855N2wzc2OZQ2zyVAXgk2BLw23Gl164.6KIN8A5B2Qz93xZQ1Myx1qgGAsG.0Aqs3NcGtEZ42iLF28GP1e472FIw1k5E2PzI7RZp3Cy51Ogg7SG62qqW7Ac4A3Zz1


MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        Not reportedDuct Paper:
                                        Not reportedBoiler Insulation:
                                        Not reportedAsbestos Paper:
                                        Not reportedSheet Vinyl:
                                        Not reportedCAB:
                                        Not reportedPopcorn Ceiling:
                                        Not reportedFireproofing:
                                        Not reportedQuantity Sq Ft:
                                        Not reportedEncapsulated:
                                        Not reportedRemoved:
                                        Not reportedFacility Maint:
                                        Not reportedFacility Repair:
                                        Not reportedFacility Demo:
                                        Not reportedFacility Remodel:
                                        Not reportedFacility Size:
                                        Not reportedFacility Age:
                                        Not reportedJob Site Room:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner Phone:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner Zip4:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner State:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner City:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner Address:
                                        RSG ABATEMENT & DMLTN CORP (TACOMA)Property Owner Company:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner Agent:
                                        Not reportedProperty Owner Name:
                                        Not reportedProject Form Email:
                                        Not reportedJob Site CAS:
                                        Not reportedPhone:
                                        (ABCN00001669)Contractor ID:
                                        Not reportedSaturday:
                                        Not reportedFriday:
                                        Not reportedThursday:
                                        Not reportedWednesday:
                                        Not reportedTuesday:
                                        Not reportedMonday:
                                        Not reportedSunday:
                                        Not reportedSite Hours End:
                                        Not reportedSite Hours Start:
                                        Not reportedEmergency:
                                        Not reportedOff Hold:
                                        Not reportedOn Hold:
                                        Not reportedAmended:
                                        Not reportedInitial:
                                        01/14/2019Completion Date:
                                        01/14/2019Start Date:
                                        01/11/2019Notice Date:
                                        136227#161355419Form ID:
                                        Not reportedParent ID:
                                        Not reportedFacility Type:
                                        SHELTON, WACity,State,Zip:
                                        506 WEST I STREETAddress:
                                        Not reportedName:

ASBESTOS:

9654 ft.
1.828 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
220 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  
South 506 WEST I STREET    N/A
233 WA ASBESTOS S123678028

TC5712009.2s   Page 539



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                        ACertificate Status:
                                        (abas00026780)Supervisor Phone:
                                        Eddie BarretteSupervisor:
                                        Sheet VinylProject Type:
                                        EmergencyNotice type:
                                        604274440UBI:
                                        4Region:
                                        Not reportedSubmitter IP Address:
                                        Not reportedDate Time Submitted:
                                        Not reportedComments:
                                        Not reportedOther Resp Pro Text:
                                        Not reportedOther Resp Pro:
                                        Not reportedType C Pressure:
                                        Not reportedType C Continuous:
                                        Not reportedPAPR:
                                        Not reportedFull Face APR:
                                        Not reportedHalf Mask APR:
                                        Not reportedOther CM2 Text:
                                        Not reportedOther CM2:
                                        Not reportedOther CM1 Text:
                                        Not reportedOther CM1:
                                        Not reportedMANUALMETHODS     :
                                        Not reportedHEPA Vacuum:
                                        Not reportedWet Methods:
                                        Not reportedWrap And Cut:
                                        Not reportedCritical Barriers:
                                        Not reportedMini Enclosure:
                                        Not reportedGlove Bag:
                                        Not reportedNeg Pres Enclosure:
                                        Not reportedOutdoors:
                                        Not reportedIndoors:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other2 Text:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other2:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other1 Text:
                                        Not reportedLin Ft Other1:
                                        Not reportedDuct Tape:
                                        Not reportedMudded Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedCement Asbestos Pipe:
                                        Not reportedDucting Insulation:
                                        Not reportedAir Cell Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedMag Pipe Insulation:
                                        Not reportedQuantity Lin Ft:
                                        Not reportedSq Ft Other Text:
                                        Not reportedSq Ft Other:
                                        Not reportedRoofing:
                                        Not reportedVAT:

  (Continued) S123678028

     5/23/2000Remediation Date:
     1/21/2000Contamination Date:
     32018-51-17005Tax ID Number:
     20015Facility ID:

HIST CDL:

9710 ft.
1.839 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
213 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
South 124 E. "G" ST.,    N/A
234 WA HIST CDL S106782848

TC5712009.2s   Page 540



MAP FINDINGSMap ID
Direction

EDR ID NumberDistance
EPA ID NumberDatabase(s)SiteElevation

                                                            Automotive Repair Shops, NEC2014     CASTRO AUTOMOTIVE
                                                            Automotive Repair Shops, NEC2013     CASTRO AUTOMOTIVE
                                                            Automotive Repair Shops, NEC2012     CASTRO AUTOMOTIVE
                                                            Automotive Repair Shops, NEC2011     CASTRO AUTOMOTIVE
                                                            Automotive Repair Shops, NEC2010     CASTRO AUTOMOTIVE
                                                            Automotive Repair Shops, NEC2009     CASTRO AUTOMOTIVE
                                                            Automotive Repair Shops, NEC2008     CASTRO AUTOMOTIVE
                                                            General Automotive Repair Shops2007     NORRIS AUTO DETAIL
                                                            General Automotive Repair Shops2006     NORRIS AUTO DETAIL
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations1983     CUZICK ROLAND
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations1982     CUZICK ROLAND
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations1980     CUZICK ROLAND
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations1979     CUZICK ROLAND
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations1978     CUZICK ROLAND
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations1977     CUZICK ROLAND
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations1976     CUZICK ROLAND
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations1974     CUZICK ROLAND
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations1973     CUZICK ROLAND
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations1972     CUZICK ROLAND
                                                            Gasoline Service Stations1971     CUZICK ROLAND
                                                            Type:Year:    Name:

EDR Hist Auto

9713 ft. Site 3 of 3 in cluster BA
1.840 mi.

Relative:
Lower

Actual:
214 ft.

 

> 1 SHELTON, WA  98584
South 2005 OLYMPIC HWY N    N/A
BA235 EDR Hist AutoCUZICK ROLAND 1021548099

TC5712009.2s   Page 541



ORPHAN SUMMARY

City EDR ID Site Name Site Address Zip Database(s)

Count: 0 records.

NO SITES FOUND

TC5712009.2s   Page 542



To maintain currency of the following federal and state databases, EDR contacts the appropriate governmental agency
on a monthly or quarterly basis, as required.

Number of Days to Update: Provides confirmation that EDR is reporting records that have been updated within 90 days
from the date the government agency made the information available to the public.

STANDARD ENVIRONMENTAL RECORDS

Federal NPL site list

NPL:  National Priority List
National Priorities List (Superfund). The NPL is a subset of CERCLIS and identifies over 1,200 sites for priority
cleanup under the Superfund Program. NPL sites may encompass relatively large areas. As such, EDR provides polygon
coverage for over 1,000 NPL site boundaries produced by EPA’s Environmental Photographic Interpretation Center
(EPIC) and regional EPA offices.

Date of Government Version: 04/11/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/18/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/14/2019
Number of Days to Update: 26

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: 07/02/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/14/2019
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

NPL Site Boundaries

Sources:

EPA’s Environmental Photographic Interpretation Center (EPIC)
Telephone: 202-564-7333

EPA Region 1 EPA Region 6
Telephone 617-918-1143 Telephone: 214-655-6659

EPA Region 3 EPA Region 7
Telephone 215-814-5418 Telephone: 913-551-7247

EPA Region 4 EPA Region 8
Telephone 404-562-8033 Telephone: 303-312-6774

EPA Region 5 EPA Region 9
Telephone 312-886-6686 Telephone: 415-947-4246

EPA Region 10
Telephone 206-553-8665

Proposed NPL:  Proposed National Priority List Sites
A site that has been proposed for listing on the National Priorities List through the issuance of a proposed rule
in the Federal Register. EPA then accepts public comments on the site, responds to the comments, and places on
the NPL those sites that continue to meet the requirements for listing.

Date of Government Version: 04/11/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/18/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/14/2019
Number of Days to Update: 26

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: 07/02/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/14/2019
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

NPL LIENS:  Federal Superfund Liens
Federal Superfund Liens. Under the authority granted the USEPA by CERCLA of 1980, the USEPA has the authority
to file liens against real property in order to recover remedial action expenditures or when the property owner
received notification of potential liability. USEPA compiles a listing of filed notices of Superfund Liens.

TC5712009.2s     Page GR-1

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



Date of Government Version: 10/15/1991
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 02/02/1994
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/30/1994
Number of Days to Update: 56

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  202-564-4267
Last EDR Contact: 08/15/2011
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/28/2011
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

Federal Delisted NPL site list

Delisted NPL:  National Priority List Deletions
The National Oil and Hazardous Substances Pollution Contingency Plan (NCP) establishes the criteria that the
EPA uses to delete sites from the NPL. In accordance with 40 CFR 300.425.(e), sites may be deleted from the
NPL where no further response is appropriate.

Date of Government Version: 04/11/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/18/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/14/2019
Number of Days to Update: 26

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: 07/02/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/14/2019
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

Federal CERCLIS list

FEDERAL FACILITY:  Federal Facility Site Information listing
A listing of National Priority List (NPL) and Base Realignment and Closure (BRAC) sites found in the Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Information System (CERCLIS) Database where EPA Federal Facilities
Restoration and Reuse Office is involved in cleanup activities.

Date of Government Version: 04/03/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/05/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/14/2019
Number of Days to Update: 39

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  703-603-8704
Last EDR Contact: 07/03/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/14/2019
Data Release Frequency: Varies

SEMS:  Superfund Enterprise Management System
SEMS (Superfund Enterprise Management System) tracks hazardous waste sites, potentially hazardous waste sites,
and remedial activities performed in support of EPA’s Superfund Program across the United States. The list was
formerly know as CERCLIS, renamed to SEMS by the EPA in 2015. The list contains data on potentially hazardous
waste sites that have been reported to the USEPA by states, municipalities, private companies and private persons,
pursuant to Section 103 of the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (CERCLA).
This dataset also contains sites which are either proposed to or on the National Priorities List (NPL) and the
sites which are in the screening and assessment phase for possible inclusion on the NPL.

Date of Government Version: 04/11/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/18/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/23/2019
Number of Days to Update: 35

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  800-424-9346
Last EDR Contact: 07/02/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/14/2019
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

Federal CERCLIS NFRAP site list

SEMS-ARCHIVE:  Superfund Enterprise Management System Archive

TC5712009.2s     Page GR-2

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



SEMS-ARCHIVE (Superfund Enterprise Management System Archive) tracks sites that have no further interest under
the Federal Superfund Program based on available information. The list was formerly known as the CERCLIS-NFRAP,
renamed to SEMS ARCHIVE by the EPA in 2015. EPA may perform a minimal level of assessment work at a site while
it is archived if site conditions change and/or new information becomes available. Archived sites have been removed
and archived from the inventory of SEMS sites. Archived status indicates that, to the best of EPA’s knowledge,
assessment at a site has been completed and that EPA has determined no further steps will be taken to list the
site on the National Priorities List (NPL), unless information indicates this decision was not appropriate or
other considerations require a recommendation for listing at a later time. The decision does not necessarily mean
that there is no hazard associated with a given site; it only means that. based upon available information, the
location is not judged to be potential NPL site.

Date of Government Version: 04/11/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/18/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/23/2019
Number of Days to Update: 35

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  800-424-9346
Last EDR Contact: 07/02/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/14/2019
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

Federal RCRA CORRACTS facilities list

CORRACTS:  Corrective Action Report
CORRACTS identifies hazardous waste handlers with RCRA corrective action activity.

Date of Government Version: 03/25/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/27/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/17/2019
Number of Days to Update: 21

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  800-424-9346
Last EDR Contact: 06/26/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/07/2019
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

Federal RCRA non-CORRACTS TSD facilities list

RCRA-TSDF:  RCRA - Treatment, Storage and Disposal
RCRAInfo is EPA’s comprehensive information system, providing access to data supporting the Resource Conservation
and Recovery Act (RCRA) of 1976 and the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments (HSWA) of 1984. The database
includes selective information on sites which generate, transport, store, treat and/or dispose of hazardous waste
as defined by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA). Transporters are individuals or entities that
move hazardous waste from the generator offsite to a facility that can recycle, treat, store, or dispose of the
waste. TSDFs treat, store, or dispose of the waste.

Date of Government Version: 03/25/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/27/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/17/2019
Number of Days to Update: 21

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  (206) 553-1200
Last EDR Contact: 06/26/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/07/2019
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

Federal RCRA generators list

RCRA-LQG:  RCRA - Large Quantity Generators
RCRAInfo is EPA’s comprehensive information system, providing access to data supporting the Resource Conservation
and Recovery Act (RCRA) of 1976 and the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments (HSWA) of 1984. The database
includes selective information on sites which generate, transport, store, treat and/or dispose of hazardous waste
as defined by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA). Large quantity generators (LQGs) generate
over 1,000 kilograms (kg) of hazardous waste, or over 1 kg of acutely hazardous waste per month.

Date of Government Version: 03/25/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/27/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/17/2019
Number of Days to Update: 21

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  (206) 553-1200
Last EDR Contact: 06/26/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/07/2019
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

TC5712009.2s     Page GR-3

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



RCRA-SQG:  RCRA - Small Quantity Generators
RCRAInfo is EPA’s comprehensive information system, providing access to data supporting the Resource Conservation
and Recovery Act (RCRA) of 1976 and the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments (HSWA) of 1984. The database
includes selective information on sites which generate, transport, store, treat and/or dispose of hazardous waste
as defined by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA). Small quantity generators (SQGs) generate
between 100 kg and 1,000 kg of hazardous waste per month.

Date of Government Version: 03/25/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/27/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/17/2019
Number of Days to Update: 21

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  (206) 553-1200
Last EDR Contact: 06/26/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/07/2019
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

RCRA-CESQG:  RCRA - Conditionally Exempt Small Quantity Generators
RCRAInfo is EPA’s comprehensive information system, providing access to data supporting the Resource Conservation
and Recovery Act (RCRA) of 1976 and the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments (HSWA) of 1984. The database
includes selective information on sites which generate, transport, store, treat and/or dispose of hazardous waste
as defined by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA). Conditionally exempt small quantity generators
(CESQGs) generate less than 100 kg of hazardous waste, or less than 1 kg of acutely hazardous waste per month.

Date of Government Version: 03/25/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/27/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/17/2019
Number of Days to Update: 21

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  (206) 553-1200
Last EDR Contact: 06/26/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/07/2019
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

Federal institutional controls / engineering controls registries

LUCIS:  Land Use Control Information System
LUCIS contains records of land use control information pertaining to the former Navy Base Realignment and Closure
properties.

Date of Government Version: 02/22/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/07/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/17/2019
Number of Days to Update: 41

Source:  Department of the Navy
Telephone:  843-820-7326
Last EDR Contact: 05/10/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 08/26/2019
Data Release Frequency: Varies

US ENG CONTROLS:  Engineering Controls Sites List
A listing of sites with engineering controls in place. Engineering controls include various forms of caps, building
foundations, liners, and treatment methods to create pathway elimination for regulated substances to enter environmental
media or effect human health.

Date of Government Version: 01/31/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 02/04/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/08/2019
Number of Days to Update: 32

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  703-603-0695
Last EDR Contact: 05/29/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/09/2019
Data Release Frequency: Varies

US INST CONTROL:  Sites with Institutional Controls
A listing of sites with institutional controls in place. Institutional controls include administrative measures,
such as groundwater use restrictions, construction restrictions, property use restrictions, and post remediation
care requirements intended to prevent exposure to contaminants remaining on site. Deed restrictions are generally
required as part of the institutional controls.

Date of Government Version: 01/31/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 02/04/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/08/2019
Number of Days to Update: 32

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  703-603-0695
Last EDR Contact: 05/29/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/09/2019
Data Release Frequency: Varies

TC5712009.2s     Page GR-4

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



Federal ERNS list

ERNS:  Emergency Response Notification System
Emergency Response Notification System. ERNS records and stores information on reported releases of oil and hazardous
substances.

Date of Government Version: 03/25/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/26/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/01/2019
Number of Days to Update: 36

Source:  National Response Center, United States Coast Guard
Telephone:  202-267-2180
Last EDR Contact: 06/26/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/07/2019
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

State- and tribal - equivalent NPL

HSL:  Hazardous Sites List
The Hazardous Sites List is a subset of the CSCSL Report. It includes sites which have been assessed and ranked
using the Washington Ranking Method (WARM).

Date of Government Version: 02/27/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/12/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/17/2019
Number of Days to Update: 97

Source:  Department of Ecology
Telephone:  360-407-7200
Last EDR Contact: 06/07/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/16/2019
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

State- and tribal - equivalent CERCLIS

CSCSL:  Confirmed and Suspected Contaminated Sites List
State Hazardous Waste Sites. State hazardous waste site records are the states’ equivalent to CERCLIS. These sites
may or may not already be listed on the federal CERCLIS list. Priority sites planned for cleanup using state funds
(state equivalent of Superfund) are identified along with sites where cleanup will be paid for by potentially
responsible parties. Available information varies by state.

Date of Government Version: 01/15/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/16/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/29/2019
Number of Days to Update: 72

Source:  Department of Ecology
Telephone:  360-407-7200
Last EDR Contact: 06/25/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/29/2019
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

State and tribal landfill and/or solid waste disposal site lists

SWF/LF:  Solid Waste Facility Database
Solid Waste Facilities/Landfill Sites. SWF/LF type records typically contain an inventory of solid waste disposal
facilities or landfills in a particular state. Depending on the state, these may be active or inactive facilities
or open dumps that failed to meet RCRA Subtitle D Section 4004 criteria for solid waste landfills or disposal
sites.

Date of Government Version: 06/06/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/11/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/17/2019
Number of Days to Update: 6

Source:  Department of Ecology
Telephone:  360-407-6132
Last EDR Contact: 06/03/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/16/2019
Data Release Frequency: Annually

State and tribal leaking storage tank lists

LUST:  Leaking Underground Storage Tanks Site List
Leaking Underground Storage Tank Incident Reports. LUST records contain an inventory of reported leaking underground
storage tank incidents. Not all states maintain these records, and the information stored varies by state.

Date of Government Version: 05/13/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/15/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/28/2019
Number of Days to Update: 44

Source:  Department of Ecology
Telephone:  360-407-7183
Last EDR Contact: 05/15/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 08/26/2019
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

TC5712009.2s     Page GR-5

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



INDIAN LUST R8:  Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
LUSTs on Indian land in Colorado, Montana, North Dakota, South Dakota, Utah and Wyoming.

Date of Government Version: 10/16/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/07/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/01/2019
Number of Days to Update: 55

Source:  EPA Region 8
Telephone:  303-312-6271
Last EDR Contact: 04/26/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 08/05/2019
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INDIAN LUST R7:  Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
LUSTs on Indian land in Iowa, Kansas, and Nebraska

Date of Government Version: 02/19/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/07/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/01/2019
Number of Days to Update: 55

Source:  EPA Region 7
Telephone:  913-551-7003
Last EDR Contact: 04/26/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 08/05/2019
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INDIAN LUST R10:  Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
LUSTs on Indian land in Alaska, Idaho, Oregon and Washington.

Date of Government Version: 10/17/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/07/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/01/2019
Number of Days to Update: 55

Source:  EPA Region 10
Telephone:  206-553-2857
Last EDR Contact: 04/26/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 08/05/2019
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INDIAN LUST R1:  Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
A listing of leaking underground storage tank locations on Indian Land.

Date of Government Version: 10/13/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/07/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/01/2019
Number of Days to Update: 55

Source:  EPA Region 1
Telephone:  617-918-1313
Last EDR Contact: 04/26/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 08/05/2019
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INDIAN LUST R5:  Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
Leaking underground storage tanks located on Indian Land in Michigan, Minnesota and Wisconsin.

Date of Government Version: 10/12/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/07/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/01/2019
Number of Days to Update: 55

Source:  EPA, Region 5
Telephone:  312-886-7439
Last EDR Contact: 04/26/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 08/05/2019
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INDIAN LUST R4:  Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
LUSTs on Indian land in Florida, Mississippi and North Carolina.

Date of Government Version: 09/24/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/12/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/01/2019
Number of Days to Update: 50

Source:  EPA Region 4
Telephone:  404-562-8677
Last EDR Contact: 04/26/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 08/05/2019
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INDIAN LUST R6:  Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
LUSTs on Indian land in New Mexico and Oklahoma.

Date of Government Version: 11/01/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/07/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/01/2019
Number of Days to Update: 55

Source:  EPA Region 6
Telephone:  214-665-6597
Last EDR Contact: 04/26/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 08/05/2019
Data Release Frequency: Varies

TC5712009.2s     Page GR-6

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



INDIAN LUST R9:  Leaking Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
LUSTs on Indian land in Arizona, California, New Mexico and Nevada

Date of Government Version: 10/10/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/08/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/01/2019
Number of Days to Update: 54

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  415-972-3372
Last EDR Contact: 04/26/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 08/05/2019
Data Release Frequency: Varies

State and tribal registered storage tank lists

FEMA UST:  Underground Storage Tank Listing
A listing of all FEMA owned underground storage tanks.

Date of Government Version: 05/15/2017
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/30/2017
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/13/2017
Number of Days to Update: 136

Source:  FEMA
Telephone:  202-646-5797
Last EDR Contact: 07/10/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/21/2019
Data Release Frequency: Varies

UST:  Underground Storage Tank Database
Registered Underground Storage Tanks. UST’s are regulated under Subtitle I of the Resource Conservation and Recovery
Act (RCRA) and must be registered with the state department responsible for administering the UST program. Available
information varies by state program.

Date of Government Version: 02/09/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 02/12/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/29/2019
Number of Days to Update: 45

Source:  Department of Ecology
Telephone:  360-407-7183
Last EDR Contact: 05/10/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 08/26/2019
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

AST:  Aboveground Storage Tank Locations
A listing of aboveground storage tank locations regulated by the Department of Ecology’s Spill Prevention, Preparedness
and Response Program.

Date of Government Version: 12/14/2015
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 02/02/2016
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/03/2016
Number of Days to Update: 91

Source:  Department of Ecology
Telephone:  360-407-7562
Last EDR Contact: 04/29/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 08/12/2019
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INDIAN UST R10:  Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
The Indian Underground Storage Tank (UST) database provides information about underground storage tanks on Indian
land in EPA Region 10 (Alaska, Idaho, Oregon, Washington, and Tribal Nations).

Date of Government Version: 10/17/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/07/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/01/2019
Number of Days to Update: 55

Source:  EPA Region 10
Telephone:  206-553-2857
Last EDR Contact: 04/26/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 08/05/2019
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INDIAN UST R9:  Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
The Indian Underground Storage Tank (UST) database provides information about underground storage tanks on Indian
land in EPA Region 9 (Arizona, California, Hawaii, Nevada, the Pacific Islands, and Tribal Nations).

Date of Government Version: 10/10/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/08/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/01/2019
Number of Days to Update: 54

Source:  EPA Region 9
Telephone:  415-972-3368
Last EDR Contact: 04/26/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 08/05/2019
Data Release Frequency: Varies

TC5712009.2s     Page GR-7

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



INDIAN UST R8:  Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
The Indian Underground Storage Tank (UST) database provides information about underground storage tanks on Indian
land in EPA Region 8 (Colorado, Montana, North Dakota, South Dakota, Utah, Wyoming and 27 Tribal Nations).

Date of Government Version: 10/16/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/07/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/01/2019
Number of Days to Update: 55

Source:  EPA Region 8
Telephone:  303-312-6137
Last EDR Contact: 04/26/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 08/05/2019
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INDIAN UST R6:  Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
The Indian Underground Storage Tank (UST) database provides information about underground storage tanks on Indian
land in EPA Region 6 (Louisiana, Arkansas, Oklahoma, New Mexico, Texas and 65 Tribes).

Date of Government Version: 11/01/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/07/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/01/2019
Number of Days to Update: 55

Source:  EPA Region 6
Telephone:  214-665-7591
Last EDR Contact: 04/26/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 08/05/2019
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INDIAN UST R5:  Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
The Indian Underground Storage Tank (UST) database provides information about underground storage tanks on Indian
land in EPA Region 5 (Michigan, Minnesota and Wisconsin and Tribal Nations).

Date of Government Version: 10/12/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/07/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/01/2019
Number of Days to Update: 55

Source:  EPA Region 5
Telephone:  312-886-6136
Last EDR Contact: 04/26/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 08/05/2019
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INDIAN UST R4:  Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
The Indian Underground Storage Tank (UST) database provides information about underground storage tanks on Indian
land in EPA Region 4 (Alabama, Florida, Georgia, Kentucky, Mississippi, North Carolina, South Carolina, Tennessee
and Tribal Nations)

Date of Government Version: 09/24/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/12/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/01/2019
Number of Days to Update: 50

Source:  EPA Region 4
Telephone:  404-562-9424
Last EDR Contact: 04/26/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 08/05/2019
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INDIAN UST R1:  Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
The Indian Underground Storage Tank (UST) database provides information about underground storage tanks on Indian
land in EPA Region 1 (Connecticut, Maine, Massachusetts, New Hampshire, Rhode Island, Vermont and ten Tribal
Nations).

Date of Government Version: 10/03/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/07/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/01/2019
Number of Days to Update: 55

Source:  EPA, Region 1
Telephone:  617-918-1313
Last EDR Contact: 04/26/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 08/05/2019
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INDIAN UST R7:  Underground Storage Tanks on Indian Land
The Indian Underground Storage Tank (UST) database provides information about underground storage tanks on Indian
land in EPA Region 7 (Iowa, Kansas, Missouri, Nebraska, and 9 Tribal Nations).

Date of Government Version: 11/07/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/07/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/01/2019
Number of Days to Update: 55

Source:  EPA Region 7
Telephone:  913-551-7003
Last EDR Contact: 04/26/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 08/05/2019
Data Release Frequency: Varies

TC5712009.2s     Page GR-8

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



State and tribal institutional control / engineering control registries

INST CONTROL:  Institutional Control Site List
Sites that have institutional controls.

Date of Government Version: 01/15/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/16/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/01/2019
Number of Days to Update: 75

Source:  Department of Ecology
Telephone:  360-407-7170
Last EDR Contact: 06/25/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/29/2019
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

State and tribal voluntary cleanup sites

INDIAN VCP R7:  Voluntary Cleanup Priority Lisitng
A listing of voluntary cleanup priority sites located on Indian Land located in Region 7.

Date of Government Version: 03/20/2008
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/22/2008
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/19/2008
Number of Days to Update: 27

Source:  EPA, Region 7
Telephone:  913-551-7365
Last EDR Contact: 04/20/2009
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/20/2009
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INDIAN VCP R1:  Voluntary Cleanup Priority Listing
A listing of voluntary cleanup priority sites located on Indian Land located in Region 1.

Date of Government Version: 07/27/2015
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 09/29/2015
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/18/2016
Number of Days to Update: 142

Source:  EPA, Region 1
Telephone:  617-918-1102
Last EDR Contact: 06/20/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/07/2019
Data Release Frequency: Varies

VCP:  Voluntary Cleanup Program Sites
Sites that have entered either the Voluntary Cleanup Program or its predecessor Independent Remedial Action Program.

Date of Government Version: 01/15/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/16/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/01/2019
Number of Days to Update: 75

Source:  Department of Ecology
Telephone:  360-407-7200
Last EDR Contact: 06/25/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/29/2019
Data Release Frequency: Varies

ICR:  Independent Cleanup Reports
These are remedial action reports Ecology has received from either the owner or operator of the sites. These actions
have been conducted without department oversight or approval and are not under an order or decree. This database
is no longer updated by the Department of Ecology.

Date of Government Version: 12/01/2002
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/03/2003
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/22/2003
Number of Days to Update: 19

Source:  Department of Ecology
Telephone:  360-407-7200
Last EDR Contact: 08/10/2009
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 11/09/2009
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

PTAP:  PTAP Site Listing
A list of sites accepted into the Petroleum Technical Assistance Program. The Petroleum Technical Assistance Program
(PTAP) expands the state’s ability to respond to the high customer demand to clean up petroleum contaminated
sites. Under the PTAP, the Pollution Liability Insurance Agency (PLIA) may provide informal site-specific technical
consultations and issue written opinion letters to persons conducting independent remedial actions at qualifying
petroleum cleanup sites. PLIA may provide these services under the authority of RCW 70.149.040(9) and the Model
Toxics Control Act (MTCA), Chapter 70.149 RCW and Chapter 173-340 WAC.

TC5712009.2s     Page GR-9

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



Date of Government Version: 05/13/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/15/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/28/2019
Number of Days to Update: 44

Source:  Department of Ecology
Telephone:  360-407-0515
Last EDR Contact: 05/15/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 08/26/2019
Data Release Frequency: Varies

State and tribal Brownfields sites

BROWNFIELDS:  Brownfields Sites Listing
A listing of brownfields sites included in the Confirmed & Suspected Sites Listing. Brownfields are abandoned,
idle or underused commercial or industrial properties, where the expansion or redevelopment is hindered by real
or perceived contamination. Brownfields vary in size, location, age, and past use -- they can be anything from
a five-hundred acre automobile assembly plant to a small, abandoned corner gas station.

Date of Government Version: 04/16/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/17/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/26/2019
Number of Days to Update: 70

Source:  Department of Ecology
Telephone:  360-725-4030
Last EDR Contact: 04/17/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/29/2019
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

ADDITIONAL ENVIRONMENTAL RECORDS

Local Brownfield lists

US BROWNFIELDS:  A Listing of Brownfields Sites
Brownfields are real property, the expansion, redevelopment, or reuse of which may be complicated by the presence
or potential presence of a hazardous substance, pollutant, or contaminant. Cleaning up and reinvesting in these
properties takes development pressures off of undeveloped, open land, and both improves and protects the environment.
Assessment, Cleanup and Redevelopment Exchange System (ACRES) stores information reported by EPA Brownfields
grant recipients on brownfields properties assessed or cleaned up with grant funding as well as information on
Targeted Brownfields Assessments performed by EPA Regions. A listing of ACRES Brownfield sites is obtained from
Cleanups in My Community. Cleanups in My Community provides information on Brownfields properties for which information
is reported back to EPA, as well as areas served by Brownfields grant programs.

Date of Government Version: 12/17/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/18/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/11/2019
Number of Days to Update: 24

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  202-566-2777
Last EDR Contact: 06/04/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/30/2019
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

Local Lists of Landfill / Solid Waste Disposal Sites

SWTIRE 2:  Solid Waste Tire Facilities 2
solid waste tire piles

Date of Government Version: 10/12/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/13/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/01/2019
Number of Days to Update: 109

Source:  Department of Ecology
Telephone:  425-649-7104
Last EDR Contact: 06/03/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/16/2019
Data Release Frequency: Varies

SWRCY:  Recycling Facility List
A llisting of recycling center locations.

Date of Government Version: 04/08/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/12/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/05/2019
Number of Days to Update: 84

Source:  Department of Ecology
Telephone:  360-407-6105
Last EDR Contact: 04/12/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 08/05/2019
Data Release Frequency: Varies

TC5712009.2s     Page GR-10

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



SWTIRE:  Solid Waste Tire Facilities
This study identified sites statewide with unauthorized accumulations of scrap tires.

Date of Government Version: 11/01/2005
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/16/2006
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/13/2006
Number of Days to Update: 28

Source:  Department of Ecology
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: 09/08/2017
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/18/2017
Data Release Frequency: Varies

INDIAN ODI:  Report on the Status of Open Dumps on Indian Lands
Location of open dumps on Indian land.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/1998
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/03/2007
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/24/2008
Number of Days to Update: 52

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  703-308-8245
Last EDR Contact: 04/26/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 08/12/2019
Data Release Frequency: Varies

DEBRIS REGION 9:  Torres Martinez Reservation Illegal Dump Site Locations
A listing of illegal dump sites location on the Torres Martinez Indian Reservation located in eastern Riverside
County and northern Imperial County, California.

Date of Government Version: 01/12/2009
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/07/2009
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/21/2009
Number of Days to Update: 137

Source:  EPA, Region 9
Telephone:  415-947-4219
Last EDR Contact: 04/22/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 08/05/2019
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

ODI:  Open Dump Inventory
An open dump is defined as a disposal facility that does not comply with one or more of the Part 257 or Part 258
Subtitle D Criteria.

Date of Government Version: 06/30/1985
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/09/2004
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/17/2004
Number of Days to Update: 39

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  800-424-9346
Last EDR Contact: 06/09/2004
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: N/A
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

IHS OPEN DUMPS:  Open Dumps on Indian Land
A listing of all open dumps located on Indian Land in the United States.

Date of Government Version: 04/01/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/06/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/29/2015
Number of Days to Update: 176

Source:  Department of Health & Human Serivces, Indian Health Service
Telephone:  301-443-1452
Last EDR Contact: 04/23/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 08/12/2019
Data Release Frequency: Varies

Local Lists of Hazardous waste / Contaminated Sites

US HIST CDL:  National Clandestine Laboratory Register
A listing of clandestine drug lab locations that have been removed from the DEAs National Clandestine Laboratory
Register.

Date of Government Version: 02/24/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 02/26/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/17/2019
Number of Days to Update: 50

Source:  Drug Enforcement Administration
Telephone:  202-307-1000
Last EDR Contact: 05/24/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/09/2019
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

TC5712009.2s     Page GR-11

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



ALLSITES:  Facility/Site Identification System Listing
Information on facilities and sites of interest to the Department of Ecology.

Date of Government Version: 05/08/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/09/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/28/2019
Number of Days to Update: 50

Source:  Department of Ecology
Telephone:  360-407-6423
Last EDR Contact: 04/29/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 08/12/2019
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

CDL:  Clandestine Drug Lab Contaminated Site List
Illegal methamphetamine labs use hazardous chemicals that create public health hazards. Chemicals and residues
can cause burns, respiratory and neurological damage, and death. Biological hazards associated with intravenous
needles, feces, and blood also pose health risks.

Date of Government Version: 02/07/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 02/08/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/29/2019
Number of Days to Update: 49

Source:  Department of Health
Telephone:  360-236-3380
Last EDR Contact: 06/17/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 08/19/2019
Data Release Frequency: Varies

HIST CDL:  List of Sites Contaminated by Clandestine Drug Labs
This listing of contaminated sites by Clandestine Drug Labs includes non-remediated properties. The current CDL
listing does not. This listing is no longer updated by the state agency.

Date of Government Version: 02/08/2007
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/26/2007
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/19/2007
Number of Days to Update: 23

Source:  Department of Health
Telephone:  360-236-3381
Last EDR Contact: 06/02/2008
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/01/2008
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

CSCSL NFA:  Confirmed and Contaminated Sites - No Further Action
This report contains information about sites that are undergoing cleanup and sites that are awaiting further investigation
and/or cleanup. Sites on the Hazardous Sites List (see above) are included in this data set.

Date of Government Version: 04/16/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/17/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/26/2019
Number of Days to Update: 70

Source:  Department of Ecology
Telephone:  360-407-7170
Last EDR Contact: 04/17/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/29/2019
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

US CDL:  Clandestine Drug Labs
A listing of clandestine drug lab locations. The U.S. Department of Justice ("the Department") provides this
web site as a public service. It contains addresses of some locations where law enforcement agencies reported
they found chemicals or other items that indicated the presence of either clandestine drug laboratories or dumpsites.
In most cases, the source of the entries is not the Department, and the Department has not verified the entry
and does not guarantee its accuracy. Members of the public must verify the accuracy of all entries by, for example,
contacting local law enforcement and local health departments.

Date of Government Version: 02/24/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 02/26/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/17/2019
Number of Days to Update: 50

Source:  Drug Enforcement Administration
Telephone:  202-307-1000
Last EDR Contact: 05/24/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/09/2019
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

PFAS:  PFAS Contamination Site Location Listing
PFOS and PFOA stand for perfluorooctane sulfonate and perfluorooctanoic acid, respectively. Both are fluorinated
organic chemicals, part of a larger family of compounds referred to as perfluoroalkyl substances (PFASs).

Date of Government Version: 05/06/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/07/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/28/2019
Number of Days to Update: 52

Source:  Department of Ecology
Telephone:  360-407-6116
Last EDR Contact: 07/08/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/21/2019
Data Release Frequency: Varies

TC5712009.2s     Page GR-12

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



Local Land Records

LIENS 2:  CERCLA Lien Information
A Federal CERCLA (’Superfund’) lien can exist by operation of law at any site or property at which EPA has spent
Superfund monies. These monies are spent to investigate and address releases and threatened releases of contamination.
CERCLIS provides information as to the identity of these sites and properties.

Date of Government Version: 04/11/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/18/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/23/2019
Number of Days to Update: 35

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  202-564-6023
Last EDR Contact: 07/02/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/14/2019
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

Records of Emergency Release Reports

HMIRS:  Hazardous Materials Information Reporting System
Hazardous Materials Incident Report System. HMIRS contains hazardous material spill incidents reported to DOT.

Date of Government Version: 03/25/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/26/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/14/2019
Number of Days to Update: 49

Source:  U.S. Department of Transportation
Telephone:  202-366-4555
Last EDR Contact: 06/26/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/07/2019
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

SPILLS:  Reported Spills
Spills reported to the Spill Prevention, Preparedness and Response Division.

Date of Government Version: 06/12/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/14/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/17/2019
Number of Days to Update: 3

Source:  Department of Ecology
Telephone:  360-407-6950
Last EDR Contact: 06/03/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/16/2019
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

SPILLS 90:  SPILLS90 data from FirstSearch
Spills 90 includes those spill and release records available exclusively from FirstSearch databases. Typically,
they may include chemical, oil and/or hazardous substance spills recorded after 1990. Duplicate records that are
already included in EDR incident and release records are not included in Spills 90.

Date of Government Version: 05/23/2006
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/03/2013
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/06/2013
Number of Days to Update: 62

Source:  FirstSearch
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: 01/03/2013
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: N/A
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

Other Ascertainable Records

RCRA NonGen / NLR:  RCRA - Non Generators / No Longer Regulated
RCRAInfo is EPA’s comprehensive information system, providing access to data supporting the Resource Conservation
and Recovery Act (RCRA) of 1976 and the Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments (HSWA) of 1984. The database
includes selective information on sites which generate, transport, store, treat and/or dispose of hazardous waste
as defined by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA). Non-Generators do not presently generate hazardous
waste.

Date of Government Version: 03/25/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/27/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/17/2019
Number of Days to Update: 21

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  (206) 553-1200
Last EDR Contact: 06/26/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/07/2019
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

TC5712009.2s     Page GR-13

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



FUDS:  Formerly Used Defense Sites
The listing includes locations of Formerly Used Defense Sites properties where the US Army Corps of Engineers
is actively working or will take necessary cleanup actions.

Date of Government Version: 03/07/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/03/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/23/2019
Number of Days to Update: 50

Source:  U.S. Army Corps of Engineers
Telephone:  202-528-4285
Last EDR Contact: 05/21/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/02/2019
Data Release Frequency: Varies

DOD:  Department of Defense Sites
This data set consists of federally owned or administered lands, administered by the Department of Defense, that
have any area equal to or greater than 640 acres of the United States, Puerto Rico, and the U.S. Virgin Islands.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2005
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/10/2006
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/11/2007
Number of Days to Update: 62

Source:  USGS
Telephone:  888-275-8747
Last EDR Contact: 07/09/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/21/2019
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

FEDLAND:  Federal and Indian Lands
Federally and Indian administrated lands of the United States. Lands included are administrated by: Army Corps
of Engineers, Bureau of Reclamation, National Wild and Scenic River, National Wildlife Refuge, Public Domain Land,
Wilderness, Wilderness Study Area, Wildlife Management Area, Bureau of Indian Affairs, Bureau of Land Management,
Department of Justice, Forest Service, Fish and Wildlife Service, National Park Service.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2005
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 02/06/2006
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/11/2007
Number of Days to Update: 339

Source:  U.S. Geological Survey
Telephone:  888-275-8747
Last EDR Contact: 07/10/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/21/2019
Data Release Frequency: N/A

SCRD DRYCLEANERS:  State Coalition for Remediation of Drycleaners Listing
The State Coalition for Remediation of Drycleaners was established in 1998, with support from the U.S. EPA Office
of Superfund Remediation and Technology Innovation. It is comprised of representatives of states with established
drycleaner remediation programs. Currently the member states are Alabama, Connecticut, Florida, Illinois, Kansas,
Minnesota, Missouri, North Carolina, Oregon, South Carolina, Tennessee, Texas, and Wisconsin.

Date of Government Version: 01/01/2017
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 02/03/2017
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/07/2017
Number of Days to Update: 63

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  615-532-8599
Last EDR Contact: 05/13/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 08/26/2019
Data Release Frequency: Varies

US FIN ASSUR:  Financial Assurance Information
All owners and operators of facilities that treat, store, or dispose of hazardous waste are required to provide
proof that they will have sufficient funds to pay for the clean up, closure, and post-closure care of their facilities.

Date of Government Version: 03/25/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/26/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/07/2019
Number of Days to Update: 42

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  202-566-1917
Last EDR Contact: 06/26/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/07/2019
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

EPA WATCH LIST:  EPA WATCH LIST
EPA maintains a "Watch List" to facilitate dialogue between EPA, state and local environmental agencies on enforcement
matters relating to facilities with alleged violations identified as either significant or high priority. Being
on the Watch List does not mean that the facility has actually violated the law only that an investigation by
EPA or a state or local environmental agency has led those organizations to allege that an unproven violation
has in fact occurred. Being on the Watch List does not represent a higher level of concern regarding the alleged
violations that were detected, but instead indicates cases requiring additional dialogue between EPA, state and
local agencies - primarily because of the length of time the alleged violation has gone unaddressed or unresolved.

TC5712009.2s     Page GR-14

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



Date of Government Version: 08/30/2013
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/21/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/17/2014
Number of Days to Update: 88

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  617-520-3000
Last EDR Contact: 05/06/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 08/19/2019
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

2020 COR ACTION:  2020 Corrective Action Program List
The EPA has set ambitious goals for the RCRA Corrective Action program by creating the 2020 Corrective Action
Universe. This RCRA cleanup baseline includes facilities expected to need corrective action. The 2020 universe
contains a wide variety of sites. Some properties are heavily contaminated while others were contaminated but
have since been cleaned up. Still others have not been fully investigated yet, and may require little or no remediation.
Inclusion in the 2020 Universe does not necessarily imply failure on the part of a facility to meet its RCRA obligations.

Date of Government Version: 09/30/2017
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/08/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/20/2018
Number of Days to Update: 73

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  703-308-4044
Last EDR Contact: 05/10/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 08/19/2019
Data Release Frequency: Varies

TSCA:  Toxic Substances Control Act
Toxic Substances Control Act. TSCA identifies manufacturers and importers of chemical substances included on the
TSCA Chemical Substance Inventory list. It includes data on the production volume of these substances by plant
site.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2016
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/21/2017
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/05/2018
Number of Days to Update: 198

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  202-260-5521
Last EDR Contact: 06/18/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/30/2019
Data Release Frequency: Every 4 Years

TRIS:  Toxic Chemical Release Inventory System
Toxic Release Inventory System. TRIS identifies facilities which release toxic chemicals to the air, water and
land in reportable quantities under SARA Title III Section 313.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2016
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/10/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/12/2018
Number of Days to Update: 2

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  202-566-0250
Last EDR Contact: 05/24/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/02/2019
Data Release Frequency: Annually

SSTS:  Section 7 Tracking Systems
Section 7 of the Federal Insecticide, Fungicide and Rodenticide Act, as amended (92 Stat. 829) requires all
registered pesticide-producing establishments to submit a report to the Environmental Protection Agency by March
1st each year. Each establishment must report the types and amounts of pesticides, active ingredients and devices
being produced, and those having been produced and sold or distributed in the past year.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2009
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 12/10/2010
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/25/2011
Number of Days to Update: 77

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  202-564-4203
Last EDR Contact: 04/24/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 08/05/2019
Data Release Frequency: Annually

ROD:  Records Of Decision
Record of Decision. ROD documents mandate a permanent remedy at an NPL (Superfund) site containing technical
and health information to aid in the cleanup.

Date of Government Version: 04/11/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/18/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/23/2019
Number of Days to Update: 35

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  703-416-0223
Last EDR Contact: 07/01/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/16/2019
Data Release Frequency: Annually

TC5712009.2s     Page GR-15

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



RMP:  Risk Management Plans
When Congress passed the Clean Air Act Amendments of 1990, it required EPA to publish regulations and guidance
for chemical accident prevention at facilities using extremely hazardous substances. The Risk Management Program
Rule (RMP Rule) was written to implement Section 112(r) of these amendments. The rule, which built upon existing
industry codes and standards, requires companies of all sizes that use certain flammable and toxic substances
to develop a Risk Management Program, which includes a(n): Hazard assessment that details the potential effects
of an accidental release, an accident history of the last five years, and an evaluation of worst-case and alternative
accidental releases; Prevention program that includes safety precautions and maintenance, monitoring, and employee
training measures; and Emergency response program that spells out emergency health care, employee training measures
and procedures for informing the public and response agencies (e.g the fire department) should an accident occur.

Date of Government Version: 04/25/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/02/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/23/2019
Number of Days to Update: 21

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  202-564-8600
Last EDR Contact: 04/22/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 08/05/2019
Data Release Frequency: Varies

RAATS:  RCRA Administrative Action Tracking System
RCRA Administration Action Tracking System. RAATS contains records based on enforcement actions issued under RCRA
pertaining to major violators and includes administrative and civil actions brought by the EPA. For administration
actions after September 30, 1995, data entry in the RAATS database was discontinued. EPA will retain a copy of
the database for historical records. It was necessary to terminate RAATS because a decrease in agency resources
made it impossible to continue to update the information contained in the database.

Date of Government Version: 04/17/1995
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/03/1995
Date Made Active in Reports: 08/07/1995
Number of Days to Update: 35

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  202-564-4104
Last EDR Contact: 06/02/2008
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/01/2008
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

PRP:  Potentially Responsible Parties
A listing of verified Potentially Responsible Parties

Date of Government Version: 04/11/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/18/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/23/2019
Number of Days to Update: 35

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  202-564-6023
Last EDR Contact: 07/01/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 08/19/2019
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

PADS:  PCB Activity Database System
PCB Activity Database. PADS Identifies generators, transporters, commercial storers and/or brokers and disposers
of PCB’s who are required to notify the EPA of such activities.

Date of Government Version: 03/20/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/10/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/14/2019
Number of Days to Update: 34

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  202-566-0500
Last EDR Contact: 04/10/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/22/2019
Data Release Frequency: Annually

ICIS:  Integrated Compliance Information System
The Integrated Compliance Information System (ICIS) supports the information needs of the national enforcement
and compliance program as well as the unique needs of the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES)
program.

Date of Government Version: 11/18/2016
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/23/2016
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/10/2017
Number of Days to Update: 79

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  202-564-2501
Last EDR Contact: 07/03/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/21/2019
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

TC5712009.2s     Page GR-16

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



FTTS:  FIFRA/ TSCA Tracking System - FIFRA (Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, & Rodenticide Act)/TSCA (Toxic Substances Control Act)
FTTS tracks administrative cases and pesticide enforcement actions and compliance activities related to FIFRA,
TSCA and EPCRA (Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act). To maintain currency, EDR contacts the
Agency on a quarterly basis.

Date of Government Version: 04/09/2009
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/16/2009
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/11/2009
Number of Days to Update: 25

Source:  EPA/Office of Prevention, Pesticides and Toxic Substances
Telephone:  202-566-1667
Last EDR Contact: 08/18/2017
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/04/2017
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

FTTS INSP:  FIFRA/ TSCA Tracking System - FIFRA (Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, & Rodenticide Act)/TSCA (Toxic Substances Control Act)
A listing of FIFRA/TSCA Tracking System (FTTS) inspections and enforcements.

Date of Government Version: 04/09/2009
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/16/2009
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/11/2009
Number of Days to Update: 25

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  202-566-1667
Last EDR Contact: 08/18/2017
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 12/04/2017
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

MLTS:  Material Licensing Tracking System
MLTS is maintained by the Nuclear Regulatory Commission and contains a list of approximately 8,100 sites which
possess or use radioactive materials and which are subject to NRC licensing requirements. To maintain currency,
EDR contacts the Agency on a quarterly basis.

Date of Government Version: 08/30/2016
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 09/08/2016
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/21/2016
Number of Days to Update: 43

Source:  Nuclear Regulatory Commission
Telephone:  301-415-7169
Last EDR Contact: 04/22/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 08/05/2019
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

COAL ASH DOE:  Steam-Electric Plant Operation Data
A listing of power plants that store ash in surface ponds.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2005
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/07/2009
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/22/2009
Number of Days to Update: 76

Source:  Department of Energy
Telephone:  202-586-8719
Last EDR Contact: 06/07/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/16/2019
Data Release Frequency: Varies

COAL ASH EPA:  Coal Combustion Residues Surface Impoundments List
A listing of coal combustion residues surface impoundments with high hazard potential ratings.

Date of Government Version: 07/01/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 09/10/2014
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/20/2014
Number of Days to Update: 40

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: 06/07/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/16/2019
Data Release Frequency: Varies

PCB TRANSFORMER:  PCB Transformer Registration Database
The database of PCB transformer registrations that includes all PCB registration submittals.

Date of Government Version: 05/24/2017
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/30/2017
Date Made Active in Reports: 12/15/2017
Number of Days to Update: 15

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  202-566-0517
Last EDR Contact: 04/26/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 08/05/2019
Data Release Frequency: Varies

RADINFO:  Radiation Information Database
The Radiation Information Database (RADINFO) contains information about facilities that are regulated by U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) regulations for radiation and radioactivity.

TC5712009.2s     Page GR-17

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



Date of Government Version: 04/02/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/02/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/14/2019
Number of Days to Update: 42

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  202-343-9775
Last EDR Contact: 07/01/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/14/2019
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

HIST FTTS:  FIFRA/TSCA Tracking System Administrative Case Listing
A complete administrative case listing from the FIFRA/TSCA Tracking System (FTTS) for all ten EPA regions. The
information was obtained from the National Compliance Database (NCDB). NCDB supports the implementation of FIFRA
(Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act) and TSCA (Toxic Substances Control Act). Some EPA regions
are now closing out records. Because of that, and the fact that some EPA regions are not providing EPA Headquarters
with updated records, it was decided to create a HIST FTTS database. It included records that may not be included
in the newer FTTS database updates. This database is no longer updated.

Date of Government Version: 10/19/2006
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/01/2007
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/10/2007
Number of Days to Update: 40

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  202-564-2501
Last EDR Contact: 12/17/2007
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 03/17/2008
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

HIST FTTS INSP:  FIFRA/TSCA Tracking System Inspection & Enforcement Case Listing
A complete inspection and enforcement case listing from the FIFRA/TSCA Tracking System (FTTS) for all ten EPA
regions. The information was obtained from the National Compliance Database (NCDB). NCDB supports the implementation
of FIFRA (Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act) and TSCA (Toxic Substances Control Act). Some
EPA regions are now closing out records. Because of that, and the fact that some EPA regions are not providing
EPA Headquarters with updated records, it was decided to create a HIST FTTS database. It included records that
may not be included in the newer FTTS database updates. This database is no longer updated.

Date of Government Version: 10/19/2006
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/01/2007
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/10/2007
Number of Days to Update: 40

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  202-564-2501
Last EDR Contact: 12/17/2008
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 03/17/2008
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

DOT OPS:  Incident and Accident Data
Department of Transporation, Office of Pipeline Safety Incident and Accident data.

Date of Government Version: 12/03/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/29/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/21/2019
Number of Days to Update: 51

Source:  Department of Transporation, Office of Pipeline Safety
Telephone:  202-366-4595
Last EDR Contact: 04/30/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 08/12/2019
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

CONSENT:  Superfund (CERCLA) Consent Decrees
Major legal settlements that establish responsibility and standards for cleanup at NPL (Superfund) sites. Released
periodically by United States District Courts after settlement by parties to litigation matters.

Date of Government Version: 03/31/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/23/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/23/2019
Number of Days to Update: 30

Source:  Department of Justice, Consent Decree Library
Telephone:  Varies
Last EDR Contact: 07/08/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/21/2019
Data Release Frequency: Varies

BRS:  Biennial Reporting System
The Biennial Reporting System is a national system administered by the EPA that collects data on the generation
and management of hazardous waste. BRS captures detailed data from two groups: Large Quantity Generators (LQG)
and Treatment, Storage, and Disposal Facilities.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2015
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 02/22/2017
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/28/2017
Number of Days to Update: 218

Source:  EPA/NTIS
Telephone:  800-424-9346
Last EDR Contact: 06/26/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/07/2019
Data Release Frequency: Biennially

TC5712009.2s     Page GR-18

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



INDIAN RESERV:  Indian Reservations
This map layer portrays Indian administered lands of the United States that have any area equal to or greater
than 640 acres.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2014
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/14/2015
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/10/2017
Number of Days to Update: 546

Source:  USGS
Telephone:  202-208-3710
Last EDR Contact: 07/10/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/21/2019
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

FUSRAP:  Formerly Utilized Sites Remedial Action Program
DOE established the Formerly Utilized Sites Remedial Action Program (FUSRAP) in 1974 to remediate sites where
radioactive contamination remained from Manhattan Project and early U.S. Atomic Energy Commission (AEC) operations.

Date of Government Version: 08/08/2017
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 09/11/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/14/2018
Number of Days to Update: 3

Source:  Department of Energy
Telephone:  202-586-3559
Last EDR Contact: 05/02/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 08/19/2019
Data Release Frequency: Varies

UMTRA:  Uranium Mill Tailings Sites
Uranium ore was mined by private companies for federal government use in national defense programs. When the mills
shut down, large piles of the sand-like material (mill tailings) remain after uranium has been extracted from
the ore. Levels of human exposure to radioactive materials from the piles are low; however, in some cases tailings
were used as construction materials before the potential health hazards of the tailings were recognized.

Date of Government Version: 06/23/2017
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/11/2017
Date Made Active in Reports: 11/03/2017
Number of Days to Update: 23

Source:  Department of Energy
Telephone:  505-845-0011
Last EDR Contact: 05/24/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/02/2019
Data Release Frequency: Varies

LEAD SMELTER 1:  Lead Smelter Sites
A listing of former lead smelter site locations.

Date of Government Version: 04/11/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/18/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/14/2019
Number of Days to Update: 26

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  703-603-8787
Last EDR Contact: 07/01/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/14/2019
Data Release Frequency: Varies

LEAD SMELTER 2:  Lead Smelter Sites
A list of several hundred sites in the U.S. where secondary lead smelting was done from 1931and 1964. These sites
may pose a threat to public health through ingestion or inhalation of contaminated soil or dust

Date of Government Version: 04/05/2001
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/27/2010
Date Made Active in Reports: 12/02/2010
Number of Days to Update: 36

Source:  American Journal of Public Health
Telephone:  703-305-6451
Last EDR Contact: 12/02/2009
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: N/A
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

US AIRS (AFS):  Aerometric Information Retrieval System Facility Subsystem (AFS)
The database is a sub-system of Aerometric Information Retrieval System (AIRS). AFS contains compliance data
on air pollution point sources regulated by the U.S. EPA and/or state and local air regulatory agencies. This
information comes from source reports by various stationary sources of air pollution, such as electric power plants,
steel mills, factories, and universities, and provides information about the air pollutants they produce. Action,
air program, air program pollutant, and general level plant data. It is used to track emissions and compliance
data from industrial plants.

TC5712009.2s     Page GR-19

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



Date of Government Version: 10/12/2016
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/26/2016
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/03/2017
Number of Days to Update: 100

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  202-564-2496
Last EDR Contact: 09/26/2017
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 01/08/2018
Data Release Frequency: Annually

US AIRS MINOR:  Air Facility System Data
A listing of minor source facilities.

Date of Government Version: 10/12/2016
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/26/2016
Date Made Active in Reports: 02/03/2017
Number of Days to Update: 100

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  202-564-2496
Last EDR Contact: 09/26/2017
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 01/08/2018
Data Release Frequency: Annually

US MINES:  Mines Master Index File
Contains all mine identification numbers issued for mines active or opened since 1971. The data also includes
violation information.

Date of Government Version: 11/27/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 02/27/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/01/2019
Number of Days to Update: 33

Source:  Department of Labor, Mine Safety and Health Administration
Telephone:  303-231-5959
Last EDR Contact: 05/29/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/09/2019
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

US MINES 2:  Ferrous and Nonferrous Metal Mines Database Listing
This map layer includes ferrous (ferrous metal mines are facilities that extract ferrous metals, such as iron
ore or molybdenum) and nonferrous (Nonferrous metal mines are facilities that extract nonferrous metals, such
as gold, silver, copper, zinc, and lead) metal mines in the United States.

Date of Government Version: 12/05/2005
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 02/29/2008
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/18/2008
Number of Days to Update: 49

Source:  USGS
Telephone:  703-648-7709
Last EDR Contact: 05/31/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/09/2019
Data Release Frequency: Varies

US MINES 3:  Active Mines & Mineral Plants Database Listing
Active Mines and Mineral Processing Plant operations for commodities monitored by the Minerals Information Team
of the USGS.

Date of Government Version: 04/14/2011
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/08/2011
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/13/2011
Number of Days to Update: 97

Source:  USGS
Telephone:  703-648-7709
Last EDR Contact: 05/31/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/09/2019
Data Release Frequency: Varies

ABANDONED MINES:  Abandoned Mines
An inventory of land and water impacted by past mining (primarily coal mining) is maintained by OSMRE to provide
information needed to implement the Surface Mining Control and Reclamation Act of 1977 (SMCRA). The inventory
contains information on the location, type, and extent of AML impacts, as well as, information on the cost associated
with the reclamation of those problems. The inventory is based upon field surveys by State, Tribal, and OSMRE
program officials. It is dynamic to the extent that it is modified as new problems are identified and existing
problems are reclaimed.

Date of Government Version: 03/27/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/28/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/01/2019
Number of Days to Update: 34

Source:  Department of Interior
Telephone:  202-208-2609
Last EDR Contact: 06/19/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/23/2019
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

TC5712009.2s     Page GR-20

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



FINDS:  Facility Index System/Facility Registry System
Facility Index System. FINDS contains both facility information and ’pointers’ to other sources that contain more
detail. EDR includes the following FINDS databases in this report: PCS (Permit Compliance System), AIRS (Aerometric
Information Retrieval System), DOCKET (Enforcement Docket used to manage and track information on civil judicial
enforcement cases for all environmental statutes), FURS (Federal Underground Injection Control), C-DOCKET (Criminal
Docket System used to track criminal enforcement actions for all environmental statutes), FFIS (Federal Facilities
Information System), STATE (State Environmental Laws and Statutes), and PADS (PCB Activity Data System).

Date of Government Version: 02/15/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/05/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/15/2019
Number of Days to Update: 10

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  (206) 553-1200
Last EDR Contact: 06/05/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/16/2019
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

ECHO:  Enforcement & Compliance History Information
ECHO provides integrated compliance and enforcement information for about 800,000 regulated facilities nationwide.

Date of Government Version: 04/07/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/09/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/23/2019
Number of Days to Update: 44

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  202-564-2280
Last EDR Contact: 07/09/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 10/21/2019
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

UXO:  Unexploded Ordnance Sites
A listing of unexploded ordnance site locations

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2017
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/17/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/01/2019
Number of Days to Update: 74

Source:  Department of Defense
Telephone:  703-704-1564
Last EDR Contact: 04/15/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/29/2019
Data Release Frequency: Varies

DOCKET HWC:  Hazardous Waste Compliance Docket Listing
A complete list of the Federal Agency Hazardous Waste Compliance Docket Facilities.

Date of Government Version: 05/31/2018
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/26/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 10/05/2018
Number of Days to Update: 71

Source:  Environmental Protection Agency
Telephone:  202-564-0527
Last EDR Contact: 05/24/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/09/2019
Data Release Frequency: Varies

FUELS PROGRAM:  EPA Fuels Program Registered Listing
This listing includes facilities that are registered under the Part 80 (Code of Federal Regulations) EPA Fuels
Programs. All companies now are required to submit new and updated registrations.

Date of Government Version: 02/19/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 02/21/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/01/2019
Number of Days to Update: 39

Source:  EPA
Telephone:  800-385-6164
Last EDR Contact: 05/21/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/02/2019
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

AIRS (EMI):  Washington Emissions Data System
Emissions inventory data.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2017
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/01/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/19/2019
Number of Days to Update: 110

Source:  Department of Ecology
Telephone:  360-407-6040
Last EDR Contact: 04/15/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/29/2019
Data Release Frequency: Annually

TC5712009.2s     Page GR-21

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



ASBESTOS:  Asbestos Notification Listing
Asbestos sites

Date of Government Version: 03/21/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/22/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/18/2019
Number of Days to Update: 88

Source:  Department of Labor & Industries
Telephone:  360-902-6209
Last EDR Contact: 05/15/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/02/2019
Data Release Frequency: Varies

COAL ASH:  Coal Ash Disposal Site Listing
A listing of coal ash disposal site locations.

Date of Government Version: 06/10/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/11/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/18/2019
Number of Days to Update: 7

Source:  Department of Ecology
Telephone:  360-407-6933
Last EDR Contact: 06/03/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/16/2019
Data Release Frequency: Varies

DRYCLEANERS:  Drycleaner List
A listing of registered drycleaners who registered with the Department of Ecology (using the SIC code of 7215
and 7216) as hazardous waste generators.

Date of Government Version: 04/22/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/23/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/24/2019
Number of Days to Update: 62

Source:  Department of Ecology
Telephone:  360-407-6732
Last EDR Contact: 04/15/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/29/2019
Data Release Frequency: Varies

Financial Assurance 1:  Financial Assurance Information Listing
A listing of financial assurance information for underground storage tank facilities. Financial assurance is intended
to ensure that resources are available to pay for the cost of closure, post-closure care, and corrective measures
if the owner or operator of a regulated facility is unable or unwilling to pay.

Date of Government Version: 05/28/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/30/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/18/2019
Number of Days to Update: 19

Source:  Department of Ecology
Telephone:  360-586-1060
Last EDR Contact: 05/28/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/09/2019
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

Financial Assurance 2:  Financial Assurance Information Listing
A listing of financial assurance information for hazardous waste facilities. Financial assurance is intended to
ensure that resources are available to pay for the cost of closure, post-closure care, and corrective measures
if the owner or operator of a regulated facility is unable or unwilling to pay.

Date of Government Version: 05/22/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/23/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/28/2019
Number of Days to Update: 36

Source:  Department of Ecology
Telephone:  360-407-6754
Last EDR Contact: 05/10/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 08/26/2019
Data Release Frequency: Varies

Financial Assurance 3:  Financial Assurance Information Listing
A listing of financial assurance information for solid waste facilities. Financial assurance is intended to ensure
that resources are available to pay for the cost of closure, post-closure care, and corrective measures if the
owner or operator of a regulated facility is unable or unwilling to pay.

Date of Government Version: 11/15/2017
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/20/2017
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/04/2018
Number of Days to Update: 45

Source:  Department of Ecology
Telephone:  360-407-6136
Last EDR Contact: 05/10/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 08/26/2019
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

TC5712009.2s     Page GR-22

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



INACTIVE DRYCLEANERS:  Inactive Drycleaners
A listing of inactive drycleaner facility locations.

Date of Government Version: 04/22/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/24/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/24/2019
Number of Days to Update: 0

Source:  Department of Ecology
Telephone:  360-407-6732
Last EDR Contact: 04/15/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/29/2019
Data Release Frequency: Annually

WA MANIFEST:  Hazardous Waste Manifest Data
Hazardous waste manifest information.

Date of Government Version: 03/29/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/29/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/24/2019
Number of Days to Update: 87

Source:  Department of Ecology
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: 06/17/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/30/2019
Data Release Frequency: Annually

NPDES:  Water Quality Permit System Data
A listing of permitted wastewater facilities.

Date of Government Version: 04/16/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 04/18/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/25/2019
Number of Days to Update: 68

Source:  Department of Ecology
Telephone:  360-407-6073
Last EDR Contact: 04/18/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/29/2019
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

UIC:  Underground Injection Wells Listing
A listing of underground injection wells.

Date of Government Version: 01/15/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 01/16/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 04/01/2019
Number of Days to Update: 75

Source:  Department of Ecology
Telephone:  360-407-6143
Last EDR Contact: 04/18/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/29/2019
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

EDR HIGH RISK HISTORICAL RECORDS

EDR Exclusive Records

EDR MGP:  EDR Proprietary Manufactured Gas Plants
The EDR Proprietary Manufactured Gas Plant Database includes records of coal gas plants (manufactured gas plants)
compiled by EDR’s researchers. Manufactured gas sites were used in the United States from the 1800’s to 1950’s
to produce a gas that could be distributed and used as fuel. These plants used whale oil, rosin, coal, or a mixture
of coal, oil, and water that also produced a significant amount of waste. Many of the byproducts of the gas production,
such as coal tar (oily waste containing volatile and non-volatile chemicals), sludges, oils and other compounds
are potentially hazardous to human health and the environment. The byproduct from this process was frequently
disposed of directly at the plant site and can remain or spread slowly, serving as a continuous source of soil
and groundwater contamination.

Date of Government Version: N/A
Date Data Arrived at EDR: N/A
Date Made Active in Reports: N/A
Number of Days to Update: N/A

Source:  EDR, Inc.
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: N/A
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: N/A
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

EDR Hist Auto:  EDR Exclusive Historical Auto Stations
EDR has searched selected national collections of business directories and has collected listings of potential
gas station/filling station/service station sites that were available to EDR researchers. EDR’s review was limited
to those categories of sources that might, in EDR’s opinion, include gas station/filling station/service station
establishments. The categories reviewed included, but were not limited to gas, gas station, gasoline station,
filling station, auto, automobile repair, auto service station, service station, etc. This database falls within
a category of information EDR classifies as "High Risk Historical Records", or HRHR. EDR’s HRHR effort presents
unique and sometimes proprietary data about past sites and operations that typically create environmental concerns,
but may not show up in current government records searches.

TC5712009.2s     Page GR-23

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



Date of Government Version: N/A
Date Data Arrived at EDR: N/A
Date Made Active in Reports: N/A
Number of Days to Update: N/A

Source:  EDR, Inc.
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: N/A
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: N/A
Data Release Frequency: Varies

EDR Hist Cleaner:  EDR Exclusive Historical Cleaners
EDR has searched selected national collections of business directories and has collected listings of potential
dry cleaner sites that were available to EDR researchers. EDR’s review was limited to those categories of sources
that might, in EDR’s opinion, include dry cleaning establishments. The categories reviewed included, but were
not limited to dry cleaners, cleaners, laundry, laundromat, cleaning/laundry, wash & dry etc. This database falls
within a category of information EDR classifies as "High Risk Historical Records", or HRHR. EDR’s HRHR effort
presents unique and sometimes proprietary data about past sites and operations that typically create environmental
concerns, but may not show up in current government records searches.

Date of Government Version: N/A
Date Data Arrived at EDR: N/A
Date Made Active in Reports: N/A
Number of Days to Update: N/A

Source:  EDR, Inc.
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: N/A
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: N/A
Data Release Frequency: Varies

EDR RECOVERED GOVERNMENT ARCHIVES

Exclusive Recovered Govt. Archives

RGA HWS:  Recovered Government Archive State Hazardous Waste Facilities List
The EDR Recovered Government Archive State Hazardous Waste database provides a list of SHWS incidents derived
from historical databases and includes many records that no longer appear in current government lists. Compiled
from Records formerly available from the Department of Ecology in Washington.

Date of Government Version: N/A
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/01/2013
Date Made Active in Reports: 12/24/2013
Number of Days to Update: 176

Source:  Department of Ecology
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: 06/01/2012
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: N/A
Data Release Frequency: Varies

RGA LF:  Recovered Government Archive Solid Waste Facilities List
The EDR Recovered Government Archive Landfill database provides a list of landfills derived from historical databases
and includes many records that no longer appear in current government lists. Compiled from Records formerly available
from the Department of Ecology in Washington.

Date of Government Version: N/A
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/01/2013
Date Made Active in Reports: 01/10/2014
Number of Days to Update: 193

Source:  Department of Ecology
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: 06/01/2012
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: N/A
Data Release Frequency: Varies

RGA LUST:  Recovered Government Archive Leaking Underground Storage Tank
The EDR Recovered Government Archive Leaking Underground Storage Tank database provides a list of LUST incidents
derived from historical databases and includes many records that no longer appear in current government lists.
Compiled from Records formerly available from the Department of Ecology in Washington.

Date of Government Version: N/A
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 07/01/2013
Date Made Active in Reports: 12/24/2013
Number of Days to Update: 176

Source:  Department of Ecology
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: 06/01/2012
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: N/A
Data Release Frequency: Varies

TC5712009.2s     Page GR-24

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



COUNTY RECORDS

KING COUNTY:

LF KING:  Abandoned Landfill Study in King County
The King County Abandoned Landfill Survey was conducted from October through December 1984 by the Health Department’s
Environmental Health Division at the request of the King County Council. The primary objective of the survey was
to determine if any public health problems existed at the predetermined 24 sites.

Date of Government Version: 04/30/1985
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/07/1994
Date Made Active in Reports: N/A
Number of Days to Update: 0

Source:  Seattle-King County Department of Public Health
Telephone:  206-296-4785
Last EDR Contact: 10/21/1994
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: N/A
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

SEATTLE COUNTY:

LF SEATTLE CITY:  Abandoned Landfill Study in the City of Seattle
The Seattle Abandoned Landfill Survey was conducted in June and July of 1984 by the Health Department’s Environmental
Health Division at the request of the Mayor’s Office. The primary objective of the survey was to determine if
any public health problems existed at the predetermined 12 sites.

Date of Government Version: 07/30/1984
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 11/07/1994
Date Made Active in Reports: N/A
Number of Days to Update: 0

Source:  Seattle - King County Department of Public Health
Telephone:  206-296-4785
Last EDR Contact: 10/21/1994
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: N/A
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

SEATTLE/KING COUNTY:

LF SEATTLE/KING:  Seattle - King County Abandoned Landfill Toxicity / Hazard Assessment Project
This report presents the Seattle-King County Health Department’s follow-up investigation of two city owned and
four county owned abandoned landfills which was conducted from February to December 1986.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/1986
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 08/18/1995
Date Made Active in Reports: 09/20/1995
Number of Days to Update: 33

Source:  Department of Public Health
Telephone:  206-296-4785
Last EDR Contact: 08/14/1995
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: N/A
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

SNOHOMISH COUNTY:

LF SNOHOMISH:  Solid Waste Sites of Record at Snohomish Health District
Solid waste disposal and/or utilization sites in Snohomish County.

Date of Government Version: 11/16/2011
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/29/2012
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/03/2012
Number of Days to Update: 35

Source:  Snohomish Health District
Telephone:  206-339-5250
Last EDR Contact: 06/18/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/30/2019
Data Release Frequency: Semi-Annually

TACOMA/PIERCE COUNTY:

LF TACOMA/PIERCE:  Closed Landfill Survey
Following numerous requests for information about closed dumpsites and landfills in Pierce County, the Tacoma-Pierce
County Health Department decided to conduct a study on the matter. The aim of the study was to evaluate public
health risks associated with the closed dumpsites and landfills, and to determine the need, if any, for further
investigations of a more detailed nature. The sites represent all of the known dumpsites and landfills closed
after 1950.

TC5712009.2s     Page GR-25

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



Date of Government Version: 09/01/2002
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 03/24/2003
Date Made Active in Reports: 05/14/2003
Number of Days to Update: 51

Source:  Tacoma-Pierce County Health Department
Telephone:  206-591-6500
Last EDR Contact: 03/19/2003
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: N/A
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

OTHER DATABASE(S)

Depending on the geographic area covered by this report, the data provided in these specialty databases may or may not be
complete.  For example, the existence of wetlands information data in a specific report does not mean that all wetlands in the
area covered by the report are included.  Moreover, the absence of any reported wetlands information does not necessarily
mean that wetlands do not exist in the area covered by the report.

CT MANIFEST:  Hazardous Waste Manifest Data
Facility and manifest data. Manifest is a document that lists and tracks hazardous waste from the generator through
transporters to a tsd facility.

Date of Government Version: 02/11/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 02/12/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 03/04/2019
Number of Days to Update: 20

Source:  Department of Energy & Environmental Protection
Telephone:  860-424-3375
Last EDR Contact: 05/14/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 08/26/2019
Data Release Frequency: No Update Planned

NY MANIFEST:  Facility and Manifest Data
Manifest is a document that lists and tracks hazardous waste from the generator through transporters to a TSD
facility.

Date of Government Version: 01/01/2019
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 05/01/2019
Date Made Active in Reports: 06/21/2019
Number of Days to Update: 51

Source:  Department of Environmental Conservation
Telephone:  518-402-8651
Last EDR Contact: 05/01/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 08/12/2019
Data Release Frequency: Quarterly

PA MANIFEST:  Manifest Information
Hazardous waste manifest information.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2017
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 10/23/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 11/27/2018
Number of Days to Update: 35

Source:  Department of Environmental Protection
Telephone:  717-783-8990
Last EDR Contact: 04/15/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 07/29/2019
Data Release Frequency: Annually

WI MANIFEST:  Manifest Information
Hazardous waste manifest information.

Date of Government Version: 12/31/2017
Date Data Arrived at EDR: 06/15/2018
Date Made Active in Reports: 07/09/2018
Number of Days to Update: 24

Source:  Department of Natural Resources
Telephone:  N/A
Last EDR Contact: 06/10/2019
Next Scheduled EDR Contact: 09/23/2019
Data Release Frequency: Annually

Oil/Gas Pipelines
Source:  PennWell Corporation
Petroleum Bundle (Crude Oil, Refined Products, Petrochemicals, Gas Liquids (LPG/NGL), and Specialty
Gases (Miscellaneous)) N = Natural Gas Bundle (Natural Gas, Gas Liquids (LPG/NGL), and Specialty Gases
(Miscellaneous)). This map includes information copyrighted by PennWell Corporation. This information
is provided on a best effort basis and PennWell Corporation does not guarantee its accuracy nor warrant
its fitness for any particular purpose. Such information has been reprinted with the permission of PennWell.

Electric Power Transmission Line Data
Source:  PennWell Corporation
This map includes information copyrighted by PennWell Corporation. This information is provided on a best
effort basis and PennWell Corporation does not guarantee its accuracy nor warrant its fitness for any
particular purpose. Such information has been reprinted with the permission of PennWell.

TC5712009.2s     Page GR-26

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



Sensitive Receptors: There are individuals deemed sensitive receptors due to their fragile immune systems and special sensitivity
to environmental discharges.  These sensitive receptors typically include the elderly, the sick, and children.  While the location of all
sensitive receptors cannot be determined, EDR indicates those buildings and facilities - schools, daycares, hospitals, medical centers,
and nursing homes - where individuals who are sensitive receptors are likely to be located.

AHA Hospitals:
Source: American Hospital Association, Inc.
Telephone: 312-280-5991
The database includes a listing of hospitals based on the American Hospital Association’s annual survey of hospitals.

Medical Centers: Provider of Services Listing
Source: Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services
Telephone: 410-786-3000
A listing of hospitals with Medicare provider number, produced by Centers of Medicare & Medicaid Services,
a federal agency within the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services.

Nursing Homes
Source: National Institutes of Health
Telephone: 301-594-6248
Information on Medicare and Medicaid certified nursing homes in the United States.

Public Schools
Source: National Center for Education Statistics
Telephone: 202-502-7300
The National Center for Education Statistics’ primary database on elementary
and secondary public education in the United States.  It is a comprehensive, annual, national statistical
database of all public elementary and secondary schools and school districts, which contains data that are
comparable across all states.

Private Schools
Source: National Center for Education Statistics
Telephone: 202-502-7300
The National Center for Education Statistics’ primary database on private school locations in the United States. 

Daycare Centers: Daycare Center Listing
Source: Department of Social & Health Services
Telephone: 253-383-1735

Flood Zone Data: This data was obtained from the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA). It depicts 100-year and
500-year flood zones as defined by FEMA. It includes the National Flood Hazard Layer (NFHL) which incorporates Flood
Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) data and Q3 data from FEMA in areas not covered by NFHL.

Source: FEMA
Telephone: 877-336-2627
Date of Government Version: 2003, 2015

NWI: National Wetlands Inventory.  This data, available in select counties across the country, was obtained by EDR
in 2002, 2005 and 2010 from the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service.

State Wetlands Data: Wetland Inventory
Source: Department of Ecology
Telephone: 360-407-6121

Current USGS 7.5 Minute Topographic Map
Source: U.S. Geological Survey

TC5712009.2s     Page GR-27

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING



STREET AND ADDRESS INFORMATION

© 2015 TomTom North America, Inc. All rights reserved.  This material is proprietary and the subject of copyright protection
and other intellectual property rights owned by or licensed to Tele Atlas North America, Inc.  The use of this material is subject
to the terms of a license agreement.  You will be held liable for any unauthorized copying or disclosure of this material.

TC5712009.2s     Page GR-28

GOVERNMENT RECORDS SEARCHED / DATA CURRENCY TRACKING





WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | APPENDICES | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021  

Appendix 8A  
EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN 
 













































































WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | APPENDICES | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021  

Appendix 8B  
O&M INFORMATION FOR SCADA AND 
CHLORINATION SYSTEMS 
 





























































WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | APPENDICES | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021  

Appendix 8C  
MATERIAL SAFETY DATA SHEETS 
 

















WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | APPENDICES | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021  

Appendix 8D  
CROSS-CONNECTION CONTROL PLAN 
 





















































































WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | APPENDICES | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021  

Appendix 9A  
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM PROJECT 
SHEETS 
 





JULY 2021 

SUPPLY PROJECTS 

WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | APPENDIX 9A| CITY OF SHELTON 





WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | APPENDIX 9A| CITY OF SHELTON 

 APRIL 2021 

 

S-01   New Well in Angleside PZ 

Existing sources are sufficient to provide projected 2040 maximum day demand (MDD) but cannot meet 
City’s goal of providing 2040 MDD with the largest supply out-of-service. With a capacity of 1,000 gpm, 
the future new well would be sufficient to meet the City’s goal of providing 2040 MDD with largest supply 
out-of-service. If possible, it is recommended that this project is co-located with the new reservoir for 
project ST-02 in the Angleside Pressure Zone. This project is anticipated to transfer the water right from 
Shelton Springs to the New Well. The following is a summary of deficiencies, triggers, timing, and related 
CIP projects: 

• Deficiencies addressed: The existing supplies cannot meet the City’s goal of providing 
maximum day demands in the 2040 planning year with the largest supply out-of-service. This 
project provides redundancy to the system to supply the maximum day demand in the 2040 
planning year with the largest supply out-of-service. 

• Triggers: The project is recommended to meet the City’s redundant supply goal of providing 
maximum day demand in the 2040 planning year with the largest supply out-of-service.  

• Timing: This project is planned to occur in the long-term and take three years for design and 
construction.  

• Related Projects: It is recommended the new Well be located near the New Angleside 
Reservoir (ST-02) to facilitate operation of the PZ. 

• Location Map: A siting study is required to determine the location of the new Well, so a location 
map is not provided. 



CITY OF SHELTON | APPENDIX 9A | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

APRIL 2021   

 

S-01:   Example Infrastructure (City’s Existing Well 4) 

S-01:   Cost Summary 

 Subtotal Construction 
(30%) 

Engineering/Legal/ 
Design (30%) 

Admin 
(10%) 

Total Cost 

Project Cost $2,130,000 $609,000 $609,000 $203,000 $3,551,000 
  



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | APPENDIX 9A| CITY OF SHELTON 

 APRIL 2021 

 

S-02   Well 1 Rehabilitation and Pipeline Pressurization 

The existing 16-inch to 24-inch steel pipe from Well 1 to the High School tank is at end of life and needs 
to be replaced in the near future. The pipe is not pressurized and the proposed project is to replace the 
existing pipe from Well 1 to the High School Tank, eliminate connections that are no longer used, and 
pressurize the system. The existing pipe will be used as casing for the new 12-inch HPPE pipe, which will 
eliminate most of the surface excavation/disturbance. The cost for this project was provided by the City. 
The following is a summary of deficiencies and timing for the project: 

• Deficiencies addressed: Pipeline condition and sanitary concerns in gravity pipe. 
• Timing: The design phase for this project is planned to begin in 2021 and will be constructed 

in 2022. 

 

S-02:   Well 1 Rehabilitation and Pipeline Pressurization 

S-02:   Cost Summary 

 Subtotal Total Cost 

Project Cost $1,008,000 $1,008,000 
  



CITY OF SHELTON | APPENDIX 9A | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

APRIL 2021   

 

S-03   Onsite Chlorine Generation 

The City is planning to convert to onsite chlorine generation at the well sites. The cost for this project was 
provided by the City. The following is a summary of triggers, timing, and related CIP projects: 

• Triggers: City desires alterative to current chemical procurement. 
• Timing: This project is planned for short-term and estimated to begin in 2024. 
• Related Projects: S-04 New Generator for Well 3 & 4 

 

S-03:   Onsite Chlorine Generation 

S-03:   Cost Summary 

 Subtotal Total Cost  

Project Cost $200,000 $200,000 
  



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | APPENDIX 9A| CITY OF SHELTON 

 APRIL 2021 

 

S-04   New Generator for Well 3&4 

The existing generators for Wells 3 and 4 are aging and need to be replaced. The cost for this project was 
provided by the City. The following is a summary of deficiencies, timing, and related CIP projects: 

• Deficiencies addressed: Aging generators. 
• Timing: This project is planned for short-term and estimated to being in 2022. 
• Related Projects: S-03 Onsite Chlorine Generation 

 

S-04:   New Generator for Well 3 & 4 

S-04:   Cost Summary 

 Subtotal Total Cost  

Project Cost $125,000 $125,000 
 





JULY 2021 

STORAGE PROJECTS 

WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | APPENDIX 9A| CITY OF SHELTON 





WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | APPENDIX 9A| CITY OF SHELTON 

 APRIL 2021 

 

ST-01   New Mt. View Ground Storage Reservoir 

A new, ground storage reservoir with a capacity of 1.0 million gallons (MG) is recommended to provide 
additional storage to mitigate storage deficiencies identified in Chapter 5. It is recommended that the 
reservoir is located at the Well 1 site, where the reservoir will be able to provide storage for the Mt. View , 
High School, Angleside, and Capitol Hills pressure zones using existing infrastructure. This project is 
required to meet Washington State Department of Health (DOH) storage criteria. The following is a 
summary of deficiencies, triggers, timing, and related CIP projects: 

• Deficiencies addressed: The water system is deficient on storage based on City and DOH 
criteria, especially emergency storage. The storage deficiency will be partially addressed by 
building a new ground storage tank.  

• Triggers: This project is required to meet storage requirements in the near-term.  
• Timing: The project is planned to start in 2028 and take two years to design and construct.  
• Related projects: The Upper Mt. View Booster Pump Station (PS-03) is recommended to be 

co-located with the New Mt. View Ground Storage Reservoir so that PS-03 can pump water from 
ST-01 to the Upper Mt. View PZ in the future. 



CITY OF SHELTON | APPENDIX 9A | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

APRIL 2021   

 

ST-01:   New Mt. View Ground Storage Reservoir Location Map 

ST-01:   Cost Summary 

 Subtotal 
Construction 

(30%) 
Engineering/Legal/ 

Design (30%) 
Admin 
(10%) Total Cost 

Project Cost $1,830,000 $549,000 $549,000 $183,000 $3,111,000 
  



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | APPENDIX 9A| CITY OF SHELTON 

 APRIL 2021 

 

ST-02   New Angleside Reservoir 

A new, at-hydraulic-grade storage reservoir with a capacity of 1.0 million gallons (MG) is recommended 
to provide additional storage in the Angleside PZ to mitigate storage deficiencies identified in Chapter 5. 
The new reservoir also allows either the existing or the new reservoir to be taking offline for maintenance 
without large impacts to customers. To aid in operations, it is recommended that the reservoir is located 
at the same site as the New Well in CIP Project S-01. This project is required to meet Washington State 
Department of Health (DOH) storage criteria. The new Angleside Reservoir can either be ground or 
standpipe-style tank. Both options will require a booster pump station (BPS). The following is a summary 
of deficiencies, triggers, timing, and related CIP projects: 

• Deficiencies addressed: More storage is needed in the Angleside PZ to meet the City’s storage 
requirement (based on DOH criteria). The storage deficiency in Angleside PZ will be addressed 
by building a new, at-hydraulic grade storage reservoir. The project will also assist with overall 
storage deficit by providing additional storage space in the new reservoir to be shared with the 
High School and Capitol Hill pressure zones through existing infrastructure. 

• Triggers: This project is required to support future growth. The project will address the overall 
storage deficit in the system and the storage deficit in the Angleside PZ.  

• Timing: This project is planned to occur in the long-term and take two years to design and 
construct.  

• Related Projects: As described previously, it is recommended the new Reservoir be located near 
the new well in Angleside PZ (S-01).  

• Location Map: A siting study is recommended as part of design to determine the location of the 
New Angleside Reservoir. 



CITY OF SHELTON | APPENDIX 9A | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

APRIL 2021   

 

ST-02:   Example Infrastructure (City’s Existing Angleside Reservoir) 

ST-02:   Cost Summary 

 Subtotal 
Construction 

(30%) 
Engineering/Legal/ 

Design (30%) 
Admin 
(10%) Total Cost 

Project Cost $2,570,000 $771,000 $771,000 $257,000 $4,369,000 
 

  



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | APPENDIX 9A| CITY OF SHELTON 

 APRIL 2021 

 

ST-03   Shelton Hills Elevated Tank 

A 0.41 MG Upper Mt. View Pressure Zone elevated tank is needed to provide adequate water service to 
Shelton Hills Development. This project is required to provide sufficient service pressures during fire 
flows in the proposed development (Phase 2 and beyond). This project is developer-funded, and project 
costs are not included in the City’s CIP. The following is a summary of deficiencies, triggers, and timing: 

• Deficiencies addressed: A storage reservoir is needed to provide sufficient fire flows to the 
proposed development. 

• Triggers: Due to system hydraulics, when Shelton Hills area develops, a new elevated tank will 
be required for Phase 2 and beyond.  

• Timing: The timing of this project is based on development. 
• Cost Summary: This project is developer-funded so costs are not included in the City’s CIP 

Program. 

 

ST-03:   Shelton Hills Elevated Tank Location Map   



CITY OF SHELTON | APPENDIX 9A | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

APRIL 2021   

 

ST-04   High School Tank Recoating 

Project ST-04 consists of recoating the High School Tank. The steel high school tank requires periodic 
recoating to protect the underlying metal from corrosion. Recoating uses a similar process to commercial 
spray painting with coatings appropriate for drinking water infrastructure. Both the interior and exterior 
coatings of the tank are failing and are in need of maintenance. This project was identified in the 
City’s 2014 budget. The cost for this project was provided by the City. The following is a summary of 
deficiencies, triggers, and timing: 

• Deficiencies addressed: High School Tank is in need of recoating to protect the underlying steel 
tank from corrosion. 

• Triggers: This project has already been identified by the City. 
• Timing: the project is anticipated to be completed in two phases, in between 2022 and 2026.  

 

ST-04:   High School Tank Recoating Location Map 

ST-04:   Cost Summary 

 Subtotal Total Cost 

Project Cost $500,000 $500,000 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | APPENDIX 9A| CITY OF SHELTON 

PRESSURE ZONE IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS 

JULY 2021 





WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | APPENDIX 9A| CITY OF SHELTON 

 APRIL 2021 

 

PZ-01   Mt. View PZ Boosted Zone 

Some of the customers within the Mt. View PZ experience low pressures during peak hour demands (PHD), 
which are caused by high service elevations. This project is to rezone a section from the Mt. View PZ to the 
Upper Mt. View PZ to provide PHD pressures greater than 30 pounds per square inch (psi) to all customers. 
The transmission of the Upper Mt. View PZ supply will require 3,000 LF of 12-inch pipe from the Well 3/4 
site, south on N Shelton Springs Rd to N 13th St, and east on W Alpine Way to Alpine Dr. A PRV station and 
an additional 500 LF of pipe allowance is provided to complete the rezone. This main will allow service to 
future customers north of the existing service area in the Urban Growth Area that is anticipated to occur 
outside of the 20-year planning period. The following is a summary of deficiencies, triggers, timing, and 
future service notes: 

• Deficiencies addressed: Pressures below 30 psi during peak hour demands in the Mt. View PZ to 
some customers with high service elevations. 

• Triggers: Some customers at high elevations in the Mt. View PZ have pressures below 30 psi 
during peak hour demands. The DOH Water System Design Manual states that a water system 
must be able to deliver the peak hourly demand at the required pressure of 30 psi.   

• Timing: This project is planned to occur in the long-term and will take one year for design and 
construction. 



CITY OF SHELTON | APPENDIX 9A | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

APRIL 2021   

 

PZ-01:   Mt. View PZ Boosted Zone Location Map 

PZ-01:   Cost Summary 

 Subtotal 
Construction 

(30%) 
Engineering/Legal/ 

Design (30%) Admin (10%) Total Cost 

Project Cost $950,000 $285,000 $285,000 $95,000 $1,615,000 

  



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | APPENDIX 9A| CITY OF SHELTON 

 APRIL 2021 

 

PZ-02   Angleside PZ Pressure Improvements 

Some of the customers at high service elevations within the Angleside PZ experience low pressures 
during peak hour demands. This project consists of adding small jockey pumps to two areas of the PZ 
with high elevations to provide domestic flows are pressures greater than 30 psi during PHD. The two 
areas identified are: Vista View, and S 16th St/Eaglewood Way. This project will require improvements in 
the interim to address fire flow deficiencies at high elevations in the Angleside PZ as described in projects 
PS-01, G-01, and D-05. The following is a summary of deficiencies, triggers, timing, and related projects: 

• Deficiencies addressed: Pressures below 30 psi at customers with high service elevations during 
peak hour demands in the Angleside PZ. 

• Triggers: The DOH Water System Design Manual states that a water system must be able to 
deliver the peak hourly demand at the required pressure of 30 psi to new customers. Therefore, 
the booster stations will likely need to be established in response to new customer growth.  

• Timing: This project is planned to occur in the long-term and will take one year for design and 
construction. 

• Related Projects: Hydrant improvements identified in G-01 are recommended as an interim 
measure until additional CIP increase pressures to the customers. Angleside Reservoir PS Control 
Improvements (PS-01) and distribution systems improvements identified in D-05 will increase 
pressures to these customers during fire flows.  



CITY OF SHELTON | APPENDIX 9A | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

APRIL 2021   

 

PZ-02:   Angleside PZ Boosted Zone Location Map 

PZ-02:   Cost Summary 

 Subtotal 
Construction 

(30%) 
Engineering/Legal/ 

Design (30%) Admin (10%) Total Cost 

Project Cost $798,400 $239,520 $239,520 $79,840 $1,357,280 

 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | APPENDIX 9A| CITY OF SHELTON 

PUMP STATION PROJECTS 

JULY 2021 





WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | APPENDIX 9A| CITY OF SHELTON 

 APRIL 2021 

 

PS-01   Angleside Reservoir PS Control Improvements 

Higher pressures during fire flow are needed to address deficiencies in high elevation areas of the 
Angleside PZ. Currently, the Angleside Reservoir PS is run manually. The recommended project is to 
complete PS control improvements to allow automated use of the City’s Angleside Reservoir PS. The 
Angleside Reservoir PS provides two benefits: (1) it increases system pressures during fire flows and (2) it 
allows greater use of water stored in the Angleside Reservoir. This project is anticipated to require new 
SCADA controls, new VFDs, improvements to existing control valves at the Angleside Reservoir PS, and 
potentially a new recirculation valve at the Angleside BPS, as shown in the below schematic.  

The following is a summary of deficiencies, triggers, and timing: 

• Deficiencies addressed: The residual pressures during fire flow scenarios are below the 
minimum threshold of 20 psi at high elevation locations in the Angleside PZ. Pressures 
below 30 psi are seen at customers with high service elevations during peak hour demands in the 
Angleside PZ. The Angleside Reservoir PS aids in addressing storage deficiencies by allowing a 
greater portion of the Angleside Reservoir to be used.  

• Triggers: The project is recommended in the near-term to address are residual pressures during 
fire flow scenarios that are below the minimum 20 psi threshold.  

• Timing: The project is planned to occur in two phases: 
- Phase 1 is planned to occur in 2022. This phase will use the existing pump station equipment 

to allow the pump station to be run via SCADA controls. It is anticipated that there will be 
limitations on how the pump station functions during this phase. 

- Phase 2 is planned to occur in the long-term and will take one year for design and 
construction. Long-term improvements to the existing pump station equipment will allow 
the pump station to function in all scenarios. 

• Related Projects: The Angleside Reservoir PS may not automatically start for low flow hydrants 
if available flow is below control trigger. Hydrant improvements identified in G-01 are 
recommended as an interim measure until additional CIP increase pressures to the customers. 



CITY OF SHELTON | APPENDIX 9A | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

APRIL 2021   

 

PS-01:   Angleside Reservoir PS Control Improvements Diagram 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | APPENDIX 9A| CITY OF SHELTON 

 APRIL 2021 

 

PS-01:   Angleside Reservoir PS Control Improvements Location Map 

PS-01:   Cost Summary 

 
Phase 1 

Total Cost 

Phase 2 

Subtotal 
Construction 

(30%) 
Engineering/Legal/ 

Design (30%) 
Admin 
(10%) Total Cost 

Project 
Cost $100,000 $450,000 $135,000 $135,000 $45,000 $765,000 

  



CITY OF SHELTON | APPENDIX 9A | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

APRIL 2021   

 

PS-02   Capitol Hill Pressure Improvements 

The existing Capitol Hill BPS and Capitol Hill Reservoir are not able to provide pressures of at least 30 psi 
to all customers during peak hour demand scenarios. To increase the peak hour demand pressures and 
provide pump station redundancy, it is recommended that the Capitol Hill PZ be converted to a closed 
pressure zone. This project recommends decommissioning the existing Capitol Hill Reservoir and 
constructing a new Capitol Hill BPS to supply customers at a higher hydraulic grade. This will require 
increasing the BPS capacity to meet peak hour demands and fire flows for approximately 1,750 gpm of 
firm capacity flow. Approximately 1,000 ft of distribution mains may also need to be upsized to support 
greater pumping rates. The following is a summary of deficiencies, triggers, and timing: 

• Deficiencies addressed: During peak hour demands, pressures at high elevation locations in the 
Capitol Hill PZ are below 30 psi. Additionally, the residual pressures during fire flow conditions 
are below the minimum 20 psi threshold at high elevation locations in the Capitol Hill PZ. 

• Triggers: There are residual pressures during fire flow scenarios that are below the minimum 
20 psi threshold. DOH requires residual pressures of at least 20 psi during fire flow conditions. 
The DOH Water System Design Manual states that a water system must be able to deliver the 
peak hourly demand at the required pressure of 30 psi.  

• Timing: The project is planned to occur in the long-term and will take two years for design and 
construction. 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | APPENDIX 9A| CITY OF SHELTON 

 APRIL 2021 

 

PS-02:   Capitol Hill Pressure Improvements Location Map 

PS-02:   Cost Summary 

 Subtotal 
Construction 

(30%) 
Engineering/Legal/ 

Design (30%) Admin (10%) Total Cost 

Project Cost $2,030,000 $609,000 $609,000 $203,000 $3,451,000 

  



CITY OF SHELTON | APPENDIX 9A | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

APRIL 2021   

 

PS-03   Upper Mt. View Booster Pump Station 

A new Upper Mt. View BPS is needed to meet 2040 maximum day demands in the Upper Mt. View PZ. 
Additionally, it will provide supply/pumping redundancy to the Upper Mt. View PS if Well 3 is offline. It is 
recommended that the BPS is co-located with the New Mt. View Ground Reservoir (CIP Project ST-01). 
This BPS will be sized to supply 1,500 gpm to the Mt. View and Upper Mt. View pressure zones, except 
for the Dayton-Airport Road Commercial Industrial Center (DARCI) that requires additional 
infrastructure. The following is a summary of deficiencies, triggers, timing, and related projects: 

• Deficiencies addressed: The existing supplies cannot meet the maximum day demands in 
the 2040 planning year in the Upper Mt. View PZ, as shown in the system analysis.  

• Triggers: The project is recommended to address the supply deficit in the Upper Mt. View PZ in 
the long-term. The new Upper Mt. View BPS may be developed earlier to address the 
supply/pumping redundancy in the Upper Mt. View PZ. 

• Timing: The project is planned to occur in the long-term and will take two years for design and 
construction. 

• Related Projects: The Upper Mt. View BPS is anticipated to be co-located with the New Mt. 
View Ground Storage Reservoir (ST-01). 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | APPENDIX 9A| CITY OF SHELTON 

 APRIL 2021 

 

PS-03:   Upper Mt. View Booster Pump Station Location Map 

PS-03:   Cost Summary 

 Subtotal Construction 
(30%) 

Engineering/Legal/ 
Design (30%) 

Admin (10%) Total Cost 

Project Cost $185,000 $555,000 $555,000 $185,000 $3,145,000 

 

 





JULY 2021 

DISTRIBUTION PROJECTS 

WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | APPENDIX 9A| CITY OF SHELTON 





WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | APPENDIX 9A| CITY OF SHELTON 

 APRIL 2021 

 

D-01   W Railroad Ave Pipe Upsize 

Project D-01 consists of upsizing approximately 1,700 feet of 8-inch pipe to 12-inch pipe for fire flow 
deficiencies on W Railroad Ave. This street has a dead-end pipe with a fire flow requirement of 1,500 gpm. 
The City provided the cost for this project. The following is a summary of deficiencies, triggers, and timing: 

• Deficiencies addressed: The residual pressures during fire flow conditions are below the 
minimum threshold of 20 psi at locations on W Railroad Ave. 

• Triggers: The fire flow deficiency is due to 1,500 gpm fire flow demand (commercial land use fire 
flow demand) on long, 8-inch dead end pipe. DOH requires a residual pressure of at least 20 psi 
during fire flow conditions. 

• Timing: This project is planned for the year 2022. 

 

D-01:   W Railroad Ave Pipe Upsize Location Map 

D-01:   Cost Summary 

 Subtotal Total Cost 

Project Cost $980,000 $980,000 
  



CITY OF SHELTON | APPENDIX 9A | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

APRIL 2021   

 

D-02   E Pine St Pipe Upsize 

Project D-02 consists of upsizing approximately 3,200 ft of 6-inch pipe to 12-inch pipe for fire flow 
deficiencies on E Pine St. This is a dead end pipe with fire flow requirement of 1,500 gpm. The following is 
a summary of deficiencies, triggers, and timing: 

• Deficiencies addressed: The residual pressures during fire flow conditions are below the 
minimum threshold of 20 psi at locations on E Pine St. 

• Triggers: The fire flow deficiency is due to 1,500 gpm fire flow demand (commercial land use fire 
flow demand) on long, 6-inch dead end pipe. DOH requires a residual pressure of at least 20 psi 
during fire flow conditions. 

• Timing: The timing of this project is based on development on E Pine Ave. 
• Cost Summary: This project is developer-funded so costs are not included in the City’s CIP 

Program. 

 

D-02:   E Pine St Pipe Upsize Location Map 

  



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | APPENDIX 9A| CITY OF SHELTON 

 APRIL 2021 

 

D-03   Alleghany St Pipe Upsize 

Project D-03 consists of upsizing approximately 230 feet of 6-inch pipe to 8-inch pipe for fire flow 
deficiencies on Alleghany St. This is a dead end pipe with fire flow requirement of 1,500 gpm. The 
following is a summary of deficiencies, triggers, and timing: 

• Deficiencies addressed: The residual pressures during fire flow scenarios are below the 
minimum threshold of 20 psi at locations on Alleghany St. 

• Triggers: The fire flow deficiency is due to 1,500 gpm fire flow demand (commercial land use fire 
flow demand) on long, 6-inch dead end pipe. DOH requires a residual pressure of at least 20 psi 
during fire flow conditions. 

• Timing: The timing of this project is based on development on Alleghany St. 
• Cost Summary: This project is developer-funded so costs are not included in the City’s CIP 

Program. 

 

D-03:   Alleghany St Pipe Upsize Location Map 

  



CITY OF SHELTON | APPENDIX 9A | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

APRIL 2021   

 

D-04   Capitol Hill Hydrant Lateral Relocation 

Project D-04 consists of relocating the hydrant from intake of Capitol Hill BPS to outlet of Capitol Hill 
BPS to address fire flow deficiency in the High School PZ. The following is a summary of deficiencies, 
triggers, and timing: 

• Deficiencies addressed: The residual pressures during fire flow scenarios are below the 
minimum threshold of 20 psi at a hydrant near the Capitol Hill BPS. 

• Triggers: Fire flow deficiency due to fire flow demand at hydrant with high elevation in lower PZ 
(High School PZ).  

• Timing: This project is planned to occur in the long-term and take one year for design and 
construction. DOH requires a residual pressure of at least 20 psi during fire flow conditions. 

• Related Projects: This project is not needed if the Capitol Hill BPS Project (PS-02) is completed.  

 

D-04:   Capitol Hill Hydrant Lateral Relocation Location Map 

D-04:   Cost Summary 

 Subtotal Construction 
(30%) 

Engineering/Legal/ 
Design (30%) 

Admin (10%) Total Cost 

Project Cost $54,000 $16,200 $16,200 $5,400 $91,800 
 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | APPENDIX 9A| CITY OF SHELTON 

 APRIL 2021 

 

D-05   S 16th St Pipe Project 

Project D-05 consists of upsizing 4-inch and 6-inch pipe to 8-inch pipe along S 16th St from Turner Ave 
north to end of street, and installing a new 8-inch pipe on S 16th St between Turner Ave and May Ave. 
This project is required to address fire flow deficiencies in the Angleside PZ. The following is a summary 
of deficiencies, triggers, and timing: 

• Deficiencies addressed: The residual pressures during fire flow scenarios are below the 
minimum threshold of 20 psi at locations on S 16th St. 

• Triggers: The fire flow deficiency is due to high elevation and small diameter pipe (4-inch, 
6-inch) in Angleside PZ. DOH requires a residual pressure of at least 20 psi during fire flow 
conditions. 

• Timing: This project is planned to occur in the long-term and take one year for design and 
construction. 

 

D-05:   S 16th St Pipe Project Location Map 

D-05:   Cost Summary 

 Subtotal 
Construction 

(30%) 
Engineering/Legal/ 

Design (30%) Admin (10%) Total Cost 

Project Cost $144,000 $43,200 $43,200 $14,400 $244,800 

 





JULY 2021 

GENERAL PROJECTS 

WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | APPENDIX 9A| CITY OF SHELTON 





WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | APPENDIX 9A| CITY OF SHELTON 

 APRIL 2021 

 

G-01   Hydrant Improvements 

The City has an ongoing hydrant improvement program performed in-house by water operators. The 
program repairs and replaces hydrants on an as needed basis. In addition, the program will be expanded 
to address hydrant improvements in areas with low system pressure. To improve these hydrants, water 
operators will work with the Fire Department to respond to fire flows in these areas, keeping in mind that 
reservoir levels will be lower in a fire flow condition than normal conditions. The program involves 
painting, moving, and hooding/removing fire hydrants as agreed with Fire Department. These are 
intended to be interim measures until CIP projects increase system pressures. The following is a summary 
of deficiencies, triggers, and timing: 

• Deficiencies addressed: Hydrants in need of repair or replacement. Fire department response in 
areas with low pressures. 

• Triggers: Identification of maintenance or pressure issues from the Water System Plan or field 
activities.  

• Timing: This project is planned to being in the 2022 and take two years to complete. 

 

G-01:   Cost Summary 

 Subtotal 
Construction 

(30%) 
Engineering/Legal/ 

Design (30%) Admin (10%) Total Cost 

Project Cost $250,000 $75,000 $75,000 $25,000 $425,000 

 
  



CITY OF SHELTON | APPENDIX 9A | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

APRIL 2021   

 

G-02   Repair and Replacement (R&R) 

This project is an annual repair and replacement (R&R) program for pipes and above ground assets 
(pumps, valves, etc.). This project provides an annual budget to replace pipes as they reach the end of 
their useful life or as required for maintenance issues. The project also provides an annual budget to 
repair and/or replace pumps, valves, etc., as needed based on condition and maintenance issues. The 
following is a summary of deficiencies, triggers, and timing: 

• Deficiencies addressed: The deficiencies addressed with this project are pipes and other assets 
in need of R&R. 

• Triggers: City fund for annual R&R of pipes and above ground assets.  
• Timing: The project timing is assumed to be an annual cost.  

 

G-02:   Cost Summary 

 Subtotal 
Construction 

(30%) 
Engineering/Legal/ 

Design (30%) Admin (10%) Total Cost 

Annual Project 
Cost $2,000,000 $600,000 $600,000 $200,000 $3,400,000 

 
  



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | APPENDIX 9A| CITY OF SHELTON 

 APRIL 2021 

 

G-03   Water System Plan Update 

Complete an update of the water system plan per DOH requirements every 10 years. The following is a 
summary of the triggers and timing: 

• Triggers: DOH requires an update to the water system plan be completed every 10 years.  
• Timing: This project assumes two water system plans will be completed in the next 20 years. 

 

G-03:   Cost Summary 

 Subtotal 
Construction 

(30%) Admin (10%) Total Cost 

Project Cost $400,000 $120,000 $40,000 $560,000 

 
  



CITY OF SHELTON | APPENDIX 9A | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

APRIL 2021   

 

G-04   Water Meter AMI Upgrade 

This project consists of upgrading existing meters with automated meter reading, generally referred to 
as advanced metering infrastructure (AMI). AMI transmits water usage over radio or similar technology 
on regular basis (typically daily) to the City, rather than traditional monthly or bi-monthly in-person 
meter reading. This allows improved efficiency of billing operations, more accurate meter reads, daily 
water consumption information for operations, and improved leak detection.  The City provided the cost 
for this project. The following is a summary of deficiencies and timing: 

• Deficiencies addressed: The City’s water meters are aging and will require replacement. 
• Timing: This project is anticipated to be occur in the short-term and will implemented in 2021. 

 

G-04:   Cost Summary 

 Subtotal Total Cost 

Project Cost $850,000 $850,000 

 
  



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | APPENDIX 9A| CITY OF SHELTON 

 APRIL 2021 

 

G-05   Maintenance Facility Expansion 

The City Maintenance Division has outgrown the existing 2-acre Parks and Public Works Maintenance 
Yard on W. Pine Street, and expansion of the existing pipe is not possible. The 10-year project is to 
relocate the Public Works Maintenance Division to a larger site that can be expanded over time to meet 
the needs of the City for the next 75+ years. The City provided the costs for this project. The following is a 
summary of triggers and timing: 

• Triggers: This project has already been identified by the City.  
• Timing: The project is anticipated begin in 2021 and be completed in 2023.  

 

G-05:   Cost Summary 

 Subtotal Total Cost 

Project Cost $584,890 $584,890 

 
  



CITY OF SHELTON | APPENDIX 9A | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

APRIL 2021   

 

G-06   AWIA Risk and Resiliency Assessment 

In October of 2018 the Federal Government signed into law the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) 
American’s Water Infrastructure Act (AWIA). AWIA Section 2013 required community drinking water 
systems serving more than 3,300 people to develop or update risk assessment and emergency response 
plans (ERPs). The law specifies components the risk assessment and ERPs must address, and established 
deadlines by which water systems must certify to EPA completion of the risk assessment and ERP. For 
populations served between 3,301 and 49,999 people, the Risk and Resilience Assessment is due 
June 30, 2021 and the associated Emergency Response Plan is due on December 31, 2021. The City 
provided the cost for this project. The following is a summary of triggers, timing, and related projects: 

• Triggers: Compliance with AWIA. 
• Timing: Must be completed by June 20, 2021. 
• Related Projects: G-07 AWIA Required Water Emergency Response Plan. 

 

G-06:   Cost Summary 

 Subtotal Total Cost 

Project Cost $60,000 $60,000 

 
  



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | APPENDIX 9A| CITY OF SHELTON 

 APRIL 2021 

 

G-07   AWIA Required Water Emergency Response Plan 

In October of 2018 the Federal Government signed into law the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) 
American’s Water Infrastructure Act (AWIA). AWIA Section 2013 required community drinking water 
systems serving more than 3,300 people to develop or update risk assessment and emergency response 
plans (ERPs). The law specifies components the risk assessment and ERPs must address, and established 
deadlines by which water systems must certify to EPA completion of the risk assessment and ERP. For 
populations served between 3,301 and 49,999 people, the Risk and Resilience Assessment is due 
June 30, 2021 and the associated Emergency Response Plan is due on December 31, 2021. The City 
provided the cost for this project. The following is a summary of triggers, timing, and related projects: 

• Triggers: Compliance with AWIA. 
• Timing: Must be completed by December 31, 2021. 
• Related Projects: G-06 AWIA Risk and Resiliency Assessment. 

 

G-07:   Cost Summary 

 Subtotal Total Cost 

Project Cost $60,000 $60,000 

 
  



CITY OF SHELTON | APPENDIX 9A | WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE 

APRIL 2021   

 

G-08   Rate Study 

The City’s water rates need to be analyzed to determine what rates should be set to and to address 
affordability by customer class. The study will review the City’s current rate structure, financial 
information, and planned improvements. An analysis of the current rate structure will be performed, and 
the rates may be adjusted as needed. This project includes the rate study and general facility charges 
study.  The City provided the cost for this project. The following is a summary of triggers, and timing for 
the project: 

• Triggers: Water rates need to be evaluated. 
• Timing: The project is planned to occur in 2021. 

 

G-08:   Cost Summary 

 Subtotal Total Cost 

Project Cost $20,000 $20,000 

 



WATER SYSTEM COMPREHENSIVE PLAN UPDATE | APPENDICES | CITY OF SHELTON 

 JULY 2021  

Appendix 10A  
FINANCIAL POLICIES 
 





Title 15
WATER

Chapters:

15.04    Definitions

15.08    General Provisions

15.12    Connections

15.16    Water Service Activation and Deactivation

15.20    Water Meters

15.24    Water Mains and Main Extensions

15.28    Water Service—Rates and Charges

15.32    Administration—Enforcement—Violations—Remedies/Penalties

The Shelton Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 1947-1119, and legislation passed through December 17, 2019.

Shelton Municipal Code Title 15 WATER Page 1 of 34



Chapter 15.04
DEFINITIONS

Sections:
15.04.010    Interpretation of definitions.

15.04.020    Airgap.

15.04.030    Backflow.

15.04.040    Backflow prevention device.

15.04.050    Back pressure.

15.04.060    Back siphonage.

15.04.070    City.

15.04.080    City manager.

15.04.090    Commercial structure.

15.04.100    Council.

15.04.110    Connection charges.

15.04.120    Cross-connection.

15.04.130    Customer.

15.04.140    Department.

15.04.150    Director.

15.04.155    Fire line.

15.04.160    Industrial services.

15.04.170    Main.

15.04.180    Multiple dwelling units.

15.04.190    Permanent main.

15.04.200    Permit fee.

15.04.210    Person.

The Shelton Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 1947-1119, and legislation passed through December 17, 2019.

Shelton Municipal Code Title 15 WATER Page 2 of 34



15.04.220    Premises.

15.04.230    Residential service.

15.04.240    Service installation, service connection or connection.

15.04.250    System.

15.04.260    Temporary main.

15.04.270    Treasurer.

15.04.280    User.

15.04.290    User charge.

15.04.300    Water service area.

15.04.010 Interpretation of definitions.
For the purpose of this title, the following words or phrases have the meaning set forth herein,
unless the context clearly requires otherwise. (Ord. 1611-0104 § 1 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 1
(part), 2003)

15.04.020 Airgap.
“Airgap” means an unobstructed vertical distance of at least twice the inside diameter of a supply
line, but not less than one inch, through the free atmosphere between a supply line outlet and the
overflow rim of a receiving vessel. (Ord. 1611-0104 § 1 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 1 (part),
2003)

15.04.030 Backflow.
“Backflow” means the flow of water or other liquids, mixtures, or other substances into the
distribution pipes of a potable supply of water from any source other than its intended source. (Ord.
1611-0104 § 1 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 1 (part), 2003)

15.04.040 Backflow prevention device.
“Backflow prevention device” means a device, assembly or means to prevent backflow into the
potable water system, either by back siphonage or back pressure. (Ord. 1611-0104 § 1 (part),
2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 1 (part), 2003)

15.04.050 Back pressure.
“Back pressure” means the backflow of used, contaminated, or polluted water from a plumbing
fixture or vessel into a water supply pipe due to pressure created by booster pumps, boilers,
pressure vessels, or elevated plumbing that exceeds the main pressure of the water supply pipe.
(Ord. 1611-0104 § 1 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 1 (part), 2003)

The Shelton Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 1947-1119, and legislation passed through December 17, 2019.

Shelton Municipal Code Title 15 WATER Page 3 of 34



15.04.060 Back siphonage.
“Back siphonage” means the backflow of used, contaminated, or polluted water from a plumbing
fixture or vessel into a water supply pipe due to a negative pressure in such pipe. (Ord. 1611-0104
§ 1 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 1 (part), 2003)

15.04.070 City.
“City” means the city of Shelton. (Ord. 1611-0104 § 1 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 1 (part), 2003)

15.04.080 City manager.
“City manager” means the city manager of the city of Shelton. (Ord. 1921-0518 (part), 2018; Ord.
1611-0104 § 1 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 1 (part), 2003)

15.04.090 Commercial structure.
“Commercial structure” means any building or structure required to be connected to water service
that is used for a commercial or industrial purpose, as defined in Chapter 20.26, 20.28, and 20.30,
or for the provision of any service, such as hotels, motels, and hospitals. Commercial structures
include multifamily complexes larger than a duplex, even if the individual dwelling units are under
separate ownership. (Ord. 1729-0608 § 6, 2008: Ord. 1611-0104 § 1 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103
§ 1 (part), 2003)

15.04.100 Council.
“Council” means the city council of the city of Shelton. (Ord. 1921-0518 (part), 2018; Ord. 1611-
0104 § 1 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 1 (part), 2003)

15.04.110 Connection charges.
“Connection charges” means the charges imposed by the city to recover the actual costs of
installing the service line from the main to the service meter. (Ord. 1611-0104 § 1 (part), 2004: Ord.
1581-0103 § 1 (part), 2003)

15.04.120 Cross-connection.
“Cross-connection” means any physical arrangement whereby the public water supply system is
connected, directly or indirectly, with any nonpotable or unapproved water supply system, sewer
drain, conduit, pool, storage reservoir, plumbing fixture or other device which contains or may
contain contaminated water, liquid, gases, sewage, or other waste of unknown or unsafe quality
which may be capable of imparting contamination to the public water supply as a result of backflow.
(Ord. 1611-0104 § 1 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 1 (part), 2003)

15.04.130 Customer.
“Customer” means any person or entity that uses any part of the city’s water supply system. (Ord.
1611-0104 § 1 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 1 (part), 2003)

15.04.140 Department.
“Department” means the department of public works of the city of Shelton. (Ord. 1611-0104 § 1

The Shelton Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 1947-1119, and legislation passed through December 17, 2019.

Shelton Municipal Code Title 15 WATER Page 4 of 34



(part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 1 (part), 2003)

15.04.150 Director.
“Director” means the director of the department of public works of the city of Shelton or his/her
designee. (Ord. 1611-0104 § 1 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 1 (part), 2003)

15.04.155 Fire line.
“Fire line” means a separate water service line connecting the city water system to a private fire
water supply line for a building or building’s fire suppression system. (Ord. 1865-0115 § 1, 2015)

15.04.160 Industrial services.
“Industrial services” means water service connections to a business enterprise engaged in the
manufacture of products, materials, equipment, machinery and supplies on a substantial or major
scale. (Ord. 1611-0104 § 1 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 1 (part), 2003)

15.04.170 Main.
“Main” means water line designed or used to serve more than one premises. (Ord. 1611-0104 § 1
(part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 1 (part), 2003)

15.04.180 Multiple dwelling units.
“Multiple dwelling units” means duplexes, apartment buildings, condominiums, mobile home parks,
trailer courts, and other like structures. (Ord. 1611-0104 § 1 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 1 (part),
2003)

15.04.190 Permanent main.
“Permanent main” means a main of PVC, cast iron, asbestos-cement or other materials approved
by the city which are constructed to city standards and approved and accepted for use by the city.
(Ord. 1611-0104 § 1 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 1 (part), 2003)

15.04.200 Permit fee.
“Permit fee” means the fee required to cover costs of permit administration and review. (Ord. 1611-
0104 § 1 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 1 (part), 2003)

15.04.210 Person.
“Person” means any individual, firm, company, association, organization, society, corporation, or
group. (Ord. 1611-0104 § 1 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 1 (part), 2003)

15.04.220 Premises.
“Premises” is defined as a residential dwelling unit, including a single-family home, manufactured
home, mobile home, or one of two dwelling units found in a duplex. (Ord. 1729-0608 § 5, 2008: Ord.
1611-0104 § 1 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 1 (part), 2003)

15.04.230 Residential service.

The Shelton Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 1947-1119, and legislation passed through December 17, 2019.

Shelton Municipal Code Title 15 WATER Page 5 of 34



“Residential service” means water service connection to a single-family dwelling unit. (Ord. 1611-
0104 § 1 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 1 (part), 2003)

15.04.240 Service installation, service connection or connection.
“Service installation,” “service connection,” or “connection” means piping and fittings from the main
to a property owner’s side of the water meter assembly. (Ord. 1611-0104 § 1 (part), 2004: Ord.
1581-0103 § 1 (part), 2003)

15.04.250 System.
“System” includes all water source and supply facilities, transmission pipelines, storage facilities,
pumping plants, distribution mains and appurtenances. (Ord. 1611-0104 § 1 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-
0103 § 1 (part), 2003)

15.04.260 Temporary main.
“Temporary main” means a main which does not conform to the city standards with respect to size,
location, type of material and/or method of installation and is not intended to be permanent. (Ord.
1611-0104 § 1 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 1 (part), 2003)

15.04.270 Treasurer.
“Treasurer” means the director of financial services of the city of Shelton. (Ord. 1611-0104 § 1
(part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 1 (part), 2003)

15.04.280 User.
“User” means any person or entity that uses any part of the city’s water supply system. (Ord. 1611-
0104 § 1 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 1 (part), 2003)

15.04.290 User charge.
“User charge” means the periodic charges levied on all users of the public water works, and shall,
at a minimum, cover each user’s proportionate share of the cost of operations and maintenance of
the water system. (Ord. 1611-0104 § 1 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 1 (part), 2003)

15.04.300 Water service area.
“Water service area” means that area consisting of the corporate limits of the city and those areas
that have been or may be designated for water service by the city council. (Ord. 1921-0518 (part),
2018; Ord. 1611-0104 § 1 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 1 (part), 2003)

The Shelton Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 1947-1119, and legislation passed through December 17, 2019.

Shelton Municipal Code Title 15 WATER Page 6 of 34



Chapter 15.08
GENERAL PROVISIONS

Sections:
15.08.010    Purpose.

15.08.020    Creation of water utility.

15.08.030    Applicability.

15.08.040    Inspections.

15.08.050    Water service required.

15.08.060    Hydrants—Authorized use.

15.08.070    Emergency interruption of service—Interruption in service.

15.08.080    Cross-connection.

15.08.090    City not liable for damages.

15.08.010 Purpose.
The purpose of this title is to establish fees for service, and general rules and regulations for the
service and extension of service from the water system of the city, and to promote the public
health, safety, and general welfare of the users of the water system, in accordance with standards
established by the city, county, state and federal government. (Ord. 1712-1207 § 1 (part), 2008:
Ord. 1611-0104 § 2 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 2 (part), 2003)

15.08.020 Creation of water utility.
For the purpose of carrying out the provisions of this title, there is created and established a water
utility for the city. The city council is authorized to make funds available by appropriation,
borrowing, or by other means, in accordance with laws of the state, for the establishment,
maintenance, and operation of the water utility. (Ord. 1921-0518 (part), 2018; Ord. 1712-1207 § 1
(part), 2008: Ord. 1611-0104 § 2 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 2 (part), 2003)

15.08.030 Applicability.
The provisions of this title shall apply to all water services provided by the city, and to all work
performed that relates to the city’s water system. (Ord. 1712-1207 § 1 (part), 2008: Ord. 1611-0104
§ 2 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 2 (part), 2003)

15.08.040 Inspections.
A.    Duly authorized and properly identified city employees shall have the right to access any
customer’s premises at any reasonable time for the purpose of inspecting the water supply, piping
and plumbing; inspecting, testing or repairing city equipment; and for reading water meters.

The Shelton Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 1947-1119, and legislation passed through December 17, 2019.

Shelton Municipal Code Title 15 WATER Page 7 of 34



B.    Water service may be refused or discontinued, or a reduced pressure principle backflow
assembly may be installed at the owner’s expense, whenever the owner of any premises to which
water is provided by the city prevents or restrains authorized city personnel from making
necessary inspections. (Ord. 1712-1207 § 1 (part), 2008: Ord. 1611-0104 § 2 (part), 2004: Ord.
1581-0103 § 2 (part), 2003)

15.08.050 Water service required.
A.    Definitions.

1.    An “exempt well” is one that is exempt from the permitting requirements of the State
Department of Ecology pursuant to RCW 90.44.050.

2.    “Timely and reasonable water service” means that the city can immediately supply
enough water to meet the estimated demand of a property applying for a new water
connection, once a connection has been made from the property to the city’s water system.
The existence of a water main within three hundred feet of the property shall constitute
dispositive evidence that the city can provide timely and reasonable service, unless unique
topographic features make installation of water service cost prohibitive. However, the fact that
no water main lies within three hundred feet shall not be dispositive as to whether the city can
provide timely and reasonable service, because applicants for water service may reasonably
be required to install water facilities, including water mains, at their own expense and collect
reimbursements through latecomer agreements pursuant to Chapter 35.91 RCW.

B.    Subject to subsection D of this section, the owners of each lot or parcel of real property within
the city’s water service area shall, in conjunction with an application for a building permit, apply for
connection to be made at their own expense between the city’s water system and each premises,
building or structure requiring a building permit. A building permit application shall not be deemed
complete, and a building permit shall not be issued, until the complete application for a water
connection has been accepted by the city and determined to conform to all application
requirements.

C.    No person or corporation shall, after the effective date of the ordinance codified in this chapter,
drill, install, or cause to be drilled or installed an exempt well within the city unless the hearing
examiner finds that connection to the city water system is not required pursuant to subsection H of
this section. Such action shall be grounds for an immediate stop work order. Any violation of this
section or of the stop work order shall subject the offender to civil and criminal penalties pursuant
to Sections 15.32.050 and 15.32.060.

D.    This chapter is not intended to restrict the right of a property owner to continue use of an
existing exempt well, if the exempt well was supplying water to that property as of April 1, 2008.

E.    Exempt wells shall be decommissioned according to the regulations promulgated by the

The Shelton Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 1947-1119, and legislation passed through December 17, 2019.

Shelton Municipal Code Title 15 WATER Page 8 of 34



Washington State Department of Ecology within ten days of the property owner making a
connection to the city water system. The connection to the city’s water system shall be made in
accordance with all lawful requirements and at the property owner’s sole expense.

F.    No service connection shall be allowed between the city’s water system and any lot or parcel
of real property supplied by an existing exempt well unless all cross-connection controls are in
place according to Section 15.08.080 of the Shelton Municipal Code.

G.    Outside City Limits. Owners of parcels or lots outside city limits may request utility extension
according to Chapter 17.10 of the Shelton Municipal Code.

H.    Appeals. Pursuant to Chapter 2.36, an applicant may appeal to the hearing examiner any
requirement that he or she connect to the water system by completing in full the notice of appeal
form supplied by the public works department, supplying a copy of the same to the city clerk’s
office, and paying all applicable appeal fees. The public works department shall be responsible for
the appeal process. Such appeals shall be filed no later than fifteen calendar days following the
applicant’s filing of the application for a building permit. The hearing examiner shall hold a public
hearing and issue a written decision pursuant to Chapter 2.36. The hearing examiner may find that
an applicant is not required to connect to the water system only if he or she finds that either: (1) an
existing exempt well was supplying water to the property as of April 1, 2008; or (2) the city cannot
provide timely and reasonable water service to the premises, building or structure for which a
building permit is required. (Ord. 1712-1207 § 1 (part), 2008)

15.08.060 Hydrants—Authorized use.
It is unlawful for any person, other than authorized fire and public works personnel of the city, to
operate fire hydrants and hose outlets, unless proper arrangements have been made for payment
for such use and permission has been granted by the city. (Ord. 1712-1207 § 1 (part), 2008: Ord.
1611-0104 § 2 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 2 (part), 2003. Formerly 15.08.050)

15.08.070 Emergency interruption of service—Interruption in service.
A.    In case of emergency, or whenever the public health, safety, or the equitable distribution of
water so demands, the city may alter, reduce or limit the time for, or temporarily discontinue any
customer’s use of water. Water service may be temporarily interrupted for purposes of making
repairs, extending service, or performing other necessary work.

B.    Before altering, reducing, limiting or interrupting the use of water, the city will notify, insofar as
is practicable, all water customers affected.

C.    The city will not be responsible for any damage resulting from the interruption, alteration or
failure of the water supply service. (Ord. 1712-1207 § 1 (part), 2008: Ord. 1611-0104 § 2 (part),
2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 2 (part), 2003. Formerly 15.08.060)

15.08.080 Cross-connection.

The Shelton Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 1947-1119, and legislation passed through December 17, 2019.

Shelton Municipal Code Title 15 WATER Page 9 of 34



A.    The standards for control or elimination of cross-connections shall be in accordance with the
Washington Administrative Code (WAC 246-290-490) as now or hereafter amended. The director of
public works may establish administrative policies and procedures as necessary to implement the
provisions of this section and amend as necessary to comply with state statutes.

B.    Any such cross-connection now existing or hereafter installed is declared a nuisance and shall
be abated immediately. Water service will be discontinued to any premises for failure to comply
with the provisions of this section.

C.    Furnishing water service is contingent upon the customer providing cross-connection control
approved by the city for protecting the city water supply from backflow. (Ord. 1788-0811, 2011:
Ord. 1712-1207 § 1 (part), 2008: Ord. 1611-0104 § 2 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 2 (part), 2003.
Formerly 15.08.070)

15.08.090 City not liable for damages.
A.    The city shall not be liable for damages, nor will allowances be made for loss of production,
sales or service, in case the city’s source of water supply or means of distribution fails or is
curtailed, suspended, interrupted or interfered with, or for any cause unless the city shall do, cause
to be done or permit to be done any act, matter or thing prohibited, forbidden or declared to be
unlawful, or shall omit to do any act, matter or thing required to be done by any law of this state.
Any such pressure variation, failure, curtailment, suspension, interruption or interference shall not
be held to constitute a breach of contract on the part of the city, or in any way affect any liability for
payment for water made available on or before the date of such occurrence.

B.    The city shall not be liable for any personal or property damage caused by any failure of the
city’s water system except where such failure is due to the sole negligence of the city. (Ord. 1712-
1207 § 1 (part), 2008: Ord. 1611-0104 § 2 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 2 (part), 2003. Formerly
15.08.080)

The Shelton Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 1947-1119, and legislation passed through December 17, 2019.

Shelton Municipal Code Title 15 WATER Page 10 of 34



Chapter 15.12
CONNECTIONS

Sections:
15.12.010    Connection made by authorized representatives—Connection charges.

15.12.020    Permit application and issuance.

15.12.030    Permit duration.

15.12.040    Conditions applicable to all water service connections.

15.12.050    Water service easements—When required.

15.12.060    Conditions applicable to new or modified water service connections.

15.12.070    Ownership of permanent facilities.

15.12.080    Owner’s service piping specifications.

15.12.090    Plumbing specifications.

15.12.100    Lawn sprinkler specifications.

15.12.110    Fire protection service.

15.12.010 Connection made by authorized representatives—Connection charges.
A.    No person other than authorized personnel of the city, or a properly permitted, licensed and
bonded contractor who is approved by the city, shall make any connection to or opening into, use,
alter, or disturb any part of the city water system or appurtenance thereto without the express
consent of the city, after obtaining any applicable permits the city requires. Any work performed on
city water utilities must be witnessed by a representative of the city.

B.    All charges incurred in establishing a connection to the city’s water system shall be at the sole
expense of the applicant.

C.    The charges for connection to the city’s water system shall be as established by the city
council and may be amended by the council from time to time, as necessary.

D.    The director of public works may establish administrative policies and procedures as
necessary to implement the provisions of this section. (Ord. 1921-0518 (part), 2018; Ord. 1902-
0717 § 1, 2017: Ord. 1611-0104 § 3 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 3 (part), 2003)

15.12.020 Permit application and issuance.
A.    An application for a permit shall be made by the owner of the property on which the work is to
be performed or by a properly licensed and bonded contractor representing the owner.

The Shelton Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 1947-1119, and legislation passed through December 17, 2019.

Shelton Municipal Code Title 15 WATER Page 11 of 34



B.    The permit application shall include such information as may be required by the city for
determination as to whether the proposed work conforms to the requirements of this title and any
other applicable city rules, regulations and/or standards.

C.    The permit application shall be accompanied by the permit fee established by the city council.

D.    If the city determines that the work conforms to all existing ordinances, rules, regulations and
standards, and if all fees have been properly paid, the permit for such work may be issued.

E.    The application, once approved by the city, shall constitute a binding obligation whereby the
owner agrees on behalf of him/herself and all successors in interest to conform to the provisions of
this title and any other applicable rules and regulations as now enacted or hereafter amended. (Ord.
1921-0518 (part), 2018; Ord. 1611-0104 § 3 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 3 (part), 2003)

15.12.030 Permit duration.
A permit issued under this title shall be valid for a period of ninety days unless extended or
renewed by the city prior to permit expiration. (Ord. 1611-0104 § 3 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 3
(part), 2003)

15.12.040 Conditions applicable to all water service connections.
A.    All service connections shall be metered.

B.    Each building, structure, or premises served must have a separate connection to the main,
unless special circumstances exist and the city approves a waiver of the separate connection
requirement.

C.    Water will not be provided to more than one customer or building, structure or premises
through a single service connection, and separate service applications are required for each
premises. If the city discovers service is provided to more than one customer, building, structure,
or premises through a single service connection, the city shall require the installation of a new
service.

D.    When any building, structure, or premises for which service is sought fails to abut a main with
sufficient pressure and capacity to provide the required flow at the property line, the application for
service shall be rejected.

E.    No application for water service will be accepted or approved for locations outside of the city
water service area.

F.    Water customers are prohibited from furnishing water to anyone beyond the customer building,
structure, or premises of record at the city, except that which has been approved by the city, or in
the case of emergency. Such emergency service shall not continue for a period of more than thirty
days and an application for emergency service shall be made to the city within forty-eight hours of

The Shelton Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 1947-1119, and legislation passed through December 17, 2019.

Shelton Municipal Code Title 15 WATER Page 12 of 34



the onset of the emergency.

G.    A request for a change in the size or location of a service connection shall be treated as a
request for new service.

H.    A change of use of any served building, structure or premises will require a new service
connection, unless the existing service is adequate for the changed use, as determined by the city.

I.    Each commercial structure shall have no more than one connection to the water system, even
if the structure is divided into components or individual dwelling units. (Ord. 1729-0608 § 7, 2008:
Ord. 1611-0104 § 3 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 3 (part), 2003)

15.12.050 Water service easements—When required.
A.    Before water service may be located on property other than that of the water service owner,
and before the city issues a permit authorizing the water service, the owner of the water service
shall secure a written easement from the owner of the property to be crossed. The easement shall
be duly acknowledged and shall grant the right to occupy the property for water service or utility
purposes. The easement shall be recorded in the office of the county auditor by the owner of the
water service and the recording number shall be provided to the city.

B.    Where water service is to be connected and/or located in the city right-of-way, written
permission for such connection and/or location must be obtained from the city before a permit
authorizing such connection is issued. (Ord. 1611-0104 § 3 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 3 (part),
2003)

15.12.060 Conditions applicable to new or modified water service connections.
When buildings are replaced by new buildings, the existing water service connection shall not be
used, unless the city determines that such connection is acceptable. The customer shall be
required to bear the cost of installing a new water service connection in accordance with the terms
of this title when the existing water service is determined by the city not to be acceptable for use.
(Ord. 1902-0717 § 2, 2017: Ord. 1611-0104 § 3 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 3 (part), 2003)

15.12.070 Ownership of permanent facilities.
A.    The ownership of all water mains and service connections in the public right-of-way shall be
solely vested in the city, except those mains which are designated as private mains.

B.    The ownership and responsibility for the maintenance of individual service pipe extensions
from the meter to the premises served shall be that of the owner of the premises served and the
city shall not be liable for any part thereof. (Ord. 1611-0104 § 3 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 3
(part), 2003)

15.12.080 Owner’s service piping specifications.
A.    All water service piping from the water meter to the premises shall be sized, installed, properly

The Shelton Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 1947-1119, and legislation passed through December 17, 2019.

Shelton Municipal Code Title 15 WATER Page 13 of 34



permitted, and inspected as required by the city’s plumbing code.

B.    Valves or customer-owned equipment are not permitted to be installed within the city’s water
meter box, unless approved by the city.

C.    The city may require any customer to install a pressure-reducing valve, backflow prevention
device, pressure relief valve or similar device at any location where the city determines the need to
protect the city’s water system. (Ord. 1611-0104 § 3 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 3 (part), 2003)

15.12.090 Plumbing specifications.
A.    All persons installing fixtures or appliances to be supplied water from the city water mains
shall be subject to the applicable requirements of the city’s plumbing code.

B.    The city shall have the right to refuse or discontinue water service in any situation where it is
discovered that applicable city standards and codes have not been complied with in making any
installation.

C.    Persons installing, adding, or making repairs to existing plumbing systems shall not use the
city’s meter valve but, instead, shall call for an activation or deactivation as directed under this title.
(Ord. 1611-0104 § 3 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 3 (part), 2003)

15.12.100 Lawn sprinkler specifications.
A.    A lawn sprinkler system connected to any city water connection shall be sized, installed,
properly permitted, and inspected as required by the city’s plumbing code.

B.    Water service may be refused for existing lawn sprinkler systems that are not installed in
accordance with the city’s plumbing code and for systems that may present a danger to the
operation of the city’s water supply system.

C.    All lawn sprinkler connections shall comply with applicable state and local cross-connection
control rules and regulations. (Ord. 1611-0104 § 3 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 3 (part), 2003)

15.12.110 Fire protection service.
A.    A water service connection to be used solely for fire protection purposes may be installed to
service any premises subject to the provisions of this title.

B.    Fire protection systems shall be installed in accordance with regulations established by the
city including all city building, fire and related codes.

C.    Plans of the proposed fire protection system shall be submitted and approved as required by
the city prior to construction.

D.    Fire protection systems shall be maintained by the customer in a manner approved by the city.
Delinquency in payment of expense for fire protection services or failure of the customer to follow

The Shelton Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 1947-1119, and legislation passed through December 17, 2019.

Shelton Municipal Code Title 15 WATER Page 14 of 34



the regulations set forth by the city shall be sufficient cause for the city to file a lien on the property
and/or discontinue all water service to the property. (Ord. 1611-0104 § 3 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-
0103 § 3 (part), 2003)

The Shelton Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 1947-1119, and legislation passed through December 17, 2019.

Shelton Municipal Code Title 15 WATER Page 15 of 34



Chapter 15.16
WATER SERVICE ACTIVATION AND DEACTIVATION

Sections:
15.16.010    Unauthorized activation or deactivation.

15.16.020    Activation or deactivation during city business hours.

15.16.030    Activation or deactivation after city business hours.

15.16.040    Activation, deactivation—Liability disclaimer.

15.16.050    Disconnection of service—Condemned buildings.

15.16.010 Unauthorized activation or deactivation.
A.    It is unlawful for any person, except an authorized city employee, to activate or deactivate the
water supply to any premises by using the city’s shutoff valve.

B.    Upon discovery that an illegal activation or deactivation has occurred, the city may disconnect
the water service to the responsible customer’s premises until all costs including any damage
costs have been paid to the city by the responsible customer. (Ord. 1611-0104 § 4 (part), 2004:
Ord. 1581-0103 § 4 (part), 2003)

15.16.020 Activation or deactivation during city business hours.
Whenever a request is made of the city for an activation or deactivation or temporary disconnect of
water service which necessitates immediate action during city business hours, a charge will be
assessed by the city for such service and will be placed on the customer’s account. The charge for
such activation or deactivation will be established by the city council. (Ord. 1924-0618 § 1, 2018:
Ord. 1611-0104 § 4 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 4 (part), 2003)

15.16.030 Activation or deactivation after city business hours.
Whenever a request is made of the city for an activation or deactivation or temporary disconnect of
water service which necessitates immediate action after city business hours, a charge will be
assessed by the city for such service and will be placed on the customer’s account. The charge for
such activation or deactivation will be established by the city council. (Ord. 1921-0518 (part), 2018;
Ord. 1611-0104 § 4 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 4 (part), 2003)

15.16.040 Activation, deactivation—Liability disclaimer.
The city shall not be liable for any damage to persons or property resulting from any activation or
deactivation of water service including, but not limited to, situations where the water service is left
on between a change of customer occupying the premises, when such activity is at the request of
the customer or the service is disconnected for nonpayment or lack of a water service contract with
the city. (Ord. 1611-0104 § 4 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 4 (part), 2003)

The Shelton Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 1947-1119, and legislation passed through December 17, 2019.

Shelton Municipal Code Title 15 WATER Page 16 of 34



15.16.050 Disconnection of service—Condemned buildings.
Whenever a premises supplied by city water has been condemned by the proper authorities, and
notice of such condemnation has been forwarded to the city, the city shall disconnect the water
service to such premises. Water service shall not be restored to the premises until the owner or
his/her agent has secured a release from the proper authorities stating that such building is no
longer considered condemned. (Ord. 1611-0104 § 4 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 4 (part), 2003)

The Shelton Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 1947-1119, and legislation passed through December 17, 2019.

Shelton Municipal Code Title 15 WATER Page 17 of 34



Chapter 15.20
WATER METERS

Sections:
15.20.010    Meter ownership and installation.

15.20.020    Meter exchange and reinstallation.

15.20.030    Meter maintenance and repair.

15.20.040    Customer water meter leak and repair.

15.20.050    Meter tests and bill adjustments.

15.20.010 Meter ownership and installation.
All meters installed on water service connections by the city shall be and remain the property of the
city and shall be removed only by authorized city personnel. (Ord. 1611-0104 § 5 (part), 2004: Ord.
1581-0103 § 5 (part), 2003)

15.20.020 Meter exchange and reinstallation.
A.    Whenever the owner of any premises desires to change the size of a meter, an application
shall be made to the city and, upon approval, the exchange will be made at the expense of the
owner.

B.    The city will notify the owner or occupant of the serviced premises whenever a meter is
overloaded and demand exceeds its rated capacity to the extent that the meter may become
damaged. After evaluating the premises requirements, the city shall advise the owner or occupant
of what size meter is necessary to give proper service without damage to the meter. At no charge,
the city shall provide an estimate of costs to install a larger meter. If the owner or occupant does
not make the required deposit for installation of the larger meter within thirty days after the date of
notice, then the city may choose to either install the proper size meter and charge the total cost to
the owner’s account or discontinue service. (Ord. 1611-0104 § 5 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 5
(part), 2003)

15.20.030 Meter maintenance and repair.
A.    The city will maintain and repair all water service meters and will periodically replace meters
when a meter is rendered unserviceable due to ordinary use.

B.    When replacement or repairs to any meter are necessary because of the willful act, neglect or
carelessness of the owner or occupant of the premises served, all expenses for such replacement
shall be borne by the owner or occupant of such premises. Failure to pay any of the expenses
incurred shall result in disconnection of water service to the premises until such expenses are paid.
(Ord. 1611-0104 § 5 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 5 (part), 2003)

The Shelton Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 1947-1119, and legislation passed through December 17, 2019.

Shelton Municipal Code Title 15 WATER Page 18 of 34



15.20.040 Customer water meter leak and repair.
If the customer discovers and repairs a leak in a timely manner to any plumbing on his/her
premises, the customer may, upon submission of proper documentation to the city of such repairs,
request a credit for up to four months of excess consumption. A determination of the applicable
credit amount is at the sole discretion of the city. (Ord. 1611-0104 § 5 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103
§ 5 (part), 2003)

15.20.050 Meter tests and bill adjustments.
A.    Upon request from the customer, based upon a complaint that the bill for any period has been
excessive, the city shall have the meter re-read.

B.    If the customer wishes the meter to be tested for accuracy, the customer shall provide a
written request for such test along with a fifty dollar deposit to the city. The customer may include
in the request that he/she would like to be present when the meter is tested. In the event the test
discloses an error of more than three percent in favor of the city, the deposit shall be refunded to
the customer and the city will credit the customer’s account for the excess overage for up to four
months. The city will promptly install a correct registering meter at that location. When the test
discloses either no error or an error of three percent or less, the amount of deposit will be retained
by the city to cover part of the cost of such test and all charges shall remain as billed. (Ord. 1611-
0104 § 5 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 5 (part), 2003)

The Shelton Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 1947-1119, and legislation passed through December 17, 2019.

Shelton Municipal Code Title 15 WATER Page 19 of 34



Chapter 15.24
WATER MAINS AND MAIN EXTENSIONS

Sections:
15.24.010    When required.

15.24.020    Application.

15.24.030    Extensions—Preparation of plans and specifications.

15.24.040    Inspection fees.

15.24.050    Acceptance of main extension.

15.24.060    Extension—Construction drawings.

15.24.070    Main extensions deeded to the city.

15.24.080    Construction of main extensions.

15.24.090    Oversizing mains.

15.24.100    Temporary mains.

15.24.110    Latecomer agreement.

15.24.120    City contribution to developer-initiated public projects.

15.24.130    Water line extensions outside city limits.

15.24.010 When required.
A.    A main extension shall be required whenever the property to be served fails to abut a water
main, or the existing main is inadequate to provide the necessary water pressure or flow
characteristics.

B.    All main extensions shall extend to and across the full width of the property served with water,
unless otherwise approved by the city. Corner lots shall extend to the middle of the intersection.
(Ord. 1611-0104 § 6 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 6 (part), 2003)

15.24.020 Application.
A.    The person desiring a main extension shall apply to the city requesting permission to extend
the city’s water system.

B.    The city will review the application and, if the requested extension is determined to be a proper
extension of the water system, will provide the petitioner with the design requirements for the
extension.

The Shelton Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 1947-1119, and legislation passed through December 17, 2019.

Shelton Municipal Code Title 15 WATER Page 20 of 34



C.    If the requested main extension is determined to be an improper extension of the water
system, the application will be denied. (Ord. 1611-0104 § 6 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 6 (part),
2003)

15.24.030 Extensions—Preparation of plans and specifications.
Upon receipt of the design requirements from the city, the petitioner shall prepare plans and
specifications for the extension. All design and construction plans and specifications shall be in
accordance with American Public Works Association standards adopted by the city. The completed
plans and specifications must bear a licensed professional engineer’s seal and endorsement valid
in the state of Washington, and shall be submitted to the city for review and approval. The petitioner
will be responsible for the cost of plan review by the city, as established by the city council. (Ord.
1921-0518 (part), 2018; Ord. 1611-0104 § 6 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 6 (part), 2003)

15.24.040 Inspection fees.
The petitioner shall be responsible for payment of inspection fees for the main extension, as
established by the city council. (Ord. 1921-0518 (part), 2018; Ord. 1611-0104 § 6 (part), 2004: Ord.
1581-0103 § 6 (part), 2003)

15.24.050 Acceptance of main extension.
A.    The city reserves the right to reject any installation not inspected and approved by the city.

B.    Upon satisfactory completion of all required tests and acceptance of the main extension, the
city shall cause the extension to be connected to the city system. All costs incurred in such
connection(s), including overhead and administrative charges, shall be the responsibility of the
petitioner.

C.    No main extension shall be put into service, other than for test purposes by duly authorized
personnel, until the main extension has been accepted by the city and all fees and charges have
been paid. (Ord. 1611-0104 § 6 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 6 (part), 2003)

15.24.060 Extension—Construction drawings.
A.    Upon completion of a main extension, the petitioner shall provide the city a reproducible mylar
drawing that accurately indicates the main extension and appurtenances “as-built” in plan and
profile.

B.    No main extension will be accepted until satisfactory “as-built” drawings are provided. (Ord.
1611-0104 § 6 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 6 (part), 2003)

15.24.070 Main extensions deeded to the city.
The permit holder shall provide the city with a deed of conveyance and bill of sale for all main
extensions as a condition to the city’s acceptance of the main extensions. (Ord. 1611-0104 § 6
(part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 6 (part), 2003)

The Shelton Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 1947-1119, and legislation passed through December 17, 2019.

Shelton Municipal Code Title 15 WATER Page 21 of 34



15.24.080 Construction of main extensions.
A.    Main extensions must be performed by a contractor properly licensed and bonded in the state
of Washington, through a local improvement district procedure, or as otherwise approved by the
city.

B.    Anyone performing main extensions must be pre-approved by the city.

C.    Any main extensions performed by the city shall be at the sole expense of the person
requesting construction of the main.

D.    All main extensions must be on the city’s frontage of the applicant’s property, other public
right-of-way, or other city-approved easement. (Ord. 1611-0104 § 6 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103
§ 6 (part), 2003)

15.24.090 Oversizing mains.
The city may require that any water main be oversized if the city determines that oversizing will be
in the best interest of the city’s water system, and the larger size is reflected in the city’s water
comprehensive plan. (Ord. 1611-0104 § 6 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 6 (part), 2003)

15.24.100 Temporary mains.
No temporary main shall be permitted to be installed as a part of the city’s water system unless
such main is approved and authorized by the city. (Ord. 1611-0104 § 6 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103
§ 6 (part), 2003)

15.24.110 Latecomer agreement.
Any person wishing to extend the city’s water facilities shall enter into a utility extension agreement
with the city. The city reserves the right to refuse proposed extensions on the grounds that they are
not feasible, practical, economically prudent, or environmentally appropriate. Any extensions to the
water facilities shall be dedicated to the city. Persons who extend the city’s water facilities may
request a latecomer agreement consistent with Chapter 17.14. (Ord. 1856-0814 § 2, 2014: Ord.
1611-0104 § 6 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 6 (part), 2003)

15.24.120 City contribution to developer-initiated public projects.
Projects proposed by private developers that provide benefit to the existing water system may be
evaluated by the city council at a developer’s request to determine whether it is in the best interest
of the public for the city to contribute funds or resources to the project. The council will base their
decision on guidelines outlined and established in a written policy. (Ord. 1921-0518 (part), 2018;
Ord. 1611-0104 § 6 (part), 2004)

15.24.130 Water line extensions outside city limits.
No person shall extend water lines outside city limits except according to Chapter 17.10 of this
code. (Ord. 1690-0107 § 3, 2007)

The Shelton Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 1947-1119, and legislation passed through December 17, 2019.

Shelton Municipal Code Title 15 WATER Page 22 of 34



Chapter 15.28
WATER SERVICE—RATES AND CHARGES

Sections:
15.28.010    Monthly water rates.

15.28.020    Schedule 1: Meter charge.

15.28.030    Schedule 2: Single-family residential.

15.28.040    Schedule 3: Multifamily (including duplexes, triplexes, mobile home and trailer
parks).

15.28.050    Schedule 4: Commercial (including government, industrial, hotel/motel).

15.28.060    Schedule 5: Irrigation.

15.28.065    Schedule 6: Wholesale rate.

15.28.070    Schedule 7: Standby fire protection service.

15.28.085    Schedule 8: Regional plan partners.

15.28.090    Service to construction sites.

15.28.100    New accounts.

15.28.110    Rate computation.

15.28.120    Appeals.

15.28.130    Billing—Payment—Liens.

15.28.140    Rates, charges and classifications.

15.28.010 Monthly water rates.
The following rates shall be charged by the city for furnishing water service. (Ord. 1916-0118 § 1
(part), 2018: Ord. 1685-1106 § 1 (part), 2006: Ord. 1672-0206 § 1 (part), 2006: Ord. 1670-0206 § 1
(part), 2006: Ord. 1611-0104 § 7 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 7 (part), 2003)

15.28.020 Schedule 1: Meter charge.
A.    Meter Charge. Each account that is served shall pay a monthly water meter charge in each of
the following years as follows:

2018: 

Private fire

The Shelton Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 1947-1119, and legislation passed through December 17, 2019.

Shelton Municipal Code Title 15 WATER Page 23 of 34



Meter Size Single-family Multifamily Commercial Irrigation line*

3/4-inch $11.66 $10.29 $9.93 $30.81 $7.46

1-inch $15.15 $12.84 $12.27 $47.14 $8.92

1-1/4-inch $18.82 $15.36 $14.51 $66.72 $10.20

1-1/2-inch $22.51 $17.89 $16.73 $86.27 $11.48

2-inch $33.68 $26.30 $24.46 $135.75 $16.47

2-1/2-inch N/A N/A N/A N/A $29.92

3-inch $82.96 $68.17 $64.50 $287.30 $45.66

4-inch $115.38 $92.27 $86.52 $434.63 $59.70

6-inch $200.38 $154.17 $142.68 $838.67 $94.53

8-inch $300.87 $226.96 $208.58 $1,322.21 $135.21

10-inch $452.58 $346.34 $319.90 $1,920.92 $210.76

12-inch $692.60 $536.68 $497.90 $2,847.12 $332.54

2019: 

Meter Size Single-family Multifamily Commercial Irrigation
Private fire

line*

3/4-inch $12.83 $11.31 $10.93 $33.89 $8.20

1-inch $16.66 $14.12 $13.49 $51.85 $9.81

1-1/4-inch $20.70 $16.89 $15.96 $73.39 $11.22

1-1/2-inch $24.76 $19.67 $18.40 $94.90 $12.63

2-inch $37.05 $28.93 $26.91 $149.33 $18.11

2-1/2-inch N/A N/A N/A N/A $32.91

3-inch $91.26 $74.98 $70.95 $316.03 $50.23

4-inch $126.92 $101.49 $95.17 $478.10 $65.67

6-inch $220.41 $169.58 $156.95 $922.54 $103.99

8-inch $330.96 $249.66 $229.44 $1,454.43 $148.73

10-inch $497.84 $380.97 $351.89 $2,113.01 $231.84

12-inch $761.86 $590.35 $547.69 $3,131.83 $365.80

2020: 

Private fire

The Shelton Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 1947-1119, and legislation passed through December 17, 2019.

Shelton Municipal Code Title 15 WATER Page 24 of 34



Meter Size Single-family Multifamily Commercial Irrigation line*

3/4-inch $14.11 $12.44 $12.02 $37.28 $9.02

1-inch $18.33 $15.53 $14.84 $57.03 $10.79

1-1/4-inch $22.77 $18.58 $17.56 $80.73 $12.34

1-1/2-inch $27.23 $21.64 $20.24 $104.39 $13.90

2-inch $40.76 $31.82 $29.60 $164.26 $19.93

2-1/2-inch N/A N/A N/A N/A $36.20

3-inch $100.38 $82.48 $78.05 $347.63 $55.25

4-inch $139.61 $111.64 $104.68 $525.90 $72.23

6-inch $242.45 $186.54 $172.64 $1,014.79 $114.39

8-inch $364.06 $274.63 $252.38 $1,599.88 $163.61

10-inch $547.63 $419.07 $387.08 $2,324.31 $255.02

12-inch $838.05 $649.38 $602.46 $3,445.01 $402.37

2021: 

Meter Size Single-family Multifamily Commercial Irrigation
Private fire

line*

3/4-inch $15.52 $13.69 $13.22 $41.01 $9.93

1-inch $20.16 $17.09 $16.32 $62.74 $11.87

1-1/4-inch $25.05 $20.44 $19.31 $88.80 $13.57

1-1/2-inch $29.96 $23.81 $22.27 $114.83 $15.29

2-inch $44.83 $35.01 $32.56 $180.68 $21.92

2-1/2-inch N/A N/A N/A N/A $39.82

3-inch $110.42 $90.73 $85.85 $382.39 $60.77

4-inch $153.57 $122.81 $115.15 $578.50 $79.46

6-inch $266.70 $205.19 $189.91 $1,116.27 $125.82

8-inch $400.46 $302.09 $277.62 $1,759.86 $179.97

10-inch $602.39 $460.97 $425.79 $2,556.74 $280.52

12-inch $921.86 $714.32 $662.71 $3,789.52 $442.61

2022: 

Private fire

The Shelton Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 1947-1119, and legislation passed through December 17, 2019.

Shelton Municipal Code Title 15 WATER Page 25 of 34



Meter Size Single-family Multifamily Commercial Irrigation line*

3/4-inch $15.99 $14.10 $13.62 $42.24 $10.22

1-inch $20.77 $17.60 $16.81 $64.62 $12.23

1-1/4-inch $25.80 $21.05 $19.89 $91.46 $13.98

1-1/2-inch $30.85 $24.52 $22.94 $118.27 $15.74

2-inch $46.18 $36.06 $33.54 $186.11 $22.58

2-1/2-inch N/A N/A N/A N/A $41.02

3-inch $113.74 $93.45 $88.43 $393.87 $62.60

4-inch $158.18 $126.49 $118.61 $595.85 $81.84

6-inch $274.70 $211.35 $195.61 $1,149.76 $129.60

8-inch $412.47 $311.15 $285.95 $1,812.66 $185.37

10-inch $620.46 $474.80 $438.56 $2,633.45 $288.94

12-inch $949.51 $735.75 $682.59 $3,903.20 $455.89

2023: 

Meter Size Single-family Multifamily Commercial Irrigation
Private fire

line*

3/4-inch $16.46 $14.52 $14.03 $43.51 $10.53

1-inch $21.39 $18.13 $17.32 $66.56 $12.60

1-1/4-inch $26.58 $21.68 $20.49 $94.21 $14.40

1-1/2-inch $31.78 $25.26 $23.63 $121.82 $16.22

2-inch $47.56 $37.14 $34.54 $191.69 $23.25

2-1/2-inch N/A N/A N/A N/A $42.25

3-inch $117.15 $96.26 $91.08 $405.68 $64.48

4-inch $162.92 $130.29 $122.16 $613.73 $84.30

6-inch $282.94 $217.69 $201.47 $1,184.25 $133.49

8-inch $424.85 $320.48 $294.53 $1,867.04 $190.93

10-inch $639.07 $489.05 $451.72 $2,712.45 $297.61

12-inch $978.00 $757.82 $703.07 $4,020.30 $469.57

*    Private fire lines will be rated based on the size of the backflow prevention device in lieu of a
meter size and fire line charges will be collected only prospectively beginning with the January

The Shelton Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 1947-1119, and legislation passed through December 17, 2019.

Shelton Municipal Code Title 15 WATER Page 26 of 34



2018 billings.

(Ord. 1916-0118 § 1 (part), 2018: Ord. 1910-1217 § 1 (part), 2017: Ord. 1886-0916 § 4 (part),
2016: Ord. 1881-0116 § 4 (part), 2016: Ord. 1857-0814 § 1, 2014: Ord. 1852-0614 § 1 (part),
2014: Ord. 1782-0311 § 1 (part), 2011)

15.28.030 Schedule 2: Single-family residential.
A.    Consumption Charge for First Six Hundred Cubic Feet. In addition to the meter charge
established in Schedule 1 above, each single-family residential unit shall pay the following rate for
each cubic foot of water consumed up to the first six hundred cubic feet in a month in each of the
following years:

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

$0.0244 $0.0269 $0.0295 $0.0325 $0.0335 $0.0345

B.    Consumption Charge for Amounts in Excess of Six Hundred and up to One Thousand Five
Hundred Cubic Feet. In addition to the meter charge established in Schedule 1 above, and the
charge established in Schedule 2.A above, each single-family residential unit shall also pay the
following rate for each cubic foot consumed in a month in excess of six hundred cubic feet up to
one thousand five hundred cubic feet in each of the following years:

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

$0.0293 $0.0322 $0.0354 $0.0389 $0.0401 $0.0413

C.    Consumption Charge for Amounts in Excess of One Thousand Five Hundred Cubic Feet. In
addition to the meter charge established in Schedule 1 above, the charge established in Schedule
2.A above, and the charge established in Schedule 2.B above, each single-family residential unit
shall also pay the following rate for each cubic foot consumed in a month in excess of one thousand
five hundred cubic feet in each of the following years:

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

$0.0363 $0.0399 $0.0439 $0.0483 $0.0498 $0.0513

D.    Senior Citizen and Disability Discounts. Eligible low-income senior citizens and disabled
persons living in single-family residences shall receive a discount of seventeen percent of the basic
meter charge per month as established in Schedule 1 above. Eligibility shall be determined
according to criteria established by the city in the city’s sole discretion. (Ord. 1916-0118 § 1 (part),
2018: Ord. 1910-1217 § 1 (part), 2017: Ord. 1886-0916 § 4 (part), 2016: Ord. 1881-0116 § 4 (part),
2016: Ord. 1852-0614 § 1 (part), 2014: Ord. 1782-0311 § 1 (part), 2011)

15.28.040 Schedule 3: Multifamily (including duplexes, triplexes, mobile home and trailer
parks).

The Shelton Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 1947-1119, and legislation passed through December 17, 2019.

Shelton Municipal Code Title 15 WATER Page 27 of 34



A.    Multifamily Consumption Charge. In addition to the charges established in Schedule 1 above,
each account shall pay the following rate for each cubic foot consumed in a month in each of the
following years:

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

$0.0284 $0.0312 $0.0343 $0.0378 $0.0389 $0.0401

(Ord. 1916-0118 § 1 (part), 2018: Ord. 1910-1217 § 1 (part), 2017: Ord. 1886-0916 § 4 (part),
2016: Ord. 1884-0116 § 4 (part), 2016: Ord. 1852-0614 § 1 (part), 2014: Ord. 1782-0311 § 1
(part), 2011)

15.28.050 Schedule 4: Commercial (including government, industrial, hotel/motel).
A.    Commercial Consumption Charge. In addition to the meter charge established in Schedule 1
above, each commercial account shall pay the following amount for each cubic foot consumed in a
month in each of the following years:

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

$0.0279 $0.0307 $0.0338 $0.0372 $0.0383 $0.0395

B.    The following provisions shall apply to industrial services, as defined in Section 15.04.160,
located in the city or in any outlying area where industrial accounts are served by the city:

1.    All costs incurred in connection and installation of meters and service connections will be
borne by the industrial services user;

2.    Any water supplied to an industrial services user is subject to immediate deactivation
when it is determined by the director that an emergency warrants this action;

3.    The rate to be charged industrial services shall be computed on a monthly basis
consistent with the commercial rates established above. (Ord. 1916-0118 § 1 (part), 2018:
Ord. 1910-1217 § 1 (part), 2017: Ord. 1852-0614 § 1 (part), 2014: Ord. 1782-0311 § 1 (part),
2011)

15.28.060 Schedule 5: Irrigation.
A.    Irrigation Consumption Charge. In addition to the meter charge established in Schedule 1
above, each irrigation account shall pay the following amount for each cubic foot consumed in a
month in each of the following years:

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

$0.0363 $0.0399 $0.0439 $0.0483 $0.0498 $0.0513

(Ord. 1916-0118 § 1 (part), 2018: Ord. 1910-1217 § 1 (part), 2017: Ord. 1852-0614 § 1 (part),
2014: Ord. 1782-0311 § 1 (part), 2011)

The Shelton Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 1947-1119, and legislation passed through December 17, 2019.

Shelton Municipal Code Title 15 WATER Page 28 of 34



15.28.065 Schedule 6: Wholesale rate.
A.    Wholesale Consumption Rate Charge. In addition to the meter charge established in Schedule
1 above, the Johns Prairie area owned by the Port of Shelton shall pay the following amount for
each cubic foot consumed in a month in each of the following years:

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

$0.0252 $0.0277 $0.0305 $0.0335 $0.0345 $0.0356

(Ord. 1916-0118 § 1 (part), 2018: Ord. 1910-1217 § 1 (part), 2017: Ord. 1852-0614 § 1 (part),
2014: Ord. 1782-0311 § 1 (part), 2011)

15.28.070 Schedule 7: Standby fire protection service.
Where fire service is available, no charge will be made for water used in extinguishing fires of
incendiary or accidental origin. (Ord. 1852-0614 § 1 (part), 2014: Ord. 1782-0311 § 1 (part), 2011)

15.28.085 Schedule 8: Regional plan partners.
Under the provisions of the regional water and wastewater plan, the city provides water services to
the Washington State Patrol and the Washington Corrections Center under a separate utility service
agreement approved by the council. Rates and charges for water services applicable to the regional

plan partners are set forth in this agreement.1 (Ord. 1921-0518 (part), 2018; Ord. 1852-0614 § 1
(part), 2014: Ord. 1782-0311 § 1 (part), 2011)

15.28.090 Service to construction sites.
Water for construction or other uses may be made available by fire hydrants; provided, that the
contractor or person seeking water service first makes application to the city and the city approves
such use. The city shall establish reasonable rules and regulations for fire hydrant use including
cross-control protection, hours of hydrant use and any other applicable conditions. The applicant
shall indicate the estimated usage, hydrant location and duration of usage. The city has the right to
deny any application it determines is not in the best interest of the city to approve. The permit and
water usage fees shall be established by the city council. The city shall not be liable for any
damage resulting from a lack of water to any site, including, but not limited to, situations in which
the city has denied access to use or limited use of a fire hydrant. (Ord. 1921-0518 (part), 2018;
Ord. 1685-1106 § 1 (part), 2006: Ord. 1672-0206 § 1 (part), 2006: Ord. 1670-0206 § 1 (part), 2006:
Ord. 1611-0104 § 7 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 7 (part), 2003)

15.28.100 New accounts.
All new accounts shall be subject to the applicable rules and regulations set forth by the finance
department regarding accounts relating to utilities. (Ord. 1685-1106 § 1 (part), 2006: Ord. 1672-
0206 § 1 (part), 2006: Ord. 1670-0206 § 1 (part), 2006: Ord. 1611-0104 § 7 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-
0103 § 7 (part), 2003)

The Shelton Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 1947-1119, and legislation passed through December 17, 2019.

Shelton Municipal Code Title 15 WATER Page 29 of 34



15.28.110 Rate computation.
In the computation of charges for water metered to any user, the cubic feet shall be rounded off to
the next highest cubic foot. (Ord. 1685-1106 § 1 (part), 2006: Ord. 1672-0206 § 1 (part), 2006: Ord.
1670-0206 § 1 (part), 2006: Ord. 1611-0104 § 7 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 7 (part), 2003)

15.28.120 Appeals.
A.    Any customer who believes that an assessed user charge, billing or notice of delinquency is
out of compliance with this chapter may appeal such charges, billing or notice of delinquency
pursuant to the appeal process defined in this section.

B.    Within seven business days of the date printed on the invoice (in the event of appeal of an
assessed user charge or billing) or within seven business days of the date printed on the
delinquency notice (in the event of an appeal of delinquency status), submit a written appeal to the
city’s director of financial services by personal delivery or by first class mail to the city’s business
address. The written appeal shall state (1) what is disputed; (2) specific dollar figures disputed; (3)
explanation regarding why the billing and/or determination of delinquency appear inaccurate; and (4)
specific details regarding the corrective action requested of the city, including specific dollar
figures. If personally delivered, this written appeal must be received by the city within seven
business days of the date printed on the subject invoice or notice, with the date printed on the
subject invoice or notice not included in the seven-day date calculation. If mailed, the written appeal
must be postmarked within seven business days of the date printed on the subject invoice or
notice, with the date printed on the subject invoice or notice not included in the seven-day date
calculation. The customer shall retain proof of postage and mailing for reference purposes.

C.    Water service will be subject to disconnection seven business days following the respective
appeal due dates specified in this section, in the event no written appeal is received by the city by
the specified due dates.

D.    The director of financial services will evaluate a written appeal timely submitted, and will issue
written finding(s) and a determination within seven business days of receipt of the appeal, with the
date of receipt not included in the date calculation. The written finding(s) and determination will be
mailed to the customer’s address of record.

E.    If the director of financial services determines that the charges are unwarranted, user charges
for the subject account shall be corrected and the revised charges shall be retroactively applied for
up to four months, with any credit applied to the subject account.

F.    Should the customer disagree with the director of financial services’ written finding(s) and
determination, the customer may appeal and proceed as final hearing to the city manager, or
designee, pursuant to the process detailed herein. An appeal to the city manager, or designee, may
be submitted in writing by personal delivery or by first class mail to the city’s business address.
The written appeal shall specifically reference the director of financial services’ written finding(s)

The Shelton Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 1947-1119, and legislation passed through December 17, 2019.

Shelton Municipal Code Title 15 WATER Page 30 of 34



and determination, and shall state (1) what specific finding(s) and/or determination of the director of
financial services is/are disputed; (2) specific dollar figures disputed; (3) explanation regarding why
the director of financial services’ written finding(s) and/or determination appear(s) inaccurate; (4)
specific details regarding the corrective action requested of the city, including specific dollar
figures; and (5) whether an in-person hearing is requested or whether the matter is to be decided
solely on the basis of the written submittal.

If personally delivered, the written appeal must be received by the city within seven business days
of the date printed on the director of financial services’ written finding(s) and determination, with
such printed date not included in the seven-day date calculation. If mailed, the written appeal must
be postmarked within seven business days of the date on the director of financial services’ written
finding(s) and determination, with such printed date not included in the seven-day date calculation.
The customer shall retain proof of postage and mailing for reference purposes.

The city manager, or designee, will evaluate the appeal and, if an in-person hearing is not
requested, will issue written finding(s) and determination within seven business days of the appeal
receipt date (in the case of personal delivery), or appeal postmark date (in the case of mailing),
with the appeal receipt date or postmark date not included in the date calculation. Such decision
shall be final, and the written finding(s) and determination will be mailed to the customer’s address
of record.

If an in-person hearing is requested, the in-person hearing shall be conducted by the city manager,
or designee, within ten business days from the date of personal delivery or mailing postmark of the
appeal to the city manager, or designee, with date of delivery or postmark not included in the date
calculation. Following the hearing, the city manager, or designee, will issue written finding(s) and
determination within seven business days of the hearing date, with date of hearing not included in
the date calculation. Such decision shall be final, and the written finding(s) and determination will be
mailed to the customer’s address of record.

G.    A scheduled disconnection for disputed charges shall be placed on hold pending the appeal
process; provided, that disconnection may proceed seven business days following the respective
appeal due dates specified in this section, in the event no written appeal is received by the city by
the specified due dates; or immediately upon the final decision by the city manager, or designee, in
the event the final decision upholds the pending disconnection.

H.    The customer must pay all undisputed subsequent utility billing charges, penalties and fees in
order to keep the appeal process active. Any undisputed charges left unpaid are subject to the
disconnection process. (Ord. 1918-0318, 2018)

15.28.130 Billing—Payment—Liens.
Utility billing, delinquencies, collections and liens shall be as provided for under Washington state
law and Title 3 of the Shelton Municipal Code addressing utility billings, delinquent charges and

The Shelton Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 1947-1119, and legislation passed through December 17, 2019.

Shelton Municipal Code Title 15 WATER Page 31 of 34



1

liens. (Ord. 1782-0311 § 1 (part), 2011)

15.28.140 Rates, charges and classifications.
The rates, charges and classifications provided in this title may be amended from time to time at
the discretion of the city council and as provided for in the Shelton Municipal Code. Such amended
rates, charges or classifications shall apply to and be binding upon users of the city water system
whether inside or outside of the city limits. (Ord. 1921-0518 (part), 2018; Ord. 1685-1106 § 1 (part),
2006: Ord. 1672-0206 § 1 (part), 2006: Ord. 1670-0206 § 1 (part), 2006: Ord. 1611-0104 § 7 (part),
2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 7 (part), 2003)

Code reviser’s note: Section 15.28.080 was repealed by Ordinance No. 1778-0111.

The Shelton Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 1947-1119, and legislation passed through December 17, 2019.

Shelton Municipal Code Title 15 WATER Page 32 of 34



Chapter 15.32
ADMINISTRATION—ENFORCEMENT—VIOLATIONS—REMEDIES/PENALTIES

Sections:
15.32.010    Administration.

15.32.020    Administrative procedures.

15.32.030    Unlawful acts.

15.32.040    Discontinuance of water service.

15.32.050    Criminal penalty.

15.32.060    Civil remedy.

15.32.070    Restitution.

15.32.010 Administration.
Regulation of this title shall be under the supervision of the city manager; provided, however, that
the city manager may delegate the duty of enforcing the provisions of this title to the director of
public works or other designee. The city manager or designee may make any administrative
determinations as are necessary for the proper operation of this title, provided such determinations
are not in conflict with the provisions of this title. (Ord. 1921-0518 (part), 2018; Ord. 1611-0104 § 8
(part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 8 (part), 2003)

15.32.020 Administrative procedures.
The city may give notice to any person violating any provision of this title, stating the nature of the
violation and giving a reasonable time for satisfactory correction. The offender shall permanently
cease all violation and must correct the violation within the time allowed by the city. The
administrative procedure for requiring correction shall be at the sole discretion of the city. (Ord.
1611-0104 § 8 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 8 (part), 2003)

15.32.030 Unlawful acts.
A.    Any person causing damage to any property belonging to the city shall be liable to the city for
any and all damage resulting both directly or indirectly therefrom.

B.    It shall be unlawful for any person to willfully disturb, break, deface, damage, or trespass upon
any property belonging to or connected with the water system of the city, in any manner
whatsoever.

C.    It shall be unlawful for any person to store, maintain goods, merchandise, materials or rubbish
within a distance of five feet of any part of the city’s water system, including a water meter, gate,
valve, fire hydrant, or other appurtenance of water service, connection, water main, or fire

The Shelton Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 1947-1119, and legislation passed through December 17, 2019.

Shelton Municipal Code Title 15 WATER Page 33 of 34



protection service.

D.    It shall be unlawful for any person to interfere with the access or operation of the city’s water
system, or to discharge any matter into the city’s water system except that which is normally
discharged in the course of regular water service use. (Ord. 1611-0104 § 8 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-
0103 § 8 (part), 2003)

15.32.040 Discontinuance of water service.
A.    The city may discontinue or refuse water service because of failure to pay for service or
failure to comply with state or local law.

B.    Service to any premises upon which a private water supply system is used or operated
contrary to the provisions of this title may be discontinued or refused. (Ord. 1611-0104 § 8 (part),
2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 8 (part), 2003)

15.32.050 Criminal penalty.
Any person who violates any provision of this title shall be guilty of a misdemeanor. A conviction of
a misdemeanor under this title shall be punishable by a fine of no more than one thousand dollars or
by imprisonment in jail for no more than ninety days or both such fine and imprisonment. Each day
that a violation exists shall constitute a separate offense. (Ord. 1611-0104 § 8 (part), 2004: Ord.
1581-0103 § 8 (part), 2003)

15.32.060 Civil remedy.
In addition to the foregoing criminal penalty, any violation of this title, if deemed a threat to the
health and safety of the citizens of Shelton, constitutes a separate civil offense and shall be
deemed a nuisance. The city may utilize any civil remedy available under state or local law,
including injunctive relief. (Ord. 1611-0104 § 8 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 8 (part), 2003)

15.32.070 Restitution.
Any person found in violation of any provision of this title shall be liable to the city for any direct or
indirect expense, loss or damage suffered by the city by reason of such violation. (Ord. 1611-0104
§ 8 (part), 2004: Ord. 1581-0103 § 8 (part), 2003)

The Shelton Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 1947-1119, and legislation passed through December 17, 2019.

Shelton Municipal Code Title 15 WATER Page 34 of 34



 

 
City of Shelton, WA - 2021 Proposed Budget    Page | 1 

INTRODUCTION 

           
 
October 6, 2020 
 
Mayor Dorcy 
Deputy Mayor Peterson 
Members of the City Council 
Shelton Residents 
 
It is my pleasure to present to you the City of Shelton’s 2021 Proposed Budget.  The proposed budget 

totals $31.7 million, an increase of $1.3 million or 4.3% from the 2020 adopted budget.  The proposed 

budget includes a General Fund allocation of $12.3 million which is roughly $6,800 or 0.1% less than the 

adopted 2020 adopted General Fund budget.  The proposed budget was built using the Council’s 

Strategic Plan to guide decisions and reflects our shared commitment to providing valuable government 

services in a cost-effective and efficient manner. 

The 2021 budget process was especially difficult.  As with previous years, the General Fund started the 

budget process in a deficit position as expenditures annually increase at a rate that exceeds revenue 

growth.  This, coupled with the unknown impacts to City revenue as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, 

resulted in a necessity of having to make significant assumptions on next year’s revenue generation, 

especially for the General Fund.  The three major unknowns the City continues to grapple with are: 

 How long would the Stay Safe / Stay Home Order last? 
 How deep will the impact to current and future year revenues be? 
 How long until full economic recovery? 

 

Beyond these questions, estimating and establishing our 2021 revenues in the COVID-19 environment 

was further complicated by: 

 Sales Tax has a two-month lag, i.e. the May sales tax the City receives is sales tax collected in 
March by businesses. 

 Impact of the $600 weekly unemployment subsidy from the Federal Government, now $300, 
and further, the impact when the subsidy ceases. 

 The lasting impacts of the pandemic on individuals’ decision making on when they will feel 
comfortable to shop at local retail stores, have meals at local restaurants, etc. 

 The extent that National monetary and fiscal policy decisions positively affect cash flows. 
 

As a result, the City’s General Fund revenue budget for 2021 is slightly lower than 2020 adopted 

revenues and over $580,000 less than 2019 actual revenues.  With this reduction in revenue budget, 

department requests for expense budget increases for expansion or creation of programs for residents 

were, for the most part unable to be funded with projected resources.  In fact, the General Fund has 

reduced expenses for 2021 by eliminated five positions funded in 2020.  Departments losing a position 

include the City Manager, Finance, Information Technology, and Police. 



 

City of Shelton, WA - 2021 Proposed Budget    Page | 2 

INTRODUCTION 

The City’s highest priority is public safety and significant considerations took place prior to the decision 

to eliminate a police position.  However, with the closure of Shelton schools due to the pandemic, the 

contract between the City and School District which funded two and a half police School Resource 

Officer (SRO) positions was not renewed.  Even without this revenue source, the City was able to fully 

fund the other two SRO positions out of on-going revenue.  We remain hopeful that once the School 

District opens, the SRO contract will be renewed and we can once again fund the eliminated position. 

Outside of the reduction in positions, the General Fund budget continues to fund existing City services 

and programs, adjusted for necessary increases for inflation, benefit increases, and contract 

requirements.  No new initiatives or expansion of current programs in the General Fund are funded in 

2021. 

The City’s budget philosophy is to develop realistic revenues for the upcoming year and fit expenses 

within those revenue estimates.  In cases where fund balance is being utilized to balance budgeted 

expenses, a thoughtful determination was made by comparing the current level of fund balance to the 

minimum level of fund balance necessary based on cash flows and any contingency requirements for 

those funds.  Furthermore, the use of fund balance is restricted to pay for one-time expenses such as 

capital, major maintenance projects, or stand-alone contract services and is not used for on-going 

operations. 

The City of Shelton, like most other government entities, is facing a budget sustainability issue where 

expenses increase each year at a pace that exceeds growth in resources.  The 2021 budget, while 

balanced, doesn’t fully address sustainability of the budget and more work must take place in 2021 to 

create a budget structure that is sustainable long-term.   

The budget includes roughly $300,000 for general capital improvements including the City share of 

$200,000 for the Civic Center Parking Lot project, in which the City received a $285,000 grant from the 

State through our State Congressional delegates.  Other capital projects funded for 2021 include $1.7 

million for the Automated Meter Read system, $700,000 for the Public Works Maintenance Facility 

Expansion project, $590,000 for City’s Pavement Preservation Program, nearly $340,000 for new 

equipment purchases to replace assets past their useful life, and roughly $216,000 for Parks capital 

projects funded by the Shelton Metropolitan Park District.  

The proposed budget is the culmination of an almost year-long collaborative effort between the City 

Council, City Manager, city staff, and the residents and businesses of Shelton.  I would like to extend my 

thanks to all the City employees for the work that they do each day to make a difference for our City’s 

residents.  The City serves a diverse population with a workforce that is committed to meeting the needs 

of the public. 

Respectfully,  

 

Jeff Niten 
City Manager 
City of Shelton, WA                                                                                   



 

 
City of Shelton, WA - 2021 Proposed Budget    Page | 3 

BUDGET OVERVIEW 

CITY-WIDE EXPENDITURES AND REVENUES 

The City-wide Expenditures and City-wide Revenues graphs below provide the City’s 

expenditure and revenue levels since 2018 and include the 2020 budget and 2020 estimates as 

well as the 2021 proposed budget.  The total amounts will vary from year-to-year due to the 

level of major construction activity, the issuance or refunding of debt, acceptance of grant 

awards, and the initiation or elimination of major service responsibilities. 

City-Wide Expenditures 

 

 

13.07 12.79 12.29 12.06 12.28 

17.04 18.10 18.08 
13.38 

19.39 

$0

$5

$10

$15

$20

$25

$30

$35

2018
 Actual

2019
Actual

2020
 Budget

2020
Estimate

2021
Proposed

General Fund Other Funds

In Millions

$30.11 $30.89 $30.37

$25.44

$31.68

Fund

2018

Actual

2019 

Actual

2020  

Budget

2020 

Estimate

2021  

Proposed

City-wide Expenditures

General Fund 13,070,098$        12,794,935$        12,290,690$        12,062,198$        12,283,920$        

Street Fund -                         1,173,598            2,280,650            1,609,040            2,069,190            

Tourism Fund 33,050                  52,675                  59,130                  68,567                  61,880                  

Capital Resources Fund -                         -                         -                         -                         496,630                

Bond Fund 274,868                282,318                184,490                184,467                184,490                

Capital Improvement Fund 3,849,038            4,411,586            2,138,630            921,050                1,572,140            

Water Fund 2,089,382            2,287,953            3,720,740            2,760,886            3,865,560            

Sewer Fund 8,669,260            7,585,993            5,777,330            5,822,025            7,787,220            

Solid Waste Fund 296,311                137,092                1,459,020            100,903                781,810                

Storm Drainage Fund 1,014,931            1,038,145            1,275,710            940,285                1,338,760            

Payroll Benefits Fund 203,450                112,620                219,200                125,600                206,700                

Equipment Maint. & Replacement 534,487                929,299                863,720                759,577                929,510                

Firefighters Pension Fund 79,886                  86,074                  98,570                  88,248                  98,570                  

Library Endowment Fund -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         

Total Expenditures 29,270,717$        30,892,287$        30,367,880$        25,442,845$        31,676,380$        



 

City of Shelton, WA - 2021 Proposed Budget    Page | 4 

BUDGET OVERVIEW 

City-Wide Revenues 

 

 

The table below breaks out the total fund General Fund expenditures by department.  Until 

2019, Street functions were accounted for in the General Fund and beginning in 2019 the City 

Council created the Street Operating Fund where those costs are now accounted.  The General 

Fund breakout by Department is only shown for expenditures as General Fund revenues are 

currently not accounted for by departments rather, they are accounted for at the higher fund 

level.  General Fund revenues which are reserved for particular activities, like the Criminal 

Justice Sales Tax, are treated on a first in first out basis and are considered the first monies 

consumed for those appropriate activities. 

12.64 12.85 12.29 12.10 12.28 

14.54 

21.91 

15.45 
12.90 14.60 

$0

$5

$10

$15

$20

$25

$30

$35

$40

2018
 Actual

2019
Actual

2020
 Budget

2020
Estimate

2021
Proposed

General Fund Other Funds

$27.10

$34.76

In Millions

$25.00

$26.88$27.74

Fund

2018

Actual

2019 

Actual

2020  

Budget

2020 

Estimate

2021  

Proposed

City-wide Revenue

General Fund 12,641,582$        12,846,171$        12,290,690$        12,099,150$        12,283,920$        

Street Fund -                         2,528,794            1,476,010            1,401,520            1,436,520            

Tourism Fund 44,499                  52,687                  51,700                  34,011                  37,700                  

Capital Resources Fund -                         -                         310,600                547,900                140,000                

Bond Fund 282,802                285,933                184,490                186,048                184,490                

Capital Improvement Fund 3,179,865            4,815,657            2,089,900            1,192,870            1,572,140            

Water Fund 2,319,907            2,526,971            2,474,090            2,343,313            2,575,230            

Sewer Fund 6,842,425            9,808,908            6,010,930            6,060,927            6,171,890            

Solid Waste Fund 73,028                  181,296                470,000                10,267                  450,000                

Storm Drainage Fund 789,207                801,540                1,265,000            866,502                989,000                

Payroll Benefits Fund 207,749                125,409                206,700                125,600                206,700                

Equipment Maint. & Replacement 655,952                618,872                736,610                486,039                692,000                

Firefighters Pension Fund 146,478                164,671                168,970                88,300                  138,970                

Library Endowment Fund 1,422                     3,337                     2,700                     2,300                     2,700                     

Total Revenues 27,184,917$        34,760,244$        27,738,390$        25,444,748$        26,881,260$        



 

City of Shelton, WA - 2021 Proposed Budget    Page | 5 

BUDGET OVERVIEW 

 

More information on budgeted revenues and expenditures is provided further in the Overview 

and a more detailed breakout is provided for each fund, or in the case of the General fund each 

Department, in the fund pages that follow. 

2021 Proposed Budget by Fund & Ending Balance 

Fund Balance 

In organizations utilizing a cash based system of accounting, like the City of Shelton, Fund 

Balance refers to the amount of cash (including investments) resulting between current financial 

assets and liabilities.  Fund balance is an important indicator of a city’s financial position and 

maintaining reserves is a prudent management practice.  Adequate fund balances are 

maintained to allow the city to continue providing services to the community in case of 

unexpected emergencies, unfunded mandates, and/or economic downturns.  Fund balance may 

also be used to meet seasonal cash flow shortfalls as needed.  Further, fund balance levels 

may increase over a period of years to accumulate cash reserves for significant future capital or 

major maintenance needs. 

The City has revised its Fund Balance policy and until that policy is adopted, the City Council 

and City Manager have agreed on a set of guidelines for fund balance use.  Fund balances shall 

not normally be applied to recurring annual operating expenditures.  Unrestricted balances may, 

Fund

2018

Actual

2019 

Actual

2020  

Budget

2020 

Estimate

2021  

Proposed

General Fund Expenditures by Department

Administrative Services

  Human Resources 128,976$              244,553$              262,000$              267,516$              271,530$              

  Information Technology 288,328 234,709 289,130 294,851 245,870

  Risk Management 172,462 189,897 219,960 219,840 225,360

City Clerk 112,116 37,837 111,770 67,642 215,480

City Council 282,400 231,757 167,050 148,325 100,630

City Manager

  City Manager 585,398 381,449 628,000 419,201 399,340

  Legal 406,611 392,309 445,460 421,048 456,580

  Detention & Corrections 421,898 365,356 404,070 370,520 414,170

Community Dev, Parks, Facilities

  Community Development 533,787 523,664 535,520 533,885 558,860

  Parks & Recreation 364,054 410,472 557,750 402,590 575,450

  Facility Services 510,989 563,586 514,830 536,854 542,600

  Civic Center Activities 37,482 47,014 63,760 47,947 68,210

Finance 977,269 933,224 1,068,890 980,965 1,035,070

Fire & Emergency Services 1,337,350 1,447,313 1,498,880 1,512,125 1,501,250

Municipal Court

  Community Restitution 100,502                95,788                  116,290                107,665                122,390                

  Court Services 300,154                366,503                420,350                410,582                446,060                

Non-Departmental 1,717,501 2,519,557 1,212,580 1,278,973 1,054,290

Police 2,963,064 3,072,032 3,124,110 3,332,761 3,422,280

Public Works 985,712 737,915 650,290 708,907 628,500

Streets 844,045                -                         -                         -                         -                         

Grand Total 13,070,098$        12,794,935$        12,290,690$        12,062,198$        12,283,920$        



 

City of Shelton, WA - 2021 Proposed Budget    Page | 6 

BUDGET OVERVIEW 

however, be used to allow time for the city to restructure its operations in a deliberate manner, 

but such use will only take place in the context of long-term financial planning. 

As part of the budget process, the proposed budget was built using the following general outline 

of fund balance reserve levels for the following funds: 

 General Fund and Street Operating Fund will strive to maintain a fund balance equal to 

16% of current year budgeted expenditures. 

 Water, Sewer, and Storm Drainage funds will strive to maintain a fund balance equal to 

20% of current year budgeted expenses. 

 Other funds, while not having a desired fund balance level contingent on current year 

expenditures, are to maintain necessary balances to fulfill their obligations without the 

fund going cash negative. 

In the General Fund, fund balance levels in excess of the reserves described above may be 

considered to supplement “pay as you go” capital outlay and other one-time expenditures for 

any good governmental purpose.  Accumulated General Fund balance above the desired 

reserve level, and not immediately programmed for a capital project, will be transferred and held 

in the Capital Resources Fund until those monies are budgeted for a specific use. 

The chart below shows the 2021 estimated beginning and ending fund balances for all city 

funds.  The 2021 estimated beginning balance is calculated using our June estimates for 2020 

activity and the estimated ending fund balance uses 2021 proposed expenses and revenues to 

calculate the ending balance.  The chart also provides the dollar and percent change in 

assumed fund balance levels for the proposed budget year. 

 

 

 

Fund

Estimated

Beginning

Fund Balance

2021

Proposed

Revenue

2021

Proposed

Expenditures

Proposed

Ending 

Fund Balance $ Change % Change

City-wide Expenditures

General Fund 3,336,417$          12,283,920$        12,283,920$        3,336,417$          -$                       0.0%

Street Fund 1,147,685            1,436,520            2,069,190            515,015                (632,670)              -55.1%

Tourism Fund 83,630                  37,700                  61,880                  59,450                  (24,180)                 -28.9%

Capital Resources Fund 499,176                140,000                496,630                142,546                (356,630)              -71.4%

Bond Fund 16,971                  184,490                184,490                16,971                  -                         0.0%

Capital Improvement Fund 700,546                1,572,140            1,572,140            700,546                -                         0.0%

Water Fund 1,998,234            2,575,230            3,865,560            707,904                (1,290,330)           -64.6%

Sewer Fund 4,263,597            6,171,890            7,787,220            2,648,267            (1,615,330)           -37.9%

Solid Waste Fund 944,666                450,000                781,810                612,856                (331,810)              -35.1%

Storm Drainage Fund 356,074                989,000                1,338,760            6,314                     (349,760)              -98.2%

Payroll Benefits Fund 139,892                206,700                206,700                139,892                -                         0.0%

Equipment Maint. & Replacement 649,542                692,000                929,510                412,032                (237,510)              -36.6%

Firefighters Pension Fund 610,511                138,970                98,570                  650,911                40,400                  6.6%

Library Endowment Fund 122,324                2,700                     -                         125,024                2,700                     2.2%

Total Expenditures 14,869,265$        26,881,260$        31,676,380$        10,074,145$        (4,795,120)$        -32.2%



 

City of Shelton, WA - 2021 Proposed Budget    Page | 7 

BUDGET OVERVIEW 

STAFFING 

City-wide FTE & FTE per 1,000 Population 

 

   

As the population of the City increases the demand for city services has risen correspondingly.  

The FTE’s (Full Time Equivalents) per 1,000 Population chart and graph above reflect the total 

number of funded FTE as well as the number of FTE per every 1,000 in population.  The 2021 

estimate is arrived at by using the same percentage growth between 2018 and 2019 and 2019 

and 2020, or roughly 1%. 

As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, the City was forced to make some very tough decisions 

regarding staffing.  As such, the 2021 proposed budget includes five (5) position reductions in 

the General Fund.  These five position reductions are offset by an increase of one (1) position in 

Public Works. 

The following Percent Change in Staffing chart demonstrates the percent change in City staffing 

beginning with the change between 2018 and 2019 staff levels.  The decrease between the 

2020 budgeted staffing levels and the proposed staffing level for 2021 include: 

 Elimination of the Homeless Resource Coordinator position (1FTE) and Economic 

Development Specialist position (1 FTE) in the City Manager’s Office. 

2018 2019 2020 

2021

Proposed

Total City FTE 97.80 95.50 101.50 97.50

Est. Population 10,140           10,220           10,320           10,450           

FTE per 1,000 9.64                9.34                9.84                9.33                



 

City of Shelton, WA - 2021 Proposed Budget    Page | 8 

BUDGET OVERVIEW 

 Elimination of the Accounting Assistant position (1FTE) in the Finance Department. 

 Elimination of a School Resource Officer position (1FTE) in the Police Department. 

 Elimination of an Information Technology Systems Specialist (1FTE) in the 

Administrative Service Department. 

 A new full-time (1FTE) Development Review Technician, $111,170 (includes benefits), 

funded equally by the Street, Water, Sewer, and Storm funds. 

Percent Change in Staffing 

 

The City’s highest priority is public safety and significant considerations took place prior to the 

decision to eliminate a police position.  However, with the closure of Shelton schools due to the 

pandemic, the contract between the City and School District which funded two and a half police 

School Resource Officer (SRO) positions was not renewed.  Even without this revenue source, 

the City was able to fully fund the other two SRO positions out of on-going revenue.  We remain 

hopeful that once the School District opens, the SRO contract will be renewed and we can once 

again fund the eliminated position. 

The chart below shows total City-wide FTE budgeted by Fund or in the case of the General 

Fund, by department.  Beginning in 2019 the City began identifying Human Resource and 

Information Technology staff in their own departments.  Those positions were previously 

included as part of the City Manager staffing levels.  In 2021 the staffing, as well as budget 

activities, of the City Clerk are consolidated into its own General Fund department.  The staffing 

and budget for City Clerk activities were previously accounted for in the City Council, City 

Manager, and Finance departments. 

 

 

 

 



 

City of Shelton, WA - 2021 Proposed Budget    Page | 9 

BUDGET OVERVIEW 

City-wide FTE by Fund  

 

The pie charts below detail the percent of FTE in the General Fund and percent of City-wide 

FTE by Fund for the coming budget year as presented in the City-wide FTE chart above.  

Central Service functions (City Manager, Human Resources, Information Technology, and 

Finance) account for nearly 25% of General Fund staffing and about 16.5% of total staffing. 

Public Safety functions of the Police Department and Municipal Court account for just over 40% 

of General Fund staffing and nearly 27% of total FTE.  In total, the General Fund accounts for 

roughly 69% of total City staffing.  Staffing for the City’s Utilities represents just over 27% of total 

staffing while Street staffing accounts for 5% of total staffing. 

 

 

 

 

2018 2019 2020 

2021

Proposed

General Fund

City Council 7.55 7.80 7.80 7.00

Municipal Court 4.50 4.50 4.50 4.50

City Clerk* 2.00

City Manager 8.60 3.40 4.40 2.00

Human Resources** 2.00 3.00 2.85

Information Technology** 2.00 2.00 1.15

Finance 10.65 9.85 9.85 8.05

Public Works 10.00 6.10 4.60 3.60

Police 20.50 21.50 21.50 21.50

Comm Dev./Parks/Facilities 11.82 11.30 12.30 12.30

Total General Fund 73.62 68.45 69.95 64.95

Other City Funds

Street Operating 3.31 3.65 4.65 4.90

Water Utility 8.02 8.40 8.40 8.65

Sewer Utility 8.80 9.30 10.30 10.55

Storm Drainage Utility 3.00 4.50 7.00 7.25

Equip. Maint. & Rental 1.05 1.20 1.20 1.20

Total Other Funds 24.18 27.05 31.55 32.55

Grand Total City FTE 97.80 95.50 101.50 97.50



 

City of Shelton, WA - 2021 Proposed Budget    Page | 10 

BUDGET OVERVIEW 

General Fund Staffing by Department as a Percent 

of Total 

 

City-wide Staffing by Fund as a Percent of Total 

 

 

City Council, 10.8%

Municipal Court, 6.9%

City Clerk, 3.1%

City Manager, 3.1%

Human Resources, 
4.4%

Information 
Technology, 1.8%

Finance, 12.4%

Public Works, 5.5%

Police, 33.1%

Comm 
Dev./Parks/Facilities, 

18.9%

General Fund, 66.6%

Street Operating, 5.0%

Water Utility, 8.9%

Sewer Utility, 10.8%

Storm Drainage Utility, 
7.4%

Equip. Maint. & Rental, 
1.2%



 

City of Shelton, WA - 2021 Proposed Budget    Page | 11 

BUDGET OVERVIEW 

SALES AND USE TAX 

Sales tax is the largest revenue source in the General Fund with a proposed revenue in 2021 of 

$2,871,040 in the General Fund and $582,520 in the Street Fund.  Sales tax is collected by the 

state directly from businesses engaged in retail sales activities.  The State distributes those tax 

collections to the appropriate entities.  In 1970, the State legislature granted cities the right to 

tax retail sales at a rate of 0.5%.  At the time, legislature also provided that 15% of the 0.5% tax 

would be allocated to the County in which the City is located.  In 1982, the retail sales tax rate 

was increased to 1.0% with the same caveat that 15% of the tax be allocated to Counties.  

Additionally, the legislature included a 1% administrative fee for the State Department of 

Revenue, the department responsible for the collection and distribution of the tax revenue.  This 

effectively leaves cities with a sales tax revenue of 0.8415% of retail sales.  The chart below 

shows the sales tax allocation for the City of Shelton. 

 

 

 

In July 2008, Washington State became a member of the Streamlined Sales and Use Tax 

Agreement (SSUTA) becoming a member of a cooperative effort of states to simplify and make 

sales and use tax collection and administration more uniform.  Ultimately, the goal of the 

agreement is to reduce the cost and administrative burdens on retailers that collect the sales 

tax, particularly for those that operate in multiple states.  Becoming a member of the SSUTA 

0.00% 1.00% 2.00% 3.00% 4.00% 5.00% 6.00% 7.00% 8.00% 9.00% 10.00%

Shelton 8.8% Sales Tax by Type

State (6.5%) Transit (0.6%) County E911 (0.1%)
County Criminal Justice (0.1%) County Mental Health (0.1%) County Juvenitle Detention (0.1%)
City local option 1 (0.5%) City local option 2 (0.5%)  City TBD (0.2%)
City Public Safety (0.1%)

City, 1.30%

County, 0.40%

Transit, 0.60%

State, 6.50%



 

City of Shelton, WA - 2021 Proposed Budget    Page | 12 

BUDGET OVERVIEW 

fundamentally changed how sales tax is applied by retailers by changing what tax rate was 

applied for purchases from origin based to destination based local sales tax system.   

This change means that for businesses and consumers if a sale takes place and the customer 

takes possession of the property or service at the business location the sales tax rate applied is 

the rate at that location.  However, if the customer will take possession of the product or service 

in a location other than the business location, the sales tax rate applied is the rate where the 

customer takes possession of the goods or service.  For example, if a Shelton resident buys 

and takes possession of a TV in a store in Olympia, the sales tax rate in Olympia is applied and 

Olympia receives their share of the tax.  If the Shelton resident goes to the same Olympia store 

and buys the same TV but it is shipped to their address in Shelton, then the Shelton tax rate is 

applied and Shelton receives their share of the sales tax. 

The follow chart shows the sales tax collection since 2018 by year. 

 

Public Safety Sales Tax 

The voters of the City approved an increase in the City’s sales tax rate of 0.1% for the collection 

of a Public Safety sales tax beginning April 1. 2012.  The same revenue sharing requirement as 

other sales and use tax exists where 15% of the tax collected is allocated to the County and 1% 

is due to the State as an administrative fee.  As provided by law, at least one-third of the 

revenue must be used solely for carinal justice purposes, fire protection services, or both.  While 

the other two-thirds are unrestricted and available for any good governmental use, the City of 

Shelton uses the entire revenue collected to fund public safety services.   

Criminal Justice Sales Tax 

Counties may impose a non-voted 0.1% sales tax for criminal justice purposes.  While the tax is 

imposed by the county, the revenue must be shared with all cities and towns located in that 

county.  The county receives 10% of the revenues and the remaining 90% is split between the 

county and its cities on a per capita basis.  The revenue must be used in assisting the criminal 

justice system.   

The City expends far more than the collection of the Public Safety and Criminal Justice sales 

taxes for public safety purposes.  As a comparison to the Public Safety & Criminal Justice Sales 

Source

2018

Actual

2019 

Actual

2020  

Budget

2020 

Estimate

2021  

Proposed

General Fund

Sales Tax - General 2,349,610$    2,940,884$    2,495,730$    2,495,000$    2,501,230$    

Sales Tax - Public Safety 232,562          291,215          246,400          246,000          246,940          

Sales Tax - Criminal Justice 112,171          127,406          118,800          118,800          119,070          

Sales Tax - Trans. Bene. Dist 551,166          -                   -                   -                   -                   

Natural Gas Use Tax 3,783              4,032              3,800              3,800              3,800              

Subtotal General Fund 3,249,291$    3,363,536$    2,864,730$    2,863,600$    2,871,040$    

Other Funds

Sales Tax - Trans. Bene. Dist -$                685,810$       582,520$       582,520$       582,520$       

Grand Total City-wide 3,249,291$    4,049,346$    3,447,250$    3,446,120$    3,453,560$    



 

City of Shelton, WA - 2021 Proposed Budget    Page | 13 

BUDGET OVERVIEW 

Tax amount in the chart above, the chart below shows the combined costs for Police, Municipal 

Court, and Fire services for the same time period. 

 

Transportation Benefit District Sales Tax 

Beginning April 1, 2016, the City voters established a Transportation Benefit District (TBD) and 

imposed a 0.2% sales tax rate, as permitted by law.  The revenue collected is reserved for 

transportation improvements including roads, sidewalks, paths, transit service, as well as 

transportation demand management.  Construction, maintenance, and operating costs are 

eligible uses of this funding source.  However, unlike other sales tax options, the TBD sales tax 

is limited to 10 years, with one additional 10-year period allowed if passed by voters.  The TBD 

sales tax may only exceed 10 years if it has been used for the repayment of debt.  TBD sales 

tax collections are not shared with the County.  The City receives all of the sales tax collected 

less the State’s 1% administrative fee.  The City’s TBD sales tax, beginning in 2019, is 

accounted for in the Street Fund, and no longer in the General Fund. 

PROPERTY TAX AND ASSESSED VALUATION 

Property tax is the second largest source of revenue in the General Fund.  The Mason County 

Assessor values and provides information to the City of Shelton on their determination of 

property values within city limits.  The calculation for Property Tax revenue is dependent upon 

both the assessed valuation of property as provided by the County Assessor and the tax rate.  

The County Assessor’s valuation of property is achieved through physical inspections and, 

outside of a physical inspection, valuation estimates are built using local area sales data.  

Property tax collections are budgeted and adopted using preliminary figures from the Mason 

County Assessor.  Final figures from the Mason County Assessor’s Office on AV and rates are 

usually available in December after the Council has adopted the budget. 

State law provides that the maximum growth in property tax revenue from existing property is 

the lessor of one percent (1%) or the percentage increase in the Implicit Price Deflator (IPD), an 

index used to gauge the extent of price changes or inflation over specific period of time for costs 

of goods and services.  For the 2021 budget year the IPD, as determined by the Federal 

Department of Commerce, totaled .602% which means that all local governments in Washington 

State may increase their property taxes the full 1% only after an Ordinance or Resolution of 

Substantial Need is approved by the City Council.  If such an Ordinance or Resolution is not 

approved by Council, existing property tax collections would be able to increase at the .602% 

rate plus new construction and other State assessments.  The Property Tax figures in the City’s 

Proposed budget assumes that a Substantial Need Ordinance will be approved. 

Activity

2018

Actual

2019 

Actual

2020  

Budget

2020 

Estimate

2021  

Proposed

Fire / EMS 1,337,350$    1,447,313$    1,498,880$    1,512,125$    1,501,250$    

Firefighters Pension Fund 146,478          164,671          168,970          88,300            138,970          

Municipal Court 400,655          462,291          536,640          518,247          568,450          

Police 2,963,064      3,072,032      3,124,110      3,332,761      3,422,280      

Total Expense 4,847,547$    5,146,307$    5,328,600$    5,451,433$    5,630,950$    



 

City of Shelton, WA - 2021 Proposed Budget    Page | 14 

BUDGET OVERVIEW 

 

The pie chart above reflects the full allocation of property tax payments.  As can be seen, the 

City of Shelton receives 19% percent of the total tax paid by property owners (regular tax levy at 

19% and EMS levy at nearly 3%).  At the time of printing the 2021 Proposed Budget the City 

has not received preliminary assessed valuation from the County Assessor’s Office.  The 

estimated 2021 levy rate for every $1,000 of assessed valuation the City receives roughly 

$2.68.  This amount will change depending on the actual assessed value for the City as 

determined by the County Assessor’s Office. 

The City’s maximum regular property tax levy is $3.375 per $1,000 of assessed valuation.  

Additionally, since the City has a pre-LEOFF (Law Enforcement Officer and Firefighters) 

pension fund, the City can levy another $.225 per $1,000 of assessed valuation for a total of 

$3.60 per $1,000.  However, since State Law caps property tax revenue increase at 1% or IPD, 

whichever is lower, the actual levy rate is much lower than the $3.60 per $1,000 assessed 

valuation maximum. 

Assessed Valuation (AV) 

As is shown in the chart below, valuation decreased from 2016 levels in 2017.  Since 2017 

valuations have increased each year.  Currently, the City is estimating an increase of 6% in 

assessed valuation for 2021.  The City of Shelton budget includes property tax revenue based 

on the City’s AV and corresponding rate for the regular levy(s) and the EMS levy.  Other 

property tax collections are dedicated to entities other than the City (School District, 

Metropolitan Parks District, State of Washington, etc.) and are included in their budgets and 

financial plans.   

 

 

Mental Health  0.2%

Veteran's Assistance  

0.1%

Port of Shelton  2.1%

Library District  2.4%

City EMS  2.9%

Hospital District  2.4%

Washington State 
Schools
21.2%

Mason County
8.0%

City of Shelton
19.0%

Shelton School Dist
37.1%

Shelton Met 
Park District

4.6%

Other
10.1%



 

City of Shelton, WA - 2021 Proposed Budget    Page | 15 

BUDGET OVERVIEW 

Total Assessed Valuation: City of Shelton 

 

The chart below reflects the percentage change in the assessed valuation for the City of 

Shelton.  The City saw a decline in assessed valuation in 2017 as compared to 2016 but since 

then the assessed valuation has increased each year.  The increase between the estimated 

2021 valuation ($819,518,400) and the 2020 valuation ($773,130,558) is nearly $46.4 million or 

6.0%. The estimated increase in AV since 2016 is roughly $242.1 million or 41.9%. 

Percent Change by Year in Assessed Valuation 

 

-2.5% 15.8% 9.2% 8.5% 6.0%

-5.0%

0.0%

5.0%

10.0%

15.0%

20.0%

2017 2018 2019 2020 Estimated 2021



 

City of Shelton, WA - 2021 Proposed Budget    Page | 16 

BUDGET OVERVIEW 

The property tax revenue included in the proposed budget includes the allowable statutory 

increase of one percent growth, as approved through a substantial need Ordinance, plus new 

construction.  Due to the limitation on property tax growth, there is an inverse relationship or 

negative correlation between the AV and the tax rate meaning that when AV increases the 

property tax rate decreases.  The opposite is also true, where AV decreases, as in 2017, the tax 

rate increases.   

 

The Property Tax AV & Rates table above presents comparative AV and tax rate information 

since 2018.  The table also provides, for demonstrative purposes, the approximate property tax 

owed, for the City regular and EMS levies only, on hypothetical properties valued at $150,000, 

$200,000, $250,000, and $300,000 in 2021.  The top portion of the table shows the relationship 

between increasing AV and the corresponding decrease in levy rates over the four-year period.   

GENERAL FUND 

As the name implies, the General Fund is the fund that receives most of the City’s undesignated 

revenues which are available for any good governmental purpose.  This fund finances the 

majority of the traditional services associated with local government.  Due to the flexibility of 

General Fund resources, much of the budget deliberations center around this fund. 

GENERAL FUND REVENUES 

General Fund revenues decrease in 2021 to $12,283,920 from the 2020 adopted budget of 

$12,290,690, a decrease of $6,770 or 0.1%.  However, the proposed 2021 budget is $562,251 

lower than 2019 actual revenues of $12,846,171 or a decrease of 4.4%.   

2018 

Actual

2019

Actual

2020

Actual

2021

Estimated

Assessed Valuation 652,529,064        712,548,758        773,130,558           819,518,400           

City Rate 3.06$                     2.86$                     2.75$                        2.68$                        

EMS Rate 0.48$                     0.44$                     0.42$                        0.41$                        

Estimated Assessed Valuation 819,518,400        819,518,400        819,518,400           819,518,400           

Property Valuation at: 150,000                200,000                250,000                   300,000                   

City Regular Levy @ $2.68 401$                      535$                      669$                         803$                         

EMS Levy @ $0.41 62$                         82$                        103$                         123$                         

Estimated Total 463$                      617$                      771$                         926$                         

2020 Estimated taxes owed - City and EMS only



 

City of Shelton, WA - 2021 Proposed Budget    Page | 17 

BUDGET OVERVIEW 

 

General Fund revenue projections for 2021 were especially difficult.  The unknown impacts to 

City revenue as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, resulted in a necessity of having to make 

significant assumptions on next year’s revenue generation, especially for the General Fund.  

The three major unknowns the City continues to grapple with are: 

 How long would the Stay Safe / Stay Home Order last? 
 How deep will the impact to current and future year revenues be? 
 How long until full economic recovery? 

 
Beyond these questions, estimating and establishing our 2021 revenues in the COVID-19 

environment was further complicated by: 

 Sales Tax has a two-month lag, i.e. the May sales tax the City receives is sales tax 
collected in March by businesses. 

 Impact of the $600 weekly unemployment subsidy from the Federal Government, now 
$300, and further, the impact when the subsidy ceases. 

 The lasting impacts of the pandemic on individuals’ decision making on when they will 
feel comfortable to shop at local retail stores, have meals at local restaurants, etc. 

 The extent that National monetary and fiscal policy decisions positively affect cash flows. 
 
The 2021 high-level assumptions for General Fund revenue include: 
 

 Sales tax revenue will be in-line with 2020 estimated revenue 
 Property tax will increase by 1% plus new construction 

 Short-term interest rates will remain at their current level or increase only slightly in the 

next year 

 Current percentage growth caps on property tax and utility taxes will remain unchanged 

 Other revenues will mostly be in-line with estimated 2020 revenue collections. 

2021 major revenue changes from the 2020 budget are: 

 Elimination of the School Resource Officer contract with the Shelton School District 

($288,700) 

 Property Tax revenue increase of $91,860 resulting from an increase of the 1% statutory 

maximum plus new construction 

 Solid Waste utility tax revenue increase of $542,640 resulting from the full consumption 

of a pre-payment in 2017 

Source

2018

Actual

2019 

Actual

2020  

Budget

2020 

Estimate

2021  

Proposed

Taxes 8,029,664$    8,462,779$    7,878,350$    8,431,200$    8,531,110$    

Charges for Goods/Service 2,678,619 2,881,716 3,393,670 2,713,940 2,818,140

Intergovernmental Revenue 1,017,979 741,394 420,520 426,570 423,520

Fines & Penalties 121,122 121,146 105,300 58,550 102,300

Licenses & Permits 604,883 355,352 319,600 276,740 285,100

Miscellaneous Revenue 186,296 239,596 173,250 192,150 123,750

Other Financing Sources 3,022 44,189 0 0 0

Grand Total 12,641,582$  12,846,171$  12,290,690$  12,099,150$  12,283,920$  



 

City of Shelton, WA - 2021 Proposed Budget    Page | 18 

BUDGET OVERVIEW 

GENERAL FUND 2020 REVENUE SOURCES BY 

PERCENT OF TOTAL 

 

As is demonstrated in the chart above, just over 69% or $8,531,110 of the City’s 2020 General 

Fund revenues are collected from taxes.  The remaining 31% ($3.752.810) comes from all other 

sources combined. 

PERCENT CHANGE IN GENERAL FUND 

REVENUES 

Taxes, $8,531,110 

Charges for 
Goods/Service, 

$2,818,140 

Intergovernmental 
Revenue, $423,520 

Fines & Penalties, 
$102,300 

Licenses & Permits, 
$285,100 

Miscellaneous 
Revenue, $123,750 

Other Financing 
Sources, $-

7.4%

1.6%

-4.3%

-0.1%

-6.0%

-4.0%

-2.0%

0.0%

2.0%

4.0%

6.0%

8.0%

2018
Actual

2019
Actual

2020
Budget

2021
Proposed

Actual to Budget



 

City of Shelton, WA - 2021 Proposed Budget    Page | 19 

BUDGET OVERVIEW 

 
 

The Percent Change in General Fund Revenues charts above compare the year-to-year 

changes in total General Fund revenue collections over the past three years.  This is not a 

comparison of actual revenue to budgeted revenues per year; the chart compares the total 

actual revenue collected or budgeted amounts to th1 following year (chart on previous page) 

and actual collections to the 2020 estimate and 2020 budget (chart on above). 

In the first chart, the large decrease in the 2020 budget as compared to 2019 actuals is largely 

due to the reduction in budgeted sales tax resulting from construction activity.  In 2019 

construction activity accounted for nearly 25% of sales tax revenue.  In 2020, with a decrease in 

construction activity the sales tax budget was reduced to be more in-line with 2017. 

In the second chart, the change between 2018 and 2019 actual revenues reflect the loss of 

General Fund revenue related to Street operations as discussed above which is offset by 

increases in tax revenue, especially sales tax revenue, which came in significantly higher than 

budgeted.   

TAXES 

 

Sales Tax revenue represents slightly more than 33% of the City’s tax collections and is 

budgeted to increase by 0.2% over the current year budget.  The current year estimate for sales 

tax collections continues to be in-line with budget as the City hasn’t seen a large reduction to 

Tax Type

2017

Actual

2018

Actual

2019

Budget

2019

Estimate

2020

Adopted

Sales Tax 2,923,940$       3,249,291$       2,652,960$       3,252,900$       2,864,730$       

Property Tax 2,047,240          2,330,399          2,353,311          2,360,000          2,436,950          

Non-City Utility Tax 1,069,010          1,125,027          1,159,880          1,142,600          1,203,400          

B&O 522,561             678,574             719,250             690,000             733,640             

City Utility Tax 1,568,387          591,650             828,140             677,900             586,510             

Other Tax 56,340                54,722                52,920                51,820                53,120                

Grand Total 8,187,477$       8,029,663$       7,766,461$       8,175,220$       7,878,350$       



 

City of Shelton, WA - 2021 Proposed Budget    Page | 20 

BUDGET OVERVIEW 

date in sales tax revenue due to COVID.  The 2021 proposed budget is $6,310 higher than the 

2020 adopted budget. 

Property Tax is the second largest tax revenue for the City and accounts for just under 30% of 

General Fund tax revenue and nearly 21% of all General Fund revenues.  Property tax is 

assessed on real property and is based on the valuation of the property owned as determined 

by the Mason County Assessor’s Office.  Property tax is capped at 1% growth or the Implicit 

Price Deflator (IPD), whichever is lower, plus new construction which is in addition to the 1% 

cap. 

B&O Tax revenue is budgeted to remain flat to the 2020 budget.  There are no proposed 

changes to B&O rates. 

Utility Tax revenue is budgeted to increase by nearly 32% from the 2020 budget.  The main 

reason for the increase comes from adjusting Solid Waste Utility Tax collections upward to 

account for the fully consumed $1,000,000 pre-payment of Solid Waste utility tax made in 2017.  

Non-City utility tax collections for Natural Gas, Electricity, Telephone, and Cable are budgeted 

to increase by 2.7% related to use and growth of the City, not rate changes. 

Other Tax revenue is budgeted to decrease by $17,900 or roughly 34% from the 2020 budget.  

The budgeted decrease is significantly from a reduction in gambling tax due to closures related 

to COVID-17.  Other revenue is generated mostly through gambling and various excise tax 

collections. 

GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES 

General Fund expenditures are balanced against revenue and are budgeted to decrease by 

$6,770 or 0.1% in 2021 from the 2020 budget for a total 2020 General Fund budget of 

$12,283,920 as compared to a budget of $12,290,690 for 2020.   

The chart below provides a high-level view of General Fund expense categories and compares 

the proposed budget to the 2020 adopted budget.  Salaries and benefits comprise nearly 58% 

of General Fund expenditures and expenses for professional services and other charges make 

up just under 32% of the 2021 Proposed budget. 

 

Expense Type

2019 

Actual

2020  

Budget

2020 

Estimate

2021  

Proposed

$ Change

20 Bud to 21 

Proposed

% Change

20 Bud to 21 

Proposed

Wages 4,556,791$          4,935,530$          4,709,955$          4,915,360$          (20,170) -0.4%

Benefits 1,821,810 2,115,340 1,965,114 2,160,890 45,550 2.2%

Service/Charges 3,655,274 3,787,260 3,861,949 3,916,510 129,250 3.4%

Supplies/Equip 266,461 279,980 296,207 277,870 (2,110) -0.8%

Transfer-Out 1,992,498 1,126,870 878,250 991,780 (135,090) -12.0%

Subtotal 12,292,835$        12,244,980$        11,711,475$        12,262,410$        17,430 0.1%

Capital 480,606$              24,210$                329,230$              -$                       (24,210) -100.0%

Debt Service 21,494 21,500 21,493 21,510 10 0.0%

Subtotal 502,100 45,710 350,723 21,510 (24,200) -52.9%

Grand Total 12,794,935$        12,290,690$        12,062,198$        12,283,920$        (6,770) -0.1%



 

City of Shelton, WA - 2021 Proposed Budget    Page | 21 

BUDGET OVERVIEW 

The expenditure table below summarizes the 2021 General Fund budget by department and 

provides comparative information between the 2020 and 2021 budgets. 

Significant expenditure changes for General Fund departments with a +/- 10% change include: 

 Information Technology’s budget decreases by 15.0% due to the elimination of a full-

time position offset somewhat by an increase in professional services for contractual 

costs. 

 The change in the City Clerk budget of 92% is a little misleading.  Beginning in 2021 the 

City fully implemented a department structure in the General Fund to better track and 

account for expenses.  Until 2021 the City Clerk’s expenses were allocated between the 

City Council, City Manager, and Finance.  It was difficult to fully separate the City Clerk 

costs in the City Council and City Manager budgets as well as previous actuals.  The 

Clerk increase is offset by reductions in the City Manager and City Council budgets. 

 There is a decrease of nearly 40% in the City Council budget in 2021.  This reduction is 

largely due to the City Clerk budget being moved out of the City Council department and 

into its own department. 

 The City Manager department decreases by 36.4% due to the elimination of two full-

time positions budgeted in 2020, a Homeless Resource Coordinator position and an 

Economic Development Coordinator position.  Additionally, budgeted costs for the City 

Clerk were moved out of the City Manager budget. 

 The Non-Departmental department accounts for General Fund expenditures which do 

not fit within the purview of a specific department or function of a specific department.  

Largely budgeted in non-departmental are General Fund cash transfers to support other 

City Funds and projects.  The 13.1% decrease in 2021 is reflective of one-time transfers 

budgeted in 2020 which are not repeated in 2021.  The General fund is contributing over 

$307,000 for capital projects in 2021 but the transfer of those monies are planned for 

2020 and will be used in other funds in 2021. 

Additional information on General Fund department expenses can be found in the detail pages 

in the following section of the Proposed Budget.   



 

City of Shelton, WA - 2021 Proposed Budget    Page | 22 

BUDGET OVERVIEW 

 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

From a budgetary perspective, Special Revenue Funds account for revenue sources (other than 

special assessments and major capital projects) that are legally restricted for a specific purpose.  

According to the GASB (Governmental Accounting Standards Board) statement #54 and as 

interpreted by the GFOA (Government Finance Officers Association), at least 20% of revenues 

need to be legally restricted to qualify as a Special Revenue Fund.  The following table lists 

each fund and the total expenditure budget associated with the fund. 

 

Prior to 2019 street activities were accounted for in the General Fund.  Beginning in 2019, the 

Street Operating Fund was created to account for expenditures and revenues for street 

operating activities.  

 The budget reduction for 2021 is significantly due to a reduction of Street resources 

being transferred for Capital Projects.  Much of those decreases are offset by an 

increase in expense in the Capital Resources fund for capital projects.  The budget also 

Department

2019 

Actual

2020  

Budget

2020 

Estimate

2021  

Proposed

$ Change

20 Bud to 21 

Proposed

% Change

20 Bud to 21 

Proposed

General Fund Expenditures by Department

Administrative Services

  Human Resources 244,553$           262,000$           267,516$           271,530$           9,530 3.6%

  Information Technology 234,709 289,130 294,851 245,870 (43,260) -15.0%

  Risk Management 189,897 219,960 219,840 225,360 5,400 2.5%

City Clerk 37,837 111,770 67,642 215,480 103,710 92.8%

City Council 231,757 167,050 148,325 100,630 (66,420) -39.8%

City Manager

  City Manager 381,449 628,000 419,201 399,340 (228,660) -36.4%

  Legal 392,309 445,460 421,048 456,580 11,120 2.5%

  Detention & Corrections 365,356 404,070 370,520 414,170 10,100 2.5%

Community Dev, Parks, Facilities

  Community Development 523,664 535,520 533,885 558,860 23,340 4.4%

  Parks & Recreation 410,472 557,750 402,590 575,450 17,700 3.2%

  Facility Services 563,586 514,830 536,854 542,600 27,770 5.4%

  Civic Center Activities 47,014 63,760 47,947 68,210 4,450 7.0%

Finance 933,224 1,068,890 980,965 1,035,070 (33,820) -3.2%

Fire & Emergency Services 1,447,313 1,498,880 1,512,125 1,501,250 2,370 0.2%

Municipal Court

  Community Restitution 95,788                116,290             107,665             122,390             6,100 5.2%

  Court Services 366,503.31       420,350.00       410,582.00       446,060.00       25,710 6.1%

Non-Departmental 2,519,557 1,212,580 1,278,973 1,054,290 (158,290) -13.1%

Police 3,072,032 3,124,110 3,332,761 3,422,280 298,170 9.5%

Public Works 737,915 650,290 708,907 628,500 (21,790) -3.4%

Grand Total 12,794,935$     12,290,690$     12,062,198$     12,283,920$     (6,770)$              -0.1%

Fund

2019 

Actual

2020  

Budget

2020 

Estimate

2021  

Proposed

$ Change

20 Bud to 21 

Proposed

% Change

20 Bud to 21 

Proposed

Street Fund 1,173,598$        2,280,650$        1,609,040$   2,069,190$        (211,460)$     -9.3%

Capital Resources Fund -                           -                           -                      496,630              496,630         N/A

Tourism Fund 52,675                59,130                68,567           61,880                2,750             4.7%

Grand Total 1,226,273$        2,339,780$        1,677,607$   2,627,700$        287,920$      12.3%



 

City of Shelton, WA - 2021 Proposed Budget    Page | 23 

BUDGET OVERVIEW 

includes monies for a quarter of the costs related to the new Development Review 

Technician.  The General Fund supports Street Fund activities in the amount of 

$570,000 for 2021. 

 The Council approved the creation of the City’s Capital Resources Fund in 2019 for the 

2020 calendar year.  This fund will be used to account for various capital monies until 

those monies are appropriated to a project by the City Council through an Ordinance.  

The 2021 budget includes nearly $497,000 in funding for capital projects. 

 The Tourism Fund is used to account for activities (events or programs) to attract visitors 

to the City of Shelton.  The Tourism Advisory Board is responsible for allocating grant 

monies based on an application and determination process. 

DEBT SERVICE FUND 

The Debt Service Fund (Bond Fund) is used to account for the accumulation of resources to be 

used for the retirement of general long-term debt. The appropriation authorized for these funds 

are determined by the debt payment schedules approved by the City Council (or City 

Commission) as part of debt issuance and cannot legally be altered by legislative action.  As 

such, debt service payments are the highest budget funding priority. 

 

Significant changes in the debt service fund: 

 In 2019 the City made the final payment on the Civic Center debt which accounts for 

the nearly $98,000 reduction in expenses in 2020.  

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND 

The Capital Improvement Fund accounts for the City’s capital projects for all funds except 

Enterprise Funds.  Capital project budgets as approved by the City Council do not lapse at the 

end of the fiscal year, unlike non-capital budgets.   

 

The Capital Improvement Fund budget will fluctuate somewhat from year to year depending on 

budgeted capital projects and the funding sources for those projects. 

Capital projects included in the Capital Improvement Fund for 2021 are: 

 Street/Transportation: Pavement Maintenance Program, Western Gateway, and the 

Street funds portion of the Public Works Maintenance Facility Expansion. 

 Facilities: New cargo van, Civic Center and Library parking lot improvements. 

Fund

2019 

Actual

2020  

Budget

2020 

Estimate

2021  

Proposed

$ Change

20 Bud to 21 

Proposed

% Change

20 Bud to 21 

Proposed

Bond Fund 282,318$           184,490$           184,467$      184,490$           -$               0.0%

Grand Total 282,318$           184,490$           184,467$      184,490$           -$               0.0%

Fund

2019 

Actual

2020  

Budget

2020 

Estimate

2021  

Proposed

$ Change

20 Bud to 21 

Proposed

% Change

20 Bud to 21 

Proposed

Capital Improvement Fund 4,411,586$        2,138,630$        921,050$      1,572,140$        (566,490)$     -26.5%

Grand Total 4,411,586$        2,138,630$        921,050$      1,572,140$        (566,490)$     -26.5%



 

City of Shelton, WA - 2021 Proposed Budget    Page | 24 

BUDGET OVERVIEW 

 Parks: Ravenna Trail Crosswalk, Northcliff Neighborhood Park Master Plan, 

Simpson Railroad Trail Design, Eagle Point Trail Construction, and Callanan 

Irrigation and Backstop Fencing. 

 Construction improvements to the gravel Civic Center Parking Lot. 

For more information on the capital projects budgeted for fiscal year 2021 please see the 

Capital Projects section of the Overview. 

ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

The City’s enterprise funds include the Water, Sewer, Solid Waste, and Storm Drainage utilities.  

Enterprise funds are established for government operations that are financed and operated in a 

manner similar to business enterprises.  The cost of providing the service to the general public 

is intended to be financed or recovered through user charges.  The table below summarizes the 

enterprise funds and the budget associated with those functions. 

 

Significant changes to the City’s enterprise funds include: 

 The Water Fund appropriation request includes $1,310,000 for capital projects in 2021 to 

include the PW maintenance facility expansion, automated meter read, well 1 tank 

pressurization project, and the pavement maintenance program.  The budget also 

includes funding for 25% of the new Development Review Technician. 

 The large increase in Sewer is significantly related to the $2,139,200 budget for capital 

projects.  Those projects include the automated meter read, MBR filter replacement, a 

slacktide tank, and a wastewater comprehensive plan update.  The Sewer budget also 

include funding for 25% for the Development Review Technician position. 

 The Solid Waste budget request simply uses most all available resources for continued 

work toward the closeout of the “C” Street landfill. 

 The Storm Drainage Fund includes funding for 25% of the Development Review 

Technician and well as $35,000 for capital expenses.  This fund will require either a rate 

increase or a significant reduction in activities in 2021 as the budget will use nearly all 

available resources including accumulated fund balance. 

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

Internal Service Funds are established for those operations which provide services to the 

operating funds of the City of Shelton on a cost reimbursement basis.  These funds, like 

Enterprise Funds, are financed and operated in a manner similar to a business enterprise 

except with the users of their services being other City funds.  The table below summarizes the 

Internal Service Funds and the budget associated with those functions. 

Fund

2019 

Actual

2020  

Budget

2020 

Estimate

2021  

Proposed

$ Change

20 Bud to 21 

Proposed

% Change

20 Bud to 21 

Proposed

Water Fund 2,287,953$        3,720,740$        2,760,886$   3,865,560$        144,820$      3.9%

Sewer Fund 7,585,993          5,777,330          5,822,025     7,787,220          2,009,890     34.8%

Solid Waste Fund 137,092              1,459,020          100,903         781,810              (677,210)       -46.4%

Storm Drainage Fund 1,038,145          1,275,710          940,285         1,338,760          63,050           4.9%

Grand Total 11,049,183$     12,232,800$     9,624,099$   13,773,350$     1,540,550$   12.6%



 

City of Shelton, WA - 2021 Proposed Budget    Page | 25 

BUDGET OVERVIEW 

 

Significant changes between the 2020 and 2021 budgets include: 

 The Equipment Maintenance and Rental fund is scheduled to purchase nearly $358,000 

in new equipment in 2021 and includes $90,000 for the PW Maintenance Facility 

expansion project. 

OTHER BUDGETED FUNDS 

The City budgets two additional funds, a Pension Trust Fund (Firefighters Pension Fund) and a 

Permanent Fund (Library Endowment Fund).  Pension Trust Funds are made up of monies 

contributed for pension benefits.  Permanent funds preserve an original sum of monies and use 

those resources to generate interest income which can be applied to the funds stated purpose.  

Principal monies cannot be used for expenses and ensures some level of funding will be 

available for use in perpetuity. 

 

CAPITAL & MAINTENANCE PROJECTS 

The City’s 2021 – 2026 six-year Capital Improvement Plan is a flexible plan which provides an 

overview of the City’s capital improvement needs.  It is important to understand that this multi-

year plan does not constitute financial commitment for any year past the current budget year.  

The six-year CIP simply reflects the projects deemed to be most important at a given point in 

time.  The Capital Plan is updated annually during the budget process and new projects may be 

added and projects that were on a previous plan may be removed or postponed. 

The City adopts Capital projects on a project based budget.  The budget for individual projects 

are approved by Council that budget authority caps the total expenditures for the project.  

However, unlike other funds, the budgets for capital projects does not lapse at the end of the 

fiscal year and requires no legislative action to be taken to amend the project budget in future 

years other than if the project expenses are expected to exceed budget authority.   

To control cash and capital projects the City takes two important steps: the first is that current 

year capital projects must be fully funded and those funds must be secured in order to take a 

project forward in the budget and: second, once a project is funded by the Council through 

Ordinance, the funding sources are moved into project accounting so that a duplication of 

resource use cannot take place. 

Fund

2019 

Actual

2020  

Budget

2020 

Estimate

2021  

Proposed

$ Change

20 Bud to 21 

Proposed

% Change

20 Bud to 21 

Proposed

Payroll Benefits Fund 112,620$           219,200$           125,600$      206,700$           (12,500)$       -5.7%

Equipment Maint & Rental Fund 929,299              863,720              759,577         929,010              65,290           7.6%

Grand Total 1,041,919$        1,082,920$        885,177$      1,135,710$        52,790$         4.9%

Fund

2019 

Actual

2020  

Budget

2020 

Estimate

2021  

Proposed

$ Change

20 Bud to 21 

Proposed

% Change

20 Bud to 21 

Proposed

Firefighters Pension Fund 86,074$              98,570$              88,248$         98,570$              -$               0.0%

Library Endowment Fund -                           -                           -                      -                           -                      0.0%

Grand Total 86,074$              98,570$              88,248$         98,570$              -$               0.0%



 

City of Shelton, WA - 2021 Proposed Budget    Page | 26 

BUDGET OVERVIEW 

Funding for capital projects generally come from five major categories: 

 Taxes/Fees: This source include non-dedicated taxes such as property tax and sales 

tax, as well as dedicated taxes such as real estate excise tax and impact and other fees 

paid by developers. 

 User Fees: This revenue source represents fees paid for specific services provided by 

the government.  These sources are restricted and must be used to support the service 

for which they were collected.  Examples include city utility fees. 

 Grants & Contributions: This source includes federal, state, county, and other 

contributions for specific qualified projects. 

 Bonds: Bonds are interest-bearing debt issued by the City for a specific purpose.  

Bonds require a formal and on-going source for paying interest and principal payments 

for the life of the bond. 

 Intergovernmental Loans: This category represents loans from one department to 

another.  Like bonds, these loans are interest bearing and require a formal payment 

source and schedule. 

The 2021 Proposed Budget includes significant investment to address the City’s capital and 

major maintenance needs.  The planned investments total nearly $5.5 million.  However, not all 

capital and major maintenance needs could be funded and priority decisions were required on 

which projects would be funded in 2021 based on need, public benefit, and the City Council’s 

Strategic Plan.   

Six-year Capital Plan Summary 

 

 

In Thousands

Fund / Division 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 Total

Parks 216.0$        266.0$       300.0$       650.0$          375.0$       50.0$            1,857.0$       

Facilities 447.9          147.0          78.0            70.0              195.0          30.0              967.9             

Transportation 892.3          3,901.7      5,736.3      9,537.3        4,918.3      15,108.3      40,094.3       

Water 1,310.0      1,392.0      115.0          395.0            215.0          371.0            3,798.0          

Sewer 2,139.2      1,160.0      1,335.0      1,361.0        2,964.0      2,970.0        11,929.2       

Storm 35.0            282.5          237.5          220.0            270.0          220.0            1,265.0          

EM&R 427.5          313.0          405.0          370.0            225.0          240.0            1,980.5          

Total Expense 5,467.9$    7,462.2$    8,206.8$    12,603.3$    9,162.3$    18,989.3$    61,891.9$     

Resource(s) 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 Total

General Fund 307.9$        -$            -$            -$              -$            -$              307.9$           

Utility Rates 3,522.5      3,181.5      2,092.5      2,346.0        3,674.0      3,801.0        18,617.5       

EM&R Rates 832.3          800.0          850.0          800.0            800.0          800.0            4,882.3          

Street/Transportation 589.2          2,761.7      4,648.5      6,114.5        3,760.0      12,597.5      30,471.4       

Grants 216.0          253.0          100.0          300.0            362.5          -                   1,231.5          

Other -                 35.0            -                75.0              -                -                   110.0             

Unidentified / Funding Gap -                 431.0          515.8          2,967.8        565.8          1,790.8        6,271.3          

Total Resouce(s) 5,467.9$    7,462.2$    8,206.8$    12,603.3$    9,162.3$    18,989.3$    61,891.9$     



 

City of Shelton, WA - 2021 Proposed Budget    Page | 27 

BUDGET OVERVIEW 

Facilities Capital Plan 

 

 

2021 Project Funding: 

 Civic Center Parking Lot: $200,000 General Fund & $200,000 Department of Commerce 

grant. 

 Cargo Van: General Fund 

 Civic Center and Library Parking Lot Maintenance: General Fund 

 

 

 

 

 

 

In Thousands

Project 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 Total

Civic Center Parking Lot Construction 400.0$    -$        -$        -$        -$        -$        400.0$    

Cargo Van 35.0         -               -               -               -               -               35.0         

Civic center parking lot maintenance 6.4           -               -               -               -               -               6.4           

Library Parking lot maintenance 6.5           -               -               -               -               -               6.5           

Library Deck - membrane and railing replacement -               90.0         -               -               -               -               90.0         

UPS Batteries- Fire Station -               3.0           -               -               -               -               3.0           

City Branded Wayfinding markers -               10.0         -               -               -               -               10.0         

Electronic Door Locks -               44.0         -               -               -               -               44.0         

Floor Repair - CC main room -               -               8.0           -               -               -               8.0           

Fire alarm system - Civic Center -               -               70.0         -               -               -               70.0         

Library amphitheater -               -               -               20.0         -               -               20.0         

Library retaining wall parking lot -               -               -               50.0         -               -               50.0         

Civic Center Carpet replacement- upstairs -               -               -               -               45.0         -               45.0         

Civic Center office cubicle replacement -               -               -               -               150.0      -               150.0      

CC Kitchen remodel -               -               -               -               -               30.0         30.0         

Total Expense 447.9$    147.0$    78.0$      70.0$      195.0$    30.0$      967.9$    

Resource(s) 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 Total

City general fund 247.9$    -$        -$        -$        -$        -$        247.9$    

Deptment of Commerce Grant 200.0      -               -               -               -               -               200.0      

Libray endowment fund -               20.0         -               -               -               -               20.0         

Sewer -               20.0         -               -               -               -               20.0         

Water -               12.0         -               -               -               -               12.0         

EMR -               2.0           -               -               -               -               2.0           

SMPD -               2.0           -               -               -               -               2.0           

Unidenfied / Funding Gap -               91.0         78.0         70.0         195.0      30.0         464.0      

TOTAL Resource(s) 447.9$    147.0$    78.0$      70.0$      195.0$    30.0$      967.9$    



 

City of Shelton, WA - 2021 Proposed Budget    Page | 28 

BUDGET OVERVIEW 

Parks Capital Plan 

 

 

2021 Project Funding: 

 All other Parks projects are funded by the Shelton Municipal Park District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

In Thousands

Project 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 Total

Callanan Irrigation and backstop fencing 15.0$       -$         -$         -$         -$         -$         15.0$          

Ravenna Trail Crosswalk 1.0           -                -                -                -                1.0              

Northcliff Neighborhood Park Master Plan 20.0         -                -                -                -                20.0            

Simpson Railroad Multi-model Trail Phase 1 Design 60.0         -                -                -                -                -                60.0            

Eagle Point Trail Construction Phase 1 120.0       -                -                -                -                -                120.0          

6th St. Park Shelter roof replacement -                6.0           -                -                6.0              

Loop Field Parcel Acquisition -                100.0       -                -                -                -                100.0          

Northcliff Neighborhood Park Development -                50.0         -                -                -                -                50.0            

Simpson Railroad Multi-model Trail Phase 2 Design -                50.0         -                -                -                -                50.0            

Eagle Point Trail Construction Phase 2 -                60.0         -                -                -                -                60.0            

Simpson Railroad Multi-model Trail Phase 1 Construction -                -                300.0       -                -                -                300.0          

Simpson Railroad Multi-model Trail Phase 2 Construction -                -                -                300.0       -                -                300.0          

Kneeland Park Playground -                -                350.0       -                -                350.0          

Callanan Park parking -                -                -                350.0       -                350.0          

Hillcrest Neighborhood Park Siting and Master Plan -                -                -                -                25.0         -                25.0            

Johnson Park Playstructure -                -                -                -                -                25.0         25.0            

Turner Neighborhhod Park(Manke/Angle Master Plan) -                -                -                -                -                25.0         25.0            

Total Expense 216.0$    266.0$    300.0$    650.0$    375.0$    50.0$       1,857.0$    

Resource(s) 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 Total

SMPD annual appropriation 216.0$    251.0$    100.0$    300.0$    362.5$    -$         1,229.5$    

Donations -                10.0         -                50.0         -                -                60.0            

In-kind -                5.0           -                25.0         -                -                30.0            

RCO Grant -                -                150.0       275.0       12.5         -                437.5          

Street/Transportation -                -                50.0         -                -                -                50.0            

Unidentified / Funding Gap -                -                -                -                -                50.0         50.0            

Total Resource(s) 216.0$    266.0$    300.0$    650.0$    375.0$    50.0$       216.0$       



 

City of Shelton, WA - 2021 Proposed Budget    Page | 29 

BUDGET OVERVIEW 

Water Capital Plan 

 

 

 

2021 Project Funding: 

 All projects are funded by Water Fund revenue 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

In Thousands

Project 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 Total

Maintenance Facility Expansion 180.0$     -$         -$      -$      -$      -$      180.0$     

Automated Meter Read (AMR) 850.0       -              -          -          -          -          850.0       

Well 1 to HS Tank Pipe Pressurization Proj. 265.0       908.0       -          -          -          -          1,173.0    

Pavement Maintenance Program 15.0          15.0          15.0      15.0      15.0      15.0      90.0          

High School Tank Recoating -              344.0       -          -          -          156.0    500.0       

New Generator Well 3 & 4 -              125.0       -          -          -          -          125.0       

Angleside PS Control Improvements #1 -              -              100.0    -          -          -          100.0       

On-Site Chlorine Generation -              -              -          380.0    -          -          380.0       

System Repair and Replacement -              -              -          -          100.0    100.0    200.0       

Hydrant Improvements -              -              -          -          100.0    100.0    200.0       

Total Expense 1,310.0$ 1,392.0$ 115.0$ 395.0$ 215.0$ 371.0$ 3,798.0$ 

Resourc(s) 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 Total

Water rates 1,310.0$ 1,392.0$ 115.0$ 395.0$ 215.0$ 371.0$ 3,798.0$ 

Unidenfied / Funding Gap -              -              -          -          -          -          -              

TOTALS SOURCES 1,310.0$ 1,392.0$ 115.0$ 395.0$ 215.0$ 371.0$ 3,798.0$ 



 

City of Shelton, WA - 2021 Proposed Budget    Page | 30 

BUDGET OVERVIEW 

Sewer Capital Plan 

 

 

2021 Project Funding: 

 WWTP Reclaimed Tank and Comprehensive Plan are 100% grant funded 

 All other Sewer projects are funded by Sewer Fund revenue 

 

 

 

 

 

 

In Thousands

Project 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 Total

Front Street Pipe Removal, Design & Construction 30.0$          635.0$        -$            -$            -$            -$            665.0$          

MBR WWTP Reclaimed Tank Design 93.2            -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 93.2              

WWTP Slacktide Tank Pump & Forcemain System 300.0          -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 300.0            

MBR WWTP Filter Replacement 425.0          -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 425.0            

Comprehensive Plan Update 296.0          -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 296.0            

Advance Metering Infrastructure 850.0          -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 850.0            

Maintenance Facility Expansion 120.0          -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 120.0            

Pavement Maintenance Program 25.0            25.0            25.0            25.0            25.0            25.0            150.0            

MBR WWTP Expansion Phase 2 & 3 Capacity Study -                 60.0            -                 -                 -                 -                 60.0              

MBR Phase 3 Treatment Property Purchase -                 200.0          -                 -                 -                 -                 200.0            

Forcemain Inspection & Repair -                 40.0            -                 -                 -                 -                 40.0              

WWTP Biosolids Storage and Processing -                 50.0            350.0          -                 -                 -                 400.0            

Basin 4 & 6 I&I studies  -                 50.0            -                 -                 50.0            -                 100.0            

Pump Replacements -                 40.0            40.0            40.0            -                 -                 120.0            

Pipe & MH replacements/lining -                 15.0            20.0            20.0            25.0            25.0            105.0            

Biosolids capacity and rate study -                 25.0            -                 -                 -                 -                 25.0              

Water and Wastewater Rate Study -                 20.0            -                 -                 -                 -                 20.0              

MBR WWTP Phase 2 Capacity Expansion Design -                 -                 850.0          850.0          -                 -                 1,700.0        

Upsize Trunkline parallel to Olympic Hwy South -                 -                 50.0            401.0          -                 -                 451.0            

Harvard Ave Trunkline Replacement -                 -                 -                 25.0            164.0          -                 189.0            

MBR WWTP Phase 2 Capacity Expansion Construction -                 -                 -                 -                 2,700.0      2,700.0      5,400.0        

Basin 4 I&I Reduction Design -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 220.0          220.0            

Total Expense 2,139.2$    1,160.0$    1,335.0$    1,361.0$    2,964.0$    2,970.0$    11,929.2$    

Resourc(s) 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 Total

Sewer Rates 1,750.0$    1,160.0$    1,335.0$    1,361.0$    2,964.0$    2,970.0$    11,540.0$    

Grant 389.2          -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 389.2            

Unidenfified / Funding Gap -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                   

Total Resource(s) 2,139.2$    1,160.0$    1,335.0$    1,361.0$    2,964.0$    2,970.0$    11,929.2$    



 

City of Shelton, WA - 2021 Proposed Budget    Page | 31 

BUDGET OVERVIEW 

Storm Drainage Capital Plan 

 

 

2021 Project Funding: 

 All Storm Drainage Fund projects are funded through Storm Fund revenue 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

In Thousands

Project 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 Total

Maintenance Facility Expansion 15.0$      -$           -$           -$           -$           -$           15.0$          

Pavement Maintenance Program 20.0         20.0           20.0           20.0           20.0           20.0           120.0          

2nd & Birch Hosue Removal and Creek Restoration -             30.0           -               -               -               -               30.0            

Master Plan Update & Adoption of Capacity Charges -             60.0           60.0           -               -               -               120.0          

Western Gateway Schedule A -             142.5         142.5         -               -               -               285.0          

Canyon Creek WQ and Flood Reduction -             20.0           -               -               -               -               20.0            

North 3rd Stret & Laurel Pipe Upgrade -             10.0           -               -               -               -               10.0            

West Franklin Street Drainage Improvements -             -               15.0           -               -               -               15.0            

Wallace Kneeland Roundabout #1 and #2 -             -               -               200.0         -               200.0         400.0          

Western Gateway Schedule C -             -               -               -               250.0         -               250.0          

Total Expense 35.0$      282.5$      237.5$      220.0$      270.0$      220.0$      1,265.0$    

Resourc(s) 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 Total

Storm Rates 35.0$      282.5$      237.5$      220.0$      270.0$      220.0$      1,265.0$    

Unidenfified / Funding Gap -             -               -               -               -               -               -                

Total Resource(s) 35.0$      282.5$      237.5$      220.0$      270.0$      220.0$      1,265.0$    



 

City of Shelton, WA - 2021 Proposed Budget    Page | 32 

BUDGET OVERVIEW 

Equipment Maintenance & Rental 

 

 

2021 Project Funding: 

 All capital purchases and projects are funded through EM&R rate revenue 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

In Thousands

Project 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 Total

Vacuum Style Street Sweeper 315.0$    -$        -$        -$        -$        -$        315.0$       

Vehicle Code Reader 12.5         -             -             -             -             -             12.5            

New Shop Welder 10.0         -             -             -             -             -             10.0            

Maintenance Facility Expansion 90.0         -             -             -             -             -             90.0            

Sidewalk Grinder -             8.0           -             -             -             -             8.0              

Small Road Grader -             240.0      -             -             -             -             240.0          

Fuel Trailer -             15.0        -             -             -             -             15.0            

Patch Machine -             50.0        -             -             -             -             50.0            

Small Backhoe -             -             150.0      -             -             -             150.0          

Forklift -             -             35.0        -             -             -             35.0            

10 Yard Dump Truck -             -             220.0      -             -             -             220.0          

5 Yard Dump Truck -             -             -             150.0      -             -             150.0          

Sludge Truck -             -             -             200.0      -             -             200.0          

Air Compressor Trailer -             -             -             20.0        -             -             20.0            

Pickup replacements -             -             -             -             120.0      120.0      240.0          

Pool and Engineering car replacements -             -             -             -             25.0        40.0        65.0            

City Shop Unleaded and Diesel Fuel Tank Upgrades -             -             -             -             80.0        80.0        160.0          

Total Expense 427.5$    313.0$    405.0$    370.0$    225.0$    240.0$    1,980.5$    

Resourc(s) 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 Total

EM&R Rates 427.5$    313.0$    405.0$    370.0$    225.0$    240.0$    1,980.5$    

Unidenfified / Funding Gap -             -             -             -             -             -             -                

Total Resource(s) 427.5$    313.0$    405.0$    370.0$    225.0$    240.0$    1,980.5$    



 

City of Shelton, WA - 2021 Proposed Budget    Page | 33 

BUDGET OVERVIEW 

Transportation Capital Plan 

 

2021 Project Funding: 

 Maintenance Facility Expansion: $120,000 Street/Capital Resources & $60,000 General 

Fund 

 Western Gateway: Street funded 

 Pavement Maintenance Program: Transportation Benefit District Sales Tax ($400,000 

from 2021 revenue and $140,000 from previous year revenue in the Capital Resource 

Fund) 

BUDGET PROCESS 

Budgets serve as control mechanisms in the operations of government units.  Legal budgetary 

(expenditure) control in the City of Shelton is maintained at the fund level.  Administration can 

amend budgets where there is no overall expenditure increase within the fund to meet 

unforeseen changes to the adopted budget.  Supplemental appropriations that amend the total 

expenditure within a fund or funds, or amend working capital in the case of Proprietary Funds, 

require an Ordinance be adopted by the City Council.  All operating budgets lapse at fiscal year-

end (December 31st).  Though budgetary control is at the fund level, budget and actual 

In Thousands

Project 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 Total

Maintenance Facility Expansion 180.0$            -$                -$            -$            -$            -$              180.0$          

Western Gateway Phase A - Railroad Avenue 172.3              2,820.1           555.5          -                -                -                   3,547.9        

Pavement Maintenance Program 540.0              400.0              400.0          400.0          400.0          400.0            2,540.0        

Access Shelton Phase III-A -                     202.0              65.0            2,469.0      -                -                   2,736.0        

Access Shelton Phase III-B -                     200.0              2,820.0      -                -                -                   3,020.0        

Western Gateway Phase B - 7th Street -                     56.3                 637.5          -                -                -                   693.8            

Non-Motorized Plan -                     60.0                 -                -                -                -                   60.0              

Signage Improvement Plan -                     25.0                 25.0            25.0            25.0            25.0              125.0            

Guardrail Replacement -                     83.3                 83.3            83.3            83.3            83.3              416.7            

Pedestrian Crossing Improvements -                     25.0                 25.0            25.0            25.0            25.0              125.0            

Sidewalk Replacement Program -                     30.0                 30.0            30.0            30.0            30.0              150.0            

Access Shelton Phase V, Brockdale Road -                     -                     225.0          1,275.0      -                -                   1,500.0        

Olympic Highway North -                     -                     270.0          1,530.0      -                -                   1,800.0        

Access Shelton Phase VI, Olympic Highway North -                     -                     600.0          3,400.0      -                -                   4,000.0        

Western Gateway Phase C - West Downtown -                     -                     -                300.0          1,700.0      -                   2,000.0        

North Shelton Interchange Upgrade -                     -                     -                -                480.0          2,720.0        3,200.0        

Railroad Avenue -                     -                     -                -                600.0          3,400.0        4,000.0        

Cota Street -                     -                     -                -                300.0          1,700.0        2,000.0        

Turner Avenue -                     -                     -                -                150.0          850.0            1,000.0        

Park Street -                     -                     -                -                300.0          1,700.0        2,000.0        

Angleside Road / 7th Street -                     -                     -                -                525.0          2,475.0        3,000.0        

Railroad Avenue -                     -                     -                -                300.0          1,700.0        2,000.0        

Total Expense 892.3$            3,901.7$        5,736.3$    9,537.3$    4,918.3$    15,108.3$    40,094.3$    

Resourc(s) 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 Total

Transportation / Capital Resouces 832.3$            800.0$            800.0$       800.0$       800.0$       800.0$          4,832.3$      

General Fund 60.0                -                     -                -                -                -                   60.0              

Grant -                     2,761.7           4,498.5      5,839.5      3,747.5      12,597.5      29,444.7      

Unidentified / Funding Gap -                     340.0              437.8          2,897.8      370.8          1,710.8        5,757.3        

Total Resource(s) 892.3$            3,901.7$        5,736.3$    9,537.3$    4,918.3$    15,108.3$    40,094.3$    



 

City of Shelton, WA - 2021 Proposed Budget    Page | 34 

BUDGET OVERVIEW 

information for cost accounting purposes is maintained by department/division, project, 

program, organization unit, and/or object level. 

For all funds, the City considers restricted amounts to have been spent first when expenditures 

are incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted resources are available.  

When expenditures occur of unrestricted monies, unassigned resources are always considered 

the last monies to be included after all other qualified resources have been exhausted. 

The City must adopt its budget prior to the ensuing fiscal year.  This usually occurs in December 

following several months of analysis by the City Council and staff.  The first step in the budget 

process is the establishment of the baseline budget required to carry existing programs into the 

next year.  The next step involves the development of issues impacting, generally financially, 

the next fiscal year and beyond as well as establishing budget priorities through the City 

Council.  The emphasis of this process is generally placed on the General Fund and to a lesser 

extent Special Revenue Funds as the operation of other funds are tied to Ordinances, 

contractual agreements, or separately established rate structures.  Once the baseline 

operations have been reviewed and adjusted based on administrative policy, program 

expansion (or contraction) is decided upon largely based on the level of projected resources 

available after the establishment of sufficient fund balances. 

After the City Manager’s proposed budget is prepared, the City Council spends approximately 

eight to ten weeks reviewing the budget submittal.  Public meetings are held for Council to 

gather input from residents and businesses before they make their final decisions on the 

budget.  When the City Council has finished their review and any final adjustments are 

completed a balanced budget, as required by state law, is adopted by the City Council through 

Ordinance.   

BUDGETING GUIDING PRINCIPLES 

The City of Shelton is in process of a major policy update, which includes many policies which 

will update the City’s budgeting and financial processes to meet best practices.  The City made 

a deliberate decision to implement these budget and financial policy changes or updates during 

the 2020 budget process, and the adopted budget reflects those coming changes.   

The budget process is part of an overall policy framework that guides the services and functions 

of the City.  The budget process is the vehicle the City Council uses to allocate resources to City 

programs to implement the City’s overall goals and priorities. 

REVENUE POLICIES 

Conservative Revenue Budgeting: The City will budget revenue sources in a realistic, yet 

conservative, manner to help provide reasonable assurance that actual revenue will be equal or 

greater than budgeted revenue, overall. 

User Charges and Fees: The City will review charges and fees for service on a periodic basis 

and will modify charges to maintain balance with increasing costs of providing services. 

User Charges & Taxes Related to Market Rates: The City will consider its user charges, fees, 

and tax rates in connection with those of neighboring entities and other governments of similar 

size and city populations to help attract business and residences to the City. 



 

City of Shelton, WA - 2021 Proposed Budget    Page | 35 

BUDGET OVERVIEW 

Timely Reimbursement: Many of the grants the City receives are reimbursement based, 

meaning the City must expend the funds for qualified expenses and then request 

reimbursement from the grantor.  The City will request reimbursement on a timely basis to 

maximize the City’s cash balances and funds available for investment. 

Aggressive Collection Effort: The City will follow an aggressive policy of collecting all monies 

due to the City to the extent that the collection effort remains cost effective. 

EXPENDITURE POLICIES 

Structurally Balanced Budget: The City will strive to adopt a budget in which ongoing 

revenues equal or exceed ongoing expenses.  One-time revenue, including fund balance, 

should not be used to pay for ongoing or recurring costs. 

Conservative Expenditure Budgeting: The City will budget for expenses in a realistic, yet 

conservative, manner to help provide reasonable assurance that actual expenses will be equal 

to or less than budget.  The budget will be built so that on-going expenditures are equal or less 

than on-going budgeted revenue. 

Program Review: The City Manager shall perform a periodic review of staff and programs of 

the City for both efficiency and effectiveness.  The review will include evaluating alternate 

methods of service delivery.  Programs that are determined to be inefficient, ineffective, or 

inconsistent with the City Council’s strategic goals shall be reduced or discontinued. 

Maintenance and Operation Planning: Maintenance of current assets shall take priority over 

new capital projects whenever possible.  The City Council shall ensure that there are stable 

sources of revenue to fund on-going maintenance needs.  Before any new capital asset is 

approved, staff shall present an estimate of the life cycle and annual on-going maintenance 

costs.  The City Council shall not approve of new capital projects unless there is funding for the 

on-gong cost of maintenance for the asset. 

Self-Supporting Proprietary Funds: The City’s Utility Funds, Water, Sewer, Storm Drainage, 

and Solid Waste as well as the City’s Internal Service Funds, Payroll Benefits and Equipment 

Maintenance and Rental, will be self-supporting.  The costs for providing these services is 

expected to be fully funded from user fees and charges for the service.  If these funds produce a 

loss, both expenditure reductions and user fee rates will be evaluated and adjusted to achieve, 

at a minimum, a break-even bottom line. 

Capital Improvement Plan: The City will update its six-year capital facilities plan on an annual 

basis as required by the Growth Management Act.  A preliminary plan will be established early 

in the budget process to serve as a guideline during budget development and the capital plan 

will be included in the annual budget. 

FUND BALANCE RESERVE 

Key concepts of the City’s Fund Balance Policy are outlined below.  The Fund Balance policy 

will be considered by the City Council in Spring 2020.  The objective of the policy is to provide 

guidance for the establishment and continued maintenance of fund balances and the conditions 

under which these reserves may be used. 

Targeted Fund Balances: Adequate fund balances are maintained to allow the City to continue 

providing services to the community in case of unexpected emergencies, unfunded mandates, 



 

City of Shelton, WA - 2021 Proposed Budget    Page | 36 

BUDGET OVERVIEW 

and/or economic downturns.  Fund balances may also be used to meet seasonal cash flow 

shortages as necessary.  The targeted fund balance levels for key funds are as follows: 

 General Fund – 16% of current-year budgeted expenses 

 Street Fund – 16% of current-year budgeted expenses 

 Utility Funds – 20% of current-year budgeted expenses 

General Fund: The City will strive to maintain a General Fund operating reserve with an upper 

goal of 16% of the adopted current-year General Fund expenditures, less any one-time items.  

The intent is to limit the use of unassigned General Fund balances to addressing unanticipated, 

non-recurring needs or know and planned future obligations.  Fund balances shall not normally 

be applied to recurring annual operating expenditures.  Unassigned balances may, however, be 

used to allow time for the City to restructure its operations in a deliberate manner, but such use 

will only take place in the context of long-term financial planning.  Any use of fund reserves that 

reduces the balance below goal amount must include a repayment/replenishment plan. 

General Fund reserves in excess of the 16% target may be considered to supplement “pay as 

you go” capital outlay and other one-time expenditures.  These funds many not be used to 

establish or support costs that are recurring in nature.  Unless otherwise noted, all parameters 

of use of General Fund balance are also applied to all other fund balances. 

Funding Reserves: Funding of reserve targets will generally come from excess revenues over 

expenses or from one-time revenues. 

Excess Reserves: Reserves for specific funds are restricted for the activities of that fund, with 

the exception of the General Fund, which can be used for any good governmental purpose.  In 

the event fund reserves exceed the target balance at the end of a fiscal year, those excess 

reserves may be used in the following ways: 

 Fund future liabilities.  Priority will be given to those items that relieve budget or financial 

operating pressure in future periods. 

 Appropriated to lower the amount of bonds or contributions needed to fund capital 

projects in the City’s Capital Improvement Program. 

 Fund one-time expenses that do not increase recurring operating costs and that cannot 

be funded through current revenues.  Emphasis will be placed on one-time uses that 

reduce future operating costs. 

 Fund start-up expenses for new programs, provided that such action is approved by the 

City Council and is considered in the context of multi-year projections of revenue and 

expenses approved by the City’s Finance Department. 

DEBT POLICY 

Key concepts of the City’s Debt Policy are outlined below.  The Debt policy will be considered 

by the City Council in Spring 2020.  The objective of this policy is to provide general guidance 

for the issuance and management of all City debt.  The City issues debt in accordance with the 

Revised Code of Washington (RCW), in particular chapters 39.36, 39.46, and 39.53, along with 

all other City, State, and federal laws, rules, and regulations. 

Debt Issuance: The City will only utilize debt financing to fund capital improvement projects that 
cannot be reasonably funded on a pay-as-you-go basis. All City projects proposed to be 
financed through debt must have a full analysis of a) alternative methods of financing the 



 

City of Shelton, WA - 2021 Proposed Budget    Page | 37 

BUDGET OVERVIEW 

project, b) future operating and maintenance costs, including debt service expense, associated 
with the project, c) projected cash inflows which can reasonably be applied to reduce the 
amount being financed, and d) projected cash outflows for construction/equipment in order to 
ensure arbitrage compliance.  
 
The City will, unless otherwise justified, use tax-exempt bond proceeds within the established 
time frame pursuant to the bond ordinance, contract, or other document to avoid arbitrage. The 
City will maintain a system of recordkeeping and reporting to meet the arbitrage rebate 
compliance requirement of the IRS (Internal Revenue Service, IRC 148) regulation.  The City 
will repay principal plus interest in accordance with the payment terms of the bond or contract. 
Furthermore, the City will comply with all bond or contract covenants. This includes, but is not 
limited to, any undertakings to provide ongoing disclosure and notice of certain listed events 
under SEC (Securities and Exchange Commission) Rule 15C2-12. 
 
Debt cannot be issued for a longer maturity than a conservatively estimated useful life of the 
asset to be financed.  
 
The City will maintain good communications with bond rating agencies and investors about its 
fiscal condition. The City will provide full disclosure on financial reports and in disclosure 
documents. 
 
Short-term debt:  The City may use short-term debt, defined as a period not to exceed three 
years, to fund cash flow needs, which may be caused by a delay in receipting tax revenues or 
issuing long-term debt. The City will not issue short-term debt for current operations. 
 
The City may issue interfund loans rather than issuing outside debt to meet short-term cash flow 

needs. The issuance of an interfund loan will be permissible only after an analysis of the loaning 

fund(s) indicate(s) that excess funds are available and the use of these funds will not impact the 

loaning fund(s) current operations or constitute a permanent diversion of funds. All interfund 

borrowing will bear interest based upon at least the prevailing LGIP (Local Government 

Investment Pool) rate. 

The City’s Finance Director has the authority to approve short-term interfund loans for a period 

not to exceed three calendar months. The City Manager has the authority to approve loans for a 

period not to exceed 12 calendar months. The Finance Director shall notify the City Council of 

any use of directorial or managerial approved loans at the first reasonable opportunity. 

Long-term debt: The City will issue long-term debt, defined as a period of time greater than 
three years, for capital projects, which cannot reasonably be financed on a pay-as-you-go 
funding strategy from anticipated cash flows. Acceptable uses of bond proceeds are one-time 
capital projects that can be capitalized and depreciated in accordance with the City’s accounting 
principles. Refunding debt is also an acceptable use.  
 
The City may issue interfund loans rather than issuing outside debt instruments as a means of 
financing capital improvements. The issuance of an interfund loan will be permissible only after 
an analysis of the loaning fund(s) indicate that excess funds are available and the use of these 
funds will not impact the loaning fund(s) current operations or constitute a permanent diversion 
of funds. All interfund borrowing will bear interest based upon at least the prevailing LGIP (Local 
Government Investment Pool) rate. 
 



 

City of Shelton, WA - 2021 Proposed Budget    Page | 38 

BUDGET OVERVIEW 

The decision to use an interfund loan rather than outside debt to fund capital projects will be 
based on which is deemed to be the most cost effective approach to meet City capital needs. 
The City’s Finance Department is responsible for making such an assessment. 
 
The City will not issue long-term debt for current operational needs. 
 
Debt Issuance Process: The Finance Director will determine the method of sale best suited for 
each issue of debt (competitive sale, negotiated sale, or private placement). 
 
The Finance Director and bond counsel will coordinate their activities and review all debt 
issuance to ensure that all securities are issued in compliance with state and federal legal and 
regulatory requirements by the State and the Federal Government’s laws, rules and regulations. 
 
For each issue, the City will evaluate the costs and benefits of bond insurance or other credit 
enhancements. Any credit enhancement purchases by the City must be competitively procured. 
 
INVESTMENT POLICY 
 
Key concepts of the City’s Investment Policy are outlined below.  The Investment policy will be 
considered by the City Council in Spring 2020.  The purpose of the Investment Policy is to 
establish the investment objectives, delegation of authority, standards of prudence, eligible 
investments and transactions, internal controls, reporting requirements and custodial 
procedures necessary for the prudent management and investment of the funds of the city.  
 
Scope:  The city commingles its funds to maximize investment earnings and to increase 
efficiencies with regard to investment pricing, safekeeping, and administration. Investment 
income will be allocated to the various funds based on their respective participation and in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. The city maintains the right to 
separate certain funds and exclude them from the scope of this policy. Investment funds may 
include: 
 

 General Fund 
 Special Revenue Funds 
 Debt Service Funds 
 Capital Project Funds 
 Enterprise Funds  
 Internal Services Funds 
 Any new fund created by the city council, unless specifically exempted  

 
Objectives:  The primary objectives, in priority order, of the city's investment activities shall be 
safety, liquidity, and return on investment. 
 

 Safety.  Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the city’s investment policy. City 
investments shall be made in a manner that seeks to ensure the preservation of capital 
in the overall portfolio.  

 Liquidity.  The city's investment portfolio will remain sufficiently liquid to enable the city 
to meet all reasonably anticipated operating requirements. This will be accomplished by 
either maintaining a portion of the portfolio in investment vehicles offering daily liquidity 
at face value, such as the Washington State Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) 
or structuring the portfolio so that securities mature concurrently with cash needs to 



 

City of Shelton, WA - 2021 Proposed Budget    Page | 39 

BUDGET OVERVIEW 

meet anticipated demands. Because all possible cash demands cannot be anticipated, 
the portfolio should consist largely of securities with active secondary or resale markets. 

 Return on investment.  The city's investment portfolio shall be designed with the 
objective of attaining a market rate of return throughout budgetary and economic cycles, 
taking into account the city’s investment risk constraints, the cash flow characteristics of 
the portfolio, and earnings relative to the State of Washington LGIP. Return on 
investment is of lesser importance compared to the safety and liquidity objectives 
described above.  

 
Standards of care and ethics:  The standard of care to be used by investment officials shall 
be the "Prudent Person" standard and shall be applied in the context of managing an overall 
portfolio under prevailing economic conditions at the moment of investment commitments. 
Investment officers acting in accordance with written procedures and exercising due diligence 
shall be relieved of personal responsibility for an individual security's credit risk or market price 
changes, provided deviations from expectations are timely reported and appropriate action is 
taken to control adverse developments. 
 
The “Prudent Person” standard requires that investments be made with judgment and care, 
under circumstances then prevailing, that a person of prudence, discretion and intelligence 
would exercise in the management of his or her own affairs, not for speculation, but for 
investment, considering the probable safety of capital as well as the probable income to be 
derived. 
 
Investment officials will recognize that the investment portfolio is subject to public review and 
evaluation. The overall program will be designed and managed with a degree of professionalism 
that is worthy of the public trust.  
 
Delegation of authority and responsibilities:  The city council, as the governing body will 
retain ultimate fiduciary responsibility for the portfolio. The city council will receive quarterly 
reports, designate an investment officer, and review and adopt any changes to the investment 
policy.  
 
The Finance Director (or their designee) is the Investment Officer of the city. No person may 
initiate investment transactions on behalf of the Investment Officer without the express written 
consent of the Investment Officer. The Finance Director shall be responsible for oversight of the 
investment program and shall help establish the investment strategies applicable to all 
investments of funds held by or belonging to the city, its agencies and departments.  
 
The city may engage the services of an external investment advisor to assist in the 
management of the city’s investment portfolio in a manner consistent with the city’s objectives. 
Such external advisors may be granted non-discretionary authority to purchase and sell 
investment securities in accordance with this Investment Policy. 
 
Authorized Investments: The City is authorized to invest in various securities including, LGIP, 
US Treasury Obligations, Government Sponsored Enterprises (GSE’s) securities, Repurchase 
Agreements, Bankers Acceptance, Commercial Paper, Certificates of Deposit/Bank 
Deposits/Savings, Bonds of the State of Washington, General Obligation Bonds of Other States, 
Corporate Notes, and Supranational Bonds, 
 



 

City of Shelton, WA - 2021 Proposed Budget    Page | 40 

BUDGET OVERVIEW 

Diversification: The City will diversify its investment portfolio by institution, type of investment 
security, and years to maturity to avoid over-concentration in any of these areas to reduce 
overall portfolio risks. 
 
Maturities: The City will invest in securities with maturity dates five years or less from the date 
of purchase, with the exception if the investment is made to coincide as nearly as practicable 
with the expected use of the funds.  The maximum weighted average maturity of the total 
portfolio shall not exceed three years.  Liquidity funds will be held in the LGIP, bank deposits, or 
in short-term instruments maturing six months or less.   
 

BUDGET CALENDAR 

 

 

 
 

Date Activity

23-Jun OpenGov Budget Builder training

25-Jun 2021 budget instance open to users

30-Jun Current labor allocations to users

1-Jul Supplemental form and instructions to users

14-Jul June YTD actuals to departments for estimate process

17-Jul Labor costs updated for current CPI and benefit cost increases

28-Jul 2020 Year-End estimates due to finance for upload

5-Aug 2021 Base Budget and Supplementals due to finance

Week of Aug 10 Department meetings with finance

Week of Aug 17 Department meetings with CM and finance

12-Aug Leadership Team supplemental meeting

18-Aug Council Study Session

28-Aug CM preliminary budget decisions

2-Sep Preliminary decisions to Leadership Team

3-Sep Court of Last Resort, if needed

4-Sep CM final budget decisions

15-Sep Council Study Session

September Proposed budget created

6-Oct Proposed budget presentation to Council

Oct/Nov Council consideration of budget

Dec Council adopts 2021 budget



 

 
City of Shelton, WA - 2021 Proposed Budget    Page | 41 

GENERAL FUND 

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 YE 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed  

Budget

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Beginning Fund Balance 3,248,251   3,299,487   3,299,487      3,336,439        

Taxes 8,462,779   7,878,350   8,431,200      8,531,110        652,760   8.3%

Licenses & Permits 355,352       319,600       276,740          285,100           (34,500)    -10.8%

Intergovernmental Revenue 741,394       420,520       426,570          423,520           3,000        0.7%

Charges for Goods/Service 2,881,716   3,393,670   2,713,940      2,818,140        (575,530) -17.0%

Fines & Penalties 121,146       105,300       58,550            102,300           (3,000)      -2.8%

Miscellaneous Revenue 239,596       173,250       192,150          123,750           (49,500)    -28.6%

Other Increase in Fund Balance 352               -                     -                        -                         

Other Financing Sources 43,837         -                     -                        -                         

Total Revenues 12,846,171 12,290,690 12,099,150    12,283,920     (6,770)      -0.1%

Administrative Services

  Human Resources 244,553       262,000       267,516          271,530           9,530        3.6%

  Information Technology 234,709       289,130       294,851          245,870           (43,260)    -15.0%

  Risk Management 189,897       219,960       219,840          225,360           5,400        2.5%

City Clerk 37,837         111,770       67,642            215,480           103,710   92.8%

City Council 231,757       167,050       148,325          100,630           (66,420)    -39.8%

City Manager

  City Manager 381,449       628,000       419,201          399,340           (228,660) -36.4%

  Legal 392,309       445,460       421,048          456,580           11,120     2.5%

  Detention & Corrections 365,356       404,070       370,520          414,170           10,100     2.5%

Community Dev, Parks, Facilities

  Civic Center Activities 47,014         63,760         47,947            68,210              4,450        7.0%

  Community Development 523,664       535,520       533,885          558,860           23,340     4.4%

  Facility Services 563,586       514,830       536,854          542,600           27,770     5.4%

  Parks & Recreation 410,472       557,750       402,590          575,450           17,700     3.2%

Finance 933,224       1,068,890   980,965          1,035,070        (33,820)    -3.2%

Fire & Emergency Services 1,447,313   1,498,880   1,512,125      1,501,250        2,370        0.2%

Municipal Court

  Community Restitution 95,788         116,290       107,665          122,390           6,100        5.2%

  Court Services 366,503       420,350       410,582          446,060           25,710     6.1%

Non-Departmental 2,519,557   1,212,580   1,278,973      1,054,290        (158,290) -13.1%

Police 3,072,032   3,124,110   3,332,761      3,422,280        298,170   9.5%

Public Works 737,915       650,290       708,907          628,500           (21,790)    -3.4%

Total Expenditures 12,794,935 12,290,690 12,062,198    12,283,920     (6,770)      -0.1%

Ending Fund Balance 3,299,487   3,299,487   3,336,439      3,336,439        

Change in Fund Balance 51,236         -                     36,952            -                         

GENERAL FUND SUMMARY

FUNDING SOURCES

EXPENDITURES BY DEPARTMENT

 



 

City of Shelton, WA - 2021 Proposed Budget    Page | 42 

GENERAL FUND 

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 YE 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed  

Budget

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Excise Taxes in Lieu of Property Tax 9,269            12,720         2,600               5,220                (7,500)      -59.0%

Business and Occupation Taxes 2,695,099   2,563,950   3,085,000      3,126,040        562,090   21.9%

Property Tax 2,394,874   2,436,950   2,480,000      2,528,810        91,860     3.8%

Retail Sales and Use Taxes 3,363,536   2,864,730   2,863,600      2,871,040        6,310        0.2%

Business Licenses and Permits 175,887       172,100       171,600          172,100           -                 0.0%

Non-Business Licenses and Permits 179,465       147,500       105,140          113,000           (34,500)    -23.4%

State Shared Revenues, Entitlements and

Impact Payments 676,322       394,520       397,330          397,520           3,000        0.8%

Federal Direct Grants 2,660            1,000            1,990               1,000                -                 0.0%

State Grants 53,398         25,000         25,000            25,000              -                 0.0%

General Government 2,040,307   2,526,970   2,377,550      2,267,640        (259,330) -10.3%

Public Safety 367,702       378,100       66,200            84,400              (293,700) -77.7%

Utilities 72,434         85,000         -                        85,000              -                 0.0%

Culture and Recreation 445,070       427,000       290,040          409,500           (17,500)    -4.1%

Non-Court Fines and Penalties 4,004            6,000            1,500               3,000                (3,000)      -50.0%

Civil Parking Infraction Penalties 530               100               -                        100                    -                 0.0%

Criminal Non-Traffic Fines 11,551         12,500         3,900               7,500                (5,000)      -40.0%

Civil Infraction Penalties 68,765         60,700         35,400            60,700              -                 0.0%

Rents and Leases 91,605         85,750         88,670            68,250              (17,500)    -20.4%

Interest and Other Earnings 96,309         82,500         41,400            52,500              (30,000)    -36.4%

Contributions and Donations from 

Nongovernmental Sources 47,653         2,000            51,500            -                         (2,000)      -100.0%

Other 49,731         5,600            9,210               5,600                -                 0.0%

Total Revenues 12,846,171 12,290,690 12,097,630 12,283,920 (6,770)      -0.1%

GENERAL FUND REVENUE SUMMARY

 

 



   

City of Shelton, WA – 2021 Budget  Page | 43 

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 

MISSION STATEMENT 

Taking care of the people who take care of Shelton. 
 

DEPARTMENT SUMMARY 

The City of Shelton Administrative Services Department includes the functions of Human 

Resources, Risk Management, Payroll, and Information Technology.  The department endeavors 

to promote an equitable and engaging work environment so employees can do their best work 

and make a difference for the people and community we serve. The Department focuses on 

providing high quality services to all City employees and departments and works collaboratively 

with department leaders to align policies, practices, and programs citywide to fulfill the vision of 

workforce equity and excellence.   

 

BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS 

The Administrative Services Department was formally created as part of the 2020 budget and 

includes the budgets and functions of the Human Resources and Information Technology 

departments.  The budget decreases by $28,330 or 3.7% from the 2020 budget.  The 2021 

Proposed includes a reduction of 1FTE in the Information Technology department in response to 

COVID-19 revenue generation which is offset somewhat by an increase in professional services.  

Other changes are attributed to inflationary increases for services as well as COLA adjustments 

to salary and rate changes for benefit it costs.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



   

City of Shelton, WA – 2021 Budget  Page | 44 

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

General Fund Resources 669,158       771,090       782,207      742,760      (28,330)    -3.7%

Human Resources 244,553       262,000       267,516      271,530      9,530        3.6%

Information Technology 234,709       289,130       294,851      245,870      (43,260)    -15.0%

Risk Management 189,897       219,960       219,840      225,360      5,400        2.5%

Total Expenditures 669,158       771,090       782,207      742,760      (28,330)    -3.7%

FUNDING SOURCES

EXPENDITURES BY DIVISION

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



   

City of Shelton, WA – 2021 Budget  Page | 45 

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Wages 346,880       387,150       377,632      320,730      (66,420)    -17.2%

Benefits 129,050       154,340       154,190      142,260      (12,080)    -7.8%

Supplies/Equip 10,763         35,150         34,835         35,150         -                 0.0%

Service/Charges 182,464       194,450       215,550      244,620      50,170     25.8%

Total Expenditures 669,158       771,090       782,207      742,760      (28,330)    -3.7%

2018  

Actual

2019    

Actual

2020 

Budget

2021 

Proposed

Administrative Director - - 1.00 1.00

Human Resources Manager - 1.00 - -

Information Technology Manager - 1.00 1.00 1.00

Network IT Technician - 1.00 1.00 -

Human Resources Analyst - 1.00 1.00 1.00

Payroll & Benefits Coordinator - 1.00 1.00 -

Human Resources Technician - - - 1.00

Total Administrative Services 5.00 5.00 4.00

As of 2019 IT and HR positions are accounted for in the Administrative Services Department

EXPENDITURES BY CATEGORY

STAFFING

Total General Fund

Wages

Benefits

Supplies/Equip
Service/Charges

Administrative Services 
6.1%

 

 

 

 



   

City of Shelton, WA – 2021 Budget  Page | 46 

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Human Resources

Salary/Wages 154,106       155,970       155,970      157,560      1,590        1.0%

Personnel Benefits 56,982         68,890         68,890         73,660         4,770        6.9%

Office & Operating Supplies 5,504            5,150            4,800           5,150           -                 

Small Tools & Equipment 1,878            -                     -                    -                    -                 

Professional Services 8,202            28,030         22,793         27,000         (1,030)      -3.7%

Communication 1,073            -                     1,200           -                    -                 

Travel 8,397            1,950            1,200           3,900           1,950        100.0%

Taxes/Assessments -                     -                     64                 -                    -                 

Rent/Lease 212               100               1,291           -                    (100)          -100.0%

Insurance -                     -                     5,824           -                    -                 

Training and Other Charges 8,093            1,800            5,369           4,150           2,350        130.6%

Gas, Oil, & Fuel 26                  20                  20                 20                 -                 

Repair/Maintenance 79                  90                  95                 90                 -                 

Human Resources Total 244,553       262,000       267,516      271,530      9,530        3.6%

Information Technology

Salary/Wages 151,243       173,000       173,000      105,320      (67,680)    -39.1%

Personnel Benefits 55,020         62,260         62,260         39,680         (22,580)    -36.3%

Office & Operating Supplies 483               1,030            1,030           1,030           -                 

Small Tools & Equipment 2,839            28,840         28,840         28,840         -                 

Professional Services -                     -                     -                    47,000         47,000     100.0%

Communication 4,104            4,120            4,120           4,120           -                 

Rent/Lease 484               410               410               410               -                 

Insurance -                     -                     5,715           -                    -                 

Training and Other Charges 97                  1,030            1,030           1,030           -                 

Repair/Maintenance 20,405         18,430         18,436         18,430         -                 

Gas, Oil, & Fuel 33                  10                  10                 10                 -                 

Information Technology Total 234,709       289,130       294,851      245,870      (43,260)    -15.0%

Risk Management

Salary/Wages 41,531         58,180         48,662         57,850         (330)          -0.6%

Personnel Benefits 17,049         23,190         23,040         28,920         5,730        24.7%

Office & Operating Supplies -                     100               135               100               -                 

Travel 540               310               133               310               -                 

Insurance 130,777       138,180       138,180      138,180      -                 

Training and Other Charges -                     -                     9,690           -                    -                 

Risk Management Total 189,897       219,960       219,840      225,360      5,400        2.5%

Total Expenditures 669,158       771,090       782,207      742,760      (28,330)    -3.7%

EXPENDITURE DETAILS

 

 



 

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 47 

CITY CLERK 

MISSION STATEMENT 

The City Clerk acts as a liaison between the citizens of Shelton and their local government.  The 
mission of the Clerk’s office is to provide information to the public in a transparent, and 
professional manner.  The Clerk’s office also provides support to the City Manager and the 
Council. 
 

 

DEPARTMENT SUMMARY 

The Clerk’s office manages the City’s records and archives/retains/destroys records according 
to Washington State’s records and retention schedule.  We prepare the agenda and packet for 
Council meetings, publish legal notices, and codify City ordinances.  We handle Special Event 
Permits and all aspects of the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee.  The City Clerk is also the 
City’s Public Records Officer and processes public records requests, (with the exception of the 
Police Department). 
 

 

BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS 

This is the first budget where the City Clerk activities are budgeted together.  Previously the City 

Clerk was part of the City Council, City Manager, and Finance Departments budget and actuals.  

The increase of nearly 93% from the 2020 budget is attributed to budgetary costs for the Clerk 

in other budgets which could not readily be separated out by account.  The City Clerk budget 

does not consist of any new positions or other increases other than inflationary and rate 

increases for salary and benefits. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



   

City of Shelton, WA – 2021 Budget  Page | 48 

CITY CLERK 

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

General Fund Resources 37,837         111,770       67,642         215,480      103,710   92.8%

City Clerk 2,011            12,570         2,225           116,830      104,260   829.4%

Election Costs 5,651            19,570         20,803         20,060         490           2.5%

Recording Services 30,175         79,630         44,614         78,590         (1,040)      -1.3%

Total Expenditures 37,837         111,770       67,642         215,480      103,710   92.8%

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Wages 16,019         50,510         30,324         124,550      74,040     146.6%

Benefits 10,258         22,610         12,298         51,480         28,870     127.7%

Supplies/Equip 4                    520               250               520               -                 0.0%

Service/Charges 11,556         38,130         24,770         38,930         800           2.1%

Total Expenditures 37,837         111,770       67,642         215,480      103,710   92.8%

FUNDING SOURCES

EXPENDITURES BY DIVISION

EXPENDITURES BY CATEGORY

Total General Fund

Wages

Benefits
Supplies/Equip

Service/Charges

City Clerk 1.8%

 

 

 

 



   

City of Shelton, WA – 2021 Budget  Page | 49 

CITY CLERK 

2018  

Actual

2019    

Actual

2020 

Budget

2021 

Proposed

City Clerk - - - 1.00

Admin Support Assistant - - - 1.00

Total City Clerk 2.00

As of 2021 City Clerk and Admin Support Assistant positions are accounted for in City Clerk Department

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

City Clerk

Salary/Wages -                     -                     -                    73,230         73,230     100.0%

Personnel Benefits -                     -                     -                    30,720         30,720     100.0%

Professional Services 2,011            12,360         2,225           12,670         310           2.5%

Training and Other Charges -                     210               -                    210               -                 0.0%

City Clerk Total 2,011            12,570         2,225           116,830      104,260   829.4%

Election Costs

Professional Services 5,651            19,570         20,803         20,060         490           2.5%

Election Costs Total 5,651            19,570         20,803         20,060         490           2.5%

Recording Services

Salary/Wages 16,019         50,510         30,324         51,320         810           1.6%

Personnel Benefits 10,258         22,610         12,298         20,760         (1,850)      -8.2%

Office & Operating Supplies 4                    520               250               520               -                 0.0%

Communication 80                  -                     -                    -                    -                 

Travel 1,868            4,350            195               4,350           -                 0.0%

Rent/Lease 179               330               41                 330               -                 0.0%

Insurance 144               170               605               170               -                 0.0%

Taxes/Assessments 9                    -                     1                   -                    -                 

Training and Other Charges 1,615            1,140            900               1,140           -                 0.0%

Recording Services Total 30,175         79,630         44,614         78,590         (1,040)      -1.3%

Total Expenditures 37,837         111,770       67,642         215,480      103,710   92.8%

EXPENDITURE DETAILS

STAFFING



   

City of Shelton, WA – 2021 Budget  Page | 50 

CITY COUNCIL 

MISSION STATEMENT 

To build a safe, vibrant community for life, work, growth and recreation. 

 

DEPARTMENT SUMMARY 

The City Council members are the elected legislative body that serves and represents the 

residents of the City of Shelton in the following: 

a) developing and prioritizing strategic issues; 
b) establishing policies and regulations for future growth and development; 
c) adopting the annual budget; 
d) representing the City on regional boards and commissions; 
e) appointing and evaluating performance of the City Manager 

 

BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS 

The City Council budget decreases by $66,420 or 39.8% from the 2020 budget.  The decrease is 

attributable to the removal of City Clerk functions in the City Council budget.  The budget includes 

changes for salary and benefits as well as a small inflationary increase for professional services. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



   

City of Shelton, WA – 2021 Budget  Page | 51 

CITY COUNCIL 

General Fund Resources 231,757       167,050       148,325      100,630      (66,420)    -39.8%

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Wages 139,859       106,910       91,910         61,400         (45,510)    -42.6%

Benefits 70,733         37,910         41,829         16,620         (21,290)    -56.2%

Supplies/Equip 1,608            1,210            1,075           1,210           -                 0.0%

Service/Charges 19,557         21,020         13,511         21,400         380           1.8%

Total Expenditures 231,757       167,050       148,325      100,630      (66,420)    -39.8%

FUNDING SOURCES

EXPENDITURES BY CATEGORY

Total General Fund

Wages

Benefits Supplies/Equip

Service/Charges

City Council .8% 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



   

City of Shelton, WA – 2021 Budget  Page | 52 

CITY COUNCIL 

2018  

Actual

2019    

Actual

2020 

Budget

2021 

Proposed

Councilmember (new Council position) 4.00 4.00 4.00 6.00

Councilmember (former Commission) 3.00 3.00 3.00 1.00

City Clerk 0.40 0.40 0.40 -

Admin Support Assistant 0.15 0.40 0.40 -

Total City Council 7.55 7.80 7.80 7.00

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

City Council

Salary/Wages 139,859       106,910       91,910         61,400         (45,510)    -42.6%

Personnel Benefits 70,733         37,910         41,829         16,620         (21,290)    -56.2%

Office & Operating Supplies 585               1,030            1,000           1,030           -                 

Small Tools & Equipment 896               -                     -                    -                    -                 

Professional Services 1,448            880               1,152           900               20              2.3%

Communication 4,827            8,240            5,000           8,240           -                 

Travel 2,754            9,070            -                    7,750           (1,320)      -14.6%

Taxes/Assessments 40                  -                     -                    -                    -                 

Rent/Lease 2,079            1,800            500               2,000           200           11.1%

Insurance -                     -                     5,285           -                    -                 

Training and Other Charges 8,019            620               1,216           2,100           1,480        238.7%

Gas, Oil, & Fuel 127               180               75                 180               -                 

Repair/Maintenance 390               410               358               410               -                 

City Council Total 231,757       167,050       148,325      100,630      (66,420)    -39.8%

STAFFING

EXPENDITURE DETAILS

 

 

 

 

 

 



        

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 53 

CITY MANAGER 

MISSION STATEMENT 

The City Manager is appointed by the City Council as the chief administrative officer for the City 

of Shelton. The City Manager is responsible to the Mayor and Council for the proper administration 

of all City business.  

 

DEPARTMENT SUMMARY 

Key objectives include reporting and make recommendations to the Mayor and Council about the 

needs of the City. Administering and enforcing all City ordinances, resolutions, franchise 

agreements, leases, contracts, permits, and other City business.  Organizing City department and 

administrative structure.  Preparing and administering the annual City budget. Encouraging and 

supporting regional and intergovernmental cooperation.  Promoting cooperation among the 

Council, staff and citizens in developing City policies and building a sense of community. 

Providing council and staff with leadership and advice while implementing best practices to 

achieve adopted goals and deliver quality services to the community. Administering economic 

development, and other special programs for the City. 

 

BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS 

The City Manager Department budget decreases by $207,440 or 14%.  The significant factor for 

the is the reduction of two budget positions from 2020, the Homeless Resource Coordinator and 

Economic Development Coordinator.  Those reductions were made as part of the City’s COVID-

19 response.  The budget for the City Manager also includes the Legal and Detention and 

Corrections contracts budgets.  Those are contracted amounts in which the City Manager has 

oversight. 

 



        

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 54 

CITY MANAGER 

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

General Fund Resources 1,139,114   1,477,530   1,210,770   1,270,090   (207,440) -14.0%

City Manager 381,449       628,000       419,201      399,340      (228,660) -36.4%

Legal 392,309       445,460       421,048      456,580      11,120     2.5%

Detention & Corrections 365,356       404,070       370,520      414,170      10,100     2.5%

Grand Total 1,139,114   1,477,530   1,210,770   1,270,090   (207,440) -14.0%

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Wages 215,719       356,990       261,473      219,340      (137,650) -38.6%

Benefits 75,597         168,770       95,121         84,960         (83,810)    -49.7%

Supplies/Equip 409               3,860            2,506           2,170           (1,690)      -43.8%

Service/Charges 847,389       947,910       851,671      963,620      15,710     1.7%

Grand Total 1,139,114   1,477,530   1,210,770   1,270,090   (207,440) -14.0%

FUNDING SOURCES

EXPENDITURES BY DIVISION

EXPENDITURES BY CATEGORY

Total General Fund

Wages

Benefits
Supplies/Equip

Service/Charges

City Manager 10.3%

 

 



        

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 55 

CITY MANAGER 

2018  

Actual

2019    

Actual

2020 

Budget

2021 

Proposed

City Manager 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

Communications & Econ Devel Officer 1.00 - - -

Communications Specialist - 1.00 1.00 1.00

Economic Development Specialist - 1.00 1.00 -

Homeless Resource Coordinator - - 1.00 -

Confidential Admin Assistant 0.85 - - -

City Clerk - 0.20 0.20 -

Admin Support Assistant 0.85 0.20 0.20 -

Information Technology Director 1.00 - - -

Network IT Technician 1.00 - - -

Human Resources Manager 1.00 - - -

City Attorney 1.00 - - -

Assistant City Manager 0.90 - - -

Total City Manager 8.60 3.40 4.40 2.00

As of August 2019 IT and HR positions are accounted for in the Administrative Services Department

As of 2021 City Clerk and Admin Support Assistant positions are accounted for in City Clerk Department

STAFFING

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



        

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 56 

CITY MANAGER 

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

City Manager

Salary/Wages 215,719       356,990       261,473      219,340      (137,650) -38.6%

Personnel Benefits 75,597         168,770       95,121         84,960         (83,810)    -49.7%

Office & Operating Supplies 409               3,140            2,006           1,450           (1,690)      -53.8%

Professional Services 62,483         69,300         20,402         65,000         (4,300)      -6.2%

Communication 1,095            820               1,176           1,000           180           22.0%

Travel 5,559            5,670            1,608           5,000           (670)          -11.8%

Rent/Lease 492               570               83                 570               -                 0.0%

Insurance -                     -                     16,304         -                    -                 

Training and Other Charges 20,095         22,740         21,030         22,020         (720)          -3.2%

City Manager Total 381,449       628,000       419,201      399,340      (228,660) -36.4%

Detention & Corrections

Professional Services 365,356       404,070       370,520      414,170      10,100     2.5%

Legal

Office & Operating Supplies -                     720               500               720               -                 0.0%

Gas, Oil, & Fuel -                     -                     -                    -                    -                 

Professional Services 392,005       444,620       420,428      455,740      11,120     2.5%

Taxes/Assessments 1                    -                     -                    -                    -                 

Rent/Lease 172               120               120               120               -                 0.0%

Training and Other Charges 131               -                     -                    -                    -                 

Legal Total 392,309       445,460       421,048      456,580      11,120     2.5%

Grand Total 1,139,114   1,477,530   1,210,770   1,270,090   (207,440) -14.0%

EXPENDITURE DETAILS

 

 

 



 

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 57 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT, PARKS & FACILITIES 

MISSION STATEMENT 

Planning/Building:  The Community Development Department will strive to bring the 

community’s vision of Shelton to reality and proactively facilitate growth through sound planning 

principals and consistent code implementation and provide prompt, accurate, courteous customer 

service.  

Parks and Recreation:   The Parks and Recreation Department will serve to enrich lives by 

providing recreational opportunities through safe and inviting parks, trails, facilities, open space 

and by being good environmental stewards. 

 
 

DEPARTMENT SUMMARY 

Long Range Planning - Creating plans in cooperation with the community for guiding the growth 

and vision of Shelton. 

Current Planning - Reviewing development applications for code compliance in accordance with 

the Shelton Municipal Code including environmental. 

Building Permits - Reviewing structural and architectural plans to ensure a safe built community 

in compliance with Shelton Municipal Code.    

Parks - Providing safe and inviting parks, trails, facilities and open space for enhanced quality of 

life.  

Recreation Services - Building community and improving health through seasonal camps, 

classes and activities for all ages and demographics. 

Facilities and Grounds -  Maintain the City’s infrastructure to ensure and safe and clean 

environment for all residents and visitors alike and the ensure community’s assets are 

preserved.   
 

BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS 

The Community Development, Parks & Facilities Department budget increases by $73,260 or 

4.4%.  The budget is for the most part status quo and the increases are mostly attributed to 

small inflationary increases for professional services, COLA adjustments for salary costs, and 

rate increases for benefits. 



         

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 58 

COMMUNUNITY DEVELOPMENT, PARKS & FACILITIES 

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

General Fund Resources 1,544,736   1,671,860   1,521,276   1,745,120   73,260         4.4%

Civic Center Activities 47,014         63,760         47,947         68,210         4,450            7.0%

Community Development 523,664       535,520       533,885      558,860      23,340         4.4%

Facility Services 563,586       514,830       536,854      542,600      27,770         5.4%

Parks & Recreation 410,472       557,750       402,590      575,450      17,700         3.2%

Total Expenditures 1,544,736   1,671,860   1,521,276   1,745,120   73,260         4.4%

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Wages 730,973       820,720       783,652      864,400      43,680         5.3%

Benefits 318,363       370,500       331,665      397,690      27,190         7.3%

Supplies/Equip 82,763         62,990         57,997         62,470         (520)              -0.8%

Service/Charges 412,637       417,650       347,962      420,560      2,910            0.7%

Total Expenditures 1,544,736   1,671,860   1,521,276   1,745,120   73,260         4.4%

FUNDING SOURCES

EXPENDITURES BY DIVISION

EXPENDITURES BY CATEGORY

Total General Fund

Wages

Benefits
Supplies/Equip

Service/Charges

Comm Dev, Parks & 

Facilties 14.2%

 

 

 

 



         

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 59 

COMMUNUNITY DEVELOPMENT, PARKS & FACILITIES 

2018  

Actual

2019    

Actual

2020 

Budget

2021 

Proposed

Community Dev/Parks & Rec Director 0.99 1.00 1.00 1.00

Senior Planner 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

Building Official 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

Crew Lead Parks/Facilities 0.99 1.00 1.00 1.00

Recreation Coordinator 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

Assistant Crew Lead Parks/Facilities 0.95 1.00 1.00 1.00

Permit Coordinator 0.75 0.80 0.80 0.80

Maintenance Worker 1.99 2.00 3.00 3.00

Custodial Worker 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00

Animal Control Tech/Code Enforce Officer 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50

Sr Associate Civil Engineer 0.10 - - -

Associate Planner 0.55 - - -

Total Community Develop,

Parks & Facilities 11.82 11.30 12.30 12.30

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Civic Center Activities

Community Center

Salary/Wages 29,794         40,950         30,000         43,430         2,480            6.1%

Personnel Benefits 9,818            13,830         10,454         15,490         1,660            12.0%

Office & Operating Supplies 624               1,030            250               1,030           -                     0.0%

Small Tools & Equipment -                     310               150               310               -                     0.0%

Professional Services -                     520               50                 530               10                  1.9%

Insurance -                     -                     1,127           -                    -                     

Taxes/Assessments 124               160               100               160               -                     0.0%

Training and Other Charges -                     210               -                    210               -                     0.0%

Community Center Total 40,360         57,010         42,131         61,160         4,150            7.3%

Community Events

Salary/Wages 2,678            3,000            3,000           3,200           200               6.7%

Personnel Benefits 1,103            1,160            1,166           1,260           100               8.6%

Office & Operating Supplies 2,869            1,030            950               1,030           -                     0.0%

Rent/Lease 6                    10                  -                    10                 -                     0.0%

Insurance -                     -                     200               -                    -                     

Training and Other Charges -                     1,550            500               1,550           -                     0.0%

Community Events Total 6,655            6,750            5,816           7,050           300               4.4%

Civic Center Activities Total 47,014         63,760         47,947         68,210         4,450            7.0%

STAFFING

EXPENDITURE DETAILS

 

 



         

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 60 

COMMUNUNITY DEVELOPMENT, PARKS & FACILITIES 

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Community Development

Code Enforcement

Salary/Wages 45,037         50,820         50,000         54,250         3,430            6.7%

Personnel Benefits 19,436         22,080         20,428         23,360         1,280            5.8%

Office & Operating Supplies -                     100               500               100               -                     0.0%

Professional Services 1,365            -                     -                    -                    -                     

Communication 1,241            -                     -                    -                    -                     

Travel -                     570               -                    570               -                     0.0%

Insurance -                     -                     1,702           -                    -                     

Training and Other Charges 912               820               -                    820               -                     0.0%

Code Enforcement Total 67,991         74,390         72,630         79,100         4,710            6.3%

Economic Development -                     

Salary/Wages 8,340            8,750            8,600           9,290           540               6.2%

Personnel Benefits 3,656            3,880            3,875           4,240           360               9.3%

Professional Services -                     5,150            5,150           5,280           130               2.5%

Insurance -                     -                     315               -                    -                     

Training and Other Charges 5,000            -                     -                    -                    -                     

Economic Development Total 16,996         17,780         17,940         18,810         1,030            5.8%

Health Services

Taxes/Assessments 2,768            3,610            1,500           3,610           -                     0.0%

Housing & Property Develop

Salary/Wages 16,493         14,180         14,000         15,050         870               6.1%

Personnel Benefits 6,764            5,530            5,507           6,120           590               10.7%

Office & Operating Supplies 11,622         -                     -                    -                    -                     

Professional Services 3,083            -                     -                    -                    -                     

Insurance -                     -                     623               -                    -                     

Housing & Property Develop Total 37,961         19,710         20,130         21,170         1,460            7.4%

Natural Resources -                     

Professional Services 7,995            8,270            8,264           8,480           210               2.5%

Permits and Plan Reviews

Salary/Wages 156,416       172,280       157,342      173,440      1,160            0.7%

Personnel Benefits 63,684         73,380         70,210         78,670         5,290            7.2%

Office & Operating Supplies 3,831            1,130            500               1,130           -                     0.0%

Small Tools & Equipment 1,271            1,550            500               1,550           -                     0.0%

Professional Services 26,954         15,850         40,000         16,250         400               2.5%

Communication 694               720               700               720               -                     0.0%

Travel 3,922            3,300            2,000           3,300           -                     0.0%

Rent/Lease 14                  -                     28                 -                    -                     

Insurance 72                  80                  6,053           80                 -                     0.0%

Training and Other Charges 5,044            1,810            1,050           1,810           -                     0.0%

Gas, Oil, & Fuel 736               520               520               520               -                     0.0%

Repair/Maintenance 2,676            3,300            2,440           3,300           -                     0.0%

Permits and Plan Reviews Total 265,314       273,920       281,343      280,770      6,850            2.5%  



         

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 61 

COMMUNUNITY DEVELOPMENT, PARKS & FACILITIES 

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Planning

Salary/Wages 79,353         83,910         83,910         88,680         4,770            5.7%

Personnel Benefits 33,397         35,050         34,225         39,080         4,030            11.5%

Office & Operating Supplies 1,512            3,100            2,727           3,100           -                     0.0%

Small Tools & Equipment -                     720               -                    720               -                     0.0%

Professional Services 6,723            10,710         6,000           10,990         280               2.6%

Rent/Lease 2,840            2,880            1,600           2,880           -                     0.0%

Insurance -                     -                     3,056           -                    -                     

Training and Other Charges 640               1,250            350               1,250           -                     0.0%

Repair/Maintenance 174               220               210               220               -                     0.0%

Planning Total 124,638       137,840       132,078      146,920      9,080            6.6%

Community Development Total 523,664       535,520       533,885      558,860      23,340         4.4%

Facility Services

Civic Center

Office & Operating Supplies 13,288         12,460         12,600         12,460         -                     0.0%

Small Tools & Equipment 432               410               400               410               -                     0.0%

Professional Services 5,941            -                     -                    -                    -                     

Communication 15,484         22,660         24,000         22,660         -                     0.0%

Rent/Lease 2,393            2,060            2,200           2,060           -                     0.0%

Insurance 638               540               540               540               -                     0.0%

Utilities 59,005         62,830         60,000         62,830         -                     0.0%

Repair/Maintenance 66,303         27,300         24,500         27,300         -                     0.0%

Training and Other Charges 610               400               590               400               -                     0.0%

Civic Center Total 164,094       128,660       124,830      128,660      -                     0.0%

Custodial & Maintenance

Salary/Wages 226,727       207,320       213,500      221,920      14,600         7.0%

Personnel Benefits 116,254       107,570       111,940      121,180      13,610         12.7%

Office & Operating Supplies 3,292            2,580            4,000           2,580           -                     0.0%

Small Tools & Equipment -                     520               150               -                    (520)              -100.0%

Professional Services 134               -                     -                    -                    -                     

Communication 388               360               370               360               -                     0.0%

Insurance 682               710               17,200         710               -                     0.0%

Training and Other Charges 167               200               -                    200               -                     0.0%

Rent/Lease 2,068            2,190            1,670           2,190           -                     0.0%

Repair/Maintenance 2,228            7,840            2,410           7,840           -                     0.0%

Gas, Oil, & Fuel 1,070            900               800               900               -                     0.0%

Custodial & Maintenance Total 353,010       330,190       352,040      357,880      27,690         8.4%

Library Facility

Office & Operating Supplies 6,859            6,180            3,500           6,180           -                     0.0%

Professional Services 1,320            3,090            3,400           3,170           80                  2.6%

Communication -                     770               -                    770               -                     0.0%

Rent/Lease -                     -                     158               -                    -                     

Insurance -                     -                     4,662           -                    -                     

Utilities 24,673         28,840         20,000         28,840         -                     0.0%

Repair/Maintenance 7,090            8,760            20,000         8,760           -                     0.0%

Training and Other Charges 134               520               134               520               -                     0.0%

Library Facility Total 40,076         48,160         51,854         48,240         80                  0.2%  



         

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 62 

COMMUNUNITY DEVELOPMENT, PARKS & FACILITIES 

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Museum Facility

Office & Operating Supplies 24806% 36000% 36000% 36000% 0% 0%

Professional Services 253               40                  430               40                 -                     0.0%

Insurance 0% 0% 54000% 0% 0%

Utilities 5,905            7,420            6,800           7,420           -                     0.0%

Repair/Maintenance 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Museum Facility Total 6,406            7,820            8,130           7,820           -                     0.0%

Facility Services Total 563,586       514,830       536,854      542,600      27,770         5.4%

Parks & Recreation

Parks Maintenance

Salary/Wages 129,287       196,210       180,000      209,070      12,860         6.6%

Personnel Benefits 50,801         92,990         59,430         91,550         (1,440)          -1.5%

Office & Operating Supplies 19,628         13,390         13,610         13,390         -                     0.0%

Small Tools & Equipment 2,276            3,090            3,000           3,090           -                     0.0%

Professional Services 45,690         42,450         850               43,510         1,060            2.5%

Communication 59                  -                     -                    -                    -                     

Travel -                     100               170               100               -                     0.0%

Insurance 1,221            1,300            6,760           1,300           -                     0.0%

Utilities 38,590         38,110         20,000         38,110         -                     0.0%

Taxes/Assessments 47                  -                     -                    -                    -                     

Training and Other Charges 1,369            720               700               720               -                     0.0%

Intergovernmental -                     -                     -                    -                    -                     

Gas, Oil, & Fuel 3,933            4,120            4,000           4,120           -                     0.0%

Rent/Lease 11,226         14,270         13,500         14,270         -                     0.0%

Repair/Maintenance 13,144         29,870         15,020         29,870         -                     0.0%

Parks Maintenance Total 317,270       436,620       317,040      449,100      12,480         2.9%

Recreation

Salary/Wages 36,848         43,300         43,300         46,070         2,770            6.4%

Personnel Benefits 13,450         15,030         14,430         16,740         1,710            11.4%

Office & Operating Supplies 4,526            8,760            8,760           8,760           -                     0.0%

Small Tools & Equipment 4,747            520               520               520               -                     0.0%

Professional Services 17,179         29,660         8,260           30,400         740               2.5%

Communication -                     150               100               150               -                     0.0%

Travel -                     520               -                    520               -                     0.0%

Rent/Lease 12,698         15,450         5,000           15,450         -                     0.0%

Insurance 144               160               3,000           160               -                     0.0%

Taxes/Assessments 397               -                     -                    -                    -                     

Training and Other Charges 3,031            6,700            1,500           6,700           -                     0.0%

Gas, Oil, & Fuel -                     210               200               210               -                     0.0%

Repair/Maintenance 183               670               480               670               -                     0.0%

Recreation Total 93,202         121,130       85,550         126,350      5,220            4.3%

Parks & Recreation Total 410,472       557,750       402,590      575,450      17,700         3.2%

Total Expenditures 1,544,736   1,671,860   1,521,276   1,745,120   73,260         4.4%  

 

 



  

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 63 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

MISSION STATEMENT 

We are dependable stewards of public resources.  Through integrity, expertise, and 

accountability we: 

a) ensure confidence in the transparency of financial reporting;  
b) ensure the safety and security of financial assets; 
c) develop sound financial strategies for making business decisions; 
d) interact respectfully and provide excellent service; and 
e) provide accurate, clear, and concise information. 
 

DEPARTMENT SUMMARY 

The Finance Department serves both internal partners and external customers by providing a 

broad range of services and information.  Core operational services include cash receipting, utility 

billing, accounts payable, and accounts receivable.  The Finance Department is also responsible 

for accounting and financial reporting including the development of the annual budget, quarterly 

reporting, investments, and the City’s annual financial statements and report. 

BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS 

The Finance Department budget decreases by $33,820 or 3.2%.  The reduction is largely due to 

the elimination of 1FTE as a result of COVID-19 offset by inflationary, COLA. And rate increases 

for professional services and labor. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



       

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 64 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

General Fund Resources 933,224       1,068,890   980,965      1,035,070   (33,820)    -3.2%

Accounting 591,802       660,970       641,305      654,340      (6,630)      -1.0%

Utility Billing 341,422       407,920       339,660      380,730      (27,190)    -6.7%

Total Expenditures 933,224       1,068,890   980,965      1,035,070   (33,820)    -3.2%

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Wages 521,773       633,430       546,300      603,230      (30,200)    -4.8%

Benefits 246,112       298,060       265,450      292,980      (5,080)      -1.7%

Supplies/Equip 5,529            11,270         9,225           11,270         -                 0.0%

Service/Charges 159,811       126,130       159,990      127,590      1,460        1.2%

Total Expenditures 933,224       1,068,890   980,965      1,035,070   (33,820)    -3.2%

FUNDING SOURCES

EXPENDITURES BY DIVISION

EXPENDITURES BY CATEGORY

Total General Fund

Wages

Benefits

Supplies/Equip

Service/Charges
Finance 8.4%

 

 

 

 

 



       

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 65 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

2018  

Actual

2019    

Actual

2020 

Budget

2021 

Proposed

Finance Director 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

Accounting Manager 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

Finance Specialist - 1.00 1.00 1.00

Staff Accountant 4.00 3.00 3.00 -

Accounting Assistant - 1.00 1.00 0.00

Customer Service Specialist 2.75 2.00 2.00 2.00

City Clerk 0.50 0.40 0.40 -

Permit Coordinator 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05

Admin Support Assistant 0.15 0.40 0.40 -

Accountant Analyst 1.00 - - 3.00

Payroll & Benefits Coordinator - - -

Assistant City Manager 0.05 - - -

Confidential Admin Assistant 0.15 - - -

Total Finance 10.65 9.85 9.85 8.05

STAFFING

 

 

 

 



       

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 66 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Accounting

Salary/Wages 323,171       392,080       351,200      382,830      (9,250)      -2.4%

Personnel Benefits 141,586       170,700       160,550      172,020      1,320        0.8%

Office & Operating Supplies 2,323            6,180            6,000           6,180           -                 0.0%

Small Tools & Equipment -                     1,440            700               1,440           -                 0.0%

Professional Services 114,468       82,660         102,750      83,960         1,300        1.6%

Communication 1,119            490               1,200           490               -                 0.0%

Travel 1,241            2,370            750               2,370           -                 0.0%

Taxes/Assessments -                     -                     300               -                    -                 

Rent/Lease 4,569            2,880            4,500           2,880           -                 0.0%

Insurance -                     -                     12,220         -                    -                 

Training and Other Charges 3,124            1,340            1,000           1,340           -                 0.0%

Repair/Maintenance 152               790               110               790               -                 0.0%

Gas, Oil, & Fuel 49                  40                  25                 40                 -                 0.0%

Accounting Total 591,802       660,970       641,305      654,340      (6,630)      -1.0%

Utility Billing

Salary/Wages 198,602       241,350       195,100      220,400      (20,950)    -8.7%

Personnel Benefits 104,526       127,360       104,900      120,960      (6,400)      -5.0%

Office & Operating Supplies 3,156            3,610            2,500           3,610           -                 0.0%

Professional Services 7,365            6,440            7,000           6,600           160           2.5%

Communication 24,977         25,750         20,000         25,750         -                 0.0%

Travel -                     520               300               520               -                 0.0%

Rent/Lease 1,055            1,030            500               1,030           -                 0.0%

Insurance -                     -                     7,510           -                    -                 

Repair/Maintenance 787               1,030            1,650           1,030           -                 0.0%

Training and Other Charges 953               830               200               830               -                 0.0%

Utility Billing Total 341,422       407,920       339,660      380,730      (27,190)    -6.7%

Total Expenditures 933,224       1,068,890   980,965      1,035,070   (33,820)    -3.2%

EXPENDITURE DETAILS

 

 



  

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 67 

FIRE & EMERGENCY SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

MISSION STATEMENT 

Central Mason Fire & EMS is committed to the preservation of life, health, property, and the 

environment through extensive training, community outreach, and a dedication to excellence. 

 

DEPARTMENT SUMMARY 

The City contracts with Central Mason Fire & EMS (CMFE) to provide fire and emergency medical 

services to the City of Shelton.  Central Mason Fire & EMS is the largest and busiest in Mason 

County as well as one of the busiest on the Olympic Peninsula.  Through mutual-aid agreements 

CMFE provides primary advanced life support services to the majority of Mason County. 

 

BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS 

The Fire & Emergency Services Department budget increases by $2,370 or 0.2%.  The City and 

Central Mason Fire and EMS are currently in the final stages of negotiating a new interlocal 

agreement (ILA) for Fire and EMS services.  The annual expenditure for the City for Fire & EMS 

Services is based on the City’s assessed value and Fire District rates as determined by the Mason 

County Assessor’s Office.  However, the proposed ILA removes a $50,000 per year charge for 

Fire Marshall services. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



        

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 68 

FIRE & EMERGENCY SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

 

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

General Fund Resources 1,447,313   1,498,880   1,512,125   1,501,250   2,370        0.2%

Facilities 30,737         25,880         26,561         25,890         10              0.0%

Fire/EMS 1,416,576   1,473,000   1,485,564   1,475,360   2,360        0.2%

Total Expenditures 1,447,313   1,498,880   1,512,125   1,501,250   2,370        0.2%

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Supplies/Equip 3,380            1,240            1,240           1,240           -                 0.0%

Service/Charges 1,443,933   1,497,640   1,510,885   1,500,010   2,370        0.2%

Total Expenditures 1,447,313   1,498,880   1,512,125   1,501,250   2,370        0.2%

FUNDING SOURCES

EXPENDITURES BY DIVISION

EXPENDITURES BY CATEGORY

Total General Fund

Supplies/Equip

Service/Charges

Fire & EMS 12.2%

 

 

 

 



        

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 69 

FIRE & EMERGENCY SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

 

 

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Fire Facilities

Office & Operating Supplies 2,647            1,240            1,240           1,240           -                 0.0%

Small Tools & Equipment 733               -                     -                    -                    -                 

Professional Services 1,760            210               1,101           220               10              4.8%

Communication 2,025            3,610            3,610           3,610           -                 0.0%

Utilities 1,950            1,550            1,550           1,550           -                 0.0%

Repair/Maintenance 21,287         19,060         19,060         19,060         -                 0.0%

Training and Other Charges 335               210               -                    210               -                 0.0%

Fire Facilities Total 30,737         25,880         26,561         25,890         10              0.0%

Fire/EMS

Professional Services 1,291,576   1,344,250   1,349,250   1,346,610   2,360        0.2%

Insurance -                     -                     7,564           -                    -                 

Utilities 125,000       128,750       128,750      128,750      -                 0.0%

Fire/EMS Total 1,416,576   1,473,000   1,485,564   1,475,360   2,360        0.2%

Total Expenditures 1,447,313   1,498,880   1,512,125   1,501,250   2,370        0.2%

EXPENDITURE DETAILS

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



         

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 70 

MUNICIPAL COURT 

MISSION STATEMENT 

The Municipal Court is an independent branch of government constitutionally entrusted with the 

fair and just resolution of disputes in order to preserve the rule of the law and to protect the rights 

and liberties guaranteed by the Constitution and laws of the United States, Washington State, 

and the City of Shelton.  

 

DEPARTMENT SUMMARY 

The Court must not only be fair, but also avoid even the appearance of unfairness, which is why 

we adhere to the Code of Judicial Conduct and provide open records and proceedings.  Judicial 

independence requires that we follow the law and make decisions that we believe are correct, fair 

and just, even though those decisions may be unpopular.  There shall be equal treatment for all, 

regardless of race, gender, ethnicity, religion, wealth, physical abilities, sexual orientation, or any 

other legally protected status.  The Court shall maintain the independence of the Judiciary while 

strengthening relations with the public, the bar, and the other branches of government.  The Court 

shall acknowledge and enhance the potential of every person in our organization to contribute to 

the administration of justice through participation, training and technology.  The Court recognizes 

that everyone is different and unique and will strive to embolden a holistic and restorative criminal 

justice model within the confines of the law. 

 

BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS 

The Municipal Court budget increases by $31,810 or 5.9%.  The budget includes a COLA 

adjustment and benefit costs increases due to rate changes.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



         

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 71 

MUNICIPAL COURT 

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

General Fund Resources 462,291       536,640       518,247      568,450      31,810     5.9%

Community Restitution 95,788         116,290       107,665      122,390      6,100        5.2%

Court Services 366,503       420,350       410,582      446,060      25,710     6.1%

Total Expenditures 462,291       536,640       518,247      568,450      31,810     5.9%

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Wages 284,550       317,320       313,320      334,050      16,730     5.3%

Benefits 124,397       142,050       142,050      156,010      13,960     9.8%

Supplies/Equip 9,227            7,340            6,170           7,340           -                 0.0%

Service/Charges 44,117         69,930         56,707         71,050         1,120        1.6%

Total Expenditures 462,291       536,640       518,247      568,450      31,810     5.9%

FUNDING SOURCES

EXPENDITURES BY DIVISION

EXPENDITURES BY CATEGORY

Total General Fund

Wages

Benefits

Supplies/Equip

Service/Charges

Municipal Court 4.6%

 

 

 

 

 



         

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 72 

MUNICIPAL COURT 

2018  

Actual

2019    

Actual

2020 

Budget

2021 

Proposed

Municipal Judge 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50

Court Administrator 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

Community Services Supervisor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

Legal Process Assistant 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00

Total Municipal Court 4.50 4.50 4.50 4.50

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Community Restitution

Salary/Wages 57,921         62,970         62,970         66,790         3,820        6.1%

Personnel Benefits 29,320         34,290         34,290         36,410         2,120        6.2%

Office & Operating Supplies 525               310               310               310               -                 0.0%

Small Tools & Equipment 1,073            1,550            1,550           1,550           -                 0.0%

Professional Services 130               6,180            500               6,340           160           2.6%

Communication -                     720               720               720               -                 0.0%

Insurance 144               160               2,189           160               -                 0.0%

Training and Other Charges 18                  520               120               520               -                 0.0%

Rent/Lease 2,071            2,400            451               2,400           -                 0.0%

Repair/Maintenance 3,821            6,360            4,065           6,360           -                 0.0%

Gas, Oil, & Fuel 764               830               500               830               -                 0.0%

Community Restitution Total 95,788         116,290       107,665      122,390      6,100        5.2%

Court Services

Salary/Wages 226,629       254,350       250,350      267,260      12,910     5.1%

Personnel Benefits 95,077         107,760       107,760      119,600      11,840     11.0%

Office & Operating Supplies 4,068            3,610            3,610           3,610           -                 0.0%

Small Tools & Equipment 2,796            1,040            200               1,040           -                 0.0%

Professional Services 23,986         38,330         30,000         39,290         960           2.5%

Communication 1,713            1,240            1,800           1,240           -                 0.0%

Travel 4,434            4,640            100               4,640           -                 0.0%

Taxes/Assessments -                     -                     468               -                    

Rent/Lease 6,681            8,040            6,700           8,040           -                 0.0%

Insurance -                     -                     8,564           -                    -                 

Repair/Maintenance -                     310               -                    310               -                 0.0%

Training and Other Charges 1,121            1,030            1,030           1,030           -                 0.0%

Court Services Total 366,503       420,350       410,582      446,060      25,710     6.1%

Total Expenditures 462,291       536,640       518,247      568,450      31,810     5.9%

STAFFING

EXPENDITURE DETAILS



 

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 73 

NON-DEPARTMENTAL 

 

DEPARTMENT SUMMARY 

The non-departmental classification is used to account for activities that are not the function of a 

specific department in the general fund. 

 

BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS 

The 2021 Proposed budget includes: 

 $135,760 for debt obligations on the 2011 LTGO for the Fire Station; 

 $164,800 to fully fund the obligations of the Payroll Benefits Fund (see Payroll Benefits 
Fund page for more information); 

 $121,220 to fully fund the obligations of the Fireman’s Pension Fund (see Fireman’s 
Pension Fund page for more information); 

 $570,000 as supplemental funding for on-going street operations; 
 $41,000 for the annual subscription for the OpenGov system; and, 
 $21,510 for principal and interest payments related to the HVAC lease. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



         

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 74 

NON-DEPARTMENTAL 

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

General Fund Resources 2,519,557   1,212,580   1,278,973   1,054,290   (158,290) -13.1%

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Service/Charges 24,958         40,000         50,000         41,000         1,000        2.5%

Capital 480,606       24,210         329,230      -                    (24,210)    -100.0%

Debt Service 21,494         21,500         21,493         21,510         10              0.0%

Transfer-Out 1,992,498   1,126,870   878,250      991,780      (135,090) -12.0%

Total Expenditures 2,519,557   1,212,580   1,278,973   1,054,290   (158,290) -13.1%

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Non-Departmental

Professional Services 24,958         40,000         50,000         41,000         1,000        2.5%

Capital 480,606       24,210         329,230      -                    (24,210)    -100.0%

Debt Principal 17,168         18,050         18,048         18,980         930           5.2%

Debt Interest 4,326            3,450            3,445           2,530           (920)          -26.7%

Transfer-Out 1,992,498   1,126,870   878,250      991,780      (135,090) -12.0%

Total Expenditures 2,519,557   1,212,580   1,278,973   1,054,290   (158,290) -13.1%

FUNDING SOURCES

EXPENDITURES BY CATEGORY

EXPENDITURE DETAILS

Total General Fund

Service/Charges

Debt Service

Transfer-Out

Non-Departmental 
8.6%

 



 

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 75 

POLICE DEPARTMENT 

MISSION STATEMENT 

The Mission of the Shelton Police Department (SPD) is to provide excellent service and protection 

through leadership and partnership with the community.  All decisions reflect this Mission and 

coincide with our core values of Loyalty, Dedication, Respect, Service, Honor, Integrity, and 

Personal Courage.   

 

DEPARTMENT SUMMARY 

SPD is comprised of Administration, Patrol, Detectives, School Resource Officers, 

Records/Evidence, Animal Control/Code Enforcement and Volunteers. Police officers in the 21st 

century wear many different hats that their professional predecessors didn’t.  With more legal 

mandates and responsibilities, also come un-funded training requirements.  In 2020, SPD will 

continue its endeavor to have the most professional, well educated, and trained police force for 

the community we serve.  This will require up to date training in use of force, de-escalation, crisis 

intervention, patrol tactics, officer wellness, and emergency vehicle operations.  Training will be 

a 2020 budget priority.  

 

BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS 

The budget for the Police Department in 2021 increases by $298,170 or 9.5%.  The budget 

includes a reduction of 1FTE School Resource Officer (SRO) due to the current closure of the 

School District.  The City is hopeful that once the schools open, the contract with the School 

District will be put back in place and the position funded.  Other changes include salary and benefit 

increases for COLA adjustments and medical, dental, and other rate increases. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



         

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 76 

POLICE DEPARTMENT 

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Law Enforcement Services 294,384 310,600 35000 21900 (288,700) -92.9%

General Fund Resources 2,777,648 2,813,510 3,297,761 3,400,380 586,870 20.9%

General Fund Resources 3,072,032   3,124,110   3,332,761   3,422,280   298,170   9.5%

Administration 288,220       305,040       238,707      170,260      (134,780) -44.2%

Animal Control 61,143         58,800         69,115         74,680         15,880     27.0%

Investigations 242,786       261,200       282,081      573,720      312,520   119.6%

Patrol 1,948,866   1,940,425   2,270,985   2,253,660   313,235   16.1%

Records 135,658       161,030       152,663      164,460      3,430        2.1%

SRO 354,101       350,225       297,777      138,110      (212,115) -60.6%

Training 41,257         47,390         21,434         47,390         -                 0.0%

Total Expenditures 3,072,032   3,124,110   3,332,761   3,422,280   298,170   9.5%

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Wages 1,900,385   1,863,910   1,981,962   2,052,390   188,480   10.1%

Benefits 689,167       763,110       794,101      867,850      104,740   13.7%

Supplies/Equip 140,623       140,120       168,800      140,120      -                 0.0%

Service/Charges 341,857       356,970       387,898      361,920      4,950        1.4%

Total Expenditures 3,072,032   3,124,110   3,332,761   3,422,280   298,170   9.5%

FUNDING SOURCES

EXPENDITURES BY DIVISION

EXPENDITURES BY CATEGORY

Total  General Fund

Wages

Benefits

Supplies/Equip

Service/Charges

Pol ice 27.9%

 



         

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 77 

POLICE DEPARTMENT 

2018  

Actual

2019    

Actual

2020 

Budget

2021 

Proposed

Police Chief 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

Police Captain - 1.00 - -

Sergeant - Detective - 1.00 1.00 1.00

Sergeant - Patrol 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00

Detective 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

Corporal Officer - Patrol (SRO) 2.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

Police Officer 8.00 10.00 10.00 11.00

School Resource Officer 2.00 2.00 2.00 0.00

Evidence Records Clerk 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00

Animal Control Tech/Code Enforce Officer 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50

Detective Corporal 1.00 - - -

Lieutenant 1.00 - 2.00 2.00

Total Police Department 20.50 21.50 22.50 21.50

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Administration

Salary/Wages 221,340       233,050       173,903      128,040      (105,010) -45.1%

Personnel Benefits 66,880         71,990         56,351         42,220         (29,770)    -41.4%

Insurance -                     -                     8,453           -                    -                 

Administration Total 288,220       305,040       238,707      170,260      (134,780) -44.2%

Animal Control

Salary/Wages 31,544         32,210         43,127         46,450         14,240     44.2%

Personnel Benefits 13,378         15,220         15,425         16,830         1,610        10.6%

Office & Operating Supplies 4,104            750               400               750               -                 0.0%

Small Tools & Equipment -                     210               -                    210               -                 0.0%

Professional Services 2,281            1,030            1,300           1,060           30              2.9%

Communication 798               930               300               930               -                 0.0%

Travel 2,272            1,550            -                    1,550           -                 0.0%

Rent/Lease -                     -                     25                 -                    -                 

Utilities 6,624            5,150            7,939           5,150           -                 0.0%

Repair/Maintenance -                     1,240            600               1,240           -                 0.0%

Training and Other Charges 75                  410               -                    410               -                 0.0%

Gas, Oil, & Fuel 66                  100               -                    100               -                 0.0%

Animal Control Total 61,143         58,800         69,115         74,680         15,880     27.0%

STAFFING

EXPENDITURE DETAILS

 

 



         

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 78 

POLICE DEPARTMENT 

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Investigations

Salary/Wages 179,203       189,290       201,379      408,290      219,000   115.7%

Personnel Benefits 63,583         71,910         73,798         165,430      93,520     130.1%

Insurance -                     -                     6,904           -                    -                 

Investigations Total 242,786       261,200       282,081      573,720      312,520   119.6%

Patrol

Salary/Wages 1,114,779   1,062,320   1,266,804   1,272,110   209,790   19.7%

Personnel Benefits 409,086       439,775       508,552      538,300      98,525     22.4%

Office & Operating Supplies 71,965         45,320         78,000         45,320         -                 0.0%

Small Tools & Equipment 3,898            14,420         17,500         14,420         -                 0.0%

Professional Services 194,865       196,740       191,100      201,660      4,920        2.5%

Communication 22,465         18,540         14,000         18,540         -                 0.0%

Travel 42                  1,030            100               1,030           -                 0.0%

Taxes/Assessments -                     -                     300               -                    -                 

Rent/Lease 9,993            12,360         12,360         12,360         -                 0.0%

Insurance 8,831            9,320            66,069         9,320           -                 0.0%

Repair/Maintenance 32,851         49,440         32,000         49,440         -                 0.0%

Training and Other Charges 21,465         22,660         17,500         22,660         -                 0.0%

Gas, Oil, & Fuel 58,627         68,500         66,700         68,500         -                 0.0%

Patrol Total 1,948,866   1,940,425   2,270,985   2,253,660   313,235   16.1%

Records -                 

Salary/Wages 89,237         97,480         96,000         101,290      3,810        3.9%

Personnel Benefits 46,421         63,550         53,290         63,170         (380)          -0.6%

Insurance -                     -                     3,373           -                    -                 

Records Total 135,658       161,030       152,663      164,460      3,430        2.1%

SRO

Salary/Wages 264,282       249,560       200,749      96,210         (153,350) -61.4%

Personnel Benefits 89,819         100,665       86,687         41,900         (58,765)    -58.4%

Insurance -                     -                     10,341         -                    -                 

SRO Total 354,101       350,225       297,777      138,110      (212,115) -60.6%

Training

Office & Operating Supplies 1,171            9,270            5,000           9,270           -                 0.0%

Gas, Oil, & Fuel 793               1,550            1,200           1,550           -                 0.0%

Travel 25,076         17,720         4,894           17,720         -                 0.0%

Training and Other Charges 14,217         18,850         10,340         18,850         -                 0.0%

Training Total 41,257         47,390         21,434         47,390         -                 0.0%

Total Expenditures 3,072,032   3,124,110   3,332,761   3,422,280   298,170   9.5%



         

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 79 

PUBLIC WORKS 

MISSION STATEMENT 

Shelton Public Works is dedicated to excellence, integrity and stewardship. We enhance the 
safety, welfare, and livability of the community by providing and managing reliable infrastructure 
and services for transportation, water, stormwater, and wastewater systems. 

 

DEPARTMENT SUMMARY 

The Public Works Department is responsible for the maintenance and improvement of the City’s 

infrastructure, including streets, sidewalks, water service, wastewater treatment, storm drainage, 

and fleet/equipment. These systems that serve the public focus on transportation and mobility, 

water treatment/delivery, storm water quality/quantity, and wastewater collection/disposal.  

The Water, Sewer, Storm Drainage, and Solid Waste funds are enterprise funds and are 

discussed further in the proprietary fund section. The Public Works Division within the General 

Fund include Administration and Engineering 

BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS 

The Public Works 2021 Budget reflects a decrease of $21,790 or 3.4%.  The decrease is primarily 

due to the reduction of 1FTE due to the COVID-19 impact on revenue generation.  The reduction 

is offset by increases for labor costs and professional service contracts. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



         

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 80 

PUBLIC WORKS 

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

General Fund Resources 737,915       650,290       708,907      628,500      (21,790)    -3.4%

Administration 285,315       295,800       260,794      327,520      31,720     10.7%

Engineering 452,601       354,490       448,113      300,980      (53,510)    -15.1%

Total Expenditures 737,915       650,290       708,907      628,500      (21,790)    -3.4%

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Wages 400,633       398,590       323,382      335,270      (63,320)    -15.9%

Benefits 158,132       157,990       128,410      151,040      (6,950)      -4.4%

Supplies/Equip 12,156         16,280         14,109         16,380         100           0.6%

Service/Charges 166,995       77,430         243,006      125,810      48,380     62.5%

Total Expenditures 737,915       650,290       708,907      628,500      (21,790)    -3.4%

FUNDING SOURCES

EXPENDITURES BY DIVISION

EXPENDITURES BY CATEGORY

Total  General Fund

Wages

Benefits Supplies/Equip

Service/Charges

Publ ic Works 5.1%

 

 

 

 

 



         

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 81 

PUBLIC WORKS 

2018  

Actual

2019    

Actual

2020 

Budget

2021 

Proposed

Public Works Director 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

City Engineer - 1.00 0.50 0.50

PW Superintendent 2.00 - - -

Civil Engineer 0 1.00 - - -

Sr Associate Civil Engineer 0.90 1.00 1.00 1.00

Associate Civil Engineer 2.00 1.00 - -

Engineering Technician 1.00 1.00 1.00 -

Administrative Manager 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

Projects & Purchasing Coodinator 1.00 - - -

Permit Coordinator 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10

Total Public Works 10.00 6.10 4.60 3.60

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Administration

Salary/Wages 183,838       197,200       171,615      203,490      6,290        3.2%

Personnel Benefits 85,316         81,710         65,408         98,080         16,370     20.0%

Office & Operating Supplies 1,792            2,580            2,580           2,580           -                 0.0%

Gas, Oil, & Fuel -                     50                  50                 150               100           200.0%

Small Tools & Equipment 4,403            5,150            5,150           5,150           -                 0.0%

Professional Services 1,155            2,060            1,641           9,000           6,940        336.9%

Communication 5,477            4,270            4,270           4,270           -                 0.0%

Travel -                     1,030            1,030           2,000           970           94.2%

Rent/Lease 41                  -                     42                 80                 80              

Insurance -                     -                     6,951           -                    -                 

Training and Other Charges 3,294            1,750            2,057           2,720           970           55.4%

Administration Total 285,315       295,800       260,794      327,520      31,720     10.7%

Engineering

Salary/Wages 216,796       201,390       151,767      131,780      (69,610)    -34.6%

Personnel Benefits 72,816         76,280         63,002         52,960         (23,320)    -30.6%

Office & Operating Supplies 1,889            3,090            2,779           3,090           -                 0.0%

Small Tools & Equipment -                     1,550            1,550           1,550           -                 0.0%

Professional Services 132,947       52,930         200,000      79,500         26,570     50.2%

Travel -                     520               520               2,200           1,680        323.1%

Taxes/Assessments 240               -                     77                 -                    -                 

Insurance 179               200               8,427           200               -                 0.0%

Training and Other Charges 4,406            460               618               6,460           6,000        1304.3%

Rent/Lease 3,235            3,090            1,528           3,090           -                 0.0%

Gas, Oil, & Fuel 4,072            3,860            2,000           3,860           -                 0.0%

Repair/Maintenance 16,021         11,120         15,845         16,290         5,170        46.5%

Engineering Total 452,601       354,490       448,113      300,980      (53,510)    -15.1%

Total Expenditures 737,915       650,290       708,907      628,500      (21,790)    -3.4%

STAFFING

EXPENDITURE DETAILS

 



 

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 82 

STREET FUND 

MISSION STATEMENT 

To provide and maintain streets and sidewalks within the City of Shelton that allow for safe and 

efficient transportation. 

 

DEPARTMENT SUMMARY 

The Street department is responsible for constructing and maintaining transportation and mobility 

assets including roadways, alleys and right of ways within the City of Shelton.  Maintenance 

includes patching, paving, grading gravel roads and parking strips, crack sealing, chip sealing, 

roadside mowing, street sweeping and pedestrian path maintenance. 

 

BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS 

The Street Fund budget for 2021 decreases by $211,460 or 9.3%.  The budget reduction is 

significantly due to a reduction of Street resources being transferred for Capital Projects.  Much 

of those decreases are offset by an increase in expense in the Capital Resources fund for 

capital projects.  The budget also includes monies for a quarter of the costs related to the new 

Development Review Technician.  The General Fund supports Street Fund activities in the 

amount of $570,000 for 2021. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



         

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 83 

STREET FUND 

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Beginning Fund Balance - 1,355,206   1,355,206   1,147,686   

Taxes 685,810       582,520       582,520      582,520      -                 

Licenses & Permits 6,805            6,000            5,000           6,000           -                 

Intergovernmental Revenue 227,816       241,490       194,000      213,000      (28,490)    -11.8%

Charges for Goods/Service 53,888         60,000         50,000         53,000         (7,000)      -11.7%

Miscellaneous Revenue 27,127         16,000         -                    12,000         (4,000)      -25.0%

Transfer In 1,527,349   570,000       570,000      570,000      -                 

Total Revenues 2,528,794   1,476,010   1,401,520   1,436,520   (39,490)    -2.7%

Maint Adm & Overhead 508,365       707,990       653,315      726,500      18,510     2.6%

Parking Facilities 423               1,090            1,090           1,090           -                 

Roadside 142,131       134,780       130,005      142,970      8,190        6.1%

Roadway 224,769       180,220       138,828      218,840      38,620     21.4%

Sidewalks 20,563         11,590         5,210           11,590         -                 

Snow and Ice Control 66,099         49,800         14,800         14,060         (35,740)    -71.8%

Special Purpose Paths 104               10,300         5,000           10,300         -                 

Street Cleaning 6,415            1,890            13,681         22,760         20,870     1104.2%

Street Lighting 127,460       125,000       145,000      125,000      -                 

Traffic Control Devices 77,269         82,990         102,112      103,840      20,850     25.1%

Transfer-Out -                     975,000       400,000      692,240      (282,760) -29.0%

Total Expenditures 1,173,598   2,280,650   1,609,040   2,069,190   (211,460) -9.3%

Ending Fund Balance 1,355,206   550,566       1,147,686   515,016      

Change in Fund Balance 1,355,196   (804,640)     (207,520)     (632,670)     

STREET FUND SUMMARY

FUNDING SOURCES

EXPENDITURES BY DIVISION

 

 

 

 

 



         

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 84 

STREET FUND 

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Wages 350,448       285,310       295,669      324,360      39,050     13.7%

Benefits 160,210       145,230       151,888      160,820      15,590     10.7%

Supplies/Equip 63,420         79,010         63,810         79,010         -                 

Service/Charges 479,795       498,530       400,104      532,810      34,280     6.9%

Capital 2,573            -                     -                    -                    -                 

Indirect Charges 117,152       297,570       297,570      279,950      (17,620)    -5.9%

Transfer-Out -                     975,000       400,000      692,240      (282,760) -29.0%

Total Expenditures 1,173,598   2,280,650   1,609,040   2,069,190   (211,460) -9.3%

2018  

Actual

2019    

Actual

2020 

Budget

2021 

Proposed

Superintendent - Streets/Water/EM&R - 0.40 0.40 0.40

Field Supervisor - Streets 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

Operator 0.25 0.25 1.25 1.25

Truck Driver 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

Maintenance Worker 1.05 1.00 1.00 1.00

Com Development/Parks & Rec Coordinator 0.01 - - -

Development Review Technician - - - 0.25

Total Street Fund 3.31 3.65 4.65 4.90

EXPENDITURES BY CATEGORY

STAFFING

Total City Budget

Wages

Benefits
Supplies/Equip

Service/Charges

Indirect Charges

Transfer-Out

Street Fund  5.3%

 

 



         

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 85 

STREET FUND 

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Maint Adm & Overhead

Salary/Wages 61,312         49,380         82,872         82,540         33,160     67.2%

Personnel Benefits 37,131         35,800         52,623         38,390         2,590        7.2%

Small Tools & Equipment -                     1,850            1,850           1,850           -                 

Professional Services 776               15,130         -                    15,510         380           2.5%

Insurance 82,961         87,650         -                    87,650         -                 

Repair/Maintenance -                     1,290            1,000           1,290           -                 

Training and Other Charges -                     620               620               620               -                 

Capital 2,573            -                     -                    -                    -                 

Rent/Lease 206,460       218,700       216,780      218,700      -                 

Indirect Charges 117,152       297,570       297,570      279,950      (17,620)    -5.9%

Maint Adm & Overhead Total 508,365       707,990       653,315      726,500      18,510     2.6%

Parking Facilities

Office & Operating Supplies -                     520               520               520               -                 

Utilities 423               570               570               570               -                 

Parking Facilities Total 423               1,090            1,090           1,090           -                 0.0%

Roadside

Salary/Wages 96,373         86,090         84,540         88,760         2,670        3.1%

Personnel Benefits 40,695         38,530         41,101         44,040         5,510        14.3%

Office & Operating Supplies 314               2,270            1,720           2,270           -                 

Small Tools & Equipment -                     520               520               520               -                 

Professional Services 3,535            460               -                    470               10              2.2%

Insurance -                     -                     324               -                    -                 

Utilities 1,215            6,390            1,500           6,390           -                 

Training and Other Charges -                     520               300               520               -                 

Roadside Total 142,131       134,780       130,005      142,970      8,190        6.1%

Roadway

Salary/Wages 133,906       106,990       76,700         103,840      (3,150)      -2.9%

Personnel Benefits 56,368         44,780         36,948         52,660         7,880        17.6%

Office & Operating Supplies 25,947         21,000         18,000         21,000         -                 

Gas, Oil, & Fuel 10                  100               50                 100               -                 

Small Tools & Equipment 627               2,380            2,380           2,380           -                 

Professional Services 2,840            3,090            3,090           36,980         33,890     1096.8%

Rent/Lease 803               -                     -                    -                    -                 

Insurance -                     -                     -                    -                    -                 

Utilities 1,307            -                     -                    -                    -                 

Repair/Maintenance 1,264            260               260               260               -                 

Training and Other Charges 1,698            1,620            1,400           1,620           -                 

Roadway Total 224,769       180,220       138,828      218,840      38,620     21.4%

EXPENDITURE DETAILS

 

 



         

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 86 

STREET FUND 

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Sidewalks

Salary/Wages 668               740               -                    740               -                 

Personnel Benefits 301               340               -                    340               -                 

Office & Operating Supplies -                     10,300         5,000           10,300         -                 

Professional Services 19,584         -                     -                    -                    -                 

Insurance -                     -                     -                    -                    -                 

Training and Other Charges 10                  210               210               210               -                 

Sidewalks Total 20,563         11,590         5,210           11,590         -                 

Snow and Ice Control

Salary/Wages 33,954         25,930         11,000         4,370           (21,560)    -83.1%

Personnel Benefits 15,535         17,900         300               3,720           (14,180)    -79.2%

Office & Operating Supplies 13,977         3,500            2,500           3,500           -                 

Professional Services 2,091            -                     -                    -                    -                 

Rent/Lease 543               -                     -                    -                    -                 

Repair/Maintenance -                     2,470            1,000           2,470           -                 

Snow and Ice Control Total 66,099         49,800         14,800         14,060         (35,740)    -71.8%

Special Purpose Paths

Office & Operating Supplies 104               10,300         5,000           10,300         -                 

Special Purpose Paths Total 104               10,300         5,000           10,300         -                 0.0%

Street Cleaning

Salary/Wages 4,496            1,290            8,000           16,210         

Personnel Benefits 1,919            600               5,341           6,550           

Insurance -                     -                     340               -                    -                 

Street Cleaning Total 6,415            1,890            13,681         22,760         20,870     1104.2%

Street Lighting

Utilities 127,460       125,000       145,000      125,000      -                 

Street Lighting Total 127,460       125,000       145,000      125,000      -                 0.0%

Traffic Control Devices

Salary/Wages 19,738         14,890         32,557         27,900         13,010     87.4%

Personnel Benefits 8,261            7,280            15,575         15,120         7,840        107.7%

Office & Operating Supplies 17,371         25,750         25,750         25,750         -                 

Small Tools & Equipment 5,071            520               520               520               -                 

Professional Services 521               -                     -                    -                    -                 

Insurance -                     -                     -                    -                    -                 

Utilities 7,154            10,040         8,500           10,040         -                 

Repair/Maintenance 19,153         24,300         19,000         24,300         -                 

Training and Other Charges -                     210               210               210               -                 

Traffic Control Devices Total 77,269         82,990         102,112      103,840      20,850     25.1%

Transfer-Out

Transfer-Out -                     975,000       400,000      692,240      (282,760) -29.0%

Transfer-Out Total -                     975,000       400,000      692,240      (282,760) -29.0%

Total Expenditures 1,173,598   2,280,650   1,609,040   2,069,190   (211,460) -9.3%

 



 

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 87 

CAPITAL RESOURCES FUND 

DEPARTMENT SUMMARY 

The Capital Resources Fund was approved by the City Council on December 17, 2019 as a new 

Special Revenue Fund to be used to account for and accumulate financial resources.  The cash 

will remain in this fund until it is allocated by the City Council, through Ordinance, for use on 

qualifying projects. 

 

BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS 

The Council approved the creation of the City’s Capital Resources Fund in 2019 for the 2020 

calendar year however, there was no expenditure budget in 2020.  This fund will be used to 

account for various capital monies until those monies are appropriated to a project by the City 

Council through an Ordinance.  The 2021 budget includes nearly $497,000 in funding for capital 

projects. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



         

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 88 

CAPITAL RESOURCES FUND 

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Beginning Fund Balance 499,176      

Taxes -                     220,000       70,000         100,000      (120,000) -54.5%

Charges for Goods/Service -                     60,000         30,000         40,000         (20,000)    -33.3%

Transfer In -                     30,600         447,900      -                    (30,600)    -100.0%

Total Revenues -                     310,600       547,900      140,000      (170,600) -54.9%

Transfers-Out -                     -                     48,724         496,630      496,630   100.0%

Total Expenditures -                     -                     48,724         496,630      496,630   100.0%

Ending Fund Balance 310,600       499,176      142,546      

Change in Fund Balance 310,600       499,176      (356,630)     

CAPITAL RESOURCES FUND SUMMARY

FUNDING SOURCES

EXPENDITURES BY DIVISION

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



         

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 89 

CAPITAL RESOURCES FUND 

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Transfer-Out -                     -                     -                    496,630      496,630   100.0%

Total Expenditures -                     -                     -                    496,630      496,630   100.0%

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Transfers-Out -                     -                     48,724         496,630      496,630   100.0%

Total Expenditures -                     -                     48,724         496,630      496,630   100.0%

EXPENDITURES BY CATEGORY

EXPENDITURE DETAILS

Total City Budget

Transfer-Out

Capital Resources Fund 

2.8%

 

 



 

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 90 

TOURISM FUND 

DEPARTMENT SUMMARY 

The Tourism Fund is used to account for the 4.0% tax as allowed by RCW on lodging at hotels, 

motels, and similar establishments, including bed and breakfasts and RV parks located within 

Shelton.  These revenues are restricted for tourism promotion and for the acquisition and/or 

operation of tourism related facilities or businesses.  Tourism promotion means activities, 

operations, and expenditures designed to increase tourism, including advertising, publicizing, or 

other distribution of information to attract and welcome tourists.  It also includes developing 

strategies to expand tourism, operating tourism promotion agencies, and funding marketing of or 

the operation of special cultural, athletic, or entertainment events and activities designed to attract 

tourists.  The City’s Lodging Tax Advisory Committee receives, reviews and recommends funding 

appropriations for selected activities to the City Council, who authorize spending through the 

budget process. 

 

BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS 

The proposed Tourism Fund budget increases by $2,750 or 4.7% from the 2020 appropriation.  

The funding allocations proposed equal $61,880 for 2021 activities/events are: 

 Mason County Historical Museum - $11,250 
 Mason County Historical Society Downtown Car Show - $1,782 
 Kristmas Town Kiwanis – Bluegrass from the Forest - $6,300 
 Mason County Forest Festival - $8,910 
 Shelton-Mason Chamber Operational Tourism - $18,000 
 Shelton-Mason Chamber Marketing Signage - $3,308 
 NW Event Organizers/Kristmas Town Kiwanis Christmas Town  – $12,330 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



         

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 91 

TOURISM FUND 

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Beginning Fund Balance 118,174       118,186       118,186      83,630         

Taxes 50,859         50,000         33,092         36,000         (14,000)    -28.0%

Miscellaneous Revenue 1,827            1,700            919               1,700           -                 0.0%

Total Revenue 52,687         51,700         34,011         37,700         (14,000)    -27.1%

Tourism 52,675         59,130         68,567         61,880         2,750        4.7%

Total Expenditures 52,675         59,130         68,567         61,880         2,750        4.7%

Ending Fund Balance 118,186       110,756       83,630         59,450         

Change in Fund Balance 12                  (7,430)          (34,556)       (24,180)       

TOURISM FUND SUMMARY

FUNDING SOURCES

EXPENDITURES BY DIVISION

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



         

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 92 

TOURISM FUND 

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Service/Charges 52,675         59,130         68,567         61,880         2,750        4.7%

Total Expenditures 52,675         59,130         68,567         61,880         2,750        4.7%

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Tourism

Professional Services 52,675         59,130         68,567         61,880         2,750        4.7%

Total Expenditures 52,675         59,130         68,567         61,880         2,750        4.7%

EXPENDITURES BY CATEGORY

EXPENDITURE DETAILS

Total City Budget

Transfer-Out

Tourism .2% 

 

 

 

 

 



 

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 93 

BOND FUND 

DEPARTMENT SUMMARY 

The Bond Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources to be used for the retirement 

of City general long-term debt. The appropriation authorized for these funds are determined by 

the debt payment schedules approved by the City Council (or City Commission) as part of debt 

issuance and cannot legally be altered by legislative action. 

BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS 

The Bond Fund allocation for 2021 is the same as the 2020 allocation.  The decrease  from 2019 

reflects the retirement of the 2013 LTGO refunding bonds used for financing the civic center. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



         

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 94 

BOND FUND 

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Beginning Fund Balance 11,775         14,989         14,989         16,570         

Taxes 3,615            -                     1,580           -                    -                 0.0%

Transfer In 282,318       184,490       184,468      184,490      -                 0.0%

Total Revenue 285,933       184,490       186,048      184,490      -                 0.0%

Bond Fund 282,719       184,490       184,467      184,490      -                 0.0%

Total Expenditures 282,719       184,490       184,467      184,490      -                 0.0%

Ending Fund Balance 14,989         14,989         16,570         16,570         

Change in Fund Balance 3,214            -                     1,581           -                    

BOND FUND SUMMARY

FUNDING SOURCES

EXPENDITURES BY DIVISION

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



         

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 95 

BOND FUND 

 

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Debt Service 282,719       184,490       184,467      184,490      -                 0.0%

Total Expenditures 282,719       184,490       184,467      184,490      -                 0.0%

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Bond Fund

Debt Principal 149,698       56,780         56,768         58,940         2,160        0.0%

Debt Interest 133,021       127,710       127,699      125,550      (2,160)      0.0%

Total Expenditures 282,719       184,490       184,467      184,490      -                 0.0%

EXPENDITURES BY CATEGORY

EXPENDITURE DETAILS

Total  Ci ty Budget

Debt Service

Bond Fund .6%

 

 

 

 



 

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 96 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND 

DEPARTMENT SUMMARY 

The Capital Improvement Fund is where the City accounts for the resources and expenditures 

related to all City Capital Projects that are not accounted for in City Proprietary Funds.  The City 

uses this fund to track revenue and expenses at the project level to ensure that the City has 

financial resources to cover the cost of each project and to ensure that total project expenses do 

not exceed budget authority.  Potential funding includes state and federal grants, Real Estate 

Excise Tax (REET), Impact Fees, Transportation Benefit District tax monies, debt financing, as 

well as transfers into this fund.   

In all cases, the City considers restricted monies to have been spent first when expenditures are 

incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted resources are available.  When 

expenditures occur of unrestricted monies, unassigned resources are always considered the 

last monies to be included after all other qualified resources have been exhausted. 

  

BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS 

The Capital Improvement Fund budget will fluctuate somewhat from year to year depending on 

budgeted capital projects and the funding sources for those projects. 

Capital projects included in the Capital Improvement Fund for 2021 are: 

 Street/Transportation: Pavement Maintenance Program, Western Gateway, and the 

Street funds portion of the Public Works Maintenance Facility Expansion. 

 Facilities: New cargo van, Civic Center and Library parking lot improvements. 

 Parks: Ravenna Trail Crosswalk, Northcliff Neighborhood Park Master Plan, Simpson 

Railroad Trail Design, Eagle Point Trail Construction, and Callanan Irrigation and 

Backstop Fencing. 

 Construction improvements to the gravel Civic Center Parking Lot. 

A list of capital projects city-wide, including the resources budgeted to fund the project and the 

budgeted cost of the project, can be found in the Overview Section. 
 

 

 

 

 



         

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 97 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND 

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Beginning Fund Balance 24,655         428,727       428,727      700,547      

Taxes 289,013       90,000         -                    -                    (90,000)    -100.0%

Intergovernmental Revenue 4,216,443   760,400       789,790      200,000      (560,400) -73.7%

Charges for Goods/Service 310,202       190,000       353,080      232,000      42,000     22.1%

Transfer In -                     1,049,500   50,000         1,140,140   90,640     8.6%

Total Revenue 4,815,658   2,089,900   1,192,870   1,572,140   (517,760) -24.8%

Capital 4,362,862   2,089,900   921,050      1,572,140   (517,760) -24.8%

Transfer Out 48,724         48,730         -                    -                    (48,730)    -100.0%

Grand Total 4,411,586   2,138,630   921,050      1,572,140   (566,490) -26.5%

Ending Fund Balance 428,727       379,997       700,547      700,547      

Change in Fund Balance 404,072       (48,730)        271,820      -                    

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND SUMMARY

FUNDING SOURCES

EXPENDITURES BY DIVISION

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



         

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 98 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND 

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Supplies/Equip          3,424                 -                 -                 - -                 

Service/Charges       265,504         50,000        73,780      279,900 229,900   459.8%

Capital    4,042,492    2,039,900      835,200    1,292,240 (747,660) -36.7%

Transfer Out         48,724         48,730                 -                 - (48,730)    -100.0%

Indirect Charges 51,441         -                     12,070         -                    -                 

Grand Total 4,411,586   2,138,630   921,050      1,572,140   (566,490) -26.5%

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Capital

Office & Operating Supplies 3,424            -                     -                    -                    -                 

Professional Services 265,479       50,000         73,780         -                    (50,000)    -100.0%

Communication 26                  -                     -                    -                    -                 

Training and Other Charges -                     -                     -                    279,900      279,900   100.0%

Capital 4,042,492   2,039,900   835,200      1,292,240   (747,660) -36.7%

Indirect Charges 51,441         -                     12,070         -                    -                 

Capital Total 4,362,862   2,089,900   921,050      1,572,140   (517,760) -24.8%

Transfer Out

Transfer Out 48,724         48,730         -                    -                    (48,730)    -100.0%

Transfer Out Total 48,724         48,730         -                    -                    (48,730)    -100.0%

Grand Total 4,411,586   2,138,630   921,050      1,572,140   (566,490) -26.5%

EXPENDITURES BY CATEGORY

EXPENDITURE DETAILS

Total  Ci ty Budget

Service/Charges

Capital

Capi tal Improvement 
Fund 5.0%

 



 

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 99 

WATER FUND 

MISSION STATEMENT 

To provide high quality water services to the residents of the City of Shelton.  

 

DEPARTMENT SUMMARY 

The Water Utility Fund is used to operate, maintain and improve the water distribution system to 

provide for the delivery of safe, high quality water for all City water users.  Revenue is primarily 

from charges for service with additional funding from system development fees, lease revenue, 

and investment interest. 

 

BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS 

The Water Fund budget increases by $101,140 or 4.1%.  The Water Fund appropriation request 

includes $1,310,000 for capital projects in 2021 to include the PW maintenance facility 

expansion, automated meter read, well 1 tank pressurization project, and the pavement 

maintenance program.  The budget also includes funding for 25% of a new Development 

Review Technician. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



         

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 100 

WATER FUND 

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Beginning Fund Balance 2,176,789   2,415,807   2,415,807   1,998,234   

Intergovernmental Revenue -                     -                     30,000         -                    -                 

Charges for Goods/Service 2,370,528   2,347,090   2,227,613   2,487,440   140,350   6.0%

Miscellaneous Revenue 156,443       127,000       85,700         87,790         (39,210)    -30.9%

Total Revenue 2,526,971   2,474,090   2,343,313   2,575,230   101,140   4.1%

Water Operations 2,287,953   3,720,740   2,760,886   3,865,560   144,820   3.9%

Total Expenditures 2,287,953   3,720,740   2,760,886   3,865,560   144,820   3.9%

Ending Fund Balance 2,415,807   1,169,157   1,998,234   707,904      

Change in Fund Balance 239,018       (1,246,650)  (417,572)     (1,290,330) 

WATER FUND SUMMARY

FUNDING SOURCES

EXPENDITURES BY DIVISION

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



         

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 101 

WATER FUND 

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Wages 394,828       531,240       521,530      562,980      31,740     6.0%

Benefits 171,258       262,230       191,711      291,090      28,860     11.0%

Supplies/Equip 72,780         181,570       145,490      181,570      -                 0.0%

Service/Charges 601,512       458,740       765,450      523,300      64,560     14.1%

Inventory 51,628         -                     4,745           -                    -                 

Capital 64,931         1,255,000   100,000      1,310,000   55,000     4.4%

Debt Service 373,991       373,390       373,390      372,930      (460)          -0.1%

Indirect Charges 557,027       658,570       658,570      623,690      (34,880)    -5.3%

Total Expenditures 2,287,953   3,720,740   2,760,886   3,865,560   144,820   3.9%

2018  

Actual

2019    

Actual

2020 

Budget

2021 

Proposed

Superintendent - Streets/Water/EM&R - 0.40 0.40 0.40

Field Supervisor - Water 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

Assistant Field Supervisor - Water 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

Water Quality Specialist 2.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

Water Quality Specialist in Training - 1.00 1.00 1.00

Operator 1.50 2.50 2.50 2.50

Truck Driver 1.50 0.50 0.50 0.50

Maintenance Worker 1.02 1.00 1.00 1.00

Development Review Technician - - - 0.25

Total Water Fund 8.02 8.40 8.40 8.65

EXPENDITURES BY CATEGORY

STAFFING

Tota l  Ci ty Budget

Wages

BenefitsSupplies/Equip

Service/Charges

Capital
Debt Service

Indirect Charges

Water Fund 12.2%

 



         

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 102 

WATER FUND 

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Water Operations

Salary/Wages 394,828       531,240       521,530      562,980      31,740     6.0%

Personnel Benefits 171,258       262,230       191,711      291,090      28,860     11.0%

Office & Operating Supplies 58,419         155,760       127,000      155,760      -                 0.0%

Small Tools & Equipment 3,553            8,760            8,230           8,760           -                 0.0%

Professional Services 231,324       48,820         357,629      113,380      64,560     132.2%

Communication 6,922            6,700            6,700           6,700           -                 0.0%

Travel 319               720               720               720               -                 0.0%

Insurance 8,651            8,920            25,421         8,920           -                 0.0%

Utilities 133,690       155,000       145,000      155,000      -                 0.0%

Taxes/Assessments 96,037         89,610         89,610         89,610         -                 0.0%

Training and Other Charges 10,911         13,400         7,100           13,400         -                 0.0%

Gas, Oil, & Fuel 10,807         17,050         10,260         17,050         -                 0.0%

Inventory 51,628         -                     4,745           -                    -                 

Capital 64,931         1,255,000   100,000      1,310,000   55,000     4.4%

Debt Principal 250,759       255,760       255,760      260,760      5,000        2.0%

Rent/Lease 66,314         67,930         67,930         67,930         -                 0.0%

Repair/Maintenance 47,344         67,640         65,340         67,640         -                 0.0%

Debt Interest 122,932       117,630       117,630      112,170      (5,460)      -4.6%

Debt Service 300               -                     -                    -                    -                 

Indirect Charges 557,027       658,570       658,570      623,690      (34,880)    -5.3%

Total Expenditures 2,287,953   3,720,740   2,760,886   3,865,560   144,820   3.9%

EXPENDITURE DETAILS

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 



 

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 103 

SEWER FUND 

MISSION STATEMENT 

To provide high quality sewer services to the residents of the City of Shelton.  

 

DEPARTMENT SUMMARY 

The Sewer Utility Fund is used to operate, maintain and improve the City’s sewer system and 

provide for the safe disposal and treatment of wastewater for the residents of the City of Shelton.  

Revenue for this fund is primarily from charges for service. 

 

BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS 

The Sewer Fund budget decreases by $2,009,890 or 34.8%.  The large increase in Sewer is 

significantly related to the $2,139,200 budget for capital projects.  Those projects include the 

automated meter read, MBR filter replacement, a slacktide tank, and a wastewater 

comprehensive plan update.  The Sewer budget also include funding for 25% of the 

Development Review Technician position. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



          

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 104 

SEWER FUND 

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Beginning Fund Balance 1,801,780   4,024,695   4,024,695   4,263,597   

Intergovernmental Revenue 3,599,787   -                     -                    -                    -                     

Charges for Goods/Service 5,673,695   5,793,930   5,863,722   5,996,890   202,960       3.5%

Miscellaneous Revenue 535,426       217,000       197,205      175,000      (42,000)        -19.4%

Total Revenue 9,808,908   6,010,930   6,060,927   6,171,890   160,960       2.7%

Collection Main 244,179       286,530       373,169      398,740      112,210       39.2%

Other Main 522,514       704,970       760,150      831,570      126,600       18.0%

Service Main 878,456       1,109,980   1,013,043   929,230      (180,750)     -16.3%

Sewer Operations 5,582,169   3,233,620   3,316,825   5,125,950   1,892,330   58.5%

Coalition 257               25,750         -                    26,390         640               2.5%

Services -Satellite Plant 293,673       341,390       259,262      398,510      57,120         16.7%

Other Satellite Plant 64,745         75,090         99,576         76,830         1,740            2.3%

Total Expenditures 7,585,993   5,777,330   5,822,025   7,787,220   2,009,890   34.8%

Ending Fund Balance 4,024,695   4,258,295   4,263,597   2,648,267   

Change in Fund Balance 2,222,915   233,600       238,902      (1,615,330) 

SEWER FUND SUMMARY

FUNDING SOURCES

EXPENDITURES BY DIVISION

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



          

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 105 

SEWER FUND 

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Wages 543,990       623,970       621,465      682,270      58,300         9.3%

Benefits 261,754       323,100       281,499      355,990      32,890         10.2%

Supplies/Equip 209,613       166,080       216,747      202,920      36,840         22.2%

Service/Charges 1,611,682   1,432,250   1,413,777   1,420,090   (12,160)        -0.8%

Capital 1,850,864   30,000         76,264         2,139,170   2,109,170   7030.6%

Debt Service 2,223,540   2,220,010   2,230,354   2,216,620   (3,390)          -0.2%

Indirect Charges 884,550       981,920       981,920      770,160      (211,760)     -21.6%

Total Expenditures 7,585,993   5,777,330   5,822,025   7,787,220   2,009,890   34.8%

2018  

Actual

2019    

Actual

2020 

Budget

2021 

Proposed

Superintendent - Sewer/Storm - 0.50 0.50 0.50

Field Supervisor - Sewer/Storm 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50

Waste Water Treatment Plant Tech III 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

Waste Water Treatment Plant Tech II 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

Operator Tech III 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00

Waste Water Treatment Plant Tech in Trng 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

Operator 1.50 1.50 1.50 1.50

Truck Driver 0.80 0.80 0.80 0.80

Maintenance Worker 1.00 1.00 2.00 2.00

Development Review Technician - - - 0.25

Total Sewer Fund 8.80 9.30 10.30 10.55

EXPENDITURES BY CATEGORY

STAFFING

Total City Budget

Wages

BenefitsSupplies/Equip

Service/Charges

Capital

Debt Service

Indirect Charges

Sewer Fund 24.6%

 



          

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 106 

SEWER FUND 

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Coalition

Office & Operating Supplies 257               -                     -                    -                    -                     

Professional Services -                     25,750         -                    26,390         640               2.5%

Coalition Total 257               25,750         -                    26,390         640               2.5%

Collection Main

Salary/Wages 128,658       147,340       217,003      222,420      75,080         51.0%

Personnel Benefits 59,328         76,680         96,946         105,960      29,280         38.2%

Office & Operating Supplies 15,578         10,300         10,300         10,300         -                     0.0%

Gas, Oil, & Fuel 52                  -                     -                    -                    -                     

Small Tools & Equipment 2,434            6,180            6,180           6,180           -                     0.0%

Professional Services 5,889            7,730            7,730           10,000         2,270            29.4%

Communication 3,904            4,120            4,120           5,000           880               21.4%

Travel -                     770               770               1,500           730               94.8%

Rent/Lease 1,241            1,030            1,030           5,000           3,970            385.4%

Insurance 21,324         21,970         8,486           21,970         -                     0.0%

Utilities 4,251            4,530            4,530           4,530           -                     0.0%

Repair/Maintenance 371               3,610            3,610           3,610           -                     0.0%

Training and Other Charges 1,149            2,270            12,464         2,270           -                     0.0%

Collection Main Total 244,179       286,530       373,169      398,740      112,210       39.2%

Other Main

Salary/Wages 86,140         95,790         134,674      179,110      83,320         87.0%

Personnel Benefits 54,311         62,680         78,554         105,220      42,540         67.9%

Professional Services 183,610       324,770       328,760      325,510      740               0.2%

Insurance -                     -                     3,255           -                    -                     

Utilities 435               5,150            447               5,150           -                     0.0%

Taxes/Assessments 103,874       103,000       102,000      103,000      -                     0.0%

Training and Other Charges 3,925            5,150            4,031           5,150           -                     0.0%

Rent/Lease 33,768         38,110         38,110         38,110         -                     0.0%

Gas, Oil, & Fuel 15,815         15,450         15,450         15,450         -                     0.0%

Repair/Maintenance 40,635         54,870         54,870         54,870         -                     0.0%

Other Main Total 522,514       704,970       760,150      831,570      126,600       18.0%

Other Satellite Plant

Salary/Wages 33,880         33,510         50,712         35,730         2,220            6.6%

Personnel Benefits 19,555         20,980         26,623         20,140         (840)              -4.0%

Insurance -                     -                     1,280           -                    -                     

Taxes/Assessments 10,555         10,820         10,820         10,820         -                     0.0%

Repair/Maintenance 755               9,780            9,780           9,780           -                     0.0%

Gas, Oil, & Fuel -                     -                     362               360               360               

Other Satellite Plant Total 64,745         75,090         99,576         76,830         1,740            2.3%

EXPENDITURE DETAILS

 



          

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 107 

SEWER FUND 

 

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Service Main

Salary/Wages 211,427       254,740       185,734      116,670      (138,070)     -54.2%

Personnel Benefits 91,751         114,660       64,154         59,170         (55,490)        -48.4%

Office & Operating Supplies 79,774         75,000         100,000      110,000      35,000         46.7%

Gas, Oil, & Fuel 4,980            1,550            1,550           1,550           -                     0.0%

Small Tools & Equipment 9,326            15,970         15,970         15,450         (520)              -3.3%

Professional Services 118,262       106,090       113,178      58,420         (47,670)        -44.9%

Communication 11,296         10,820         13,110         25,820         15,000         138.6%

Travel -                     410               410               3,410           3,000            731.7%

Rent/Lease 489               520               520               520               -                     0.0%

Insurance 71,868         74,030         62,168         74,030         -                     0.0%

Utilities 246,121       285,000       285,000      285,000      -                     0.0%

Repair/Maintenance 27,928         164,800       164,800      164,800      -                     0.0%

Training and Other Charges 5,234            6,390            6,449           6,890           500               7.8%

Intergovernmental -                     -                     -                    7,500           7,500            

Service Main Total 878,456       1,109,980   1,013,043   929,230      (180,750)     -16.3%

Services -Satellite Plant

Salary/Wages 83,127         91,460         33,342         128,340      36,880         40.3%

Personnel Benefits 36,472         47,540         15,223         65,500         17,960         37.8%

Office & Operating Supplies 44,543         35,000         45,000         35,000         -                     0.0%

Gas, Oil, & Fuel 364               -                     -                    -                    -                     

Small Tools & Equipment -                     6,630            6,630           8,630           2,000            30.2%

Professional Services 11,739         11,330         13,887         11,610         280               2.5%

Communication 6,440            6,700            7,184           6,700           -                     0.0%

Insurance 21,072         21,700         18,941         21,700         -                     0.0%

Utilities 77,587         108,150       93,845         108,150      -                     0.0%

Repair/Maintenance 12,177         12,670         25,000         12,670         -                     0.0%

Training and Other Charges 151               210               210               210               -                     0.0%

Services -Satellite Plant Total 293,673       341,390       259,262      398,510      57,120         16.7%

Sewer Operations

Salary/Wages 759               1,130            -                    -                    (1,130)          -100.0%

Personnel Benefits 338               560               -                    -                    (560)              -100.0%

Office & Operating Supplies 36,489         -                     15,305         -                    -                     

Professional Services 584,938       -                     6,446           -                    -                     

Insurance -                     -                     6,536           -                    -                     

Training and Other Charges 690               -                     -                    -                    -                     

Capital 1,850,864   30,000         76,264         2,139,170   2,109,170   7030.6%

Debt Principal 1,484,135   1,501,440   1,501,440   1,519,110   17,670         1.2%

Debt Interest 739,105       718,570       728,914      697,510      (21,060)        -2.9%

Debt Service 300               -                     -                    -                    -                     

Indirect Charges 884,550       981,920       981,920      770,160      (211,760)     -21.6%

Sewer Operations Total 5,582,169   3,233,620   3,316,825   5,125,950   1,892,330   58.5%

Total Expenditures 7,585,993   5,777,330   5,822,025   7,787,220   2,009,890   34.8%



 

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 108 

SOLID WASTE FUND 

MISSION STATEMENT 

To provide high quality solid waste services to the residents of the City of Shelton. 

 

DEPARTMENT SUMMARY 

The Solid Waste Utility Fund accounted for the operation of refuse and recycling collection.  The 

City contracted with Mason County in 2017 for solid waste services.  The fund remains open to 

account of the cleanup of the C Street landfill. 

 

BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS 

All funds collected will be restricted for landfill closeout costs. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



          

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 109 

SOLID WASTE FUND 

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Beginning Fund Balance 991,092       1,035,296   1,035,296   944,660      

Intergovernmental Revenue 181,136       470,000       10,000         450,000      (20,000)        -4.3%

Charges for Goods/Service 155               -                     256               -                    -                     

Miscellaneous Revenue 5                    -                     11                 -                    -                     

Total Revenue 181,296       470,000       10,267         450,000      (20,000)        -4.3%

Solid Waste Operations 137,092       1,459,020   100,903      781,810      (677,210)     -46.4%

Total Expenditures 137,092       1,459,020   100,903      781,810      (677,210)     -46.4%

Ending Fund Balance 1,035,296   46,276         944,660      612,850      

Change in Fund Balance 44,204         (989,020)     (90,636)       (331,810)     

SOLID WASTE FUND SUMMARY

FUNDING SOURCES

EXPENDITURES BY DIVISION

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



          

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 110 

SOLID WASTE FUND 

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Benefits 3,272            -                     -                    -                    -                     

Inventory 5                    -                     10                 -                    -                     

Service/Charges 133,815       431,810       100,746      331,810      (100,000)     -23.2%

Capital -                     1,027,210   -                    450,000      (577,210)     -56.2%

Indirect Charges -                     -                     147               -                    -                     

Grand Total 137,092       1,459,020   100,903      781,810      (677,210)     -46.4%

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Solid Waste Operations

Personnel Benefits 3,272            -                     -                    -                    -                     

Professional Services 133,813       431,810       100,742      331,810      (100,000)     -23.2%

Taxes/Assessments 2                    -                     4                   -                    -                     

Inventory 5                    -                     10                 -                    -                     

Capital -                     1,027,210   -                    450,000      (577,210)     -56.2%

Indirect Charges -                     -                     147               -                    -                     

Total Expenditures 137,092       1,459,020   100,903      781,810      (677,210)     -46.4%

EXPENDITURES BY CATEGORY

EXPENDITURE DETAILS

Tota l  Ci ty Budget

Service/Charges

Capital

Sol id Waste Fund 2.5%

 

 

  

 



 

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 111 

STORM DRAINAGE FUND 

MISSION STATEMENT 

To provide high quality storm water drainage services to the residents of the City of Shelton. 

 

DEPARTMENT SUMMARY 

The Storm Drainage Utility Fund provides for the maintenance and operation of the City’s storm 

drainage facilities.  Revenue for this fund is primarily from charges for services.  Proper 

maintenance of the drainage facilities reduces the impact of heavy rain or prolonged wet weather 

conditions. 

 

BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS 

The Storm Drainage Fund budget increases by $63,050 or 4.9%.  The Storm Drainage Fund 

includes funding for 25% of the Development Review Technician and well as $35,000 for capital 

expenses.   

This fund will require either a rate increase or a significant reduction in expense activities in 

2021 as the budget will use nearly all available resources including accumulated fund balance. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



          

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 112 

STORM DRAINAGE FUND 

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Beginning Fund Balance 666,469       429,866       429,866      356,083      

Intergovernmental Revenue 25,000         95,000         95,000         25,000         (70,000)        -73.7%

Charges for Goods/Service 764,614       1,155,000   771,502      960,000      (195,000)     -16.9%

Miscellaneous Revenue 11,928         15,000         -                    4,000           (11,000)        -73.3%

Total Revenue 801,542       1,265,000   866,502      989,000      (276,000)     -21.8%

Storm Operations 1,038,145   1,275,710   940,285      1,338,760   63,050         4.9%

Total Expenditures 1,038,145   1,275,710   940,285      1,338,760   63,050         4.9%

Ending Fund Balance 429,866       419,156       356,083      6,323           

Change in Fund Balance (236,603)     (10,710)        (73,783)       (349,760)     

STORM DRAINAGE FUND SUMMARY

FUNDING SOURCES

EXPENDITURES BY DIVISION

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



          

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 113 

STORM DRAINAGE FUND 

 

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Wages 164,230       434,540       255,000      460,840      26,300         6.1%

Benefits 74,608         221,500       103,065      213,560      (7,940)          -3.6%

Supplies/Equip 38,574         39,120         39,120         39,120         -                     0.0%

Service/Charges 213,745       283,680       213,680      314,380      30,700         10.8%

Capital 303,754       8,000            40,550         35,000         27,000         337.5%

Indirect Charges 243,235       288,870       288,870      275,860      (13,010)        -4.5%

Total Expenditures 1,038,145   1,275,710   940,285      1,338,760   63,050         4.9%

2018  

Actual

2019    

Actual

2020 

Budget

2021 

Proposed

Superintendent - Sewer/Storm - 0.50 0.50 0.50

City Engineer - - 0.50 0.50

Field Supervisor - Sewer/Storm 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50

Operator 1.75 2.75 3.75 3.75

Truck Driver 0.70 0.70 0.70 0.70

Maintenance Worker - - 1.00 1.00

Permit Coordinator 0.05 0.05 0.05 0.05

Development Review Technician - - - 0.25

Total Storm Drainage Fund 3.00 4.50 7.00 7.25

EXPENDITURES BY CATEGORY

STAFFING

Total City Budget

Wages

Benefits

Supplies/Equip

Service/Charges Capital

Indirect Charges

Storm Drainage Fund 
4.2%

 

 

 



          

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 114 

STORM DRAINAGE FUND 

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Storm Operations

Salary/Wages 164,230       434,540       255,000      460,840      26,300         6.1%

Personnel Benefits 74,608         221,500       103,065      213,560      (7,940)          -3.6%

Office & Operating Supplies 31,287         25,000         25,000         25,000         -                     0.0%

Small Tools & Equipment 2,588            10,000         10,000         10,000         -                     0.0%

Professional Services 72,968         99,660         79,035         121,400      21,740         21.8%

Communication -                     210               -                    210               -                     0.0%

Insurance 251               260               6,765           260               -                     0.0%

Utilities 1,995            1,960            1,960           1,960           -                     0.0%

Taxes/Assessments 11,423         11,740         9,529           11,740         -                     0.0%

Training and Other Charges 821               13,390         6,075           7,500           (5,890)          -44.0%

Capital 303,754       8,000            40,550         35,000         27,000         337.5%

Rent/Lease 50,959         61,430         55,576         62,850         1,420            2.3%

Repair/Maintenance 75,327         95,030         54,740         108,460      13,430         14.1%

Indirect Charges 243,235       288,870       288,870      275,860      (13,010)        -4.5%

Gas, Oil, & Fuel 4,698            4,120            4,120           4,120           -                     0.0%

Total Expenditures 1,038,145   1,275,710   940,285      1,338,760   63,050         4.9%

EXPENDITURE DETAILS



 

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 115 

PAYROLL BENEFITS FUND 

DEPARTMENT SUMMARY 

The Payroll Benefits Fund accounts for the City’s self-funded unemployment program, medical 

costs for retired police officers covered by the LEOFF 1 retirement plan, and the City’s sick leave 

buy-back program. 

 

BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS 

The Payroll Benefits Fund decreases by $12,500 or 5.7%.  The changes reflect the City 

assumption on resource need for 2021. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



          

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 116 

PAYROLL BENEFITS FUND 

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Beginning Fund Balance 127,103       139,893       139,893      139,893      

Charges for Goods/Service 38,083         40,000         40,000         40,000         -                     0.0%

Miscellaneous Revenue 2,588            1,900            5,600           1,900           -                     0.0%

Transfer In 84,738         164,800       80,000         164,800      -                     0.0%

Total Revenue 125,409       206,700       125,600      206,700      -                     0.0%

Payroll Benefits 112,620       219,200       125,600      206,700      (12,500)        -5.7%

Total Expenditures 112,620       219,200       125,600      206,700      (12,500)        -5.7%

Ending Fund Balance 139,893       127,393       139,893      139,893      

Change in Fund Balance 12,790         (12,500)        -                    -                    

PAYROLL BENEFITS FUND SUMMARY

FUNDING SOURCES

EXPENDITURES BY DIVISION

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



          

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 117 

PAYROLL BENEFITS FUND 

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Benefits 112,620       219,200       125,600      206,700      (12,500)        -5.7%

Total Expenditures 112,620       219,200       125,600      206,700      (12,500)        -5.7%

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Payroll Benefits

Personnel Benefits 112,620       219,200       125,600      206,700      (12,500)        -5.7%

Total Expenditures 112,620       219,200       125,600      206,700      (12,500)        -5.7%

EXPENDITURES BY CATEGORY

EXPENDITURE DETAILS

Tota l  Ci ty Budget

Benefits

Payrol l Benefits Fund  
.7%

 

 



 

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 118 

EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE & RENTAL FUND 

MISSION STATEMENT 

To provide skilled maintenance and repair services for vehicles and equipment for other City 

departments. 

 

DEPARTMENT SUMMARY 

The Equipment Maintenance & Rental Fund is an internal service fund for the City which accounts 

for maintenance of most of the City vehicles and equipment.  The major source of revenue is user 

fees charged to other City departments for work provided to departments vehicles. 

 

BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS 

The Equipment Maintenance and Rental fund is scheduled to purchase nearly $358,000 in new 

equipment in 2021 and includes $90,000 for the PW Maintenance Facility expansion project. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



          

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 119 

EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE & RENTAL FUND 

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Beginning Fund Balance 1,233,509   923,082       923,082      900,116      

Charges for Goods/Service 599,963       724,610       479,000      685,000      (39,610)        -5.5%

Miscellaneous Revenue 18,909         10,000         7,010           7,000           (3,000)          -30.0%

Other Financing Sources -                     2,000            29                 -                    (2,000)          -100.0%

Total Revenue 618,872       736,610       486,039      692,000      (44,610)        -6.1%

Equipment Maint & Rental 929,299       863,720       759,577      929,510      65,790         7.6%

Total Expenditures 929,299       863,720       759,577      929,510      65,790         7.6%

Ending Fund Balance 923,082       678,235       900,116      456,645      

Change in Fund Balance (310,427)     (244,848)     (22,967)       (443,471)     

EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE & RENTAL FUND SUMMARY

FUNDING SOURCES

EXPENDITURES BY DIVISION

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



          

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 120 

EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE & RENTAL FUND 

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Wages 81,965         88,420         87,920         93,960         5,540            6.3%

Benefits 41,592         45,140         46,020         49,310         4,170            9.2%

Supplies/Equip 180,529       243,860       174,016      243,860      -                     0.0%

Service/Charges 28,679         59,070         23,200         64,200         5,130            8.7%

Inventory 2,196            -                     -                    -                    -                     

Capital 551,900       390,000       390,000      427,500      37,500         9.6%

Indirect Charges 42,438         37,230         38,421         50,680         13,450         36.1%

Total Expenditures 929,299       863,720       759,577      929,510      65,790         7.6%

2018  

Actual

2019    

Actual

2020 

Budget

2021 

Proposed

Superintendent - Streets/Water/EM&R - 0.20 0.20 0.20

Master Mechanic 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

Permit Coordinator 0.05 - - -

Total Equipment Maint & Rental 1.05 1.20 1.20 1.20

EXPENDITURES BY CATEGORY

STAFFING

Total City Budget

Wages

Benefits
Supplies/Equip

Service/Charges

Capital

Indirect ChargesEquip Maint & Rental 
Fund 2.9%

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



          

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 121 

EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE & RENTAL FUND 

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Equipment Maint & Rental

Salary/Wages 81,965         88,420         87,920         93,960         5,540            6.3%

Personnel Benefits 41,592         45,140         46,020         49,310         4,170            9.2%

Office & Operating Supplies 50,798         63,860         50,960         63,860         -                     0.0%

Gas, Oil, & Fuel 123,744       172,010       115,066      172,010      -                     0.0%

Small Tools & Equipment 5,987            7,990            7,990           7,990           -                     

Professional Services 938               3,210            120               8,340           5,130            159.8%

Travel -                     470               470               470               -                     0.0%

Insurance 10,662         11,270         -                    11,270         -                     0.0%

Utilities 1,240            -                     -                    -                    -                     

Repair/Maintenance 7,002            23,690         15,890         23,690         -                     0.0%

Training and Other Charges 486               5,720            5,720           5,720           -                     

Inventory 2,196            -                     -                    -                    -                     

Capital 551,900       390,000       390,000      427,500      37,500         9.6%

Rent/Lease 8,351            14,710         1,000           14,710         -                     0.0%

Indirect Charges 42,438         37,230         38,421         50,680         13,450         

Total Expenditures 929,299       863,720       759,577      929,510      65,790         7.6%

EXPENDITURE DETAILS

 



 

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 122 

FIREFIGHTERS PENSION FUND 

DEPARTMENT SUMMARY 

The Firefighters Pension Fund accounts for the City’s obligations toward retired LEOFF 1 

firefighters for their pension and medical expenses. 

 

BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS 

The Firefighters Pension Fund budget for 2021 is the same as the 2020 allocation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



          

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 123 

FIREFIGHTERS PENSION FUND 

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Beginning Fund Balance 531,864       610,461       610,461      610,513      

Taxes 51                  100               500               100               -                     0.0%

Intergovernmental Revenue 9,646            9,650            10,300         9,650           -                     0.0%

Miscellaneous Revenue 8,155            8,000            5,000           8,000           -                     0.0%

Transfer In 146,818       151,220       72,500         121,220      (30,000)        -19.8%

Total Revenue 164,671       168,970       88,300         138,970      (30,000)        -17.8%

Firefighters Pension 86,074         98,570         88,248         98,570         -                     0.0%

Total Expenditures 86,074         98,570         88,248         98,570         -                     0.0%

Ending Fund Balance 610,461       680,861       610,513      650,913      

Change in Fund Balance 78,597         70,400         52                 40,400         

FIREFIGHTER'S PENSION FUND SUMMARY

FUNDING SOURCES

EXPENDITURES BY DIVISION

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



          

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 124 

FIREFIGHTERS PENSION FUND 

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Benefits 86,074         93,570         88,248         93,570         -                     0.0%

Service/Charges -                     5,000            -                    5,000           -                     0.0%

Total Expenditures 86,074         98,570         88,248         98,570         -                     0.0%

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Firefighters Pension

Personnel Benefits 86,074         93,570         88,248         93,570         -                     0.0%

Professional Services -                     5,000            -                    5,000           -                     0.0%

Total Expenditures 86,074         98,570         88,248         98,570         -                     0.0%

EXPENDITURES BY CATEGORY

EXPENDITURE DETAILS

Total City Budget

Benefits

Service/ChargesFirefighter's Pension 
Fund .3%



 

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 125 

LIBRARY ENDOWMENT FUND 

DEPARTMENT SUMMARY 

The Library Endowment Fund is a permanent fund and accounts for an endowment given to the 

City for maintenance of the library facility.  As a permanent fund, the resources are legally 

restricted for the purposes as outlined in the endowment.  Only earnings on principal, but not the 

principal, are eligible to be spent as allowed. 

 

BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS 

There are no planned expenditures from this fund for 2021. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 



 

City of Shelton, WA – 2020 Budget  Page | 126 

LIBRARY ENDOWMENT FUND 

2019  

Actual

2020 

Budget 

2020 

Estimate

2021 

Proposed

$ Change 

21 - 20

% Change 

21 - 20

Beginning Fund Balance 116,687       120,023       120,023      122,323      

Miscellaneous Revenue 3,336            2,700            2,300           2,700           -                     0.0%

Total Revenue 3,336            2,700            2,300           2,700           -                     0.0%

Total Expenditures -                     -                     -                    -                    -                     

Ending Fund Balance 120,023       122,723       122,323      125,023      

Change in Fund Balance 3,336            2,700            2,300           2,700           

LIBRARY ENDOWMENT FUND SUMMARY

FUNDING SOURCES

EXPENDITURES BY DIVISION

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





 
 

1 
 

 
 
 

 

City of Shelton  

525 Cota Street 

Shelton, Washington 98584 

Master Fee Schedule 

RESOLUTION 1192-0321 

Exhibit “A” 

 

 

General Government………………………………………………………………………………………………………. pg. 2 

Animal Shelter……………………………………………………………………………………………… pg. 3 

Civic Center………………………………………………………………………………………………….. pg. 3 

Code Enforcement……………………………………………………………………………………….. pg. 4 

Parks and Recreation…………………………………………………………………………………… pg. 4 

Police Department…………………………………………………………………………………………………………. pg. 4 

Community Development…………………………………………………………………………………………....... pg. 5 

Planning………………………………………………………………………………………………………. pg. 5 

Building……………………………………………………………………..………………………………… pg. 6 

Fire…………….………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… pg. 14 

Public Works………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… pg. 15 

Sanitary Sewer…………………………………………………………………………………………… pg. 16 

Reclaimed Water……………………………………………………………………………….………. pg. 17 

Water……………………………………………………………………………………………….……….. pg. 18 

Misc. and Grade and Fill…………………………………………………………………..………… pg. 19 

 

 

 



 
 

2 
 

 

 

Type of Permit        Fee 

General Government           

Annual Report $10.00 

Documents provided at Public Hearings 
Audio Reproduction (when requested within 
one year of hearing).  *Other than Police 

$0.00 (within one year) 
$10.00 (requested after one year of hearing 

date) 
Video Reproduction * Other than Police $10.00 
Copies  $0.15 per page 

Scanned copies to electronic format $0.10 per page 

Files or attachments for electronic delivery $0.05 per four (4) attachments 

Gigabyte of electronic records for 
transmission 

$0.10 per gigabyte 

Storage media, container, envelope, postage 
and delivery charge 

Actual Cost 

R.C.W. 42.56.120 (2) (b) (c) and (e)  

New and renewal of Business License $50.00 

Sexually Oriented Business License $100.00 

Sexually Oriented Manager or Entertainer $50.00 

Taxi Operator License (per operator) $40.00 

Taxi Vehicle License (per vehicle) $40.00 

Returned Check charge $40.00 

VISA/MC chargeback $35.00 

Special Event Permit $35.00 (An additional $25.00 is due for 
applications received 25 business days or less 

prior to the event).  
City Special Event services (barricades, 
garbage, etc.) 

$25.00 (per event, per service) 

Displays on City message boards $30.00 

 



 
 

3 
 

Map Reproduction Color 36 x 48 $18.00 
Color 24 x 36 $12.00 

Special Order 36 x 48 $30.00 
Special Order 24 x 36 $20.00 

Black Line $1.00 (Per square foot) 
 

Animal Shelter 

Adoption Fee $80.00  

Adoption Fee with Rabies Vaccine $112.50 

Animal License ($5.00 discount for 

spayed/neutered dogs) No fee for service 

dogs. Senior citizen 65 yrs. and older 50% off 

licensing.  

$30.00 

Rabies Vaccination $32.50 

Surrender of Dog - City residents only $40.00 

Animal Impound (City residents) First impoundment $50.00 
Second impoundment $75.00 

Third and subsequent impoundment $150.00 
All impound fees shall also be charged unpaid 

animal license fees.  
Boarding fee (over 48 hours) $15.00 per/day ($30.00 per/day after 48 

hours) 

Lost license or (transfer of license) $5.00($10.00) 

Non-resident animal impound fee First impoundment $150.00 
Second impoundment $200.00 

Third and subsequent impoundment $250.00 
 

Civic Center Rental  

Damage Deposit $300.00 

Kitchen $50.00 

Black drapery $2.00 (per 10 foot section) 



 
 

4 
 

Staging $10.00 (use of 1 – 4 sections) 

Equipment Rental TV Monitor $10.00 
Multimedia Projector $20.00 

Coffee Service $25.00 (per gallon) 

Meeting rooms $22.00 per hour for each 600 sq. ft. 

Main meeting room $75.00 per hour 

 

Code Enforcement 

Infraction Issued 
Fees including site visit(s), photos, file 
creation, documentation, etc.  Plus itemized 
fees to include attorney costs, additional 
tracked staff time and costs, title searches, 
service, court filing fees, which may be 
included in the city request for abatement 
cost reimbursement per R.C.W. 35.21.955 

$68.00 minimum 

 

Parks and Recreation 

Parks Master Plan $20.00 

Ballfields and Playfields (Callahan Park/Loop 
Field. 

Field Rental $12.00 per hour 
Softball Field preparation $20.00 each field 

City recreation programs Actual cost of program 

Refunds Before first class: %100 
Before second class: %80 

Before third class: %50 
After third class: No refunds 

Picnic Shelters $12.50 per hour.  Two hour minimum, plus 
applicable fees for garbage, labor, misc. 

Commercial Park (Use by individual, 
company, corporation, business or similar for 
the purposes of selling, distributing, or 
promotion.  

$25.00 

 

Police Department  



 
 

5 
 

Fingerprints $60.00 

Video Reproduction Time and material 

Audio Reproduction Time and material 

Weapons Permit  $49.25 

Weapons Permit renewal  $32.00 

Weapons Permit renewal – late application $42.00 

Weapons Permit – replacement $10.00 

Weapons Dealer Permit $125.00 

Excess Alarm fee $25.00 after three (3) false alarms 

 

Community Development – Planning 

Address Assignment $100.00 

Annexation  $1,200.00 plus $40.00 per acre or fraction 
thereof.   

Appeal to the Hearing Examiner Individual - $1,000.00 
H.O.A. - $500.00 

Boundary Line Adjustment $315.00 

Comprehensive Plan Amendment $2,600.00 

Comprehensive Plan document $35.00 

Conditional Use Permit $2,700.00 

SEPA $300.00 

EIS $1,400.00 plus consultant costs 

Fence $75.00 residential 
$180.00 commercial 

Forest Practices Application $350.00 

Plat/Binding Site Plan Preliminary:  $3,300.00 plus $40.00 per lot 
Extension: $200.00 

Final:  $500.00  
Administrative Amendments:  $200.00 

Public Hearing Amendments:  $1,500.00  



 
 

6 
 

Planned Unit Development Preliminary:  $3,000.00 plus $25.00 per lot 
Extension:  $200.00 

Final:  $500.00 plus $30.00 per lot 
Administrative Amendments:  $200.00 

Public Hearing Amendments:  $1,500.00   
Parcel combination $320.00  

Pre-submittal conference $150.00 

RV/Tent Occupancy Application $45.00 

Short Plat $920.00 

Site Plan Review $1,200.00 

Site Plan amendment $110.00 

Variance Permit $2,700.00 

Zone Change  $2,400.00 

Zoning Letter $45.00 

Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment $435.00 

Signs $50.00 when no building permit required 
$55.00 per square foot valuation with 

building permit 
 

Shoreline Specific applications  

Shoreline Management Program document $35.00 

Shoreline Statement of Exemption $170.00 
Substantial Development Permit $560.00 

Public Hearing Required: $2,300.00 
Shoreline Conditional Use Permit $2,300.00 

Shoreline Variance $2,300.00 

 

Community Development – Building 

After Hours Inspections (Regular business 
hours 8am to 5pm Monday through Friday). 

$70.00 per hour (two hour minimum) 

Re-inspection fee $70.00 per hour (one hour minimum) 



 
 

7 
 

Inspections for which no fee is specifically 
indicated. 

$70.00 per hour (one half hour minimum) 

Additional plan review required for plan 
changes. 

$70.00 per hour (one half hour minimum) 

Note:  For the building fees above, or the 
total; hourly cost to the jurisdiction, 
whichever is the greatest. This cost shall 
include supervision, overhead, equipment, 
hourly wages and fringe benefits of the 
employees involved. 
Actual costs include administrative and 
overhead costs. 

 

Building Valuation 

*NOTE: all footnotes of Building Valuation 
Data as published by ICC shall apply 

1) New construction, and remodels greater 
than 50%: of "R" occupancies   The City of 
Shelton will utilize the International Code 
Council’s “Building Valuation Data Table” on 
a two year lag as published in the August 
edition of the Building Safety Journal.  The 
square footage valuations from this table will 
be implemented on the first day of 
September following publication and remain 
in force through August of the following year. 
2) Private garages, storage buildings, green 
houses and similar structures shall be valued 
as Utility, Miscellaneous  
3) Remodels less than 50% shall be valued at 
50% of the table value from the ICC Building 
Valuation Data for occupancy specified. 

Bulkheads $20.00 per cubic foot 

Building Permit 

NOTE:  Washington State surcharge applies:  

$25.00 Commercial, $6.50 Residential. 

 

Valuation: 
$1.00 to $500.00: $25.00 

$501.00 to $2,000.00:  $25.00 and $3.00 per 
each additional $100 or fraction thereof and 

including $2,000 
$2,001.00 to $25,000.00:  $70.00 and $14.00 

for each additional $1,000 or fraction 
thereof to and including $25,000 

$25,000.00 to $50,000.00:  $390.00 and 
$10.00 for each additional $1,000 or fraction 

thereof to and including $50,000 



 
 

8 
 

$50,001.00 to $100,000.00:  $640.00 and 
$7.00 for each additional $1,000 or fraction 

thereof to and including $100,000 
$100,001.00 to $500,000.00:  $1,000.00 and 
$6.00 for each additional $1,000 or fraction 

thereof to and including $500,000 
500,001.00 to $1,000,000.00:  $3,400.00 and 
$5.00 for each additional $1,000 or fraction 

thereof to and including $1,000,000 
$1,000,000 and up: $5,700 and $7.00 for 

each additional $1,000 or fraction thereof to 
and including $1,000,000  

 
       

Maximum Building Permit fee $50,000.00 

Early Foundation Permit/Early start 
agreement (Early foundation permit for 
commercial/industrial building will be 
deducted from permit fee upon full 
submittal. 

25% of building permit fee 

Demolition permit $120.00 plus State surcharge 

Reroof – residential only     $115.00 

Reroof –commercial 

 per square valuation is used to determine 

valuation 

$275.00 per square   - 

Class A&B (hotmop/torchdown) 

$250.00 per square  - 

Composition( roll/3 tab) 

$325.00 per square  - 

Composition with plywood replacement 

$300.00 per square  -  Metal 

$275.00 per square  -  Shake 

$300.00 per square    -   Shingle 

Windows $25.00 first window, $7.00 for each 

additional window 



 
 

9 
 

Reissuance of lost permit card $30.00 

Reissuance of plan package $140.00 

Stock Plans 50% of the ICC fee 

Solid Fuel/Gas insert $140.00 

Hearing Examiner appeal $2,400.00 

Request for Reconsideration $500.00 

Investigation fee $70.00 per hour 

Mechanical Permit Each mechanical permit:  $25.00 
 
FURNACE: 
For issuing each supplemental permit for 
which the original permit for the original 
permit has not expired, been canceled, or 
final:  $8.00 
 
For the installation or relocation of each 
forced-air or gravity-type furnace or burner, 
including ducts and vents attached to such 
appliance, up to and including 100,000 Btu/h 
(29.3kW):  $16.00 
 
For the installation or relocation of each 
forced-air or gravity-type furnace or burner, 
including ducts and vents attached to such 
appliance, over 100,000 Btu/h (29.3 kW):  
$20.00 
 
For the installation or relocation of each floor 
furnace, including vent:  $16.00 
 
For the installation or relocation of each 
suspended heater, recessed wall heater on 
floor-mounted unit heater:  $16.00 
 
Appliance Vents: 
For the installation, relocation or 
replacement of each appliance vent and not 



 
 

10 
 

included in an appliance permit:  $8.00 
 
Repairs or Additions: 
For the repair of, or addition to each heating 
appliance, refrigeration unit, cooling unit, 
absorption unit, or each heating, cooling, 
absorption or evaporative cooling system, 
including installation of controls regulated by 
the Mechanical Code:  $15.00 
 
 
Boilers, Compressors, and Absorption 
Systems: 
 
For the installation or relocation of each 
boiler or compressor to and including 3 
horsepower (10.6 kW), or each absorption 
system to and including 100,000 Btu/h (29.3 
kW):  $15.00 
 
For the installation or relocation of each 
boiler or compressor over three horsepower 
(10.6 kW) to and including 15 horsepower 
(52.7 kW), or each absorption system over 
100,000 Btu/h (29.3 kW) to and including 
500,000 Btu/h (146.6 kW):  $30.00 
 
For the installation or relocation of each 
boiler or compressor over 15 horsepower 
(52.7 kW) to and including 30 horsepower 
(105.5 kW), or each absorption system over 
500,000 Btu/h (146.6 kW) to and including 
1,000,000 Btu/h (293.1 kW):  $40.00 
 
For the installation or relocation of each 
boiler or compressor over 30 horsepower 
(105.5 kW) to and including 50 horsepower 
(176 kW), or each absorption system over 
1,000,000 Btu/h (293.1 kW) to and including 
1,750,000 Btu/h (512.9 kW):  $60.00 



 
 

11 
 

 
For the installation or relocation of each 
boiler or compressor over 50 horsepower 
(176 kW), or each absorption system over 
1,750,000 Btu/h (512.9 kW):  $100.00 
 
Air Handlers: 
For each air-handling unit to and including 
10,000 cubic feet per minute (cfm) (4719 
L/s), including ducts attached thereto:  
$12.00 
 
Note: This fee does not apply to an air-
handling unit, which is a portion of a factory- 
assembled appliance, cooling unit, 
evaporative cooler or absorption unit for 
which a permit is required elsewhere in the 
Mechanical Code for each air-handling unit 
over 10,000 cfm (4719 L/s):  $20.00 
 
Evaporative Coolers: 
For each evaporative cooler other than 
portable type:  $12.00 
 
Ventilation and Exhaust: 
For each ventilation fan connected to a single 
duct:  $8.00 
 
For each ventilation system which is not 
portion of any heating or air-conditioning 
system authorized by a permit:  $12.00 
 
For the installation of each hood which is 
served by mechanical exhaust, including the 
ducts for such hood:  $12.00 
 
Incinerators:   
For the installation or relocation of each 
domestic-type incinerator:  $20.00 
 



 
 

12 
 

For the installation or relocation of each 
commercial or industrial-type incinerator:  
$16.00 
 
Miscellaneous: 
For each appliance or piece of equipment 
regulated by the Mechanical Code but not 
classed in other appliance categories, or for 
which no other fee is listed in the table:  
$12.00 

Mobile/Manufactured Home set-up Individual Lot:  $472.00 
Park Set:  $165.00 

NOTE:  Includes 4x4 landing 
Mobile Home Title Eliminations $30.00 

Plan Review (All types other than 
Mechanical) 
*NOTE: Commercial kitchen based on project 
valuation of engineer's written estimate. 

65% of Permit fee 
Mechanical only:  25% of Permit fee 

Plumbing Permit Each permit:  $25.00 
 
NOTE: Unit Fee Schedule in addition to above 

 
For each plumbing fixture on one trap or a 
set of fixtures on one trap (including water, 
drainage piping, and backflow protection 
therefore):  $8.00 
 
For each building sewer and each trailer park 
sewer:  $16.00 
 
Rainwater systems per drain (inside building):  
$8.00 
 
For each cesspool where permitted:  $27.00 
 
For each private sewage disposal system:  
$45.00 
 
For each water heater and/or vent:  $8.00 
 



 
 

13 
 

For each industrial waste pretreatment 
interceptor including its trap and vent, except 
kitchen-type grease interceptors functioning 
as fixture traps:  $8.00 
 
For each installation, alteration or repair of 
water piping and/or water treating 
equipment, each:  $8.00 
 
For each repair or alteration of drainage or 
vent piping, each fixture:  $8.00 
 
For each lawn sprinkler system on any one 
meter including backflow protection devices 
therefore:  $8.00 
 
For each backflow protective device other 
than atmospheric type vacuum breakers: 

• 2 inch (51 mm) diameter and smaller:  
$8.00 

• over 2 inch (51 mm) diameter:  
$16.00 

Atmospheric-type vacuum breakers: 
• 1 to 5:  $5.00 
• over 5, each:  $2.00 

Propane Tanks and Piping (above and below 
ground) 

$12.00 per tank 

Refund: 
2015-IBC Section 109.6 / 2015-IRC Section 
R108.5 

The building official may authorize refunding 
on not more than fifty percent (50%) of the 
permit fee paid when no work has been done 
under a permit issued in accordance with this 
code.  The building official may authorize   
refunding of not more than seventy-five 
percent (75%) of the plan review fee paid 
when an applicant for a permit for which a 
plan review fee has not been paid is 
withdrawn or canceled before any plan 
reviewing is done. The building official shall 
not authorize refunding of any fee paid 
except on written application filed by the 



 
 

14 
 

original permittee no later than 180 days 
after the date of fee paid. 

 

Fire – Development Review 

Commercial Site Plans $390.00 
Subdivision or Planned Residential Development $328.00 
Pre-Application Conference $95.00 
Other Land Use Application $264.00 

 

Fire – Alarm Fees 

Fire Alarm System - Minor Alteration $100.00 
Fire Alarm Zoned System - One Zone $296.00 
Each Additional Zone $136.00 
Fire Alarm Addressable System - 1 to 20 Devices $296.00 
Each Additional Device $4.00 

 

Fire - Suppression 

Commercial Cooking Extinguishing System/Protection $252.00 
Fire Pumps and Private or Dedicated Fire Hydrant Systems $372.00 
Fire Hydrant - Witnessed Flow Test (1-4) Hydrants $100.00 
Fire Hydrant - Each Additional Hydrant $40.00 
Fire Sprinkler - Alteration to Existing System(s) (>4 heads) $200.00 
Fire Sprinkler - New System - NFPA 13 (2 inspections) $472.00 
NFPA 13 - Each Additional Riser $472.00 
Fire Sprinkler - New System - NFPA 13D (Single Family) $200.00 
Fire Sprinkler - New System - NFPA 13R (Per Building) $390.00 
Other Extinguishing Systems $372.00 
Standpipe System $200.00 
Underground Fire Sprinkler Mains (2 inspections) $252.00 

 

Fire - Other 

Fireworks Display $208.00 
Investigation Fee (work started without a permit) Double Permit Fee 
Other Plan Reviews or Permits Required by the IFC and/or Municipal 
Code $100.00 Per Hour Review + $100.00 per Hour Inspection 

 
Calculated 



 
 

15 
 

Re-inspection Fees $100.00 
Revision to Plan Previously Submitted - $100.00 per Hour Calculated 
Use of Consultant for Plan Review and Inspection Actual Cost 
Tents/Temporary Membrane (greater than 400 SF) $100.00 

 

Public Works 

Right-of-Way and Obstruction Permits 
(SMC Chapter 12.20) 

Class 1: Short term maintenance permit:  $45.00 
Class 2: Temporary Construction of permit:  $65.00, 
              plus inspection fees 
Class 3: Fixture and Encroachment Permit:  $65.00, 
               Sidewalk café, add $280.00/hr review fee. 
               Class 3 Permit $15.00 annual renewal fee 
Class 4: Heavy Right-of-Way Use Permits: Fee 
               calculated per SMC Sections 12.20.030.4 & 
               12.20.040.D 

Fine for Work in Right of Way without 
Permits 

$250.00 plus standard permit fee 

Special Development Studies:  Traffic Impact 
Reports, Hydrology studies, and similar. 

Contract Consultant fees 

Traffic Impact Fee $3,735.71 for SFR/varies based on use.  ORD. 1907-
1017 Exhibit B 

  
  
Public Improvement Plan Review Fee 3% of Estimated Cost of Public Improvements 
Public Improvement Inspection Fee 3% of Estimated Cost of Public Improvements 
Latecomer Agreement  $280.00 
Right-of-Way vacation $500.00 
Utility Connection Application Permit Fee 

a. Water & Reclaimed Water Connections 
b. Sewer & Storm Drainage Connections 

 
$170.00 plus applicable GFC 

$65.00 plus applicable GFC 
  
Class A Bio-Solids Fertilizer fee $20.00 per 1.66 cy bag 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

16 
 

Sewer GFC 

Water Meter Size   Weighting Factor    Fee 

3/4" 1.00 $3,258.00 

1” 2.50 $8,145.00 

1.5” 5.00 $16,290.00 

2” 8.00 $26,064.00 

3” 16.00 $48,870.00 

4” 25.00 $81,495.00 

6” 50.00 $162,900.00 

8” 80.00 $260,640.00 

• Developments pursuant to SMC 18.02.110 shall be charged twenty-five percent (25%) of 

the equivalent charge above. 

Sewer GFC (Grandview Heights only) 

Water Meter Size   Weighting Factor    Fee 

3/4“ 1.00 $1,629.00 

1“ 2.50 $4,072.00 

1.5” 5.00 $8,145.00 

2” 8.00 $13,032.00 

3” 16.00 $24,435.00 

4” 25.00 $40,725.00 

6” 50.00 $81,495.00 

8” 80.00 $130,320.00 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

17 
 

 

Reclaimed Water 

Water Meter Charge         Fee 

3/4" Meter $238.16 

1” $354.91 

1.5” $760.43 

2” $1,029.38 

3” $2,018.65 

4” $3,170.16 

6” $4,298.21 

Above 6” $6,095.57 

 

Reclaimed Water GFC 

Water Meter Size   Weighting Factor    Fee 

3/4”  1.00 $326.00 

1” 2.50 $815.00 

1.5” 5.00 $1,629.00 

2” 8.00 $2,606.00 

3” 16.00 $4,887.00 

4” 25.00 $8,150.00 

6” 50.00 $16,290.00 

8” 80.00 $26,064.00 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

18 
 

Water Fees 

Water Turn off for other than non-payment 
(regular business hours) 

$0.00 

Water Turn off for non-payment $100.00 

Water Turn off (after business hours) $100.00 

Water Turn on (regular business hours) $0.00 

Water Turn on (after business hours) $100.00 

Annual Hydrant Water Use Permit 
Application Fee (from issuance date) 

$70.00 

Hydrant Meter, Gate Valve, and Wrench 
Deposit and Rental Fee 

$750.00 refundable deposit 
$75 per month rental fee 

Hydrant Water  Billing and Water Use Charge 

and PWM Hydrant Load/Use Charge 

$45.00 quarterly billing charge, plus 
commercial water consumption charge per 

SMC 15.28.050 
  

  

Fine for connection to hydrant without 
permit 

$1,000.00 

Fine for connection to hydrant without meter $500.00 

Fine for unauthorized 
connection/disconnection of water service 

$500.00 

  

 

Water Meter Charge 

3/4" meter $238.16 

1” meter $354.91 

1.5” meter $760.43 

2” meter $1,029.38 

3” meter $2,018.65 

4” meter $3,170.16 



 
 

19 
 

6” meter $4,298.21 

Above 6” meter $6,095.57 

 

Water Meter GFC 

Water Meter Size   Weighting Factor    Fee 

3/4” 1.00 $1,260.00 

1” 2.50 $3,150.00 

1.5” 5.00 $6,300.00 

2” 8.00 $10,080.00 

3” 16.00 $18,900.00 

4” 25.00 $31,500.00 

6” 50.00 $63,000.00 

8” 80.00 $100,800.00 

• Developments pursuant to SMC 18.02.110 shall be charged twenty-five percent (25%) of 
the equivalent charge above. 

 

Misc. 

Commercial Fire Line No Charge 

Backflow Testing No Charge 

 

 

Private Development ESC & Stormwater: 

ESC & Storm plan review, single family $75.00 

ESC & Storm plan review all other sites $320.00  

Final grading, ESC, & Stormwater inspections $80.00 

 



 

Page 1 of 5 
 

City of Shelton Fund Balance Reserves 
 
Policy: 

The objective of this policy is to provide general guidance for the establishment and 
continued maintenance of Fund Balance Reserves.  This policy establishes the 
amounts the City will strive to maintain in Fund Reserves, how the Reserves will be 
funded, and the conditions under which Reserves may be used.    

The City classifies available fund balances for specific purposes in accordance with 
Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement #54 as follows:  

• Non-spendable – Resources that cannot be spent because of form (e.g. 
inventory, prepaid amounts) or because they must be maintained intact. 
 

• Restricted – Resources with limitations imposed by creditors, grantors, 
laws, regulations, or enabling legislation. 
 

• Committed – Resources that can only be used for specific purposes 
pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the highest level of 
decision-making authority – the City Council.  These amounts cannot be used 
for any other purpose unless the City Council removes or changes the 
specified use by taking the same action it employed to previously commit the 
amounts. 
 

• Assigned – Resources that are intended to be used for specific purposes, 
but is neither restricted nor committed. 
 

• Unassigned – Resources that are not non-spendable, restricted, committed 
or assigned to specific purposes. 

Fund balance is an important indicator of a city’s financial position and maintaining 
reserves is a prudent management practice.  Adequate fund balances are 
maintained to allow the city to continue providing services to the community in case 
of unexpected emergencies, unfunded mandates, and/or economic downturns.  
They may also be used to meet seasonal cash flow shortfalls as needed.   

As such, the City has determined targeted fund balances for specific funds as 
outlined in the table below:  

 
   



 

Page 2 of 5 
 

Fund Fund Balance Policy   

General Fund Sixteen Percent (16%) of Current-Year Budgeted 
Expenses    

Street Fund - Unrestricted Sixteen Percent (16%) of Current-Year Budgeted 
Expenses    

Firefighters Pension Fund Twice the IBNR (Incurred But Not Reported) Estimate 
per the annual Actuarial Study plus $100,000    

Capital Resources Fund $150,000    

Water Operating Fund Twenty Percent (20%) of Current-Year Budgeted 
Operating Expenses    

Sewer Operating Fund Twenty Percent (20%) of Current-Year Budgeted 
Operating Expenses    

Storm Drainage Operating Fund Twenty Percent (20%) of Current-Year Budgeted 
Operating Expenses    

 
The City’s Finance Department is charged with ensuring compliance with all fund 
balance policy requirements. 
 

General Fund: 

In an effort to ensure the continuance of sound financial management of public 
resources, the City of Shelton’s Unassigned General Fund Balance will be 
maintained to provide the city with sufficient working capital and a comfortable 
margin of safety to address emergent needs, sudden loss of revenue, and 
unexpected downturns without borrowing. 
 
This policy establishes the amounts the city will strive to maintain in its General 
Fund balance, the conditions under which fund balance may be spent, and the 
method by which fund balances will be restored.  These amounts are expressed as 
goals, recognizing that fund balance levels can fluctuate from year to year in the 
normal course of operations for any local government. 

The city will strive to maintain a General Fund “Operating Reserve” with an upper 
goal of sixteen percent (16%) of the adopted current-year budgeted General Fund 
expenditures, less any one-time items.  It is the intent of the city to limit the use of 



 

Page 3 of 5 
 

Unassigned General Fund balances to addressing unanticipated, non-recurring 
needs or known and planned future obligations.   

The Operating Reserve is intended to be a reserve for unexpected events such as 
unfunded mandates, the failure to receive expected revenues, the continuance of 
critical city services due to unanticipated events, or to offset the unexpected loss of 
a significant funding source for the remainder of the fiscal year.  Any use of 
Operating Reserve funds that reduce the fund balance below the minimum desired 
level must include a repayment plan to restore the Operating Reserve to the 
minimum desired level. 

Fund balances shall not normally be applied to recurring annual operating 
expenditures.  Unassigned balances may, however, be used to allow time for the 
city to restructure its operations in a deliberate manner, but such use will only take 
place in the context of long-term financial planning. 

Funds in excess of the reserves described above will be Unassigned General Fund 
Balance, unless otherwise assigned in accordance with GASB Statement #54, and 
may be considered to supplement “pay as you go” capital outlay and other one-
time expenditures.  These funds may not be used to establish or support costs that 
are recurring in nature.  

The Finance Director is authorized to classify available fund balance for specific 
purposes in accordance with Government Accounting Standards Board Statement 
#54.  It is the policy of the city that expenditures for which more than one category 
of fund balance may be used, the order of use will be:  Restricted Fund Balance, 
Committed Fund Balance, Assigned Fund Balance, and Unassigned Fund Balance. 

 
Other Funds: 

In a manner similar to the General Fund, the City desires to maintain a prudent 
level of financial resources in its other funds, including Enterprise Funds and Special 
Revenue Funds to guard its stakeholders against service disruptions in the event of 
unexpected temporary revenue shortfalls or unpredicted one-time expenses.   Fund 
reserves are accumulated and maintained to provide stability and flexibility to 
respond to unexpected adversity and/or opportunities. 

It is the intent of the City to limit use of these fund reserves to address 
unanticipated, non-recurring needs.  Reserves shall not normally be applied to 
recurring annual operating expenses.  Reserves may, however, be used to allow 
time for the City to restructure its operations in a deliberate manner (as might be 
required in an economic downturn), but such use will only take place in the context 
of long-term financial planning. 



 

Page 4 of 5 
 

 
Unless otherwise noted, all City funds must be managed to maintain at least a 
positive fund balance. 

Pooled Cash Method: 

In order to provide liquidity adequate to meet the needs and demands of providing 
government services, including unanticipated reductions in revenues or unplanned 
increases in expenses, Reserve levels will be maintained and managed through the 
Pooled Cash method in such a way as to minimize short-term borrowing.  This 
reduces overall cost to taxpayers by minimizing interest expense.  The reserves are 
intended to support this effort and counterbalance cycles that are experienced in 
fee and other revenue collections. 
 

Funding the Reserves: 

Funding of reserve targets will generally come from excess revenues over expenses 
or one-time revenues. 

 
Excess of Reserves: 

Reserves for specific funds are restricted for the activities of that fund under GASB 
principles, with the exception of the General Fund, which can be used for any good 
government purpose.  In the event fund reserves exceed the minimum balance 
requirements at the end of each fiscal year, any excess reserves may be used in 
the following ways: 

1. Priority will be given to those items that relieve budget or financial operating 
pressure in future periods; 
 

2. Appropriated to lower the amount of bonds or contributions needed to fund 
capital projects in the City’s CIP (Capital Improvement Program); 
 

3. One-time expenses that do not increase recurring operating costs that cannot 
be funded through current revenues.  Emphasis will be placed on one-time 
uses that reduce future operating costs; or 
 

4. Start-up expenses for new programs, provided that such action is approved 
by the City Council and is considered in the context of multi-year projections 
of revenue and expenses as prepared by the City’s Finance Department. 

 
Periodic Review: 



 

Page 5 of 5 
 

This fund balance policy must be adopted by the City Council. The policy will be 
reviewed periodically by the Finance Department and modifications must be 
submitted to and approved by the Council. 



Debt Management 

 
Policy: 
The objective of this policy is to provide general guidance for the issuance and 
management of all City debt. The City issues debt in accordance with the Revised 
Code of Washington (RCW), in particular chapters 39.36, 39.46, and 39.53, along 
with all other City, State, and federal laws, rules, and regulations.  Further, this 
policy establishes criteria to protect the City’s financial integrity while providing a 
mechanism to fund the City’s capital needs. The City will only utilize debt financing 
to fund capital improvement projects that cannot be reasonably funded on a pay-as-
you-go basis.  
 
The City’s Finance Department is charged with ensuring compliance with all debt 
management policy requirements. 
 
Debt Issuance: 
State law (RCW 39.36.020) allows for the issuance of general obligation (GO) debt, 
through a public vote, of up to 7.5% of the City’s assessed property valuation. The 
limit of 7.5% of assessed valuation for GO debt is divided between three different 
use types: 1) 2.5% for municipally owned water, sewer, or electric facilities; 2) 2.5% 
for open space and parks; and 3) 2.5% for general government purposes.  Within 
the 2.5% limit for general government purposes, State law allows the Council to 
issue debt without a vote of the people. This non-voted debt (also called 
councilmanic debt) cannot be greater than 1.5% of the assessed property valuation 
of the jurisdiction.   
 
All City projects proposed to be financed through debt must have a full analysis of a) 
alternative methods of financing the project, b) future operating and maintenance 
costs, including debt service expense, associated with the project, c) projected cash 
inflows which can reasonably be applied to reduce the amount being financed, and 
d) projected cash outflows for construction/equipment in order to ensure arbitrage 
compliance.  
 
The City will, unless otherwise justified, use tax-exempt bond proceeds within the 
established time frame pursuant to the bond ordinance, contract, or other document 
to avoid arbitrage. The City will maintain a system of recordkeeping and reporting to 
meet the arbitrage rebate compliance requirement of the IRS (Internal Revenue 
Service, IRC 148) regulation. For each bond issue not expended within the 
established time frame, the recordkeeping will include tracking investment earnings 
on bond proceeds, calculating rebate payments, and remitting any rebate earnings 
to the federal government in a timely manner in order to preserve the tax-exempt 
status of the outstanding debt obligation.  
 



The City will repay principal plus interest in accordance with the payment terms of 
the bond or contract. Furthermore, the City will comply with all bond or contract 
covenants. This includes, but is not limited to, any undertakings to provide ongoing 
disclosure and notice of certain listed events under SEC (Securities and Exchange 
Commission) Rule 15C2-12. Annual disclosure will take the form of the City’s Annual 
Financial Report as well as other information required by the bond or contract that is 
not reasonably contained in the annual report. The City will comply with all post-
issuance compliance policies and procedures related to Federal tax law and policies 
and procedures relating to initial and ongoing disclosure. 
 
Prior to any general obligation bond proposition being placed before the voters, the 
capital project under consideration must, unless otherwise justified and have found 
to be in the best interest of the City, have been included in the City’s Capital 
Improvement Plan. The source of funds for the project should reflect the intended 
use of bond financing. 
 
Debt cannot be issued for a longer maturity than a conservatively estimated useful 
life of the asset to be financed.  
 
The City will maintain good communications with bond rating agencies and investors 
about its fiscal condition. The City will provide full disclosure on financial reports and 
in disclosure documents. 
 
Short-term debt: 
The City may use short-term debt, defined as a period not to exceed three years, to 
fund cash flow needs, which may be caused by a delay in receipting tax revenues or 
issuing long-term debt. The City will not issue short-term debt for current operations. 
 
The City may issue interfund loans rather than issuing outside debt to meet short-
term cash flow needs. The issuance of an interfund loan will be permissible only 
after an analysis of the loaning fund(s) indicate(s) that excess funds are available 
and the use of these funds will not impact the loaning fund(s) current operations or 
constitute a permanent diversion of funds. All interfund borrowing will bear interest 
based upon at least the prevailing LGIP (Local Government Investment Pool) rate. 
Interfund debt issuance must comply with SMC X.XX.XXX. 
 
As allowed in SMC X.XX.XXX, the City’s Finance Director has the authority to 
approve short-term interfund loans for a period not to exceed three calendar months. 
The City Manager has the authority to approve loans for a period not to exceed 12 
calendar months. The Finance Director shall notify the City Council of any use of 
directorial or managerial approved loans at the first reasonable opportunity. 
 
Long-term debt: 
The City will issue long-term debt, defined as a period of time greater than three 
years, for capital projects, which cannot reasonably be financed on a pay-as-you-go 



funding strategy from anticipated cash flows. Acceptable uses of bond proceeds are 
one-time capital projects that can be capitalized and depreciated in accordance with 
the City’s accounting principles and/or bond covenants. Refunding debt is also an 
acceptable use. See refunding debt section below. 
 
The City may issue interfund loans rather than issuing outside debt instruments as a 
means of financing capital improvements. The issuance of an interfund loan will be 
permissible only after an analysis of the loaning fund(s) indicate that excess funds 
are available and the use of these funds will not impact the loaning fund(s) current 
operations or constitute a permanent diversion of funds. All interfund borrowing will 
bear interest based upon at least the prevailing LGIP (Local Government Investment 
Pool) rate. Interfund debt issuance must comply with SMC X.XX.XXX. 
 
The decision to use an interfund loan rather than outside debt to fund capital 
projects will be based on which is deemed to be the most cost effective approach to 
meet City capital needs. The City’s Finance Department is responsible for making 
such an assessment. 
 
The City will not issue long-term debt for current operational needs. 
 
The following is a description of the types of long-term debt the City may issue.  
 

Limited Tax General Obligation Bonds (LTGO): LTGO debt is backed by the 
full faith and credit of the City. These bonds can be issued without a vote of 
registered voters but are limited in that debt service payments must be paid 
from existing city revenue sources. Furthermore, LTGO’s are also limited in 
the amount and percentage of assessed valuation as defined by the City’s 
debt capacity in accordance with state law. 

 
Unlimited Tax General Obligation Bonds (UTGO): UTGO debt is backed by 
the full faith and credit of the City. These bonds can only be issued when 
authorized by a 60% majority vote of registered voters (meeting the minimum 
voter turnout requirement). The purpose of the vote is to approve an excess 
tax levy (as a completely new source of revenue) to pay the debt service. 

 
Lease Obligation: Lease debt can be in the form of a lease-purchase 
arrangement or a certificate of participation. With this type of contractual 
obligation, a third party, typically the lessor, issues certificates or bonds where 
the principal and interest payments to investors are guaranteed by the lease 
payments made by the City. Depending on the security for the lease 
payments, lease debt may be repaid from existing City revenue sources, 
voter-approved property tax, or revenues of an enterprise. 

 
Revenue Bonds: Revenue bonds are used to finance construction or 
improvements to facilities of enterprise systems operated by the City in 



accordance with the Capital Improvement Program and are generally payable 
from the enterprise. No taxing power or general fund pledge is provided as 
security. Unlike general obligation bonds, revenue bonds are not subject to 
the City’s statutory debt limitation nor is voter approval required. 

 
Special Assessment Bond: Also referred to as Local Improvement District 
(LID) bonds, this type of debt is used to finance capital improvements that 
benefit property owners within the LID. LID debt is repaid from annual 
assessments paid to the City. LIDs are formed by the Council following the 
process outlined in State statutes. The cost is borne only by those who will 
benefit most from the improvement. LID debt is not part of the debt capacity 
calculation. 

 
Other Debt Instruments: Instruments such as Public Works Trust Fund loans 
or other financing contracts issued through the State of Washington, bond 
anticipation notes (BAN’s), tax anticipation notes (TAN’s), bank qualified 
loans, and/or other legal debt issues may be incurred as allowed by law. 

 
Additionally, the City may issue interfund loans rather than outside debt instruments 
to fund capital projects or meet short-term cash flow needs. 
 
Professional Services: 
The City’s Finance Department will be responsible for the solicitation and selection 
of professional services as necessary to administer debt financing. Professional 
service providers necessary to issue debt may include, but are not limited to: bond 
counsel, financial advisor, underwriters, and fiscal agent.  
 
Refunding Debt: 
Debt refunding is typically done to take advantage of lower interest rates. Refunding 
bonds are an acceptable use of bond proceeds provided that, and unless otherwise 
justified and found to be in the best interest of the City, a) the net present value 
(NPV) of the savings is at least 3% and b) the final maturity date is not extended. 
 
Debt Issuance Process: 
The Finance Director will determine the method of sale best suited for each issue of 
debt (competitive sale, negotiated sale, or private placement). 
 
The Finance Director and bond counsel will coordinate their activities and review all 
debt issuance to ensure that all securities are issued in compliance with state and 
federal legal and regulatory requirements by the State and the Federal 
Government’s laws, rules and regulations. 
 
For each issue, the City will evaluate the costs and benefits of bond insurance or 
other credit enhancements. Any credit enhancement purchases by the City must be 
competitively procured. 



 
The Finance Director may institute procedures to implement this policy and other 
bond covenants and provisions related to State and federal law applicable to the 
City’s debt.  
 
Council approval is required prior to the issuance of debt, except where Council 
authority has been delegated in SMC X.XX.XXX. 
 
Periodic Review: 
This debt policy must be adopted by Council. The policy will be reviewed periodically 
by the Finance Department and modifications must be submitted to and approved by 
the Council. 



Fi
le

na
m

e.
pp

t/
1

Water System Comprehensive 
Plan Update
Ci ty  o f  She l ton

A u g u s t  3 ,  2 0 2 1



Fi
le

na
m

e.
pp

t/
2

// Agenda

• Background Information
• Chapter 1 – Introduction
• Chapter 2 – Water Requirements
• Chapter 3 – Description of the Water System
• Chapter 4 – Water Conservation Plan
• Chapter 5 – System Analysis
• Chapter 6 – Water Quality
• Chapter 7 – Source Water Protection
• Chapter 8 – Operations and Maintenance
• Chapter 9 – Capital Improvement Program
• Chapter 10 – Financial Plan
• Next Steps

2



Fi
le

na
m

e.
pp

t/
3

// Thank you to the City staff members who have 
contributed to this project

• Jay Harris, Public Works Director.
• Ken Gill, City Engineer.
• Mike Albaugh, Street, Water, EM&R Superintendent.
• Matt Deemer, Water Field Supervisor.

3



Fi
le

na
m

e.
pp

t/
4

// This Plan is an update to the 2010 Water System 
Plan

4



Fi
le

na
m

e.
pp

t/
5

// The Plan documents the current status of the 
water system and evaluates future needs

• In accordance with WAC 246-290-100, this Plan:
 Defines the City’s water service area.
 Describes the existing water system.
 Established minimum performance criteria for the 

system.
 Projects future demands within the service area.
 Identifies system deficiencies.
 Presents a capital improvements plan.
 Offers a financing and implementation plan.

5



Fi
le

na
m

e.
pp

t/
6

Chapter 1 – Introduction



Fi
le

na
m

e.
pp

t/
7

// Chapter 1 outlines important Plan content 

• Summarizes the following:
 Purpose of the Plan.
 Plan Objectives.
 Ownership and management of the water system.
 Environmental assessment.
 Approval process.

• Includes the Department of Health (DOH) Water 
System Plan Checklist.

7



Fi
le

na
m

e.
pp

t/
8

Chapter 2 – Water Requirements



Fi
le

na
m

e.
pp

t/
9

// The City’s water system is supplied by three 
different wells

9



Fi
le

na
m

e.
pp

t/
10

// Historical average water production from 2009 to 
2020 remained the same

10



Fi
le

na
m

e.
pp

t/
11

// Zoning, demographic projections, and historical 
trends inform demand projections

11

• Demographic growth 
rates from the City 
Comprehensive Plan 
(2017) were used to 
develop growth 
rates.

• Includes estimates 
of population, 
households, and 
jobs.



Fi
le

na
m

e.
pp

t/
12

// Projected water demand is the foundational 
building block for the Plan

12Note: ADD is Average Day Demand and MDD is Maximum Day Demand



Fi
le

na
m

e.
pp

t/
13

// Three scenarios encompass the likely range of 
future water needs

13

• It is the highest demand 
the City is likely to 
experience in the future

High 
Scenario 

• Medium case that is 
predicted to most closely 
match the City’s future 
demands

• Used for system analysis

Medium 
Scenario 

• Lower peaking factor
• Lowest future demands 

the City expects to 
experience

Low 
Scenario 



Fi
le

na
m

e.
pp

t/
14

Chapter 3 – Description of the 
Water System



Fi
le

na
m

e.
pp

t/
15

// The future water service area mostly follows the 
Shelton Urban Growth Area

15



Fi
le

na
m

e.
pp

t/
16

// The water system is divided into five pressure 
zones (PZ)

16



Fi
le

na
m

e.
pp

t/
17

// Facilities that serve the City include:

17

• 3 active 
groundwater wells

• 5 active reservoirs

• 4 booster pump 
stations (BPS)

• 66 miles of pipe

Also includes one 
emergency source 
(Shelton Springs)



Fi
le

na
m

e.
pp

t/
18

// The hydraulic profile shows how the system 
functions

18



Fi
le

na
m

e.
pp

t/
19

// Chapter 3 also includes summary of planning 
considerations for water system

• Water service and service extensions, including Duty 
to Serve.

• System criteria, including facility requirements, 
reliability recommendations, and fire protection.

• Agency coordination.
• Financial requirements.

19



Fi
le

na
m

e.
pp

t/
20

Chapter 4 – Water Conservation 
Plan



Fi
le

na
m

e.
pp

t/
21

// Chapter 4 presents the City’s Conservation and 
Water Use Efficiency (WUE) Program

• Conservation program consists of the following key 
parts:
 Collect data.
 Forecast demand.
 Evaluate WUE measures.
 Calculate distribution system leakage (DSL).
 Implement a WUE program to meet goals.

21



Fi
le

na
m

e.
pp

t/
22

// City has three WUE goals and a Water Loss 
Control Action Plan

• WUE Goals:
 Goal 1: Reduce total consumption.
 Goal 2: Maintain low distribution system leakage.
 Goal 3: Reduce residential water consumption.

• Water Loss Control Action Plan:
 Conduct a water audit.
 Perform annual leak detection surveys and prepare 

leaks.

22



Fi
le

na
m

e.
pp

t/
23

// WUE Efficiency Program represents low demand 
scenario

23

• Lower peaking factor
• Lowest future 

demands the City 
expects to experience

Low 
Scenario 



Fi
le

na
m

e.
pp

t/
24

Chapter 5 – System Analysis



Fi
le

na
m

e.
pp

t/
25

// The existing water system was evaluated under 
2031 and 2041 future conditions

The planning demand projection scenario was used to 
evaluate the City’s: 
• Supply and pumping capacity.
• Reliability and redundancy.
• Storage facility capacities.
• Adequate pressure and velocity.
• Fire flow capacity.  

25



Fi
le

na
m

e.
pp

t/
26

// Recommend new well and new Upper Mt. View 
BPS to provide supply redundancy

26



Fi
le

na
m

e.
pp

t/
27

// Storage improvements are recommended to 
address deficiencies

• Recommended Storage Projects:
 Upper Mt. View Elevated Reservoir in Shelton Hills when 

area is developed.
 New Mt. View Reservoir near Well 1.
 New Angleside Reservoir.
 Capitol Hill Reservoir taken offline in year 2040. 27

Parameter (MG)
Existing System With Improvements
2031 2041 2031 2041

Total Storage 2.25 2.66 4.25 4.44
Dead Storage 0.88 0.89 0.96 0.84
Available Storage (at 20 psi) 1.37 1.77 3.29 3.60
Total Required Storage 2.42 2.99 2.67 3.12
Excess or (Deficit) (1.05) (1.22) 0.62 0.48



Fi
le

na
m

e.
pp

t/
28

// Hydraulic model indicates some high system 
pressures in Angleside and High School PZs

28



Fi
le

na
m

e.
pp

t/
29

// Areas with low system pressures have 
recommended improvement projects

29



Fi
le

na
m

e.
pp

t/
30

// Hydraulic model shows no maximum velocities 
above 8 feet per second in pipes

30



Fi
le

na
m

e.
pp

t/
31

// Fire flow requirements are based on the City’s 
zoning map

31



Fi
le

na
m

e.
pp

t/
32

// Areas with low available fire flow have 
recommended improvement projects

32



Fi
le

na
m

e.
pp

t/
33

// Improvements were recommended to meet 
deficiencies shown in previous slides

33



Fi
le

na
m

e.
pp

t/
34

Chapter 6 – Water Quality



Fi
le

na
m

e.
pp

t/
35

// Chapter discusses the City’s water quality 
requirements for sources and distribution

• City has water quality plan 
and treats its sources.

• City follows state and 
federal regulatory 
requirements.

• City monitors new and 
future water quality rules.

35



Fi
le

na
m

e.
pp

t/
36

// Consumer Confidence Report is released 
annually

36



Fi
le

na
m

e.
pp

t/
37

Chapter 7 – Source Water 
Protection



Fi
le

na
m

e.
pp

t/
38

// Robinson Noble updated the City’s wellhead 
protection plan (WHPP)

• WHPP includes:
 Susceptibility assessment.
 Wellhead protection area.
 Inventory of potential contamination threats.
 Notification letters.
 Management strategies and implementation tasks.
 Contingency plan.
 Spill/Incident response planning.

38



Fi
le

na
m

e.
pp

t/
39

// Capture zones for the three aquifers that supply 
the wells are included in WHPP

39



Fi
le

na
m

e.
pp

t/
40

Chapter 8 – Operations & 
Maintenance



Fi
le

na
m

e.
pp

t/
41

// Public Works Organizational Chart was recently 
updated

41



Fi
le

na
m

e.
pp

t/
42

// Operations & Maintenance efforts are 
documented in the WSP

• Water system management and personnel.
• Operator training.
• Operating procedures and preventative maintenance.
• Water quality sampling procedures and program.
• Emergency Response Program.
• Safety procedures.
• Cross-Connection Control Program.
• Customer Complaint Response Program.
• Record-keeping and reporting.

42



Fi
le

na
m

e.
pp

t/
43

Chapter 9 – Capital 
Improvement Program



Fi
le

na
m

e.
pp

t/
44

// The Capital Improvement Program (CIP) helps 
City prioritize and execute projects

44



Fi
le

na
m

e.
pp

t/
45

// CIP projects are identified by type of 
infrastructure involved

• General (G).
• Supply (S).
• Pressure Zone (PZ).
• Storage (ST).
• Pump Station (PS).
• Distribution System (D).

45



Fi
le

na
m

e.
pp

t/
46

// Capital projects were allocated into three types

• Growth: Provide additional system capacity to meet future demand 
growth.

• Typically funded by connection fees and developers.
• Repair & Replacement: Replacing or maintaining existing 

infrastructure.
• Typically funded by rates.

• Level of service: Increase level-of-service (redundant pumping, 
backup power, fire flow, system reliability, etc.)

• Typically funded by rates.

46



Fi
le

na
m

e.
pp

t/
47

// CIP includes summary of project costs and 
recommended year for implementation

47



Fi
le

na
m

e.
pp

t/
48

// Looking at CIP by project type and planning 
horizon helps guide funding decisions

48



Fi
le

na
m

e.
pp

t/
49

// Looking at CIP by infrastructure category shows 
where funding could be allocated

49

General
$5,904,000 

19.4%

Supply
$4,884,000 

16.1%

Pressure Zone
$2,972,000 

9.8%

Storage
$7,980,000 

26.2%

Pump Station
$7,361,000 

24.2%

Distribution Pipeline
$1,317,000 

4.3%

Cost by Project Category 



Fi
le

na
m

e.
pp

t/
50

Chapter 10 – Financial Plan



Fi
le

na
m

e.
pp

t/
51

// Financial plan summarizes the financial status of 
the water utility and ability to finance the CIP

• Financial plan includes:
 Historical Financial Performance.

−Water rates, fees, and charges.
−Outstanding debt.

 Financial Policies.
 Financial Forecast.

−Projected operating revenue and expenditures.
 Summary and recommendations.

51



Fi
le

na
m

e.
pp

t/
52

// City will have adequate funds to cover projected 
operations and CIP costs through 2030

52



Fi
le

na
m

e.
pp

t/
53

// Conclusion from Financial Plan

• The proposed 2021-2023 biennial capital budget for 
the State includes $2.05 million for rehabilitating Well 
1, including conversion of the water main.

• With State funds, revenue from water rates, and 
general facility charges, the expected operating 
costs of the water system through 2030 are met.

• Recommendations:
 Rate Study.
 General Facility Charges Study.

53



Fi
le

na
m

e.
pp

t/
54

Next Steps



Fi
le

na
m

e.
pp

t/
55

// Next Steps

• Plan is sent to DOH for review.
• Plan is also sent to local governments and adjacent 

utilities.
• Final approval phase after comments are received.

 Plan will be updated based on comments received.
 SEPA process and Determination of Non-Significance.

• Final Plan is then ready for both DOH and City 
Council for final approval.

55



Fi
le

na
m

e.
pp

t/
56

Questions??

56



Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item F1) 

Touch Date:    06/07/2021 
Brief Date:      08/03/2021 
Action Date:    08/17/2021 

Department:  Executive 
 
Presented By:  Jeff Niten 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

   
 
 
    PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
    PUD 3 Franchise Agreement    
     
    ATTACHMENTS:  
    - Ordinance No. 1963-1220 
    - PUD 3 Franchise Agreement 
    - Public Notice 
 

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head   

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 

 
 

 
Attorney 

 

 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
JN      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
City staff and representatives of PUD 3 have been working toward a Franchise Agreement to benefit the 
citizens of Shelton, protect the City’s interests, as well as the individual utilities’ needs. 
 
There is no existing Franchise Agreement; rather this agreement replaces a city-wide Right-of-Way permit 
issued on February 13, 2017.  The City has worked to ensure that provisions contained in this new agreement 
provide adequate protection of the public Right-of-Way and the City’s ability to require movement of utilities 
consistent with City needs.  This agreement grants a non-exclusive Franchise to PUD 3 for a primary term of 
ten (10) years. 
 
The Franchise Agreements attached comply with Shelton Municipal Code (SMC) Chapter 5.44 and all 
applicable State and Federal regulations.    
   
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
City staff propose the following as alternatives:  

• Adopt the agreements as presented  
• Request Staff re-enter negotiations over modifications to terms  
• Take no action at this time  

  
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
None, other than applicable permit fees associated with specific projects. 
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
Information can be obtained through the City Clerk.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
A recommended motion is:  “I move to forward Ordinance No. 1963-1220 to the Action Agenda for the Council 
meeting on August 17, 2021 for further consideration.” 



ORDINANCE NO. 1963-1220 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON, GRANTING A 
NONEXCLUSIVE FRANCHISE FOR THE TRANSMISSION, DISTRIBUTION AND SALE OF 

ELECTRICITY 

This Electricity and Telecommunication Franchise ("Franchise") is entered into in Shelton, Washington, 
this 17th day of August 2021, by and between the City of Shelton, Washington, a municipal corporation, 
(hereinafter "City") and Public Utility District No. 3 of Mason County. (hereinafter "PUD 3"). The City and 
PUD 3 are sometimes referred to hereinafter collectively as the "parties." 

 WHEREAS, PUD 3 has applied for a nonexclusive Franchise to construct, operate, and maintain 
an electric line system in, across, over, upon, along, and under City of Shelton Rights-of-Way; and 

 WHEREAS, PUD 3 has applied for a nonexclusive Franchise to construct, operate, and maintain a 
telecommunication system in, across, over, upon, along and under City of Shelton Right-of-Way; and  

WHEREAS, the City has reviewed PUD 3's performance, has identified the future electricity and 
telecommunication-related needs and interests of the City and its citizens, has considered the financial, 
technical and legal qualifications of PUD 3, and has determined that PUD 3's plans for constructing, 
operating and maintaining its System are adequate, in a full public proceeding affording due process to 
all concerned; and  

WHEREAS, the public has had adequate notice and opportunity to comment on PUD 3's 
proposal to provide electricity and telecommunication services within the City; and  

WHEREAS, the City has a legitimate and necessary regulatory role in ensuring the availability of 
electricity and telecommunication services in the franchise area; and  

WHEREAS, the City is authorized by applicable law to grant one or more nonexclusive franchises 
to construct, operate and maintain electricity and telecommunication system or systems within the 
boundaries of the City.  

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises made herein, and other good and 
valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged, the City and PUD 3 
do hereby agree as follows:  

 

SECTION 1 GRANT OF FRANCHISE 

The City hereby grants to PUD 3 a right and Franchise for the period of ten (10) years from and after the 
effective date of Ordinance 1963-1220 to construct, operate and maintain in, over, upon, and under the 
present and future Right-of-Way and easements within the present and future limits of the City, 
communication lines, electric power lines, and all necessary and desirable appurtenances thereto, for 
the purpose of providing communications and transmitting electric power and energy. 

 

 



SECTION 2 FRANCHISE NONEXCLUSIVE 

This Franchise shall be nonexclusive. The City may at any time grant authorization to use the Rights-of-
Way for any purpose not incompatible with PUD 3's authority under this Franchise and for such 
additional franchises as the City deems appropriate.  

 

SECTION 3 INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS  

3.1 Indemnification  

(A) General Indemnification. PUD 3 shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the City, and its 
officers, officials, boards, commissions, agents and employees (while acting in an official 
capacity) from any action, claim, damage, loss, liability, cost or expense, including court and 
appeal costs and reasonable attorneys' fees and expenses, arising from any action, neglect, 
omission or inaction of PUD 3 its agents or employees including, but not limited to, delays on 
City construction projects caused by or arising out of PUD 3’s failure to relocate its facilities in a 
timely manner. PUD 3 shall consult and cooperate with the City while conducting its defense of 
the City. If any such claim or demand is subject to RCW 4.24.115 and caused by or results from 
the concurrent negligence of (a) the City, its elected or appointed officials, or its agents or 
employees and (b) PUD 3, or its agents or employees, then in such event the defense and 
indemnity provisions provided for in the preceding paragraph 9.1 shall be valid and enforceable 
only to the extent of PUD 3’s negligence.  The City shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless 
PUD 3, and its officers, officials, boards, commissions, agents and employees (while acting in an 
official capacity) from any action, claim, damage, loss, liability, cost or expense, including court 
and appeal costs and reasonable attorneys' fees and expenses, arising from any action, neglect, 
omission or inaction of the City its agents or employees including, but not limited to, delays on 
PUD 3 construction projects caused by or arising out of City’s failure to relocate its facilities in a 
timely manner. The City shall consult and cooperate with PUD 3 while conducting its defense of 
PUD 3. If any such claim or demand is subject to RCW 4.24.115 and caused by or results from 
the concurrent negligence of (a) PUD 3, its elected or appointed officials, or its agents or 
employees and (b) the City, or its agents or employees, then in such event the defense and 
indemnity provisions provided for in the preceding paragraph 9.1 shall be valid and enforceable 
only to the extent of the City’s negligence. 

(B) Procedures and Defense. The indemnified party shall give the other party timely written 
notice of any claim or of the commencement of any action, suit or other proceeding covered by 
the indemnity in this Section. If a claim or action arises, indemnified party shall then tender the 
defense of the claim to other within six (6) business days of receipt of such notice, which 
defense shall be at the indemnifying party’s expense. The indemnified party may participate in 
the defense of a claim and, in any event, the Indemnifying party may not agree to any 
settlement of claims financially affecting the indemnified party without the indemnified party’s 
prior written approval, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.  

(C) Expenses. If separate representation to fully protect the interests of both parties is 
necessary, such as a conflict of interest between the indemnified party and the counsel selected 



by indemnifying party to represent the indemnified party, the indemnifying party shall pay the 
expenses incurred by the indemnified party in defending itself with regard to any action, suit or 
proceeding indemnified. The indemnified party’s expenses shall include all out of-pocket 
expenses that are necessary for the indemnified party defense, such as consultants' fees, and 
shall also include the reasonable value of any services rendered by the General Counsel/City 
Attorney or his/her assistants or any employees of the indemnified party or its agents but shall 
not include outside attorneys' fees for services that are unnecessarily duplicative of services 
provided the indemnified party by the indemnifying party.  

3.2 Insurance Requirements  

(A) General Requirement. PUD 3 must have adequate insurance during the entire term of this 
Franchise (and for a period of twelve [12] months thereafter) to protect the City against claims 
for death or injuries to Persons or damages to property or equipment which in any way relate 
to, arise from or are connected with this Franchise, or involve PUD 3, its agents, representatives, 
contractors, subcontractors and their employees.  

(B) Minimum Insurance Limits. PUD 3 must keep insurance in effect in accordance with the 
minimum insurance limits herein set forth:  

(1) Commercial General Liability: Two million dollars ($2,000,000) per occurrence and 
five million dollars ($5,000,000) general aggregate for bodily injury, personal injury and 
property damage.  

(2) Automobile Liability: Three million dollars ($3,000,000) combined single limit per 
accident for bodily injury and property damage.  

(3) Workers Compensation Insurance: In accordance with State law requirements.  

(4) Excess Liability or Umbrella Coverage: One million dollars ($1,000,000).  

The amounts listed above are the minimum deemed necessary by the City to protect the City's 
interests in this matter. The City has made no recommendation to PUD 3 as to the amount of 
insurance coverage necessary to protect PUD 3's interests. Any decision by PUD 3 to carry or not 
carry insurance amounts in excess of the above is solely that of PUD 3.  

(C) Endorsements.  

(1) All policies shall contain, or shall be endorsed so that:  

(a) The City shall be designated as an additional insured;  

(b) Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City, its officers, officials, 
boards, commissions, employees and agents shall be in excess of PUD 3's 
primary insurance and shall not contribute to it; and  

(c) The policy shall contain a severability of interests provision. PUD 3's 
insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom a claim is made 
or lawsuit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.  



(2) The insurance provided herein shall not be cancelled or the limits reduced so as to be 
out of compliance with the requirements of this Section without forty-five (45) days 
written notice first being given to the City. If the insurance is cancelled PUD 3 shall 
provide a replacement policy. PUD 3 agrees to maintain continuous uninterrupted 
insurance coverage, in the amounts required, for the duration of this Franchise (and as 
specified above, thereafter).  

(D) Acceptability of Insurers. The City has reviewed PUD 3’s self-insurance pool coverage and 
accepts the same.  

(E) Verification of Coverage. PUD 3 shall furnish the City with certificates of insurance. The 
certificate for each insurance policy is to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to 
bind coverage on its behalf. The certificate for each insurance policy must be on standard forms 
or on such forms as are consistent with standard industry practices, and are to be provided to 
the City upon acceptance of this Franchise. PUD 3 hereby warrants that its insurance policies 
satisfy the requirements of this Franchise.  

(F) Verification of Additional Insured Coverage. PUD 3 shall furnish the City with a written copy 
of the contract of additional insured coverage in a form acceptable to the City. If the additional 
insured coverage is part of PUD 3’s insurance policy, then PUD 3 shall furnish a copy of those 
pages of its policy showing the City is covered as an additional insured to the City.  

 

SECTION 4 GENERAL RIGHTS-OF-WAY USE AND CONSTRUCTION  

4.1 Right to Construct  

Subject to generally applicable laws, regulations, rules, resolutions, and ordinances of the City and the 
provisions of this Franchise, PUD 3 may perform all construction in the Rights-of-Way for any facility 
needed for the maintenance, operation or extension of PUD 3's Electrical System and/or 
Telecommunications System. Construction shall include repair, replacement, or installation that is 
needed to provide for the safe and reliable operations of electricity distribution and transmission 
facilities and fiber optic communications facilities within the right of way. Permissible activities may 
include: 

• Emergency response (e.g., electrical or fiber outage response, downed power lines and/or 
replacement of poles due to weather or accidents); 

• Tree trimming; 
• Replacement, repair, or installation of street and/or security lighting; 
• Replacement, repair, or installation of conductor (underground and overhead);  
• Replacement, repair, or installation of transformers (pole and pad mounted) and/or 

overcurrent, regulation, capacitance, or sectionalizing devices; 
• Replacement, repair, or installation of poles; 
• Replacement, repair, or installation of guy wires; 
• Replacement, repair, or installation of fiber or electric service drops; 



• Replacement, repair, or installation or fiber optic communications or electrical distribution 
systems (e.g., transformers, protection devices, distribution huts, splice cases, service terminals, 
vaults, cabinets, poles, etc.) 

4.2 Rights-of-Way Meetings  

Subject to receiving advance notice, PUD 3 shall make reasonable efforts to attend and participate in 
meetings of the City regarding Rights-of-Way issues that may impact the Electricity and 
Telecommunication System.  

4.3 General Standards  

All work authorized and required hereunder shall be done in a safe, thorough and workmanlike manner. 
All installations of equipment shall be durable and installed in accordance with good engineering 
practices and in compliance with all federal, State, and local laws and regulations. PUD 3 shall promptly 
respond to any construction issues raised by the City and remedy any construction-related problems in a 
timely and responsive manner. To the maximum extent possible, PUD 3 shall utilize existing facilities in 
lieu of installing new equipment such as conduit, poles, or wires. This Franchise does not grant, give or 
convey to PUD 3 the right or privilege to install its facilities in any manner on specific utility poles or 
equipment owned by the City or any private third party. Equipment associated with PUD 3’s Electricity 
and/or Telecommunication Systems may be in appropriate housing upon the surface of the 
ground.  Nothing in this Franchise shall be construed to require PUD 3 to construct, operate, or maintain 
underground any ground-mounted appurtenances such as pedestals, provided that such facilities must 
be placed in accordance with City Code and any permit requirements. 
 

4.4 Joint Trenching/Boring  

To the extent it is economically feasible, PUD 3 shall joint trench or share bores or cuts and work with 
other providers (such as, but not limited to, gas, water, sanitary sewer), licensees, permittees, and 
franchisees so as to reduce the number of Rights-of-Way cuts within the City.  PUD 3 shall follow all 
State law requirements for trench safety, including RCW 39.04.180. 

4.5 Movement of Facilities During Emergencies  

In the case of fire, disaster, or other emergency, the City may move, remove, or disconnect PUD 3's 
facilities and equipment located in the Rights-of-Way or on any other property of the City. The City shall 
provide reasonable notice to PUD 3 prior to taking such action and shall provide PUD 3 with the 
opportunity to perform such action unless, in the City's sole judgment, the imminent threat to public 
health, safety or welfare makes such notice impractical. 

For the safety of all, a Qualified Worker meeting Washington State Labor & Industries requirements 
must be used to perform work that falls under this provision. 

4.6 One Call  

The Parties will maintain membership in good standing with the Utilities Underground Location Center 
or other similar or successor organization which is designated to coordinate underground equipment 
locations and installations. Parties shall abide by the State's "Underground Utilities" statutes (Chapter 



19.122 RCW) and will further comply with and adhere to City regulations related to the One Call locator 
service program.  

4.7 Permits Required for Construction  

Prior to doing any work in the Rights-of-Way or other public property, PUD 3 shall apply for and obtain 
any permits necessary from the City. As part of the permitting process, the City may impose such 
conditions and regulations as are necessary for protecting any structures in such Rights-of-Way, for 
restoration of such Rights-of-Way, and for protection of the public and the continuity of pedestrian or 
vehicular traffic. PUD 3 shall pay all generally applicable fees for the requisite City permits.  

4.8 Emergency Permits  

In the event that emergency repairs are necessary, PUD 3 shall immediately notify the City of the need 
for such repairs. PUD 3 may initiate such emergency repairs and shall apply for appropriate permits 
within forty-eight (48) hours after completion of the repair.  

4.9 Compliance with Applicable Codes  

(A) City Codes. PUD 3 shall comply with all lawful and applicable City codes, including, without 
limitation, construction codes, building codes, the Fire Code, and zoning codes and regulations 
that do not conflict with PUD 3's contractual rights under this Franchise.  

(B) Regulations and Safety Codes. PUD 3 shall comply with all lawful and applicable federal, 
State, and City safety requirements, rules, regulations, laws, and practices. By way of illustration 
and not limitation, PUD 3 shall comply with the National Electric Code, National Electrical Safety 
Code, and Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) Standards.  

4.10 Least Interference  

Work in the Rights-of-Way, or on other public property, shall be done in a manner that causes the least 
interference with the rights and reasonable convenience of adjacent property owners. PUD 3's 
Electricity System and Telecommunications System shall be located, erected, and maintained so as not 
to endanger the lives of Persons, or to interfere with new improvements the City may deem proper to 
make, or to unnecessarily hinder or obstruct the free use of the Rights-of-Way or other public property, 
and shall not unreasonably interfere with travel and use of public places by persons during the 
construction, repair, operation, or removal thereof. The City may require the removal or relocation of 
PUD 3's lines, cables, equipment, and other appurtenances that are in violation of this Section from the 
property in question at PUD 3's expense.  

4.11 Prevent Injury/Safety   

PUD 3 shall provide and use any equipment and facilities necessary to control and carry PUD 3's signals 
so as to prevent injury to the City's property or property belonging to any Person. PUD 3, at its own 
expense, shall repair, renew, change, and improve its facilities to keep them in good repair, and safe and 
presentable condition. All excavations made by PUD 3 in the Rights-of-Way shall be properly 
safeguarded for the prevention of accidents.  

4.12 Notice to Private Property Owners  



Except in the case of an emergency involving public safety or an outage, or service interruption to a 
large number of customers or subscribers, PUD 3 shall give reasonable advance notice to private 
property owners of construction work on or in adjacent Rights-of-Way. If PUD 3’s work is a result of a 
larger City project, other public project, or a private developer project, Notice to Property Owners and 
detailed project information that my affect their property shall be the responsibility of the lead agency, 
or the City. PUD 3 may, at its discretion, supplement other customer communication regarding the 
impact of PUD 3’s facilities and operations. 

4.13 Clear Zone Requirements 

PUD 3 recognizes the need for the City to maintain adequate width for installation and maintenance of 
sanitary sewer, water, and storm drainage utilities owned by the City, and other public utility providers. 

 Thus, the City reserves the right to maintain clear zones with the Rights-of-Way for installation and 
maintenance of said utilities. The clear zones for each Rights-of-Way segment shall be noted and 
conditioned with the issuance of each Rights-of-Way permit. If adequate clear zones are unable to be 
achieved on a particular Right-of-Way, PUD 3 shall locate in an alternate Right-of-Way or propose 
alternate construction methods which maintain and/or enhance the existing clear zones.  

 

4.14 Underground Construction; Location & Relocation of Facilities  

 
PUD 3 will cooperate with the City, developers, and with other affected utilities in the underground 
construction of new electricity distribution and telecommunications facilities within the franchise area, 
which shall be at developer or requestor expense. 
 

A. PUD 3 shall, at its sole expense, relocate its overhead facilities upon request by the City if:  
 

(1) Necessary to accommodate City capital projects, provided that the City has reasonably 
complied with the notification requirements of this Section, and provided that if the City 
requests relocation for a second time in a five year period, the City shall bear the costs 
of the second relocation; or  

(2) Due to unforeseen emergencies as necessary to protect the public health, welfare, and 
safety.  

 
B. If the City requests that existing PUD 3 facilities be relocated underground, the City shall 

reimburse the PUD the incremental cost of underground construction compared to aerial 
relocation.  The PUD 3 shall comply with all federal, state, and local regulations on 
undergrounding. 

 
C. If the City determines that a City project necessitates the relocation of PUD 3’s existing facilities, 

then:  
 

(1) Within a reasonable time, which shall be no less than 90 days prior to the necessary 
relocation, the City shall provide PUD 3 with written notice requiring relocation; 
provided that in the event of an emergency beyond the control of the City and which 



will result in severe financial consequences to the City or its citizens or businesses, the 
City shall give PUD 3 as much advance written notice as is practicable;  

(2) When City projects are under consideration and/or preliminary Funding Application 
Level Design (e.g. “10% Design”) begins, the City will contact PUD 3 to schedule an initial 
project scope meeting so tentative plans, system impact studies, community 
partnerships, and enhanced communication can begin with as much preparation time as 
possible. 

(2) The City shall provide PUD 3 with copies of information for such improvement 
project and a proposed location for PUD 3’s facilities so that PUD 3 may relocate its 
facilities in the Rights-of-Way in order to accommodate the project; and  

(3) In calculating the date that relocation must be completed, the City shall consult with 
PUD 3 and other franchise holders and consider the extent of facilities to be relocated, 
the service requirements, and the construction sequence for the relocation, within the 
City's overall project construction sequence and constraints, to safely complete the 
relocation. PUD 3 shall complete the relocation by the date specified, unless the City 
establishes a later date for completion, after a showing by PUD 3 that the relocation 
cannot be completed by the date specified using best efforts and meeting safety and 
service requirements. In the event of an emergency as described in this Section, PUD 3 
shall relocate its facilities within a reasonable time period specified by the City.  

(4) The City and/or Requestor shall provide traffic-control, permitting, trenching, 
backfill, and restoration for the relocation of PUD 3’s facilities if the new facilities are to 
be placed underground. The undergrounding of the electric or telecommunications 
underground infrastructure may extend outside of the project boundaries in order to 
accommodate the request, and this must be included in eligible relocation costs and 
plans. 

(5) To ensure proper space and availability in a supplied joint trench, PUD 3 shall pay for 
the work (time and materials) necessary to complete Electric System and/or 
Telecommunications related engineering and coordination with the other utilities 
involved in the project. 

D. PUD 3 may, after receipt of written notice requesting a relocation of its facilities, submit to the 
City written alternatives to such relocation. The City shall evaluate such alternatives and advise 
PUD 3 in writing if one or more of the alternatives are suitable to accommodate the work, which 
would otherwise necessitate relocation of the facilities. If so requested by the City, PUD 3 shall 
submit additional information to assist the City in making such evaluation. The City shall give 
each alternative proposed by PUD 3 full and fair consideration, within a reasonable time, so as 
to allow for the relocation work to be performed in a timely manner. In the event the City 
ultimately determines that there is no other reasonable alternative, PUD 3 shall relocate its 
facilities as otherwise provided in this Section.  
 



E. In the event that the City requests PUD 3 to relocate its facilities for a project which is primarily 
for benefit of a third-party, the PUD 3 shall relocate its facilities contingent upon permit 
approvals from the City and the third party’s entry into a reimbursement agreement with PUD 3. 
 

F. In the event the City establishes a Local Improvement District (LID) to fund a relocation or 
conversion project, PUD 3 shall be reimbursed by the LID for all expenses incurred as a result of 
the project.  

At the City’s request, PUD 3 shall supply drawings or other documentation indicating the location of its 
facilities within City streets and rights-of-way. 

4.15 Additional Ducts and Conduits  

PUD 3 and the City recognize that situations may occur in the future where the City may desire to place 
its own fiber optic cable in trenches or bores opened by PUD 3. PUD 3 agrees to cooperate with the City 
in any construction that involves trenching or boring, provided that the City has first provided 
reasonable notice to PUD 3 in some manner that it is interested in sharing the trenches or bores in the 
area where PUD 3's construction is occurring. PUD 3 shall allow the City to lay City conduit in PUD 3's 
trenches and bores, provided that the City shares pro rata in the cost of the trenching and boring with 
PUD 3. The City shall be responsible for maintaining its respective conduit, which is buried in PUD 3's 
trenches and bores. The City agrees that any conduit placed in these projects shall not now or 
throughout the term of this Franchise be utilized to provide services that interfere with the services 
provided by PUD 3 or be provided for access by a private, for-profit electricity or telecommunications 
company.  

(A) If PUD 3 is constructing, relocating, or placing ducts or conduits in the Rights-of-Way and 
upon request by the City, additional duct or conduit and related structures necessary to access 
the duct or conduit shall be provided for the City, subject to the following conditions:  

(1) The City shall not require that the additional duct or conduit space be connected to 
the access structures and vaults of PUD 3.  

(2) Upon written request by the City for a cost estimate to share a trench or bore within 
a Right-of-Way, PUD 3 shall prepare such estimate and present the same to the City 
within sixty (60) days thereafter regarding the incremental costs and Fully Allocated 
Costs of providing the City with ducts, conduits, and related structures necessary to 
access the conduit or duct and of the date such construction, relocation, or placement 
will begin. If PUD 3 and the City disagree regarding the appropriateness of the proposed 
incremental and Fully Allocated Costs, the parties may negotiate.  

(3) The City may require PUD 3 to furnish such additional duct or conduit and the 
related structures necessary to access the conduit or duct for the incremental costs by 
so notifying PUD 3 no later than sixty (60) days after the information referred to in 
subsection (B) is provided by PUD 3 or a court.  

(4) If the City requires PUD 3 to furnish additional duct, conduit, or related structures 
pursuant to this subsection, PUD 3 shall construct the facilities to the same standards as 
PUD 3's other new facilities, and shall turn such additional duct, conduit or related 



structures over to the City upon completion of same and satisfactory inspection thereof 
by the City.  

(5) Any duct or conduit and related structures necessary to access the duct or conduit 
that are furnished by PUD 3 to the City pursuant to this Section shall be used exclusively 
by, and directly for, the City for any commercial or noncommercial purposes. 

All provisions for the placement of Additional Ducts and Conduits within this section bilaterally also 
apply to the City’s open trench and/or directional bore projects. The City shall notify PUD 3 of all such 
projects prior to 90 days before work commencement, or during preliminary designs, whichever is 
sooner. 

4.16 Restoration of Property  

(A) PUD 3 shall protect public and private property from damage. If damage occurs, PUD 3 shall 
promptly notify the property owner within twenty-four (24) hours.  

(B) In the event PUD 3 disturbs or damages any Rights-of-Way or other public property, PUD 3 
shall promptly restore the Rights-of-Way or property to at least its prior condition, normal wear 
and tear excepted.  

(C) PUD 3 shall warrant any street restoration work performed by or for PUD 3 in the Rights-of-
Way or on other public property for the greater of one (1) year or for the life of the asphalt 
street patch until overlay occurs, provided that no action by a third party or acts of nature 
materially affects the integrity of PUD 3's street cut work, unless a different period is required 
by the City Code. If street cut work is not satisfactorily performed by PUD 3 within a reasonable 
time, the City may, after prior notice to PUD 3, or without notice where the disturbance or 
damage may create a risk to public health or safety, cause the work to be done and recover the 
reasonable cost of the work from PUD 3. Within forty-five (45) days of receipt of an itemized list 
of those costs, including the costs of labor, materials and equipment, PUD 3 shall pay the City.  

(D) Upon completion of the work that caused any disturbance or damage, PUD 3 shall promptly 
commence restoration of the property, and will use its best efforts to complete temporary 
restoration within twenty-four (24) hours, and permanent restoration within 90 days, 
considering the nature of the work that must be performed.  

4.17 Discontinuing Use  

Whenever PUD 3 intends to discontinue using any facility within the Rights-of-Way, PUD 3 shall notify 
the City of its intention. PUD 3 may remove the facility or request that the City permit it to remain in 
place. Notwithstanding PUD 3's request that any such facility remain in place, the City may require PUD 
3 to remove the facility from the Rights-of-Way or modify the facility to protect the public health, 
welfare or safety. The City may require PUD 3 to perform a reasonable combination of modification and 
removal of the facility. PUD 3 shall complete such removal and/or modification respectively in 
accordance with a schedule reasonably set by the City. Until such time as PUD 3 removes or modifies the 
facility as reasonably directed by the City, or until the rights to and responsibility for the facility are 
accepted by another Person having authority to use, construct and/or maintain such facility, PUD 3 shall 



retain all liability for such facility and shall remain responsible for all necessary repairs and relocations of 
the facility in the same manner and degree as if the facility were in active use.  

4.18 LED Street Lights  

PUD 3 shall keep the LED streetlight system in good repair and working condition. PUD 3 shall charge the 
City at PUD 3’s Schedule 41 rate for outdoor lighting as now adopted or hereinafter amended. All PUD 3 
electrical service rules and regulations shall apply to billings and payments. City-owned LED streetlight 
poles shall not be subject to PUD 3 charges and assessments.   

PUD 3 shall perform maintenance on the City-owned streetlight poles as needed and upon request by 
the City, subject to PUD 3’s then existing labor and equipment rates, and scheduling availability. 

Upon request from the City, PUD 3 shall install or replace the City’s streetlight poles, vaults, and/or 
conduits, and bill the City for the work at PUD 3’s then existing labor and equipment rates. In such 
projects, the City shall provide all traffic control, trenching, backfilling, restoration, permitting, and 
easements, and shall work with PUD 3 to determine acceptable locations and specifications of 
infrastructure. All staking of agreed upon pole locations shall be provided by the City. 

The City shall have priority to utilize GFI outlets on the light poles for Christmas decorations or other 
uses. The City shall notify PUD 3 of the dates of installation and removal of lighted decorations, along 
with the actual wattage and count of each fixture. Unmetered electricity shall be billed to the City, or its 
designee, at PUD 3’s Schedule 20 (small commercial) rate or Unmetered Device rate, at PUD 3’s 
discretion.  

4.19 Movement of System Facilities for Other Franchise or Permit Holders  

If any removal, replacement, modification or disconnection of the Electricity System and/or 
Telecommunication System is required to accommodate the construction, operation, or repair of the 
facilities or equipment of another City franchise or permit holder, PUD 3 shall, after at least forty-five 
(45) days advance written notice, take action to effect the necessary changes requested by the 
responsible entity. PUD 3 may require that the costs associated with the removal, replacement, 
modification, or disconnection of the Electricity System and/or Telecommunication System be paid by 
the benefited party, and PUD 3 may require a reasonable deposit of the estimated payment in advance.  

4.20 Reservation of City Use of Rights-of-Way  

Nothing in this Franchise shall prevent the City from constructing sewers; grading, paving, repairing or 
altering any Rights-of-Way; laying down, repairing or removing water mains; installing conduit or fiber 
optic cable; or constructing or establishing any other public work or improvement. All such work shall be 
done, insofar as practicable, so as not to obstruct, injure or prevent the use and operation of PUD 3's 
Electricity System and/or Telecommunication System. 

4.21 Tree Trimming  

PUD 3 may prune or cause to be pruned, using proper pruning practices, any tree in the Rights-of-Way 
which interferes with the reliability, construction, operations, and maintenance of PUD 3's Electricity 
System and/or Telecommunication System. PUD 3 shall comply with any and all City regulations 
regarding tree trimming, including obtaining a permit, if required, to remove Right-of-Way trees.  



Except in emergencies, before pruning trees at a point below fifteen and a half (15.5) feet above the 
sidewalk grade, PUD 3 will make a reasonable attempt to contact the owner or occupant of the premises 
abutting the rights of way in or over which the tree is growing. For purposes of this subsection, 
emergencies exist when it is necessary to prune to protect the public or PUD 3's facilities from imminent 
danger.  

4.22 Inspection of Construction and Facilities  

The City may inspect any of PUD 3's facilities, equipment, or construction within the Rights-of-Way and 
on other public property in the franchise area. If an unsafe condition is found to exist, the City, in 
addition to taking any other action permitted under applicable law, may order PUD 3, in writing, to 
make the necessary repairs and alterations specified therein forthwith to correct the unsafe condition 
within a reasonable amount of time established by the City. The City has the right to inspect, repair, and 
correct the unsafe condition if PUD 3 fails to do so, and to reasonably charge PUD 3 therefore. 

For the safety of all, a Qualified Worker meeting Washington State Labor & Industries requirements 
must be used to perform work that falls under this provision. 

4.23 Stop Work  

On notice from the City that any work is being performed contrary to the provisions of this Franchise, or 
in an unsafe or dangerous manner as reasonably determined by the City, or in violation of the terms of 
any regulations or permits issued, then the work may immediately be stopped by the City.  

The stop work order shall:  

(1) Be in writing;  

(2) Be given to the person doing the work, or be posted on the work site;  

(3) Submitted via email to PUD 3’s Director of Engineering & Utility Services and Operations 
Manager; 

(4) Indicate the nature of the alleged violation or unsafe condition; 

(5) Establish conditions under which work may be resumed; and 

(6) Provide the name and contact information for the representative of the City for further 
discussion. 

 

4.24 Nonconforming or Unauthorized Conditions  

Whenever the City determines that PUD 3 has taken any action or caused any condition within the 
franchise area in violation of the City Code that results in or produces any unsafe, nonconforming, or 
unauthorized condition, the City may order the correction or discontinuance of such condition or any 
activity causing such condition, or order the taking of any other remedial action, pursuant to applicable 
provisions of the City Code.  

4.25 Work of Contractors and Subcontractors  



PUD 3's contractors and subcontractors shall be licensed and bonded in accordance with the City's 
generally applicable regulations. Work by contractors and subcontractors is subject to the same 
restrictions, limitations and conditions as if the work were performed by PUD 3. PUD 3 shall be 
responsible for all work performed by its contractors and subcontractors and others performing work on 
its behalf as if the work were performed by it, and shall ensure that all such work is performed in 
compliance with this Franchise and other applicable laws, and shall be jointly and severally liable for all 
damages and correcting all damage caused by them. It is PUD 3's responsibility to ensure that 
contractors, subcontractors, or other Persons performing work on PUD 3's behalf are familiar with the 
requirements of this Franchise and other applicable laws governing the work performed by them. 

 

SECTION 5 FRANCHISE FEES AND UTILITY TAX 

5.1 Franchise Fees  

As specifically provided by RCW 35.21.860, the City may not impose a franchise fee or any other fee or 
charge of whatever nature or description upon PUD 3.  However, as provided in RCW 35.21.860, PUD 3 
shall reimburse and pay the City’s actual administrative expenses incurred by the City that are directly 
related to:  (i) receiving and approving a permit or license, (ii) inspecting plans and construction, or (iii) 
preparing detailed statement pursuant to Chapter 43.21C RCW. 

5.2 Tax Liability  

Utility Tax. PUD 3 acknowledges that the City is authorized under RCW 35.21.870, as amended, and 
Shelton Municipal Code 3.38 and 3.48, to impose a utility tax on PUD 3 for provision of electrical 
services.  Nothing in this Franchise shall exempt nor be construed to exempt PUD 3 from payment of the 
City’s utility tax, currently 6% of total gross receipts for both electrical and non-exempt 
telecommunications, in accordance with the City’s Code. 

 

SECTION 6 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS  

6.1 Local Employment Efforts  

PUD 3 shall use reasonable efforts to utilize qualified local contractors, including minority business 
enterprises and woman business enterprises, whenever PUD 3 employs contractors to perform work 
under this Franchise.  

6.2 Notices  

Throughout the term of this Franchise, each party shall maintain and file with the other a local address 
for the service of notices by mail. All notices shall be sent to such respective address, and such notices 
shall be effective upon the date of mailing. At the effective date of this Franchise:  

PUD 3's address shall be:  

Mason PUD 3 
Attention: General Manager; and Director of Engineering & Utility Services 
PO Box 2148 



2621 E Johns Prairie Road 
Shelton, WA 98584 

The City's address shall be: 

City of Shelton 
Attention: City Clerk; Finance Director; and City Manager  
525 W. Cota Street 
Shelton, WA 98584  

6.3 Cumulative Rights  

Subject to applicable law, all rights and remedies given to the City by this Franchise or retained by the 
City herein shall be in addition to and cumulative with any and all other rights and remedies, existing or 
implied, now or hereafter available to the City, at law or in equity, and such rights and remedies shall 
not be exclusive, but each and every right and remedy specifically given by this Franchise or otherwise 
existing may be exercised from time to time and as often and in such order as may be deemed 
expedient by the City, and the exercise of one or more rights or remedies shall not be deemed a waiver 
of the right to exercise at the same time or thereafter any other right or remedy.  

6.4 Binding Effect – Cancellation of Interlocal Agreements 

This Franchise shall be binding upon the parties hereto, their permitted successors and assigns. The 
2017 Interlocal Agreement for Recurring Annual Right of Way Permit is cancelled and of no further 
effect. 

The following interlocal agreements for LED Street and Pedestrian Lighting are superseded and 
therefore cancelled: 

1. 2018 Interlocal Agreement for LED Street and Pedestrian Lighting   
2. 2015 Amended Interlocal Agreement for LED Street Lighting 
3. 2013 Interlocal Agreement for LED Street Lighting Project 

6.5 Authority to Amend  

This Franchise may also be amended at any time by mutual written agreement between the parties.  

6.6 Disputes and Venue  

If any disputes shall arise concerning application or interpretation of this Agreement, the Parties shall 
first attempt to resolve the dispute through negotiation, with or without the help of a professional 
mediator.  Venue for any dispute related to this Franchise shall be in Mason County Superior Court.  

6.7 Governing Laws  

This Franchise shall be governed, construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Washington (as amended), and any other applicable local, State and federal laws, rules, regulations, 
legislation or orders (as such now exist, are later amended or subsequently adopted).  

 



6.8 No Joint Venture  

Nothing herein shall be deemed to create a joint venture or principal-agent relationship between the 
parties, and neither party is authorized to, nor shall either party act toward third persons or the public in 
any manner which would indicate any such relationship with the other.  

6.9 Waiver  

The failure of the City at any time to require performance by PUD 3 of any provision hereof shall in no 
way affect the right of the City hereafter to enforce the same, nor shall the waiver by the City of any 
breach of any provision hereof be taken or held to be a waiver of any succeeding breach of such 
provision, or as a waiver of the provision itself or any other provision.  

6.10 Severability  

If any Section, subsection, paragraph or provision of this Franchise is determined to be illegal, invalid or 
unconstitutional by any court or agency of competent jurisdiction, such determination shall have no 
effect on the validity of any other Section, subsection, paragraph or provision of this Franchise, all of 
which will remain in full force and effect for the term of the Franchise.  

6.11 Entire Agreement  

This Franchise and Exhibit represent the entire understanding and agreement between the parties 
hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersede all prior oral and written negotiations 
between the parties.  

6.12 Force Majeure  

In the event PUD 3 is prevented or delayed in the performance of any of its obligations under this 
Franchise by a reason beyond the control of PUD 3, PUD 3 shall have a reasonable time, under the 
circumstances, to perform the affected obligation under this Franchise or to procure a substitute for 
such obligation which is satisfactory to the City. Those conditions which are not within the control of 
PUD 3 include, but are not limited to, natural disasters, civil disturbances, severe or unusual weather 
conditions which have a direct and substantial impact on PUD 3's ability to provide Electricity Service 
and/or Telecommunication Services in the City, work delays caused by waiting for utility providers to 
service or perform make-ready services on their utility poles or other facilities to which PUD 3's 
Electricity System and/or Telecommunication System is attached, and PUD 3's inability to obtain federal, 
State or railroad permits despite PUD 3's best efforts to do so. If PUD 3 believes that a reason beyond its 
control has prevented or delayed its compliance with the provisions of this Franchise, PUD 3 shall 
provide documentation as reasonably required by the City to substantiate PUD 3's claim. If PUD 3 has 
not yet cured the deficiency, PUD 3 shall also provide the City with its proposed plan for remediation, 
including the timing for such cure.  

6.13 Attorneys' Fees  

If any action or suit arises in connection with this Franchise, the Parties shall bear their own expenses, 
including attorney fees and court costs.  

 



 

6.14 Actions of the City or PUD 3  

In any action by the City or PUD 3 mandated or permitted under the terms hereof, it shall act in a 
reasonable, expeditious and timely manner. Furthermore, in any instance where approval or consent is 
required under the terms hereof, such approval or consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.  

 

6.15 Acceptance  

Within thirty (30) days of receipt of the Franchise after its execution by the City, this Franchise shall be 
formally adopted by PUD 3’s legislative body in accordance with PUD 3’s procedures and State law.   

 

 

 

 

 

  



 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Franchise is signed in the name of the City of Shelton, Washington, this ____ 
day of ____________________ 20____.  

 

CITY OF SHELTON  

 

By                                                              . 

                         Mayor  

ATTEST:  

                                                                  . 

                       City Clerk  

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM:  

 

                                                                    . 

City Attorney  

 

ACCEPTED AND APPROVED this _____ day of ____________________ 20_____.  

Mason PUD 3 

 

By                                                                 . 

 

Its                                                                .  

 



 
 
 
 

 
 

CITY OF SHELTON 
525 W. COTA ST. 

SHELTON, WA  98584 
 
 
 

TO: Shelton-Mason County Journal 
 

DATE:      July 19, 2021 
 

Please publish the following notice on July 22, 2021 
 

 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
for the 

CITY OF SHELTON 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 1963-1220 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON, 
GRANTING A NONEXCLUSIVE FRANCHISE FOR THE 

TRANSMISSION, DISTRIBUTION AND SALE OF ELECTRICITY 
 
The City Council will conduct a public hearing on August 3, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. to 
consider adoption of a Franchise Agreement with PUD 3.  The public is invited 
to comment on the above referenced matters, or provide written testimony to 
the City Clerk. 
 
Donna Nault 
City Clerk 
(360) 810-0351 



Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item G1) 

Touch Date:  07/06/2021              
Brief Date:    07/20/2021 
Action Date:  08/03/2021 

Department: Finance 
   
Presented By: Aaron BeMiller 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
Sewer Averaging for Summer 
Consumption  

  ATTACHMENTS:  
 Ordinance No. 1972-0621 

 

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  

 
 

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 
6/3/2021 

 
 

 
Attorney 

 
6/3/2021 

 
 

 
City Clerk 6/3/2021 

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
6/3/2021      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
Shelton Municipal Code section 14.28 establishes that for the months of June, July, August, and September the 
consumption charge for each such month shall be based on the average water consumption of the preceding 
billings for the months of November, December, January, February, and March. 
 
Due to large number of misreads in September and October 2020, a number of customers November bill was 
higher than it normally would have been.  In the interest of fairness to all customers, this Ordinance will 
eliminate the month of November from the 2021 summer sewer averaging calculation.  This Ordinance will 
become null and void beginning November 1, 2021, the point in which summer averaging ends for 2021. 
 
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
 
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
Information can be obtained from the City Clerk.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
“I move that we approve Ordinance No. 1972-0621 as presented”. 
 



  

ORDINANCE NO. 1972-0621 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON, TEMPORARILY 
ADJUSTING SEWER AVERAGING FOR SUMMER CONSUMPTION CHARGE FOR 

CALENDAR YEAR 2021 
 

WHEREAS, the City has duly passed Ordinances basing summer sewer rates in part on an 
averaging of winter water consumption; and 
 
WHEREAS, Shelton Municipal Code Chapter 14.28 assigns the months of November, 
December, January, February, and March as the months for calculating the average summer 
consumption charge; and  
 
WHEREAS, due to necessary adjustments that increased the November billing for many 
customers, the City Council, in the interest of fairness to customers, wishes to temporarily 
modify the averaging to exclude the month of November 2020 in the calculation for 2021; and 
 
WHEREAS, this Ordinance will be in effect only for the months June, July, August, September, 
and October 2021 after which the Ordinance will be null and void. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the City Council of the City of Shelton, Washington, as 
follows: 

 
Section 1. 

 
The averaging methodology contained in 14.28.020 (C) and 14.28.040 (C) of the Shelton 
Municipal Code is temporarily suspended. During the billing months of June, July, August, 
September, and October of 2021, the consumption charge for each such month shall be based on 
the average water consumption of the preceding billing months of December 2020 and January, 
February, and March of 2021 recorded for that account. 
 

Section 2. 
 
This Ordinance will become null and void on November 1, 2021, at which point City staff shall 
resume application of existing Shelton Municipal Code Chapter 14.28.020 (C) and 14.28.040 
(C).  
 

Section 3. 
 
This ordinance shall become effective five days from the date of passage and publication. 
 
INTRODUCED the 20th day of July 2021. 
 
ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Shelton, Mason County, Washington at a regular 
open public meeting held the 3rd day of August 2021. 
 
 
Passed this ______ day of _________________ 2021. 

 
 



  

 
_____________________ 
Kevin Dorcy, Mayor 
 
  
AUTHENTICATED:  
 
_____________________ 
Donna Nault, City Clerk 
 
 



Council Briefing Form  Revised 07/01/2020 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item G2) 

Touch Date: 06/14/2021  
Brief Date: 07/20/2021        
Action Date: 08/03/2021   

Department: Public Works (EM&R) 
   
Presented By: Jay Harris 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
   Roller Surplus 

 
  ATTACHMENTS: 
    Resolution No. 1203-0621  

   

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  JOH 

 
 

 
Finance Director   

 
 

 
Attorney  

 
 

 
City Clerk  

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
The EM&R Department is requesting authorization from Council to surplus its 1995 – Bomag BW 120 AD 
Double Drum Roller. The EM&R Department purchased a new 47” Bomag BW 120 SL-5 Double Drum Roller 
last year and no longer needs this aging vehicle in the fleet. The newer roller provides increased efficiency due 
to greater compaction, greater ergonomic controls and an improved water spray bar assembly. The O&M 
(Operations and Maintenance) costs and purchase of the newer more efficient equipment have driven this 
decision. The EM&R Department will send the Bomag BW 120 AD to the Department of Enterprise Services for 
them to surplus the roller.  

 
Asset Information: Vehicle 1995 Bomag BW 120 AD Double Drum Roller, Asset # 1261C, VIN 
#101170510420, 1,076 Hours. Per Machinerytrader.com worth about $6,000.00 if sold to a private party.  
   
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
Council can choose to not surplus this piece of equipment but the value can potentially decrease the longer it 
remains a City asset. 
   
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
Estimated value $6,000.00.  
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
Further information can be obtained through the Public Works Department 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
Staff requests a reading of Resolution No. 1203-0621 and: “I move to adopt Resolution Number 1203-0621, a 
resolution declaring a 1995 Bomag double drum roller surplus and authorizing its disposal in a manner 
provided by law”. 



RESOLUTION NO.  1203-0621 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON DECLARING CITY 
PROPERTY SURPLUS TO THE NEEDS OF THE CITY, AND DISPOSING OF SUCH 

PROPERTY FOR THE COMMON BENEFIT. 
 

 
WHEREAS, RCW 35A.11.010 and 35A.79.010 allow a municipal code city to dispose of 
property for the common benefit; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City owns equipment that is no longer needed in order to perform the 
business of the EM&R Department; and 
 
WHEREAS, a public hearing is not required for the surplus of this item, as it was not 
originally purchased for a public utility. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Shelton, 
Washington, as follows: 
 

Section 1. 
 

1. The property of the City of Shelton EM&R Department, shown below, is hereby 
declared surplus to the needs of the City and no longer necessary for City of 
Shelton service: 
 

Vehicle License# Asset# VIN# Mileage Surplus Est. 
Value 

1995 Bomag 
BW 120AD3 
double drum 
roller 

N/A 1261C 101170510420 1,076 
Hrs 

Complete 
Roller 

$6,000.00 

 
2. Disposal of property listed above is declared to be for the common benefit. 

 
3. Disposal of the property herein declared surplus will be disposed of in the 

manner provided by law. 
 
INTRODUCED on this 20th day of July 2021 and PASSED by the City Council of the City 
of Shelton on this 3rd day of August 2021. 
 
 
                                                                          _______________________________ 
ATTEST:                                                                Mayor Dorcy 
 
   
____________________________  
City Clerk 

 
 


	1 Agenda_20210803
	2 2021 Looking Ahead
	3 Vouchers_20210803
	2 Voucher
	3 Voucher

	4 Veterans Village Update_20210708
	7/8/2021 Status Updates

	5 Draft Minutes_20210406
	COUNCILMEMBERS AND PERSONNEL

	6 Draft Minutes_20210420
	COUNCILMEMBERS AND PERSONNEL

	7 Draft Minutes_20210427_Study Session
	COUNCILMEMBERS AND PERSONNEL
	ANNOUNCEMENT OF NEXT MEETING
	None
	ADJOURN
	Mayor Dorcy adjourned the meeting at 7:53 p.m.

	8 MCHS-Shelton LT Fund report qtr2 - 2021
	9 New Rack Card
	10 City of Shelton_Water System Comprehensive Plan Update_AGENCY DRAFT_July 2021_PrintReady
	City of Shelton, Water System Comprehensive Plan Update, Agency Review Draft, July 2021
	Contents
	Executive Summary
	ES.1    Introduction
	ES.2    Water Requirements
	ES.3    Description of Water System
	ES.4    Water Use Efficiency
	ES.5    System Analysis
	ES.6    Water Quality
	ES.7    Source Water Protection
	ES.8    Operations and Maintenance
	ES.9    Capital Improvement Program
	ES.10    Financial Plan

	Chapter 1 - Introduction
	1.1    Purpose
	1.2    Objectives
	1.3    Location
	1.4    Ownership and Management
	1.5    Environmental Assessment
	1.6    Approval Process
	1.7    DOH Water System Plan Checklist

	Chapter 2 - Water Requirements
	2.1    Introduction
	2.2    Land Use
	2.3    Demographic Analysis
	2.4    Historical Production and Consumption
	2.4.1    Historical Water Production
	2.4.2    Historical Water Accounts
	2.4.3    Historical Water Consumption
	2.4.4    Historical Seasonal Water Consumption
	2.4.5    Distribution System Leakage
	2.4.6    Equivalent Residential Units

	2.5    Projected Water Demand
	2.5.1    Demand Projection Parameters
	2.5.2    Account Projections
	2.5.3    ERU Projections
	2.5.4    Projected ADD and MDD
	2.5.5    Projected Demand by Pressure Zone


	Chapter 3 - Description of the Water System
	3.1    Introduction
	3.2    Existing Water System
	3.2.1    Location
	3.2.2    System Background
	3.2.3    Land Use and Zoning

	3.3    Neighboring/Adjacent Purveyors
	3.3.1    Port of Shelton
	3.3.2    Washington Corrections Center
	3.3.3    Washington State Patrol Academy
	3.3.4    Neighboring Group A and Group B Water Systems

	3.4    Inventory of Existing Facilities
	3.5    Water System Updates Since the 2010 Water Plan
	3.5.1    Distribution System Overview
	3.5.2    Source Supply
	3.5.3    Storage
	3.5.4    Booster Pump Stations

	3.6    Policies and Criteria
	3.6.1    Water Service and Service Extensions
	3.6.2    System Analysis Criteria
	3.6.3    City of Shelton Comprehensive Plan Policies
	3.6.4    Financial Policies


	Chapter 4 - Water Conservation Plan
	4.1    Introduction
	4.2    Conservation Program Development and Implementation
	4.3    Data Collection
	4.4    Demand Forecasting
	4.5    WUE Measures
	4.5.1    WUE Goal 1: Reduce Total Consumption
	4.5.2    WUE Goal 2: Maintain Low Distribution System Leakage
	4.5.3    WUE Goal 3: Reduce Residential Water Consumption

	4.6    Enhanced Conservation Measures
	4.7    Distribution System Leakage
	4.7.1    Water Loss Control Action Plan

	4.8    WUE Program Implementation
	4.8.1    Public Notice
	4.8.2    WUE Reports

	4.9    Use of Reclaimed Water

	Chapter 5 - System Analysis
	5.1    Introduction
	5.2    System Analysis Planning Scenarios
	5.3    Distribution System and Planned Improvements
	5.4    Supply Analysis
	5.4.1    Criteria and Methodology
	5.4.2    Existing Sources of Supply
	5.4.3    System-Wide Analysis
	5.4.4    System-Wide Supply Recommendations
	5.4.5    Supply Analysis by Pressure Zone
	5.4.6    Supply Recommendations Summary

	5.5    Storage Analysis
	5.5.1    Storage Components
	5.5.2    Criteria and Methodology
	5.5.3    Storage Requirements
	5.5.4    Storage Analysis
	5.5.5    Storage Recommendations

	5.6    Hydraulic Model Update and Calibration
	5.6.1    Hydraulic Model Calibration Overview and Methodology
	5.6.2    Model Recommendations

	5.7    Distribution System Analysis
	5.7.1    Key Hydraulic Model Scenarios
	5.7.2    Model Assumptions for Improvement Projects
	5.7.3    Evaluation Criteria
	5.7.4    Analysis
	5.7.5    Recommended Improvements

	5.8    Limiting Capacity Analysis
	5.8.1    Data sources
	5.8.2    Source Limiting Capacity
	5.8.3    Treatment Limiting Capacity
	5.8.4    Storage Limiting Capacity
	5.8.5    Distribution / Transmission Limiting Capacity

	5.9    Summary of System Analysis Recommendations
	5.9.1    Recommended Supply Projects
	5.9.2    Recommended Storage Projects
	5.9.3    Recommended Pressure Zone Improvement Projects
	5.9.4    Recommended Pump Station Improvements
	5.9.5    Recommended Fire Flow Deficiency Improvements
	5.9.6    Shelton Hills Improvements

	5.10    Areas of Shelton Urban Growth Area Not Currently Served by City

	Chapter 6 - Water Quality
	6.1    Water Quality Plan and Treatment
	6.1.1    Treatment
	6.1.2    Water Quality Monitoring

	6.2     State and Federal Regulatory Requirements
	6.2.1    Revised Total Coliform Rule
	6.2.2    Stage 1 and 2 Disinfectants/Disinfection Byproducts Rules
	6.2.3    Groundwater Rule
	6.2.4    Arsenic Rule
	6.2.5    Radionuclides Rule
	6.2.6    Inorganic Chemical Analysis
	6.2.7    Organic Chemical Analysis
	6.2.8    Lead and Copper Rule
	6.2.9    Unregulated Contaminant Monitoring Rule
	6.2.10    Consumer Confidence Report Rule
	6.2.11    Public Notification Rule
	6.2.12    Future Regulations

	6.3    Recommended Improvements

	Chapter 7 - Source Water Protection
	7.1    Introduction
	7.2    Wellhead Protection Program
	7.3    Susceptibility Assessment
	7.4    Wellhead Protection Area
	7.5    Inventory of Potential Contamination Threats
	7.6    Documentation of Notification Letters
	7.7    Management Strategies and Implementation Tasks
	7.8    Wellhead Protection Implementation Tasks
	7.9    Contingency Plan
	7.10    Spill/Incident Response Planning

	Chapter 8 - Operations and Maintenance
	8.1    Introduction
	8.2    Water System Management and Personnel
	8.2.1    Public Works Director, City Engineer, and Superintendent of Public Works
	8.2.2    Operations Staff
	8.2.3    Cross-Connection Control Specialist
	8.2.4    City Manager
	8.2.5    Mayor and City Council

	8.3    Operator Training
	8.4    Operating Procedures and Preventative Maintenance
	8.4.1    Routine System Operation
	8.4.2    Preventive Maintenance Program
	8.4.3    Equipment, Supplies, and Chemical Listing
	8.4.4    Vendor Contacts

	8.5    Water Quality Sampling Procedures and Program
	8.6    Emergency Response Program
	8.6.1    Water System Personnel, Emergency Call-up List, and Notification Procedures
	8.6.2    Vulnerability Analysis
	8.6.3    Contingency Operational Plan

	8.7    Safety Procedures
	8.8    Cross-Connection Control Program
	8.9    Customer Complaint Response Program
	8.10    Record-Keeping and Reporting
	8.11    Operations and Maintenance Deficiencies
	8.12    Operations and Maintenance Recommendations

	Chapter 9 - Capital Improvement Program
	9.1    Introduction
	9.1.1    Capital Project Categories
	9.1.2    Capital Project Types

	9.2     Cost Estimating Assumptions
	9.2.1    Cost Estimate Level
	9.2.2    Pipeline Unit Costs
	9.2.3    Supply Costs
	9.2.4    Storage Costs
	9.2.5    Pump Station Costs
	9.2.6    Miscellaneous Costs
	9.2.7    Cost Factors and Contingency

	9.3    Cost Summary
	9.4    Project Descriptions
	9.5    CIP Cost Summary

	Chapter 10 - Financial Plan
	10.1    Introduction
	10.2     Historical Financial Performance
	10.2.1    Current Water Rates, Fees, and Charges
	10.2.2    Historical Financial Operations
	10.2.3    Outstanding Debt

	10.3    Financial Policies
	10.4    Financial Forecast
	10.4.1    Projected Capital Improvement Projects
	10.4.2    Projected Operating Revenues and Expenditures
	10.4.3    Financial Forecast – Water Rate Increases, No New Debt

	10.5    Available Funding Assistance and Financing Resources
	10.5.1    Grants and Low Cost Loans

	10.6    Financial Analysis Summary
	10.7    Recommendations


	Appendices
	Appendix 1A NOTICE OF DETERMINATION OF NONSIGNIFICANCE (DNS)
	Appendix 1B STATE ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY ACT (SEPA)
	Appendix 1C AGENCY COMMENT LETTERS AND RESPONSES
	Appendix 1D LOCAL GOVERNMENT CONSISTENCY DETERMINATION FORM
	Appendix 1E ORDINANCES AND APPROVALS
	Appendix 1F WATER SYSTEM PLAN SUBMITTAL FORM
	Appendix 3A INTERLOCAL AGREEMENTS
	Utility Service Agreements between Regional Partners
	Port of Shelton Interim Compliance Agreement

	Appendix 3B WATER FACILITIES FORM
	Appendix 3C WATER RIGHTS DOCUMENTATION
	Appendix 3D CITY OF SHELTON DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS
	Appendix 3E COMPREHENSIVE PLANS
	Excerpts from City of Shelton Comprehensive Plan, November 2017
	Excerpts from Mason County Comprehensive Plan, 2036

	Appendix 4A WUE PERFORMANCE REPORT
	Appendix 4B WUE PUBLIC EDUCATION
	Appendix 5A HYDRAULIC MODEL CALIBRATION
	Appendix 5B WATER RIGHTS SELF-ASSESSMENT
	Appendix 6A DRINKING WATER QUALITY MONITORING PROGRAM
	Appendix 6B CONSUMER CONFIDENCE REPORT
	Appendix 6C COLIFORM MONITORING PLAN AND DETECTION ADVISORY
	Coliform Monitoring Plan
	Boil Water Notice and Coliform Detection Advisory

	Appendix 7A WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN
	Appendix 8A EMERGENCY RESPONSE PLAN
	Appendix 8B O&M INFORMATION FOR SCADA AND CHLORINATION SYSTEMS
	Appendix 8C MATERIAL SAFETY DATA SHEETS
	Appendix 8D CROSS-CONNECTION CONTROL PLAN
	Appendix 9A CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM PROJECT SHEETS
	Supply Projects
	Storage Projects
	Pressure Zone Improvement Projects
	Pump Station Projects
	Distribution Projects
	General Projects

	Appendix 10A FINANCIAL POLICIES

	Tables
	Executive Summary Tables
	Table ES.1 Historical Water Use
	Table ES.2 ERU Projections for Low, Medium, High Demand Scenarios
	Table ES.3 Projected ADD and MDD for Low, Medium, High Demand Scenarios
	Table ES.4 CIP Summary by Project Type
	Table ES.5 CIP Summary by Project Category

	Chapter 1 Table
	Table 1.1 DOH Water System Plan Checklist

	Chapter 2 Tables
	Table 2.1 Demographic Growth Rates
	Table 2.2 Historical Water Use
	Table 2.3 Historical Number of Connections
	Table 2.4 Consumption by Customer Class (gpd)
	Table 2.5 Water Consumption per Account by Class (gpd)
	Table 2.6 Historical Distribution System Leakage
	Table 2.7 Historical ERUs
	Table 2.8 Demand Projection Parameters
	Table 2.9 Annexation 2041 Water Demands
	Table 2.10 Account Projections by Customer Type
	Table 2.11 ERU Projections for Low, Medium, High Demand Scenarios
	Table 2.12 Projected ADDs for Low, Medium, High Demand Scenarios
	Table 2.13 Projected MDDs for Low, Medium, High Demand Scenarios
	Table 2.14 Growth in ADD by Pressure Zone

	Chapter 3 Tables
	Table 3.1 Pressure Zone Summary 
	Table 3.2 Water Mains by Diameter
	Table 3.3 City of Shelton Water Right Summary
	Table 3.4 Source Pumping Capacity
	Table 3.5 Disinfection Metering Pumps
	Table 3.6 City of Shelton Pumping Ability to Serve
	Table 3.7 Storage Reservoir Summary
	Table 3.8 Booster Pump Station Summary
	Table 3.9 Water Service and Service Extensions
	Table 3.10 System Analysis Criteria

	Chapter 4 Table
	Table 4.1 Total Demand Projection with WUE Goal 1

	Chapter 5 Tables
	Table 5.1 Projected Demands for Medium Demand Scenario
	Table 5.2 Existing Supplies with 2041 Demands
	Table 5.3 Future Supplies with 2040 Demands
	Table 5.4 Storage Criteria
	Table 5.5 Existing, Dead, and Operational Storage
	Table 5.6 Required Equalizing Storage by Pressure Zone
	Table 5.7 Required Nested Standby Storage/FSS by Pressure Zone
	Table 5.8 System-Wide Storage Analysis
	Table 5.9 System-Wide Storage Analysis with Improvements
	Table 5.10 Future Storage by Pressure Zone with 2041 Demands
	Table 5.11 Calibration Summary Results
	Table 5.12 2040 Limiting Capacity
	Table 5.13 Recommended Improvements for Fire Flow Deficiencies

	Chapter 6 Tables
	Table 6.1 Drinking Water Regulations Water System Plan Update
	Table 6.2 Exceedances in Past 10 Years
	Table 6.3 Outlines other Proposed Future Regulatory Requirements that the City is Monitoring

	Chapter 8 Tables
	Table 8.1 Vendor Contacts
	Table 8.2 Emergency Call-up List
	Table 8.3 Record-Keeping and Reporting
	Table 8.4 America’s Water Infrastructure Act Requirements

	Chapter 9 Tables
	Table 9.1 Pipeline Unit Cost
	Table 9.2 Supply Unit Costs
	Table 9.3 Reservoir Unit Costs
	Table 9.4 Pump Station Costs
	Table 9.5 Miscellaneous Costs
	Table 9.6 Contingency Costs
	Table 9.7 Capital Improvement Program Summary
	Table 9.8 CIP Summary by Project Type
	Table 9.9 CIP Summary by Project Category

	Chapter 10 Tables
	Table 10.1 2020 Water Base Rate Monthly Meter Charge
	Table 10.2 2020 Consumption Charges
	Table 10.3 Current General Facility Charges
	Table 10.4 Historical Operating Revenue
	Table 10.5 Historical Operating Expenses
	Table 10.6 Projected CIP Projects Expenditures
	Table 10.7 Projected Operating Revenue
	Table 10.8 Projected Operating Expenditures
	Table 10.9 Summary Projected Cash Flow (2020-2030)


	Figures
	Executive Summary Figures
	Figure ES.1 Future Service Area with Existing Land Use by Parcel
	Figure ES.2 Future Service Area with Future Land Use
	Figure ES.3 Historical and Projected Average and Maximum Day Demands
	Figure ES.4 Shelton Area Map
	Figure ES.5 Shelton Existing Water System
	Figure ES.6 Hydraulic Profile
	Figure ES.7 Fire Flow Requirements
	Figure ES.8 Capital Improvement Project Projects

	Chapter 2 Figures
	Figure 2.1 Future Service Area with Existing Land Use by Parcel
	Figure 2.2 Future Service Area with Future Land Use
	Figure 2.3 Historical Water Production
	Figure 2.4 Historical Water Consumption by Customer Class
	Figure 2.5 Percent of Accounts by Customer Class
	Figure 2.6 2016 Historical Water Consumed per Account
	Figure 2.7 Seasonal Consumption by Customer Class
	Figure 2.8 Historical and Projected Average and Maximum Day Demands
	Figure 2.9 Existing Estimated Demand by Pressure Zone (2020)
	Figure 2.10 Estimated Future Demand by Pressure Zone (2041)

	Chapter 3 Figures
	Figure 3.1 Shelton Area Map
	Figure 3.2 Shelton Urban Growth Area Existing Land Use by Parcel
	Figure 3.3 Shelton Urban Growth Area Future Land Use
	Figure 3.4 Neighboring Water Systems
	Figure 3.5 Shelton Existing Water System
	Figure 3.6 Hydraulic Profile

	Chapter 5 Figures
	Figure 5.1 Shelton Hills Development by 2041 Planning Year
	Figure 5.2 Supply by Pressure Zone Analysis (Left: All Sources in Service; Right: All Sources in Service with Recommended Improvement)
	Figure 5.3 Supply by Pressure Zone Analysis (Left: Largest Source Out-of-Service; Right: Largest Source Out-of-Service with Recommended Improvements)
	Figure 5.4 Storage Components 
	Figure 5.5 Hydrant Flow Test Locations
	Figure 5.6 Static Calibration Results
	Figure 5.7 Maximum Pressures during 2021 ADD Conditions
	Figure 5.8 Minimum Pressures during 2041 PHD Conditions
	Figure 5.9 Maximum Velocity during 2041 MDD Conditions
	Figure 5.10 Fire Flow Requirements
	Figure 5.11 Residual Pressure during 2041 MDD + FF Conditions
	Figure 5.12 Areas above Highest Recommended Customer Elevation
	Figure 5.13 Angleside Reservoir PS Control Improvements Diagram
	Figure 5.14 Recommended Improvement Projects
	Figure 5.15 Assumptions for Service in Unserved Areas

	Chapter 7 Figures
	Figure 7.1 Recessional Aquifer Capture Zones
	Figure 7.2 Sea Level Aquifer Capture Zones
	Figure 7.3 Deep Aquifer Capture Zones

	Chapter 8 Figure
	Figure 8.1 Public Works Organizational Chart

	Chapter 9 Figure
	Figure 9.1 Capital Improvement Program Projects

	Chapter 10 Figure
	Figure 10.1 Financial Forecast


	Abbreviations 


	11 Shelton WSP Presentation_2021_0720
	Water System Comprehensive Plan Update
	// Agenda
	// Thank you to the City staff members who have contributed to this project
	// This Plan is an update to the 2010 Water System Plan
	// The Plan documents the current status of the water system and evaluates future needs
	Chapter 1 – Introduction
	// Chapter 1 outlines important Plan content 
	Chapter 2 – Water Requirements
	// The City’s water system is supplied by three different wells
	// Historical average water production from 2009 to 2020 remained the same
	// Zoning, demographic projections, and historical trends inform demand projections
	// Projected water demand is the foundational building block for the Plan
	// Three scenarios encompass the likely range of future water needs
	Chapter 3 – Description of the Water System
	// The future water service area mostly follows the Shelton Urban Growth Area
	// The water system is divided into five pressure zones (PZ)
	// Facilities that serve the City include:
	// The hydraulic profile shows how the system functions
	// Chapter 3 also includes summary of planning considerations for water system
	Chapter 4 – Water Conservation Plan
	// Chapter 4 presents the City’s Conservation and Water Use Efficiency (WUE) Program
	// City has three WUE goals and a Water Loss Control Action Plan
	// WUE Efficiency Program represents low demand scenario
	Chapter 5 – System Analysis
	// The existing water system was evaluated under 2031 and 2041 future conditions
	// Recommend new well and new Upper Mt. View BPS to provide supply redundancy
	// Storage improvements are recommended to address deficiencies
	// Hydraulic model indicates some high system pressures in Angleside and High School PZs
	// Areas with low system pressures have recommended improvement projects
	// Hydraulic model shows no maximum velocities above 8 feet per second in pipes
	// Fire flow requirements are based on the City’s zoning map
	// Areas with low available fire flow have recommended improvement projects
	// Improvements were recommended to meet deficiencies shown in previous slides
	Chapter 6 – Water Quality
	// Chapter discusses the City’s water quality requirements for sources and distribution
	// Consumer Confidence Report is released annually
	Chapter 7 – Source Water Protection
	// Robinson Noble updated the City’s wellhead protection plan (WHPP)
	// Capture zones for the three aquifers that supply the wells are included in WHPP
	Chapter 8 – Operations & Maintenance
	// Public Works Organizational Chart was recently updated
	// Operations & Maintenance efforts are documented in the WSP
	Chapter 9 – Capital Improvement Program
	// The Capital Improvement Program (CIP) helps City prioritize and execute projects
	// CIP projects are identified by type of infrastructure involved
	// Capital projects were allocated into three types
	// CIP includes summary of project costs and recommended year for implementation
	// Looking at CIP by project type and planning horizon helps guide funding decisions
	// Looking at CIP by infrastructure category shows where funding could be allocated
	Chapter 10 – Financial Plan
	// Financial plan summarizes the financial status of the water utility and ability to finance the CIP
	// City will have adequate funds to cover projected operations and CIP costs through 2030
	// Conclusion from Financial Plan
	Next Steps
	// Next Steps
	Questions??

	12 Briefing_PUD 3 Franchise Agreement
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	13 PUD Franchise Final
	14 Public Hearing Notice - Ordinance No. 1963-1220
	15 Agenda Briefing_Sewer Averaging
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	16 June 2021 Sewer Averaging ordinanceV2_Clean
	17 Briefing Resolution 1203-0621 Roller Surplus
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	18 Resolution 1203-0621 Surplus Equip_Roller BK Edits


{"type":"Document","isBackSide":false,"languages":["en-us"],"usedOnDeviceOCR":true}

